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CTON, VILLAGE OF:

Petition for Act respecting, 21. Reported, 108. Bill (No. 34), introduced

and referred, 109. Reported. 180. Second reading, 189. House goes

into Coimmittee on, 209. Third reading, 222. R. A., 242. (11 Geo.

V. c. 94.)

ACCOUNTS, PUBLIC : See Public Accounts.

ADDRESS: See Lieutenant Governor.

AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATIONS ACT:

Bill (No. 99), introduced to amend, 68. Second reading, 89. House goes

into Ccfmmittee on, 99. Third reading, 235. R. A., 242. (11 Geo.

V. c. 29.)

AGRICULTURAL COLLEGE:

Report presented, 307. (Sessional Papers No. SO.} Printed.

AGRICULTURAL DEVELOPMENT :

1. Bill (No. 97), introduced for the promotion of, 68. Resolutions intro-

duced; Lieutenant-Governor's recommendation signified; passed through
Committee and referred to Bill, 105-7. Second reading and referred to

Select Committee to be named, 107. Committee named, 110. Reported,

127. House goes into Committee on, 250. Third reading, 321. R. A.,

387. (11 'Geo. V. c. 32.)

2. Bill (No. 98), introduced to finance, 68. Second reading and referred to

Select Committee to be named, 10>7. Committee named, 110. Reported,
127. House goes into Committee on, 253. Third reading, 321. B. A.,

387. (11 Geo. V. c. 31.)

AGRICULTURAL AND EXPERIMENTAL UNION:

Report presented, 319. (Sessional Papers No. 32.} Printed.

AGRICULTURAL SOCIETIES:

Report presented, 86. (Sessional Papers No. 42.) Printed.

AGRICULTURAL SOCIETIES ACT:
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Bill (No. 100), introduced to amend, 68. Second reading, 89. House goe*
into Committee on, 99, 253. Third reading, 2.53. R. A., 387. (11 Oeo.

V. c. 30.)

AGRICULTURE AXD COLONIZATION :

1. Committee appointed, 29. Eeport, 352.

2. Members added, 30, 36.

AGRICULTURE, DEPARTMENT OF:

1. Report presented, 307. (Sessional Papers No. 29.) Printed.

2. Report of Statistics Branch presented, 307. (Sessional Papers No. 46.)

Printed.

ALGONQUIN PARK:

1. Question as to purchase of licenses within limits of, 185.

2. Question as to timber sold in, 222.

AMUSEMENTS TAX ACT: See Billmrd Rooms.

ANATOMICAL ACT:

Bill (No. 167), introduced, 172. Second reading and referred to Legal

Committee, 189. No report.

APPLE EXPORT : See Fruit.

ARCHITECTURE :

Bill (No. 227), introduced respecting the practice of, 253. Second rea'linir

and referred to a Select Comlmittee, 328.

ARCHIVES PROVINCIAL:

Reports presented, 276, 319. (Sessional Papers No. 52.) Printed.

ART PURPOSES:

Committee appointed, 20. No report.

ASSESSMENT LAW:

1. Bill (No. 70), introduced to amend, 31. Second reading and referred to

Municipal Committee, 96. Reported, 320.

2. Bill (No. 83), introduced to amend, 44. Second reading and referred to

Municipal Committee, 136. Reported, 320.

3. Bill (No. 87), introduced to amend, 44. Second reading negatived, 96.
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4. Bill (No. 92), introduced to amend, 66. Second reading and referred to

Municipal Committee, 98. Reported, 320.

5. Bill (No. 103), introduced to amend, 81. Second reading and referred to

Municipal Committee, 155. Reported, 320.

6. Bill (No. 140), introduced to amend, 131. Second reading and referred

to Municipal Committee, 154. Reported, 320.

7. Bill (No. 149), introduced to amend, 141. Order for second reading

discharged, 339.

8. Bill (No. 151), introduced to amend, 145. Second reading and referred

to Municipal Committee, 175. Reported, 320.

9. Bill (No. 190), introduced to amend, 200. Second reading negatived, 231.

10. Bill (No. 260), introduced "The Assessment Amendment Act, 1921," 321.

Second reading, 339. House goes into Committee on, 375. Third read-

ing, 377. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 67.)

ATHLETIC COMMISSION: See Ontario Athletic Commission.

ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF:

Question as to any amounts received by any Official, for Counsel Fees, or

costs, upon appeals, or motions) to quash convictions re O.T.A., or other

legal matters, 167.

AUDIT ACT:

Bill No. 133), introduced to amend, 120. Second reading, 155. House goes

into Committee on, 164. Third reading, 235. R. A., 242. (11 Geo.

V. c. 9.)

AUDITOR, PROVINCIAL:

Report presented, 165. (Sessional Papers No. 54.) Printed.

AUTOMOBILE MABKERS:

Question as to where purchased ; if tenders asked for, 58. See Motor Cars.

ACKUS, B. W.:

Return ordered, of correspondence etc., relating to Lake of the Wbocb Pulp

Concession and White Dog Rapids Water Power, 380. Not brought

down.

BEECHWOOD CEMETERY COMPANY:

Petition for Act respecting, 21. Reported, 63. Bill (No. 22), introduced

and referred, 64. Reported, 138. Second reading, 154. House goes
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into Committee on, 173. Third reading, 194. R. A., 242. (11 Geo.

V. c. 136.)

BEE-KEEPERS' ASSOCIATION :

Keport presented, 307. (Sessional Papers No. 87.) Printed.

BELANGER, J. N. :

Question as to superannuation of, 150.

BELLEVILLE, CITY OF:

Petition for Act respecting, 21. Reported, 32. Bill (No. 3), introduced

and referred, 34. Reported, 71. Second reading, 97. House goes into

Committee on, 132. Third reading, 145. R. A., 242. (11 Geo. V.

c. 95.)

BILLIARD ROOMS, POOL ROOMS AND BOWLING ALLEYS :

Resolutions introduced; Lieutenant-Governor's Assent signified; passed

through Committee and referred to Bill, 176. Bill (No. 178), intro-

duced to license, 181. Second reading, 195. House goes into Committee

on, 224. Third reading, 236. R. A., 242. (11 Geo. Y. c. 14.)

BILLS :

1. Introduced nem. con., 160. 171. 194. 200. 235. 260.

2. On suspended Rule, 201. 245. 308.

BILLS or SALE AND CHATTEL MORTGAGE ACT :

Bill (No. 222), introduced to amend, 252. Second reading, 309. House

goes into Committee on, 326. Third reading, 333. R. A., 387. (11

Geo. V. c. 50.)

BIRTHS, MARRIAGES AND DEATHS:

Report presented, 139. (Sessional Papers No. #0.) Printed.

BOAL, R. A. :

Question as to identity of, 82.

BOND BUILDING:

Question as to leasing of, etc., 1'33. See Buildings.

BRANTFORD, CITY OF:

Petition for Act respecting, 21. Reported, 63. Bill (No. 7), introduced and

referred, 64. Reported, 180. Second reading, 189. Not proceeded with.
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BREAD :

Bill (No. 113), introduced to amend Municipal Act respecting deliyery of,
90. See Municipal Law, 10.

BRUTON, TOWNSHIP OF :

Question as to settlement -between Hydro-Electric and, as to purchase of

properties in, 243.

BUILDINGS :

Return ordered, showing what buildings, in Toronto, are employed for Gov-
ernment use, outside Legislative Buildings, 151. Presented, 372.

(Sessional Papers No. 91.) Not printed.

BURDEN, 8. K. :

Question as to leave of absence, or suspension, 114.

BUREAU OF MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS ACT:

Bill (No. 108), introduced to amend, 82. Second reading and referred to

Municipal Committee, 155.

BURLINGTON BEACH ACT:

Bill (No. 181), introduced .to amend, 193. Second reading, 224. House

goes into Committee on, 230. Third reading, 376. R. A., 387. (11 Geo.

V. c. 34.) , r

ANADA HIGHWAYS ACT:-

Question as to submission of necessary Plans, under they 111.

CANADIAN COPPER COMPANY :

1. Resolution that it is the duty of the Government to institute proceedings
under the Mining Tax Act, to recover from the, areas of taxes, etc.,

and Debate on adjourned, 70. Debate not resumed.

2. Question as to what lands, or mining rights, in Sudbury Nickel Belt,

leased- to, etc., 100.

3. Return ordered, of correspondence with George E. Buchanan relating to

leases of nickel bearing lands in Township of Creighton, 117. Presented,

171. (Sessional Papers No. 79.) Not printed.

CANADIAN NATIONALITY:

Question as to printing of pamphlets, etc., 47.

CARLETON, COUNTY OF :

Petition for Act respecting, 22. Reported, 79. Bill (No. 44), introduced
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and referred, 81. Reported, 2.27. Second reading, 249. House goes
into Committee on, 257. Third reading, 271. R. A., 387. (11 Geo.

V. c. 96.)

CARS: See Motor Vehicles. Motor Cars.

CEMETERIES ACT:

Bill (No. 110), introduced to amend, 88. Second reading and referred to

Municipal Committee, 118. Reported, 352. House .goes into Com-
mittee on, 369. Third reading, 376. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 86.)

CENTRAL ONTARIO POWER SYSTEM :

Question as to what work were acquired by Government, on purchase of, 362.

CHARRON, PIERBB: .

Petition for Act respecting the Title to certain lands, devised under the

Will of, 38. Reported, 79. Bill (No. 50), introduced and referred to

the Commissioners of Estate Bills, 88. Reported adversely, 166.

C IIATHAM, CITY OF :

Petition for Act respecting, 22. Reported, 33. Bill (No. 18), introduced

and referred, 35. Reported, 104. Second reading, 118. House goes

into Committee on, 132. Third reading, 146. R. A., 242. (11 Geo,

V. c. 97.)

CHILDREN:

1. Bill (No. 60), introduced respecting the Legitimation of, by subsequent

intermarriage of their Parents, 25. Second reading and referred to the

Legal -Committee, 98. Reported, 188. House goes into Committee on,

224. Third reading, 236. R. A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c. 53.)

2. Bill (No. 109), introduced for the protection of, of unmarried parents,

88. Second reading, 126. House goes into Committee, 165. 206. Third

reading, 353. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 54.)

3. Bill (No. 120), introduced respecting the adoption of, 97. Second read-

ing, 189. House goes into Committee on, 205, 223. Third reading.

236. R. A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c. 55.)

4. Question as to data, with regard to employment of, 322.

CHILDREN, NEGLECTED AND DEPENDENT:

Report presented, 372. (Sessional Papers No. 27.) Printed.

CHIPPAWA COMMISSION, 1920: See Members. Privileges and Elections.
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%

CHIROPODY :

Bill (No. 150), introduced to regulate the practice of, 145. Order for second

reading discharged, 158.

CIVIL SERVANTS :

Question as to the total number of inside, in employment; how many French

Canadians, 156. See Civil Service.

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSIONER :

Report presented, 276. (Sessional Papers No. 87.} Printed.

CIVIL SERVICE AND EMPLOYEES :

1. Motion for return of correspondence with J. H. Mallon, re naming a com-

mission in connection with appointments for; withdrawn, 37.

2.' Question as to number of, in service, 174.

3. Question as to number of, superannuated, etc., 185.

4. Question as to how many added, since November, 1919, 218.

5. Question as to leave of absence for military training, 246.

COATSWORTH, JUDGE :

Report of presented, on criminal justice and treatment of prisoners in United

States and Toronto, 2.27. (Sessional Papers No. 56.) Printer!.

COLE, A. A. :

Question as to appointment of, on Peat Committee, 115.

COMBINES, GROCERS:

Question as to fees paid in, ref 99.

COMMISSIONS :

1. Question as to number of, appointed since November llth, 1919, and those

appointed by order of the Legislative Assembly, in 1920, 44-7.

2. Question as to number appointed sdnce November 13th, 1919, names of,

etc., 52-4.

COMMITTEES, STANDING:

1. Resolution re appointment of, 16, 20.

2. Members added, 30, 36.

COMMUNITY HALLS:

Question as to number of Municipalities, applying for assistance under, 66.
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COMMUNITY HALLS ACT:

Bill (No. 204), introduced to amend, 227. Second reading, 249. House goes

into Committee on, 258. Third reading, 321. R. A., 387. (11. Geo.

V. c. 70.)

CONFINEMENT : See Women.

CONSOLIDATED REVENUE FUND:

Resolutions introduced; Lieutenant-Governor's recommendation signified;

passed through Committee and referred to Bill, 311-12. Bill (No. 252),

introduced for raising money on the credit of, 312. Second reading, 339.

House goes into Committee on, 371. Third reading, 378. R. A., 387.

(11 Geo. V. c. 7.)

CONVEYANCING AND LAAV OF PROPERTY ACT :

Bill (No. 192), introduced to amend, 206. Order for second reading dis-

charged, 329.

CO-OPERATIVE - CREDIT SOCIETIES :

Bill (No. 123), introduced respecting, 105. Second reading and referred to

the Legal Committee, 54. Recommended to be referred to a Special

Committee to be named, 188. Committee named, 314. Member added,

353. No report.

CORONERS :

Interim Report presented, 182. (Sessional Papers No. 80.) Printed.

COPORATIONS TAX ACT:

Resolutions introduced; Lieutenant-Governor's recommendation signified;

passed through Committee and referred to Bill, 120-23. Bill (No. 136),

introduced, 125. Second reading, 194. House goes into Committee on,

205,353. Third reading, 354. R, A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 12.)

COUNTIES REFORESTATION ACT:

Bill (No. 172), introduced to amend, 177. Second reading, 195. House goes

into Coimmittee on, 207. Third reading, 332. R. A., 387. (11 Geo.

V. c. 81.)

COUNTY JUDGES ACT:

Bill (No. 201), introduced to amend, 221. Second reading, 249. House

into Committee, 277, 306. Third reading, 353. R. A., 387. (11

Geo. V. c. 37.)
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CRIMINAL JUSTICE:

Report presented, of Judge Coatsworth, on, in United States and Toronto.

'227. (Sessional Papers No. 56.) Printed.

CROWN ATTORNEY:

Bill (No. 66), introduced respecting the office of, in the City of Toronto and

County of York, 30. Second reading, 98. House goes into Committee

on, 152, 212. Third reading, 236. B, A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c. 44.)

CROWN ATTORNEYS ACT:

Bill (No. 216), introduced to amend, 245. Second reading, 309. II -use

goes into Committee on, 325. Third reading, 333. B. A., 387. (11
Geo. V. c. 43.)

CROWN TIMBER INVESTIGATION:

Question re supply of Evidence to Counsel, 60.

CURRENT BATE OF INTEREST ACT:

Resolution introduced; lieutenant-Governor's recommendation signified;

passed through Committee and referred to Bill, 310. Bill (No. 251),

introduced, 312. Second reading, 338. House goes into Committee

on, 370. Third reading, 377. B. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 8.)

T\ A1RYMEN'<S ASSOCIATIONS:

Report presented, 307. (Sessional Papers No. 38.) Printed.

DAIRY STANDARDS ACT :

Bill (No. 9'5), introduced to amend, 68. Second reading, 87. House goes

into Committee on, 99. Motion for third reading and amendment pro-

posed and negatived, 071. Third' reading, 271. II. A., 387. (11

Geo. V. c. 75.)

DEHAITRE, J. H. :

1. Question as to appointment of, as License Inspector for Count}* of Pre-

cott, 128.

2. Question as to whether still acting, 150.

DESERTED WIVES AND CHILDREN:

Bill (No. 238), introduced respecting, 280. Order for second reading dis-

charged, 368.

DISTRICT NURSES:

Question as to number of motor cars purchased for, 57.
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DIVISION COURTS:

Report of Inspector presented, 38. (Sessional Papers No. 5.} Printed.

DIVISION COURTS ACT:

Bill (No. 200), introduced to amend, 217. Second reading and referred to

Legal Coimmittee, 244. Reported, 319. House goes into Committee

on, 336. Third reading, 353. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 3-8.)

DOG TAX AND SHEEP PROTECTION ACT :

1. Bill (No. 71), introduced to amend, 35. Dropped.

2. Bill (No. 155), introduced to amend, 160. Second reading and referred

to Committee on Agriculture and Colonization, 175. Reported, 352.

House goes into Committee on, 369. Third reading, 376. R. A., 387.

(11 Geo. V. c. 82.)

3. Bill (No. 244), introduced to amend, 300. Second reading and referred

to Committee on Agriculture and Colonization, 337. Reported, 352.

House goes into Comtmittee on, 369. Third reading, 376. See above, 2.

Dox QUIXOTE IN FINANCE:

Question as to purchase of pamphlet entitled, 202.

DOWER LAW:

Motion for Select Committee to consider the question of, and referred to

Select Committee on Bill relating to Liens of Mechanics and others, 381.

DOYLE RULE:

Question as to adoption of, in measurement of logs and timber, 84.

DRAINAGE, PROVINCIAL AID To :

Bill (No. 205), introduced respecting, 228. Second reading, 261. House

goes into Committee on, 283, 325. Third reading, 333. R. A., 387.

(11 Geo. V. c. 28.)

DUPUIS, GILBERT:

Question as to identity of, 220.

E DUCATION :

1. Bill (No. 62), introduced to provide free text hooks in schools, 26. Second

reading and referred to Municipal Committee, 85. No report.

2. Bill (No. 85), introduced to amend The Public Schools Act, 44. Second

reading and referred to the Municipal Committee, 118. No report.

3. Bill (No. 142), introduced to amend The Public School Sites Act, 131.
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Second reading and referred to the Legal Committee, 189. Reported,
319. House goes into Committee on, 336. Third reading, 353. R. A.,

387. (11 Geo. V. c. 91.)

4. Bill (No. 153), introduced to amend The Public Schools Act, 153.

Second reading and referred to the Municipal Committee, 175. Reported,
279. House goest into Committee on, 324. Third reading, 253. See

below, 7.

5. Bill (No. 168), to afmend the Board of Eduucation Act, 173. Second

reading and referred to Municipal Committee, 189. Reported, 209.

House goes into Committee on, and rises without reporting, 230.

6. Bill (No. 203), introduced to amend the School Attendance Act, 1919, 226.

Second reading and referred to the Legal Committee, 244. Reported,
260. House goes into Committee on, 275. Third reading, 375

1

. See

below, 7.

7. Bill (No. 231), introduced to amend the School Laws, 270. Second

reading, 327. House goes into Committee on, 334. Third reading, 353.

R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 89.)

8. Bill (No. 245), introduced respecting Vocational Education, 300. Second

reading, 328. House goes into Committee on, 335. Third reading, .376.

R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V, c. 90.)

9. Regulations and Orders-in-Council presented, 25, 26, 71, 159, 191, 251.

(Sessional Papers No. 61.) Not printed.

10. Report of Department presented, 251. (Sessional Papers No. 17.) Not

printed.

11. Question as to number of Public School Teachers trained at Guelph,57.

12. Return ordered, shewing dates when tenders called for; tenders received

and names of tenders, for production of Ontario Public School Reader^

etc., 71. Presented, 103. (Sessional Papers No. 66.) Not printed.

13. Select Committee appointed to advise on Educational matters to sit

during Recess, 367.

ELECTIONS AND ELECTION LAW :

1. Notifications of vacancies, 2.

2. Certificates of Elections, 3, 4.

3. Reports from Judges ; certificates, 4-12.

4. Return from Records of By-elections presented, 16. (Sessional Papers No.

51. \ Printed.

5. Bill (No. 254), introduced to amend the law, 320. Second reading, 330.

Order for House to go into Committee on, discharged, 378.
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ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS :

Bill (Xo. 24:1), introduced respecting the examining and licensing of,

Journeymen Electricians, 292. Second reading and referred to the Logal

Committee, 328. No report.

ELLIOTT, J. C. :

Question as to employment of, 282.

EMIGRATION TO PROVINCE:

Question as to encouragement of, 243.

ENGINEERS : See Professional Engineers.

ENTOMOLOGICAL SOCIETY :

Eeport presented, 307. (Sessional Papers No. 3
.) Printed.

ESSEX BORDER UTILITIES COMMISSION :

Petition for Act to amend and consolidate Acts respecting, 22. Reported, 35.

Bill (No. 15), introduced and referred, 34. Reported, 183. Second

reading, 189. House goes into Committee on, 209. Third reading, 236.

R. A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c. 99.)

ESTATE BILLS:

Referred to Commissioners, 88. Reported, 166.

ESTIMATES :

Presented and referred, 72, 270, 299. (Sessional Papers No. 2.) Printed.

See Supply.

ETOBICOKE, AND WESTON GOLF CLUB:

Petition for Act respecting, 22. Reported, 108. Bill (No. 29), introduced

and referred, 109. Reported, 192. Second reading, 209. House goes

into Committee on, ft57. Third reading, 271. R, A., 387. (11 Geo. Y.

c. 100.)

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL:

Question as to appointment of Clerk of, 50.

EXPENDITURE, EXTRAVAGANT :

Motion in condemnation of, proposed and negatived, 170.

EXTRA-MURAL EMPLOYMENT: See Persons under sentence.
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ACTOBY, SHOP AND OFFICE BUILDING ACT :

1. Bill (No. 145), introduced to amend, 138. Second^ reading and referred

to the Municipal Committee, 155. Reported, 252. House goes into

Committee on, 283. Third reading, 321. See below, 3.

2. Bill (No. 175), introduced to amend, 177. Second reading negatived, 220.

3. Bill (No. 237), introduced to amend, 276. Second reading, 327. House

goes into Committee on, 335. Third reading, 376. R. A., 387. (11 Geo.

V, c. 76.)

FAIR RENTALS AND RENTS:

1. Bill (No. 170), introduced respecting, of dwelling houses, 174. Order

for second reading discharged, 239.

2. Bill (No. 257), introduced respecting fair rents, 320. Second reading, 330.

House goes into Committee on and rises without reporting, 365.

FARM LOANS :

Bill (No. 96), introduced respecting, 68. Second reading and referred to a

Committee to be named, 107. Committee named, 110. Bill reported, 127.

House goes into Committee on, 250. Third reading, 321. R. A., 387.

(11 Geo. V, c. 33.)

FECXTNIS, LIMITED:

Petition for Act respecting, 22. Reported, 79. Bill (No. 30), introduced and

referred, 81. Reported, 287. !Second reading, 327. House goes into

Committee on, 368. Third reading, 376. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V, c. 137.)

FEMALE REFUGES ACT:

Bill (No. 232), introduced to amend, 270. Second reading, 309. Order for

House to go into Comjmittee on, discharging, 330.

FERRIS, TOWNSHIP OF:

Petition for Act respecting the division of, 43. Reported, 139. Bill (No.

51), introduced >and referred, 140. Reported, 2>87. Second reading, 327.

House goes into Committee on, 376. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 101.)

FINANCIAL STATEMENT :

Delivered and Debate on adjourned, 73. See Supply.

FIRE DEPARTMENTS :

1. Bill (No. 89), introduced respecting the Two-Platoon System for employ-
ees of permanent, 65. Second reading and referred to The Municipal
Committee, 118. Reported, 160. House goes into Comimittee on, 187.
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Motion for third reading and six months hoist proposed and negatived,

254-6. Third reading, 256. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 80'.)

2. Bill (No. 124), introduced to amend The Hours of Labour Act in, 105.

Second reading and referred to The Municipal Committee, 136. Reported

adversely, 160.

FlSH AND GAME :
-

1. Committee appointed, 29.

2. Members added, 30, 66, 72, 88, 111.

3. Question as to the patrol boat, Captain Visger, 115. See Fishermen.

FISHERMEN, NET:

1. Question as to increase of license fee to, 60.

2. Return ordered as to quantity of fish caught in Lakes Nipissing and

Nipigon; varieties; price paid, etc., 61. Presented, 221. (Sessional

Papers No. 83.) Not Printed.

FLAG AND FLEET:

Question as to book being on list of Readers, 142.

FLEMING vs SPRACKLIN:

Question as to judgement of Mr. Justice Middleton, in re, 48. See SpraMin,
O.T.A.

FORD CITY, TOWN OF:

Petition for Act to annex certain property to, 22. Reported, 33. Bill (No.

43), introduced and referred, 35. Reported, 193. Recommitted, 209.

Reported, 234. Second reading, 249. House goes into Committee on,

257. Third reading, 272. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 102.)

FRANKING PRIVILEGE:

Resolution that Government should take steps and make representations to

Post Master-General, 'to insure continuance of, upon Forms transmitted

from any Board of Health, 174-5.

FREE PASSES: See Railway Transportation.
\

FREIGHT RATES CASE:

Question as to who appeared for Province, before Dominion Railway Commis-

sion, 146.

FRENCH CANADIANS : See Civil Servants.



1921 INDEX xv

FRIENDLY SOCIETIES:

Report presented, 73. (Sessional Papers No. 11.) Printed.

FRUIT AND FRUIT EXPORT:

Resolution appointing a Committee to enquire into production, transporta-

tion,, etc., 117. Committee named, 127. Report, 352.

FRUIT GROWERS' ASSOCIATION:

Report presented, 307. (Sessional Papers No. 44>) Printed.^

FUMES, DAMAGE BY : See Sulphur.

AME AND FISHERIES:

1. Question as to number of officials of Department of, discharged, 55.

2. Return ordered, showing fines and confiscations under the Act, 1916 to

1920, etc., 135. Not brought down.

3. Report presented, 159. (Sessional Papers No. 14.) Printed.

4. Petition to amend Act, 213.

GANANOQUE, TOWN OF:

Petition for Act respecting, 22. Reported, 33. Bill (No. 38), introduced and

referred to The Railway and Municipal Board, 35. Reported and re-

ferred to Committee on Private Bills, 130. Reported, 192. Second

reading, 209. House goes into Committee on, 222. Third reading, 236.

R. A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c. 103.)

GARAGE :

Question as to the, at Surrey Place; building of, etc., 51.

GEARING, THOMAS:

Question as to tenders called, for work done by, 92.

GEORGETOWN, TOWN OF:

Petition for Act to incorporate, 38. Reported, 79. Bill (No. 28), introduced

and referred, 81. Reported, 104. Second reading, 118. House goes

into Committee on, 132. Third reading, 146. R. A., 242. (11 Geo.

V. c. 104.)

GOODYEAR TIRE AND RUBBER COMPANY, LTD. :

Petition for Act respecting, 245. Bill (No. 215), introduced on suspended

rule and referred to Committee, 245. Reported, 313. Second reading,



xvi INDEX

227. House goes into Committee on, 368. Third reading, 376. R. A.,

387. (11 Geo. V. c. 138.)

GOLD BONDS:

1. Question as to uniform price for $10,000,000 6% 20 year, designated aa

"S.S.," 156.

2. Question as to uniform price for $16,000,000 6% 15 year, designated as

R.R./' 356.

GBEAT LAKES PULP AND PAPER COMPANY:

1. Question as to judgment given by Justice Rose, in action against, 256.

2. Question as to date of concession of pulpwood limits to, on Pic and

Sturgeon Rivers, etc., 354.

GUELPH, CITY OF:

1. Petition for Act respecting, 27. Reported, 64. Bill (No. 49), introduced

and referred, 65. Reported, 104. Second reading, 118. House goes

into Committee on, 132. Third reading, 146. R. A., 242. (11 Geo.

V. c. 105.)

'2. Bill (No. 255), introduced to confirm a certain agreement between The

Hydro-Electric Power Commission, and, 320. Second reading, 339.

House goes into Committee on, 374. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 22.)

H ALL, ALFRED:

Petition for Act respecting and The Law Society of Upper Canada, 22. Re-

ported, 32. Bill (No. 9), introduced and referred, 43. Reported

withdrawn; fees remitted, 86.

HAMMOND, E. D. L. :

Question as to appointment of, under the O.T.A., 82.

HARDING, R. T. :

1. Question as to fees1

paid to, for legal services, 82.

2. Question as to amount paid to, in the Riddell-Latchford Timber Enquiry,
90.

3. Question as to employment of, except as Counsel before Timber Com-

mission, 128.

4. Question as to amount claimed by, etc., 178.

5. Question as to employment of, in "Department of Attorney-General, 281.

6. Return ordered, of correspondence with, etc., regarding an account for

$500 tendered James Hourigan & Co., 382. Not brought down.
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HASTINGS, DAVID:

1. Report presented, re charge^ against, 372.

2. Return ordered, of correspondence, etc., relating to dismissal of, 380. Not

brought down.

HAWKES, ARTHUR:

Question as to payments to, re Royal Radial Commission, 203.

HAWKESBURY, TOWN OF:

Petition for Act to enable the town to withdraw from the jurisdiction of

the United Counties of Prescott and Russell, 2'?. Reported, 109. Bill

(No. 16), introduced and referred, 109. Reported withdrawn; fees re-

mitted, 318.
;

i

HEALTH, BOARD OF:

Report presented, 67. (Sessional Papers No. 21.) Printed.

HEARST AND Low BUSH TOWN SITES :

Question as to lots in, disposed of since November, 1919, 133.

HEARST PUBLICATIONS :

Resolution protesting against admission of, to Province, 381.

HIGGINS, JAMES:
*

Question as to appointment of, to position under Government, 174.

HIGHWAYS AND HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT :

1. Resolution introduced; Lieutenant-Governor's recommendation signified;

passed through Committee and referred to Bill, 124-5. Bill (No. 135),

introduced, 125. Second reading, 155. House goes into Committee on,

165. Third reading, 235. R, A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c. 25.)

2. Bill (No. 152), introduced to amend, 153. Second reading and referred

to Municipal Committee, 175. Reported, 208. House goes into Com-

mittee on, 243. Third reading, 250. See above.

3. Question as to total expenditure for, in 1920, 55.

4. Return ordered, with reference to contribution of Federal Government

under Canada Roads Act, 381. Not brought down.

5. Petitions for amendments to Act of 1920, 206, 308. See Provincial U gk-

ways Act.
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HIGHWAY TRAVEL ACT:

Bill (No. 77), introduced to amend, 36. Order for second reading discharged.

158.

HORTICULTURAL SOCIETIES :

Keport presented, 319. (Sessional Papers No. 49.) Printed.

HOSPITALS AND CHARITABLE INSTITUTIONS :

Report presented, 372. (Sessional Papers No. 25.) Printed.

2. Ord-ers-in-Couricil presented, 372. (Sessional Papers No. 9$.) Not

printed.

3. Bill (No. 246), introduced to amend The Act respecting, 300. Order

for second reading discharged, 329.

HOUSE, THE:

1. Proclamation calling, 1.

2. Adjourns over one or more days, 21, 202, 276, 382.

3. Government orders to go on Monday's Paper, 38.

4. Sits after midnight, 180, 182, 231, 239, 251, 261, 273, 285, 312, 318, 328,

378.

5. To have morning sittings, 351.

HOUSING : See Municipal Affairs.

HYDRO-ELECTRIC POWER AND POWER COMMISSION :

1. Report of Select Committee presented, as to more equitable distribution

of, 19. (Sessional Papers No. 59.) Printed.

2. Report of Commission presented, re wages paid to men on construction of

Oueenston- Chippawa Development, 152. (Sessional Papers No. 77.)

Printed.

3. Report presented, 225. (Sessional Papers No. 49.} Printed.

4. Question as to settlement, re purchase of property in Township of Brotom,
243.

5. Report presented, of R. D. Johnson et al, on the Queensfcm-Chippa.wa
Power Development, 259. (Sessional Papers No. 85.) Printed.

6. Report presented, of R. S. Lea, on the Queenston-Chippawa Power Devel-

opment, 259. (Sessional Papers No. 86.) Printed.
7. Report presented, of H. L. Cooper & Co.. on the Queenston-Chippawa

Power Development, 28fi. (Sessional Papers No. 89.) Printed.
8. Bill (No. 255), introduced to confirm a certain agreement between, and

the City of Guelph, 320. Second reading, 339. House goes into Com-
mittee on, 374. Third reading, 377. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 22.)



1921 INDEX xix

9 BiH No. 258), introduced to authorize the purchase and operation oi

certain Radial Eailways by, on behalf of the City of Toronto, 320.

Second reading, 339. House goes) into Committee on, 374. Third read-

ing 377. E. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 24.)

10. Bill (No. 262), introduced to make more equal provision for cost of, 332.

Second reading; House goes into Committee on; third reading, 378.

E. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 21.) See Power Commission Act.

HYDRO- EADIALS:

Question as to reception of interim report, 52. See Toronto.

TNCOME TAX:-

Bill (No. 132), introduced respecting the collection of, by Municipalities,
120. Second reading and referred to The Municipal Committee, 152.

No report.

INDUSTRIAL EMPLOYMENT :

Bill (No. 225), introduced, fixing a minimum wa^e for, 253. Order for

second reading discharged, 368. See Young Persons.

INDUSTRIAL BBHABILITATION BOARD:

Eeport of Cofmmittee presented, 245. (Appendix No. 1.)

Committee on Privileges and Elections, 161-3. See Report in Separate
Volume.

INFANTS :

Bill (No. 171), introduced to amend the law relating to the guardianship
and custody of, 174. Second reading- and referred to the Legjul Com-

mittee, 189. No report.

INSANE, ONTARIO HOSPITALS FOR:

Report presented, 259. (Sessional Papers No. 25.) Printed.

INSURANCE :

Beport presented, 73. \Sessional Papers No. 10.) Printed. S;>o Ontario

Insurance.

INTERNATIONAL NICKEL COMPANY: See Canada Copper Company.

j
ACKSON, W. T. :

Question as to residence of, and others, re Rural Credits. 102.
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JAMES, CLARKSON W. :

Question as to appointment of, 50.

JUDGES, SUPREME COURT:

Question as to authority of Dominion Government to deprive, of their pay-

ment for serivces, while acting as Commissioners, 102.

JUSTICES OF THE PEACE:

Bill introduced pro forma, 16.

K APUSKASING, SOLDIERS AND SAILORS SETTLEMENT

COLONY:-

Return ordered, relating to sale of, etc., 116. Presented, 127. (Sessional

Paper* No. 68.) Not printed.

KAPUSKASING, TOWN OF:

Bill (Xo. Ill), introduced to incorporate, 90. Second reading, 168. Hou.-e

goes into Committee, 182, 205. Motion for third reading; amendment

proposed and negatived; third reading, 237. R. A., 242. (11 Geo.

V. c. 36.)

KENT COUNTY:

Question as to identity of Registrar of, etc., 49.

KINCARDINE, TOWN OF :

Petition for Act respecting, 22. Reported, 108. Bill (No. 40), introduced

and referred to Railway and Municipal Board, 109. Reported and re-

ferred to Committee on Private Bills, 172. Reported, 213. Second

reading, 244. House goes into Committee on", 248. Third reading,

254. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 106.)

KINO'S PKINTER:

1. Question as to appointment of, 50.

2. Bill (No. 104), introduced respecting the office of, 208. Second reading

244. House goes into Committee on, 238. Third reading, 321. R. A.,

387. (11 Geo. V. c. 5.)

KINGSTON, CITY OF:

Petition for Aft to legalize and confirm By-law No. 42, 22. Reported, 3?.

Bill (No. 11), introduced and referred, 34. Reported withdrawn; feea

remitted, 145.
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2. Petition for Act to legalize and confirm By-law No. 29, 22. Reported,
32. Bill ( No. 12), introduced and referred, 34. Reported, 72. Second

reading, 98. House goes into Committee on, 132. Third reading, 14(5.

R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 107.)

KITCHENER, CITY OF:

Petition for Act respecting, 68. Reported, 108. Bill (No. 52), introduced

and referred, 110. Reported, 234. Second reading, 249. House goes

into Committee on. 258. Third reading, 272. R. A., 387. (11 Geo.

V. c. 108.)

KNOX COLLEGE:

1. Question as to renting of, 115.

2. Question as to, estimated cost of alterations, 219.

T ABOUR :-

1. Bill (No. 82), introduced to regulaite the hours of, 44. Motion for second

reading lost, 368.

2. Report of Department presented, 371. (tie&sional Papers Ao. 18.)

Printed .

LABOUR COMMITTEE:

Constituted, 19. Committee appointed, 30. Members added, 36. Report, 2T6.

LAKE HURON AND NORTHERN ONTARIO RAILWAY:

Bill (No. 162), introduced respecting, 171. Second reading, 195. House-

goes into Committee on, 207. Third reading, 235. R A., 242. (11

Geo. V. c. 131.)

LAKE OF THE WOODS CONTROL BOARD:

Bill (No. 59), introduced, 140. Order for second reading discharged, 328.

LAKE OF THE WOODS PULP CONCESSION :

Return ordered, of correspondence; estimates; reports, etc., and B. W. Backui,.

relating to the, and White Dog Rapids Water Power, etc., 380. Not

brought down.

LAKES AND STREAMS:

Bill (No. 58), introduced respecting the construction of certain works on r

140. Second reading, 194. Order for House to go into Committee on.

discharged, 329.



xxii INDEX 1921

LANDS AND FORESTS:

1. Question as to details that make up the item of, 903, 421. 41 credited to

capital receipts of, 92.

2. Question as to Chief Clerk of Lands in Department of, 114.

3. Question as to assistant to Deputy Minister, 229.

4. Report of Department presented, 372. (Sessional Papers No. 3.) Printed.

LAND, TRANSFER TAX:

Resolutions put through; Lieutenant-Governor's recommendation signified;

passed through Committee and referred to Bill, 123-4. See Real Estate

Transfer.

LANNIN, H, J. :

1. Question re position of, duties, etc., 55.

2. Question as to moneys paid to, 184.

LATCHFORD, A. M. :

Question as to identity of, 94.

LEGAL BILLS:

Committee appointed, 30. Report, 188, 260, 319.

LEGAL OFFICES:

Report presented, 191. (Sessional Papers No. 6.) Printed.

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY:

Certain statements reflecting on independence and honour of, referred to

Committee on Privileges and Elections, 161-3. See Report in Separate

Volume.

LEGISLATIVE BUILDINGS: See Buildings.

LEMIEUX, JOSEPH :

Question as to superannuation of, and appointment of J. H. Dehaitre, 128.

LIBRARY :

1. Report of -Librarian presented ;17. (Sessional Paper. Ao. 6S.) JNot

printed.

2. Committee appointed, 20. No report.

3. Question as to appointment of Librarian, 49.
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LIEUTENANT-GOVERNOR :

1. Speech at opening, 13-15.

8. To be taken into consideration, 16.

3. Motion for Address in reply and Debate on adjourned. 19, 21, 24, 26, 31,

43, 62, 66.

4. Motion carried and Address ordered to be engrossed and presented, 66.

5. Transmits Estimates, 72, 270, 299. (Sessional Papers No. .)
Printed.

6. Assents to Bills, 242, 387.

7. Recommends xependiture of Public Moneys, 87, 106, 120, 123, 124, 1T6,

209, 310, 311.

8. Speech at close of Session, 8.

LIGHTNING RODS:

Resolutions introduced ;
Lieutenant-Governor's recommendation signified ;

passed through Committee and referred to Bill, 210-11. Bill (No. 195),.

introduced to regulate the sale and installation of, 211. Second reading,

249. House goes info Commiittee on, 258, Third reading, 375. B. A.,.

387. (11 Geo. V. c. 84.)

LIMITATIONS ACT:

Bill (No. 80), introduced to amend, 44. Second reading and referred to

the Legal Committee, 187. No report.

LINE FENCES ACT:

Bill (No. 164), introduced to amend, 171. Second reading and. referred to

the Municipal Committee, 204. Reported, 279. House goes into Com-

mittee on, 305. Third reading, 321, R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V, c. 83.)

LIVE STOCK BRANCH:

Report presented, 307. (Sessional Papers No. 39.) Printed.

LOAN CORPORATIONS:

Report presented, 73. (Sessional Papers No. 12.) Printed.

LOANS, PROVINCIAL:

1. Question as to those placed since November, 1919, 59.

2. Question as to "N. N." of $3,000,000, publicly advertised, 94.

3. Question as to proceeds of, being placed to the Credit of the Consolidated

Revenue Fund, 272.
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4. Return ordered, of correspondence relating to loan "R. R.", 103. Presented,

372. (Sessional Papers No. 92.) Not printed.

LOAN AND TRUST CORPORATIONS ACT:

1. Bill (No. 158), introduced to amend, 167. Second reading and referred

to a Select Committee, 194. Reported, 226. House goes into Committee

on, 238, 246, 277. Third reading, 321. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V, c. 61.)

"2. Bill (No. 374), introduced to amend, 177. Second reading and referred to

Select Committee, 204. Reported, 226. See above.

LOAN AND TRUST CORPORATIONS STATEMENTS :

Report presented, 25. (Sessional Papers No. 12.) Printed.

LOCAL IMPROVEMENT ACT:

1. Bill (No. 56), introduced to amend, 143. Second reading and referred

to Municipal Committee, 189. Reported, 226. House goes into Com-

mittee on, 246. Third reading, 254. R, A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 64.)

2. Bill (No. 138), introduced to amend, 128. Second reading and referred

to Municipal Committee, 152. Reported, 178. House goes into Com-
mittee on, 190. Third reading, 253. See above,.

3. Bill (No. 156), introduced to amend, 160. Second reading and referred

to Municipal Committee, 179. Reported, 352. House goes into Com-
mittee on, .369. Third reading, 376. See above.

LONDON, CITY OF:

Petition for Act respecting, 27. Reported, 80. Bill (No. 37), introduced

and referred, 81. Reported, 192. Second reading, 209. House goes into

Committee on, 248. Third reading, 254. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V.

c. 109.)

LONDON CITY GAS COMPANY:

Petition for Act respecting, 22. Reported, 32. Bill (No. 10), introduced

and referred, 34. Reported, 213. Second reading, 249. House goes

into Committee on, 257. Third reading, 271. R, A., 387. (11 Geo.

V. c. 98.)

LONG POINT PARK :

Bill (No. 187), introduced respecting, 193. Second reading, 224. House

goes into Committee on, 246, 333. Third reading, 375. R. A., 387. (11

Geo. V. c. 35.)
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LUKE, LEWIS R. :

Return ordered, of correspondence relating to the dismissal of, as License

Inspector for Ontario County, 37. Presented, 153 . (Sessional Papers.
-Vo. 75.) Not printed.

LUMBER MILLS:

1. Question as to Government conducting a scale of logs and mill cut, re over-

run, under Doyle Rule, 163.

2. Motion for Return of Report of officer who has been conducting scale of

logs and mill cut, at twenty-six mills, and Debate on adjourned, 177.

Debate resumed, motion amended and carried, 366. Not brought down.

LUMBERING OPERATIONS:

Question as to numjber of persons carrying on, in the years 1917-18-19 and

20, 69.

M cCOMBER, A. J. :

Question re settlement with, 243.

MC-MASTER UNIVERSITY:

Petition for Act to amend Charter of, 27. Reported, 63. Bill (No. 48),

introduced and referred, 65. Reported; fees remitted, 104. Second

reading, 118. House goes into Committee on, 132. Third reading, 146.

R, A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c. 134.)

McPiiERSON, R. V. :

Question as to identity of, 157.

MeVICAR, R. :

Question as to identity of, 95.

M ACKENZIE, M. A. :-

Question as to identity of, 223.

MARRIAGE ACT:

1. Bill (No. 101), introduced to amend, 68. Order for second reading dis-

charged, 329.

2. Bill (No. 210), introduced to almend, 228. Second reading, 275. Second

reading, 275. House goes into Committee on, 284, 377. Third reading.
377. R, A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 51.)

MARRIAGE LICENSES :

1. Report presented, of Public Service Cornmission, in re issuers of, 67.

(Sessional Papers No. tf#.) Printed.
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2. Return ordered, showing number of issuers of, in Province; names, etc.,

117. Presented, 139. (sessional Papers No. 70.) Not printed.

MARTIN, S. J. :

Question as to appointmen/t of, to Government Service, 272.

MATERNITY PROTECTION:

Bill (No. 69), introduced for the protection of Women, 31. Second reading

and referred to Labour Committee, 175. See Women.

MAXIMUM WORK HOUR DAY ACT: See Labour.

MECHANICS LIENS, WAGE-EARNERS :

1. Bill (No. 14), introduced respecting, 90. Second reading and referred

to Municipal 'Committee, 155. Referred to a Select Committee, 314.

2. Question of Dower Law investigation referred to same Select Committee,

381.

MEMBERS :

1. Notifications of vacancies, 2.

2. Certificates of Election, 3, 4.

3. Take Oaths and Seats), 4, 17.

4. The question of alleged attempth of bribery of, referred to Committee on

Privileges and. Elections, 161-3.

5. The question of a Member being called insincere, as a Member of a Com-

mission, referred to Committee on Privileges and Elections, 208.

6. Full Sessional Indemnity paid to, absent account of illness 382.

MIDLAND, TOWN OF:

1. Petition for Act respecting, 23. Reported, 64. Bill (No. 46), introduced

and referred, 65. Reported, 104. Second reading^ 118. House goes

into Committee on, 13>2. Third readiing, 146. R. A., 242. (11 Gteo.

V. c. 110.)

2. Bill (No. 247), introduced on Suspended Rule, and referred to Com-

mittee on Private Bills, 308. Reported, 313. Second reading, 327.

House goes into Committee on, 368. Third reading, 376. R. A., 387.

See above.

MILK AND CREAM :

Question as to how many Inspectors appointed under Act, 57.
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MIMICO, TOWN OF:

Petition for Act respecting, 23. Reported, 32. Bill (No. 2), introduced and

referred, 33. Reported, 72. Second reading, 98. House goes into Com-
mittee on, 132. Third reading, 146. K. A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c. 111.)

MINES, DEPARTMENT OF :

Report presented, 191. (Sessional Papers No. 4.) Printed.

MINIMUM WAGE ACT:

Bill (No. 165>), introduced to amend, 173. Second reading, 195. House

goes into Committee on, 207. Third reading, 235. R. A., 242. (11
Geo. V. c. 78.) See Industrial Employment.

MINING ACT OF ONTARIO:

Bill (No. 129), introduced to amend, 110. Second reading, 175. House-

goes into Committee on, 214, 230, 277. Third reading, 375. R. A.,

387. (11 Geo. V. c. 16.)

MINING TAX ACT:

1. Bill (No. 79), introduced to aimend, 36. Motion for second reading and

Debate on adjourned, 182. Debate resumed and Motion for second read-

ing carried, 326. House goes inito Committee on, 370. Third reading,

376. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 11.)

2. Return ordered, showing amounts paid by each company which made up

total, credited to in Public Acounts, 85. Presented, 191. (Sessional

Papers No. 82.) Not printed.

3. Return ordered, of correspondence relating to proposed increase in mining

taxes, 135. Presented, 169. (Sessional Papers No. 78.) Not printed.

4. Question as to annual revenue collected since 1907, by Department of

Mines, 228.

MONTGOMERY, ALEXANDER :

Question as to appointment of, as Superintendent of Nipissing Central Rail-

way, 102.
i

MOTHERS' ALLOWANCES ACT:

1. Bill (No. 221), introduced to amend, 248. Second reading, 309. House

goes into Committee on, 325. Third reading, 333. R, A., 387. (11

Geo. V. c. 79.)

2. Report of Commission presented, 279. (Sessional Papers No. 88.)

Printed.
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3. Question as to how many investigators appointed under, etc., 69.

4. Question as to applications for allowances in County of Oxford, 141.

5. Question as to applications for allowance in County of Bruce, 112.

6. Question as to applications for allowance in County of Prescott, 153.

7. Question as to applications for allowance in City of Brantford, 168.

MORTMAIN AND CHARITABLE USES ACT :-

Bill (No. 250), introduced to amend, 308. Second reading, 338. House goes

into Committee on, 371. Third reading, 377. R, A., 387. (11 Geo.

V. c. 46.)

MOTOR CARS:

1. Question as to number of, purchased by Government for use of District

Nurses, 57.

2. Question as to. number of, at disposal of Ministers, etc., 282.

3. Question as to purchases of, and trucks, etc., 300.

4. Question as to cost to Government of each marker for, in 1920
;
where

purchased, 91.

MOTOR VEHICLES ACT :

1. Bill (No. 76), introduced to amend, 36. Second reading, 107. House

goes into Committee on, 126, 164. Third reading, 235. R. A., 242.

(11 Geo. V. c. 72.)

2. Bill (No. 128), introduced to amend, 110. Second reading negatived, 157.

3. Bill (No. 256), introduced to amend, 320. Second reading negatived, 265.

MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS :

1. Report presented, 67. (Sessional Papers No. 47.) Printed.

2. Report of Bureau presented, on Housing, 372. (Sessional Papers No.

40.) Printed.

MUNICIPAL AUDITOR:

Report presented, 73. (Sessional Papers No. 8.) Printed.

MUNICIPAL LAW:

1. Bill (No. 64), introduced to amend, 26. Second reading on division and

referred to Municipal Committee, 71. No report.

2. Bill (No. 72), introduced to amend, 36. Second reading and referred to
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Municipal Committee, 96. Reported, 320.

3. Bill (No. 73), introduced to amend, 36. Second reading and referred to

Committee, 96. Eeported, 320.

4. Bill (No. 78), introduced to amend, 36. Second reading and referred to

Committee of the Whole, 155. House goes into Committee on, 158.

See below, 31.

5. Bill (No. 84), introduced to amend, 44. Second reading and referred to.

Committee, 96. Reported, 320.

6. Bill (No. 86), introduced to amend, 44. Second reading and referred to

Committee, 96. Reported, 320.

7. Bill (No. 91), introduced to amend, 65. Second reading and referred to

Committee, 98. Reported, 320.

8. Bill (No. 94), introduced to amend, 66. Second reading and referred to

Committee, 118. Reported, 320.

9. Bill (No. 106), introduced to amend, 81. Second reading and referred to

Committee, 98. Reported, 320.

10. Bill (No. 113), introduced to atmend, 90. Second reading and referred to

Committee, 151. Reported, 320.

11. Bill (No. 119), introduced to amend, 97. Second reading and referred to

Committee, 175. No report.

12. Bill (No. 121), introduced to amend, 105. Second reading and referred to

Committee, 151. Reported, 320.

13. Bill (No. 122), introduced to amend, 105. Second reading negatived, 135,

14. Bill (No. 127), introduced to amend, 110. Second reading, 155. House

goes into Committee on, 177. See below, 31.

15. Bill (No. 130), introduced to amend, 110. Second reading and referred to

Committee, 152. Reported, 320.

16. Bill (No. 131), introduced to amend, 120. Second reading and referred to

Committee, 152. Reported, 320.

17. Bill (No. 139), introduced to amend, 131. Second reading and referred to

Committee, 152. Reported, 320.

18. Bill (No. 141), introduced to amend, 131. Second reading and referred to

Committee, 154. Reported, 320.

19. Bill (No. 143), introduced to amend, 131. Second reading and referred to

Committee, 179. No

20. Bill (No. 144), introduced to amend, 132. Second reading and referred

to Committee, 155. No report.
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21. Bill (No. 146), introduced to amend, 138. Second reading and referred

to the Legal Committee, 175. No report.

22. Bill (No. 147), introduced to amend, 138. Second reading and referred

to Committee,, 179. No report.

23. Bill (No. 148), introduced to amend, 138. Second reading and referred

to Committee, 155. Eeported, 320.

24. Bill (No. 157), introduced to amend, 160. Second reading and referred

to Committee, 175. Reported, 320.

25. Bill (No. 160), introduced to amend, 171. Second reading and referred

to Committee, 188. Reported, 320.

26. Bill (No. 163), introduced to amend, 171. Second reading and referred

to Committee, 188. Reported, 320.

27. Bill (No. 179), introduced to amend, 181. Second reading and referred

to Committee, 204. No report.

28. Bill (No. 184), introduced to amend, 194. Second reading negatived, 212.

29. Bill (No. 213), introduced to amend, 235. Second reading and referred

to the Comlmittee of the Whole, 328. House goes into Committee on,

336, 370. See below, 31.

30. Bill (No. 229), introduced to amend, 260. Order for second reading dis-

charged, 307.

31. (No. 259),, introduced "The Municipal Amendment Act, 1921," 321.

Second reading, 339. House goes into Committee on, 375. Third read-

ing, 377. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 63.)

32. Committee appointed, 28 Report, 160, 178, 208, 213, 226, 252, 279,

3<20, 352.

33. Petition respecting, 86.

MUNICIPAL DRAINAGE ACT:

Bill (No. 212), introduced to amend, 235. Second reading and referred to

Municipal Committee, 275. Discharged, 284.

MUNICIPAL LOAN FUND :

Return ordered, showing operations of, amounts loaned; amounts paid, etc.,

61. Not brought down.

MUNICIPAL TAX EXEMPTION ACT:

Bill (No. 196), introduced to amend, 213. Second reading, 244. House
into Committee on, 247, 250. Third reading, 254 R A 387 (11
Geo. V. c. 68.)
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ATURAL GAS :N
Bill (No. 186), introduced respecting, 193. .Second reading and referred

to Select Committee, 275. Eeported, 311 House goes into Committee

on, 326, 334. Third reading, 3716. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 17.)

NIAGARA FALLS, CITY OF:

Petition for Act respecting, 23. Reported, 64. Bill (No. 1), introduced and

referred, 64. Reported, 104. Second reading, 118. House goes into

Committee on, 132. Third reading, 146. R. A., 242. (11 Geo. V.

c. 112.)

NIAGARA FALLS AXD NEW YORK POWER COMPANY:

Question -as to arrangements made with Hydro-Electric Power Commission,

etc., 367.

NIAGARA PENINSULA GROWER'S LIMITED':

Petition for Act respecting, on Suspended Rule, 201. Bill (No. 188), in-

troduced on Suspended Rule and referred to Committee on Private

Bills, 201. Reported, 234. Second reading, 249. House goes into Com-
mittee on, 258. Third reading, 272. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 139.)

NIPISSIXG CENTRAL RAILWAY:

Question as to appointment of A. Montgomery, as Superintendent, 102.

NIPISSIXG AND NIPIGON LAKES :

Return ordered, showing total quantity of fish caught in, etc., and marketed

in the years 1917 to 1920; varieties; price paid, etc; 61. Presented,

221. (Sessional Papers No. 83.) Not printed.

NORTHERX LIGHT RAILWAY ACT:

Bill (No. 218), introduced to amend, 248. Second reading, 276. House goes
into Committee on, 306. Third reading, 321. R. A., 387. (11 Geo.

V. c. 132.)

NORTHERX AXD NORTHWESTERN OXTARIO:

Bill (No. 75), introduced to provide for Development Work in, 36. Second

reading, 155.* House goes into Committee on, 165. Third reading, 321.

R, A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 18.)

NORTH YORK, Towxsnip OF :

Petition for Act to incorporate a part of the Township of York, to be called

the Township of North York, 32. Reported, 63. Bill (No. 27), intro-

duced and referred, 89. Reported, not proceeded with; fees remitted,
287.
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NOTARIES ACT:

Bill (No. 214), introduced to amend, 242. Order for second reading dis-

charged, 329.

f\ AKVILLE, TOWN OF: See Trafalgar.

OATS, SEED:

1. Question as to sale of, to Farmers in 1920, 54.

2. Question as to quantity purchased from U.F.O. Company Limited, 84.

OLD AGE PENSIONS: See Unemployment Insurance.

ONTARIO ATHLETIC COMMISSION:

1. Bill (No. 236), introduced respecting, 276. Second reading, 309. House

goes into Committee on, 370. Third reading, 376. R, A., 387. (11

Geo. V. c. 88.)

2. Statement and Report presented, 152. (Sessional Papers No. 76.) Not

Printed.

ONTARIO COMPANIES ACT :

Bill (No. 249), introduced to amend, 308. Second reading, 338. House goes
into Committee on, 374. Third reading, 377. R. A., 387. (11 Geo.

V. c. 58.)

ONTARIO GAME AND FISHERIES ACT:

1. Bill (No. 126), introduced to amend, 110. Order for second reading

discharged, 158.

2. Bill (No. 217), introduced to amend, 246. Second reading, 327. House

goes into Committee on, 334. Third reading, 376. R, A., 387. (11 Geo.

V. c. 87.)

ONTARIO INSURANCE ACT:

1. Bill (No. 107), introduced to amend, 82. Order for second reading dis-

charged, 204.

2. Bill (No. 197), introduced to amend, 217. Order for second reading dis-

charged, 249.

3. Bill (No. 198), introduced to amend, 217. Second reading, 277. House

goes into Committee on, 306, 325. Third reading, 333. R. A., 387.

(11 Geo. V. c. 60.)
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ONTARIO INSURANCE COMMITTEE:

Select Committee appointed to report on Amendments to Law of, 333. Mem-

bers Added, 353.
'

ONTARIO PAKOLE ACT:

Bill (No. 209), introduced to amend, 227. Second reading, 257. House

goes into Committee on, 261. Third reading, 375. R. A., 387. (11

Geo. V. c. 92.)

ONTARIO PAROLE BOARD:

Report presented, 103. (Sessional Papers No. 57.) Printed.

ONTARIO PROVINCIAL POLICE:

Bill (No. 102), introduced respecting, 88. Second reading, 175. House

goes into Committee on, 180. Third reading, 235. 11. A., 242. (11

Geo. V. c. 45.)

ONTARIO PROVINCIAL SYNOD: See Provincial Synod of Ontario.

ONTARIO PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION:

Question as to total cost of; who composed, etc., 91.

ONTARIO PUBLIC SERVICE SUPERANNUATION ACT:

Bill (No. 228), introduced to amend, 260. Second reading, 309. House

goes into Committee on, 326. Third reading, 333. R. A., 387. (11
Geo. V. c. 3.)

ONTARIO PUBLIC TRUSTEE ACT:

Bill (No. 199), introduced to aimend, 217. Second reading, 249. House

goes into Committee on, 277, 283. Third reading, 333. R. A., 387.

(11 Geo. V. c. 47.)

ONTARIO RAILWAY ACT:

Bill (No. 189), introduced to amend, 200. Second reading and referred to

The Railway Committee, 221. No report.

ONTAHIO RAILWAY AND MUNICIPAL BOARD:

1. Report presented, 191. (Sessional Papers No. 50.) Printed.

2. Bills referred to, 34, 35, 109. Reported, 130, 137, 172.

ONTARIO SCHOOL READERS: See Education.

ONTARIO TELEPHONE ACT: i

'
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Bill (No. 202), introduced to amend, 221. Second reading, 244. House

goes into Committee on, 247. Third reading, 321. R. A., 387. (U
Geo. V. c. 62.)

ONTARIO TEMPERANCE ACT:

1* Report presented, of Committee, with Minority Report, 39. Motion for

adoption of report and amendment proposed, that the Minority Report

should be adopted and Debate on adjourned, 42. Debate resumed and

again adjourned, 138, 144. Amendment to Amendment proposed and

Debaite on adjourned, 144. Debate resumed and Amendment to Amend-

ment negatived, 261. Amendment then negatived, 261. Main Motion

negatived, 261.

2. Question as to total cost of the Committee of Legislature appointed to

investigate working of; Members of, etc., 48.

3. Question as to position oij W. J. Lannin, etc., 55.

4. Question as to what Department has Enforcement of, 60.

5. Question as to appointment of E. D. L. Haimmond, 82.

6. Question as to costs of License Inspector Joseph Stewart, being paid, 102.

7. Question as to net income under, for 1919 and 1912, 114.

8. Question as to number of officials engaged by Board of License Commis-

sioners and Dismissed, 183.

9. Question as to number of applications for clemency under, made to At-

torney-General, 222.

10. Question as to applications for clemency and remission of fines, etc., 282.

11. Return ordered, of correspondence re Conduct of Magistrates; Justices of

the Peace et al, with reference to, 61. Presented, 139. (Sessional Papers
No. 71.) Not printed.

12. Return ordered, of correspondence from Attorney-General, addressed to

Police Magistrates or Crown Attorneys, etc., 62. Not brought down.

13. Return ordered, showing number of convictions for breaches of Act, in

1919 and 1920, 116. Presented, 251. (Sessional Papers No. 84.) Not

printed.

14. Return ordered, of correspondence relating to convictions made under,

130. Not brought down.

15. Return ordered, showing number of applications to Board of License Com-
missioners for remission of fines, or sentences, under, in regard to which

the Member for S.E. Toronto, Seat "B," was professionally interested,

204. Not brought down.

16. Report on operation of presented,' 71. (Sessional Papers No. 28.)

Printed.
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17. Bill (No. 125), introduced to amend, 110. Order for second reading dis-

charged., 152.

18. Bill (No. 207), introduced to amend, 227. Motion for second reading:
amendment proposed land negatived ;

Second reading, 277-8. House

goes into Committee on, 306. Third reading, 375. See beloiv, 19.

19. Bill (No. 220), introduced to amend, 248. Second reading, 278. House

goes into Committee on, 334. Third reading, 376. E. A., 387 (11 Geo.

V. c. 73.)

20. Bill (No. 230), introduced to amend, 260. Second reading and referred

to the Legal Comtmittee, 309. No report.

21. Bill (No. 233), introduced to amend, 270. Order for second reading dis-

charged, 337.

ORILLIA, TOWN OF:

Petition for Act respecting, 23. Reported, 32. Bill (No. 14) ^ introduced

and referred to the Railway and Municipal Board, 34. Reported and

referred to Committee on Private Bills, 137. Reported, 192. Second

reading, 209. House goes into Committee, 244. Third reading, 253.

R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 114.)

OPTOMETRY ACT:

Bill (No. 243), introduced to amend, 300. Order for second reading dis-

charged, 365.

OSTEOPATHY :

Petitions for Act to regulate the practice of, 71, 86. Not proceeded with.

OTTAWA, CITY OF:

1. Petition for Act "The City of Ottawa Planning and Development Act,"

23. Reported, 33. Bill (No. 32), introduced and referred, 35. Re-

ported withdrawn; fees remitted, 227.

2. Petition for Act respecting, 23. Reported, 139. Bill (No. 36), introduced

and referred, 140. Reported, 234. Second reading, 249. House goes

into Committee on, 257. Third reading, 271. R. A., 387. (11 Geo.

V. c. 115.)

3. Petition respecting, 71.

OTTAWA-PRESCOTT HIGHWAY :

1. Return ordered, showing how many miles included in; how many graded,

etc., 129. Presented, 331. (Sessional Papers No. 90.) Not printed.

2. Question as to aimount expended upon, 275.
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ARENTS :

Bill (No. 177), introduced to provide for the maintenance of, by their child-

ren, 178. Second reading and referred to the Legal Committee, 201.

Reported. 260. ITou.=e goes into Committee on, 305. Third reading,

353. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 52.)

PARLIAMENT BUILDINGS :

Question ag to private living rooms in, 280.

PAROLE ACT AND BOARD: See On'ario Parole.

PEAT COMMISSION :

Question as to the date of appointment of Commissioner Cole, 115.

PEMBROKE, TOWN OF:

Petition for Act respecting, 23. Reported, 108. Bill (No. 5), introduced

and referred, 109. Reported, 181. Second reading, 1.89. House goes
into Committee, 209. Third reading, 222. R. A., 242. (11 Geo. V.

c. 116.)

PKPALL, A. IT. :

Question as to identity of, 82.

PERSONS UNDER SENTENCE :

Bill (No. 234), introduced respecting Extra-Mural employment of, 270.

Second reading, 309. House goes into Committee on, 326. Third read-

ing, 333. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 93.)

PETERBOROUII, CITY OF:

Petitions for Act respecting, 23, 38. Reported, 32. Bill (Xo. 4), introduced

and referred, 34. Reported, 72. Second reading, 98. House goes into

Committee on. 132. Third reading, 1 16. R. A,, 242. (11 Ceo. V. c.

117.)

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ACT :

1. Bill (No. 57), introduced to amend, 143. Second reading and referred

to the Municipal Committee, 194. Reported, 226. House goes, into

Committee on, 247. Third reading, 254. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c.

65.)

2. Bill (No. 191). introduced to amend. 206. Second reading negatived, 284.

POLICE MAGISTRATES :

1. Report of Public Service Commission on. presented. (>7. Sessional Papers
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No. 63.) Printed.

2. Bill (No. 118), introduced to provide for the appointment of, with ex-

tended jurisdiction, 97. Second reading, 175. House goes into Com-
mittee on, 190. Motion for third reading; amendment proposed and

negatived: third reading, 230-7. R. A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c. 42.)

POLICE MAGISTRATES ACT:

1. Bill (No. 159), introduced to amend, 1G7. Second reading, 195. House

goes into Committee on, 206. Third reading, 382. R. A., 387.

2. Bill (No. 117), introduced to amend, 97. Second reading, 155. House

goes into Committee on, 205, 223. Third reading, 236. R. A.
?
242.

(11 Geo. V, c. 41.)

PORT ARTHUR, CITY OF:

Petition for Act respecting, 23. Reported, 108. Bill (No. 39), introduced

and referred, 109. 'Reported, 145. Second reading, 154. House goes
into Comtmittee on, 173. Third reading, 194. R. A., 242. (11 Geo.

V. c. 118.)

POUT ARTHUR AND FOIIT WILLIAM, CITIES OF:

Petition for Act respecting, 22. Reported, 60. Bill (No. '35), introduced

and referred, 65. Reported, 145. Second reading, 154. House goes
inito Committee on, 173. Third reading, 194. R. A., 242. (11 Geo.

V. c. 119.)

POUT COLBORXK, TOWN OF:

Petition for Act respecting, 23. Reported, 32. Bill (No. 13), introduced

and referred, 34. Reported, 86. Second reading, 98. House goes into

Committee on, 132. Recommitted, 146. Reported, 181. House goe-<

into Committee on, 204. Third reading. 322. R, A., 242. (11 Geo. V.

c. 120.)

POWER COMMISSION ACT:

Bill (No. 226), introduced to ammend, 253. Motion for second reading and

debate on adjourned, 310. Debate resumed and motion for second reading

carried, 337. House goes into Committee on ; third reading, 379.

R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 20.)

PUATT, JAMES PI-TRIE:

Petition for Act to authorize the Law Society of Upper Canada, to admit

to practise as a Barrister and Solicitor, 23. Reported, 63. Bill (No. 19).

introduced and referred, 64. Reported, 86. Second reading, 98. House

goes into Committee on, 132. Third reading, 14(5. R. A., 242. (11 Geo.

V. c. 140.)
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PRINTING :

1. Committee appointed, 30. Report, 143, 287.

2. Recommended purchase of certain publications., 143, 291.

3. Recommend printing of certain documents, 291.

PRISONS AND REFORMATORIES :

Report presented, 259. (Sessional Papers No. 26.) Printed.

PRIVATE BILLS :

1. Committee appointed, 28.

2. Report, 71, 86, 104, 119, 137, 145, 169, 1.80, 183, 192, 213, 227, 234, 287,

313, 332.

3. Members added, 36, 43.

4. Time extended for presenting reports, 104, 169, 193, 235, 287.

5. Fees remitted on Bill (No. 58), of Session of 1920, 181.

6. Recommend that no extra fees should be charged by reason of extension

of time, 332.

PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS :

1. Committee appointed, 29.

2. Certain matters referred to, 161-3, 208, 218.

3. To sit concurrently with House, 314, 366.

4. Report, 373. Motion to recommit defeated and report adopted, 373-4.

(Appendix No. 3.) See Separate Volume.

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS :

1. Bill (No. 208), introduced respecting, 227. Second reading and referred

to a Select Committee, 284, 299.

2. Members added, to Committee, 330, 351.

PROPORTIONAL REPRESENTATION :

1. Question as to cost of "Committee, appointed to investigate, 58.

2. Reports presented, 73-9. Printed.

3. Bill (No. 105), introduced, allowing Municipalities to adopt in municipal
elections, 81. Second reading and referred to Municipal Committee, 168.

No report.

4. Report, as printed, presented, 227. (Sessional Papers No. 81.)
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PROVINCIAL AUCTIONEERS :

Bill (No. 93), introduced respecting, 66. Second reading, 86. House goes

into Committee on, 136. Third reading, 253. E. A., 387. (11 Geo.

V. c. 57.)

PROVINCIAL AUDITOR :

Report presented, 165. (Sessional Papers No. 54.) Printed.

PROVINCIAL HIGHWAYS ACT:

1. Bill (No. 116), introduced to amend, 90. Second reading, 126. House

goes into Committee on, 159, 164, 181, 271. Third reading, 271. R. A.,

387. (11 Geo. V. c. 27.)

2. Petition for amendfrnerit, 213.

PROVINCIAL LOANS ACT:

Bill (No. 253), introduced to amend, 312. Second reading, 339. House

goes into Committee on, 371. Third reading, 377. R, A., 387. (11
. V. c. 6.)

PROVINCIAL POLICE:

Return ordered, of copy of report of Superintendent of, 116. Presented, 139.

(Sessional Papers No. 72.) Not printed. See Smith and Hanna.

PROVINCIAL SECRETARY :

1. Report presented, 331. (Sessional Papers No. 19.) Printed.

2. Announces Prorogation, 390.

PROVINCIAL SYNOD OF ONTARIO :

Petition for Act to make provision respecting Vestry Meetings, 23. Re-

ported, 33. Bdll (No. 20), introduced and referred, 35. Reported
1

;
fees

remitted, 72. Second reading, 97. House goes into Committee on, 132.

Third reading, 146. R. A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c. 133.)

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS:

1. Committee appointed, 29.

2. Accounts presented and referred, 67. (Sessional Papers No. 1.) Printed.

3. Mefeibers added, 43, 82, 169.

4. Report, 320. (Appendix No. 2.) See Separate Volume.
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PUBLIC BUILDINGS:

1. Bill (No. 88), introduced to regulate the Mean of Egress from, 44.

Second reading and referred to Municipal Committee, 96. No report.

2. Question as to branch of Provincial Secretary's Department, specially de-

voted to repair of, 202.

PUBLIC HEALTH ACT:

1. Bill (No. 104), introduced to amend', 81. Second reading negatived, 119.

2. Bill (No. 112), introduced to amend, 90. Second reading and referred

to the Municipal Committee, 126. Reported, 178. House goes into

Committee on, 190. Third reading, 221. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V.

c. 74.)

3. Bill (No. 166), introduced to amend, 173. Second reading and referred

to the Municipal Committee, 195. Reported, 208. House goes into Com-
mittee on, 238. Third reading, 253. See above.

4. Report presented, 67. (Sessional Paper* No. 21.) Printed.

PUBLIC HIGHWAYS ACT:

Report presented, 331. (Sessional Papers No. 15.) Printed.

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT: See Suburban Areas.

PUBLIC INQUIRIES ACT:

1. Bill (No. 55), introduced to amend, 143. Order for second reading die-

charged, 207.

2. Bill (No. 193), introduced to amend, 207. Motion for second reading
and point of order Raised and Debaite on adjourned, 214. Speaker's

Ruling, 217. Debate on Motion for second reading resumed and second

reading carried, 226. House goes into Committee on, 230. Third read-

ing, 236. R. A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c. 4.)

PUBLIC LANDS ACT :

Bill (No. 185), introduced to amend, 193. Second reading, 224. House

goes into Committee on, 231, 238. Third reading, 353. R. A., 387. (11

Geo. V. c. 15.)

PUBLIC MONEYS:

Motion deploring iho imprudent borrowing of large sums without any Vote

of the House, appropriating same: proposed and negatived. 170.

PUBLIC PARKS ACT:

1. Bill (No. 90), introduced to amend, 65. Second reading and referred to
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Municipal Committee, 98. Reported, 178. House goes into Committee

on, 190. Third reading, 253. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 71.)

2. Bill (No. 161), introduced to amend, 171. Second reading and referred

to the Municipal Committee, 188. Keported, 213. Houise goes into

.Committee on, 230. Order discharged, 30*7.

PUBLIC SCHOOLS : See Education.

PUBLIC SERVICE BULLETIN:

Question as to number of copies printed, etc., 51.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION:

1. Report presented re issues of Marriage Licenses, 67. (Sessional Paper*
No. 62.) Printed.

2. Report presented, re Police Magistrates, 67. (Sessional Papers No. 63.)

Printed.

PUBLIC WORKS:

.Report presented, 73. (Sessional Papers No. 13.) Printed.

f\ UEEN VICTORIA N. FALLS PARK:-

Report presented, 372. (Sessional Paper No. 9.) Printed.

QUKKNSTON-CIIIPPAWA DEVELOPMENT :

1. Report presented, of R. P. Johnson et al upon the, 259. (Sessional Papers
.
No. 85.) Printed.

2. Report of R. S. Lea presented, 259. (Sessional Papers No. 86.) Printed.

3. Report of H. L. Cooper & Co. presented, 286. (Sessional Papers No. 89.)

Printed. See Hydro-Electric Power Commission.

QUESTIONS :

1. As to Commissions appointed since November llth, 1919, by Order-in-

Council, etc., 44.

2. As to pamphlet "Canadian Nationality" being printed, 47.

3. As to total cost of Committee appointed re working of O.T.A., 48.

4. As to judgment of Justice Middleton, Fleming vs Spracklin, 48.

5. As to Registrar of Deeds for Kent County, 49.

6. As to appointment of A. T. Wilgress as Librarian, 49.
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7. As to sums of money received in respect to timber dues owing, 50.

8. As to appointment of Clerk of Executive Council, 50.

9. As to appointment of C. W. Jameis, 50.

10. As to number of copies of Public Service Bulletin printed and edited, 5 1 .

11. As to Garage at Surrey Place, 51.

12. As to interim report received on Hydro-Radials, 52.

13. As to Commissions and Committees appointed, 52.

14. As to construction Work on T. and N. O., from Cochrane, 54.

15. As to sale of seed oats to farmers, 54.

16. As* to total expenditure of Department of Highways, for 1920, 55.

17. As to number of officials discharged in Department of Game and Fisheries,

55.

18. As to position of W. J. Lannin
; duties, etc., 5>5.

19. As to applications for assistance under Community Halls Act, 56.

20. As to number of Public School teachers taking agricultural training at

Guelph, 57.

21. As to number of milk and cream inspectors appointed under Act, 57.

22. As to number of motor cars purchased for use of District Nurse?, 57.

23. As to purchase of automobile markers, 58.

24. As to cost of Committee appointed to investigate Proportional Representa-

tion, 58.

25. As to number of Loans placed by Government since November, 1919, 59.

26. As to increasing license fees payable by Net Fishermen, 60.

27. As to withdrawal of order for copies of evidence re Crown Timber Com-
mission, 60.

28. As to which Department having charge of enforcement of O.T.A., 60.

29. As to numlber of corporations or partnerships carrying on lumbering opera-
tions in Ontario, in the years 1917 to 1920, 69.

30. AH to number of investigators appointed under Mother's Allowances Act,
69.

31. As to representative sent to Winnipeg, to report on election there, 69.

32. As to fees paid to R. T. Harding, ^ince November, 1919, 82.

33. As to appointment of E. D. L. Hammond under O.T.A., 82.

34. As to identity of A. H. Pepall, 83.
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35. As to identity of R. H. Boal, 83.

36. As to adoption of Doyle Eule in measurement of timber, 84.

37. As to quantity of seed oats purchased, 84.

38. As to cost of Riddell-Latchford Timber Enquiry, 90.

39. As to amount per diem paid to Trustees Riddell and Latchford, re timber

enquiry, 91.

40. As to total cost of Ontario Public Service Commission, who compose, 91.

41. As to cost to Government for each marker for Motor Vehicles, etc., 91.

42. As to details of item $903,421.41, credited to Lands and Forests Depart-

ment, 92.

43. As to tenders being called for works by Thomas Gearing, 92.

.44. Ais to details of amounts paid by each Racing Association, 93.

45. As to identity of A. M. Latchford, 91.

46. As to Loan "N.N." of $3,000,000 being advertised, 94.

47-. As to Treasury Bills issued since 13th November, 1919, amounts, etc., 95.

48. As to identity of A. R, MacVicar, 95.

49. As to fees paid to J. S. Lundy et al, re Combines, 99.

50. As to what lands in Mckel Belt in Sudbury, have been leased to Canada

Copper Coy., etc., 100.

51. As to residence and occupation of W. T. Jackson, T. McMillan and M. IT.

Staples, re Rural Credits, 102.

52. As to appointment of Alexander Montgomery as Superintendent of Nipis-

sing Central Railway, 102.

53. As to costs of License Inspector Joseph Stewart, 102.

54. As to submission of Plans under Canada Highway Act, 111.

55. As to net income under O.T.A., for 1919 and 1920, 114.

56. As to suspension of leave of absence of S. K. Burden, 114.

">;. As to an official known as Chief Clerk of Lands, 114.

58. As to the renting of old Knox College, 115.

59. As to boat "Captain Visger", a fish patrol boat in 1919-20, 115.

60. As to date of appointment of A. A. Cole, on Peat Commission, 115.

61. As to employment of R. T. Harding, except as Counsel before Timber

Commission, 128.

62. As to superannuation of Joseph Lemieux, and appointment of J. H.

Dehaitre, 128.
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63. As to number of Counsel paid at Spracklin trial, 129.

64. As to the leasing of the Bond Building, 13-'>.

65. As to disposition of lots, since Nov. 1919, in the tow/iiships of Hearst,

Lowbush, and Fauquier, 133.

66. As to date of employment of Rev. J. 0. L. Spracklin, etc., 141.

67. As to application for Mothers Allowances in County of Oxford, 141.

68. As to applications for Mother's Allowances in County of Bruce, 142.

69. As to book "Flag- and Fleet" on list of readers, 142.

70. As to who appeared for Province on Freight Rates Case, 146.

71. As to work carried on by Soldiers' Aid Commission, 147.

72. As to superannuation of J. N. Belanger, 150.

73. As to whether T. H. Dehaitre is still acting as Provincial Officer, 150. .

74. As to applications for Mother's Allowances in County of Prescott, 151.

75. As to continuance of Soldiers' Aid Commission, 156.

76. As to uniform price obtained by Government for $16,000,000 and $10,000-

000 six per cent gold bonds, designated as "S !S" and "RR", 156.

77. As to total number of inside Civil Servants in employment ;
French-

CanadianS; 156.

78. As to identity of R. V. McPherson, 157.

79. As to Government conducting a scale of logs and mill cut re Doyle Rule,

163.

80. As to amounts received by officials in Attorney-General's Department, for

Counsel fees in connection with O.T.A., etc., 167.

81. As to number of mothers applying for allowance, under Act, in Brantford,

168.

82. As to total number of Civil Service employees, 174.

83. As to appointment of James Higgins; salary, etc., 171.

84. As to titme of payment of $2,000, on account of services, paid to Commis-

sioners Riddell and Latchford, etc., 178.

85. As to number of officials engaged by Board of License Commissioners, re

O.T.A., who have been dismissed, 183.

86. As to moneys paid to W. J. 'Lannin, 184.

87. As to purchase of licenses in Algonquin Park, 185.

88. As to mimfber of employees superannuated, etc., 185.
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89. As to cost of Commission appointed to investigate Rural Credits, 187.

90. As to purchase of pamphlet entitled "Don Quixote in Finance/' 202,

91. Asi to branch in Provincial Secretary's Department, devoted to repair of

Public Buildings, 202.

92. As to payfments to Arthur Hawkc?, re Royal Radial Commission, 203.

93. As to persons added to each Department since Nov. 1919, 218.

94. As to cost of alterations of Knox College, 219.

95. As to number of petitions received re finding of Commission on Hydro
najtes, 220.

96. As to identity of G. Dupuis, 226.

97. As to applications made to Attorney-General for clemency under O.T.A.,

222.

98. As to timber sold in Algonquin Park, 222.

99. As to identity of M. A. Mackenzie, 223.

100. As to annual revenue collected by Department of Mines, since 1907, 223.

101. As to official known as "Assistant to Deputy Minister of Lands and

Forests," 229.

102. As to what settlement reached between Hydro-Electric Power Commission
re purchase of property in township of Burton, 243.

103. As to encouragement of emigration to Province, 243.

104. As to leave of absence to Civil Servants for military training, 246.

105. As to judgment given by Justice Rose in action vs. Great Lakes Pulp and

Paper Co., 256.

106. As to apppointment of S. J. Martin, of Kemptville, 272.

107. As to proceeds of loans being placed to credit of Consolidated Revenue

Fund, 272.

108. As to amount expended on Ottawa-Prescott Highway, 275.

109. As to indemnifydng J. 0. L. Spracklin of costs, 280.

110. As to private living rooms in Parliament Buildings, 280.

111. As to an opinion re Authority of Dominion Government to pass Act

depriving Judges' acting as Commissioners, of their remuneration, 281.

112. As to R. T. Harding being in employment of Attorney- General's Depart-

ment, 281.

113. As to employment of X. W. Rowell, B81.

114. As to number of applications to Department of Attorney-General and

others, for clemency, etc., under the O.T.A., 282.
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115. As to employment of J. C. Elliott, 282.

116. As to number of cars at the disposal of Ministers, etc., 282.

117. As to purchase of motor cars, trucks, etc., 300.

118. As to estimate of timber on certain blocks, sold to E. W. Backus, 322.

119. As to reliable data re Employment of Children, 322.

120. As to date of original concession of pulpwood limits, held by Great Lakes

Paper Co., 354.

121. As to work acquired by Government on purchase of Central Ontario Power

System, 362.

122. As to negotiations made by Niagara Falls New York Power Co.: with

Hydro-Commission,, 367.

AGING ASSOCIATIONS :

Question as to details of amount paid by each, 93.

RADIAL RAILWAYS: See Hydro-Electric, Toronto.

RAILWAYS :

Committee appointed, 28. No report.

RAILWAY EMPLOYEES VOTING ACT:

Bill (No. 65), introduced to amend, 26. Second reading and referred to

Municipal Committee, 95. No report.

RAILWAY AND MUNICIPAL BOARD :

1. Report presented, 191. (Sessional Papers No. 50.) Printed.

2. Bills referred to, 34, 35, 109. Reported, 130, 137-172.

RAILWAY TRANSPORTATION :

Motion that Dominion Parliament be asked to amend Federal Railway Act

so as to include Members of Legislature ; withdrawn, 382.

REAL ESTATE TRANSFERS, TAXATION OF :

Resolution introduced; Lieutenant-Governor's recommendation tsignified :

passed through Committee and referred to Bill, 124. Bill (No. 134),

introduced, 125. Second reading, 180. House goes into Committee on,

190. Third reading, 353. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. Y. c. 13.)



1921 INDEX xivii

RECIPROCAL OR INTER-!NSURANCE :

Bill (No. 137), introduced respecting, 128. Second reading and referred to

the Legal Committee, 154. Reported, 260. House goes into Committee

on and Bill defeated, 305.

REFORESTATION ACT :

Bill (No. 74), introduced, 36. Second reading, 99. House goes into Com
mittee on, 158. Third reading, 321. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 19.)

REGISTRY ACT:

Bill (No. 180), introduced to amend, 183. Second reading and referred to

the Legal Committee, 209. Reported, 260. House goes into Committee

on, 283. Third reading, 332. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 49.)

REGISTRY OFFICES:

Report presented, 191. (Sessional Papers No. 7.) Printed.

REST, ONE DAY IN SEVEN:

Bill (No. 68), introduced for, 31. Second reading and referred to the Legal

Committee, 154. No report.

RIDDELL-LATCHFORD TIMBER ENQUIRY:

1. Question as to cost of and amount paid to R. T. Harding, 90.

2. Question as to amounts, per diem, paid to Commissioners, 91.

3. Question as to time of payment of $2,000 to Commissioners, etc., 178.

RIVER SIDE, TOWN OF:

Petition for Act to incorporate, 23. Reported, 33. Bill (No. 42), introduced

and referred, 35. Reported, 181. Second reading, 189. Recommitted,

209. Reported, 234. House goes into Committee on, 250, 325, 368.

Third reading, 376. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 121.)

ROLLIT, JOHN FULFORD:

Petition for Act to authorize the Royal College of Dental Surgeons to admit

to practise Dentistry in Ontario, 24. Reported, 63. Bill (No. 23),

introduced and referred, 64. Reported withdrawn; fees remitted, 86.

ROWELL, NEWTON W. :

Question as to employment office, Department of Attorney-General, 281.

L CREDITS:

1. Report presented, 67. (Sessional Papers No. 58.) Printed.
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2. Question as to occupation of those who reported on, 102.

3. Question as to cost of Commission to investigate, 187.

T. MARYS, TOWS' OF:-

Petition for Act respecting, 31. Reported, 108. Bill (No. 31), introduced

and referred, 109. Reported withdrawn
; fees remitted, 287.

ST. THOMAS, CITY OF :

Petition for Act respecting, 24. Reported, 33. Bill (No. 33), introduced

and referred, 35. Reported, 104. Second reading, 153. House goes

into Committee on, 179. Third reading, 194:. R. A., 242 (11 Geo. V.

c. 122.)

SAULT STE MARIE, CITY OF:

Petition for Act respecting, 24. Reported, 79. Bill (No. 6), introduced and

referred, 80. Reported, 287. Second reading, 327. House goes into

. Committee on, 368. Third reading, 37G. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c.

120.)

SCHOOLS : See Education.

SECRETARY AXD REGISTRAR :

Report presented, 331. (Sessional Papers No. 19.) Printed.

SHERIFFS :

Report presented, respecting best mode of remunerating, 182. (Sessional

Papers No. 80.) Printed. See Coroners.

SMITH AND HANNA:

Return ordered, of correspondence, dealing with the suspension of; or resigna-

tion from the Provincial Police, 37. Presented, 153. (Sessional Paper*

No. 74.) Not printed.

SOLDIERS' AID COMMISSION:

1. Reports presented, 139, 191. (Sessional Papers No. 09.) Printed.

2. Question as to what work now carried on, by, 147.

3. Question as to continuance of, 156.

SOLDIERS AND SAILORS :

Bill (No. 249), introduced respecting proof of death of, while on active ser-

vice, 308. Second reading, 338. House goes into Committee on, 370.
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Third reading, 377. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 40.)

SONS OF ENGLAND BENEFIT SOCIETY:

Petition for Act respecting, 24. Keported, 79. Bill (No. 17), introduced

and referred, 81. Reported, 138. Second reading, 154. House goes into

Committee on, 173. Third reading, 194. R. A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c.

135.)

SPEAKER, MK. :

1. Reads Messages from His Honour, 72, 270, 299.

2. Informs the House that Report had been received from Commissioners of

Estate Bills, 166.

3. That Reports had been received from Railway and Municipal Board, 130,

137, 172.

4. House informed of illness of, and Speaker pro tern, elected, 192, 196.

5. Reserves ruling on point of order, 214.

6. Gives ruling against, 217.

7. Address His Honour, asking assent to Bills passed, 240, 383.

SPEECH : See Lieutenant-Governor.

SPRACKLIN AND SPRACKLIN TRIAL: >

1. Question as to number of Counsel paid at trial, 129.

2. Question as to employment of, 141.

3. Question as to indemnifying him against costs of defence, 280.

SPRUCE FALLS PULP AND PAPER COY. :

Return ordered, of correspondence relating to sale of Kapuskasing Soldiers

and Sailors' Settlement Colony to, 116. Presented, 127. (Sessional

. Papers No. 68.) Not printed.

STALLION ENROLMENT BOARD :

Report presented, 25. (Sessional Papers No. S3.) Printed.

STAMFORD, TOWNSHIP OF:

Petition for Act respecting, 24. 'Reported, 79. Bill (No. 21), introduced

and referred, 81. Reported, 138. Second reading, 154. House goes into

Committee on, 173. Third reading, 194. R, A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c.

124.)
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STANDING ORDERS :

1. Committee appointed, 27.

2. Report, 32, 63, 79, 80, 108, 139.

3. . Recommend extension of time, 33, 79, 140.

STATIONARY AND HOISTING ENGINEERS ACT :

Bill (No. 154), introduced to amend, 160. Second reading and referred to

Labour Committee, 188. Reported, 276. House goes into Committee on,

305, 324. Third reading, 333. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 56.)

STATISTICS BRANCH :

Report presented, 307. (Sessional Papers No. 46.) Printed.

STATUTE OF FRAUDS:

Bill (No. 182), introduced to amend, 193. Second reading negatived, 212.

STATUTE LABOUR ACT:

1. Bill (No. 161), introduced to amend, 26. Order for second reading dis-

charged, 126.

2. Bill (No. 183), introduced to amend, 193. Second reading, 244. House

goes into Committee on, 247, 309. Third reading, 321. R. A., 387. (11

Geo. V. c. 69.)

STATUTES :

Statement of distribution presented, 25. (Sessional Papers No. 00.) Not

printed.

STEWART, JOSEPH :

Question as to costs ordered to be paid by, 102.

SUBURBAN AREAS'

Bill (No. 261), introduced respecting Public Improvements and Services in,

332. Second reading; House goes into Committee on; third reading,

379. R, A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 66.)

SUCCESSION DUTIES ACT :

Resolutions introduced; Lieutenant-Governor's recommenmdation signified;

passed through Committee and referred to Bill, 87. Bill (No. 81), in-

troduced to amend, 87. Second reading, 120. House goes into Com-
mittee on, 158. Third reading. 235. R. A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c. 10.)

SULPHUR FUMES:

Bill (No. 242), introduced to provide compensation for damage caused by,

292. Second reading. 327. Hou ce goos into Committee on, 335. Third
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reading, 376. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 85.)

SUPPLY :

1. Committee formed, 67.

2. Estimates presented and referred, 72, 270, 291). (Sessional Papers No. 9.)

Printed.

3. Financial Statement delivered and Debate on adjourned, 73, 85, 89, 105,

119, 159, 165, 168/170.

4. Amendment proposed and negatived, 170.

5. House goes into Committee on, 170, 195, 214, 225, 231, 239, 251, 258, 278,

285, 292, 312, 314, 330, 337.

(5. Resolutions reported and concurred in, 261-70, 294-99, 340-50.

?. House goes into Committee of Ways and Means and Resolution concurred

in, 350>.

8. Bill of Supply (No. 263), introduced and read a first, second and third

time, 351. R. A., 388. (11 Geo. V. o. 1.)

m ECUMSEH, TOWN OF :-

Petition for Act to incorporate, 24. Reported, 33. Bill (No. 45), introduced

and referred, 35. Reported, 169. Second reading, 175. House goes into

Committee on, 179. Third reading, 235. R. A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c.

125.)

TKMISKAMIXG, DISTRICT OF:

Bill (No. 235), introduced respecting the Administration of Justice in, 271.

Second reading, 309. House goes into Committee on, 336. Third read-

ing, 376. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 39.)

TEMISKAMIXG AND N. 0. RAILWAY:

1. Question as to construction work on, from Cochrane, North, 154.

2. Motion proposed and negatived, re extension, westerly, of, from North Bay

to Parry Sound, 380.

3. Report of Commission presented, 170. (Sessional Papers No. 48.}

Printed.

TIMBER COMMISSION:

Interim Reports presented of, 119. (Sessional Papers No. 67.) Printed.
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TIMBER AND TIMBER DUES:

1. Question as to sums of money received for, up to December, 1920, 50.

2. Question as) to use of Doyle Rule in measurement of logs and, 84.

3. Question as to identity of Mr. Campbell, 157.

4. Question as to estimate on Blocks 1 to 6, sold to E. W. Backus, 322.

5. Return ordered, showing haw many limits offered for sale since December.,

1910, 85. Presented, 85. (Sessional Papers No. 64.) Not printed. See

Riddell-Latchford.

TIMBER SLIDE COMPANIES ACT:

Bill (No. 240), introduced to amend, 280. Second reading, 328. House goes
into Committee on, 336. Third reading, 353. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V.

c. 59.)

TORONTO, CITY or:

1. Petition for Act respecting, 24. Reported, 32. Bill (No. 8), introduced

and referred, 34. Reported, 332. Second reading, 369. House goes into

Committee on; third reading, 379. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 126.)

2. Bill (No. 219), introduced respecting the purchase by, of the assets of

certain companies, 248. Second reading, 337. House goes into Com-
mittee on, 371. Third reading, 377. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 23.)

3. Bill (No. 258), introduced to authorize the purehaise and operation, by the

Hydro-Electric Power Commission, on behalf of, 320. Second reading,

339. House goes into Committee on, 374. Third reading, 377. R. A.,

387. (11 Geo. A7 , c. 24.)

TORONTO AND HAMILTON HIGHWAY COMMISSION ACT:

Bill (Xo. 115), introduced to amend, 90. Second reading, 155. House goes
into Committee on, 164, 237. Third reading, 237. R. A., 242. (11
Geo. V. c. 26.)

TORONTO UNIVERSITY:

1. Report presented, 26. (Sessional Papers No. 18.) Printed.

2. Report of Commission presented, re Financial Obligations to and other

Universities, 103. (Sessional Papers No. 65.) Printed.

3. Petition presented, of The Students Administrative Council, 97.

TOWN SITES : See Hearst.

TOWNSHIP ROADS:

Bill (No. 206), introduced to provide for construction of, by Special Assess-

ment, 228. Order for second reading discharged, 329.
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TRADES AND LABOUR BRANCH ACT :

Bill (No. 173), introduced to amend, 177. Second reading, 195. House goes

into Committee on, 212. Third reading, 353. R. A., 387. (11 Geo.

V. c. 77.)

TRAFALGAR AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY AND TOWN OF OAKVILLE:

Petitions for Act respecting, 38, 63. Reported, 140'. Bill (No. 49), intro-

duced and referred, 140. Reported, 213. Second reading, 244. Houee

goes into Committee on, '248. Third reading, 254. R. A., 387. (11

Geo. V. c. 113.)

TREASURY BILLS:

Question as to any issued since 13th November, 1919; what amounts, etc., 95.

TRUSTEE ACT:

Bill (No. 63), introduced to amend, 26. Second reading and referred to the

Legal Committee, 175. Reported, 188. House goes into 'Committee on,

335, 354. Third reading, 354. R. A., 387. (11 Geo. V. c. 48.)

Two PLATOON SYSTEM : See Fire Departments.

NEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE:u
Resolution in favour of Conference with Dominion and Provincial Govern-

ments in the matter of, and Old Age Pensions, etc., 380-1.

UNEMPLOYMENT SITUATION :

Resolution endorsing representations made by Veteran Organizations regard-

ing, carried and copy directed to be sent to Prime Minister at Ottawa,

etc., 366-7.

UNIVERSITIES AND UNIVERSITY ACT:

1. Report presented, of Cotmmission to report upon basis of finance obligation

of Province, toward?, Toronto, Queen's and Western Universities, 103.

(Sessional Paper No. 65.) Printed.

2. Bill (No. 211), introduced to amend Act, 228. Second reading, 327.

Order for House to go into Committee on discharged, 374.

UNMARRIED PARENTS: .-See Children.

EGETABLE GROWERS :-

Report presented, 319. (Sessional Paper No. 4$-) Printed.

VENEREAL DISEASES :

Return ordered, of copy of Agreement between Provincial Board of Health
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and Federal Health Department, relating to prevention of, 117. Pre-

sented, 153. (Sessional Papers No. 73.) Not printed.

VISGAR, CAPTAIN:

Question as to Patrol Boat so called in Commission in 1919-20, 115.

VOTERS' LISTS IN CITIES:

Bill (No. 67), introduced respecting the preparation of, 30. Second reading,
136. Eeferred to Select Committee, '141. Reported, 242. House goes
into Committee on, 275, 321. Third readang, 322. R. A., 387. (11
Geo. V. c. 2.)

w AR, THE:

1. Report presented, of Select Committee appointed to consider how best to

provide a premanent record of appreciation of distinguished services of

all men of His) Majesty's Forces, etc., 196.

2. Committee of Session of 1920, re-appointed to report re War Memorial for

Ontario, 333. Member added, 351.

WAYS AND MEANS: See Supply.

WESTON CLUB: See Etobicoke.

WHITE DOG RAPIDS WATER POWER:

Return ordered, of correspondence with E. W. Backus, relating to, and the

Lake of the.Woods Pulp Concession, 380. Not brought down.

WHITE, PETER, It.C. :

Return ordered, of correspondence, relating to payment of Counsel Fee to and

Debate on adjourned, 70, 142. Order discharged and Motion withdrawn,
365.

;

WILGRESS, A. T. :

Question re appointment of, as Librarian, 49.

WINDSOR, CITY or:

1. Petition for Act respecting, 24. Reported, 63. Bill (No. 24), introduced

and referred, 109. Reported, 213. Second reading, 249. House goes
into Comtmittee on, 257. Third reading, 271. R, A., 387. (11 Geo. V.

c. 127.)

2. Petition for Act respecting the City and the Essex Border Utilities Com-

mission, 24. Reported, 63. Bill (No. 25), introduced and referred, 65.

Reported withdrawn-; fees remitted, 145.

3. Petition for Act respecting and to validate sales of land, 24. Reported, 63.
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Bill (No. 26), introduced and
. referred, 65. Reported, 120. Second

reading, 154. House goes into Committee on, 172. Third reading, 194.

R. A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c. 126.)

WINDSOR AND WALKERVILLE :

Petition for Act respecting the formation of a joint Industrial and Technical

School Board for, 24. Reported, 108. Bill (No. 41), introduced and

referred, 110. Reported, 120. Second reading, 154. House goes into

Committee on, 173. Third reading, 194. R. A., 242. (11 Geo. V. c.

129.)

WINNIPEG PROVINCIAL ELECTION:

Question as to special representative sent to report on, 69.

WOMEN :

.. 1. Ball (No. 69), introduced for the protection of, during confinement, 31.

Second reading and referred to Labour Committee, 175. No report.

2. Bill (No. 223), introduced, concerning the employment of, during the

night, 252. Order for second reading discharged, 367.

3. Bill (No. 239), introduced to extend the Franchise to, in Municipal

Elections, 280. Order for second reading discharged, 367. See Deserted

Wives.

WOMEN'S INSTITUTES :

Report presented, 307. (Sessional Papers No. 4-1.) Printed.

WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION ACT:

1. Bill (No. 169), introduced to amend, 173. Order for second reading dis-

charged, 329.

2. Bill (No. 176), introduced to amend, 178. Order for second reading dis-

charged, 374.

3. Report of Board presented, 331. (Sessional Papers No. 55.) Printed.

TT OHK, TOWNSHIP OF:-

Petition for Act respecting, 119. Reported, 140. Bill (No. 54), introduced

and referred, 140. Reported, 287. Second reading, 327. House goes

into Committee on, 368. Third reading, 376. R. A., 387. (11 Geo.

V. c. 130.)

YOUNG PERSONS:

Bill (No. 224), introduced in connection with night work of, employed in

industry, 252. Order for second reading discharged, 368.



LIST OF SESSIONAL PAPERS
PRESENTED TO THE HOUSE DURING THE SESSION.

TITLE. No. REMARKS.

Accounts, Public, 1920 . 1 Printed.

Agricultural College, Report 30

Agricutural and. Experimental Union, Report 32

Agricultural Societies, Report 42

Agriculture, Department of, Report 29

Archivist, Report, with Supplement 52

Auditor, Provincial, Report 5

Bee-Keepers' Association, Report 37 Printed.

Births, Marriages and Deaths, Report 20

Canada, Copper Company, Correspondence. '. 79 Not Print&Z.

Children, Neglected and Dependent, Report 27 Printed.

Civil Service Commissioner, Report 87
(Catsworth, Judge, Report on Criminal Justice, etc., in TT . S. 55

Coroners, Report respecting 80

Criminal, Justice, Report on 55

Dairymen's Association, Report 38 Printed.

Division Courts, Report of Inspector 5

Kducation, Report of Department 17 Printed.

Education, Orders-in-Council. 61 Not Printed.

Elections, Return from Records 51 Printed.

Entomological Society, Report . 35
Estimates 2

caught in Lakes Nipissing and Nipigon. 83 Not Printed.

Friendly Societies, Report n Printed.
IM-U it Growers, Report 44

<

Game and Fisheries, Report 14 Printed.

Hastings, David, Report of Commission, re charges 94 Not Printed.

Health, Board of, Report 21 Printed.

Horticultural Society, Report 43

Hospitals and Charitable Institutions, Report 25

Hospitals and Charitable Institutions, Orders-in-Council 93 Not Printed.

Housing Commission, Report 40 Printed.

Hydro-Electric Power Commission, Report 49
"

Hydro-Electric Power Commission, Report as to distribution
of Power

gg

Hydro-Electric Power Commission, Report upon rate of

Waires paid re Quoenston-Chippawa development 77

1 nsanc, Hospitals, Report 22 Printed.

Ivi
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CONTINUED

TITLE. No. REMARKS.

Insurance, Report 10 Printed.

Kapuskasing, Town site at 68 Not Printed.

Labour, Report of Department 16 Printed.

Lands and Forests, Report

Legal Offices, Report
6

Legislative Building, places in use outside Not Printed.

Librarian, Report of 53

License Commissioners, convictions, O.T.A

Live Stock Branch, Report. ..
39 Printed.

Loan Corporations, Report
Loan and Trust Corporations, Statements 12

Loans, "K.R." and "S.S." correspondence .
92 Not Printed.

Luke, Lewis R., correspondence 75

Magistrates, correspondence re O.T.A 71 Not Printed.

Marriage Licenses, Report
62 Printed.

Marriage Licenses, Issuers of 70 Not Printed.

Mines, Report of Department
4 Printed.

Mining Tax Act, amounts credited to
82 Not Printed.

Mining Taxes, correspondence re increase 7

Mothers' Allowances, Report
^ Printed.

Municipal Affairs, Report
47

Municipal Auditor, Report . . . .
8

Ontario Athletic Commission, Report.
76 Not Printed.

Ontario Putolic School Readers, tenders for

Ontario Railway and Municipal Board, Report
50 Printed.

Ontario Temperance Act, Report of Commissioners 28

Ontario Temperance Act, duties of Magistrates, etc 71 Not Printed.

Ontario Temperance Act, convictions under . 84

Ottawa-Prescott Highway, miles included, etc . 90

Parole, Ontario Board of, Report
57 Printed.

Prisons and Reformatories, Report
26

Proportional Representation, Report
81

Provincial Auditor, Report 54

Provincial Police, Report of Superintendent 72 Not Printed.

Public Accounts 1 Printed.

Public Highways, Report 15

Public Service Commission, Report 63

Public Works, Report of Department 13

Queen Victoria Niagara Falls Park, Report 9 Printed.

Queenston-Chippawa Development, Johnson's Report 85
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CONTINUED

TITLE. No.

Queen&ton-Chippawa Development, Lea's Report
|

86 Printed.

Queenston-Chippawa Development, Cooper's Report
j

89

Registrar-General, Report 20 Printed.

Registry Offices, Report. .- 7

Rural Credits, Report 58

Secretary and Registrar, Report 19 Printed.

Smith and Hanna, correspondence. j

74 Not Printed.

Soldiers' Aid Commission, Reports 69 Printed.

Spruce Falls,' Pulp and Paper Co., correspondence 68 Not Printed.

Stallion Enrolment Board, Report 33 Printed.

Statistics Branch, Report 46 "

Statutes, Distribution of
I 60 Not Printed.

Temiskaming and N". 0. Railway, Report 48 Printed.

Timber Commission, Reports 67 "

Timber Limits, offered for sale 64 Not Printed.

Toronto University, Report jg Printed.

Toronto University, Report of Commission 65 "

Vegetable Growers' Aissocia/tion, Report 34 Printed.

Venereal Diseases, re prevention of. 73 Not Printed.

Women's Institutes, Report 41 Printed.
Workmen's Compensation Board, Report I 55

REMARKS.
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PAPERS ORDERED BUT NOT BROUGHT DOWN.

Page.

1. Backus, E. W., correspondence re Lake of the Woods Pulp Concessions

and White Dog Rapids Water Power 380

2. Game and Fisheries, fines and confiscations 135

3. Harding, R. T. ? correspondence regarding account rendered to James

Hourigani &' (Oo. 382

4-. Hastings, David, correspondence re dismissal of 380

5. Highways Improvemjment, contribution of Federal Government under

G'anadk Roads Acfb
(

381

6. Lumber Mills, Report of officer who conducted scale of logs and mill cut

at Twenty-six mills 366

7. Municipal Loan -Fund, operations of, amounte loaned, etc 61

8. Ontario Temperance Act, correspondence, Attorney-General and Police

Magistrates, Crown Attorneys 62

0. Ontario Temperance Act, correspondence re convictions 130

10. Ontario Temperance Act, applications for remission of fines in cases

where Member for S.E. Toronto. Seat "A" was interested .. 204

White Dog Kapidd: See above 1.
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PROCLAMATION.
Canada ^

Province of I LIONEL HERBERT CLARKE.
Ontario. J

GEORGE FIFTH, by the Grace of God, of the United Kingdom of Great Britain

and Ireland and of the British Dominions 'beyond the Seas, KING, De-

fender .of the Faith, Emperor of India, &c., &c., &c.

Our Faithful, the Members elected to serve in the Legislative Assembly of

Our Province of Ontario and to every of you GREETING.

WILLIAM EDGAR RANEY, ")

1JTT HERBA'S it is expedient for certain causes

Attorney General. J
YY and considerations to convene the Legislative

Assembly of Our said Province, WE DO WILL that you and each of you, and
all others in this behalf interested, on TUESDAY, the TWENTY-FIFTH day of

the month of JANUARY now next, at OUR CITY OF TORONTO, personally
be and appear for the DESPATCH OF BUSINESS, to treat, act, do and conclude

upon these things which, in Our Legislature of the Province of Ontario by the

Common Council of Our said Province, may by the favour of God be ord-ained.

HEREIN FAIL NOT.
l JOUR.

v
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, we have caused these Chir Letters to 'be made Patent,

and the Great Seal of Our Province of Ontario to be hereunto affixed :

WITNESS, His Honour LIONEL HERBERT CLARKE, LIEUTENANT-GOVER-

NOR of Our Province of Ontario, at Our Government House, in the

City of Toronto, in Our said Province, this EIGHTH day of

DECEMBER, in the year of Our Lord one thousand nine hundred and

twenty, and in the Eleventh year of Our Reign.

By Command,

ARTHUR H. SYDERE.

Clerk of the Crown in Chancery.

Tuesday, the Twenty-fifth day of January, 1921, being the first day of

the Second Meeting of the Fifteenth Legislature of the Province of Ontario

for the Despatch of Business pursuant to a Proclamation of His Honour
Lionel Herbert Clarke, Lieutenant-Governor of the Province.

PRAYERS. 3 O'clock P.M.

Mr. Speaker informed the House, that he had received notifications of

vacancies which had occurred during and since the last iSession of the House,
and had issued his Warrants to the Clerk of the Crown in Chancery for new
Writs for the Election of Members to serve in the present Legislature for the

following Electoral Districts:

Fort William, and

Toronto, KE. seat "A."*

To the Honourable the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of the Province

of Ontario.

WE, the undersigned Ernest Charles Drury, Member for the said Legis-
lative Assembly for the Electoral Division of Halton, and Manning Doherty,
Member. for the said Legislative Assembly for the Electoral Division of East

Kent, do hereby notify you that a vacancy has occurred in the representation
in the said Legislative Assembly for the Electoral Division of Fort William,

by reason of the acceptance of an office under the Crown, TO WIT:

*For Mr. Cody's resignation, vide page 22 of Journal1 of 1920.
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the office of Minister of Mines for the Province, by Henry Mills, Member
elect for the said Electoral Division of Fort William. And we, the said

Ernest Charles Drury and Manning Doherty, Members of the Assembly afore-

said, hereby require you to issue a new Writ for the Election of a Member to

fill the said vacancy.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals

on this Twenty-sixth day of June, in the year of our Lord one thousand nine

hundred and twenty.

Signed and sealed in the presence of

J. LONSDALE CAPREOL.

E. C. DRURY. [L.S.]

MANNING DOHERTY. [L.S.]

Mr. Speaker also informed the House, That the Clerk had laid upon the

Table the following Certificates :

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO.

THIS is TO CERTIFY that in virtue of a Writ of Election, dated the

second day of July, 1920, issued by His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor,

and addressed to Hugh H. Browne, Esquire, Returning Officer for the Electoral

District of Fort William, for the election of a Member to represent the said

Electoral District of Fort William in the Legislative Assembly of this Province,
in the room of Henry Mills, Esquire, who had accepted an office of emolument
under the Crown: TO WIT, the office of Minister of Mines, the Honourable

Henry Mills has been returned as duly elected, as appears by the Return to

the said Writ of Election, dated the nineteenth day of July, 1920, which is

now lodged of record in my office.

ARTHUR H. SYDERE,

Clerk, L. A.

Ex officio Clerk of the Crown in Chancery.

Toronto, January 10th, 19>21.
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PROVINCE OF ONTARIO.

THIS is TO CERTIFY that in virtue of a Writ of Election, dated the

twenty-third day of September, 1920, issued by His Honour the Lieutenant-

Governor, and addressed to Thomas Gibson, Esquire, Returning Officer for the

Electoral District of North-East Toronto, Seat "
A," for the election of a

Member to represent the said Electoral District of North-East Toronto, Seat
"
A," in the Legislative Assembly of this Province, in the room of the Honour-

able Henry John Cody, who had resigned, Alexander Cameron Lewif,

Esquire, has been returned as duly elected, as appears by the Return to the

said Writ of Election, dated the seventeenth day of November, 1920, whicb is

now lodged of record in my office.

ARTHUF* H. SYDERE,

Clerk, L. A.

Ex officio Clerk of the Crown in Chancery.

Toronto, January 10th, '1921.

The Honourable Henry Mills, Member for the Electoral District of Fort

William, having taken the Oaths and subscribed the Roll, took his seat.

Mr. Speaker also informed the House, That he had received from the

Judges selected for the trial of Election Petitions, pursuant to the Controverted

Elections Act of Ontario, Certificates and Reports, relating to the Elections

for the Electoral Districts of:

Grenville,

Dufferin,

Centre Simcoe, and

East Simcoe.

The several Certificates and Reports*were then read by the Clerk at the

Table as follows:
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF ONTARIO.

THE CONTROVERTED ELECTIONS ACT.

Election for the Electoral District of the County of Dufferin, holden on

the 20th day of October, 1920.

Between

John Johnson, William Braiden and George Moffat,

Petitioners,

and

I

Thomas Kerr Slack,

Respondent.

To the Honourable fhe Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of the Province

of Ontario.

WE, the Court constituted under The Controverted Elections Act for

the trial of the Petition of the above-named Petitioners against the Return of

the above-named Respondent as duly elected at the above-named election, have

the honour to report as follows :

1. The said Thomas Kerr Slack was duly elected and returned.

2. No corrupt practice has been proved to have been committed.

3. There is no reason to believe that corrupt practices extensively pre-

vailed at the said election.

4. We are not of opinion that the enquiry into the circumstances of the

election has been rendered incomplete by the action of any of the parties to

the Petition, or that further enquiry as to whether corrupt practices extensively

prevailed is desirable.

We have the honour to be, Sir,

Your obedient servants,

W. MULOCK,
Chief Justice of the Exchequer.

H. E. ROSE,

Osgoode Hall, Justice.

October 29th, 1920.

To the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of the Province of Ontario.

(1) WE, the undersigned, James Magee and Robert Franklin Sutherland,
the two Judges of the Supreme Court of the Province of Ontario duly assigned,
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pursuant to The Ontario Controverted Elections Act, R.S.O., ch. 10, sec. 76

(1), for the trial of corrupt practices and of offences punishable under section

201 of The Ontario Elections Act, committed at or in connection with the

Grenville Provincial election, held in October, 1919, beg to report, pursuant

to section 51 of the said The Controverted Elections Act, that upon the evi-

dence submitted to us in support of the petition of George Arthur Payne, the

defeated candidate at the said election, and the cross-petition of George How-
ard Ferguson, the candidate who had by the Returning Officer been declared

elected, we determined that the latter, George Howard Ferguson, was duly

elected, and in consequence dismissed the petition in respect of which evidence

was offered before us, on the trial of the said election petition on the 13th, 14th

and 15th September, 1920, without costs, and dismissed the cross-petition, with

respect to which no evidence w^is offered, also without costs, and we certify

the same accordingly*

(2) We further report, pursuant to section 52 of the said The Contro-

verted Elections Act (a) that no corrupt practice has been proved to have been

committed by or with the actual knowledge or consent of any candidate.

(&) (1)
" That one Sydney Lampkin, a moulder in a plow factory,

solicited Alexander Matt, Lome Burchill and Alexander Landrie, to vote for

the respondent, telling Matt and Landrie each that there was something in it

for them. Next day or so he put $2.00 into the pocket of each of the first two

named, and handed $2.00 to Landrie, who gave it back to him with the remark

that Lampkin needed it as much as he, and Lampkin thanked him." The said

Lampkin was proved to have been thus guilty of a corrupt practice.

(2) That one John Boyd was proved to have made a corrupt offer to

James Kelly, James E. Mclntyre and William Fleming, through one Albert

Roach, in sending him to them in connection with the election in question

and telling him to say to each "
there would be something in it for him "

to

vote for the respondent if he would do so, and to Fleming he named the sum
of $5.00.

(3) That one William Kidd made a corrupt offer to one William J. Greer

in connection with the said election with respect to his vote by asking him to

vote for the respondent, and if $5.00 would not tempt him.

(4) That one Almon Cook admittedly made a payment of $2.00 to a

voter, Mrs. Kathleen Bellinger, and professedly for voting for the petitioner

Payne, although his statement that he did so for voting for him may well be

questioned, and we find that such payment was corrupt.

(5) That the evidence did not warrant a finding that there was reason

to believe that corrupt practices had extensively prevailed at the election.
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(6) That we are not of opinion that the inquiry into the circumstances

of the election has been rendered incomplete 'by the action of any of the par-

ties to this petition or cross-petition, or that further inquiry as to whether

corrupt practices have extensively prevailed is desirable.

All of which we respectfully certify and report:

Dated this twenty-ninth day of December, 1920.

JAMES MAGEE, J. A.

R. F. SUTHERLAND, J.

To the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of the Province of Ontario.

(1) WE, the undersigned, James Magee and Kobert Franklin 'Sutherland,

the two Judges of the Supreme Court of the Province of Ontario duly assigned,

pursuant to The Ontario Controverted Elections Act, R.S.O., ch. 10, sec. 76

(1), for the trial of corrupt practices and of offences punishable under section

201 of The Ontario Elections Act, committed at or in connection with the

Centre Simcoe Provincial election, held in October, 1919, beg to report, pur-

suant to section 51 of the said The Controverted Elections Act, that the peti-

tion of John Thomas Simpson, the defeated candidate at the said election

against Gilbert Hugh Murdock, the candidate who had by the Eeturning Officer

been declared elected for the said Electoral District of East Simcoe, came

before us for trial on Saturday, the twenty-third day of October, 1920, at the

City of Toronto, to which place the place of trial had, with the consent of the

parties, been changed, and Counsel for both parties being present, no evidence

was offered in support of the said petition, and we determined that the said

Gilbert Hugh Murdock was duly elected, and in consequence dismissed the

said petition.

(2) We further report, pursuant to section 52 of the said The Contro-

verted Elections Act (a) that no cprrupt practice has been proved to have been

committed by or with the actual knowledge or consent of any candidate.

(&) That no person was proved to have been guilty of any corrupt practice.

(c) That no evidence being offered we have no reason to believe that

corrupt practices had extensively prevailed at the election.

(d) That we are not of opinion that the inquiry into the circumstances

of the election has been rendered incomplete by the action of any of the par-

ties to this petition or cross-petition, or that further inquiry as to whether

corrupt practices have extensively prevailed is desirable.

All of which we respectfully certify and report.

Dated this twenty-ninth day of December, 1920.

JAMES MAGEE (J. A.)

R. F. SUTHERLAND (J.)
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THE ONTARIO CONTROVERTED ELECTIONS ACT.

ELECTION for {he Electoral District of East Simcoe.

BETWEEN
JAMES IRWIN HARTT,

Petitioner,

against

JOHN B. JOHNSTON,

Respondent.

Pursuant to the provisions of The Ontario Controverted Elections Act

(E.S.O. 1914, Cap. 10, section 51), we, the undersigned, James Magee and

Frank Egerton Hodgins, the two Judges of the Supreme Court of Ontario,

assigned to try the Petition of the above-named Petitioner against the above-

named Respondent in relation to the Election . held on the twentieth day of

October, 1919, for the election of a member of the Legislative Assembly of the

Province of Ontario for the Electoral District of East Simcoe, do hereby

report :

THAT the said Petition came before us for trial on Saturday, the twenty-

third day of October, 1920, at the City of Toronto, to which date and place, the

date and place of trial had, with the consent of the parties to the said Petition,

been changed and Counsel for both parties being present, no evidence was

offered in support of the said Petition, and we determined that the above-

named Respondent was duly elected and returned as Member as aforesaid for

the said Electoral District, and dismissed the said Petition, and no appeal

having since been had against such our judgment we hereby make this our

report.

AND pursuant to section 52 of the said The Ontario Controverted Elections

Act, we further report :

(a) That no corrupt practice has been proved to have been committed by
or with the actual knowledge or consent of any candidate.

(b) That no person has been proved to have been guilty of corrupt

practice.

(c) That no person has upon his own evidence been found guilty of a

corrupt practice.

(d) That no evidence having been offered, we have no reason to believe

that corrupt practices have extensively prevailed.
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(e) That we are not of opinion that the inquiry into the circumstances

of the election has been rendered incomplete by the action of any of the parties

to the petition, or that further inquiry as to whether corrupt practices have

extensively prevailed is desirable.

All of which we respectfully certify and report.

Dated this twenty-ninth day of December, 1920.

JAMES MAGEE (J. A.)
FRANK E. HODGINS (J. A.)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF ONTARIO.

Appellate Division.

(UNDER THE ONTARIO CONTROVERTED ELECTIONS ACT.)

Election holden for the Electoral District of the County of Grenville,
the 20th day of October, A.D. 1920.

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO, TO WIT:

Hon. Mr. Justice Magee. ) rr , f ~ ,
., Aft/v

TT nr T . i j ( Tuesday, the 12th day of October. 1920.
Hon. Mr. Justice Sutherland.

)

Between

George Howard Ferguson,
Cross Petitioner,

and

George Arthur Payne,

Respondent.

1. This action, coming on for trial on the 12th day of September, 1920,

before this Court at sittings holden at Prescott for the trial of- this Election

Petition, in the presence of Counsel for both parties, upon hearing read the

pleadings and the Cross Petition, this Court was pleased to direct this action to

stand over for judgment, and the same coming on this day for judgment.

2. This Court doth order and adjudge that this action be and the same

is hereby dismissed without costs.

3. This Court doth further order that upon payment to the Returning
Officer and the Sheriff of their just charges under the 21st Section of The

Ontario Controverted Elections Act, the money deposited in Court to the credit

of the action be paid out to the petitioner.

(Sgd.) 1ST. F. PATERSON,

Registrar.
2 JOUR.
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1^ THE SUPREME COURT OF ONTARIO.

Appellate Division.

(UNDER THE ONTARIO CONTROVERTED ELECTIONS ACT.)

Election for the Electoral District of the County of Dufferin, liolden on

the 20th day of October, 1919.

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO, TO WIT:

The Honourable Mr. Justice Mulock, 1

Chief Justice. > Tuesday, the 12th day of October,-

The Honourable Mr. Justice Rose. J 1920.

Between

John Johnston, William Braiden and George Moffatt,

Petitioners,

and

Thomas Kerr Slack,

Respondent.

1. This action, coming on for trial on the 27th day of September, 1920
r

before this Court at sittings holden at Orangeville, for the trial of this Election

Petition, in the presence of Counsel for both parties, upon hearing read the

pleadings and hearing the evidence adduced and what was alleged by Counsel

aforesaid, this Court was pleased to direct this action to stand over for judg-

ment and the same coming on this day for judgment.

2. This Court doth order and adjudge that this action be and the same

is hereby dismissed.

3. This Court doth further order and adjudge that the petitioner pay
to the respondent his costs of this action.

4. This Court doth further order and adjudge that out of the moneys
deposited by the petitioner in Court to the credit of this action be paid to the

Returning Officer and the Sheriff their just charges under the 21st section of

The Ontario Controverted Elections Act, and to the respondent his taxed costs,
and that the balance remaining, if any, be paid out to the petitioner.

(Sgd.) N. F. PATERSON,

Registrar.
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF ONTARIO.

THE ONTARIO CONTROVERTED ELECTIONS ACT.

Election for the Electoral District of East Simcoe, holden the 20th day
of October, 1919.

Before Hon. Mr. Justice Magee and ) Saturday, the twenty-third day of

Hon. Mr. Justice Hodgins. J October, A.D. 1&20.

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO, TO WIT :

Between

James Irwin Hartt,

[L.S.] Petitioner,

and

John B. Johnston,

Respondent.

1. This action, having been set down for trial at Orillia on Tuesday, the

12th day of October, 1920, and this Court, by Order dated the 20th day of

October, 1920, adjourned the said trial to Toronto, and the trial coming on

this day at Toronto in the presence of Counsel for both parties, and hearing
read the pleadings and Counsel for the petitioner refusing to deliver particulars
of petition and offering no evidence.

2. This Court doth order and adjudge that the respondents
1 motion to

dismiss the petition for the petitioners' failure to deliver particulars be dis-

missed without costs.

3. And this Court doth further order and adjudge that this action be

and the same is hereby dismissed.

4. And this 'Court doth further order and adjudge that the petitioner pay
to the respondent his costs of this action including the costs of the said order

adjourning the trial to Toronto.

5. This 'Court doth further order and adjudge that out of the moneys
deposited by the petitioner in Court to the credit of this action be paid to the

Returning Officer and the Sheriff their just charges under the 21st section of

The Ontario Controverted Elections Act, and to the respondent his taxed costs,

and that the balance remaining, if any, be paid' out to the petitioner.

(Sgd.) N. F. PATERSON,

Registrar.
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF ONTARIO.

\

THE ONTARIO CONTROVERTED ELECTIONS ACT.

Election for the Electoral District of Centre Simcoe, holden the 20th day

of October, 1919.

Before Hon. Mr. Justice Magee and ") Saturday, the twenty-third day of

Hon. Mr. Justice Sutherland. ] October, 1920.

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO, TO WIT:

Between
John Thomas Simpson,

Petitioner,

[L.S.] and

Gilbert Hugh Murdock,

Respondent.

1. This action, having been set down for trial at Barrie on Tuesday, the

19th day of October, 19*20, and this Court, by Order dated the 20th day of

October, 1920, adjourned the said trial to Toronto, and the trial coining on

this day at Toronto in the presence of 'Counsel for both parties, and hearing

read the pleadings and Counsel for the petitioner refusing to deliver particulars

of petition and offering no evidence.

2. This Court doth order and adjudge that the respondents' motion to

dismiss the petition for the petitioners' failure to deliver particulars be dis-

missed without costs.

3. And this Court doth further order and adjudge that this action be

and the same is hereby dismissed.

4. And this 'Court doth further order and adjudge that the petitioner pay
to the respondent his costs of this action, including the costs of the said Order

adjourning the trial to Toronto.

5. This Court doth further order and adjudge that out of the moneys

deposited by the petitioner in Court to the credit of this action be paid to the

Returning Officer and the Sheriff their just charges under the 21st section

of The Ontario Controverted Elections Act, and to the respondent his taxed

costs, and the balance remaining, if any, be paid out to the petitioner.

(Sgd.) K F. PATERSON,

Registrar.
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The House then adjourned during pleasure.
.

And after some time the House resumed.

His Honour Lionel Herbert Clarke, Lieutenant-Governor of the Province,

then entered the House, and 'being' seated on the Chair on the Throne, was

pleased to open the Session by the following gracious Speech to the House :

Mr. Speaker and Gentlemen of the Legislative Assembly

In opening this Session I desire to give expression to the feeling of pro-

found gratitude which our people owe to Almighty God for the manifold bless-

ings that flow from the tranquillity of our Country, the stability of our institu-

tions and the bountiful harvest of the past year.

At the present time the civilized world is passing through a period of

readjustment to peace conditions, presenting serious problems to this Province.

The situation calls for wise and generous counsels in order that industry may be

maintained and labour afforded every possible opportunity for employment.

My Government has found it advisable under the circumstances to extend

financial assistance to provide relief for the unemployed, and will initiate

legislation for public co-operation to the same end. I trust that before long
a general revival of business activity will restore normal conditions in this

Province.

The agricultural industry has suffered materially from the rapid deflation

of the market prices of farm products, and the probable effect of this loss upon
our rural districts is a matter of importance to the whole Province. A con-

sideration of the situation looking towards a better understanding and a more

general co-operation between our rural and urban population will, I trust, lead

to beneficial results, and tend towards reducing the cost of distribution and

bettering rural conditions in the Province.

One of the most practical ways of improving the conditions of rural life

is by means of a judiciously designed good roads system. This matter has been

kept prominently beforei my Ministers during the past year and much progress
has been made in the direction of broadening the scope f the plans for highway
improvement. It is felt that good roads are among the greatest material needs

of the Province at the present time, by reason of the fact that they will not only

help to solve the transportation problem and promote the economic welfare of

the whole community, but will also contribute immeasurably to the convenience

and happiness of the people. ,

Scarcely less important to the general welfare is the distribution of elec-

trical energy in the rural districts, on terms more nearly approaching an equal-

ity with those on which the urban population is served. Special study has

been devoted to this subject by a Committee of the Legislative Assembly, and
this Committee has agreed upon findings which will be laid before you at an

early date. It will be found that the report is not only a valuable contribution

to the information availabe on this subject, but that it advances important sug-
gestions for legislative action.



14: 25TH JANUARY. 1921

During the Recess the Minister of Agriculture visited Great Britain for

the purpose of studying conditions in relation to immigration, the marketing
of the products of the Province to better advantage, and the removal of the

embargo on cattle.

The attention of the Government has.been directed unceasingly during the

past year to the important subject of education, with a view to increasing the

efficiency of both rural and urban primary schools, as well as the secondary
schools of the Province. The question of providing school organizations to

meet the needs for fuller educational advantages in rural districts will be dealt

with in a practical and comprehensive manner. A Committee is at present

engaged in considering the High 'School courses of study, and their relation to

general education and to vocational training. In due course a report will be

laid before you giving the findings of the Commission of enquiry into the sub-

ject of university finances. Recognizing the need of better educational facili-

ties for isolated settlements in the North Country, the Government has opened
a special form of High School at Monteith, to which pupils may be sent from

districts where advanced courses of instruction have hitherto been found im-

practicable. The success of the new school will have a direct relation to somo

of the educational problems of Northern Ontario. Measures to attain all these

objects, and to make the educational system worthy of the Province and equ^f
to the special needs of the time, will be presented for your consideration.

The welfare of industrial workers is a matter in which all classes are deeply
concerned. Under the legislation of last Session, a Minimum Wage Board has

been established and a plan for the payment of mothers' allowances has been

put into operation. These measures have met with general acceptance and

give promise of satisfactory results. A number of recommendations for legis-

lation for the welfare of labour have been submitted to my Government, some
of which have been endorsed by the International Labour Congress. In this

connection, certain measures will be submitted to you, and in order to facilitate

the consideration of such matters, you will be asked to appoint a standing Com-
mittee on Labour legislation which will afford the House the opportunity of

hearing and weighing the views of all parties interested. The earnest desire of

the Government, and the people of the Province, is that your legislation will

promote harmony and progress in our industrial relations.

It is a matter of much satisfaction that the financial strength of Ontario
is so well recognized by the investing public as to enable the Government to

secure advantageous terms on the money market for the securities of this Prov-

ince. This fact was demonstrated in a remarkable way by the success of the

recent Provincial loan. While the expenditure of the Government under ex-

isting conditions of high cost and expanding undertakings has of necessity

increased, the revenues are sufficiently buoyant to meet the public requirements.

Much progress was made during the past year in the construction of the

Queenston-Chippawa Development, which, when complete, will greatly increase

the quantity of electrical energy available in this Province. Arrangements
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Lave been* made for the purchase, by the Hydro-Electric Power Commission, of

the plant and transmission lines of the Electrical Development Company. The

details of this important proposal will be submitted to you for your considera-

tion and ratification. Projects for the construction and acquisition of certain

radial railways have been made the subject of investigation, and the result of

that investigation will be laid before you in duel course.

The administration of the Ontario Temperance Act has been impaired by
the traffic in intoxicating liquors both to and from this Province, but at an early

date the question of the continuance of these conditions will be decided by a vote

of the people. In the meantime, steps have been taken to deal with the situa-

tion as it exists, and legislation will be initiated to render such measures

effective.

The work of simplification and codification of the statute law, in which

progress was made last Session, will be resumed, and continued from time to

time until this desirable object has been accomplished. Your attention will be

directed to a consolidation of the Municipal and Assessment laws and to other

msolidations for which preparations have been made.

Several Committees of the Legislature have been in Session during the

Eecess and have prepared reports upon matters referred to them. These re-

ports deal with the subject of proportional representation, a memorial to the

heroes of the war, the establishment of an Industrial Rehabilitation Board, the

administration of the Ontario Temperance Act and the equalization of Hydro-
Electric rates, and will be submitted to you at an early date.

You will be asked to consider legislation to provide a system of Rural

Credits for the Province ;
to amend the Election Act

; respecting- Reforestation
;

regarding the Development of Northern Ontario; to amend the Corporation
Tax Act; regarding the status of illegitimate children; to amend the Public

Health Act; to amend the Mining Tax Act; regarding the employment of

en in restaurants
; respecting Loan and Trust Companies ;

to amend the

[ighways
1

Act, to amend the Factories Act, and for other purposes.

The Public Accounts will be brought down at an early date, and in due

mrse Supplementary Estimates for the current year and Estimates for the

ming fiscal year, will be laid before you.

In welcoming you to the discharge of your duties, I desire to express the

hope that under the guidance of Providence your deliberations may advance

the prosperity of the Province, and the welfare and happiness of all our people.

His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor was then pleased to retire.

Mr. Speaker then reported. That, to prevent mistakes, he had obtained a

copy of His Honour's Speech, which he read.
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On motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney, a Bill was introduced

intituled "An Act respecting the Administration of Oaths of Office to persons

appointed as Justices of the Peace," and the same was read the first time.

On motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney,

Ordered, That the Speech of His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor, to

this House, be taken into consideration To-morrow.

On motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney,

Resolved, That Select Standing Committees of this House, for the present

Session, be appointed for the following purposes: 1. On Privilege? and

Elections; 2. On Railways; 3. On Miscellaneous Private Bills; 4. On Standing

Orders; 5. On Public Accounts; 6. On Printing; 7. On Municipal Law; 8. On

Legal Bills; 9. On Agriculture and Colonization; 10. On Fish and Game;
which said Committees shall severally be empowered to examine and enquire
into all such matters and things as shall be referred to them by the House,
and to report from time to time their observations and opinions thereon, with

power to send for persons, papers and records.

Mr. Speaker informed the House, That the Clerk had laid upon the

Table:

A Return from the Records of the By-Elections to the Legislative Assembly
held on the 19th day of July and the 8th day of November, 1920, shewing:

(1) The number of Votes Polled for each Candidate in each Electoral

District in which there was a contest; (2) The majority whereby each success-

ful Candidate was returned; (3) The total number of Votes Polled; (4) The

number of Votes remaining unpolled ; (5) The number of names on the Polling

Lists; (6) The number of Ballot Papers sent out to each Polling Place; (7)

The Used Ballot Papers; (8) The Unused Ballot Papers; (9) The Rejected

Ballot Papers; (10) The Cancelled Ballot Papers; (11) The Declined Ballot

Papers; (12) The Ballot Papers taken from Polling Places; (13) A General

Summary of Votes cast in each Electoral District. (Sessional Papers No. 51.)

The House then adjourned at 3.30 p.m.
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Wednesday, January 26th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK P.M.

Mr. Speaker communicated to the House,

The Report of the Librarian on the state of the Library. (Sessional

Papers JSfo. 53.)

Alexander Cameron Lewis, Esquire, Member for the Electoral District

of North-East Toronto, Seat
"
A," having taken the Oaths and subscribed

to the Roll, took his seat.

The following Petitions were severally brought up and laid upon the

Table:

By Mr. Ross (Kingston), two Petitions of the City Council of Kingston.

By Mr. Swayze, the Petition of the City Council of Niagara Falls
; also,

the Petition of the Township Council of Stamford.

By Mr. Dewart, the Petition of the Sons of England Benefit Society.

By Mr. Godfrey, the Petition of the Town Council of Mimico; also,

the Petition of the Township Council of Etobicoke and Weston Golf and

Country Club.

By Mr. Ireland, the Petition of the City Council of Belleville.

By Mr. Tooms, the Petition of the City Council of Peterborough.

By Mr. Warren, the Petition of the Town Council of Pembroke.

By Mr. Cunningham, the Petition of the City Council of Sault Ste. Marie.

By Mr. Thompson, the Petition of the City Council of Toronto.

By Mr. MacBride, the Petition of Alfred Hall of Toronto; also, the

Petition of the City Council of Brantford.

By Mr. McCrea, the Petition of the City Gas Company of London.
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By Mr. Cooper (Welland), the Petition of the Town Council of Port

Colborne.

By Mr. Johnston (Simcoe), the Petition of the Town Council of Orillia.

By Mr. Evanturel, the Petition of the Town Council of Hawkesbury.

By Mr. Denyes, the Petition of James Petrie Platt of Montreal.

By Mr. Curry, the Petition of the Most Keverend George Thornloe and

others.

By Mr. Murdock, the Petition of John Fulford Kollit of Barrie.

By Mr. Pinard, two Petitions of the City Council of Ottawa.

By Mr. Hill, the Petition of Beechwood Cemetery Company of Ottawa;

also, the Petition of the County Council of Carleton.

By Mr. MacVicar, the Petition of the City Council of St. Thomas.

By Mr. Brackin, the Petition of the City Council of Chatham.

By Mr. Tisdelle, the Petition of the City Council of 'Windsor
; also, the

Petition of M. S. Clapp and others of Sandwich East.

By Mr. Heenan, the Petition of the City Councils of the Cities of Fort

William and Port Arthur.

By Mr. Gray, the Petition of the Town Council of Gananoque.

By Mr. Hogarth, the Petition of the City Council of Port Arthur.

By Mr. Tolmie, the Petition of the City Council of Windsor; also, the

Petition of the City Council and the Water Commission of the City of Windsor
;

also, the Petition of the Essex Border Utilities Commission
; also, the Petition

of the Boards of Education and the Separate School Boards of Windsor and

Walkerville; also, the Petition of the Town of Eord City and others; also,

the Petition of K. W. Codes and others of the Township of Sandwich West.

By Mr. Mewhinney, the Petition of the Town Council of Kincardine.

By Mr. Lethbridge, the Petition of the Village Council of Acton.

By Mr. Price, the Petition of Lewis A. McElroy of Erie. U.S.A.. and

others.
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The Order of the Day for the consideration of the Speech of His Honour
the Lieutenant-Governor at the opening of the Session, having been read,

Mr. Johnson (Lanark) moved, seconded by Mr. Homuth,

That an humble Address be presented to His Honour the Lieutenant-

Ooveruor as follows:

To His Honour Lionel Herbert Clarice, Lieutenant-Governor of the Province

of Ontario:

WE, His Majesty's most dutiful and loyal subjects, the Legislative

Assembly of the Province of Ontario, now assembled, beg leave to thank

your Honour for the gracious Speech which your Honour has addressed to us.

And a Debate having ensued, it was, on the motion of Mr. Dewart,

Ordered, That the Debate be adjourned until To-morrow.

On motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney,

Ordered, That in addition to the Select Standing Committees already

ordered by the House, there shall be, and is hereby constituted, a further

Committee to be known as the Labour Legislation Committee, as outlined

in the Speech of His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor to this House, said

Committee to have the same powers as those already ordered.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the Lieutenant-Governor:

Report of the Select Committee of the Legislative Assembly, as to a

more equitable system of distribution of Hydro-Electric power and a more

uniform price. (Sessional Papers, No. 59.)

The House then adjourned at 4.45 p.m.
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Thursday, January 27th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK P.M.

The following Petition was brought up and laid upon the Table:

By Mr. Johnston (Simcoe), the Petition of the Town Council of Midland.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Smith, it was

Resolved, That a special Committee of Fourteen Members be appointed to-

prepare and report, with all convenient speed, a list of Members to compose the

Select Standing Committees ordered by this House as follows :

Messieurs Raney, Doherty, Grant, Biggs, Smith, Hicks, Hollo, Swayze,
Marshall, Lang, Brackin, Thompson, Henry and McCrea.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Smith, it was

Resolved, That a select Committee of Ten Members be appointed to act

with Mr. Speaker in the control and management of the Library to be composed
as follows :

Messieurs Drury, Grant, Doherty, Mills, Bowman, Watson, Hall, Tolmie,

BucMand and Kennedy,

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Smith, it was

Resolved, That a select Committee be appointed to direct the expenditure

of any sum set apart by the Estimates for Art purposes, to be composed as

follows :

Messieurs Drury, Smith, Nixon, Rollo, Grant, Dewart, Hay, Ross (King-

stein), and Lewis.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion

for consideration of the Speech of His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor, at

the opening of the Session, having been read,
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The Debate was resumed, and after some time, it was, on the motion of

Mr. Drury,

Ordered, That the Debate be further adjourned until Tuesday next.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney, it was

Ordered, That when this House adjourns To-day, it do stand adjourned
until Tuesday next, the First day of February, at three of the clock in the

afternoon.

The House then adjourned at 5.10 p.m.

Tuesday, February 1st, 1921.

PRAYEBS. 3 O'CLOCK P.M.

The following Petitions were severally brought up and laid upon the

Table:

By Mr. Buckland, the Petition of the City of Guelph.

By Mr. Calder, the Petition of the City Council of London.

By Mr. Watson, the Petition of McMaster University.

The following Petitions were read and received :

Of the Village Council of Acton, praying that an Act may pass to ratify

and confirm a certain By-law.

Of the Beechwood Cemetery Company of Ottawa, praying that an Act

may pass reducing the number of Directors.

Of the City Council of Belleville, praying that an Act may pass to ratify

and confirm By-law "No. 2286 authorizing the issue of Debentures.

Of the City Council of Brantford, praying that an Act may pass to enable

the Corporation by By-law to provide for a Board of Control and Engineering

Board, to pass certain By-laws and for other purposes.
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Of the City Council of Chatham, praying that an Act may pass authoriz-

ing certain changes in government of the City, as approved by vote of the

electors.

Of the County Council of Carleton, praying that an Act may pass author-

izing the issue of Debentures for a term of forty years and for other purposes.

Of the Essex Border Utilities Commission, praying that an Act may pass

to amend Act making Debentures a joint liability and to, extend the power of

the Ontario Kailway and Municipal Board.

Of the Township Council of Etobicoke and Weston Golf and Country

Club, Limited, praying that an Act may pass to ratify and confirm a certain

By-law and Agreement.

Of the City Councils of the Cities of Fort William and Port Arthur,

praying that an Act may pass authorizing the Corporations to pass By-laws-

varying the fares on the Street Railway owned by them.

Of Lewis A. McElroy of Erie, U.S.A., and others, praying that an Act

may pass to incorporate Fecunis, Limited, for the purpose of acquiring and

operating Mining Lands.

Of the Town Council of Gananoque, praying that an Act may pass

authorizing the issue of Debentures.

Of the Town of Ford City and others, praying that an Act may pass

annexing certain described lands to the Town.

Of Alfred Hall of Toronto, praying that an Act may pass declaring that

he is in good standing as a Barrister and Solicitor.

Of the Town Council of Hawkesbury, praying that an Act may pass

authorizing the Town to separate from the United Counties of Prescott and

Russell by its erection into a separate Town.

Of the City Council of Kingston, praying that an Act may pass to ratify

and confirm By-law "No. 42 and the contract with Thomas Watson thereunder.

Of the City Council of Kingston, praying that an Act may pass to ratify

and confirm By-law ISTo. 29 exempting certain buildings from taxation.

Of the Town Council of Kincardine, praying that an Act may pass to

consolidate the floating debt and to authorize the borrowing of money.

Of the City Gas Company of London, praying that an Act may pass to

amend Act respecting, toward^ increasing Capital Stock.
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Of the Town Council of Midland, praying that an Act may pass to ratify
and confirm certain bylaws.

Of the Town Council of Mimico, praying that an Act may pass to amend
6 Geo. V, cap. 80, in relation to certain Public Works and for other purposes.

Of the City Council of Niagara Falls, praying that an Act may pass

providing for the levy of an equal rate after 1st January, 1921, upon whole

rateable property of Corporation to pay cost of construction of Sewers.

Of the Town Council of Orillia, praying that an Act may pass to ratify
and confirm a certain By-law providing for the issue of Debentures.

Of the Most Reverend George Thornloe and others, praying that an Act

may pass to incorporate the Provincial Synod of Ontario of the Church of

England.

Of the City Council of Ottawa, praying that an Act may pass authorizing
the Corporation to appoint a Town Planning Commission for the City.

Of the City Council of Ottawa, praying that an Act may pass authorizing

the Corporation to provide by By-laws for borrowing upon Debentures certain

sums of money for Public Utilities, without the assent of the electors.

Of the Town Council of Pembroke, praying that an Act may pass

authorizing the Corporation to assess and levy in any one year not more than

three and one-half cents in the dollar on assessed value of the whole rateable

property of the Town.

Of the City Council of Peterborough, praying that an Act may pass

authorizing the Corporation to vary and amend certain By-laws, to ratify

and confirm certain Agreements and for other purposes.

Of James Petrie Pratt, of Montreal, praying that an Act may pass to

authorize thei Law Society of Upper Canada to admit him to practise as a

Barrister and Solicitor.

Of the Town Council of Port Colborne, praying that an Act may pass

authorizing the Corporation to acquire certain Cemetery Lands.

Of the City Council of Port Arthur, praying that an Act may pass to

amend 2 Geo. V, cap. 118, and to legalize and confirm Tax Sales prior to

January 1st, 1920.

Of R. W. Codes and others of the Township of Sandwich East, praying
that an Act may pass to incorporate the Town of River Side.
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Of John Fulford Rollit, of Barrie, praying that an Act may pass author-

izing him to practise Dentistry in Ontario.

Of the City Council of Sault Ste. Marie, praying that an Act may pas*

to ratify and confirm certain By-laws and to confirm Sales of Land.

Of the Sons of England Benefit Society, praying that an Act may pass

respecting reduction in value of Benefit Certificates.

Of the Township Council of 'Stamford, praying that an Act may pass

authorizing the passing of a By-law and the issue of Debentures.

Of the City Council of St. Thomas, praying that an Act may pass to

ratify and confirm By-law No. 2430 authorizing the issue of Debentures.

Of M. S. Clapp and others of Sandwich East, praying that an Act may
pass to incorporate the Town of Tecumseh.

Of the City Council of Toronto, praying that an Act may pass respecting
the duties of the Deputy City Auditor; the issue of Debentures and for other

purposes.

Of the City Council of Windsor, praying that an Act may pass to validate

and confirm all Sales of Land prior to the 31st December, 1920.

Of the City Council of Windsor, praying that an Act may pass permitting
the City to withdraw from the Essex Border Utilities Commission.

Of the City Council and the Water Commissioners of the City of Windsor,

praying that an Act may pa&s to amend Section 18 of Cap. 58, 51 Victoria.

Of the Boards of Education and the Separate School Boards of Windsor
and Walkerville, praying that an Act may pass to create a joint Board of

School Trustees with certain powers.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion

for consideration of the Speech of His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor, at

the opening of the Session, having been read,

The Debate was resumed, and after some time, it was, on the motion of

Mr. MacBride,

Ordered, That the Debate be further adjourned until To-morrow.
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The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the Lientenant-Governor :

Loan and Trust Corporation Statements, being Abstracts from Financial

Statements made by Building Societies, Loan Companies, Loaning Land Com-

panies and Trust Companies, for the year ended December 31st, 1919. (Ses-

sional Papers, No. 12.)

Also Report of the Stallion Enrolment Board of Ontario for 1920.

(Sessional Papers, !N~o. 33.)

Also Statement of the distribution of the Revised and Sessional Statutes

for the year 1920. (Sessional papers, No. 60.)

Also Regulations and Orders-in-Council passed since the last Session of

the Legislature under the authority of the Department of Education Act, or

of the Public Schools, Separate Schools or Hiffh Schools. (Sessional Papers,
No. 61.)

The House then adjourned at 6.00 p.m.

Wednesday, February 2nd, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK P.M.

The following Petitions were severally brought up and laid upon the

Table:

By Mr. Lewis, the Petition of the Town Council .of St. Mary's.

By Mr. Curry, the Petition of J. Whittaker and others
; also, the Petition

of E. Charity and others
; also, the Petition of W. Lucas and others

; also, the

Petition of F. Hunter and others, all of the Township of York.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 60), intituled
" An Act respecting the Legitimation of Children

by the subsequent intermarriage of their parents. Mr. Raney.
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Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 61), intituled "An Act to amend The Statute Labour Act."

Mr. Magladery.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 62), intituled
" An Act to provide Free Text Books in Schools."

Mr. Brackin.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill '(No. 63), intituled "An Act to amend The Trustee Act." Mr.

Price.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 64), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act, 1913."

Mr. Stevenson.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 65), intituled "An Act to amend The Kailway Employees'

Voting Act, 1918." Mr. Stevenson.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion

for consideration of the Speech of His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor, at

the opening of the Session, having been read,

The Debate was resumed, and after some time, it was, on the motion of

Mr. Hall,

Ordered, That the Debate be further adjourned until To-morrow.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the Lieutenant-Governor:

Eeport of the University of Toronto Board of Governors, for the year

ending 30th June, 1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 18.)

Also Eegulations and Orders-in-Council passed since January 22nd,

1921, under the authority of the Department of Education Act, or of the

Public Schools, Separate Schools or High Schools. (Sessional Papers, No. 61.)

The House then adjourned at 5.55 p.m.
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Thursday, February 3rd, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK P.M.

The following Petitions were severally brought up and laid upon the

Table:

By Mr. Tooms, the Petition of the City Council of Peterborough.

By Mr. O'Xeill, the Petition of the Trafalgar Agricultural Society of

Oakville.

By Mr. Price, the Petition of the Village Council of Georgetown.

The following Petitions were read and received:

Of the City Council of Guelph, praying that an Act may pass to increase

the Capital Stock of the Guelph Radial Railway Company and to ratify and

confirm a certain By-law.

Of the Oity Council of London, praying that an Act may pass to authorize

the passing of certain By-laws.

Of McMaster University, praying that an Act may pass to amend their

Act of incorporation.

Mr. Smith, from the Special Committee appointed to prepare and report
with all convenient speed a list of Members to compose the Select Standing
Committees ordered' by this House, presented the following Lists as their

Report :

COMMITTEE ON STANDING ORDERS.

Honourable Mr. Drury, Messieurs Black, Bowman, Bragg, Buckland,

Carmichael, Carty, Casselman, Cooke, Cooper (Toronto), Cridland, Crockett,

Cunningham, Denyes, Doherty, Ecclestone, Evans, Evanturel, Fenton, Fowler,

Govenlock, Grant, Gray, Greenlaw, Hill, Homuth, Johnston (Lanark), Joynt,

Kennedy, Leeson, McAlpine, McCrea, McLeod, McNamara, MacVicar, Mageau,
Marshall, Mewhinney, Murdoch, Racine, Raney, Ross (Kingston), Sandy,

Staples, Stevenson, Stringer, Swayze, Tooms, Widdifield 49.

The Quorum of said Committee to consist of seven members.
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COMMITTEE ON PRIVATE BILLS.

Honourable Mr. Drury, Messieurs Allan, Biggs, Black, Bowman, Brackin,

Brown, Buckland, Calder, Cameron, Carmichael, Casselman, Clarke, Cooke,

Cooper (Welland), Crawford, Crockett, Cunningham, Curry, Dewart, Doherty,

Ecclestone, Evanturel, Ferguson, Fox, Freeborn, Godfrey, Grant, Greenlaw,

Halcrow, Hall, Hay, Heenan, Henry, Hicks, Hill, Hogarth, Hommth, John-

ston (Simcoe), Johnston (Lanark), Lang, Leeson, Lennox, Lethbridge, Lewis,

McArthur, McCrea, McNamara, MacBride, MacVicar, Mageau, Marshall,

Mills, Montgomery, Nixon, Oke, O'Neill, Pinard, Price, Racine, Ramsden,

Raney, Rankin, Rollo, Ross (Glengarry), Ross (Kingston), Sewell, Sinclair,

Smith, Staples, Stevenson, Stringer, Swayze, Taylor, Thompson, Tisdelle,

Tolmie, Walker, Warren, Watson, Webster 80.

The Quorum of said Committee to consist of nine members.

COMMITTEE ON MUNICIPAL LAW.

Honourable Mr. Drury, Messieurs Allan, Asmussen, Biggs, Black, Bow-

man, Bragg, Buckland, Carmichael, Carty. Cooke, Cooper (Welland), Craw-

ford, Cridland, ICrockett, Cunningham, Curry, Denyes, Dewart, Doherty,

Ecclestone, Evans, lEvanturel, Fenton, Fowler, Fox, Godfrey^ Govenlock,

Grant, Greenlaw, Halcrow, Hall, Heenan, Henry, Hicks, Hill, Homuth,
Ireland, Johnston (Simcoe), Johnston (Lanark), Kennedy, Lang, Lewis,

Leeson, McAlpine, McArthur, McCreary, McDonald, (McLeod, MacBride,

MacVicar, Mageau, Marceau, Marshall, Mills, Montgomery, Murdoch, Nixon,

Oke, O'Neill, Pinard, Price, Racine, Raney, Rankin, Rennie, Rollo, Ross

(Glengarry), Sandy, Slack, Smith, Staples, Steveixson^ Stringer, 'Swayze,

Taylor, Thompson, Watson 78.

The Quorum of said Committee to consist of nine members.

COMMITTEE ON RAILWAYS.

Honourable Mr. Drury, Messieurs Allan, Asmussen, Biggs, Bowman,
Bragg, Brown, Cameron, Carty, Casselman, Clarke, Cooper (Toronto), Craw-

ford, Cridland, Crockett, Cunningham, Denyes, Evans, Evanturel, Fenton,

Fox, Godfrey, Gray, Halcrow, Hall, Heenan, Hicks, Hogarth, Homuth,
Ireland, Joynt, Kennedy, Lang, Leeson, Lennox, McArthur, McCrea,

McCreary, McDonald, McNamara, MacVicar, Mageau, Magladery, Marshall,

Mathieu, Mills, Montgomery, Murdoch, O'Neill, Pinard, Price, Racine,

Ramsden, Raney, Rollo, Ross (Kingston), Ross (Glengarry), Sandy, Sewell,

Slack, Stevenson, Sitover, Stringer, Swayze, Thompson, Tisdelle, Tolmiei,

Walker, Warren, Watson, Widdifield 71.

The Quorum of said Committee to consist of nine members.
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COMMITTEE ON AGRICULTURE AND COLONIZATION.

Honourable Mr. Drury, Messieurs Biggs, Black, Bowman, Bragg, Buck-

land, Calder, Cameron, Carty, Casselman, Cooke, <Cridland, Doherty, Eccle-

stone, Evanturel, Fowler, Freeborn, Govenlock, Gray, Hall, Henry, Hicks,

Homuth, Johnston (Lanark), Joynt, Kennedy, Lethbridge, McAlpine,

McArthur, McCreary, McDonald, McLeod, MacVicar, Magladery, Marceau,

Marshall, Mathieu, Mewhinney, Mills, Murdoch, Oke, Racine, Rankin, Rennie,

Rollo, Ross (Glengarry), Sandy, Sewell, Smith, Stringer, Swayze, Tisdelle,

Walker, Warren, Widdifield 55.

The Quorum of said Committee to consist of nine members.

COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC ACCOUNTS.

Honourable Mr. Drury, Messieurs Biggs, Bowman, Brackin, Buckland,

Carmichael, Clarke, Cooper (Toronto), Cunningham, Curry, Dewart, Doherty,

Ferguson, Freeborn, Godfrey, Grant, Greenlaw, Halcrow, Hall, Hay, Henry,

Hicks, Hill, Hogarth, Johnston (Simcoe), Johnston (Lanark), Lennox,

McCrea, McLeod, MacBride, MacVicar, Mageau, Magladery, Mills, Nixon,

Oke, Pinard, Price, Racine, Raney, Rollo, Ross (Kingston), Sewell, Sinclair,

Smith, Swayze, Thompson, Tolmie, Tooms, Walker, Warren, Watson,

Widdifield 53.

The Quorum of said Committee to consist of seven members.

COMMITTEE ON PRI-VILEGES AND ELECTIONS.

Honourable Mr. Drury, Messieurs Bowman, Brackin, Calder, Clarke,

Cridland, Cunningham, Curry, Dewart, Doherty, Ferguson, Fox, Freeborn,

Grant, Greenlaw, Hay, Heenan, Henry, Hicks, Hogarth, Johnston (Lanark

South), Joynt, Lennox, Lethbridge, Lewis, McCrea, MacBride, Magladery,

Mathieu, Oke, Racine, Raney, Ross (Kingston), Sewell, 'Sinclair, Slack,

Swayze, Taylor, Tolmie, Tooms, Webster, Widdifield 42.

The Quorum of said Committee to consist of nine members.

COMMITTEE ON FISH AND GAME.

Messieurs Allan, Asmussen, Biggs, Black, Bowman, Cameron, Clarke,

Cooper (Toronto), Cooper (Welland), Cridland, Cunningham, Denyes, Eccle-

stone, Fowler, Fox, Gray, Greenlaw, Heenan, Hicks, Ireland, Lang, Leth-

bridge, McAlpine, Mageau, Marceau, Magladery, Mills, Montgomery, Oke,

Rankin, Slack, Stover, Stringer, Taylor, Tooms, Watson, Webster 37.

The Quorum of said Committee to consist of seven members.
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COMMITTEE ON .LEGAL BILLS.

Honourable Mr. Drury, Messieurs Allan, Biggs, Brackin, Carmichael,.

Curry, Dewart, Doherty, Ferguson, Grant, Hill, McCrea, Mills, Nixon, Pricer

Raney, Eollo, Sinclair, Smith 19.

The Quorum of said Committee to consist of five members.

COMMITTEE ON PRINTING.

Messieurs Biggs, Brown, Crawford, Crockett, Dewart, Gray, Hill,

Mathieu, Nixon, Raney, Rennie, Smith, Stover, Swayze, Taylor 15.

The Quorum of said Committee to consist of five members.

COMMITTEE ON LABOUR.

Honourable Mr. Drury, Messieurs Allan, Biggs, 'Cameron, Casselmanr

Crockett, Dewart, Halcrow, Heenan, Hill, Homuth, Ireland, MacBride,
MacVicar, McNamara, Magladery3 Marceau, O'Neill, Rollo, .Sinclair, Smith,

Swayze, Webster 23.

The Quorum of s<aid Committee to consist of eleven members.

Resolved, That this House doth concur in the foregoing Report.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney, it was

Ordered, That the name of Mr. Denyes be added to the Committee on

Agriculture and 'Colonization, and the name of Mr. Stevenson to the Com-
mittee on Fish and Game.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill '(No. 66), intituled
" An Act respecting the Office of Crown Attorney

in the City of Toronto and the County of York." Mr. Raney.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 67), intituled "An Act respecting the preparation of Voters'

Lists in Cities." Mr. Curry.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.
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Bill (No. 68), intituled
" An Act for One Day of Kest in Seven." Mr.

McNamara.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 69), intituled
" An Act for Maternity Protection." Mr.

McNamara.

Ordered,, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 70), intituled "An Act to amend The Assessment Act." Mr.

Homuth.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion

for consideration of the Speech of His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor, at

the opening of the Session, having been read,

The Debate was resumed, and after some time, it was, on the motion of

Mr. Swayze,

Ordered, That the Debate be further adjourned until To-morrow.

The House then adjourned at 5.55 p.m.

Friday, February 4th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK P.M.

The following Petition was brought up and laid upon the Table:

By Mr. Brackin, the Petition of Joseph St. Pierre and others of the Town-

ship of Eochester.

The following Petitions were read and received:

Of the Town Council of the Town of St. Mary's, praying that an Act

may pass to ratify and confirm By-law No. 417 fixing the rate to be levied

against farm lands of twenty-five acres within the town.
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Of J. Whittaker and others
;
also, of E. Charity and others

; also, of W.
Lucas and others

; also, of F. Hunter and others, all of York, severally praying
that an Act may pass to separate certain territory from the Township of York
and to incorporate the same as the Township of Xorth York.

Mr. Carmichael, from the Standing Committee on Standing Orders,

presented their First Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee have carefully examined the following Petitions and

find the Notices as published in each case sufficient :

Of the Town Council of Mimico, praying that an Act may pass to amend
6 Geo. V, cap. 80, in relation to certain Public Works arid for other purposes,

Of the City Council of Belleville, praying that an Act may pass to ratify

and confirm By-law "No. 2286 authorizing the issue of Debentures.

Of the City Council of Peterborough, praying that an Act may pass

authorizing the Corporation to vary and amend certain By-laws, to ratify and

confirm certain agreements and for other purposes.

Of the 'City Council of Toronto, praying that an Act may pass respecting
the duties of the Deputy City Auditor; the issue of Debentures and for other

purposes.

Of Alfred Hall of Toronto, praying that an Act may pass declaring that

he is in good standing as a Barrister and Solicitor.

Of the City Gas Company of London, praying that an Act may pass to

amend Act respecting, towards increasing Capital Stock.

Of the City Council of Kingston, praying that an Act may pass to ratify

and confirm By-law N"o. 42 and the contract with Thomas Watson thereunder.

Of the City Council of Kingston, praying that an Act may pass to ratify

and confirm By-law !NTo. 29 exempting certain buildings from taxation.

Of Town Council of Port Colborne, praying that an Act may pass auth-

orizing the Corporation to -acquire certain 'Cemetery lands.

Of the Town Council of Orillia, praying that an Act may pass to ratify

and confirm a certain By-law providing for the issue of Debentures.

Of the Essex Border LTtilities Commission, praying that an Act may pass

to amend Act making Debentures a joint liability and to extend the power
of the Ontario Railway and Municipal Board.
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Of the Most Reverend George Thornloe and others, praying that an Act

may pass to incorporate the Provincial Synod of Ontario of the Church of

England.

Of the City Council of St. Thomas, praying that an Act may pass to

ratify and confirm By-law No. 2430 authorizing the issue of Debentures for

Water Works and other purposes.

Of the City Council of Chatham, praying that an Act may pass authoriz-

ing certain changes in the Government of the City as approved by vote of the

electors.

Of the Town Council of Gananoque, praying that an Act may pass auth-

orizing the issue of Debentures to defray the floating debt of the Town.

Of R. W. Codes and others of the Township of Sandwich East, praying
that an Act may pass to incorporate the Town of River Side.

Of the Town of Eord City and others, praying that an Act may pass

annexing certain described land to the Town.

Of M. S. Clapp and others of Sandwich East, praying that an Act may
pass to incorporate the Town of Tecumseh.

Of the City Council of Ottawa, praying that an Act may pass authorizing
the Corporation to appoint a Town Planning Commission.

Your Committee recommend that Rule No. 51 of Your Honourable House
be suspended in this, that the time for presenting Petitions for Private Bills

be extended until and inclusive of Tuesday the 15th day of February instant,

and that the time for introducing Private Bills be extended until and inclusive

of Tuesday the 22nd day of February instant.

Ordered, That the time for presenting Petitions for Private Bills be

extended until and inclusive of Tuesday the fifteenth day of February instant,

and that the time for introducing Private Bills be extended until and inclusive

of Tuesday the twenty-second day of February instant.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (jSTo. 2), intituled
" An Act respecting the Town of Mimico." Mr.

Godfrey.
3 JOUR.
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deferred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 3), intituled
" An Act respecting the City of Belleville." Mr.

Freland.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 4), intituled "An Act respecting the City of Peterborough.
"

Mr. Tooms.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 8), intituled "An Act respecting the City of Toronto." Mr.

Thompson.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 10), intituled "An Act respecting the City Gas Company of

London." Mr. McCrea.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 11), intituled "An Act to legalize and confirm By-law No. 42

of the City. of Kingston." Mr. Ross (Kingston.)

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 12), intituled "An Act to legalize and confirm By-law No,

29 of 1920, of the City of Kingston." Mr. Ross (Kingston.)

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 13), intituled "An Act respecting two abandoned Cemeteries

in the Town of Port Colborne." Mr. Cooper (Welland.)

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 14), intituled
" An Act to confirm By-law No. 744 of the Town

of Orillia." Mr. Johnston (Simcoe.)

Referred to the" Railway and Municipal Board.

Bill (No. 15), intituled "An Act to amend and consolidate the Acts

respecting the Essex Border Utilities Commission." Mr. Tolmie.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.
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Bill (No. 18), intituled
" An Act respecting the City of Chatham." Mr.

Brackin.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 20), intituled "An Act to incorporate the Provincial Synod
of Ontario of the Church of England in Canada and to make provisions re-

specting Vestry Meetings." Mr. Curry.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 32), intituled "An Act providing for the appointment of a

Town Planning "Commission for the City of Ottawa and defining the powers
of such Commission." Mr. Pinard.

Referred to the C.ommittee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 33), intituled "An Act respecting the City of St. Thomas."

Mr. MacVicar.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 38), intituled "An Act respecting the Town of Gananoque."'
Mr. Gray.

Referred to the Railway and Municipal Board.

Bill (No. 42), intituled
" An Act to incorporate the Town of River Side."

Mr. Tolmie.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 43), intituled "An Act to annex certain land to the Town of

\>rd City." Mr. Tolmie.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 45), intituled
" An Act to incorporate the Town of Tecumseh."

[r. Tisdelle.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

i

Bill (No. 71), intituled
" An Act to amend the Dog Tax and Sheep Pro-

;tion Act." Mr. Mageau.

,
\

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.
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Bill (No. 72), intituled
" An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Swayze.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 73), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Crawford.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 74), intituled
" The Reforestation Act." Mr. Bowman.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Tuesday next.

Bill (No. 75), intituled "An Act to provide for Development Work in

Northern and Northwestern Ontario." Mr. Bowman.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Tuesday next.

Bill (No. 76), intituled "An Act to amend The Motor Vehicles Act,"

Mr. Biggs.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Tuesday next.

Bill (No. 77), intituled "An Act to amend The Highway Travel Act."

Mr. Biggs.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Tuesday next.

Bill (No. 78), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Biggs.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Tuesday next.

Bill (No. 79), intituled
" An Act to amend The Mining Tax Act." Mr.

Mills.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time ^n Tuesday next.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Doherty,

Ordered, That the name of Mr. Stover be added to the Standing Committee

on Private Bills, and the name of Mr. Cooper (Welland) be added to the

Standing Committees on Agriculture and Colonization and Labour.
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On Motion of Mr. Sinclair, seconded by Mr. Tolmie,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House, a Return of copies of all

correspondence with and by the Government or any Department thereof lead-

ing up to and relating to the dismissal of Mr. Lewis R. Luke, as License

Inspector for Ontario County.

Mr. MacBride moved, seconded by Mr. MclSTamara,

That there be laid before this House, a Return of copies of all letters of

instruction or correspondence from the Attorney-General to Mr. J. W. Mallon,
and copies of all letters between J. W. Mallon and any Members of the U.F.O.

or Labour groups of the Legislative Assembly upon the subject of naming a

committee of ten or twelve citizens in each constituency for the purpose of

advising the Government in connection with the appointments of the Civil

Service.

And a Debate having ensued,

The Motion was, by leave of the House, withdrawn.

On motion of Mr. Tolmie, seconded by Mr. Calder,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House, a Return of copies of all

correspondence passing between tho Government of Ontario or any member,
officer or official thereof, or of any department thereof and any member of

the House or other person leading up to it, and dealing with the suspension

and resignation of Messrs. Smith and Hanna from the Provincial Police.

The House then adjourned at 5.15 p.m.
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Monday, February Tth, 1921,

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK P.M.

The following Petition was brought up and laid upon the Table:

By Mr. Marceau, the Petition of James Passmore and others of the

Township of Ferris.

The following Petitions were read and received:

Of the Village Council of Georgetown, praying that an Act may pass

to incorporate the Village as a Town.

Of the City Council of Peterborough, praying that an Act may pass

authorizing the Trustees of the Peterborough Relief Association to pay over

moneys held in trust for the alleviation of distress.

Of the Trafalgar Agricultural Society of Oakville. praying that an Act

may pass authorizing the issue of serial bonds.

Of Joseph St. Pierre and others of the Township of Rochester, praying

that an Act may pass to validate and confirm in each of them the title to

certain lands.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney,

Ordered, That beginning on Monday next and on each succeeding Monday
for the remainder of the Session, Government Orders shall be placed upon the

Order Paper.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Report of the Inspector of Division Courts, for the year 1920. (Sessional

Papers, No. 5.)

The House then adjourned at 5.55 p.m.
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Tuesday. February 8th, 1021.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK P.M.

Mr. Nixon, from the Select Committee appointed to make Report in

respect of the administration of and amendments to The Ontario Temperance
Act, presented their Report, together with a Minority Report, which were read

as follows:

Toronto, February 2nd. 1921.

Ontario Temperance Act.

Report of Special Committee appointed to make Report in respect to the

administration of and amendments to The Ontario Temperance Act.

The Special Committee of the House appointed by the Legislature to

meet during the Recess of the Legislature and to inquire as to the working
and operation of The Ontario Temperance Act, and the administration thereof

and as to what, if any, improvements, amendments or alterations should be

made in the said Act, and to prepare such amendments to the Act as they

may deem necessary and to report at the next Session of the Legislature met on

the days following:

(1) 28th September, 1020.

(2) 19th October, 1920.

(3) 2nd November, 1920.

(4) 3rd November, 1920.

(5) "10th December, 1920.

and on the 10th day of December. 1920, appointed a Sub-Committee to draft

a report for submission to the general committee, which was considered at a

general meeting of the Committee on the 2nd day of February. 1921, when
the following report was adopted by a majority of the said Committee :

The Dominion Government having seen fit to postpone the taking of the

referendum in the Province of Ontario until April of 1921, the work of the

Committee very largely became that of taking and recording such evidence as

was produced before it of the administration of the law and of minor amend-

ments to the Act. The 'Committee at its fiVst meeting concluded that it had

power to take evidence under oath, and authorized the summoning of witnesses,

but your Committee subsequently learned by the advice of Edward Bayly,

K.C., Deputy Attorney-General, that the Committee had no power to enforce

the attendance of such witnesses, nor to require that they should be sworn.

The advice of the Deputy Attorney-General very much limited the scope of

the investigation.
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The Committee considered the advisability of recommending a system
of Government control of the sale of liquor in the Province of Ontario, but

upon due consideration, and having regard to flhe expressed will of the people

in the referendum taken in October, 1919, the Committee concluded that they

could not, without disregarding the will of the people so expressed recommend

any such change. This further curtailed the scope and duties of the

Committee.

Standard Hotels.

The Committee is of the opinion that Standard Hotels should not be given
the exclusive right to sell malt products, *and that there should not be any
limitation to the hours within which Standard Hotels should be permitted to

sell temperance beverages ;
and your Committee further reports that it has no

information before it to justify the statement that the bars in Standard Hotels

are conducted in a disreputable manner.

Percentage of Alcohol.

Your Committee having duly considered the arguments advanced: (1)

In favour of raising the percentage of alcohol legally permissible in malt

beverages; and (2) In favour of reducing the percentage of alcohol legally

permissible in alcoholic beverages, is not, after carefjul inquiry, prepared to

recommend that any change be made in the present provisions of the law in

regard to the above matters.

The Committee is not prepared to advise that the sale of native wine under

the provisions of The Ontario Temperance Act, be interfered with for the

present.

Administration.

Your Committee reports that they have carefully considered such evi-

dence as was submitted to them in regard to the lack of co-operation of officials

charged with the administration of laws generally, and officials charged with

the administration of The Ontario Temperance Act, for the purpose of deter-

mining what report should be made to the Legislature in respect to such lack

of co-operation, and what means should be devised to ensure co-operation, and

your Committee is pleased to report that partially as a result of the informa-

tion obtained by reason of such inquiries, and in consideration of the evidence

then given, the departments charged with the enforcement of laws generally

and of The Ontario Temperance Act in particular, themselves applied the

remedy by placing the enforcement of The Ontario Temperance Act in the

Department of the Attorney-General. The Committee fully approves of the

action of the Government in so consolidating the enforcement of such laws

within one department.

During the inquiry your Committee recommended to the Attorney-

General's Department that an investigation be held by a County Court Judge
in respect to the developments in Essex County ; your Committee reports that
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for reasons that the Committee deemed sufficient such investigation was not

held, and approves of the action taken by the Attorney-General's Department
in not holding such investigation.

Appeals.

Your Committee carefully considered the question of giving a right of

appeal to all parties convicted of any offence against The Ontario Temperance
Act, and heg to report that it is of the opinion that the Act should be amended
so as to provide for an appeal by the defendant on the record of the evidence

as taken before the convicting Magistrate, such appeal to be to a Judge in

Chambers of the Supreme Court of Ontario, and that provision be made that

in the case of the defendant desiring to appeal, he shall deposit as security

for costs the sum of $100, which, in case of dismissal of the appeal, shall be

forfeited to the Crown.

Your Committee finds upon inquiry, and begs to report that the amount
of sales from dispensaries (including the central warehouse) during the past

fiscal year amounted to $3,628,191, that the same period there were 3,813

convictions, of which 27 were subsequently quashed; that the resultant fines,

exclusive of those collected by municipal police, amounted to $672,222, and

remissions were subsequently granted to the amount of $33,687 ;
that clemency

was granted to 181 individuals in respect to which imprisonment had been

adjudged ;
that the amount of liquor confiscated amounted in value, as esti-

mated, to $227,459.

Your Committee presents herewith stenographic notes of the various

meetings showing the evidence produced before your Committee, and has

also attached herewith a copy of report of the 4-Oth Annual Meeting of the

Ontario Medical Association, Toronto, May 25-30, 1920, indicating the view-

point of the said Association toward certain provisions of the O.T.A.

In conclusion your Committee begs to report that there was evidence of

intention on the part of the Government of the Province of Ontario to admin-

ister The Ontario Temperance Act vigorously, firmly and with due considera-

tion to the rights of all parties.

MINORITY REPORT.

Minority Report of the Committee to report in respect to the administra-

tion of an Amendment to The Ontario Temperance Act.

The undersigned, being a minority of the members of the said Committee,

beg leave to report that they do not concur in the Report of the said Committee,

but recommend that the following paragraph of the said Report be struck out :

4 JOUR.
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'* Your Committee carefully considered the question of giving a Right of

Appeal to all parties convicted of any offence against The Ontario Temperance
Act and beg to report that it is of the opinion that the Act should be amended
to as to provide for an appeal by the Crown or the defendant on the record of

the evidence taken before the convicting Magistrate, such appeal to be to a

Judge in Chambers of the Supreme Court of Ontario, and that provision be

made that in the case of the defendant desiring to appeal, he shall deposit as

security for costs the sum of $100, which, in the case of dismissal of the appeal,

shall be forfeited to the Crown/'

And that the following be substituted therefor:

Your Committee carefully considered the question of giving the Right of

Appeal to all parties convicted of any offence against The Ontario Temperance
Act and beg to report that it is of the opinion that the said Act should be

amended so as to provide that (in addition to the right of appeal allowed to

the Crown under the Act in dismissed cases), the defendant may appeal to the

Judge of the County or District in which conviction has been made, upon
notic^ of appeal to the Crown or District Attorney within ten days after the

date of such conviction and upon depositing the sum of $100 as security of

costs, when the Judge shall grant a summons calling upon the Crown Attorney
or the complainant and the convicting Magistrate to appear, upon the return

of which summons the case shall be tried in appeal, and the evidence of wit-

nesses heard viva voce; and such order made as to dismissal or as to imprison-

ment or fine as is provided by the said Act; and as to costs, as to the Judge may
seem right, such order to have the same effect and be enforcible in the same

manner as the order of conviction or dismissal by a Magistrate under the Act.

F. C. TOLMIE. 0. F. SWAYZE. PETER HEENAN.
R. H. DEWART. SEO. S. HENKY. F. W. HAY.
Jos. E. THOMPSON. Tiros. MARSHALL. I. A. PINARD.

jrEO. W. ECCLESTONE. 7ORBES GODFREY.

Mr. Nixon then moved that the Report be adopted.

Mr. Tolmie moved in amendment, seconded by Mr. Dewart,

That the said Report be not adopted, but that this House adopt, in lieu

thereof, the amended Report suggested by the minority of the said Special

Committee, as the same appears upon the record of the House.

And a Debate arising,

Mr. Raney moved

That the Debate he adjourned until to-morrow.

And the question having been put, was carried, and it was

Ordered. That the Debate be adjourned until To-morrow.
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On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney,

Ordered, That the name of Mr. Mathieu be added to the Standing Com-

mittee on Private Bills.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion

for consideration of the Speech of His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor, at

the opening of the Session, having been read,

The Debate was resumed, and after some time, it was, on the motion of

Mr. McNamara,

Ordered, That the Debate be further adjourned until To-morrow.

The House then adjourned at 5.55 p.m.

Wednesday, February Orh, 1021.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK, P.M.

The following Petition was brought up and laid upon the Table:

By Mr. O'Xeill, the Petition of the Town Council of Oakville and the

Trafalgar Agricultural Society.

.

The following Petition was read and received :

Of James Passmore and others of the Township of Ferris, praying that

an Act may p-ass to divide the Township of Ferris.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney,

Ordered, That the name of Mr.. Murdoch be added to the Standing Com-

mittee on Public Accounts.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 9), intituled "An Act respecting Mr. Alfred Hall and

the Solicitors' Roll of the Law Society of Upper Canada." Mr. McBride.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.
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Bill (No. 80), intituled "An Act to amend the Limitations Act." Mr.

Price.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 82), intituled "The Maximum Work Hour Day Act." Mr.

McNamara.

Ordered, That the Bill bo read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 83), intituled
" An Act to amend The Assessment Act." Mr.

Curry.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time T<>-iu<>rn>w.

Bill (No. 84), intituled "An Act to amend the Municipal Act." Mr.

Homuth.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 85), intituled
" An Act to amend the Public Schools Act." Mr.

Crockett.

Ordered, That the Hill bo read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 86), intituled "An Act to amend the Municipal Act." Mr.

Crockett.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 87), intituled "An Act to amend the Assessment Act." Mr.

Crockett.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 88), intituled
" An Act to regulate the Means of Egress from

Public Buildings." Mr. Crockett,

Ordered. That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Mr. O'Neil asked the following Question :

1. What Commissions' have been appointed by the Government since

November llth, 1919, by Order-in Council, and who are the Commissioners
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in each case. 2. What Commissions were appointed by Order of the Legis-

lature in 1920. 3. What of the above named Commissions have presented

reports to the Government and in what cases have the reports been printed.

To which the Premier replied in the words following:

1. A Commission to inquire into the administration, management, con-

duct, discipline, equipment and welfare of The Ontario Hospital, Hamilton
;

His Honour Colin George 'Snyder, Commissioner.

A Commission to inquire into the administration, management, conduct,

discipline, equipment and welfare of The Ontario Hospital, London; His

Honour Talbot Macbeth, Commissioner.

A Commission to inquire into administration, etc., etc., of The Victoria

Industrial School
;
Dr. John Waugh, Dr. Helen MacMurchy and John J.

Kelso, Commissioners.

A Commission to inquire into the Natural Gas Situation
;
Eustace S.

Estlin, Commissioner.

A Commission to inquire into and report on Soldiers' Settlement Colony
at Kapuskasing; W. F. Nickle, Lieut.-Col. John I. McLaren and John Sharp,

Esq., Commissioners.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon all cutting by Timber
licensees or other persons of timber upon Crown Lands, etc., etc.; Hon. W. R.

II id dell, Hon. F. R. Latchford, Commissioners.

\ Commission to inquire into and report upon the fair market value of

asset? of estate of late John McMartin, re payment of Succession Duties;
Hon. W. E. Middleton, Commissioner.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon the fair market value of

seis of estate of late E. F. B. Johnston, re payment of Succession Duties;
'on. W. E. Middleton, Commissioner.

A Commission to enquire into the shooting of Ernest Bergeron by certain

constables in the County of Essex
;
His Honour James Gamble Wallace, Com-

missioner.

vll

s

A Commission to inquire into and report upon the Wages paid to men

employed by the Hydro-Electric Power Commission in the construction of

Queenston Chippawa Development, etc., etc.; Messrs. K<lii;ir Watson,

illiam II. Casselman, Morrison M. McBride, James Craig Tolmie and

\rthur Edward Ross, Commissioners.



4:6 OTH FEBRCAKY. 1921

A Commission to inquire into and report upon seizure of car of whiskey
at the City of Chatham, etc., etc.

;
His Honour Tal-bot MacBeth, Commissioner.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon the best method of select-

ing, appointing and remunerating Sheriffs, County Court Officers, Clerks of

the Peace, Crown Attorneys, etc., etc.
;
W. D. Gregory, Dr. H. L. Brittain,

Norman Sommerville, Albert Hellyer and E. A. Pocock, Commissioners.

A Commission under the Athletic Commission Act, 1920, to assist, pro-

mote and encourage amateur sport; Francis Kelson, Donald Cameron, John

F. McGarry, Edward B. Archibald and Patrick J. Mulqueen, Commissioners.

A Commission of 'Inquiry re Hydro-Radials ;
The Hon. Mr. Justice

Sutherland, General Mitchell, Fred Bancroft, Esq., William Andrew Amos,

Esq., Andrew Fullerton McCallum, Commissioners.

A Commission for Mothers' Allowances
;
Rev. Peter Bryce, Mrs. Elizabeth

Shortt. Mr. Arthur James Reynolds, Mrs. Minnie Singer and Major Thomas
J. Murphy, Commissioners.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon a Basis for determining
the financial obligations of the Province towards the University of Toronto;

Queen's University, Kingston ;
and Western University, London

;
Ven. Arch-

deacon Cody, Colonel A. P. Deroche, Sir John Willison, Mr. T. A. Russell,

Mr. C. R. Somerville and Mr. J. Alex. Wallace, Commissioners.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon the truth or falsity of the

charges made by one James M. Young, of Brockville, against F. B. Taber,
License Inspector of Brockville, and C. R. Deacon, who was acting as the

License Inspector's Solicitor and Counsel
;
His Honour John K. Dowsley, a

Commissioner.

A Commission to investigate into the charges made against David Hast-

ings, Police Magistrate at Dunnville; John A. Patterson, K.C., Commissioner.

2. The Commissions are appointed by Order-in-Council under the au-

thority of Legislation.

3. A Commission to inquire into the administration, management, con-

duct, discipline, equipment and welfare of The Ontario Hospital, Hamilton.

Has reported. See Sessional papers, No. 87, Session of 1920. Report not

printed.

A Commission to inquire into the administration, management, conduct,

discipline, equipment and welfare of The Ontario Hospital. London. Has

reported. See Sessional papers N"o. 88, Session of 1920. Report not printed.
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A Commission to inquire into administration, etc., etc., of The Victoria

Industrial School. Interim reports made. Report not printed.

A Commission to inquire into the Natural Gas Situation. Has reported.

See 29th Annual Report of Bureau of Mines, Part V. Report printed.

A Commission to inquire into and report on Soldiers' Settlement Colony
at Kapuskasing. Has reported. Sessional papers No. 61, Session of 1920.

Report printed.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon all cutting by Timber

licensees or other persons of timber upon Crown Lands. Interim reports

made. Not printed.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon the fair market value of

assets of estate of late John McSlartin, re payment of Succession Duty. Has

reported. Report not printed.

A Commission to inquire into the shooting of Ernest Bergeron by certain

Constables in the County of Essex. Has reported. Report in Attorney-

General's Office. Report not printed.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon best methovi of selecting

appointing and remunerating Sheriffs, County Court Officers, Clerks of the

Peace, Crown Attorneys, etc. Interim Report received re Police Magistrates
and Issuers of Marriage Licenses. Not printed.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon the truth or falsity of the

charges made by one James M. Young, of Brockville, against F. B. Taber,

License Inspector of Brockville, and C. R. Deacon, who was acting as the

License Inspector's Solicitor and Counsel. Has reported. Report not

printed.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon the wages paid to me*i

employed by the Hydro-Electric Power Commission in the construction of

the Queenston-Chippawa Development, etc. Has reported. Report not

printed.

Mr. Sinclair asked the followii-c; Question:

1. Was the pamphlet.
" Canadian Nationality and the relation of Canada

to the other Britannic Commonwealths.'' being the report of a speech of Hon.
W. E. Raney, K.C., Attorney-General for Ontario, at the Canadian Bar Asso-

ciation at Ottawa on September 2nd. 1020, printed and published upon the
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authority of the Government. 2. Was any contribution or payment of part
or all of the funds for said publication made by the Government. 3. If any
contribution payment was so made, on whose authority was it made. 4. If so

made, how much was paid by the Government for said purpose. 5. To whom
was such payment made. 6. How many copies of the same were published.

And the Attorney-General replied as follows:

1. "No. 2. No. 3, 4 and 5. Answered by 1 and 2. 6. This is not a matter

of public interest.

Mr. Sinclair asked the following Question:

1. What was the total cost of the committee of the Legislature appointed
]ast session to investigate the working of the O.T.A. 2. Who were members

of the Committee. 3. How many days did the Committee sit. 4. What sums

were paid or allowed to each member for (a) attendance at meetings; (&) mile-

age. 5. At what places were the meetings of the Committee held. 6. What
was paid for witness' fees. 7. Was the evidence of witnesses taken on oath.

8. Will the evidence so taken be printed and distributed among the members

of the Legislature. 9. Was the evidence so taken extended by the reporters

and in the hands of the members of the Committee before they prepared their

report.

And the Provincial Secretary replied as follows:

1. Unknown, as several accounts have not yet been rendered. 2. Hon.

E. C. Drury, Hon. W. E. Eaney, Hon. H. C. Nixon, Messrs. Edgar Watson,

II. McCreary, E. G. Sandy, J. G. Lethbridge, W. H. Casselman, Andrew

Hicks, C. F. Swayze, Peter Heenan, H. H. Dewart, Thomas Marshall, J. W.

Curry, J. C. Tolmie, F. W. Hay, Samuel Clarke, J. A. Pinard, Forbes God-

frey, Hon. A. E. Eoss, Hon. G. S. Henry, G. W. Ecclestone, Capt. J. E.

Thompson, E. M. Warren. 3. Five. 4. No payment has yet been made to

members. 5. Parliament Buildings, Toronto. 6. No payment. 7. No. 8. No,

but typed copies of stenographic notes and evidence were tabled with Com-

mittee's report. 9. The evidence was transcribed and placed in the hands

of such members as availed themselves of the invitation to peruse same. It

was also given to the sub-committee appointed to peruse same and draft report

for consideration of the general committee.

Mr. Cooper (Toronto) asked the following Question:

1. Has the Attorney-General been advised of the judgment of Hon. Mr.
Justice Middleton in the action of Fleming vs. Spracklin, et al, tried at the
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Sandwich Sessions in the Fall term of 1920. 2. Was this an ordinary civil

action for damages. 3. Is it true, as reported in the press of January 5th, 1921,

that the Attorney-General has ordered an appeal in this case. 4. If an appeal
has been so ordered, is the Government furnishing funds to prosecute that

appeal on behalf of the defendants.

And the Attorney-General replied as follows:

1. Yes. 2. It was a Civil Action. 3. Yes. 4. Yes.

Mr. Lang asked the following Question:

1. Who is Registrar of Deeds for Kent County. 2. When was he ap-

pointed. 3. Who was his immediate predecessor in said office. 4. When did

the office becDme vacant. 5. What relation, if any, is the present Registrar to

J. B. Clarke, who was elected as Member for East Kent as a U.F.O. candidate

in October, 1919, and, subsequently resigning, to allow the Honourable the

Minister of Agriculture to obtain a seat in the House. 6. What were the

net emoluments of the office for the incumbent thereof in the year 1919. 7.

Who was Deputy Registrar in said office at the decease of the former incum-

bent. 8. Did this Deputy carry on the work in the office satisfactorily from

the decease of the former incumbent until the appointment of the present one.

And the Attorney-General replied in the words and figures following:

1. J. B. Clarke. 2. 25th November, 1920. 3. A. J. Dunn. 4. 30th April,

1920. 5. He is the same person. 6. $4,446.87. 7. Miss Carrie J. Burton.

8. Yes.

Mr. Bragg asked the following Question:

1. Upon whose recommendation was Arthur T. Wilgress appointed to the

office of Chief Librarian. 2. What salary or salaries will he draw in connec-

tion with the work of Chief Librarian. 3. What are the qualifications of

Arthur T. Wilgress stated in the recommendation to the office of Chief Li-

brarian. 4. What were the occupations of Arthur T. Wilgress before he

entered the Government employment.

And the Provincial Treasurer replied as follows:

1. The Provincial Treasurer. -2. $3,100. 3. No qualifications were

stated in the recommendation. 4. Banker, newspaper publisher and journalist.
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Mr. Stover asked the following Question:

1. What sums of money had been received by the Department of Lands

and Forests up to December 3rd, A.D. 1920, in respect of timber dues owing
to the Government from past transactions and arising out of the so-called

timber probe. 2. What party or parties up to that date had paid any sum or

sums to the said Department. 3. Had the said Department, up to that date,

issued any information as to any such payments having been made. 4. Are

the statements alleged to have been made by the Government Whip that large

sums had been paid in, prior to that date, correct. 5. If said statements were

not correct, what steps did the Minister of Lands and Forests or any other

Minister take to inform the public of the incorrectness of the same.

And the Minister of Lands and Forests replied in the words and figures

following :

1. $12,600, $13,030.74. 2. James Horrigan & Co., G. E. Farlinger. 0.

No. 4. See Answer No. 1. 5. The Minister of Lands and Forests being
interviewed by Globe reporter, December 8th, 1920, re statement said to have

been made by Mr. Hicks, gave particulars as reported in Globe. December 9th,

1920.

Mi'. Ramsden asked the following Question:

1. Upon whose recommendation was the appointment of Clerk of the

Executive Council made. 2. Was any committee appointed to deal with or

report on this matter or to make recommendation with regard thereto. 3. Was
the report of such committee, if any, accepted. 4. Were any representations

made by any person or persons to such committee, if any, and by whom.

And the Premier replied in the words following:

1. Upon the recommendation of the President of the Council. 2. There
was no formal Committee or formal report but an informal exchange of views

Qn the subject. 3. Answered by reply to No. 2. 4. Answered by reply to

No. 2.

Mr. McLeod asked the following Question:

1. What office did C. W. James hold before his appointment to the office

of King's Printer. 2. What was his remuneration. 3. What was his occupa-
tion before he was employed by the Government. 4. LTpon whose recommenda-
tion was he appointed to the office of King's Printer. 5. What were his quali-
fications for the office of King's Printer stated in the recommendation to that

office. 6. What salary or salaries does he draw under the new appointment.
T. v

Are any part of the duties of purchasing agent, to be undertaken by him in

connection with the work of King's Printer.
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And the Provincial Treasurer replied in the words and figures following :

1. Minister's Secretary and Departmental Secretary Department of Edu-

cation, and Secretary to Teachers' and Inspectors' Superannuation Board. 2.

$3,100. 3. Civil servant in employ of Dominion Government. 4. The Pro-

vincial Treasurer's. 5. No qualifications were stated in the recommendation.

6. $4,000. 7. Yes.

Mr. Sinclair asked the following Question:

1. How many copies of Public Service Bulletin, Vol. 4, ISTo. 6, Ontario

Legislature, 1920, were printed. 2. Who edited and prepared the same. 3.

On whose authority was it printed. 4. Was distribution of the bulletin made
at the expense of the Government. 5. What was the cost of (a) printing the

same; (Z?) of editing the same; (c) of distributing the same. 6. Were the

U.F.O. Clubs and Organizations in the Province used as a means of distribut-

ing the same. 1. How many copies of the bulletin were sent to the U.F.O.

Clubs throughout the Province.

And the Premier replied as follows:

1. 5,000. 2. The Law Clerks of the House. 3. On the authority of the

Government. 4. Yes. 5. (a) $270.30; (6) Nothing; (c) Postage on about

2,500 copies. 6. No. 7. The distribution was general, and there is no record

of copies sent to any particular organization.

Mr. Pinard asked the following Question:

1. Does the Government own a garage at Surrey Place, near Queen's

Park, Toronto. 2. When was it built. 3. For what purpose was it built.

4. By whom was it built. 5. What was the total cost of the same with fixtures

and equipment. 6. (a) By what authority was it built; (fr) what alterations

have been made under the authority of the present Government and at what

cost. 7. How many automobiles will it house. 8. How many employees are

engaged in it as mechanics, caretaker, or workmen, other than chauffeurs.

9. What is the total monthly wage-bill for the parties mentioned in answer to

Question 8 for each month since it was occupied as a Government garage.

And the Minister of Public Works replied in the words and figures

following :

1. Yes. 2 f 3, 4, 5 and Qa. The garage was part of the property known as

15 Queen's Park, purchased by the Government from H. C. Cox, on 2nd

January, 1917. 6ft. An extension to the north and removal of partitions,

$14,998.38. 7. About 25, Highway Department trucks and automobiles. 8.

Four. 9. $468 per month.
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Mr. Thompson asked the following Question:

1. Has the Government received an interim report from the Commission
on Hydro Radials. 2. If so, is it the intention of the Government to present
it to the House. 3. Will the final report of the Commission on Hydro Radials

be laid before the House this Session.

And the Premier replied in the words following:

1. No interim report has been received. 2. Answered by reply to No. 1.

3. If received in time, the report will be laid before the House this Session.

^\Ir. Allan asked the following Question:

1. How many Commissions and Special Committees have been appointed

by this Government since November 13th, 1919. 2. What are the names of the

various Commissions or Committees so appointed. 3. How many of the Com-

missions or Committees so appointed have presented their final reports to the

Government.

To which the Premier replied in the words following:

1. Eighteen Commissions, but no Special Committees, the latter being

appointed by the Legislative Assembly.

2. A Commission to inquire into the administration, management, con-

duct, discipline, equipment 'and welfare of The Ontario Hospital, Hamilton.

A Commission to inquire into the administration, management, conduct,

discipline, equipment and welfare of The Ontario Hospital, London.

A Commission to inquire into administration, etc., etc., of The Victoria

Industrial School.
i

A Commission to inquire into the Natural Gas Situation.

A Commission to inquire into and report on Soldiers' Settlement Colony
at Kapuskasing.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon all cutting by Timber
Licensees or other persons of timber upon Crown Lands, etc., etc.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon the fair market value of

assets of estate of late John McMartin, re payment of Succession Duties.
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A Commission to inquire into and report upon the fair market value of

assets of estate of late E. F. B. Johnston, re payment of Succession Duties.

A Commission to inquire into the shooting of Ernest Bergeron by certain

constables in the County of Essex.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon the wages paid to men

employed by the Hydro-Electric Power Commission in the construction of the

Queenston-Chippawa Development, etc., etc.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon seizure of car of whiskey
at the City of Chatham, etc., etc.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon best method of selecting,

appointing and remunerating Sheriffs, County Court Officers, Clerks of the

Peace, Crown Attorneys, etc., etc.

A Commission under The Athletic Commission Act, 1920, to assist, pro-

mote and encourage amateur sport.

A Commission of Inquiry re Hydro-Radials.

A Commission for Mothers' Allowances.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon 'a basis for determining
the financial obligations of the Province towards the University of Toronto,

Queen's University, Kingston, and Western University, London.

A Commission to investigate into the charges made against David Hast-

ings, Police Magistrate at Dunnville.

A Commission to inquire into and report upon the truth or falsity of the

charges made by one James M. Young of Brockville, against F. B. Taber,
License Inspector of Brockville, and C. R. Deacon, who was acting as the

License Inspector's Solicitor and Counsel.
X x

3. The Commission to inquire into the administration, management, con-

duct, discipline, equipment and welfare of The Ontario Hospital, Hamilton.

(See Sessional papers, No. 8Y, Session of 1920.)

The Commission to inquire into the administration, management, con-

duct, discipline, equipment and welfare of The Ontario Hospital, London.

('See Sessional papers, No. 88, Session of 1920.)

The Commission to inquire into the Natural Gas Situation. (See 29th

Annual Report of the Bureau of Mines, Part V.)
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The Commission to inquire into and report on Soldiers' Settlement Colony
at Kapuskasing. (See Sessional papers, No. 61, Session of 1920.)

The Commission to inquire into and report upon the fair market value

of assets of estate of late John McMartin, re payment of Succession Duties,

The Commission to inquire into the shooting of Ernest Bergeron by certain

constables in the County of Essex. (Report in Attorney-General's Office.)

The Commission to inquire into and report upon the truth or falsity of

the charges made by one James M. Young of Brockville, against F. B. Taber,
License Inspector of Brockville, and C. R. Deacon, who was acting as the

License Inspector's Solicitor and Counsel.

The Commission to inquire into and report upon the wages paid to men

employed by the Hydro-Electric Power Commission in the construction of the

Queenston-Chippawa Development, etc.

Mr. Magladery asked the following Question :

1. Has construction work been started on the extension of the T. &. X. O.

Railway from Cochrane north. 2. When did work begin. 3. How many
men are employed. 4. Who is in charge of the work.

And the Premier replied as follow? :

1. No. 2. Answered by reply to question No. 1. 3. Answered by reply
to question No. 1. 4. Answered by reply to question No. 1.

Mr. Kennedy asked the following Question:

1. Was any seed oats spld to the fanners of the Province for the season

of 1920. 2. How many bushels. 3. Through what department .vere they

purchased and distributed. 4. From whom were they purchased 5. What

price was paid for them. 6. What price was charged for them.

To which the Minister of Lands and Forests replied:

1. Yes, to settlers in Northern and North-Western Ontario. 2. 14,337

bushels. 3. Through the Department of Lands and Forests, Northern De-

velopment Branch. 4. The Steele Briggs Seed Co., Ltd., Toronto
;
The

L^nited Farmers Co-operative Co., Ltd., Toronto; John Cormack, Oxdrift;

Dugald Kennedy, Dryden; Harris McFayden Se<?d Co., Ltd., Winnipeg:
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J. T. Brett Elevator Co., Ltd., Kenora
;
John Creerar, Oxdrift

;
Jas. A. Reid,

Oxdrift; Syl. Hall, Oxdrift; W. H. Martin, Dryden; T. H. Lewis, Oxdrift;
R. Skene, 'Sr., Oxdrift. 5. $1.45 per bushel; $1.49 per bushel; $1.50 per

bushel; $1.66 per bushel; $1.74 per bushel; $1.75 per bushel. 6. $1.55 per

bushel; $1.66 per bushel; $1.70 per bushel.

Mr. Henry asked the following Question:

What was the total expenditure of the Department of Highways (1) For

the fiscal year ending 31st October, 1920; (2) From 31st October, 1920, to

rhe present date.

And the Minister of Public Works replied as follows :

1. $4,491.895.81 less due from the Dominion Government. 2. -$2,738,-

987.79 less due from the Dominion Government.

Mr. Hogarth asked the following Question:

>

How many officials in the Department of Game and Fisheries service

have been discharged or asked to resign since November 13th, 1919.

And the Minister of Mines replied :

1.197.

Mr. Tolmie asked the following Question:

1. Is the position to which W. J. Lannin has been appointed a new one

created by the Government. 2. (a) What are his duties; and (b) date of

appointment. 3. To whom is he directly responsible. 4. What was his

previous occupation. 5. Was his appointment recommended by the Superin-

tendent of the Provincial Police
;
if not, by whom. 6. What salary does he

receive. 7. What territorial districts ;loes his work cover. 8. What is the

amount of fines that Lave been collected for infringement of the O.T.A. since

his appointment, and how does this compare with the same period of time

immediately preceding his appointment. 9. How many officers are under

him who are directly responsible to him. Who are are they and when were

they appointed. 10. What was his age at the time of his appointment. 11,

Is his appointment in accord with the regulations which call for appointment?
'iriiv made under the age of 40 years.
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To which the Attorney-General replied as follows:

1. Yes. 2. fa) Divisional Superintendent of Law Enforcement. (&;

November 19th, 1920. 3. To the Board of License Commissioners for On-

tario in so far as the enforcement of the Ontario Temperance Act is concerned

and to the Superintendent of the Ontario Provincial Police Force in all other

matters. 4. Chief of Police, Stratford. 5. No, the Attorney-General.
6. $4,000 per annum. 7. Counties of Essex, Kent, Lambton, Elgin and

Middlesex. 8. From Sept. 6 to Nov. 18, 1920. From Nov. 19, 1920, to

Jan. 31, 1921, respectively.

Windsor $31,505 00 $20,021 50

Essex 15,000 00 6,522 00

Kent . . . 850 00 2,706 00

Lambton 470 00 1,840 00

Middlesex 2,420 00 1,335 00

Elgin 1,825 00 579 00

$53,070 00 $33,003 50

9. Twenty-three License Inspectors : M. N. Mousseau, Windsor, appointed

under O.T.A. Sept. 16, 1916
;

J. E. Keenleyside, London, appointed under

O.T.A. Sept. 16, 1916; Walter Eoss, St. Thomas, appointed under O.T.A.

Sept. 16, 1916; J. E. Stone, Essex, appointed under O.T.A. Sept. 16, 1916;
William Culbert, East Lambton, appointed under O.T.A. Jan. 4, 1918

; Vacant,
West Lambton; Matthew Side, Chatham, appointed Oct. 1, 1920. Provincial

Police Constables: C. F. Airey, Sarnia, appointed 29th May, 1920; Findlay

Low, Chatham, appointed 15th October, 1920; A. H. Palmer, London, ap-

pointed 13th October, 1920
;
Gordon E. Verral, Windsor, appointed 6th De-

cember, 1920; Wm. D. McConnell, Windsor, appointed 6th December, 1920.

Special Officers (County Constables) : Walter Churchill, Windsor, Aug., 1920;
Fred Campeau, Windsor, Aug., 1920; Howard S. Brown, Windsor, Aug. 1920

;

William Allen, Windsor, Aug., 1920; John T. Hutchison, Windsor, Dec. 6,

1920; Hedley Padgett, Windsor, December 6, 1920; Roy Wilson, Windsor,
December 6, 1920; Percy Clark, Chatham; John Hill, Chatham, January 25,

1921; Ernest Hopgood, Essex, August, 1920; Irwin Sadler, Essex, January
24, 1921. 10. Forty-four. 11. The provisions of Clause (c) Regulation 4,

making an age limit of 40 years applies to the appointment of constables and

not to the appointment of Divisional Inspectors.

Mr. Henry asked the following Question :

1. How many municipalities have applied for assistance under The Com-

munity Halls Act. 2. How many municipalities have established Community
Rails as provided for by the Act.
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To which, the Minister of Agriculture replied:

1. 137 enquiries have been received in reference to assistance under The

Community Halls Act. 2. Grants were paid during the past fiscal year on

two halls completed, and ten halls are now in varying stages of progress.

Mr. Henry asked the following Question :
-

1. How many Public School teachers have availed themselves of the

agricultural training at Guelph and other places during the year 1920. 2.

What is the total number of rural school teachers at present engaged in the

Province of Ontario. 3. What is the number of rural school teachers needed

nt the present time.

And the Minister of Education replied as follows:

1. 481. 2. 6,597. 3. 466.

Mr. Henry asked the following Question :

1. How many milk and cream inspectors have been appointed under The
Milk and Cream Act. 2. When was the Act proclaimed. 3. How many
prosecutions have been made under the Act.

And the Minister of Agriculture replied as follows:

1. lour inspectors for varying periods in addition to the co-operation of

the regular staff of dairy instructors of the Department. 2. Act came into

feet when assented to. 3. Four.

Mr. Rankin asked the following Question:

1. Have any motor cars been purchased by the Government for the use

of District Nurses. 2. If so, how many. 3. Through what Department were

they purchased. 4. Were tenders asked for. 5. From whom were they pur-

chased. 6. What price was paid.

And the Minister of Labour replied in the words following:

1. Yes. 2. 9 (nine). 3. Provincial Board of Health. 4. Yes. 5. M. & H.

"erome, Dimdas, Ontario. 6. $1,217.26 each.
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Mr. Black asked the following Question :

1. From whom are the automobile markers purchased. 2. Were tenders

asked for. 3. How many tenders were received. 4. What is the price being

paid.

And the Minister of Public Works replied as follows:

1. J. L. Wright Co. 2. Yes. 3. Six. 4. Motor vehicle markers twenty-

<eight and one-half cents per pair; motor cycle markers twenty-six and one-

half cents per pair.

Mr. Stover asked the following Question :--

1. What was the total cost of the Committee of the Legislature appointed
last Session to investigate Proportional Representation. 2. Who were mem-
bers of the Committee. 3. What was paid or allowed to each member for each

day's sitting. 4. Was mileage paid or allowed to members also. 5. How many
days did the Committee sit. 6. What sum is each member named in answer

to Question 2 entitled to receive for (a) attendance at meetings; (&) mileage.

7. What amount was paid or allowed for reporters' services. 8. What was paid

or allowed for witness
1

fees. 9. How many witnesses gave evidence. 10. Were

witnesses called by the Committee to give evidence in opposition to the pro-

portional representation scheme. 11. WT
ere witnesses called by the Committee

in support of the scheme. 12. Will the evidence so taken be printed and dis-

tributed among the members of the House. 13. What salaried positions have

been created in connection with the Committee. 14. What are these positions.

15. Who have been appointed to them. 16. At what salary. 17. What is the

fefm of the appointment in each case.

And the Premier replied as follows:

1. $982.35 up to date. 2. Messrs. Drury, Eaney. Doherty. Smith, Tooms.
Homuth, Mageau, Magladery, Marshall, O'Neill, Racine. Henry, Price. Hill. 3.

Fifteen dollars for each day going to, attending at or returning from meetings.
See Chap. 25, Geo. V, Statute Law Amendment Act. Clause 4, Section 74 (1).
No payment made to any member of the Cabinet. 4. No. 5. 4 days. 0.

Answered by No. 3. 7. Nil. 8. Nil. 9. Three, Messrs. Hooper, McNichol and
Winchester. 10. Yes. 11. Yes. 12. The Evidence was not recorded. 13. None.
14. Answered by No. 13. 15. Answered by No. 13. 16. Answered by No. 13

17. Answered bv No. 13.
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Mr. Hay asked the following Question :

1. What loans have been placed by the Government since November llth, 1919.

2. With whom were each of the loans placed. 3. What are the respective amounts

of such loans, rates of interest, terms; commissions paid in each case, and to whom.

4. What were the net prices received by the Provincial Treasurer in each case. 5.

What rate of interest did the bond yield the purchasers in each case. 6_. Were

these bonds sold by public tender, and if so. in what cases.

And the Provincial Treasurer replied in the words and figures following :

1. Loan from Dominion of Canada Housing Act. Dated January 31st, 1920,

5% $4,250,000.00.

Loan "GG." 2. Sold to ^Emilius Jarvis & Company. 3. $3,000,000

,
10 years, none. 4. Price 97.76. 5. 5.794%. 6.. Yes.

1. Loan "HH." 2. Sold to ^Emilius Jarvis & Company. 3. $3,000,00,

,
10 years, none. 4. 90.41 New York Funds equal to 98 or 99 Canadian. 5

About 5.65. 6. Yes.

1. Loan "JJ." 2. Sold to ^Emilius Jarvis & Company. 3. $5,000,000,

2%, 5 years, none. 4. 100.65. 5. 5.35. 6. Yes.

1. Loan "KK." 2. Sold to R. C.. Matthews & Company, Hanson Brothers

and Financial Corporation. 3. $2,000,000. 6^, 15 years, none. 4. 100.719. 5.

5.92. 6. Yes.

1. Loan "
LL," Refunding Loan. 2. Sold to Wood, Gundy & Company, et al.

3. $6,800,000, 6%, 5 years, none. 4. 91.633 New York Funds, equal to' 100.83

Canadian Funds. 5. 5.80. 6. Yes.

1. Loan "MM." 2. Sold to Wood, Gundy & Company, et al 3. $8,000,000.

6%, 10 years, none. 4. Average 98.236. 5. 6/23. 6. Yes.

1. Loan "NN." 2. Sold to ^Emilias Jarvis & Company. Halsey Stuart &

Company & First National Bank. 3. $3,000,000, 6#\ 3 years', none. 4. 103.40033

Net P.
'

5. 4.70. 6. Yes.

1. Loan "PP." 2. Sold to Wood, Gundy & Company, et al 3. $5,000.000,

6%. 7 years, none. 4. 104.533. 5. 5.21. 6. Yes.

1. Loan "RR." 2. Sold to Syndicate, Dominion Securities, et- al (18

Brokers). 3. $16,000,000. 6^.15 years, none. 4. 92.34. 5. 6.81 6. No.

1. Loan "SS." 2. Sold to Syndicate. -Fmilius Jarvis, ei n] (24 Brokers).

3. $10,000,000, 6%, 20 years, none. 4. Price 96.787. 5. 6.28. 6. No.
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Mr Stover asked the following Question:

1. Has any regulation been passed increasing the license fee payable by net

fishermen for fishing in Ontario waters from $25 ;
if so,, to what amount

;
if not,

is it the intention of the Government to pass such regulation. 2. Has any romilu-

tion been passed under which the licensed fishermen in Ontario waters are per-

mitted to use over 3,000 yards of gill net; if so, what is the effect of such regu-

lation. 3. Has any regulation been passed governing or restricting the use of

motor boats in connection with gill fishing in Ontario waters. 4. If any such

regulation or regulations as above referred to have been passed, do they extend

to any waters or bays outside of the Great Lakes; if so, to what waters or bays.

5. If such regulations have not been passed, is it the intention of the Govern-

ment or the Department in charge to pass any such regulation, and if so. what is

to be the effect.

And the Minister of Mines replied in the words following:

1. Yes, to $30.00 and $40.00, according to location and yardage. 2. Over

3,000 yards of gill nets have always been authorized by license. 3. Yes, govern-

ing, but not restricting former privileges. 4. Yes, to all Provincial waters open
for commercial fishing. 5. Answered by question No. 4.

Mr. McCrea asked the following Question :

Has the Attorney-General withdrawn the Order to supply copies of the evi-

dence taken before the Crown Timber Commission of Investigation to Counsel or

to any person on behalf of the Liberal-Conservative Opposition if so, on what

date.

And the Attorney-General replied in the negative.

Mr. Godfrey asked the following Question :

What department of the Government has charge of the enforcement of The

Ontario Temperance Act. 2. Are officers engaged in the enforcement of the

O.T.A. authorized to carry firearms. 3. Are any firearms supplied or paid for

by the Province.

And the Attorney-General replied in the words following:

1. Attorney-General's Department. 2. No regulation has been made with

regard to the carrying of firearms by officers enforcing the Ontario Temperance
Act, but under the Criminal Code of Canada Peace Officers are allowed to carry

firearms, and under section 119 of the Ontario Temperance Act every Inspector
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and Provincial Officer is ex-officio a Constable. 3. Firearms are supplied and

paid by tho Province to each member of the Ontario Provincial Police Force.
In a few special cases firearms have been supplied and paid for by the Board of

License Commissioners to officers enforcing the Ontario Temperance Act after

special consideration by the said Board.

On Motion of Mr. Mageau, seconded by Mr. Hall,

Ordered,, That there be laid before this House showing: 1. What was the

total quantity of fisn. caught in Lake Nipissing and Lake Nipigon respectively
and marketed in the following years, 1917, 1918, 1919 and 1920. 2. What were

the varieties of fish caught and marketed in Lake Nipissing and Lake Nipigon

respectively and the quantity of each. 3. What was the price paid to fishermen

for each variety; what was the price at which the Government sold each variety;
to whom were such sales made. 4. To whom were licenses issued to take fish from
Lake Nipissing and Lake Mpigon respectively in the years 1917, 1918, 1919 and

1950. 5. Is it the intention of the Government to continue this Fishery Depart-
ment as a commercial enterprise. 6. Wliat were the gross receipts from fish sales

in Lake Nipissing and Lake Nipigon in the years 1917, 1918, 1919 and 1920;
and what were the net profits of the Government in each of said years.

On Motion of Mr. Hill, seconded by Mr. Buckland,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House, a Return of copies of all corre-

spondence, papers and documents since November 13th, 1919, relating to the conduct

or duties of Magistrates, Justices of the Peace and other officers with reference to

the enforcement of The Ontario Temperance Act.

On Motion of Mr. Widdifield, seconded by Mr. Montgomery,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House a Return showing operations

of the Municipal Loan Fund showing: 1. The amounts loaned to the Muni-

cipalities by the Province under this scheme. 2. The amounts paid by the

Municipalities. 3. The proportion of the total indebtedness paid in each case

by the Municipalities. 4. The Municipalities which made default in payment.
5. The losses resulting to each Municipality from the scheme. 6. The losses in

detail resulting to the Province by reason of the guarantee or acquisition of

debentures of the Municipalities by the Province. 7. What the special losses

amount to with interest at the legal rate to the present date in each case. S.

What the position of the Province is in regard to payment of these moneys
in respect of which Municipalities made default.
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On Motion of Mr. Dewart, seconded by Mr. Sinclair,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House, a Return of copies of all letters

of instruction or other correspondence from the Attorney-General or any of the

Members of the Government, or Officials, addressed to any Police Magistrates or

Crown Attorneys in the Province of Ontario
;
and any communications or letters in

reply thereto relating to the imposition of penalties., or the trial of cases, and their

disposition under The Ontario Temperance Act and amendments thereto.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion

for consideration of the .Speech of His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor, at

the opening of the Session, having been read,

The Debate was resumed, and after some time, it was, on the motion of

ylr. Tolmie,

Ordered, That the Debate be further adjourned until To-morrow.

The House then adjourned at 5.55 p.m.

Thursday. February 10th, 1021.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK P.M.

The following Petition was brought up and laid upon the Table:

By Mr. Asmussen, the Petition of the City Council of Kitchener.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion
for consideration of the Speech of His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor, at

the opening of the Session, having been read,

The Debate was resumed, and after some time, it was. on the motion of

Mr. Ross (Kingston),

Ordered, That the Debate be further adjourned until To-morrow.

The House then adjourned at 6 p.m.
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Friday, February llth, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK P.M.

The following Petition was read and received:;

Of the Town Council of Oakville and the Trafalgar Agricultural Society,

praying that an Act may pass authorizing the issue of Serial Bonds to the

amount of $20,000 to be guaranteed by the Town of Oakville.

Mr. Carmichael,- from the Standing Committee on Standing Orders,

presented their Second Report, which was read as follows and adopted :

Your Committee have carefully examined the following Petitions and

find the Notices as published in each case sufficient:

Of the City Council of Windsor, praying that an Act may pass permitting
the City to withdraw from the Essex Border Utilities Commission.

Of the City Council of Windsor, praying that an Act may pass to

validate and confirm all sales of land prior to the 31st December, 1920.

Of McMaster University, praying that an Act my pass to amend their

Act of incorporation.

Of the Beechwood Cemetery Company of Ottawa, praying that an Act

may pass reducing the number of Directors.

Of James Petrie Pratt of Montreal, praying that an Act may pass to

nithorize the Law Society of Upper Canada to admit him to practice as a

Barrister and Solicitor.

Of J. Whittaker and others of York, praying that an Act may pass to

separate certain territory from the Township of York and to incorporate the

same as the Township of North York.

Of John Fulford Rollit of Barrie, praying that an Act may pass author-

izing him to practice Dentistry in Ontario.

Of the City Council of Brantford, praying that an Act may pass to enable

the Corporation by By-law to provide for a Board of Control and Engineering

Board, to pass certain By-laws, and for other purposes.
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Of the Town Council of Midland, praying that an Act may pass to

ratify and confirm certain By-laws.

Of the City Councils of the Cities of Fort William and Port Arthur,

praying that an Act may pass authorizing the Corporations to pass By-laws

varying the fares on the Street Railway owned by them.

Of the City Council of Niagara Falls, praying that an Act may pass

providing for the levy of an equal rate, after 1st January, 1921, upon the

whole rateable property of the Corporation to pay costs of construction of

sewers.

Of the City Council of Guelph, praying that an Act may pass to increase

the Capital Stock of Guelph Radial Railway Company and to ratify and

confirm a certain By-law, and for other purposes.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 1), intituled
" An Act respecting the City of Niagara Falls/'

Mr. Swayze.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 7), intituled
" An Act respecting the City of Brantford." Mr.

MacBride.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 19), intituled
" An Act to authorize the Law Society of Upper

Canada to admit James Petrie Pratt to practice as a Barrister and Solicitor."

Mr. Denyes.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 22), intituled "An Act respecting the Beechwood Cemetery
Company of Ottawa." Mr. Hill.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 23), intituled "An Act to authorize John Fulford Rollit to

practice Dentistry in Ontario." Mr. Murdoch.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.
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ill (No. 25), intituled
" An Act respecting the City of Windsor and the

Essex Border Utilities Commission." Mr. Tisdelle.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 26), intituled "An Act respecting the City of Windsor.''
1

Mr.

Tolmie.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 35), intituled
" An Act respecting the Cities of Port Arthur

and Fort William." Mr. Cameron.

Referred to the Committee o.n Private Bills.

Bill (No. 46), intituled
" An Act respecting the Town of Midland." Mr.

Johnston (Simcoe.)
.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (X<>. 47), intituled
" An Act respecting the City of Guelph." Mr.'

Buckland.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 48), intituled "An Act respecting McMaster University."
Mr. Watson.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (Xo. 89), intituled "An Act respecting the Two-platoon System
the Employees of Permanent Fire Departments in Ontario." Atr. Crockett.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (Xo. 00), intituled "An Act to amend The Public Parks Act."

r. Asmussen.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (Xo. 91), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act" Mr.

liompsou.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

5 jorn.
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Bill (No. 92), intituled
" An Act to amend The Assessment Act." Mr.

Denyee.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 93), intituled "An Act respecting Provincial Auctioneers."

Mr. Doherty.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 94), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Freeborn.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Biggs,

Ordered, That the name of Mr. Johnston (Simcoe) be added to the Stand-

ing Committee on Fish and Game.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion

for consideration of the Speech of His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor at the

opening of the Session, having been read,

The Debate was resumed, and after some time,

The Motion, having been again submitted, was carried, and it was

Resolved, That an humble Address be presented to His Honour the Lieu-

tenant-Governor, as follows:

To His Honour Lionel Herbert Clarice, Lieutenant-Governor of Our Province

of Ontario.

We, His Majesty's most dutiful and loyal subjects!, the Legislative

Assembly of the Province of Ontario, now assembled, beg leave to thank

Your Honour for the gracious speech Your Honour has addressed to us.

The Address, having been read the second time, was agreed to.

Ordered, That the Address be engrossed and presented to His Honour
the Lieutenant-Governor by those Members of this House who are Members
of the Executive Council.
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On Motion of Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Biggs,

Resolved, That this House will on Tuesday next, resolve itself into the

Committee of Supply.

Resolved, That this House will on Tuesday next, resolve itself into the

Committee of Ways and Means.

The Provincial Treasurer presented to the House, by command of His
Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

The Public Accounts of the Province for the year 1920. (Sessional

Papers, No. 1.)

Ordered, That the Public Accounts of the Province for the year 1920 be

referred to the Standing Committee on Public Accounts.

The Minister of Agriculture presented to the House, by command of His
Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Report of the Committee on Kural Credits. (Sessional Papers, No. 58.)

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of the

aeutenant-Governor :

Report of the Provincial Board of Health for the year 1920. (Sessional
y

apers, No. 21.)

Also Report of Bureau of Municipal Affairs. (Sessional Papers, No.

17.)

Also Interim Report of Public Service Commission re Issuers of Mar-

tage Licenses. (Sessional Papers, !No. 62.)

Also Interim Report of Public Service Commission re Police Magis-
ttes. (Sessional Papers, No. 63.)

The House then adjourned at 5.35 p.m.
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Monday, February 14th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK P M.

The following Petition was read and received:

Of the City Council of Kitchener, praying that an Act may pass to ratify

and confirm By-law No. 1606 and for other purposes.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 95), intituled "An .Act to amend the Dairy Standards Act."

Mr. Doherty.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time Tomorrow.

Bill (No. 96), intituled "An Act respecting Farm Loans in Ontario." Mr.

Doherty.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 97), intituled
" An Act for the promotion of Agricultural De-

velopment." Mr. Doherty.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 98), intituled "An Act to finance Agricultural Development."
Mr. Doherty.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 99), intituled
" An Act to amend The Agricultural Associations

Act." Mr. Doherty.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 100), intituled
" An Act to amend The Agricultural Societies

Act." Mr. Doherty.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 101), intituled "An Act to amend The Marriage Act." Mr.

Godfrey.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.
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Mr. Hill asked the following Question :

1. How many concerns, corporations, partnerships or individuals carried

on lumber operations in this province during the years 1917, 1918, 1919 and

1920. 2. How many licensed cullers made returns to the Department of Lands

and Forests during each of the said years. 3. Approximately how many
affidavits were furnished to the said Department during each of the said years

(a) by officers or officials of the concerns mentioned in Question 1
; (b) by

cullers and Crown timber agents. 4. Has the Government instituted criminal

proceedings against any culler or official of the Department since November

13th, 1919, and if so, what are their names.

And the Minister of Lands and Forests replied in the figures following:

1. 1917-18, 441; 1918-19, 459; 1919-20, 506. 2. 1917-18, 217; 1918-19,

229; 1919-20, 269. 3. (a) 1917-18, 2,500; 1918-19, 2,500; 1919-20, 3,000;

(&) 1917-18, 2,000; 1918-19, 2,000; 1919-20, 2,300. 4. No.

Mr. Black asked the following Question:

1. How many investigators have been appointed under The Mothers'

Allowances Act. 2. What are the names and addresses of such investigators

appointed. 3. What remuneration do they receive.

1VJ

;-

And the Minister of Labour replied as follows^

1. 23. 2. Miss E. W. Rogers, Toronto; Miss D. Farncomb, Toronto;

Miss E. King, Ottawa; Mrs. G. M. Graham, London; Mr. Wm. Stephenson.

;0ronto;

Mrs. O'Connor, Toronto; Miss E. Storms, Hamilton; Miss M. Aber-

ethy, Kingston ;
Mr. A. Bruce, Lindsay ;

Miss H. Bapty, London ; Miss A.

awrence, Creemore; Miss J. Strange, Guelph; Miss E. McMullen, Toronto;

Miss E. Willison, Peterboro
;
Miss L. Steward, Brantford; Mme. G. Preston,

ttawa; Mrs. Fraser, Toronto; Mme." Brodeur, Ottawa; Mrs. Van Dine,

oronto; Rev. A. E. Smith, Toronto; Mrs. E. P. Maepherson, Kingston;

r. Hartill, North Bay; Mrs, Gerrard, Pembroke. 3. Sixteen investigators

ive a salary at the rate of $125 per month; seven receive at the rate ef

100 per month. Note. Five investigators, who are included in the above

atement, were appointed for a period of two months to help during the

rganization period these appointments expired in January.

Mr. Dewart asked the following Question :

1. Was any special representative sent by the Premier of Ontario to

r

innipeg to report, on the recent Provincial election there. 2. Tf s<. win* \va?
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so appointed and what was his address and previous occupation. 3. What sum

was^paid or charged for any such report and for expenses. 4. Is the report
to be printed for the information of the House.

To which the Premier replied in the words following:

1. Yes. 2. A. <S. Winchester, Barrister, Toronto, Law Clerk, Attorney-
General's Department. 3. For travelling expenses, $121.56; no charge for

report. 4. No decision report presented to Committee on Proportional Repre-
sentation.

Mr. Dewart moved, seconded by Mr. Tolmie,

That it is the duty of the Government to institute proceedings under The

Mining Tax Act to recover from the Canadian Copper Company (or the

International Nickel Company) the arrears of taxes properly payable by it,

and that the necessary ancillary legislation be passed, conformable to
" The

Mining Tax Act, 1917 "
;
to include the years in question from the 31st day

of December, 1915, back to the commencement of the period covered by the

illegal agreement, and authorizing the recovery by the Government of the

Province of the taxes to which it is entitled and which have not been paid.

And this House further requests that the necessary legislation be forthwith

introduced so that proceedings may be taken at the earliest possible time for the

recovery of the moneys to which the Province is justly entitled.

And a Debate having ensued, it was, on motion of Mr. Mills,

Ordered, That the Debate be adjourned until To-morrow.

Mr. McCrea moved, seconded by Mr. Crawford,

That there be laid before this House, a Return of copies of all corres-

pondence relating to the payment of counsel fee to Mr. Peter White, K.C.,
to represent the Liberal-Conservative Opposition before the Crown Timber
Commission of Investigation: 1. Between the Attorney-General and the Hon.
Geo. S. Henry. 2. Between the Attorney-General and either of the Commis-
sioners or the Counsel for the Crown. 3. Between the Attorney-General and
Mr. Peter White, K.C. 4. Between the Attomey^General and the Hon. G. H.
Ferguson.

And a Debate having arisen, it was, on the motion of Mr. Ferguson,

Ordered, That the Debate be adjourned until To-morrow.



Oeoraeieorge V. MTH AND IOTH FEBRUARY. 71

On Motion of Mr. Sinclair, seconded by Mr. Calder,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House, a Return showing date

when tenders called for, the tenders received and the names of tenderers for

the production of: (a.) Ontario Public School Readers, each respectively; (6)

Ontario Public School Histories, each respectively; (c) Ontario High School

History; (d) Ontario Composition and Grammar.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill' (No. 64), To amend
The Municipal Act, having been read,

Mr. (Stevenson moved,

That the Bill be now read the second time.

And the question, having been put, was carried on a division, and the

Bill was read the second time and referred to the Municipal Committee.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Report of the Board of License Commissioners on the operation of The
Ontario Temperance Act for the year 1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 28.)

Also Regulations and Orders-in-Council made since January 31st, 1921,

of the Department of Education or of the Public Schools, Separate Schools

or High Schools. (Sessional Papers, No. 61.)

The House then adjourned at 6.15 p.m.

Tuesday, February 15th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK P.M.

l

The following Petitions were severally brought up and laid upon the

Table:

By Mr. Hill, the Petition of the Ontario Association of Osteopaths; also,

the Petition of the City Council of Ottawa.

Mr. Raney, from the 'Standing Committee on Private Bills, presented
their First Report, which was^read as follows and adopted:-

Your Committee beg to report the following Bills without amendment :

Bill (No. 3), An Act respecting the City of Belleville.



72 15TH FEBRUARY. 1921

Bill (No. 20), An Act to incorporate the Provincial Synod of Ontario

of the Church of England in Canada and to make provisions respecting Vestry

Meetings.

Your Committee beg to report the following Bills with certain amend-

ments:

Bill (No. 2), An Act respecting the Town of Mimico.

Bill (No. 4), An Act respecting the City of Peterborough.

Bill (No. 12), An Act to legalize and confirm By-law No. 29. of 1920,

of the City of Kingston.

Your Committee recommend that the fees, less the actual cost of printing
the Bill and of printing the Act in the Statutes, be remitted on Bill (No. 20),
" An Act to incorporate the Provincial Synod of Ontario of the Church of

England in Canada and to make provisions respecting Vestry Meetings," on

the ground that it is one relating to a Religious Institution.

Ordered, That the fees, less the actual cost of printing the Bill and of

printing the Act in the Statutes, be remitted on Bill (No. 20), To incorporate

the Provincial Synod of Ontario.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Doherty,

Ordered, That the names of Mr. McCreary and Mr. Ross (Glengarry),
be added to the Standing Committee on Fish and Game.

Mr. Drury delivered to Mr. Speaker a Message from the Lieutenant-

Governor, signed by himself; and the said Message was read by Mr. Speaker,

and is as follows:;

L. H. CLARKE,

The Lieutenant-Governor transmits Estimates of certain sums required
for the service of the Province for the year ending 31st October, 1921, and

recommends them to the Legislative Assembly.

GOVERNMENT HOUSE,

Toronto, February 15th, 1921.

(Sessional Papers, No. 2.)

Ordered, That the Message of the Lieutenant-Governor, together with the

Estimates accompanying same, be referred to the Committee of 'Supply.
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The Order of the Day for the House to resolve itself into the Committee

of Supply having been read,

Mr. Smith moved,

That Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair and that the House do resolve

itself into the Committee of Supply.

And a Debate having ensued, it was, on the Motion of Mr. Sinclair,

Ordered, That the Debate be adjourned until To-morrow.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Detailed Eeport of the Superintendent of Insurance for the year 1920.

(Sessional Papers, No. 10.)

Also Report of the Registrar of Loan Corporations for the year 1920.

(Sessional Papers, No. 12.)

Also Report of the Minister of Public Works for the year 1920. (Ses-

sional Papers, No. 13.)

Also Report of the Registrar of Friendly Societies for the year 1920.

(Sessional Papers, No. 11.)

Also Report of the Provincial Municipal Auditor for the year 1920.

(Sessional Papers, No. 8.)

The House then adjourned at 6.05 p.m.

Wednesday, February 16th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK. P.M.

Mr. Hill, from the Special Committee to which was referred P>ills (Nos.

68 and 69) of the Session of 1920 to report upon the system of Proportional

Representation, presented their Reports, which were read as follows:

Your Committee to which was referred Bills Nos. 68 and <>9 met duriiiir

the Recess and heard arguments for and against the adoption of the system

of electing members to the Legislative Assembly as set forth in the said "Bills.

Your Committee regrets that after hearing these arguments and after consider-

6 JOUR.
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able discussion it was impassible to arrive at a unanimous conclusion of recom-

mendation. Your Committee therefore presents for your consideration the

Report of the majority of the members of the Committee, the Report of the

minority of the members of the said Committee, the arguments advanced by
the advocates and opponents of the said system and an outline of Parliamentary
action in the United Kingdom, Tasmania and Canada, as furnished to the

Committee, and a statement showing the interest in the question in the Prov-

ince of Ontario.

All of which is most respectfully submitted.

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MAJORITY
OF THE COMMITTEE.

Your Committee have been impressed with the arguments in favour of

the adoption of proportional representation in Ontario, and are of opinion,
in view of the fact that its adoption is a plank in the platform of three of

the political parties and the expression of desire on the part of the G.W.V.A.
and other bodies and the expressions of opinion in England, and the satis-

faction with which the system has worked out in other countries, that steps
should be taken towards its gradual adoption in this Province. The Com-
mittee feel that it would be unwise to adopt it immediately for the whole
Province of Ontario because of the difficulties in securing experienced officers

to administer the Act, and also because of the lack of familiarity of the public

generally with the objects to be attained and the method of count. The Com-
mittee appreciates that so far as the voter himself is concerned the duty which
he is called on to perform at the polling booth is not more difficult than under
the present system, but are apprehensive that its adoption on a wide scale with-

out previous education might tend to confusion and misunderstanding to such

an extent as to make the system unpopular at the start. There is also this

difficulty to be contended with: With the exception of the City of Toronto,
there is no city having a greater representation than two members. As pro-

portional representation requires large constituencies returning three or more

members, it would be necessary, should the membership of the House remain as

it is at present, that urban and rural sections of the country would have to be

placed together as one constituency, which would not be regarded with favour

by either those dwelling in the cities or in the country districts, the proba-

bility being that both these bodies would feel that the other would obtain an

undue advantage under such a system. Northern or New Ontario, by reason

if its sparsely settled nature, also renders it problematical whether elections

could be held under such a system in that portion of Ontario, owing to the

distances that would necessarily have to be covered. Your Committee are,

however, of the opinion that the system should be tried out in certain con-

stituencies at the next election. In order to make such experiment a success,

it should be tried out in places where no one party would reap an advantage

at the expense of another. Your Committee have, therefore, come to the

conclusion that the system should be tried out in both urban and rural con-
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stituencies. The urban constituencies which are most adaptable for such ail

experiment would be the cities of Hamilton and Ottawa, or in the alternative

it could be tried out in the 'City of Toronto. Your Committee feel that it!

would be advisable that a group of constituencies be formed in Eastern Ontario

and a group in Western Ontario. After considering the various constituencies

as they are at present, your Committee would recommend for this purpose
that the present constituencies of Carleton, North and South Lanark, Leeds,

Grenville and Brockville be united into one district, returning six members.

In Western Ontario your Committee recommends that the present constitu-

encies of North and South Brant, North and South Waterloo, and North?

and South Oxford should be united and that they elect six members. The
number of names on the voters' list in the Eastern group, according to the

return from the records of the general election to the Legislative Assembly
in 1919, is as follows:

Carleton 12,815

Lanark, North 8,941

Lanark, South 10,849

Leeds 10,690
Grenville 10,396

Brockville 10,932

Total 64,623

The number of voters in the Western constituencies were as follows :

Brant, North 10,746

Brant, South 17,145

i Oxford, North 14,820

Oxford, South '. 13,720

Waterloo, North 21,623

AVaterloo, South 19,182

Total 97,236

Your Committee have had before them and have considered the question
of adopting some method whereby, in the event of more than two candidates

running in a single-member constituency, some method could be adopted where-

by the candidate to be elected should necessarily obtain more than 50 per
cent, of the vote cast. There are instances at present in the House of Assembly
where Members have been elected from constituencies where several candi-

dates have run in which the candidate elected has obtained less" than one-third

of the total vote cast. In such cases he has been elected a member, although

two-thirds of the voters voted against him. It would appear to your Com-

mittee that if the single transferable vote system was adopted in single mem-
ber constituencies, then in such an event the member elected would be the



76 16TH FEBRUARY. 1921

choice of over 50 per cent, of the voters. This would be a step towards the

ultimate adoption of the single transferable vote with group constituencies

all over the Province, and your Committee recommends that its adoption for

single-member constituencies be enacted by the Legislature.

Your Committee have also considered the question of permitting Muni-

cipalities, should they so desire, to elect their Municipal bodies by means of

Proportional Representation, and it recommends that The Municipal Act be

amended to permit Municipalities to so elect their Councils.

The recommendations of your Committee may be summarized thusly :

1. That the Cities of Ottawa and Hamilton be each allowed two members
to be elected by these Cities as a whole under the Single Transferable Vote

System of Proportional Representation, or in the alternative that the members

from the City of Toronto be elected by this system.

2. That the present constituencies of Carleton, North and South Lanark,

Leeds, Grenville and Brockville, together elect six members under the Single
Transferable Vote System of Proportional Representation.

3. That the constituencies of North and South Brant, North and 'South

Waterloo, and North and South Oxford together elect six members under the

Single Transferable Vote System of Proportional Representation.

4. That the rest of the Province select their members in what is known as

single member constituencies, but that the Transferable Vote be used in the

election of such members.

5. That municipalities be permitted to elect their councils by means of the

Single Transferable Vote System of Proportional Representation.

6. That legislation be forthwith enacted carrying into effect the above

recommendations.

Your Committee desires to express its appreciation of the invaluable

assistance which it has received from Mr. Ronald Hooper of Ottawa, the

Honorary Secretary of the Proportional Representation Society of Canada,
who furnished the Committee with much information on Proportional Repre-
sentation.

Your Committee also desires to thank the Honourable the Minister of

Labour in the Dominion Government for his kindness in extending Mr. Hooper
leave of absence from the Department to attend the sittings of the Committee.

Your Committee also expresses its appreciation to Mr. John R. McNichol of

Toronto, the President of the British Representation League, for his presenta-
tion of the arguments against the adoption of the System in this Province.
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Your Committee also thanks Mr. A. S. Winchester of Toronto for his valuable

services as Secretary of the Committee.

Dated this 16th day of February, 1921.

MINORITY REPORT.

The undersigned members of the Parliamentary Committee on Propor-
tional Representation will not repeat the many arguments put forth by the

Proportional Representation League or by the British Representation League,
which are fairly well covered in the material attached to the dual report of your
Committee, but will content themselves with making certain defined conclu-

1. -N"o steps should be taken to consider the question of Electoral Repre-
sentation of the people in the Legislature of Ontario until after the census is

completed in 1922.

2. A safe principle to be borne in mind is that of Representation by
Population, which is very different from Proportional Representation. We
believe that many people are confused by the similarity of the names and are

not informed on the principles involved.

3. In a new country like Canada where so many people of different races

and languages make a new home, efforts should be made to assimilate and merge
them into Canadians rather than segregate them into separate communities
with special representation.

4. Proportional Representation would bring many candidates into the

field dividing up the vote on non-essentials and electing representatives of

minorities who have not behind them popular approval for their fnds and

fancies.

5. Proportional Representation means that a minority may often, by

using the balance of power, dictate terms to the majority in tho Legislature of

Ontario.

6. In a sparsely populated country like most of Ontario the 5 to 8 member

constituency would be too large; all members trying to represent tho whole

and none representing any particular part. Most members have enough
to do now to represent one single constituency and travel about it.

7. Proportional Representation makes for weak groups; weak groups or

minority groups means log rolling and compromise; log rolling menus frequent

changes of Government with change of policy without going to ilie people f..r

approval.
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8. Instability of Government in a new country which depends on Govern-

ment policy for development would wreck untold harm in a Province like

Ontario. The present system generally means majority Government for 4

years with an opportunity for the opposition to reverse the Government, if the

people are not satisfied with its policy. There is always safety in majority
rule.

9. The Gerrymander in its worst form could be utilized in framing large

constituencies
;
farmers could be hived so that townsfolk could reduce the fanner

representation in the House and vice versa.

10. Present rural constituencies situated around cities of less than 50,000

population under Proportional Representation would be dominated entirely

by the city vote; small towns and villages in a well-populated rural con-

stituency would often fail to get representation; when 13 per cent, in Winnipeg

gets no representative that may occur in many places in Ontario.

11. In the proposals of other members of this Committee placed before

the House, The Eastern Proportional Representation Riding, comprising the

old constituencies of Lanark, Grenville, Carleton, Leeds and Brockville,

population 64,623, would have six members, unit of population 10,770; The
Western Proportional Representation Riding, comprising 2 Brants, 2 Oxfords

and 2 Waterloos, population 97,236, would have six members, unit of popula-
tion 16,206. There is not much proportion about this to begin with.

Ha. One realizes that it is impossible to. get exact representation, but

when some ridings have a population of sixty thousand and others nine thou-

sand, it is time to apply a little more fairly the
" one man one vote

"
principle

which should bring Representation by Population.

12. Cost of elections to the Candidate over a large constituency eliminates

everyone but the rich man, who can travel the riding and spend plenty of

money.

13. An independent candidate running in a single riding can be often

elected on a good general policy under the present system. Under Propor-
tional Representation unless there were several candidates running in the large

constituency on the same policy, there would be no chance for this man being
elected. He would draw votes from no other source.

14. The British system works well because majorities, consistent with

the stability of the country, treat minorities well. Greater progress is made
in British communities than in foreign countries practising many forms of

Proportional Representation supposed to safeguard minorities, but actually

resulting in keeping the country in a turmoil and never giving it the solid

progress that we enjoy in Canada.
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15. Your members thus reporting think that the Legislature should

consider very carefully before making changes in these trying times; changes
that are advocated by a society of individuals rather than by the solid thinking
citizens with property rights throughout the Provinces. It will be time to act

when Boards of Trade, Farmers' Associations and Ratepayers
7

Associations

memorialize the Government that a change from the present tried and satis-

factory system of Proportional Representation is desired.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

WILLIAM H. PRICE,
For Minority of Committee.

Referred to the Printing Committee.

Mr. Carmichael. from the Standing Committee on Standing Orders,

presented their Third Report, which was read as follows and adopted :

Your Committee have carefully examined the following Petitions and
find the Notices as published in each case sufficient:

Of Joseph St. Pierre and others, of the Township of Rochester, praying
that an Act may pass to validate and confirm in each of them, the title to

certain lands.

Of the Village Council of Georgetown, praying that an Act may pass
to incorporate the \7illage as a Town.

Of the Township Council of Stamford, praying that an Act may pass

authorizing the passing of a By-law and the issue of debentures.

Of Sons of England, praying that an Act may pass respecting reduction

in value of Benefit Certificates.

Of the City Council of <Sault Ste. Marie, praying that an Act may pass

to ratify and confirm certain By-laws and to confirm sales of land.

Of the County Council of Carleton, praying that an .Act may pass auth-

orizing the issue of debentures for a term of forty years.

Of Lewis A. McElroy of Erie, U.S.A., and others, praying that an Act

may pass to incorporate Fecunis, Limited, for the purpose of acquiring and

operating mining lands.

Your Committee recommends that Rule No. 51 of Your Honourable

House be further suspended in this, that the time for presenting Petitions

'or Private Bills be extended until and inclusive of Tuesday the twenty-second

day of February instant, and that the time for introducing Private Bills be

extended until and inclusive of Tuesday the 1st day of March next.
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Mr. Carmichael, from the Standing Committee on Standing Orders,

presented their Fourth Report, which was read as follows and adopted :

Your Committee have carefully examined the Petition of the City Council

of London, praying that an Act may pass to authorize the passing of certain

By-laws, to authorize certain changes in the Civic Government of the City,

and for other purposes, and find that two distinct notices have been published

in connection therewith, the first notice relating to the passing of a certain

By-law authorizing the issue of debentures for the construction of storm sewers

has been published for the full period of six weeks in both the Chihu-io Gazette

and in the London Advertiser, and agrees with the Petition. The second

notice relating to changes in the Civic Government, and other matters has also

been published in the Ontario Gazette and in the London Free Press for a

period of six weeks as required by the Rules of Your Honourable House.

This Notice, however, does not agree with the Petition in various particulars.

principally as to the number of commissioners to compose the Council of the

Corporation of the City for the year 1922, and thereafter: the Notice says

the Council shall be composed of the Mayor and twenty Commissioners, whilst

the Petition says the Mayor and eight Commissioners; the X<-tice further

sa'ys that the Mayor shall be elected annually, whilst the Petition savs that

the Mayor shall be elected for a period of two years : ilio date of the nomination

and election of Commissioners also differ.

Your Committee are of the opinion that an amended Notice. ai:reein<r

with the Petition in so far as the contemplated changes in the form of Civjfi

Government are concerned, should be published daily for a period of two
weeks in The London Advertiser and the London Free Press, and that evidence

of such publication be furnished to the satisfaction of the Private Bills

Committee.

Your Committee consider that advertising as lafbresaiid having !>een

made, the public will have had sufficient opportunity of becoming aware of the

proposed legislation and would therefore recommend the suspension of the

Rule in this case.

Ordered, That the time for presenting Petitions for Private Bills be

further extended until and inclusive of Tuesday the twenty-second day of

February instant, and that the time for introducing Private Bills be further

extended until Tuesday the first dav of March next.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 6), intituled "An Act respecting the City of Saulf Ste. Marie."

Mr. Cunningham.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.
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Bill (No. IT), intituled
" An Act respecting the 'Sons of England Benefit

Society/' Mr. Dewart.

. Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 21), intituled
" An Act respecting the Township of Stamford."

Mr. Swayze.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 28), intituled
" An Act to incorporate the Town of George-

town.v Mr. Price.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 30), intituled "An Act respecting- Fecnnis Limited." Mr.

Price.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 3T), intituled "-An Act respecting the City of London." Mr.

Calder.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 44), intituled "An Act respecting the County of Carleton."

Mr. Hill.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 103), intituled
" An Act to amend The Assessment Act." Mr.

Stevenson.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second rime To-morrow.

Bill (No. 104), intituled "An Act to amend The Public Health Act."

Mr. Hill.
-

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 105), intituled "An Act allowing Municipalities -to adopt

Proportional Representation in Municipal Elections." Mr. Matrladerv.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 106), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Gray.

Ordered; That the Bill be read the second rime To-morrow.
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Bill (No. 107), intituled
" An Act to amend The Ontario Insurance Act.

v

Mr. Hill.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 108), intituled
" An Act to amend The Bureau of Municipal

Affairs Act." Mr. Stevenson.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney,

Ordered, That the names of Mr. O'Neill and Mr. McAlpine be added to

the Standing Committee on Public Accounts.

Mr. Ferguson asked the following Question:

What fees have been paid to Mr. R. T. Harding since November 13th,

1919 (a) for legal services by the Treasury Department; (b) by the Attorney-
General's Department for professional services other than fees received as

counsel for the Timber Enquiry; (c) by any other departments of the Govern-

ment.

And the Provincial Treasurer replied as follows:
<

(a) None, (b) None, (c) None.

Mr. Calder asked the following Question:

1. Has Edward D. L. Hammond been appointed to a new position under

the Government. 2. If so, in what capacity. 3. Do his duties include work
in connection with the administration of criminal investigations as well as

work under the administrations of the O.T.A. 4. What was his previous

occupation. 5. What was the date of his appointment. 6. What is his re-

muneration. 7. What territorial districts does his work cover. 8. What
officers are under his direction, giving names and dates of appointment. 9. W7ho

is his superior officer to whom he repOTts. 10. What was his age at the time

of his appointment. 11. Is his appointment in accord with the regulations which

call for appointments being made under the age of 40 years. 12. Who recom-

mended his appointment. 13. What were the terms of the recommendation.
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And the Attorney-General replied in the words following:

1. Yes. 2. Provincial Officer under The Ontario Temperance Act. 3. No.

4. Assistant Superintendent, Pinkerton Detective Agency. 5. 15th December,

1920. 6. $291.66 per month. 7. City of Toronto, Counties of -Simcoe, Peel,

'York, Ontario, Northumberland and Durham, Peterborough, Victoria and the

Provisional County of Haliburton, and the Territorial Districts of Muskoka

and Parry Sound. 8. Jno. Charlton, appointed Nov. 8, 1920, Provincial

Officer; Samuel Smith, appointed Nov. 8th, 1920, Provincial Officer; Geo. F.

Crrimshaw, appointed Jan. 11, 1921, Provincial Officer; Jas. G. Jeffrey,

appointed Feb. 8th, 1921, Provincial Officer, and the License Inspectors in

the Counties and Districts above named. 9. Chief Inspector J. A. Ayearst.

10. 36. 11. There is no such regulation as mentioned with regard to appoint-

ments under The Ontario Temperance Act. 12. The Attorney-General. 13.

Copy of recommendation attached.

To His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor in Council:

The Civil Service Commissioner for Ontario having given the necessary

certificate under The Ontario Public Service Act, 1918, the undersigned has

the honour to recommend that pursuant to section 119 of The Ontario Tem-

perance Act, Mr. Edward D. L. Hammond be appointed a Provincial Officer

having supervision over and authority with regard to the enforcement of The
Ontario Temperance Act in the City of Toronto, the Counties of Simcoe, Peel,

York, Ontario, Durham, /Northumberland, Peterborough, the Provisional

County of Haliburton and the Territorial Districts of Muskoka and Parry
Sound for a period of six months with a salary at the rate of two hundred

and ninety-one dollars and sixty-six cents ($291.66) a month, such salary
to be paid out of Vote 96, Item 3, of the current Estimates.

Mr. Lewis asked the following Question:

1. Who is A. H. Pepall, who, according to Public Accounts, 1920, page
538, received $4,000 for services and travelling expenses. 2. Does he hold a

position in the Government service, and if so, in what Department and what
is his official position.

And the Provincial Treasurer replied as follows:

1. General 'Sales Manager, Toronto Plate Glass Company, residence 30

High Park Avenue, Toronto. 2. No.

Mr. Gray asked the following Question:

1. Who is R. H. Boal, who, according to Public Accounts, 1920, page 538,
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received $6.45 for cleaning and pressing his clothes. 2. Is he in the Govern-

ment employ, and if so, in what department.

To which the Provincial Treasurer replied:

1. He is an Amusement Tax Inspector. -1. Yes, Provincial Treasurer's

Department, Amusements Tax Branch.

Mr. McCrea asked the following Question:

1. Is the Doyle Rule adopted and in use by the Crown in the Province of

Ontario for the measurement of logs and timber sold by the Crown. -2. When
and by what authority was such rule authorized.. 3. What is the Doyle Rule

of measurement. 4. Are Government sealers instructed by .the Department

to allow for defects before applying the Doyle Rule of measurement. 5. By
what authority are sealers authorized to make such deductions for defects.

6. By what method are such defects measured or estimated. 7. I'pon what

authority is such method based. 8. Are sealers examined as to their fitness

to determine log defects before they arc granted Government licenses to ari-

as sealers. 9. Is any person other than a licensed Government sealer authorized

to determine what part of any log should be deducted for defects.

And the Minister of Lands and Forests replied in the words following:

1. Yes. 2. The 18th day of October, 1879, by authority of Order-in-GounciL

3. The Doyle Rule is constructed by the following formula: Deduct 4 inches

from the diameter of the log as an allowance for slab
; square VA of the remainder

and multiply the result by the length of the log in feet. 4. Yes. 5. By Cullers-

License obtained under The Ontario Cullers' Act. (>. Different methods are

adopted by different licensed sealers, deductions for defects being left to the

judgment of the licensed sealers. 7. By Cullers' License obtained under Tin*

Ontario Cullers' Act. 8. Yes. 9. Xo.

Mr. Kennedy asked" the following Question:

What quantity of oats was purchased from the United Farmers' Co-

operative Company, Ltd., for seed for the farmers of Ontario for the season

of 1920.

And the Minister of Lands and Forests replied:

10,008 bushels.
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On Motion of Mr. Tolmie, seconded by Mr. Hay,
I

Ordered, That there be laid before the House a Return showing 1. How

many Timber Limits have been offered for sale since 1st December, 1919,

and where situated. 2. Were they all sold by tender. 3. The date of sale,

area, and price paid. 4. Were any withdrawn after being advertised, and if so,

why. 5. How many tenders were received' in each case. 6. The name of the

successful tenderer. 7. The amount of bond given in each case by the success-

ful tenderer.

On Motion of Mr. MeAlpine, seconded by Mr. MeLeod,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House a Return showing what

are the amounts paid by each Company respectively which make up the total

credited to The Mining Tax Act in the Public Accounts for 1920 at page a31

under the heading: (a) Acreage tax, $71,223.26; (b) Profits tax, $713,291.46.

The following Bill was read the second time
:,

Bill (No. 62), To provide Free Text Books in Schools.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion,

That Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair and that the House do resolve itself

into the Committee of Supply, having been read,

The Debate was resumed.

And after some time, it was, on the Motion of Mr. Brown,

Ordered, That the Debate be further adjourned until To-morrow.

The Minister of Lands and Forests presented to the House.

Return to an Order of the House showing 1. Plow many Timber Limits

have been offered for sale since 1st December, 1919, and where situated.

2. Were they all sold by tender. 3. The date of sale. area, and price paid.

4. Were any withdrawn after being advertised, and if so, why. 5. How many
tenders were received in each case. 6. The name of the successful tenderer.

7.- The amount of bond given in each case by the successful tenderer, (fles-

Pfi/icrs, No. 64.)
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The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the LieutenantjGovernor :

Report of the Agricultural Societies of the Province and of the Convention

of the Ontario Association of Fairs and Exhibitions, for the year 1920. (Ses-
sional Papers, No. 42.)

The House then adjourned at 10.45 p.m.

Thursday, February 17th, 1921.

PKAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK P.M.

The following Petitions were read and received :

Of the Ontario Association of Osteopaths, praying that an Act may pas&

creating a Board of Osteopathy for Ontario.

Of the City Council of Ottawa, praying for certain amendments to The

Municipal and Public Health Acts.

Mr. Raney, from the Standing Committee on Private Bills, presented

their Second Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee beg to report the following Bill with certain amend-

ment* :

Bill (No. 13), An Act respecting the Town of Port Colborne.

Your Committee beg to report the following Bill without amendment:

Bill (No. 19), An Act to authorize The Law Society of Upper Canada to>

admit James Petrie Pratt to practise as a Barrister and Solicitor.

Your Committee recommend that the fees, less the actual cost of printing,

the Bill be remitted on Bill (No. 9), "An Act respecting Mr. Alfred Hall

and the Solicitors' Roll of The Law Society of Upper Canada''
;
and also that

the fees, less the actual cost of printing, be remitted on Bill (No. 23),
" An

Act to authorize John Fulford Rollit to practise Dentistry in Ontario," the

same having been withdrawn by the promoter thereof.
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Ordered, That the fees, less the actual cost of printing, be remitted on
Bill (No. 9), Respecting Alfred Hall and on Bill (No. 23), John Fnlford

Rollit

On Motion of Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Biggs,

Ordered,, That this House do forthwith resolve itself into a Committee

of the Whole to consider certain proposed Resolutions respecting Succession

Duties.

Mr. Drury acquainted the House that His Honour the Lieutenant-Gover-

nor, having been informed of the subject matter of the proposed Resolutions,
recommends them to the consideration of the House.

The House then resolved itself into the Committee.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That the Succession Duty Act be amended so as to provide that

the additional duty payable under subsection 2 of section 8 be imposed in the

cases where the whole amount passing to one person, mentioned in subsection 1,

exceeds $50,000.

That the Succession Duty Act be amended so as to provide that the duty

payable under subsection 3 of section 8 be imposed in cases where the aggregate
value exceeds $10,000.

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the

Committee had come to certain Resolutions.

Ordered, That the Report be now received.

Mr. Watson reported the Resolutions as follows:

Resolved, That the Succession Duty Act be amended so as to provide that

additional duty payable under subsection 2 of section 8 be imposed in the

ises where the whole amount passing to one person, mentioned in subsection l r

weeds $50,000.

That the Succession Duty Act be amended so as to provide that the duty

lyable under subsection 3 of section 8 be imposed in cases where the aggregate
-aliie exceeds $10,000.
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The Resolutions having been read the second time, were agreed to, and

referred to the Committee of the Whole House on Bill (No. 81), To amend
The Succession Duties Act.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 81), intituled
" An Act to amend The Succession Duties Act."

Mr. Smith.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 102), intituled
" An Act respecting The Ontario Provincial

Police Force." Mr. Raney.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 109), intituled
" An Act for the Protection of Children of Un-

married Parents." Mr. Raney.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-motrow.

Bill (No. 110), intituled "An Act to amend The Cemeteries &ct.
w Mr.

Henry.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 50), intituled "An Act respecting the Title to certain lands

devised under the Will of Pierre Charron. deceased." Mr. Brackin.

Referred to the Commissioners of Estate Bills.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney,

Ordered, That the names of Mr. Calder and Mr. Mewhinney be added

to the Standing Committee on Municipal Law, and the names of Mr. Hall

and Mr. Pinard be added to the Standing Committee on Fish' and Game.

The following Bills were severally read the second time:

Bill (No. 93), Respecting Provincial Auctioneers.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.
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Bill (No. 95) ,
To amend The Dairy Standards Act.

Eeferred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 99) ,
To amend The Agricultural Associations Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 100), To amend The Agricultural Societies Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion,

That Mr. 'Speaker do now leave the Chair and that the House do resolve itself

into the Committee of Supply, having been read,

The Debate was resumed.

And after some time, it was, on the Motion of Mr. Marshall,

Ordered, That the Debate be further adjourned until To-morrow.

The House then adjourned at 10.00 p.m.

Friday, February 18th, 1921.

4

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

The following Petition was brought up and laid upon the Table:-

By Mr. Henry, the Petition of the Students' Administrative Council of

the University of Toronto.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time :

Bill (No. 27), intituled
" An Act to incorporate a part of the Township

of York as the Township of North York." Mr. Curry.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.
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Bill (Ko. Ill), intituled
" An Act to incorporate the Town of Kapuskas-

ing." Mr. Drury.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 112), intituled
" An Act to amend The Public Health Act,"

Mr. Tooms.

Ordered, That the Bill1 be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 113), intituled "An Act respecting the Delivery of Bread."

Mr. McLeod.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 114), intituled "An Act respecting Liens of Mechanics and

Wage-Earners, Supply Men and others." Mr. Sinclair.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 115), intituled
" An Act to amend The Toronto and Hamilton

Highway Commission Act." Mr. Biggs.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 116), intituled "An Act to amend The Provincial Highway
Act." Mr. Biggs.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Mr. Ferguson asked the following Question:

1. What is the cost to date to the Province of the Riddell-Latchford Timber

Enquiry. 2. What is the total amount paid to Mr. R. T. Harding: (a) For

fees as Counsel; (&) For payment of assistance; (c) For travelling expenses.

And the Attorney-General replied :

1. Accounts have been received to date amounting to $69,519.32. These

accounts are in process of being audited and the exact amount at which they

will be allowed cannot at present be stated. 2. (a) $2,000, on account of fees

as Counsel; (?>) and (c) Accounts have been received but have not been

audited. Mr. Harding's expenses are included in the general expenses of the

Commission and cannot be separated.
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Mr. Buckland asked the following Question:

1. What is the amount per diem paid to Mr. Justice Riddell and Mr.

Justice Latchford for their services as commissioners in connection with the

Crown Timber Commission of Investigation. .2. What amount has been paid

to each to date. 3. By whom was the arrangement made.

To which the Attorney-General replied as follows :

1. No arrangement has been made fixing a per diem rate for the Commis-

sioners. 2. There has been paid to each of the Commissioners $2,000 on

account of their services. 3. Answered by No. 1.

Mr. Calder asked the following Question:

1. What is the total cost of the Ontario Public Service Commission to the

present date. 2. Who compose the Commission. 3. What remuneration has

been paid or allowed to each member. 4. What expenses account has been

paid or allowed to each member. 5. What was paid or allowed for (#) Expenses
of reporting; (&) Witness fees. 6. How many days did the Commission sit.

7. At what places did the Commission sit. 8. Was evidence taken under oath.

. Is it the intention of the Government to publish the evidence for the informa-

tion of the members of the Legislature. 10. What salaried positions have been

created in connection with the Public Service Commission. 11. What are these

positions. 12. Who have been appointed to them. 13. At what salary. 14.

What is the term of the appointment in each case.

And the Attorney-General replied in the words and figures following :

1. $15,037.33. 2. W. D. Gregory, Norman Sommerville, Dr. H. L.

Brittain, Albert Hellyer and E. A. Pocock. 3. W. D. Gregory, $2,240 ;
N.

Sommerville, $2,000; Dr. H. L. Brittain, $820; Albert Hellyer, $1,000; E. A.

Pocock, $1,180. 4. W. D. Gregory, $605.42; N. Sommerville, $373.28; Dr.

H. L. Brittain, $338.15; A. Hellyer, $457.25; E. A. Pocock, $720.77. 5. (a)

$2,231.50; (fc) Nil. 6. 55 days". 7. Toronto, Haileybury, North Bay, Sud-

bury, Sault Ste. Marie, Port Arthur, Fort Frances, Winnipeg, Kenora, Ottawa,

Cornwall, Brockville, Kingston, Belleville, Picton, Cobourg, Windsor, Detroit,

Chatham, London, Kitchener, Guelph, Brampton, Owen Sound, St. Cathar-

ines, Brantford and Hamilton. 8. No. 9. The reports will be published, but

the evidence will not be published unless so ordered by the Legislature. 10.

None. 11, 12, 13 and 14. Answered by 10.

Mr. Marceau asked the following Question:

1. What was the cost to the Government of each marker (a) For motor

chicles generally; (b) For motor cycles in use for the year 1920. 2. (a) Were
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tenders called for; (6) From whom were markers purchased; (c) Was marker

the subject of patent. 3. What was the cost to the Government of each marker

(a) For motor vehicles generally; (&) For motor cycles in use for the year
1921. 4. (a) From whom were the markers purchased; (&) Were tenders

called for; (c) Was marker the subject of patent.

And the Minister of Public Works replied :

1. (a) Fourteen cents; (6) Fourteen cents. 2. (a) No; (&) St. Thomas
Metal Signs, Limited; (c) No. 3. (a) Fourteen and one-quarter cents. (5)

Thirteen and one-quarter cents. 4. (a) The J. L. Wright Company; (b) Yes;

(c) No.

Mr. Mewhinney asked the following Question :

What are the details that make up the item of $903,422.41 credited to the

capital receipts of the Lands and Forests Department as part of the total re-

ceipts of $2,911,047.13 as stated in the Public Accounts for 1920 on pages

(a24 and a30.)

And the Provincial Treasurer replied in the words and figures following:

The item $903,422.41 credited to the capital receipts of the Lands and

Forests Department is arrived at as follows: The total revenue for t\\(\

Lands and Forests Department for the year 1920 was $2,911,047.13. The

expenditure for the year, as shown 'in the Public Accounts, was $1,104,202.31.

This being deducted, half of the net revenue has been treated as the proportion

recovered from Capital realization from Woods and Forests collections, viz.,.

Bonus. Timber Dues, etc.

Mr. Marshall asked the following Question :

1. Were tenders called for work done for each item which appears in the

Public Accounts on page 458 as follows: Thomas Y. Gearing, alteration?

and additions to garage, $6,647.95. 2. If so, who were the respective tenderers

and what was the amount of each tender. 3. Was order dated, what contract

was entered into, was order given for work.

And the Minister of Public Works replied :
(

1. Yes. 2. Thos. Y. Gearing; cost of materials and wages plus ten per

cent. 3. The tender dated August 20th, 1920, was accepted the same day
and placed on file as official contract.
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Mr. Govenlock asked the following Question:

What are the details of the amounts paid by each Racing Association for

the Spring and Fall meetings respectively, included in the item of receipts
for Race Tra-ck meeting licenses stated at $770,410 on page a79 of the Public

Accounts for 1920.

And the Provincial Treasurer replied in the words and figures following:

The details are as follows:

Ontario Jockey Club . $105,000 00

Collingwood Driving Club 10 00

Kingston Gentlemen's Driving Club 10 00
Thornclift'e Park Racing and Breeding Association

'

. 105,000 00

Kitchener Driving Association . . 10 00

[Metropolitan Racing Association 35,000 00

Woodstock Trotting Club' 20 00

^apanee Driving Club 10 00

Lucan Turf Club .' 10 00

Dominion Day Celebration Committee, Port Elgin 10 00

Hamilton Jockey ( 'luh 105,000 00

Western Racing Association, Devonshire Park 105,000 00

'Niagara Racing Association, Fort Erie 105,000 00

Sinicoe Driving dub 20 00

Windsor Jockey Club . . 105,000 00

Preston Driving Club 20 00

Arthur Agricultural Society 10 00

Collingwood Driving dub 20 00

Kingston Gentlemen's Driving Club 10 00

Kitchener Driving ( 'Inb . 40 00

Wclland Driving Association 20 00

Kcnilwortb Jockey Club 105,000 00

Simcoe Driving Club . 20 00

Orangeville Turf Association 20 00

Brussels Trotting Club 10 00

Wingham Athletic Grounds 20 00

Ri<l,ii-etnwn Old Boys' and Girls' Re-Union 30 00

1 hinnville Racing Club 10 00

Brampton Driving Club 10 00

Woodstock Trotting Club 10 00

Kingston Gentlemen's Driving Club 10 00

Kitchener Driving Club 10 00

Toronto Driving Club 20 00

\Voodbridge Driving Club 10 00

Dufferin Park Driving Club . 10 00

$770.410 00
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Mr. Buckland asked the following Question:

1. Is A. M. Latchford, who, according to Public Accounts, 1920, page 532r

was paid the sum of $1,260 for legal services, a son of Mr. Justice Latchford.
one of the Timber Commissioners.

And the Attorney-General replied in the affirmative.

Mr. Hay asked the following question:

1. (a) Was the loan "N.N." of $3,000,000 at 6 per cent., repayable in three;

years, for which the net price of 103.40033 was realized according to the

Provincial Treasurer's statement, publicly advertised, and if so, on what date ;

(&) What date of issue do the bonds bear; (c) Are the principal and interest

upon the bonds repayable at option of the purchaser in gold in New York.
2. (a) Was the loan "P.P." for $5,000,000 at 6 per cent., repayable in seven

years, for which the price of 104.533 was realized according to the Provincial

Treasurer's statement, publicly advertised, and if so, what was the date of tL<

first advertisement; (b) What date of issue do these bonds bear; (c) Are the

principal and interest upon the bonds repayable at the option of the purchaser
in gold in New York. 3. (a) What date of issue do the bonds bear covered by
the loan "K.K." for $16,000,000 at 6 per cent., repayable in fifteen years,,

for which, according to the statement of the Provincial Treasurer, the price
of 92.34 was obtained without public tender; (b) What method was adopted

by the Provincial Treasurer to obtain offers for such bond issue and what

offers, if any, were received other than that of Dominion Securities Syndicate ;.

(c) Are the principal and interest under such bonds payable in gold at par
in United States or only stipulated to be paid in Canada. 4. (a) What was

the date of issue of bonds covered by loan "S.S." for $10,000,000 at 6 per

cent., repayable in twenty years and according to the Provincial Treasurer's

statement sold to the syndicate of Aemilius Jarvis and others at the price of

96.787; (b) What method was adopted by the Provincial Treasurer to obtain

offers for such bond issue, and what offers, if any, were received other than that

of Aemilius Jarvis Syndicate; (c) Are the principal and interest under such

bonds payable in gold at par in the United States or only stipulated to be

paid in Canada.

And the Provincial Treasurer replied in the words and figures following i

1. (a) Yes, 30th September, 1st and 4th October, 1920; (b) 1st October^

1920; (c) Yes. 2. (a) Yes, November 4th, 1920. (b) 15th November, 1920;

(c) Yes. 3. (a) 1st December, 1920; (b) Negotiations were made with syndi-

cate comprised of all leading brokers in Toronto'; none; (c) Payable in Canada

only. 4. (a) 1st February, 1921 ; (b) Negotiations were made with syndicate

comprised of all leading brokers in Toronto; none; (c) Payable in Canada

only.
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Mr. Sinclair asked the following Question:

1. Have any Treasury Bills been issued by the Government since 13th

November, 1919, if so (a) For what amounts respectively; (&) Upon what

dates; (c) For what periods respectively; (d} At what prices respectively;

(e) To whom were these issued in each case; (/) Was there any public adver-

tisement; (g) Were tenders called for; (h) If not, what method was adopted

by the Provincial Treasurer in placing the said Treasury Bills and realizing

upon said Treasury Bills, and what offers were received, and what was accepted
in each case.

And the Provincial Treasurer replied in the words and figures following :

1. Yes; (a) $3,000,000, Series "H.H."; $5,000,000, Series "J.J."
;

$6,000,000, Series "K.K"; $1,000,000, Series "L.L."
; (&) May 15th, 1920;

June 15th, 1920; Oct., 15th, 1920; Nov. 15th, 1920; (c) May 15th, 1920-

Nov. 15th, 1920; June 15th, 1920-Dec. 15th, 1920; Oct. 15th, 1920-Apr. 15th,

1921; Nov. 15th, 1920-May 15th, 1921; (d) 99.50, 99.50, 99.50, 99.50; (e)

Home Bank of Canada
;
Home Bank of Canada and Aemilius Jarvis & Co. ;

Home Bank of Canada and Aemilius Jarvis & Co.
;
Canadian Debentures Cor-

poration, Ltd.; (/) No; (g) No; (h) Offers were made by the Bank and

Brokers mentioned in answer to Question (e), and after due consideration,

they were accepted.

Mr. Thompson asked the following Question:

1. Is A. K. McVicar in the employ jof the Government. 2. If so, what

position does he occupy. 3. What are his qualifications for that position. 4.

How long has he been employed. 5. Where did he reside. 6. Is he a brother

of the Honourable the Member for East Elgin.

And the Minister of Public Works replied:

1. Yes. 2. Foreman. 3. Late County Eoad Superintendent for Brant

County, also experience on road and railway contract work. 4. Since June

24th, 1919. 5. Brantford. 6. N*o.

The following Bills were severally read the second time :

Bill (No. 65), To amend The Railway Employees' Voting Act, 1918.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.
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Bill (No. 70), To amend The Assessment Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 72), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 73), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 84), 'To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 86), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 88), To amend the Act to regulate the means of Egress from

Public Buildings.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

The Order of the 1 >a v for the second reading of Bill (No. 87), To amend

The Assessment Act. having been read,

Mr. Crockett moved,

That the Bill be ruow read the second time.

And the Motion, having been put, was lost on a Division.

And so it was declared in the Negative.

The House then adjourned at 4.40 p.m.
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Monday, February 21st, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK P.M.

The following Petition was read and received:

Of the Students' Administrative Council of the University of Toronto,

praying for improved accommodation.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time :

Bill (No. 117), intituled
" An Act to amend The Police Magistrates

Act.
7 ' Mr. Eaney.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the sflpond time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 118), intituled
" An Act to provide for the appointment of

Police Magistrates with extended jurisdiction." Mr. Kaney.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 119), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr
McNamara.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 120), intituled
" An Act respecting the Adoption of Children."

Mr. Raney.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The following Bills were severally read the second timer-

Bill (No. 3), Respecting the City of Belleville.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 20), To incorporate the Provincial Synod of Ontario of the

Church of England in Canada and to make provisions respecting Vestry

Meetings.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.
7 JOUR.
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Bill (No. 2), Respecting the Town of Mimico.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 4), Respecting the City of Peterborough.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 12), To legalize and confirm By-law No. 29, of 1920, of the

City of Kingston.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 13), Respecting two abandoned Cemeteries in the Town of Port

Colborne.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 19), To authorize Tle Law Society of Upper Canada to admit

James Petrie Pratt to practise as a Barrister and Solicitor.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 90), To amend The Public Parks Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 91), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 92), To amend The Assessment Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 106), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 60), Respecting the Legitimation of Children by the subsequent
intermarriage of their Parents.

Referred to the Legal Committee.

ill (No. 66), Respecting the Office of Crown Attorney in the City of

Toronto and the County of York.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.
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Bill (No. 74), The Keforestation Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 95),

To amend The Dairy Standards Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 99),
To amend The Agricultural Associations Act, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Com-
mittee had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to. consider Bill (No. 100),
To amend The Agricultural Societies Act, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Com-
mittee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

Mr. Brai>'i>- asked the following Question:

What were the legal services rendered in connection with each item and

charged in the Public Accounts for 1920 on page 64 as follows: (a) J. S.

Lundy. legal services re alleged combine, $743.25; (6) W. Nesbitt, legal ser-

vices re Grocers' combine, $500; (c] A. W. Roebuck, legal services re alleged
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combine in the Wholesale Grocers' trade, $2,250.70; (d) A. M. Stewart, legal

services re Grocers' combine, $250. 2. At what rate per diem were services

charged for in each case.

And the Attorney-General replied as follows :

1. (a) Mr. J. >S. Lundy was engaged by the former Government to repre-

sent it before the Dominion Board of Commerce in a number of investigations ;

(b) Mr. Wallace Nesbitt's services were conferences and an opinion re Grocers'

Combine; (c) Mr. A. W. Roebuck's services were as Counsel for the Govern-

ment on the enquiry before the Dominion Board of Commerce on charges of

alleged combinations by wholesale grocers in restraint of trade; (d) Mr. A. M.
Stewart's services were conferences and an opinion re Grocers' Combine. 2.

The basis of the engagement in these cases was not a per diem one.

Mr. Dewart asked the following Question :
(

1. What lands or mining rights in the nickel belt in the District of Sud-

bury have been leased, patented or otherwise disposed of under The Mining
Act by the Government since 13th November, 1919, to the Canada Copper

Company (International Nickel Company), George E. Buchanan, solicitor to

the Canada Copper Company, or any other corporation or individual
;
and upon

what dates and at what price or rental per acre. 2. In case any such leases

or patents have been granted, do such leases or patents contain any reservation

under 7 George V, cap. 11 (1917), as to the treatment and refining within the

Dominion of Canada of ores or minerals raised or removed from the properties

in question. 3. What restrictions or precautions have been taken to ensure the

reservation of ores or minerals raised or removed from any such lands so as to

ensure their treatment and refining in Canada.

And the Minister of Mines replied in the words and figures following:

1. The following lands were patented:

Township of Blezard.

S.E. quarter of S. half of lot 7, con. 1, 39*4 acres, Martin Hassett, Dec. 24,

1919.

Township of Capreol.

W.R. 12, 40 acres, Gilbert Bennett, Nov. 24, 1920.
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Township of Creighton.

N.W. quarter of X. half of lot 3, con. 2, 38% acres, Geo. E. Buchanan, 19th

Oct., 1920.

S.W. quarter of N. half of lot 3, con. 2, 38% acres, George E. Buchanan, 19th

Oct., 1920.

S. E. quarter of N. half of lot 3, con. 2, 38% acres, Geo. E. Buchanan, 19th

Oct., 1920.

N.E. quarter of N. half of lot 3, con. 2, 38% acres, Geo. E. Buchanan, 19th

Oct., 1920.

N.W. quarter of S. half of lot 1, con. 3, 41 }4 acres, Geo. E. Buchanan, 17th

Nov., 1920. i&

N.E. quarter of S. half of lot 2, con. 3, 40 acres, Geo. E. Buchanan, 19th

Oct., 1920.

N.W. quarter of S. half of lot 2, con. 3, 40 acres, Geo. E. Buchanan, 19th

Oct., 1920.

S.E quarter of S. half of lot 2, con. 3, 40 acres, Geo. E. Buchanan, 19th

Oct., 1920.

S.W. quarter of S. half of lot 2, con. 3, 40 acres, Geo. E. Buchanan, 19th

Oct., 1920.

N.E. quarter of S. half of lot 3, con. 3, 40 acres, Geo. E. Buchanan, 19th

Oct., 1920.

S.W. quarter of S. half of lot 3, con. 3, 40 acres, Geo. E. Buchanan, 19th

Oct., 1920.

N.W. quarter of S. half of lot 3, con. 3, 40 acres, Geo. E. Buchanan, 19th

Oct., 1920.

S.E. quarter of S. half of lot 3, con. 3, 40 acres, Geo. E. Buchanan, 19th

Oct., 1920.

Township of Denison.

S.W. quarter of S. half of lot 12, con. 5, 58% acres, C. A. Durkee, 7th May.
1920.

S.E. quarter of S. half of lot 12, con. 5, 58% acres, C. A. Durkee, 7th May,
1920.

Township of Levacl-.

N.W. quarter of N. half of lot 4, con. 3, 40 acres, Robt. J. Clark, 2Gth August,
1920.

Township of Trill.

N.W. quarter of N. half of lot 7, con. 1, 40 acres, Louis Laforest, 8th Oct.,

1920.

N.E. quarter of N. half of lot 7, con. 1, 40 acres, Emma Laforest, 8th Oct.,

1920.

Price, the Statutory price of $3.00 per acre.
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2. All of the said lands were patented subject to condition contained

in 7 George V, chapter 11 (1917), as to treatment and refining within the

Dominion of Canada of ores or minerals raised or removed therefrom. 3.

None of the said lands have yet been worked for ores or minerals.

Mr. Ferguson asked the following Question:

1. What are the respective places of residence and occupations of W. T.

Jackson, Thos. McMillan and M. H. Staples, who made the report on Rural

Credits. 2. What special quaMcation had each of them to advise with respect

to a system of rural credits.

And the Minister of Agriculture replied as follows:

1. W. T. Jackson, Toronto, Assistant Professor, University of Toronto;
Thos. McMillan, Farmer, R.R. 2, Seaforth: M. H. Staples, Secretary and Lect-

urer, Toronto. 2. Prof. W. T. Jackson, several years studying and teaching
finance and transportation in universities in Canada and United States, with

special reference to agricultural finance: Thos. McMillan, many years of ex-

perience as farmer and stock man in association with agricultural business

affairs
;
M. H. Staples, graduate Toronto University and experience as farmer.

Mr. Allan asked the following Question :

1. When was Alexander Montgomery appointed Superintendent of the

Nipissing Central Railway. 2. Is he the same Alexander Montgomery who

was U.F.O.-Labour candidate at the last Provincial election. 3. On whose

recommendation was he appointed.

And the Premier replied as follows:

1. Appointed Acting Superintendent of Transportation, March 16th, 1920.

2. Yes. 3. Recommended for promotion by a Conference of Executive Officials

on account of being senior employee of the Nipissing Central Railway.

Mr. Sinclair asked the following Question:

Were the costs of License Inspector Joseph Stewart of Peterboro ordered

to be paid by him on the quashing of a conviction by the Honourable Mr.

Justice Middleton against Bert Haydon for a violation of The Ontario Tem-

perance Act, paid to Joseph Stewart out of the funds of the Ontario License
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Board, or was he paid or reimbursed out of any funds by any department of

the Government, and if so, out of what funds.

And the Attorney-General replied as follows:

The bill of Messrs. Gordon & O'Brien, who appeared on behalf of the

defendant on the motion to quash the conviction against Bert Haydon for a

violation of The Ontario Temperance Act, which was rendered at $119.90 and

taxed at $84.90, was paid by the Board of License Commissioners for Ontario

to Messrs. Gordon & O'Brien out of the Peterborough Ontario Temperance Act

Hcense fund account.

On Motion of Mr. Hay, seconded by Mr. Tolmie,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House a Eeturn of copies of all

papers and correspondence between the Government or any member thereof

or any official on behalf of the Government and any other Corporation or

person relating to: (a) Loan "R.R." sold to syndicate composed of the Dominion

Securities and others; (&) Loan for $16,000,000 at 6 per cent., repayable in

fifteen years for which the price of 92.34 was realized; (c) The loan "S.S."

sold to the syndicate composed of Aemilius Jarvis and others; (d) The loan

for $10,000,000 at 6 per cent., repayable in twenty years for which the price

of 96.787 was realized.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Report of the Commission to enquire into and report upon a basis for

determining the financial obligations of the Province toward the University of

Toronto, and the financial aid which the Province may give to Queen's Uni-

versity of Kingston and the Western University of London, etc.. etc. (Ses-

sional Papers, No. 65.)

Also Report of the Ontario Board of Parole for the year ending October

31st, 1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 57.)

Also Return to an Order of the House of the 14th day of February

instant for a Return showing dates when tenders called for, the tenders received

and the names of tenderers for the production of (a) Ontario Public School

Readers, each respectively; (b} Ontario Public School Histories, each re-

spectively; (c) Ontario High School History; (d} Ontario Composition and

Grammar. (Sessional Papers, No. B6.)

The House then adjourned at 6 p.m.
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Tuesday, February 22nd, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK P.M.

The following Petition was brought up and laid upon the Table :

By Mr. Henry, the Petition of the Township Council of York.

Mr. Raney, from the Standing Committee on Private Bills, presented
their Third Report, which was read as follows and adopted :

Your Committee beg to report the following Bills with certain amend-
ments :

Bill (No. 18), An Act respecting the City of Chatham.

Bill (No. 33), An Act respecting the City of St. Thomas.

Bill '(No. 46), An Act respecting the Town of Midland.

Bill (No. 48), An Act respecting McMaster Universitv.

Your Committee beg to report the following Bills without amendment :

Bill (No. 1), An Act respecting the City of Niagara Falls.

Bill (No. 28), An Act to incorporate the Town of Georgetown.

Bill (No. 47), An Act respecting the City of Guelph.

Your Committee recommend that the fees, less the actual cost of printing
the Bill and of printing the Act in the Statutes be remitted on Bill (No. 48),
" An Act respecting McMaster University

" on the ground that it is one re-

lating to a Religious Institution, and less fines imposed under the Rules of the

House.

Your Committee recommend that natwitstanding Rule 51 of Your Hon-

ourable House the time for receiving Reports of Committees on Private Bills

be extended to and inclusive of Thursday, the 10th day of March next.

Ordered, That the fees, less tfhe actual cost of printing the Bill and of

printing the Act in the Statutes, and less fines imposed by Rules of House, be

remitted on Bill (No. 48), McMaster University.
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Ordered, That the time for receiving Reports of Committee on Private

Bills, be extended until and inclusive of Thursday, the 10th day of March next.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 121), intituled
" An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Lewis.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 122), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Homuth.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 123), intituled
" An Act respecting Co-operative Credit So-

cieties." Mr. Hill.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 124), intituled
" An Act to amend the Fire Department Hours

of Labour." Mr. Hay.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion

that Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair, and that the House do resolve itself

into the Committee of Supply, having been read,

The Debate was resumed,

And after some time, it was, on the Motion of Mr. MacBride,

Ordered, That the Debate be further adjourned until To-morrow.

On Motion of Mr. Doherty, seconded by Mr. Biggs,

Ordered, That this House do forthwith resolve itself into a Committee of

the Whole to consider certain proposed Resolutions respecting Agricultural

Development.

8 JOUE.



106 22xn FEBKUARY. 1921

Mr. Dmry acquainted the House that His Honour the Lieutenant-Gover-

nor, having been informed of the subject matter of the proposed Resolutions

recommends them to the consideration of the House.

The House then resolved itself into the Committee.

(Iiii the Committee.)

Eesolved, That the sum of $500,000 be set apart out of the Consolidated

Revenue Fund for the purchase of bonds to be issued by the Agricultural De-

velopment Board to provide capital for the promotion of agricultural develop-

ment by means of loans on first mortgages on farm property subject to the terms

and provisions of
" The Agricultural Development Act " and " The Farm

Loans Act."

That subject to the approval of the Lieutenant-Governor in Council, the

Treasurer of Ontario be authorized to borrow money by receiving deposits to

any amounts and from any persons or corporations, and to open offices for this

purpose at such points in Ontario as he may deem necessary, and to fix such

conditions as to the payment of interest not exceeding four per cent, per annum
and the repayment of such deposits, and to apply money received by way of

deposit to loans to members of associations under " The Ontario Farm Loans

Act," the purchase of bonds or debentures issued under " The Agricultural

Development Act.," or the purchase of bonds or debentures issued or guaranteed

by the Province of Ontario, the Dominion of Canada or any Province of

Canada or any municipality in Ontario.

That the Lieutenant-Governor in Council may authorize the Treasurer

of Ontario to guarantee the repayment of any bonds or debentures issued

by the Agricultural Development Board for the purpose of making loans on

farm property to be secured by first mortgage to the extent of sixty-five per
cent, of the value of such property.

That the Treasurer of Ontario be authorized to subscribe for shares to

an amount equal to one-half the total amount subscribed for by individuals

in the capital stock of any association formed under " The Ontario Farm
Loans Act, 1921," and that the sums required for the purchase of such shares

shall be a charge upon and payable out of the Consolidated Revenue Fund or

may be payable in bonds issued by or guaranteed by the Province of Ontario.

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Watson reported, That the Com-

mittee had come to certain Resolutions,

Ordered, That the Report be now received.

Mr. Watson reported the Resolutions as follows :

Resolved, That the sum of $500,000 be set apart out of the Consolidated

Revenue Fund for the purchase of bonds to be issued by the Agricultural De-

velopment Board to provide capital for the promotion of agricultural develop-
ment by means of loans on first mortgages on farm property subject to the terms
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and provisions of
u The Agricultural Development Act " and " The Farm

Loans Act."

That subject to the approval of the Lieutenant-Governor in Council, the

Treasurer of Ontario be authorized to borrow money by receiving deposits to

any amounts and from any persons or corporations, and to open offices for this

purpose at such points in Ontario as he may deem necessary, and to fix such

conditions as to the payment of interest not exceeding four per cent, per annum
and the repayment of such deposits, and to apply money received by way of

deposits to loans to members of associations under " The Ontario Farm Loans

Act/' the purchase of bonds or debentures issued under " The Agricultural

Development Act/
7

or the purchase of bonds or debentures issued or guaranteed

by the Province of Ontario, the Dominion of Canada or any Province of

Canada or any municipality in Ontario.

That the Lieutenant-Governor in Council may authorize the Treasurer

of Ontario to guarantee the repayment of any bonds or debentures issued

by the Agricultural Development Board for the purpose of making loans on

farm property to be secured by first mortgage to the extent of sixty-five per

cent, of the value of such property.

That the Treasurer of Ontario be authorized to subscribe for sh,ir9s to

an amount equal to one-half the total amount subscribed for by individuals

in the capital stock of any association formed under " The Ontario Farm

Loans Act, 1921," and that the sums required for the purchase of such shares

shall be a charge upon and payable out of the Consolidated Revenue Fund or

may be payable in bonds issued by or guaranteed by the Province of Ontario.

The Resolutions having been read the second time, were agreed to, and

referred to the Committee of the Whole House on Bill (Bci 97) respecting the

Promotion of Agricultural Development.

The following Bills were severally read the second time:

Bill (No. 76), To amend The Motor Vehicles Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 96), Respecting Farm Loans in Ontario.

Referred to a Select Committee to be hereafter named.

Bill (No. 97), For the promotion of Agricultural Development.

Referred to a Select Committee to be hereafter named.

Bill (No. 98), To finance Agricultural Development.

Referred to a Select Committee to be hereafter named.

The House then adjourned at 11,50 p.m.
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Wednesday, February 23rd, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3 0.CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Carmichael, from the Standing Committee on Standing Orders, pre-

sented their Fifth Report, which was read as follows and adopted :

Your Committee have carefully examined the following Petitions and

find the Notices as published in each case sufficient:

Of the City Council of Kitchener, praying that an Act may pass to ratify

and confirm By-law 1606 and for other purposes.

Of the Town Council of St. Mary's, praying that an Act may pass to

ratify and confirm By-law No. 417 repealing By-law No. 10, A.D. 1895, of

the Corporation, fixing the rate on all lands situate in the Town used for farm

lands and in blocks of not less than twenty-five acres.

Of the Village Council of Acton, praying that an Act may pass to ratify

and confirm a certain By-law.

Of the City Council and the Water Commissioners of the City of Wind-

sor, praying that an Act may pass to amend section 18 of cap. 58, 61 Victoria

so as to enable them to raise certain moneys for Water Works purposes.

Of the Town Council of Pembroke, praying that an Act may pass author-

izing the Corporation to assess and levy in any one year not more than three

and one-half cents on the dollar on assessed value of the whole rateable value

of the Town.

Of the Township Council of Etobicoke and Weston Golf and Country Club,

Limited, praying that an Act may pass to ratify and confirm a certain By-law
and Agreement.

Of the Boards of Education and the Separate School Boards of Windsor

and Walkerville, praying that an Act may pass to create a Joint Board of

School Trustees with certain powers.

Of the Town Council of Kincardine, praying that an Act may pass to

consolidate the floating debt and to authorize the borrowing of money.

Of the City Council of Port Arthur, praying that an Act may pass to

amend 2 George V, cap. 118, and to legalize and confirm tax sales prior to

January 1st, 1920.
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Of the Town Council of Hawkesbury, praying that an Act may pass auth-

orizing the Town to separate from the United Counties of Prescott and Russell

by its erection into a separate Town.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time :

Bill (No. 5), intituled "An Act respecting the Town of Pembroke."
Mr. Warren.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 16), intituled
" An Act to enable the Town of Hawkesbury to

withdraw from the jurisdiction of the United Counties of Prescott and Rus-

sell." Mr. Evanturel.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 24), intituled
" An Act respecting the City of Windsor." Mr.

Tolmie.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 29), intituled "An Act respecting the Township of Etobicoke

and the Western Golf and Country Club, Limited." Mr. Godfrey.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 31), intituled "An Act respecting the Town of St. Mary's."
Mr. Lewis.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 34), intituled "An Act respecting the Village of Acton."

Mr. Lethbridge.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 39), intituled "An Act respecting the City of Port Arthur."

Mr. Hogarth.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 40), intituled "An Act respecting the Town of Kincardine."

Mr. Mewhinney.

Referrc il to the Railway and Municipal Board.
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'Bill (No. 41), intituled "An Act to establish a joint industrial and

technical School Board for the City of Windsor and the Town of Walkerville."

Mr. Tolmie.

Keferred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 52), intituled
" An Act respecting the City of Kitchener." Mr.

Asmussen.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 125), intituled "An Act to amend The Ontario Temperance
Act." Mr. McCrea.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 126), intituled "An Act to amend The Ontario Game and

Fisheries Act." Mr. McCrea.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 127), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Biggs.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 128), intituled "An Act to amend The Motor Vehicles Act."

Mr. Tooms.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 129), intituled
" An Act to amend The Mining Act of Ontario."

Mr. Mills.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 130), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Hill.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Doherty,

Ordered, That the following members be constituted a Special Committee

of the House, to consider and report on Bills Nos. 96, 97 and 98 : Messrs.

Doherty, Smith, Sandy, MacVicar, Ross (Glengarry), Swayze, Heenan, Clarke,

Marshall, Sinclair, Henry, Hill and McCrea.



George V. ^KD FJ:P,KIAKV. Ill

On Motion of Mr. Drnry, seconded by Mr. Biggs,

Ordered, That the name of Mr. Widdineld be added to the Standing Com-

mittee on Fish and Game, and the name of Mr. Webster be added to the Stand-

ing Committee on Municipal Law.

Mr. Henry (asked the following Question :

1. Has the* 'Government submitted the ne'cessary plans and maps as pro-

vided for by regulations under The Canada Highways Act of 1919. 2. What
is the total mileage on which Federal 'aid has been arranged for. 3. What is

the mile'age of Federal-aided roads located in each of the various counties

within the Province. 4. 'What 'amount was spent upon these Federal-aided

roads by the Province during the year ending October 31st, 1920. 5. What

amount, if any, ihasi the Federal Government agreed to pay the Province on

1920 expenditures and what amount has been already received.

And the Minister of Public Works replied in the words and figures fol-

lowing :

1. Yes. 2. 1,752.80 miles. 3. See Schedule "A." 4. See Schedule

"B." 5. (a) Forty per cent, of No. 4, or $1,091,524.80; (&) Nothing, as

statement not yet submitted.

SCHEDULE " A."

County Project Mileage Total

Brant 9 7.78

10 18.49 26.27

Bruce 19 38.14 38.14

Carleton 6 30.50

33 7.38

34 40.5S

32 12.00 90.46

Dufferin 26 25.82 25.82

Dundas, Stormont & Glengarry. . 5A 61.89 61.89

Elgin V.. 13 31.12

16 27.27 58.39

Essex 13 35.48

15 24.23 59.71

Frontenac 7.72

4 13.51

32 20.15 41.38

Grey 18 32.96

26 37.90 70.86

Haldimand . . 16 38.35

17 15.55 53.90
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County Project Mileage Total

Halton 21 15.00

25 15.50 30.50

Hastings 2 9.49

3 17.92 27.41

Huron 24 25.29 25.29

Kent 13 49.91

15 39.14 89.05

Lambton 20 40.48 40.48

Lanark . . 32 32.62 32.62

Leeds & Grenville 4 33.23

5 10.40

5A 7.20

6 27.60

32 35.21 113.64

Lennox & Addington 3 20.71 20.71

Lincoln 8 27.03

35 .85 27.88

Middlesex 12 8.94

14 10.74

15 36.36

20 24.92

23 19.52 100.48

Norfolk .'.. 16 30.27 30.27

Northumberland & Durham 2 61.76

18.92 80.68

Ontario 1 11.63

2 4.68

30 25.15 41.46

Oxford 16 .84

10 17.65

11 7.16

12 6.86 32.51

Peel 25 9.50

26 39.20 48.70

Perth 21 11.40

23 15.10

24 17.31 43.81

Peterborough 31 8.05 8.05

Prescott & Russell 33 61.71 61.71

Renfrew 34 53.00 53.00

Simcoe 28 52.44 52.44

Victoria 30 16.00 16.00

Waterloo 21 19.20

22 10.85 30.05
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County
Welland
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Mr. Stover asked the following Question :

1. What was the net income to the Government under the operation of

The Ontario Temperance Act respectively for the years 1919 and 1920. 2.

What is the revenue estimated for the year 1921. 3. For what reason has the

amount been so fixed.

And the Attorney-General replied in the words and figures following :

1. 1919, $85,711.08; 1920, $469,773.29. 2. Estimated gross revenue,

$500,000. 3. Provided the Referendum results in prohibiting the importation
of liquor, it is anticipated that the amount that will be collected for penalties

for infractions of the Ontario Temperance Act will be considerably less' than in

1920, the gross revenue for 1920 being $785,788.99.

Mr. Allan asked the following Question :

1. Was S. K. Burdin, Chief Clerk, Record Branch, Department of Lands

and Forests, suspended or gh;en leave of absence in or about the month of April,

1920. 2. For what reason was the suspension made or leave of absence given.

3. On whose recommendation was such order or orders made. 4. How long

did the suspension or leave of absence exist. 5. Under what section of The

Public Service Act was such suspension made or leave of absence given. 6.

Has he been reinstated.

And the Minister of Lands and Forests replied in. the words following:

1. Mr. Burdin was granted leave of absence for three months, from March

3th, 1920. 2. As a Royal Commission had been appointed to investigate the

timber administration of the Province, it was deemed advisable that the files of

the Department be placed in charge of one of the other members of the staff

for the time being. This arrangement was agreed to by Mr. Burdin. 3. On
the recommendation of the Minister of Lands and Forests. 4. On June 8th,

1920, Mr. Burdin was granted a further leave of absence for three months. 5.

Subsection 2, section 17, Public Service Act. 6. As Mr. Burdin had been

granted leave of absence no reinstatement was necessary. On the expiration of

the leave of absence granted on June 8th, 1920. he resumed his duties.

Mr. Rankin asked the following Question :

1. Is there an official known as Chief Clerk of Lands, in the Department of

Lands and Forests, if so, what is his name. 2. What remuneration is he re-

ceiving for his services. 3. What are his qualifications for the position. 4.

What was the date of appointment. 5. By whom was he recommended.
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And the Minister of Lands and Forests replied :

1. Selby Draper. 2. $1,900 per annum. 3. Satisfactory services for

about 22 years in the Department, four years of which he has been Clerk in

charge of Free Grant Lands, from which position he was promoted to Chief

Clerk. 4. December 22nd, 1920. 5. Minister of Lands and Forests.

Mr. Kennedy asked the following Question :

1. Has the Government rented the building formerly known) as
" The Old

Knox College" and more recently as the
"
Spadina Military Hospital/' 2.

For what purpose has the building been rented. 3. 'What are the terms of

rental and for what period of time.

And the Minister of Public Works replied as follows :

1. Yes. 2. Departmental offices. 3. Ten years, $5,000 per quarter for

the first five years and $6,250 per quarter for the last five years and to pay
taxes. it-

Mr. Stover asked the following Question :

Was the boat, Capt. Visger, a fish patrol boat in commission during the year
1919-1920. Who was the captain in charge.

And the Minister of Mines replied as follows :

The Str. Capt. Visger was in commission as a patrol boat for 1919 with

Capt. Wm. Lasha in charge, and in 1920 the Str. Grey Bird, formerly Capt.

Visger, was in commission with Capt. Ed. Wray in charge until the 7th of Sep-

tember, and from September 18th, Capt. Jas. Hough was in charge.

Mr. O'Neill asked the following Question :

1. What is the date of the appointment of A. A. Cole "as Commissioner

on the Peat Committee," for which the su mof $3,600 is charged for twelve

months' salary (Public Accounts, page 657). 2. Who was the
" Commission "

appointed. 3. (a) Who constitutes the "Peat Committee"; (b) Has the
" Commissioner "

or
" Peat Committee " made any report; (c) If so, on what

date? (d) Is it the intention to bring down such report and to have it printed.
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And the Minister of Mines replied as follows :

1. 9th April, 1918. 2. A. A. Cole and R. C. Harris, appointed by the

Government of Ontario. R. A. Ross and B. F. Haanel, appointed by the Do-

minion Government. 3. (a) Answered by Number 2. (b) The Committee

has made three Reports, (c) Report for 1918, dated December 31st, 1918,

Report for 1919, dated December 31st, 1919. Preliminary Report for 1920,
dated 3rd February, 1921. (d) The Reports for 1918 and 1919 have been

printed, the first in the Twenty-eighth and the second in the Twenty-ninth
Annual Reports of the Department of Mines. The full Report for 1920 has

not yet been received, but will be printed in the Thirtieth Annual Report of the

Department.

On Motion of Mr. Godfrey, seconded by Mr. Thompson,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House, a Return showing the num-
ber of convictions made under The Ontario Temperance Act for breaches of the

said Act for years 1919-1920: 1. At the instance of officers of the Board of

License Commissioners. 2. At the instance of officers of the Ontario Provin-

cial Police. 3. At the instance of Municipal Police officers. ^ 4. The number
of cases in which fines or sentences have been remitted, reduced, or commuted:

(1) Upon the recommendation of the Board of License Commissioners; (2)
Without the recommendation of the Board of License Commissioners.

On Motion of Mr. Magladery, seconded by Mr. Thompson: -

Ordered, That there be laid before this Hor.se, a Return of copies of all

correspondence between the Minister of Lands and Forests, the Prime Minister,
or any Minister of the Government and any official, representative or solicitor

on behalf of the Spruce Falls Pulp and Paper Co., together with all estimates,

reports, conditions of sale, maps, documents and papers of every kind and

nature, relating to (1) The sale of the Kapuskasing Soldiers' and Sailors'

Settlement Colony ; (2) The additional area acquired by the Company to add to

the concession known as the Kapuskasing Pulp concession; (3) Relating to the

establishment of the Government Town Site at Kapuskasing.

On Motion of Mr. Godfrey, seconded by Mr. Thompson :

Ordered, That there be laid before this House, a Return of copies of the

Report of the Superintendent of Provincial Police to the Attorney-General for

the years 1918, 1919 and 1920.
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On Motion of Mr. Dewart, seconded by Mr. Clarke :

Ordered, That there be laid before this House, a Return of copies of all

correspondence between the Government or any Member, or any Minister or

Official and the Canada Copper Company (International Nickel Company) and

George E. Buchanan relating to leases or grants of nickel-bearing or other

mineral lands in the Township of Creighton, District of Sudbury, since 13th

November, 1919.

On Motion of Mr. Price, seconded by Mr. Thompson,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House, a Return showing copy of

Agreement between Provincial Board of Health and Federal Health Depart-
ment relating to prevention of Venereal Diseases. 2. What amount has already
been received by the Province to date.

On Motion of Mr. Ross (Kingston), seconded by Mr. Crawford,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House, a Return showing the num-

ber of Issuers of Marriage Licenses in the Province of Ontario, with their names

an'd addresses, and the date of their appointment.

On Motion of Mr. Bragg, seconded by Mr. McLeod,

Resolved, That whereas it is clearly established that thq export of fruit to

the overseas markets is carried on with serious disadvantages to Canadian grow-
ers

;
And whereas it is stated on reliable authority that there is an extraordinary

difference in the prices that are received by farmers for their apples, and the

cost of this fruit to consumers overseas
;
And whereas the difference represents

an enormous loss to the Canadian producers, and apparently a corresponding

profit to overseas jobbers, dealers or traders, in which, under present conditions,

Canadian producers are debarred from participating; and whereas it is desir-

able that these conditions should be remedied, so that the Canadian producers
should receive the share in those profits to which they are entitled. Therefore

be it resolved that a special committee of this House be appointed forthwith,

with instructions to enquire and report upon the condition of the fruit and

apple interests and business in the Province of Ontario, and all matters relating

to the production, packing, storage, transportation, shipping, marketing and

export of Ontario fruit and apples, and with power to send for and exam i no

all necessary persons and papers in or concerning the promises. And that the

said Committee be empowered to sit for such purposes during any adjournment
of this House.
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The following Bills were severally read the second time:

Bill (No. 18), Respecting the City of Chatham.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 46), Respecting the Town of Midland.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 48), Respecting McMaster University.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 1), Respecting the City of Niagara Falls.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill '(No. 28), Respecting the Town of Georgetown.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow. %

Bill (No. 47), Respecting the City of Guelph.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 85), To amend the Public School Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 89), Respecting the Two-platoon System for Employees of Per-

manent Fire Departments in Ontario.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 94), To amend the Municipal Act,

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 110), To amend the Cemeteries Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.
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The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 104), to amend
The Public Health Act, -having been read,

Mr. Hill moved that the Bill be now read a second time.

And the motion, having been put, was lost on a division.

And so it was declared in the negative.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion
that Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair, and that the House do resolve itself

into the Committee of Supply, having been read,

The Debate was resumed,

And after some time, it was, on the Motion of Mr. Mageau,

Ordered, That the Debate be further adjourned until To-morrow.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His Honour
the Lieutenant-Governor :

*

Interim Eeports (First, Second and Third) of the Commission to investi-

gate and report upon the accuracy or otherwise of all returns made pursuant to

The Crown Timber Act, sec. 14, by any holder of a Timber License, etc., etc., etc.

(Sessional Paper No. 67.)

The House then adjourned at 10.30 p.m.

Thursday, February 24th, '1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

The following Petition was read and received:

Of the Township Council of York, praying that an Act may pass to

Validate Sales of Land and for other purposes.

Mr. Raney, from the Standing Committee on Private Bills, presented
their Fourth Report, which was read as follow? and adopted:

Your Committee beg to report the following Bills with certain amend-

ments :
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Bill (No. 26), An Act respecting the City of Windsor.

Bill (No. 41), An Act to establish a joint Industrial and Technical School

Board for the City of Windsor and the Town of Walkerville.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first timer-

Bill (No. 131), intituled
" An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Hall.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 132), intituled "An Act respecting the collection of Income
Tax by Municipalities.'

7 Mr. Lang.

'Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 133), intituled
" An Act to amend The Audit Act," Mr. Smith.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

On Motion of Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Biggs,

Ordered, That this House do forthwith resolve itself into a Committee of

the Whole to consider certain proposed Resolutions respecting The Corpora-
tions Tax Act.

Mr. Drury acquainted the House that His Honour the Lieutenant^Gover-

nor, having been informed of the subject matter of the proposed Resolutions

recommends them to the consideration of the House.

The House then resolved itself into the Committee.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, 1. That the clause lettered (a) in subsection 2 of section 4 of

The Corporations Tax Act, as enacted by section 2 of The Corporations Tax

Act (1920) be amended by adding thereto the words: " And one-tenth of one

per cent, on the reserve fund and undivided profits thereof."

2. That subsection 7 of section 4 of The Corporations Tax Act, as en-

acted by section 2 of The Corporations Tax Act (1914) be amended by striking

out the figures
"
$25

" where they occur in the eighth line thereof and sub-

stituting therefor the figures
"
$40."
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3. That subsection 11 of section 4 of The Corporations Tax Act be

amended bj striking out the words "
one-quarter of one per cent." and substi-

tuting therefor the words "
one-half of one per cent."

4. That subsection 14 of section 4 of The Corporations Tax Act, as enacted

by section 2 of The Corporations Tax Act (1914) be amended by inserting after

the word "
by

"
in the second line thereof the word "

operating," and by strik-

ing out the words "
sleeping, parlour, dining

" where they occur in the second

line thereof and by adding at the end thereof the following clause:

(a) Every company transacting business in Ontario by leasing, hiring or

operating sleeping, parlour or dining cars run upon or used by any railway
within Ontario shall pay a tax of $10,000 per annum.

5. That section 4 of The Corporations Tax Act be amended by adding
thereto the following subsection: -

18. Every navigation company and every company transacting business

in Ontario by operating, leasing or hiring steamboats shall pay a tax of one-

tenth of one per centum on the paid-up capital thereof.

6. That section 7 of The Corporations Tax Act, as enacted by section

3 of 6 George V, chapter 8, be amended by striking out all the words after the

words "the first day of" in the third line and substituting therefor the words :

"
July and in default of payment on the first day of July as aforesaid a

penalty of five per centum of the amount of such tax shall be added thereto

and thereafter a further penalty of one per centum per month shall be added

for each additional month or portion thereof during which the said tax and

penalty shall remain unpaid."

7. That section 16 of The Corporations Tax Act be amended by adding
ie following subsection:

The Lieutenant-Governor in Council may make arrangements with any
m for the exclusive sale of stamps to him in any locality, and for such

te as he may think fit at a discount not exceeding 5 per cent.

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the

)mmittee had come to certain Resolutions.

Ordered, That the Keport be now received.

Mr. MacVicar reported the Resolutions as follows:
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Resolved, 1. That the clause lettered (a) in subsection 2 of section 4 of

The Corporations Tax Act, as enacted by section 2 of The Corporations Tax
Act (1920) be amended by adding thereto the words: " And one-tenth of one

per cent, on the reserve fund and undivided profits thereof."

2. That subsection 7 of section 4 of The Corporations Tax Act, as en-

acted by section 2 of The Corporations Tax Act (1914) be amended by striking
out the figures

"
$25

" where they occur in the eighth line thereof and sub-

stituting therefor the figures
"
$40."

3. That subsection 11 of section 4 of The Corporations Tax Act be

amended by striking out the words "
one-quarter of one per cent." and substi-

tuting therefor the words "
one-half of one per cent."

4. That subsection 14 of section 4 of The Corporations Tax Act, as enacted

by section 2 of The Corporations Tax Act (1914) be amended by inserting after

the word "
by

"
in the second line thereof the word "

operating," and by strik-

ing out the words "
sleeping, parlour, dining

" where they occur in the second

line thereof and by adding at the end thereof the following clause:

(a) Every company transacting business in Ontario by leasing, hiring or

operating sleeping, parlour or cliiiiiitr cars run upon or used by any railway
within Ontario shall pay a tax of $10,000 per annum.

5. That section 4 of The Corporations Tax Act be amended by adding
thereto the following subsection:

18. Every navigation company and every company transacting business

in Ontario by operating, leasing or hiring steamboats shall pay a tax of one-

tenth of one per centum on the paid-up capital thereof.

6. That section 7 of The Corporations Tax Act, as enacted by section

3 of 6 George V, chapter 8, be amended by striking out all the words after the

words "the first day of" in the third line and substituting therefor the words :

"
July and in default of payment on the first day of July as aforesaid a

penalty of five per centum of the amount of such tax shall be added thereto

and thereafter a further penalty of one per centum per mdnth shall be added

for each additional month or portion thereof during which the said tax and

penalty shall remain unpaid."

7. That section 16 of The Corporations Tax Act be amended by adding

the following subsection : <

The Lieutenant-Governor in Council may make arrangements with any

person for the exclusive sale of stamps to him in any locality, and for such

time as he mav think fit at a discount not exceeding 5 per cent.
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The Resolutions having been read the second time, were agreed to, and
referred to the Committee of the Whole House on Bill (No. 136), To amend
The Corporations Tax Act.

On Motion of Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Biggs,

Ordered, That this House do forthwith resolve itself into a Committee of

the Whole to consider certain proposed Resolutions respecting the tax upon
the registration of Transfers of Land.

Mr. Drury acquainted the House that His Honour the Lieutenant-Gover-

nor, having been informed of the subject matter of the proposed Resolutions

recommends them to the consideration of the House.

The House then resolved itself into the Committee.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, 1. That a tax of one-fifth of one per centum upon the amount
of the purchase money shall be paid by the party registering same upon every

transfer, conveyance, deed, instrument or writing whereby any land, tenements

or other realty sold shall be granted, assigned, transferred or otherwise con-

veyed to or vested in the purchaser or purchasers or in any other person or

persons by his, her or their direction.

2. That such tax shall be collected by the Registrar or Master of Titles, as

the case may be, before he registers such transfer, conveyance, deed or other

instrument and any Registrar or Master of Titles not paid by salary shall be

entitled to retain to his own use two per centum of the moneys collected by
him under section 2 hereof.

That provided that where any such instrument or instruments may be

registered or entered in more than one Registry Office or Land Titles Office

>r in a Registry and Land Titles Office, the tax imposed shall be payable once

mly in respect of any one transfer or conveyance and shall be payable upon

delivery to the Registrar or lodging in the Land Titles Office the first

istrument registered or lodged in such transaction.

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported. That the

Committee had come to certain Resolutions.

Ordered, That the Report be now received.
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Mr. MacVicar reported the Resolutions as follows :

Resolved, 1. That a tax of one-fifth of one per centum upon the amount

of the purchase money shall be paid by the party registering same upon every

transfer, conveyance, deed, instrument or writing whereby any land, tenements

or ofher realty sold shall be granted, assigned, transferred or otherwise con-

veyed to or vested in the purchaser or purchasers or in any other person or

persons by his, her or their direction.

2. That such tax shall be collected by the Registrar or Master of Titles, as

the case may be, before he registers such transfer, conveyance, deed or other

instrument and any Registrar or Master of Titles not paid by salary shall be

entitled to retain to his own use two per centum of the moneys collected by
him under section 2 hereof.

That provided that where any such instrument or instruments may be

registered or entered in more than one Registry Office or Land Titles Office

or in a Registry and Land Titles Office, the tax imposed shall be payable once

only in respect of any one transfer or conveyance and shall be payable upon
the delivery to the Registrar or lodging in the Land Titles Office the first

instrument registered or lodged in such transaction.

The Resolutions having been read the second time, were agreed to, and

referred to the Committee of the Whole House on Bill (No. 134), Respecting
the taxation of Real Estate Transfers.

On Motion of Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Biggs,

Ordered, That this House do forthwith resolve itself into a Committee of

the Whole to consider a certain proposed Resolution respecting the Highway
Improvement Fund Account.

Mr. Drury acquainted the House that His Honour the Lieutenant-Gover-

nor, having been informed of the subject matter of the proposed Resolution

recommends it to the consideration of the House.

The House then resolved itself into the Committee.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That the sum of $7,000,000 be placed to the credit of The High-

way Improvement Fund Account, the said sum to be chargeable to and payable
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out of the Consolidated Revenue Fund and to be in addition to any appropria-
tion heretofore made to the said Highway Improvement Fund.

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the

Committee had come to a certain Resolution.

Ordered, That the Report be now received.

Mr. MacVicar reported the Resolution as follows:

Resolved, That the sum of $7,000,000 be placed to the credit of The High-

way Improvement Fund Account, the said sum to be chargeable to and payable
out of the Consolidated Revenue Fund and to be in addition to any appropria-

tion heretofore made to the said Highway Improvement Fund.

The Resolution having been read the second time, was agreed to, and

referred to the Committee of the Whole House on Bill (No. 135), The High-

way Improvement Act, 1921.

The following Bills were then introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 134), intituled
" An Act respecting the Taxation of Real Estate

Transfers." Mr. Smith.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 135), intituled "The Highway Improvement Act, 1921." Mr.

Smith.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 136), intituled
" An Act to amend The Corporations Tax Act."

Mr. Smith.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The following Bills were severally read the second time:

Bill (No. 78), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.
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Bill (No. 116), To amend The Provincial Highway Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 81), To amend The Succession Duties Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 109), For the protection of Children of Unmarried Parents.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 112), To amend The Public Health Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 61), To amend
The Statute Labour Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 93).

Respecting Provincial Aiictioneers, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Homuth reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered. That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 76),'

To amend The Motor Vehicles Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Homuth reported, That the Committee

had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.



George V. 24xii AND 25xH FEBRUARY. 127

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Raney,

Ordered, That the following Members do compose the Select Committee

proposed under the Resolution passed by the House yesterday, in the matter

of the Export of Fruit: Messieurs Doherty, Montgomery. Sewell, Leeson r

Swayze, Cook, Black, Bragg and Marshall.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House,

Return to an Order of the House of the 23rd February, 1921 for a Return

of copies of all correspondence between the Minister of Lands and Forests, the

Prime Minister, or any Minister of the Government and any official, representa-

tive or solicitor on behalf of the iS'pruce Falls Pulp & Paper Co., together with

all estimates, reports, conditions of sale, maps, documents and papers of every
kind and nature, relating to (1) The sale of the Kapuskasing Soldiers' and

Sailors' Settlement Colony; (2) The additional area acquired by the Company
to add to the concession known as the Kapuskasing Pulp Concession; (3) Re-

lating to the establishment of the Government Town Site at Kapuskasing.

(Sessional Papers, No. 68.)

The House then adjourned at 9.45 p.m.

Friday, February 25th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. MacVicar, from the Select Committee, to which was referred Bill

(No. 96), Respecting Farm Loans in Ontario; Bill (No. 97), For the Pro-

motion of Agricultural Development; and Bill (No. 98), To Finance Agricul-
tural Development, presented their Report, which was read as follows:

Your Committee has carefullly considered

Bill (No. 96), and beg to submit the same with amendments.

Bill (No. 97), and beg to submit the same with, amendments.

Bill (No. 98), and beg to submit the same with amendments.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time :
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Bill (No. 137), intituled
" An Act respecting Reciprocal or Inter-Insur-

ance." Mr. McCrea.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 138), intituled
" An Act to amend The Local Improvement

Act." Mr. Swayze.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Mr. Ferguson asked the following Question:

1. Has R. T. Harding, K.C., been employed since November 13th, 1919,

by the Government or any department thereof, except as Counsel before tho

Timber Commission. 2. If so, by what departments. 3. Are any moneys

owing to him, or accounts outstanding for such services.

And the Attorney-General replied :

1. Yes. 2. Treasury Department, Provincial Secretary's Department,

and Attorney-General's Department (associated with Counsel). 3. Yes.

Mr. Evanturel asked the following Question:

1. From what date did the superannuation of Joseph Lemieux as License

Inspector for the County of Prescott take effect. 2. What was the date of the

appointment to said position of J. H. Dehaitre. 3. What was the place of

residence of Mr. Dehaitre prior to his appointment, and what -is his present

place of residence. 4. What were the stated qualifications of Mr. Dehaitre

and by whom was he recommended. 5. What was his former occupation. 6.

What is his age. 7. Were other recommendations made for the said position.

8. Were recommendations from the County of Prescott for the position made
to the Government or any Minister or official.

To which the Attorney-General replied :

1. 31st December, 1920. 2. December 6th, 1920, to take effect on 1st

January, 1921. 3. Rockland, Rockland. Will reside in Hawkesbury so soon

as he can obtain a suitable residence. 4. Provincial Officer under The Ontario

Temperance Act
;
Board of License Commissioners for Ontario. 5. Provincial

Officer under The Ontario Temperance Act. 6. 42. 7. Yes. 8. Yes.
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: Mr. Ireland asked the following Question:

1. JIow many Counsel are being paid by the Government in connection

with the Spracklin trial. 2. What are the names of each counsel.

And the Attorney-General replied:

1. Mr. A. Monro Grier, K.C., was assigned to take the Crown work at the

recent Sandwich Assizes and will be paid by the Government in the ordinary

way. The Government has not undertaken to pay any other Counsel in con-

nection with the Spracklin trial. 2. Answered by No. 1.

On Motion of Mr. Hill, seconded by Mr. Buckland,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House a Return showing: 1.

How many miles are included in the Ottawa-Prescott Highway. 2.' How

many miles of this Highway were completely graded at the end of the year

1920. 3. How much grading still remains to be done. 4. What was tlio

average cost per mile of the grading completed. 5. What amount was spent

during the year 1920 on equipment for the Ottawa-Prescott Highway. 6. How

many men were employed in each of the months of 1920. 7. Has the Govern-

ment purchased any gravel pits or stone quarries along or in the vicinity

of the right-of-way of the Ottawa-Prescott Highway, and if so (a) From whom :

(6) What was paid for each; and (c) What was the area of each. 8. Has
the Government rented any gravel pits or stone quarries along or in the vicinit"

of the right-of-way of the Ottawa-Prescott Highway, and if so (a) From whom ;

(6) What was paid for each; and (c) What was the area of each. 9. Did the

Government purchase any gravel or stone for the right-of-way of the Ottawa-

Prescott Highway, and is so (a) From whom; (&) What was paid per cubic

yard; and (c) What was the total amount paid each man. 10. How many
culverts were built during the year 1920. 11. How many still remain to be

completed. 12. How many culverts were built (a) By day labour; (&) By
contract. 13. If any were built by the latter (a) Who were the contractors;

(5) What were the unit prices paid; (c) What lump sums were paid to each

contractor. 14. What was the cost per cubic yard of the said culverts in place
built by day labour. 15. What was the cost per cubic yard of the said culverts

in place built by contract. 16. What was the total amount spent on the Ottawa-

Prescott Highway to 31st December, 1920. 17. Have the plans of the said

Highway been filed in the Federal Department of Railways pursuant to the

Canada Highways Act, and if so, when. 18. Has a subsidy agreement been

signed with the Dominion Government pursuant to the Canada Highways
Act. 19. If so, what is the date of the agreement. 20. Has the Government

received any payments on account of Dominion Government subsidy, and if so,

the dates and amounts of the payments. 21. What wages were paid during
9 JOUR.
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1920, on the Ottawa-Prescott Highway (a) For unskilled labour; (b) For

teams with driver. 22. How many hours a day did the men employed on the

road during 1920 work. 23. Who was the engineer in charge of the road during

1920, and what was his salary. 24. Has the Government settled with all the

parties from whom the right-of-way was acquired. 25. If the answer to 24

is in the negative, what parties still remain to be settled with.

On Motion of Mr. Lennox, seconded by Mr. Crawford,

Ordered,, That there be laid before this House, a Return of copies of all

correspondence with or by the Government, or any Department thereof, in-

cluding the Ontario License Board, relating to all convictions made under the

O.T.A. since November 15th, 1919, in which applications have been made for

remission of fines and reduction of terms of imprisonment imposed by the

convicting Magistrates or Justices of the Peace.

The House then adjourned at .">.!;> p.m.

Monday, February 28th, 1.921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Speaker informed the House:

That the Clerk had received from the Railway and Municipal Board,
their Report in the following case:

Bill (Xo. 38), Respecting the Town of Gananoque.

The Report was then read by the Clerk at the Table, as follows:

To the Honourable, the Legislalire Awnibly of the Province of Ontario.

Upon the reference, under Rule 61 (a) of Your Honourable House to

The Ontario Railway and Municipal Board, of Bill (No. 38), intituled "An
Act respecting the Town of Gananoque," the Board begs leave respectfully to

report that in the judgment of the Board it is reasonable that such Bill should

be passed by your Honourable House, provided that it is amended by striking

out the word'" thirty
"

in the second line of section 2 and inserting instead

thereof the word "
five."

The indebtedness of $15,000.00 referred to in the Bill is largely for

expenditures which should have been paid out of the taxes and for this reason
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the Board recommends that the period for which the debentures be issued be

reduced from thirty years to five years.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

D. M. MclNTYRE,
Chairman.

A. B. INGRAM,
Vice-Chairman .

J. A. ELLIS,

Dated at Toronto, Commissioner.

this twenty-eighth day of February, 1921.

Ordered, That Bill (No. 38), Respecting the Town of Gananoque, be re-

ferred to the Committee on Private Bills with instructions to consider the

same with reference to the suggestions of the Railway and Municipal Board
thereon.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time :

Bill (No. 139), intituled
" An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Halcrow.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 140), intituled
" An Act to amend The Assessment Act." Mr.

Halcrow.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 141). intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act/' Mr.

Curry.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 142), intituled
" An Act to amend The School Sites Act." Mr.

lamsden.

Ordered. That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 143). intituled
" An Act to amend The Municipal Act," Mr.

"alcrow.

Ordered, That the Bill be read
1

the second time To-morrow. .
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Bill (No. 144), intituled
" An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

McCrea.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee, severally to consider the

following Bills :

Bill (No. 3), Respecting the City of Belleville.

Bill (No. 20), To incorporate the Provincial Synod of Ontario of the

Church of England in Canada and to make provisions respecting Vestry

Meetings.

Bill (No. 2), Kespecting the Town of Mimico.

Bill (No. 4), Kespecting the City of Peterborough.

Bill (IS
T
o. 12), To legalize and confirm By-law No. 29, of 1020, of the City

of Kingston.

Bill (No. 13), Kespecting two abandoned Cemeteries in the Town of Port

Colborne.

Bill (No. 19), To authorize The Law Society of Upper Canada to admit

James Petrie Pratt to practise as a Barrister and Solicitor.

Bill (No. IS), Kespecting the City of Chatham.

Bill (No. 46), Respecting the Town of Midland.

Bill (No. 48), Respecting McMaster University.

Bill (No. 1), Kespecting the City of Niagara Falls.

Bill (No. 28), Respecting the Town of Georgetown.

Bill (No. 47), Kespecting the City of Guelph.

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the

Committee had directed him to report the several Bills without amendment.

Ordered, That the Bills reported, be severally read the third time To-

morrow.
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Mr. Dewart asked the following Question:

1. Has any portion of the Bond Building, at the corner of Sheppard and

Temperance Streets, Toronto, been leased by the Government or any Govern-

ment Board. 2. If so, how many floors, and what floor space. 3. For what

purpose has the building been leased, if so taken. 4. At what rental and for

what term of years.

And the Minister of Public Works replied in the words and figures fol-

lowing :

1. A portion of what is known as the Bond Building, 66-68 Temperance

Street, has been leased by the Workmen's Compensation Board. 2. The lease

covers two floors, the fourth and fifth, comprising 20,000 square feet of floor

space. 3. The building is leased for the work of the Workmen's Compensation

Board, including office, vault, filing and storage accommodation, and space for

medical examination and X-ray work. 4. The rental is $20,000 a year, in-

cluding heating and water, and the term of the lease is five years from December

1st, 1920.

Mr. Ireland asked the following Question :

1. How many lots have been disposed of by the Crown since November

13th, 1919, in the Townsites of (a} Hearst; (&) Lowbush; and (c) Fauquier.
2. To whom were they conveyed. 3. What prices were received.

And the Minister of Lauds and Forests replied in the words and figures

following :

1. (a) 54; (&) None; (c) There is no townsite of Fauquier. Alexandra

Townsite is at Fauquier Station; 28 lots sold. 2. See lists attached. 3. An-

swered by Number 2.

Hearst Townsite.

Lot. Name. Price.

344. Porter H. MacEachern $1 50 00

345. Mrs. Mary D. Vandoskie 100 00

348. Ida Reid 100 00

349. Susannah Reid TOO 00

392 to 395 (inclusive) Church and Manse Board of the

Presbyterian Church in Canada

420 to 423 (inclusive) Church and Manso Board of the

Presbyterian Church in Canada ~>n 00
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Lot. Name. Price.

397. Mrs. A. Brisbois $100 00

398. Isaac Brisbois 100 00

400. Eugene Cloutier 150 00

402. Mrs. E. Martin 100 00

403. John Loreto ,
100 00

404. Maria Loreto . 100 00

405. James Muir
,

100 00

407. Basil C. Koney 150 00

412. Herbert Trombley 100 00

413. Mrs. J. Moss 100 00

414. Herbert J. Moss 100 00

415. Adrian Sicotte 150 00

456 to 459, 484 to 487 (inclusive) Koman Catholic Epis-

copal Corporation ,
50 00

400 to 463, 480 to 483 (inclusive) Koman Catholic Epis-

copal Corporation .- 200 00

464. Alphonse Halley . .. 150 00

465. Leonidas Samson 100 00

466. Leonce Fortin 100 00

467. Albert Jacque 100 00

472. J. Adelarcl St. Laurent 150 00

475. Ludger Grondin 100 00

476. Philippe Grondin 100 00

477. Jos. Lambert 100 00

478. Adelard Dorion 100 00

479. Adelard Blais 150 00

494. Eldrid O. Allen 150 00

495. Harry E. Powell 150 00
*

504. Agnes B. Powell 150 00

505. Mrs. Mary E. Allen 150 00

Alexandra Townsite.

94. Joseph Gillemette $80 00

354. 155. Mrs. Annie Trembley 175 00

133, 134. J. E. Tremblay '. 175 00

M. George Pelletier 75 00

E. Emile Beauvais 75 00

P. Adelard Imbeau 75 00
X. George Tremblay 75 00
0. Liguori Tremblay 75 00
H. I. Emile Laberge 150 00
F. S. Beauvais 75 00
156 & C. J. A. Tremblay 150 00
135. J. M. Tremblav . 100 00
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Name. Price.

136. J. M. Tremblay $75 00

149. H. E. Tremblay ,

75 00

153. J. B. Pouliotte 75 00

109. Hermidas Lafontaine 60 00

132. H. E. Tremblay 75 00

130, 131. Mrs. Eva P. Daigle . . 100 00

129. Hermidas Lafontaine 75 00

119. Arthur Lyons 60 00

115. F. X. Lamontagne 100 00

116. F. X. Lamontagne 75 00

114. S. F. Laferriere . 75 00

On Motion of Mr. Ferguson, seconded by Mr. Henry,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House a Return of copies of all

letters, reports and communications of every kind received by the Minister of

Mines or any Member of the Government with respect to the proposed increase

in mining taxes.

On Motion of Mr. Hall, seconded by Mr. Govenlock,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House a Return showing:
1. All fines and confiscations of property under The Game and Fisheries Act
for each of the years 1916-17-18-19-20, imposed by game wardens, overseers

or other representatives of the Department. 2. The number of such cases

.brought before a Magistrate of which there is any record for each year as

above and the numbers of recorded convictions. 3. The amounts for eacli

year received by the Government and the amounts paid each year to informers.

4. Copies of instructions issued to game wardens, overseers or other representa-
ives from time to time during the period 1912-20, dealing with the method

levying fines and directing seizure of property.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 122), To
Lend The Municipal Act, having been read,

Mr. Homuth moved,

That the Bill be read the second time,

And the Motion, having been put, was lost on the following division :



136 28TH FEBRUARY. 1921



IST MARCH.

Tuesday, March 1st, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Speaker informed the House :

That the Clerk had received from the Railway and Municipal Board,
their Report in the following case:

Bill (No. 14), Respecting the Town of Orillia.

The Report was then read by the Clerk at the Table, as follows :

To the Honourable, the Legislative Assembly of the Province of Ontario.

Upon the reference, under Rule 61 (a) of Your Honourable House to

The Ontario Railway and Municipal Board, of Bill (No. 14), intituled
" An

Act to confirm By-law ISTo. 744 of the Town of Orillia," the Board begs leave

respectfully to report that in the judgment of the Board it is reasonable that

such Bill should be passed by your Honourable House.

The indebtedness of $24,000, referred to in the Bill, as well as the ex-

penditures under By-laws Nos. 577, 588, 702 and 598, are largely for expendi-
tures for permanent works, and for this reason the Board considers that de-

bentures might properly be issued in this case, payable in twenty years.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

D. M. MclNTYRE,
Chairman.

A. B. INGRAM,
Vice-Chairman.

J. A. EI/LIS,

Commissi,oner.

Dated at Toronto,
this first day of March, 1921.

Ordered, That Bill (No. 14), Respecting the Town of Orillia. bo referred

the Committee on Private Bills with instructions to consider the same with

jference to the suggestions of the Railway and Municipal Board thereon.

Mr. Raney, from the Standing Committee on Private Bills, presented

their Fifth Report, which was read as follows and adopted :

Your Committee beg to report the following Bills with certain amend-

lents:

10 JOUR.
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Bill (No. 17), An Act respecting Sons of England Benefit Society.

Bill (No. 21), An Act respecting the Township of Stamford.

Your Committee beg to report the following Bill without amendment :

Bill (No. 22), An Act respecting the Beechwood Cemetery Company of

Ottawa.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time :

Bill (No. 145), intituled "An Act to amend The Factory, Shop and

Office Building Act." Mr. Swayze.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 146), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act. Mr.

Price.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 147), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Ross (Kingston.)

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 148), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Curry.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion
and Amendment for the adoption of the Special Report in re the administra-
tion of The Ontario Temperance Act, having been read.

The Debate was resumed,

And after some time, it was, on the Motion of Mr. MacBride,

Ordered, That the Debate be further adjourned until To-morrow.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His
Honour the Lieutenant-Governor:
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Keport of the Registrar-General relating to the registration of Births,

Marriages and Deaths in the Province of Ontario during the year 1920. (Ses-

sional Papers, No. 20.)

Also Annual Report of the Soldiers' Aid Commission of Ontario for

year ending October 3 1st, 1919. (Sessional Papers, No. 69.)

Also Return to an Order of the House of 23rd February, 1921, that

there be laid before the House, a Return shoAving the number of Issuers of

Marriage Licenses in the Province of Ontario, with their names and addresses

and the date of their appointment. (Sessional Papers, No. 70.)

Also Return to an Order of the House of 23rd February, 1921, that

there be laid before the House a Return of copies of the Report of the Super-
intendent of Provincial Police to the Attorney-General for the years 1918,
1919 and 1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 72.)

Also Return to an Order of the House of 9th February, 1921, that there

be laid before the House a Return of copies of all correspondence, papers and

documents since November 13th, 1919, relating to conduct or duties of Magis-

trates, Justices of the Peace and other officers with reference to enforcement

of The Ontario Temperance Act. (Sessional Papers, No. 71.)

The House then adjourned at 11.15 p.m.

Wednesday, March 2nd, 1921.

PEAYEES. 3 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Carmichael. from the Standing Committee on Standing Orders,

presented their Sixth Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee have carefully examined the following Petitions and

find the Notices as published in each case sufficient:

Of the City Council of Ottawa, praying that an Act may pass authorizing
the Corporation to provide by By-laws for borrowing upon debentures certain

sums of money for Public Utilities without the assent of the electors.

Of James Passmore and others of the Township of Ferris, praying that

an Act may pass to divide the Township of Ferris.
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Of the Town Council of Oakville, and the Trafalgar Agricultural Society

praying that an Act may pass authorizing the issue of Serial Bonds to the

amount of $20,000, to be guaranteed by the Town of Oakville.

Of the Township Council of York, praying that an Act may pass to

validate sales of land and for other purposes.

Your Committee recommend that Rule No. 51 of Your Honourable House

be further suspended in this that the time for introducing Private Bills be

extended until and inclusive of Fridav, the fourth dav of March instant.

Ordered, That the time for introducing Private Bills be extended until

and inclusive of Friday, the fourth day of March, instant.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 36), intituled "An Act respecting the City of Ottawa." Mr.

Pinard.

Referred to the Committee on ^Private Bills.

Bill (No. 49), intituled
" An Act respecting The Trafalgar Agricultural

Society and the Corporation of the Town of Oakville." Mr. O'Neill.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 51), intituled
" An Act respecting the division of the Town-

ship of Ferris in the District of Nipissing." Mr. Marceau.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 54), intituled "An Act respecting the Township of York."

Mr. Henry.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

Bill (No. 58), intituled "An Act respecting the construction of certain

Works on Lakes and Streams in Ontario." Mr. Mills.

Ordered. That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 59), intituled "An Act respecting the Lake of the Woods
Control Board." Mr. Drury.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.
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The following Bill was, nemine contradicente, introduced and read the

first time:

Bill (No. 149), intituled
" An Act to amend The Assessment Act."

Mr. Pinard.

Ordered,, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Kaney,

Resolved, That the reference to the Municipal Committee of Bill (No.

07), An Act respecting Voters' Lists in Cities, be withdrawn, and that the

Bill be referred to a Special Committee consisting of: Messieurs Drury,

Kaney, Smith, Warren, Casselmai}, Walker, MacVicar, Crockett. Cunning-
ham, Henry, McCrea, Hill, Dewart, Sinclair, McLeod and Lang, with in-

structions to consider the same together with any other suggestions as to

amendments to The Voters' Lists Act or the Election Laws as may be laid

before them.

Mr. Rennie asked the following Question :-

1. What was the date of the first employment of Rev. J. 0. L. Sprackliu

by the Government or the Board of License Commissioners. 2. Is he now
retained in the seryice of the Board of License Commissioners or of the

Government. 3. If not, when did his employment cease. 4. Is he still in

receipt of pay from the License Department or otherwise. 5. What was the

amount of his salary or remuneration. 6. When was his salary last paid.

What was the sum of the last payment made to him.

To which the Attorney-General replied in the words and figures follow-

ing:

1. July 27th, 1920. 2. Yes. 3. Answered by No. 2. 4. Yes. 5.

$175 per month. 6. November 18th, 1920, $350.

Mr. Calder asked the following Question:

1. What is the total number of mothers who have applied for allowance

under The Mothers' Allowance Act in the County of Oxford up to the 31 st

of January, 1921. 2. What is the total number of mothers who have received

allowances under The Mothers' Allowance Act up to the 31st of January. 1921.
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And the Minister of Labour replied in the words following:

1. Nineteen applications. 2. One. Note Of the nineteen applications,

thirteen were received in January.

Mr. Mewhinney asked the following Question:

1. What is the total number of mothers who have applied for allowances

under The Mothers' Allowance Act in the County of Bruce up to the -'>l>t

January, 1921. 2. What is the total number of mothers who have received

allowances under The Mothers' Allowance Act in the County of Bruce up to

the 31st of January, 1921.

And the Minister of Labour replied as follows:

1. Twenty-five applications. 2. Xone. Note Of the twenty-five appli-

cations seventeen were received in January.

Mr. Lewis asked the following Question:

1. Is the book,
"
Flag and Fleet," on the list of Auxiliary Headers auth-

orized for Public Schools in Ontario. 2. Is it the intention of the Department
of Education to remove it from such list. 3. If so, for what reason.

And the Minister of Education replied :-

1. No* 2. No. 3. Answered bv 1 and 2.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion

for a Eeturn of correspondence in re the payment of Counsel fee to IVtei-

White. K.C./having been read,

The Debate was resumed,

And after some time, it was, on the Motion of Mr. Watson.

Ordered, That the Debate be adjourned until To-morrow.

The House then adjourned at 6.00 p.m.
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Thursday, .March 3rd, 1921.

PBAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Smith, from the Standing Committee on Printing, presented their

First Report, which was read as follows :

Your Committee recommend that the following Documents be printed:

Five thousand (5,000) copies Report on Proportional Representation.

Five thousand (5,000) copies Report prepared for Prime Minister by
A. S. Winchester on Proportional Representation, as applied in electoral

district of Winnipeg, in connection with Manitoba Provincial Election.

Ynui1 Committee recommend that. the following publications be purchased

for distribution to the Members:--

One hundred and fifteen copies (115)
" Canada's Sons and Great Britain

in the World War," by Col. C. G. Xasmith, C.M.G., at four dollars ($4)

per copy.

Resolved, That this House doth concur in the foregoing Report.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first timer-

Bill (Xo. 55), intituled
" An Act to amend The Public Inquiries Act."

Mr. Drury.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (Xo. 56), intituled
" An Act to amend The Local Improvement Act."

Mr. Xixon.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (Xo. 57), intituled "An Act to amend The Planning and Develop-

ment Act." Mr. Xixon.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion

and Amendment for the adoption of the Special Report in re the administra-

tion of The Ontario Temperance Act, having been read.
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The Debate was resumed,

And after some time,

Mr. Sinclair moved, in amendment to the Amendment, seconded by Mr.

Mewhinney,

That all the words after the word "
appear

" in the sixth line from the

last of the Minority Report and beginning with the words "
upon the return

of which summons " be expunged and the following substituted therefor: "upon
the return of the summons the Judge, upon hearing the parties may either

affirm or quash the order, or if he thinks fit may hear the evidence of such,

other witnesses as may be produced before him, or the further evidence of any
witnesses already examined and may make an order affirming the order of

conviction, or may reverse such order and dismiss the defendant and in case

the conviction is affirmed may impose such fine- and costs or other penalty as

is provided by this Act and the order so made shall have the same effect and

shall be enforced in the same manner as is provided in the case of a conviction

before a Magistrate under this Act."

And the practice and procedure upon such appeals and all the proceedings

thereon, shall thenceforth be governed by
" The Ontario Summary Convic-

tions Act," so far as the same is not inconsistent with " The Ontario Temper-
ance Act." So as to provide that the provisions of subsections (8) and (9) of

section 92 of The Ontario Temperance Act shall, mutatix inninntlix. apply to

an appeal from an order of conviction and to the right to reverse such order

and dismiss the defendant as in the case of an appeal from an order of dismissal

at the direction of the Attorney-General of Ontario, under subsection (6) of

the said section 92 of the said
"
Ontario Temperance Act " and th> said

amended report suggested by the Minority of the said Special Committee, as

hereby amended, be and the same is hereby adopted.

And a Debate having ensued, it was, on the Motion of Mr. Lewis,

Ordered, That the Debate be adjourned until To-morrow.

The House then adjourned at 6.00 p.m.
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Friday, March 4th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK/ P.M.

Mr. Raney, from the Standing Committee on Private Bills, presented

their Sixth Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee beg to report the following Bills with certain amend-

ments :

Bill (No. 35), An Act respecting the Cities of Port Arthur and Fort

William.

Bill (No. 39), An Act respecting the City of Port Arthur.

Your Committee recommend that the fees, less the actual cost of printing,

be remitted on Bill (No. 11), "An Act to legalize and confirm By-law No. 42

of the City of Kingston," and on Bill (No. 25),
" An Act respecting the City

of Windsor and the Essex Border Utilities Commission," the same having been

withdrawn by the promoters thereof.

Ordered, That the fees, less the actual cost of printing, be remitted on
Bill (No. 11), City of Kingston, and on Bill (No. 25), Windsor and the Essex

Border Utilities Commission.

The following Bill was introduced and read the first timer-

Bill (No. 150), intituled
" An Act to regulate the practice of Chiropody."

Mr. Curry.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The following Bill was, nemine contradicente, introduced and read the

first time:

Bill (No. 151), intituled
" An Act to amend The Assessment Act." Mr.

Henry.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

The following Bills were severally read the third time and passed :

Bill (No. 3), Respecting the City of Belleville.
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Bill (No. 20), To incorporate the Provincial 'Synod of Ontario of the

Church of England in Canada and to make provisions respecting Vestry

Meetings.

Bill (No. 2), Respecting the Town of Mimico.

Bill (No. 4), Respecting the City of Peterborough.

Bill (No. 12), To legalize and confirm By-law No. 29, of 1920. of the

City of Kingston.

Bill (No. 19), To authorize The Law Society of Upper Canada to admit

James Petrie Pratt to practise as a Barrister and Solicitor.

Bill (No. 18), Respecting the City of Chatham.

Bill (No. 46), Respecting the Town of Midland.

Bill (No. 48), Respecting McMaster University.

Bill (No. 1), Respecting the City of Niagara Falls.

Bill (No. 28), Respecting the Town of Georgetown.

Bill (No. 47), Respecting the City of Guelph.

On Motion of Mr. Cooper (Wclland). it was

Ordered, That the Order of the Day for the third reading of Bill (No.

13), Respecting two abandoned Cemeteries in the Town of Port Colborne be

discharged and the Bill be recommitted to the Standing Committee on Private

Bills for further consideration and report.

Mr. Ecclestone asked the following Question:

1. Who appeared for the Province before the Dominion Railway Commis-
sion on the hearing of the Freight Rates case. 2. By whom was he retained

and instructed. 3. Were such retainer or instructions in writing. 4. What
dates did he appear. 5. What amount was he paid for remuneration.

And the Minister of Public Works replied as follows:

1. W. A. McLean, Deputy Minister of Highways. 2. Instructed to ap-

pear by the Minister of Public Works and Highways. 3. No. 4. August 20.

1921. 5. No remuneration in addition to salary as Deputy Minister.
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Mr. Price asked the following Question:

1. What work is now being carried on by the Soldiers' Aid Commission.

"2. What amount of money was spent on behalf of soldiers during the last

fiscal year. 3. What was the expense of the Commission for the last fiscal year.

4. Are loans now made to soldiers, and if so, on what security. 5. How main-

soldiers received assistance by way of loans during the last fiscal year. 6. Who
are the present members of the Soldiers' Aid Commission. 7. How many
are employed by the Commission

;
what are the names and positions of those

employed and what salaries do they receive. 8. Has the Commission repre-
sentatives in different parts of the Province.

And Mr. Carinichael, Minister without Portfolio, replied in the words

following :

1. (a) Adult Welfare.

1. Visits to homes of ex-soldiers and dependents reported in dis-

tress.

2. Financial relief.

(b) Loans against reasonable security.

(c) Burial of deceased ex-soldiers wlio die destitute.

(d) Child Welfare.

1. Administration of pensions.

2. Temporary care of children in hostels and private homes.

3. Permanent adoption and supervision of foster-homes.

(e) General.

1. Presenting claims for pension.

2. Adjusting war service gratuity, separation allowance and as-

signed pay.

3. Claims for refund of transportation expenses.

4. Adjustment of domestic difficulties.

5. Swearing affidavit?.
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6. Tracing missing relatives and friends.

7. Obtaining medals.

8. Presenting claims for working pay.

9. Settlement of troubles between landlord and tenant.

10. Legal advice.

11. Tracing lost baggage.

12. Payment of transportation on behalf of men who have obtained

employment at outside points.

13. Securing birth and marriage certificates.

In fact it may be said that the Soldiers' Aid Commission is

ready to assist any ex-soldier or his dependents in need of advice

or assistance to the fullest extent within its power, and at the present
time is doing a work not attempted by any other Government De-

partment or organization.

2. $19,122.81. 3. $130,849.33. 4. Yes. Pending the receipt of pensions,
war service gratuity, pay and allowances or against any other form of reason-

able security. 5. 4,339. 6. Lieutenant-Colonel The Honourable Dougall Car-

michael, D.S.O., M.C., M.P.P. (chairman), Collingwood ;
W. L. Best, Esq.,

Ottawa; Robert J. Christie, Esq., Toronto; Lieutenant-Colonel H. S. Cooper,

O.B.E., M.C., M.P.P., Toronto; Honourable George Gordon, Senator, North

Bay; John B. Laidlaw, Esq., Toronto; Honourable George Lynch-StauntoB,

Senator, KG., Hamilton; Kenneth McKay, Esq., St. Thomas! 7. 60.

1. Head Office.

(et) Secretarial.

Yearly.

Mr. J. Warwick, secretary $3,600 00

Mr. H. L. Robertson, assistant secretary and inspec-

tor of branches 2,100 00

Mr. H. Buckle, correspondence 1,800 00

Miss J. Quinlan, stenographer 1.092 00

Miss F. Travers, stenographer 1.040 00

Mrs. E. Hodgkinson, switchboard operator 988 00

Mr. J. A. Coad. messenger 1 .040 00
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(b) Accountant's Department.
Yearly.

Major R. G. Mainer, chief accountant $2,500 00

Mr. W. J. Wallace, assistant accountant (leaves ser-

vice of Commission Feb. 28th) 1,500 00
Mr. A. J. McKean, clerk . 1,352 00
Mr. A. E. Odium, clerk 1,300 00
Miss M. Gadway, stenographer 988 00

.
Miss ,'B. Atkinson, stenographer (leaves service of

Commission March 5th)
'

. . . . 988 00
Mr. M. A. Searle, bookkeeper 1,300 00

(<0 Child Welfare.

Mr. Gr. R. Stephenson, superintendent 2,000 00
Mr. R. J. Buchanan, investigator 1,300 00
Mr. R. Y. Sparks, investigator 1,248 00

Mrs. A. Lawson, investigator 1,020 00

Miss G. Heaslip, investigator 1,000 00
Miss E. McLean, stenographer 1,092 00

Miss G. Jose, stenographer 1,092 00

(d) Branches, Administration of Pensions and Adult Welfare.

Miss J. McKinnon, general assistant 1.560 00

Miss I. Leamen, stenographer (leaves service of Com-
mission March 12th) 936 00

(e) Central Registry.

Mr. G. C. Evans, clerk 1,144 00

Mr. G. A. Pollard, clerk 1,040 00

2. Children s Hostels.

Miss K. E. Kindersley, superintendent 1,100 00

Pembroke Street Hostel.

Miss E. Boswell, matron 900 00

Miss F. Lovell, assistant matron
"

600 00

Miss T. Hardy, welfare worker 936 00

Mrs. E. Dick', cook 540 00

Miss C. Martin, assistant cook 420 00

Mrs. A. Gains, laundress 780 00

Mrs. H. Pritchard, nursemaid 480 00

Miss M. Dewar, nursemaid 420 00

Mrs. M. Stonard, nursemaid 420 00

Mrs. H. Allard, night nurse 564 00

Mr. P. Dick, janitor 720 00
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Jarvis Street Hostel. Yearly.

Miss M. Porteous, matron $900 00

Miss L. Dempsey, assistant matron 480 00

Miss A. Bell, cook 480 00

Miss C. Smith, assistant cook 420 00

Miss F. DeFriez, welfare worker 936 00

Mrs. E. Murch, nursemaid 420 00

Miss McManus, nursemaid 420 00

Miss J. McCombe, nursemaid
'

360 00

Mr. W. Murch, janitor 780 00

Mrs. L. Lynd, night nurse 624 00

Mrs. J. Middleton, laundress 715 00

Avenue Road Hostel.

Miss A. E. Ogden, matron 1,000 00

Miss Baker, nurse 900 00

Miss M. McKenzie, assistant matron 720 00

Mrs. J. Bain, cook 540 00

Miss A. Elder, assistant cook 420 00

Miss E. Wakefield, night nurse 600 00

Miss A. Dunbar, nursemaid ,
. 420 00

Mr. J. Scriven, janitor 1,186 25

3. Branch Secretaries.

Mr. J. B. Seggie, secretary, Ottawa 2,000 00

Mr. H. B. Mains, general assistant, Ottawa 960 00

Mr. F. H. Dobbin, secretary, Peterboro 300 00

Mr. L. E. Lowman, secretary, Woodstock 1,200 00

Mr. W. J. Douglass, secretary, Windsor 2,700 00

*. Yes.

Mr. Evanturel asked the following Question:

1. When was J. !N". Belanger, the Assistant Provincial Archivist, super-

annuated. 2. What was his salary before he retired. 3. Who succeeded him
and what is the salary of his successor.

And the Attorney-General replied :

1. 1st November, 1920. 2. $1,300. 3. A successor has not been appointed.

Mr. Evanturel asked the following Question:

1. Is G-. H. Dehaitre, who was recently appointed License Inspector for

the County of Prescott, still acting as Provincial officer. 2. If not, when did
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his service as Provincial officer terminate. 3. If still acting in the dual cap-

acity, what is his present salary. 4. What other persons were recommended for

the position of License Inspector for the County of Prescott, and by whom
were the recommendations made.

And the Attorney-General replied as follows:

1. JSTo. 2. 1st January, 1921. 3. Answered by No. 1. 4. Thomas Far-

rell, recommended by the honourable member for Prescott.

Mr. Evanturel asked the following Question:

1. What is the total number of mothers who have applied for allowance

under The Mothers' Allowance Act in the County of Prescott up to the 1st

February, 1921. 2. What is the total number of mothers who have received

allowances under The Mothers' Allowance Act up to 1st February, 1921, in the

County of Prescott.

And the Minister of Labour replied :

1. Eleven. 2. Four.

On Motion of Mr. Ross (Kingston), seconded by Mr. Crawford,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House a Return showing: 1.

What places in the City of Toronto are employed for Government use outside

the Legislative Building. 2. For what Department, Commission or Board
are they being used. 3. What are the terms of rental or lease. 4. How much
has been expended on improvements on each place to date. 5. On what dates

was possession taken under the different leases. 6. How many employees
are at work in each of the respective buildings so leased.

The following Bills were severally read the second time:

Bill (No. 113), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (ISTo. 121), To amend the Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.
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Bill (No. 130), To amend the Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 131), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 132), Respecting the collection of Income Tax by Municip-
alities.

Referred to the Legal Committee.

Bill (No. 138), To amend The Local Improvement Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 139), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 125), To amend
The Ontario Temperance Act, having been read.

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 66),

Respecting the Office of Crown Attorney in the City of Toronto and the County
of York, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair;
and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee had made some progress, and
directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again on Monday next.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Statement and Report of the Ontario Athletic Commission and of Auditor

for the year 1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 76.)

Also Report of the Commission upon the rates of wages paid to men

employed by The Hydro-Electric Power Commission in the construction of th$

Queenston-Chippawa Development. (Sessional Papers, No. 77.)
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Also Return to an Order of the House of 23rd February, 1921, for &

Return showing copy of Agreement between Provincial Board of Health and

Federal Health Department relating to prevention of Venereal Diseases. 2.

What amount has already been received by the Province to date. (Sessional

Papers, No. 73.)

Also Return to an Order of the House of 4th February, 1921, or a

Return of copies of all correspondence passing between the Government of

Ontario or any member, officer or official thereof, or of any department thereof

and any member of the House or other person leading up to it, and dealing
with the suspension and resignation of Messrs Smith and Hanna from the

Provincial Police. (Sessional Papers, No. 74.)

Also Return to an Order of the House of the 4th February, 1921, for a

Return of copies of all correspondence with and by the Government or any

Department thereof leading up to and relating to the dismissal of Mr. Lewis

R. Luke as License Inspector for Ontario County. (Sessional Papers. Xo.

75.)

The House then adjourned at 5.50 p.m.

Monday, March 7th, 1921.

PBAYEBS. 3 O'CLOCK P.M.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time :

Bill (No. 152), intituled "An Act to amend the Highway Improvement
Act." Mr. Rankin.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 153), intituled "An Act to amend The Public Schools Act."

Mr. Freebom.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The following Bills were severally read the second time :

Bill (ISTo. 33), Respecting the City of St. Thomas.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.
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Bill (No. 26), Respecting the City of Windsor.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 41), To establish a joint Industrial and Technical School Board

for the City of Windsor and the Town of Walkerville.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 17), Respecting Sons of England Benefit Society.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill '(No. 21), Respecting the Township of Stamford.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House Tomorrow.

Bill (No. 22), Respecting the Beechwood Cemetery Company of Ottawa.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 35), Respecting the Cities of lWt Arthur and Fort William.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 39), Respecting- the City of Port Arthur.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 68), Providing for One Day of Rest in Seven.

Referred to the Committee on Labour.

Bill (l^o. 123), Respecting Co-operative Credit Societies.

Referred to the Legal Committee.

Bill (No. 137), Respecting Reciprocal or Inter-Insurance.

Referred to the Legal Committee.

Bill (No. 140), To amend the Assessment Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 141), To amend the Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.
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Bill (No. 145), To amend the Factory, Shop, and Office Building Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 144), To amend the Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 103), To amend the Assessment Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 108), To amend the Bureau of Municipal Affairs Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 114), Respecting Liens of Mechanics and Wage-earners, Supply
Men and others.

Referred to a Select Committee to he hereafter named.

Bill (No. 148), To amend the Municipal Act,

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 115), To amend the Toronto and Hamilton Highway Commis-

sion Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 117), To amend the Police Magistrates Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 127), To amend the Municipal Act,

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 133), To amend the Audit Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 135), The Highway Improvement Act, 1921.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 75), To provide for Development Work in Northern and North-

Western Ontario.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.
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Mr. Price asked the following Question:

1. Is it the intention to carry on the Soldiers' Aid Commission, and if so,

how long.

And Mr. Carmichael, Minister without Portfolio, replied as follows :

Yes, as long as it may be necessary.

Mr. Hay asked the following Question:

1. Was the uniform price of 96.787 obtained by the Government for the

$10,000,000, six 'per cent. 20 year gold bonds designated as loan "S.S." of the

1st February, 1921. 2. If not, what was the price realized for each of the

issues which made up the said loan. 3. If sold at a uniform price, at what date

was the price fixed in the case of each issue.

And the Provincial Treasurer replied as follows:

1. Yes. 2. Answered by number 1. 3. January 24th, 1921.

Mr. Hay asked the following Question :

1. Was the uniform price of 92.34 obtained by the Government for the

whole of $16,000,000 six per cent. 15 year gold bonds designated as loan

"K.K." of 1st December, 1920. 2. If not, what was the price realized for each

of the issues which made up the said loan. 3. If sold at a uniform price, on

what date was the price fixed in the case of each issue.

To which the Provincial Treasurer replied in the words and figures fol-

lowing :

1. Yes. 2. Answered by number 1. 3. November 30th for $7,000,000,

December 3rd for $5,000,000, December 7th for $3,000.000, December 9th for

$1,000,000.

Mr. Evanturel asked the following Question:

1. What is the total number of the inside Civil servants in the employment
of the Province. 2. How many French-Canadians are at present in the inside

Civil Service of the Province. 3. (a) What are the names of such French-
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Canadians; (&) What were their former places of residence. 4. What was the

number of French-Canadians in the inside Civil Service in the year 1900:

5. What is the maximum salary paid to a French-Canadian employed in the

inside Civil Service of the Province.

And the Premier replied in the words following:

1. 1,463 on November 1st, 1920. 2. No record is kept of the racial origin

of Civil servants. 3. 4 and 5 answered by the reply to question 2.

Mr. Stover asked the following Question :

1. Who is the Mr. McPherson that appears to be acting in the official in-

vestigation of the conduct of Police Magistrate Hastings at Dunnville; is he

retained by the Government, and if so, upon what terms. 2. Is this Mr.

McPherson a member of the firm of Campbell, McPherson, Clarke & Jarvis

mentioned in the Public Accounts (page 531), and to whom a payment of $750
was made for legal services re Dominion and Provincial Temperance legisla-

tion. 3. Is the Mr. Campbell who is retained as assistant Counsel for the

Government upon the Timber investigation the George Campbell who is a

member of the same firm; and if so, what amount has been paid to 'him up to

date for his services as such Counsel.

And the Attorney-General replied in the words following:

1. He is K. U. McPherson, barrister-at-law, of Toronto. He has been

retained by the Government and, when rendered, his account will be taxe<i

by the Attorney-General's Department. 2. He is a member of the firm of

Messrs. Clark, McPherson, Campbell & Jarvis, whose account is mentioned.

'?>. Yes. Nothing has been paid up to date.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 128), To

amend The Motor Vehicles Act, having been rend,

Mr. Tooms moved,

That the Bill be now read the second time.

And the Motion, having been put. was lost on a Division.

And so it was declared iu the Negative.
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The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 77), To amend

The Highway Travel Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 126), To amend

The Ontario Game and Fisheries Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 150). To

Regulate the Practice of Chiropody, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 74),.

The Reforestation Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker re-

sumed the Chair; and Mr. Swayze reported. That the Committee had directed

him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-niorro\v.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 78),

To .amend The Municipal Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker

resumed the Chair; and Mr. Swayze reported, That the Committee had directed

him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 81).

To amend The Succession Duties Act. and after some time spent therein. Mr.
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Speaker resumed the Chair; and ^Xr. Swayze reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered,, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (Xo. 116),
To amend The Provincial Highway Act, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Swayze reported, That the Committee

had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion

that Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair, and that the House do resolve itself

into the Committee of Supply, having been read,

The Debate was resumed,

And after some time, it was, on the Motion of Mr. Hall,

Ordered, That the Debate be further adjourned until To-morrow.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the Lientouaiit-Governor.

Report of the Game <uxl Fisheries Department for the year 1020, ( >V.v-

sional Papers, No. 14.)

^\]so Regulations and Orders-in-Council made since February 14th, 1021.

of the Department of Education or of the Public Schools, Separate Schools or

TTic;h Schools. '(Sessional Papers, No. 61.)

The House then adjourned at 11.00 P.M.
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Tuesday, March 8th," 1921.

PEAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Nixon, from the Standing Committee on Municipal Law, presented
their First Report, which was read as follows and adopted :

Your Committee have carefully considered the following Bill :

Bill (No. 124), An Act to amend The Fire Departments Hours of

Labour Act, and recommend that the Bill be not further proceeded with.

Your Committee have also carefully considered

Bill (No. 89), An Act respecting the Two-Platoon System for the Em-

ployees of Permanent Fire Departments, and beg to report the same with

certain amendments.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time :

Bill (No. 154), intituled
" An Art to amend The Stationary and Hoisting

Engineers Act, 1919." Mr. Crockett.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 155), intituled "An Act to amend The Dog Tax and Sheep
Protection Act." Mr. Black.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 156), intituled
" An Act to amend The Local Improvement

Act." Mr. Swayze.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The following Bill was, nemine contradicente, introduced and read the

first time :

Bill (No. 157), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Bragg.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.
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Mr. Brackin moved, seconded by Mr. Dewart,

That whereas it has been made to appear to the House that at a public

meeting of the Council of the City of London, Ontario, held on the 7th March,
one H. B. Ashplant publicly asserted that the -City Gas Company of London,

* Ontario, could and might bribe Members of this House to induce such Members

to vote in favour of a certain Private Bill presented to this House on behalf

of the said City Gas Company; Be it therefore resolved that the said H. B.

Ashplant be ordered to appear before the Committee of this House on Privileges

and Elections, at such time as the Chairman may direct, to be examined and

for such further action as the House may direct upon report of the Committee.

Mr. Ferguson then moved, in Amendment, seconded by Mr. Henry,

That the Motion of the Member for West Kent be amended by adding
thereto the following:

That whereas one Andrew Hicks, of Centralia, Ontario, and a Member
of the Legislative Assembly, representing the riding of South Huron, did

make a statement on or about the 9th day of June, 1920, as reported in the

Press as follows :

London, Ont., June 9th.
" The offerings of money to representatives

of the people to pass certain pieces of legislation during the last Session

of the Legislature were appalling," was the startling statement made by
Andrew Hicks, U.F.O. Whip, in an address to the East Middlesex U.F.O.

picnic here this afternoon.
"
But, thank God," he added,

"
not one of the

U.F.O. Members succumbed to the effort of bribery."

And whereas one David James Taylor, of Wiarton, and a Member of the

Legislative Assembly for the riding of North Grey, did make a statement on

or about the llth day of June, as reported in the Press, as follows:

" The principle of the $2,500 indemnity for the Members is wrong,
but I did favour a bonus for the present Session. The hotel bill alone was

about $4 a day, and in the Session each Member would spend about $700.

And if you don't believe me, just try it," said Mr. Taylor.
" If the

Member was a farmer he had to hire someone to run his farm, while if

he was a labourer he lost his job. If the public want honest service they

should pay their representatives
a fair amount. Every dollar I get the

public will know about it," said Mr. Taylor, telling of an offer of $1,000
he had received and refused for his influence in a certain measure,

and three weeks after his election.
" And if the past Governments had

not been in the habit of taking money on the side, how was it that the man
should come to me?" queried Mr. Taylor.

And whereas one J. W. E. Burnaby, of North York, President of the

U.F.O. Co-operative Association, did make a statement on or about the 23rd

day of June, 1920, as reported in the Press, as follows:
11 JOUR.
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Kettleby, June 23. Mr. Burnaby declared that a direct attempt

had been made to bribe him
;
cited the offer made, and said he was ready

at any time to back up his statement :

*

"
I know nothing about the famous bribery charge that has been

delighting the Press lately," the U.F.O. President said,
"
but I want to tell

you, ladies and gentlemen, that this thing has been going on for
years.^

Thank God, I am not in the Government, but I have been offered a bribe

and I can back up my statement. When the Government advertised for

a purchasing agent at a salary of $6,000 a year, I was offered $1,000 a

year if I would use my influence to have a certain man appointed, the

$1,000 to continue as long as he held the job. I told him that I would

use my influence, but see that he did not get the job."

And whereas all these statements are serious reflections on the independ-

ence and honour of the Legislature; and whereas the dignity and honour of

the House and the safety of the public interests demand that these allegations

be fully and thoroughly investigated and proper punishment be meted out to

anyone who may be found guilty of any of the acts alleged ;
be it therefore

resolved that in the opinion of this House it is the duty of the Government to

refer the allegations and charges to the Standing Committee on Privileges and

Elections.

And after some time, the Motion, as amended, having been submitted.

was carried unanimously, and it was

Resolved, That whereas it has been made to appear to the House that

at a public meeting of the Council of the City of London, Ontario, held on the

7th March, one H. B. Ashplant publicly asserted that the City Gas Company
of London, Ontario, could and might bribe Members of this House to induce

such Members to vote in favour of a certain Private Bill presented to this

House on behalf of the said City Gas Company. Be it therefore resolved that

the said H. B. Ashplant be ordered to appear before the Committee of this

House on Privileges and Elections at such time as the Chairman thereof may
direct, to be examined for such further action as the House may direct upon
report of the Committee, and

That whereas one Andrew Hicks, of Centralia, Ontario, and a Member
of the Legislative Assembly, representing the riding of South Huron, did

make a statement on or about the 9th day of June, 1920, as reported in the

Press, as follows:

London, Ont., June 9th.
a The offerings of money to representatives

of the people to pass certain pieces of legislation during the last Session

of the Legislature were appalling," was the startling statement made by
Andrew Hicks,- U.F.O. Whip, in an address to the East Middlesex U.E.6.

picnic here this afternoon.
"
But, thank God," he added,

" not one of the

U.E.O. Members succumbed to' the effort of bribery."
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And whereas one David James Taylor, of Wiarton, and a Member of the

Legislative Assembly for the riding of North Grey, did make a statement on

or about the llth day of June, as reported in the Press, as follows:

" The principle of the $2,500 indemnity for the Members is wrong,

but I did favour a bonus for the present Session. The hotel bill alone wa*

about $4 a day, and in the Session each Member would spend about $700.

And if you don't believe me, just try it," said Mr. Taylor.
"
Tf the

Member was a farmer he had to hire someone to run his farm, while if

he was a labourer he lost his job. If the public want honest service they

should pay their representatives a fair amount. Every dollar I got the

public will know about it," said Mr. Taylor, telling of an offer of $1,000
he had received and refused for his influence in a certain measure,

and three weeks after his election.
" And if the past Governments had

not been in the habit of taking money on the side, how was it that the man
should come to me?" queried Mr. Taylor.

And whereas one J. W. E. Burnaby, of North York, President of the

U.F.O. Co-operative Association, did make a statement on or about the 23rd

day of June, 1920, as reported in the Press, as follows:

Kettleby, June 23. Mr. Burnaby declared that a direct attempt
had been made to bribe him; cited the offer made, and said he was ready
at any time to back up his statement :

"
I know nothing about the famous bribery charge that has been

delighting the Press lately," the U.F.O. President said,
"
but I want to tell

you, ladies and gentlemen, that this thing has been going on for years,
Thank God, I am not in the Government, but I have been offered a bribe

and I can back up my statement. When the Government advertised for

a purchasing agent at a salary of $6,000 a year, I was offered $1,000 a

year if I would use my influence to have a certain man appointed, the

$1,000 to continue as long as he held the job. I told him that I would

use my influence, but see that he did not get the job."

And whereas all these statements are serious reflections on the independ-
ence and honour of the Legislature; and whereas the dignity and honour of

the House and the safety of the public interests demand that these allegations
be fully and thoroughly investigated and proper punishment be meted out to

anyone who may be found guilty of any of the acts alleged ;
be it therefore

resolved that in the opinion of this House it is the duty of the Government to

refer the allegations and charges to the Standing Committee on Privileges and
Elections.

Mr. Price asked the following Question :

1. Has the Government been conducting a scale of the logs and mill-cut

at any of the lumber mills throughout the sawing season of 1920 for the

purpose of ascertaining the amount of over-run or increase shown in the actual
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amount of lumber cut from logs over the Doyle Rule of measurements of such

logs. 2. If so, at how many mills was this done. 3. What was found to be the

average percentage of increase or over-run in lumber actually cut from logs

so scaled over the amount indicated by the Doyle Rule measurement of such

logs. 4. What is the highest percentage of over-run shown.

And the Minister of Lands and Forests replied as follows:

1. Yes. 2. 26 mills of twenty-two lumber companies. 3. 100.1 total

over-run. 4. 171.9 total over-run.

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

76), To amend The Motor Vehicles Act, and after some time spent therein.

iMr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Com-
mittee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 115),

To amend The Toronto and Hamilton Highway Commission Act, and after

some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson

reported, That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill with certain

amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

116), To amend The Provincial Highway Act, and after some time spent

therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair;' and Mr. Watson reported, That the

Committee had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit

again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 133),
To amend The Audit Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker
resumed the Chair

;
and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee had directed

him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.
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The House resolved itself hito a Committee to consider Bill (No. 135),
The Highway Improvement Act, 1921, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 109),
For the protection of Children of Unmarried Parents, and after some time

spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported,
That the Committee had made some progress, ai*! directed him to ask for

leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 75),
To provide for Development Work in Northern and Northwestern Ontario,

and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr.
Watson reported, That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill with
certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion
that Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair, and that the House do resolve itself

into the Committee of Supply, having been read,

The Debate was resumed,

And after some time, it was, on the Motion of Mr. Joynt,

Ordered, That the Debate be further adjourned until To-morrow.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the Lieutenant-Governor:

Auditor's Report for the year 1919-20. (Sessional Papers, No. 54.)

The House then adjourned at 11.00 p.m.
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Wednesday, March 9th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Speaker informed the House :

That the Clerk had received from the Commissioners of Estate Bills,

their Report in the following case:

Bill (No. 50), Respecting the Title to certain lands devised under the

Will of Pierre Charron, deceased.

The Report was then read by the Clerk at the Table as follows :

To the Honourable the Legislative Assembly of the Province of Ontario.

In the matter of the Bill respecting
" An Act respecting the Title of

certain lands devised under the Will of Pierre Charron, deceased "
Bill "No.

50, the undersigned, two of the Commissioners of Estate Bills, pursuant to

the request of the Clerk of the Legislative Assembly, bearing date the 16th

February, 1921, respectfully report as follows:

The effect of the proposed Act is to deprive those, whom the Courts have

declared, are owners of property, or interest therein, of their property, or

property rights, without compensation. This appears to us to be contrary
to a well established practice of Constitutional Government, and to the rights

of property established thereunder. See Attorney-General vs. De Keyser

Royal Hotel (1919), 2 chy. 197, 1920, A. c. 508.

Presuming the allegations contained in the preamble of the Bill to be

proved to the satisfaction of the House, it is not, in our opinion, reasonable

that the Bill do pass into law. We take the liberty of pointing out that the

petition for the Bill and the preamble of the Bill, do not, in our opinion, ac-

curately state the meaning and effect of the judgments therein referred to.

We have the honour to be,

Your obedient servants,

W. MULOCK,

C.J., Ex.

W. N. FERGUSON,
Commissioners.

Osgoode Hall,
8th March, 1921.
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The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first timer-

Bill (No. 158), intituled
" An Act to amend the Loan and Trust Cor-

porations Act." Mr. Eaney.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 159), intituled
" An Act to amend The Police Magistrates

Act." Mr. Kaney.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Mr. Cooper (Welland) asked the following Question:

1. What amounts were received by any official or officials in the Attorney-
General's Department, specifying each official for each of the years 1917, 1918,

1919, and 1920 respectively (a) For Counsel fees or costs allowed to the Crown
or to the Law Department upon appeals or motion to quash convictions or

other matters in connection with The Ontario Temperance Act, or liquor

cases; (ft) For Counsel fees or costs in connection with legal cases or matters

of any other character than those specified above. 2. What amounts were
received specifically in respect of -any legal matter during the year 1920.

State specifically the cases in which Counsel fees or costs were allowed or re-

ceived in each particular case. 3. If such Counsel fees or costs have been

received by or allowed to officials or law officers of the Crown in connection

with the matters referred to in paragraphs 1 and 2 were such fees or costs

in addition to the annual stipend of the official in question.

And the Attorney-General replied in the words and figures following:

1. (ft) None. Officers of the Attorney-General's Department appearing
on Motions to quash convictions appear not for the Crown or any Law De-

partment but for the Magistrate and costs, when given, are payable to them

personally or to the Magistrate; (b) Counsel fees in connection with legal
cases for the Attorney-General's Department in most instances are a perquisite
of the Deputy Attorney-General. During the years 1917, 1918 and until

September, 1919, the late J. R. Cartwright, K.C., was Deputy Attorney-
General and there is no means of finding out the fees received by him during
those years. The Solicitor of the Department received small fees, of which
he kept no accurate account, but he estimates them, during the years mentioned,
at about $200 per annum. 2. About 160 cases, appeals and Motions were

handled by the Deputy Attorney-General or the Assistant Solicitor to the

Department during 1920. The majority of these were motions for certiorari

under The Ontario Temperance Act, in which no fees are payable to the

Crown or to the Law Department, but to the Magistrates and to Counsel per-
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sonally. These fees are not subject to be accounted for and the records do not

in most cases show the amount received. The Deputy Attorney-General and

the Assistant Solicitor have gone through the files and memoranda and state

that while it is impossible to set out positively the fees received during 1920,

the following figures are substantially accurate: The Deputy Attorney-General,,

$800 ;
the Assistant Solicitor, $300. 3. Such fees or costs are in addition to

the stipend or salary of these officials and the fact that each receives fees as

perquisites was taken into consideration in fixing such salaries. Fees are

collected only in about one case in ten, and as the preparation of cases involves

much overtime work, which is not otherwise paid for, the present system is

a satisfactory one for paying such overtime work without expense to the

Government. As the fees increase the'overtime increases eight or ten fold. A
similar system prevails in the Department of Justice at Ottawa, the Attorney-
General's Department of Quebec, and the City Solicitor's Office in the City
of Toronto.

Mr. MacBride asked the following Question:

1. What is the total number of mothers who have applied for allowance

under The Mothers' Allowance Act in the City of Brantford up to 31st Janu-

ary, 1921. 2. What is the total number of mothers who have received allow-

ances under The Mothers' Allowance Act in the City of Brantford up to the

31st January, 1921.

And the Minister of Labour replied :

1. 33. 2. 31.

The following Bills were severally read the second time:

Bill (No. 105), Allowing Municipalities to adopt Proportional Repre-
sentation in Municipal Elections.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. Ill), To incorporate the Town of Kapuskasing.

Referred to the Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debaite on the Motion

that Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair, and that the House do resolve itself

into the Committee of Supply, having been read,
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The Debate was resumed,

And after some time, it was, on the Motion of Mr. Dewart,

Ordered, That the Debate be further adjourned until To-morrow.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House:

Return to an Order of the House of 28th February, 1921, That there

be laid before the House a Return of copies of all letters, reports and com-

munications of every kind received by the Minister of Mines or any Member
of the Government with respect to the proposed increase in mining taxes.

(Sessional Papers, No. 78.)

The House then adjourned at 10.40 p.m.

Thursday, March 10th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Raney, from the Standing Committee on Private Bills, presented

their Seventh Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee beg to report the following Bill without amendment:

Bill (No. 45), An Act to incorporate the Town of Tecumseh.

Your Committee recommend that notwithstanding Rule 51 of Your

Honourable House, the time for receiving Reports of Committees on Private

Bills be extended to and inclusive of Thursday, the twenty-fourth day of

March.

Ordered, That the time for receiving Reports of Committee on Private

Bills be further extended until and inclusive of Thursday, the twenty-fourth
dav of March, instant.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney,

Ordered, That the names of Mr. Homuth and Mr. Marshall be added to

the Standing Committee on Public Accounts.
12 JOUR.
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The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion

that Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair, and that the House do resolve itself

into the Committee of Supply, having been read,

The Debate was resumed,

And after some time,

Mr. Dewart moved in Amendment, seconded by Mr. Sinclair,

That all the words of the Motion, after the first word "
That," he

stricken out and the following substituted therefor :

"
this House condemns the

extravagant expenditure of the Government involving, despite an increased

revenue for ordinary receipts of $5,173,322.58 for the last fiscal year, a

deficit of $812,848.83, and further deplores the imprudent borrowing of

large sums at excessive prices, for long terms, notably the loans of $16,000,000

in December, 1920, and $10,000,000 in February, 1921, without any vote

of this House appropriating the same to particular works or purposes, the

last loan, while the House was in Session, contrary to constitutional usage
and the right of the people through their representatives in the Legislative

Assembly to control and direct the expenditure of public moneys."

And the Amendment, having been put, was lost on a Division.

The original Motion, having then again been submitted, was carried on

a Division and the House accordingly resolved itself into the Committee of

Supply.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That there be granted to His Majesty, for the services of 1921,
the following sum:

108. To defray the expenses of the Civil Government. ... $210,888 81

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Homuth reported, That the

Committee had come to a Resolution
; also, That the Committee had directed

his to ask for leave to sit again.

Ordered, That the Report be received To-morrow.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His
Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Report of the Temiskaming and Northern Ontario Railway Commission
for the year 1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 48.)
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Also Return to an Order of the House of 23rd February, 1921, for

a Return of copies of all correspondence between the Government or any

Member, or any Minister or Official and the Canada Copper Company (Inter-

national Nickel Company) and George E. Buchanan relating to leases or

grants of nickel-bearing or other mineral lands in the Township of Creighton,
District of Sudbury, since 13th November, 1919. (Sessional Papers, No.

79.)

The House then adjourned at 11.00 p.m.

Friday, March llth, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 161), intituled
" An Act to amend The Public Parks Act." Mr.

Halcrow.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 162), intituled "An Act respecting the Lake Huron and

Northern Ontario Railway Company." Mr. Bowman.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 164), intituled
" An Act to amend The Line Fences Act." Mr.

Cameron.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

The following Bills were, nemlne contradicewte, introduced and read the

first timer-

Bill (No. 160), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Halcrow.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 163), intituled
" An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Thompson.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

The House then adjourned at 4.30 p.m.
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Monday, March 14th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Speaker, informed the House :

That the Clerk had received from the Kailway and Municipal Board,

their Report in the following case:

Bill (No. 40), Respecting the Town of Kincardine.

The Report was then read hy the Clerk at the Table, as follows :

To the Honourable, the Legislative Assembly of the Province of Ontario.

Upon the reference, under Rule 61 (a) of Your Honourable House to

The Ontario Railway and Municipal Board, of Bill (No. 40), intituled "An
Act respecting the Town of Kincardine," the Board begs leave respectfully to

report that in the judgment of the Board it is reasonable that such Bill should

be passed by your Honourable House, provided that it is amended by striking

out the word "
twenty

"
in the second line of section 3 and inserting instead

thereof the word "
ten."

The indebtedness of $38,000.00 referred to in the Bill is partially for

permanent works and partially for expenditures which should have been paid
out of the taxes or out of the electric light, or water rates, and for this reason

the Board recommends that the period for which the debentures be issued be

reduced from twenty years to ten years.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

D. M. MC!NTYRE,
Chairman.

A. B. INGRAM,
Vice-Chairman.

J. A. ELLIS,
Dated at Toronto, Commissioner.

this llth day of March, 1921.

Ordered, That Bill (No. 40), Respecting the Town of Kincardine be

referred to the Committee on Private Bills with instructions to consider the

same with reference to the suggestions of the Railway and Municipal Board
thereon.

The House resolved itself into a Committee, severally to consider the

following Bills :

Bill (No. 26), Respecting the City of Windsor.
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Bill (No. 41), To establish a joint Industrial and Technical School Board

for the City of Windsor and the Town of Walkerville.

Bill (No. 17), Respecting Sons of England Benefit Society.

Bill (No. 21), Kespecting the Township of Stamford.

Bill (No. 22), Kespecting the Beechwood Cemetery Company of Ottawa.

Bill (No. 35), Kespecting the Cities of Port Arthur and Fort William.

Bill (No. 39), Respecting the City of Port Arthur.

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the

Committee had directed him to report the several Bills without Amendment.

Ordered, That the Bills reported, be severally read the third time To-

morrow.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 165), intituled
" An Act to amend The Minimum Wage Act."

Mr. Rollo.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 166), intituled "An Act to amend The Public Health Act."

Mr. Rollo.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 167), intituled
" The Anatomical Act." Mr. Price.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 168), intituled
" An Act to amend The Board of Education

t." Mr. Thompson.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 169), intituled
" An Act to amend The Workmen's Compensa-

ion Act." Mr. Rollo.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.
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Bill '(No. 170), intituled "An Act respecting Fair Kentals of Dwelling

Houses." Mr. Eollo.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 171), intituled "An Act to amend the Law relating to the

Guardianship and Custody of Infants." Mr. Dewart.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Mr. Calder asked the following Question:

1. What was the total number of Civil Service employees (both inside

and outside service) employed by the Province at the end of the fiscal year
1919. 2. What was the total number of Civil Service employees (both inside

and outside service) employed by the Province at the end of the fiscal year
1920.

And the Premier replied as follows:

1. 5,655. 2. 6,025 ;
the increase being due mainly to the strengthening

of the medical and nursing staffs of the Provincial Institutions depleted

during the war, the increased assistance required for the administration of

The Ontario Temperance Act and for the work of the Provincial Highways
Department.

Mr. Price asked the following Question:

1. Has James Higgins, the defeated Labour candidate in the recent

election in North-East Toronto', been appointed to a position under the present
Government. 2. If so, what is the position. 3. When was the appointment
made. 4. What is the salary.

To which the Minister of Labour replied:

1. Yes. 2. Employment Scout, Soldiers' Department, Ontario Govern-

ment Employment Bureau. 3. December 16th, 1920. 4. $141.66 per month.

On Motion of Mr. McLeod, seconded by Mr. Stover, it was

Resolved, That in the opinion of this House the Government should take

immediate steps and make representations to the Postmaster-General and the

Dominion Government to insure the continuance of the franking privilege

upon (a) All forms transmitted to and from any Board of Health, Division
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Registrar or other official in the matter of reports of births, marriages, and

deaths, and of communicable diseases; (&) All literature upon the aforenamed

subject transmitted to or from any Board of Health or Registrar-General's
branch in the several provinces.

The following Bills were severally read the second time:

Bill (No. 45), To incorporate the Town of Tecumseh.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 63), To amend The Trustee Act.

Referred to the Legal Committee.

Bill (No. 69), For the protection of Women during Confinement.

Referred to the Labour Committee.

Bill (No. 146), To amend The Municipal Act,

Referred to the Legal Committee.

Bill (No. 151), To amend The Assessment Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 152), To amend The Highway Improvement Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 153), To amend The Public Schools Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 157), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 119), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 155), To amend The Dog Tax and Sheep Protection Act.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Colonization.

Bill (No. 102), Respecting the Ontario Provincial Police Force.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 118), To provide for the Appointment of Police Magistrates
with extended jurisdiction.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 129), To amend The Mining Act of Ontario.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.
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On Motion of Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Biggs,

Ordered, That this House do forthwith resolve itself into, a Committee

of the Whole to consider certain proposed Resolutions respecting a license

fee to be paid by Billiard Rooms, Pool Rooms and Bowling Alleys.

Mr. Drury acquainted the House that His Honour the Lieutenant-Gover-

nor, having been informed of the subject matter of the proposed Resolutions,
recommends them to the consideration of the House.

The House then resolved itself into the Committee.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, 1. That notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any other

Act, the Lieutenant-Governor in Council may impose a license upon and

make regulations for licensing and denning Billiard and Pool Rooms and

Bowling Alleys.

2. Every owner, lessee or manager of a billiard room, pool room or bowl-

ing alley shall pay, in such manner as may be fixed by regulation, to the Treas-

urer of Ontario, an annual license fee not exceeding $50 per annum for oacli

table or alley in the cities having a population of over fifty thousand, as ascer-

tained by the last census of Canada, and not more than $30 per annum for each

table or alley in other cities in Ontario, and not more than $20 per annum for

each table or alley in other municipalities in Ontario.

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the

Committee had come to certain Resolutions.

Ordered, That the Report be now received.

Mr. MacVicar reported the Resolutions as follows:

Resolved, 1. That notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any other

Act, the Lieutenant-Governor in Council may impose a license upon and

make regulations for licensing and defining Billiard and Pool Rooms and

Bowling Alleys.

2. Every owner, lessee or manager of a billiard room, pool room or bowl-

ing alley shall pay, in such manner as may be fixed by regulation, to the Treas-

urer of Ontario, an annual license fee not exceeding $50 per annum for each

table or alley in the cities having a population of over fifty thousand, as ascer-

tained by the last census of Canada, and not more than $30 per annum for each

table or alley in other cities in Ontario, and not more than $20 per annum for

each table or alley in other municipalities in Ontario.

The Resolutions having been read the second time, were agreed to, and
referred to the 'Committee of the Whole House on Bill (No. 178), To license

Billiard and Pool Rooms and Bowling Alleys.
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The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 127),

To amend The Municipal Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker
resumed the Chair

;
and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Committee had

directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House then adjourned at 6.00 p.m.

Tuesday, March 15th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK, P.M.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 172), intituled "An Act to amend The Counties Reforestation

Act." Mr. Bowman.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 173), intituled "An Act to amend The Trades and Labour

Branch Act," Mr. Hollo.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 174), intituled "An Act to amend The Loan and Trust Cor-

porations Act." Mr. Brackin.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 175), intituled "An Act to amend The Factory, Shop am!

Office Building Act." Mr. Lewis.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Mr. McCrea moved, seconded by Mr. Cooke,

That there be laid before this House, a Return of the Report of the officer,

or person, who has been conducting a scale of the logs and mill-cut at twenty-
six lumber mills of Ontario throughout the sawing season of 1920, and which

the Minister of Lands and Forests has reported to the House is now in his

possession.

And a Debate having ensued, it was, on the Motion of Mr. Mathieu,

Ordered, That the Debate be adjourned until To ~norrow.

The House then adjourned at 11.10 p.m.
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Wednesday, March 16th, 1921.

PKAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK P.M.

Mr. Nixon, from the Standing Committee on Municipal Law, presented
their Second Report, which was read as follows and adopted :

Your Committee have carefully considered the following Bills and -beg to

report the same without amendment :

Bill (No. 90), An Act to amend The Public Parks Act.

Bill (No. 112), An Act to amend The Public Health Act.

Your Committee have also carefully considered the following Bill and beg
to report the same with certain amendments :

Bill (No. 138), An Act to amend The Local Improvement Act.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time :

Bill (No. 176), intituled
" An Act to amend the Workmen's Compensation

Act." Mr. Rollo.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 177), intituled "An Act to Provide for the Maintenance of

Parents by their Children." Mr. McNamara.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Mr. Buckland asked the following Question:

1. When was the $2,000 on account of their services paid to Commissioners

Riddell and Latchford, respectively. 2. By whom was the amount to be

received by the Commissioners settled. 3. Who requested the Commissioners

to accept the commission. 4. What was the date of the first sitting of the

Commission. 5. On what date did the Dominion legislation come into force

preventing payment to judges acting on Commissions. 6. How many days
had the Commission sat in the meantime. 7. What is the total amount claimed

by R. T. Harding for his services in connection with the Timber Enquiry.
8. What is the total amount of accounts received: (a) for payments of assist-

ants; (b) for travelling expenses. 9. Has the AttorneyXreneral read the

evidence taken before the Commission. 10. WT
hat are the respective rates of

compensation being paid to several counsel paid by the Government.
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And the Attorney-General replied in the words and figures following:

1. 2nd July, 1920. 2. Amount not yet settled. 3. Attorney-General.
4. 12th April, 1920. 5. Cap. 56, 10-11 George V, Statutes of Canada came
into force 1st July, 1920. 6. 29 days. 7. Account not yet rendered. .8 (a)
If the question refers to Legal Assistants accounts amounting to $4,440 have

been received. '(&) The amount for travelling expenses cannot be ascertained

until the accounts have been .audited. 9. Yes; in part. 10. Mr. J. M. Mc-

Evoy was allowed at $70 per diem while engaged on the hearing before the

Commission and $40 per diem while engaged 011 work outside the hearing.
18o rates have been fixed as to the counsel.

The following bills were severally read the second time :

Bill (No. 143), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to the Legal Committee.

Bill (No. 147), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 156), To amend The Local Improvement Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

The House resolved itself into a Committee, severally to consider the fol-

lowing Bills :

Bill (No. 33), Respecting the City of St. Thomas.

Bill (No. 45), To incorporate the Town of Tecumseh.

Mr. Speaker resumed the -Chair; and Mr. Homuth reported, That the

Committee had directed him to report the several Bills without Amendments.

Ordered, That the Bills reported, be severally read the third time To-

morrow.
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The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 102),

Respecting the Ontario Provincial Police Force.

And the House having continued until Twelve of the Clock midnight,

Thursday, 17th March, 1921.

The House continued in Committee.

And after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair;
and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee had directed him to report the

Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-dav.

The following Bill was read the second time:-

Bill (No. 134), Respecting the Taxation of Real Estate Transfers.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-day.

The House then adjourned at 12.55 a.m.

Thursday, March 17th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Raney, from the Standing Committee on Private Bills, presented
their Eighth Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee beg to report the following Bills without amendment :

Bill (No. 7), An Act respecting the City of Brantford.

Bill (No. 34), An Act respecting the Village of Acton.

Your Committee beg to report the following Bills with certain amend-
ments :
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Bill (No. 5), An Act respecting the Town of Pembroke.

Bill (No. 13), An Act respecting Two Abandoned Cemeteries in the Town
of Port Colborne.

Bill (No. 42), An Act to incorporate the Town of River Side.

Your Committee recommend that the fees, less the actual cost of printing
the Bill and of printing the Act in the Statutes, be remitted on Bill (No. 58),
of 1920, being

" An Act to incorporate The Roman Catholic Episcopal Cor-

poration of the Diocese of Hearst, in Ontario, Canada," on the ground that

it is one relating to a religious institution.

Ordered, That the fees, less the actual cost of printing the Bill and of

printing the Act in the Statutes, be remitted on Bill (No. 58), of the Session

of 1920, being An Act to incorporate the Roman Catholic Episcopal Corpora-
tion of the Diocese of Hearst.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 178), intituled
" An Act to license Billiard and Pool Rooms

and Bowling Alleys." Mr. Smith.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The following Bill was, nemine contradicente, introduced and read the

first time:

Bill (No. 179), intituled
" An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Thompson.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

116), To amend The Provincial Highway Act, and after some time spent

therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Watson reported, That the

Committee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.
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The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. Ill),
To incorporate the Town of Kapuskasing, and after some time spent therein,
Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Com-
mittee had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 79), To amend

The Mining Act of Ontario, having been read,

Mr. Mills moved,

That the Bill be now read the second time.

And a Debate having arisen

And the House having continued to sit until Twelve of the Clock midnight,

Friday, 18th March, 1921.

The Debate continued,

And after some time, it was, on the Motion of Mr. Drury,

Ordered, That the Debate be adjourned until the next sittings of the

House To-day.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Interim report respecting Coroners of the Commission to inquire, consider

and report upon the best mode of selecting, appointing and remunerating

Sheriffs, etc. etc. (Sessional Papers, No. 80.)

The House then adjourned at 12.05 a.m.
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Friday, March 18th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Raney, from the Standing Committee on Private Bills, presented

their Ninth Report, which was read as follows and adopted :

Your Committee beg to report the following Bill with certain amend-

ments :

Bill (No. 15), An Act to amend and consolidate the Acts respecting the

Essex Border Utilities Commission.

The following Bill was introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 180), intituled
" An Act to amend The Registry Act." Mr.

O'Neill.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Mr. Tolmie asked the following Question :

1. How many officers, operators, or other employees, of any grade, engaged

by the Board of License Commissioners in respect to the enforcement of The

Ontario Temperance Act, have been dismissed since October 31st, 1919, to the

present time. 2. What are the names of the persons dismissed and the dates

of dismissal. 3. How many officers, operators, or other employees, of any

grade, so engaged in respect to the enforcement of The Ontario Temperance

Act, have resigned since October 31st, 1919, to the present time. 4. What
are the names of the persons who resigned and what are the dates of resignation.

To which the Attorney-General replied in the words and figures fol-

lowing :

1. 27.

2. Name and date of dismissal. Name and date of dismissal.

Barnes, J. H., Aug., 1920. Catts, R., May, 1920.

Edmonds, Art, July, 1920. Jeffrey, A. J., Sept., 1920.

Hallam, S. M., Oct., 1920. Signarallo, J., Feb., 1920.

Hallam, Wm., Sept., 1920. Rutko, G., Feb., 1921.

Burnett, A., Feb., 1920. Doucette, W., Dec., 1920.
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2. Name and date of dismissal.

Stalman, S., Dec., 1920.

Symonds, S., July, 1920.

Blume, Ed., Sept., 1920.

Hallam, G-., Oct., 1920.

Skypeck, H., Oct., 1920.

Dawson, J., Jan., 1921.

Zothawel, C., Nov., 1920.

Meeks, J., Feb., 1921.

Sterewiski, F., Feb., 1921.

Name and date of dismissal.

Galbraith, G., Feb., 1921.

McDonald, E., Mar., 1921.

White, J., Jan., 1921.

Hoey, P., Jan., 1921.

Hicks, E., Jan., 1921.

Padgett, Hy., Jan., 1921.

Fielden, Wm., Mar., 1921.

Luke, L. E., Dec., 1920.

3. 27.

4. Name and date of resigns
tion.

Torode, H., Mar., 1921.

Bicks, H. C., Feb., 1921.

Cross, H. H., Jan., 1921.

Mulhall, F. J., Nov., 1920.

Howie, Jas., Oct., 1920.

Porter, C. J., Sept., 1920.

Shepherd, F., Aug., 1920.

Stratton, T. Y., Oct., 1920.

Trebell, F., Feb., 1921.

Foley, W., Feb., 1921.

Schimnitz, L., Feb., 1920.

Blakney, J. A., Apr., 1920.

McCarthy, E. J., July, 1920.

McPhaden, M., Sept., 1920.

Name and date of resignation.

Mulholland, E., Sept., 1920.

Brunet, L. P., Jan., 1921.

Padgett, Hed., Mar., 1921.

Lewis, Ed. H., Oct., 1920.

Carson, A., Mar., 1920.

Mitchell, J. J., Dec., 1920.

Torrance, Jno., Dec., 1920.

French, T., June, 1920.

Dougherty, T., Oct., 1920.

Magladery, T., Apr., 1920.

Stewart, T., Oct., 1920.

Campbell, Geo., Mar., 1921.

Tremblay, D., Apr., 1920.

Mr. Tolmie asked the following Question :

1. Does W. J. Lannin, Divisional Superintendent of Law Enforcement,

receive any allowance per diem for expenses in addition to his salary of $4,000

per annum. 2. If so, for how many days per week is his per diem allowance

made. 3. Does said Divisional Superintendent of Law Enforcement usually

spend the week-end, including Sunday, in the City of Stratford. 4. How many
complete days in the week does he usually spend in Windsor. 5. What total

sum has been paid to him in respect of the per diem allowance for his living

expenses in Windsor since the time of his appointment, November 19th, 1920,

to the present time. 6. What sum or sums have been paid for travelling

expenses to and from Stratford from .November 19th, 1920, to the present

time. 7. What other sums have been paid him for travelling or other expenses.
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And the Attorney-General replied in the words and figures following-:

1. Yes. 2. Six. 3. Yes. 4. Six, less the necessary time taken in going
to and from the City of Stratford at week-ends. 5. $172. 6. None. 7. $74.26.

Mr. Ecclestone asked the following Question:

1. Has the Government purchased any license or licenses from any
licensees or concessionaires within the limits of Algonquin Park. 2. If so

(a) What berths were purchased; (fr) From whom, and at what price. 3. If

not, are negotiations being carried on for that purpose and with whom.

And the Minister of Lands and Forests replied as follows :

1. This Government has not purchased the rights of any timber licensee

in Algonquin Park. 2. Answered by No. 1. 3. Suggestion has been made by
licensees that the Government purchase their rights but nothing has been deter-

mined by the Government.

Mr. Hall asked the following Question :

1. How many employees of the Province have been superannuated. 2. Who,
and how many Civil servants have been superannuated. 3. What allowance

has been made in each case. 4. What persons are still retained in their employ-
ment who are over age for superannuation.

And the Premier replied in the words and figures following:

1. 51. 2. Answered by reply to No. 3.

3. Name and annual allowance.

James Clancy $2,000 00

J. L. Capreol 1,897 00

C. E. Sproule 2,000 00

J. N. Belanger 650 00

J. M. Delamere 1,320 00

J. G. Scott 2,000 00

J. B. Reid 748 80

C. J. S. Bethune .' 900 00

Peter Gould 480 00

Andrew Templeton . . . 500 00

Eudo Saunders 2,000 00

Charles H. Henderson. 1,243 33

Name and annual allowance.

Frank Jones 600 00

James McCreight 525 00

Robert Leslie 512 00

John R. Dowd 675 00

George Guillet 650 00

Michael O'Donnell ... 925 00

William F. F. Grant. 1,050 00

Joseph M. Lemieux . . 600 00

John Gordon 350 00

Walter Shaver 650 00

Angus McDonald 600 00

Edwin Ruthvan Lucas. 705 67
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3. Name and annual allowance.

Cuthbert Sendall 501 67

Edmund John Darby.. 900 00

William Margach 960 00

John Hamilton Bradshaw 840 00

Eobert Armstrong .... 575 00

F. W. Macqueen 1,000 00

William H. Clarke ... 883 33

James B. Macdonald. . 1,410 00

John Stokes 550 00

A. J. Kattray 1,663 33

Charles E. C. Newton. 569 00

Dr. Edward A. A. Grange 1,500 00

John A. Torrance . 450 00

Name and annual allowance.

Margaret Carlyle 550 00

William Kennedy 700 00

Miss Matura Jane Cronk 198 60

Frank Manley Nicholson 1,080 00

Bidwell Way 1,311 60

Henry Watson 540 00

John Squirrell 392 40

Avern Pardoe 1,547 00

W. F. Lewis 828 33

John A. G. Crozier . . . 1,370 00

Wellington Fisher 800 00

Thomas Evans . 417 60

Thomas Mara

Lump Sum Payments.

$100 00 M. M. Nesbitt $864 00

Total number of superannuates- -51,

4. Charles Chase.

E. A. MacLaurin.

G. B. Nicol.

E. Oliver.

N. F. Patterson.

G. S. Holmstead.

G. M: Lee.

G. O. Alcorn.

D. J. Goggin.
W. A. Poole.

J. Thompson.
J. Boasi.

W. J. McLeary.
R. J. Beeman.

C. Maddock.

W. Hunt.

J. A. Houston.

J. W. Pearce.

D. R. Coleman.

C. W. Nash.

T. Mannell.

J. T. Robinson.

C. S. Jones.

Joe Pelletier.

James N. Sawyer.
J. D. Flavelle.

David Rodgers.
John Stenson.

Samuel Lorimer.

V. P. Fayle.

J. J. Murphy.
D. G. Ross.

R. H. Hodgson.
W. P. Christie.

T. Tapping.
J. B. McLaughlin.
J. 0. Anderson.

H. Barron.

A. E. Belcher.

J. W. Sharp.
F. J. Glackmeyer.
A. H. Sydere.
J. Gorman.

J. Beck.

W. H. Cooper.
A. Bristow.

A. Curry.
J. Kirby.
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S. Hawkins. Donald McCrimmon.
J. Gillespie. J. H. Ross.

N. Reed. S. Peaker.

Henry Jackson. J. J. Barry.

George Godda. R. C. Davies.

Albert Ranger. (\ McDowell.

J. I). O'Brien. J. J. Foley.
W. H. Talbot. W. P. Strickland.

T. N. Ilarte. Robert Quillie.

J. G. Moorhead.

Mr. Allan asked the following Question:

1. What was the total cost of the Committee appointed to investigate

the problem of
" Rural Credits." 2. What was the sums paid to each of the

members of the Committee, for their services and expenses, viz., W. J. Jack-

man, Thomas MeMillen and M. H. Staples.

To which the Premier replied in the words and figures following:

1. $2,551.50. 2. W. T. Jackman, services, $1,275; expenses, $202.58.

Thomas MeMillen, services, $300; expenses, $206.15. M. H. Staples, ser-

vices, $180; expenses, $126.75.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (!N"o. 89),

Respecting the Two-Platoon System for the Employees of Permanent Fire

Departments, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the

Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee had directed him to

report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time on Monday next.

The following Bills were severally read the second time:

Bill (No. 80), To amend The Limitations Act.

Referred to the Legal Committee.
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Bill (No. 154), To amend The Stationary and Hoisting Engineers Act,

1919.

Referred to the Labour Committee.

Bill (No. 160), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 161), To amend The Public Parks Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 163), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

The House then adjourned at 5.05 p.m.

Monday, March 21st, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. McCrea, from the Standing Committee on Legal Bills, presented
their First Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee have carefully considered the following Bills and have

prepared amendments thereto respectively:

Bill (No. 60), Respecting Legitimation of Children by the Subsequent

Intermarriage of their Parents.

Bill (No. 63), To amend The Trustee Act.

Your Committee recommends that Bill (No. 123), Respecting Co-

operative Credit Societies, be referred to the same Special Committee as that

to which Bill (No. 114), Respecting Liens of Mechanics and Wage-Earners,

Supply Men and Others, was referred.

Ordered, That Bill (No. 123), Respecting Co-operative Credit Societies,

be referred as recommended.
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The following Bills were severally read the second time:

Bill (No. 7), Respecting the City of Brantford.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 34), Respecting the Village of Acton.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 5), Respecting the Town of Pembroke.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 42), To incorporate the Town of River Side.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 15), To amend and consolidate the Acts respecting the Essex

Border Utilities Commission.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 167), The Anatomical Act.

Referred to the Legal Committee.

Bill (No. 168), To amend The Board of Education Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 171), To amend the Law relating to the Guardianship and

.istody of Infants.

Referred to the Legal Committee.

Bill (No. 142), To amend The School Sites Act.

Referred to the Legal Committee.

Bill (No. 120), Respecting the Adoption of Children.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 56), To amend The Local Improvement Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.
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The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (.No. 90),

To amend The Public Parks Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Homuth reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 112),

To amend The Public Health Act, arid after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Homuth reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a ConiniitU-o to consider Bill (Xo. 138),
To amend The Local Improvement Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Homuth reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (Xo. 118),

To provide for the appointment of Police Magistrates with extended jurisdic-

tion, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;

and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Committee had directed him to report

the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 134),

Respecting the Taxation of Real Estate Transfers, and after some time spent

therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That

the Committee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into .consideration forthwith.
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The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Eeport of The Ontario Railway and Municipal Board for the year 1920.

(Sessional Papers, No. 50.)

Also Report of Soldiers' Aid Commission for the year 1920. (Ses-

sional Papers, No. 69.)

Also Report of Department of Mines for 1920. (Sessional Papers,
No. 4.)

Also Regulations and Orders-in-Council made since February 28th,

1921, under authority of Department of Education Act or Acts relating to

Public Schools, Separate Schools or High Schools. (Sessional Papers, No. 61.)

Also Report of the Inspector of Legal Offices for the year ending 31st

December, 1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 6.)

Also Report of the Inspector of Registry Offices, for the year 1920.

(Sessional Papers, No. 7.)

Also Return to an Order of the House of the 16th February, 1921, that

there be laid before the House a Return showing what are the amounts paid by
each Company respectively which make up the total credited to The Mining
Tax Act in the Public Accounts for 1920 at page a31 under the heading:

(a) Acreage tax, $71,223.26 ; (b) Profits tax, $713,291.46. (Sessional Papers,
No. 82.)

The House then adjourned at 6.00 p.m.



192 22ND MARCH. 1921

Tuesday, March 22nd, 1921.

3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

The Clerk having announced to the House,

That Mr. Speaker was unavoidably absent on account of illness, and

unable to take the Chair, and having requested the House to nominate a

Member to take the Chair,

Mr. Drury moved, seconded by Mr. Raney,

That the Honourable the Speaker, being unavoidably absent To-day,
this House doth, under the provisions of the Statute in such case made and

provided, elect The Honourable Thomas Crawford, to take the Chair and

preside as Speaker for the day.

And the Motion having been put by the Clerk, was declared carried

unanimously, and
*

The Honourable Mr. Crawford having taken the Chair in accordance

therewith, the Mace was laid upon the Table.

PRAYERS.

The following Petition was brought up and laid upon the Table:

By Mr. Black, the Petition of the County Council of the United Counties

of Lennox and Addington.

Mr. Raney, from the Standing Committee on Private Bills, presented

their Tenth Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee beg to report the following Bill without amendment:

Bill (No. 14), An Act to confirm By-law 744 of the Town of Orillia.

Your Committee beg to report the following Bills with certain amend-

ments :

Bill (No. 29), An Act respecting the Township of Etobicoke and The

Weston Golf and Country Club, Limited.

Bill (No. 37), An Act respecting the City of London.

Bill (No. 38), An Act respecting the Town of Gananoque.
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Bill (No. 43), An Act to annex certain land to the Town of Ford City.

Your Committee recommend that notwithstanding Rule 51 of (Youp

Honourable House; the time for receiving Eeports of Committees on Private

Bills be extended to and inclusive of Thursday the Seventh day of April next.

Ordered, That the time for receiving Reports of Committees on Private

Bills be extended until and inclusive of Thursday the Seventh day of April
next.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first timer-

Bill (No. 181), intituled
" An Act to amend The Burlington Beach Act/'

Mr. Bowman.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 182), intituled "An Act to amend The Statute of Frauds."

Mr. Brackin.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 183), intituled "An Act to amend The Statute Labour Act."

Mr. Bowman.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 185), intituled
" The Public Lands Act." Mr. Bowman.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 186), intituled "An Act respecting Natural Gas." Mr. Mills.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 187), intituled "An Act respecting Long Point Park." Mr.

>wman.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The following Bill was, nemine contradicente, introduced and read the

irst time:
13 JOUR.
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Bill (No. 184), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Gray.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The following Bills were severally read the third time and passed:

Bill (No. 26 ), Respecting the City of Windsor.

Bill (No. 41), To establish a joint Industrial and Technical School

Board for the City of Windsor and the Town of Walkerville.

Bill (No. 17), Respecting Sons of England Benefit Society.

Bill (No. 21), Respecting the Township of Stamford.

Bill (No. 22), Respecting the Beechwood Cemetery Company of Ottawa.

Bill (No. 35), Respecting the Cities of Port Arthur and Fort William.

Bill (No. 39), Respecting the City of Port Arthur.

Bill (No. 33), Respecting the City of St. Thomas.

The following Bills were severally read the second time: -

Bill (No. 136), To amend The Corporations Tax Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 58), Respecting the construction of certain works on Lakes
and Streams in Ontario.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 57), To amend The Planning and Development Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 158), To amend The Loan and Trust Corporations Act.

Referred to a Select Committee to be composed as follows: Messieurs

Smith, Sandy, MacVicar, Casselman, Warren, Rollo, Homuth, Swayze, Raney,

Sinclair, Marshall, McLeod, Cooper (Welland), Henry, McCrea, Hill and

Buckland.
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Bill (No. 159), To amend The Police Magistrates Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 165), To amend The Minimum Wage Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 166), To amend The Public Health Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 173), To amend The Trades and Labour Branch Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 162), Respecting the Lake Huron and Northern Ontario Rail-

way Company.
i* -.*

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 172), To amend The Counties Reforestation Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 178), To amend The Amusements Tax Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

The House, according to Order, again resolved itself into the Committee
of Supply.

And after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Sandy reported, That the Com-

mittee had made some progress; also, That the Committee had directed him
to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The House then adjourned at 11 p.m.
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Wednesday, March 23rd, 1921.

3.00 O'CLOCK, P<M.

The Clerk having announced to the House,

That Mr. (Speaker was still unavoidably absent on account of illness, and

unable to take the Chair, and having requested the House to nominate a

Member to take the Chair,

Mr. Drury moved, seconded by Mr. Raney,

That the Honourable the Speaker, being unavoidably absent again To-day,
this House doth, under the provisions of the Statute in such case made and

provided, elect The Honourable Thomas Crawford, to take the Chair and

preside as Speaker for the day.

And the Motion having been put by the Clerk, was declared carried

unanimously, and

The Honourable Mr. Crawford having taken the Chair in accordance

therewith, the Mace was laid upon the Table.

PRAYERS.

Mr. Cooper (Toronto) presented the Report of the Committee regarding
a Monument to members of His Majesty's Forces, which was read as follows:

To the Honourable the Speaker, and Members of the Legislative Assembly

of the Province of Ontario:

The undersigned respectfully beg to submit the following Report, viz. :

Whereas on the 22nd day of April, 1920,
" On Motion of Mr. Cooper

(Toronto), seconded by Mr. Carmichael, it was resolved, that this House

desires to record in some appropriate manner its deep appreciation of the

distinguished services of all members of His Majesty's forces from the Prov-

ince of Ontario, who so gallantly fought for the Empire in the recent War,
and that a committee to consider how best to provide a permanent record of

such appreciation be appointed and to report to this House at its next Session" :

and

Whereas on the 28th of April, 1920,
" On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded

by Mr. Raney, it was ordered that the following be a Committee to consider

and report to this House in accordance with the resolution adopted by this
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House of 22nd April, instant, regarding a monument to and permanent record

of all members of His Majesty's Forces from the Province of Ontario who
served in the late War, and that the said Committee be authorized to sit

during the Recess: The Hon. Mr. Carmichael, the Hon. Mr. Ross (Kingston),
and Messrs Cooper (Toronto), Fenton, Stover and McNamara."

In pursuance of the foregoing instructions, the Committee held several

meetings, at the first of which Lieut-Colonel H. S. Cooper, O.B.E., M.C.,
with Bar, was elected Chairman, and a careful and thorough consideration

was given to the subject referred to them. They invited suggestions through
the Press from all interested, and, the better to ascertain the feeling of the

public, conferred, individually, as opportunity offered, with returned soldiers

officers and men and with representative citizens.

While it is admitted that it is often a most" difficult thing to gauge public

opinion accurately on any given subject, yet on this question -the evidence is

overwhelming that the people of Ontario are practically unanimous. We have

found a deep-rooted, widespread desire and determination to commemorate
the immortal deeds of our soldiers in a manner worthy of them and worthy
of the standing and good name of this Province. This cannot be done on a

small, inadequate scale. That fact need not be urged, for we take it that

this House will discharge its full duty, generously and handsomely in this

matter. Posterity will be the real judge. The measure of our appreciation

of what our people as a whole achieved in the Great War will be estimated

largely by what we shall do now. What we propose, however, to this House

we hope will be considered moderate and well within practical bounds, and yet

meet the prevailing feeling fairly well.

We have considered what is being done in Great Britain, in France and

in Flanders, and we realize that in the time to come our memorial will -be

placed in. comparison with War Memorials in these and other lands. During
the War, Ontario indisputably led Canada in men, in money and in Red

Cross comforts for hospital and field. Nay, comparatively speaking, our

Province led the British Empire in some of these respects, and this proud

place she desires to maintain in her reverence for the dead and in her apprecia-

tion of those soldiers happily still alive. The strength of the public sentiment

of our Province is strikingly testified to by the steps taken by township and

county councils, by cities, by churches, colleges and schools, to erect Heroic

Monuments and Triumphal. Arches, bronze, marble and mural Tablets, and

Memorial Windows, to preserve Honour Rolls, to found Scholarships, and in

a variety of other ways by book and picture to honour our glorious dead.

The resolutions of this Legislature have aroused keen and appreciative

interest and we have had nothing but encouragement in our deliberations

during the year.
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The Recommendations which we respectfully beg to submit are threefold

and are as follows, viz. :

DIVISION I.

Overseas Activities.

(1) The collecting and publishing of the names of all the men who
enlisted within the Province for any branch of war service. This would
include particulars of enlistment, such as locality, unit, draft, etc. Also

biographical data, such as names of parents, next of kin, whether married or

single; if married, name of wife, and of children, if any. Service record in

the war, mention in despatches, decorations, awards, promotions, etc. Com-

position of units throughout all stages of the war, including battalions, brigades,
division and corps, with names of commanders and staffs in all branches of

the Canadian Army.

(2) Photographs individuals, units, camps, places of interest associated

with service, such as trench life, barracks, hospitals, field camps, etc.
; speci-

mens of uniforms, accoutrements, arms, etc.

(3) Collections of letters, diaries, soldiers' newspapers, cartoons, etc.

(4) Hospital activities supported directly by the Province of Ontario.

(5) Camps in England in which Ontario Battalions were located.

(6) Accounts from officers and men of the hospitality extended to them

in Britain and in France.

(7) Hut life, such as that in which the Y.M.C.A., the Knights of Col-

umbus, the Salvation Army, and other organizations were interested.

(8) Nursing Sisters and V.A.D.'s.

(9) Field kitchens, field ambulances, armoured trucks, batteries, etc.,

contributed from private sources.

(10) An account of direct military work within the Province not in-

cluded in that done by Overseas units, including accounts of camps of instruc-

tion, mobilization and detention camps, Memorial Tablets, Rolls of Honour,

etc. A complete record for identification purposes of the graves of Ontario

soldiers who are buried in France, Flanders and elsewhere Overseas.

DIVISION II.

Civil Activities Within the Province.

(11) Manufacture of the munitions of war, with specimens.

(12) An account of all work performed by numerous organizations

throughout the Province of Ontario, branches of the Red Cross, St. John's
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Ambulance, Women's Institutes, church organizations, knitting circles, etc.,

and such organizations as the Daughters of the Empire, National Council of

Women, National Societies, Fraternal Societies, Girl Guides, Boy Scouts,

Cadet Corps, etc., etc.

(13) Service rendered by Universities, Colleges, Schools, Municipalities,

etc., etc., and contributions by individuals such as The Acetone Works, To-

ronto, Connaught Laboratories, Eoyal Canadian Institute, and other institu-

tions interested in the mobilization of Canadian Men of Science for war

purposes and in the application of science to the production of munitions,
for the prevention of disease, or the amelioration of hospital conditions.

(14) Organization and results of the Patriotic Fund throughout the

Province of Ontario.

(15) British Red Cross appeals.

(16) Special funds raised to meet conditions in France, Belgium, Serbia,

Roumania, the Dardanelles, Mesopotamia, Palestine, Egypt, etc., etc.

(17) Direct effect of war conditions on the agricultural, industrial, com-

mercial and financial life of the Province, as far as this can be estimated
;

also on church and educational life.

(18) That military units be thoroughly organized for the purposes of

this work.

DIVISION III.

Monuments.

(19) (a) A Cenotaph or other form of monument at the head of

Diversity Avenue, Toronto, or some other suitable site in that city.

..]

(b) Cenotaph or other form of monument at the Royal Military College,

Kingston, Ontario, provided this can fit in with the general War Memorial

Scheme projected for the College.

(20) A Memorial Hall of worthy proportions and architecture which

form a museum of relics of the War, including photographs, engravings,

dntings, statuary, regimental colours, badges, souvenirs, etc. This hall

light be regarded as the Valhalla of the Province. Its facade should he of

litable design, decorated with appropriate carvings. Within the hall there

night to be niches for statues, and an arrangement that would allow of coloured

endows to be presented by battalions or individuals emblematic of incidents

the War.
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This building ought to bei erected in conjunction with the Ontario

Archives, so that the administration would be in the hands of the Archives

Branch, thus reducing the maintenance expenses to that necessary for proper

caretaking.

(21) In general the preservation of all and sundry data illustrative of

the Great War.

(22) That the Committee be empowered to call for competitive plans
for both the Cenotaph and Memorial Hall, and in conjunction with the

Government be authorized to make a selection from those submitted or from

those that may be received from other sources.

(23) That a sum of money be provided in the estimates, not exceeding

$10,000, to cover the expenses for carrying on the clerical work, the collection

and securing of historical material, and the preservation, editing, and publish-

ing of what may be deemed desirable to be published as set forth in Divisions

!NTos. I and II of this Eeport.

It remains to acknowledge the great assistance we have had from Colonel

Fraser, A.D.C., Provincial Archivist, who is accumulating an invaluable,

collection of War records, and who unofficially acted at our request as Secretary
of the Committee.

Resolved, That this House doth concur in the foregoing Report.

The following Bill was introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 189), intituled
" An Act to amend The Ontario Eailway Act."

Mr. McCrea.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Tuesday next.

The following Bill was, nemine contradicente, introduced and read the

first time:

Bill (No. 190), intituled "An Act to amend The Assessment Act." Mr.

Lewis.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Tuesday next.
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On Motion of Mr. Marshall, seconded by Mr. Calder,

Ordered, That notwithstanding the time for presenting Petitions for

Private Bills has elapsed, the rule be suspended and leave be given to present a

Petition of Arthur A. Craise and others of Louth praying for the incorporation

of the Niagara Peninsula Growers, Limited, and that the same be now read and

received.

The following Petition was then read and received:

Petition of Arthur A. Craise and others of Louth, praying that an Act

ay pass to incorporate the Niagara Peninsula Growers, Limited.

On Motion of Mr. Marshall, seconded by Mr. Calder,

Ordered, That notwithstanding the time for introducing Private Bills

has expired, the rule be suspended and leave be given to introduce a Bill to

incorporate the Niagara Peninsula Growers, Limited, and that the same do

stand referred to the Committee on Private Bills without the formality of

report from the Committee on Standing Orders in such case maoe and provided.

The following Bill was thereupon introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 188), intituled
" An Act to incorporate the Niagara Peninsula

Growers, Limited." Mr. Marshall.
t

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

On Motion of Mr. Henry, seconded by Mr. Ross (Kingston), it was

Ordered,, That the Committee on Public Accounts request the permission
of the House to investigate the operation of, and purchase of cattle for, the

Ontario Reformatory Abattoir at Guelph, and to have produced before it all

accounts and vouchers in respect thereto, up to, or, as close as possible to

April 1st 1921.

On Motion of Mr. Buckland, seconded by Mr. Thompson, it was

Ordered, That the Committee on Public Accounts request the permission
of the House to enquire into purchases from the T. Eaton Co., Ltd., from the

14 JOtTR.
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end of the last fiscal year to 1st March, 1921, and that the accounts be

produced.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney,

Ordered; That when this House adjourns To-day, it do stand adjourned

until Three of the Clock in the afternoon of Tuesday, the Twenty-ninth day
of March, instant.

Mr. Price asked the following Question:

Has the Government read the pamphlet entitled, '"Don Quixote in

Finance," or
" Has Canada a Medici," a tale of Treasons, Stratagems and

Spoils, by W. H. P. Jarvis, placed on the desks of all members last Session.

If so, what does the Government intend to do concerning the serious allega-

tions contained therein.

And the Attorney-General replied as follows:

Some members of the Government, including the Attorney-Genera], have

read this pamphlet. The Attorney-General does not consider that the allega-

tions therein contained come within the scope of the duties of his Department
or call for any action.

Mr. Marshall asked the following Question:

1. Is there a Branch of the Provincial Secretary's Department specially

devoted to the repair and construction of Public Buildings. 2. If so, when

was
thiJ!

Branch created. 3. What was the necessity for its existence. 4.

What are the duties of the following persons named on pages 38 and 39 of

the Public Accounts for 1920, viz., George Barron, P. F. Butterfield, James

Govan, Allan Griffiths, W. G. McJannett, A. Eattray, G. Williams. 5. If the

aforesaid persons are engaged in surveying, preparing plans, or architectural

work or construction work, why are they not under the direction of the Public

Works Department. 6. Did the Public Works Department direct the building
of the Hospitals for Insane at Toronto, Hamilton, London, Kingston, Mimico,

Woodstock, Brockville, the Central Prison, the Mercer Reformatory and the

Parliament Buildings. 7. Is the Public Works Department not now equipped
with the facilities for repairing and constructing of -all Public Buildings re-

quired by the Province. 8. To whom are the aforesaid persons responsible for

the proper performance of their work.

And the Provincial Secretary replied in the words following:-
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1. ~No. 2. Answered by Xo. 1. 3. Answered by ISTo. 1. 4. Allan

Griffiths is not now an employee of the Ontario Government; James Govan,

Architect; G. Williams, Assistant Architect. The Hospital and Charitable

Institutions Act and others require that plans and specifications of all Prisons,

Gaols, Public or Private Hospitals, Houses of Refuge, Orphanages, Infants'

Homes or other Public Charities shall be approved by the Inspector of Prisons

and Public Charities. Schemes for the development of the Public Institutions

under the direction of the Inspector of Prisons and Public Charities must

originate in the Department charged with their control. The Ontario Jlousing

Act requires that the building schemes and the plans and specifications of the

houses to be erected be approved by the Director of Bureau of Municipal
Affairs. The Inspector of Prisons and Public Charities and the Director of

the Bureau of Municipal Affairs are both attached to the Provincial Secre-

tary's Department, and require professional advice in the discharge of their

duties. P. F. Butterfield, Surveyor, for repairing of roads, sewers, fences

and grounds of Public Institutions and to bring the maps of the several

Institutions up to date. A. Rattray, Clerk of Works
; George Barron, Super-

intendent Plumber; W. G. McJannett, Electrical Engineer, are engaged in

supervising the maintenance and repair of Public Institution Buildings and

Plants. 5. Answered by "No. 4. 6. Yes. 7. Yes, but under a ruling of the

Provincial Auditor in the year 1917, appropriations for maintenance and

repairs of all buildings, plumbing, steam and electric plants, furniture and

furnishings, etc., were transferred from the service
"
Public [Buildings

"

controlled by the Public Works Department to
"
Public Institutions Mainten-

ance
"

controlled by the Provincial Secretary's Department, as such expendi-
tures did not belong to Capital Account. 8. The Provincial Secretary.

Mr. Buckland asked the following Question:

1. Has the Government made any payments of any kind to Mr. Arthur

Hawkes in connection with the enquiry now being conducted by the Royal
Radial Commission. 2. If so, what payments have been made. 3. Does the

Government expect to pay for his services.

To which the Attorney-General replied as follows:

1. No. 2. Answered by Xo'. 1. 3. Yes. Mr. Hawkes has been employed

by Mr. R. S., Robertson to assist him and the Government will pay the assist-

ants employed by Mr. Robertson.

On Motion of Mr. Pinard, seconded by Mr. O'Neill,

Ordered, That there be laid before the House a Return showing: 1. What

is the number of applications to the Board of License Commissioner,, or any
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Commissioner, Official or Minister for the remission of fines or sentences under

the O.T.A. in regard to which the member for South-East Toronto (Seat "B")
acted personally or was interested professionally. 2. (a) What is the number

of such applications favourably considered; (b) Rejected. 3. (a) What is

the total sum of fines under the O.T.A. remitted in regard to which the member
for South-East Toronto (Seat "B") acted personally or was interested pro-

fessionally; (&) What is the aggregate number of fines remitted from sentences

imposed under the O.T.A. in regard to which the member for South-East

Toronto (Seat "B") acted personally or was interested professionally.

The following Bills were severally read the second time:

Bill (No. 156), To amend The Local Improvement Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 164), To amend The Line Fences Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 177), To provide for the maintenance of Parents by their

Children.

Referred to the Legal Committee.

Bill (No. 179), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 174), To amend The Loan and Trust Corporations Act.

Referred to the same Select Committee to which was referred Bill (No.

158), To amend the Loan and Trust Corporations Act.

The Order of the Bay for the second reading of Bill (No. 107), To

amend The Ontario Insurance Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 13),

Respecting two abandoned Cemeteries in the Town of Port Colborne, and
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after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr.

Watson reported, That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill

without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time on Tuesday next.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 117),
To amend The Police Magistrates Act, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Com-
mittee had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again on Tuesday next.

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to- consider Bill (No.

Ill), To incorporate the Town of Kapuskasing, and after some time spent

therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That

the Committee had directed him to report the Bill with cetain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time on Tuesday next.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 120),

Respecting the Adoption of Children, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Com-
mittee had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again on Tuesday next.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 136),

To amend The Corporations Tax Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time on Tuesday next.

The House then adjourned at 10 p.m.
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Tuesday, March 29th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

The following Petitions were severally brought up and laid upon the

Table :-

By Mr. Buckland, Two Petitions of the County Council of Wellington.

The following Petition was read and received:

Of the United Counties of Lennox and Addington, praying for certain

Amendments to The Highway Improvement Act, 1920.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 191), intituled
" An Act to amend The Planning arid Develop-

ment Act." Mr. Hill.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 192), intituled
" An Act to aniend The Conveyancing and Law

of Property Act." Mr. Hill.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

109). For the Protection of Children of Unmarried Parents, and after some

time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar re-

ported, That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill with certain

amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 159).
To amend The Police Magistrates Act, and after some time spent therein,
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Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Com-

mittee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered,, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 165),

To amend The Minimum Wage Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 162),

Respecting the Lake Huron and Northern Ontario Railway Company, and

after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Mac-

Vicar reported, That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill with-

out any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 172),
To amend The Counties Reforestation Act, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Com-
mittee had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 55), To amend
The Public Inquiries Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The following Bill was then introduced and read a first time :

Bill (No. 193), intituled "An Act to amend The Public Inquiries Act."

[r. Drury.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The House then adjourned at 6.00 p.m.
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Wednesday, March 30th, 1921.

PEAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Nixon, from the Standing Committee on Municipal Law, presented
their Third Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee have carefully considered the following Bill and beg to

report the same without amendment:

Bill (No. 152), An Act to amend The Highway Improvement Act.

Your Committee have also carefully considered the following Bills and

beg to report the same with certain amendments :

Bill (No. 166), An Act to amend The Public Health Act.

Bill (No. 168), An Act to amend The Boards of Education Act.

The following Bill was introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 194), intituled "An Act respecting the Office of King's
Printer." Mr. Smith.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Mr. Swayze, the Member for Niagara Falls, having stated, while address-

ing the House, that a member of the Chippawa Commission of 1920, was

insincere as a member thereof.

Mr. MacBride, rising in his place, demanded that Mr. Swayze should

state specifically the name of such Member, and thereupon Mr. Swayze stated

that Mr. MacBride was the Member of said Committee he referred to.

Mr. MacBride then moved,

That the matter be referred to the Committee on Privileges and Elections

for investigation and report.

And the question being submitted to the House, was carried, and it was

Ordered, That the matter in question do stand referred to the Standing
Committee on Privileges and Elections for enquiry and report.
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The following Bills were severally read the second time:

Bill (No. 180), To amend The Registry Act,

Referred to the Legal Committee.

Bill (No. 14), To confirm By-law No. 744 of the Town of Orillia.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 29), Respecting the Township of Etobicoke and The Weston
Golf and Country Club, Limited.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 37), Respecting the City of London.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 38), Respecting the Town of Gananoque.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee, severally to consider the

following Bills:

Bill (No. 34), Respecting the Village of Acton.

Bill (No. 5), Respecting the Town of Pembroke.

Bill (No. 15), To amend and consolidate the Acts respecting the Essex

Border Utilities Commission.

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the

Committee had directed him to report the several Bills without Amendments.

Ordered,, That the Bills reported, be severally read the third time To-

morrow.

On Motion of Mr. Tolmie,

Ordered, That Order No. 49 be discharged and that Bill (No. 42), To

incorpoTate the Town of River Side, be recommitted to the Standing Committee

on Private Bills for further consideration and report.
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On Motion of Mr. Tolmie,

Ordered, That Order No. 55 be discharged and that Bill (No. 43), To

annex certain lands to the Town of Ford City, be recommitted to the Standing

Committee on Private Bills for further consideration and report.

On Motion of Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Biggs,

Ordered, That this House do forthwith resolve itself into a Committee

of the Whole to consider certain proposed Resolutions respecting apparatus

to be used for the protection of buildings from damage by lightning.

Mr. Drury acquainted the House that His Honour the Lieutenant-

Governor, having been informed of the subject matter of the proposed Resolu-

tions recommends them to the consideration of the House.

The House then resolved itself into the Committee.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, 1. That no person, or corporation, shall sell or offer for sale

material or apparatus intended to be used for the protection of buildings from

damage by lightning, or to install upon any building or structure any appar-

atus intended to, or purporting to be used for such purpose until authorized to

do so bv a license obtained from the Provincial Fire Marshal, for which a fee

of $50 per annum shall be payable to the Treasurer of Ontario, together with

a tax of 80 cents on every $100 received from the sale of lightning rods and

equipment in respect of business transacted in Ontario.

2. That upon written notice from the licensee of the appointment of a

suitable person to act as his agent in this Province, the Fire Marshal may, if

he is satisfied that the appointee is a suitable person, issue to him a license

as such agent upon the receipt of a fee of $3, payable to the Treasurer of

Ontario, such license to continue in force for the current year.

3. That any person not licensed as above, selling, offering for sale or

installing lightning rods shall be liable to a fine not exceeding $200 or six

months' imprisonment, or both.

4. That the license fees and tax paid to the Treasurer of Ontario as

above be added to the special fund for maintenance of the office of Fire Marshal

and the expense incidental thereto.
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Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the

Committee had come to certain Resolutions.

Ordered, That the Report be now received.

Mr. MacVicar reported the Resolutions as follows:

Resolved, 1. That no person, or corporation, shall sell or offer for sale

material or apparatus intended to be used for the protection of buildings from

damage by lightning, or to install upon any building or structure any appar-
atus intended to, or purporting to be used for such purpose until authorized to

do so by a license obtained from the Provincial Fire Marshal, for which a fee

of $50 per annum shall be payable to the Treasurer of Ontario, together with

a tax of 80 cents on every $100 received from the sale of lightning rods and

equipment in respect of business transacted in Ontario.

2. That upon written notice from the licensee of the appointment of a

suitable person to act as his agent in this Province, the Fire Marshal may, if

he is satisfied that the appointee is a suitable person, issue to him a license

as such agent upon the receipt of a fee of $3, payable to the Treasurer of

Ontario, such license to continue in force for the current year.

3. That any person not licensed as above, selling, offering for sale or

installing lightning rods shall be liable to a fine not exceeding $200 or six

months' imprisonment, or both.

4. That the license fees and tax paid to the Treasurer of Ontario as

above be added to the special fund for maintenance of the office of Fire Marshal

and the expense incidental thereto.

The Resolutions having been read the second time, were agreed to, and

rferred to the Committee of the Whole House on Bill (No. 195), To regulate

le sale and installation of Lightning Rods for the Province of Ontario.

The following Bill was then introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 195), intituled
" An Act to regulate the sale and installation

)f Lightning Rods for the Province of Ontario." Mr. Smith.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 182), To
lend The Statute of Frauds, having been read,
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Mr. Brackin moved,

That the Bill be now read the second time.

And the Motion, having been put, was lost on a Division.

And so it was declared in the Negative.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 184), To amend
The Municipal Act, having been read,

Mr. Gray moved,

That the Bill be now read the second time.

And the Motion, having been put, was lost on a Division.

And so it was declared in the Negative.

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

66), Respecting the Office of Crown Attorney in the City of Toronto and

the County of York, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed

the Chair
;
and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Committee had directed him

to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 173),
To amend The Trades and Labour Branch Act, and after some time spent

therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster reported, That

the Committee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House then adjourned at 11.00 p.m.
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Thursday, March 31st, 1921.

3 O'CLOCK, P.M.

The following Petitions were read and received:

Of the County Council of Wellington, praying for certain amendments
The Provincial Highways Act.

Of the County Council of Wellington, praying for certain amendments
to The Game and Fisheries Act.

Mr. Raney, from the Standing Committee on Private Bills, presented
their Eleventh Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee beg to report the following Bills without amendment:

Bill (No. 24), An Act respecting the City of Windsor.

Bill (No. 49), An Act respecting the Trafalgar Agricultural Society

and the Corporation of the Town of Oakville.

Your Committee beg to report the following Bills with certain amend-

ments :

Bill (No. 10), An Act respecting The City Gas Company of London.

Bill (No. 40), An Act respecting the Town of Kincardine.

Mr. Nixon, from the Standing Committee on Municipal Law, presented
icir Fourth Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee have carefully considered the following Bill, and beg

report the same with certain amendments :

Bill (No. 161), An Act to amend The Public Parks Act.

The following Bill was introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 196), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Tax Ex-

iption Act, 1920." Mr. Drury.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.
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The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (!N"o. 129),
To amend The Mining Act of Ontario, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Com-
mittee had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 193), To
amend The Public Inquiries Act, having been read

Mr. Drury moved,

That the Bill be now read the second time.

Mr. McCrea raised the point of order that the Bill was in effect exactly
the same in its provisions as Bill (No. 55), To amend The Public Inquiries

Act, which was, on the Motion of the Premier discharged from the Order

Paper on Tuesday last, and that therefore the matter, having been disposed
of by the House, could not again be brought up during the present Session

and asked for the ruling of Mr. Speaker upon the point involved.

Mr. Speaker said

That he preferred to consider the question raised by the Honourable

Member and would therefore postpone his decision until the afternoon of

To-morrow.

Mr. McCrea then moved,

That the Debate on the Motion for the second reading be postponed until

To-morrow, which was acceded to

The House, according to Order, again resolved itself into the Committee

of Supply.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That there be granted to His Majesty, for the services of 1921,
the following sums :

109. To defray the expenses of Legislation 2,000 00
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110. To defray the expenses 'of the Administration of Justice,

Sundry Civil and Criminal Justice 3,980 00

111. To defray the expenses of the Administration of Justice

in Districts 15,738 00

113. To defray the expenses of the Normal and Model Schools,

Toronto 6,366 67

114. To defray the expenses of the Normal and Model Schools,

Ottawa 1,939 00

i

115. To defray the expenses of the Normal School, London. .. 1,350 00

116. To defray the expenses of the Normal School, Hamilton. . 1,725 00

117. To defray the expenses of the Normal School, Peterborough.. 1,400 00

118. To defray the expenses of the Normal School, Stratford. . 1,450 00

319. To defray the expenses of the Normal School, North Bay 3,100 00

120. To defray the expenses of the English
- French Training

School, Ottawa 280 00

122. To defray the expenses of the English
- French Training

School, Vankleek Hill .

,

700 00

123. To defray the expenses of the English
- French Training

School, Sandwich 300 00

124. To defray the expenses of the High Schools and Collegiate

Institutes 51,608 27

125. To defray the expenses of the Public Libraries, Art

Schools, Historical, Literary and Scientific Societies. . . . 15,100 00

127. To defray the expenses of the Provincial and other Uni-

versities 30,000 00

128. To defray the expenses of the Northern Aca'demy, Monteith 53,480 00

129. To defray the expenses of the Ontario School for the. Deaf,

Belleville 11,775 67

130. To defray the expenses of the Ontario School for the Blind,

Brantford 1,300 00
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131. To defray the expenses of the Miscellaneous Education 50,975 00

And the House having continued in Committee until Twelve of the Clock

midnight,

Friday, 1st April, 1921.

The House continued in Committee.

132. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Brockville. . 25,500 00

133. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Cobourg 16,400 00

134. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Hamilton. . 64,900 00
r

135. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Kingston. . 18,200 00

136. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, London 36,000 00

1 37. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Mimico .... 14,000 00

138. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Orillia 12,500 00
I

139. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Pene-

tanguishene 12,500 00

140. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Whitby 63,500 00

141. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Woodstock. . 10,800 00

142. To defray the expenses of the Industrial Farm, Burwash. . 14,500 00

143. To defray the expenses of the Industrial Farm, Fort William 2,800 00

144. To defray the expenses of the Miscellaneous Public In-

stitutions 5,100 00

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the

Committee had come to several Kesolutions; also, That the Committee had

directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Ordered, That the report be received To-day.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-day.

The House then adjourned at 12.55 a.m.
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Friday, April 1st, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3 O'CLOCK, P.M.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 197), intituled
" An Act to amend The Ontario Insurance

Act." Mr. Eaney.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 198), intituled "An Act to amend The Ontario Insurance

Act." Mr. Eaney.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 199), intituled
" An Act to amend The Ontario Public Trustee

Act." Mr. Eaney.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 200), intituled "An Act to amend The Division Courts Act."

Mr. Hay.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Upon the Orders of the Day being called,

Mr. Speaker said, that in accordance with his promise of yesterday to

give a decision upon the point of order raised by Mr. McCrea upon the Motion

for the second reading of Bill (No. 193), To amend The Public Inquirie-

Act, he would rule as follows:

" Where changes to be made in a Bill in Committee are so extensive as to

amount substantially to a new Bill, the proper course to take is to withdraw

the first Bill and introduce a new one. There is no rule or custom which

restrains the introduction of two or more Bills relating to the same subject

and containing similar provisions much less is there anything to prevent the

introduction of two or more Bills dealing with the same subject in an entirely

different manner. Bill (No. 55), proposes to deal with a certain situation

in one way Bill (No. 193), proposes to deal with the same situation in

another way. Bill (No. 55), was withdrawn without the House having

passed upon the principle involved, but even if a vote had been taken and the

motion for second reading defeated, there would have been nothing to pre-
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vent Bill (No. 193) being introduced and considered they are entirely

different measures. (See May's Parliamentary Practice, 12th edition, pp.

354-355.)

"While the English authorities are clear it may be added that the practice

followed in the present instance has been adopted in numerous instances in

this Legislature, so that the practice is well settled here that a Member may
with the consent of the House withdraw a Bill at any stage and substitute

another containing similar, or, as in this case, totally different provisions."

On Motion of Mr. Hall, seconded by Mr. Dewart,

Resolved, That whereas it has been made to appear to the House by the

statement made this day to this House, by Kichard Reece Hall and by an

article appearing on page 27 of the Toronto Telegram newspaper of date of

March 31st, referring to the Parry Sound Development Plant, that the said

statement and the matters therein contained be referred to the Standing Com-

mittee on Privileges and Elections, and that the said Committee be instructed

to inquire into and report thereon, with power to send for and examine all

necessary persons and papers in or concerning the premises. And that the

said Committee be empowered to sit for such purpose.

Mr. Fowler asked the following Question:

1. How many persons have been added to the service of each of the depart-

ments of the Government since the 13th November, 1919. 2. How many

persons have been temporarily employed in any capacity by each of the de-

partments of the Government since 13th November, 1919.

And the Premier replied in the words and figures following:

1. Inside service

Increases -

Office of the Lieutenant-Governor

Department of Education 15

Department of Game and Fisheries

Department of Attorney-General 17

Additions Board of License Commissioners for Ontario,

Office of Public Trustee.

Department of Labour 27

Addition Mother's Allowances Commission.

Provincial Board of Health . 37
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Department of Lands and Forests 8

Department of Mines 16

Addition Office of Fuel Controller.

Department of Public Highways 30

Department of the Treasurer 11

Civil Service Commissioner's Office 3

Total 167

Decreases

Department of the Prime Minister and President of the Council 1

Department of Agriculture 5

Department of Provincial Secretary
'

19

Department of Public Works
,

19

Total 44

Net increase 123.

2. Inside service

Department of the Prime Minister and President of the Council 13

Department of Agriculture 30

Department of Attorney-General ,. . . . 44

Department of Education 150

Department of Game and Fisheries . 9

Department of Labour 117

Department of Lands and Forests 21

Department of Mines 23

Department of Provincial Secretary 94

Department of Public Highways 85

Department of Public Works 150

Department of the Treasurer . 85

Total
. 821

Mr. Lewis, asked the following Question :

What is the estimated cost of the alterations and extensions necessary
the Old Knox College to make it suitable for the Government requirements.

And the Minister of Public Works replied in the words following:

Alterations including elevator, vaults, sanitary fittings and alterations

for laboratories for Provincial Board of Health, forty-two thousand dollars.

Extensions fireproof vaults and offices for Registrar-General (Vital Stat-

istics), seventy thousand dollars.
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Mr. McLeod asked the following Question:

1. What is the number of petitions that have been received by the Gov-

ernment or any Minister or Official connected therewith praying that the find-

ings of the Special Committee on Hydro rates be incorporated into legislation

at the present Session (a) From Farmers' Clubs; (6) From Municipal Coun-

cils; (c) From other organized bodies, societies or associations.

And the Premier replied in the words and figures following:

(a) 32. (&) 131. (c) None; but 154 petitions signed by various num-

bers of electors.

Mr. Marceau asked the following Question:

1. Who is G. Dupuis in respect to whom there appears to have been paid

a refund of $2,000 on account of O.T.A. fine (Public Accounts, page 666).
2. Upon whose recommendation was such fine remitted or refunded and on

what grounds.

To which the Attorney-General replied as follows:

1. G. Dupuis, who received a refund of $2,000 on account of an O.T.A.

fine, as mentioned in Public Accounts, page 666, is Gilbert Dupuis, a farmer

of Essex County, residing near Amherstburg. 2. The refund mentioned was

made pursuant to an Order-in-Council dated the 20th October, 1920, which

was passed upon the recommendation of the Attorney-General on the sugges-

tion of the Board of License Commissioners for Ontario. The grounds for

the said recommendation are as follows: The said Gilbert Dupuis was con-

victed at Amherstburg on the 2nd July, 1920, of a breach of The Ontario

Temperance Act and fined $1,300 and costs. Subsequently the said Gilbert

Dupui was convicted of an offence against The Ontario Temperance Act by
Police Magistrate W. D. Beaman of Essex County, and fined $2,000 and

costs. Upon investigation it was found that the second conviction was upon
the same facts and was really for the same offence as the first conviction.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 175),
" To

amend The Factory, Shop and Office Building Act," having been read,

Mr. Lewis moved,

That the Bill be now read the second time.

And the Motion, having been put, was lost on a Division.

And so it was declared in the Negative.
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The following Bill was read the second time:

Bill (No. 189), To amend The Ontario Railway Act.

Referred to the Railway Committee.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House:

Return to an Order of the House, of February 9th, 1921, that there be

laid before the House a Return showing: 1. What was the total quantity of

fish caught in Lake Nipissing and Lake Nipigon, respectively, and marketed

in the following years 1917, 1918, 1919 and 1920. 2. What were the var-

ieties of fish caught and marketed in Lake Mpissing and Lake Nipigon re-

spectively, and the quantity of each. 3. What was the price paid to fishermen

for each . variety ;
what was the price at which the Government sold each

variety; to whom were such sales made. 4. To whom were licenses issued

to take fish from Lake Nipissing and Lake Nipigon respectively, in the years

917, 1918, 1919 and 1920. 5. Is it the intention of the Government to

ntinue this Fishery Department as a commercial enterprise. 6. What were

the gross receipts from fish sales in Lake Nipissing and Lake Nipigon in the

years 1917, 1918, 1919 and 1920, and what were the net profits of the Govern-

ment in each of said years. (Sessional Papers, No. 83.)

The House then adjourned at 5.25 p.m.

Monday, April 4th, 1921.

LYEES. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 201), intituled
" An Act to amend The County Judges Act."

[r. Raney.

Ordered,, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 202), intituled
" An Act to amend The Ontario Telephone

:t." Mr. Drury.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The following Bills were read the third time and

Bill (Ko. 112), To amend The Public Health Act.
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Bill (No. 13), Respecting two abandoned Cemeteries in the Town" of

Port Colborne.

Bill (No. 34), Respecting the \7illage of Acton.

Bill (No. 5), Respecting the Town of Pembroke.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 38),

Respecting the Town, of Gananoque, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

Mr. O'Neill asked the following Question:

1. What is the number of applications that have been made to the Attorney-

General or any Minister or Member of the Government or the Board of Li-

cense Commissioners for clemency and remission of fine or penalty imposed

under The Ontario Temperance Act from the 13th day of November, 1919.

to the 1st day of March, 1920. 2. What is the total number of cases in which

clemency was exercised in whole or in part. 3. What is the number of cases

in which clemency was recommended in whole or in part by the Board of

License Commissioners and refused by the Attorney-General or the Executive

Council. .3. What is the number of cases in which the Attorney-General has

acted upon his own initiative.

And the Attorney-General replied in the words and figures following:

1. 178. 2. 93. 3. None. 4. None, between dates mentioned.

Mr. Cook asked the following Question:

1. What, if any, timber has been sold in Algonquin Park since Nov. 13,

1919. 2. Was it advertised for tenders. 3. To whom was it sold and what

was the price. 4. What was the size of the area disposed of.

And the Minister of Lands and Forests replied as follows:

1. For the purpose of cleaning up Algonquin Park, and following the

recommendation of the Crown Timber Agent and the Superintendent of the
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Park, the dead and down timber only is being removed on an area formerly
under license for standing timber. 2. No. 3. George Jamieson. $1.50 per
M. ft. B.M. for pine, cedar, etc., taken out in the log. Pulpwood, 50c. per
cord. Kailway ties, lOc. each. Cordwood, 25c. per cord. 4. 68% square
miles.

Mr. Stover asked the following Question:

1. Who is M. A. Mackenzie, for whose services as an Actuary investigating

Civil Service Superannuation, the sum of $1,000 appears to have been paid

(Public Accounts, page 538). 2. Has his report been received by the Govern-

ment. 3. Is it the intention of the Government to publish same for the

information of the House.

To which the Provincial Treasurer replied as follows:

1. Professor of Mathematics, University of Toronto. 2. It was received

by former Government, on January 3rd, 1918. 3. It has not been considered.

tThe
House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

117), To amend The Police Magistrates Act, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Com-
mittee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

120), Respecting the Adoption of Children, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Com-
mittee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.
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The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 60),

Respecting Legitimation of Children by subsequent inter-marriage of their

Parents, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;

and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Committee had directed him to report
the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 178),

To amend The Amusements Tax Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The following Bills were severally read the second time:

Bill (No. 181), To amend The Burlington Beach Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 185), The Public Lands Act,

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 187), Respecting Long Point Park.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 194), Respecting the Office of King's Printer.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.
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The House, according to Order, again resolved itself into the Committee

of Supply.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That there be granted to His Majesty, for the services of 1921,

the following sums: .

146. To defray the expenses of the Dairy Branch 1,000 00

147. To defray the expenses of the Agricultural Representative
Branch. ; 15,000 00

148. To defray the expenses of the Miscellaneous Agriculture. . 2,139 02

j

149. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Agricultural College. . 22,170 00

150. To defray the expenses of the Macdonald Institute and Hall 3,300 00

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported. That the

Committee had come to several Resolutions
; also, That the Committee had

directed him to ask for leave to sit a^ain.

Ordered, That the Report be received To-morrow.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of Hia

[onour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Report of the Hydro-Electric Power Commission for the year 1920.

Sessional Papers, No. 49.)

The House then adjourned at 6.10 p.m.

15 JOUR.
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Tuesday, April 5th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Raney, from the Select Committee to which was referred Bill (No.

158), To amend The Loan and Trust Corporations Act, presented -their

Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee have carefully considered the Bill to them referred, and

report the same without amendment.

Mr. Nixon, from the Standing Committee on Municipal Law, presented

their Fifth Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

\ Your Committee have carefully considered the following Bills, and beg
to report the same with certain amendments:

Bill (No. 56), An Act to amend The Local Improvement Act.

Bill (No. 57), An Act to amend The Planning and Development Act.

The following Bill was introduced and read the first time :

Bill (No. 203), intituled
" An Act to amend The School Attendance

Act, 1919." Mr. Brackin.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion

for the second reading of Bill (No. 193), To amend The Public Inquiries

Act, having been read,

The Debate was resumed,

And after some time,

The Motion for the second reading, having been again put, was carried,

and the Bill was read the second time and referred to a Committee of the

Whole House To-morrow.
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The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of the

Lieutenant-Governor :

Report of the Committee on Proportional Representation. (Sessional

Papers, No. 81.)

Also Report on the Administration of Criminal Justice and Treatment

of Prisoners in New York, Chicago, Detroit and Toronto, by His Honour

Judge Coatsworth, Senior Judge of the County of York, Province of Ontario.

(Sessional .Papers, No. 56.)

The House then adjourned at 11.50 p.m.

Wednesday, April 6th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Raney, from the Standing -Committee on Private Bills, presented

s
their Twelfth Report, which was read as fallows and -adopted :

Your Committee beg to report the following Bill with certain amend-

ments :

w

Bill (No. 44) An Act respecting the' County of Carleton.

Your Committee recommend that the fees, less the actual cost of printing,

remitted on Bill (No. 32),
" An Act providing for the appointment of a

Town Planning Commission for the City of Ottawa and de'fining the powers
of such Commission," the same having been withdrawn by the promoters

reof.

Ordered, That the fees, less the actual cost of printing, be remitted on

Mil (No. 32), Ottawa Town Planning Commission.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 204), intituled
" An Act to amend The Community Halls Act."

T. Doherty.

Ordered, That the Bill be 1 read the second time To-morrow.
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Bill (No. 205), intituled "An Act respecting Provincial Aid to Drain-

age." Mr. Biggs.

Ordered, That the Bill 'be
1 read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 206), intituled "An Act to provide for the construction of

Township Roads by Special Assessment." Mr. Biggs.

Ordered, That the Bill foe
1 read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 207), intituled "An Act to amend The Ontario Temperance
Act." Mr. Raney.

Ordered, That the Bill be1 read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 208), intituled
" An Act respecting Professional Engineers."

Mr. Gray.

Ordered, That the Bill be1 read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 209), intituled
" An Act to amend The Parole Act." Mr. Nixon.

Ordered, That the Bill be1 read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 210), intituled
" An Act to amend The Marriage Act." Mr.

Nixon.

Ordered, That the Bill be1 read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 211), intituled "An Act to amend The University Act." Mr.

Grant.

Ordered, That the Bill be1 read the second time To-morrow.

Mr. Magladery asked the following Question:

1. What has been the annual revenue collected by the Department of

Mines or. any Department year by year, since and including 1907, under the

following headings: (a) Sale of mining lands and leases; (b) Royalties col-

lected; (c) Profits tax collected; (d) Acreage tax collected. 2. What has

been paid by the mines to the T.N.O. Railway Commission by way of royalties

on mineral production.
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And the Minister of Mines replied in the figures following:

1.

(&)

(c)

1907 |.
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And the Minister of Lands and Forests replied as follows:;

(1) Yes. (2) Walter C. Cain. (3) 9th of July, 1920. At $3,300

per annum. (4) Yes. (5) From the 1st of November, 1919, arrears $825.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 168),

To amend the Boards of Education Act, and after some time spent therein,

the Committee rose.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 161
s

),

To amend The Public Parks Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacYicar reported, That the Committee

had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 193),
To amend The Public Inquiries Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be- read the third time To-morrow.
'

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

129), To amend The Mining Act of Ontario, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster reported. That the Com-
mittee had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit a^ain To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 181),
To amend The Burlington Beach Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Webster reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments (be taken into consideration forthwith.
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The Amendments, having 'been, read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a, Committee to consider Bill (No. 185),
The Pulblic Lands Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed
the Chair; and Mr. WeJbster reported, That the Committee had made1 some

progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The Order of the Bay for the second reading of Bill (No. 190), To amend
The Assessment Act, having been read,

The House, according to Order, again resolved itself into the Committee

of Supply.

Mr. Lewis moved, That the Bill be1 now read the second time.

And the Motion, having been put, was lost on a Division.

And so it was declared in the Negative.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That there be granted to His Majesty, for the services of 1921,
the following sums :

145. To defray the expenses of the Live Stock Branch 12,221 00

151. To defray the expenses of the Colonization and Immigration 8,500 00

121. To defray the expenses of the English
- French Training-

School, Sturgeon Falls ., 4,085 00

~
And the Committee having continued to sit until Twelve of the Clock

midnight,
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Thursday, 7th April, 1921.

The House continued in Committee.

198. To defray the expenses of the Department of Mines 20,700 00

200. To defray the expenses of the Miscellaneous 2,100 00

202. To defray the expenses of the Temiskaming and Northern

Ontario Railway Commission 1,443,283 33

153. To defray the expenses of the Parliament and Departmental

Buildings Maintenance 104,653 00

154. To defray the expenses of the Osgoode Hall Maintenance. . 7,000 00

155. To defray the expenses of the Miscellaneous, Maintenance

and Repairs of Government Buildings 19,516 00

i

156. To defray the expenses of the Osgoode Hall, Repairs 21,500 00

157. To defray the expenses of the Normal and Model Schools,

Toronto, Repairs 11,300 00

158. To defray the expenses of the Normal and Model Schools,

Ottawa, Repairs 9,400 00

159. To defray ithe expenses of the Normal School, London.

Repairs 2,570 00

160. To defray the expenses of the Normal School, Hamilton,

Repairs 1,130 00

161. To defray the expenses of the Normal School, Peterborough,

Repairs 2,750 00

162. To defray the expenses of the Normal School, Stratford,

Repairs 1,700 00

163. To defray the expenses of the Normal School, North Bay,

Repairs 1,400 00

164. To defray the expenses of the Ontario School for Deaf, Belle-

ville, Repairs .' 20,575 75

165. To defray the expenses of the Ontario School for Blind,

Brantford, Repairs 7,700 00
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166. To defray the expenses of the Training School, Sandwich. . 1,345 44

167. To defray the expenses of the Training School, Sturgeon
Falls 18,000 00

168. To defray the expenses of the Northern Academy, Monteith 2,000 00

169. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Brockville. . 4,000 00

t

170. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Hamilton. . 6,500 00

171. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Kingston. . 28,136 72

i

172. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, London. . . . 11,000 00

173. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Mimico 10,000 00

174. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Orillia 11,000 00

175. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Whitby. . . . 393,000 00

176. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Woodstock. . 3,500 00

177. To defray the expenses of the Industrial Farm, Burwash. . . . 35,350 00

179. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Veterinary College,

Repairs . 500 00

180. To defray the expenses of the Horticultural Experiment
Station, Vineland 11,000 00

181. To defray the expenses of the District Buildings, Algoma. . 1,450 00

82. To defray the expenses of the District Buildings, Kenora 300 00

.83. To defray the expenses of the District Buildings, Manitoulin 200 00

84. To defray the expenses of the District Buildings, Muskoka. . 300 00

.85. To defray the expenses of the District Buildings, Nipissing. . 1,400 00

.86. To defray the expenses of the District Buildings, Parry
Sound 38,400 00

87. To defray the expenses of the District Buildings, Rainy
River 2,000 00

Ifi JOUR.
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188. To defray the expenses of the District Buildings, Sudbury . . 36,600 00

189. To defray the expenses of the District Buildings, Temis-

kaming 24,010 00

190. To defray the expenses of the District Buildings, Thunder

Bay 20,600 00

191. To defray the expenses of the Miscellaneous Public Buildings 500 00

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster reported. That the

Committee had come to several Resolutions; also, That the Committee had
directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Ordered, That the Report be received To-day.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-day.

The House then adjourned at 5.15 a.m.

Thursday, April 7th, 1921.

PKAYEES. 3.00 O'Clock, P.M.

Mr. Raney, from the Standing Committee on Private Bills, presented
their Thirteenth Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee beg to report the following Bills with certain amend-
ments:

Bill (No. 36), An Act respecting the City of Ottawa.

Bill (No. 42), An Act to incorporate the Town of River Side1

.

Bill (No. 43), An Act to annex certain land to the Town of Ford City.

Bill (No. 52), An Act respecting the City of Kitchener.

Bill (No. 188), An Act to incorporate Niagara Peninsula Growers,

Limited.
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Your 'Committee recommend that notwithstanding Rule 51 of Your
Honourable House, the time for receiving Reports of Committees on Private

Bills be extended to and inclusive of Thursday, the1

Twenty-first day of April
instant.

Ordered, That the time for receiving Reports of Committees on Private

Bills be further extended until and inclusive of Thursday, the twent} -first day
of April instant.

The following Bills were introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 212), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Drainage
Act." Mr. Webster.

Ordered, That the1 Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The following Bill was, nemine contradicente, introduced and read the

first time:

Bill (No. 213), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Ireland.

Ordered, That the1 Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The following Bills were severally read the third time 'and passed :

Bill (No. 99), To amend The Agricultural Associations Act.

Bill (No. 81), To amend The Succession, Duties Act.

Bill (No. 76), To amend The Motor Vehicles Act.

Bill (No. 133),. To amend The Audit Act.

Bill (No. 135), The Highways Improvement Act, 1921.

Bill (No. 45), To incorporate the Town of Tecumseh.

Bill (No. 102), Respecting The Ontario Provincial Police Force.

Bill (No. 162), Respecting the Lake1 Huron and Northern Ontario Rail-

iv Company.

Bill (No. 165), To amend The Minimum Wage Act.
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Bill (No. 15), To amend and consolidate the Acts respecting the Essex

Border Utilities Commission.

Bill (No. 66), Eespecting the 1 Office of Crown Attorney in the City of

Toronto and the County of York.

Bill (No. 38), Respecting the Town of Giananoque
1

.

Bill (No. 117), To amend The Police Magistrates Act.

Bill (No. 120), Respecting the Adoption of Children.

Bill (No. 60), Respecting Legitimation of Children (by subsequent inter-

marriage of their parents.

Bill (No. 178), To license Billiard and Pool Rooms and Bowling Alleys.

Bill (No. 193), To amend The Public Inquiries Act.

The Order of the Day for the third reading of Bill (No. 118), To pro-

vide for the appointment of Police Magistrates with extended jurisdiction,

having been read,

Mr. Raney moved,

That the Bill be now read the third time.

Mr. Dewart moved in amendment, seconded by Mr. O'Xeill,

That all the words of the Motion after the first word " That ?? be stricken

out and the following substituted therefor:

" The Bill be not now read the third time but be forthwith recommitted

to a Committee of the Whole House with instructions to amend the same

by striking out subsection one of section 5, and by substituting therefor the

following :

(1) Subject to the provisions of sub-sections (2) and (3) a Police

Magistrate appointed under this Act shall have concurrent jurisdiction with

any other Police Magistrate in any Municipality or Territory which is within

the territorial jurisdiction described in his Commission and may act within

such territorial jurisdiction described in his Commission, in the case of the

illness, or absence, or at the request of the existing Police Magistrate whose

appointment has been heretofore or may be hereafter made, and independently
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of such illness or absence or request in case there is no Police Magistrate

existing for the Municipality or Territory in question."

And the Amendment, having been put, was lost on a division.

The Motion for the third reading, having been again submitted, was

carried, and the Bill was read the third time and passed.

The Order of the Day for the third reading of Bill (No. Ill)), To in-

corporate the Town of Kapuskasing, having been read, Mr. Drury moved,

That the Bill be now read the third time.

Mr. Lang moved in amendment, seconded by Mr. Hall,

" That all the words of the Motion after the first word " That "
be stricken

out and the following substituted therefor :

" The Bill be not now read the third time but be forthwith recommitted

to a Committee of the whole House with instruction to amend the same by
adding to Section 2 the following words :

" And all lands that are the property of or may be hereafter acquired by
Spruce Falls Company, Limited."

And the Amendment having been put was lost on a division.

The Motion for the third reading having been then again put was carried

and the Bill was read the third time and passed.

the

The Order of the Day for the third reading of Bill (No. 115), To amend
Toronto and Hamilton Highway Commission having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be forthwith

again referred to a Committee of the Whole, with instruction to amend the

same.

The House accordingly resolved itself into the Committee; and, after

some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar

reported, That the Committee had amended the Bill as directed.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time forthwith.

The Bill was then read the third time and passed.
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The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

185), The Public Lands Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker
resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Committee had

directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments 'be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 194),

Respecting the Office of King's Printer, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Com-
mittee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 166),
To amend the Public Health Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 158),

To amend the Loan and Trusts Corporations Act, and after some time spent

therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; >and Mr. MacVicar reported, That

the Committee had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to

sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.
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The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 170), Respect-

ing Fair Rentals of Dwelling Houses, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The House, according to Order, again resolved itself into the Committee
of Supply.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That there be grantee! to His Majesty, for the services of 1921,
the following sums:

193. To defray the expenses of the Department of Public High-
ways 14,250 00

178. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Agricultural College,

Guelph 171,600 00

195. To defray the expenses of the Attorney-General's Depart-

ment, Miscellaneous 101,400 00

196. To defray the expenses of the Treasury Department, Mis-

cellaneous 78,OS 8 10

112. To defray the expenses of the Public and Separate School

Education : 649,627 95

126. To defray the expenses of the Technical Education 485,175 00

152. To defray the expenses of the Hospitals and Charities 81,000 00

197. To defray the expenses of the Department of Lands and

Forests, Outside Service and Surveys 265,000 00

And the Committee having continued to sit until Twelve of the Clock

midnight,

Friday, 8th April, 1921.

The House continued in Committee.

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Warren reported. That the

Committee had come to several Resolutions; also. That the Committee had

directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Ordered, That the Report be received To-day.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-day.

The House then adjourned at 5.05 a.m.
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Friday, April 8th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor entered the Chamber of the Legis-
lative Assembly and took his seat upon the Throne.

Mr. Speaker then addressed His. Honour as follows :

May it please Your Honour,

The Legislative Assembly of the Province, having at its present Sittings

passed certain Bills to which, on behalf and in the name of the said Assembly,
I respectfully request Your Honour's assent.

The Clerk Assistant then read the Titles of the Acts that had been passed
as follows:

An Act to amend The Agricultural Associations Act.

An Act to amend The Succession Duties Act.

An Act to amend The Motor Vehicles Act.

An Act to amend The Toronto and Hamilton Highway Commission Act.

An Act to amend The Audit Act.

An Act, The Highway Improvement Act, 1921.

An Act to incorporate the Town of Tecumseh.

An Act respecting the Ontario Provincial Police Force.

An Act to provide for the Appointment of Police Magistrates with Kx-

tonded Jurisdiction.

An Act to incorporate the Town of Kapuskasing.

An Act respecting the Lake Huron and Northern Ontario Eailway Com-

pany.

An Act to amend The Minimum Wage Act.

An Act to amend and consolidate the Acts respecting the Essex Border

Utilities Commission.
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An Act respecting the Office of Crown Attorney in the City of Toronto

and the County of York.

An Act respecting the Town of Gananoque.

An Act to amend The Police Magistrates Act.

An Act respecting the Adoption of Children.

An Act respecting Legitimation of Children by subsequent inter-marriage
of their Parents.

An Act to license Billiard and Pool Rooms and Bowling Alleys.

An Act to amend The Public Inquiries Act.

An Act respecting the City of Niagara Falls.

An Act respecting the Town of Mimico.

An Act respecting the City of Belleville.

An Act respecting the City of Peterborough.

An Act respecting the Town of Pembroke.

An Act to legalize and confirm By-law No. 29 (1920), of the City of

Kingston.

An Act respecting the Town of Port Colborne.

An Act respecting Sons of England Benefit Society.

An Act respecting the City of Chatham.

An Act to authorize the Law Society of Upper Canada to admit James

'etrie Pratt to practise as a Barrister and Solicitor.

An Act to incorporate the Provincial Synod of Ontario of the Church of

Ingland, in Canada, and to make provisions respecting Vestry Meetings.

An Act respecting the Township of Stamford

An Act respecting the Beechwood Cemetery Company of Ottawa.

An Act respecting the City of Windsor and to validate sales of land.
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An Act to incorporate the Town of Georgetown.

An Act respecting the City of St. Thomas.

An Act respecting the Village of Acton.

An Act respecting the Cities of Port Arthur and Fort William.

An Act respecting the City of Port Arthur.

An Act respecting the formation of a joint Industrial and Technical

School Board for the City of Windsor and the Town of Walkerville.

An Act respecting the Town of Midland.

An Act respecting the City of Guelph.

An Act to amend the Charter of McMaster University.

To these Acts the Koyal Assent was announced by the Clerk of the Legis-
lative Assembly, in the following words :

" In His Majesty's name, His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor doth

assent to these Acts."

His Honour was then pleased to retire.

Mr. Drury, from the Special Committee to which was referred Bill (No.

67), Respecting Voters' Lists in Cities, presented their Report, which was

read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee have carefully considered the Bill to them referred and

have prepared certain amendments thereto.

The following Bill was introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 214), intituled
" An Act to amend The Notaries Act." Mr.

McDonald.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.
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Mr. Dewart asked the following Question:

1. What settlement has been arrived at, as between either the Government
or the Hydro-Electric Power Commission of Ontario with the different parties
who claim to have rights regarding the purchase of properties in the Township
of Bruton in the Provisional County of Haliburton and other properties re-

ferred to in an agreement between the Hydro-Electric Power Commission
of Ontario and A. J. McComber, bearing date 18th February, 1920. 2. Has
there been any change in the proprietorship of the properties (a) In the Town-

ship of Bruton; (&) In the saw-mill, river improvements and other lands and

premises said to have been purchased by the Hydro-Electric Power Commission
from the Eathbun Company in 1918; (c) The logging camps buildings and

equipments in the Township of Bruton said to be owned by the Hydro-Electric
Power Commission

; (d) In the pulp mill in the Village of Campbellford said

to be owned by the said Power Commission with the lands appertaining thereto.

To which Mr. Carmichael, Minister without Portfolio, replied in the

words following:

1. Settlement was made with Mr. A. J. McComber and representatives,

they being paid the sum of $10,000 in full settlement, including interest on

moneys deposited to the credit of the Commission and all the law charges and

expenses and the discharge of a registered option which they held. 2. No.

Mr. Tooms asked the following Question:

1. Is the Provincial Government still encouraging emigration to this

Province. 2. How many persons have been influenced through this Department
to emigrate to Ontario. 3. What is their destination. 4. How many have been

placed in situations on farms or taken up land through this Department.
5. Is any action being taken by the Government to restrict or prevent mechanics

or city workers from emigrating to this Province.

And the Minister of Agriculture replied as follows:

1. Yes, for agricultural purposes, competent domestic help and investors,

especially in farm lands. 2. Impossible to give exact figures. 3. Distributed

to farms in different sections of the Province direct from the boat or im-

mediately after arrival. 4. During present fiscal year approximately 1,000

to date. 5. This is a matter of Federal jurisdiction, fyut Ontario agents are

instructed to discourage emigrants other than those defined in answer to

Question 1.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 152),
To amend The Highway Improvement Act, and after some time spent therein.
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Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Com-
mittee had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time on Monday next.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider 'Bill (No. 14),
To confirm By-law No. 744 of the Town of Orillia, and after some time spent

therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Watson reported, That the

Committee had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time on Monday next.

The following Bills were severally read the second time :

Bill (No. 200), To amend The Division Courts Act.

Referred to the Legal Committee.

Bill (No. 203), To amend The School Attendance Act, 1919.

Referred to the Legal Committee.

Bill (No. 49), Respecting the Trafalgar Agricultural Society and the

Town of Oakville.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House on Monday next.

Bill (No. 40), Respecting the Town of Kincardine.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House on Monday next.

Bill (No. 183), To amend The Statute Labour Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House on Monday next.

Bill (No. 196), To amend The Municipal Tax Exemption Act, 1920.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House on Monday uoxl,

Bill (No. 202), To amend The Ontario Telephone Act.

Referred to a Committee of the AVhole House on Monday nod;.

The House then adjourned at 4.40 p.m.
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Monday, April llth, 1921.

PKAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. McNamara, from the Select Committee to which was referred a

Resolution of the House respecting the establishment of an Industrial Re-

habilitation Board in the Province, presented their Report, which was read.

(Appendix No. 1.)

On Motion of Mr. Curry, seconded by Mr. Godfrey,

Ordered, That notwithstanding the time for presenting Petitions for

Private Bills has elapsed, the Rule be suspended and leave be given to present

a Petition relating to the Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company of Canada,

Limited, and that the same be now read and received.

The following Petition was then presented, received and read :

The Petition of the Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company of Canada,

Limited, praying that an Act may pass to ratify and confirm a certain agree-

ment.

On Motion of Mr. Curry, seconded by Mr. Godfrey,

Ordered, That notwithstanding the time for introducing Private Bills has

expired, the Rule be suspended and leave be given to introduce a Bill relating

to the Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company of Canada, Limited, and that the

same be read a first time and stand referred to the Committee on Private Bills,

irrespective of any Report from the Committee on Standing Orders in such

case made and provided.

The following Bill was then introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 215), intituled "An Act respecting the Goodyear Tire and

Rubber Company of Canada, Limited." Mr. Curry.

Referred to the Committee on Private Bills.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first timer-

Bill (No. 216), intituled
" An Act to amend The Crown Attorneys Act."

Mr. Raney.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.
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Bill (No. 217), intituled "An Act to amend The Ontario Game and
Fisheries Act." Mr. Mills.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Mr. McNamara asked the following Question:

In the event that it is decided by the Dominion Government to open and

operate a summer camp, or camps, for the training of active militia and affili-

ated units on the military strength of Canada, which are established within the

Province of Ontario, is it the intention of the Ontario Government to grant
leave of absence with pay to members of such units who are employed in the

Civil Service of the Province, to the end that they may avail themselves of

such training.

To which the Premier replied in the words following:

Employees in the Civil Service are entitled to three weeks' leave of absence-

with salary, and may take military training during that time. If considered

necessary additional leave will be granted, but will, in all cases be conditional

on the requirements of the Public Service.

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

158), To amend The Loan and Trust Corporations Act, and after some time

spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Homuth reported,

That the Committee had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave

to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 187),

Respecting Long Point Park, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker
resumed the Chair

;
and Mr. Webster reported, That the Committee had made

some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 56) r

To amend The Local Improvement Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.
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Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster reported, That the Committee
had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 183) ,

To amend The Statute Labour Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster reported, That the Committee
had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 106),
To amend The Municipal Tax Exemption Act, 1920, and after some time spent

therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Sandy reported, That the

Committee had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit

again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 202),
To amend The Ontario Telephone Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Sandy reported, That the Committee
had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 57),
To amend The Planning and Development Act, and after some time spent
therein. Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair

;
and Mr. Webster reported, That the

Committee had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House then adjourned at 6.20 p.m.
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Tuesday, April 12th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first timer-

Bill (No. 218), intituled
" The Northern Light Railways Act." Mr.

Bowman.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 219), intituled
" An Act respecting the purchase, by the City of

Toronto, of the Assets of certain Companies." Mr. Carmichael.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 220), intituled "An Act to amend The Ontario Temperance
Act." Mr. Raney.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 221), intituled "An Act to amend The Mothers' Allowances

Act." Mr. Rollo.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee, severally to consider the fol-

lowing Bills:

Bill (No, 37), Respecting the City of London.

Bill (JSTo. 49), Respecting the Trafalgar Agricultural Society and the

Town of Oakville.

Bill (No. 40), Respecting the Town of Kincardine.

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the

Committee -had directed him to report the Several Bills without amendments.

Ordered, That the Bills reported, be severally read the third time To-

morrow.
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The following Bills were severally read the second time:

Bill (No. 24), Respecting the City of Windsor.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 10), Respecting the City Gas Company of London.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 44), Respecting the County of Carleton.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 36), Respecting the City of Ottawa.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 43), To annex certain lands to the Town of Ford City.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 52), Respecting the City of Kitchener.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 188), To incorporate Niagara Peninsula Growers, Limited.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 201), To amend The County Judges Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 204), To amend The Community Halls Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 199), To amend The Ontario Public Trustee Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 195), To regulate the sale and installation of Lightning Rods

for the Province of Ontario.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 197). To

amend The Ontario Insurance Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Ordfer be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.
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The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 42),
To incorporate the Town of River Side, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee

had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 96),

Respecting Farm Loans in Ontario, and- after some time spent therein, Mr.

"Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee
had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 97),

For the promotion of Agricultural Development, and after some time spent

therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Watson reported, That the

Committee had directed him to report the Bill, with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 98),

To finance Agricultural Development, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

196), To amend The Municipal Tax Exemption Act, 1920, and after some

time spent therein, Mr. 'Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster re-

ported, That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill with certain

amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.
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The House, according to Order, again resolved itself into the Committee

of Supply.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That there be granted to His Majesty, for the services of 1921,

the following sums :

192. To defray the expenses of the Department of Labour 481,710 52

194. To defray the expenses of the Game and Fisheries 50,600 00

199. To defray the expenses of the Refund Account 75,496 IS

And the House having continued to sit until Twelve of the Clock mid-

night,

Wednesday, April 13th, 1921.

The Committee continued, and after some time

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Widdifield reported. That tho

Committee had come to several Resolutions; also, That the Committee had

directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Ordered, That the Report be received To-day.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-day.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Report of the Minister of Education of the Province of Ontario for the

yjear 1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 17.)

Also Regulations and Orders-in-Council made since March 17th, 1921,

of the Department of Education or of the Public Schools, Separate Schools or

High Schools. (Sessional Papers, No. 61.)

Also Return to an Order of the House of 23rd February, 1921, That

<here be laid before the House, a Return showing the number of convictions

made under The Ontario Temperance Act for breaches of the said Act for years
1919-1920: 1. At the instance of officers of the Board of License Commissioners.
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2. At the instance of officers of the Ontario Provincial Police. 3. At the instance

of Municipal Police officers. 4. The number of cases in which fines or sentences

have been remitted, reduced, or commuted: (1) Upon the recommendation of

the Board of License Commissioners; (2) Without the recommendation of the

Board of License Commissioners. (Sessional Papers, No. 84.)

The House then adjourned at 12.05 a.m.

Wednesday, April 13th, 1921.

PBAYEBS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Nixon, from the Standing Committee on Municipal Law, presented
their Sixth Report, which was read as follows and adopted :

Your Committee have carefully considered the following Bill and beg to

report the same with certain amendments:

Bill (No. 145), An Act to amend The Factory, Shop and Office Building
Act.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 222), intituled
" An Act to amend The Bills of Sale and Chattel

Mortgage Act." Mr. Carmichael.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 223), intituled "An Act concerning the Employment of

Women During the Night." Mr. MacBride.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 224), intituled "An Act concerning the night work of Young
Persons Employed in Industry." Mr. MacBride.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.
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Bill (No. 225), intituled "An Act fixing the Minimum Wage for Indus-

trial Employment." Mr. MacBride.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 226), intituled "An Act to amend The Power Commission

Act," Mr. Kaney.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 227), intituled "An Act respecting the Practice of Architec-

ture." Mr. Hill.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for the third reading of Bill (No. 100), To amend
The Agricultural Societies Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be forthwith

again referred to a Committee of the Whole, with instructions to amend the

same.

The House accordingly resolved itself into the Committee; and, after some

time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Watson reported,

That the Committee had amended the Bill as directed.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time forthwith.

The Bill was then read the third time, and passed.

The following Bills were severally read the third time and passed :

Bill (No. 93), Eespecting Provincial Auctioneers.

Bill (No. 90), To amend The Public Parks Act.

Bill (No. 138), To amend The Local Improvement Act.

Bill (No. 166), To amend The Public Health Act.

Bill (No. 152), To amend The Highway Improvement Act.

Bill (No. 14), To confirm By-law No. 744 of the Town of Orillia.
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Bill (No. 56), To amend The Local Improvement Act.

Bill (No. 57), To amend The Planning and Development Act.

Bill (No. 196), To amend The Municipal Tax Act, 1920.

Bill (No. 37), Respecting the City of London.

Bill (No. 49), Eespecting the Trafalgar Agricultural Society and the

Town of Oakville.

Bill (No. 40), Kespecting the Town of Kincardine.

The Order of the Day for the third reading of Bill (No. 89), Respecting

the Two-Platoon System for the Employees of Permanent Fire Departments,

having been read,

Mr. Halcrow, for Mr. Crockett, moved,

That the Bill be now read the third time.

Mr. Calder moved, in amendment, seconded by Mr. Marshall,

That all the words of the Motion after the word " That "
be struck out

and the following substituted:

" The Bill be not now read the third time, but be read the third time

on this day six months."

And the Amendment, having been put, was lost on the following Division :

YEAS.

Messieurs :

Allan.
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NAYS.

Messieurs :

Allan. Govenlock. Mageau. Kennie.

Asmussen. Hay. Marshall. Ross

Bowman. Henry. Mewhinney. -^
(Kingston)

Calder. Ireland. Montgomery. (Glengarry)

Cooke. Johnston Murdoch. Sewell.

Cridland. (Lanark) Mxon. Stringer.

Ecclestone. Kennedy. Oke. Walker.

Evans. McArthur. Racine1

. Webster.

Fowler. McLeod. Rankin. Widdifield 34.

PAIRS.

Xone.

And the Bill was then read the third time and passed.

Mr. Dewart asked the following Question:

1. Has judgment been given by Mr. Justice Rose in an action instituted

by the Attorney-General against the Great Lakes Pulp and Paper Company
tried before Hon. Mr. Justice Rose in December last, and if so, when. 2.

What in short was the effect of the judgment if so given. 3. Has any further

action been taken by the Government since the said judgment was so delivered.

4. What action, if any, has been taken with regard to the alleged rights of

the said Company in Pic River and Black Sturgeon Timber Limits. 5. Has

any work been done by the said Company or anyone else in the erection of

mills or buildings upon the said limits. 6. Has any site been approved of for

the location of any mill or mills, and if so, where is said site relative to the

Town of Port Arthur and Fort William. 7. Has any arrangement been made

by the Government or agreement entered into by the Company regarding the

power that the Company is to use, if they are to be permitted to continue, and

if so, what is the nature of the arrangement or agreement.

And the Minister of Lands and Forests replied in the words following:

1. Yes, March 10th, 1921. 2. The action was for a declaration that the

defendant company was bound to take from the Hydro-Electric Power Com-
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mission the supply of electrical energy necessary to operate certain pulp and

paper mills and for an injunction to restrain the defendent company from

obtaining elsewhere electrical power for the said purpose. The learned trial

judge held that on the evidence he was unable to find that it had been proved
that there had been an agreement binding in the defendant company to take

electrical power from the Hydro-Electric Power Commission. 3. "No. 4.

None. 5. No. 6. Yes, a portion of what is known as Indian Mission Reserve,
rhich adjoins City of Fort William on the south, but does not touch City of

*ort Arthur, which latter city is situated some two miles east of the said

location. 7. No.

The following Bills were severally read the second time:

Bill (No. 212), To amend The Municipal Drainage Act.

Referred to the Municipal Committee.

Bill (No. 186), Respecting Natural Gas.

Referred to a Select Committee to be composed as follows: Messieurs

-ills, Crockett, Stringer, Doherty, Webster, Tisdelle, Brackin, Tolmie, Cooper
(Welland), Henry and Allan.

Bill (No. 209), To amend The Ontario Parole Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee, severally to consider the

llowin^ Bills:o

Bill (No. 29), Respecting the Township of Etobicoke and The Weston
Golf and Country Club, Limited.

Bill (No. 24), Respecting the City of Windsor.

Bill (No. 10), Respecting the City Gas Company of London.

Bill (No. 44), Respecting the County of Carleton.

Bill (No. 36), Respecting the City of Ottawa.

Bill (No. 43), To annex certain lands to the Town of Ford City.
17 JOUR.
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Bill (No. 52), Eespecting the City of Kitchener.

Bill (No. 188), To incorporate Niagara Peninsula Growers, Limited.

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the

Committee had directed him to report the several Bills without Amendments.

Ordered, That the Bills reported, be severally read the third time To-

morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 195),
To regulate the sale and installation of Lightning Rods for the Province of

Ontario, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair;'

and Mr. Webster reported, That the Committee had directed him to report

the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 204),
To amend The Community Halls Act, and, after some time spent therein,
Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster reported, That the Com-
mittee had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House, according to Order, again resolved itself into the Committee
of Supply.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That there be granted to His Majesty, for the services of 1921,

the following sum:

201. To defray the expenses of he Hydro-Electric Power
Commission $29,347,700 00
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Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster reported, That the

Committee had come to a Resolution; also, That the Committee had directed

him to ask for leave to sit again.

Ordered, That the Report be received To-morrow.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His
Honour -the Lieutenant-Governor :

Report of the Inspector of Prisons and Public Charities upon the Prisons

and Reformatories for the year 1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 26.)

Also Report of the Inspector of Prisons and Public Charities upon the

Ontario Hospitals for the Insane for the year 1920. (Sessional Papers, No.

25.)

The Premier presented to the House by Command of His Honour the

Lieutenant-Governor :

Copy of Report of R. D. Johnson et al on the Queenston-Chippawa Power

Development, with statement of professional record of H. S. Kerbaugh and
Francis Lee Stuart, with letters. (Sessional Papers, No. 85.)

Mr. Carmichael, Minister without Portfolio, presented to the House by
Command of His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Report of R. S. Lea, Consulting Engineer of Progress on Queenston-

Chippawa Power Development, January 31st, to April 9th, 1921. (Sessional

Papers, No. 86.)

The House then adjourned at 12 Midnight.
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Thursday, April 14th, 1921.

PEAYEES. 3.00 O'Clock, P.M.

Mr. McCrea, from the Standing Committee on Legal Bills, presented

their second report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee have carefully considered the following Bills and have

prepared certain amendments thereto respectively:

Bill (No. 137), Kespecting Reciprocal or Inter-Insurance.

Bill (No. 177), To provide for the maintenance of Parents by their

Children.

Your Committee have also carefully considered the following Bills and

report the same without amendment:

Bill (No. 180), To amend The Registry Act.

Bill (No. 203), To amend The School Attendance Act, 1919.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 228), intituled "An Act to amend The Ontario Public Service

Superannuation Act." Mr. Drury.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 230), intituled "An Act to amend The Ontario Temperance
Act." Mr. Dewart.

Ordered, That the* Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The following Bill was, nemine contradicente, introduced and read the

first time:

Bill (No. 229), intituled "An Act to amend The Municipal Act." Mr.

Johnston (Simcoe.)

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.
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The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion

and Amendment for the 'adoption of the 'Special Report in re the administra-

tion of The1 Ontario Temperance Act, having been, read,

The Debate was resumed.

And the House having continued to sit until Twelve of the Clock mid-

night,

Friday, April 15th, 1921.

The Debate continued.

And after some time1

,

The Amendment to the Amendment, having been ag^in put, was lost on

a Division.

The Amendment having been then again put, was lost on. a Division.

The Main Motion having been then again put, was lost on a Division.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 209),
To amend The Ontario Parole Act, and 'after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson, reported, That the Committee
had directed him to report the Bill without 'any amendttnent.

Ordered, That the* Bill be read the third time To-day.

The following Bill was read the second time:

Bill (No. 205), [Respecting Provincial Aid to Drainage.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-day.

Mr. Watson, from the Committee of Supply, reported the following
Resolutions :

108. Resolved, That >a sum not exceeding Two hundred and eight thousand

three hundred and eighty-eight dollars and eighty-one cents be granted to His

Majesty to defray the expenses of Civil Government for the year ending 31st

October, 1921.
x
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109. Resolved, That ia sum not exceeding Two thousand dollars (be granted

to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Legislation for the year ending 31st

October, 1921.

110. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Three thousand nine hundred

and eighty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Sundry
Civil and Criminal Justice for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

111. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fifteen thousand seven hundred

and thirty-eight dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Administration of Justice in Districts for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

112. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding 'Six hundred and eight thou-

sand one hundred and twenty-seven dollars and ninety-five cents be granted

to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Public and Separate School Educa-

tion for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

113. Resolved. That a sum not exceeding Six thousand three hundred and

sixty-six dollars and sixty-seven cents be granted to His Majesty to defray the

expenses of Normal and Model Schools, Toronto, for the year ending 31st

October, 1921.

114. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One thousand nine hundred and

thirty-nine dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal

and Model Schools, Ottawa, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

115. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One thousand three hundred and

fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal School,

London, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

116. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One thousand seven hundred and

twenty-five dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal

School, Hamilton, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

117". Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One thousand four hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal School,

Peterborough, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

118. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One thousand four hundred and

fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal School,

Stratford, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

119. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Three thousand one hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal School,

North Bay, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.
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120. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and eighty dollars

be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of English-French Training

School, Ottawa, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

121. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Four thousand and eighty-five

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of English-French

Training School, Sturgeon Falls, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

122. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Seven hundred dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of English-French Training

School, Vankleek Hill, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

123. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Three hundred dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of English-French Training

School, Sandwich, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

124. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fifty-one thousand six hundred

and eight dollars and twenty-seven cents be granted to His Majesty to defray
the expenses of High Schools and Collegiate Institutes for the year ending 31st

October, 1921.

125. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fifteen thousand one hundred
dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Public Libraries,

Art Schools, Historical, Literary and Scientific Societies, for the year ending
31st October, 1921.

126. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Four hundred and eighty-five
thousand one hundred and seventy-five dollars be granted to His Majesty to

defray the expenses of Technical Education for the year ending 31st October,
1921.

127". Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Thirty thousand dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Provincial and other Uni-

tsities

for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

j

128. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fifty-three thousand four hun-

[red and eighty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of
.

(le

Northern Academy, Monteith, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

I

129. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eleven thousand seven hundred
id seventy-five dollars and sixty-seven cents be granted to His Majesty to

defray the expenses of the Ontario School for the Deaf, Belleville, for the year

ling 31st October, 1921.

130. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One thousand three hundred
liars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of the Ontario School

for the Blind, Brantford, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.lor
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131. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fifty thousand nine hundred

and seventy-five dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Miscellaneous Education for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

132. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-five thousand five hun-

dred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Hos-

pital, Brockville, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

133. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Sixteen thousand four hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Hospital,

Cobourg, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

134. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Sixty-four thousand nine

hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario

Hospital, Hamilton, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

135. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eighteen thousand two hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Hospital,

Kingston, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

136. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Thirty-six thousand dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Hospital, London,
for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

137. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fourteen thousand dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Hospital, Mimico,
for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

138. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twelve thousand five hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Hospital,

Orillia, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

139. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twelve thousand five hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Hospital,

Penetanguishene, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

140. Resolved, That a sum not exceed ing Sixty-three thousand five hun-

dred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Hos-

pital, Whitby, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

141.' Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Ten thousand eight hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Hospital,

Woodstock, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

142. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fourteen thousand five hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Industrial Farm,

Burwash, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.
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143. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two thousand eight hundred

lollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Industrial Farm,
t William, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

144. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Five thousand one hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Miscellaneous Pub-

lic Institutions for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

145. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twelve thousand two hundred

d twenty-one dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

ve Stock Branch for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

146. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One thousand dollars be granted
to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Dairy Branch for the year ending
31st October, 1921.

147. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fifteen thousand dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Agricultural Representative
ranch for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

148. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two thousand one hundred and

tirty-nine dollars and two cents be granted to His Majesty to defray the

:penses of Miscellaneous for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

149. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-two thousand one hun-

Ired and seventy dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Ontario Agricultural College for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

150. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Three thousand three hundred

iollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Macdonald Insti-

ite and Hall for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

151. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eight thousand five hundred

lollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of 'Colonization and

Immigration for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

152. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eighty-one thousand dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Hospitals and Charities for

the year ending 31st October, 1921.

153. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and four thousand
six hundred and fifty-three dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the

expenses of Parliament and Departmental Buildings, Maintenance and Re-

pairs for the year ending 31st October, 1921.
18 JOUR.
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154. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Seven thousand dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Osgoode Hall, Maintenance

and Repairs for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

155. Resolved,, That a sum not exceeding Nineteen thousand five hundred

and sixteen dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Miscel-

laneous Maintenance and Repairs for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

156. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-one thousand five hun-

dred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Osgoode Hall,

Repairs and Alterations, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

157. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eleven thousand three hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal and Model

Schools, Toronto, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

158. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Nine thousand four hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal and Model

Schools, Ottawa, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

159. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two thousand five hundred and

seventy dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal

School, London, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

160. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One thousand one hundred and

thirty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal

School, Hamilton, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

161. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two thousand seven hundred

and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal

School, Peterborough, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

162. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One thousand seven hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal School,

Stratford, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

163. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One thousand four hundred
dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal School,

North Bay, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

164. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty thousand five hundred
and seventy-five dollars and seventy-five cents be granted to His Majesty to

defray the expenses of Ontario School for Deaf, Belleville, for the year ending
31st October, 1921.

165. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Seven thousand seven hundred
dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario School for

Blind, Brantford, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.
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166. Resolved, That <a sum not exceeding One thousand three hundred and

forty-five dollars and forty-four cents he granted to His Majesty to defray the

expenses of Training School, Sandwich, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

167. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eighteen thousand dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Training School, Sturgeon

Falls, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

168. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two thousand dollars be granted

to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Northern Academy, Monteith, for

the year ending 31st October, 1921.

169. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Four thousand dollars be granted

to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Hospital, Brockville, for the

year ending 31st October, 1921.

170. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Six thousand five hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Hospital,

Hamilton, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

171. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-eight thousand one hun-

dred and thirty-six dollars and seventy-two cents be granted to His Majesty to

defray the expenses of Ontario Hospital, Kingston, for the year ending 31st

October, 1921.

172. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eleven thousand dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Hospital, London, for

the year ending 31st October, 1921.

173. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Ten thousand dollars be granted

to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Hospital, Mimico, for the

year ending 31st October, 1921.

174. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eleven thousand dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Hospital, Orillia, for

the year ending 31st October, 1921.

175. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Three hundred and ninety-three

thousand dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario

Hospital, Whitby, for the year ending 31st October,

176. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Three thousand five hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Hospital,

Woodstock, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

177. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Thirty-five thousand three hun-

dred and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Industrial Farm, Burwash, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.
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178. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and seventy-one

thousand six hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses

of Ontario Agricultural College, Guelph, for the year ending 31st October,

1921.

179. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Five hundred dollars be granted
to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Veterinary College for the

year ending 31st October, 1921.

180. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eleven thousand dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Horticultural Experimental

Station, Vineland, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

181. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One thousand four hundred and

fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of District Build-

ings, Algoma, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

182. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Three hundred dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of District Buildings, Kenora,
for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

183. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred dollars be granted
to His Majesty to defray the expenses of District Buildings, Manitoulin, for

the year ending 31st October, 1921.

184. Resolved, That 'a sum not exceeding Three hundred dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of District Buildings, Muskoka,
for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

185. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One thousand four hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of District Buildings,

Nipissing, for the year ending 31-st October, 1921.

186. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Thirty-eight thousand four hun-

dred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of District Build-

ings, Parry Sound, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

187. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two thousand dollars be granted
to His Majesty to defray the expenses of District Buildings, Rainy River, for

the year ending 31st October, 1921.

188. Resolved, That a sum not exoeedin^ Thirty-six thousand six hun-

dred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of District Build-

ings, Sudbury, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

189. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-four thousand and ten

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of District Buildings,

Temiskaming, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

190. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty thousand six hundred
dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of District Buildings,
Thunder Bay, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.
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191. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Five hundred dollars be granted

to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Miscellaneous Public Buildings for

the year ending 31st October, 1921.

192. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Four hundred and eighty-one

thousand seven hundred and ten dollars and fifty-two cents be granted to His

Majesty to defray the expenses of Department of Labour for the year ending
31st October, 1921.

193. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fourteen thousand two hundred

and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Depart-
ment of Public Highways for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

194. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fifty thousand six hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Game and Fisheries

for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

195. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and one thousand

four hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Attorney-General's Department, Miscellaneous, for the year ending 31st Octo-

ber, 1921.

196. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Seventy-eight thousand and

eighty-eight dollars and ten cents be granted to His Majesty to defray the

expenses of Treasury Department, Miscellaneous, for the year ending 31st

October, 1921.

197. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and sixty-five

thousand dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of De-

partment of Lands and Forests, Outside Service and Surveys, for the year

ending 31st October, 1921.

198. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty thousand seven hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Department of

Mines for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

199. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Seventy-five thousand four hun-

[red and ninety-six dollars and eighteen cents be granted to His Majesty to

lefray the expenses of Refund Account for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

200. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two thousand one hundred

lollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Miscellaneous for

le year ending 31st October, 1921.

201. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-nine Million three hun-

Ired and forty-seven thousand seven hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty
to defray the expenses of Hydro-Electric Power Commission of Ontario for

the year ending 31st October, 1921.

202. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One million four hundred and

forty-three thousand two hundred and eighty-three dollars and thirty-three
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cents be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Temiskaming and

Northern Ontario Railway Commission for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

The several Resolutions having been read the second time, were con-

curred in.

Mr. Drury delivered to Mr. Speaker a Message from the Lieutenant-

Governor, signed by himself; and the said Message was read by Mr. Speaker,

and is as follows:

L. H. CLARKE.

The Lieutenant-Governor transmits Further Supplementary Estimates

of certain sums required for the service of the Province for the fiscal year

ending October, 1921, and recommends them to the Legislative Assembly.

GOVERNMENT HOUSE,

Toronto, 15th April, 1921.

(Sessional Papers, No. 2.)

Ordered, That the Message of the Lieutenant-Governor, together with the

Estimates accompanying same, be referred to the Committee of Supply.

The House then adjourned at 1.35 a.m.

Friday, April 15th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 231), intituled
" An Act to amend The School Laws." Mr.

Grant.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Tuesday next.

Bill (No. 232), intituled
" An Actjto amend The Female Refuges Act,"

Mr. Nixon.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Tuesday next.
*

Bill (No. 233), intituled "An Act to amend The Ontario Temperance
Act, 19 IT." Mr. Thompson.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Tuesday next.

Bill (No. 234), intituled "An Act respecting the Extra-Mural Employ-
ment of Persons under Sentence." Mr. Nixon.
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Orderel, That the Bill be read the second time on Tuesday next.

Bin (No. 235), intituled
" An Act respecting the Administration of

Justice in the District of Temiskaming." Mr. Raney.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Tuesday next.

The Order of the Day for the third reading of Bill (No. 116), To amend
The Provincial Highways Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be forthwith

again referred to a Committee of the Whole, with instructions to amend the

same.

The House accordingly resolved itself into the Committee; and, after

some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson

reported, That the Committee had amended the Bill as directed.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time forthwith.

The Bill was then read the third time, and passed.

The Order of the day for the third reading of Bill (No. 95), To amend
The Dairy Standards Act, having been read,

Mr* Doherty moved,

That the Bill be now read the third time.

Mr. Henry moved, in Amendment, seconded by Mr. Ferguson,

That all the words of the Motion after the first word " That "' be omitted
and the following inserted in lieu thereof :

" The Bill be not now read the

third time, but be recommitted to a Committee of the Whole House with
instructions to add certain amendments."

fAnd

the Amendment, having 'been put, was lost on a Division.

1

The Motion for the third reading having been then again proposed, was

*ied, and the Bill was then read the third time and passed.

The following Bills were severally read the third time and passed :

Bill (No. 29), Respecting the Township of Etobicoke and The Weston
Golf and Country Club, Limited.

Bill (No. 24), Respecting the City of Windsor.

Bill (No. 10), Respecting the City Gas Company of London.

Bill (No. 44), Respecting the County of Carleton.

Bill (No. 36), Respecting the City of Ottawa.
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Bill (No. 43), To annex certain lands to the Town of Ford City.

Bill (No. 52), Respecting the City of Kitchener.

Bill (No. 188), To incorporate Niagara Peninsula Growers, Limited.

Mr. Gray asked the following Question:

1. Has S. J. Martin, of Kemptville, been appointed to any position by
the present Government. 2. If so, what is the position. 3. When was the

appointment made. 4. What is the salary attached.

And the Minister of Public Works replied as follows:

1. S. J. Martin was employed temporarily from March 18th to April 2nd.

2. Foreman in charge of tree-planting on the Ottawa-Prescott Highway. 3.

Answered by 1. 4. $4.50 per day.

Mr. Dewart asked the following Question :

1. Were the proceeds of the loans of $16,000,000, in December, 1920,

and $10,000,000 in February, 1921, amounting to approximately $24,613,100,

placed to the credit of the Consolidated Revenue Fund. 2. If so, what am-

ounts of the said proceeds have been paid out up to March 10th, instant, for

(a) Redemption of securities, specifying the date of redemption, amount, and

character of the respective securities; (&) Payments on Hydro-Electric Com-
mission account, specifying the date, amount, and particular application, if

any, of the respective payments; (c) Payments on account of Highway de-

velopment, specifying the date, amount and particular application of purpose,
if any, of the respective payments; (d) Payments on other capital accounts,
or for other general purposes of the Government. 3. What balance, if any,
remained unexpended on March 10th of the proceeds of the said loans, and to

the credit of what account is the same now deposited or credited.

And the Provincial Treasurer replied in the words and figures following:

1. Yes.

2 (a) None, but out of Consolidated Revenue Fund there was paid-

Treasury Bills, JJ., due Dec. 15th, 1920 $5,000,000 00

Treasury Bills, GG., due Feb. 3rd, 1921 333,000 00

Retirement of bonds and debentures, Jan.

14th, Vr. 5478 142,053 00

Mar. 2nd, Vr. 9746 50,287 67

Mar. 7th, Vr. 9919 1,509 06

$5,526,849 73
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(I) None, but out of 'Consolidated Kevenue Fund there was paid

Hydro-Electric Power Commission

Dec. 10th
?
Vr. 3007 $1,000,000 00

Dec. 10th, Vr. 3011 1,0-00,000 00

Jan. 29th, Vr. 4370 1,000,000 00 .

Jan. llth, Vr. 5452 1,000,000 00

Jan. 24th, Vr. 6543 1,000,000 00

Feb. 2nd, Vr. 7211 500,000 00

Feb. 9th, Vr. 7819 1,000,000 00

Feb. 26th, Vr. 8480 1,000,000 00

Feb. 26th, Vr. 9430 1,000,000 00

Mar. 8th, Vr. 10061 1,000,000 00

$9,500,000 00

Queenston Development 6,950,000 00

Niagara System 850,000 00
Severn System 15,000 00

Eugenia System 55,000 00
Muskoka System 5,000 00
Wasdell System 10,000 00
St. Lawrence System 35,000 00
Thunder Bay System 540,000 00
Central Ontario System 750,000 00

Nipissing System 20,000 00
Miscellaneous 200,000 00

Expenditure on account of Province... 70,000 00
-
$9,500,000 00

(c) None, but .out of Consolidated Revenue Fund there was paid

Provincial Highway Construction-

Dec, llth, Vr. 2778 $500,000 00
Dec. 23rd, Vr. 4021 300,000 00
Jan. 5th, Vr. 4838 275,000 00
Jan. 21st, Vr. 6341 250,000 00
Feb. 2nd., Vr. 6923 250,000 00
Feb. 17th, Vr. 8484 250,000 00
Feb. 28th, Vr. 9435 250,000 00

$2,075,000 00

County Highway Improvement

Feb. 10th, Vr. 7726 $84,349 32
Feb. 21st, Vr. 8686 122.22244
Feb. 21st, Vr. 8689 153,954 19
Feb. 21st, Vr. 8690 57^149 73
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Mar. 4th, Vr. 9829 47,938 31

Mar. 4th, Vr. 9830... 101,257 56

Mar. 4th, Yr. 9831 102,466 26

Mar. 5th, Vr. 9010 . 336,52709
Mar. 10th, Vr. 10427 84,945 64

Mar. 10th, Vr. 10428 85,428 59

Mar. 10th, Vr. 10429 113
:
798 95

Mar. 10th, Vr. 10430 67,207 97

Mar. 10th, Vr. 10431 80,698 80

Mar. 10th, Vr. 10432 100,612 64

Mar. 10th, Vr. 10433 46,966 10

Mar. 10th, Vr. 10434 63,714 72

$1,649,238 31

Township Highway Improvement
Feb. 14th, Vr. 7727 $6,555 82

Feb. 21st, Vr. 8685 7,789 14

Feb. 21st, Vr. 8688 4,545 18

Feb. 21st, Vr. 8687 6,10125
Feb. 21st, Vr. 9018...- 1,708 37

Feb. 21st, Vr. 9019 1,507 38

Feb. 22nd, Vr. 9021 3,051 03

Feb. 22nd, Vr. 9022 997 06

Feb. 22nd, Vr. 9023 670 16

Feb. 23rd, Vr. 9024 2,537 66

Feb. 23rd, Vr. 9025 861 30

Feb. 23rd, Vr. 9026 1,819 27
Feb. 23rd, Vr. 9020 1,516 87
Mar. 3rd, Vr. 9009 3,007 12

Mar. 7th, Vr. 9824 2,009 94
Mar. 7th, Vr. 9825 929 26
Mar. 8th, Vr. 9832 1,755 76
Mar. 10th, Vr. 10442 2,370 86
Mar. 10th, Vr. 10444 2,007 65

Mar. 10th, Vr. 10445 1,778 76
Mar. 10th, Vr. 10435 27,696 61
Mar. 10th, Vr. 10436 444 36
Mar. 10th, Vr. 10437 1,182 82
Mar. 10th, Vr. 10438 639 04
Mar. 10th, Vr. 10439 1,756 55
Mar. 10th, Vr. 10440 176 66
Mar. 10th, Vr. 10443 2,005 18
Mar. 10th, Vr. 10441 2*765 84

$90,186 90

$3,814,425 21
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(d) None, but out of Consolidated Eevenue Fund there

was paid $9,308,628 27

3. In Consolidated Kevenue Fund there was approximately

a balance of 7,677,670 05

Mr. Pinard asked the following Question

1. What amount has been expended upon the Ottawa and Prescott High-

way (1) Up to 31st December, 1920; (2) Since that date down to the 1st

March, 1921. 2. How many miles have been completed. 3. What additional

sum is estimated will be the cost to complete the said road. 4. When is the

Government calculating that the road will be completed.

To which the Minister of Public Works replied in the words and figures

following :

1. (1) $964,370.79; (2) $86,616.49. 2. 30 miles. 3. $792,491. 4.

December 31st, 1923.

The. House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 67),

Respecting Voters' Lists in 'Cities, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time on Tuesday next.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 203),
To amend The School Attendance Act, 1919, and after some time spent there-

in, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the

Committee had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time on Tuesday next.

The following Bills were severally read the second time:

Bill (No. 210), To amend The Marriage Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House on Tuesday next.
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Bill (No. 218), The Northern Light Railways Act.

Referred to a 'Committee of the Whole House on Tuesday next.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Nixon,

Ordered, That when this House adjourns To-day, it do stand adjourned

until Tuesday next, the nineteenth instant, at Three of the Clock in the after-

noon.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Report of the Bureau of Archives for the Province of Ontario, 1920.

(Sessional Papers, No. 52.)

Also Report of the Civil Service Commissioner for -Ontario, 1920.

(Sessional Papers, No. 87.)

The House then adjourned at 6.00 p.m.

Tuesday, April 19th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Rollo, from the Standing Committee on Labour, presented their

First Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee have carefully considered Bill (No. 154), To amend
The Stationary and Hoisting Engineers Act, and report the same without

amendment.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 236), intituled
" An Act respecting The Ontario Athletic

Commission." Mr. Rollo.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 237), intituled "An Act to amend The Factory, Shop and

Office Building Act." Mr. Rollo.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.
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The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

158), To amend The Loan and Trust Corporations Act, and after some time

spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported,

That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill without any amend-

ment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

129), To amend The Mining Act of Ontario, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Ohair
;
and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Com-

mittee had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

199), To amend The Ontario Public Trustee Act, and after some time spent

therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That

the Committee had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to

sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 201),

To amend The County Judges Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Committee

had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The following Bill was read the second time:

Bill (No. 198), To amend The Ontario Insurance Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 207), To
amend The Ontario Temperance Act, having been read,

Mr. Raney moved
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That the Bill be now read the second time.

And after some time,

Mr. Tolmie moved in amendment, seconded by Mr. Buckland,

That with a view to the consideration by a sub-committee of this House

of the various Bills in amendment of The Ontario Temperance Act,

Be it resolved, That Bill (^o. 207), intituled "An Act to amend The

Ontario Temperance Act be not now read a second time, but be referred to a

Special Committee of this House consisting of the Members of this House
who were appointed at the last Session of this Legislature to enquire as to

the working and operation of The Ontario Temperance Act and the adminis-

tration thereof, viz., Messieurs Drury, Raney, Nixon, Watson, McCreary,

Sandy, Lethbridge, Oasselman, Hicks, Swayze, Heenan, Dewart, Marshall,

Curry, Tolmie, Hay, Clarke, Pinard, Godfrey, Ross (Kingston), Henry,

Ecclestone, Thompson, and Warren, with the addition of Messieurs Doherty
and Ferguson, and to report to this House at the present Session.

And a Debate having ensued,

And the House having continued to sit until Twelve of the Clock midnight,

Wednesday, 20th April, 1921.

The Debate continued,

And after some time

The Amendment, having been put, was lost on a Division.

The main Motion having been then again put, was carried, and the Bill

was read the second time and referred to a Committee of the Whole House at

the next sittings of the House To-day.

The House, according to Order, again resolved itself into the 'Committee

of Supply.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That there be granted to His Majesty, for the services of 1921,
the following sums:

226. To defray the expenses of the Agricultural and Horticultural

Societies 904 00

227. To defray the expenses of the Live Stock Branch 11,050 00
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229. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Veterinary College. . 410 00

230. To defray the expenses of the Miscellaneous Agriculture, . 15,100 00

232. To defray the expenses of the Hospitals and Charities 30,093 40

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster reported, That the

Committee had come to several Resolutions; also, That the Committee had
directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Ordered., That the Report be received To-day.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-day.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His
Honour the Lieutenant^Governor :

First Annual Report of The Mothers' Allowances Commission for the

year 1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 88.)

The House then adjourned at 2.35 a.m.

Wednesday, April 20th, 1921.

PBAYEBS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Nixon, from the Standing Committee on Municipal Law, presented
their Seventh Report, which was read as follows and adopted :

Your Committee have carefully considered the following Bill, and report
the same with certain amendments :

Bill (No. 153), An Act to amend The Public Schools Act, 1920.

Your Committee have 'also carefully considered the following Bill, and

report the same without amendment:

Bill (No. 164), An Act to amend The Line Fences Act.
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The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 238), intituled "An Act respecting the Maintenance of De-

serted Wives and Children.'
7 Mr. McNamara.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 239), intituled "An Act to extend the Franchise to Women in

Municipal Elections." Mr. MacBride.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 240), intituled
" An Act to amend The Timber Slide Companies

Act." Mr. McCrea.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Mr. Godfrey asked the following Question:

1. Did the Attorney-General or any member of the Government agree
to indemnify the Rev. J. Q. L. Spracklin against the costs of the defence for

his criminal trial. 2. Did the Attorney-General or any department of the

Government receive any bill of such costs. 3. If so, what is the amount.

And the Attorney-General replied:

1. No. 2. A bill has been rendered to the Reverend J. 0. L. Spracklin
which has been forwarded by him to the Board of License Commissioners

with a request that the same be paid by them. 3. $3,000.

Mr. Cameron asked the following Question:

1. How long have private living rooms been furnished for Cabinet Min-
isters in the Parliament Buildings. 2. How many rooms were furnished and
used by Cabinet Ministers prior to the present Government taking office. 3.

Were any rooms occupied by others than Cabinet Ministers. 4. If so, by
whom. 5. Has it been the custom for Cabinet Ministers to take furniture and
other furnishings from these rooms when vacating their office. 6. Did any of

the Cabinet Ministers of the late Government take any furniture or other

articles from these rooms when retiring from office. Y. If so, who were they,
and what were the articles taken. 8. Who gave them authority to take them.
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To which the Minister of Public Works replied in the words following :

1. Since the buildings were erected in the year 1893. 2. 7. 3. Yes.

4. The Honourable the Speaker, the Sergeant-at-Arms, the Housekeeper, the

Government Whip. 5. No. 6. Yes. 7. The Honourable the Attorney-General,

the furniture from the room occupied by him as it was his own private pro-

perty; the Honourable the Minister of Lands, Forests and Mines, the window

drapes and floor rugs from the room occupied by him. 8. The late Minister

of Public Works.

Mr. Ireland asked the following Question:

1. Has the Attorney-General, with a view to paying Commissioners Latch-

ford and Riddell further sums of money for their services as Commissioners

on the Timber Probe, secured an opinion from Counsel outside of his own

department or from any of the legal staff of the Government, as to the auth-

ority of the Dominion Government to pass the Act of 1920 wherein it is pro-

vided that Supreme Court Judges acting as 'Commissioners are not permitted

to receive pay for their services. 2. Is it the intention of the Government to

make further payments to the said Commissioners.

And the Attorney-General replied in the words following:

1. No. 2. This matter has not as vet been considered bv the Government.

Mr. McCrea asked the following Question:

1. Is Robert T. Harding now in the employ of the Attorney-General's

Department ;
if so, in what capacity. 2. What is the rate of his remuneration.

To which the Attorney-General replied in the words following:

1. Mr. Robert T. Harding is assisting Mr. Newton W. Rowell, K.C., in

the action of the Attorney-General for Ontario vs. Chevlin-Clarke Company,
Limited, et al. 2. No arrangement has been made as to his remuneration.

His account will be taxed by the Department when received.

Mr. Ross (Kingston) asked the following Question:

1. Is Newton W. Rowell, K.C., in the employ of the Attorney-General's

Department ;
if so ? in what capacity. 2. What is the rate of his remuneration.
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And the Attorney-General replied:

1. Mr. Newton W. Howell, K.C., is acting as Counsel for the Government

in the action of the Attorney-General for Ontario vs. Chevlin-Clarke Company,

Limited, et al. 2. No arrangement has been made as to his remuneration. His

account will be taxed by the Department when received.

Mr. O'Neill asked the following Question:

1. What is the number'of applications that have been made to the Attorney-
General or any Minister or Member of the Government or the Board of License

Commissioners for clemency and remission of fine or penalty imposed under

The Ontario Temperance Act from the 1st day of March, 1920, to the 1st day
of April, 1921. 2. What is the total number of such cases in which clemency
was exercised in whole or in part in the said period. 3. What is the number
of such cases in which clemency was recommended in whole or in part by the

Board of License Commissioners and refused by the Attorney-General or the

Executive Council in said period. 4. What is the number of such cases in

which the Attorney-General has acted upon his own initiative in the said

period.

To which the Attorney-General replied :

1. 819. 2. 491. 3. None. 4. 4.

Mr. McNamara asked the following Question :

1. Is J. C. Elliott, .Esq., Barrister, of London, in the employ of the Gov-

ernment. 2. If so, what are his duties and what remuneration is he to receive.

And the Attorney-General replied:

1. No. 2. Answered bv No. 1.

Mr. Crockett asked the following Question :

1. How many cars were at the disposal of the Ministers on Nov. 1st,

1919. 2. How many cars were at their disposal on Nov. 1st, 1920. 3. Did the

Public Works Department keep within its estimates regarding motor vehicles

in fiscal year 1920. 4. Also in fiscal year 1919. 5. If not, how much did they
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exceed said estimates during the fiscal year 1920. 6. What was the total

amount spent during the fiscal year 1919 and also in 1920.

To which the Minister of Public Works replied as follows :

1. Six. 2. Four. 3. Yes. 4. No. 5. Unexpended 'balance of appropria-

tion, fiscal year 1920, $3,382.74. 6. 1919, $31,254.90; 1920, $16,617.26.'

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 145),

To amend The Factory, Shop and Office Building Act, and after some time

spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Watson reported, That

the Committee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 180),

To amend The Registry Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker
resumed the Chair

;
and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee had directed

him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

199), To amend The Ontario Public Trustee Act, and after some time spent

therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the

Committee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into, consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 205 )?

Respecting Provincial Aid to Drainage, and after some time spent therein,
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Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Com-

mittee ha'd made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 210),

To amend The Marriage Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker

resumed the Chair ;
and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee had directed

him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed ,to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The following Bill was read the second time:

Bill (No. 208), Respecting Professional Engineers.

Referred to a Select Committee to be hereafter named.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 191), To

amend The Planning and Development Act, having been read,

Mr. Hill moved

That the Bill be now read the second time.

And the Motion, having been put, was lost on a Division.

And so it was declared in the negative.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 212), To

amend The Municipal Drainage Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.
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The House, according to Order, again resolved itself into the Committee

of Supply.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That there be granted to His Majesty, for the services of 1921,
the following sums:

204. To defray the expenses of the Legislation 84,615 00

And the House having continued to sit until Twelve of the Clock mid-

night,

'

Thursday, 21st April, 1921.

The House continued in Committee.

208. To defray the expenses of the Normal and Model Schools,
Toronto , 250 00

209. To defray the expenses of the Normal and Model Schools,

Ottawa 250 00

210. To defray the expenses of the Normal School, London 250 00

211. To defray the expenses of the English-French Training

School, Sturgeon Falls 2,500 00

212. To defray the expenses of the English-French Training

School, Sandwich 100 00

213. To defray the expenses of the High Schools and Collegiate
Institutes 1,000 00

214. To defray the expenses of the Public Libraries, Art 'Schools,

Literary and Scientific Societies 850 00

216. To defray the expenses of the Technical Education 4,000 00

217. To defray the expenses of the Northern Academy, Monteith 5,500 00

218. To defray the expenses of the Ontario School for the Deaf,
Belleville 500 00

219. To defray the expenses of the Ontario School for the Blind,
Brantford 500 00
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220. To defray the expenses of the Miscellaneous Education. . 15,812 00

221. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Reformatory, Guelph 80,550 00

222. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Brick and Tile Plant,

Mimico 5,000 00

223. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Reformatory Indus-

tries 71,400 00

224. To defray the expenses of the Industrial Farm, Burwash. . 3,000 00

225. To defray the expenses of the Miscellaneous Public Institu-

tions 2,726 00

247. To defray the expenses of the Provincial Secretary's Depart-

ment, Miscellaneous 251,300 00

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Johnston (Simcoe) reported,

That the Committee had come to several Resolutions
; also, That the Committee

had directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Ordered, That the Report be received To-day.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-day.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Final Report of Hugh L. Cooper & Co. re Queenston-Chippawa Develop-
ment of the Hydro-Electric Power Commission of Ontario. (Sessional Papers,
No. 89.)

The House then adjourned at 2.00 a.m.
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Thursday, April 21st, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Raney, from the Standing Committee on Private Bills, presented
their Fourteenth Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee beg to report the following Bills with certain amend-

ments :

Bill (No. 6), An Act respecting the City of Sault Ste. Marie.

Bill (No. 30), An Act respecting Fecunis, Limited.

Bill (No. 51), An Act respecting the division of the Township of Ferris,
in the District of Nipissing.

Bill (No. 54), An Act respecting the Township of York.

Your Committee recommend that the^fees, less the actual cost of printing,

be remitted on Bill (No. 27),
" An Act to incorporate a part of the Township

of York as the Township of North York," on the ground that the Bill be not

further proceeded with
;
and also, that the fees, less the actual cost of printing,

be remitted on Bill (No. 31), "An Act respecting the Town of St. Mary's,"
the same having been withdrawn by the promoters thereof.

Your Committee recommend that notwithstanding Rulje {51 of Your
Honourable House, the time for receiving reports of Committees on Private

Bills be extended to and inclusive of Thursday the Twenty-eighth day of

April, instant.

Ordered, That the fees, less the actual cost of printing, be remitted on

Bill (No. 27), North York, and on Bill (No. 31), St. Mary's, the same being
not further proceeded with.

Ordered, That the time for receiving Eeports from Committees on Private

Bills be extended until and inclusive of Thursday, the Twenty-eighth day of

April, instant.

Mr. Smith, from the Standing Committee on Printing, presented their

Second Report, which was read as follows :
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Your Committee recommend that the following Documents be printed :

The Public Accounts. (Sessional Papers, No. 1.)

The Estimates. (Sessional Papers, No. 2.)

Report of Department of Lands and Forests. (Sessional Papers, No. 3.)

Report of Department of Mines. (Sessional Papers, No. 4.)

Report of Inspector of Division Courts. (Sessional Papers No. 5.)

Report of Inspector of Legal Offices. (Sessional Papers, No. 6.)

Report of Inspector of Registry Offices. (Sessional Papers, No. 7.)

Report of Municipal Auditor. (Sessional Papers, No. 8.)

Report of Queen Victoria Park Commissioners. (Sessional Papers, No.

9.)

Report of Inspector of Insurance. (Sessional Papers, No. 10.)

Report of Registrar of Friendly Societies. (Sessional Papers, No. 11.)

Report of Registrar of Loan Corporations. (Sessional Papers, No. 12.)

Report of Department of Public Works. (Sessional Papers, No. 13.)

Report of Game and Fish Commission. (Sessional Papers, No. 14.)

Report on Highway Improvement. (Sessional Papers, No. 15.)

Report of Bureau of Labour. (Sessional Papers, No. 16.)

Report of Department of Education. (Sessional Papers, No. 17.)

Report of LTniversity of Toronto. (Sessional Papers, No. 18.)

Report of Secretary and Registrar. (Sessional Papers, No. 19.)

Report of Registrar-General. (Sessional Papers, No. 20.)

Report of Board of Health. (Sessional Papers, No. 21.)

Report on Hospitals for the Insane. (Sessional Papers, No. 22.)

Report on Hospitals for Idiotic and Epileptic. (Sessional Papers, No.

23.)
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Report on the Feeble-Minded. ^Sessional Papers, No. 24.)

Keport on Hospitals and Charities. (Sessional Papers, No. 25.)

Report on 'Common Gaols arid Prisons. (Sessional Papers, No. 26.)

Report on Neglected and Dependent Children. (Sessional Papers, No.

27.)

Report on Operation of the Liquor License Acts. (Sessional Papers,
No. 28.)

\

Report on Department of Agriculture. (Sessional Papers, No. 29.)

Report of Agricultural College. (Sessional Papers, No. 30.)

Report of Veterinary College. (Sessional Papers, No. 31.)

.Report of Experimental Union. (Sessional Papers, No. 32.)

Report of Stallion Enrollment Board. (Sessional Papers, No. 33.)

Report of Vegetable Growers' Association. (Sessional Papers, No. 34.)

Report of Corn Growers' Association. (Sessional Papers, No. 35.)

Report of Entomological Society. (Sessional Papers, No. 36.)

Report of Beekeepers' Association. (Sessional Papers, No. 37.)

Report of Dairymen's Associations. (Sessional Papers, No. 38.)

Report of Live Stock Branch. (Sessional Papers, No. 39.)

Report of Housing Commission. (Sessional Papers, No. 40.)

Report of Women's Institutes. (Sessional Papers, No. 41.)

Report of Agricultural Societies. (Sessional Papers, No. 42.)

Report of Horticultural Societies. (Sessional Papers, No. 43.)

Report of Fruit Growers' Association. (Sessional Papers, No. 44.)

Report of Experimental Station at Vineland. (Sessional /V//^yx. X<>. 45.)

Report of Bureau of Industries. (Sessional Papers, No. 46.)

Report of Bureau of Municipal Affairs. (Sessional Papers, No. 47.)
19 JOUR.
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Keport of T. and BT. O. Railway Commission. (Sessional Papers, No.

48.)

Report of Hydro-Electric Power Commission. (Sessional Paper, No. 49.)

(One half of the number of the copies of tliis report to be retained by the King's

Printer.)

Report of Railway and Municipal Board. (Sessional Papers, No. 50.)

Return from Records re Elections. (Sessional Papers, No. 51.)

Report from Provincial Archivist. (Sessional Papers, No. 52.)

Report of Provincial Auditor. (Sessional Papers, No. 54.)

Report of Workmen's Compensation Board.
'

(Sessional Papers, No. 55.)

Judge Coatsworth's Report. (Sessional Papers, No. 56.)

Report of Board of Parole. (Sessional Papers, No. 57.)

Report of Rural Credits Commission. (Sessional Papers, No. 58.)

Report of 'Commission on Hydro-Electric Systems. (Sessional Papers,
No. 59.)

Interim Report on Issue of Marriage Licenses. (Sessional Papers, No.

62.)

Interim Report on Police Magistrates. (Sessional Papers, No. 63.)

Report of Commission on University Finances. (Sessional Papers, No.

65.)

Interim Report on Timber Licenses. (Sessional Papers, No. 67.)

Report of Soldiers' Aid Commission. (Sessional Papers, No. 69.)

Report of Commission on Hydro Wages. (Sessional Papers, No. 77.)

Interim Report on Coroners. (Sessional Papers, No. 80.)

Report on Proportional Representation. (Sessional Papers, No. 81.)

Report re Hydro by Hugh L. Cooper. (Sessional Papers, No. 85.)

Report re Hydro by R. S. Lea. (Sessional Papers, No. 86.)
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Eeport of Civil Service Commissioner. (Sessional Papers, No. 87.)

Report of Mothers' Allowance Commission. (Sessional Papers, No. 88.)

Your Committee recommend that Sessional Papers, Nos. 85 and 86 be

printed in one volume.

Your Committee recommend that 2,500 copies of
"
Telephone Systems" be

printed after being fully revised, so as to include all amendments to date.

Your Committee recommend that the following books be purchased and
distributed to the Members:

125 copies of
"
History of Brant County," F. Douglas Reville, at $4 per

copy.

116 copies of
" Canadian Annual Review," at $7 per copy.

116 copies of
"
Parliamentary Guide," Chambers, at $3 per copy.

116 copies of
" Heaton's Annual," at $2 per copy.

500 copies of "Five Thousand Facts about Canada," Frank Yeigh, at

23 cents per copy.

115 copies of
" Canadian Almanac," at $2.35 per copy.

Your Committee recommend that the following Documents be not printed :

Report on State of Library. (Sessional Papers, No. 53.)

Distribution of Statutes. (Sessional Papers, No. 60.)

Regulations of Department of Education. (Sessional Papers, No. 61.)

Return re Timber Limits. (Sessional Papers, No. 64.)

Return re School Books. (Sessional Papers, No. 66.)

Return re Spruce Falls Company. (Sessional Papers, No. 68.)

Return re Issuers of Marriage Licenses. (Sessional Papers, No. 70.)

Return re Duties of Police Magistrates. (Sessional Papers, No. 71.)
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Keturn re Superintendent of Ontario Provincial Police. (Sessional

Papers, No. 72.)

Return re Board of Health. (Sessional Papers, No. 73.)

Return re Smith and Hanna. (Sessional Papers, No. 74.)

Return re Dismissal of L. R. Luke. (Sessional Papers, No. 75.)

Statement of Athletic Commission. (Sessional Papers, No. 76.)

Return, Increase Mining Taxes. (Sessional Papers, No. 78.)

Return re Mining Leases and Grants. (Sessional Papers, No. 79.)

Return re Mining Tax Act. (Sessional Papers, No. 82.)

Return re Game and Fish Department. (Sessional Papers, No. S3.)

Return re Convictions under O.T.A. (>V\x/o>m/ I'upcrs, No. 84.)

Resolved, That this House doth concur in the foregoing Report.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 241), intituled
" An Act respecting the Examining and Licens-

ing of Electrical Contractors and Journeymen Electricians.
7 ' Mr. Swayze.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 242), intituled "The Damage by Fumes Arbitration Act."

Mr. Doherty.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The House, according to Order, again resolved itself into the Committee
of Supply.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That there be granted to His Majesty, for the services of 1921,
the following sums:
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205. To defray the expenses of the Sundry Civil and Criminal

Justice 252,366 66

206. To defray the expenses of the Administration of Justice in

Districts . 140 00

245. To defray the expenses of the Attorney-General^ Depart-

ment, Miscellaneous 5,500 00

203. To defray the expenses of the Civil Government r43,476 02

207. To defray the expenses of the Public and Separate School

Education . 27,885 80

215. To defray the expenses of the Provincial and other Univer-

sities 1,515,344 00

228. To defray the expenses of the Fruit Branch 9,000 00

231. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Agricultural College 30
?
050 00

233. To defray the expenses of the Government House, Mainten-

ance and Repairs 800 00

234. To defray the expenses of the Parliament and Departmental

Buildings, Maintenance and Repairs 3.500 00

235. To defray the expenses of the Osgoode Hall, Maintenance

and Repairs 1,200 00

236. To defray the expenses of the Miscellaneous Maintenance and

Repairs of Government Buildings 4.300 00

237. To defray the expenses of the Public Institutions Buildings 70,000 00

238. To defray the expenses of the Educational Buildings 182,866 20

240. To defray the expenses of the Public Works 295,150 00

241. To defray the expenses of the Department of Labour 152,200 00

239. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Agricultural College,

Buildings 50,800 00

And the House having continued to sit until Twelve of the Clock mid-

night,
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Friday, 22nd April, 1921.

The House continued to sit in Committee.

. To defray the expenses of the Colonization Eoads ........ 650,081 75

243. To defray the expenses of the Department of Public High-

ways ................................. . ...... . . 11,447 60

244. To defray the expenses of the Game and Fisheries ......... 12,05G 50

246. To defray the expenses of the Treasury Department, Mis-

cellaneous .............. ....................... 22,954 68

248. To defray the expenses of the Outside Service and Surveys. . 183,500 00

249. To defray the expenses of the Parks ................... 5,000 00

250. To defray the expenses of the Department of Mines ....... 26,500 00

251. To defray the expenses of the Kefund Account ............ 21,734 28

252. To defray the expenses of the Miscellaneous .............. 11,103 43

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the

Committee had come to several Resolutions
; also, That the Committee had

directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Ordered, That the Report be received To-day.

Resolved, That the 'Committee have leave to sit again To-day.

Mr. Watson, from the 'Committee of Supply, reported the following
further Resolutions :

203. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Forty-three thousand four

hundred and seventy-six dollars and two cents be granted to His Majesty to

defray the expenses of Civil Government for the year ending 31st October,
1921.

204. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eighty-four thousand six hundred

and fifteen dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Legis-
lation for the year ending 31st October, 1921.
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205. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and fifty-two

thousand three hundred and sixty-six dollars and sixty-six cents be granted
to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Administration of Justice, Civil and

Criminal, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

206. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and forty dollars

be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Administration of Justice

in Districts for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

207. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-seven thousand eight
hundred and eighty-five dollars and eighty cents be granted to His Majesty
to defray the expenses of Public and Separate School Education for the year

ending 31st October, 1921.

208. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and fifty dollars

be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal and Model Schools,

Toronto, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

209. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and fifty dollars

be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal and Model

Schools, Ottawa, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

210. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and fifty dollars

be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal School, London,
for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

211. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding two thousand five hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of English-French

Training 'School, Sturgeon Falls, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

212. Resolved, That a sum not- exceeding one hundred dollars be granted
to His Majesty to defray the expenses of English-French Training School,

Sandwich, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

213. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One thousand dollars be granted
to His Majesty to defray the expenses of High Schools and Collegiate Insti-

tutes for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

214. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eight hundred and fifty dollars

be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Public Libraries, Art

Schools, Historical and Scientific Societies for the year ending 31st October,
1921.

215. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One million five hundred and

fifteen thousand three hundred and forty-four dollars be granted to His

Majesty to defray the expenses of Provincial and other Universities for the

year ending 31st October, 1921.
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216. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Four thousand dollars be granted
to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Technical Education for the year

ending 31st October, 1921.

217. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Five thousand five hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of The Northern

Academy, Monteith, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

218. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Five hundred dollars be granted
to His Majesty to defray the expenses of The Ontario School for the Deaf,

Belleville, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

219. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Five hundred dollars be granted
to His Majesty to defray the expenses of The Ontario School for the Blind,

Brantford, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

220. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fifteen thousand eight hundred
and twelve dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Mis-

cellaneous Education for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

221. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eighty thousand five hundred

and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario

Reformatory, Guelph, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

222. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Five thousand dollars be granted
to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Brick and Tile Plant,

Mimico, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

223. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Seventy-one thousand four

hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario

Reformatory Industries for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

224. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Three thousand dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Industrial Farm, Burwash,
for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

225. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two thousand seven hundred

and twenty-six dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Miscellaneous Public Institutions for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

226. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Nine hundred and four dollars

be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Agricultural and Horti-

cultural Societies for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

227. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eleven thousand and fifty

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Live Stock Branch

for the year ending 31st October, 1921.
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228. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Nine thousand dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Fruit Branch for the year

ending 31st October, 1921.

229. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Four hundred and ten dollars

be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Veterinary Col-

lege for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

230. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fifteen thousand one hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Miscellaneous

Agriculture for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

231. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Thirty thousand and fifty

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Agri-
cultural College for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

232. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Thirty thousand and ninety-
three dollars and forty cents be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses
of Hospitals and Charities for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

233. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eight hundred dollars be granted
to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Government House, Maintenance,
for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

234. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Three thousand five hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Parliament and

Departmental Buildings, Maintenance, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

235. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One thousand two hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Osgoode Hall,

Maintenance, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

236. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Four thousand three hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Miscellaneous

Maintenance and Repairs of Government Buildings for the year ending 31st

October, 1921.

237. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Seventy thousand dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Public Institutions, Build-

ings, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

238. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and eighty-two
thousand eight hundred and sixty-six dollars and twenty cents be granted to

His Majesty to defray the expenses of Educational Buildings for the year
ending 31st October, 1921.

20 JOUK.
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239. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fifty thousand eight hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Ontario Agri-

cultural College, Buildings, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

240. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and ninety-five

thousand one hundred and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray

the expenses of Public Works for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

241. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and fifty-two

thousand two hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses

of Department of Labour for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

242. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Six hundred and fifty thousand

six hundred and eighty-one dollars and seventy-five cents be granted to His

Majesty to defray the expenses of Colonization Roads for the year ending
31st October, 1921.

243. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eleven thousand four hundred

and forty-seven dollars and sixty cents be granted to His Majesty to defray
the expenses of Department of Public Highways for the year ending 31st

October, 1921.

244. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twelve thousand and fifty-six

dollars and fifty cents be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Game and Fisheries for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

245. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Five thousand five hundred
dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Attorney-General's

Department, Miscellaneous, for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

246. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-two thousand nine

hundred and fifty-four dollars and sixty-eight cents be granted to His Majesty
to defray, the expenses of Treasury Department, Miscellaneous, for the year

ending 31st October, 1921.

247. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and fifty-one

thousand three hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the

expenses of Provincial Secretary's Department, Miscellaneous, for the year

ending 31st October, 1921.

248. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and eighty-three
thousand five hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses
of Outside Service and Surveys for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

249. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Five thousand dollars be granted
to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Parks for the year ending 31st

October, 1921.
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250. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-six thousand five hund-

red dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Department
of Mines for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

251. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-one thousand seven

hundred and thirty-four dollars and twenty-eight cents be granted to His

Majesty to defray the expenses of Eefund Account for the year ending 31st

October, 1921.

252. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eleven thousand one hundred
and three dollars and forty-three cents be granted to His Majesty to defray
the expenses of Miscellaneous for the year ending 31st October, 1921.

The several Resolutions, having been again read, were concurred in.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Biggs,

Ordered, That the following Members compose the Select Committee to

which was referred Bill (No. 208), Respecting Professional Engineers:
Messieurs Doherty, Biggs, Webster, Slack, Halcrow, Gray, Lewis, Calder,
and McLeod.

Mr. Drury delivered to Mr. Speaker a Message from the Lieutenant-

Governor, signed by himself; and the said Message was read by Mr. Speaker,
and is as follows :

L. H. CLARKE.

The Lieutenant-Governor transmits Estimates of certain sums required
for the service of the Province for the year ending 31st October, 1922, and
recommends them to the Legislative Assembly.

GOVERNMENT HOUSE,

Toronto, April 21st, 1921.

(Sessional Papers, No. 2.)

Ordered, That the Message of the Lieutenant-Governor, together with the
Estimates accompanying same, be referred to the Committee of Supply.

The House then adjourned at 1.25 a.m.
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Friday, April 22nd, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

The following Petition was 'brought up and laid upon the Table:

By Mr. Stringer, The Petition of the County Council of Haldimand.

The following Bills were severally introduced and road the first timer-

Bill (No. 243), intituled
" An Act to amend The Optometry Act." Mr.

Ramsden.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 244), intituled "An Act to amend The Dog Tax and Sheep
Protection Act." Mr. Henry.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 245), intituled
" An Act respecting Vocational Education/'

Mr. Grant.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Bill (No. 246), intituled "An Act to amend The Hospitals and Charit-

able Institutions Act." Mr. Nixon.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time on Monday next.

Mr. Marceau asked the following Question:

1. What purchases of (a) Motor cars, and (&) Motor trucks have been

made by or on behalf of the Government since November 13th, 1919
;
and upon

what dates respectively. 2. In what cases were tenders called for. What were

the respective tenders in each case, and the names of the tenderers. 3. What
tenders were accepted in each case. 4. In case tenders were not called for,

in what cases and why were they not called for.
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And the Minister of Public Works replied in the words and figures follow-

ing:

1. (a) Mo ior cars purchased

Item 1 March 18th, -1920 1

Item 2 March 18th, 1920 1

Item 3 May 14th, 1920 20

Item 4 May 21st, 1920 1

Item 5 June 10th
?
1920 4

Item 6 November, 1919 1

Item 7 January, 1920 1

Item 8 February, 1920 . . 1

Item 9 March, 1920 , 3

Item 10 April, 1920 4

Item 11 May, 1920 8

Item 12 June, 1920 4

Item 13 July, 1920 5

Item 14 August, 1920 1

Item 15 October, 1920 ; 1

Item 16 March, 1921 1
J

Item IT April, 1921 2

Item 18 July 19th, 1920 17

Item 19 May 18th, 1920 . 1

Item 20 May 19th, 1920 1 !

Item 21 May llth, 1920 1

Item 22, June 21st, 1920 1

(&) Motor trucks purchased

Item 1 December 6th, 1919 1

Item 2 December 30th, 1919 12

Item 3 January 5th, 1920 1

Item 4 February 7th, 1920 3

Item 5 May 6th, 1920 6

Item 6 May 6th, 1920 1

Item 7 June 21st, 1920 1

Item 8 July 7th, 1920 .- 1

Item 9 July 22nd, 1920 2

Item 9a July 22nd, 1920 2

Item 10 August 24th, 1920 2

Item 11 August 21st, 1920 1

Item 12 September 28th, 1920 2

Item 13 September 28th, 1920 4
Item 14 November 1st, 1920 1

Item 15 November 6th. 1920 2

Item 16 July 15th, 1920 1
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Item 17 May 18th, 1920 1

Item 18 May 18th, 1920 1

Item 19 July 13th, 1920 1

Item 20 July 24th, 1920 1

Item 21 October 4th, 1920 1

Item 22 October 23rd, 1920 1

2. Tenders were received for the following motor cars noted as Items 2,

3, and 18

Item 2 W. C. Warburton $475 00 and old car.

Universal Car Co 425 00 and old car.

Toronto Motor Car Co 425 00 and old car.

A. D. Gorrie Co 400 00 and old car.

Item 3 M. & H. Jerome 927 00

Sparling and Eeeson 927 80

A. D. Gorrie & Co 929 30

Toronto Motor Car Co 929 30

Universal Car Co. 931 55

W. C. Warburton 932 54

Bradley Love 932 79

Riverdale Garage 934 30

See and Smith 939 30

Item 18 United Auto Sales, Ltd 1,595 00

Frank Barton, Ltd 2,900 00

G. E. Gooderham & Co 1,140 00

Toronto Motor Car Co., Ltd 1,218 60

Crang's Garage, Ltd 1,336 63

Premier Motor Sales, Ltd 1,497 50

M. & H. Jerome 1,217 26

Tenders were called for motor trucks under the Items referred to as 1,

2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 9, 9a
? 11, 12, 13, 14, 16, as follows:

Item 1 W. C. Warburton $962 00

Item 3 M. H. Jerome . . 950 00

Toronto Motor Car Co 960 00

Sparling Eeeson 966 30

A. D. Gorrie 992 00

Item 4 Sparling Reeson 742 50

A. D. Gorrie & Co 757 00

Toronto Motor Car Co 808 00

M. H. Jerome 810 00

W. C. Warburton 810 58
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Item 5 M. & H. Jerome 730 00

Universal Car Co 740 00

Toronto Motor Car Co 750 00

Sparling Eeeson 750 50

W. C. Warburton 752 00

Eiverdale Garage Co 763 00

Item 6 A. D. Gorrie & Co $320 00 and old truck.

W. C. Warburton 370 00 and old truck.

Item 7 W. C. Warburton 475 30 and old truck.

Item 9 National Truck each 5,950 00 f.o.b. Toronto.

Republic Truck each 6,166 00 " Toronto.

Stewart Truck each 6,540 00 " Hamilton.

Paige Truck each 6,600 00 "
Toronto.

Adanac Truck each 4,767 00 "
Detroit.

Tiffin Truck each 6,836 00 "
Toronto.

Acason Truck . .each 7,540 00 " Windsor.

Packard Truck each 7,592 81 " Windsor.

Item 9a F. W. D. Truck . .each 7,695 00 "
Kitchener.

Leyland Truck each 8,000 00 "
Toronto.

White Truck each 8,125 00 "
Toronto.

Sterling Truck each 8,300 00 any dest'tion.

Sentinel Truck each 8,920 00 f.o.b. Mont'al.

Item 11 W. C. Warburton 782 38

Item 12 M. & H. Jerome 924 20

Toronto Motor Car Co 942 00

A. D. Gorrie 975 38

See and Smith 980 72

Item 13 M. & H. Jerome 649 00

A. D. Gorrie 674 58

W. C. Warburton 678 08

See and Smith 769 72

Item 14 M. & II. Jerome 448, 00 & old chassis.

W. C. Warburton & <Co 517 80 & old chassis.

A. D. Gorrie 535 38 & old chassis.

Item 16 H. E. Givan, Ltd, 8,100 00

The Crompton Car Co 8,250 00

Packard-Ontario Motor Car 7,800 00

Republic Motors, Ltd 4,365 00

Grace Motors, Ltd 5,400 00

Reo Motor Sales Co 6,250 00

The White Motor Car, Ltd. 5,128 85
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3. Motor cars

Item 2 W. C. Warburton.

Item 3 M. & H. Jerome.

Item 18 M. & H. Jerome.

Motor trucks,

Item 1 W. C. Warburton.

Item 3 M. & H. Jerome.

Item 4 Tender for Sparling
1 and Reeson accepted for three Ford

roadsters.

Item ."> Tenders of M. H. Jerome accepted for six Ford roadsters.

Item 6 Tender of A. D. Gorrie for Ford truck.

Item 7 Tender of W. C. Warburton accepted for Ford truck chassis

and purchase of old chassis.

Item 9
(

Lowest tender is Xational Truck two purchased.
Item 10 Xext lowest, Canadian built, two purchased, F. W. D. trucks.

Item 11 W. C. Warburton.

Item 12 Tender of M. & H. Jerome for two Ford trucks complete.

Item 13 Tender of M. H. Jerome for four Ford roadsters with

express bodies accepted.

Item 14 Tender of M. & H. Jerome for Ford ton chassis and purchase
of old chassis is accepted.

Item 16 The White Motor Co., Limited.

4. Motor cars

Item 1 Old car exhibited to dealers and best offer accepted.

Item 4 Demonstration car secured at reduced price.

Item r> Only one firm could supply cars when needed.

Items 6-17 incl. They were all Ford cars purchased locally in the

district in which they were to be used at the time needed

and at standard prices, and in practically every case a used

car was turned in as part payment.
Items 19-22 incl. Standard list prices were paid.

Motor trucks

Items 2, 21, 22 Standard price.

Item 8 Second-hand steam truck.

Item 10 The contractor purchased trucks for paving contract which
was later cancelled because of shortage of materials. This

prevented work being done and trucks were taken over by
the Government at standard price.

Item 15 Quotations received satisfactory.
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Items 17-18 Standard list prices were paid.

Items 19-20 Written proposals were submitted by the Toronto Motor
Car Co. which supplies a special body required for the

particular work under the direction of the bridge foreman.

Ford trucks at standard price. The most satisfactory body
determined the purchase.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 137),

Respecting Reciprocal or Inter-Insurance, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Thompson moved

That the Bill be not reported.

And the Motion having been put, was carried in the Committee by a

standing vote, and it was

Ordered, That the Bill be not now reported.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 177),
To provide for the Maintenance of Parents by their Children, and after some
time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported,
That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill without any amend-
ment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time on Monday next.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 154),
To amend The Stationary and Hoisting Engineers Act, and after some time

spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Watson reported,

That the Committee had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave

to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again on Monday next.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 164),
To amend The Line Fences Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Heenan reported, That the Committee
had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time on Monday next.



300 22ND APRIL. 1921

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

201), To amend The County Judges Act, and after some time spent therein,,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Heenan reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time on Mondav next,

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (^o. 218),

The Northern Light Railways Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Heenan reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.
/

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time on Mondav next.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 198),

To amend The Ontario Insurance Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Heenan reported, That the Committee

had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again on Monday next.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 207),

To amend The Ontario Temperance Act, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the 'Chair
;
and Mr. Heenan reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time on Mondav next.
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The Order of the Day for the House to resolve itself into a Committee

to consider Bill (No. 161), To amend The Public Parks Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (Xo. 229), To amend

The Municipal Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His

Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Report of the Minister of Agriculture for year ending 31st October, 1920.

(Sessional Papers, No. 29.)

Also Report of the Ontario Agricultural College and Experimental

Farm, 1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 30.)

Also Report of the Entomological Society of Ontario, 1920. (Sessional

Papers, No. 36.)

Also Report of the Beekeepers' Association, 1920. (Sessional Papers,

No. 37.)

Also Report of the Dairymen's Associations of the Province of Ontario,

1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 38.)

Also Report of the Live Stock Branch of the Department of Agriculture,

1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 39.)

Also Report of the Women's Institutes of the Province of Ontario, 1920.

(Sessional Papers, No. 41.)

Also Report of Fruit Growers' Association of Ontario, 1920. (Ses-

sional Papers, No. 44.)

Also Report of the Statistics Branch of the Department of Agriculture,

1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 46.)

The House then adjourned at 5.55 p.m.
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Monday, April 25th, 1921.

PEAYEKS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

The following Petition was read and received :

Of the County Council of Haldimand, praying for certain amendments

to The Highway Improvement Act, 1920.

On Motion of Mr. Johnston (Simcoe), seconded by Mr. Halcrow,

Ordered, That the Rules relating to Private Bills be suspended and leave

be given to introduce a Bill respecting the Town of Midland, and that the

same be referred direct to the Standing Committee on Private Bills for con-

sideration and report.

The following Bill was then introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 247), intituled "An Act respecting the Town of Midland."

Mr. Johnston (Simcoe.)

Ordered, That the Bill be referred direct to the Standing Committee on

Private Bills.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first timer-

Bill (No. 248), intituled "An Act respecting proof of death of Soldiers

and Sailors while on Active Service/' Mr. Carmichael.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 249), intituled "An Act to amend The Ontario Companies
Act." Mr. Nixon.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 250), intituled "An Act to amend The Mortmain and Charit-

able Uses Act." Mr. Nixon.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.
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The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (Xo.

183), To amend The Statute Labour Act, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster reported, That the Com-

mittee had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The following Bills were severally read the second timer-

Bill (Xo. 230), To amend The Ontario Temperance Act.

Referred to the Legal Committee.

Bill (Xo. 216), To amend The Crown Attorneys Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (Xo. 221), To amend The Mothers' Allowances Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (Xo. 222), To amend The Bills of Sale and Chattel Mortgages Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (Xo. 228), To amend The Ontario Public Service Superannuation
Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (Xo. 232), To amend The Female Refuges Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (Xo. 234), Respecting the Extra-mural Employment of Persons

under Sentence.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (Xo. 235), Respecting the Administration of Justice in the District

of Temiskaming.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (Xo. 236), Respecting the Ontario Athletic Commission.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.
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The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No, 226), To

amend The Power Commission Act, having been read,

Mr. Raney moved

That the Bill he now read the second time,

And a Debate having arisen, it was, on the Motion of Mr. Webster^

Ordered, That the Debate be adjourned until To-morrow.

On Motion of Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Biggs,

Resolved, That this House do forthwith resolve itself into a Committee

of the Whole to consider certain proposed Kesolution respecting an amendment

to The Current Eate of Interest Act.

Mr. Drury acquainted the House that His Honour the Lieutenant-Gov-

ernor, having been informed of the subject matter of the proposed Resolu-

tion, recommends it to the consideration of the House.

The House then resolved itself into the Committee.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That section 2 of The Current Rate of Interest Act be amended

by inserting after the word "debentures" in the tenth line thereof, the words
" heretofore or."

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the

Committee had come to a certain Resolution.

Ordered, That the Report be now received.

Mr. MacVicar reported the Resolution as follows:

Resolved, That section 2 of The Current Rate of Interest Act be amended

by inserting after the word "debentures" in the tenth line thereof, the words
"
heretofore or."

The Resolution having been read the second time, was agreed to, and

referred to the Committee of the Whole House on Bill (No. 251), To amend

The Current Rate of Interest Act.
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On Motion of Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Biggs,

Resolved, That this House do forthwith resolve itself into a Committee
of the Whole to consider certain proposed Resolutions respecting the raising
of Money for the Public Service.

Mr. Drury acquainted the House that His Honour the Lieutenant-Gov-

ernor, having been informed of the subject matter of the proposed Resolu-

tions, recommends them to the consideration of the House.

The House then resolved itself into the Committee.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, 1. That the Lieutenant-Governor in Council be authorized to

raise by way of loan a sum of money not exceeding Twenty Million Dollars

($20,000,000) for all or any of the purposes following, that is to say: For
the public service, for works carried on by commissioners on behalf of Ontario,
for the covering of any debt of Ontario on open account, for paying any float-

ing indebtedness of Ontario, and for the carrying on of the public works

authorized by the Legislature, which sum of money may be borrowed for any
term or terms not exceeding forty years at a rate not exceeding seven per centum

per annum, and shall be raised upon the credit of the Consolidated Revenue
Fund of Ontario, and shall be chargeable thereupon.

2. That the Lieutenant-Governor in Council may provide for a special

sinking fund with respect to such loan and such sinking fund may be at a

greater rate than the one-half of one per centum per annum on the amount
of such debentures or stock as specified in subsection 2 of section 4 of The
Provincial Loans Act.

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the

Committee had come to certain Resolutions.

Ordered, That the Report be now received.

Mr. MacVicar reported the Resolutions as follows :

I Resolved, 1. That the Lieutenant-Governor in Council be authorized to

raise by way of loan a sum of money not exceeding Twenty Million Dollars

($20,000,000) for all or any of the purposes following, that is to say: For
the public service, for works carried on by commissioners on behalf of Ontario^
for the covering of any debt of Ontario on open account, for paying any float-

ing indebtedness of Ontario, and for the carrying on of the public works
authorized by the Legislature, which sum of money may be borrowed for any
term or terms not exceeding forty years at a rate not exceeding seven per centum
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per annum, and shall be raised upon the credit of the Consolidated Revenue

Fund of Ontario, and shall be chargeable thereupon.

2. That the Lieutenant-Governor in Council may provide for a special

sinking fund with respect to such loan and such sinking fund may be at a

greater rate than the one-half of one per centum per annum on the amount

of such debentures or stock as specified in subsection 2 of section 4 of The

Provincial Loans Act.

The Resolutions having been read the second time, were agreed to, and

referred to the Committee of the Whole House on Bill (No. 252), For raising

Money on the Credit of the Consolidated Revenue Fund.

The following Bills were then severally introduced and read the first

time :

Bill (No. 251), intituled "An Act to amend The Current Rate of

Interest Act." Mr. Smith.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 252), intituled "An Act for raising Money on the Credit of

the Consolidated Revenue Fund." Mr. Smith.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 253), intituled
" An Act to amend The Provincial Loans Act."

Mr. Smith.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The House, according to Order, again resolved itself into the Committee

of -Supply.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That there be granted to His Majesty, for the services of 1922,

the following sums :

1. To defray the expenses of the Office of the Lieutenant-

Governor 6,450 00

And the House having continued to sit until Twelve of the Clock, mid-

night,



George T7 . 2oTii AXD 26TH APRIL. 313

Tuesday, 26th April, 1921.

The House continued in Committee.

6. To defray the expenses of the Department of Mines 125,800 00

7. To defray the expenses of the Department of Public Works 80,250 00

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Hicks reported, That the

Committee had come to several Resolutions; also, That the Committee had

directed him to ask for leave to sit a^ain.

Ordered, That the Report be received To-day.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-day.

The House then adjourned at 12.15 a.m.

Tuesday, April 26th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Raney, from the {Standing Committee on Private Bills, presented
their Fifteenth Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee beg to report the following Bill with certain amend-

ments :

Bill (No. 215), An Act respecting The Goodyear Tire and Rubber Com-

pany of Canada, Limited.

Your Committee beg to report the following Bill without amendment:

Bill (No. 247), An Act respecting the Town of Midland.

Your Committee recommend that the fees, less the actual cost of

printing, be remitted on Bill (No. 16), "An Act to enable the Town of

Hawkesbury to withdraw from the jurisdiction of the Counties of Prescott

and Russell," the same having been withdrawn by the promoters thereof.
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Ordered, That the fees, less the actual cost of printing, be remitted on

Bill (No. 16), Town of Hawkesbury.

Mr. Mills, from the Select Committee to which was referred Bill (No.

186), Kespecting Natural Gas, presented their Report, which was read' as

follows and adopted:

Your Committee have carefully considered the Bill to them referred,

and have prepared certain amendments thereto.

On Motion of Mr. Raney, seconded by Mr. Drury,

Ordered, That Bill (No. 114), Respecting Liens of Mechanics and Wage-
Earners, Supply Men and others, and Bill (No. 123), Respecting Co-operative

Credit Societies, be referred to a .Select Committee to be composed as follows :

Messieurs Sinclair, Marshall, Hill, Price, Curry, Homuth, Swayze, Rollo and

Raney, said Committee to be empowered to sit during the Recess and report

to the House at the next Session thereof.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney,

Ordered, That the Committee on Privileges and Elections, which has not

concluded the business referred to it, be permitted to sit To-day during the

Session of the House.

The House, according to Order, again resolved itself into the Committee

of Supply.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That there be granted to His Majesty, for the services of 1922,
the following sums:

11. To defray the expenses of the Treasury Department 101,725 00

12. To defray the expenses of the Audit Office 49,000 00

14. To defray the expenses of the Department of Agriculture. . 117,800 00

15. To defray the expenses of Miscellaneous 25,175 00
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17. To defray the expenses of the Supreme Court of Ontario. . 104,650 00

18. To defray the expenses of the Sundry Civil and Criminal

Justice 617,330 00

19. To defray the expenses of the Administration of Justice

in Districts 259,095 00

20. To defray the expenses of Public and Separate School Educa-

tion 3,128,865 00

21. To defray the expenses of the Normal and Model Schools,

Toronto 123,867 00

22. To defray the expenses of the Normal and Model Schools,

Ottawa 84,760 00

23. To defray the expenses of the Normal School, London 42,490 00

24. To defray the expenses of the Normal School, Hamilton. .. 37,620 00

25. To defray the expenses of the Normal School, Peterborough. . 38,750 00

26. To defray the expenses of the Normal School, Stratford 37.000 00

27. To defray the expenses of the Normal School, North Bay. . 57,950 00

28. To defray the expenses of the English-French Professional

Training Schools 60,755 00

29. To defray the expenses of the High Schools and 'Collegiate

Institutes . 222,500 00

30. To defray the expenses of the Departmental Library and

Museum 17,600 00

31. To defray the expenses of the Public Libraries, Art Schools,

Historical, Literary and Scientific Societies 119,700 00

32. To defray the expenses of Technical Education 891,150 00

33. To defray the expenses of Superannuated Teachers 70,150 00

34. To defray the expenses of the Provincial and other Univer-

sities 781,720 00

35. To defray the expenses of the Ontario School for the Deaf,

Belleville 141,030 00
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36. To defray the expenses of the Ontario School for the Blind,

Brantford 95,634 00

37. To defray the expenses of the Northern Academy, Monteith. . 44,980 00

38. To defray the expenses of Miscellaneous Education 38,200 00

39. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Brockville. 239,422 00

40. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Cobourg. . . 121,000 00

41. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Hamilton. . 296,265 00

42. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Kingston. . 195,305 00

43. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, London 282,887 00

44. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Mimico. . . . 202,480 OO1

45. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Orillia. . . . 205,927 OO1

46. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Penetang-
uishene 119,140 00

47. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Toronto 197,667 00

48. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Whitby 356,594 00

49. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Hospital, Woodstock. 83,306 00

50. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Keformatory, Guelph 127.550 00
*

51. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Reformatory Industries 170,400 00

52. To defray the expenses of the Andrew Mercer Reformatory
for Females 60,250 00

53. To defray the expenses of Industries, Andrew Mercer Re-

formatory for Females 10,000 00

54. To defray the expenses of the Industrial Farm, Burwash. . . 183,674 00

55. To defray the expenses of the Industrial Farm, Fort William 24,020 00

56. To defray the expenses of Miscellaneous Public Institutions. 73,925 00
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57. To defray the expenses of the Agricultural and Horticultural

Societies 185,850 00

58. To defray the expenses of the Live Stock Branch 108,900 00

59. To defray the expenses of the Institutes 30,800 00

16. To defray the expenses of Legislation 320,250 00

60. To defray the expenses of the Dairy Branch 158,000 00

61. To defray the expenses of the Fruit Branch. . 77,800 00

62. To defray the expenses of the Agricultural Eepresentatives
Branch 142,000 00

63. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Veterinary College. . . 34,360 00

64. To defray the expenses of Miscellaneous Agriculture 96,450 00

65. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Agricultural College. 293,655 00

66. To defray the expenses of the Macdonald Institute and Hall 57,622 00

67. To defray the expenses of the Forestry 1,000 00

68. To defray the expenses of the Animal Husbandry, Farm and

Experimental Feeding Department 36,210 00

69. To defray the expenses of the Field Experiments 20,580 00

70. To defray the expenses of the. Experimental Dairy Depart-
ment 10,100 00

71. To defray the expenses of the Dairy School 9,350 00

72. To defray the expenses of the Poultry Department 22,208 00

73. To defray the expenses of the Horticultural Department. . . . 21,598 00

74. To defray the expenses of the Apicultural Department 4,950 00

75. To defray the expenses of Bacteriology 3,650 00

76. To defray the expenses of Botany 3,670 00

77. To defray the expenses of Chemistry. . 4,470 00
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78. To defray the expenses of Entomology 4,500 00

79. To defray the expenses of English 500 00

80. To defray the expenses of Manual Training 2,100 00

81. To defray the expenses of Physics 7,470 00

82. To defray the expenses of Farm Economics 29,075 00

83. To defray the expenses of Colonization and Immigration. . . 163,100 00

84. To defray the expenses of Hospitals and Charities 789,300 00

85. To defray the expenses of the Government House 26,800 00

86. To defray the expenses of the Parliament and Departmental

Buildings 345,111 35

87. To defray the expenses of Osgoode Hall 51,875 00

88. To defray the expenses of Miscellaneous Public Buildings. . 61,600 00

89. To defray the expenses of Parliament and Departmental

Buildings 100,000 00

90. To defray the expenses of Osgoode Hall 7,000 00

91. To defray the expenses of Public Institutions 241,000 00

92. To defray the expenses of the Educational Buildings 190,250 00

93. To defray the expenses of the Ontario Agricultural 'College

Buildings 154,600 00

And the House having continued to sit until Twelve of the Clock, mid-

night,

Wednesday, 27th April, 1921.

- The House continued in Committee.

9. To defray the expenses of the Public Highways 220,125 00

10. To defray the expenses of the Game and Fisheries Depart-
ment 56,425 00

98. To defray the expenses of the Colonization Eoads 107,300 00
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99. To defray the expenses of the Department of Public High-

ways 1,163,020 00

94. To defray the expenses of Districts Buildings 217,600 00

95. To defray the expenses of Miscellaneous 177,000 00

96. To defray the expenses of Public Works 180,833 38

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster reported. That the

Committee had come to several Resolutions; also, That the Committee had
directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Ordered, That the Report be received To-day.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-day.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His
Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Report of the Agricultural and Experimental Union, 1920. (Sessional

Papers, N.o. 32.)

Also Report of the Vegetable Growers' Association, 1920. (Sessional

Papers, No. 34.)

Also Report of the Horticultural Societies, 1920. (Sessional Papers,
No. 43.)

Also Supplement to Report of the Bureau of Archives, 1920. (Ses-
sional Papers, No. 52.)

The House then adjourned at 1.00 a.m.

Wednesday, April 27th, 1921.

RAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. McCrea, from the Standing Committee on Legal Bills, presented
leir Third Report, which was read as follows ,and adopted:

Your Committee have carefully considered the following Bills and have

spared certain amendments thereto respectively:

Bill (No. 142), To amend The School Sites Act.

Bill (No. 200), To amend The Division Courts Act.
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Mr. Nixon, from the Standing Committee on Municipal Law, presented

their Eighth Report, which was read as follows and adopted:

Your Committee have carefully considered Bills Nos. 72, 73, 84, 86, 91,

94, 106, 113, 121, 130, 131, 139, 141, 148, 157, 160 and 163, To amend

The Municipal Act, and such of their provisions as have been approved
of have been embodied in a Bill intituled

" The Municipal Amendment Act,

1921."

Your Committee have also carefully considered Bills Nos. 70, 83, 92, 103,

140 and 151 to amend The Assessment Act, and such of their provisions as

have been approved of have been embodied in a Bill intituled
" The Assessment

Amendment Act, 1921."

Mr. Curry, from the Standing Committee on Public Accounts, presented
their Report, which was road. (Appendix Yo. 2.)

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time :

Hi'il (No. 254), intituled "An Act to amend The Klection Laws." Mr.

Drury.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 255), intituled "An Act to confirm a certain Agreement be-

tween the Hydro-Electric Power Commission of Ontario and the Corporation
of the City of Guelph." Mr. Carmichael.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 256), intituled "An Act to amend The Motor Vehicles Act/'

Mr. Brackin.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 257), intituled "An Act respecting Fair Rents." Mr.

Ramsden.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 258), intituled "An Act to authorize the purchase and opera-

tion of certain Radial Railways by the Hydro-Electric Power Commission of

Ontario on behalf of the City of Toronto." Mr. Carmichael.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.
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Bill (No. 259), intituled
" The Municipal Amendment Act, 1921." Mr.

Nixon.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 260) ,
intituled "The Assessment Amendment Act, 1921. Mr.

Nixon.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The following Bills were severally read the third time and passed :

Bill (No. 74), The Reforestation Act.

Bill (No. 75), To provide for Development Work in Northern and North-
western Ontario.

Bill (No. 194), Respecting the Office of King's Printer.

Bill (No. 202), To amend The Ontario Telephone Act.

Bill (No. 96), Respecting Farm Loans in Ontario.

Bill (No. 97), For the Promotion of Agricultural Development.

Bill (No. 98), To finance Agricultural Development.

Bill (No. 204), To amend The Community Halls Act.

Bill (No. 158), To amend The Loan and Trust Corporations Act.

Bill (No. 145), To amend The Factory, Shop and Office Building Act.

Bill (No. 218), The Northern Light Railways Act.

Bill (No. 164), To amend The Line Fences Act.

Bill (No. 183), To amend The Statute Labour Act.

The Order of the Day for the third reading of Bill (No. 67), Respecting
)ters' Lists in Cities, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be forthwith

again referred to a Committee of the Whole, with instructions to amend the

same.
21 JOUR.
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The House accordingly resolved itself into the Committee
;
and after

some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar

reported, That the Committee had amended the Bill as directed.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time forthwith.

The Bill was then read the third time, and passed.

Mr. Lewis asked the following Question:;

1. Did the Department of Lands and Forests have an estimate of the

timber on the six berths, viz., Blocks 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 disposed of in the sale

dated January :Mst. 1020, to E. W. Backus or the Fort Frances Pulp and

Paper Company. -2. If so, what was the estimate.

/And the Minister of Lands and Forests replied as follows:

1. The blocks referred to ;ire mainly portions of berths formerly under

license cut over and abandoned which contain only remnants of timber left

by former licensees. The probable amount of timber involved did not warrant

the expense of a cruise on which to l>ase an estimate. 2. Answered by Xo. 1.

Mr. Hill asked the following Question:

1. What steps are being taken by the Government to secure reliable data

with regard to the employments which offer openings for children leaving

school at the age of 16. 2~ What action does the Government contemplate

taking so as to ascertain the kind of training that will be necessary to enable

children to qualify for such openings. 3. Has consideration been given by the

Government as to the advisability of establishing junior employment offices

in the larger centres of industry as a means of securing this employment in-

formation and of furnishing the necessary vocational guidance in order that

the gulf between school and employment may be successfully bridged. 4. Hav-

ing in mind that under the Employment Offices Co-ordination Act, the Dom-
inion Government stands committed to share in the maintenance expense of

any such offices, how soon does the Ontario Legislature intend to establish

these Junior Employment Offices.

And the Minister of Education replied in the words following:

1. The Government's inquiries have been concerned with employment
opportunities for adolescents from 14 to 18 years of age, as such opportunities
have a direct bearing upon the planning of suitable part-time and full-time

instruction under The Adolescent School Attendance Act. Vocational edu-

cation surveys have been made by the officers of the Technical Branch of
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the Department in Chatham, the Border Cities, Brantford, Fort William,

Peterborough, Guelph, Gait, Belleville, St. Thomas and St. Catharines. The
executive officers of the business and industrial establishments, by direct

reference to pay-rolls when necessary, supplied the officials not only with in-

formation regarding the number of boys and girls employed, but also indi-

cated the nature of the work they were doing. By visits through the plants
the officials were able to see the boys and girls at work. The reports on these

surveys have been completed, and are forwarded to the Boards of Education
concerned. The report on the Peterborough survey has been printed in my
Annual Report for 1920, which is now ready for distribution. When a city,

with a view to the enforcement of The Adolescent School Attendance Act,
undertakes to make a school census, the officers of the Department co-operate
with a view to having the census made in such a way as to give definite in-

formation regarding the employment of each adolescent. The Vocational

Education Survey and the School Census of St. Catharines were completed
at the same time. The result is that St. Catharines now knows the kind of

job and the name and address of the employer of each one of its 528 employed
adolescents. 2. The Government has been acting for over a year in this

matter. When making the vocational education surveys, two of the main

subjects of consideration between the officials of the Technical Branch and
the executive and technical officers of the commercial and industrial estab-

lishments have been (a) What preparatory instruction will be most helpful
before employment? (&) What supplementary and up-grading instruction,
in the form of part-time and evening class work, will be most helpful during

employment, especially during the earlier years? In each survey report r

specific suggestions are made on the basis of the answers and discussions of

these questions. The problems of determining and arranging for such training
in a manner most suitable for all concerned were also a matter of considera-

tion between the officials and the officers of the local Trades and Labour
Councils in the respective communities concerned. In each centre in the^

cjjse of both the employers and employees a sympathetic attitude and a will-

ingness to co-operate were manifested. These inquiries have revealed the

general nature of the special courses of instruction needed in the centres

surveyed and in other centres having a similar commercial and industrial

basis. Further steps are necessary, however, before the most effective de-

tailed work can be done in giving each particular course of instruction. A'

ireful analysis of the jobs in which the boys and girls are expected to make
)d is necessary to determine in detail the manipulative and operative skills

md the related knowledge needed for success. It must then be ascertained

rhat can bo given to best advantage in the schools and what by direct ex-

jrience in the industry. To determine with defmiteness the up-grading
mining during employment, an intensive study of each of our industries;
Prom bottom to top is needed. The officers of the Technical Branch have
lade a good beginning in the direct study of these problems. They are co-

>perating also with the staffs of the vocational schools in the study of the
same problems. The Department, has in view the issuing of circular letters
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or bulletins giving in greater detail suggestions respecting the organization

of courses. The officers of the Technical Branch will be ready at all times

to lend assistance to Boards of Education in forming or carrying out plans.

3. The Government has given some consideration to the advisability of estab-

lishing juvenile employment offices in the larger centres, and in order to

ascertain the need of such an undertaking, a study has been made of a number

of industries to determine how far it is possible to employ juvenile labour

in them as well as to determine the occupational opportunities in them for

boys and girls. Among the industries included in this survey are boots and

shoes, saddlery and harnessing, textiles, millinery and dressmaking, depart-

ment stores, printing, biscuits and confectionery, and furniture. The Depart-
ment of Education has given careful consideration to the problem of voca-

tional guidance and of determining the training most suitable for those who
are to enter commercial and industrial pursuits. Provision is being made
this Session to authorize Boards of Education to appoint vocational guidance
officers. Provision is also being made this Session to authorize Advisory
Committees to employ on the staffs of the vocational schools officers to be

known as co-ordinators. The chief duty of the co-ordinator will be to assist

the Principal in keeping the work of the school, from the standpoint of the

training being given, related in the most advantageous way to the technical

requirements of business and industry. Such an officer will be a liason

officer, as it were, between the school and the fields into which the graduates
of the school are to go. He will function necessarily also as a follow-up officer

to the extent needed for the graduates of the school with which he is as-

sociated. The vocational guidance officers and co-ordinators will co-operate

with such employment offices as may be established in ways that are found

to be most advantageous. 4. When the need for juvenile employment offices

is established steps will immediately be taken to create them.

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

154), To amend the Stationary and Hoisting Engineers Act, and after some
time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar re-

ported. That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill with certain

amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 153),
To amend The Public Schools Act, 1920, and, after some time spent therein,
Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Com-
mittee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.
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The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

42), To incorporate the Town of Kiver Side, and, after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the Com-

mittee had made some progress, and directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-day.

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

205), Eespecting Provincial Aid to Drainage, and;, after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the 'Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Com-

mittee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House again resolved itself into a 'Committee to consider Bill (No.

198), To amend The Ontario Insurance Act, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Com-

mittee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith. .

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 216),
o amend The Crown Attorneys Act, and, after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the 'Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a 'Committee to consider Bill (No. 221),

?o amend The Mothers' Allowances Act, and, after some time spent therein,

[r. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Com-
littee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.
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The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time Tomorrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 22-2),

To amend The Bills of Sale and Chattel Mortgage Act, and, after some time

spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Watson reported, That

the Committee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 234),

Respecting the Extra-mural. Employment of persons under sentence, and,

after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr.

Watson reported, That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill

without any amendment.
\ -

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 228),
To amend The Ontario Public Service Superannuation Act, and, after some

time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Watson reported,

That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill without any amend-

ment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 18.6),

Respecting Natural Gas, and, after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker
resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee had made
some progress and had directed him to ask for leave to sit again.

Resolved, That the 'Committee have leave to sit again To-day.

The Order of the day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion

for the second reading of Bill (No. 79), To amend The Mining Tax Act,

having been read

The Debate was resumed,

And after some time the motion for the second reading having been again

put, \fas carried, and the Bill was read the second time and referred to a

Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.
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The following Bills were severally read the second time :

Bill (No. 6), Respecting the City of Sault Ste. Marie.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 30), Respecting Fecunis, Limited.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 51), Respecting the division of the Township of Ferris in the

District of Nipissing.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 54), Respecting the Township of York.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 215), Respecting the Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company of

Canada. Limited.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (IS
T
o. 247), Respecting the Town of Midland.

Referred to a Committee <jf the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 211), To amend The University Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 217), To amend The Ontario Game and Fisheries Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 231), To amend The School Laws.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 242), The Damage by Fumes Arbitration Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 237), To amend The Factory, Shop and Office Building Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.
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Bill (No. 245), Respecting Vocational Education.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 213), To amend The Municipal Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 227 ), Respecting the Practice of Architecture.

Referred to the same Select Committee to which was referred Bill (No.

208), Respecting Professional Engineers.

Bill (No. 240), To amend The Timber Slide Companies Act,

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 241), Respecting the Examination and Licensing of Electrical

Contractors and Journeymen Electricians.

Referred to the same Select Committee to which was referred Bill (No.

208), Respecting Professional Engineers.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 59), Respecting
the Lake of the Woods Control' Board, having been read,

Mr. Drury moved,

That the Bill be now read the second time.

And a Debate having ensued,

And the House having continued to sit until Twelve of the Clock, mid-

night,

Thursday, April 28th, 1921.

The debate continued.

And after some time, it was

Ordered, That the Order for the second reading be discharged and the Bill

withdrawn.
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The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 101), To amend
The Marriage Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 192), To
amend The Conveyancing and Law of Property Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 214), To amend
The Notaries Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The Order of the Day for the House to resolve itself into the Committee

of the Whole on Bill (No. 58), Respecting Construction of Certain Works
on Lakes and Streams in Ontario, having been read,

Ordered. That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 206), To pro-
vide for the construction of Township Roads by Special Assessment, having
>een read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 246), To
amend The Hospitals and Charitable Institutions Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 169), Th,e
r

orkmen's Compensation Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.
22 JOUR.
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The Order of the Day for the House to resolve itself into Committee of

the Whole on Bill (No. 232), To amend The Female Kefuges Act, having

been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The House, according to Order, again resolved itself into the 'Committee of

Supply.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That there be granted to His Majesty, for the services of 1922, the

following sums:

3. To defray the expenses of the Attorney-General's Depart-

ment' . '. 150,350 00

5. To defray the expenses of the Department of Lands and

Fprests 218,700 00

8. To defray the expenses of the Department of Labour 377,000 00

13. To defray the expenses of the Provincial Secretary's Depart-

ment : 256,850 00

97. To defray the expenses of the Department of Labour 1.452,500 00

2. To defray the expenses of the Department of Prime Min-

ister and President of the Council 32,250 00

100. To defray the expenses of the Game and Fisheries 400,400 00

103. To defray the expenses of the Provincial Secretary's Depart-

ment, Miscellaneous 4,150 00

104. To defray the expenses of Outside Service and Surveys. . . . 1,283,050 00

105. To defray the expenses of the Parks 105,000 00

106. To defray the expenses of the Department of Mines 128,000 00

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. MacVicar reported, That the 'Com-

mittee had come to several Resolutions; also. That the Committee had directed

him to ask for leave to sit again.

Ordered, That the Eeport be receievd To-day.

Resolved, That the Committee have leave to sit again To-day.

On motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Doherty,

Ordered, That the name of Mr. Hill be added to the Select Committee to

which was referred Bill (No. 208). Respecting Professional Engineers.
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The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His Honour
the Lieutenant-Governor :

Report of the Secretary and Registrar of the Province for the year 1920.

(Sessional Papers, No. 19.)

Also Report of the Department of Public Highways for the year 1920.

(Sessional Papers, No. 15.)

Also Report of the Workmen's Compensation Board for 1920. (Sessional

Papers, No. 55.)

Also Return to an Order of the House of the 25th February, 1921, That
there be laid before this House a Return showing: 1. How many miles are in-

cluded in the Ottawa-Prescott Highway. 2. How many miles of this Highway
were completely graded at the end of the year 1920. 3. How much grading still

remains to be done. 4. What was the average cost per mile of the grading com-

pleted. 5. What amount was spent during the year 1920 on equipment for the

Ottawa-Prescott Highway. 6. How many men were employed in each of the

months of 1920. 7. Has the Government purchased any gravel pits or stone

quarries along or in the vicinity of the right-of-way of the Ottawa-Prescott High-
way, and if so (a) From whom; (&) What was paid for each; and (c) What was
the area of each. 8. Has the Government rented any gravel pits or stone quarries

along or in the vicinity of the right-of-way of the Ottawa-Prescott Highway, and
if so (a) From whom; (&)What was paid for each; and (c) What was the area

of each. 9. Did the Government purchase any gravel or stone for the right-of-

way of the Ottawa-Prescott Highway, and if so (a) From whom; (&) What was

paid per cubic yard; and (c} What was the total amount paid each man. 10. How
many culverts were built during the year 1920. 11. How many still remain to

ibe completed. 12. How many culverts were built (a) By day labour; (ft) By
(Contract. 13. If any were built by the latter (a) -Who were the contractors; (&)
What were the unit prices paid; (c) What lump sums were paid to each contractor.

i!4. What was the cost per cubic yard of the sard culverts in place built by day
labour. 15. What was the cost per cubic yard of the said culverts in place built

by contract. 16. What was the total amount spent on the Ottawa-Prescott High-
way to 31st December, 1920. 17. Have the plans of the said Highway been filed

in the Federal Department of Railways pursuant to the Canada Highways Act,
and if so, when. 18. Has a subsidy agreement been signed with the Dominion
Government pursuant to the Canada Highways Act. 19. If so, what is the date

of the agreement. 20. Has the Government received any payments on account

of Dominion Government subsidy, and if so, the dates and amounts of the pay-
ments. 21. What wages were paid during 1920, on the Ottawa-Prescott Highway
(a) For unskilled labour; (&) For teams with driver. 22. How many hours a

day did the men employed on the road during 1920 work. 23. Who was the]

engineer in charge of the road during 1920, and what was his salary. 24. Has the

Government settled with all the parties from whom the right-of-way was acquired.

125.

If the answer to 24 is in the negative, what parties still remain to be settled

vith. (Sessional Paper, No. 90'.)

The House then adjourned at 1.35 a.m.
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Thursday, April 28th, 1921.

PRAYERS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Raney, from the Standing Committee on Private Bills, presented
their Sixteenth Report, which was read as follows and adopted :

Your Committee beg to report the following Bill with certain amend-

ments :

Bill (No. 8), An Act respecting the City of Toronto.

Your Committee recommend that no extra fees should be charged under

the Rules by reason of any extension of the time for receiving Reports of Com-

mittees on Private Bills.

Ordered, That no extra fees be charged by reason of any extension of time

for receiving Reports of Committees on Private Bills.

The following Bills were severally introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 261), intituled "An Act respecting Public Improvements and

Services in certain Suburban Areas." Mr. Henry.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

Bill (No. 262), intituled
" An Act to make more equal provision for the

cost of Hydro-Electric Power in Ontario." Mr. Carmichael.

Ordered-, That the Bill be read the second time To-morrow.

The following Bills were severally read the third time and passed :

Bill (No. 159), To amend The Police Magistrates Act.

Bill (No. 172), To amend The Ontario Reforestation Act.

Bill (No. 180). To amend The Registry Act.
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Bill (No. 199), To amend The Ontario Public Trustee Act.

Bill (No. 154), To amend The Stationary and Hoisting Engineers Act.

Bill (No. 205), Respecting Provincial Aid to Drainage.

Bill '(No. 198), To amend The Ontario Insurance Act.

Bill (No. 216), To amend The Crown Attorneys Act.
|

Bill (No. 221), To amend The Mothers' Allowances Act.

Bill (No. 222), To amend The Bills of Sale and Chattel Mortgage Act,

Bill (No. 228), To amend The Ontario Public Service Superannuation
Act

Bill (No. 23-t), Respecting the Extra-mural Employment of Persons

under Sentence.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney,

Ordered, That the under-mentioned Committee appointed last Session to

consider and report respecting a suitable War Memorial for Ontario, be hereby

re-appointed to continue its work as outlined in its Report adopted by this

House on the 23rd of March last, with power to sit during Recess and to report
further to this House at its next Session, viz., Messieurs Carmichael, Cooper
(Toronto), Ross (Kingston), McNamara, Fenton, Stover and Thompson.

On Motion of Mr. Raney, seconded by Mr. Drury,

Ordered, That the following Members compose a Select Committee to

consider the report and recommendations of the Ontario Insurance Commis-
sion (the Hon. Mr. Justice Masten), a proposed revision and consolidation of

itario insurance law to be submitted by the Department of Insurance, any
>ther suggested amendments, and generally to consider and recommend to the-

House what, if any, amendments should be made to the law relating to insur-

ance, and that the Committee be empowered to sit during the Recess and report
to the House at the next Session thereof: Messieurs Drury, Raney, Smith,

"ry, Rollo, Sinclair, Hay, Ferguson, Henry, and Pinard.

'The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.
87), Respecting Long Point Park, and after some time spent therein. Mr.
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Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House again resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No.

186). Respecting Natural Gas, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported. That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 217),
To amend The Ontario Game and Fisheries Act, and after some time spent

therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Watson reported, That the

Committee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 220),
To amend The Ontario Temperance Act, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee
had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 2'H).
To amend the School Laws, aud after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker
resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported. That the Committee had directed

him to report 'the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.



eorge V. 28TH APRIL. 335

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 237),
To amend The Factory, Shop and Office JBuilding Act, and after some time

spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Watson reported, That

the Committee had directed him to report the Bill with certain, amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 242),
The Damage by Fumes Arbitration Act, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 245),

Respecting Vocational Education, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported that the Committee
had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

I The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (K"o. 63),
amend The Trustee Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker

resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee had directed

him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.
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The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 142),

To amend The School Sites Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker
resumed the Chair

;
and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee had directed

him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 200),

To amend The Division Courts Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 213),

To amend The Municipal Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 240),

To amend The Timber Slide Companies Act, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Com-

mittee had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill ( Xo. 235),

Respecting the Administration of Justice in the District of Temiskaming, and

after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Cliair
;
and Mr. Wat-

son reported, That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill without

any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-morrow.
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The following Bills were severally read the second time :-

Bill (No. 219 ), Respecting the purchase, by the City of Toronto, of the:

Assets of certain Companies.

Referred to the Committee of the Whole House To-inorrow.

Bill (No. 244), To amend The Dog Tax and Sheep Protection Act.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Colonization.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion
for the second reading of Bill (No. 22(3), To amend The Power Commission

Act, having been read,

The Debate was resumed.

And after some time,

The Motion for the second reading having been again put, was carried,,
and the Bill was read the second time and referred to a Committee of the
Whole House To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 233), To amend
The Ontario Temperance Act, 1917, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The House, according to Order, again resolved itself into the Committee
of Supply.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That there be granted to His Majesty, for the services of 1922,
the following: sums :

4. To defray the expenses of the Education Department 79,875 00

102. To defray the expenses of the Treasury Department, Mis-

cellaneous
. 44(;.4r;o o<>
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101. To defray the expenses of the Attorney-General's Depart-

ment, Miscellaneous 408,500 00

107. To defray the expenses of the Refunds, Education 1,500 00

108. To defray the expenses of the Refunds, Lands and Forests. . 25,000 00

109. To defray the expenses of the Refunds, Mines 2,500 00

110. To defray the expenses of the Refunds, Succession Duty 88,000 00

111. To defray the expenses of the Refunds, Miscellaneous 37,000 00

112. To defray the expenses of Miscellaneous 83,000 00

113. To defray the expenses of the Hydro-Electric Power Commis-

sion of Ontario , 6,943,199 00

114. To defray the expenses of the Temiskaming and Northern

Ontario Railway 190,000 00

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster reported, That the

Committee had come to several Resolutions.

Ordered. That the Report be received To-day.

The following Bills were severally read the second time :

Bill (IS
T
o. 248), Respecting the Proof of Death of Soldiers and Sailors

while on Active Service.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 249), To amend The Ontario Companies Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 250), To amend The Mortmain and Charitable Uses Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 251), To amend The Current Rate of Interest Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.
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Bill (No. 252), For raising money on the Credit of Consolidated Revenue

Fund.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 253), To amend The Provincial Loans Act.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 254), To amend The Election Laws.

Referred to a Committee of the WT
hole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 257), Respecting Fair Rents.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 255), To confirm a certain Agreement between the Hydro-
Electric Power Commission of Ontario and the Corporation of the City of

Guelph.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 258), To authorize the purchase and operation of certain Radial

Railways by the Hydro-Electric Power Commission of Ontario on behalf of

the City of Toronto.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 259), "The Municipal Amendment Act, 1921."

Referred to a Committee of the Wr
hole House To-morrow.

Bill (No. 260), "The Assessment Amendment Act, 1921."

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-morrow.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 149), To amend
The Assessment Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.
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Mr. Webster, from the Committee of Supply, reported the following
Resolutions :

1. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Five thousand four hundred and

fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Office of the

Lieutenant-Governor for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

2. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Thirty-two thousand two

hundred and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Department of the Prime Minister and President of the Council for the year

ending 31st October, 1922.

3. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and fifty-six thousand

three hundred and fifty dollars he granted to His Majesty to defray the ex-

penses of Attorney-General's Department for the year ending 31st October,
1922.

4. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Seventy-nine thousand eight hund-

red and seventy-five dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses
of Education Department for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

5. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and eighteen thou-

sand seven hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to. defray the expenses

of Department of Lands and Forests for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

6. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and twenty-five

thousand eight hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the

expenses of Department of Mines for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

7. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eighty thousand two hundred and

fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Department
of Public Works for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

8. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Three hundred and seventy-seven

thousand dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Depart-
ment of Labour for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

0. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and twenty thousand

one hundred arid twenty-five dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the

expenses of Department of Public Highways for the year ending 31st October,

1922.

10. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fifty-six thousand four hundred

and twenty-five dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Game and Fisheries Department for the year ending 31st October, 1922.
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11. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and one thousand

seven hundred and twenty-five dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray
the expenses of Treasury Department for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

12. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Forty-nine thousand dollars be

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Audit Office for the year

ending 31st October, 1922.

13. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and fifty-six

thousand eight hundred and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray
the expenses of Provincial Secretary's Department for the year ending 31st

October, 1922.

14. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and seventeen

thousand eight hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the

expenses of Department of Agriculture for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

15. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-five thousand one hundred

and seventy-five dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Miscellaneous for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

16. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Three hundred and twenty
thousand two hundred and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray
the expenses of Legislation for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

17. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and four thousand

six hundred and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses

of Supreme Court of Ontario for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

18. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Six hundred and seventeen

thousand three hundred and thirty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray
the expenses of Sundry Civil and Criminal Justice for the year ending 31st

ctober, 1922.

19. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and fifty-nine

thousand and ninety-five dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the ex-

penses of Administration of Justice in Districts for the year ending 31st

October, 1922.

20. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Three million one hundred and

twenty-eight thousand eight hundred and sixty-five dollars be granted to His

Majesty to defray the expenses of Public and Separate School Education for

the year ending 31st October, 1922.

K21.
Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and twenty-three

ousand eight hundred and sixty-seven dollars be granted to His Majesty to

(fray the expenses of Normal and Model Schools, Toronto, for the year

ending 31st October, 1922.
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22. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eighty-four thousand seven

hundred and sixty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Normal and Model Schools, Ottawa, for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

23. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Forty-two thousand four hundred

and ninety dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal

School, London, for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

24. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Thirty-seven thousand six hundred

and twenty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal

School, Hamilton, for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

25. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Thirty-eight thousand seven

hundred and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Normal School, Peterborough, for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

26. Resolved That a sum not exceeding Thirty-seven thousand dollars

be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal School, Stratford,

for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

27. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fifty-seven thousand nine hundred

and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Normal

School, North Bay, for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

28. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Sixty thousand seven hundred

and fifty-five dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

English-French Professional Training Schools for the year ending 31st October,

1922.

29. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and twenty-two
thousand five hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses
of High Schools and Collegiate Institutes for the year ending 31st October,

1922."

30. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Seventeen thousand six hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Departmental

Library and Museum for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

31. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and nineteen

thousand seven hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the

expenses of Public Libraries, Art Schools, Historical, Literary and Scientific

Societies for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

32. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eight hundred and ninety-one
thousand one hundred and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray
the expenses of Technical Education for the year ending 31st October, 1922.
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33. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Seventy thousand one hundred

and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Super-
annuated Teachers for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

34. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Seven hundred and eighty-one
thousand seven hundred and twenty dollars be granted to His Majesty to

defray the expenses of Provincial and other Universities for the year ending
31st October, 1922.

35. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and forty-one

thousand and thirty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses
of The Ontario School for the Deaf, Belleville, for the year ending 31st

October, 1922.

36. Resolved, That a- sum not exceeding Ninety-five thousand six hundred

and thirty-four dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

The Ontario School for the Blind, Brantford, for the year ending 31st October,
1922.

37. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Forty-four thousand nine hundred

and eighty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of The
Northern Academy, Monteith, for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

38. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Thirty-eight thousand two

hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Mis-

cellaneous Education for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

39. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and thirty-nine

thousand four hundred and twenty-two dollars be granted to His Majesty to

defray the expenses of The Ontario Hospital, Brockville, for the year ending
31st October, 1922.

40. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and twenty-one
thousand dollars be granted to His Majesfy to defray the expenses of The
Ontario Hospital, Cobourg, for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

41. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and ninety-six

thousand two hundred and sixty-five dollars be granted to His Majesty to

defray the expenses of The Ontario Hospital, Hamilton, for the year ending
1st October, 1922.

42. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and ninety-five

lousand three hundred and five dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray

expenses of The Ontario Hospital. Kingston, for the year ending 31-4

October, 1922.
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43. Resolved., That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and eighty-two
thousand eight hundred and eighty-seven dollars be granted to His Majesty
to defray the expenses of The Ontario Hospital. London, for the year ending
31st October, 1922.

44. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and two thousand

four hundred and eighty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the

expenses of The Ontario Hospital, Mimico, for the year ending 31st October,

1922.

45. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and five thousand

nine hundred and twenty-seven dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray
the expenses of The Ontario Hospital, Orillia, for the year ending 31st

October, 1922.

46. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and nineteen

thousand one hundred and forty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray
the expenses of The Ontario Hospital, Penetanguishene, for the year ending
31st October, 1922.

47. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and ninety-seven

thousand six hundred and sixty-seven dollars be granted to His Majesty to

defray the expenses of The Ontario Hospital, Toronto, for the year ending 31st

October, 1922.

48. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Three hundred and fifty-six

thousand five hundred and ninety-four dollars be granted to His Majesty to

defray the expenses of The Ontario Hospital, Whitby, for the year ending
31st October, 1922.

49. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eighty-three thousand three

hundred and six dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

The Ontario Hospital, Woodstock, for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

50. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and twenty-seven
thousand five hundred and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray
the expenses of The Ontario Reformatory, Guelph, for the year ending 31st

October, 1922.

51. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and seventy
thousand four hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses
of The Ontario Reformatory, Industries, for the year ending 31st October,
1922.

52. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Sixty thousand two hundred and

fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Andrew
Mercer Reformatory for Females for the year ending 31st October, 1922.
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53. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Ten thousand dollars be granted
to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Industries, Andrew Mercer Keforma-

tory for Females, for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

54. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and eighty-three
thousand six hundred and seventy-four dollars be granted to His Majesty to

defray the expenses of Industrial Farm, Burwash, for the year ending 31st

October, 1922.

55. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-four thousand and twenty
dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Industrial Farm,
Fort William, for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

56. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Seventy-three thousand nine

hundred and twenty-five dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the ex-

penses of Miscellaneous, Public Institutions, for the year ending 31st October,
1922.

57. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and eighty-five

thousand eight hundred and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray
the expenses of Agricultural and Horticultural Societies for the year ending
31st October, 1922.

58. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and eight thousand

nine hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Live
Stock Branch for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

59. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Thirty thousand eight hundred
dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Institutes for the

year ending 31st October, 1922.

60. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and fifty-eight

ousand dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Dairy
Branch for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

61. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Seventy-seven thousand eight
hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Fruit

Branch for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

62. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and forty-two
thousand dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Agricul-
tural Bepresentatives for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

63. Resolved, That ,a sum not exceeding Thirty-four thousand three

hundred and sixty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses
f The Ontario Veterinary College for the year ending 31st October, 1922.
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04. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Ninety-six thousand four hundred

and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Miscel-

laneous, Agriculture, for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

65* Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and ninety-three

thousand six hundred and fifty-five dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray

the expenses of Ontario Agricultural College for the year ending 31st October,

1922.

66. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fifty-seven thousand six hundred

and twenty-two dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Macdonald Institute and Hall for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

67. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One thousand dollars be granted

to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Forestry for the year ending 31st

October, 1922.

68. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Thirty-six thousand two hundred

and ten dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Animal

Husbandry, Farm and Experimental Feeding Department, for the year ending
31st October, 1922.

69. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty thousand five hundred

and eighty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Field

Experiments for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

70. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Ten thousand one hundred dollars

be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Experimental Dairy De-

partment for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

71. Resolved, That a simi not exceeding Nine thousand three hundred

and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Dairy
School for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

72. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-two thousand two hund-

red and eight dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Poultry Department for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

73. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-one thousand five hundred

and ninety-eight dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Horticultural Department for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

74. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Four thousand nine hundred and

fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Apiculture

Department for the year ending 31st October, 1922.
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75. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Three thousand six hundred and

fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Bacteriology

for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

76. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Three thousand six hundred and

seventy dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Botany
for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

77. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Four thousand four hundred and

seventy dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Chemistry
for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

78. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Four thousand five hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Entomology for

the year ending 31st October, 1922.

79. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Five hundred dollars be granted
to His Majesty to defray the expenses of English for the year ending 31st

October, 1922.

80. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two thousand one hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Manual Training
for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

81. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Seven thousand four hundred
and seventy dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Physics for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

82. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-nine thousand and

seventy-five dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Farm
Economics for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

83. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and sixty-three

thousand one hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses
of Colonization and Immigration for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

84. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Seven hundred and eighty-nine
thousand three hundred dollars -be granted to His Majesty to defray the ex-

penses of Hospitals and Charities for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

85. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-six thousand eight
hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Govern-
ment House Maintenance for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

86. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Three hundred and forty-five

ousand one hundred and eleven dollars and thirty-five cents be granted to
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His Majesty to defray the expenses of Parliament and Departmental Buildings

for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

87. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Fifty-one thousand eight hundred

and seventy-five dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Osgoode Hall for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

88. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Sixty-one thousand six hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Miscellaneous,

Maintenance and Repairs for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

89. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred thousand dollars

be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Parliament and Depart-

mental Buildings for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

90. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Seven thousand dollars be granted

to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Osgoode Hall for the year ending

31st October, 1922.

91. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and forty-one

thousand dollars be granted to ITis Majesty to defray the expenses of Public

Institutions Buildings for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

92. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and ninety thousand

two hundred and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses

of Educational Buildings for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

93. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and fifty-four

thousand six hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses

of Agricultural Buildings for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

94. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two hundred and seventeen

thousand six hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the

expenses of Public Buildings, Districts, for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

95. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and seventy-seven

thousand dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Miscel-

laneous Buildings for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

96. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and eighty thousand

eight hundred and thirty-three dollars and thirty-three cents be granted to

His Majesty to defray the expenses of Public Works for the year ending 31st

October, 1922.

97. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One million four hundred and

sixty-two thousand five hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray

the expenses of Department of Labour for the year ending 31st October, 1922.
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98. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and seven thousand

three hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Colonization Eoads for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

99. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One million one hundred and

sixty-three thousand and twenty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray
the expenses of Department of Public Highways for the year ending 31st

October, 1922.

100. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Four hundred and sixty-six

thousand four hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the ex-

penses of Game and Fisheries for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

101. Resolved,, That a sum not exceeding Four hundred and eight thousand

five hundred dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of

Attorney-General's Department, Miscellaneous, for the year ending 31st

October, 1922.

102. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Four hundred and forty-six

thousand four hundred and sixty-nine dollars be granted to His Majesty to

defray the expenses of Treasury Department, Miscellaneous, for the year

ending 31st October, 1922.

103. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Four thousand one hundred

and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Pro-

vincial Secretary's Department, Miscellaneous, for the year ending 31st

October, 1922.

i

104. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One million two hundred and

eighty-three thousand and fifty dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the

expenses of Outside Service and Surveys for the year ending 31st October,

1922.

.
105. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and five thousand

ollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Parks for the year

ending 31st October, 1922.

106. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and twenty-eight
lousand dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Depart-
tent of Mines for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

107. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One thousand five hundred

lollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Education, Kefund

iccount, for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

108. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Twenty-five thousand dollars

granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Lands and Forests, Re-

fund Account, for the year ending 31st October, 1922.
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109. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Two thousand five hundred

dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Mines, Refund

Account, for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

110. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eighty-eight thousand dollars

be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Succession Duty, Refund-

Account, for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

111. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Thirty-seven thousand dollars

be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Miscellaneous Refunds

for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

112. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Eighty-three thousand dollars

be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Miscellaneous for the year

ending 31st October, 1922.

113. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding Six million nine hundred

and forty-three thousand one hundred and ninety-nine dollars be granted to

His Majesty ot defray the expenses of Hydro-Electric Power Commission of

Ontario for the year ending 31st October, 1922.

114. Resolved, That a sum not exceeding One hundred and ninety thou-

sand dollars be granted to His Majesty to defray the expenses of Temiskaming
and Northern Ontario Railway Commission for the year ending 31st October,

1922.

The several Resolutions, having been read the second time, were con-

curred in.

The House, according to Order, resolved itself into the Committee of

Ways and Means.

(In the Committee.)

Resolved, That there be granted out of the Consolidated Revenue Fund of

this Province a sum not exceeding Sixty-eight millions two hundred and nine

thousand nine hundred and sixty-five dollars and forty-three cents to meet the

Supply to that extent granted to His Majesty.

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster reported, That the

Committee had come to a Resolution.

Ordered, That the Report be received forthwith.
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Mr. Webster, from the Committee on Ways and Means, reported a Resolu-

tion which was read as follows:

Resolved, That there be granted out of the Consolidated Revenue Fund of

this Province a sum not exceeding Sixty-eight millions two hundred and nine

thousand nine hundred and sixty-five dollars and forty-three cents to meet the

Supply to that extent granted to His Majesty.

The Resolution, haying been read a second time, was agreed to.'

The following Bill was then introduced and read the first time:

Bill (No. 263), intituled "An Act for granting to His Majesty certain

sums of money to defray the expenses of Civil Government for the year end-

ing 31st October, One thousand nine hundred and twenty-one, and for the year

ending 31st day of October, One thousand nine hundred and twenty-two, and

for other purposes therein mentioned." Mr. Smith.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the second time forthwith.

The Bill was then read a second time.

Ordered, That the Bill be read a third time forthwith.

The Bill was then read the third time and passed.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Smith,

Ordered, That the names of Mr. Watson and Mr. MacBride be added to

the Select Committees on Bills No. 123 and 208 respecting Co-operative Credit

ieties. and Professional Engineers.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Smith,

Ordered, That the names of Mr. MacBride and Mr. Ramsden be added to

e War Memorial Committee.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Smith,

Ordered, That when this House adjourns To-day, it do stand adjourned
intil Eleven of the Clock in the forenoon of To-morrow the Twenty-ninth day
>f April, instant. Mr. Speaker to leave the Chair at One of the Clock, without

question being put.

The House then adjourned at 11.55 p.m.
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Friday. April 29th, 1921.

PKAYEUS. 11.00 O'CLOCK, A.M.

Mr. Nixon, from the Standing Committee on Municipal Law, presented
their Ninth Report, which was read as follows and adopted :

Your Committee have carefully considered the following Bills, and beg
to report the same with certain amendments :

Bill (No. 110), An Act to amend The Cemeteries Act.

Bill (No. 156), An Act to amend The Local Improvement Act.

Mr. MacVicar, from the Standing Committee on Agriculture and Colon-

ization, presented their First Report, which was read as follows and adopted :

Your Committee have carefully considered Bill (No. 155), An Act to

amend The Dog Tax and Sheep Protection Act, and begs leave to report the

same with amendment.

Bill (No. 244), An Act to amend The Dog Tax and Sheep Protection

Act, and begs leave to report the same without amendment.

Mr. Bragg, from the Select Committee appointed under a Resolution of

the House, to enquire into and report upon the conditions under which apples

are marketed, presented their Report, which was read as follows:

The Committee realized in the early stages of the enquiry that other

natural perishable products, notably cheese, are interwoven and directly con-

nected with the disadvantages under which apples are marketed, so the Com-

mittee incidentally accepted information on the broader basis. Unfortunately
the time at the disposal of the Members of the Committee was insufficient to

more than touch the fringe of the subject. But enough unquestionable evidence

was submitted to prove that the conditions under which the natural products of

Ontario are marketed, both overseas and in Canada, render it absolutely

necessary that these conditions shall be changed if this province is to retain

its prominent place in the world's market. Your Committee therefore recom-

mends that it shall continue this investigation during the interegnum between
this Session and the next meeting of this House in order that a full report

may be presented.

Ordered, That the Report of the Special Committee to enquire into the

overseas apple trade be adopted, and the 'Committee be authorized to continue

its investigations on the lines recommended in the report.
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On Motion of Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Raney,

Ordered, That the names of Mr. Tolmie, Mr. Ross (Kingston), and Mr.

Watson be added to the Select Committee, appointed yesterday, relating to the

Law of Insurance.

On Motion of Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Raney,

Ordered, That the name of Mr. Mageau be added to the Select Committee

appointed on Bills (No. 123) and (No. 114), Respecting Co-operative 'Credit

Societies, and Mechanics 7

Liens.

The following Bills were severally read the third time and passed :

Bill '(No. 134), Respecting the Taxation of Real Estate Transfers.

Bill (No. 109), For the Protection of Children of Unmarried Parents.

Bill (No. 173), To amend The Trades and Labour Branch Act.

Bill (No. 185), The Public Lands Act.

Bill (No. 201), To amend The -County Judges Act.

Bill (No. 177), To Provide for the Maintenance of Parents by their

dldren.

Bill (No. 153), To amend The Public Schools Act.

Bill (No. 231), To amend The School Laws.

Bill (No. 142), To amend The School Sites Act.

Bill (No. 200), To amend The Division Courts Act.

Bill '(No. 240), To amend The Timber Slide Companies Act.

The Order of the Day for the third reading of Bill (No. 136), To amend
"he Corporations Tax Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be forthwith

again referred to a Committee of the Whole, with instructions to amend the

same.
23 JOUR.
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The House accordingly resolved itself into the Committee; and, after

some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Heenan

reported, That the Committee had amended the Bill as directed.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time forthwith.

The Bill was then read the third time, and passed.

The Order of the Day for the third reading of Bill (Xo. 63), To amend

The Trustee Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the .Bill be forthwith

again referred to a Committee of the Whole, with instructions to amend the

same.

The House accordingly resolved itself into the Committee; and, after

some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Heenan

reported. That the Committee had amended the Bill as directed.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time forthwith.

. The Bill was then read the third time, and passed.

Mr. Curry asked the following Question:

1. What was the date or dates of the original concession of the' pulpwood
limits now held by the Great Lakes Paper Company on the Pic and Sturgeon

Rivers, and to whom were such concessions originally granted. 2. What were

ihe conditions of the granting of the limits. 3. Have these conditions boon

complied with. 4. What, if any, arrangement was there between the licensees

and the Government or the Hydro-Electric Power Commission as to electrical

power for the operation of their mills. If there was such an arrangement, was

it legally binding on the 'Company. 5. Was there any extension of time to the

concessionaires for the development of the limits and the erection of their mills.

6. If so, was the extension of time evidenced by a formal document. 7, Was
the Hydro-Electric Power Commission a party to the extension agreement,
and if not, was it given an opportunity of being a party. 8. Why was there

not a provision in the document that the licensees should take their power
from the Nipigon development of the Hydro-Electric Power Commission.
If not, why not. 9. Who executed the extension document (1) On behalf of

the concessionaires; (2) On behalf of the Government. 10. Was the Hydro-
Electric development at the Nipigon made in the expectation that the Great
Lakes Paper Company would take Hydro-Electric power for it.s purposes. 1 1.

Did the Llydro-Electric Power Commission have anv binding assurance from
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the concessionaires that they would take power from the Hydro-Electric Power

Commission before the Commission began the construction of its Nipigon
Power Works. 12. How much money approximately has been expended by
the Hydro-Electric Power Commission on these works to this date. How
much will it cost to complete them. 13. What amount of power is now being

developed by the.Nipigon Power Works. 14. How much is being actually

sold. 15. Is the Nipigon system self-supporting. If not, what is the esti-

mated deficit for the current year. 16. Is power now available for the use

of the Great Lakes Power Company. 17. What is the existing relationship

between the Great Lakes Paper 'Company and the Government in the matter

of power.

To which the Minister of Lands and Forests replied in the words and

figures following:

s

!

1. Pic Concession Tenders closed December 1st, 1916
;
concession awarded

ol. J. J. Carrick, December 12, 1916. Black Sturgeon Concession Tenders

losed February 1st, 1917; concession awarded S. A. Marks. February 6th,

1917. 2. Substantially the conditions to be performed by the purchaser are

as follows: r(l) Construct with all convenient dispatch a pulp mill on the

limits to cost at least $2,000,000, and operate same so that the daily output
would be at least 300 tons of pulp and so that at least 600 hands on the average
would be kept employed at least 10 months of each year; (2) Of the said

$2,000,000, not less than $400,000 was to be expended within one year, not

less than $700,000 was to be expended within the second year and the balance

within three years; (3) Erect a paper mill within such time and at such place
as directed by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council, such mill to have a capacity
of at least 200 tons of paper a day, and to operate same so that the daily output
would not be less than 150 tons of paper. A copy of the agreement of purchase

attached, from which such conditions can be obtained in full. 3. Xo. 4.

here was considerable negotiation between Mr. Carrick, the licensee, and

the Hydro-Electric Power Commission, for power for his mill. A draft con-

tract was sent him but Avas not signed. The Government had an opinion that

binding agreement had been made by the correspondence and the action of

ttorney-General for Ontario v. Great Lakes Paper Company, Limited, was

rought to enforce same. This action, however, was dismissed. 5. Yes. 6. Yes.

. No
;
the Hydro-Electric Power Commission was not given an opportunity of

eing a party. 8. This agreement was made by the former Government. This
Government is not aware why such a provision was not included in the ui>-m-

ent. 9. (1) J. J. Carrick; (2) The Honourable G. H. Ferguson. 10. Yes.
11. No; 'there was a draft agreement submitted and practically settled between
he Great Lakes representative and the Commission, but not executed. The

ompany afterwards refused to sign. 12. (1) Expended to date, approximately
our to four and one-half millions of dollars; (2) It will cost to complete ap-

roxirnately one and one-quarter to one and one-half millions of dollars more.
3. Machinery to develop 12,500 h.p. has been installed, which has a maximum
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development of 15,000 h.p. 14. 10,000 to 11,000 h.p. 15. Yes; it is a service

at cost proposition. 16. Yes. 17. The decision of the Court is that there is

none.

ORIGINAL AGREEMENT.

This Agreement, made in triplicate this 9th day of May, one thousand nine

hundred and seventeen.

Between :

x His Majesty, represented by the Honourable the Minister of Lands,
Forests and Mines for the Province of Ontario, hereinafter called

the Government, of the First Part;

and

John J. 'Carrick, of the City of Port Arthur, in the District of Thunder

Bay, Esquire, hereinafter called the Grantee, of the Second Part.

Whereas, by advertisement duly published, the Honourable the Minister

of Lands, Forests and Mines for Ontario called for tenders to be received by
him up to and including the first day of December, 1916, for the right to cut

pulp wood and pine timber on a certain area, situate on the Pic River and other

territory adjacent thereto, in the Thunder Bay District, hereinafter more par-

ticularly described;

And whereas, on the said first day of December, A.D. 1916, the said

Minister received from the Grantee a tender for the right to cut pulp wood
and pine timber on the said area, which said tender has been approved and

accepted ;

And whereas, by advertisement duly published the Honourable the Min-

ister of Lands, Forests and Mines for Ontario called for tenders to be received

by him up to and including the first day of February, A.D. 1917, for the right

to cut pulp wood and pine timber on a certain area situate on the Black

Sturgeon River and other territory adjacent thereto, in the District of Thunder

Bay, hereinafter more particularly described
;

And whereas on the first day of February, A.D. 1917, the said Minister

received from one S. A. Marks a tender for the right to cut pulp wood and

pine timber on the said area which said tender has been approved and accepted ;

And whereas the said S. A. Marks, by assignment in writing bearing date

the 8th day of May, A.D. 1917, has assigned, transferred and set over all his

rights to the said tender and the acceptance thereof, to the Grantee;
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And whereas the grants of the right to cut pulp wood and pine timber

upon said areas were by said advertisement for tenders and by the tenders of

the said Grantee and the said Marks based upon and subject to certain terms,
conditions and stipulations;

And whereas this agreement is entered into for the purpose of insuring
the performance by the Grantee of the obligations contained in the said tenders

and acceptances thereof as hereinafter defined and of securing to the Grantee

a supply of pulp wood for the purpose of the mill or mills to be established,

maintained, conducted and carried on at a place or places within the limits of

the lands hereinafter mentioned or such other place or places approved by the

Lieutenant-Governor in Council;

Now therefore this indenture witnesseth, and it is agreed by and between

the Grantee and the Government as follows, that is to say :

1. The Grantee shall, with all convenient despatch, proceed with the

construction of a pulp mill within the limits of the territory hereinafter de-

scribed, or at some other place approved by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council,

and will thoroughly equip the same so that the expenditure in connection with

the erection, equipment and machinery of the said pulp mill and of such other

mills, buildings, developments and structures as are necessary to the undertaking
will be at least two million dollars ($2,000,000) and will operate the same

so that the daily output thereof shall not be less than three hundred (300)
tons of pulp and so that at least six hundred (600) hands on an average shall

be kept employed in connection therewith for at least ten months in each and

every year.

2. Of the said sum of two million dollars ($2,000,000) not less than

r hundred thousand dollars ($400,000) shall be expended within one year
m the date hereof and not less than seven hundred thousand dollars

700,000) during the second year and the remainder of the said sum within

e years from the date hereof, it being distinctly understood that the erec-

n of such pulp mill or mills and paper mill as hereinafter set out, and the

employment of hands as aforesaid shall form part of the consideration for the

price of the pulp wood and the pine timber and that the cutting of the said

pulp wood and pine timber may begin as soon as and when four hundred
thousand dollars ($400,000) shall have been expended on the erection of the

said mill or mills and equipment thereof.

3. The Grantee shall erect a paper mill within such time and at such

place as the Lieutenant-Governor in 'Council may direct, having a capacity of

at least two hundred tons (200 tons) of paper per day, and after the erection

thereof shall operate the same continuously for the period of this agreement
so that the daily output of the said mill shall not be less than one hundred
and fifty tons (150 tons) of paper.
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4. In consideration of the said expenditure and of the contracts and

engagements entered into on the part of the Grantee and the Government will

and doth for the rates and prices hereinafter set forth and provided and subject

to such terms, conditions and regulations as to the locality and the manner

of cutting, measuring, removing and driving the same as may from time to

time he imposed by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council, and subject also as is

hereinafter set forth and contained, grant to the Grantee the right to cut and

remove all spruce, balsam, banksian or jack pine, poplar and white wood trees,

seven inches and upwards in diameter, two feet from the ground, to be used

only in and for the purpose of supplying the mill or mills to be erected, for a

period of twenty-one (21) years, and also all red and white pine trees ten

inches and upwards in diameter, two feet from the ground, from unoccupied,

unsold and unlocated.lands of the 'Crown as follows:

Firstly, Commencing at the southwest angle of the Township of Pic,

where the south boundary of said township intersects the high water line on

the shores of Lake Superior ;
thence east along the said south boundary of the

Township of Pic five miles thirty-one chains to the southeast angle of said

township ;
thence north along the east 'boundary of said township two miles

thirty-four chains more or less to the southwest angle of township seventy-four,

along the line of the Canadian Pacific Railway; thence east eight miles more

or less to the southeast angle of the last mentioned township, as established

and shown on plan of survey by O.L.S., E. Stewart, dated December 15th.,

1894. of record in the Department of Lands, Forests and Mines; thence north

astronomically thirty-six miles; thence west astronomically forty-six miles;

thence south astronomically twenty-four miles more or less to the high water

mark on the shore of Lake Superior; thence in a general direction easterly

and southeasterly following all the windings of the shore line of Lake Superior
to the point of commencement

;
and

Secondly, Commencing at the southwest angle of the Township of Booth
;

thence west astronomically thirty-six miles fifty chains more or less to a point
due south of the southwest angle of the Kipigon Forest Reserve; thence north

astronomically seven miles to the southwest angle of the said Forest Reserve;
thence continuing north astronomically along the west limit of the said Nipigon
Forest Reserve twenty-one miles

;
thence east astronomically twenty-four miles

more or less to the water's edge of Mclntyre Bay of Lake Nipigon; thence

southeasterly along the shore of said Mclntyre Bay to the northwest angle
of the Township of Innes

;
thence south astronomically along the west boundary

of said Township of Innes, six miles sixty-seven chains seventy-four links to

the southwest angle thereof
;
thence east along the south limit of the said town-

ship six miles to the southeast angle thereof
;
thence continuing east astronomi-

cally six miles more or less to a point due north of the northwest angle of the

Township of Purdoni; thence south astronomically, and along the west bound-

aries of the Townships of Purdom and Booth twenty miles more or less to the

point of commencement.



eorge V. . 29TH APRIL. 359

Reserving and excepting nevertheless from the above described areas all

lands under the waters of all rivers, lakes and streams within the said described

areas; also all lands heretofore patented, licensed, leased, located or applied

for in respect of which such proceedings have been taken or shall hereafter be

taken as in the opinion of the Minister of Lands, Forests and Mines entitles

the applicant or applicants to a lease or patent for such lands together with

the right of the Crown to sell, lease, locate or otherwise dispose of any lands

included in the hereinbefore described area on the same terms and conditions

for settlement, mining or other purposes as ordinary Crown lands situated

elsewhere.

5. (a) The Grantee as to the right to cut pulp wood and pine timber on

the Pic River area as firstly above described shall pay a bonus of fifty cents

per cord on all pulp wood cut, together with dues of forty cents per cord for

spruce and twenty cents per cord for all other pulp woods herein mentioned,

and a bonus of twelve dollars per thousand feet board measure for white pine

cut, and six dollars per thousand feet board measure for red pine cut, together

with dues of two dollars per thousand feet board measure for white and red

pine cut, or such other rates or dues as may from time to *time be fixed by the

Lieutenant-Governor in Council for such pulp wood and pine, but in no case

shall the price so to be fixed be at higher figures than the price at which the

general public shall be permitted to cut on other portions of the Crown domain

similarly situated.

(fr) The Grantee as to the right to cut pulp wood and pine timber on the

Black Sturgeon River shall pay a bonus of seventy cents per cord for all pulp
wood cut, together with dues of forty cents per cord for spruce and .twenty

cents per cord for all other pulp woods herein mentioned, and a bonus of

seven dollars ($7) per thousand feet board measure for white pine cut, and five

dollars ($5) per thousand feet board measure for red pine cut, together with

dues of two dollars ($2) per thousand feet board measure for white and red

pine cut, or such other rates or dues as may from time to time be fixed by the

Lieutenant-Governor in Council for such pulp wood and pine, but in no case

shall the price so to be fixed be at a higher figure than the price at which the

general public shall be permitted to cut on other portions of the Crown domain

imilarly situated.

6. The wood and timber shall be cut upon such portions of the said

jsrritory and in such manner as the Minister may direct, and such precautions
lall be taken and means employed to prevent injury or destruction by fire

the said territory, and at such cost to the Grantee as the Minister or Statutes

iving reference thereto may require.

7. It is distinctly understood and agreed that only the right to cut wood
ind timber as aforesaid is sold to the Grantee and not the soil or any part
thereof, nor is any interest in the soil so sold except in so far as may be
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necessary to cut and remove the woods and timber as aforesaid, subject to such

terms, conditions and regulations as to the cutting, measuring, removing and

driving the same as may from time to time be imposed by the Lieutenant -

Governor in Council, and the wood and timber when so cut shall (subject to

the payment of the price thereof) become the absolute property of the Grantee.

8. The Government shall retain the right to sell, lease, locate or otherwise

dispose of any lands included in the said territory on the same terms and con-

ditions for settlement, mining or other purposes as ordinary Crown lands

situated elsewhere, and this agreement is not to impede or retard settlement

or mining operations and nothing herein contained shall limit or affect the right

of the Department of Lands, Forests and Mines to sell, lease, locate or other-

wise dispose of lands in the aforesaid territory for settlement, mining or other

purposes.

9. Nothing herein contained or to be done hereunder or by virtue hereof

shall entitle the Grantee to a monopoly in the use of any rivers, streams or lakes

or tributaries thereof in the said territory but the same shall be and continue

open for the use of the public in accordance with the law in that behalf, and in

the event of the works of the Grantee in any way interfering with the driving

of logs or timber down the said rivers, streams, or lakes or tributaries thereof,

the Minister shall have full power to determine from time to time the provision

necessary to overcome such interference and thereupon the said Grantee as

and when directed will make provision accordingly.

10. It is distinctly understood and agreed that nothing herein contained

shall, without the consent in writing of the Minister, be deemed to confer any

right to cut or remove timber from any territory or areas already under license

or permit from the Crown.

11. All pulp wood cut on the said territory shall be used for and manu-

factured at the said mill and all pine timber cut thereon shall be manufactured

into lumber in accordance with the provisions of the Crown Timber Act,

R.S.O., 1914, cap. 29, or amendments or other Statute relating thereto.

12. It is further understood and agreed that the Government does not

guarantee any particular quantity of pulp wood but the Grantee shall at all

time during the term of this agreement or any renewals thereof, be entitled to

obtain from the said lands all pulp wood necessary for the supply of the said

pulp and paper mills so far as the same can be found available within the

limits of the territory herein described.

13. Proper sworn returns of the quantity of wood and pine cut each

season shall be made to the Government in conformity with the Crown Timber

Regulations, and payment shall be made therefor not later than the 1st day of

October in each year, and the Government shall have all the rights and powers
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in respect of enforcing such payments as are now provided for in the case of

timber cut under timber license.

14. In the event of the failure on the part of the Grantee to erect the said

pulp and paper mills and expend the moneys thereon hereinbefore stated, or

in default of the said Grantee keeping the said pulp and paper mills running

after the erection thereof and keeping the required number of hands employed

aforesaid, or upon default of compliance with any of the terms, requirements,

provisions or conditions as aforesaid, the Government may revoke the right,

license or permit to cut the said pulp wood or pine timber, and all moneys paid

as a deposit or bonus herein shall be forfeited to the Crown as liquidated

damages.

Provided that thirty (30) days' notice in writing shall be given by regis-

tered letter to the Grantee at his last place of abode before any such revocation

in order that he may have an opportunity of being heard should he so desire.

15. The Grantee shall and will not at any time or in any place deposit,

pty, run or turn into, or permit to be placed, deposited, emptied, run or

turned into any river, stream, or other waters whatsoever, refuse, sawdust,

chemicals or matter of any other kind which will have the effect of destroying,

harming or driving away the fish in such river, stream or water.

16. All water powers and privileges on said territory, and the right of the

Crown to raise, hold, lower and maintain the waters in the various streams or

lakes on said territory at such height and in such condition as may be found

necessary and expedient for the development of such water-powers, are reserved

to the Crown.

17. The Minister shall have the right to inspect the timber operations
xn the said territory at any tim he may deem it advisable or in the public

interest, and if upon such inspection it appears and he so decides that any
lerchantable or valuable timber which should be cut remains uncut or is being

lestroyed, the Minister shall have the right to cause an estimate to be made of

ie said timber and charge the Grantee with the same rate of dues and bonus

is if the same had been actually removed by the said Grantee. The cutting and

amoving of the timber on the said territory, or any part thereof, shall not be

leemed to have been completed until such time as it has been examined and

>assed upon by an officer of the Crown nor until such operations have been

leclared satisfactory by the Minister.

18. And lastly, it is hereby agreed that if upon the termination of the said

>eriod of twenty-one years (21 years) the Grantee shall have fully performed
ie terms and conditions hereinbefore set forth to the satisfaction of the Gov-

lent, he shall be entitled to a renewal hereof for a further term of twentv-

me years (21 years) upon such terms and conditions as may then be fixed by
the Government.

24 JOUR.
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19. The word " Minister " herein shall mean the Minister of Lands,

Forests and Mines for the Province of Ontario.

20. This agreement shall be binding upon and enure to the benefit of

the Grantee, his heirs, executors, administrators and assigns.

In witness whereof the said Minister of Lands, Forests and

Mines for the Province of Ontario and the Party of the

Second Part, have hereunto set their hands and seals.

Signed, sealed and delivered,

in the presence of (Sgd.) W. II. HEARST.

(Sgd.) ALBERT GRIGG. (Sgd.) J. J. CARRICK.

Mr. Curry asked the following Question:

1. What were the different works and services that were acquired by the

Government of Ontario on the purchase of what is known as the Central On-

tario Power System. 2. What was the date of the transaction. 3. What was the

purchase price. 4-. How was it paid or payable. 5. What interest did the de-

bentures issued as part of the purchase price carry and when do they mature.

6. On whose recommendation was the purchase made. What Minister signed

the agreement on behalf of the Government. 7. Was the opinion of the Hydro-
Electric Power Commission asked and did the Hydro-Electric Power Commis-

sion approve of the purchase. Did the Commission disapprove of any of the

terms of the purchase. If so, of what terms. Is there any documentary evid-

ence of approval or disapproval by the Hydro-Electric Power Commission. 8.

How much money has been advanced by the Province to the Hydro-Electric
Power Commission since the purchase for improving the system. 9. What is

the present total investment of the Province. 10. What amount was included in

the purchase price for water rights, franchises and other assets of an in-

tangible and non-income returning nature. 11. What is the actual value of

these water rights, assets, and other intangible 'assets. 12. What has been

the financial results of the operation of the system year by year since the

purchase down to the 31st October, 1920. 13. Has any allowance been made
for sinking fund. 14. Has any arrangement been made for repayment of the

moneys advanced by the Province. 15. Was any legislation proposed by the

Hydro-Electric Power Commission for submission to the Legislature at this

present session. If so, what was the purport and object of such legislation.

16. Does the Government intend to bring down such legislation. 17. What
objections, if any, were urged by the Government to the legislation proposed

by the Hydro-Electric Power Commission. 18. Does the Government propose
to bring down any legislation on the subject this Session. 19. Is the Central

Ontario Power System now in the view of the Government on a sound financial

footing. 20. Will the renewal of the outstanding debentures, when they
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mature, entail an extra annual charge on the system. If so, to what amount.

21. What is the present amount of the outstanding debentures issued by the

Province on account of this system. 22. Are the rates payable for power

by the customers of the system fixed by long term contracts. If so, what are

the terms. 23. If so, do these contracts provide for payment of an adequate

price for power. 24. Has the Government under consideration any plan for

utting the system on a better business basis.

And the Attorney-General replied in the words and figures following:

1. The Central Ontario System is divided into two sections. One is known

as the Central Ontario section, which controls and generates power at several

points on the Trent Elver, transmits such power over lines which it owns and

distributes it to local public utility plants also owned by the System in a

number of municipalities including Belleville, Brighton, Cobourg, Deseronto,

Lindsay, Napanee, Oshawa, Port Hope, Peterboro, Trenton and Tweed; it

also sells power to a number of other municipalities and customers. The Sys-

tem owns gas works at Cobo'urg, Oshawa, Napanee and Peterboro ; water works

at Cobourg and Trenton (since sold), and the Peterboro Street Railway. In

addition, it operates a pulp mill at Campbellford and owns the Bruton Town-

ship timber limits purchased by the Province to provide a supply of wood for

the pulp mill. The Northern Ontario section has a power development at

Nipissing near North Bay, and supplies power to local public utility under-

takings owned by the System in North Bay, Powassan, Nipissing and Cal-

landar. 2. Tenth March, 1916. 3. $8,350,000. 4. In debentures of the Prov-

ince. 5. Four per cent, per annum, maturing first March, 1926. 6. The
recommendation to Council was made by the then Minister of Lands, Forests

and Mines Hon. G. H. Ferguson who also signed the agreement on behalf

the Government. 7. The Commission recommended the purchase at $8,350,-

0, to be paid in Government 4 per cent. 40-year bonds, sinking fund

deferred for the first 10 years. So far as the Government is aware there is no

ocumentary evidence as to the attitude of the Commission. 8. Up to March,

920, $1,683,398. This information is contained in a report of F. C. Clark-

son of March, 1920. If there have been further advances they have been

rough the Hydro-Electric Power Commission and the Government has no

atement as to same. 9. Up to March, 1920, $10,258,398, including

$225,000 to purchase the timber limit which was required for the supply of

wood for the pulp mill. 10. $2,677,342. 11. The Power -Commission states

that it cannot fix the valuation at the present time. 12. (a) Interest costs,

expenses of operation and provision for reserve in respect to plant renewal

exceeded the income of the System for the fiscal year ending October 31. 1917,

by $24,218.75 ; (fr) Income exceeded interest costs, expenses of operation and

provision for reserve in respect to plant renewal of the System for the fiscal

year ending October 31, 1918, by $16,500; (c) Interest costs, expenses of

operation and provision for reserve in respect to plant renewal exceeded the

income of the Systetm for the fiscal year ending October 31, 1919, by
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$183,670.64; (d) Income exceeded interest costs, expenses of operation and

provision for reserve in respect to plant renewal for the fiscal year ending
October 31, 1920, by $23,858.44, after making full provision for water rentals

due Federal Government accrued since 1916. 13. No, except with regard to

the Bruton Township purchase price 30 year 4 per cent, basis $5,400 per

year $19,981.05 collected to 31st October, 1920. 14. No. 15. Yes; the Bill

provided that the Commission might, with the approval of the Lieutenant-

Governor in Council, sell outright to any municipality any local system for the

distribution of electric light and power, or gas or water or the local street

railway, and that such municipality was to pay for the works taken over by an

issue of debentures. The debentures were to be handed over to the Commis-

sion, and the Commission might sell same and employ the proceeds towards the

extension, improvement and operation of the properties remaining in its posses-

sion, or pay the same to, or deposit the debentures with the Treasurer of the

Province of Ontario. With regard to the power plants and transmission lines,

the Bill provided that these could be dealt with between the municipalities and

the Commission in the same way in which the Niagara System is dealt with.

The Municipalities might enter into contracts with the Power Commission for

a supply of power, and practically come under the provisions of the Hydro-
Electric Power Act with regard to the Niagara System. The Bill then provided-

that the Province might sell and the Commission purchase these power plants

and transmission lines and that the Commission should issue and the Province

accept bonds of the Commission for the purchase price, payable in forty years
from the date of purchase. The Bill also provided that the Power Commission

and a municipal corporation might set aside any agreement or franchise

entered into between a corporation and any of the companies whose assets are

now owned by the Commission notwithstanding that such agreement or fran-

chise was formerly approved by the ratepayers or confirmed by any Statute.

16. No. 17. First With regard to any local system for the distribution of

electric light and power or gas or water or the local street railway, that the

debentures should be handed over to the Province direct, and that none of the

proceeds should be applied towards the extension, improvement or operation
of other properties remaining in the possession of the Commission. If monies

were required for the latter purpose that they should be advanced by the Prov-

ince direct to the Commission. Second With regard to the power plants and

transmission lines it was thought that the simple way would be merely for the

municipalities concerned to enter into the same arrangement in every respect

as that entered into by the municipalities in the Niagara System. It was con-

sidered that there was no necessity for the Commission purchasing these power

plants and transmission lines from the Province, and issuing its bonds and

handing them over to the Province. Third It was considered that the Central

Ontario Power Act, 1916, gave all the power necessary to the Lieutenant-

Governor in Council to sell the System, or any part thereof, to any municipality
or municipalities which desired to purchase or assume same. Fourth It was

considered that if the System or any part of it had to be sold at a loss that the

proper way to meet such loss was for the Province to fix the purchase price at
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the proper amount, and write off such loss. 18. No. 19. Probably not. It is

represented to the Government that it is doubtful whether the water rights,

franchises and other assets of an intangible nature, for which $2,677,342 was

paid, have any real value. 20. Yes. It is impossible to state to what amount
at present, but the extra annual charge will be whatever rate of interest has

to be paid for the renewal of the outstanding debentures over four per cent.

21. $8,350,000, exclusive of advances made for improving the System, etc.

!2. The Hydro-Electric Power Commission states that some of the contracts

are for long terms, and others are for short terms. 23. The Commission states

that some contracts do, and some do not. 24. The matter will have the con-

sideration of the Government.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 243), To
amend The Optometry Act, 1919, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 256), To amend
'he Motor Vehicles Act, having been read,

Mr. Brackin moved,

That the Bill be now read the second time.

And the Motion, having been put, was lost on a Division.

And so it was declared in the Negative.

The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion
for a Return of correspondence re payment of Counsel Fee to Peter White,
'.C., having been read, it was

Ordered, That the Order be discharged and the Motion withdrawn.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 257),

>pecting Fair Eents, and after some time spent therein, the Committee rose.
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The Order of the Day for resuming the Adjourned Debate on the Motion

for a Report of the officer conducting a scale of logs at Lumber Mills in

Ontario, having been read,

The Debate was resumed.

3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

The Debate continued,

And after some time

Mr. Drury moved in amendment, seconded by Mr. Raney,

That the following words be added to the Motion,
"
together with the

data on which the Report was based and all correspondence in connection

therewith,"

And the Amendment, having been put, was carried, and it was

Ordered, That there be laid before this House, a Return of the Report
of the officer, or person, who has been conducting a scale of the logs and mill-

cut at twenty-six lumber mills of Ontario throughout the sawing season of

1920, and which the Minister of Lands and Forests has reported to the House
is now in his possession, together with the data on which the Report was based

and all correspondence in connection therewith.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney,

Ordered, That the Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections be

permitted to sit concurrently with the Sittings of the House, for the purpose
of completing unfinished business.

On Motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Raney, it was

Resolved, That this House endorses the representation made by all the

Veteran Organizations in the City of Toronto that, in view of the serious

unemployment situation in the City and the menace arising from unusual
unrest in some quarters, it is desirable that the Dominion Government inako

provision forthwith for ex-service men and women to meet the exceptional
situation by re-instating the D.S.C.R. relief measures, and by placing on army
pay and allowances all bona fide unemployed ex-service men until absorbed

in employment through Government Employment Bureaus, or otherwise and
that a copy of this Resolution be forwarded to the Prime Minister of Canada,
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the Minister of the Department of Soldiers' Civil Re-establishment, the Min-

ister of Labour, and the Chairman of the Parliamentary Committee on Sol-

diers' Re-establishment. i

On Motion of Mr. Grant, seconded by Mr. Smith,

Ordered, That a Committee of the House, composed of Messieurs Mar-

shall, Cooke, Stringer, and Swayze, be appointed to advise, discuss and confer

with the officials of the Department of Education, on Educational matters,

especially in view of the coming into effect of The Adolescent School Attend-

ance Act, during the coming Recess.

Mr. Stevenson asked the following Question:

1. Have any negotiations, or arrangements, been made by the Niagara

Falls, N.Y., Power Company with the Hydro Commission or the Ontario

Government as to development of power at the Falls. 2. What are they. 3.

Will the proposed development of power by the above Company exceed the

allowance of water (feet per sec.) allowed by the International Treaty for

power development. 4. If so, as in (3) by how much. 5. If so, as in (3), what

arrangements as to water allowance has been considered by the Hydro Power
Commission or the Ontario Government to increase the amount of water taken

from the Niagara River. 6. On which side of the international line will the

power be available.

And the Provincial Secretary replied as follows:

1. No. 2. 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 answered by reply to Question 1.

iThe
Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 239), To extend

e Franchise to Women in Municipal Elections, having been read.

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 223), Con-

cerning the Employment of Women during the Night, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.
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The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 224), -Concern-

ing the Night Work of Young Persons employed in Industry, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 225), Fixing
the Minimum Wage for Admission to Industrial Employment, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 238), Respecting
Maintenance of Deserted Wives and Children, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 82), The Maxi-

mum Work Hour Day Act, having been read,

The Motion was declared to be lost.

The House resolved itself into a Committee, severally to consider the

following Bills :
(

Bill (No. 42), To incorporate the Town of River Side.

Bill (No. 6), Respecting the City of Sault Ste. Marie.

Bill (No. 30), Respecting Fecunis, Limited.

Bill (No. 51), Respecting the division of the Township of Ferris in the

District of Nipissing.

Bill (No. 54), Respecting the Township of York.

Bill (No. 215), Respecting the Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company of

Canada, Limited.

Bill (No. 247), Respecting the Town of Midland.
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Mr. Speaker resumed the 'Chair
;
and Mr. Watson reported, That the Com-

mittee had directed him to report the several Bills without Amendments.

Ordered, That the Bills reported, be severally read the third time To-day.

The following Bill was read the second time :

Bill (No. 8), "Respecting the City of Toronto.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House To-day.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 110),
To amend The Cemeteries Act. and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker
resumed the 'Chair

;
and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee had directed

him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-day.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 156),
To amend The Local Improvement Act, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-day.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 155),
To amend The Dog Tax and Sheep Protection Act, and after some time spent

therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the

Committee had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-day.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 244),

To amend The Dog Tax and Sheep Protection Act, and after some time spent
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therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That

the Committee had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-day.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 79),

To amend The Mining Tax Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the 'Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-day.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 236),

Respecting The Ontario Athletic Commission, and after some time spent there-

in, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Com-
mittee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, that the Bill be read the third time To-day.

The House resolved itself into a 'Committee to consider Bill (No. 248),

Respecting Proof of Death of Soldiers and Sailors while on Active Service,

and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr.

Watson reported, That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill

without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-day.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (N~o. 251),

To amend The Current Rate of Interest Act, and after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Com-
mittee had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-day.
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The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 250),
To amend The Mortmain and Charitable Institutions Act, and after some time

spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported,
That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill without any amend-
ment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-day.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 252),

For Raising Money on the Credit of the Consolidated Revenue Fund, and

after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr.

Watson reported, That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill

without- any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-day.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill '(No. 253),

To amend The Provincial Loans Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-day.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 219),

Respecting the purchase, by the City of Toronto, of the Assets of certain

Companies, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the

Chair; and Mr. Webster reported, That the Committee had directed him to

report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-day.

The Provincial Secretary presented to the House, by command of His
Honour the Lieutenant-Governor :

Report of the Department of Labour of the Province of Ontario for the

rear 1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 16.)
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Also Keport on Neglected and Dependent Children of Ontario, for the

year 1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 27.)

Also Report of the Inspector of Prisons and Public Charities upon

Hospitals and Charitable Institutions of Ontario, 1920. (Sessional Papers,
No. 25.)

Also Copies of Orders-in-Council designating, pursuant to section 14

of The Hospitals and Charitable Institutions Act, Hospitals, Refuges, Orphan-

ages and Infants' Homes, to which aid be granted. (Sessional Papers, No.

93.)

Report of the Minister of Lands and Forests for 1920. (Sessional

Papers, No. 3.)

Also Report re Housing of the Bureau of Municipal Affairs, 1920.

(Sessional Papers, No. 40.)

Also Report of the Commissioners for the Queen Victoria Niagara
Falls Park, 1920. (Sessional Papers, No. 9.)

Also Report of the Commission to inquire into and report upon the

truth or falsity of the charges made against David Hastings, Police Magis-

trate, Dunnville. (Sessional Papers, No. 94.)

Also Return to an Order of March 4th, 1921, that there be laid before

this House a Return showing: 1. What places in the City of Toronto are

employed for Government use outside the Legislative Building. 2. For what

Department, Commission or Board are they being used. 3. What are the terms

of rental or lease. 4. How much has been expended on improvements on each

place to date. 5. On what dates was possession taken under the different leases.

6. How many employees are at work in each of the respective buildings so

leased. (Sessional Papers, No. 91.)

Aiso Return to an Order of February 21st, 1921, that there be laid

before this House a Return of copies of all papers and correspondence between

the Government or any Member thereof or any official on behalf of the Govern-

ment and any other Corporation or person relating to: (a) Loan "R.R." sold

to syndicate composed of the Dominion Securities and others; (b) Loan for

$16,000,000 at 6 per cent., repayable in fifteen years for which the price of

92.34 was realized; (c) The loan "S.S." sold to the syndicate composed of

Aemilius Jarvis and others; (d) The loan for $10,000,000 at 6 per cent.,

repayable in twenty years for which the price of 96.787 was realized. (Ses-
sional Papers, No. 92.)
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8.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

Mr. Brackin, from the Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections,

presented their Report, which was read. (Appendix No. 3.)

Mr. Brackin then moved,

That the Report be adopted.

Mr. Dewart moved, in amendment, seconded by Mr. O'Neil, That the

Report of the 'Committee on Privileges and Elections be not now adopted,

but be referred back to the said Committee, with instructions to consider

whether the witness, R. W. E. Burnaby, should be summoned to appear before

the Bar of the House to explain his refusal to answer any question or ques-

tions put to him, as to which the Chairman of the said (Committee ruled that

the said Burnaby should answer, and that the said 'Committee have power to

sit during the recess.

And the Amendment, having been submitted, was lost on the following
division:

YEAS.

Messieurs :

Black.
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The Motion for the adoption of the Report, .having been then again put,
was carried, and the Report was accordingly adopted.

The Order of the Day for the House to resolve itself into Committee of

the Whole on Bill (No. 211), To amend The Universities Act, having been

read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The Order of the Day for the second reading of Bill (No. 176), To
amend The Workmen's Compensation Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 249),
To amend The Ontario Companies Act, and, after some time spent therein.

Mr. Speaker resumed the Ohair; and Mr. Webster reported, That the Com-
mittee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-day.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 255),
To confirm a certain Agreement between the Hydro-Electric Power Commis-

sion of Ontario and the Corporation of the City of Guelph, and, after some

time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Webster reported,

That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amend-

ments.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-day.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 258),
To authorize the purchase and operation of certain Radial Railways by the
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Hydro-Electric Power 'Commission of Ontario on behalf of the 'City 10:6

Toronto, and, after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;

and Mr. Webster reported, That the Committee had directed him to report

the Bill without any amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-day.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 259),

The Municipal Amendment Act, 1921, and, after some time spent therein,

Mr. Speaker resumed the -Chair; and Mr. Webster reported, That the Com-
mittee had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered., That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-day.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 260),
The Assessment Amendment Act, 1921, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster reported, That the Committee
had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time To-day.

The following Bills were severally read the third time and passed :

Bill (No. 195), To regulate the sale and installation of Lightning Kods

For the Province of Ontario.

Bill (No. 209), To amend the Ontario Parole Board.

Bi
1

! (No. 203), To amend The School Attendance Act.

Bill (No. 129), To amend The Mining Act of Ontario.

till (No. 207), To amend The Ontario Temperance Act.

till (No. 187), Eespecting Long Point Park.
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Bill (!S
T
o. 186), Respecting Natural Gas.

Bill (No. 217), To amend The Ontario Game and Fisheries Act.

Bill (No. 235), Respecting the Administration of Justice in the District

of Temiskaming.

Bill (No. 220), To amend The Ontario Temperance Act.

Bill (No. 237), o amend The Factory, Shop and Office Building Act.

Bill (No. 242), The Damage by Fumes Arbitration Act.

Bill (No. 213), To amend The Municipal Act.

Bill (No. 245), Respecting Vocational Education.

Bill (No. 42), To incorporate the Town of River Side.

Bill (No. 6), Respecting the City of Sault Ste. Marie.

Bill (No. 30), Respecting Fecunis, Limited.

Bill (No. 51), Respecting the division of the Township of Ferris in the

district of Nipissing.

Bill (No. 54), Respecting the Township of York.

Bill (No. 215), Respecting the Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company of

Canada, Limited.

Bill (No. 247), Respecting the Town of Midland.

Bill (No. 110), To amend The Cemeteries Act.

Bill (No. 156), To amend The Local Improvement Act.

Bill (No. 155), To amend The Dog Tax and Sheep Protection Act

Bill (No. 244), To amend The Dog Tax and Sheep Protection Act.

Bill (No. 79), To amend The Mining Tax Act.

Bill (No. 236), Respecting the Ontario Athletic Commission.
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Bill (No. 219), Kespecting the purchase, by the City of Toronto, of the

assets of certain companies.

Bill (No. 248), Eespecting proofs of Death of Soldiers and Sailors while

on active service.

Bill (No. 249), To amend The Ontario Companies Act.

Bill (No. 250), To amend The Mortmain and Charitable Institutions

Uses Act.

Bill (No. 251), To amend The Current Rate of Interest Act.

Bill (No. 253), To amend The Provincial Loans Act.

Bill (No. 255), To confirm a certain Agreement between the Hydro-
Electric Power Commission of Ontario and the Corporation of the City of

Guelph.

Bill (No. 258), To authorize the purchase and operation of certain

Radial Railways by the Hydro-Electric Power Commission of Ontario on

behalf of the City of Toronto.

Bill (No. 259), The Municipal Amendment Act, 1921. .

Bill (No. 260), The Assessment Amendment Act, 1921.

The Order of the Day for the third reading of Bill (No. 210), To amend
e Marriage Act, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be forthwith

igain referred to a 'Committee of the Whole, with instructions to amend the

ime.

The House accordingly resolved itself into the Committee; and, after

>me time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster

sported, That the Committee had amended the Bill as directed.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time forthwith.

The Bill was then read the third time, and passed.
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The Order of the Day for the third reading of Bill (No. 252), For raising

money on the credit of the Consolidated Revenue Fund, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be forthwith

again referred to a Committee of the Whole, with instructions to amend the

same.

The House accordingly resolved itself into the Committee
; and, after some

time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Webster reported.

That the Committee had amended the Bill as directed.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time forthwith.

The Bill was then read the third time, and passed.

And the House, having continued to sit until Twelve of the Clock Mid-

night,

Saturday, 30th .April, 1921,

The following Bill was read the second time:

Bill (No. 262), To make more equal provision for the cost of Hydro-
Electric Power in Ontario.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House forthwith.

The House accordingly resolved itself into the Committee, and, after

some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker resumed the Chair; and Mr. Watson

reported. That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill, with certain

.amendments,

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been -read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time forthwith.

The Bill was then read the third time and passed.

The Order of the Day for the House to resolve itself into Committee of the

Whole on Bill (No. 254), To amend The Election Laws, having been read,

Ordered, That the Order be discharged, and that the Bill be withdrawn.



George V. 29TH APRIL. 379

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 226), To
amend the Power Commission Act, and after some time spent therein, Mr.

Speaker resumed the Chair
;
and Mr. Webster reported, That the Committee

had directed him to report the Bill with certain amendments.

Ordered, That the Amendments be taken into consideration forthwith.

The Amendments, having been read the second time, were agreed to.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time forthwith.

The Bill was then read the third time, and passed.

The House resolved itself into a Committee to consider Bill (No. 8),

Respecting the City of Toronto, and after some time spent therein, Mr. Speaker
resumed the Chair; and Mr. Webster reported, That the Committee had

directed him to report the Bill without any amendment,

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time forthwith.

The Bill was then read the third time and passed.

The following Bill was read the second time :

Bill (No. 261), Respecting Public Improvements and services in certain

Suburban Areas.

Referred to a Committee of the Whole House forthwith.

The House accordingly resolved itself into the Committee, and, after some

time spent therein, . Mr. Speaker resumed the 'Chair
;
and Mr. Webster re-

ported, That the Committee had directed him to report the Bill without any
amendment.

Ordered, That the Bill be read the third time forthwith.

The Bill was then read the third time, and passed.

On motion of Mr. Ferguson, seconded by Mr. Henry,

Ordered. That there be laid before this House, a Return of copies of all

>rrespondence between the Minister of Lands and Forests, the Prime Minis-
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ter, or any Member of the Government, and E. W. Backus, or any other com-

pany, firms or person, together with all estimates, reports, advertisements, con-

ditions of sale, tenders, agreements, maps, documents, and papers of every

kind and nature relating -to: 1. The Lake of the Woods pulp concession;

2. The White Dog Eapids Water Power, or any other water power in the Dis-

trict of Kenora
;

3. The recent sale of pulp wood and timber on the English
River concession.

On motion of Mr. Price, seconded by Mr. Thompson,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House, a Return of copies of all

correspondence, reports, and documents, relating to the dismissal of Magistrate

Hastings, of Dunnville.

Mr. Hall moved, seconded by Mr. Clarke,

That this House favours the proposal made to the Government by a

deputation from Parry Sound and District and of the Associated Boards of

Trade and Commerce of Ontario, petitioning that the T. & N. O. Railway be

extended westerly from North Bay to Parry Sound. That this House has

faith in the almost unlimited natural resources lying between these two towns

and in the potential revenue producing value to the Province, of the minerals,

timber and agricultural products of this valuable area. This House believes

that the Government would be justified in extending an arm of the railroad

to Parry -Sound for the development of this part of the country, inasmuch as a

unsaving of nearly three dollars ($3.00) per ton for freight from the U.S.A.

border to North Bay would be effected, and in addition by the transportation

of heavy mining machinery, etc., could be made by water to Parry Sound at

much cheaper rates than at present obtained over existing railways and at

the same time would furnish traffic for the proposed extension of the T. & N. 0.

Railway. This House therefore urges upon the Government the advisability

of proceeding with all practicable speed to construct a branch of the said rail-

way from North Bay to Parry Sound, and urges that a vote be placed in the

estimates to provided for the necessary initial surveys and work in connection

therewith,

And the Motion, having been put, was declared to be lost.

On motion of Mr. Rollo, seconded by Mr. Mills, it was

Resolved, That in the opinion of this House it is desirable that at the

earliest possible date a conference should be arranged between representatives
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of the Dominion Government and the Governments of the various Provinces

in 'Canada, for the purpose of considering the advisability and practicability

of legislation covering unemployment insurance, old age pensions, eight hour

day, and other matters affecting labour conditions which were dealt with by

the Peace Conference at Versailles
;
the conference to consider what legislation

is desirable and practicable upon the various subjects submitted to it and the

question as to the enactment of such legislation by the Dominion and the

Provinces
; that, in the event of the conference deciding that any of the ques-

tions submitted are provincial in their scope, that the Labour Department of

Ontario be authorized to make an investigation and report to this House with

a view to enacting legislation in this Province covering these questions.

On motion of Mr. Henry, seconded by Mr. Ferguson,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House, a Eeturn of copies of all

correspondence, papers, plans, reports and documents between the Minister of

Highways, or any member of the Government, or any official thereof, and the

Federal Government and any Minister or official thereof, with reference to

contribution under The Canada Roads Act towards the construction of high-

wavs in Ontario.

On motion of Mr. Brackin, seconded by Mr. Webster, it was

Resolved, That in the opinion of this House a special Committee of the

House should be appointed to consider the whole question of the Dower
Law of this Province, to make such investigation and inquiries and hold

such hearings during the recess as the Committee may determine, with a view

to preparing, if it shall deem advisable, a Bill to be introduced at the next

Session dealing comprehensively with the whole subject of a wife's interest in

her husband's property.

Referred to the Select Committee to which was referred Bill (No. 114),

Respecting Mechanics' Liens.

On motion of Mr. Fowler, seconded by Mr. Gray, it was

Resolved, That whereas the Province of Ontario has under its care the

training and education of the youth of the Province which has for its object
le development of the highest type of citizenship and the maintenance of

British connections. And whereas certain American magazines and news-

papers known as
" The Hearst Publications "

are permitted to circulate in

Canada. And whereas these publications are anti-British in tone and attitud^
and subversive of the ideals of Canadian citizenship and our connection with
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the British Empire, this House believes that they should be excluded from

circulation in Canada. Therefore be it resolved that this House memorialize

the Government of Canada to prevent the entry of the Hearst Publications into

Canada.

On motion of Mr. Hill, seconded by Mr. Ferguson,

Ordered, That there be laid before this House, a Return of copies of all

correspondence between R. T. Harding and the Honourable the Attorney-Gen-

eral or any other Minister of the Crown, or any officer of the Government since

March 1st, 1921, with reference to a certain account for $500 rendered James

Hourigan Co. by the said R. T. Harding, and also copies of all letters from

Crown Timber Agent Wylie since 1st June, 1920, referring to the settlement

with James Hourigan & Co. for $12,600.

Mr. Heenan moved, seconded by Mr. Homuth,

That whereas it would enable the Members of this Assembly to acquire

much knowledge of conditions in the other Provinces of Canada if facilities

were given them to travel from time to time in the other provinces ;
and whereas

the acquisition of this knowledge would be of great value to the Members in

the preparation and discussions of measures for and in this Assembly ;
and

whereas owing to the expense entailed the members are unable to visit the other

provinces as frequently as is desirable; Therefore be it resolved that the

Dominion Parliament be asked to so amend The Federal Railways Act that

members of this Legislature be given free transportation on National Railways

through all parts of Canada.

And the motion, having been put, was, by leave of the House, withdrawn.

On motion of Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Nixon,

Ordered, That the full Sessional Indemnity be paid to those Members of

this House absent on account of illness, or other unavoidable cause.

On motion of Mr. Drury, seconded by Mr. Rauey,

Ordered, That when this House adjourns To-day, it do stand adjourned
until Tuesday next, the third day of May, at three of the clock in the afternoon.

The House then adjourned at 4.50 a.m.
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Tuesday, May 3rd, 1921.

PBAYEBS. 3.00 O'CLOCK, P.M.

His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor entered the Chamber of the Legis-
lative Assembly and took his seat upon the Throne.

Mr. Speaker then addressed His Honour as follows :

May it please Your Honour,

The Legislative Assembly of the Province, having at its present Sittings

passed certain Bills to which, on behalf and in the name of the said Assembly,
I respectfully request Your Honour's assent.*

The Clerk Assistant then read the Titles of the Acts that had been passed
as follows:

An Act respecting the Preparation of Voters' Lists in Cities.

An Act to amend The Ontario Public Service Superannuation Act.

An Act respecting the Office of King's Printer.

An Act to amend The Provincial Loans Act.

An Act for Raising Money on the Credit of the Consolidated Revenue

Fund.

An Act to amend The Current-Rate of Interest Act.

An Act to amend The Mining Tax Act.

An Act to amend The Corporations Tax Act.

An Act respecting the Taxation of Real Estate Transfers.

An Act to amend The Public Lands Act.

An Act to amend The Mining Act of Ontario.

An Act respecting Natural Gas.

An Act to provide for Development Work in Northern and Northwestern

Ontario.

*See date of April 8th for assent to other Acts
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The Keforestation Act, 1921.

An Act to amend The Power Commission Act.

An Act to make more equal provision for the Cost of Hydro-Electric
Power in Ontario.

An Act to confirm a certain Agreement between the Hydro-Electric

Power Commission of Ontario and the Corporation of the City of Guelph.

An Act respecting the Purchase by the City of Toronto of the Assets of

Certain Companies.

An Act to authorize the Purchase and Operation of Certain Radial

Railways by the Hydro-Electric Power Commission of Ontario on behalf of

the City of Toronto.

An Act to amend The Provincial Highway Act.

An Act respecting Provincial Aid to Drainage.

An Act to amend The Agricultural Societies Act.

An Act to Finance Agricultural Development.

An Act for the Promotion of Agricultural Development.

An Act respecting Short-Term Farm Loans in Ontario.

An Act to amend The Burlington Beach Act.

An Act respecting Long Point Park.

An Act to amend The County Judges Act.

An Act to amend The Division Courts Act.

An Act respecting the Administration of Justice in the District of Tem-

iskaming.

An Act respecting Proof of Death of Soldiers and Sailors while on Active

Service.

An Act to amend The Crown Attorneys Act.

An Act to amend The Mortmain and Charitable Uses Act.
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An Act to amend The Ontario Public Trustee Act.

An Act to amend The Trustee Act.

An Art to amend The Registry Act.

An Act to amend The Bills or! Sale and Chattel Mortgage Act.

Aii Act to amend The Marriage Act.

An Act to provide for tlie Maintenance of Parents by their Children.

An Act for the protection of the Children of Unmarried Parents.

An Act to amend The Stationary and Hoisting Engineers Act.

An Act respecting Provincial Auctioneer?.

An Act to amend The Ontario Companies Act.

An Act to amend The Timber Slide Companies Act.

An Act' to amend The Ontario Insurance Act.

An Act to amend The Loan and Trust Corporations Act.

An Act to amend The Ontario Telephone Act.

The Municipal Amendment Act, 1931.

An Act to amend The Local Improvement Act.

An Act to amend The Planning and Development Act.

An Act respecting Public Improvements and Services in Certain Sub-

in Areas.

The Assessment Amendment Act, 1921. i

An Act to amend The Municipal Tax Exemption Act, 1920.
j

An Act to amend The Statute Labour Act.

An Act to amend The Community Halls Act.

An Act to amend The Public Parks Act.
j
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An Act to amend The Ontario Temperance Act.

An Act to amend The Public Health Act. . '- - -

"

An Act to amend The Dairy Standards Act. <

An Act to amend The Factory, Shop and Office Building Act.

An Act to amend The Trades and Labour Branch Act.

An Act to amend The Mothers' Allowances Act.

An Act respecting the Two-Platoon System for the Employees of Per-

manent Fire Departments.

An Act to amend Tlie Counties Reforestation Act.
, t

An Act to amend The Dog Tax and Sheep Protection Act.

An Act to amend The Line Fences Act.

An Act to regulate the Sale and Installation of Lightning Rods for the

Province of Ontario.

An Act to provide Compensation for Damage caused by Sulphur Fumes.

An Act to amend The Cemeteries Act.

An Act to amend The Ontario Game and Fisheries Act.

An Act respecting The Ontario Athletic Commission.

An Act to amend The School Laws.

An Act respecting Vocational Education.

An Act to amend The School Sites Act.

An Act to amend The Ontario Parole Act, 1917.

An Act respecting the Extra-Mural Employment of Persons under

Sentence.

An Act respecting the County of Carleton.

An Act respecting the City Gas Company of London.
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Aii Act respecting the Township of Etobicoke and the Weston Golf and

Country Club, Limited.

An Act respecting the Division of the Township of Ferris, in the District

of Nipissing.

An Act to annex certain land to the Town of Ford City.

An Act respecting the Town of Kincardine.

An Act respecting the City of Kitchener.

An Act respecting the City of London.

An Act respecting the Trafalgar Agricultural Society and the Corporation
of the Town of Oakville.

An Act to confirm By-law No. 744 of the Town of Orillia.

An Act respecting the City of Ottawa.

An Act to incorporate the Town of River Side.

An Act respecting the City of Sault Ste. Marie.

An Act respecting the City of Toronto.

An Act respecting the Township of York.

An Act respecting the Northern Light Railways Company.

An Act respecting Fecunis. Limited.

An Act respecting the Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company of Canada,
Limited.

An Act to incorporate Niagara Peninsula Growers, Limited.

To these Acts the Royal Assent was announced by the Clerk of the Logis*

itivc Assembly in the following words:

" In His Majesty's name, His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor doth

)nt to these Acts."
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Mr. Speaker tlveh said :

Ifay it please Your Honour:

We, His Majesty's most dutiful and faithful Subjects, the Legislative

Assembly of the Province of Ontario, in Session assembled, approach Your
Honour with sentiments of. unfeigned devotion and loyalty to His Majesty's

person and Government, and humbly beg to present for Your Honour's accept-

ance a Bill intituled
" An Act for granting His Majesty certain sums of money

for the public service of the financial year ending the 31st day of October,

1921, and for the public service of the financial year ending the 31st day of

October, 1022, and for other purposes therein mentioned."

To this Act the Royal Assent was announced by the Clerk of the Legis-

lative Assembly in the following words:

" His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor doth thank His Majesty's dutiful

and loyal Subjects, accept their benevolence and assent to this Act in His

Majesty's name."

His Honour was then pleased to deliver the following Speech:

]\fr. Speaker and Gentlemen of the Legislative Assembly:

In bringing your legislative labours to a close I desire to thank you for

the careful attention you have given to the many matters of public interest

and importance that have come before yon, and to express the hope that the

legislation enacted will advance the welfare and the prosperity of the Province

as a whole.

Your deliberations have been marked by the spirit of confidence which

makes for the strength and success of the community. My Government has

been authorized to proceed energetically with the public undertakings^ some
of which are of considerable magnitude. It is satisfactory to know that the

Province is thus making revenue-producing investments which will contribute

to the general prosperity of the years to come.

World-wide conditions of a passing nature have affected our industrial

activities. I trust that the readjustment now in process will be rapidly com-

pleted and that normal production on a stable basis will shortly be restored.

At the present time the prospects of a large agricultural yield are good, and

opportunities for labour are unusually numerous in the rural districts.

Federal legislation prohibiting the importation of intoxicating liquors
into this Province will shortly become operative, in accordance with the deci-
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sion of the electors in the recent referendum. It is expected that this enact-

ment will materially assist the enforcement of The Ontario Temperance Act.

Provision has been made for an appeal from conviction by a Magistrate under

the Act, and other amendments have been found advisable to facilitate the

operation of the measure.

The financial provision you have made for all branches of education

should ensure progress in this most important subject. Considerable legisla-

tion has been adopted respecting the school system, including measures to

increase the financial support of high schools
;
to remedy the conditions of the

rural schools adjacent to large cities and towns
;
and to confer power upon

County Councils to form County Boards for secondary education. From these

and other educational measures good results may be expected.

Much attention has been given to the problem of the extension of the

Hydro-Electric System to the rural districts and small urban centres. The

suggestions contained in the valuable report to the Legislature on this subject

have been carefully considered, and notable progress has been made towards

accomplishing the object in view. The Government has been authorized to

give financial assistance towards the construction of rural transmission lines

which will help to reduce the cost of electricity to agriculturists and to the

small urban centres from which such lines will radiate.

Legislation providing facilities for rural credits has been very fully

considered and adopted. While adhering to sound business principles, this

legislation provides for short term loans for farmers and also for advances

for agricultural development, extended over a period of years.

Several measures affecting social welfare have been enacted. Provision

has been made for the protection of children of unmarried persons, as well as

their legitimation by the subsequent marriage of their parents. Authority
has been given for the legal adoption of infants. Old and helpless parents
have been provided for by The Parents' Maintenance Act, and there has been

a broadening amendment to The Mothers 7

Allowances Act. The registration
of clergymen and others who are authorized to solemnize marriage will here-

after be required, and Municipal Clerks will have charge of the issuing of

Marriage Licenses. Power has been given to the Government to appoint
women magistrates in large cities.

To improve the administration of justice, provision has been made for

the appointment of County and District Magistrates with a view eventually to

the abolition of the payment of Magistrates by fees. Another helpful enact-

ment in this connection is the establishment of the office of Commissioner of

Police, who will have charge of all law enforcement, including that of The
itario Temperance Act.
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Attention lias been given to the extension and preservation of our forest

resources. The Government has been authorized to set aside Crown Lands for

reforestation and to acquire other lands for the like purpose. Provision lias been

made for co-operation between the Government and the various County Councils

in the furtherance of this most beneficial undertaking.

Important measures concerning the financial institutions established and

.conducted under the law of Ontario have occupied your attention. You have pro-

vided for the inspection and supervision of the business of Loan and Trust

Corporations, for the greater security of those who entrust their funds and estates

to the care of these institutions. An amendment has been made to the Ontario

Insurance Act, -touching Fraternal Insurance Societies, which martvs the culmin-

ation of many years of effort to place these societies upon a better and more

enduring basis.

As a measure of safety an Act has been adopted requiring the licensing of

persons and corporations selling material or apparatus to be used for the protec-

tion of buildings from damage by lightning. The approval by the Fire Marshall

of the system of installation has been made necessary.

Among the other measures adopted are Acts to provide further funds for the

development of Northern Ontario, to facilitate land settlement, materially

'amending the Dairy Standards Act and fixing a date at which it will come into

force, respecting the Mining Act and for other purposes.

I regard with satisfaction your cordial approval of the recommendations of

the War Memorial Committee. The steps being taken to secure, while it is yet

available, as complete a record as possible of the war services of our people are

highly commendable. The establishment of a suitable memorial hall will ensure

the preservation of much valuable hitorical material, and will prove of inestimable

service to posterity.

I desire to thank you for the fumncial provision you have made for maintain-

ing the public service and the various activities of the Government, and to assure

tou that these appropriations will be administered with a chie regard to economy
and efficiency.

In conclusion, I commend the enactment of much beneficial legislation, and

1 join with you in the earnest hope that the blessing of Almighty God will continue

to rest upon our people and upon our Country.

The Provincial Secretary then said:-

^fr, Spcftl'cr and Gentlemen of tJu> Legislative Assembly:

It is His Honour's will and pleasure that this Legislative Assembly be

prorogued and this LogNlativp Assembly is accordingly prorogued.
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APPENDIX NO. 1.

REPORT OF THE SPECIAL COMMITTEE OF THE ONTARIO
LEGISLATURE ON INDUSTRIAL REHABILITATION.

To the Honourable the Speaker, and Members of the Legislative Assembly of
the Province of Ontario :

Whereas on Monday, the 12th of April, 1920, on motion of Mr. McNamara
(Riverdale), seconded by Mr. Homuth, it was

Resolved, That it is expedient in the opinion of this House to establish

an Industrial Rehabilitation Board to investigate and establish, in accordance

with the conditions in Ontario, a system and standard of vocational training
for the male and female employees in any industry or profession who are

bona fide residents of the Province of Ontario, including persons employed as

sailors or in any other capacity on board steamboats or sailing vessels on the

Great Lakes, and who have been disabled from following their ordinary occu-

pation or calling by injury, disease, muscular restriction, impediment, or im-

pairment in the course of their employment, or from any disability due to the

aggravation of any disease attributable directly or indirectly to their employ-
ment;

and whereas on the 12th of April, 1920, on motion of Hon. Mr. Drury, sec-

onded by Hon. Mr. Raney ,
it was carried :

" That all the words of the motion after the first word ' That ' be omitted

and the following substituted therefor:
'

the question of establishing an In-

dustrial Rehabilitation Board in this Province be referred to a Special Com-
mittee of this House to be hereafter named '

;

and whereas on Friday, the 16th of April, 1920, it was ordered that the follow-

ing members compose the special committee appointed upon the question of

establishing an Industrial Rehabilitation Board in the Province: Messieurs.

McNamara, Rollo, Johnston (Simcoe), Warren, Casselman, Price, Magladery,
Tolmie, and Cooper (Toronto), and that the said Committee be empowered to

sit during the Recess :

In pursuance of the above instruction your Committee beg leave to report
that several meetings were held, and a most careful and thorough investigation
of the referred subject of industrial rehabilitation was undertaken.

Suggestions were invited from many interested persons, experts and

specialists in certain particular vocations and professions ; and favourable com-
ments of the press noted. The subject of equipping and retraining men in-

jured in industry and disabled to prevent pursuit of their former vocations was
discussed by those interested, and attention was directed to the notable results

attained in Canada, the United States, and many European countries.

While it is admitted that there is considerable range in the liberality of
their various provisions in the above-named countries, special attention was
directed to the causes and effects, remedies, loss in man power, and gain through

duction, by rehabilitation at a nominal cost within the Province of Ontario.
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Therefore jour Committee endorses the following:

(1) The principle of rehabilitation.

(2) The right of election to compensation for the farmers of Ontario.

(3) The draft Industrial Rehabilitation Bill embodied in and made a part

of this report.

(4) That this report be printed and widely distributed among the Honour-

able Members of the Legislative Assembly of the Province of Ontario, to labour,

educational and manufacturing associations or concerns, and that the Bill be

held over until next session.

We consider that industrial rehabilitation may be briefly defined as the

restoration of earning power to disabled workmen. To use a more scientific

definition, it includes, in its widest sense, the reclamation of potential powers

of production, inactive through subnormal physical or mental capabilities. It

is grounded upon the assumption that there exists in the mentally and physically

handicapped portion of the population certain latent capabilities susceptible of

development by systematic training and encouragement.
Prior to 1915 certain isolated institutions in Belgium, Holland, England,

and the United States were attempting to train the cripples of industry, and

certain national schools for the education of the deaf, the dumb, and the blind

had been established. In 1915 practically all of the civilized countries at war

had started a movement for the systematic training of war cripples, although
such training was largely without unified control, being for the most part

handled by committees and municipalities, or in cases where the money was

furnished by the central government, control was largely in the hands of the

local authorities. From 1916 on, control became more unified, and elaborate

national systems for the care of war cripples have become the rule rather than

the exception.

In 1917 attention was directed (1) to the cripples other than war cripples,

and the idea has grown into legislative enactments in California (2), New
York (3), Massachusetts (4), Minnesota (5), Illinois (6), Nevada (7), New
Jersey (8), North Dakota (9), Oregon (10), Indiana (11), Pennsylvania

(12), Ehode Island (13), Virginia (14), and the United States (15), although
action in some of these jurisdictions has been limited to certain classes of

cripples, as, for instance, those coming under workmen's compensation legis-

lation.

Of the methods used in the case of war cripples it has been said :

" The
evolution of retraining has taken place by natural growth. Hand in hand with

the retraining has gone study, research and experiment" (16).
There is much available literature describing the various processes used in

rehabilitation. The object of all rehabilitory work is the reduction of disability

to the smallest possible minimum :

Rehabilitation may be considered as comprehending the following:

(1) Adequate medical and surgical care to relieve physical disability a-

far as possible.

(NOTE. The bracketed numbers indicate references as attached.)
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*

(2) Functional re-education to encourage latent functional powers.

(3) Prosthesis, the fitting of and instruction in the use of artificial appli-

ances to overcome bodily disadvantage.

(4) Professional re-education to hasten and encourage social and economic

rehabilitation.

(5) Facilities and aid to ensure employment consonant with disability.

(6) Compensation for permanent disability.

It has been found that the problem of application of rehabilitation is essen-

tially one of the individual :

" Not to be solved by any scientific formula, for the factors due to varying

individuality are not susceptible to accurate measurement. These men (i.e.,

the cripples) cannot be sorted and classified and then each group treated accord-

ing to some prearranged scientific plan. The most complete system, charted,

organized and planned in advance, will fail, if it does not provide a ready means

of adapting it to individual need; and unless it provides at all times for the

fullest understandin of human nature

An analysis of the causes of cripplings discloses the following:

1. Congenital defect- (a) Mental.

(6) Physical.
2. War wounds.

3. Accidental injury.

(a) At occupation (1) Under Workmen's Compensation.

(2) Not under Workmen's Compensation.

(6) Not at occupation.

4. Disease.

(a) At occupation (1) Under Workmen's Compensation.

(2) Not under Workmen's Compensation.

While it is not possible to ascertain with high- accuracy the number of

cripples in Ontario, nor the annual augmentation, by the use of some data

obtained by the Welfare Federation of Cleveland (18), it is possible to obtain

iiii'iires which are minima. In that data appears the result of a survey of general

population, and the compilation included persons recognized by themselves or

their families as being seriously handicapped physically through the lack of

normal use of skeleton or skeletal muscles, a definition which closely corre-

sponds to a pensionable disability under the Workmen's Compensation Act of

Ontario. There are at least 350 cases of pensionable disability in Ontario each

year coming under the Workmen's Compensation Act (there were 317 ID

L918 (19) and 379 in 1917 (20) in Schedule 1 industries only). The Work-

men's Compensation Act covers about 65 per cent, of the employed population
<>f Ontario.
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ESTIMATED NUMBER OF CRIPPLES EACH YEAR IN ONTARIO.

Cause
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hand or arm, and 2 totally blind. Of these all were hired with their present

deformities, except 2 one-armed men and 1 man with but one foot. The plant

reported further openings for legless men 670, for one-legged men 2,637, for

one-armed men 715, for totally blind men 10. Of the total number of cripples

and other men physically under par working at that plant 85 per cent, were

classed by their foremen as fully efficient, and 15 per cent, were found to

be unable to keep up with their able-bodied fellow-workmen in the matter of

production. In this latter class the deficiency in almost all cases was but

slight. (28)

Cripples largely rehabilitate themselves to some extent. They must or else

starve. A close examination into sixty-two cases is made in the last report of

the Ontario Workmen's Compensation Board, and it was concluded
"
there is

an opportunity for every disabled worker, provided he be willing to seize it, to

earn wages which with his pension will bring his earnings to a parity with what

he was earning at the time of injury." (29)

Dr. Jules Amar, of France, than whom there is no greater authority, has

summed the matter up :

" How many are capable of being re-educated, and how many doomed to

be assisted ? By consulting former experience, and on the faith of the soundest

proof, eighty per cent, of the maimed are capable of vocational re-education."

They may be divided as follows : Forty-five per cent, totally, that is to say, that

they may succeed in earning normal salaries, on condition that ten per cent,

among them, or thereabouts, specialize. The direction in which they specialize

should always be, as has already been said, within the limits of their former

trade. Twenty per cent, may not arrive at a full working capacity, as their

re-education is partial, but still it gives an appreciable output. The directing

of men of this class towards their proper profession involves a series of scientific

observations, for the purpose of providing employers with exact knowledge as

to the value of each man's output and capacity. Finally, fifteen per cent, will

have to practise subordinate trades (petits metiers), in which production is

small, their re-education being entirely fragmentary. Whereas the sixty-five

per cent, representing the first two classes may be put into ordinary work-

shops or establish themselves as
" workmen in their own rooms," the last fifteen

per cent, must work in workshops organized for this purpose, where in any case

they can earn a bare livelihood. The majority of the twenty per cent, not

capable of being re-educated are dependent upon relief institutions for work;

nevertheless, a very small minority attain sufficient productivity to be useful in

the workshops.
In a general manner, it appears to be unreasonable, according to these

totals, not to seek to re-educate almost all the mutilated. It is a question of

science and of method*; it demands the organization of training schools, of

which we are about to speak. It unites medical and technical knowledge, to

the end that artificial limbs will be adapted to satisfy physical and vocational

capabilities. The proportion dependent upon relief is then reduced; and one

must endeavour, without ceasing, to diminish it. I wish that the term "relief"

were in reality, as in its definition, a synonym for collaboration or for union.
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One does not give relief, that is to sav, charity, to the glorious victims of the

present war
;
one owes them work in the noble acceptance of the word.

( Total: 45 percent., with \

Maimed or f Re-educable, 80 per cent...... < p .

8|^^; ; ] ; [Professional
schools.

mutilated . J I Fragmentary : 1 5 per cent . J

Non-re-educab,e, 20 per cent.. {^^Zorkshops (30)

Without great elaboration, let it be said that a comprehensive scheme of

rehabilitation for disabilities from all causes necessitates medical, educational

and industrial, and hence institutional agencies, beyond those which are now
existent. The principal conclusions and recommendations of the Cleveland

survey are pertinent.

" The problem of the crippled population is first of all a problem of child

welfare, although adults were more numerous than the children more than

three times as many a fourth of the crippled population were not only under

the age of fifteen at the time of the survey, but a third of the adult cripples
became disabled while under the age of fifteen. Thus a total of forty-nine per
cent, of the whole group were disabled in childhood.

As a children's problem it is essentially a medico-educational one. The
nature of the causes and the form of the crippled condition, the consequent

length of time and well-known conditions of life and treatment needed to

minimize the handicap require that provision for medical and educational care

be planned in close relation to each other.

The varieties of muscular and skeletal defects are so many, and crippled

persons, like normal ones, have so great a variety of aptitudes, that 110 single
or simple means will satisfactorily provide for their vocational preparation.
Their needs must, therefore, be met as part of a general, liberal programme
for prevocational education.

The problem of the crippled population is also a problem of adults in

working life. The number who are over sixty years of age is small
;
the number

of those who became crippled after age sixty is still smaller. But the number

becoming crippled during working life by accident, especially of men, is large,
and the number crippled from all causes very large.

The great variety of forms of handicap and notable differences in aptitude
and experience prior to becoming crippled point to the need of a most flexible

system of service to those among cripples who cannot m|ike their way unaided.

but who may be benefited by special plans for their rehabilitation and re-

education. This plan may well be a part of an adequate system for vocational

training of all citizens." '(31)

There are many individual units in Ontario which have to do directly or

indirectly with cripples. These are:
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DOMINION (1) Department of Soldiers' Civil Re-establishment.

(2) Employment service.

(3) Public health work.

PROVINCIAL (1) Asylums.

(2) Child welfare work.

(3) Educational work.

(4) Public health work.

(5) Employment service.

(6) Workmen's Compensation Act.

MUNICIPAL (1) Educational work.

(2) Hospitals.

PRIVATE (1) Fraternal orders.

(2) Trades unions.

(3) Hospitals.

(4) Charities.

(5) Individual efforts.

There is as yet no continuous, co-ordinated, central organization in Ontario-

that has to do with cripples.
" Canada is tending her war-disabled from

clearing station to his last hospital better than the wounded soldier has ever

been tended in any war/' and the war cripples of Ontario are included. The
Workmen's Compensation Act is paying compensation, paying for medical ano!

surgical aid and paying for artificial limbs for certain cases of accident, long

steps toward rehabilitation, but the compensation cripples are not rehabilitated.

" The individual received direct from surgical treatment, often crippled
more from inadequate and ignorant attention than by injury, generally without

proper prosthesis, and always without special knowledge being applied, without

either functional or professional re-education, given a pension and without aid

or assistance except from benevolence or shame. of employers or charity from

outsiders, is thrown upon his own resources and allowed ignorantly and pass-

ively to rehabilitate himself." (32)

A> the need for it passes, and that is now, valuable equipment, irreplaceable
for the most part, that has been devised and used in rehabilitating so many
Canadian soldiers is to be scrapped.

The Employment Service Council of Canada last May resolved that a

special division for the placement of handicaps should be formed. (33) The
Ontario Public Employment) service has placed some cripples. Technical

schools are open to cripples as well as to able-bodied men. The Canadian
National Institute for the Blind has inaugurated a scientific service for those

totally blind and is converting them into wage earners.
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Dealing with the question of rehabilitation in quite a general way, it ia

suggested that any scheme which would embrace all cripples should be the

matter of very careful consideration. Wholesale undertaking might perhaps

paralyze results, for general work is largely experimental, and rehabilitation, as

a whole, in the event of failure or of even mediocre success would eventually
suffer. It is felt that the course of wisdom is to create a nucleus around which

a more elaborate plan might grow.

A scheme embracing all cripples would, of course, necessitate the utilization

of forces and institutions now in existence and these would have to be central-

ized and completely co-ordinated. The financial outlay necessary for allow-

ances, for equipment, for surveys and for staff would necessarily be heavy.

(The cost of allowance at $30 a month for six months to each cripple exceeds

the total annual budget of the Province.) (34) While centralization would

reduce the total burden, nevertheless the mere matter of allowances presents a

difficult problem of public finance.

There is, however, strong chance for success in rehabilitating cripples

under the Workmen's Compensation Act. The Workmen's Compensation
Board already performs three, and sometimes four, of the essential steps in

scientific rehabilitation, namely, medical and surgical aid, functional re-

education (as far as such is contained in medical aid), prosthesis and com-

pensation for permanent disability. Under its jurisdiction come bodies of

employers mutually bound up together ;
it can charge industry for the burden

of industry's cripples. It possesses contact with both employers and injured
workmen. The Workmen's Compensation Act in itself perhaps foreshadows

authority for rehabilitation. The Board "
may in any case where in its opinion

the interest .... of the workman .... warrants it, advance or

pay to or for the workman such lump sum as the circumstances warrant and as

the Board may determine."

Scientific rehabilitation, as the result of war experience, connotes

adequate medical care, proper prosthesis, functional re-education, vocational

training, and system for employment^ these form the physical side
; and, from

the mental side, understanding of psychothenia, sympathetic counseling,

patience, and tolerance. It follows as a matter of course that in order to

achieve the ends of rehabilitation a system of pay or allowance must be provided
for the cripples and their dependents. The necessary adaptations of these

methods to industrial cripples constitutes the patent answer to the question,
" How to deal with crippled workers."

The jurisdictional differences must be noted. Under present systems or

under present laws, it is impossible for a compensation board to exercise

mandatory control of the patient from time of injury. It is possible, however,
to eliminate the inefficient and unscrupulous medical practitioners. It is not

possible to require a patient to submit to occupational therapy, but it is possible
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in large industrial centres to make arrangements with hospitals so that occupa-

tional therapy be made a part of hospital regimen.

The first thing necessary to a plan of rehabilitating industrial cripples is

the appointment of a vocational officer, a man of broad sympathies and good

judgment, one conversant alike with industrial processes and human nature.

On notification of an accident likely to result in serious permanent disability

this officer should, if possible, interview the injured man and his dependents,

to provide proper hospital accommodation and a living allowance for mainten-

ance of family, so that the fear of want could be eliminated from the mind of

the patient, for it is the actual fear of want, of subsequent incapacitation and

industrial uselessness that engenders psyehothenia, the poison that creeps into

the mind suddenly shocked by injury and then allowed to stagnate through long
and forced idleness, and psychothenia, even as neurosis, often disables more

than injury itself. Any business or financial worries settled on the mind of

the patient should be dissipated by sound advice so that surgical recovery can

be hastened. The patient should be visited often, his prior occupational record

should be studied, and his employer convassed for suitable employment. The

thought that any service rendered is with the ultimate idea of reducing com-

pensation should not be allowed to germinate. When convalescing time comes,

a start, should be made towards suggesting new avenues of employment necessi-

tated by injury ;
that he can be self-supporting, that his power to work can be-

restored should be the thoughts dominant in the patient's mind this by the

power of suggestion. Naturally the man's desires should be consulted, but he

should be impressed gently but firmly with the fact that he must compete with

non-disabled workers and so piloted into a sensible and practical occupation.
He should be advised further as to the most suitable type of artificial appliance.

Employers within the jurisdiction should be canvassed for suitable oppor-
tunities. It is more than a belief that there is suitable employment for every
disabled man provided he is not insane and that he retains some useful faculty.
In point of fact, experience, and such meagre statistical data as are available,

demonstrate this fact. The actual introduction to the new trade should be in

the shop or existent institution for rehabilitation and re-education. If fitted,

the man should receive further education in night schools, social service

classes, technical schools or business colleges. Finally, when placed he should
be further encouraged to

"
carry on " and sympathetic tolerance should overbear

his vagaries.

It is manifest that pay and allowances would be necessary. These could
be deducted from compensation without too greatly reducing the amount and
without fear of overpayment.

Objections can be urged, it is true, against such a plan, that it is academic

scope, paternalistic in conception, and socialistic in execution, that men will

lot submit, that employers will not provide employment, that the trade unions

object, that it would cost too much, that it is not practical.
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Whether it be paternalistic, idealistic, socialistic, or academic is beside the

point. The fundamental thing is that there is a problem, that that problem

requires solution, that it can be solved, and that it can be solved only by action.

All the writings or talkings cannot restore one cripple to service unless there

be action. That the employers will hire these men is a proved fact. Even as

a matter of business if a cripple can compete and the employer, through com-

pensation, has already paid him a part of wages, surely in return for 100 per

cent, labour he is willing to pay a minimum of wages up to a reasonable amount.

That men will not submit is not shown to be true by war experience, and even

if some of the wastage can be reclaimed something is done. Trade unions will

not object if they understand the fundamental conception of rehabilitation, for

to do so would defeat some of their own ends. The overhead cost of the scheme

is not overwhelming the services of one or at most two officers and the inci-

dental postage, office, and travelling expenses for the number of cripples in

any one jurisdiction in any one year is small.

In last analysis the argument against action in restoring cripples to indus-

trial usefulness, in view of the necessity to provide for the added risk by reason

'of prior disability is untenable. In the case of jurisdictions which refuse

permanent total disability compensation to a substandard workman who has

his remaining earning capacity seriously impaired or wiped out in the accident

under consideration, the conclusion cannot be supported by the premises. A
careful calculation for a jurisdiction which provides for total disability regard-

less of whether that disability was incurred in the present or in a previous

accident shows that the average rate per hundred of pay-roll would be increased

by less than one-third of 1 cent in order to meet the added burden necessitated

through a humane consideration of facts.

Furthermore, with Canada's four years of war cripples back in the country,

the problem of prior disability in relation to subsequent compensation has not

become acute nor pressing to the Ontario Compensation Board. Pennsylvania

has a record of 42,111 employment openings in that State for its soldiers.,

sailors, and marines who may return disabled by war service, and it is under-

stood no question of increased compensation liability has become apparent,

(35)

It might be considered that legislation for the purpose of providing re-

habilitation to pensioners, or persons severely disabled, under the Workmen's

Compensation Act might be considered as class legislation. Kehabilitation

being a benefit is an addition to compensation and if the extension of benefits

is class legislation, then, logically the original benefits were introduced by class

legislation. If rehabilitation should not be provided for because legislation

introducing it is class legislation, then for the same reason The Workmen's

Compensation Act, it is submitted, should never have become law.

It is quite true that The Workmen's Compensation Act does not cover all

classes of workmen, but excluded employers in all industries other than in the
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industry of farming and employers of domestic servants can elect to bring their

workmen under Part 1 of the Act. (36) In some cases, where number-limit

exclusions obtain, a workman, by election, can bring his employer's industry

under. Sir William Meredith, the framer of The Ontario Workmen's Com-

pensation Act, wrote in his Final Report (36) :

"
I have not thought it advisable at the outset to bring within the scope of

Part 1 all employments. . . . There is, I admit, no logical reason why, if

any, all should not be included."

The administration of legislation providing rehabilitation for pensioners

or persons severely disabled under The Workmen's Compensation Act should,

it is submitted, be under the jurisdiction of the Workmen's Compensation
Board. This would prevent duplication, confusion and expense. The Board

riot only is in possession of the medical and vocational history of the workman,
and is in contact with the employers of labour but also is now charged with

the supervision of medical aid, the awarding of compensation and the fur-

nishing of artificial appliances.

- It is believed that not more than 20 per cent, of pensioners will be rehab-

ilitated under the proposed bill. Persons not British subjects are not included,

nor are persons not resident of Ontario unless they are citizens of and resident

in a country with reciprocal rehabilitation privileges. Some cripples go into

business for themselves, some are taken back directly into the industry in which,

they were injured, at the same or different occupations, some find work in allied

industries in the same or allied occupations and some enter quite dissimilar

occupations in quite dissimilar industries. (37)

Assuming the number of cripples to be seventy each year and assuming
full compensation course of instruction and therapeutic treatment, the total

cost of rehabilitation as outlined in the bill hereunto appended, will not exceed

$50,000.

Six months' compensation to each of seventy cripples at 662,3% of $24.80 $28,933 33

Seventy courses at $125.00 a course 8,750 00
Seventy cases of therapeutic treatment at $100.00 a case 7,000 00

Total $44,683 33

Overhead cost, consisting of office, staff and clerical assistance together with

incidental expenses such as stationery and postage, and travelling expenses of

workmen and examination (specialists) fees would not total more than $5,000,
it is estimated, due consideration having been given to present staff and facili

ties of The Workmen's Compensation Board.
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H
BILL.

IS MAJESTY, by and with the advice and consent of the Legislative

Assembly of the Province of Ontario, enacts as follows :

1. This Act may be cited as The Industrial Rehabilitation Act.

2. The Workmen's Compensation Act is amended by adding thereto the

following section :

Rehabilitation.

44c. (1) Where a workman, by reason of permanent injury entitling

him to payment of compensation for life, is or may be expected to

be seriously handicapped in obtaining remunerative employment,
the Board, if of opinion that he will be materially benefited thereby,

may, within a reasonable time after the injury, arrange for or

provide :

(a) Such therapeutic treatment in addition to medical aid as* in

its opinion will be necessary to rehabilitate the workman

physically; .

(&) Such course or courses of instruction as in its opinion is

necessary to provide for the occupational re-training of the

workman
;

(c) Such assistance as it may be able to give the workman in

securing suitable employment.

(2) In the industries in Schedule 1 the benefits provided for by sub-

section 1 shall be paid for by the Board out of the Accident Fund

and the necessary amount shall be included in assessments levied

upon the employers, and in the industries in Schedule 2 they shall

be paid or provided for by the employers individually as the Board

may direct.

(3) The period during which an injured workman is undergoing such

therapeutic treatment or receiving such instructional course shall,

for the purpose of payment of compensation, be considered a period

of temporary disability, but in fixing such compensation regard
shall be had to any amount actually earned by such workman, and

payment of such compensation shall not in any case be continued

after the expiration of six months from the date of actually

entering upon any course of instruction.
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(4) The provisions of this section shall not apply to any workman not a

British subject resident in Ontario, except workmen who are resi-

dents of and owe allegiance to a country or place outside of Ontario

under the laws of which country or place a British subject resident

in Ontario would be entitled to industrial rehabilitation, and in

the case of such non-resident the benefits may be limited to the

equivalent of those provided for by such law.

(5) To assist in defraying the expenses incurred in the administration

of this section there shall be paid to the Board out of the Consoli-

dated Revenue Fund such annual sum, not exceeding $

as the Lieutenant-Governor in Council may direct.

3. This Act shall become operative on
, 1921, and shall

apply only to workmen injured on and after that date.
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REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC ACCOUNTS, 1921.

To the Honourable the Legislative Assembly of the Province of Ontario:

Your Committee has had produced before it the following accounts,

vouchers, correspondence and particulars in connection with the Public Ac-

counts of the Province of Ontario for the fiscal year ended the 31st October,

1920, which it has carefully examined and considered.

Details in connection with the following items:

Timber investigation. $50,000.00, page 585, Public Accounts, 1920.

Travelling and other expenses in connection with the redemption of securi-

ties in England $4,000.00, page 538, Public Accounts, 1920.

Game and Fisheries, $819,765.71, page a36, Public Accounts, 1920.

Repairs and maintenance, Parliament and Departmental Buildings
Items $1,015.98 and $304.77, page 452, and items $124.50, $542.45, $6,204.54,

$5,299.55, $3,330.45, $2,588.91, $1,411.44, $142.50, $250.00, on page 453,
Public Accounts, 1920.

Provincial Highways, $10,725.34, page 745, Public Accounts, 1920;

$21,412.80, page 747, Public Accounts, 1920; $12,255.30, $1,157.28 and

$2.800.00, page 751, Public Accounts, 1920; and $78,800.00, page 759.

Public Accounts, 1920.

Automobiles, repairs, maintenance, etc., $66.14. $603.48, $45.00.

$6,331.63, page 457, Public Accounts, 1920.

[21]
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Automobiles, purchase, etc., $950.00, page 457, Public Accounts, 1920,
and $9,999.40, page 562, Public Accounts, 1920.

Provincial Motion Picture Bureau Moving picture machines, equip-

ment and films, etc., $132,958.20, page 537, Public Accounts, 1920.

Enforcing Ontario Temperance Act, $1,674.49, $1,000.00, $47,216.69,

$5,007.60, $240.00, $18,071.97, page 542, Public Accounts, 1920.

Maternal and Child Welfare and Public Health Nursing Division,

$11,430.40, page 565, Public Accounts, 1920.

Messrs, the Hon. Frank Biggs, Minister of Public Works; A. H. Pepall,

Financial Agent; R. T. Harding, K.C.
;
J. Rogers, Chief Provincial Police;

J. D. Flavelle, Chairman, Board of License Commissioners; Donald Mac-

donald, Deputy Minister, Game and Fisheries
;
W. L. Haight, Crown Attorney,

Parry Sound
; George Moore, Police Magistrate, Parry Sound

;
J. Armstrong,

Deputy Sheriff, Parry Sound; T. Spencer, Chief of Police, Parry Sound;
C. H. Knight, Provincial Police, Parry Sound; H. R. A. Ely, Patrol Officer,

Game and Fisheries Department ;
Neil McNaughton, Overseer, Game and

Fisheries Department; R, P. Fairbairn, Deputy Minister, Public Works;
W. W. Dunlop, Inspector of Prisons and Public Charities; F. G. Lee, Care-

taker, Parliament Buildings; L. C. Parkin, Auto Dealer, Dundas; Roy A.

Reynolds, Dundas; George Hogarth, Chief Engineer, Highways Department;
W. A. McLean, Deputy Minister of Highways; Percy Woodward, Dundas;
Wallace Matthews, Dundas; J. M. Mowat, Accountant, Board of License

Commissioners; Dr. J. W. S. McCullough, Health Officer; Martin Jerome,

Auto Dealer, Dundas; O. Elliott, Director, Government .Moving Picture

Branches; William Dawson, formerly Director Motion Picture Bureau, and
E. J. Callaghan, Fort Frances, were examined.

Your Committee has held, during the Session, seventeen meetings, and
submits herewith the Minutes of the Proceedings and the evidence given as

taken by stenographer.

JAMES W. CURRY,

Chairman.

Committee Room,

Toronto, April 27th, 1921.
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MINUTES AND PROCEEDINGS.

Public Accounts Committee Room,

Legislative Assembly,

Toronto, February 24, 1921.

The Select Standing Committee to whom was referred the examination of

the Public Accounts of the Province for the fiscal year 1919-20, and composed
of the following members : Honourable Mr. Drury, Messieurs Biggs, Bowman,

Brackin, Buckland, Carmichael, Clarke, Cooper (Toronto), Cunningham,

Curry, Dewart, Doherty, Ferguson, Freeborn, Godfrey, Grant, GreenHaw,

Halcrow, Hall, Hay, Henry, Hicks, Hill, Hogarth, Johnston (Simcoe), John-

son (Lanark), Lennox, McAlpine, McCrea, McLeod, MacBride, MacVicar,

Mageau, Magladery, Mills, Murdoch, Nixon, Oke, O'Neill, Pinard, Price,

Racine, Raney, Rollo, Ross (Kingston,), Sewell, Sinclair, Smith, Stover,

Swayze, Thompson. Tolmie, Tooms, Walker, Warren, Watson, Widdifield, met

this day for organization.

Present Messieurs Cunningham, Dewart, Ferguson, Hall, Hay, Hicks,

Hill, McAlpine, McCrea, McLeod, Mageau, Mills, Murdoch, Pinard, Racine
r

Raney, Sewell, Smith, Stover, Tolmie, Tooms, Warren, Watson.

Moved by Mr. Smith that Mr. Curry be elected Chairman for the Session.

On Motion of Mr. Dewart, seconded by Mr. Tolmie,

Ordered, That Messrs J. D. Flavelle, J. F. Mowat, J. A. Ayearst and

W. B. Cleland be summoned to appear before this Committee on Wednesday.,
March 2nd, at 10 a.m., and give evidence regarding the following items

(Public Accounts. 1919-20) : p. 541, Enforcing Ontario Temperance Act,

$316,055.70; p. aS6, Board of License Commissioners, repayment with in-

terest of advance of $150,000.00 for acquisition of Liquor Vendors' Stock,

$153,191.78 ; p. a37, License Branch. Licenses, etc., Commissioners,

$1,010,788.99, and bring with them and produce all books, letters, papers and
documents connected therewith.

On Motion of Mr. Ferguson, seconded by Mr. McCrea,

Ordered, That the Provincial Auditor be summoned to appear before

this Committee at its next meeting, Wednesday, March 2nd, at 10 a.m., and
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produce all accounts, letters, vouchers and papers relating to item, page 585,

Public Accounts, 1519-20,
" R. T. Harding accountable re Timber Investiga-

tion, $50,000.00."

On Motion of Mr. Ferguson, seconded by Mr. McCrea,

Ordered, Tbat R. T. Harding bp summoned to appear before this Com-
mittee at its next meeting on Wednesday, March 2nd, at 10 a.m., in connection

with the item $50,000.00 on page 585, Public Accounts, 1919-20, and that he
be required to produce all books, papers, letters, accounts, vouchers and
memoranda in any way pertaining to this expenditure

"
re Timber Investiga-

tion."

On Motion of Mr. Ferguson, seconded by Mr. Hill,

Ordered, That Mr. A. H. Pepall, of the Toronto Plate Glass Company,
Toronto, be summoned to appear before this Committee at its next meeting
on Wednesday, March 2nd, at 10 a.m., in connection with item $4,000.00,

appearing 011 page 538, Public Accounts of Ontario, 1919-20, and that he

bring with him and produce all books, papers, letters ami memoranda in

connection therewith.

On Motion of Mr. Stover, seconded by Mr. Pinard,

Ordered, That Mr. Donald Macdonald, Deputy Minister of Game and

Fisheries, be summoned to appear before this Committee on Wednesday,
March 2nd, at 10 a.m., and give evidence with respect to the following items

(Public Accounts, 1919-20) : p. a36, $819,765.71, and particularly Fur
Dealers' Licenses, $34,850.27; Fines (game), $14,246.88; Sales (furs^ etc.),

$11,086.10, and to bring with him and produce all books, papers, letters and

documents relating thereto.

Committee then adjourned to meet again on Wednesday, March 2nd.

at 10 a.m.

Public Accounts Committee Room,

Wednesday, March 2, 1921.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment at 10 a.m.

Present: Mr. Curry, Chairman; Messieurs Bowman, Carmichael, Cun-

ningham, Dewart, Ferguson, Freeborn, Godfrey, Halcrow, Hall, Hay. Henry,
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Hill, Lennox, McAlpine, McCrea
,
McLeod, Mageau, Magladery, Mills,

Murdoch, Nixon, Piiiard, Price, Racine, Raney, Ross (Kingston), Sewell,

Smith, Stover, Tolmie, Walker, Warren, Watson, Widdifield.

Mr. A. H. Pepall was sworn and examined.

Mr. R. T. Harding was sworn, examined and ordered to attend at next

ing of the Committee.

Committee then adjourned to meet again 011 Friday, March 4, at 10 a.m.

Public Accounts Committee Room,

Friday, March 4, 1921.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment at 10 a.m.

Present: Mr. Curry, 'Chairman; Messieurs Carmichael, Hicks, McAlpine,

Price, Raney, Smith. Tolmie, Watson.

On Motion of Mr. Tolmie, Committee adjourned to meet again on

Wednesday, March Oth, at 10 a.m.

Public Accounts Committee Room,

Wednesday, March 9, 1921.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment at 10 a.m.

Present: Mr. Curry, Chairman; Messieurs Bowman, Brackin, Buckland,

Cunningham, Ferguson, Freeborn, Godfrey, Greenlaw, Hall, Henry, Hicks,

Hill, Johnson (Lanark), McAlpine, McCrea, McLeod, MacVicar, Mageau,
Nixon, Oke, Pinard, Racine, Raney, Ross (Kingston), Sewell, Smith, Swayze,

Tolmie, Tooms, Walker, Warren, Watson.

Mr. R. T. Harding re-attended and was re-examined.

On Motion of Mr. IT ill, seconded by Mr. Pinard,

Ordered, That Mr. Elliott, of the Moving Pictures Department of the

Provincial Treasurer's Department, be summoned to appear before the Com-

mittee and give evidence in connection with item. Salaries, $6,866.66, appear-

ing on page 535 of the Public Accounts, 1920.
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On Motion of Mr. Ferguson, seconded by Mr. McCrea,

Ordered, That E. J. Callaghan, of Fort Frances, be summoned to appear

before the Committee on Wednesday, March 16th, and to bring with him all

papers, letters and documents passing between himself and R. T. Harding or

Mr. Backus, many of them in reference to item of $50,000.00, appearing on

page 585 of the Public Accounts, 1920.

On Motion of Mr. Pinard, seconded by Mr. McOrea,

Ordered, That J. Richardson & Son, or any one on their behalf, be sum-

moned to appear before this Committee and give evidence in respect to an

item of $59,056.76, appearing on page 767 of the Public Accounts, 1920,

and to bring all papers, documents, etc., respecting the same.

On Motion of Mr. Pinard, seconded by Mr. McCrea,

Ordered, That James Wills & Son, or any one on their behalf, be summoned
to appear before this Committee and give evidence in respect to item $4,566.31,

appearing on page 767 of the Public Accounts, 1920, and to all documents and

papers in respect to the same.

On Motion of Mr. McCrea, seconded by Mr. Mageau,

Ordered, That Mr. Pepall, of Aemilius Jarvis & Co., be summoned to

appear before this Committee at its next meeting and give evidence with

reference to item $4,000.00, appearing on page 558 of the Public Accounts

as paid to A. H. Pepall.

Committee then adjourned to meet again on Friday, March llth, at

10 a.m.

Public Accounts Committee Room,

Friday, March 11, 1921.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment at 10 a.m.

Present: Mr. Curry, Chairman; Messieurs Buckland, Cunningham,
Dewart, Freeborn, Henry, Hicks, Homuth, McAlpine, McCrea, McLeod,
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MacVicar, Mageau, Marshall, Mills, Murdoch, Nixon, Eaney, Sewell, Sinclair,

Smith, Tolmie, Tooms, Walker, Warren, Widdifield.

Mr. J. Rogers, Chief of Provincial Police, was sworn and examined.

Mr. J. D. Flavelle, Chairman of Board of License Commissioners, was

sworn and examined.

Mr. Donald Macdonald, Deputy Minister of Game and Fisheries, was

sworn and examined.

On Motion of Mr. Mills, seconded by Mr. Walker,

Ordered, That Mr. George Moore, Police Magistrate for the District of

Parry Sound, he summoned to appear before this Committee on Wednesday,
March 16th, at 10 a.m., and give evidence with respect to the enforcement of

The Game and Fisheries Act, and particularly in regard to moneys paid for

violations of the said Act, and to bring with him and produce all books, letters,

papers and documents relating thereto, page a36 of the Public Accounts, 1920.

On Motion of Mr. Mills, seconded by Mr. Walker,

Ordered, That Mr. H. R. A. Ely, Special Patrol Officer of the Game and

Fisheries Department, be summoned to appear before this 'Committee on

Wednesday, March 16th, at 10 a.m., and give evidence with respect to the

enforcement of The Game and Fisheries Act, and particularly regarding any

moneys received by him on behalf of the Department, and to bring with him
and produce all books, papers, letters and documents relating thereto, page
a36 of the Public Accounts, 1920.

On Motion of Mr. Mills, seconded by Mr. Walker,

Ordered, That Mr. Neil McNaughton, Overseer of the Game and Fisheries

Department, be summoned to appear before this Committee on Wednesday,
March 16th, at 10 a.m., and give evidence with respect to the enforcement

of The Game and Fisheries Act, and particularly regarding any moneys re-

ceived by him on behalf of the Department, and to bring with him and produce
all books, papers, letters and documents relating thereto. Page a36, Public

Accounts, 1920.
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On Motion of Mr. Mills, seconded by Mr. Walker,

Ordered, That Mr. Walter L. Haight, Crown Attorney for the District of

Parry Sound, be summoned to appear before this Committee on Wednesday,
March 16th, at 10 a.m., and give evidence with respect to the enforcement

of The Game and Fisheries Act, and particularly with regard to moneys paid
for violations- of the said Act, and to bring with him and produce all letters,

papers and documents relating thereto. Page ao6, Public Accounts, 1920.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again on Wednesday, March

16th, at 10 a.m.

Public Accounts Committee Room,

Wednesday, March 16, 1921.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment at 10 a.m.

Present: Mr. Curry, Chairman; Messieurs Buckland, Clarke, Cunning-

ham, Freeborn, Greenlaw, Halcrow, Hall, Henry, Hicks, Homuth, Johnson

(Lanark), McAlpine, McLeod, MacVicar, Mageau, Magladery, Marshall,

Mills, Murdoch, Nixon, Pinard, Racine, Sewell, Sinclair, Smith, Tolmie,

Tooms, Walker, Warren, Watson, Widdifield.

Mr. W. L. Haight, Crown Attorney, Parry Sound, sworn and examined.

Mr. Geo. Moore, Police Magistrate, Parry Sound, sworn and examined.

Mr. J. Armstrong, Deputy Sheriff, Parry Sound, sworn and examined.

Mr. T. Spencer, Chief of Police, Parry Sound, sworn and examined.

Mr. C. H. Knight, Provincial Police, Parry Sound, sworn and examined.

Mr. H. R. A. Ely, Patrol Officer, sworn and examined.

Mr. Neil McNaughton, Overseer, sworn and examined.

On Motion of Mr. Tolmie, seconded by Mr. Walker,

It was unanimously resolved that the Treasurer be requested to authorize

the payment of the expenses of Messrs Armstrong, Spencer and Knight, of

Parry Sound, they having been requested to attend, by telegraph, time not

permitting the issue of the regular summons by order of the Committee.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again on Friday, March 18, at

10 a.m.
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Public Accounts Committee Room,

Toronto, March 18, 1921.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment at 10 a.m.

Present : Mr. Curry, Chairman
;
Messieurs Buckland, Clarke, Dewart,

Henry, Hicks, Homuth, McAlpine, MacVicar, Murdoch, Price, Racine, Raney,

Sewell, Sinclair, Smith, Tolmie, Warren, Watson, Widdifield.

On Motion of Mr. Price, seconded by Mr. Henry,

Ordered, That the Deputy Minister of Public Works produce before this

Committee all bills, receipts and vouchers pertaining to the following items

in the Public Accounts, 1920 :

Page 452. Standard Sanitary $1,015 98

Vivid Electric Lamp 304 77

$1,320 75

Page 453. Adams Furniture $124 50

Canadian General Electric .... 542 45

T. Eaton Co
, 6,204 54

Grand & Toy 5,299 55

Mitchell & MeGill 3,330 45

Murray-Kay . 2,588 91

Robert Simpson 1,411 44
Standard Bronze 142 50

Goldie-McCullough 250 00

$20,094 34

On Motion of Mr. Price, seconded by Mr. Henry,

Ordered, That the Deputy Treasurer be requested to produce before this

Committee the bills, invoices, receipts, vouchers and cheques, and other papers
pertaining to the following items in the Public Accounts, 1920: Pa^e 745,

$10,725.34; page 747, $21,412.80; page 751, $12,2(55.30, and that 'Mr.
Leonard C. Parker. Dundas, be asked to appear before this Committee.

On Motion of Mr. Henry, seconded by Mr. Price,

Ordered, That the vouchers and accounts pertaining to the following
items in the Public Accounts, 1920, be produced by the Deputy Minister of
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Public Works before this Committee: Page 457, repairs and maintenance,

W. R. Brock, auto rugs, $66.14; Cutten & Foster, Ltd., motor robes, curtains,

tire chains, etc, $603.48 ;
T. Eaton Co., auto robes, $45.00 ; pay lists, wages

of chauffeurs, $6,331.63.

On Motion of Mr. Henry, seconded by Mr. Price,

Ordered, That Mr. Dunlop of the Provincial Secretary's Department,
be requested to appear before this Committee and give evidence re the follow-

ing items appearing on page 405 of the Public Accounts, 1920: Wm. Davies

Co., Ltd., $10,947.64.

On Motion of Mr. Sinclair, seconded by Mr. Tolmie,

Ordered, That Alfred Hewitt, of College Street, be summoned to appear
before the Public Accounts Committee on Wednesday, March 23rd, to give
evidence on oath as to the item on page 23 of the Public Accounts, 1920,

relating to the salaries for the Department of Game and Fisheries, $24,880.96.

Committee then adjourned to meet again on Wednesday, March 23rd,

at 10 a.m.

Public Accounts Committee Room,

Wednesday, March 23, 1921.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment at 10 a.m.

Present: Mr. Curry, Chairman; Messieurs Buckland, Cunningham,

Dewart, Freeborn, Greenlaw, Halcrow, Hall, Henry, Hicks, Hill, Homuth,
McAlpine, McCrea, MacBride, MacYicar, Mageau, Mills, Murdoch, Nixon,

Oke, O'Neill, Pinard, Price, Racine, Raney, Ross (Kingston), Sewell, Sin-

clair, Smith, Stover, Swayze, Thompson, Tolmie, Tooms, Walker, Warren,

Watson, Widdifield.

Mr. R. P. Fairbairn, Deputy Minister of Public Works, sworn and

examined.

Mr. W. W. Dunlop, Inspector of Prisons and Public Charities, sworn

and examined.
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On Motion of Mr. Price, seconded by Mr. Hill,

Ordered, That the Deputy Treasurer be required to produce before the

Public Accounts Committee all documents and vouchers, and particularly the

invoices of films purchased from the Canadian Aero Film Company, as re-

ferred to and included in the Public Accounts, 1920, page 537. Item, Cana-

dian Aero Film Company, films, $85,461.00.

And that Mr. 0. Elliott, Director of the Moving Picture Bureau for

Ontario, attend before this Committee to give evidence and to produce any
film required for inspection.

On Motion of Mr. Price, seconded by Mr. Hill, ,

Ordered, That the Deputy Minister of Public Works be required to pro-

duce before the Public Accounts Committee all invoices, vouchers, checks and

contracts pertaining to the following items in the Public Accounts, 1920 :

Page 759. L. C. Parkin, contract for 5-ton Chain-Driven

Dump Trucks, 8 at $9,100.00 $72,800 00

3i/rton Sterling Worm-Driven Trucks, as per

contract, 6 at $7,516.50 45,099 00

Total $117,899 00

Page 751. L. C. Parkin, auto storage, repairs and supplies $1,157 28

1 Touring Car (Mclaughlin) 2,800 00

Total $3,957 28

And further, that the said L. C. Parkin, of Dundas, Ontario, appear
before the Committee for examination.

:

On Motion of Mr. Sinclair, seconded by Mr. Dewart,

Ordered, That J. F. Mowat be summoned to appear before this Committee
to be examined in connection with the items on page 542 of the Public

Accounts, 1920,
"
Enforcing Ontario Temperance Act "

: J, 0. L. Spracklin,

$1,674.49; W. J. Ward, $1,000.00; Special Officers' services and expenses,

$47,216.69; Automobile & Supply, Limited, automobiles and supplies,

;

$5,007.60; Elliott, J. C., legal services, $240.00; White, M.E., services and

expenses of operators, $1 8,071. 97.
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On Motion of Mr. Pinard, seconded by Mr. Sinclair,

Ordered, That Nathan Slavin, Fanny Slavin and A. Courian be sum-

moned to appear before this Committee to be examined in connection with

item on page 541 of the Public Accounts, 1920,
"
Enforcing Ontario Temper-

ance Act, including salaries and travelling expenses of the Commissioners and

Officers of the Board and Inspectors, $316,055.70."

On Motion of Mr. Tolmie, seconded by Mr. Sinclair,

Ordered, That 0. Elliott, Inspector of Theatres, be summoned to appear

before this Committee to be examined on oath in connection with the items

at pages 535 and 536 of the Public Accounts, 1920 : Inspection of theatres

(salaries), $5,800.00; contingencies, $8,068.35; travelling expenses, $1,896.82;

to provide for telephones (including resident telephones) where approved by
Provincial Treasurer, for the Inspector of Theatres and members of staff,

$31.89; Inspector of Theatres, for use of motor car, $500.00.

On Motion of Mr. Tolmie, seconded by Mr. Pinard,

Ordered, That W. Dawson, Director of Provincial Motion Picture Bureau,

be summoned to appear before this Committee to be examined on oath in

connection with the items at pages 536 and 537 of the Public Accounts, 1920 :

Salaries, $3,614.00; contingencies, $5,633.81; travelling expenses, $4,767.19;

motion picture machines, equipment and films, printing and advertising,

$132,958.29.

On Motion of Mr. Henry, seconded by Mr. Ross (Kingston),

Ordered, That the Committee on Public Accounts request the permission

of the House to investigate the operation of, and purchase of cattle for the

Ontario Reformatory Abattoir at Guelph, and to have produced before it all

accounts and vouchers in respect thereto, up to, or as close as possible, to

April 1st, 1921.
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On Motion of Mr. Buckland, seconded by Mr. Thompson,

Ordered, That this Committee ask permission of the Legislative Assembly
to inquire into purchases from the T. Eaton Co., Ltd., from the end of the

last fiscal year to the 1st March, 1921, and that all accounts be produced.

Committee then adjourned to meet again on Wednesday, March 30th,

at 10 a.m.

Public Accounts Oommittee Room,

Wednesday, March 30, 1921.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment at 10 a.m.

Present: Mr. Curry, Chairman; Messieurs Biggs, Bowman, Brackin,

Buckland, Dewart, Freeborn, Godfrey, Hall, Henry, Hicks, Hill, Johnston

(Simcoe), Johnson (Lanark), MeAlpine, McCrea, McLeod, Mageau, Mills,.

Murdoch, O'Neill, Pinard, Price, Eacine, Ross (Kingston), Sewell, Sinclair,

Smith, Swayze, Tolmie, Tooms, Walker, Warren, Watson, Widdifield.

Mr. Fairbairn, Deputy Minister of Public Works, re-called and re-

examined.

Mr. F. G. Lee, caretaker of the Parliament Buildings, sworn and
examined.

Mr. L. C. Parkin, auto dealer, Dundas, Ontario, sworn and examined
and ordered to attend at next meeting of the Committee on Friday, April 1st.

Note read by Mr. Dewart,

To whom it may concern,

This is to certify that E. J. Callaghan, of Fort Frances, is suffering from
an attack of scarlet fever and is at present in quarantine at his residence here

for a period of six weeks from March 14th, 1921.

(Sgd.) J. E. O'DoxxEi.T., M.D.
j
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On Motion of Mr. Price, seconded by Mr. Henry,

Ordered, That Roy A. Reynolds, of Dundas, Ont., be subpoened to appear
before the Public Accounts Committee to give evidence in relation to the

L. C. Parkin contract at page 759 of the Public Accounts, 1920, and that Mr.

McLean, Deputy Minister of Highways, be asked to produce the contract above

referred to.

On Motion of Mr. Hill, seconded by Mr. Henry,

Ordered, That Mr. Fairbairn, Deputy Minister of Public Works, be

requested to produce all accounts of the T. Eaton Co., Ltd., rendered since

the close of the last fiscal year.

On Motion of Mr. Henry, seconded by Mr. Price,

'Ordered, That Mr. Dunlop, Inspector of Prisons and Charities, be re-

quested to produce before this Committee all vouchers and papers in connec-

tion with the operation of the Provincial Abattoir at the Ontario Reformatory
at Guelph. Such vouchers and papers to cover the operation of such abattoir

from the beginning of the present fiscal year to the present time, also that

Mr. Spry be requested to appear before this Committee in connection with the

operation of such abattoir.

Committee then adjourned to meet again on Friday, April 1st, at 10 a.m.

Public Accounts Committee Room,

Friday, April 1, 1921.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment at 10 a.m.

Present: Mr. Curry, Chairman; Hon. Mr. Drury, Messieurs Biggs, Bow-

man, Brackin, Buckland, Carmichael, Clarke, Dewart, Doherty, Freeborn,

Godfrey, Greenlaw, Halcrow, Hall, Hay, Henry, Hicks, Johnston (Simcoe),

Johnson (Lanark), McAlpine, McCrea, McLeod, MacVioar, Marceau, Mills,

Murdoch, Nixon, Pinard, Price, Raney, Rollo, Ross (Kingston), Sewell,

Sinclair^ Smith, Swayze, Thompson, Tolmie, Walker, Warren, Widdifield.

Mr. Roy Action Reynolds, Dundas, sworn and examined.

On Motion of Mr. Sinclair, seconded by Dr. Godfrey, decided that all

evidence be admitted, irrespective of legal rules of evidence.
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On Motion of Mr.- Freeborn, seconded by Mr. Doherty,

Ordered, That Mr. W. A. McLean be summoned to appear before the

Committee with respect to the following items in the Public Accounts, 1920:

Page 759. L. C. Parkin, contract for 5-ton Chain-Driven

Dump Trucks, 8 at $9,100.00 $72,800 00

3%-ton Sterling Worm-Driven Trucks, as per

contract, 6 at $7,516.50 45,099 00

$117,899 00

On Motion of Mr. Doherty, seconded by Mr. Freeborn,

Ordered, That Mr. George Hogarth be required to appear before the Com-
mittee for examination with respect to the following items in the Public

Accounts, 1920:

Page 759. L. C. Parkin, contract for 5-ton Chain-Driven

Dump Trucks, 8 at $9,100.00 $72,800 00

Si/o-ton Sterling Worm-Driven Trucks as .per

contract, 6 at $7,516.50 45,099 00

$117,899 00

Committee then adjourned to meet again on Wednesday, April 6th, at

10 a.m.

Public Accounts Committee Room,

Wednesday, April 6, 1921.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment at 10 -a.m.

Present: Mr. Curry, Chairman; Hon. Mr. Drury, Messieurs Biggs, Bow-

man, Brackin, Bucklaiid, Clarke, Cunningham, Dewart, Freeborn, Godfrey,

Hall, Hay, Henry, Hicks, Hill, Homuth, Johnson (Lanark), McAlpine,
McCrea, MacVicar, Mageau, Marshall, Mills, Murdoch, Oke, O'Neill, Pinard,

Racine, Raney, Ross (Kingston), Sewell, Sinclair, Smith, Stover, Swayze,

Thompson, Tolmie, Tooms, Walker, Warren, Watson, Widdifield.

Hon. Frank Biggs, Minister of Public Works, sworn and examined.

Mr. George Hogarth, Chief Engineer of Highways, sworn and exam i nod.
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Question by Mr. Hill:
"
Why did you purchase trucks of other makes,

of same capacity, since purchase of Sterling Trucks from Parkin, if the

Sterling is the best on the market."

Chairman ruled the question out of order.

Yeas and Nays asked for, and Chair sustained by vote of 18 to 7.

Mr. Hall moved,

That "
questions as to merits of other motors than the Sterling be

expunged from the evidence."

Hon.- Mr. Drury objected, he wished all the evidence to go in, and after

a short discussion, the Motion was withdrawn.

On Motion of Mr. Brackin, seconded by Mr. Hall,

Ordered, That Wallace Matthews, of Hamilton, and Percy Woodward,
of Dundas, be summoned to appear before the Committee on Friday, April 8th.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again on Friday, x\pril 8th, at

10.00 a.m;

Public Accounts Committee Room,

Friday, April 8, 1921.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment at 10 a.m.

Present: Mr. Curry, Chairman; Hon. Mr. Drury, Messieurs Biggs, Bow-

man, Brackin, Buckland, Freeborn, Godfrey, Hay, Henry, Hicks, Hill,

Homuth, Johnson (Lanark), McAlpine, McCrea, McLeod, MacVicar, Mageau,
Murdoch, Nixon, Oke, O'Neill, Racine, Raney, Ross (Kingston), Sewell,

Smith. Stover, Swayze, Tooms, Walker, Warren.

Mr. W. A. McLean, Deputy Minister of Highways, sworn and examined.

Referring to the purchase of Sterling trucks, Mr. McCrea put the follow-

ing question to witness:

Do you, as Deputy Minister, think that that is the proper way to conduct

that class of business in the public interest ?
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Chairman ruled that the question need not be answered.

Yeas and is"ays called for.

Committee by vote of 10 to 9 instructed witness to answer.

Mr. Hoy A. Reynolds, Dundas, recalled and re-examined.

On Motion of Mr. McCrea, seconded by Mr. Hill,

Ordered, That O. Elliott be asked to attend this Committee and give

evidence respecting- the following items appearing in the Public Accounts,

1920, on the following pages: Page 535, salary, $3,000.00; page 536, travel-

ling expenses, $62,561.00; page 536, expenses, $56.55; page 537, Canadian

Aero Film Co., $85,245.59, and to produce all books, papers, letters, accounts,

vouchers, checks, and other memoranda respecting the said items and also to

produce all films referred to in the item of $85,245.59 as having been paid to

the Canadian Aero Film Co.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again 011 Wednesday, April 13th,

at 9 a.m.

Public Accounts Committee Room,

Wednesday, April 13, 1921.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment at 9 a.m.

Present: Mr. Curry, Chairman; Hon. Mr. Drury, Messieurs Brackiu,

Buckland, Cunningham, Dewart, Doherty, Godfrey, Halcrow, Hall, Hay,

Henry, Hicks, Hill, Hogarth, Homuth, Johnston (Simcoe), Johnson (Lanark),

McAlpine, McCrea, McLeod, Mageau, Murdoch, Nixon, Oke, O'Neill, Pinard,

Racine, Raney, Ross (Kingston), Sewell, Sinclair, Smith, Swayze, Thompson,

Tolmie, Tooms, Walker, Warren, Watson, Widdifield.

Mr. Percy Woodward, Dundas, called and sworn.

Mr. Wallace Matthews, Dundas, called and sworn.

Mr. L. C. Parkin, Dundas, recalled" and re-examined.

Mr. J. M. Mowat, Accountant, License Commissioners, called and sworn.
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On Motion of Mr. Dewart, seconded by Mr. Tolmie,

Ordered, That M. Jerome and H. Jerome, of Dundas, Dr. McCullough,.
Medical Health Officer, and George Hogarth, of the Department of Public

Highways, be summoned to appear and give evidence on oath before this

Committee at its next sitting, touching items in Public Accounts of 1920 at

page 457, touring car, $950.00; page 562, $9,999.58; page 565, $11,430.40;

page 747, $21,412.80, and produce all vouchers and other documents touching
the foregoing items.

Committee then adjourned to meet again on Friday, April 15th at 10 a.m.

Public Accounts Committee Room,

Friday, April 15, 1921.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment at 10 a.m.

Present: Mr. Curry, Chairman; Hon. Mr. Drury, Messieurs Biaii>.

Brackin, Buckland, Clarke, Cunningham, Dewart, Freeborn, Halcrow, Hall.

Henry, Hicks, Homuth, Johnson (Lanark), McAlpine, Mageau, Murdoch 7

Nixon, Oke, O'Neill, Ross (Kingston), Sewell, Sinclair, Smith, Thompson,
Tolmie

; Tooms, Walker, Warren, Watson, Widdifield.

Dr. J. W. S. McCullough, sworn and examined.

Mr. Martin Jerome, Dundas, sworn and examined.

Committee then adjourned to meet again on Wednesday, April 20th, at

10 a.m.

Public Accounts Committee Room,

Wednesday, April 20. 1921.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment at 10 a.m.

Mr. 0. Elliott, Director of Moving Picture Branches, sworn and examined.

Committee then adjourned to meet again on Friday, April 22nd. ;if

10 a.m.
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Public Accounts Committee Room,

Friday, April 22, 1921.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment at 10 a.m.

Present: Mr. Curry, Chairman; Hon. Mr. Drury, Messieurs Biggs,

Brackin, Buckland, Cunningham, Freeborn, Greenlaw, Hay, Henry, Hicks,

Homuth, Johnson (Lanark), Lennox, McAlpine, McCrea, McLeod, MacYicar,

Murdoch, Nixon, Oke, Price, Eaney, Sewell, Sinclair, Smith, Tolmie, Tooms,

Walker, Warren, Widdifield.

Mr. William Dawson, formerly Director Motion Picture Bureau, sworn

and examined.

On Motion of Mr. Price, seconded by Mr. Henry,

Ordered, That Captain W. E. Maxwell, Chief Pilot, Laurentide Co..

Ltd., Grand Mere, Que., be subpoened to appear before this Committee -at its

next meeting, Wednesday, April 27th, 1921.

On Motion of Mr. Henry, seconded by Mr. Price,

Ordered, That Messrs. Irwin Proctor, President of the Canadian Aero

Film Co., Roy O'Connor, and Blaine Irish, be summoned to appear before

this Committee at its next meeting, Wednesday, April 27th, at 9 o'clock.

The Committee then adjourned to meet again on Wednesday, April

27th, at 9 a.m.

Public Accounts Committee Room,

Wednesday, April 27, 1921.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment at 9 a.m.

Present: Mr. Curry, Chairman; Messieurs Buckland, Dewart, Ferguson,
Greenlaw, Hall, Hay, Hill, Homuth, Mills, Murdoch, Nixon, Racine, Sinclair,
Smith, Swayze, Tooms, Walker, Warren, Widdifield.

Mr. E. J. Callaghan, Fort Frances, sworn and examined.

The Committee then adjourned.
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PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE.

March 2, 1921.

The Committee met at ten a.m. with the Chairman, Mr. Walter Curry,,

presiding.

ME. A. H. PEPALL called and sworn.

i

Examined by Mr. Ferguson.

Q. What is your full name?

A. Andrew H. Pepall.

Q! What is your occupation?
A. Sales manager of the Toronto Plato Glass Company.
Q. How long have you been there ?

A. I have been with them since 1917, with the exception of about five-

months when I was loaned to another compai y.

Q. Did you live in Toronto 'before that ?

A. I have lived in Toronto all my life.

Q. What business were you in before you went into the plate glass

business ?

A. I was sales manager and owner of the Canadian Underskirt Com-

pany with my brother.

Q. There is an item here showing apparently that you were paid four-

thousand dollars for some services and travelling expenses going to England..
A. Yes, sir.

Q. How did you happen to be selected for that particular job?
A. I was asked to go by the Provincial Treasurer.

Q. Had you known the Provincial Treasurer a good while ?

A. For about seven years, I think.

Q. Did you know him in Stratford ?

A. Yes, sir. I knew him on the farm.

Q. Did you live in Stratford ?

A. No, sir.

Q. How did you come to get out to the Smith farm ?

A. I got acquainted with Mr. Smith selling him Delco.

Q. How long since is that?

A. That was in the spring of 1915.

Q. And you have known him since then ?

A. Yes.

Q. What was your mission in England ?

A. I was to act as financial agent for the Ontario Government to raise-

a loan and 'to redeem securities.
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Q. And the Provincial Treasurer sent for you and asked you to go to

England ? ^
A. Yes, si^

Q. What did you do when you went to England?
A. I went to England and arranged a loan at Lloyds whereby, as the

Ontario securities were deposited there they would have them verified (

by
the Bank of Montreal, accumulate them, and, when I gave instructions, to

draw a draft and it would he paid.

Q. In other words, it was to assemble securities at Lloyds and they

drew against them in Ontario ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Lloyds did the assembling; you didn't do that?

A. No.

Q. So your mission there was to visit Lloyds and tell them the Province

of Ontario desired to redeem a loan and the Province wanted to have the

securities assembled by them?

.L JL es.

Q. That was your sole mission . over there ?

A._Yes.

Q. And you delivered that message ?

A. Yes.

Q. I assume you didn't have anything to do with the assembling of the

securities; Lloyds did that?

A. No, sir.

Q. So then the whole work of your trip was a message to Lloyds ? .

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Which they carried out?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was there any reason why that message couldn't have been given

Lloyds by cable or letter?

A. Yes, sir. I had to take with me authority to raise the loan while

those securities were being accumulated.

Q. What authority?

A. A letter from the Provincial Treasurer authorizing me to raise the

loan. The letter was -not addressed to Lloyds. It was for the bank where
we could get the best financial arrangement.

Q. What did you do in connection with that?

A. I took the matter up with the Bank of Montreal and I took it up
with the Bank of Commerce in England, and I talked it over with Lloyds, and

Lloyds gave us the best proposition.

Q. Did you discuss it with the Bank of Montreal or the Bank of Com-
merce here before you left?

A. "No, sir.

Q. There was no attempt to make an arrangement with either of the

offices here ?
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A. As far as I know, no.

Q. What was the first news that came to you that the Province required

your services?

A. The Provincial Treasurer spoke to me.

Q. When was that?

A. Possibly a month before I left.

Q. When did you go?
A. I left here on February 27th. ;

Q. And you were gone how long?

A. Fifty days.

Q. What was the arrangement about your remuneration ?

A. I was to get $80 a day, which included all my expenses and remunera-

tion for my services.

Q. What experience had you had in connection with financial matters

before you went over there?

A. Not very much outside my own business.

Q. This was your first venture in the world of finance, in this line of

work ?

A. Yes, in this line of work.

Q. You had no previous experience handling bond issues or floating

large borrowings?
A. No, sir.

Q. What was your special qualification for this job?

A. As I understood it, the Provincial Treasurer wanted a man he could

absolutely trust, because I was going over there with wide authority.

Q. He knew you very well you were close friends ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. He had every confidence in you ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Will you tell me exactly what you did in the Old Country when you
reached there?

A. I went and saw the Bank of Montreal and presented the letter to

the manager giving me authority to have access to the names of shareholders

of the inscribed stock we were after. I talked to him about the loan for the

accumulation of the securities and he said they didn't have the money.
Q. That loan would be simply a temporary matter to take care of the

securities as they were accumulated?

A. Yes; I asked for it on a thirty day basis. He asked me what I

wanted, and I said I might require up to $12,000,000. I talked it over with

the Bank of Commerce and they gave me the same answer and both advised

me to see Lloyds. I saw Sir John Ferguson, of Lloyds, and showed him

my authority. He called a meeting of the directors and the loan was granted.

Q. You didn't take the precaution to take a letter from the Bank of

Montreal here to the agency in London, or from the head office of the Bank
of Commerce to their agency there. You had no introduction from them ?
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A. I had the introduction to the Bank of Montreal from the Provincial

Treasurer.

Q. But you had no introduction from the head office in Canada of either

the Bank of Montreal or the Bank of Commerce ?

A. No, sir. fe

Q. Didn't it strike you that would be an advantage if you were going
to do business with one of the agencies or branches of these banks ?

A. 'No, sir.

Q. It didn't occur to you ?

A. It didn't occur to me.

Q. I suppose that might be due to your lack of experience in financial

problems ?

A. Possibly.

Q. Then I gather, Mr. Pepall, that you went to England with a letter

from the Provincial Treasurer, that you saw the manager of the Bank of

Montreal and the manager of the Bank of Commerce, both of whom advised

you to go to Lloyds ; you went to Lloyds and Lloyds called a meeting of the

directors and decided to accept the task of redeeming and taking care of this

loan?

A. Yes.

Q. How long did that take ?

A. We were discussing off and on what we wanted and how to go about
it for several days. I cannot say exactly how long.

Q. Possibly a week ?

A. Yes, possibly a week.

Q. And did that complete your mission?
A. No, sir

;
I had to O.K. the stock as it was delivered to Lloyds after

it was verified by the Bank of Montreal. I had to stay there.

Q. How was it verified?

A. This stock was inscribed stock, and the Bank of Montreal have the
records of ownership, and when so many thousands of bonds had been delivered
to Lloyds it was taken to the Bank of Montreal and certified to as being the
proper ownership.

Q. What had you to do with that ?

A. I had nothing to do with that. I had to O.K. the payment of the
stock by Lloyds.

Q. The stock register was with the Bank of Montreal. The stock would
be verified there?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then it is taken by the Bank of Montreal back to Lloyds who
redeem it?

A. Yes.

Q. Well, where do you come in. If the Bank of Montreal O.K.'d that
stock as appearing on their register, that would be identification ?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. They then take it to Lloyds, and in the ordinary channels that would

be paid for by Lloyds ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then where did you come in, what weight had your signature?

A. Simply to O.K. the price they were paying.

Q. Why was it necessary for you to O.K. it at all ?

A. Because there was a set price Lloyds were to pay for it.

Q. You think the Bank of Montreal, as agents of the Government,

couldn't have looked after that?

A. I don't say they couldn't,

.Q. Couldn't they have looked after it quite as well if you had been on

this side of the water?

A. Possibly.

Q. What was the amount of the loan that W'as taken care of?

A. We bought $8,800,000 odd.

Q. Almost nine millions ?

.A.. I. es.

Q. What was the nature of the securities. Were they the ordinary prov-

incial bonds?

A. No
; they were inscribed debenture stock, free of succession duties.

Q. Did they take care of all the stock outstanding ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did Lloyds undertake to take care of all of it?

A. No. The limit I was asking for was $12,000,000. Had we got all

the stock that would have taken care of practically all of it. There was about

$17,000,000 or $18,000,000 outstanding.

Q. You wanted to get that $17,000,000 or $18,000,000 called in and

paid off?

A. Yes.

Q. And you succeeded in getting about one-half of it?

A. Yes.

Q. How was it taken care of over there ? By a new issue ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Was it paid off entirely ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What rate was it bearing?

A. Three and a half, four and four and a half for the three series.

Q. Was there any attempt made to find the money in England to

pay it off ?

A. Not as far as I know
; no, sir.

Q. You didn't make any attempt?
A. No, sir.

Q. Did you make any inquiries in England as to what a loan could be

floated for there ?
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A. Well, at the time we were there the Italian Government floated a

loan at eight per cent.

Q. You say at the time " we " were there. Who were the parties ?

A. Mr. ^Emilius Jarvis.

Q. Mr. Jarvis was on the same mission ?

A. Yes.

Q. What was Mr. Jarvis' connection with it?

A. The Provincial Government had made^an arrangement to buy from

Mr. Jarvis all the Ontario securities he could get hold of.

Q. So Mr. Jarvis was over arranging to accumulate them so he could

buy them?

A. Yes.

Q. Then it was really Mr. Jarvis who was buying these securities

.accumulated at Lloyds ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is ^Emilius Jarvis the broker?

A. Yes.

Q. It was a brokerage proposition with him?
A. Yes.

'

Q. Mr. Jarvis, the broker, goes over to do business for himself under

an arrangement to assemble and redeem these securities. Did he require your
assistance ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What for?

A. To raise the loan.

Q. Mr. Jarvis needed you to assist in raising the loan ?

A. That was the agreement, as I understood it, the Government made,
that they would raise a loan to accumulate these stocks.

Q. Mr. Jarvis required your assistance to raise a loan in England to

redeem these assembled stocks ?

A. Yes.

Q. And Mr. Jarvis discussed it with you beforehand?

A. I don't quite get what you mean.

Q. As I understood from you, the Provincial Treasurer sent for you
and told you there was a loan to be redeemed in England, and I suppose he

told you there was an arrangement with the Jarvis firm?

A. As I understand it, Mr. Jarvis was called in to check up whether

it would be a good thing, from the Provincial standpoint or not, and he did so.

Q. Apparently he decided it was a good thing, for the mission was
undertaken ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are you the Pepall in the ^Emilius Jarvis firm?

A. No.

Q. Who is that?
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A. My brother.

Q. Did Mr. Jarvis take you in mistake for your brother ?

A. No.

Q. How did he come to pick out a man with no experience at all to

help him?

A. He didn't take me.

Q. The Provincial Treasurer sent you ?

A. Yes.

Q. It was because the Provincial Treasurer, with his want of experience,

thought ^Emilius Jarvis couldn't look after this thing without you ?

A. I don't say that.

Q. I understood from your statement that the matter could have been

taken care of just as well if you hadn't been there ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Tell me where you were such a vital necessity ?

A. Because the Provincial Treasureer wanted someone representing him

to go to the Old Country and raise that loan.

Q. Why ?

A. Because they would not accept it otherwise.

Q. Are these things never done by communication?

A. I can't say that.

Q. It was Mr. Jarvis arranged to take care of these securities ?

A. He arranged to buy them.

Q. It was Lloyds' duty to take care of the securities as the Bank of

Montreal brought them there, saying they were genuine securities appearing
on the register?

A. Yes.

Q. And ^Emilius Jarvis was there to check up and know how much he

had to take care of ?

A. He was there to buy them.

Q. He was there to check them up and see they were genuine before

he would buy them?

A. I suppose so.

Q. Do you think he would buy them without examination ?

A. You understand the procedure we got the financial papers and the

brokers, Mr. Jarvis got a lot of brokers who agreed to help him

Q. I can understand .all right what Mr. Jarvis did as a broker. I am

trying to find out what you did. It seems to me you had rather a joy ride

out of this thing?
A. I didn't take it that way.

Q. You worked hard while over there ?

A. I won't say I was killed with work.

Q. Now the bonds went first to the Bank of Montreal ?

A. No
; they went first to Lloyds.

Q. The Bank of Montreal would first say whether they were genuine ?
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A. Before Lloyds paid for them the securities were deposited at Lloyds,

taken to the Bank of Montreal, verified by them, and then paid for by Lloyds.

Q. Again I ask, where did you come in ?

A. As a financial agent.

Q. But a financial agent should have had something to do. The securi-

ties were assembled at Lloyds under instruction. I suppose Mr. Jarvis went

to Lloyds with you ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Mr. Jarvis would have an entree to Lloyds as a financial man of

standing which you could not have had yourself as an ordinary layman ?

A. In the ordinary sense
;
but the letter of the Provincial Treasurer

gave me that entree.

Q. But Mr. Jarvis went with you?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And I presume that the fact that you were with Mr. Jarvis had

something to do with giving you standing with the people there ?

A. Undoubtedly it would help.

Q. Lloyds got the securities and took them to the Bank of Montreal,

saying,
" Here are Ontario securities we have assembled, and we want to

know if they are genuine.'
7 The bank checks them up and says,

"
Yes, they

are genuine bonds of such and such a series.'
7 That was the course of the

transaction ?

A. Yes.

Q. That being done, Lloyds took care of them?

A. Yes.

Q. And ^Emilius Jarvis, because he was to take care of them eventually,
was there to see that no improper bonds were put over on him ?

A. Yes.

Q. Again let me ask you, where did you come in on that ?

A. I seemed to have kept myself quite busy while I was over there.

Q. You seem to have kept quite busy, but the point with me is this:

With zEmilius Jarvis going to London in connection with this same loan,

checking up and seeing that the securities he was eventually to take care of

were genuine securities of the Province that is what took Mr. Jarvis over

there ?

A. Mr. Jarvis was to buy the securities.

Q. Yes
;
but he didn't go over to buy them. He went over to see that

they were checked up and verified. Mr. Jarvis' business is in Canada and
his account would be here ?

A. Yes.

Q. The money would be here to pay for the securities ?

A. Yes.

Q. So that the securities could have been sent to him without his going
over. Lloyds could have made a draft on Mr. Jarvis here and settled the

whole matter?
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A. He didn't figure it that way.

Q. He went to England for what purpose wasn't it to check up and

verify the securities and verify the 'amount ?

A. No, sir; to buy them.

Q. I thought you told me he agreed to take care of them before he left ?

A. He was to buy them.

Q. He did arrange to buy the securities before he left here at all ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. He didn't need to go to England to buy them?

A. That is his business.

Q. You are a financial man of outstanding importance at the present

time; I want your judgment in the matter. Mr. Jarvis could have arranged
all this without going over ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Except for checking up the securities?

A. No, I don't think so.

Q. Will you tell me why ?

A. In the first place, if it had been done in that way we might not have

got the securities.

Q. Why? The Bank of Montreal and the Bank of Commerce and

Lloyds, who assisted you in getting these securities, <and advertising in the

financial journals

A. And the help of the brokers.

Q. Yes, all that was arranged through local financial people in London,
wasn't it ?

A. Yes.

Q. You couldn't have arranged it without the local people taking hold

of it it had to be done through local agencies ?

A. Yes, absolutely.

Q. Mr. Jarvis went over with the object of seeing that these bonds were

assembled and ascertain the amount he could secure for purchase ?

A. Yes.

Q. To ascertain the whole amount that would be available for his

purposes ?

A. Yes.

Q. And to verify these securities over there?

A. Yes.

Q. To be sure he was getting real bonds ?

A. Yes.

Q. And he did all those things when he was over there?

A. Yes.

Q. That is to say, to see that there were $8,000,000 of these securities

gathered together, to see that the Bank of Montreal verified them as genuine
and then what did he do next ? Did he make a draft on the home office ?

A. When they were all accumulated.
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Q. He made a draft on the home office and paid for the securities, took

them up?
A. Yes.

Q. And brought them home in his grip?

A. No, sir. They were cancelled in London.

Q. So there was not even a parcel for you to -bring back ?

A. No.

Q. Were you working with the plate glass people when the Provincial

Treasurer sent for you?
A. No, sir.

Q. What were you doing, then ?

A. I had been loaned to take charge of the sales organization of the

Knight Metal Products.

Q. Who were the Knight Metal Products Co. ?

A. They were a munition concern that started out to manufacture farm

power machinery.

Q. Are they still in existence?

A. No, sir.

Q. What happened to them?

A. They failed three or four months after I left them.

Q. Did you have any financial interest in them?

A. No, sir. I simply went to organize their sales department.

Q. Were you with them when you were loaned to the Provincial

Treasurer ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. The Knight Metal Products Company re-loaned you to the Province

of Ontario?

A. You can put it that way if you wish.

Q. I am putting it the way you put it. You said you were loaned by
one concern to another ?

A. I took the position of sales manager in Metal Products with the

consent of the head of the Toronto Plate Glass.

Q. Did you sever your connection with the Plate Glass Company?
A. Theoretically, yes.

Q. You severed your connection to take the new job?
A. Yes, with his consent, knowing it was only a temporary proposition.

Q. It was your purpose to go back to the Toronto Plate Glass ?

A. Yes.

Q. And have you gone back ?

A. Yes.

Q. After you got through with the metal people were the Toronto Plate

Glass people consulted about your trip to England ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. They consented to your going?
A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Are you still with the Toronto Plate Glass people ?

A. Yes.

Q. I suppose you are paid a salary by the Plate Glass people?

A. Yes.

Q. Is it as munificent as this $80 a day ?

A. Well, you must remember that $80 a day included expenses.

Q. I have no doubt you had a lot of expenses. They tell me it is an

expensive place to go.

A. It is, when you pay a thousand dollars for your boat trip.

Q. Were you under salary with the Knight Metal Products when you

gave it up and went to England ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. When was the arrangement of $80 a day made before you left here ?

A. As I recollect, yes, sir.

Q. Are you sure about that ?

A. I would not swear to it, sir.

Q. You would not swear?

A. No, sir.

Q. How many conversations did you have in making the arrangement
before you went ?

A. As to the $80 a day ?

Q. As to the arrangement under which you should go ?

A. We had quite a number.

Q. Who discovered you you didn't discover the position ? The-

Treasurer looked you up?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you tell the 'Committee any reason why you should be picked

up for such a job as that? It strikes me as a rather important thing for a

man who had never had any experience whatever in financial operations.

A. Well, as I understood it, the way it was put up to me was that the

Hon. Mr. Smith wanted somebody to go that he could absolutely trust.

Q. And that was the result of your acquaintance away back on the

farm ? That is the only reason you know ?

A. Yes.

Q. The thought that your brother was with ^Emilius Jarvis never occurred,

to you ?

A. When we first talked it over ^Emilius Jarvis was not mentioned in

the matter at all. He was brought in afterwards to go into the matter of

whether he thought it was a good thing from the Provincial standpoint.

Q. What was the first conversation you had if it hadn't been decided

whether the Province should go into it or not ? What was the discussion with

you about ?

A. As to what I thought of the proposition.

Q. With your knowledge of financing and the sale of Delco lights, you
were called in as an expert ?
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A. No, sir.

Q. He discussed with you what you thought of the Province redeeming
these $17,000,000 of 'bonds floated in England ?

A. No.

Q. You told me the first conversation was as to what you thought of the

Province redeeming these bonds ?

A. Not as a financial expert.

Q. Just what you thought of a trip to England ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Then what were you asked ?

A. What I thought of it from a business standpoint.

Q. From a business standpoint you thought it would be a good business

to redeem them ?

A. Yes.

Q. You were called in as a specialist in finance
;
it couldn't be anything

else, could it ? Were you there talking about the business or the pleasure of the

trip?

A. The business.

Q. And the business of the trip was surely a financial proposition ?

A. Yes.

Q. The Provincial Treasurer was undoubtedly endeavouring to decide

whether it was good business to redeem these securities floated yi the Old

Country ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And he wanted your judgment?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what conclusion did you reach after discussing it with him?
What did you advise him ?

A. That it was a good proposition.

Q. On what did you base that, on what experience ?

A. Simply on the facts and figures he had at his command.

Q. And it took your judgment to convince him that it was a good

proposition ?

A. No, sir.

Q. What contribution did you make to the judgment arrived at ?

A. I simply checked it up with the figures.

Q. And you came to the conclusion that it was a good thing ?

A. Yes.

Q. And then, what occurred ?

A. Well, sir, as far as I am concerned, I think the matter was taken

up then with the Cabinet.

Q. You can't tell what occurred in the secrecy of the Cabinet ?

A. No, sir.

Q. And that is all that transpired between you and the Provincial

Treasurer ?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were called in, and he said
" Here is the proposition. Tfyere

are a lot of bonds floated in England, would it be good business to redeem

those bonds and put out a loan here through some brokerage firm?" You
]ook the figures over and say,

" That is good business," and the Treasurer

decides to do it ?

A. I would not say that. He did not tell me he had decided. We simply
talked the matter over.

Q. When did he tell you he had decided ?

A. About two weeks b'efore I sailed.

Q. When was this conversation with you when he asked you your view ?

A. I think it was about a month before.

Q. So, after the first interview with you, about two weeks subsequently,
he decided?

A. He told me it had been decided.

Q. <So your advice in the matter evidently carried considerable weight?
A. Oh, I don't know.

Q. Do you know anyone else he consulted except yourself ?

A. I do not know for sure, outside Mr. Jarvis. I know Mr. Jarvis was

consulted, and I understood several other people were consulted.

Q. Who did you understand that from ?

A. Simply what I heard.

Q. Where did you hear it ?

A. Keports.

Q. What reports ?

A. In talking it over with Mr. Smith.

Q. He told you he had consulted a lot of other financial people ?

A. He said he had talked it over with others.

Q. Did he tell you that during the first interview ?

A. No.

Q. He adopted you as a financial oracle and consulted you first. That

is your view of it ?

A. I would not put it that way.
Q. Then put it your own way ?

A. I would say he talked to me as a friend, and asked me what I thought
of the proposition.

Q. And not as a financial man at all ?

A. Absolutely, not as a financial man.

Q. Simply as a business friend, not as a financial man at all ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was it at that time he decided you should go to England ?

A. About two weeks later.

Q. Two weeks after he told you it had been decided the Province would

redeem the securities and he wanted you to go to England ?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Naturally you said,
" What is there in it for me, what am I to be

paid ?"

A. I think that was talked over.

Q. And it was decided that you were to have $80 a day ?

A. I would not swear to that. I think it was. I am not sure.

Q. I would be inclined to think it was.

A. Two days before I sailed, I tried to get out of it because Mrs. Pepall

was not well. I only went because Mr. Smith assured me he had nobody else

at that time.

Q. Nobody else he could trust ?

A. No, but it was only two days before the boat sailed, and he couldn't

find anyone else in that time.

Q. Then I gather from what you say that it was before you went that

the remuneration was fixed at $80 a day ?

A. I think so.

Q. When you reached there, the arrangements took about two weeks?

You got the banks and you got Lloyds, Mr. Jarvis discussed it no doubt with

you and others. Lloyds decided they would carry out the arrangements. They
assembled the securities that came in, and Mr. Jarvis, after the Bank of

Montreal identified them, arranged to take them up ?

A. The final day set for the lodging of securities was April 6.

Q. And it was necessary for you to stay until the final day ?

A. I considered it was.

Q. Why ?

A. To give Lloyds authority, to guarantee that the draft would be paid.

Q. What did you do to guarantee Lloyds that the draft would be paid ?

A. I gave them a letter.

Q. The authority from the Provincial Treasurer ?

A. Yes.

Q. Undoubtedly that would be the way. The Provincial Treasurer would

write a letter guaranteeing that Lloyds would be reimbursed ?

A. Yes.

Q. I suppose you gave them that letter when it was decided that they
would undertake it?

A. I gave them the letter authorizing me to raise the loan.

Q. You gave them the letter assuring them that if they made this loan

it would be guaranteed by the Province ?

A. Yes.

Q. Your duties were completed then ?

A. No, on the date of the final lodgment of the securities I gave them a

letter guaranteeing that the draft would be paid within 30 days. I dictated

that to the stenographer in Lloyds' offices.

Q. There was no reason, was there, why that could not have been given
when you went there, when you guaranteed that whatever securities were

assembled would be guaranteed ?
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A. Sir John Ferguson claimed that no time was set in the letter, and he

wanted a guarantee that the amount would be paid in thirty days.

Q. That letter could have been written just as well when you got there.

Or a cablegram could have done that ?

A. Possibly.

Q. What I am getting at is this. You appear to have been away fifty

.days. I suppose the time counted from the time you left until you returned.

That would be probably thirty-six or thirty-eight days in the Old Country ?

A. No, about thirty.

Q. You must have gone in a slow ship ?

A. In those days they were not trying to break any records. The
Adriatic took practically ten clays to make the trip from Southampton to New
York.

Q. Now your sole duty, as I understood it, was

A. As a financial agent.

Q. You said, as a friend?

A. I went to London as financial agent of the Ontario Government to

raise the loan.

Q. With a letter from the Provincial Treasurer an open letter, I

suppose ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Introducing you to the financial houses there ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And a financial house, at your suggestion, undertook by advertising
and otherway, to gather together these Ontario securities ?

A. Yes.

Q' And having done that, Mr. Jarvis, who had agreed before leaving

here, apparently, to buy them, was there to protect himself and identify them
and ascertain the amount required to buy them ?

A. Yes.

Q. So your sole duty in England was to ask the banks and financial

people to gather together the securities, and to write a letter to Lloyds saying
we will guarantee that this shall be paid. That was your job ?

A. Well, yes. It seems to me I had a little more than that, but to put
it baldly, yes.

Q. Both of these things, I am inclined to think, could have been done

from here ?

A. Well, it was not considered so.

Q. I am asking you. You went over as a financial agent, a financial

expert couldn't they both have been done from here ?

A. No, sir. I don't think so.

Q. Don't you think that if you had gone to the general manager of the

Bank of Montreal, or the general manager of the Bank of Commerce here,

that they could have arranged that with their British agencies just as well

as you could have arranged it, with all their experience?
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A. There was one reason, I think that if it had become public we would

not have been able to buy the securities at the price the Government had set.

Q. If it had leaked out you think that if you had communicated with

the head office of the banks they would have let the information out to the

public ?

A. I do not know that.

Q. You know they would have confidential communication with the

British agencies ; you know it would be confidential ?

A. I would think so.

Q. So that there is not much in the suggestion that it would leak out

unless you took the secret over in your pocket-book?

(No answer).

Q. The point I want to make is this this matter could have been

arranged from Ontario here without your intervention at all ?

A. I do not think so.

Q. Then let us get down to the final analysis, why ?

A. Because I do not think we could have arranged the loan.

Q. What did you do that they could not have done ?

A. I met the directors of Lloyds Bank and the thing was discussed very

fully.

Q.- Mr. Jarvis was there to talk about it ?

A. Not while I was in Lloyds. We discussed that proposition between

ourselves. No doubt they talked it over with Mr. Jarvis.

Q. But Mr. Jarvis knew of the whole proposition ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And he went over there to further it ?

A. He went over to buy them.

Q. He couldn't buy them unless they were got together, could he ?

A. No.

Q. He wanted to buy them ?

A. Yes.

Q. Your idea is that he just went over to close the deal ?

A. Yes.

Q- Didn't he go over to assist in every way desirable. That is the only

way it was made possible ?

A. Yes.

Q- The only way possible was for Mr. Jarvis to go over and promote
the assembling of the securities, to satisfy himself that they were genuine and
to pay for them. Your sole job was to carry a letter saying that the Province
would pay for these things. That could have been done by a letter carried by
Mr. Jarvis or in a dozen other ways without your intervention ?

A. I don't think so.

Q. I want to know why you don't think so ?

A. Because I don't think Lloyds would have guaranteed the loan without

authority from the Provincial Treasurer.
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Q. That is what I am saying; if that authority had gone by letter or

cable, it could have been arranged just as well, couldn't it? Or do you think

your persuasive eloquence at the meeting of directors carried them off their

feet?

A. I don't think my persuasive eloquence did, but I think the proposi-

tion as I outlined it to the Board of Directors had a lot to do with them guar-

anteeing the loan.

Q. That could have been done without your going there ?

A. I don't think so.

Q. So that with all their years of dealing with the British public through
their offices there, our banks could not have succeeded in carrying out that

transaction without your going over ?

A. I am not saying it could not have been done. I am taking the stand

that it was done much quicker and, I think, more economically.

Q. These bonds were long term bonds in England ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What were they bearing ?

A. 31/2, 4 and 4% per cent.

Q. Do you know what was being paid Jarvis for the money for which

Jarvis redeemed them ?

A. !N"o, sir; I don't.

Q. That money was borrowed a year ago ?

A. Yes.

Q. And money at that time was running in this country about what
6 per cent ?

A. I imagine so.

Q. So that we borrowed money from Mr. Jarvis at 6 per cent to take

up 3%, 4 and 4% per cent, loans over there?

A. Yes, sir. But we bought them, of course, at less than par.

Q. What position does your brother occupy with ^Emilius Jarvis?

A. He is general manager.
Q. Did you consult him about this transaction ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You talked it over with him ?

A. I did.

Q. And he gave you advice as to what should be done when you got
there ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You talked it all over with Mr. Jarvis ?

A. Yes, sir
;
after Mr. Jarvis had been called in by the Government.

Q. But you talked it over with your brother before that?

A. Yes.

Q. And your brother knew exactly what was likely to happen. He con-

cluded that you were the proper man to go ? Did he advise you to go ?

A. I do not know that that proposition entered our discussion.
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Q. What did you discuss with him?

A. In the first place, I swore him to secrecy and then outlined the

proposition to see whether or not, in his opinion, it was a good proposition

from the Province's standpoint.

Q. He corroborated your own view ?

A. I can say that we spent four nights until the early hours of the morn-

ing going into it.

Q. And he corroborated the view you had expressed ? It only took you
a few minutes to make up your mind on the proposition, but it took your

brother, who was an expert, four nights to reach a conclusion ?

A. ~N"o, sir; I didn't state that, or if I did I made a misstatement. I

said I had been consulted.

Q. You told me the Treasurer sent for you. -He had a mass of figures

find asked your opinion, and you said it would be a good thing. And you said

your brother took four nights to make up his mind, that he pored all night
ovfr it ?

A. -'I would not put it in that way.

Q. Your brother was not able to reach a conclusion as quickly as you
were ?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. You had no authority to go to your brother. You said you went to

him and swore him to secrecy? Did you give advice to the Provincial Treas-

urer before you consulted your brother ?

A. Possibly.

Q. Isn't that the fact ?

A. I consulted my brother before I said I considered it a first-class

proposition.

Q. That is new, I think. You said that when the Treasurer first con-

sulted you, he had a mass of figures and that you went over them with him
and said that it was a good proposition ?

A. Yes.

Q. 'So that before you consulted your brother you had given your advice

to the Provincial Treasurer ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And after advising the Provincial Treasurer he came back to you
two weeks after and said,

" We have decided to go on with this."

A. No, sir
;
I did not say that.

Q. I am asking if that is the fact ?

A. No, sir
;
not on that advice.

Q. Had you had any further discussion with the Provincial Treasurer
in the meantime ?

A. I may have had.

Q. You didn't tell him you had disclosed the secret to anybody else ?

A. I told him I had taken it up with my brother.

Q- And that your brother's views were the same as yours ?
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A. That he had gone into it fully, and that that was his view.

Q. As I understand it, there was a flotation in England which the

Treasurer thought it desirable to pay off, and he felt that somebody should go
to England and look after it ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And he picked you as a financial expert, or agent, as you put it ?

A. Yes.

Q. And instructed you to go to England ?

A. Yes.

Q. You had never had any experience in financing before in your life ?

A. No, sir.

Q. And you knew nothing about bond flotations or financial arrangements
of that character ?

A. No, sir.

Q. And before you went away you were told you were to have $80 a day
for the time you were away negotiating this proposition ?

A. Yes, sir.

ME. HAY : Mr. Pepall, these bonds were being redeemed at a fixed price ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who fixed the price ?

A. The Government.

Q. Before you left?

A. Yes, before I left.

Q. Then in England, under what method did you redeem these bonds?

Did you make any campaign yourself ?

A. Mr. Jarvis made quite an extensive campaign. He got a list, got the

big insurance companies and the big brokers. He entertained the financial

editors at the Savoy, and they got behind the proposition and we set out, or

Mr. Jarvis set out to accumulate these securities.

Q. Did you have a list of the bondholders?

A. I got that from the Band of Montreal.

Q. Did you personally solicit anyone?
A. No, sir

;
I had nothing to do with that whatever.

Q. Were they being advertised in the London papers ?

A. Yes.

Q. Saying that the bonds would be redeemed up to a time and at a price ?

A. Yes.

Q. When in England, did you discuss with any of the banks or bankers

whether the price that had been fixed by the Provincial Government was too

low or too high ?

A. They seemed doubtful.

Q. Of what ?

A. That we could get any large amount of the securities at the price.

Q. Why, was the price too low?

A. They didn't think it was too high.
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Q. You would have discussed with the Provincial Treasurer the price

before you went over, or did the Treasurer fix the price at which they would

be taken ?

A. As I understood it, the Cabinet fixed the price.

Q. But you had a fixed price ?

A. Yes, that I could guarantee Lloyds to pay.

Q. Would there be brokers in 'England who would encourage clients to

sell as a result of your being there ?

A. Yes, they were paid the regular brokerage. But that was Mr. Jarvis'

dealings. I had nothing to do with that. He made quite a campaign which

I assisted in in any manner I could.

Q. That would be a social campaign ?

A. A little bit, yes.

Q. Are you any relation of the Provincial Treasurer ?

A. No.

Q. Do you think that with the assistance of Mr. Jarvis, and aside from

the authority you had, and the necessity of your being there to O.K. these

issues, your being there encouraged some people to dispose of their stock ?

A. Yes, sir. I think possibly I helped a little. I have only one regret

in the whole thing, and that is that we were not able to get more and that

exchange didn't stay where it was when we started.

Q. All told, you got how much ?

A. $8,800,000 odd.

Q. That is all free from succession duties ?

A. I understood so.

Q. Have you in mind any discussion with Mr. Jarvis as to the possible

amount of profit there might be to the Government in redeeming all these bonds

at the rate you paid ?

A. We actually saved $2,000,000 and some odd thousands.

Q. How did you arrive at that. Did you know the price at which the

Government here borrowed the money from ^Emilius Jarvis & Co. ?

A. No, I do not.

Q. Then how did you figure the profit ?

A. Simply what the bonds cost the Province below par as well as the

exchange.

Q. But they had to borrow the money to pay for these bonds ?

A. That is something I do not know about.

Q. How did you arrive at this two millions. What I want to find out

is how that profit could have been arrived at if you didn't know the price at

which you borrowed money to redeem the bonds. You say you don't know
as to that?

A. No, sir.

THE CHAIRMAN : That would be the discount on the face value and the

exchange on that they saved two millions.

MB. HALCROW : When would these bonds mature ?
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A. I cannot say off hand. I think they ran to 46, 47 and 65.

MB. TOLMIE : Did you discuss with the Provincial Treasurer the price at

which these bonds would be redeemed ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you discuss with the Provincial Treasurer the price that yor

would have to pay for the money you borrowed ?

A. No, sir.

Q. How would you be able to give him any advice as to the wisdom of

redeeming these bonds if you didn't know the price at which they proposed

to redeem them and the price they proposed to pay for the money borrowed ?

A. We had approximate figures, both of which turned out to be pretty

nearly correct.

Q. Then you did discuss with him the price?

A. Yes, absolutely. That was before the Cabinet decided to go ahead.

That was threshed out thoroughly.

Q. In the first conversation ?

A. In the first or second. We bad two or three.

Q. You spoke about an O.K. What did you mean ?

A. To O.K. the amount of money paid. Take it in this way. Suppose
Mr. Jarvis had paid more than the price set by the Government, I would not

O.K. that amount. I would only O.K. up to the amount the Government set.

Q. You don't think Mr. Jarvis would pay more than the Government

authorized, do you ?

A. I do not expect that he would, but I was there to see it was not done.

Q. But it would have been Jarvis' loss if he had paid more ?

A. Yes, it would have been.

Q. 4So that the Province was not concerned. What you were concerned

with the price the Government was paying to redeem them ?

A. Yes.

Q. What was the price?
A. Eighty, ninety and ninety, for the three series.

Q. Do you mean that you saved two millions because you bought them

below par ?

A. Yes, and we had the benefit of exchange.

Q. Which could have been done by anybody negotiating from Toronto

just as well as going over there ?

A. That is entirely a matter of judgment.

Q. You don't know what the money cost here, that eventually redeemed

those bonds ?

A. No, sir.

Q. So that you don't know what was saved, as a matter of fact ?

A. No, sir.

Q. You bought sufficiently below par to make a difference between the

par value and what you paid, of two millions ?

A. Yes, with exchange.
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Q. Do I understand you to say that you were watehing that Jarvis did

not pay more for the bonds than what he agreed to pay ?

A. Yes.

MR. HALL : Did Jarvis act for himself or for the Province ?

A. The Province had made a deal with Jarvis whereby they guaranteed
to take up all the bonds he could get at a certain price.

Q. And Jarvis was to make what he got on the turnover? You were

sent over to assist Jarvis in putting the deal over, out of which Jarvis was to

make a large commission ?

A. I don't know anything about what Jarvis made.

Q. He went over as a broker, having agreed to buy these bonds. He
was not going over for his health. He went over to make money ?

A. Yes, he went over to make a profit.

Q- You went over to see that Mr. Jarvis didn't pay more than he should

and lose anything at all. You went over to O.K. everything and see that Mr.

Jarvis was not out of pocket ?

A. I do not know as I would look at it in that way at all.

Q. That is what the O.K. meant ?

A. No, to see that the Government didn't pay more.

Q. But the Government had a fixed price they were going to pay ?

A. Yes, and that was the limit of the price he could get.

Q. The Bank of Montreal knew that Lloyds knew it ?

A. Lloyds knew it.

Q. So that they would not pay any more than the -price the Government
had set ?

A. No, I suppose not.

Q. They have a staff to look after those things without importing a

fellow from Canada ?

A. I imagine so.

Q. So your usefulness was largely a formality, wasn't it?

A. It may have been. It was not considered so.

Q- It is difficult to admit, but still that is what it looks like to me. You
have told us that Mr. Jarvis went over on his own behalf and took up these
bonds?

A. Yes.

Q. And at a price agreed upon before he left ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. A price which permitted Mr. Jarvis to get a brokerage or profit out
of it in the ordinary business way ?

A. I suppose so.

Q. Your duty was to O.K. every bond for Mr. Jarvis and see he didn't

pay any more than he agreed to or more than he could get ?

A. I didn't put it that way, I think. If I did, I certainly was wrong.
I simply saw that Lloyds didn't advance for the Government more than the

price agreed upon.
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Q. Lloyds undertook to advance a certain amount for which you had

instructions from the Government ?

A. Lloyds loaned me, as representing the Ontario Government, up to

$12,000,000.

Q. That was for redeeming bonds, and they were instructed as to what

price was to be paid for those bonds ?

A. Yes.

Q. And the instructions were in the newspapers?
A. Yes.

Q. And every financial house in England knew they could only get a

certain amount ?

A. Yes.

Q. And Lloyds knew they could only pay a certain amount ?

A. Yes.

Q. And still you were there to O.K. them and see that Lloyds didn't

pay any more than they should pay, which would be their loss, and to see that

Jarvis didn't pay any more than he should pay, which would be his loss, so

that you went over to protect Lloyds and Mr. Jarvis ?

A. I didn't look at it in that way.
Q. I can't see where your intervention helped out this Government a bit.

You had a nice time anyway ?

A. I did, splendid.

MR. HALL : Did you find the Old Country financiers as slow as you thought

you would?

A. No, sir. I will take my hat off to them.

Hox. ME. SMITH: You were asked whether Mr. Jarvis went over for

his health or not. You don't know, in fact, whether he went for his health or

not?

A. No, sir.

ME. PEICE: What is the term of years of the Jarvis loan to the Govern-
ment?

A. I do not know. I represented the Provincial Treasurer in the trip
to the Old Country, but I did not represent him when I got back.

ME. HALL: Just what did this trip cost the Province?

A. $4,000. In figuring it out T figure my expenses cost me a little over

$3,000.

Q. Did that include drinks on the steamer?

A. Of course that went into expenses.
ME. PEICE: If the loan from Jarvis was a period of twenty years, there

would be a loss on this transaction ?

A. No, sir. If you will take and figure out what it costs this Province
to allow succession duty free bonds, you will get the biggest surprise of your
life.

THE CHAIRMAN: Do yon know anything about the loan here?
A. No, sir.
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THE. CHAIRMAN : Then you can't speak about it.

A. What I did find out was that succession duty free bonds are costing

this Province so much that if the average member knew it, he would take a fit.

MR. DEAVART : After you were consulted by the Provincial Treasurer, did

you reduce your opinion to writing ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you give him any report at any time ?

A. No, sir.

Q. What form did your discussions take ?

A. Simply conversations.

Q. Couldn't you crystallize that conversation into some form so as to

tell us what it was ?

A. I do not know as I can.

Q. What was the advice you gave him. He was engaging you apparently
for some useful purpose. What was the advice you gave him ?

A. I understand I was engaged because he had either to go himself or

send someone he could trust to raise the $12,000,000. That was the reason I

mt, not because I knew anything about bonds or financing or otherwise,

nply because the Treasurer figured he could absolutely depend on me to look

ter his interests.

Q. Then it had been decided before you went across that certain bonds

should be redeemed ?

A. Yes.

Q. Then you must have had some figures before you to show whether it

would be a profitable transaction ?

A. The Treasurer went into that thoroughly.

Q. And you gave your judgment in favour of this scheme ?

A. Yes.
'

Q. Then you saw the proposed scheme, and it must have been in writing ?

A. It was worked out, I believe, very extensively.

Q. Have you a copy of it ?

A. No, sir.

IQ.

If you were going over for the Provincial Treasurer, you would liave

alculation ?

A. That was all done before I left. My mission was to raise $1 2,000,000.

at was all.

Q. So there was a document in writing, showing a calculation of what

could be done ?

A. I do not know, sir.

Q. Did you see such a document ?

A. I saw the proposition worked out. Had we got what we reckoned

or exchange alone, the sum we would have saved would have been several

illions.

Q. Was the price at which you were to make the loan fixed ?

A. I was to get the loan at the cheapest possible price. The price I got
one-half per cent, under the other banks.
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Q. Was there a limit to the terms on which you could borrow ?

A. No, I do not think there was.

Q. When you arrived at the conclusion that you had what you thought

was a fair rate, did you communicate ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you cable?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you settle the matter on your own say so and responsibility,

without consulting the Treasurer here ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. After communicating to him the terms ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You must have made a calculation to satisfy yourself that these were

good terms ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Have you that calculation ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you destroy it ?

A. I never had it in writing. I simply talked it over with three of the

banks.

Q. It was simply in your head ?

A. Yes.

Q. Is it there still if it is, I would like to get it. I would like to know
what the Province paid you for ?

A. As I remember it, we borrowed that money on a six and one-half

per cent, basis from Lloyds, until the draft was paid, whatever time it was.

MR. FERGUSOX: You say you settled the price on your own judgment?
A. No, on the rate of interest I could get on the loan. I talked the rate

of interest over with the Bank of Montreal arid the Bank of 'Commerce.

Q. The price you were to permit Jarvis to pay was settled here before

you went over?

A. Absolutely. I had nothing whatever to do with it.

Q. You knew what it was ?

A. Yes.

Q. There were no negotiations between you and anyone else in respect
to that ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Your sole duty was to ask Lloyds to arrange a thirty day advance
to take care of these securities while they were accumulating?

A. Yes.

Q. And you had authority to do that from the Provincial Treasurer?
A. Yes.

Q- You don't think that could have been done with one of the banks
here communicating with Lloyds or their own agents ?



George V. APPENDIX 'No. 2. 65

A. I do not say it conld not have been done. But I don't think it could

have been done as satisfactorily.

DR. GODFREY : If the banks had handled it, you would not have got your

$4,000. Is that it ?

A. I did not go over there on account of the $4,000. I tried, two days

before the boat sailed, to get out of it.

MR. HALL : I understood you to say you didn't bring the bonds back, that

they were cancelled. I would like to know what became of those bonds. Did

Jarvis get them ?

A. These bonds eventually came here, but they were cancelled at the

Bank of Montreal to save insurance. Otherwise they were negotiable bonds

and would have to be insured.

MR. DEWART : Did you know what bonds those were that were taken up
and cancelled what issue of bonds ?

A. They were three loans due in 1946, 1947 and 1965.

Q. Were they loans upon the credit of the Consolidated Revenue Fund?:

A. Yes, sir.

Q. As T understand it, the money was borrowed for thirty days at Lloyds:

at 6 1
/o per cent. Then Lloyds were to be repaid. Were you conversant with

what was being done with reference to the repayment of Lloyds ?

A. I had nothing to do with that.

Q. Were Lloyds repaid out of the $16,000,000 loan that appears to have*

been floated in December, 1920 ?

MR, CJIATRMAX (to witness): Do you. know?
A. I don't know anything about it.

MR. FERGUSON: Did you know if ^Tarvis went over and made an arrange-
ment with Lloyds to pay them off. Your own was simply a temporary carrying

arrangement ?

A. I simply guaranteed that it would be paid. I raised the loan and

guaranteed that the draft would be paid in thirty days.

Q. Did you keep a copy of the guarantee?
A. I did.

Q. What became of it ?

A. I do not know.

Q. Do you think it could be. looked up?
^- I rl not know, sir. It was simply a letter guaranteeing that th<&

draft would be taken up in the Province of Ontario.

Q. You signed it on behalf of the Province?
A. Yes.

Q. Had you authority to do that ?

A. Yes.
'

Q. You had authority to do that ?

A. Yes.

Q Have you the written authority to do that?
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A. No, sir
;
that is at Lloyds' Bank.

Q. Did you keep a copy of that ?

A. No, sir.

Q. I presume the Treasurer would have a copy of it?

A. I presume so. This guarantee, while guaranteeing that the money
would be paid, did not set any date for payment, and they asked me to give them

an undertaking in writing that the draft would be paid in thirty days after

presentation, which I did.

ME. HALL: Did I understand you aright when I heard you say that all

these arrangements by which Jarvis was. to pay for those bonds, were made
before you left. The arrangement was made with the Treasurer that Mr.

Jarvis should pay for the bonds ?

A. I understood so.

Q. Was Jarvis in England during the whole time you were there ?

A. Yes.

Q. Oan you suggest anything you did that Mr. Jarvis couldn't equally
well have done?

A. I don't think the Provincial Government would give him the auth-

ority T had to borrow money.
Q. Isn't his financial standing as well known as yours ?

A. Yes, a lot better.

Q.- You represented the Government in borrowing the money from

Lloyds to redeem the bonds, afterwards sold to Jar.vis, for a certain sum which

was fixed before you left the country 1

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Couldn't Jarvis and the Government have done this just as well?

Couldn't he have had the authority given to you, seeing it was in his interest.

and save the country the $4,000 they paid to you ?

A., That is a matter for the Government to decide. T was asked to go ro

England.
MR. DEWABT : You have been with the Toronto Plate Glass Co. for s.>me

time?

A. Between two and three years.

Q. At any big salary ?

A. T get $3,600 a year and bonus.

Q. What would that amount to during 1919 ?

A. What has that to do with this ?

Q. We want to know whether you were worth the $4,000.

A. I can say I refused a position not long ago at $10,000 a year.

Q. I am asking you what your earnings were with the Toronto Plate

Glass Co. in 1919, in salary and bonus ?

A. Possibly between $5,000 and $6,000.

Q. Had you any other business from which you were dmwiim income in

1919 ?

A. No, sir.
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Q. What were your earnings in 1920 ?

A. The same earnings.

Q. That was your only occupation apart from this particular matter?

A. I do not quite get the drift of this I am mixed up in the oil business.

Q. You get an income from that ?

A. Yes.

The witness was then dismissed.

R. T. Harding called and sworn.

MR. FERGUSON : You are a practising barrister in the City of Toronto ?

A. Yes.

Q. How long have you been practising in Toronto ?

A. From four to five years.

Q, Where did you practise before that ?

A. In Stratford.

Q. You were the friend of my friend the Provincial Treasurer $

A. He is a friend of mine, has been for 25 years.

Q. Not only a personal, but a political friend ?

A. Yes.

Q. You were his solicitor?

A.
f

I have done work for Mr. Smith for a great number of years, maybe
twenty years.

Q. And you came to Toronto four or five years ago ?

./A.. JL es.

Q. Did you start to practise alone in Toronto ?

A. No.

Q. You made a partnership with whom ?

A. I was with Mr. Dewart in the firm of Dewart, Harding, Maughan
& Hodgson.

Q. How long did this partnership continue?

A. I retired from that partnership on the first of October, 1919.

Q. You have been acting as counsel for the Crown in connection with,

the Timber Inquiry ?

A. I have.

Q. When did you first take up that work ?

A. There was a discussion about the Order-in-Council and Mr. Raney
telephoned me and I went and saw him and he asked me to go with Mr. Baylj,
and we prepared the Order-in-Council that went through appointing the Com-
mission.

Q. I think the Commission was dated the 9th of March ?

A. I think you will see the Order-in-Council was sooner than that.

Q. Now when were you first approached in connection with the Timber

Inquiry? Who did you first approach or interview in connection with thig-,

personally ?
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A. In reference to that it was a surprise to me. I never made any

application. I never knew about it at all.

Q. You had no idea you were likely to be called upon ?

A. No.

Q. No idea that there was likely to be a Timber Inquiry ?

A. I did to this extent. Prior to the issue of the Commission, I dis-

cussed with Mr. Smith on one or more occasions, some irregularities in refer-

ence to the Crown Lands Department and improvements that could be made
there.

Q. Where did you- get your information with reference to the Crown
Lands Department ?

A. I got it from different sources.

Q. What were the sources?

A. It is pretty hard for me to tell.

Q. Maybe, but I would like to know.

A. If you came through what I have gone through during the last nine

months, your memory would not be as good as it might be on small matters.

Q. Well, tell us some of the sources of information. You went to the

Treasurer and discussed with him the desirability of inquiring into certain

matters ?

A. Or making certain alterations or changes which I thought would be

beneficial.

Q. You knew nothing about the timber business previous to that ?

A No.

Q., You had 110 experience?
A. No.

Q. Where did you get the informal that impressed you with the

necessity for something of that kind being done?

A. From different sources.

Q. Let us know some of the sources. Might I suggest one. You got

some information from one Callahan?

A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Callahan was very zealous I believe with reference to one par-

ticular company, the Shevlin-Clark Company, and he communicated this to

you?
A. Yes, that is true.

Q. What was the first time Mr. Callahan communicated with you ? In

the summer of 1919, wasn't it?

A., No. It was after the election. I did not know Mr. Callahan at all

until after the election, and I was out of Mr. Dewart's office. I was out in my
own office when the election came on.

Q. Mr. Callanan was a client of Mr. Dewart's ?

A. Yes.

Q. You had seen him around Mr. Dewart's office?

A. No, sir. My best recollection is this. The first time I ever saw



George V. APPENDIX No. 2. 09

Mr. Oallalian .Mr. Dewart brought him into my office in. the Royal Bank

Building after the election was over. That is my recollection. He came in

there and discussed with me something entirely different from this altogether.

Q. Mr. I )ewart brought him and introduced him to you ?

A. Yes.

Q. Then Mr. Callahan unbosomed' himself to you in respect to the

timber ?-

A. Not at that time. It was after that I had a communication with

him.

Q. You had a communication from Mr. Callahan and you had a retainer

from Mr. Callahan ?

A. That is right.

Q. When was the first retainer from Mr. Callahan?

A. I got a retainer from Air. Callahan along about December following
the election.

Q. Was that a written retainer?

A. No.

Mr. Harding at this point appealed to the Chair, claiming that he should

be questioned upon matters not relevant to the item of expenditure under

discussion, and after argument by Mr. Ferguson that his question had to do

with matters bound up in the item, the Chairman ruled that nothing which had

taken place between Mr. Harding and his client with reference to matters not

covered by the item before the Committee should be gone into.

(Mr. Ferguson proceeding.)

Q. Had you a retainer from Mr. Callahan in December, 1919?

A.-^-Prior to the issue of this Commission.

Q. And was that retainer in writing?
A. No.

Mr. Harding appealed to the Chair and the Chairman stated that he

would rule any question out that conflicted with his ruling already given.

(Mr. Ferguson proceeding.)

Q. I have asked the witness when he had his retainer from Mr. Callahan.

says it was in December, 1910. T have asked him if it was in writing, and

understood him to say it was not.

WITNESS: Any retainer T got from Mr. Callahan or any conversation I

id with him was months prior to the issue of the Commission. He was a

private client of mine at the time, and I do not think it is fair to go into his

business.

Q. 1 am inquiring into public business.

A. This has nothing to do with public business.

Q.- -Mr. Callahan's retainer to you was to prosecute the Shevlin-Clark

>ple. who wore licensees under the Crown ?

A. That is not so.

Q. Then what was the nature of Mr. Callahan's retainer?

A. -Mr. Oallahan's retainer was simply this. My instructions from him
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in reference to this were that there were grave irregularities practised by the

Shevlin-Clark Co. at Fort Frances, had been for years. He thought the Province

was getting the worst of it. He wanted me to gather with his assistance all the

evidence I could get and then take that to the Government and lay it before

the Attorney-General with the object of trying to get a Commission of Inquiry
issued. I did work with him for several weeks, but it had nothing to do with

this, because the Commission was issued entirely without my submitting any
evidence I had.

Q. Without your intervention at all?

A. Except once. I did go once before the Cabinet. My object in going
there was this. There were a large number of complaints from different people,

as I was instructed.

Q. Who instructed you ?

A. I cannot really tell you who told me.

Q. Where did you get that information?

A. I cannot tell you that.

Q. That is a serious statement. Do you mean to tell me that a man

engrossed with this enquiry for nine or ten months cannot tell me where he

first got his information that led him to make representations on it ?

A. I cannot say that.

Q. You cannot say where you got the information ?

A. No, I can not.

Q. Can you tell us that the only information you go from Callahan was

respecting the Shevlin-Clark Company ?

A. Altogether. The evidence we endeavoured to collect was altogether

as to possible sources of information.

Q. What did you do as a result of what happened in Council ?

A. I simply went to gather evidence I could get from different sources.

The first thing I heard was that the Commission had issued.

Q. When was that Council meeting ?

A. I think it was about four weeks before it was actually issued.

Q. When did you have these conversations with the Provincial Trea-

surer ?

A. I think it was in December.

Q. It was in December that you got the Callahan retainer ?

A. I think I spoke to him before that.

Q. Well, where did you get the information on which you went to the

Provincial Treasurer?

A. Well that is pretty hard for me to say.

Q. Oh no, it isn't.

A. I have no recollection at all.

Q. No information except what you got from Callahan?

A. It was right after the Provincial election, and I had been out on the

stump speaking, and there had been certain things raised in the House.

Q. What were they ?
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A. I cannot tell that.

Q. Neither can I.

A. There were several things stated.

Q. Well, tell us what things were raised in the House in reference to

the administration of Crown Lands. Don't you think you are drawing on your

imagination ?

A. It was a political source I got it from.

Q. A political source -and the inspiration was political that led you to

make use of it ?

A.. I got the thing originally from what I had heard in politics and I was

discussing it with Mr. Smith.

Q. Then in conversations you had with the Treasurer were some time

about December ?

A. I think so.

Q. What was the nature of these conversations ?

A: We discussed many things. One was the possibility of having
Commission running the Department.

tQ.
And ousting the Minister of Mines ?

A. No. We were discussing whether sufficient revenue was being raisexi

the Department, that was a large revenue producer.

Q. Have you any idea how much revenue is raised from it ?

A. I think it was about $1,250,000 last year.

Q. Out of $25,000,000 of an annual budget. So that not 10 per cent,

of the revenue comes from that Department ?

A. That may be so, but we get about as much from our forests as New
Brunswick.

Q. Then you went to work after a consultation with Mr. Raney, and
Mr. Raney disclosed to you that he was going to select you ?

A. No. He .simply said he wanted me to go and see Mr. Bayly and
draft this Order-in-Council, and he said,

"
I am writing you a letter. The

Government are going to appoint you to take charge of the inquiry." He
wrote me the letter.

Q. With your zeal for the public good that you exhibited then you began
ual operation in the Department at what time ?

A. I think in the latter end of February.

Q. And the Commission was issued on the 9th of March ?

A. I think it was dated the 9th of March. Speaking from recollection,
I think the actual date of the Commission was the 9th of March, but that as a

matter of fact, it went through a week or ten days before that.

Q. Do you mean to say that the Government falsified the date they put
n a public document?

A, No; the Order-in-Council was passed some days before.

Q. The Commission was issued about the 9th of March and you had
n working in the Department some weeks before that ?



APPENDIX No. '2.

A. No. I did not go into the Department until after I had been ap-

pointed by the Government and had my letter from the Government.

Q. I am not protesting that, but you were in the Department some weeks

before the Commission issued ?

A. No. That was in the latter part of February. The Commission
was issued on the 9th of March.

Q. Well you were there about ten days before the Commission issued '(

A. The Order-in-Council had been issued.

Q. When did you first approach the Commissioners regarding their

appointment ?

A. I did not- have anything to do with it at all.

Q.
;

Did not you have anything to do with the selection of the Com-
missioners ?

A. All I recollect is this. I was in the hall one day. I think it was

just the very day or the day after no I will put it this way. I never spoke
to Mr. Latchford about it at all. I did speak to Mr. Eiddell. I think- it was

early in December I met him and I said that if the Government of Ontario

consider it advisable to issue a Commission to investigate the Crown Lands

Department would he accept a Commissionership. And he told me at that

time that he would think it over and if it was in the public interest lie would

accept it. That was away in December.

Q. At Osgoode Hall ?

A. Yes I happened to be there one day.

Q. Then you recommended his appointment to the Attorney-General ?

A. No. I will tell you what happened. When the Attorney-General
told me I was to have charge, he said

" We have decided on one Commissioner, .

Mr. Latchford, who would you recommend for the other one ?" I said I did

not know, but Mr. Kiddell appeared to be the best man in sight. He said,
"
Well, I will take that up with Council," and the next thing I knew he was

appointed.

Q. Then as a matter of fact, you with your staff of assistants were at

work in the Department before the Commission was actually appointed ? There
is no getting around that because I can prove it.

A. I was in getting evidence after the Order-in-Council was passed, after

I was retained.

Q.
(

After you were retained you went into the Department and were

carrying on an investigation before any commission was appointed, but after

you had spoken to Mr. Justice Riddell and knew he was willing to accept the

commission ?

A. Yes, I had spoken to him.

Q. Then, you told us the Attorney-General had instructed you to see

Mr. Bayly, and between you draft the commission ?

A. And we did. Of course he had more experience in that than I had.

I went into his office and he dictated it to me and I made suggestions.
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Q. Then, I suppose that as Crown Counsel you submitted it to the Com-
missioners ?

A. No.

Q. Do you mean to say they took the Commission without knowing the

scope of it ?

A. As far as I am concerned I do not think they saw it until it waa

read out.

Q. Do you mean to say they accepted -a wide open Commission without

knowing the scope of it or what they were^fc investigate?

A. What I say is this, as far as I am concerned I do not know whether

they did or not. I didn't do anything toward that. When you pnt the ques-

tion in that way to me I believe that when the Attorney-General wrote them

a letter notifying them that they had been appointed he enclosed in the letter

to them either a copy of the Commission or a copy of the Order-m-Council.

Q. That was after the Commission was settled and issued ?

A. Yes.

Q. What I want from you is this. You are asking this committee to

accept a statement that these two eminent judges agreed to accept the Com-
mission of Inquiry without knowing what their authority would be or what the

scope of their work was ?

A. That is hardly fair.

Q. Wasn't it the natural, the ordinary thing for the judge to say,
" What

do you want me to do ?"

A. He didn't say so to me.

Q. Don't you think that would be the ordinary thing?

A. No, I don't.

Q. Have you had judges accepting commissions in other ways?
A. There is only one kind of commission.

Q. (

I understand there is a contest in the courts now as to whether there

is one or more kinds. It isn't one kind of a commission. Extensions or limi-

tions entirely depend on the wording of the commission.

A. They must be within the Act.

Q. They must be within the Act, but they can be limited or extended as

is seen fit?

A. Yes.

Q. Now in the Public Accounts on page 585, there is an item here,

^Accountable K. T. Harding, re timber investigation. $50,000. What arrange-

ment was made with you in regard to the expenditure of this Commissioiu

They issued an accountable warrant for $50,000 ?

A. The way it was carried out was this: As soon as we got the Com-
mission the first thing I had to do was to hire accountants and different men of

that Description.

Q. We all know you organized the force the Government advanced you
certain monevs to carry that on ?

is

ii

:
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A. What they did was this. I went to work and spent $25,000 first.

i handed it over to my bookkeeper, and I had an auditor audit it. I spent the

$25,000 and came to the Department and handed in the receipts for that. I

spent $25,000 before I got a single cent from the Government.

Q. You spent $25,000 of your own money ?

A., Yes. I handed the receipts in and they gave me a cheque for

$25,000. Then I spent $25,000 more and came up with the receipts in the

same way and got another cheque.

Q. Where are these cheques^-they are not accounted for in the Public

Accounts ?

A. The first cheque I got was a grant that went through the House of

$25,000 for the Timber Inquiry.

Q. But here is an accountable warrant for $50,000.

A. There was a vote in the House for $25,000 and an accountable war-

rant for $25,000. I think you will find that is correct.

Q. The method of procedure you had arranged with the Treasurer, or

with whom ?

A. I went into the Treasurer and told him what I was going to do, and

he told me to go ahead and do it.

Q. The Treasurer gave you a free hand a wide-open commission?

A. No, he did not,

Q. You said you told him what you were going to do and he told you
tp go ahead ?

A.j My authority in reference to it is what I say. I didn't make any

arrangement with anybody except that I told Peter I wanted some money
The Chairman (interjecting) Who is Peter?

Witness The Hon. Peter Smith. He told me to go on and I spent

$25,000 before I got anything from the Government at all.

Q. : And was an arrangement made with you as to how you were to

proceed, and as to how this thing was to be financed ?

A. I do not know any arrangement was made at all.

Q. Do you mean to state that you had instructions to go on with the

investigation, that without anyone saying you would be recouped you went
ahead and spent $25,000 of your own money?

A. I think I got the Provincial Treasurer to write a letter to the general

fiianager of the Home Bank.
:

Q. He delivered that letter to you ?

A. He gave it to me and I gave it to Mr. Mason.

Q. What did that letter say?
A. Now, memories are treacherous

A. A man who is undertaking to spend a quarter of a million when
fao gets authority he will know what it is.

A. Did you say a quarter million ?

Q. Is it more than that ? What was in that letter ?
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A. I cannot tell you what was in it. I made that arrangement with

Mr. Mason when I went into the bank.

Q. Then your arrangement must have been with the Treasurer or some-

one. The Prime Minister, according to his statement, said he was looking

after the whole thing.

A. I never spoke to the Prime Minister or Mr. Bowman about it.

Q. I see Mr. Bowman hasn't been consulted at all. The Prime Minister

said he was the whole thing.

A. Well, I consulted Mr. Bowman, often.

Q. Yes, when you wanted access to the records. The truth is that the

Prime Minister is the man from whom you got directions as to the procedure
of the inquiry ? Isn't that so ? He has said so in his evidence.

A. He may have given me directions and another day I might go in

and see Mr. Eaney. Both the Prime Minister and Mr. Raney actively

assisted me in any way they could.

Q. So that you did get instructions from the Prime Minister and the

Attorney General in reference to it?

A. No doubt about it.

Q. Did you get instructions as to the expenditure of these moneys ?

A. In this way, in so far as getting the money was concerned I think

I did. On one occasion when we got $25,000 I was in the Council Chamber
and Council was going on. The Premier was the one I spoke to in reference

to that. I went in different times when expenditures were to be made, and
I got his approval before I made it.

Q. Then all you can tell us is that there was no fixed arrangement -as

to how you were to get the money, unless it was in the letter to Mr. Mason -

was it an open letter ?

A. Yes.

Q. Or a letter of credit ?

A. I do not know as you could call it a letter of credit. I will get the
letter from Mr. Mason and bring it up.

Q. All right. It was on the strength of the letter that you got the money
rom Mr. Mason ?

A. Largely.

Q. You don't suggest that you can go into the bank and hook on to
$25,000 without some one's authority. Would you have gone down without
that letter to Mr. Mason and incurred an expenditure of $25,000 ?

A. Oh, don't ask me that.

Q. Oh, yes. It was on the strength of that letter you got it, and you
couldn't have got it otherwise ?

A. The letter will speak for itself and I will bring it up here.

Q. Now, how many repayments and special warrants have been issued
to you ?

A. Two.

'
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Q. For what amounts ?

A. Both for $25,000.

Q.- On your authority, covering the payment of assistance, counsel,

experts, witness fees, transportation, entertainment and the rest of it '(

A. There was no entertainment.

Q. I am told you had the merriest time ever after you left for Sudlmry
and until you got back?

A. There is no truth in that.

Q. Then all you have received in connection with this expenditure is

$50,000 ?

A. Yes.

Q. And nothing has been paid on account of the investigation except

the $50,000 ?

A. That is all.

Q. Did you pay the Commissioners ?

A. Yes
; $2,000 each on account.

Q. When did you pay them?

A. That will be in here.

Q. It isn't in here. That is the reason I am asking you. There is no

item in the public accounts in reference to you except the $50.000. Was it

last spring or last fall ?

A. Justice Riddell and Justice Latchford iiave the receipts. It is in

the vouchers.

Q. I am not disputing that. I a in asking yon alfout it. Have von the

'receipts here?

A. No, it is in the tile. In addition to thai 1 have the cheque \virli the

names on the back of it.
,

Q. So that you paid everybody it was your pai-ty entirely*

A. Yes, for various reasons

Q. Never mind the reasons, 1 am asking yon?
A. Yes, I made all disbursements.

<J. You paid Mr. McEvoy?
A. Yes.

Q. And .Mr. Campbell?

:;;
A. No.

'Q. What is the total disbursement in connection with the inquiry?

A. My bookkeeper and the auditor who looked after the hooks r;m irive

.you that expenditure better than T can.

The Chairman You are entitled to tell as nearly as yon c;in.

Witness T think about $71,000 or $72,000. !t may he more than that.

Q. That does not include Your own fee- ?

A. No, except the payment of $2,000 on account.

Q. So that the $71,000 or $72,000 paid out, on account of which yon
liave onlv had $50,000, must be added to hv the amount for your own services?

A. Yes.
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Q. Did you settle in full with everyone engaged?
A. No, not every person; for this reason: When I left on the 4th of

December there would be about another $25,000 spent. Instead of putting

in enough to make it up to $75,000 or whatever it was, including my own

fees and getting another $25,000, I waited until we could get all the accounts

of the Commission up to the 4th of December.

Q. Then what is your account against the Government for services ?

A. My own account against the Government, according to an arrange-

ment with Mr. Raney, will be taxed.

Q. What will it be?

A. I haven't rendered it.

Q. What do you estimate it at ?

A. I can't tell you.

Q. Now don't trifle with us.

A. I am not trifling.

Q. Yes, I think you are. I am trying to be fair and decent with you.
You take the biggest job you ever had in a legal way in your life and you sit

here and tell us you don't know what your fees are.

A. I haven't made a charge. What I am going to do is this : I am going
to make a per diem charge, so much a day for preparation and so much for

each day in court, and you can take it that I was practically engaged from

the time the Order in Council went through until the day I left night and

day at it.

Q. What do you propose to charge per day ?

A. Well, I don't know. I haven't fully made up my mind.

Q. Oh yes, Mr. Harding, be frank with us. You have been nine and

a half months almost exclusively engaged in this work. You haven't drawn
a cent but the $2,000 and you tell us you have no idea of what is coming to

you.

A. You ask me to tell you what I am going to charge?

Q. I am asking you what the Government owes you, in your estimation ?

A. I think I should be paid $50 a day for preparation and $100 a
da;y;

for in court.

Q. You were about 75 days in court?

A. I can get you the exact number.

Q. I gather from the way the 'Commission carried on, that speaking

roughly about alternate weeks were in court and the others in preparation so

that the division would be pretty much fifty-fifty ?

A. 1 do not think so. I imagine preparation would be about 55 per
cent, of the time.

Q. If my recollection is right I think you were some seventy days in

A. That may be right. I do not thin'k it was as much as that.

Q. Would you say sixty days in court?

A. It is in the neighbourhood of sixty days.



78 APPENDIX No. 2. 1921

Q. And the days in preparation woiild be about G5 per cent. ?

A. I think you will find that I was in court from 35 to 40 per cent, of

the time and the balance in preparation.

Q. So that you would be about 60 days in. court and about 1.50 days in

preparation ?

A. Possibly in the neighbourhood of 150 days.

Q. So that approximately it would be $5,000 for preparation and

$6,000 foT court, so that in rough figures your estimate of your bill is about

$12,000 ?

A. Yes.

Q. And that has to be added to the $72,000 disbursements you havt

already incurred?

A. Yes.

Q. That would be $84,000. Then there are some outstanding accounts

as yet that you haven't squared away. What do those amount to ?

A. I cannot really tell you. The difficulty has been to get the receipts

necessary, the system of book-keeping. I brought the book-keeper up to the

Department before I started, but when the accounts came in they wanted it

done in an entirely different way.

Q. You can prepare for us and show us exactly what is the amount ?

A. Every dollar of it. I had the auditor in every month to go over the

books.

Q. When did you get the first $25,000 ?

A. I cannot give you the date.

Q. The books will show when you got that?

A. Absolutely.

Q. The same would apply to the second $25,000 ?

A. Yes.

Q. They were filed covering the $50,000 they must have been filed

before the 31st of October?

A. I suppose so. I really don't know. That part I didn't bother with,

except to have it done.

Q. Your mission was to go ahead?

A. Yes, I went full steam ahead right from the start.

Q. You cannot tell us when your vouchers for the total of $50,000 wcrn

handed to the Department?
A. No, I cannot give you that.

Q. Whom did you give those receipts to?

A. My book-keeper came up and gave them to the gentleman sirring

over there, Mr. Brown.

Q. You had no personal communication with Mr. Brown ?

A. I think she (the book-keeper) came up with me and I introduced

her to Mr. Brown, or it may have been to Mr. 'Clancy. I took her in and

introduced her and she carried out the whole matter.

Q. Why haven't you had these things settled up before this ?
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A. Oiie of the difficulties is this: There is one man who has a differ-

ence in his account of $40 or $50.

Q. Who is that Rochester ?

A. No, a man named Grupp.

Q. You have paid Rochester ?

A. 'No, not all.

Q. How much have you paid Rochester ?

A. I paid him over $20,000.

Q. Quite a bit over $20,000 ?

A. It is in the accounts.

Q. Did you turn over $24,000 to Rochester to spend ?

A. No.

Q. Did you ever send him $24,000 at one time ?

A. Never.

Q. Have you paid him more than $24,000 ?

A. I can't tell exactly.

Q. Is it a fact that you have paid him $32,000 to $33,000 ?

A. The expenditure, the total expenditure, I think, will run about

$33,000, between $33,000 and $35,000.

Q. Where did you get hold of Rochester ?

A. I think that IJr. Rochester was recommended to me first by Mr.

Hurdman. Then I had three or four names submitted to me of men who
could undertake a job like that.

Q. Rochester's duties were largely, if not altogether, in the Fort Frances

district ?

A. Yes.

Q. In the Shevlin-Clarke area ?

A. Yes.

Q. And you directed the method of operation and inquiry that should

be carried on by Rochester ?

A. Yes.

Q. And the Government has paid, or the Province will have to pay
Rochester some $35,000 ?

A. In that neighbourhood.

Q. And that was largely the outcome and for the purpose of securing

the information that 'Callahan wanted ?

A. No. .

Q. Callahan got the benefit of all that ?

A. No. That measurement would not have been made on those limits

if it had not been the Commissioners' request that it be done.

Q. The Commissioners, on your suggestion ?

A. No.

Q. Yes. Look at the record. Your suggestion was a stump and top

scale. Your suggestion to the Commissioners was that they should direct that

such a thing should be done and you paid Rochester and he got the men he
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required to make the stump and top scale. That is what the record shows.

Isn't that the fact ?

A. I sent him out to measure up Berth A of five square miles on in-

structions from the Commissioners. When the result was known I was

instructed to have him go on and make the other measurements.

Q. So that the whole $35,000 of Provincial money was spent on the

Shevlin-Clarke area while you held a retainer from Callahan. to do that?

A. Not to do that.

Q. To investigate the Shevlin-Clarke operations. That was your re-

tainer. Was not that your retainer? (No answer.) Your retainer from

Callahan was to investigate the Shevlin-Clarke operations. The Commis-

sioners have so stated in the valedictory they issued for yon. Thar wn> so

stated.

A. You term it a valedictory?

Q. Someone says an obituary, but wasn't that the fact ?

A. Oh no.

Q. We won't be pushed aside. Isn't it the fact that the Province has

spent $35,000 to satisfy a retainer you got from Callahan to investigate the

Shevlin-Clarke operations ?

A. No, that isn't so.

Q. Isn't that the result of what has been done 2

A. No.

Q. Do you mean to say that Callahan hasn't benefited and hasn't suc-

ceeded in achieving his purpose through this expenditure ?

A. Callahan had the same purpose exactly as the men who started tho

investigation had.

Q. Now who is Callahan ?

A. He runs a wholesale grocery, I think.

Q. Don't you know it is
;
haven't you been in it ?

A. I haven't been in it. I think it is a wholesale grocery, E. J. Calla-

han, Ltd.

Q. Run for whom ?

A. Run for himself.

Q. Yqu know who Callahan is, that he is an employee of E. W. Backus,

yon know that ?

A. I do not. I do not believe it.

Q. You have never heard of any of his relations with Backus ?

A. Certainly, I have heard what was in the newspapers.

Q. Do you mean to >ay that yon noever. from Calkhau or Backus, heard

of this relationship ?

A. Never.

Q. You say you never knew, with all your close communication with

Bar-lois?

A. You say close communication ?

Q. Yes, I say it advisedly.
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A. -Mr. Ferguson, as far as Mr. Backus is concerned I never did any
business for him except to introduce him here. I never got a dollar from

Mr. Backus in my life.

Q. You got it from -Callahan but it was Backus money.
A. I doii't believe it.

Q. Do you mean to tell me and this Committee that with all your

relationships with Backus at Fort Frances, at International Falls, where you
have been interviewing Backus

A. I never interviewed Backus at those places.

Q. Do you say you have never seen Backus in these places ?

A. I saw him once in Fort Frances in June and in August ;
I went

down on the same train with him to Minneapolis. Those were the only two-

times I saw him.

Q. You went to Minneapolis and saw him?

A. I saw him on the train.

Q. Did you meet by accident ?

A. No; he said he was going down, and T went down on the same train.

I was not ashamed of it.

Q. NY>; the trip was all right. The purpose of it is what I am interested

in. You say that one of your meetings with Mr. Backus was when you took

him to the Department and introduced him ?

A. Yes.

Q. Why were you introducing him ?

A. 1 will tell you so you will know how it happened. I have in niv

diary the exact date when I was in Fort Frances. He told me then he wanted

me to make an application for him to the Crown Lands Department and get
some wood for his mill. I told him he had better telegraph and make an

appointment before he came down. He did come here. He came to my
office and he had a written statement of what he wanted. I put that in my
pocket, and he said T will take this up with you now and you will go and make
this application. I said

"
I think your best plan is to go np and I will intro-

duce you to the Premier and we can have a round-table talk and afterwards

get down to it. 1 went up with him and introduced him to Mr. Drury, and

Mr. Drury when he heard the name said. "Are you the terrible man Backus
T have heard so much about?" and he said, "'Yes, T am the man." Then he

turned and said, "I would like to settle Ihe dispute between the Canadian

publishers and ourselves."

Q. I am not concerned about that. You came np and introduced Mr.
Backus to the Prime Minister and he had a proposition with reference to some

1 which von discussed?

A. X".

Q. Wasn't it discussed at all?

A. No.

Q. Never mentioned ?

A. Not in my presence.
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Q. You never mentioned it yourself?

A. No.

Q. What was the application he was making ?

A. The application he was making hadn't been prepared at that time

at all.

Q. That was the application for the English River limit?

A. It turned out that it was.

Q. Didn't you know at the time just what the extent of the application

was?

A. When he first spoke to me I thought it was an application for wood

in the Rainy River district. When he came down subsequently he told me.

Q. You understood what it was before it came to the Government at all ?

A. I understood he was making an application.

Q. For a concession which turned out to be the English River Limit

A. Yes.

Q. Now you were in touch with his representative at the time Mr.

George was Mr. Backus' solicitor ? You know that ?

A. I know he is.

Q. You have communicated with him as such?

A. Assuredly.

Q. You kept in communication with Mr. George in connection with

Backus matters ?

A. No.

Q. I want you to be careful. Did you never have any communication

with George with reference to Backus' affairs and dealings with this Govern-

ment, will you swear that?

A. I will swear that Mr. George didn't get into the Backus deal until

I was out.

Q. I am asking if you had any communication with George with refer-

ence to any of the Backus dealings with this Government?

A. No.

Q. None whatever?

A. No.

Q. Or in reference to other business matters of Backus that affected

public affairs?

A. None.

Q. None whatever?

A. None whatever.

Q. All-right. We will see about that.

Q. Then you had a communication with Backus junior; you met him

frequently ?

A. I met him once. I never had a letter from him.

Q. You met one Dolberg?
A. I met him in January, 1920.

Q. Dolberg is the engineer and general manager for Backus?
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A. I understood lie was manager of the Fort Frances Pulp and Paper

Company.
Q. A Backus concern?

A. Yes.

Q. He is the financial agent for Backus '?

A. I do not know that at all.

Q. Don't you know he is ?

A. No.

Q. Do you know a man named Newcombe ?

A. I never heard of him.

The Committee then adjourned.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE.

March 9, 1921.

The Committee met at 10 a.m. Mr. Harding recalled. Examined by
Mr. Ferguson:

Q. Mr. Harding, you said you would produce a letter or a copy of a

letter from the Provincial Treasurer to the manager of the bank. Is this it,

you produce?
A. Yes, but it is addressed to me. Mr. Chairman, I haven't any

objection to the Committee but I don't think it should be made public.

Q. It has to go into the records of this investigation. This is the letter :

Re Timber investigation.
" The Government will include in the further supplementary estimates a

vote of $10,000 to pay expenses of the Commission. I will send you a cheque
for $10,000 immediately after the Supply Bill lias received the consent of

the Lieutenant Governor, which will possibly be in two or three weeks. In

the meantime you can use this letter for the purpose of procuring an advance

to enable you to pay expenses. (Signed) Peter 'Smith."

Q. You went to the Home Bank, I think you said, with this letter?

A. Yes.

Q. And it was on the strength of that letter that you procured the first

advance in connection with this?

A. Yes.

Q. The advance was $10,000 ?

A. That is right.

Q. So that you were in error the other day when you said $25,000 ?

A. In error in this way : I put the proceeds of that into a trust account

I had and then I went and checked against that until there was $35,000.
Then I got $25,000 and paid for it.
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Q. You apparently did not leave this letter with the bank, what did you
give the bank a note

A. I got that from Col. Mason. The bank held this letter.

Q. You have no paper undertaking also?

A. I gave them a note for $10,000.

Q. -Your personal note?

A. Yes.

Q. On the strength of this letter ?

A. Yes.

Q. Then von continued to incur expenditure and pay out money until

your account ran up to $35,000 ?

A. That is my recollection, }
T
es. Then I got $25,000, and when the

account ran over $50,000 I got $25,000 more.

Q. Was this all in the trust account?

A. Yes, a trust account of my own I had in the bank.

Q. You carried separate accounts, a personal, a firm and a trust account ?

A. Yes.

Q. You haven't your bank book here with your trust account ?

A. What I want to ask is this. It seems to me the other day
Q. I am the one who wants to ask things and you can answer. At any

rate you went on spending. Where is the account of your expenditure. Have

you it here . . . is this it?

A. Yes.

Q. This statement produced here covers a total of $3-1,951.47?
A. Yes.

Q. Is this a copy of the account as rendered to the Department ?

A. Yes.

Q. In this account I see T. M. McEvoy $4,240. That is right?
A. Yes sir.

Q. Is that the total amount paid to Mr. McEvoy ?

A. Yes.

Q. Here is a charge T. E. Lawless $2,104.65 ?

A. Yes, he is one of the accountants.

Q. Frederick Mowat, who is he?

A. -The Sheriff of Toronto.

Q. I see one Theodore Ellis, witness conduct money $110. Where did

Ellis come from?

A. We brought him down to Toronto out of the bush. I think Mr.
Bell undertook to bring him down provided we would pay his expenses, and
it would have cost us a lot of money to send a bailiff in to serve him. We
undertook to do so and his account is filed.

Q. The details of this account are with the auditor?

A. Yes.

Q. Frank R. Weston $60 that is another?

A. Yes.



George V. APPENDIX No. 2. 85

Q. He comes from Midland?

A. Yes, he was a witness. He was here for about a week, four or five

days or a week.

Q. What was the nature of his evidence to keep him here a week (

A. Mr. Han ley went up and employed him to make tests of different

kinds in connection with the Georgian Bay Lumber Company and the Victoria

Lumber 'Company.

Q. -Who is Mr. Hanley ?

A. W. J. Hanley, my partner.

Q. This is the man who did that ?

A. Yes, he came here and gave his evidence, more or less as an expert.

Q. The next item I see is Justice, on account of fees July 2, $2,000,

disbursements $173.17, a total of $2,173.17. Is that the date on which that

was paid ?

A. I think that is the date of the cheque. If I haven't the cheque here

it will be with the vouchers.

Q. You knew of the legislation at Ottawa the new judges act, didn't

you '(

A. I know it was published in the press.

Q. You knew at the time and the judges knew. The Act came into

force and was assented to on the 1st of July you knew that?

A. Until three or four days ago

Q. I am asking you. You knew7 that when you paid this cheque?
A. Yes.

Q. And talked it over with the judge ?

A. I didn't know when the Act came into force until a few days ago.
From the newspaper reports of the proposed legislation it was not clear

whether it would apply to commissions already issued that is the phase of it

I talked over.

Q. It was in the press at the time; the Act was introduced on the 28th

of June, had second reading 011 the 29th of June, passed the House 011 the

30th and was assented to on the first of July. Everybody knew that from the

press, and as a matter of fact it was discussed by the Commissioner and you ?

A. Only to this extent that it was not known whether it would apply
or not.

Q. And so that you would not be taking chances you issued the cheque

right off?

A. No, I considered it would not apply to what had been done up to

that time.

Q. That was your view ?

A. Yes.

Q. You paid a somewnat smaller account of $2,083.15 to Justice Lateh-

ford on the same date?
A VoaXV. JL t?B.

Q. Did the Commissioners give you a bill ?
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A. No.

Q. How was the amount arrived at?

A. It is rather difficult for me to say. My best recollection is that I

discussed the matter with the Attorney-General. After the discussion I had

with him I gave Justice Riddell $2,000 and the cheque with their endorsation

is with the auditor.

Q. What was the basis of the $2,000 payment?
A. It was on the basis of paying him $2,000 on account of what they

would be entitled to get.

Q. You discussed it with the Attorney-General -and arrived at some

basis on which you advanced him $2,000 ?

A. No. The reason I say no is this: At the time Mr. Peter White

had written a letter saying he should get $2,500 on account of his fees.

. Q. The White letter was before this date?

A. I believe it was. That is my best recollection.

Q. We will get that letter another day.

A. I may be wrong but the $2,500 had been talked of to me even before

he wrote the letter.

Q. The point is this : the pending legislation brought up the question of

whether the judges weere entitled as Commissioners to be paid or not, didn't it ?

A. Well, no, because I always considered they were entitled to be paid it.

Q. And the legislation was not discussed ?

A. Only to this extent, as to whether they would be paid up to the date

of the coming into force of the Act.

Q. Then you went and discussed it with the Attorney-General?
A. Yes.

Q. And the Attorney-General said you had better take a chance and pay
the money now ?

A. No, Mr. White was asking

Q. I am not asking about Mr. White. Mr. White tried to put some

good ideas into your head and you wouldn't accept them. Now as to this

$2,000 you say there was no definite or fixed basis at all ?

A. No.

Q. That was just to pay them on account for their services ?

A. That is right.

Q. And it was expected that they would be paid a further sum ?

A. I think so, yes.

Q. And that $2,000 would pay them up to that time ?

A. No, it was just on account.

Q. You would not pay them ahead of time? The Commission might
have fallen down any time, the way it was wobbling about ?

A. It was a pretty healthy child always.

Q. The Commission had been in operation about three months. It

started in the middle of April about two and a half months. They got

$2,000 for that, up to that time?
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A. They got $2,000 on account of services.

Q. On account of services up to that time?

A. Yes.

Q. You didn't get any bill from them?

A. Oh no.

Q. You didn't get any voucher at any time?

A. I think there is a letter acknowledging the receipt of it, with the

papers.

Q. ]STow I gather from the letter you sent to the Clerk of the Committee

that all these papers had been sent back to you. Where is that letter?

A. What has happened is this: I got from the auditor a long list of

questions that will reach from here down to Bay Street, in reference to all these

items, wanting additional information.

Q. Of course that is what we want
;
here is your letter to the Secretary

of this Committee, written yesterday :

" Re your letter of the 4th of March enclosing a copy of che letter of the

3rd of March from Mr. Brown, Provincial Auditor, and a copy of the list of

particulars in reference to the accounts filed; you will understand that the

details it will be necessary for me to get to cover all these items will cover

a considerable time."

Q. The auditor "has sent you back a long list of items that required
additional vouchers ?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you that here ?

A. No, it will take me ten days to get it.

Q. Where is the auditor's letter and list of items ?

A. The auditor will have it. I haven't it here.

MR. BROWN (Provincial Auditor): I didn't send it to Mr. Harding. I

sent it to the Department of Crown Lands.

WITNESS : Mr. Grigg sent it to me.

THE CHAIRMAN : We will get it here.

MR. FERGUSON : You say you got a formal letter from the Commissioners

acknowledging the receipt of the $2,000 ?

A. That is my recollection.

Q. And that is filed ?

A. With the cheque, with the auditor.

MR, FERGUSON to Mr. Brown: Have you a letter written by each of the

Commissioners acknowledging the receipt of cheques ?

MR. BROWN : I haven't a paper in the office. Everything is back in the

Department of Lands and Forests.

MR. FERGUSON (to witness) : I see here an item, Might Directories, Ltd.,
services March 30, May 28, August 28, November 11?

A. I sent them over a copy of the summons to have copies made.

Q. That is typewriting?
A. Yes.
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Q. Stanley Meeking, service $125, what is that ? Meeking is an officer

of the Government?

A. Yes.

Q. Is that for extra work ?

A. Yes, done at night.

Q. E. G. Boyd another employee ?

A. Yes, he made a lot of maps.

Q. I see an item here Employers' Detective Agency $103. What
were the services the Employers' Detective Agency rendered?

A. I will tell you what that was. Mr. Rogers got a man and sent him
to Sndbury or Port Arthur, I am not sure which. Mr. Rogers knew all abont

that item. That is the bill and we paid it.

Q. That was not the man the Commission had shadowing me around

the most of last summer ?

A. I give you my word I do not know of that. I had three chasing me,

and I thought I was the only one being chased.

Q. There was no difficulty in keeping track of you, you left such a trail.

A. They have enough dictaphone conversations with my help to reach

from here to Montreal.

Q. At any rate, this wasn't the gentleman asked to keep track of me?
A. No sir.

Q. F. J. Xiven $300 he is the Secretary to the Minister?

A. Meeking, Niven and two or three other men in the Department went

back at nights for the purpose of making up a statement from the returns

there. I was there several times until the wee hours of the morning. Every
dollar they got they earned.

Q. I am not disputing, that. Here is an interesting bill: Prince

Arthur Hotel, Port Arthur, $676. Have you the details of that ?

A. The details and vouchers are with the bill. I think that is for

two weeks.

Q. Did you have to lease the hotel for two weeks ?

A. No, we had to lease a portion of it.

Q. I understand a very substantial portion of it?

A. Oh no. If you have stayed at these northern hotels you will have

found how they charge.

HON ME. RANEY: Was that just yourself alone^

A. That included everyone, court reporters and everyone else, every

person connected with the Commission.

MR. FPMICS rsox : The details are set out in the statement?

A. Yes.

Q. I see a man named Fryer here. Who is R. Fryer, $107.10?

A. He is a gentleman by the name of Richmond Fryor.

Q. Where did you get into communication with Fryer?
A. At the Soo, I think.
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Q. How did you get into communication with him? How were you

brought into contact with Fryer ?

A. You will have to ask me something easier than that
;
I don't know.

Q. Haven't you any correspondence with Fryer?
A. I think I did write him a letter or two. I haven't the slightest idea

at the moment who it was but some person told me that Fryer, then running
a company called the Searchmount Lumber Company, close to the Soo, could

be of use to me.

Q. You got further information about Fryer, as to his history and so

on, didn't you ? As a matter of fact you were told to get hold of Fryer, that

he was a former sore-head employee of the Spanish River Lumber Company ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Didn't you know that he was an employee of the Spanish River

Company prior to that and had some differences with them and was let out or

got out?

A. I would answer the other question if you hadn't said
"
sorehead."

I knew he had been a woods operator for the Spanish River Lumber Company
for some years, and that he was the best man I could get to give me the informa-

tion on the Company's operations in the bush.

Q. He was the best man you could get for your purposes ?

A. That is what I believed.

Q. You knew he had severed relations with the Company and that there

was bitter feeling?
A. I did not know that.

Q., Oh, yes you did, because Mr. Fryer hasn't hesitated to say so publicly
and broadcast. With your Corps of assistants you would scarcely fail to knoAV

that?

A. I did not know that.

Q. You did not know that at all? Mr. Robert McKay, when he cross-

examined him, asked him a lot of questions about leaving the Company is

that the first you knew of it ?

I

A. No. Mr. Fryer told me himself.

Q. When you got into contact with him ?

A.-Yes.

Q. It was well known in the lumber business what Fryer's attitude and

feeling was toward his former employers ?

A. That may be quite true.

Q. He made it quite plain to you, as to other people, that he had a

.grudge to satisfy, didn't he? Is that a fact?

A. I don't think so. His evidence didn't show any grudge at all.

Q. I am not asking that he made it plain to you? I want you to be
careful, for this committee sits again. Do you say Fryer never informed you,
never told you of his severance of his connection with the Spanish River Lumber
Company and let you know in any way of his antipathy to them ?
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A. In this way, Mr. McEvoy was the first person to discuss the matter

with him. He told me of differences he had with the Spanish River Lumber

Company. If I was not going to call him or any person not in the employ of

the Company who had some difference with them, I would not be able to call

anyone at all.

Q. I am not asking you that at all. At any rate, you got hold of Fryer
and you g*ot what evidence you could out of him ?

A Yes.

Q. Mr. Fryer helped you to dig up a lot of other fellows ?

A. He may have given me other names.

Q. You know he did ?

A. I think he did.

Q. He consulted other witnesses for you?
A. If he did, I didn't know of it.

Q. You don't know if he went out and consulted other people and secured

their evidence ?

A. What he agreed to do with me, was that he would send me names and

addresses of some of the working bosses and some of the bosses of other com-

panies I gave him a list of.

Q. In other words you enlisted him to
.
assist you and he was able to

select other employees who felt as he did toward the Company ?

Objection taken by the Chairman to the form of the question as being an

assertion rather than an inquiry of witness.

MB. FERGUSON: Then I see you adjourned to Sudbury and spent some time

there ?

A. The Commission sat there.

Q. You were there ?

A. Rather.

Q.- -There is a bill of $512 at the Nickel Range Hotel ?

A. Yes.

Q. That included the expenses of yourself and commission, your reporter
and the judges all these expenditures are set forth in detail -in your accounts?

A. Yes.

Q Now, how was it you included the judges' account ? I notice here

th) judges are paid disbursements as wr
ell. For instance, Commissioner Riddell

received $173 and Justice Latchford $83. If you were paying all their ex-

penses, how was that incurred?

A. You will find vouchers for that, what it was for.

Q. W. J. Lethbridge, $1,144. He is an accountant, is he?

A. Yes.

Q. D. Smith, $691. He fares pretty well, who is Smith?

A. He is a man I had employed to keep track of the records. When
we started the House was in session and we couldn't get a person out of the

Department, so I hired Smith, a young man in the city, to keep the records
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for us while we were on the road. He brought them back and handed them in

to the Department.

Q j[ e was a sort of clerk to the Commission?

A. A sort of utility man. He went around and did messages.

Q. What became of Smith?

A. He is in the city.

Q. Is he here still ?

A. Yes, the last I heard of him, two or three weeks ago. He is travelling

now, a commercial traveller.

Q._Who is Frank Tucker $101 ?

A. Ho lives in Toronto here, and we had to take him to Port Arthur.

Then I think he was called subsequently in Toronto at a later date. He was

originally a Port Arthur man and employed by Mr. Russell. I think he was

Russell's bookkeeper.

Q George Fisher $376. That is down as disbursements on May 15,

September 19 and October 9. Who is he ?

A. He is a wood ranger at the Soo. We sent him up to make a jack-

ladder test at one of the mills up near the Transcontinental.

Q. What mill was that ?

A. It was Col. Little's mill.

Q. The New Ontario Contracting Co. ?

A. Yes.

Q. You checked the Little mill ?

A. They had trouble there. They got the first part of the boom down
but the balance was tied up in the lake. That is the reason that it is in there.

Q. You didn't check the whole season's cut? You made a jack-ladder
test ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did that give you a fair indication as to whether the proper return

was made ?

KMR.

MAGEAU : That would be only a partial check ?

WITNESS : The difficulty was this. Col. Little started on the first of July
and had bad luck. The machinery was badly installed. It would run a week

and then break down, and being such a distance away it would be a long time

before they could get repairs. These chaps started a boat check to rescale the

logs. When I discovered that, I wired asking them to come back.

MR. MAGEAU : You say they made a scale of the logs in the lake, a cheak

scale. Did you consider that would be ah adequate scale of the logs ?

A. It was his opinion.

Q. Whose opinion ?

A. Fisher's.

Q. What did he know about it ?

A. He is a Government sealer, a check sealer and wood ranger.

Q. He actually did scale the logs ?
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A. So lie said.

Q. You didn't consider that scale a proper one ?

A. I stopped it when I found out what he was doing.

MK. FERGUSON: You paid Mr. White, on November 4, $2,500 on account?

So that evidently you were in error when you said he had been paid or had

asked for anything in June?

A. He wrote "me a letter some months before that. I turned it over to

the Attorney-General, and I expected from what I was told that they would

make an advance to him. Subsequently I sent a cheque to him.

Q. I see Mr. Titus gets $200 ? He is a solicitor to the Lands and Forests?

Department ?

A. Yes.

Q. How did he come in for $200 ?

A. I hired him to make a brief up from the files of the Department on

one of the companies. I understood he did that after hours.

Q. You think that was not part of his duty ?

A. I would not think so.

Q. What company was it?

A.- The Spanish River Pulp & Paper Co. That was really an analysis

of the agreements. There were, I think, three or four different companies
and a lot of extensions and that sort of thing.

Q. You. didn't think that was a part of his duty as solicitor for the

Department, to be acquainted with these things ?

A. I do not.

Q._Who is C. H. Cook ?

A. An accountant.

Q. An accountant you had from the outside ? He is not an employee ?

A. No, he is an outside man. He was manager of the Merchants Bank
at one time.

Q. B. W. Harbinson, $7,252. Does that cover a period of service?

A. Yes, nearly six months' service.

Q. Now, I see the Home Bank got $271 interest ?

A. That was on the overdraft.

Q. Over and above the $10,000 the Treasurer gave you ?

A. Yes.

Q. When did you get your $25,000 from the Treasurer?

A. I haven't got that here. I can get it. There were two payments.
Q. I see here that Miss I. M. Gerow was paid $845 for what ?

A. For keeping the books.

Q. Keeping what books ?

A. She had to check up the bills and do all that sort of thing.

Q. You had Smith to take care of the papers and check up the Com-
mission's work, to keep track of all that for you, and then you had a persona!
attendant to check up your travelling expenses, see you got hotel accommodation:

and all that ?
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A. Yes. The idea was this. She had work in the office. She was paid
a salary in the office,

Q. Is she in your office ?

A. Yes. She gets $25 a week, and I gave her $10 a week extra for the

work I had her do after hours for the Commission. She was getting $10 a

week for that.

Q. That would be 84 weeks ?

A. She went with the Commission and paid the bills. She took a type-
writer With her. Then she was paid $50 a week.

Q. She travelled with you and looked after details for the Commission

saw you didn't lose your grip and that sort of thing?

A. Yes. At the same time, with these three or four auditors going

through the books, they would bring in statements and those statements had

to be written.

THE CHAIRMAN: Do you mean to say that she went to look after your

grip?

A. No, no.

THE CHAIRMAN : Then why do you say so. You said yes to that question.

MR. FERGUSON : I understand he did forget it once, only for her.

Q. Then there was an item of $2,000 paid to yourself on August 7.

That, you say, is the only payment you had ?

A.; Yes, out of that $50,000.

Q. Who is Dr. John Carruthers ?

A. I think he is at Little Gore Bay or Little Current.

Q. He is paid $175 for what?

A. There is a refund. We had thirty or forty Indians

Q. The Commission didn't have a doctor too ?

A. No. There were thirty or thirty-five witnesses who went to Sudbury,
and I sent him the money to have them subpoened. There is a statement in the

accounts showing exactly where the money went to.

Q. Here is transportation in a lump disbursement, May 4th to October

nh. R. T. Harding and party, $1,957 ?

A. That is railway fares and all that. That is all given in the statement.

They have asked me now to get vouchers from the railways.

Q. Then you have here Mr. Hanley, who is your partner, $292 ?

A. He was up north in Midland for about a week. He subpoened about

ten or twelve witnesses and paid them their witness fees.

Q. He went up to interview Weston, and White and Chew ?

A. Chew and others of that crowd up there.

Q. And he is the man who secured that evidence ?

A. Yes, the details of the whole of that are shown in the vouchers.

Q. Rex Hotel, International Falls, $583. Did that cover the whole

party's expenditure ?

A. Yes.
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Q. That is International Falls on the American side, opposite Fort

Frances ?

A. Yes.

Q.; Then I see YOU came back to the Prince Arthur Hotel, Port Arthur,

on June 23rd, and you paid them $298 ?

A. Yes.

Q. So that you have a total expenditure here of $34,951 ?

A. Yes. Here is the second part.

Q. Then on this second return is D. B. Rochester, $26,281. That is

not all of the Rochester account, is it ?

A. No, I told you I thought it would be about $32,000.

Q. I understand he claims something like $33,000 to $35,000 ?

A. Roughly speaking, that is what was paid of the amount.

Q. To himself?

A. I do not thiifk so. I don't think that, includes any of his own.

Q. There is nothing for himself in this ?

A. No.

Q. Have you had an account from his as to his own claim ?

A. Mr. R - is settling it now with him. I think possibly the whole

matter will be adjusted in a few days.

Q. You haven't inquired to find out what it is ?

A. I think it is somewhere in the neighbourhood of $32,000.

Q. But what is the amount for his personal services ?

A. I cannot tell you that.

Q. Then wo have S. A. Marks, well known to fame. I see his services

for 76 days are put at $15 a day ?

A. Yes.

Q. As a bushranger ?

A. He went in in charge of that party.

Q. He had charge of a lot of check sealers ?

\ V<X5Xi.. _L t7S._ ,

Q. Ordinarily the Government paid them $7 a day ?

A. They pay sealers $7 a day.

Q. Isn't $5.50 to $6 what sealers get ?

A. They are paid $7 now.

Q. At any rate, Marks was given $15 a day?
A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell me when he began his services ?

A. It is in that bill. I know nothing about it except that it was wages
paid out. The detail is in the file.

Q. At any rate, Marks' bill was $4,010 ?

A. Yes.

Q. On whose operations did he check scale?

A. He check scaled at the suggestion of the Commissioners one of the
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townships of the Spanish River Lumber Company or one of its subsidiary

companies.

Q. Did he check scale a township or a berth ?

A. I think it was a township.

Q. A six-mile township ?

A. No, nine.

Q. Do you recall what township ?

A, You will find it in the papers. It is one of the lettered townships in

the Mississauga reserve.

Q. It cost $4,000 to check scale that ?

A. Yes, the reason of that was that there was a large amount of con-

flicting evidence as to the quantity of blown-down timber still there, and we
were trying to find out who was right,

Q. And he did that under your instructions ?

A. Yes.

Q. You had authority to get any information you liked in any quarter

you liked ?

A. Yes.

Q. There was no question about his authority in going in there ?

A. Not the slightest.

Q. You had full authority to give directions to make searches and collect-

ing all that sort of information ?

A. Yes, if I considered it reasonable, and should be got.

Q. Then there is George Fisher that is the same Fisher ?

A. Yes.

Q. I see he got $8 a day for 48 days, $384 he is an employee of the

Government ?

A. Yes, but he was not on at that time.

Q. Are you sure about that ? He has been employed for years ?

A. I am not sure as to that, but I am satisfied he was not paid by the

Government and by me. I looked after that.

Q. He would not be paid $8 a day by the Government ?

A. No, $7.50 I think.

Q. He is a ranger, or sealer?

A. Yes, I think he is assistant to Mr. Hughson.
Q. Alex. McCallum, $384 he was an assistant to Fisher?
A. Yes.

Q. Who are Burns and Burns ?

A. Lawyers at Fort William.

Q. Theirs is $1,342 what was that account incurred for ?

A. Legal services.

Q. Did you get a statement from them ?

A. There is a bill for every dollar of his charges, what he was paid.
Q. Itemized ? Or in a lump sum ?
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A. It is all itemized.

Q. The bill of Burns and Burns, being a solicitor's account was, I suppose,

O.K'd by the Attorney-General's Department and taxed by them ?

A. No. What I did was this. He sent me a bill. I did not know itt

had to be taxed. He was with me up there. I was alone

Q. Where was Mr. McEvoy ?

A. He was not with me in Fort William.
t

Q. That is one of his complaints, that you sailed on to Port Arthur

without taking him. Isn't that the fact, that that was one of his complaints ?

A. It is not going to help anyone to know.

Q. I do not know about that.

THE CHAIRMAN : That is no part of these accounts.

MR. FERGUSON: Oh, yes. He acted for the people of the Province, and
we are entitled to know everything they did in connection with this. At any

rate, Mr. McEvoy so stated before the Commission, that he resented the fact

that he had not been taken to Port Arthur isn't that the fact ? I don't want
to put it stronger than that, but I know more about it than that.

A. I suppose that will do.

Q. That is a mild way of putting it ?

A. All right.

Q. Then I see P. M. Wiley, $1,576. Who is Wiley ?

A. He is a check sealer of the Government.

Q. WThere was he check scaling ?

A. Away up in the Cochrane district. I think he was up there. He
came down and some person sent him to me as a man who knew the north

country, and I hired him and put him in Port Arthur, in the Crown timber

agent's office at Port Arthur.

Q. You sent him to Port Arthur with authority to take charge of the

Crown Timber Agent's office, to go into the books without any notice to the

Crown Timber Agent there at all ?

A. I don't think there was any notice.

Q. No notice to the Crown Timber Agent until your man walked in on

him?

A. No.

Q. Sort of a vacation, as far as he was concerned, wasn't it ?

A. There was no notice sent to him.

Q. He knew nothing about it, at any rate ?

A. No.

Q. Have you got your correspondence here dealing with different matters

you went into in connection with this Commission's work ?

A. No. Mr. Dennison has all that.

Q. Has your correspondence?
A. Anything that dealt with the Commission.

Q. I suppose it is your correspondence ?

A. When Mr. Dennison was appointed, he came to me and asked me to

let him have everything I had, and I did.
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Q. It is available for this committee ?

A. Yes.

Q. You have a letter here from the Provincial Auditor with reference to

your accounts. On March 3, 1921, I see, he wrote Mr. Grigg:
" I am returning

to your department for further information accounts in connection with the

return made by R. T. Harding against his advance of $50,000 re Crown Timber

Investigation. The details of the information required are set out in the

attached memorandum. I might draw your attention to the fact that accounts

for legal services must be taxed by the Attorney-General's Department, and

also that for any service, no matter of what nature the covering dates, rate

of pay and the nature of the services should be definitely shown. Payments
made to members of your staff for extra services should have been by the direc-

tion of the Minister of Lands and Forests or by Order-in-Council."

Q. That letter was sent to you ?

A. A copy was sent to me.

Q. And with it an accompanying detailed list of the Auditor's objections
to the accounts ?

A. Certainly.

Q. That is filed here in the shape of some 75 or more items?

MB. RANEY: You would not call it an objection to the accounts, but a

request for different vouchers ?

^A.

Yes.

MR. FERGUSON: He objected to passing the accounts in the form in which

y are?

A. He has asked for additional information in reference to the accounts.

Q- But he objected to passing these accounts in the form in which they
are?

A. That may be so. I don't know whether it is or not.

Q. To Mr. Brown Isn't that the fact, that you cannot pass these accounts
in the form in which they are ?

MR. BROWN : That is it.

Q. Now I notice that in a great many of these items the Auditor finds
there are no vouchers and no details of any kind. For instance, take the pay-
ment of $700 to Mr. McEvoy there is no voucher for that at all ?

A. The only voucher in there is some form of a bill from Mr. McEvoy
.ying he has expen'ded $700.

Q. Is that the total amount of his bill ?

A. Oh, no. Those are his disbursements.

MR. RANEY: He didn't voucher it?

A. No.

MR. FERGUSON : I don't suppose that has been arranged since ?

A. My bookkeeper is working on that now, and I expect in a week's time
have it cleaned up.

Q. Lawless, $129 no vouchers ?

A. We wrote them telling them to get those things for us.

Q. Justices Riddell and Latchford no details, no vouchers ?
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A. There is the cheque.

Q. Stanley Meeking, no covering dates
; Niven, no particulars ;

Port

Arthur Hotel, $676, with a note "
why charge for laundry, tailor and tobacco,"

also
"
details of bill of Miss Gerow "

?

A. I think the details are in the bill.

Q. But the auditor says not. You have not satisfied him. Then Nickel

Range Hotel,
" Why charge for extra meals, drugs, etc." ?

A. The bookkeeper will look that up. I don't know anything about it

at all.

Q. You didn't buy the drugs ?

A. No.

Q. D. Smith, $691 no vouchers ?

A. That can't be correct.

Q. I am just reading what the auditor's statement says. Titus, no

measure of service given; Schroeder, no vouchers; Cook, $369, no vouchers.

No vouchers for hotel, pullman or details for meals, tips, etc. Harbison, no

covering dates or rates shown. Was there any rate of pay fixed ?

A. Yes, he got $30 a day for some and $20 for others.

Q. Then we find,
"
Why charge for section to Kenora and no voucher

ior Pullman returning." Were you at Kenora?

A. No, that is Harbison. He went there to go into the books of the

Keewatin Lumber Company.
Q. That is the Backus concern ?

A. Yes.

Q. You didn't find anything wrong there ?

A. We went there the same as to the others.

Q. But there was nothing wrong with the Backus accounts ?

A. No.

Q. Now all the way through I find that your accounts, which cover,

possibly 100 items I find that the auditor raises objections to abount 90

of them? In the Marks account apparently no particulars are given for the

auditor says,
" How is the amount of $4,000 arrived at ?" How was that

arrived at ?

A. He has an account of so many days for himself and so many days for

five or six men
;
what he was paid when he went in and when he came out.

Q. The question is,
" how is the amount of $4,000 arrived at

"
?

A. It is all there.

Q. Burns account no vouchers ?

A. That cannot be right. There is a long detailed bill with a receipt
at the bottom of it for the money.

Q. Mr. Brown says there was no voucher attached, the date of commenc-

ing services not shown, and the account not taxed ?

A. That is right. It wasn't taxed, but he threw off $300 or $400. I

paid it. I think he threw off $300 if my recollection is correct.

Q. Here is McGurin, $446 who is he ? One of Rochester's men ?

A. Yes, possibly.
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Q. Miller, $362 probably another of Rochester's men ?

A. Yes.

Q.No proper pay list, according to the auditor. So there haven't been

any accounts kept sufficient to satisfy the Provincial Auditor, on which he

should pass these items ?

A. That is, the Rochester part of it.

Q. Not only that. Here are 75 objections raised against the accounts ?

A. Yes, but one of them is an objection to the payment of $2,000 to the

judges. There is their letter or the cheque for the $2,000 on account of

services written on the body of the cheque, and the judges' endorsement. What
more do you want than that ?

Q. It is not what I want, but what the Auditor wants ?

A. Well, that is the sort of objections being made. It is perfectly silly

to ask us to get pullman car receipts from a darkey, and that sort of thing.

Q. Other employees do it ?

A. That may be true.

Q. Your secretary apparently didn't look after that?

A. She didn't get receipts, but we will go to the railway and get them.

Q. You told me the other day that you were in the Department in the

latter part of February, ten days or so before the 9th of March ?

A. That is my recollection. Of course, I can't say as to the day.

Q. You were there in the latter part of February those are your own
words ?

A. That is my recollection.

Q. You were making an investigation into the different transactions in

the Department ?

A. In the Department for the first week or ten days I doubt if I did

very much, if I did anything, except to go in and turn the thing over in my
mind. First, I wanted to ascertain how these returns were made, to get copies

of the Act, of the forms and regulations. It was with a view to getting myself
familiar with the matter.

Q. Studying the matter ?

A. Yes, for at least ten days before I did anything.

Q. And then, when you made up your mind that you had something that

should be brought before the Commission, you discussed it with the Commis-
sioners ?

A. No.

Q. Do you mean to tell me, under oath, that you didn't discuss it? I

want you to remember what the Commissioners themselves have said. You
did not discuss with them the matters you were going to bring before them ?

A. That is a wide question.

Q. Listen to my question. I am asking you if you are prepared to say
that you did not submit to the Commissioners beforehand any of the evidence

that you intended to bring before them ?

KA.
No.

Q. You never did ?
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A. No.

Q. Well, we will produce the statement of the Commissioners. You

say you never had any discussion with the Commissioners about any matter

until you got up before them and produced the evidence formally in open
tribunal ?

A. That is not what I said at all.

Q. Let me hear what you did say? I asked you if you discussed with

the Commissioners, before formally presenting it in open court before the

Commission, any matter that you were about to bring before them ?

A. I may have, some.

Q. Is it not a fact that you did some ?

A. I did on some occasions tell them the kind of evidence I was going
to give.

Q. And discussed it with them ?

A. No. I had control of the Commission and the evidence and I pre-

sented the way I wanted to without any suggestions of any kind from the court.

Q. That is not what I have asked you at all. I have asked you if it

was not a fact that you discussed beforehand with the Commissioners matters

you were to bring before them in a formal way as Commissioners?

A. No.

Q. You said a moment ago you did ?

A. I have in this way. In the morning, possibly before the Commission

would start, one of them would say,
"
Well, what are we going to have to-day."

and I would say, perhaps,
" Harbinson is coming up

"
?

Q. Oh, Harbinson be frank, Mr. Harding. Do yourself justice?

A. Now, Mr. Ferguson

Q., Permit me, Mr. Harding, I am examining you as a witness.

MR. RANEY Now, just a moment. The witness has a right to protest

against your asking him to be frank.

MR. FERGUSON: I am examining the witness, I do not require any assist-

ance from the Attorney-General.
MR. RANEY: You are not dominating this committee.

WITNESS : I was going to ask Mr. Ferguson to retract that. I have been

frank with you, Mr. Ferguson, all the way.
MR. FERGUSON : You have said on a number of occasions that your memory

was faulty, that you couldn't recall this, that and the other thing. I am

merely putting it up to you ?

A. That is not lack of frankness because my memory is at fault.

Q. Then I will ask you again. Are you prepared to say that you have

not discussed at any time with the Commissioners evidence you were going to

present to them as a Commission ?

A. I will say that I never did, except in this way. Incidentally I may
have said we are going to have such and such a witness on a question of over-

run, and he has found the over-run so and so, but that had nothing whatever

to do with the shaping of evidence.
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Q. I am content to take jour answer for the time being. Now, who

paid the court reporter ?

A. I did.

Q. Has he been paid in full ?

A. No.

Q. There is a partial payment to Neal somewhere in these accounts ?

AVoc. JL t/o.

Q. And there is still a payment to be made him ?

A. That is right.

Q. Do you know what the balance due him is ?

A. I do not know.

Q. You haven't had any account for that?

A. I think I can get you the balance owing to him.

Q. Was no account sent to you ?

A. Not that I know of. There may have been one sent in to the office,

and I would not see it.

Q. You say you would not see an account in connection with this Com-
mission ?

A., I have a bookkeeper looking after that.

Q. Didn't you vouch for this to the bookkeeper, agree to the bill ?

A. Neal sends his account in there at such and such a price, so many
days, and she knows whether that is right.

Q. The bookkeeper never consults you ?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. As far as this case is concerned, you don't know what the balance is ?

A. No.

Q. But you say there is a balance due him ?

A. Yes.

Q. I think you told me you hadn't paid Mr. Campbell. Didn't Camp-
bell get anything from yon at all ?

A. No.

Q. Do you remember when Campbell came to work ?

A. I cannot give you that date, no.

Q. It was pretty dramatic. I thought you would know ?

A. Oh, no.

Q. Are these the only outstanding accounts besides your own ?

A. I cannot tell you. I can get you a list.

Q. I think you had better get us your bookkeeper ?

A.
(

She can come if you want her.

Q, can you tell me what Neal is paid or what is his account ?

A. Neal was appointed by the Attorney-General. The Commissioners

decided what they wanted and the price was fixed, and whatever that was, it

was to be paid.

Q. So that will be a charge outside of any expenditure we have been

discussing at all the reporter's account ?
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A. I didn't hire him. The Attorney-General hired and notified him.

But he has got some money on account.

Q. From you ?

A. Yes.

Q. Where is the item in your account ?

A. It may not be in there. Those payments in there are payments

finished accounts paid in full. I think the Neal account was not paid in full.

I think there is a payment to be made him yet. We are making up a list to

the 4th of December, and when that is made up it will include everything to

be paid.

Q. When will we be able to have that ?

A. Well, if this list the auditor has given me doesn't take up too much

time, I imagine a week or ten days. You can understand the enormous amount

of twaddle in that.

Q. I am interested in knowing what the total amount is. You don't

have to satisfy the auditor with reference to your bills as far as this committee

is concerned?

Q. In the $84,000 to $85,000 calculated here a week ago, you didn't

include your own disbursements or expenses ?

A. Every detail will be in those accounts.

THE CHAIRMAN : He asked you, did they include your disbursements ?

A. I do not know.

MR. FERGUSON: You are unable to give exact information without the

bookkeeping accounts ?

A. That is right,

Q. Will you undertake, if we adjourn your examination for a week, to

get the accounts here so we can get this thing cleared up ?

A. Yes, I will do that.

MR. MAGEAU : You didn't base any of your returns regarding the timber

inquiry upon the measurement of those logs in the pond ?

A. No.

Examined by K. L. Brackin:

Q. Mr. Harding there is a question I want to ask you regarding some-

thing that was said here the other day. I haven't seen the notes of evidence

before the Commission. But a statement was made in the House in regard
to the inception of the 'Commission, and I would like to ask with regard to

that. The statement was to the effect that the inquiry and I do not know
whether by

"
inquiry

" was meant the appointment of the Commission but

that the inquiry was started for political purposes.

A. I did not say anything of the kind.

Q. Mr. Ferguson I believe stated in the House yesterday
A. I did not say anything of the kind.

MR. FERGUSON: My statement was that the inspiration was political

do you remember that?

A. No, not in that form.
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ME. FERGUSON thereupon referred to the notes of evidence of the pre-

ceding meeting and read that portion of the evidence commencing on the tenth

line of page 37 to the bottom of page 38.

MR. BRACKIN : What I want to get at is this
;
as far as this man Calla-

han is concerned, was it Callahan who first came to you about this matter?

A. Yes.

Q. Go back and tell me, if you can, about when that was. Whether it

was prior to the election of October, 1919, or after the election?

A. After,

Q. How long after?

A. The elections were in October. I think it was in November or the

early part of December.

Q. Prior to the election had there been anything done or any infor-

mation obtained by you for the purposes of the election in regard to the timber

matter any information obtained ?

A. No.

Q. Then during the course of the election certain things came to your
.attention ?

A. I saw in the press that such and such a speaker spoke of irregularities

of different kinds in the Crown Lands Department.

Q. Then Callahan came to you in November or December of 1919 ?

A. Yes.

Q. At what place?
A. In my office.

Q. I won't ask you about the conversation between you and Mr. Calla-

han if you were retained by him. Your retainer was for what purpose?

A. To collect all the information I could in reference to irregularities

of the Shevlin-Clarke Lumber Company at Fort Frances. After it was col-

lected I was then to go to the Attorney-General's Department with the infor-

mation for the purpose of endeavouring to get a commission issued to go into

the matter.

Q. You were to go on whose behalf ?

A. On Callahan's behalf. It didn't transpire because the Commission

was issued before I had completed the inquiry. The Attorney-General's

Department got no information from me of any kind in reference to what I

had collected from Callahan before the Commission issued.

Q. Whatever you have said with regard to political inspiration or any-

thing of that kind did that have reference to the appointment of a Com-
mission by the Government or did it have reference to the original coming to

you by Callahan and to the instructions and retainer given you by Callahan?

A. I got my original idea in reference to it from a political friend of

mine, Mr. Callahan, but that information was not handed to the Department
until after the Commission was issued. I told them I was collecting it and

was checking it up.

Q. The point is this; the whole reference to political inspiration, what-
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ever it was did it have reference to the appointment of the Commission or

did it have reference to the original instructions given to you and your
retainer ?

A. To the original instructions given to me.

Q.- Can you tell this committee whether you, either before you got this

information or after you got this information^ had anything to do with the

appointment of the Commission to make investigation?
A. Nothing whatever.

HON. MR. RANEY: Did you at any time communicate to the Govern-

ment or any member of the Government the source of any information you.

had?

A. No.

Q. Did the Government or any member of the Government know you
were acting for Mr. Callahan ?

A. No. I simply stated I was collecting the information for a client.

I didn't think it was necessary to tell who it was at all. It didn't occur to

me. If it had I would have.

Witness excused.

The Committee then adjourned.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE.

Masch 11, 1921.

The Committee met at 10 a.m., Mr. Curry in the chair.

J. E. ROGERS called and sworn.

Examined by Mr. Dewart:

Q. Mr. Rogers, what is your official position in the Government?
A.- Superintendent of the Ontario Provincial Police.

Q. The Donald McDonald who is stated on page 23 of the Public
Accounts to be Deputy Minister at a salary of $4,400 do you know him ?

A. I know Mr. McDonald, yes.

Q- IWd you receive a request from any source to investigate a matter

relating to him ?

A. I was instructed by the Honourable the Attorney-General to locate

some papers said to have been taken out of the Chamber.

Q. Have you a copy of the letter instructing you to make an inquiry or

investigation ?

A. I cannot say it was a letter.

Q. Have you there a letter forwarded to you by the Attorney-General
containing a complaint made regarding Mr. McDonald ?

A. I saw a letter, I think it was from you.
Q. A letter from myself to the Attorney-General?
A. Yes.

Q. Have you that in the file?
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A. I think it was returned to the Attorney-General.

Q. Then, in consequence of this complaint made, did you make an

investigation ?

A. I did.

Q. And did you report ?

A. I did.

Q. Did you obtain statements from any persons in the course of that

investigation ?

A. I did.

Q. From whom did you obtain statements?

A. From Mr. Hewitt and from Mr. McDonald.

Q. And did you recover the documents ?

A. I did.

Q. From whom?
A. From Mr. McDonald.

Q 4 Where have these documents been since the day you recovered them ?

A. In my possession.

Q. So that the documents you produce as recovered from Mr. McDonald

have been in your custody since the time of the investigation?

A. Yes, I saw Mr. McDonald and told him what I wanted, and he said

the papers had been left in his office.

Q. I just wanted to show that the papers had remained with you. Now
tell us what the complaint was that you were asked to investigate ?

A. If I remember distinctly the charge was that certain papers had been

taken from the desk of one of the members of the Chamber.

Q. The member being?
A. Mr. Stover.

Q. And in consequence of the complaint did you see Mr. Hewitt ?

A. I did, sir.

Q. Did you get a statement from Mr. Hewitt?

A. I did.

Q. Have you that statement there?

A. The Attorney-General has it.

Q. Have you a copy of it?

A. There may be one in my office.

HOIST. ME MILLS : What is the date these were alleged to have been taken ?

MR. DEWART: During the session of 1920.

Q. Have you the statement made by Mr. Hewitt. I thought that was

your possession ?

A. I think that was in my report to the Attorney-General.

Q. Perhaps it will be necessary to get the report to the Attorney-
^eneral.

MR. ROGERS excused to return to his offices for papers desired.

J. D. FLAVELLE called and sworn
;
examined by Mr. Dewart.
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Q. Mr. Flavelle, you produce here upon this return all these pages of

applications for clemency refused under the Ontario Temperance Act from

the 1st of November, 1919, to the 1st of March, 1921. Is that a correct

record from the files of the Department?
A. Yes, as far as my knowledge goes.

Q. Then so far as the papers are concerned in these cases in which

applications have been refused, where would they be?

A. All in the License Department.

Q p if we desire to get production of them they can be brought, upon a

request pointing out the particular case ?

A. Yes.

Q. The applications where there is clemency in whole or part and the

Orders in Council are in your possession?

A. No.

Q. Where are they?
A. In the Attorney-General's Department.

Q. Would these papers include such records of evidence as were referred

for consideration in connection with the application ?

A. Yes, both in these cases and in cases of clemency, the documents on

which we based our recommendation.

Q. We don't need to go outside the Attorney-General's Department to

get the full file of the case where clemency was granted ?

A. Not unless you want to follow it up.

Q. Do your records cover the business of the dispensaries ?

A. No sir.

Q. Who keeps those ?

A. They are kept at the central agency, the wholesale department.

Q. If the Committee desire to investigate and find out the purchases
of liquor made during the last fiscal year and the price at which the liquor

was purchased, the business of the dispensaries and the sale of liquor, the

prices at which it was sold and where it was made who would be the proper
officer to ask for to give us that?

A. Mr. Cleland, or Mr. Birmingham. I expected Mr. Cleland this

morning but he hasn't got here. I think he would be able to go into that

question more intelligently than I could.

Q. Does Mr. Cleland settle the terms of purchase of the liquor you buy ?

A. Yes sir.

Q. Is that subject to your approval or disapproval or do you accept his

reports ? Has he a free hand in purchasing ?

A. The only jurisdiction we have over him is this: We hold a weekly

advisory board. I appear on behalf of the Board of License Commissioners

as chairman, in an advisory capacity. We discuss anything pertaining ta
the work of the dispensaries but practically he has a free hand to do as he
deems wisest.

Q- Then who determines the classes of liquor that are to be dealt with ?
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A. The general manager.

Q. That is as to what different liquors shall be handled and what brands

handled ?

A. Yes sir.

Q. Is there a price list issued from time to time?

A. Yes.

Q. Is that printed?
A. There are a certain number printed and it is posted in the dis-

pensaries.

Q. One of these can be obtained from Mr. Cleland ?

A. Yes.

Q. Then who fixes the prices at which the various liquors are to be sold ?

A. Practically, the general manager. It is discussed very often by the

Advisory Board. The intention is to charge a price including all overhead

charges and delivery to different points in the Province and make a gross

profit of 33 J<3 per cent, on a single bottle. We give special discounts to

medical men and special discounts to druggists, and to hospitals we practically

give it at less than cost. The practice is not to charge hospitals more than

5 per cent, of the original cost price. The carrying out of that is in the hands

of the general manager.
Q. What discount do you allow to medical men?
A. Ten per cent, and to druggists 15 per cent.

Q. So that you add 33^ per cent, gross profit and take 10 per cent, off

that in one case and 15 in another?

A. Yes. '

Q. Do you happen to know what method is adopted so far as the pur-
chase of Canadian whiskey and Canadian ales and porter is concerned. Are
they purchased direct from the distillers and brewers ?

A. Yes, by the general manager.
Q. There are no middlemen as far as whiskey or beer tHat is distilled

or brewed in the Province of Ontario ?

A. Absolutely not.

Q. Do you happen to know what is the price that is charged at the dis-

pensary for ales and porter ?

A. I cannot give you that offhand. I may say that in the matter of
beers we do not adhere to the rule in that we sell beers cheaper than 33^ gross
profit beers and ales and porter.

Q- There has been some complaint, as far as invalid women are con-

cerned, and for whom doctors prescribe porter that 30 cents a bottle is a high
price for beer brewed in the City of Toronto.

A. I cannot say what it is now. When we fixed that basis originally
; was the intention to make that on all liquor including beers, biit we

thought that was working and on the basis that softer liquors were more
ikely to be used without camouflage, the matter was taken up in the advisory
meeting and I strongly suggested a reduction in the price of beer. The in-
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tention was not to charge that to the people actually needing it. At the

present time I am convinced it is considerably below the 3 8^/3 percentage but

I cannot give it to you offhand.

Q. We can get that from Mr. Birmingham or Mr. Cleland? They

would be able to give the figures showing the profits in carrying on the business

last year?
A. Yes, in fact it really is in that report of ours.

MR. TOLMIE: I understand you have submitted a statement of fines.

Do you ever receive any fines where the cases are not gone on with, but paid im

another way. Do you ever receive any fines where the cases are suppressed ?

A. Not as far as my knowledge goes. I do not know of any. I pre-

sume that some of them are convicted without any hearing necessarily of

evidence if they go up and plead guilty and are fined.

Q. Would that appear to the public ?

A. As far as the record goes it would.

Q. Can a case be settled out of court and not appear in the record?

A. I would not think so. Certainly not with the consent of the Board.

Q. What I mean is this : Supposing a man got into trouble. Could he

go d<\wn to the Board and settle the matter and pay his fine ?

A. No such case has ever been handled by the Board to my knowledge.

Q. The reason I asked was this: I have heard of certain cases where

they are said to have come down here and settled the matter. It may be only
a rumour ?. I hope it is ?

A. I have certainly no knowledge of a case of that kind.

Q. And you would know?
A. I ought to.

MB. HOMUTH : A man can be convicted by one of the Provincial officers.

He can go to the magistrate before whom he is to appear and pay his fine

without having a court hearing ?

A. Well, it is possible that may have been done. Personally I don't

approve of that mode of settlement. Certainly it is not with the consent and

knowledge of the Board.

Q. -As to the fines they would collect you would have no knowledge as

to whether they appeared in court or not ?

A. The fines come to us from the respective officers for each district.

They send in a statement showing that so and so was fined and the amount.

We do not go behind that.

Q. In cases like that it would simply be within the jurisdiction of the

magistrate ?

A. Absolutely.

Q. -You would have no knowledge of that ?

A. Absolutely none.

ME. DEWABT: When was Mr. Birmingham appointed general manager?
A. I can get you the exact date.

Q. Was there a special order in reference to that?
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A. Yes.

Mr. Kogers recalled.

MB. DEWART: Have you the correspondence in that matter there?

A. Yes, I think it is all here.

Q. Will you just say what the letters are ?

A. The first is a memorandum to the Hon. Mr. Raney from P. F.

Cronin, secretary to Mr. Dewart, asking for the matter to be investigated.

The second is a memorandum from myself to the Attorney-General reporting

on the case. The next is a letter from Alfred Hewitt, stating how he got pos-

session of the papers. The next is a memorandum from Mr. McDonald to

me regarding the case.

Q. Are there any other records in connection) with this except the papers

recovered ?

A. I think that is all.

Q. Perhaps you had better state what the papers recovered were.

A. A letter from F. A. Clement, Thessalon, to H. H. Dewart, K.C.,

dated 28th January, 1919
;
letter from Canadian Fisheries Association, Mont-

real, to Kenneth S. Stover, Toronto, dated April 12, 1920; letter to K. S.

Stover, dated Bruce Mines, March 4, 1920, from J. P. McCrae, re Thomas

Humphries' clerk; printed copy of petition presented to the Ontario Govern-

ment by the Ontario Fisheries Association, on behalf of the fishermen of

Ontario, that the Ontario Government fisheries should be discontinued; lead

pencil memorandum on Ontario Legislative Assembly paper ;
letter of January

12, 1918, from George F. Horrigan, Port Arthur, to H. H. Dewart, M.P.P.
;

letter dated January 29, 1919, from George F. Horrigan, Port Arthur, to

H. H. Dewart, M.P.P., Toronto; letter dated Port Arthur, March, 1919, from

Richard Vigars, 34 College Street, Port Arthur, to H. H. Dewart, Toronto.

Q. Do you produce all these documents now?
A. Yes.

Q. These have been in your possession since that time ?

A. When I got the letters from Mr. McDonald they were sealed, and

have been that way ever since.

Witness excused.

Memo. Exhibits which went into possession of Col. Little are marked
Exhibit " B "

;
exhibits that did not go into possession of Col. Little, but re-

mained in Mr. McDonald's desk, are marked Exhibit " C."*

Mr. McDonald, called and sworn.

MR. DEWART : Mr. McDonald, you are Deputy Minister of Game and

Fisheries ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long have you acted in that capacity ?

A. Since the fall of 1916 I was acting deputy.

Q. And as deputy since when?
A. About a year later. I am not positive exactly.

Q. At any rate in 1919 you were deputy Minister and have continued
*For Exhibits sec end of Report.
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in that position since ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were deputy Minister in 1920 last session ?

A, Yes.

Q e During which the sessions of the Public Accounts Committee were-

held?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Prior to that time, the time of your appointment, had you been work-

ing with or been interested in any fishing company ?

A. No, except an angling party on holidays.

Q. Had you any interest at any time in any concession or business re-

lating to fishing rights on Lake Nipegon?
A. No.

Q. None whatever ?

A. None whatever.

Q. You were aware there was a local company in which Col. Little

was interested ?

A. Not a local company.

Q. A company?
A. Just J. A. Little.

Q. A concession if that is what it was on Lake Nipfegon ?

A. There were applications made by several parties. I am not prepared

to say whether they were companies or not. Any statement I make may be

used against me, and I want to be correct.

THE CHAIRMAN: You are entitled to no privilege in any statement you

may make before this Committee, and you are protected. You have nothing

to fear regarding any statement you may make. Of course if a statement is

untrue that is another thing.

A. I would give no other than a true statement.

MK. DEWART: There were concessions given by the Government for

fishing in Lake Nipegon?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you recollect now to whom those fishing rights were given in

Lake Nipegon ?

A. Yes, I will get you that A. S. Brown.

Q. What did he have ?

A. He had a contract there were about ten.

Q. What twine did he have?

A. I haven't the contracts. It was in the contracts Thomas Craigie,

Douglas Craigie, J. A. Little, A. McKeown, Alex. McKay, Allan McLeod,
A. McBitchie, A. Ticknor, and in addition to that treaty Indians.

Q. Can you give me approximately what each had?

A. Brown's contract allowed him 15,000 yards. At that time Little

had 30,000 yards and ten pound nets.

Q. How many pound nets did Brown have?

A. Little was the only man with pound nets.
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Q. What about the 'rest, the Craigies?

A. They had about 15 yards.

Q. McKeown ?

A. He had a smaller contract. I fancy 15 yards. I do not know posi-

tively.

Q. So that no one else had as large a contract as 30,000 yards, except

Little?

A. No.

Q. Was that the same contract as he had the year before?

A. Yes, it was a renewal.

Q. And in 1920 was Little's contract renewed for the same yardage ?

A. No, it was reduced in 1920 to 14,000 and ten pound nets.

Q. There was a general reduction in yardage that year?
A. Yes.

Q. Little being reduced with the rest, but still being the largest fisher-

man ?

A. Yes.

Q. Little was the man who was largely interested in the Government

siness, was he not? The Government was buying fish at that time?

A. He was operating for the Government on the contract system.

Q. That contract can be produced and will be put in?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I see by page 602 of the Public Accounts of 1918-19 that J, A. Little

received $40,944.55. What would that be?

A. That would be for fish, and one thing and another.

Q. Purchase of the fish and transportation of fish, and so on ?

A. No; just purchase of fish.

Q. I see. Lower down there is an item of ice, etc., $3,234 ?

A. Yes, we ran short of ice and were obliged to purchase ice from

Winnipeg.

Q. -He got that for you ?

A. Yes.

Q. So that the business of Little and the Department in 1919 was an

important and considerable business ?

A. Yes, $40,000.

HON. ME. MILLS : How many tugs did Little have ?

A. Two tugs and a gasoline launch.

MR. DEWART: What were the tugs, do you know?
A. The steamer Ombdbika, was one, and the other was

Q. Never mind if you can't remember.

HON. MR. MILLS : Was the Ombofoika, built in Lake Nipegon ?

A. Yes.

Q. It had to be built there ?

A. Yes.
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MB. DEWABT: Who built the Ombabika?

A. I did, or under my management.

Q. When you were in the Department ?

A. No.

Q. Before you entered the Department ?

A. Yes.

Q. Were you aware there was a company or partnership Little formed

to handle the business when he first started?

A. No.

Q. Little had applied for a license before?

A. Yes.

Q. Was there a company formed at first?

A. I can't say that.

Q. Was there a partnership ?

A. Mr. Rapsey's name was mentioneed with Little.

Q. Was Rapsey one of Little's partners ?

A. I would not be positive. It was Mr. Rapsey made the application

to the Department.

Q. In what year was that ?

A. That would be in 1917,

Q. Were you interested in either Rapsey's or Little's application when
it was first made?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you have any interest in it at any time ?

A. No, not at any time.

Q. How long did Rapsey's interest in the fishing privilege continue?

A. It never operated at all. It was not granted. The privilege was

not granted.

Q. Was Rapsey interested in the Little concession, do you know ?

A. I do not know, sir, at that time. He may have been for all I know.

Q. Then when did Rapsey come into the service of the Government ?

A. When the Government started to operate Lake Nipegon.
Q. When was that ?

A. In the fall of 1917.

Q.; What capacity was Rapsey engaged in?

A. Rapsey was then preparing to operate Lake Nipegon.
Q. Himself?

A. Himself and Little.

Q. What happened then ?

A. The concession was not granted.

Q. What happened so far as Rapsey is concerned?

A. He was engaged then as foreman by the Government.

Q. Did Little get a concession?

A. Not to my knowledge. Little got a contract.

Q. You are not in a position to say who formed any partnership to

handle the concession or business Little had there?
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A. No.

Q. Was Rapsey interested as a partner?
A. It was clearly understood when I engaged Rapsey that he had no

connection whatever with Little.

Q. If he had you didn't know of it ?

A. That is correct.

Q. Was Little any particular friend of yours?
A. No, sir.

Q. So that there was no reason, as far as your personal dealings with

Little were concerned, why you should protect him?
A. No, sir, no more than any person else.

Q. And if the business of Little with the Department was called into

question there was no reason why you should assist him because of personal

relationship ?

A. No.

Q. Therefore, you would not be afraid to have any matter relating to

Little investigated by any Committee of the House?
A. I have no objection to any investigation.

Q. Now, you were called as a witness before the Public Accounts Com-
mittee of last session. On Wednesday, April 14, on page 9 of the Appendix
to the Journals of last session, I see you were ordered to attend. The Com-
mittee adjourned to meet on April 16, when there was no quorum. On April
21 certain business was taken up. You appeared and were sworn on Friday,

May 7. You recollect that?

&.* j_ es.

Q. And you gave evidence at that time?

A. Yes.

Q. "Now, Mr. McDonald, we have here >a statement signed by you, which
Mr. Rogers has put in to-day ?

A.--Yes.

Q. When did the documents that you referred to in that statement come
into your possession ?

A. It is hard for me to remember the exact date, but what I said in that

statement is absolutely correct.

Q. This says they were placed on your desk on May 3, 1920 ?

A. That would be correct.

Q. Do you recollect the circumstance of coming to my office and seeing
me in my office before you gave evidence at the Committee ?

A. I did not go to your office.

Q- Here in the building. Do you recollect coming in and speaking to

me before you gave evidence?

A. In your office ? No, sir.

Q Don't you recollect the circumstance of coming in and having a

conversation with me, and asking me what the matter was on which you were
to give evidence, and I told you it was with reference to the business of the

Department ?
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A. No, sir. I don't remember such a thing.

Q. At any rate you were examined on the 7th of May ?

A. Yes.
*

Q. At that time you had these letters, which were produced, in your

possession ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You knew their contents?

A. I knew the contents, yes.

Q. You say Hewitt told you to do what you pleased with them?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you realize they were private letters ?

A. I didn't know what they were when he placed them there.

Q. When did you read them ?

A. The next day, the 4th of May.
Q. Three days before the examination in committee?

A. Yes.

Q. You saw that the first letter was a letter headed Port Arthur

Liberal Association, Port Arthur, January 12, 1918, addressed to Mn
Dew-art, and marked "Private." You saw that?

A. Yes, I saw that.

Q. You also saw that the letter dated Port Arthur and marked H. EL

Dewart, M.P.P., was marked "
Personal," is that right?

.A. JL es.

Q. And you saw that the third letter dated Port Arthur, March, 1919,

was addressed to me?
A. Yes.

Q. So that you knew all three of these letters were my personal property,

from their personal character? You knew that?

A. I knew they were your letters.

Q. You knew they were letters that were my personal property?
A. I knew they were your letters.

Q. You knew where Hewitt got them and that he had no right to retain

them in his possession?

A. He didn't make that very clear.

Q. He told you how he had got the letters ?

A. Not in detail, no.

Q. He told you where he got them ?

A. He told me he picked them up.

Q. Did he tell you where he picked them up ? Did he tell you he picked
them up in the room of one of the committees after the committee had risen,

that they were lying on the table?

A. I understood him to say he picked them up in the Committee on

Fish and Game.

Q. After the committee had risen, being evidently papers some member
had left lying on the table ?
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A. That is right.

Q. You saw, on reading these letters, that they were undoubtedly letters

on which I was basing an inquiry, as far as your Department was concerned ?

A., And myself personally.

Q. And under these circumstances, do you think it was an honourable

thing to retain in your possession what you knew to be personal letters addressed

to me?
A. I made two efforts to get in touch with you.

Q. So you said, but I have tried to recall to your knowledge my speaking

to you before you gave evidence.

A. I was never in your office.

Q. I am not going into the witness-box. All I can say is, that you have

no recollection of what is my recollection of the fact. At any rate you gave
evidence on May 7. My recollection is that you were called and gave evidence

at an earlier date, but I may be in error about that. But you understood

olearly at the time you were before the Committee that these were letters on

which I was basing inquiries?

A. I had them with me to hand over to you. I had them ready to hand

them over.

Q. Why didn't you hand them over to the chairman, the acting chair-

man of the Committee ? Did you think it was the honest thing to keep them

in your possession?

A. I didn't look at the matter in that way at all.

Q. Was there anything to hinder you putting them in an envelope and

seeing that they reached me here in the building?
A. No, nothing to prevent me.

Q. Did you think it was an honourable thing to have done ?

A. Well, they were letters of course, that

Q. I am not asking you about the contents. You knew they were my
personal letters?

A. Yes.

Q. You knew I was the leader of the Opposition and here in the build-

ing, that there was no difficulty in getting access to me. Why didn't you return

those letters?

A. I tried twice to take them to you. I spoke to the chairman at that

time. I explained to him.

Q. You never showed them to him, Major Tolmie was acting chair-

man, and he is here. He says you made no reference to letters is that .cor-

rect? You made no reference to these letters, nor did you tell him you had
them in your possession?

A. No, not at that time.

Q. You sat in the Committee, being examined with reference to matters

knowing you had information in your possession on which an inquiry was to

be based. You knew that?

A. Yes.
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Q. You knew you were stifling evidence which might be brought out

against you?
A. No.

Q. Did you realize that?

A. They were pressing me so close, questioning me about Col. Little,

that I wanted to clear myself, clear my character.

Q. Clear your character? If you thought you had to clear your char-

acter why didn't you say,
" These letters have come into my possession in such

a way. Reference is made to me in these letters, and I want to repudiate

these references. They are untrue." Why didn't you adopt that course t

A. I tried twice to get them to you.

Q. You tried to get them to me you know you could have left them

on my desk any time?

A. Well, it was not done.

Q. You knew these letters referred particularly to the fishing right*

Little had. That is correct, isn't it?

A VACJL tJo.

Q. You read this paragraph :

" The Ontario Government granted rights

to a local company headed by J. A. Little, a Tory stalwart, to fish Lake

Nipegon, which had hitherto been a closed lake." You read that?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you realize that if that was so that was a proper question for

inquiry, as to how a closed lake came to be opened and licenses granted to a

member of the dominant party ?

A. There was no license granted.

Q. I am not asking you to determine the facts. Do you realize that

thtt was an important question to consider how the lake came to be opened ?

A. No, I do not.

Q- Don't you think it had any importance?
A. I do not.

Q. A little further down the price at which the fish was sold and the

cost of getting the fish was referred to. That company had been paying 4%
cents per pound at the nets and the price in Toronto was fifteen and sixteen

cents a pound. Didn't you realize that that was an important subject for

inquiry ?

A. No, sir.

Q. You don't think it was ?

A. No, sir.

Q.
" This means that someone is making a fine profit out of the business,

and it appears to me the profiteers are the local company." Do you think

lhat a proper subject for investigation?
A. Not as far as the Government is concerned.

Q. Not as far as the people of the province are concerned ?

A. No.

Q.' A spread from 4% cents to 15 or 16 cents on the market in Toronto

jou don't think is an important subject for investigation?
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A. I quoted the figures last session.

Q. I am not asking you about the facts. I am asking wasn't that an

important subject for investigation?

HON. MR. MILLS : It was not a spread from 4% to 15.

ME. DEWART: Four and three-quarter cents was paid to the fishermen

and the fish were retailing in Toronto at 15 or 16 cents a pound.
ME. MILLS: Yes, to the consumer.

ME. DEWART: Don't you think that it was an important subject for

investigation as to why there was this difference? Between the cost at the

nets in Lake Nipegon and my table in Toronto there was a rise from 4% cents

to 16 cents?

A. No, having full knowledge of the costs.

Q. I am not asking about your knowledge. I am asking didn't you
think that an important subject for investigation?

A. No, I didn't.

Q. Now I only find one reference to you in this letter :

" This means

that someone is making a fine profit out of the business, and it appears to me
the profiteers are the local company. It is stated one of the Department's
own officials is interested in the company, and such assertions do not surprise

me. The official is Donald McDonald, Deputy Fish and Game Warden for

Ontario That sentence caught your eye ?

A. Yes.

Q, And because of that statement you kept these letters in your posses-

sion?

A. My intention was to return them.

Q. So because of that statement referring to you you kept them in your

possession ?

A. I wanted to see you in connection with that.

Q. Is that the reason you kept them in your possession to explain the

itter ?

A. That is the reason.

. You knew that by keeping the letters you were shutting off investi-

ition?

A. No.

Q. You mean to say, as responsible head of the Department that you
didn't realize that fact?

A. These letters were two years old.

Q., They are not too old yet. You realized that by keeping these letters

you were putting it out of the power of others to examine you on these state-

ments ?

A. That was not my intention.

Q. You didn't realize that?

A. No.

Q. Now in the next letter it is stated regarding this Nipegon fishing

company that "the Deputy Minister of a member of the company on its
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formation was G. H. Rapsey." I am not discussing the truth or falsity of

that. I am pointing out the statement made :

" The Deputy Minister, D.

McDonald, was a member of the company at its formation, as was G. H.

Rapsey, inspector of the Department. It was part of Little's plan to have

McDonald and Rapsey transferred to the service of the Department, so that

matters mighlfc be manipulated the better for the company. MacDonald and

Rapsey may not appear on the board of directors now, nor on the annual state-

ment submitted to the Government, but they are, nevertheless, part and parcel

of the company."
Q. You read that statement?

A. I absolutely deny it. It is not correct.

Q. Didn't you keep this letter in your possession that there might not

be references to that. Isn't that the fact, as far as you are concerned?

A. No, sir.

Q. Can you tell me any other reason why you should retain that letter ?

A.
( No, I simply held it.

Q. It was because the reference was to you and not because of what

referred to Little?

A. Absolutely.

Q. Then there was a reference to Craigie as to his concession. You
read that

" The Department covered up to the extent of allowing one Thomas

Craigie, a local fisherman, to operate to a limited extent." You read that ?

A. Yes.

Q. The whole letter was evidently the basis upon which an investigation

might be made into the Lake Nipegon conditions?

A. It is there.

Q. Then there was a further letter from Mr. Vigars in March, 1919,

saying :

"
It is well known that some time since the Department gave to

J. A. Little and George Rapsey, both of Port Arthur, the right to fish Nipegon
Lake."

A. I read the letter.

Q. Without going into these matters further the whole of that letter

refers to Little and Rapsey I see no reference to yourself in that letter. You
read the letter over at the time ?

A. I read the letter.

Q. At the conclusion of that letter was this :

"
I do not wish to have

my name used without first asking me." You saw that?

A. I read the letter.

Q. Now, Mr. McDonald, when you came before this Committee, before

you told us that you had a statement to make on your own account. No one

asked you a question about your own connection with this company ?

A. No, sir.

Q. No one asked you any question about Little or Rapsey?
A. There were questions about Little.

Q. About a connection between Little and Rapsey ?
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A. No.

Q f|
No suggestions made as might have been made if anyone had had

those letters in his hands for examination ?

A. No.

Q. I see at the time Mr. Pinard asked you at the bottom of page 119

of the Appendix to the Journals of 1920 :

I" There is A. McEwan. He got $15,000. Did he ask for
' more

twine '

? and you replied
'

They all asked for more. Col. Little asked for

more twine. It has been a thorn in the flesh of the Department, every-

one asking for more twine. They are not satisfied.'

"
Q. Is McEwan fishing in the same lake as Little ?

"A. Yes. There is something I want to explain in connection with

that. . I understand there have been some charges made that I was in

with Col. Little. I am on oath, and I am prepared to say that neither

myself, nor my wife, nor any relation of either one of us ever got a five-

cent piece from Col. Little, that I never had any interest in it, nor have

at the present time.

" MR. PINARD : I didn't hear that from anyone.
"A. I just wanted to make that clear.

" COL. COOPER: I was not thinking of you in connection with it.

"A.
(

I cannot tell you anything about Col. Little's politics. No
doubt Hon. Mr. Macdiarmid knew all about it."

Q. Your reason for making that statement was because you had read

that statement. You had them in your pocket sitting in this Committee?

A. I had them on the table.

Q. And that is the reason you made that statement?

A. Yes.

Q. You didn't think the honourable thing for an employee of the Depart-
ment would have been to hand these letters over to the chairman, and say,
:c These letters came into my possession, and I want to clear myself in refer-

ence to these charges?"
A. I suppose that would have been the proper way.
Q. Mr. Pinard told you he hadn't heard charges from anyone?
A. Yes.

Q. Then after the Committee rose you say you saw me?
A. Yes. I made a remark to the chairman. -

Q. Was the time you refer to as seeing me in your office after this ques-
tion had been investigated by Mr. Rogers?

A. No, sir; before that.

Q. You say you saw me in your office and that is the first time you recol-

lect seeing me in connection with any business of this kind?

A. Yes.

Q. Was that before or after Mr. Rogers investigated ?

A. Before. I think it was the next day.

Q. The next day after you gave evidence before the Committee?
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A. Yes. I told the chairman-

Q. I am not concerned about what you told the chairman. When you
saw me a day or so after you appeared before the Committee you had these

letters in your possession ?

A. No, sir. Not when you were in my office.

Q. Did you make any reference then. to these letters?

A. No. You were in with Mr. Pinard.

Q. That was about another matter. At the time when I saw you in

your office after this Committee had met you never told me anything with

reference to these letters, did you?
A. No; I didn't complete the story. I told you there was no truth in

the statements made against me.

Q. You never intimated that these letters had been in your possession?

A. I never thought of it at that moment.

Q. Now, Mr. McDonald. You thought to repudiate the contents of

the letters, yet you say you did not recall having had the letters ?

A. I had more in my mind the charge against myself than anything
else.

Q. More than the fact of having the letters ?

A. Yes.

Q. Were the letters at that time in Little's hands 2

A. Yes.

Q- You handed the letters to him to read?
A. No, sir.

Q. Then how did he get them ?

A. He picked them up off my desk. I beg pardon, sir, that is not

right. Col. Little came in and made inquiries for the letters.

Q. What letters?

A. These letters.

Q. How did he know they were in existence?

A. Because I told him I was accused of being in the company with him.

Q. When did you tell him that ?

A. Some time after making the statement to the Public Accounts Com-
mittee. Before you were in my office.

Q. Did you tell him how you knew there were charges ?

A. Yes. I told him the charges were made by letter.

Q. Did you tell him whose letters they were?

A. I do not think so. I do not remember that.

Q. Did you tell him they were private letters of mine?

A. No. I didn't say they were private.

Q. You told him they were letters addressed to me?
A. No. I don't think so at that time I would not be sure of that

fact, sir.

Q. You were more anxious to protect Col. Little than the public interest ?

A. No. I was more anxious to protect myself.
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Q. You were clearing yourself in handing these letters over to Little ?

A. I spoke to Little for the simple reason that he had a contract, and
I was supposed to be in with him.

Q. So you expected him to defend you?
A.'No, no.

Q. At any event you told him about them, and he came to your office.

Where were the letters when he came into your office ?

A. Locked up in my desk.

Q. You were taking good care of them you kept the fact that you had

them locked up in your breast, and you kept the letters locked up in the

drawer. Isn't that the fact?

A. The letters were in the drawer.

Q. What happened when Li'ttle came in the letters being locked in

the drawer?

A. I would not give them to him.

Q. He didn't take them out of the drawer?

A. No.

Q. Did you unlock the drawer and take them out?

A. Yes.

Q. And read them?
A. Yes.

Q. You read them to him ?

^- Just certain sections, just the portion where I was involved.

Q. What happened ?

A. I held the letters in my hand until Little went out.

^- There is a basket at the end of my desk, and there is a small clock

there. I had them folded up with the intention of putting them back in the

drawer. I just put them there by the clock, standing on their edge.
Q. And you want this Committee to believe that you did not leave them

out so that Little might come back and pick them up?
A. Oh, no.

Q. So that if he came in and put his ha'nd on the table and took them

you could swear you never gave them to him?
A. "No. A day or two after he came in again, and I handed him the

letters, and told him to read them. After he read them I placed them back
in the same place, and Little took them from there.

Q. Without any protest from you?
A. I told him, "Don't you dare."

Q. Naughty man, don't you dare, was that it? What did you do to

prevent him getting them?

A. Nothing. He said he would bring them back.

Q. Did you slap him on the wrist. (No answer.)

Q. He took them away?
A. Yes.

Q.; And he promised to bring them back ?
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A. Yes, lie promised to return them.

Q. You know now that the next thing I found my private letters were

floating around in Port Arthur, and the gentleman who wrote them was being
threatened with legal proceedings?

A. I was not aware of that.

Q. Have you any explanation to make to excuse your conduct as a

responsible officer of the Department?
A. No more than what I have given.

HON. MR. MILLS: In connection with that letter involving you and

Little, connecting you, was the information you saw in that letter the first

intimation you had of any agitation at the head of the lakes in connection

with the Little contract?

A. No, sir.

Q. That was not the first intimation you had of it ?

A. No, the papers were full of it.

Q. That was ancient history you saw there?

A. Yes, sir.

THE CHAIRMAN : If that is so, why did you bother with these letters at

all. Why did you keep them? If they were ancient history there was less

reason why you should keep them ?

A. I didn't think the letters were of any great value to anyone.
Q. Here are letters addressed to Mr. Dewart, and marked " Private "

and "
Personal.

7 '

Surely the first thing you should have done after you saw
these letters were not intended for you was to put them in an envelope, and
send them down to Mr. Dewart's office. Isn't that so?

A. I didn't do that.

Q. Isn't that the first thing that should have suggested itself to a man
in your position ?

A. There is more in connection with this case that I would like to

explain to this Committee?
THE CHAIRMAN : Anything you want to explain, we are glad to hear it
A. Shortly after the letters were turned over to the Attorney-General's

Department, Mr. Hewitt came to me and made certain statements in connec-

tion with the papers.
THE CHAIRMAN : I do not think we are interested in knowing what took

place after you had the letters in your possession and retained them. There
is nothing that -happened after that that we are interested in.

WITNESS : Hewitt tried to get me to put up money. I personally didn't

know where I was at. I thought Mr. Dewart was after me. I thought there

was a trap laid for me, because Hewitt afterwards came back and tried to

get money.
MR. DEWART: What for?

A. To settle the case.

Q. To pay his lawyer, or what?
A. No, not to pay his lawyer, to have the case withdrawn. I said,

"Here, are you trying to get me further involved in this ?"
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Q. You know as a matter of fact I had an information against Hewitt

for theft, in the police court. While I was away it happened that the wit-

nesses weren't there and Col. Denison said he wasn't going to 'have the case

stand longer unless the evidence was given, and Mr. Corley marked the case

"withdrawn." You say you thought I was after you. I tell you frankly
I hat if he had been convicted I intended to prosecute you for receiving. I

was after you alright.

Q. When Hewitt came to you and wanted to get money, it aroused

your suspicions? Who did you state those suspicions to?

A. To my lawyer.

Q. When Hewitt came to you and wanted money was it to defend

himself or to hush things up ?

A. To hush things up.

Q. What could he hush up ?

A. I don't know.

Q. What could he hush up with the papers in Mr. Rogers' possession?

A. I am only giving you what happened.

Q. Did he think that by getting some money he would be able to hush

up the Provincial Police?

A. No, I don't think that was it,

HON. ME. MILLS : Did he mention the sum?
A. Yes, $200.

THE CHAIRMAN : That is ridiculous. You know that all the papers
were in the hands of Mr. Rogers in the Attorney-General's Department. What
could he hush up ?

A. He wanted to have the case hushed up by paying this $200.

THE CHAIRMAN : You went to Mr. Rogers and Mr. Rogers told you
to pay no attention to it, to Hewitt ?

A. I went to my lawyer as well.

Q. You went to Mr. Rogers didn't you, to the Superintendent of Pro-

vincial Police, and he told you to pay no attention to Hewitt at all ?

A. Maybe I mentioned the thing. Something was said between Mr.

Rogers and myself on that. I do not recollect his exact words.

Q. But that was the effect of what he said. That you were not to

concern yourself about any demand by Hewitt ?

A. Yes, I fancy Mr. Rogers would give me that advice.

Q. That isn't what I am asking. Did he give you that advice?

A. Honestly, I am not prepared to say his exact words.

Q. I didn't ask for his exact words. Was that the effect of his words ?

A. Yes, that was the effect,

Q. Then why hesitate about it ?

The witness was then excused, and the Committee adjourned.

I
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March 16, 1920.

THE PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE.

The Committee met at 10 a.m., Mr. Curry in the Chair.

WALTER L. HAIGHT called and sworn.

MR. CHAIRMAN : Have you got your returns here ?

A. I have a certified copy of them, sir, hack to 1906.

Q. Have you them here for 1919-20 ?

A. Yes, sir, they are included, down to date.

Q. This sheet, Exhibit A, is a complete return of the fines in the

trict of Parry Sound ?

A. Yes, sir, for the year indicated.

Q. The year 1920 ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Does that include a return of all the fines that have been imposed

within your jurisdiction ?

A. So far as I know.

Q. Does that include returns of fines made by inspectors or officials who

are also, by reason of their inspectorship, magistrates?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. There are some of that class ?

A. I believe so.

Q. Do they make their returns to you ?

A. They are supposed to.

Q. In so far as you are concerned then this sheet should contain a record

of all fines inflicted upon anyone within your district by anybody having the

authority of a magistrate?
A. Quite so.

ME. HALL: About the 6th of November a seizure was made of furs by
some warden or officer consisting of or?e beaver, one mink, and two skunk sking.

The seizure was made from Mr. Forman of Severn Falls. I am informed that

this case was settled without a proper trial. Do you know anything about it ?

Is that in your jurisdiction?

A. No.

Q. You don't know anything about it ?

A. No.

Q. Magnetawan is in your district ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. On November 12, according to my record here, a seizure was made*
at Cooper's Camp, Magnetawan, by one of the officers or wardens, who received
the sum of $50 and took the moose. I am informed that this was handed to

Ely. I cannot find that any trial took place ?

A. It seems to me there should have been a trial.

THE CHAIRMAN : Let us get the date, if you can ?
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A. The date was November 12, 1920.

Q. We haven't anything here on this sheet after the end of October,

1920.

A. That is up to the date of the last returns.

MB. HALL : Have you had many cases reported to you of infractions of

the law, of men being fined by the local magistrates or justices of the peace
are you getting anything like the number that we have reason to believe are

being tried, and fines imposed?
A. That is a pretty hard question to answer, because I am dependent

altogether on rumor for what takes place. I hear of other cases that take

place from time to time, but I don't appear to be getting returns from them all.

Q. Did you ever here of a case of a bear in your district ?

A. I did, yes.

Q. Did you get any information about that ?

A. No, I never got any return or conviction regarding that. That is

the case at Nipissing. I have no report on that.

Q. No return was ever made, no trial took place in regard to it ?

A. No.

Q- ^o doubt there are several others we have heard about it is the
common talk of the district?

A. Yes, it seems to be.

Q. When Ely came on the job, did he come to see you ?

A. No.

Q- You are the District Crown Attorney in charge of law enforcement
in the district, and he didn't come to see you?

A. No.

Q- He didn't come and report to you at all ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Didn't consult you, or anything of that kind ?

A. No, sir.

Q. You know this man Ely he has been a resident of our town for a
considerable length of time?

A. Yes.

that kindf
WaS ^^ ^ C0mmunicate with ?ou and Set advi<*, or anything of

A. Certainly.
Q.-He also had an opportunity of communicating with you in regard

:o any fines that had been imposed ?

A. Yes.

Q. And he didn't come to you with any fines
A. No, he didn't.

Q. He didn't come and report any seizure, or any convictions?
f course he would not be bound to do so

of fact> the convictions should be recorded
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A. The convictions should have been, yes.

Q. And if convictions had been recorded you would know that certain

fines had been imposed ?

A.; I would know it, of course, in that way.

Q. You didn't get this material to enter in your books ?

A. There has never been any conviction recorded by Mr. Ely. I do not

know whether Mr. Ely is a justice of the peace ex-officio or not.

Q. ;Have you any knowledge of a case in our.own town where men were

fined and confiscation took place for hunting without a license ?

A. I did, by conversation with the accused and the magistrate.

Q. And that was within the precincts of our own court?

A. Yes.

Q. There was a trial held that you were not at was there a magistrate

in town at that time?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you any idea why it was the local magistrate was ignored, and

the 'Crown Attorney ignored, and another magistrate and prosecutor brought
in from Toronto to take your places ?

A. Fortunately the magistrate is here, and he can give you a full explan-

ation of that.

Q. You were not approached in regard to that matter?

A. I was not spoken to about it at all. Of course they were under no

obligation to speak to me. As a matter of fact, they didn't.

Q. What I wanted to establish was that there was a magistrate there

who has been giving satisfactory service for a good many years ?

A. Yes.

Q. And you were ignored, and two men were brought in to try these

cases, a magistrate who was only a magistrate as relating to the game laws ?

A. That is right.

Q. That was one of the charges I have laid against the administration.

Q. Have you 'heard anything of cases in connection with Mr. Mc-

Kaughton ?

A. He has never appeared officially in my records. I would have no
information of him in the records.

Q. Have you had any reports of seizures by him ?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you ever heard- tell of him passing as a fur buyer ?

A. Yes, in correspondence.

Q. People have written to you to that effect?

A. Yes, two or three, I think.

Q- Complaining that the game warden had posed to them as a fur

buyer, that they had unfortunately tumbled and that he had seized the furs

and prosecuted the party on them ? Would you consider that a fair and' just

way of doing business ?

A. I would not like to offer an opinion on that.
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Q. Is there any other information you can give us ?

A. Yes, if this Committee desire to hear a statement in regard to it.

THE CIIAIKMAN : I have no objection.

WITNESS : Mr. Chairman and gentlemen. What I prefer to do is to clear

up the situation as far as it affects me and as far as it affects my knowledge
of the administration of the game laws of our district are concerned. I know

nothing about any charges made. I made no charges against any official and

I was not aware I was down here to give evidence as a witness in reference

to any specific charges. .Nevertheless, I have 'had, like every one else, knowl-

edge from hearsay as to the administration of the Department, and what I have

to say' is pretty much what I said to the Public Service Commission. I called

attention to the fact that there were one or two provisions in the act which I

thought needed to be remedied, provisions in the act which I thought inimical

to fair play, which Mr. Hall had evidently tried to get at with perhaps insuffi-

cient knowledge. Among those provisions is one which enables a vgame warden

arid other named officials to act with alll the authority of a justice of the peace
and, amongst others, so low an official in the service as an overseer may, if

he is authorized b}
T Order-in-Council, act as a justice of the peace, and may

convict on view.

THE CHAIR MAX : How long has that provision been in the act?

A. I cannot say. It seems to me it has been in many years. This con-

victing on view, it seems to me, is opposed to every principle of British justice.

I do not just exactly understand what it is. I have sought to find out if there

is any precedent in law for a justice of the peace convicting on view, but neither

myself nor the county judge, nor anyone else, was able to trace it back to any

decent foundation. In England, apparently, justices under the highways

act were able to convict on view, but it seems to have been restricted to some

minor offences.

THE CirAimiA.x: When you say "decent" you mean well-established?

A. Yes. Persons designated in the act as qualified to act as justices of

the peace are, as 1 understand it, the deputy Minister, the wardens and inspec-

tors and some others named who are not field men at all, and may never re-

quire to use it. If an overseer is given that power then the overseer is also

\\ constable and if, as- a justice of the peace, he convicts on view, he cannot

iirre-r <vn view, because, I take it, he cannot act in both capacities. If he

convicts on view he won Id be bound in bringing in a conviction to have a mem-
orandum of the admission of the accused, if there was such, or a memorandum
of his own evidence as to what that view consisted of and what the fine was,

and that should get to me in some way as a trial before a justice of the peace.

Speaking generally, I have never had such a thing in my possession. If there

have been seizures, which I know of only by rumor, there has never been a con-

viction brought to me. In any case where there has been a conviction on view
in our country there has been nothing to appear here in the public records.

IThen,

another thing, in speaking to the Commission, I called attention to the

tVt that there was no central clearing house for the payment of fines, that
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justices of the peace in all their cases under the O.T.A. were required to hand

their fines over to me, and by me they were sent to the Provincial Treasurer.

The game act has a provision that all fines are to be paid to the Provincial

Treasurer. You will see that from the year 1906 down to the last return in

1920 not more than four per cent, of such fines, I should say, have been paid

to the Provincial Treasurer. Yo-u will find, as I said to the Commission, that

the justice of the peace doesn't know to whom these fines should be paid.

They are paid to overseers and counsel conducting the prosecutions. The

large bulk of them were paid to Mr. Tinsley, and they have been paid to all

kinds of people, and I think that in itself is an improper principle. I think

these fines should all have gone through some central clearing house and thus

found their way to the Provincial Treasurer.

THE CHAIRMAN: Before you leave that You consider that they should

go to the Provincial Treasurer through you as District Attorney ?

A. Yes, sir.

MR. EVANS : You say these fines were paid to all classes of people ?

A. All classes of officials.

[WITNESS (continuing) When the member of our district and others

spoke to me about the fines; that were being imposed in our district recently, it

occurred to me that if that system had been followed there would have been

no occasion for that sort of thing, for rumors of that kind. A record of these

convictions would be formally made with the fines and the fines would go direct

to the Provincial Treasurer, and set these rumors at rest at once.

THE CHAIRMAN: I understand the position you take is this: That any
officer who undertakes to convict on view should make a memorandum of his

own evidence, a memorandum of the facts as he found them on view, should

make' a formal conviction and return that formal conviction, together with the

evidence and findings, to you, which should go as of record in your office, and

that any fines or confiscation should come to you to be forwarded by you, as

the chief officer of the administration of the law in that district, to the proper
officer in Toronto?

A. Quite so.

MK. SINCLAIR: I understand that is the rule?

TJIK CHAIKMA.X : That is what he says it ought to be.

MR. SINCLAIR:" Is that the law as you understand it to be now?
WITNESS: The law is that fines are to be paid to the Provincial Treas-

urer. That is what the game and fisheries act says. But as a matter of fact

all other fines have to go to the Provincial Treasurer with the exception of

the O.T.A. fines which go through me. I see no reason why these should not

come from me.

THE CHAIRMAN : There would be a record if they did. If any one desired
to come to your office he would be entitled to search and ascertain proceed ings
which had been taken in any particular case ?

Q. That would set at rest all rumors and they would know exactly what
had taken place in respoct to any matter that became a matter of public dis-
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Icussion (

A. Exactly. 1 desire to say that 1 have always been desirous of helping

the officials of the .Fish and Game Department. I have never stood in their

way, and I have the friendliest feeling for the officials.

MR. TOLMIE : Who did you say had power to try these cases '(

A. The magistrate, of course. Then as to the others, all persons desig-

nated in the Fish and Game Act.

Hex. MR. MILLS: u The Deputy Minister, superintendent, and inspectors

and wardens of game and fisheries, overseers authorized by their appointment
to a@t as justices of the peace, and the superintendent and inspectors of the

Ontario Provincial Police shall be justices of the peace in and for every

county or district for the purposes of this Act." That is section 59 of chapter

53.

ME. TOLMIE : Do you think that is a wise method of handling these cases,

that they should have that power ?

A. No, sir. I think from the way it has worked out it is a vicious idea,

Hox. MR. MILLS: Do you know whether these so-called convictions were

really convictions with fines imposed, or just simply tenders by the person

caught in the act ?

A. I know nothing about that.

Q. You were saying they were convictions ?

A. I am not saying anything against the officials.

Q. The inference I took from your remark was that such was the case-
at they were real convictions ?

A. What I say is this, that from reports I have had some officials, I do
ot know whether deputy game wardens or overseers, have been in the habit

of going to people who have committed offences, or on view finding them guilty,

fining them and confiscating the furs and that sort of thing without making
any record of it. I do not know whether that is done at the request of the

guilty party or at the request of the overseer. I know nothing about the facts

except as they were reported to me.

MR. TOLMIE : The very fact that a fine was taken would imply a conviction ?

A. It ought to.

THE CHAIRMAN: Your position is this, as I understand it, that in order
at there should be justification for any official having in his possession either

urs or money which had been taken from any citizen, there should be a record
f the conviction \

A. Yes, there ought to be a trial or something that stands in lieu of a

trial.

HON. MR. SMITH : I understood you to say .so far as your knowledge went
of convictions and fines, that only four per cent, of that amount found its way
to the Provincial Treasurer?

-Xo, only about four to five per cent, of it had been payable to the
Provincial Treasurer by the person making the convictions. The record there

speaks for itself.^
^1^,11
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Q. I fo^t understand that. Bo I understand you to say that the returns

you make here of fines that come through you represent only abour four or

five per cent, of the fines that come to the Provincial Treasurer ?

A. That is an additional statement. I would say that something between

seven and ten per cent, may have come through myself. Occasionally, you will

see by the statement, they are paid to the Attorney-General.

Q. Those would be fines imposed by magistrates on convictions ?

A. Yes.

HON. MB. NIXON: Who was this official Ely?
A. I presume a deputy game warden or some officer of the Game and

Fisheries Department.
MR. MAGEAU : According to your view the game and fishery laws should

be changed to prevent this kind of unfairness ?

A. If you will look over that record you will see where the justices have

made moneys payable sometimes to the prosecuting attorney. I see a fine here

payable to John Woods John Woods was a deputy game warden.

Q. Your opinion would be that the law concerning game and fishery

seizures should be administered in the same way as other laws?

A. My opinion is that the whole amount in each case should be paid

by the justice of the peace to myself and by me sent to the Provincial Treasurer

and divided up afterwards if there was any division to be made.

MR. HALCROW: Did you at any time know of any salaried officer who
received a portion of the fines ?

A. No, sir, I didn't.

Q. You don't know of any case ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Either in years past or since?

A. No/ sir. I did not.

THE CHAIRMAN: Referring to your statement of a moment ago. What
you meant was this, that of th& returns made to you, four per cent, of those

returns have been made as having been paid direct to the Provincial Treasurer ?

A. Quite so.

MR. NIXON: There was nothing improper or irregular about the other

method of making returns ?

A. It is just as you happen to look at it. The Act savs they shall be

paid to the Provincial Treasurer. If a payment to J. White and Woods and

other people is a payment to the Provincial Treasurer, then it is in accordance

with the Act. If not, it isn't.

MR. TOLMIE : If it was paid direct to you and through von to the Provincial

Treasurer, you would have in your office a complete record of the whole thing?
A. Exactly.

MR. HALL: I would like to say at the commencement of this that the

matter was brought to my attention by a letter I received from one of my
constituents, who had applied for the position of game warden, township

game warden, and who had complained bitterly about the depredations bv
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people and-of the game laws being ignored. So he wanted to be a game warden.

His name was McGee.

THE CHAIRMAN: I presume that anything brought up here by a member
is brought up in the interest of the Province at large.

MR. HALL : This letter contained a letter from the Department, in which

this man was offered a position of game warden on these terms; no salary

attached, but he gets one-half the fines.

HON. MR. MILLS : Is that game warden or deputy game warden ?

MR. HALL : I cannot remember.

HON. MR. MILLS: There is a vast difference. We have one hundred

deputy game wardens.

MR. HALL: I will let you call him what you like. But his remuneration

was to be one-half of the fines. I am trying to show the connection between
/ O

this half-fines business and the statements made there.

MR. GEORGE MOORE called and sworn:

THE CHAIRMAN : What position do you occupy ?

A. Police magistrate of Parry Sound in the western part of the district.

Q. Can you define it any closer than that ?

A. T am police magistrate for the town of Parry Sound and for the

district of Parry Sound West.

Q. And as such have jurisdiction to what extent ?

A. T have the full powers of a police magistrate.
MR. HALL: Do you remember having a visit made to you by one Ely re-'

gardino- the fish and game laws ?

A. The first time I saw Mr. Ely was somewhere about the middle of

October, 1920. Until then he was unknown to me, a perfect stranger. One
mornino-, as I was sitting in my office, Ely came in in company with another

gentleman and was introduced to me as a game officer. I motioned to him to
take a seat, and there were the usual salutations. He took a seat and went

talking in an informal sort of way. I was busy and there were others in

y office. Ely. was talking, and T got the impression from his conversation
at he was some kind of a permanent officer of the Fish and Game Depart-

lent. His conversation was very strong on the fines he had imposed, wnafc

ig fines he had collected, along in that way. I went on with my work
;
I was

busy writing out reports.

THE CHAIRMAN : Tell us as near as you can what he said ?

A.- There was nothing particular, he left about an hour afterward. Then!
came in another day shortly afterwards.

-Before we get away from that first day, tell us what was said that
material ?

A. There was nothing material that day. The second day he said:
How do you impose fines ? What do you do with remittances ?'" I said,
Well, Mr. Ely, all my remittances are made to the Provincial Treasurer."

Well," he said, pulling out a copy of the fish and game laws, "You knoyv
e-half of the fine is given to the person making the information." "

All
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right/' I said,
" have it your way, that is what I do with mine. All the fines

I get for infractions of the Act are remitted to the Provincial Treasurer."

He was talking that morning, telling us about making seizures at different

places.

ME. HALL: Do you remember any place where he made a seizure?

A. I think it was at Sparrow Lake.

Q What was that ?

A. Quite a large seizure.

Q. Did he tell you what it was ?

A. I didn't pay particular attention. He was in my office there talking,

I cannot say what it was he got.

Q. Did he say he seized any boats or fishing tackle?

A. There was some outfit of that kind. It was a general seizure, some

kind of a tourist's outfit.

Hox. MR. MILLS : Was Constable Knight in your office at that time ?

A. I think Constable Knight was not in there at that time. I think Mr.

Armstrong was there.

Q. And Constable Knight?
A. I think now, perhaps, Constable Knight was there too.

Q. And a man named Armstrong, a deputy sheriff?

A. Yes.

MR. HALL : Did he say what he fined these people ?

A. What struck my attention was that he said he fined them something
like a thousand dollars, that the man got saucy, so he doubled the fine on him.

Q. He told yon he made a seizure of furs from a certain man, seized

his outfit and fined him a thousand dollars, and that when the man got saucy
he doubled the fine?

A. That is the substance of it. He didn't tell it to me particularly. He
said it in the office.

THE CHAIRMAN : Give us your evidence in concrete form and more directly
to the point. Tell us just what he said ?

A. That is about all I remember 'of that. Then the third time

MR. MILLS : Did he say on what date that occurred ?

A. No, I cannot say that.

MR. MILLS: He only got there on the 9th of November, so it must have

been since that date?

A. No, he was there before that. He was there before the deer season

opened. That was the 5th of November. It would be somewhere about the

latter part of October.

THE CHAIRMAN : Then tell us about the third time what time was that,

can you give us the date ?

A. No, I cannot.

Q. Give it as near as you can?

A. It would be somewhere about the beginning of the deer season, about

the 5th of November. That is as near as I can put it.

Q. Tell us what the material conversation was?
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A. He came in on this occasion and said :

" Mr. Moore, regarding fines

do you make all your remittances to the Provincial Treasurer ?" I said
" Yes."

tl

Well/' he said,
" who do you pay the money to ?" I said

"
It is all paid

to the Provincial Treasurer. That is the rule I inaugurated when appointed

police magistrate, and that is the rule I intend to follow." He said,
" That is

not the way we have been doing it. Where am I going to get my money ?"

I said
" I don't know where you are going to get your money, but that is the

rule I made then and the rule I am going to follow. All the fines and re-

mittances I get I am going to send to the Provincial Treasurer." I repeated
it to him,

"
I inaugurated that plan when appointed, and I am going to follow

it until my superior officer directs me not to follow it; until my superior
officer tells me to do the contrary I will follow that. What is more, that is

according to the fish and game law." He says,
" If you look at the fish and

game law you will find the moiety is to be paid to the person laying the charge,"
and it is possible it can be considered that way if you want to do it, according
to the reading of the fish and game laws, but in another place it says that all

fines must be paid over to the Provincial Treasurer.

THE CHAIRMAN : Go on and tell us what took place between you ?

WITNESS: He walked to the door and says, "Well, there won't be many
cases come here," or

" There won't be any cases come here."

Q. Is that all ?

A. Yes, that is all.

MB. HALL : Have you had any similar conversations with anybody else ?

A. Never any conversation regarding the matter with Mr. Ely.
Q. Or anybody else?

A - Yes I did. When I got through this conversation and Ely went away,

^

walked into Crown Attorney Haight's room and told him about the conversa-
tion, and asked him what he thought about it.

THE CHAIRMAN : That is not material.

MR. HALL: Did he say anything in your presence in regard to having
sently fined or collected in fines something like $20,000 ?

A. Not to me.

HON. MR. MILLS : How many times did he visit you in all '<

A. Three.

Q- And it was on the first occasion he spoke about Sparrow Lake?
A. No, that was the second time.

Q. I understood you to say that was the first time. On the second

occasion, it is alleged, he spoke about having collected $20,000 in fines ?

I

A. I don't remember that.

Q. You don't remember having made that statement ?

A- You must remember that to these conversations I was not paying
uch attention. I was the police magistrate and was attending to my work
id the others were sitting back there carrying on the conversation.

-If he said he collected $20,000 you would surely remember that?
A. I know he was talking in pretty big sums.
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'

Q. Did he say $20,000 ?

A. I cannot say as to that.

ME. SINCLAIR: He was talking about money fines, you heard that but

don't remember the amout?

A. No.

ME. MILLS: The information you got from Ely on the second occasion

was that he wanted you to impose the maximum penalties and fines so that

he would enjoy the one half portion ?

A. I did not form any opinion other than that he wasn't going to get

any portion from me, that he would have to get it from the Provincial Trea-

surer.

Q. The inference in his words was that he expected you to put the

maximum fine on so that he would get his own out of it?

A. He made me understand that he expected that I would carry out

cases in a severe sort of way.
THE CHAIRMAN : Let us know what he said from which you drew that

conclusion. What was it he said?

A. I really cannot say. I didn't pay much attention to him. He was

a total stranger to me. I didn't fasten him right down.

Q. Did he ask you whether you would pay the penalties over to him ?

A. Yes.

ME. MILLS : And that you should impose the maximum penalties ?

A. That I would impose heavy penalties. He gave me to understand

that. I do not know that he put it in so many words. He gave me to under-

stand I should carry it out with a severe hand.

MR. HALL: Did he say he would bring some other magistrate from

Toronto ?

A. He didn't tell me.

Q. What -did he tell you ? Did he tell you he would bring in a lawyer

as a fact he did bring in a magistrate?
A. Yes he brought in a magistrate.

Q. I understood he 'brought in Mr. Cox from London?

A. I didn't know he was a magistrate. I thought he was an inspector.

I know I was there at one case. I went into my office at a quarter to nine one

morning. I heard a noise and went upstairs to see what the matter was. The

chief was in the room and he beckoned to me to come in, that a case was on.

I said, no, 1 won't go in. Then I was informed that a magistrate had been

brought from London to try game and fisheries cases pending in town. I felt

annoyed because I thought it queer that I as magistrate of the town should be

ignored. T thought I was filling the position faithfully and that I was quite

capable of dealing with cases of that nature. It seemed to me that it was

putting the country to a big expense to send and have a man come all the way
from London to Parry Sound to try a trifling case like a fish and game case.

Q. Did he have anyone with him as prosecutor?
A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember the man's name?
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A. No.

Q.- Would it be Mr. Coffee ?

A. I would not be sure.

Mn. TOLMIE: Was there a man prosecuting?

A.Yes.
Q. This man intimated earlier to you that because of your method of

handling the fines he would not have any or many cases before you *

A.- -That is substantially my understanding of it.

Hox. Mu. M i LLS : Who was in your office on the second occasion ?

A. Only myself and Ely. It was about 11 o'clock in the morning
when Ely carne into my office.

ME. TOLMIE: Did you try any case brought in by Ely?
A. No sir.

MR. MILLS : Did you try any cases or have any convictions last year

prior to the time Mr. Ely came into the Parry Sound district ?

Q. How many ? Did you have more than one case last year prior to

Ely's arrival on the scene ?

A. I had one on March 17, 1920, one on May 18, 1920, one on October

4, 1920, and one on the 1st of January, 1921.

Q. You had three prior to Ely's arrival?

A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN : Did you try every case brought before you ?

A. Yes, and every case brought to the Police Court in Parry Sound in

the last five years except when I have been away in Toronto as at the present

time, but I have never been away more than a week at a time.

Q. And you inflicted the penalties you thought it right and proper to

inflict under the law?

A. Yes sir.

Q. And no case was ever brought to you that you didn't try it?

A. No sir.

MR. MILLS: You are aware of the fact that game wardens and inspectors

had a right to try cases with the powers of justices of the peace?

A. I understand certain of them have that power.

Q. You are aware that the Dominion fishery regulations give the same

rights to fishery inspectors under the Dominion Government?

A. I understand so.

Q. They have the same privileges ?

A. Yes. I may say that here is a game and fisheries man who brought
me a case of a man accused of killing partridges on October 4. There were

twenty partridges and I fined him $100 or $5 apiece. That money went to

the Provincial Treasurer as have all my fines.

THE CIIAIRMAX : You are not responsible for the law that enables others

to inflict fines ?

A. No sir.

Q. That law has been there for many years?
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A. Yes sir.

MR. MILLS: Then there is nothing in the alleged statement that Ely

stated in your presence that he had collected $20,000 in fines ?

A. He didn't say that to me.

MR. TOLMIE: Did he say he had put on heavy fines ?

A. He didn't address it to me particularly, but he made the statement

in my hearing. I would like to say as one interested in and connected with the

fish and game for a great many years, as one who has attended a great many
conventions, back to the old convention in the University, that the time has

come when we must take action. In five or six years time there won't be a

deer south of the French Kiver if we go on as we are doing now, there won't

be a partridge to be found in a few years, the way the law is now and the way
it is enforced. Furthermore if the Game and Fisheries Department does not

get busy and be more active than heretofore there will not be any speckled

bass within the islands adjacent to the shores of the French River and Moose

Point.

JOHN ARMSTRONG, called and sworn.

THE CHAIRMAN : What is your occupation ?

A. Deputy Sheriff for the District of Parry Sound.

Q. And you have been deputy sheriff how long ?

A. About fifteen years.

Q. As such have you knowledge of the working of the fish and game
laws in your district?

A. Some, sir.

MR. HALL: You saw Ely while he was in town?

A. Yes. I was in the magistrate's office on the second morning referred

to by the magistrate.

THE CHAIRMAN : Can .you fix the date ?

A. I would say about the latter part of October.

MR. HALL: Have you any remembrance of a conversation that took

place and what Mr. Ely said regarding his ability to make convictions?

A. I have a very distinct recollection of what I heard Mr. Ely say on that

date.

Q. Will you tell it to us ?

A. I just dropped in, and at the time I dropped in Ely was telling

the magistrate that he wanted him to impose the maximum penalties in cases

brought before him by Ely. Then he continued, telling a story of a case he

had dealt with at Sparrow Lake.

MR. MILLS : Was this on the same occasion ?

A. The only time I was in there in Ely's presence was then. He went

on to say that while he was at Sparrow Lake there was some man who was

apparently fishing without a license, I presume an American, although I don't

remember him saying anything about what he was. This man, according to

the story, had apparently been bragging around that lie didn't have a license,

and didn't have to get one. About that time the particular party came in

where Kly \vas. and Kly said something like,
" Have you got a license?" and
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e man said,
"

"No, and I don't need any license, either. I have been here

fteen or twenty years and never had a license, and I don't want a license

ow." Ely 'said he forthwith fined Mm a thousand, and confiscated some

things. I cannot remember what they were now.

Q. This was the same occasion you heard him speak about imposing
the maximum fines ?

A. That was the only time I was there in Ely's presence.

Q. Did he enlarge on that and say how many fines he had imposed ?

A. I never heard him make a remark of that kind ? I left him in the

ffice.

MR. MILLS: You didn't hear him say anything about having collected

$20,000 in fines?

A. No.

HON. ME. NIXON: Did you hear him say he doubled the fine?

A. No.

ME. HALCROW: Did he say he fined this man a thousand for fishing

'ithout a license ?

A. Yes, that was his statement.

THE CHAIRMAN: And confiscated certain property?
A. Yes.

MR. MILLS : You don't know when that occurred he didn't give the

lame of the party ?

A. No.

MR. TOLMIE : You understand it was done without a trial ?

A. I understood he had no trial.

MR. HOMUTII : Is it customary to impose these fines without any trial ?

!ave the wardens that power ?

A. Of course you know about as much about that as I do. I haven't

iad to bother about that. They apparently appear to have according to the

3gulations.

Witness excused.

Thomas Spencer called and sworn.

THE CHAIRMAN : What is your occupation ?

A. Chief of Police of Parry Sound.

Q. For how long?
A. Since the 4th of November, 1920.

MR. HALL : Mr. Spencer, you know Mr. Ely quite well ?

A. I do.

Q. You had ample opportunity to meet him ?

A. I have met him on scores of occasions.

Q. How long was he in town ?

A. As far as I understand he came at the beginning of November or

Hie latter part of October, 1920.

Q. How many days in the week do you meet him ?

A. I suppose I see him five days in every week, that is until recently.
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Q. Did you ever have a heart-to-heart conversation with him in regard
to business? You were both in the same line in a way. What was the im-

pression he gave you with regard to his prowess ?

THE CHAIRMAN: Give us his words to you. The first time you had a

conversation with Mr. Ely in regard to his duties what did he tell you ?

A. The first conversation I had with him I met him in the Mansion

House, when he told me who he was. He told me I was the kind of man he

wanted, and that the Game and Fisheries Department could find me a better

job than the one I had got, I looked upon it as a lump of bull. I told him
I was satisfied with the job I had. Then he asked me if I could put anything
in his way if I could do so, and if he could put anything in my way he would

do it.

THE CHAIRMAN : Quite proper, go on.

A. I gave him some information I had received of a man named Foster,

who was supposed to have an otter skin. He investigated the case, but ap-

parently made nothing of it. On the 24th of December I had a telephone

message from Ely at the Mansion House. I went there, and he gave me four

summonses to issue for him.

THE CHAIRMAN : To serve ?

A. Yes. I served two summonses in town, and one for George Reid

and A. Haddad were out of town. I sent the out-of-town summonses to the

C&ief of Police of Sudbury to be served, and on the 25th of December Ely
came to my house for dinner.

Q. Give us the names of people on whom summonses were served ?

A. A. J. Gentles and George Bosely.

Q. What was Gentles' summons for?

A. Hunting without a license.

Q. And Bosely's?
A. Hunting without a license.

Q. Did you serve them ?

A. I did.

Q. Wero they tried?

A. They were tried on the 20th of December by 'Mr. H. G. Cox.

Q. What was the fine ?

A. $100 in costs in each case.

Q. To whom was the money paid ?

A. To H. G. Cox.

Q. Then the other two that were sent out of town ? Who were they ?

A. A. "N". Haddad. He was at Sudbury, and T sent the summons there.

Q. Did he appear ;it Parry Sound ?

A. He did.

'

Q. And was tried by whom ?

A. By H. G. Cox.

Q. What was the fine ?

A. $100 and costs.

Q. And who was the fine paid to?
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A. H. G. Cox.

Q. Do you know whether any return was made of either of these fines ?

A. I do not know.

Q. That would be three fines ?

A. Yes.

Q. What about the other there was another.

A. Yes. George Reid. I served that at Capewell on the 28th of

December.

Q. Did he appear ?

A. He appeared after the trial, and was fined $100 and costs at the

Mansion House Hotel.

Q. You say he appeared after the trial, was there no trial in his case ?

A. There was not. Cox told him in the Mansion House that he would

impose the same penalty on him as on the others.

Q. He imposed that there?

A. Yes. He was given twenty-four hours to pay, and it was paid seven

or eight days later to Ely.

Q. In your presence?
A. No.

Q. How do you know it was paid?
A. Because I got $5 out of it.

Q. From whom ?

A. From Ely.

Q. Ely told you it was paid ?

A. Yes.

MK. HALT. : What position does Cox occupy ?

A. He occupied the position of magistrate in the court at Parry Sound
when he tried these cases.

THE CHAIRMAN: He acted as magistrate in these cases?

A. Yes.

IQ.

In the four cases ?

A. In the three cases in court and the one in the Mansion House Hotel.

Q. What further conversation did you have with Ely?
A. On the 6th of January I arrested a man by the name of Perueei,

Italian, in Parry Sound, and seized a beaver skin, one muskrat skin, four

mink skins and three weasels. T telephoned Ely, and told him I had seized

these articles. He came straight to my office and said
"

I.will handle this case."

I said,
"
Xo, you won't; I will handle it myself." I made the arrest and the

seizure.'' So he wont away, and that day he came to my house while I was

at dinner. He never knocked, and came to the dining room door, walked

straight in and sat down. He told me he had telephoned to the Department
that he had seized these furs. T told him to telephone back that he hadn't,

and was not going to seize them. So, after a lot of conversation, he said he
was going to tako them from me. T told him to

"
carry on." T told him that

*was

in legal possession, and that the other man was in illegal possession,

hile we were in the office before dinner he told me in front of Knight, the
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provincial officer, that up to then he had sent in $20,000 in fines since the

first of November.

Q. Did he say to whom he sent it?

A. He said he had sent into the Department since the first of November,

$20,000.

ME. MILLS : Did anyone else hear him make that statement ?

A. Constable Knight.
THE CHAIRMAN: You called him a provincial officer?

A. He is a provincial constable in the Parry Sound district.

MR. MILLS : Did he say it in a joking way or in all seriousness ?

A. He appears to say everything in seriousness.

Q. A very serious man then?

A. A very important man.

THE CHAIRMAN: What further did he tell you at that time?

A. We never had any further conversation.

Q. Is there anything further you can tell this Committee in regard to

the administration of the fish and game laws that came within your knowledge

during the time you have been Chief Constable of Parry Sound ?

A. I have got some hearsay evidence, nothing definite.

Q. We don't want hearsay evidence unless you can give us names of

witnesses who can give us evidence. It will bo for the Committee to deter-

mine whether we will bring them here.

A. I can give you one name George or Harry Hall.

Q. Where does he come from ?

A. Drocourt. It appears there was one of the game and fishery inspec-

ted I do not know which one went there and asked him if he had any fur

to sell, and posing as a fur buyer. This boy said yes, he had some and showed

him three muskrat skins, I think. I am not certain about that. The inspector

then seized these articles, told the boy who he was, and fined him $40.

MR. HALL : Was that Ely ?

A. I don't know whether it was Ely or McNaughton. I think it was

him.

ME. MILLS: That is the overseer's name?
A. Yes.

MR. HOMUTII: You say that Ely came to your place while you were hav-

ing dinner and threatened to seize these furs from you ? What happened ?

A. Nothing happened, because I told him to carry on with it.

Q. Meaning that as far as you were concerned you didn't intend to

permit it? I certainly didn't permit him. I refused to take a seizure ticket

from him. I sent to the Department and asked them for a seizure ticket.

Q. Were the furs sent to the Department ?

A. Yes, I sent 'them myself.

MR, HALL: You stated before that he made a dicker to give yon any

information he had if you would give him information yon might get. Did

lie give you anything along that line?

A. Ho told me there were three piano oases full of liquor going into the
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Mansion House Hotel in the middle of the night.

Q. And the cases contained a piano?
A. Yes.

Witness excused.

Constable Charles Henry Knight called and sworn.

THE CHAIRMAN : What is your position, Mr. Knight ?

A.- Provincial policeman.

Q. Under Superintendent Rogers of the Provincial Police ?

A. Yes, under Superintendent Rogers.

Q. Situated where?

A. Parry Sound.

Q. With jurisdiction extending where?

A. Wherever the superintendent wishes to send me in the province.

Q. Are you also entrusted with the enforcement of the fish and game
laws?

A. Any infractions of the fish and game laws that come before my notice

T prosecute.

Q. How long have you been in that position?
A. Going on fourteen years.

Q. During the last fiscal year what knowledge have you had of infrac-

tions of the fish and game laws ? Can you give us roughly how many prose-

cutions you have had ?

A. I think just two prosecutions.

Q. Against whom ?

A. I had one against Henry Sarras.

Q. For what ?

A. For having one bear skin and four or five muskrat skins.

Q. Before whom did you bring him ?

A. Before George Moore, police magistrate.

Q. What happened to the case?

A. He was fined $100.

Q. To whom was the money paid ?

A. To Mr. Moore.

Q. Did you get any portion of these fines?

A. No, sir, and never looked for it.

Q. What was the second case?

A. The second case was a man from the French River I have forgotten
is name Silvest I think.

Q. For what was he prosecuted?
A. For having one beaver skin and four rat skins.

Q. Before whom did you bring him?
A. Before Mr. Moore.

Q. What was the disposition of the case ?

A. He suspended sentence and confiscated the furs.

Q. What became of the furs ?

A. The furs wove sent to the Superintendent, of the Game and Fisheries
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Department here in Toronto.

Q. What became of the furs in the first case I

A. They were sent to the J )epartment.

Q. Do you know Ely ?

A. Yes, sir, since I was a little boy.

Q. Have you had au,y conversations witli him since lie was appointed

with the Game and Fisheries Department?
A. Yes, I have met him several times.

Q. Do you remember the conversations ?

A. Going back, since I came to Parry Sound last fall, I remember hav-

ing several conversations with Mr. Ely.

Q. Going back to your first conversation, can you tell this Comminee
what took place?

A. On the 6th of January there, was a seizure of furs and the arrest

of Peter Perucci. and I assisted Chief Spencer to make the arrest. In the

presence of the chief and in the chief's office at Parry Sound, Ely informed

us that he had sent down to the Department since the day lie came into Parry
Sound $20,000 in fines.

Q. What further ?

A. That is all that took place at that time. That was since ho cam

to Parry Sound.

Q. That was in October, 1920?

A. It was sometime in October he came.

Q. Had you any conversation at any other time ?

A. No, I gave him information regarding one Hall at Drormirt.

Q. You gave him that information?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know what was done in regard to that ?

A. I do not. no more than what T was told afterwards.

Q. By Ely?
A. No. The man who gave me the informal ion as to a bv carrying a

gun on the railway tracks and promiscuously shooting, that man informed me
that this boy had been fined.

Q. You don't know by whom ?

A. No.

Q. Have yon any further information ?

A. No, I think that is all. Tn reference to the conversation carried on

in the magistrate's office I cannot say, T cannot recollect.

Q. Do you remember being there ?

A. T remember being there on one occasion whon "Mr. Elv was there.

Q. Who was there?

A. T cannot say, other than that Police Magistrate Monro was there.

Q. Do you remember Mr. Armstrong being there?

A. T cannot say he was there.

Mi*. HALL: Do you remember hearing anything with regard to a fine

of a thousand on a man at Sparrow Lake?
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A. 1 cannot bring that to my mind. I will just say this, that any time

I was with Ely I got away as soon as I could and let him talk to someone else.

MR. MILLS: Do I understand Mr. Knight that there was someone else

with yon when Ely made the statement that he had collected and sent down
*:><).000 in two months?

A. The police magistrate.

Q. You don't remember anything that happened in Magistrate Moore's

ofh'ce in regard to Sparrow Lake ?

A. No.

Q. Do you remember him speaking about the magistrate imposing the

maximum fines ?

A. I remember one time, I cannot state the date, there seemed to be

some dissatisfaction with Mr. Moore in regard to the enforcement of the

game laws. He mentioned a man named Reid. He was a game overseer,

who had a Jew up for having some moth-eaten skins, and the case was dis-

missed. They were not satisfied with that, Mr. Ely told me so on one occasion.

T had always thought Mr. Moore was a good magistrate who, if he erred, erred

on the side of leniency, which stand T always took myself. Ely told me on

one occasion there would not be any cases come before Mr. Moore.

Witness excused.

Henry R. H. Ely called and sworn:

Tin-: (
1

iiA.n:.MAN : What is your occupation?
A.- Special patrol on game and fisheries.

Q. Appointed by the Department?
A. -Yes, sir.

Q. When ?

A.- 1 think ii \vas about six years, six or seven years ago.

Q. When did yon first go to Parry Sound?
A. 1 have born twice at Parry Sound. T came through there once.

Then I \vas going un 10 Deer Lake, and was called in and went up to Parry
Sound on the 2nd of November.

Q. That was rhe first time von bad been there, lately. You started in

on your duties on that date?

A. Yes, sir.

Hox. MR. MILLS: You have been in the room since the examination has

taken place you have heard the remarks of Mr. Moore and the other gentle-
men ?

A. Yes. sir.

() Ho you remember on the first occasion on which you visited the

magistrate's office, discussing a seizure made at Sparrow Lake?
A. Yes. sir.

Q. You discussed that ?

A. The way that was discussed was simply this. A man came in and
said he didn't require a license. T s-aid you had better get one. Mr. Miller

Had written out a license for this man. and T said vou had better look this over.
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He took the license because there is a thousand dollar fine printed on the back

of it.

Q. Did you make a statement that you had fined this gentleman"on that

occasion one thousand dollars ?

A. No.

A. No, they are mistaken. If anybody took that from it it was a mis-

conception.

Q. Magistrate Moore says he made that statement in the presence of

Constable Knight. Constable Knight says he didn't hear the statement. You

deny having made that statement ?

A. I deny making that statement in toto. I had had inquisitive people

come prying around and interfering.
"
Well, what have you got to-day some

other poor victim? How much was it this time?" Perhaps I would say
"
$20,000

"
as a bluff.

Q. The second occasion do you remember that occasion ?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you a distinct recollection of what transpired ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you tell the magistrate that you desired him to impose the

maximum penalty, and he as much as inferred that if he did that you would

be entitled to one half of the fines ?

A. I will explain that as clearly as possible. Prior to my being in Parry
Sound I was told I could not get a conviction there, that some Jew had been

taken up with rat skins in his possession, that the skins had been confiscated,

but that the Jew was acquitted. I said,
"
Well, I will go and sec Mr. Moore,"

and I went to see him. I told him there would likely be some cases. I said

I had received statements, of ten, or fifteen, or twenty deer being slaughtered,

and of people killing 100 to 150 partridge. It was stated that in ,'cases of

this kind they should get the limit, I said there would be1 a private prosecutor

who would furnish, the evidence that would convict and they, according to law,

should have one half of the fines. Mr. Moore stated that he would send the

money to the Provincial Treasurer >and that the Game and Fisheries could

look after that themselves. I said to him,
" Don't you know that when moneys

go to the Provincial Treasurer it takes an Order in Council to get it out, and

it would save a lot of trouble to the Game and Fisheries if half the fine went

direct to the private prosecutor."

Q. That is the man who lays the information ?

A. Yes, according to the Act one half goes to the private prosecutor. I

have never received one five-cent piece in all my time, nor would I take it.

Q. So that nothing you stated would leave Mr. Moore to draw the infer-

ence that you desired him to impose the maximum penalties in order that you

should obtain one half of the fines.

A. No, he must have imagined it.

Q. You deny that you stated you had imposed a fine of $1,000 at

Sparrow Lake ?
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A. I never imposed a $1,000 fine .at any time. And I never imposed

a fine at Sparrow Lake at all. There was a fine imposed for liquor. I had

nothing to do with that.

Q. It is alleged that you said you had made a seizure of boats and fishing

appliances at Sparrow Lake, and had fined the man $1,000.

A. That is not so.

Q. Were you in Parry Sound last summer?

A. I was merely there just going through.

Q. Were you in the vicinity of Sparrow Lake?

A. Yes, all the time last summer.

Q. In the alleged interview you had with the magistrate did you make
a statement that as a result of that interview you were going to have a magis-
trate and a lawyer brought in from Toronto to try any eases ?

A. I think I said I would report the case to the Department, and it

would probably be tried by the Game and Fisheries. I did not know who was

going to look after it. It would likely be tried by a magistrate from the Game
and Fisheries sent in.

Q. When you arrest a man in the act, a man whom you know is violating

the game laws, it frequently happens that he makes you a tender of a certain

sum of money. Has it ever been suggested by you to such a man that he could

have a settlement out of court if he would tender you a certain sum of money.?
A. Never, sir.

Q. Where did the offer come from ?

A. The offer would be like this. We would be fifteen or twenty miles

in the bush, and the man would be caught in the act, with the goods the1?e, and

the man would say,
" How can this be settled can I settle it with you ?" I

would say
"
No, you cannot settle it with me, but if you choose to make a

tender, admitting you were guilty of this charge, and making a tender to the

Department of Game and Fisheries, and deposit the money with me I will

forward that to the Game and Fisheries Department, and they will deal with

the case."

Q. And all the seizures are made out in the proper regulation form ?

A. I think they are.

Q. Every one you had anything to do with ?

A. Just one minute. When I went up there I was given charge of so

many overseers, and they didn't understand the work, and sometimes they sent

seizures to the Department. All the seizures I had made were reported to

the Department, and there are the checks and receipts and also my own letters.

I have them in black and white in my book.

Q. Apparently from the list of seizures we have you have been a very

busy man ?

A. I did my best,

A. The constable stated that all he had during the past year were three.

I find that from November 11 to March 4 you had quite a large number

twenty-eight cases. You were a busy man there ?
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A. Well, I worked for my money.

Q. And all the seizures were turned in to the Department in the proper
form ?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember tne incident where you stilted yon had turned in

$20,000 to the Department in the two months?

A. As I told you before I might have made that statement just purely
as a shove. In other words,

" Mind your own business."

Q. The statement is made here that you made that statement in all

seriousness.

A. I never did anything of the kind. Do you think that I, a sane man.
am going to make a statement of that kind that could be proven (

Q. What was the amount of your, fines ? Do they run about $900 ?

A. Somewhere about there. I think the calculation in all is something
over $1,840 and some odd dollars, that is what passed through my hands, more
than that was taken in by others.

Q. You were acting as game warden at Parry Sound, pending reorgan-
ization and relieving the game warden at Ottawa ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You understood you had a right to impose fines or try any case \

A. Yes, but I did not try any case, none whatever, not one solitary case.

They would say to me,
" How can 1 settle this ?" and I would say,

" You cannot

settle, but the fine would be so much for each conviction, make your tender,

whatever you may say, admit you were guilty, and T will forward it to the

Department of Game and Fisheries for consideration, for final consideration.
' r

Q. Frequently you had these tenders offered.

A. Even* one of these tenders were offered.

Q. Tenders similar to this: "T hereby tender to the Department of

Game and Fisheries, $50 for violating section 41, subsection 5. Signed,

Joseph Dick , witness Alex. McNaughton, overseer?
7
'

Q. Is the tender given on your suggestion ?

A. !N"o, I asked the Department, and they said so.

MK. HALL: That is a settlement out of court?

A. That is a tender until the case is settled.

MR. TOLMIE: In these cases where these men fame before yon and ten-

dered so much to settle the case, how did they conic to fix the amount at $50
or whatever the amount would be ?

A. If you take the Game and Fisheries Act it states that the minimum
fine shall be $20 and the maximum $200. All violations in one dav will be-

treated as separate cases, but it is not necessary to make a specific charge for

each case. The reason T wrote to the Department was this. We would prob-

ably have to go ten or fifteen miles into the wilderness to catch men rod-handed,

and they would admit it. It would cost $10 or $15 to get a rig to go in there,

and if we had to come back and make out papers and go back in there with

them it would cost another $25, and that would be an additional expense that

would be more than the fine would be. what with costs and fees. Thev were*



George V. APPENDIX No. 2. 147

quite ready to make tenders. I have letters from people who have given the

biggest tenders, and you may read them if you wish.

MR, TOLMIE : The point I want to get at is this : who fixed the amount
of the tenders who suggested the amount?

A. I could receive what I thought was sufficient.

THE CHAIRMAN : Supposing you caught John Jones red-handed in the

hush, that you found him there with a number of deer in violation of the law.

He was aware he had broken the law, and you were aware of it, and you told

him who you were. Who suggested the amount he should pay in order that

.the matter should be settled right then and there?

A. The man would say,
" How much is this going to cost me." I would

-say,
" The fine is so much, you know what you are guilty of, make your tender.

I will accept it and send it in, if it is only $5 or $10, or anything you like."

If they didn't want to do it, I had nothing to do with it. I reported to the

Department.
THE CHAIRMAN : If I understand the procedure, you as game warden or

inspectors, or what ever it is, are out in the bush seeking to prevent offences

against the game laws. When you come upon an offence against the game laws,

and it was proven there had been an offence, and the man was there who had

committed the offence, you advised him of the position you occupied ?

A. Yes.

Q. Who you were and what your duties were?

A. Yes.

Q. You called his attention to what the offence was and what the penal-

ties might be, and told him you would have to bring that matter to the atten-

tion of the proper authorities ?

A. Yes. I had to arrest him.

Q. Then there would be a tender?

A. He would say,
" Don't do that, can't I settle if ?"

Q. The man would say to you,
"
I don't want to go in. I have com-

mitted an offence. Can't this matter be settled?" You would say, "Well,
what proposition have you to make?" The proposition is made to you and

put in writing with the admission on his part, on the forms of the Department?
A. We had no forms. We had to write that out.

Q. But it was in writing?
A. Yes.

Q. And signed by the party ?

A. Yes, and witnessed.

Q. In every case you had it witnessed and forwarded to the Depart-
ment, with the moneys you received?

A. Certainly.

Q. And anything you confiscated what was done with that?

A. It was sent directly to the Department.
Q. And that was done in every case?

A, In every case.
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Q. So that in these cases spoken of to the number of twenty-eight, if

my memory serves me night, that was the procedure in each and1

every caso?

A. Yes.

Q. The Department was made aware at once of what you had done ?

A. Yes.

Q. In no case did you do anything other than that?

No, sir.

MR. TOLMIE: Did you ever refuse to accept and forward any tender

that was offered, as being too small ?

A. No, sir.

Q. If a man was guilty of something you thought should bring a fine

of $500, and he offered you $10, would you send that in ?

A. I would not take him by the throat and tell him to disgorge. I

would take whatever was offered. There have been no tenders taken, only

three that should not have been taken. Duff took 'three tenders of $20 since

the 15th or 16th of January. A tender was taken in' Huntsville by a man

by the name of Haines, who had no business to take that. When I found it

out I went there and made him refund the money to the man. I had the

case tried, and they were fined $20, and one half the fine went to the informer.

Q. How many cases did you take yourself tenders ?

A. I cannot really tell you off-hand. I don't think more than eight or

ten.

Q. And in each of these cases a certain amount of money was put up?
A. Yes.

Q. You sent that money to the Department?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. In these eight or ten cases did the Department accept the tender you

had sent down?

A. They did.

Q. And that settled it?

A. Yes.

Q. It was settled on that tender?

A. Yes, with the exception of Haddad. That case was tried and the

money was refunded, or rather he was given credit for it.

Q. They tried the case. The Department didn't accept the tender?

A. They would not give any tender. Haddad was the only man of

the party who gave a personal tender. The balance said they were goiiig* to

have a run for their money.

Q. There were several in that party, and the others would not tender?

He tendered $35.

Q. The others would not tender, and were brought before what magis-

trate ?

A. Before Mr. Cox.

Q. Who is Mr. Cox ?

A. He is an inspector of the Game and Fisheries.
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Q. Was lie in that district in pursuance of his duties ?

A. Yes.

Q. At the time ?

A. No, he was not.

Q. How did he come to be there ?

A. I reported to the Department, and they used their judgment.

Q. You reported to the Department, and the Department sent Mr. Cox

there ?

A. Yes.

Q. And the cases were tried where ?

A. In the town hall or court house in Parry Sound.

Q. By Mr. Cox?

A. Yes.

Q. They were in the party Haddad was in?

A. The Department would not accept Haddad's tender, and he was

tried with the rest of them.

Q. What was the fine?

A. $100 and costs.

Q. And the amount of the tender was handed back to Haddad?
A. He was given credit for it in his fine.

Q. That had been forwarded to the Department?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. What were the others fined ?

A. $100 each.

Q. What was the offence?

A. Killing deer without licenses. They had a book of licenses unsigned,

Q. How did they get those?

A. I cannot tell you.
MR. HALL : Didn't the magistrate find out when he tried the case Mr.

Ely knows exactly how they got them.

THE CHAIRMAN: How did they get this book?

A. I will tell you what was told me.

Q. What did they say as to where they got the book?

A. They said they got the book from an overseer by the name of Jones.

Q. Had they paid for them ?

A. No, they had 110 receipts. I sent a man up at once and collected

what stuff Jones had.

Q. You went up and 2:0 1 whatever material he had?
A. Yes.

MR. HALL : \Vho was Jones ? An issuer of licenses ?

A. I think he was.

MK. MILLS : Wlieii you asked these men, have you paid for the licenses

they said no ?

A. Yes.

Q. How nianv deer had they ?
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A. We saw a deer in two parts.

Q. And they had this book of licenses unsigned ?

A. Yes.

Q. How many men were in that party ?

A. As far as I can tell, about ten.

Q. How many were fined ?

A. I think five, if I am not mistaken. Mr. Cox tried them. I did not

have that money, only $200.

Q. Mr. Spencer said you tried these men in the Mansion House ?

A. I did nothing of the sort.

THE CHAIRMAN : He said one man.

ME. SPEXCEI? : Yes, Mr. Reid.

WITNESS : I was authorized by Mr. Cox to have Mr. Reid pay the $100
to me. They Avere going to get out a bench warrant but that if he would pay
$100 the same as the others Cox said the Department would accept that with

costs, and he paid it.

Q. What did you do with the money ?

A. I sent one to Cox and one to the Department and I have the receipts

for it. On the 18th' these men were caught and on the 20th there was a case

in Parry Sound. These men went to Jones and said,
" We owe you $30, we

will pay you.
7 '

They handed him the $30 and got a receipt dated the 28th of

October and it was on the 23rd of November that the money was paid.

THE CHAIRMAN : Jones gave him a receipt for $30 and dated it back.

MB. HALL : What happened to Jones ? What was done to him ?

A. I didn't have anything done to him.

Q. Is he in the employ of the Department now ?

A. I can't say.

ME. TOLMIE : When you would come across these men red-handed they
would want to settle and they would offer you a tender ?

A. Yes, or offered to me for the Department of Game and Fisheries.

Q. You never suggested to them what that tender should be, the amount

of the tender ?

A. No, I can say that. I need not accept a tender at all. As I told

you before, I would say,
" How much, make your statement. There is the

act." Supposing a man had three deer, the minimum is $20, that would be

$60. But they were never fined that. It was always $35 or $40, or $100

at the most, and in that case the man had killed quite a number of deer.

Q. And when a tender was made you accepted it?

A. I sent it in to the Fish and Game Department.

Q: And the Fish and Game Department accepted it ?

MR. HALL: And $100 from a man who was killing moose and everything

else in contravention of the law you accepted $100 from that maii ?

MR. TOI/MIE: As I have understood from what you have said, these men

would offer a tender?

A. Yes.

Q. You would not tell them the amount ?
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A. No.

Q. The tender was never as much as the fine?

A. No, not nearly.

Q. You would send that tender in, would you make any recommendation

with that tender ?

A. In some cases where the men were poor I did. In some cases I did

not

Q. And in every case the tender was accepted by the Department with

the exception of this Haddad case ?

A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN : As I understand it you stated this
;
when you came upon

an offence like that you called the man's attention to what the game laws pro-

vided, what the punishment might be under the game law7
. And after the man

made a tender with knowledge of what the law said, you submitted the tender

to the Department ?

A. Yes.

M u. MILLS : In connection with the case, Mr. Spencer spoke of this morn-

ing. You heard him say in connection with a fine that was imposed that he

knew it had been imposed because he got $5.00 of it. Did you pay him $5 ?

A. I paid him $5. He had that much costs for serving summonses.

That was one of the cases that was supposed to be tried before Cox.

Q. Then this receipt,
" Received from H. R. Ely the sum of $5 being

costs in the case of R. Orr convicted under the Game and Fisheries Act, T.

Spencer
"

is the recepit for that money ?

A. Yes.

Q. So that clears that $5. He received that for expenses incurred ?

A. He didn't enumerate his expenses.

Q. That was no portion of the fine it was his costs ?

A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN : What about the other case. He received $5 from Ely
in the case of George Reid and this $5 in the case of R. Orr what about George

Reid, have you a receipt for that ?

A. Yes there should be a receipt there.

Witness excused.

NEIL McNAUGHTON called and sworn.

THE CHAIRMAN: What is your occupation ?

A. Overseer in the Game and Fisheries Department.

Q. How long have you occupied that position ?

A. Since the llth of October, 1920.

Q. Where have you been stationed ?

A. In Parry Sound.

Q. All of that time?

A. That is my headquarters. I haven't been there all that time.

Q. You cover what district ?

A. Parry Sound and Muskoka.

Q. You have been in Parry Sound and Muskoka during all that time?
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A. I have.

Witness excused, Mr. Ely recalled.

MK. MILLS : Is this the receipt from Spencer in respect to the $5 paid him
for expenses in the case of George Reid ?

A. Yes.

MR. SINCLAIR : I the case of the man who was fined $100, were the costs

added ?

A. Yes.

Q. What was the total amount of the costs against this man ?

A. $5, $105 altogether.

MR. HALL : We only have tenders handled here hy Mr. Ely in January.
Am I to understand you only did business in January '.

A. I did business in November.

Q. Where did you do business ?

A. There is the list there.

Q. I would like to have the dates. Where were you on November 5th.

THE CHAIRMAN : What case does that refer to ?

MR. HALL : I have information that one of the inspectors or overseers

made a seizure from a party and took a tender for $20 in settlement of the case.

WITNESS: That is the tender of A. M. Marshall. I do not know where

he killed the deer, somewhere above Parry Sound, but we caught him at the

Ragged Rapids.
HON. MR. MILLS : Is this the tender

;

"
I hereby pay the sum of $20 as

guarantee that I will appear if called upon to answer a charge of breaking the

game and fish laws, A. M. Marshall, Barrie?"

A. Yes.

MR. SINCLAIR : Did that man appear later in court ? Was there any
trial ?

MR. MILLS : No, that was accepted as a settlement. He obtained a license

after he violated the game laws.

THE CHAIRMAN : What would be the fine for that ?

MR. MILLS : $20 for each offence.

MR. HALL: They fined them in my town $100 and costs for shooting
without a license.

THE CHAIRMAN : They had in their possession a book of licenses unsigned.
That certainly would add materially to the offence.

MR. HALL : On November 6, where was Mr. Ely.

THE CHAIRMAN : He has told you where he was on the 6th. He told you
he was at Ragged Rapids.

MR. HALL : On November 6th there was a seizure made from a man
named Frank Foriiian of one beaver, one mink and two skunk skins.

WITNESS: There is no such man, the man's name was Frank Tremblay.
He offered a tender of $35.

Q. And you accepted it?

A. Yes, and sent it to the Department the same as the rest.

Q. Now again, I am bringing these cases to show he is forgetful. He
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said lie had only ten cases in our district.

THE CHAIRMAN: Twenty-six cases.

ME. HALL : Only ten tender cases.

WITNESS : They weren't all taken by me. Others took these cases.

ME. HALL : He was at Torrance on November 8th on a gunning expedi-

tion, I do not know how many guns he discovered, but I do know three people

paid him $5 each for having guns in their possession.

THE CHAIRMAN : Is that an offence against the law ?

WITNESS: Yes sir, under the law that guns cannot be kept in any con-

struction camp or any railway company camp.
ME. HALL: At Torrance three men found with guns were fined $5 each.

A. Not fined, they offered tenders.

THE CHAIRMAN : Were those tenders sent in ?

A. Yes.

Q. And the guns were seized ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is that the minimum fine as laid down by law ?

A. In special cases, that is the minimum.
MR. HALL : There should be no special cases.

A. Well that is the law, I am not making the law.

MR. SINCLAIR: You speak of special cases are they statutory special

cases or what ?

A. Under section 69, the fine is so much for violating the game and

fishing regulations and other things and then there is another for cases not

specified.

THE CHAIRMAN: You mean there is a general section in the act which

covers cases not specified ?

A. Yes.

Hox. MR. NIXON : This $5 tender was not a fine ?

A. No, just tenders. I never tried a case at all.

MR. HALL : It seems quite common in these cases to accept a tender. I

find that either Mr. McNaughton or yourself accepted a tender on November

llth. And here is one on November llth, and this one was taken up in

different fashion, no tender, no fine and no prosecution. Do you remember

that case ?

A. It wasn't my case, sir, Mr. McNaughton will clear that up.

Q. This was not McNaughton's case.

ME. McXAUGHTON : It happened to be yes.

MR. HALL : Now we come down to Cooper's 'Camp.

THE CHAIRMAN : What do you know about 'Cooper's camp ?

A. Nothing sir, I was not there.

MR. SINCLAIR: Was there' any report of trouble there?

A. No, I don't know the case at all. I got the money handed to me by
Mr. McNaughtou and that was sent to the Department.

MR. HALL : Do you know what that was for ?

A. Yes, for killing a bull moose.
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Q. Do von think that a proper tender for killing a bull moose ?

THE CHAIR.MAX : That is not for him to say, that is foi* the Department.
'

ME. HALL: Yon say your duties were in the bnsh ?

A. -My duty is to oversee the reports of the overseers. I cannot do

that very well in the bush.

Q. I thought you told us your reports were made monthly ?

A. 1 send a report on the work done by these men, once a month.

Q. How many times were you in the bush in a month ?

A. Every Saturday I had to be there to accept these reports and to make

them out.

Q. Had to be where ?

A. At home.

Q. Is that the only time you were there? Will you tell us any time-

yon were out of town ?

A. Dozens of them.

Q. How many times in a week in a month. I can bring a hundred

people to tell you where he was every day. And he said he was in the bush.

Do you remember the occasion, during the hunting season while you were in

Parry Sound, of receiving information of a man who was making a business-

of slaughtering deer to sell to unsuccessful hunters?

A. I cannot say I did.

Q. If I produce a witness who says-he told you that a certain man in our
district had seven deer hanging in his barn waiting for unsuccessful hunters-

who before they would face the disgrace of going home without a deer would

pay $30 or $40 for one, what would you say. Have you any remembrance-
of that ?

A. I may have had that information. I think it was given to me and I
<ent one of the officers to look after it. Everything we found out -has been;

reported to the Department.

Q. If you were so anxious about the administration of the law don't yoir
think a flagrant case like that should positively have had your personal atten-

tion '. Did you go after that man when you had that information laid before

you ?

A. I think possibly I did. People come in and say so and so, 'but

they won't give us names, they won't sign anything.

Q. Xot give you names ? You were given the full particulars.

THE CHAIRMAN: Have you any recollection of that?

. A. I don't remember. If you listen to what everybody says you would

be kept busy. Why didn't you write me a letter.

Q. Write nothing. I am not a thief catcher. I sent a man who told

yon where you could go and see the deer hanging up, but you didn't go after it-

MK. MILLS: Why didn't you write it?

MR. HALL: Why didn't I go and seize the deer myself.

MR. SINCLAIR: You spoke about this $20,000 item. On the evidence

srivon you said you had sent down $20,000 to the Department.
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A. Sometimes people would come around after I made a seizure and say,
* ; Well how much did you get this time," and, perhaps, I would say $20,000 or

$40,000 which no one would have believed if they had sense. In other words,

a polite way of saying,
" Kone of your business."

Q. You don't wish this committee to think that you go around giving that

impression when you are making statements ?

A. ~No.

Q. You want to pass as a man whose word would be accepted. Where
all the statements which you made that day in the police magistrate's office

on a par with that $20,000 statement ?

A. That was misconstrued.

Q. There was evidence given here of conversations that morning. We
want to know if everything you said was no nearer the truth than this $20,000
statement.

A. I said there that the tine was $1,000 printed on the back of the license.

The man took the license. The man fined there was not for that. There wa
no tourist fined.

Mi;. HALL: Von said yon fined him $1,000 and confiscated the outfit.

A. No.

Mil. SI.NCLAJI;: The other witnesses swear yon did. Are these men lying
before this committee when they give us this evidence?

A. I do not say they lied. They have misconstrued it.

Mi;. TOL.MIK: It was stated by the police magistrate that you had said as

yon were leaving his office that you would take care that no cases, or very
few cases came before him. Is that correct?

A. I think I may have said that. I do nor know 1 did. I may have

said that 1 did not know that there would be many cases to come before him
if they were going to be treated like these other cases were.

Mi;. Si.xn.Ai i; : I low many cases were taken to other magistrates apart
from M r. Moore ?

A. I think M r. Me Arthur tried two or three. There was a man in Htints-

ville tried a couple of cases and Mr. Duff at Sundridge had five or six.

Q. \\Yre these oUVnces within the districts for which these persons were

>lice magistrates '(

A. Yes, sir.

.Mi;. MILLS: In connection with the man who issued those licenses I sup-

>se yon are personallv acquainted with J. Jones?

A. Xo. I am not.

Witness excused.

Mi;. M(0s AI<;II ro.\ recalled.

All?. HALT, stated that he wished to make a statement: "What I wish to

state to the committee shortly, is this. I had been given the impression by

communications from all over the district that McNaughtOB and Ely and other

inen, both the present overseers and those lately discharged had been in the

habit of holding court and receiving fines and my objection to the whole
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business was that it was not constitutional and that accused persons should be
tried by a proper magistrate in a proper court, I am satisfied from what has
been said here to-day, that there is an established rule in the Department by
which these men can accept a tender by allowing the culprit to set his own fine

and it shall be accepted. So under these conditions I have no questions to ask
Mr. McNaughton. I believe he has been doing his duty in a first-class manner.

HON. ME. MILLS: to witness: It was alleged in Mr. Hall's statement on
the floor of the House, that you represented yourself to be a fur buyer. That

you went around among the settlers seizing furs they had in their possession
and passing yourself off as a fur buyer. Will you tell me the names of some
of the settlers you took these furs from ?

A. With pleasure.

Q. Who is the first one ?

A. I took a tender from George House of Hamilton. He is in the Hydro
Commission. He is the one who killed a bull moose. He shot a bull moose
without a license. He told me he had shot the moose thinking it was a deer.

It was his first time in the bush. At that time I was accompanied by Eeid,
who was a special patrol officer at that time. Reid was the one who suggested
a tender. We had a magistrate right in the camp and he was going to sit on

the case. House was very anxious about his moose and after he gave me the

explanation of how he came to shoot it I knew it was my duty to seize the moose.

He said,
"
I am willing to pay anything," I thought,

"
well, the tender leaves.

it open for both sides. House can appeal the case if he wishes or the .Depart-

ment can state that it is not satisfactory if they do not wish to take the House's

word. Then there was the Ed. Button case that Mr. Hall mentioned. I visited

the C.N.R. station at South Magnetawan. There was a party of hunters there.

I went up to them and said,
"
I am representing the Department of Game and

Fisheries. I want to see your licenses. He produced the licenses. Then just

to trick him I said,
" What about the deer in the bush ?" He said,

"
Yes, I

admit I ate one/' I asked,. "Hlave you a license for that, and he said "No."
" Then Mr. Dutton," I said,

"
I will have to seize your deer." I seized the

deer and sent it in to the Department. Mr. Dutton came to me later and said

that he would accept all responsibility for the club. There were fifteen in the

club. I could have made them bring out the fifteen deer if I had wanted to,

but I thought it would be a. hardship to seize the fifteen, as I really should have

done. As I said I seized Mr. Dutton's deer and sent it in to the Department.
He came down to the Department and had the deer released, paying the Depart-
ment $20. On November, 13th, I visited Albert 'Cooper's camp between the

South and North Magnetawan. He was in possession of a moose. I asked

him for his license and he presented a license two days O'ld. I said,
" When

did you shoot this moose." He said,
"
yesterday." I could see that the eyes

were sunken into the head, proving that it was not a one-day previous kill. I

said,
"

I will have to seize your moose " and placed a seizure tag on it. He said,
" I am willing to take an affidavit to the effect that I shot that moose after I

got the license." I said,
" Give me the affidavit, but how can you give me an

affidavit that vou shot that moose vesterday, when the fact is that when F came
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up here on Saturday I heard talk about you getting a moose ?

'
'

I took his note

that he signed, saying that he had a license before he shot the moose. I got

half way to the railway before he came up to me and asked me if $50 would

make the thing square. I said, don't you try to bribe me or that will be two

charges, one of bribery and one of shooting the moose without a license. I said,

what you can do is this
; you can pay me $50 as an acknowledgment of guilt,

that you shot the moose before you got the license, and he was very anxious

to do so.

MR. TOLMIE : You took a written tender ?

A. Yes, then there was Joseph Dick of Magnetawan. I received informa-

tion that he was in possession of furs without a license. I hired a car and

went sixteen miles to his home. [ rapped at the door and he met me. I said,
u Are you Mr. Dick information has been given me that you are in possession
of furs without a license." He says,

" I am not." I looked about and saw a

fox fur near the stove. I said,
"
I am here and I am going to search your

house, but in the first place I am going to give you a chance to bring the fur

before me." He went away and brought me an otter skin.
"
Now," he said,

" You can search the house." In my procedure I found two skunk skins which

he didn't produce. I said,
" I guess you will have a car ride back to Magneta-

wan." He said,
" Can't I settle the thing some other way ?

"
I said,

"
Only

by tender." He said,
" What will that tender be ?

"
I said,

" The lowest can

$20 and the highest $200." I think the Department would be satisfied with

one-quarter of the amount it could be and you can take the deputy's address and

write him. By no means were they wealthy people and he had to go out and

got the money. I was told he had a bad reputation and I knew I had to have

something to square myself.

Tin-: riiAiKMA.x: Wliat tender did you take from him?

A. $50.

MK. SINCLAIR: This man Dickie didn't have a license?

T. Xo.

Q. What would he have to pay for a license ?

A. $15.

Mi,'. TOLMIE: These tenders you take, do you, in any case, suggest the

lount of the tender ?

A. Well, let me see. I presume I do. Whatever I thought the Depart-
ent would be satisfied with, would accept.

Q. And the tender was received by you always in writing ?

A. Yes.

Q. And forwarded to the Department with other information ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did the Department accept the tender?

A. They did, sir.

Q. In every case ?

A. Yes, because it was always accompanied by a letter showing that it

cm Id entail too much hardship if the man was brought in for trial.

Q. In sending down these tenders and other information you recom-
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mended, did you, that the tender be accepted ?

A. As a rule, where they were poor people, and I believed, that every $5

meant something taken out of the house.

Q. And in not one case was the tender returned ?

A. x^o sir. Mr. Hall at Drocourt, stated that I passed myself off as a

fur buyer. I went up on the early morning train to Mowat, having had

information that there was a man working on the section who was shooting

along the line. I got up there at 4.30 in the morning and crawled into a box

car until morning. I interviewed the section boss and he told me that George
Hall had violated the law. Before breakfast I walked six miles up the track.

I went into the station where I asked the lady to make me my breakfast. While

I was waiting I walked up to Hall's door and rapped at the door, when he came

to the door, I said,
"
I understand you have some furs to sell." He said,

"
Yes,

I have." He could have said,
" Are you a fur buyer," and I would have been

trapped.

THE CHAIRMAN : I do not see that it would have been a serious matter if

you had said you .were a fur buyer.

WITNESS : I said I would like to see them and he brought me two muskrat

skins. I said,
" What is the number of your license ?

" He said a number in

five figures. I knew the Department hadn't issued a license in five figures. I

told him he was guilty, in fact, he had been shooting niuskrats out of season.

Then he told me that Peter McElroy had seven muskrat skins. He gave me
a statement to that effect. I seized McElroy's fur on those grounds. When I

went back to get an affidavit he told me he had been lying. Another case where

they may try to say I passed myself off a fur buyer, was sometime in November
when I called on Joseph Malcolm at Sprucedale.

MR. MILLS : Who is he ?

A. The magistrate. I understood he had bought fur the year before, so

I went to him with the seizure I had made from Dickie. I went into Malcolm's

and I said, "Are you buying fur?" He said,
" How much have you got."

I said,
" An otter, a fox and two skunk," and so I had though they were under

seizure. Just then it struck me I was almost doing a certain thing so I said,

"I am representing the Department of Game and Fisheries. Have you a

license ?" He told me tihalt he did not, but that be would write right away and

get one. He said his brother was in possession of fur and that he had a permit.
I said,

" Take a young fool's advice and get one, good evening," and away I

went. Ely asked me if Malcolm had a license and taking his word for it that

he would send for one right away, I said, yes. Ely found out that Malcolm
didn't have a license and came back to me. T told him what had taken place.

I said, "I guess there's crooked work." I went back and went to Thomas
Malcolm's house and asked.

" Have you any furs to sell '.

"
He said,

"
I don't

think I will sell at present." I said,
"

T,et me see it, can't you ?
"

I went in

and he had eighteen beaver and twenty-one muskrat>. I said,
" A fine collec-

tion, have you a permit ?
" He said,

" What are you, a spotter ?
"

T told, him

I represented the Department of Fish and (lame. I sci/ed what ho had and

came back to Sprucedale and went to sec Joseph Malcolm and told him that he
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Lad lied to me when he had said he was sending for a license and that he had

lied when he told me his brother was in possession of a permit to carry his fur

over.

THE CHAIRMAN : I think you did right.

WITNESS: I did not say I was a fur buyer. I simply asked if he had

any fur to sell. If he had asked me if I was a fur buyer I would have been

compelled to say I wasn't.

The witness was then excused, and the committee adjourned.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE.

March 23rd, 1920.

The Committee met at 10 a.m., Mr. Curry in the Chair.

R. P. Fairbairn called and sworn. Examined by Mr. Hill.

Q. What position do you occupy in the public service ?

A. Deputy Minister of Public Works.

Q. And as such are in charge of repairs and furnishings in the Parlia-

ment Buildings ?

A. Yes, the goods are ordered and the accounts paid through the Public
Works.

Q. You have been asked to produce vouchers and receipts in connection
with the account of the 'Standard Sanitary Manufacturing Co., $1,015.98.
Have you those here?

A. Yes (accounts produced).

Q. Have you the Vivid Electric Lamp account $304.77?
A. Those are just bulbs used in the buildings from time to time.

Q. Who is the Vivid Lamp Co. ?

A. I don't know.

Q. Is it a Toronto concern?

A. I don't know. The account will show (accounts produced).
Q. The Adams Furniture Company? (accounts produced).
Q. Mr. Fairbairn, in this account of the Adams Furniture Co., dated

January 12, 1920, there is an item of $90 for a wardrobe, a mahogany ward-
robe who was that for?

A. The Minister of Public Works, a wardrobe for his office or his apart-
ments, I can't say which.

Q. What do you mean by his apartments ?

A. When this building was designed first there were apartments de-

signed for the Ministers. A room adjoining the Minister's office has been occu-

pied by him when he was in the city.

Q- Tnen tnis mahogany wardrobe is for his private living apartment?
A. Either one, the office or the apartment.
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Q Which is it for?

A. I cannot say it is for the office; it is for the room adjoining the

office.

Q. The living apartment ?

A. The sleeping room; the room adjoining the office.

Q. That is where he lives while in Toronto ?

A. As far as I know.

Q. This wardrobe is for that purpose?

A. Yes.

Q. Tn this account of October 4, 1920, there is a purchase of jardiniere

stands; what is that for?

A. For flowers for the Speaker's apartments.

Q. Now, the account of the Canadian General Electric (account pro-

duced). I have here an account of Grand and Toy of September 10, 1920
r

for one oak wardrobe, $67.50. Do you recall what that was ordered for ?

A. That is for the Inspector of Theatres, Mr. Elliott.

Q. Does he live down there ?

A. No, that is just an office wardrobe.

Q. I have an account here of the T. Eaton Company, dated November

27, 1919 one brass bed, duplex springs, mattress, down pillows do you recall

who all this was purchased for?

A. Mr. Lee, the housekeeper, brought in a requisition for those. I do

not recall what they were for, now.

Q. We will have to get Mr. Lee here then ?

A. He has charge of the Speaker's apartments and the furniture in this

section of the buildings.

Q. This tapestry Chesterfield you don't know for whom that was pur-

chased ?

A. No, I don't.

Q. That was $250 or this one for $129 ?

A. I don't recall the particular item. Mr. Lee would know. If I were

to refer to the requisition I probably could find it.

Q. The requisitions are not here?

A. No.

Q. I have an account here of Muray-Kay, dated Nov. 20 two pair
of blankets, $25 each. Do you know for whom those were purchased?

A. For the Speaker's apartments.

Q. I have an account here of the Murray-Kay Company, dated June 23,

1920 Axminister carpet $151.25, one Wilton rug $84. Do you know for

what purpose those were purchased ?

A. I cannot say definitely what room they were for. The carpet taken

from Dr. Preston's room was used to fit up other offices, and that was the

carpet for that room, the one that replaced it.

Q. Who occupies that room now?
A. The Minister without portfolio, Mr. Carmichael.
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Q. There is an account here of the T. Eaton Co., dated June 28, 1920,

" one tapestry rocker, $83.50." Who wanted the tapestry rocker?

A. I really cannot say whose office that was for.

Q.__Office? You didn't require a tapestry rocker for an office.

you tell us what that was for?

A. It indicates it there the Provincial Treasurer.

Hox. MB. 'SMITH : Can you tell us whether any preceding Ministers re-

moved any articles out of the rooms when they went away?

A. There were some, of the preceding Ministers who wanted to get some

of the articles that they were attached to, and in every case when an article

was taken they paid the full price. That would account for some refurnishing.

MR. HILL: The former Ministers paid for what they took out?

A. Yes.

Q. ig this tapestry rocker in Mr. Smith's office ?

A. I really cannot say.

Q._I have an account here of Murray-Kay, dated January 15, 1920;

another Axminster carpet $121.13, another $133, border $93.38 for whom

was that purchased ?

A. Without the requisition I cannot say.

Q. Can you bring the requisition here?

A. Yes.

Q. That would show exactly for what office or private apartment these

were purchased ?

A. They may or may not. Mr. Lee would explain at that time what

was wanted.

Q. Here is a T. Eaton Co. account dated September 13, 1920. Can

you tell us for whom these articles were purchased ?

A. Hon. Mr. Doherty, Minister of Agriculture.

Q. One box mattress for mahogany bed, $32 ;
one mahogany bed, $92 ;

mahogany chair, $185; mahogany rocker, $190; mahogany chiffonier, $88.50;

mahogany dresser, $139; one silver brown rocker, $52.50; one walnut table,

$52.50; one mahogany somnoe, $9; one Chesterfield, $160; slip covers for

Chesterfield and three chairs, $11.25; total, $904.75. Mr. Doherty doesn't

live in the building, does he?

A. He has a room adjoining his office, originally designed for the

Minister's use. It had been used as an office during the last few months or

year, but was returned to Mr. Doherty. Although he lives in Toronto, his

home was closed during the summer time. He was not in good health and

needed his room, so he refurnished it. It is really an adjunct to his office, a

room where, if he is not feeling well, he can go and lie down.

Q. And I suppose all this mahogany makes him feel better?

A. The room Mr. Duff occupied was occupied by the Minister of Educa-

tion, so this had to be returned and was furnished for Mr. Doherty.

Q. I see there were also two screens, $30; a pair of curtains, $41.26;

poles, fittings, etc., $8.70; window shades, $3Efi. He has a pretty nice room?
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A. Yes; it is fitted up right.

Q. There is another account here of the T. aton Co. of March 5, 1920,

can you tell for whom that was purchased ?

A. That was for the Board of Censors on Richmond street west. When

the lady censors were appointed they fitted up a room for them there.

Q. One mahogany Chesterfield, $210; one mahogany arm rocker, $45'

one rug, $165. They are still there for the lady censors?

A. Yes.

Q. Who is 0. Elliott, who certifies that this is proper?
A. He is the inspector of theatres. It is also certified by Mr. Heakes.

Q. Who is Mr. Heakes?

A. The Provincial Architect.

Q. This account of January 8, 1920, who was that purchased for ?

A. I think that was for the Minister of Public Works.

Q. One chiffonier that is for his apartment?
A. For his office. It is practically his office, adjoining his office

Q. It is where he lives ?

A. No, he conducts a great deal of Government business there.

Q. His bed is there. What I mean is that that is his living apartment ?

A. I would not call it a living apartment. When he stays here at night

attending to Government business, he sleeps in that room. When he i? in the

city he lives there.

Q. What is
"
one plate glass top, $52" ?

A. That is a plate glass top that was put on the office desk to protect it

from injury. Also they keep memorandums under it.

Q. T. Eaton Co., June 8, 1920, "one scarf, $6.50; centrepiece, $7.25."

Goods received, G. Forester. What were they for ?

A. Those are for the Minister of Public Works.

Q. Why is he buying scarfs ?

A. He certified to the goods being there.

Q. But why should the Minister of Public Works buy a scarf at the

expense of the Government ?

A. It is not a scarf to wear, it is for furniture.

Q. For the chiffonier, perhaps ?

A. Perhaps.

Q. There is another account of Eaton's, of August 11, 1920, "one screen,

$18.50; one Wilton rug, $92.50." For whom was that purchased?
A. Mr. Lee would know that.

Q. Would the same thing apply to the account dated August 20, 1920,
"
tapestry, $24.05 ?" Would we have to get that from Mr. Lee ?

A. Yes, unless there is something on the account to indicate.

Q- There is the account of Grand and Toy, January 6, 1920, for

Minister of Labor, one mahogany wardrobe, $67.50; one oak wardrobe, $55.
A. That would be in the office of the Minister of Labour. He has

sleeping apartments.
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Q. Does lie require two wardrobes in his office ?

HON. MR. SMITH : He has two offices, hasn't he ?

A. Yes.

Q. In one office they had mahogany furniture ?

A. Yes; it was in 15 Queen's Park. One of the rooms furnished in

mahogany when Mr. Kiddell first furnished it. This mahogany wardrobe

was to harmonize with the furniture in the room.

ME. HILL: Here is an Eaton account of May 20, 1920. Who was that

ordered for?

A. There is nothing to indicate, except that Mr. Lee certified to it.

Q. One davenport, $111; one tapestry chair, $59.50; one tapestry chair,

$62 ;
one smoker's stand, $7.75 ;

tax on smoker's stand, $1.55. Then here is

a T. Eaton account of November 11 ,9119. For whom was that ordered?

A. That was for the Department of the Attorney-General.
HON. MR. SMITH: That was during the regime of the late Government?

A. Yes
;
an old account that was not paid then.

MR. HILL : None of these supplies for the buildings are purchased by

tender, are they ?

A. They are purchased by tender, practically. When a requisition

comes in to the department the secretary of the department knows where the

goods can be bought most cheaply, and he gets prices, and places the order

accordingly.

MR, WARREN : In the case of this furniture taken away by the late Minis-

ters, were there vouchers to show what money was paid for it ?

A. Yes.

Q. We can get them ?

A. Yes.

MR. HOMUTH: That was furniture purchased by the Government for

the different rooms and offices ?

A. I can only recall one particular case and I am not sure whether it

as a floor covering or curtains, but the full price the Government paid was
aid by the Minister.

MR. HILL: Here is an account of the T. Eaton Co. dated February 21,
921: Mahogany couch, $125 for whom was that purchased?

A. I am not sure. Mr. Lee can tell vou.
/

Q. Have you given all the accounts of the T. Eaton Co. ?

A. Yes.

MR. WARREN: Might it be true that where a Minister has a furnished

m in connection with his office, where he can sleep, he would be putting

longer hours at his duties than he would if living outside ?

A. There is no doubt about it. The Minister of the Crown is not an

ight-hour-day man. He is a 24-hour-aday man. ?

Q. With his sleeping room there he is right in touch with his work all

the time?

A. Yes.
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MR. HILL: There is another account of the T. Eaton Co., dated March

2, 1920 for whom was that ordered ?

A. The Minister of Public Works.

Q. That is for his sleeping apartments ?

A. For his office.

Q ls that for his sleeping office then, or his day office? carpets, $157 ?

A. I am not sure which office it is.

Q There is another on March 2, 1920 the same thing applies? It was

either for his night or his day office ?

A. That is for the Minister of Public Works.

Q. Shadow cloth, $112.50; poles, brackets, curtains, etc., $159.71.. In

connection with the Standard Sanitary item, was any bothroom fitted up for

any Minister's room?

A. No.

Q t NO new bathroom installed ?

A. No.

Q. If it had been installed it would have been done under you?
A. Yes.

Q. Was there a bathroom installed in the Minister of Mines room off

his office?

A. Possibly there was in the Minister of Mines' room. The plans were

changed so frequently I cannot say what was installed.

Q. Who did the work ?
>

A. It was our own plumbers who did the work.

Q. Can you give us the cost of that?

A. I could look it up if necessary.

Q. There is an account here of W. H. Steele dated June 14 1920. Was

any tender called for that ?

A. Yes there is a written tender attached to it.

Q. He was asked for an estimate and gave it?

A. Yes.

Q. No other concerns were asked for an estimate?

A. The work is distributed among those in that line.

Q. If tenders had been called for they would be attached to this ?

A. No; only the one would be attached to the voucher. The others

would be filed in the office.

Q. You can say this was the successful tender?

A. Yes.

Q. You don't know whether others were asked to tender for these par-

ticular awnings or not ?

A.( Possibly there were. We get different prices from those in that line.

ME. PINARD: There are many items here. I have one here of $90 two

vertical filing cabinets four single flat-top desks. Was there any tender asked

for those?

A. There was a quotation given to the secretary of the department for
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every one purchased.

Q. By different merchants?

A. Yes; we purchased from the lowest offer.

Q. Can you tell me where the furniture placed in the Prime Minister's

was bought from ?

A. From Eaton's.

Q. Have you got the Eaton bills here?

A. ~No. They were not purchased last year. They are in this year.

MR. HILL: Purchased since the 31st of October, 1920?

A. Yes.

Q. The GToldie and McCullough account of $250, have you the voucher

for that ?

A. That was for desks. There were just two, as far as I can recall one

for the Factory Inspector and one for the Boiler Inspector.

Q. The account of the W. R. Brock Co., three rugs, $22.50. What can

you tell us about them ?

A. Nothing further than that they were requisitioned, purchased, certi-

fied to and paid.

Q. What were they purchased for ?

A. They were purchased for the automobiles.

ME. PRICE : Were they for the garage or the automobiles themselves ?

A. For the autos.

MR. HILL : Have you the Cuttern and Foster account ? (account pro-
duced).

MB. FAIRBAIRN: I notice that in the accounts we have been looking at

there are accounts for repairs to automobiles. Don't you do the repairs to

your own cars in the garage ?

^- The repairs in the garage are done by our own mechanics.

Q. Some of these bills are for supplies, but a great many are for re-

pairs.

A. Repairs to headlamps, fenders and so on, that sort of thing is done
in the garage. All minor repairs are supposed to be done in the garage,
""here may be occasions when we require work to be done quickly and they
lay not be able to do it. Some outside repairs are done sometimes like that.

MR. WARREN : Wouldn't these be repairs to cars of the engineers on the
>ads?

A. No; these are in Toronto.

Witness excused.

A. E. Dunlop called and sworn. Examined by Hon. Mr. Henry.

Q. You are in the Provincial Secretary's Department ?

A. Yes.

Q. What is your occupation ?

A. Inspector of Prisons and Public Charities for the Province.
-You are responsible for the purchases for the public institutions?
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A. Largely so.

Q. You purchase all meat and such articles ?

A. I do.

Q. Some years ago there was an abattoir operated at the Ontario Re-

formatory that was not in operation during the last stages of the war ?

A. I think we closed the abattoir either in September or in August
of 1918.

Q. Were you operating in the last fiscal year ?

A. When the D. S. C, E. took over the plant at Guelph, we continued

the abattoir for a little while after that, but found it was unsatisfactory trying
to operate a part of the plant like that, so we closed down.

Q. You hadn' it in operation during the fiscal year of 1920 ?

A. No.

Q. You opened it since?

A. Yes, approximately two monthe ago.

Q. It has been running from the 1st of January ?

A. No; I would say from about the middle of January.
The Committee then adjourned.

THE PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE,
March 30, 1921.

The Committe met at 10 a.m., Mr. Curry in the chair.

K. P. Fairbairn, called and sworn.

MR. HILL : Mr. Fairbairn, you were asked to produce further accounts ?

Accounts produced.

THE CHAIRMAN: Mr. Fairbairn, I saw in the papers some reference to

a $100 coal scuttle; do you know anything of that account?

A. That was not asked me. It was just some conversation in the room.
T know nothing about it.

Q. Bo you know anything of such an account?

A. No, I know nothing of it?

Q- To your knowledge no coal scuttle at $100 was ever purchased ?

A. I never heard of it atj all.

Q. As far as you are concerned nothing of that kind went through your
department ?

A. No.

Mr. Lee called and sworn
; examined by Mr. Hill.

Q. Mr. Lee, you are the housekeeper, I understand, did you order furni-

ture and supplies?
A. Partly.

Q- We have an account here of Murray-Kay, dated November 28, for

$54, and certified correct by you. For whom were those goods purchased ?

A. For the Ministers.

Q. Which Ministers?
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A. I cannot swear positively which one. I remember getting them for

the Ministers.

Q. Three quilts at $18 each ? For which Ministers ?

A. I cannot recall which.

Q. Cannot you recall any one?

A. I might have an idea, but I am on oath.

Q. What is your idea ?

A. The three Ministers in the west end.

Q. Give me those three ?

A. The weather was cold, and they were asking for more bedclothing.

Q. Who were they ?

A. I believe Mr. Bowman, Mr. Grant and Mr. Mills were the three;

I am not positive.

Q. I have here the account of the T. Eaton Company of May 20, 1920,

which you have signed for. Can you tell me for whom those goods were

ordered ?

A. The first item, of course, is for the house, and the davenport chair

is for Mr. Grant's office.

Q. The others were for Mr. Grant's office?

A. Yes.

Q. One davenport, $111 ;
one tapestry chair, $59.50 ;

one tapestry chair,

$62; one smoker's stand, $7.75 ;
one parlor table, $19.75. Was this for his

business office or his retiring office?

A. His business office.

THE CHAIRMAN: Why was that necessary hadn't it been furnished

before ?

A. No, not that particular room. It was originally a bathroom adjoin-

ing his office. He had it made into a little retiring room where he might
lie down.

ME. HILL : You told us it was for his regular office.

A. This was a bathroom off the office.

THE CHAIRMAN: And it is not now used as a bathroom, but as> a retiring
room for the Minister?

A. Exactly.

Q. For him to lie down in, and it was so furnished?

A. That it so, exactly.

Q. Where are the bath fixtures?

A. They were removed.

MR. HILL: When was this done?

A. Immediately before we got this.

Q. That would be in May, 1920 ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was a bathroom fitted up for Mr. Mills ?

A. 'No yes there was, on the ground floor?

A. Adjoining his business office.

Q. Is that where he sleeps ?
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A. No.

THE CHAIRMAN: What was the bathroom off the Minister of Education's

office? Who was that used by?
A. That is the room we. were speaking of.

Q. It was used as a bathroom?

A.; Yes. The room was always there. It was changed, the bath was

removed and the davenport was put there, so the Minister could lie down.

Q. The present Minister is using it as a retiring room ?

A. Exactly.

Q. Here is the account of Grand and Toy of March 25, 1920,
" one

double wardrobe, $120."

A. I don't know anything about that, it was not purchased by me.

Q. Then the account of February 23, 1920, $324.90. Tell us for whom
that was ordered?

A. The Speaker's apartments.

Q. The account of the T. Eaton Company, one mahogany couch, maroon

leather, $125?

Q. For his retiring office?

A. No, for his office proper.

THE CHAIRMAN: Why was it necessary to furnish the Speaker's apart-

ments. Hadn't they been furnished before?

A. These were replacements, every year goods are replenished.

Q. Here is the account of the T. Eaton Co. of January 28, 1920,
" One

tapestry rocker, $83.50," who was that purchased for?

A. I didn't buy that, sir.

THE CHAIRMAN: Is that the one placed in Mr. Smith's office?

A. :

Yes, that is the one.

Q. Do you know when that came in ?

A. No.

Q. Do you know if it came in before Mr. Smith came in?

A. No.

MR. HILL: There is the T, Eaton account of December 24, 1919, the-

day before Christmas,
" one footstool, $9.75 ;

one scarf, $5.75 for whom was

that purchased?

Q. The office or the retiring room?

A. The office.

Q. The office proper?
A. The room adjoining.

Q. Then it is the room adjoining the office, not the office?

A. No.

Q. One footstool, $9.75; one scarf, $5.75; two centrepieces, $1.70; two-

scarfs, $3.00.

A. Those are not scarfs merely table covers.

Q. Then the account of the T. Eaton Company dated January 8, 1920,

curtains, $11.58, for whom were those purchased?
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A. I believe they were for Mr. Bowman's private room.

THE CHAIRMAN : How many ?

A. Three pair.

Q. They would not be expensive curtains at that?

A. No, very inexpensive, just pieces of net to cover the nakedness of

the windows, that is all.

MR. HILL: Murray-Kay, Ltd., an account of January 25, an Axminister

carpet, for whom was that purchased ?

A. I think one was for Mr. Grigg' s office, and the other at the time

there were many changes in the office, and it is hard to remember. Mr. Gibson's

office was taken by Mr. Grigg, and the carpet was lifted and placed in the

stenographers' room. I placed a new carpet in the Deputy's office for Mr.

Grigg, and I placed another carpet in the new office for Mr. Gibson, but which

is which I am not positive, but those two carpets were ordered about the same
time.

THE CHAIRMAN: That would be replenishing?
A. Oh, yes.

MR. HILL : There is an account here of the T. Eaton Co., dated February,
9, 1920, one Wilton carpet, $143. Who was that for?

A. That was a carpet for Dr. Waugh of the Department of Education,

new office was created there, and it had to be furnished.

Q. What is that memorandum in lead pencil there
" MM?" Did you

lay a carpet in Mr. Mills' office. Isn't that Mr. Mills carpet?
A. No. I got one carpet from the T. Eaton Company and two from

[urray-Kay a'bout the same time.

Q. That looks like Mr. Mills' carpet you have written his name there.

A. That may be what I thought at the time. It might possibly be that.

A. That may be what I thought at the time. It might possibly be that.

It may be the one for his office. I am not positive.

Q. Is that his office or his retiring office ?

A. His office proper.

Q. Here is another account of the T. Eaton Co., January 23, 1920,

ipparently carpets, $488. What offices were those for?

A. There are two carpets there.. That was for Col. Carmichael's office.

Q. The -both of them ?

A. Yes, there are two rooms.

Q. That is the bedroom and the office ?

A. Yes.

Q. And the amount of these two carpets was $488.26 ?

A. Yes. I don't know whether you have been buying carpets lately

Q. We are not asking you that.

HON. MR. SMITH: Was there any carpet in that room when Col. Car-
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michael took over the office?

A. No, sir.

Q. Who. had occupied that room previously?

A. Dr. Preston. After Dr. Preston left the room was used for other

purposes. We took the carpet up and used it in other offices. When Col.

Carmichael took the place the room was bare, and we had to furnish it.

Q. When you say the room was bare do you meafi. the office or the bed-

room ?

A. Both of them were bare. When the room was discontinued, instead

of buying new carpets and furniture we used those there.

THE CHAIRMAN: What were these two rooms used for before?

A. They were used for Dr. Preston, the Whip.
Q. One as an office and one as a bedroom ?

A. Yes.

Q. What happened to the furniture in Dr. Preston's bedroom?

A. We have part of it in the storeroom, the most of it was used in other

places.

MR. HILL: Why didn't you put that furniture back in the room,?

A. It wasn't suitable. It was a folding bed, and I didn't consider it

safe and didn't use it again.
DR. GODFREY : It was a pretty fine bed wasn't it ?

A. It was in use many years.

MR. HILL: Couldn't it be repaired?
A. I did not think it was safe anyway.

Q. What sort of bed did you put in its place?
A. A brass bed.

DR. GODFREY : Didn't it suit Dr. Preston ?

A. Oh, yes, it suited Dr. Preston well enough, but I had to have it

repaired more than once.

Q. It suited any ordinary person?
A. I don't know about any ordinary person. It suited Dr. Preston.

MR. HILL: What happened to the chairs in the room. Are they still

in the storeroom?

A. No, they were distributed in different places.

Q. The only article of furniture left is the folding bed?

A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN: Was it your notion that you did not put that in Col.

Carmichael had nothing to do with it?

A. He knew nothing of it.

HON. MR. SMITH : In the old days the Whip had an office and room here ?

A. Yes, sir.

DR. GODFREY: Wasn't the Whip, Dr. Preston, Minister without port-

folio?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And in the same position as Col. Carmichael ?

A. Yes, sir.

MR. HILL: Did the entire Cabinet sleep in the buildings?

A. Most of the Ministers slept here at times.

Q. How many bedrooms were there under the old Government i

A. Xine I think.

Q. Furnished bedrooms?

A. Yes.

Q. Where were they ?

A. The different Ministers, with the exception of the Premier six in

the east end and two in the west end.

Q. Bedrooms fitted up ?

A. Yes.

MR. WARREN: A considerable amount of furnishings were taken away

by the late Ministers ?

A. No, not a considerable amount. One of the Ministers took some

furniture, or rather, purchased it.

MR. HILL : Just go over those rooms and enumerate them.

A. The Minister of Agriculture
-

Q. We were told the other day there was no bedroom for the Minister

Agriculture.

A. That is easily explained. The late Mr. Duff could not sleep well

>wnstairs, and asked to have a room upstairs. He gave up the room he was

ing as a bedroom for office use and in exchange got a room upstairs, but

still had a room.

Q. Where was this room ?

A. At the back of the Minister of Agriculture's office. It is now used

a bedroom again.

Q. You said Mr. Duff didn't use that room?
A. Since Mr. Duff's death there has been no bedroom there.

Q. There was no bedroom on the ground floor there until it was fur-

ished for Mr. Doherty ?

A. Exactly.

Q. How long is it since Mr. Duff died ?

A. He has been dead three or four years.

THE CHAIRMAN: Where was the Minister of Agriculture's room after

was changed ?

A. Upstairs.

MR. HILL : Where is that now ?

A. At the present time Mr. Grant is using that particular room.

Q. What other rooms were there ?

A. The Minister of Agriculture, the Minister of Crown Lands, the

>vincial Secretary.

Q. Where is tfre Provincial Secretary's bedroom?
A. Adjoining his office. *
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Q. Had that been used ?

A.-^-I don't know whether it was at that time. The bedrooms were used

generally by the Ministers when they were kept late. They didn't use them

all the time. They were there for their convenience. I noticed that that was

how they were used.

Q. That was the only way they were used under the Hearst Govern-

ment?

A. They were at the convenience of the Ministers.

Q. You have given us three Agriculture, Crown Lands and Provincial

Secretary.

Q. I am talking about the old Government.

A. There was the Minister without portfolio, Dr. Preston.

Q. Mr. Grant is now using the bedroom that was occupied by the

Minister of Agriculture ?

A. Mr. Grant is using that room. Mr. Doherty is using his own room.

Q. You are getting confused. I am trying to find out what rooms were

used by the Ministers under the old administration.

A. I have already told you. The only difference is that the late Mr.

Duff's room was changed to upstairs, and when Mr. Doherty came it was taken

back and put in the same place again.

Q. Under the old administration there were rooms for the Minister of

Agriculture, the Minister of Crown Lands, the Provincial Secretary, the

Provincial Treasurer and Dr. Preston?

A. Yes.

A MEMBER: Mr. McKeown had a room?

A. Yes.

MR. WARREN : Was he a Minister ?

A. No.

Q. Which was his room ?

A. That used by the Hon. Mr. Mills at the present time. I might ex-

plain that Mr. McKeown used his room as an office. It was the only office

be had in the building.

MR. HILL: An office with a bed in it?

A. Yes.

MR. SMITHS Did the late Attorney-General not have a room ?

A. Yes. I overlooked that.

DR. GODFREY: Where was Mr. Lucas' room?

A. It was just off the passage as you go down to his office. Right on

the same floor.

THE CHAIRMAN: I think it is the room occupied as a law office.

A. Mr. Elliott had it last year. It is used now as an office.

MR. HALL : Didn't the Premier have a room ?

A. No, sir.

MR. HILL: Where was the furniture from Mr. McKeown's room taken?

A. It was placed in the storeroom.
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Q. And you ordered entirely new furniture for Mr. Mills ?

A. I don't remember. I think it is the same bed. You see the fur-

nishings were the usual office furniture. It was an office with a bed in it?

Q. That was all it was ?

A. Exactly.

Q. What rooms of the Ministers were entirely or largely refurnished

when the new administration came in?

A. Mr. Mills, the Minister of Agriculture's room, and Mr. Bowman's.

Q. Mr. Bowman's, Mr. Doherty's and Mr. Mills' ?

A. Yes, and Mr. Carmichael's.

Q. And the furniture in these rooms was taken out and put in the store-

room ?

A. Yes, sir.

MR. JOHNSON (LANARK) Why was it necessary to furnish Mr. Bow-

man's room ?

A. Because there was no furniture in it of any kind.

Q. I understood you to say the former Minister bought some of the

furnishings ?

A. We sold Mr. Ferguson some of the furniture there.

ME. HILL All the furniture taken out had been paid for ?

A. Yes.

Q. What was taken out?

A. If my memory serves me right, there was the bedstead, the bedding
ind curtains. He bought the bed furniture, the curtains and carpets.

THE CHAIRMAN : I suppose the mattress and pillows ?

A. Yes.

MB. HILL: What happened to the furniture?

A. The furniture was removed.

Q. It was taken and put in the storeroom ?

A. Yes.

Q. Are you positive the bedstead and fittings were taken out and pur-
Chased by the retiring Minister?

A. I am satisfied he bought some and I think those are the articles

lentioned.

Q. If I told you that all he purchased was the curtains and rugs, what
vould you say?

A. My impression is that he bought the bed with the curtains and rugs.
I am not sure.

MR. JOHNSON: Can you tell us how much was paid for these articles
A.Yes, I have a statement in my pocket.
ME. WIDDIFIELD : How does that correspond with the present prices ?

A- It is -a fair valuation. I was fourteen years in the furniture business
know something about it. They asked for these goods, they were

ttached to them. I took it up and placed a fair valuation on them, and my
assistant put another valuation on them. We differed $15, so we put on that
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extra $15 to the price.

Q. In that valuation did you consider the advance in prices, that these

were purchased when prices were considerably lower?

A. I considered the value of the worn furniture. The furniture had

been used for a number of years. In fact I knew very well that if another

person came in he probably would have' the furniture renewed.

DR. GODFREY: You would have had to put that much less stuff in the

junk pile. It would not suit the other man coming in ?

Q. When you move into another room there are always changes. We

expect that. I never knew anyone yet who, if they could afford it, would

not buy rugs or something. It is so with the Ministers. If they see something

they don't want they naturally say so.

ME. JOHNSTON (Simcoe) :Dt has always been the practice here ?

A. Surely. One of my duties is to look after the Ministers in that

respect, and naturally I am in close touch with them.

MR. WARREN: Do the Ministers do anything in the way of suggesting

what is wanted?

A. ~Noi at all. It is generally left to myself.

Q. You buy without consulting the Ministers ?

A. I need never consult them. I get what appeals to me as making up
a harmonious whole.

Q. You were apparently correct in saying he got more than the curtains.

This statement here is for $240. Surely that is more than would be required
for the curtains and rugs?

A. We made him pay a fair price for what he got. When he asked

permission to buy them, I said of course we would have to put a valuation on

them and see what they were worth. I made a valuation and my assistant made
another valuation.

Q. When you spoke of taking goods out and putting them in the store-

room, do they stay there or are they used again ?

A. They are continually being taken out again. When a requisition is

put in for a piece of furniture, the Deputy naturally says: "Has Mr. Lee

got anything?" The storeroom is visited, and they get the piece of furniture

wanted if it is there. We use all we can in that way.
Q. You don't charge the storeroom with what you take out ?

A. !N"o, sir.

MR, HILL: Did any of the old Ministers live permanently in this building?
A. I cannot say they did, sir. They used them whenever they thought

proper. JL
would not like to say who did and who did not.

DR. GODFREY: They were residing in different places in Toronto. Mr.
Lucas had his own home ?

A. Yes. Sometimes they would go to a hotel and then they would get
tired of the hotel and move back to their room. I know that for a positive
fact from remarks made. I have heard them saying they were sick and tired

of hotel life and had to move back.

MR. WARREN : These rooms were always at their disposal ?



George F. APPENDIX No. 2. 175

A. Yes, the rooms were always there.

DR. GODFREY : Did the Prime Minister have a room here ?

A. Xo, sir.

Q. He had a house in town?

A. Exactly.

Q. Did Sir James Whitney have a room here ?

A. No.

Q. He had a house in town?

A. Exactly.

.Q. During the session, was it not a fact that Mr. Ferguson and Mr.

McGarry and others stayed at the Queen's Hotel ?

A. Part of the time.

Q. They didn't make this an apartment house, did they?
A. They used the rooms when they saw fit. I know they largely used

the hotels during the session.

MR. TOLMIE : As I understand the situation these men had their houses

in town, the Prime Minister and so on, and they also had rooms at the hotel

and occasionally they stayed here if late at night?

A. The rooms were always at their disposal.

THE CHAIRMAN: They stayed here at other times than when working late

at night?
A. At any time they thought fit.

Q. They would be here at different times?

A. At any time they saw fit to remain the rooms were there for them,

just as they are now.

MR. HILL : Not just as they are now. The rooms have been re-arranged.
MR. WARREN: Dr. Godfrey says this has been turned into an apartment

or boarding house. Do the Ministers get free board here?

A. No.

DR. GODFREY: The Prime Minister of the Province of Ontario was down
the Alexandra Apartments last year, isn't that so ?

A. T heard so, I believe he was.

Q. He conies up here and gets a room, a palatial place, and saves what
would otherwise spend ?

THE CHAIRMAN: That is a conclusion, not evidence.

DR. GODFREY: Does the Prime Minister pay anything for the apartments
has in the Buildings ?

A. No.

Q. Does the Prime Minister save his rental at the Alexandra Apart-
ments ?

THE CHAIRMAN: That is a conclusion. You cannot ask him to draw a

conclusion.

MR. TOLMIE: I was going to ask, is it correct that nine bedrooms were
used by the former Cabinet Ministers and others ?

A. Including the Speaker's, I think there were nine.
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Q. How many rooms are there now?

A. I think, perhaps, one other.

MR. TOOMS : Do the Ministers take these apartments in the Buildings in

order to facilitate business?

THE CHAIRMAN : That is a conclusion. He cannot answer that.

MR. TOLMIE : Have any of the Ministers more than one room, one retiring

room, or whatever you call it ?

A. I don't think so.

MR. HILL: Oh, yes, they have. You told us of one who has a retiring

room and also a bedroom ?

A. If you call that a room. I don't call it a room. I call it an adjacent

to the office.

MR. WIDDIFIELD: We understand that some of these former Ministers

entertained themselves down town at their own expense. The Department was

under the same expense in each case whether they did or not ?

A. Exactly.

Q. The apartments were there just the same?

A. Yes.

Q. What difference did it make in public expenditure whether they

did or not?

A. Exactly.

Q. The apartments were there just the same?

A. Yes.

Q. What difference did it make in public expenditure whether they

entertained themselves down town or not?

THE CHAIRMAN: That, of course, is a conclusion. He cannot answer

that. You can put the question in this way: Mr. Lee, was anything charged
to the Province in addition to what you say. The rooms are there to be used

and whether they are used or not, does it cost the Province any more or any
less?

A. I think not.

Q. The dining room has been there how many years ?

A. Since the House was built.

Q. And to your knowledge has been used as a dining room how long?
A. Sixteen years.

Q. The kitchen, pantries, etc., have been in continuous use those sixteen

years ?

A. Always.

Q. And the expense of that is borne by whom ?

A. The Government finds the fittings and utensils. The caterers find

what the people put in their mouths and charge for it accordingly.

Q. The caterer charges enough to pay for the food?

A. Yes.

Q. Whether you use it or not it doesn't cost the Government any more
~ther than the more you use the equipment the quicker it wears ?
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A. No.

Q. And that has 'been running for sixteen years to your knowledge

A. Since Confederation.

MR. TOLMIE: Was there not originally a dining room for the members?

A. There was, and there was not. At the time they remodelled the

west end, Col. Hendrie was chairman of the Building Committee, and he

conceived the idea that there should be a room for the members only. He

apportioned this very room where we are now for that purpose. It was never

used by the members. Perhaps one or two would straggle in and perhaps not.

Therefore it was discontinued and used for other purposes. The members
didn't appreciate it, for they seldom used it.

MR. HILL : Who makes up these rooms, the maids ?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you had to engage extra maids on account of the Ministers

living here permanently ?

A. No, sir.

Q. The same number of maids ?

A. Yes, each maid has thirteen rooms they clean every day, rooms or

offices.

Hox. MR. SMITH : Do the present Ministers live here permanently ?

A. No, sir. None of the Ministers to-day live here permanently.
MR. HILL: What do you mean?
A. They come and go.

Q. Have they any apartments in the city ?

A. I haven't any idea I never asked them.

Q- There is an account here of the Murray-Kay Company for a carpet,
257.31, who was that purchased for?

A. I think that was for the Hon. Mr. Rollo.

Q- What room is he occuping has he a bedroom?
A. No.

Q. Where does he live ?

A. I believe he lives in Hamilton.

Q. He hasn't a room in the building ?

A. He has a room, but not a bedroom.

Q. This carpet at $257.31 was for his office?

A. I believe that is correct.

Q- I have another account here, of the T. Eaton Company. Who was
at purchased for?

A. That was for the room now used by the Hon. Mr. Bowman. I saw
n the paper that a chair was bought for one of the Ministers at $129. Noth-

ng of the kind, that chair was returned.

Q- This is an account for one brass bed, $43.50, duplex spring, $10.75,

attress, $22, in addition to pillows, $7.50, one tapestry chesterfield, $250,
one reposing chair, $129, 50 yards of towelling, $51, two pair of blankets, $39?

A. Excuse me, that $129 chair was returned.
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Q. Two comforters, $30; two spreads, $16.50; one dozen towels, $18;

six dozen towels ?

A. Those are for the general use of the House, not for Mr. Bowman.

Q. Here is an account of the T. Eaton Co. of December 16, 1919. For

whom were those purchased ?

A. Those are chairs I got for Mr. Bowman instead of the one at $129.

Q. That is, one rocker, $35.50, and one arm-chair, $35. Then the

account of the T. Eaton Co. of December 6, 1919, for whom were those pur-

chased ?

A. The library table for Hon. Mr. Raney's office. The linoleum was

generally for the house. I could not tell you if you if you gave me a million

which rooms they went into.

Q. The library table at $85 was for Mr. R-aney?
A. Yes.

TH|E CHAIRMAN : Why -was that necessary for Mr. Raney's office ?

A. Mr. Raney required it to put his books and 'different things on. He
had not enough room for papers and required a tjyble, so I got a table to match
the furniture in his office.

Q. You chose the table?

A. Yes.

Q. He required it for office purposes?
A. Yes.

MR. HILL: The. account of the Murray Kay Company, one Axmnnsrter

carpet, $198.

A. I think, if I remember right, I think that must be the carpet in Mills*

office, on the ground floor. I think so. I know these carpets were purchased at

the time of the changes but I don't remember exactly which was which. But a

carpet was got at that time for Mr. Mills' office.

Q. Is there one carpet or are there two carpets there ?

A. There was only one carpet in Mills' office.

Witness Excused.

R. P. FAIRBURN recalled:

MR. DEWART: I am anxious to find out what rooms or accommodation in

the buildings previously used for office purposes is not so used for the same pur-

poses now, since the first of January, 1920. What quarters in the buildings have

been vacated by any particular branch of the 'service?

A. The License Board went down to 4 6 Richmond Street.

Q. Yes, when was that?

A. I don't know the exact date. It was to /provide accommodation that was

sadly needed in the buildings.

Q. A year ago las/fc June?
A. About that time.

Q. Any other board?

A. The Railway and Municipal Board went out about January of this year,
to 47 Queen's Park. The Motor Vehicles Branch of the Highways Department
went to 15 Queen's Park.

MR. DEWART: By what branches of the service had 15 Queen's Park, been

before?
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A. The Department of Labour.

Q. Then the moving picture branch, the Board of Censors, were they moved?

A. They were moved' earlier than that.

Q. When did they move ?

A. They moved about February, 1919.

Q. Are those the only ones ?

A. There were one or two single offices. Mr. Dane who has charge of settlers'

loans, .under the northern development work has an office at 46 Richmond. He
was formerly in the building. The chief officer of the Parole Board also has an

office there. I think those are all.

Q. Was there any room occupied by the motion pictures or any room used

for that in the buildings during the last year ?

A. There was a room occupied as an office and occasionally used for show-

ing pictures.

Q. Upstairs?
A. Yes, there was one upstairs.

Q. What use is that room now put to ?

A. That is a room used by the Premier as a room for himself.

Q. It is a double room ?

A. Yes.

Q. Corresponding to the one across the hall downstairs ?

A. Yes, the one the Liberals have now. One is a dark room, there is only
one light room.

Q. Take the quarters that were occupied by the License Board here. For

wluat purpose are they used now ?

A. The northern development branch use several offices and the colonization

Toads have three offices, The fish and game department have one office, and the

highways department have one office.

Q. What about the quarters formerly occupied by the Railway and Municipal
Board ?

A. Those roooms are occupied partly by the sessional stenographers, one by
the law officer's department, one by the assistant Clerk of the House, and one by
the Highways department.

Q. This room here you say is the one formerly used by the Motor Vehi-

cles Branch?
A. Yes.

Q. 'And the quarters Mr. Dane had what are they used for ?

A. Mr. Zavitz, who is in charge of forests in the Departments of Lands and

Forests has it that is, the one he left when he left the buildings.

Q. Where is he now ?

A. Who, Mr. Zavitz ?

Q. Yes.

A. He is in the buildings.

Q. Who has the quarters formerly occupied by the Parole Board?
A. The inspector of Prisons and Public Charities.

Q. Would it be possible for you to make up a statement of the buildings out-

side the Parliament Buildings, that are used for departmental purposes ?

A. Yes, there is an order of the House that will be ready in a day or so on

that.
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Q. I doivt know whether the floor space or the rentals charged were asked

for in that order ?

A. No, it was not asked for in the order.

Q. We can get that?

A. Yes.

LEONARD C. PARKIN, ealed and sworn ;
examined by Mr, Price.

Q. Where do you carry on 'business-?

A. Dundas> Ontario.

Q. What is your business ?

A. Machine shop and garage.

Q. You axe the L. C. Parkin mentioned in the Public Accounts, as having

got a contract for five ton chain doiven dump trucks,, 8 at $9,100 or a, total of

$72,800, and three and one^half ton sterling worm driven trucks as per contract

6 alt $7,516.50, or a total) of $5,0'99, mteuking a total for the two contracts of $117,-

899?

A; Yes, sir.

!Q. You are the same L. C. Parkin mentioned: on page 751, of the Public Ac-

counts; "auto storage, repairs and supplies- $1,157.20"?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And a touring car, McLaughlin, $1,500?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Making a total of $3,057.28?

A. Yes, isir.

Q. These items as far as the description's and the amounts* are concerned are

correct?

A. Yes.

Q. You have been paid this a^mount of money?
A. Yes.

Q. I want to go into the details of how you got this contract. Who spoke
to you first about this contract, the contract, for trucks at $117,000 odd?

A. I got it from the engineer, to the east of Grimsby, that the Department
were going to get trucks, in the first place.

Q. What time would that be ?

A. That was gettdnig on towards the Fall of 1919.

Q. We will just skip that for a moment. Early in December, 1919, the

Hon. Mr. Biggs, called upon you in your garage in Dundas?
A. Yes, I isaw him there.

Q. On that occasion he spoke to you about these trucks-?

A. Not specifically, no.

Q. Never mind about specifically or anything else. He spoke to you about

the contract?

A. Oh yes.

Q. He tol'dj you they would be ordering trucks?

A. He told m|e the Department were going in for trucks.

Q. How long dad lie pay it would 'be before they would be able to place an

order?

A. I do, not think he mentioned, anything of that nature.

Q. Does Mr. Biggs live ne&r Dundas ?

A. Yes, about three miles away.
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Q._You had known him for a considerable time?

A. Oh yes.

Q. How long?
A. I presume six or seven years.

Q. Had lie done business with you ?

A. Yes, off and on.

Q. What kind of business would1 that be ?

A. Fixing for his car and such like.

Q. How long after this first occasion was it thlat Mr. Biggs came in again?

Did you tefll him you would like this contract?

A, No.

Q. You didn't Wand: the 'contract?

A. I didn't tell him I didn't want it. Anyone would want a conitract.

Q. Did you tell him you would like to fill that contract?

'A. I told him I would like to tender, yes.

Q. What inforniaition did 'Mr. Biggs give you?
A. I don't think on that date there was anything mentioned in that light at all.

Q. How long was it after that fitfsit occasion that he came in the second time ?

A. I think it was just at the week-end.

Q. He w.as down here in Toronto at the week-ends and would go and see

you as he went through?
A. Yes, as he weot through.

Q. I see here, by the evidence, in a suit against you by a man named Rey-
nolds, that the contract was entered into on December 30, 1919 ?

A. I think it would be about that date, yes.

Q. How many times did Mr. Biggs come in to see you about it, during the

month of December when <theise conversations were beinig carried on ?

A. I cannot say.

Q. Did he call in, to see you at each week end. In your evidence I think

you say half a dozen times ?

A. I might not have 'been present some times he Walsi around there.

Q- How many times during that month did Mr. Bigorg see you about these

trucks ?

A. Do you mean specially the trucks?

Q- How many times did he see yon in your garage or any place else? In

your evidence here yon say half a dozen times.

A. He has been in there. He came in week-ends and on one or two occasions

he has been up for the night.

Q. I am asking you definitely how many times he saw you about thesge
trucks. Don't try to flim-flam this Committee because we arc not going to have it.

A. I am not trying to flim-flam.

Q. How many times did he see you obout it?

A. I think half a dozen times.

Q. Then why didn't you say so at first. Then after Mr. Biggs had seen

you half a dozen times about these trucks you got down to the contract?

\.Y?>.

Q What did he say to you about the contracts about how many trucks

they would need?

A. He said thev would need twelve trucks.
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Q. The twelve trucks mentioned in here? You supplied twelve trucks?

A, Ye*
Q. Did he say the amount that would be paid for them ?

A. No.

Q. Did he ask you?
A. No, he didn't.

Q. He just told you you could put in a figure on the contract?

A. He told me I would have to put in a tender.

Q. Did anyone else put in a tender?

A. I am not aware of the fact.

Q. No one else ever heard of a tender. On what occasion was Reynolds, the

plaintiff who sued you, in there with Mr. Biggs?
A. I think Reynolds overheard Mr. Biggs and myself talking.

Q. I am not interested in the commission matter. On what occasion was

he there?

A. He was not there, specifically at all.

Q. Never mind specifically or any other way. On what occasion was he

there?

A. He was there once in the shop and once in the Buildings here.

Q. Thais Reynolds was there -once when you and Bdg-g-s talked about this

contract ?

A. Yes.

Q. 'In your garage?
A. Yes.

Q. In DundasT?

A. Yes.

Q. He wias here in the Parliament Buildings when you and Biggs talked

about the contract, or came down to sign up the contract ?

A. Yes.

Q. Now then, how did you make up this contract. Mr. Biggs told you how
many trucks they would need and you started to make up a contract after Mr.

Biggs left that was on the 27th of December?
A. Yes.

Q. After Mr. Biggs left?

A. Yes.

Q- You knew you were going- to get the contrajct ?

A. No.

Q. He told you you wetre going to get the contract ?

A. He didn't tell me.

Q. But you started to make up vour tender ?

A. Yes.

Q- You and Reynolds salt down and tried to make it out?
A. Yes.

Q. Just deScriibe what you did ?

A. 'We'll there was one clause in my contract I was not clear about so I went
to my lawyer to see whether it was absolutely all right.

Q. Let me see, you were not quite clear about the contract did Mr. Biggs
leave a contract with you?

A. Nb, it was my own contract form.
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Q. A form you had because you were an age-nit for trucks ?

A. It is just simply <aii ordinary contract form.

Q. it was a contract form you used, partly printed and then you filled in

certain things describing the truck?

A. It is all printed.

Q. What were you in doubt about, in this form ?

A. About the acceptance in ten days. There were fluctuations in prices at

that time and differences in exchange on the money.

Q. Then you went to your lawyer and asked his advice on the printed part.

You got that advice ?

A. Yes.

Q. How did you write it in from, what information did you write in the

description of the trucks land what was going to be the contract. How did you

get that information to write in the printed form?
A. Just from the regular price list, the catalogue.

Q. I see here in your evidence that you say you got it out of your head:?

1A.

Naturally it would have to come from that source.

Q. You said in your examination here you got it out of your head ?

A. I think you will find further on that I said I got it out of the catalogue.
Q. You say now that you didn't get it out of your head, that you referred to

me document?
A. Yea.

Q. And after you got this tender made out how did you get it to Toronto ?

A^ I think Mr. Biggs brought it to Toronto.

Q. Did you arrange with Mr. Biggs that he was to call and take it to Toronto?
A. No, I did not.

Q. How was it he called on the Monday morning of the 20th of December?
A. I think there was a heavy snow at that time. He drove dbwn to Dundas

and I had a car take him to the C.P.B. station.

He drove to Dundas and called at your garage on the Monday morning
after the Saturday on which you fixed up your tender?

A.-Yes.

Q. You drove him into the C.P.R. station in Hamjilton?
A. Yes.

Q. You took your tender?
A. I took the tender.

Q. And handed it to Mr.

,,-v.

to

Driving to Hamilton with Mr. Biggs, what did you talk about in reference
this contract?

P.

I do not know that the contract was talked about at all.

Q. No mention of it?

A. No, I don't think so.

Q. You just said "Mr. Biggg you are going to Toronto and being Minister of
blic Works would you please take this tender down ?

A. Yes.

Q. And he took it to Toronto ?

A. Yes.
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Q. Did lie tell you when he would get in touch with you again ?

A. -No, I don't thank he did.

Q. Just at that point the evidence of Reynolds is that you told him Mr.

Biggs said he would call you at 8 o'clock, and that he did call you that night at

8 o'clock.

A. I would not swear as to the time, but as regards Reynolds making that

statement, it is absolutely untrue.

Q. Did Mr. Biggs say he would call you that night at 8 o'clock ?

A. I don't think there was anything to that effect.

Q. Now Mr. Parkin Mr. Biggs did call you Monday night at eight o'clock ''.

A. I would not say it was exactly eight o'clock.

Q. But he called you that night?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Reynolds says you told him that Mr. Biggs was to call you ?

A. That is absolutely untrue.

Q. Did he call you about eight o'clock?

A. Yes.

Q. -What did he say to you?
A. He said that if I wished to come down the next morniiig he would like

to have me talk the trucks over with the engineers, which I did.

Q. Again Mr. Reynolds says I am going to bring Reynolds here but in the

meantime this may facilitate matters Reynolds says in his examination that you
told him Biggs said over the phone that the coast was clear and to come down next

morning and be at the buildings at 8 o'clock?

A. No, sir. It is absolutely untrue.

Q. You did come down the next morning?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. What time did you leave Dundas ?

A. I think about 5.30.

Q. Reynolds says 5 o'dlock you drove down?
A^-Yes,

Q. You reached the buildings here at what time ? 8 o'clock ?

A. I think I went down town and had breakfast before I came to the

buildings.

Q. You all seem to agree you got,here about 8 o'clock?

A. I thjink it would (be after 8 o'clock. We got to Toronto at 8 o'clock.

It would be after 8 o'dock when we got to the buildings.

Q. When you came to the buildings who did you look uip ?

A. I went to Mr. Biggs' office.

Q. You went to his apartments in the buildings ?

A.' No, I went to his office.

Q. Where was that?

A. Right at the end of the corridor at the other end of the buildings.

Q. In the East end of the buildings ?

A^Yes.
Q- You and Reynolds went along there did you find Mr. Biggs waiting at

the door?

A. No. Mr. Biggs was away at breakfast at the time.
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Q. -When Mr. Biggs came along you went into his room ?

A. Yes.

Q. Into his bedroom?

A. Well, of course it is a sitting room and a bedroom both.

Q. There is a bed in the room?
A. Yes.

Q. Who went in there Reynolds, yourself and Mr. Biggs?
A. Yes.

Q. How long were you in the bedroom?
A. Oh, probably half an hour, or forty minutes.

Q. During that half hour or forty minutes what did you diiscuss? You came
down here to clean up this contract, what did you discuss?

A. What did we talk about?

Q. Yes?
A. I don't think anything specially, we talked about the drive down.

Q. You talked about the drive down and whether lit was raining that morn-

ing perhaps?
A. I don't think it was raining.

Q. You never mentioned the contract?

A. Yes the contract was mentioned.

Q. Wrhat did you say about the contract ?

A. He said Hogarth was not in the building's and we would have to wait until
lie came.

Q. That he hadn't reached his office?

A. No.

Q. It was a little early?
A.Yes.
Q. You waited for Mr. Hogarth to come ?

A, Yes.

Q. Did you sign a contract in that room ?

A. No.

Q. ^What did you say about the contract when you were in that room?
A. I do not think, any more than a casual reference that the contract was

talked about.

Q. Did Mr. Biggs say then that you would get the contract?
A. No, he didn't.

Q. Did you read over the tender with Mr. Biggs?
A. In which room are you referring to now?
Q. In the bedroom.
A. No.

Q. You didn't have out the contract there ?

A. I didn't have the tender there.

Q. Did you have any other paper or document there ?
A. No.

Q. You came down from Dundas at the Minister's suggestion that you come
and fix up the contract ?

A. I said I came down to talk the matter over with the engineer.

Q. The Minister dtidn't tell you whether you would get a contract or not ?

A. No.
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Q. Then after leaving this room where did you go ?

A. Do you mean the bedroom ?

Q. Yes?
A. We went through into Mr. Biggs private office.

Q. Did anyone come into that bedroom before you left it, any other person ?

A. No.

Q. Then when you left it, it was to go into the sitting room ?

A. Into Mr. Biggs- office.

Q. Dlid the three of you go into that office ?

A. No.

Q. You left Mr. Reynolds behind?

A. Yes.

Q. He remained in the 'bedroom ?

A. Yes.

Q. When you got into the sitting room who did you meet there?

A. Mr. Hogarth.

Q. Who is he?

A. I understand he is rthje chief engineer.

Q. Who was it produced the tender ?

A. Mr. Hogarth.

Q. Tell us justt whalt occurred between Mr. Bigg, Mr. Hogarth and yourself

there?

A. Mr. Hogarth went over the equipment. I think he said he had been down
to the distributing office, the wholesale place which was then the Grace Motors.

They were Sterling Truck distributors. He said he was looking the trucks over

or 'had a man looking tftiem over. I won't iswear which. He just went over the

equipment and specified exactly what he wanted, the painting and such like.

Q. He went over the equipment, looked over your tender and said he had

already called down to see Grace Motors ?

A. To see the trucks.

Q. And you discussed the painting of the trucks how he wanted them

painted ?

A.i 'Yes.

Q. What about time of delivery?
A. That was 'specified by March 1st.

Q. That was written in your contract?

A. My contract reads: "We intend to deliver on or about." We couldn't

go to work and tie ourselves down to one day, so it was put in that they wanted

these by March 1st.

Q. The contract was signed -there the tender was accepted that morning?
A, Yes.

Q. After your tender was accepted what did you do ?

A. I went down to the wholesale house.

Q. The Grace Motors?

Q. You saw the manager of the Grace Motors ?

A., Yes.

Q. You took Mr. "Reynolds along with you ?
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Q. And Reynolds says you were out of the buildings here about 9.30 o'clock?

A. It would be later than that, about 11 o'clock when we went down to the

Grace Motors, and it is only three -blocks East of Y'onge.

Q. Then having received this contract have you the contract there (contract

produced by W. A. Mclean, Deputy Minister of Highways) I see here there are two

contracts and that they are dated', the 27th of December, 1919?

Q. The 27th of December was the Saturday that you worked on this in Dun-

das at your garage ?

Q. The contract reads: "P. C. Biggs, Department of Puiblic Works The

undersigned hereby proposes to furnish six Sterling dump trucks 3^ ton capacity,

the price for which, F.'O.B. Dundas with catalogue equipment is each $7,516.50.

The following extra equipment will be furnished as diescribed at the following

prices..... These trucks to he standard worm driven with all-steel body and

Woods' hydraulic hoist, cab and storm curtains, electric light equipment.....
6 trucks $7,516.50 making a total of $45,09'9. Terms ten per cent, on execution of

contract, the 'balance, settlement on delivery ats follows" : Then there is this "It is

our purpose to deliver these trucks by March 1, 19'20..... This proposal becomes

void if not acepted within ten days from date. Your signature at the foot of this

proposal would constitute an order. Respectfully submitted, L. . Parkin." Was
this the form you took to your lawyer Lawrason wasn't it?

A.,-iYes.

Q. Is that the Lawrason who acts for the Roads Department of the Province ?

A. I don't know.

Q. That is accepted on the 30th of December, 1919, "Ontario Provincial

Government, by F. C. Biggs, Minister of Public Works." I see on the margin
of this contract appears "Price's appear satisfactory, George Hogarth, December 30,

1919" and "Approved" with Mr. McLean's signature. Now let us understand, Mr.

Parkin. Mr. Biggs got this tender from you on Monday morning the 29th of

December, 1919. He brought it to Toronto and then telephoned you that evening?
A. I asked him to arrange an appointment with Mr. Hogarth.
Q. And he asked you to come down the next morning, which was December

)th?

A. He said to come down to-morrow.

Q. He didn't say for you to be there by 8 o'clock?

A. No, sir.

Q. ^Reynolds says you told him that was the purport of the conversation?

A. That is absolutely false.

Q. But you did get down and get down early ?

A. I did.

Q. Then when you got to see Mr. Biggs and Mr. Hogarth, what time would
that be ? You were with Mr. Biggts and Mr. Reynolds for about 40 minutes. What
time would it be that you met Hogarth ?

A. It was around 10 o'clock.

Q- And you were at the Grace Motors at 11 o'clock?

A, *Yes.

Q. So that you would probably be about half an hour with Mr. Biggs and Mr.

Hogarth ?
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A. About that.

Q. And during that time, did you see Mr. Hogarth write this upon the con-

tract, "Prices appear to be satisfactory, George Hogarth, December 30, 1919"?

A. I think that was written on.

Q. While }
7ou were there?

Q. Or was that written on before ?

A. I don't think it was written on 'before.

Q. And Mr. Hogarth thought it satisfactory was Mr. McLean there?

A. I did not see Mr. McLean in Mr.- Biggs office.

Q. Did you take this contract away with you ?

A. I 'took a copy of it. The copy was filed as an exhibit in the suit.

Q. This is the other copy?
A. That is the duplicate.

Q. N"oW I have read you one contract. The terms of this other are just
the same with some differences. It is dated, December 27, 1919, and is addressed

to Hon. F. O. Biggs and it provides for six Sterling trucks of five ton capacity for

$9,100. each.

A. Yes, that was a special job for road work.

Q. The total of that contract was $54,600?
A.\ Yes.

Q. That was also approved by Mr. Hogarth?

Q. And approved by Mr. McLean ?

A^Yes.
Q. Both these contracts were taken up and discussed hy Mr. Biggs and Mr.

Hogarth while you were there?

A.-^Yes.

Q- And in the half hour or so you were in the office with Mr. Biggs and Mr.
Hogarth ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did Mr. Bjggs sign in your presence?
A. He signed the contract on behalf of the Province.

Q. In your presence?
A. Yes.

Q. And then .you knew you had the contract?
A.. X 8.

Q. A nice fat contract?

A. Very nice, yes.

Q. Tell me how you arranged the commission on these contracts? What
was the total commission you got on this deal?

A. I mSght state here that it is 15 per cent, on truck equipment but on
dump equipment it is 7V2 per cent. I didn't get 15 ,per cent, on it all.

Q. What total did you make on this?

A. I think something in the neighborhood of $13,700.

Q. Now Mr. Parker, you are an agent in Dundas?

A. Yes.

Q. And the distributors also get a connmission?

A. Oh yes.
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Q. Do you know how much the total commission is ?

A. I don't know.

Q. You don't know exactly what the Grace Motors, distributors of the

Sterling trucks would get?
A. No, I don't.

Q. Have you any idea of what they get, do you know from discussing it?

A. I might say something that would not ibe correct.

Q. You are tin business, you know these things pretty well.

A. The Grace Motors, if they handled it would certainly get a good com-

mission.

Q._Would they gelt 20 per cent. ?

A. I imagine perhaps they would.

Q. The commission on this contract of $117/100. at 20 per cent, would

be $23,400 or so?

A. No, not figuring on the dunup equipment.

Q. You have altogether $13,800, what did the distributors get?

A. I cannot swear to what the distributors got.

Q. You were in the business, taking this matter up with them?

A. I was selling the trucks three years previous to that.

Q. You cannot say specifically what Grace Motors got?
A. No, I cannot.

Q. Now Mr. Parkin, you had a contract without any competition?
A. I don't know as to that.

Q. Without anyone else tendering pretty secret affair wasn't it ?

A. Nothing secret about it as regards my part.

Q. You didn't tell anyone about it around Dundas?
A. No.

Q. Can you tell me anyone you told? Can you name one single person

you told you were going to tender on these trucks ?

A. No, I would not swear I did.

Q. You and Reynolds on the Minister's invitation slipped down early in the

morning without competition, and got this contract?

(Xo answer).

Q. Mr. Parkin, after you got this contract you and Reynolds went down
Milwaukee ?

A. Yes.

Q. You arranged to go to Milwaukee to get delivery of the trucks within

j time?

A. Oh, no.

Q. 'What did you go for?

A. I went there on other business and to look over the plant. I had never

in there before.

Q. So you just went down to look over the plant?
A. I went down to see their plant , yes.

Q. The fact that you had an order for $117,899. didn't weigh in it at all?

A. I couldn't send that order to the factory. It had to go through the head

office.

Q. You had the sales agent of the head office down there too ?

A. No I didn't. He left on the Sunday, and I didn't get there until later.
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Q. When?
A. On the Monday.

Q. How long after signing the contract, on the 30th of December, was that ?

A. I think it was the first week an January.

Q._At any rate, however you got there the agent or representative of the

Grace Motors went to Milwaukee, and you went to Milwaukee with Mr. Reynolds?

A. Reynolds went with me.

Q. Then you met the agent down there?

A. No we didn't meet him at all.

Q. You didn't siee him at all?

A. No, sir.

Q. Who did you see in Milwaukee?

A. We didn't see anyone.

Q. You went -down just to look over the plant ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you take this tender along with you ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Where had this accented tender gone?
A. It was in my safe in Dundas.

Q. You didn't take it with you ?

A. No, sir.

Q._\Vhat did you show Grace Motors. Did you give anything to Grace

Motors when you went down to see them ?

A. 1 showed them the contract.

Q. You didn't leave it with them ?

A. No, I didn't.

Q. 'Who was it arranged for the filling of this contract ?

A.< The wholesale department at Grace Motors.

Q. You simply gave them the information about it, said I have this order

for $117,000?
A. No, I wrote an order out to them for this equipment.

Q. You gave them the order ?

A. I let them take the ordering on that contract.

Q. Having the contract yourself from the Government of the Province for

this $117,00. you went down to them and gave them an order to fill. your contract?

A. Exactly.

Q. It is rather peculiar isn't it that you went down to Milwaukee just a

week after this contract was signed, just to look over the plant ?

A. There is nothing peculiar about it.

Q. Did you see the general manager or the sales manager?
A. No.

Q.-^Who did you see?

A. I .think he was the assistant.

Q. Did you tell h/im about this wonderful piece of business you had?
A. They knew of it, because the order had gone through from Grace Motors.

Q. Did they say they were going to fill the order?

A. Yes.

Q. Wasn't that one of the reasons you went down, to see if they were going
to fill this order?
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A. No. sir.

Q. You just went down to look over the plant and this order had nothing to

do with it. Is that what you want iis to believe?

A. I went down to look over the plant.

Q. And the order had nothing to with it?

A. If I can explain that; Mrs. German the wife of the wholesale manager
of Grace Motors called me on Saturday and told me Mr. German had left on the

afternoon train to go to Milwaukee and that he would like me to meet him there.

[ left on the evening train 'Sunday night, When I got to Milwaukee Mr. German
had left that afternoon for New York and I didn't see him. That is the reason

I didn't see Irian.

Q. You intended to see him?
A. Yes.

Q. When you didn't see him did you ask to see anyone in his place?
A. There was no one else there from Toronto.

J. So that you did not make any progress in Milwaukee so far as this con-

tract was concerned ?

A. Xo.

Q. Just let us go hack to the meeting with Mr. Biggs and Mr. Hogarth.
You are sure Mr. McLean didn't come in ?

A. I don't think so.

Q. That is your best view point on it?

A. I think I did see Mr. McLean.

Q. Mr. McLean did come in?

A. I think so.

Q. Did you sir Mr. McLean s'ign this?

A. I would not swear to that.

Q. You ran not say whether that was signed prior to Mr. McLean coming in,
or at that meeting?

A. No, I cannot.

Q- Now as to this Reynolds, Roy A. Reynolds who was working for you
A. He was a salesman.

Q- He sued you for agents' commission over a year ?

A. He was only working for me for five or six months.
Q. He claimed you owed him for so much commission ?

^- He had his commission paid by certified cheque.

RQ-

Ho included in that commission the Government contract?
A.-NO.
Q. ITo claimed you should give him commission on this Government con-

ct 'in the suit?

A.-YOS.

Q. It covered tin's contract and a number of other contracts?
A. Pie cla'med commission of 5 per cent, on all the business that went

through my pla.ee.

Q. He claimed that this contract was part of his work and you claimed it

wasn't.

A, Yes.

Q. You claimed that it was Mr. Biggs and yourself who handled it?

A. Yes,
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Q. You claimed that Reynolds had nothing to do with it?

A. Yes.

Q. You were the one who negotiated with the Minister?

A. I was the one who negotiated with Mr. Hogarth.

Q. Yes, for aibout twenty minutes. It took you a month to negotiate with

the Minister.

Mr. Price refers to Reynolds evidence in respect to a statement that Parkin

had to pay something to Mr. Biggs.
THE OiiAimrAx : I rule that you may ask Parkin as to whether there was

any arrangement between himself and Mr. Biggs.
MK. PEICE: Reynolds says, Mr. Parkin, that you would not settle with him,

that you told him to wait until you settled with Mr. Biggs. Is that right?
A. That is absolutely false.

Q. You contend that that was not the reason you gave Reynolds?
A. There was no arrangement whatever.

Q. When were you paid your commission on this contract 'here ?

A. I simply gave the Grace Motors my cheque and got the cheque from the

Department.

Q. What bank do you do business with?

A. The Royal Bank of Canada,.

Q. At Dundas ?

A. Yes.

Q. Bid you make any disbursements out of that $13,000. commission you

got?
A. In what way?
Q. You say you got $13,000. commission. Did you make any payments out

of that to anyone ?

A. No, only through my general business. If you would like to see the bank
book w'lth these deposits you can have it.

Q. You are still doing business at the Royal Bank, Dundas?
A. Yes.

Q. Whait is the manager's name ?

A. Sidney Hughes.
Q. There is another account here, "L. 'C. Parkin, auto storage, repairs and

supplies $1457.28.
A. That is mostly oil and supplies for the work on the road at West Flam-

boro. They are operating on the road there. These were supplied for the use
of the trucks.

Q. 'Where does the Minister live?

A. I think either in Beverley or close to Beverley.
Q. In West Flamboro ?

A. Yes.

Q- Yvi supplied gasoline and repairs and accessories for the trucks used on

part of that highway ?

A. Yes.

Q. On these same trucks you sold to the Department did they use some of

these on that road ?

A. 'Some were used there.

Q. How many?
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A. 1 think there were som'e at Ancaster and some at West Flamboro and later

in the year there were two or three more brought to West Flamboro for about two

or three weeks.

Q. I see you sold the Government a McLaughlin touring car, $2,80*0?

A. Yes.

Q. Who got that car ?

A. Do you mean what person got it ?

Q. Yes.

A. I cannot swear to that.

Q. Who did you deliver it to?

A. I delivered it to Mr. Johnson in the garage.

Q. Is that the car Mr. Biggs uses?

A. 1 don't think so.

Q. Does he keep any car at your garage ?

A. No, sir.

Q- You see Mr. Biggs driving past your garage to Toronto ?

A. Yes.

Q. You know he drives a McLaughlin car?

A. 'Oh, yes.

Q. It never occurred to you this miight be the same car ?

A. No, I think the car Mr. Biggs drives is another car.

Q- You said Mr. Biggs had done business with you for years I see in

your evidence here you speak of having received a cheque from him for supplies
or gasoline as late as January, 1920 ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q- Does he still do business with you?
A. I think there is an account of $3 or something of the kind against Mr.

Bdggs.

Q. You haven't received a cheque since 1920?
A. We expect some.

Q. Is the Royal Bank the onlv bank you do business with?
A. Yes.

Witness excused. The committee then adjourned.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE. APRIL IST. i921.

The Committee met at 10 a.m. Mr. Curry in the chair.

Roy Action Reynolds called and sworn
; examined by Mr. Price.

Q. Mr. Reynolds where do you live?

A. In Dundas, Ont.

Q. How long have you lived in Dundas?
A. I was 'born in Dundas.

Q. Have you always lived in Dundas?

A. No. I have been away at different times.

Q. What is your business?

A. S'nce I came \back from the war I have been selling cars.

Q. Where have you worked since you came back from the war?
A. I have worked with L. C. Parkin from the 10th of June 1919, until the

6th of March, 1920. Then I was selling for Mr. Sparks, of the Chevrolet
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Company.
Q. You worked for L. C. Parkin in Dundas?

A. Yes.

Q. Parkin carried on a garage in Dundas?

A. Yes.

Q. Under his own name ?

A. Yes.

Q. How long have you been acquainted wfith Parkin ?

A. Four or five or six vears ever since he has been in Dundas.

Do you know Mr. Biggs?
A. Yes".

Q. How long have you known Mr. Biggs?
A. I haven't known him -personally a great length of time. I have known

UK* family and I have known him to see, practically all my life.

Q. You know where Mr. Biggs lives?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where does he live?

A. Christie's corners.

Q. How far is that from Dundas ?

A. I would judge about four miles.

Q. When was it you started to work for Parkin?

A. The 10th of June, the 10th or 12th, 1919.

,. Q. You were working for Parkin in December, 1919?

A. Yes.

MR. RANEY: Was that on a salary or a commission basis?

A. That was on a commission basis.

.. .Q. A commission on whatever you sold?

A. A commission on whatever went through the garage.

MR. PRICE: Then in working for Parkin you were there in the month of

December, 1919.?

A. 'Yes, sir.

Q. And during that month, will you tell us if Mr. Biggs was in the garage

while you were there?

A. Yes, he was in there.

Q. Can you tell us about the date Mr. Biggs was in the garage ?

A. He use to call there about every Saturday, when he motored up from

Toronto for the week-end.

Q. Give us the first time during the month of September you saw him in the

garage, the first day?
A. I cannot say, I third; he was there about every Saturday.

Q. We are examining you here to find out something about a truck deal or

contract for the sale of trucks given to Parkin by the Government. We are anxious

to get down to something about that. Now what was the first 'occasion that you

knew anything about that truck deal?

A. I think on Saturday, December 20.

Q. Just tell us what happened on Saturday, December 20'.

A. I saw Parkin in the garage talking to Mr. Biggs and about a few

after he left he came to me

Objection by Mr. Raney :



George V. APPENDIX No. 2. 195

MB. PRICE : You saw Baggs talking to Parkin in the garage ?

A. Yes.

Q. On the 20th of December?

A. I think it was the 20th.

Q. Were you talking to 'Mr. Biggs on that date ?

A. -Xo, sir.

Q. Were you talking to Biggs and Parkin when they were discussing that

day?
A. No, not at all.

Q. Then what did you do, what did you and Parkin do after that interview?

A. Parkin just told me . . .

Q. Never mind what Parkin told you. What did you and Parkin do after

the Biggs interview?

A. We just talked about the Government getting trucks.

Objection by Mr. Raney that witness should not tell what took place betweea

himself and Parkin when Mr. Biggs was not there.

MR. PRICE : What did you and Mr. Parkin do after that interview that re-

lated to this truck contract?

CHAIRMAX rules that witness cannot tell what took place between witness and
Parkin by way of conversation. Argument by Mr. Dewart, Mr. Price and Mr.

Pinard, that witness should be allowed to tell of conversations with Parkin. Mr.

Price, proceeds :

Q. You have told us of a meeting on the 20th of December. Now what was

the next time that you saw Mr. Biggs in this Garage?
A. The following 'Saturday, the 27th of December, I think. I would not be

certain about the exact date.

Q. On the 27th of December you saw Mr. Biggs on the second occasion-?

In Parkin's garage?
A. Yes.

Q. Tell us what occurred on that occasion?

A. -Well, the three of us just inside Parkin's office there is a little cloak-

room. We sat in there and talked about the trucks which Parkin had been talking
about all week, and speaking of the trucks Parkin told Mr. Biggts he would like

to tender on them. He said "But I 'can't tender against those other truck concerns

like the National that can give discounts of 25 'and 30- per cent. I can't do any
better than ten" and he said, "I will give you ten per cent, discount/*'

Q. Where were you at that time in the private office?

A. It is just a little cloakroom between the -stock room and the office. You
have to go through that to go into the office.

Q. What was -it Parkin said to Biggs ?

A. He said he couldn't tender against those other concerns that could give
25 and 30 per cent, discount, which he couldn't as he was only a sub-agent. He
said "The best I can do is to give you 10' per cent, discount.

Q, What other concerns?
A - He just mentioned the National Truck.

Q- That (is that he could only give ten per cent?

A. Yes, and make money himself.

Q. What occurred after that?

A. I spoke up and said, "Why give the Government ten per cent. We can
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go out and sell to individuals at 100 per .cent., why should we sell the Government
trucks at ten per cent, discount ? I said we should rather charge them 105 per cent.

Mr. Biggs turned to Parkin and said, "Listen to Reynolds, let him fix up this deal

and gteft some money."

,Q. Wliat was it Biggs said?

A. "Listen to Reynolds, let h(!m fix up this deal."

Q. Parkin was not in a position to give more than 10 per cent.?

A. That is what he said.

Q. Then what occurred after Biggs said "Listen to Reynolds?"
A. That pretty near clo,s|ed it there.

Q. Was there any other talk at that time?

A. Biggs said there would not be any tenders in if we knew enough to keep

our mouths shut.

HON. Mr. BIGGS: Who rTicl T say that to?

A.' You said it to us, Parkin and 1.

MR. BIGGS : I am sorry Parkin is not here yet.

MR. -PRICE: Did anything else occur there?

A. Then he told us to get the contract ready he was going to bring it down

Monday morning.

Q. What time was: that?

A. I would judge between three and five, between four and six o'clock,

probably about five o'clock.

Q. Wa? there anything else slaid at that meeting that you recollect?

A. Nothing I can remember.

Q. -What happened after Mr. Biggs left?

A. We drew up to the table to make out this tender.

Q. You say "We drew up to the table." Who do you mean?

A. I mean Parkin and myself.

Q. What did you do?

A. -We had just got started to make up the tender when I said . . .

Objection by Mr. Raney that witness was about to refer to conversations be-

tween himself and Parkin, which was hearsay evidence.

MR. PRICE: continuing : After Mr. Biggs left the garage what did you and

Parkin do ?

A. We drew up to the desk to draw up this tender. Miss Boyle was sitting

at the desk and we asked her to go back.
'

We drew up two chairs and started to

make this tender up.

Q. And as a result of that was the contract drawn up.

A. No T advised Parkin ....
Q. Never mind what you advised. What d'id you do?

A. We didn't draw it uip. We sent it to the lawyer's to be drafted. I said

to Parkin ....
Objection taken and sustained by the chair.

Mit. PRICE: What else did you do, Mr. Reynolds, at that time?

A. Wo dm/ply sent a blank to the lawyers. We did not put any heading on

it so the lawyer would not know where is was going. The way the lawyer made it

out it wa~ practically a long letter asking for a tender. We just drafted it out of

Iris letter and it was re-written on one of Parkin's headings.

Q. Do you recollect if these were the tenders? (tenders "A" and "B", as
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iden tilled by L. 1'. Parkin and filed as exhibits with the Conmisittee shown to

witness) ?

A. I am pretty sure those are the tenders. That (pointing to endorsation 'of

Chairman of Committee of exhibits) was not on them, when we got them.

Q. What was the next thing that happened in connection with this truck

contract ?

I

A. Biggs came in Monday morning for the tender.

Q. Nothing happened before that time between Saturday and Monday?
A. I don't remember anything.

Q. Then on Monday morning, December 29, Biggs called at the garage?
A. Yes.

Q. /And what happened then when Mr. Biggs called ?

A. He just came in and Parkin drove him in to Hamilton.

Q. What occurred did anything occur that morning in connection with

Mie tender?

A. I just saw Parkin take it out of his safe and put it in his pocket.

Q. Then what did Parkin do after that?

A. He drove Mr. Biggs into Hamilton.

Q. When he took the contract out what did he do?
A. That was before Mr. Biggs came along. He put it in his pocket, his

car was standing out in front waiting for Mr. Biggs.

Q. He was waiting for Mr. Biggs?
A. Yes.

Q Was there anything happened before Parkin and Mr. Biggs drove away?
A. We just talked for a few minutes. We never even mentioned the contract.

Q. You don't recolloc-t what the conversation was?
A. Xo.

Q- What was the next thing? We have got down to the morning of Decem-
ber 29. What wa.s the next thing that happened in reference to the contract?

A. lie was to call up at 8 o'clock that night.

Q. Wbo was. to call up?
A. Mr. Biggs.

Q. Did he call up that night?
A. Yes.

Q. At 8 o'clock ?

A. Yes.

Q. What happened then ?
TI

"O were in the garage.
Q. You were in the garaire and Parkin was in the garage when Mr. Biggs

Called up?
A. Yes.

Q. What happened 'then?

A. T could not hear what Mr. Biggs was saying. Parkin salid to me "We
will have to go to Toronto in the morning.

Q. Did you hear Parkin talking over the telephone?
A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember what he said over the telephone?
A. I heard him say, "I will be there on time" or "I wtill be there early" or

something like that.

Ml
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Q. What was the next thing that happened after that?

A. Do you mean that day ?

Q. Yes, that night.

A. Nothing.

Q. Getting clown to the next day, Tuesday, December 30, tell us what hap-

pened that day?
A. Well, T was to meet Parkin at the garage, at 5 o'clock in the morning.

We borrowed Dr. Laughlin's dlosed car as ;it was snowing and very cold. Parkin

was a little late. It was about 5,30 when we got there. I had the car ready and

waiting for him. We left and came to the City of Toronto.

Q. What time did you arrive in Toronto?

A. I would judge a little before 8 o'clock. We went and had breakfast. It

was twenty minutes to S or a quarter to 8 o'clock

Q. What kind of a day was it ?

A. It was snowing when we left home. I don't know whether it was snow-

ing when we arrived or not.

Q. You had breakfast and then what did -you do?

A. We went straight to the Parliament Buildings.

Q. Then tell us ajbout coming to the Parliament Buildings, where you went.

What time did you reach the Parliament BuTildings?
A. I would judge 8.30 or 8.40.

Q. Then you came into the Parliament Buildings, where did you come in ?

A. The front door, the so^uth door. We came in the front door. I don't

know whether we took the elevator or came up the stairs, I think we came up one

flight. There were some painters working and I asked the painters if they had

seen Mr. Biggs, and they said, "No." Then some person else came along and 1

asked him if he had seen Mr. Biggs and he said Mr. Biggs had gone to breakfast.

We walked up and down the corridor and shortly Mr. Biggs came along. He said

"I see you are here alright." 'He took) us to the end of the hallway anxl walked

south.

Q. Which end of the Buildings?
A. That was the south-east end. We walked through the hall south to Mr.

Biggs' office and to the left into another office which he said was his private office.

We went from there through a bathroom and then to a bedroom oif his main office.

We went through the bathroom into his bedroom.

Q. What did! Biggs say to you after entering?
A. We just talked about different things. We never mentioned the tender

or a deal of any kind. We may have just mentioned it. I cannot remember any-

thing particular that wakS said about it there. We were sitting around and he was

telling us what a nice position he had, what a nice place he had. Wo woro admiring
hia office and bedroom. We went on like that.

Q. Do you recollect anything that occurred about the contract, anything that

was said about the contract while you were in there, in the bedroom ?

A. He said tha Mr. McLean and Mr. Hogarth weren't there yet but would

be in in a minute.

Q. What was the idea of seeing McLean and Hogarth at that time?

A. I don't know.

Q. You didn't know whether you were going to get the contract or not?

A. I didn't know anything about the Deputy or the engineer having to
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ign it. 1 thought Mr. Biggs was the only one who had to sign it.

Q. Did Mr. Biggs say anything about the contract, whether you were

going to get
!it or not?

A. Xo. I don't think he did. We sat there and he heard some one out

in the hall. He said, "I think that is them now" or "him now/' He got up
and went out aricl left us in the bedroom.

IQ.

How long was he away, how long in the other room?

A. I would judge about five minutes.

Q. Then what happened?
A. He could see Parkin where he was sitting, from his office but he

couldn't see me. He said, ^Comc here."

Q. The doors were open ?

A. Yes. He said, "Come here" and beckoned Parkin to come in.

Whether Biggs came into the bedroom or not I don't know, I did'nt see Biggs.
1 just heard him say "'Come here" Parkin said, "Sh" I sat still and he went

into the other room.

Q. Then, Mr. Reynolds, how long \vere you in the bedroom?
A. Altogether ?

JQ.-Yes.

A. I would judge a half hour or so, probably three-quarters.

Q. You did'nt go in to the main office?

A. Only when I went through in the morning at first.

Q. How long were they in the main office Parkin and Biggs?
A. I would judge probably five minutes or ten minutes, not very long.

Q. When did. you see them next ?

.
A. Parkin and Biggs came back into the bedroom and Parkin had the con-

tract or tender and was wrapping it up in his pocket. Mr. Biggs let us out the side

door. There is a door from his bedroom to the hallway. He let us out there.

MR. Bi<;< is: Von mean the front door of the bedroom?

A. Yes.

I

Mit. CI.AUKI: : That is the nearest way of getting to the hall?

A. Yes,

Q. Parkin had a contract in his possession ?

A. Yes.

Q. Where did you go after that?

A. To Grace Motors.

Q. What did you do there about this accepted tender?

We wanted to get some rparts for Fulton tracks and I went to see the man-
r of the repair department to get those parts. Parkin went upstairs and then

eame out of the garage with Mr. German, who I think is the sales manager, and

a Mr. Holt I think. The tnree of them came out of the garage and then we

went along with Mr. German to the St. Charles for lunch.

Mr. Iiaiiev stated to Mr. Price that Mr. Biggs wanted him to bring out any evid-

ence of consequence, that he did not want any rule of evidence to stand in tl.e

way. The Chairman stated that it was a matter for the Committee to

determine.

MR. PRICE (proceeding) How long after tin's was it that you went to
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Milwaukee ?

A. The following Sunday.

Q. Who went?

A. Parkin and myself.

Q.- Anyone from the Grace' Motors?

Mr. German of the Grace Motors Avas to he in Milwaukee. He went mi

Thursday, Friday or Saturday 1 think. He was to meet us in Milwaukee but he

had to go down to New York. He got out before we got there or rather, on

Monday afternoon.

Q. What did you go to Milwaukee for?

A. To get assurances that we get the trucks. In the contract or tender it

said by March 1st, or soon after. I think those are the words used. They put on it

that they must be delivered by March 1st. We went to Milwaukee to get assuranc-

es right from the factory that we were going to have them in time.

Q. Did you get that assurance?

A. Well, yes. The manager was'nt there but the advertising manager was

there.

Q. What was his name?
A. I forget his name. In the catalogue they called him "Driver Dan".

Q. How long were you at Milwaukee?

A. We landed Monday afternoon about 3 or 4 o'clock and left there

Tuesday afternoon.

Q. Was this the advertising man you got to?

A. Yes.

Q. What was the idea in talking to him about it?

A. The other manager was away the manager of the factory. He took tiS

up and entertained us whille we were there, took us to the club.

Q. Parkin has told us that you just went down to look over the plant.

ISTow yon say you went down to arrange -about the date of the contract, about the

delivery of the trucks?

A I don't think I would go to look over the Sterling plant at Milwaukee,

because that isn't an automobile plant.
O. Tell us what happened when you got in touch wirhis advertising iiian.

A. He spoke of the manager and mentioned his name. We asked him what

the chances were of getting the trucks. He said, "You are going to get them

allright." ,

Q. Did you talk anything about the contract?

A. Oh yes we had it with us.

Q. What did you say about the contract when Parkin and you were there

talking with thig advertising man?
A. He just showed him the contract and he said that would he a good thing

to advertise, to give us some advertising in 'Canada. We said, yes, it was a good

order and everything. He said he would like to get a copy of it to put in his

catalogues.

Q. Did Parkin say anything, or did you say anything?

A. Parkin said this was just the^first order "I have just the small end of

the wedge in and T am just beginning to drive".

MR. DRURY Did this have reference to the general situation in Canada or
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did it mean government contracts?

A. I took it that he meant he was going to sell the government more trucks.
MR, PRICE Then how long did you work for Parkin after this contract was

signed.

A. Until the 6th of March.

MR. CLARKE You are not working for Parkin now?
A. No, sir.

MR. PRICE You claimed a commission on all business that went through
the Parkin garage while you were there?

A. Yes, not on all the business, but on all sales.

Q.-^-What attitude did Parkin take on your claim?

Objection by Mr. Brackin that the stenographic record of the action was
available setting out of all the facts in the suit.

MR, PRICE Tn any event, you did sue Parkin for a commission?
A. Yes.

|

Q. And that case has been up and is now waiting for decision?

A. Yes.
(

Hon. MR. BIGGS stated that the judgement had been isteued and that a copy
of it was there for the information of the Committee.

MR. PRICE But as a matter of fact your claim was paid and you did sue

Parkin.

A. Yes.

Q. You sued Parkin and that case has been up and considered and appar-

ently judgement has been given upon it?
'

A. Yes.

Q. When you asked Parkin to pay your claim was there a discussion?

Objection by Mr. Raney. Mr. Price stated that he wanted to bring out the

stubstance of a discussion between Parkin and Reynolds; at the time Reynolds

pressed his claim. The chairman suggested that this had all been threshed out in

the action, but Mr. Price maintained that this evidence had not been given. The

Chairman quoted from judgement handed to him showing that the Court ha$

found against Reynolds in his suit. A discussion thereupon ensued during which

Dr. Godfrey appealed against a ruling by the Chair that this conversation could

not be related in evidence. This motion was not put and finally upon a suggestion

by Mr. Drury a motion was made and carried that conversations between Parkin

and the witness should be admittd whether Mr. Biggs was present at the time

not.

MR. PRICE, proceeding; Mr. Reynolds, we are down to the meeting! of

6th, what occurred at the meeting on March, 6th. What occurred when you asked

asked him about your commission ?

A. That happened in the office. He said "Come on out here." We walked

out back of the garage. At the end of the garage is a machine shop and a place

where they store cars. We went out and stood there talking over some trucks that we

I

uad sold at cost at St. Catharines. He said, "What do you expect on the Govern-

lent deal?" I said I expected my five per cent, that meant 3% per cent., Cana-

ian prices. He said "What do you figure we will have to give Biggs"

Q. That is what Parkin said to you?
A. Yes. I said I figured we should give Mm about $3,000. I said "You can

ilJ

.

1
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take my share out at the rate of five per cent, but you will have to give at the

rate of twenty per cent., four times as much as me." He said they trimmed me

down at Grace Motors" I said, "How did they do that" and he said, "They stuck

up the price on me, they trimmed me" I said "You know me Len, I am fair.

1 am willing to meet you half way." I was going to Buffalo and he asked me not

to go. I said I had to go to Buffalo that I could not get this party by phone, I

could not put it off. He said "Well, we will talk it over when you come back.

I said allright but I wouldn't be black until Tuesday. Going out to the front of

the garage I got thinking and I said "Len, I think you are going to double-cross

me." He said, "Well, I don't think you should have five per cent, on that Govern-

ment contract. I said "I have been here eight or nine months. When I started to

sell cars you were up against it. Different times you said "Carry on Roy the luck

will turn and we will get square" I had never asked for a cent until this time.

Q. Not until you wanted to go away?
A. No that was just for a week end. No, I wanted a settlement. It had

been running for eight or nine months and I thougnt I should have a settlement.

I said "You are going to double-cross me" and he said "I don't think you should

have the 3% percent, on the Government deal. He explained about the Toronto

people cutting him out of three or four thousand. I again stated I would meet
him in any way that would be fair.

Q. Was that all that occurred there?

A. When I mentioned the $3,000 he said we couldn't do it right now over

that trouble iii the papers, that we would have to wait for some future time to

approach him, until things quieted down.

Q. What was the trouble in the papers?
A. They were full of stuff about the order.

MR. BKACKIN: You said "Some future time?"
A. We will have to wait until some future time to approach him about the

$3,000. ./
MR. BRACKIX: He said "have to wait until some future time when things

quieted down.
A- If I said that I will stick to it. It is a long time ago.
MR. PRICE : To approach whom ?

A. Mr. Biggs.

Q. Is that all you talked of, that time, with Parkin ?

.
A. Well, I left and went to Buffalo. When I came back he gave me two

cheques, a cheque for $459.6?, commission on cars that he said that I actually sold
Also he put another cheque in an envelope of $400, "just as a tip fo/beinga good fellow." He handed me the $400 and my lawyer advised me not to take it.

-What was your total claim for commission?* What did you sue for?
A. Five per cent, on all sales.

Q. What would that amount to?

A. Close to $5,000.

Q. Just to shorten this; you did sue Parkin, the case came up?
A. Yes.

Q. Did 011 know judgment had been delivered, when you came in here?

A. -No, sir, that is the first I heard about it.

Q. When did you see your lawyer last?

A. Yesterday.
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Q. Who is your lawyer?
A. A. L. Shaver.

Q. Of Dundas?
A. Yes, and C. W. Bell.

Q. He didn't tell you judgment had been delivered?

A. No.

Q. Well, when this case came up for trial I believe you subpoenaed Mr.

Biggs to attend?

A. Yes, when I first offered him the subpoena he would not accept it.

Q. You went to serve it yourself?
A. Yes, I was going to serve it myself to save expense.

Q. What happened when you went to serve it?

A. lie wouldn't take it from me.

ft.- What did you do then?

A. I got the chief of police and my lawyer to go to his house and girve it

to him.

Q. Did Mr. Biggs appear at the trial?

A. He appeared on the first day on that subpoena. The trial was laid over

li lierent times and they were just notified when to appear again. He may have

appeared on tin- second day, T am certain about that, but he didn't appear after

that.

Q. Where was the trial?

A. At Hamilton.

Q. You said lie appeared on the first day?
A. Yes.

Q. Was that in Dundas?
A. Xo, in Hamilton.

Q. During that time, did he see your lawyer?
^- The morning the case came up he came to niy lawyer's office.

Q. Mr. Biggs came into your lawyer's office on the day of this trial in the

morning?
A. Yes.

Q. Were you there?

A. Yes.

Q. What happened?
A- HG r<ame through and asked what I would take to settle in cash.

Q. Mr. Shaver was there, Mr. Biggs was there and you were there?
A. Yes.

Q. What did you say?
A. He said, "What would you take to settle this thing. I said I would

settle for $3,000 cash. L had got about $500. and would settle for $3000. cash.

Q. What did he say?
A. He said he would talk to Parkin.

Q. Was there any other discussion you had? The Committee have ruled that

you can givo any evidence you think bears on this. Is there anything else that you

would like to tell the Committee?

A. I am not here to tell the Committee anything. I am here to answer ques-

tions, just here to tell the truth. T am not here to bring anything particular out

"unless YOU want it.
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MR. BRACKIN : How many trucks were sold to the Government on that par-

ticular order?

A. Twelve.

Q. For example, if John Smith went to the garage or to you as an employee
and wanted to buy a truck, or say a man in Dundas wanted a truck at that time

in December, what would he have had to pay for it? What was the price?
A. I could not say off hand. These trucks had special equipment such as the

body and the hoist.

Q. But suppose you are selling an ordinary truck, is there a standard price

from the factory?
A. Yes.

Q. Who fixes that?

A. I guess the Grace Motors of Toronto.

Q. Grace Motors what have they to do with Sterling trucks?

A. I think they have the selling agency.

Q. Who appoints Parkin as agent in Dundas ?

A. The Grace Motors.

Q. Who tells Parkin when he gets the agency, the price at which he is to sell

these trucks with standard prices?
A. I don't know that.

'

Q. Did you have a price list?

A. Yes.

Q. You were selling trucks as well as autos ?

A. Yes.

Q- You would have to get familiar with the price list ?

A. Yes, I carried one all the time.

. Q. Where did tit come from ?

A. From Parkin.

Q. Where did it come from to him ?

A. I do not know that.

Q.. Whose heading was on it you can't find a liquor price list without the
name of the firm on the outside. Didn't they put their name on it and so forth ?

A. I didn't see it. I had one of my own.

Q. You had a price list of your own ?

A. Yes.

Q. That you got from Parkin ?

A. Yes.

Q. What on that indicated that it was a price list for Sterling trucks?
A. It just gave the prices of the different trucks, 2, 2%, 3 ton, and <o on

Q. AM 'Sterling trucks ?

. Yes.
'

Q- Whose name was on it what is the name of the company that makes it?
A. It didn't have any name on at all.

Q. What is the name of the company that makes that truck, in Milwaukee 5

A. The Sterling 'Motors.

Q. -Was there nothing on that price list to indicate that it was put out l>y

Sterling Motors ?

A. Not on mine.

Q. Have you got it yet?
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A. .No.

Q. Can YOU get one?

A. I -would have to get it from Parkin. He would give me a dandy.

Q. AVIiy do you say that?

A. I don't have to tell you why.

Q. Just a moment Mr. Iievnolds you mean you haven't confidence in Par-

kin any more ?

A. Not any more.

Q. You don't feel pleased towards him?

A. I speak to him.

(J. You sued for .%">.no<>?

A. Yes.

Q. S you have lost confidence in him?

A. I don't think he is on the level, and I will tell him so to his face.

Q. You don't' think he is on the level not honest?

A. I certainly do not.

Q. You are very strong in that opinion?
A. I am now.

Q. You were before you sued him. You must have come to the conclusion

after, that he was dishonest?

A. Yes. 1 told him in the ollice he was double crossing me.

(}. FVi in that time on von didn't have any confidence 1 in him?

MH. PIMCI:: That is not what he said.

Mi;. Pi?.\rKi.i\ : Very. well. My :idea was that what you intended to convey

to the 'Committee about ParJkin was that when this man refused to pay you what

yon thnti-ht he honestly owed you. you had to go to court and sue him trying to get

it. and that from that time you lost confidence in him?

A. T certainly did.

Q. That has been the situation ever since and still is, as far as your feelings

toward .Parkin are concerned and the relations between you and Parkin. You are

off him for rife. This is what T want to get at. That is your attitude toward

Parkin. 1 >uppose when you told us about the things you say Parkin said, that

you think are true, making it look bad for Parkin before this 'Committee you still

have, while you are saying these tilings, in your mind this feeling toward Parkin?

A. I understand what you are trying to do. You are trying to discredit me.

Objection by Mr. Price to the manner of cross-examination.

liiding by the Chairman that Mr. Brackin was quite within his rights in his

questions.

MR. l)KAcKix: You have told us what your feelings are toward Parkin, that

you didn't think he was honest and 'had no confidence in him. What '1 ask is tin's:

when you were telling this Committee about the conversations you had with Parkin

and telling us of the things Parkin said which, if true, were rather discreditable to

Parkin you had in your mind this feeling you have told us about toward Parkin.

that he isn't honest and that you hadn't confidence in him. You still have that

feeling?

A. Yes.

Q. Let us go back, seeing we have the stage set as between you and Parkin.

You had a price list?

A. Yes.
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Q. Do I understand this to be true, that everybody who buys these cars

has got to pay the same price, supposing they are buying standard equipment?
A. Yes, unless you are making a deal and they want something extra. There

. is one price.

Q. It is just like an agency for Ford cars. The man who gets the agency has

got to stick to the price the company sets ?

A. I think that can be very easily fixed.

Q. It would not be honest with the people from whom you were taking the

agency would it ?

A. If you wanted to get a cut price you would take it up with the Grace

Motors.

Q. You would not cut a price without seeing whether that was satisfactory

to the people from whom you got the agency ?

A. Well Parkin was willing. He said) "The best I can do is a ten per cent,

discount", without going to Grace Motors. He told Biggs that whether he came
to Grace Motors or not.

Q. That being the case, unless he saw fit to cut the price ten per cent, the

Government, taking the standard truck would have to pay the same as anyone else,

unless you could get some special arrangement with 'Grace Motors by which you
could give a discount.

A. I do not know anything about that, what they could do with Grace Motors,

they might make an arrangement or something like that.

Q. As a matter of common honesty between you people, Parkin and the Grace

Motors who gave him the price list he couldn't cut the price of the standard truck

without the consent of Grace Motors ?

A. Well he did. He told Mr. Biggs he would give him ten per cent, without

asking Grace Motors.

Q. If Grace Motors would not consent he would have to take that out of his

commission ?

A. I don't know.

Q. How much did he get under the arrangement with the Grace Motors?

A. Twenty-five per cent, on the American price list.

Q. What is that in Canada?
A. Fifteen and one-half or 16 per cent.

Q. What was the price of the standard Sterling truck, those that were bought
the 3% ton truck?

A. I can't tell you that.

Q. Is it that you don't remember ?

A.T I don't remember. The order was that the six were to cost so much.

Q. 'What I am trying to get at d'S this. The average individual in Dundas or

Toronto goes into a garage and says: "I want a two and a half ton truck." He

gave a cheque on it, and bought it. What would the total commission on that be?

A. 2-5 per cent, on the American price. We take off the duty and it then

amounts to about 1 5% per cent.

Q. Can .you tell off-hand what the Canadian price would be on the 3% ton

truck ?

DR. GODFREY: Would it not vary according to the exchange?

A. Yes. I could not tell the price on the dump trucks.

MR. BRACKING You were selling trucks. You would be entitled to 5 per cent.
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.wouldn't you?
A. Yes.

Q. Did you never figure out that "If 1 sell a truck 1 will get so much"?

A. Probably you have never been in the motor game and worked for men like

Parkin.

Q. I have been in a good many games. It strikes me I do not know whether

it strikes you or not,, that if you were selling on a 5 per cent commission that when

you went out in the morniing you would have it in your mind that if you sold a

ck you would get so much money.
A. Well if you hadn't been giving a lot away when you got an order. You

cannot tell how much you are going to get out of it.

Q. Assuming you didn't give anything away and sold at the list price, what

would you get for yourself ?

A. We only sold about six or seven trucks besides this Government order

and they were trucks on which we took in cars, every one of them. We never had

one clear deal.

Q. What you mean is that you would sell trucks and take in second hand
cars on them. What you would get out of it would depend on the price you got
for the second hand cars?

A. Yes. These things were running along and were never cleaned up.

Q. There was never a time when you sold -a truck outright and got your
commission?

A. No, I never sold a truck outright myself.

Q. You have told us about Mr. Biggs having been in the garage several times

in December. Was he there any oftener in December, going through and coming
home, stopping in for ias etc., was he there any oftener in December than in Octo-

ber oi* November?

A. I think he stopped there every week-end.

Q. He wasn't there any oftener in December than he had been in the pre-
vious months?

A. I don't think so.

Q. He came nearly every week-end his home is how far away from the

garage ?

A. About four miles.

Q. I* it the nearest garage of repute, where they have got reliable workmen
id all that, is it the nearest place of that description to his home?

A. It is the nearest MeLaughlin station, and that is what Mr. Biggs drives.

Q. He was there quite often ?

A. Yes.

Q. Then on December 27th, you told us there was some further talk and a

lestion of a cut. Parkin said he would onlv pfrp a ton per cent, cut?

A. He said he couldn't tender against these big firms he mentioned the

National who could give a 25 per cent. cut. Their trucks were made in Hamilton
and they could sell direct to the vendor.

MR. DEWART: What truck is that?

A. The National.

MR. BRACKIN: Was there any special reason why, if the Government deter-

mined to buy Sterling trucks, they should be bought in December instead of later"

A. I do not know of any reason.
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Q. Did you ever hear 1'roin Parkin alone, or Parkin and Biggs together, any
talk about the need for getting in the order hi December if they were going to buy

Stc-rling trucks?

A. I never heard them mention that.

Q. I want yon to be sure of that. Did you ever hear it mentioned by Parkin

that an increase in the price of Sterling trucks was going to come into etl'eet in

January?
A. I never knew that.

Q. Either from Parkin or anyone else?

A. <No.

Q. S'o that if there was any discussion of that kind it couldn't have taken

place in your presence?
A. No.

Q. Are you quite sure? .You didn't have any idea about there being need

for haste to get the purchase through before the 1st of January ?

A. No I didn't hear anything.

Q. Why did you come to Toronto with Parkin ?

A. I was working on the deal with him.

Q. What were you doing on the deal. What had you done in connection with

this deal before you came to Toronto?

A. I talked it over.

Q. What did you say? What did you say to Mr. Biggs about the truck-?

A. Do you want me to go all over it? Mr. Biggs was in the cloak-room be-

tween the office and the stock room, on Saturday, the 27th.

Q. The first time you ever talked about the trucks. Tell me all you told

Air. l>iggs about the trucks?
}

A. 'We got into conversation about how many trucks they were going to need

and he said ten and then he said twelve. Parkin started to quote a price and said

he couldn't tender against those other concerns. I spoke up to head off Parkin, and

said, "Why should we sell cars to individuals at 100 per cent, and to the Govern-

ment, which has lots of money, at 90- per cent, That was when Biggs turned to

Parkin and said, "Listen to Reynolds and he will get you something.''

Q. Did you take it that he was joking or kidding you?
A. 1 didn't take it as a joke.

Q- You took it that Biggs was putting if. (1 p to Parkin that you would he able

to make a better deal than Parkin would ?

A . I think so.

Q. That is, that he would prefer to make a deal which YOU would make which

would result in the Government paying more money for the trucks rather than

take Parkin's proposition which would give the Government the trucks at 10 per

cent, less?

A. Well, when Parkin offered the 10 per cent, discount he didn't grasp the

idea and try to get it. PTe didn't say "I will take that."

Q. What we want to get at is this: do you want us to believe that you under-

stood from Mr. Biggs that Mr. Biggs preferred to deal along the lines that you ad-

vised, which would result in the Government having to pay the full price for the

trucks rather than the deal which Parkin was proposing which would result in

them getting 10 per cent, discount?

A. That is what it looked like to me.
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Q. You believe that was Mr. I'i^s' mental attitude?

A. Yes.

Q. In spite of the fact that Mr. Biggs seemed to prefer a deal such as you

suggested, rather than the one which the man wLth whom he was dealing suggested,

did Mr. Parkin persist in offering the 10' per cent, discount ?

A. He didn't see how Biggs could get through the deal alone. He said, "What

does he do. Is he the boss 1

. Is there any person over him or not ?"

Q. What I want to get at is this : after that was said and Biggs said ."Listen

to Reynolds and he will get you some money" did Parkin still persist in offering

the 10 per cent, discount?

A. Xo, Biggs left shortly after that and we drew up to the table to draw up
the tender.

Q. 'When you sat down to draw up the tender did you draw it up on the

basis of a 10 per cent, discount?

A. We did not, no. We didn't draw it up. We just got started.

Q. When you started to figure were you putting in a tender and making the

price the regular standard price without any discount ?

A. Xo discount at all. We didn't have the price of these dump bodies to be

put on, we had never sold one.

Q. Are those made in this country?
A. You get the chassis from Milwaukee and someone else puts on the dump

dy. The factory puts them on.
'

Q. What factory?
A. The Sterling factory.

Q. Go ahead : tlien you were figuring out on the standard chassis and this

dump boclv?

A. Yes.

Q- When you started to figure the price out, at what you would make your
imposition, who fixed that, you or Parkin ?

A. Parkin did. He called up the Grace Motors about the price of the bodies.

Q. Parkin had a conversation with 'Grace Motors who said the price was so

id. 80?

A. For that class of truck.

Q. How much did he gay it would be?
A. I don't think he said how much it would be.

Q. He didn't let you know what price. fie was going to put his tender in at?
A. The tender wasn't made out.

Q. Did you >ee it after the price was put in before, it went to the Govern-
men t ?

A. I looked at it, yes.

Q. Where did you se it?

A. In his office.

Q- That was all you did, and Parkin determined after the conversation with

the Grace Motors the price at which he would tender ?

A. Ye?.

Q. Then, did you come to Toronto?

A. Yes.

Q. Why did Parkin bring you over to Toronto to see the Minister?

A. T was working: on the deal as much as Parkin was.
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Q. You had fixed the price, had put in a tender and it had gone to the Minis-

ter of Public Works, and Parkin was going over to Toronto to sign the contract if

he got the sale?

A. Yes.

Q. You didn't have to sign that contract?

A. Oh, no.

Q. Then why did you come to Toronto with Parkin?

A. 5

Well, every truck deal that went through Parkin's garage I worked on it

with Parkin, not this sale alone.

Q. You went to Toronto and simply sat in the room. After the engineers
came and Parkin went into the other room he didn't take you in?

A. No, he didn't take me in.

Q. Why did you come. What were you to do?

A. I came simply to work on the deal. Look at Parkin and if you think lie

is a clever man, I don't.

Q. You thought it would take a man with more brains than Parkin had
to put this deal through. Is that what you mean?

A. It didn't need any brains -at all to -put it through.
Q. Whatever brains were required to put it through, if it did take any

brains to put it through it was better that you should be along than that Parkin
should be there. Is that What you mean, that you were more likely to po ess

them?

A. No, I haven't all" the brains there are.

Q. .'What was it you came for because Parkin was not clever enough to put
it through himself?

A. I am not saying that.

Q. You did say thai?

A. It was not a deal that was so easy to put through that you didn't have

to have someone there who had brains enough to talk and who knew something

about trucks. You had to have someone of that ki-nd to convince the Govern-

ment engineers. We had never done any business with the Government before and

we didn't know what we were running up against. We thought probably we

would have to go up against a committee or something.

Q. You said someone had to be there who knew something about trucks?

A. I had worked on every other deal that went through the garage and do

you think when this came I was going' to stay home.

Q. But you would get your money anyway, if you were entitled to it. You

knew more about the mechanism and the talking points of trucks than Parkin?

A. No, I don't say that. Parkin is a mechanic.

Q. So that it was not for the purpose of discussing the good points of the

trucks with the officials whom- yon would meet and convince them of the merits of

these trucks that you came to Toronto. Parkin could do that better than yon?
A. No. When lie got the telephone message he said, "We have to go to

Toronto in the morning." We talked over what time we would leave and lie -aid

we would have to leave early. We made an arrangement to leave at 5 o'clock.

Q. When you <rot here and went up it was early?

A. Yes.

Q You went into the room off the Minister's office, the bathroom and into

the other room. I -suppose the chairs were more comfortable there than outside?
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I
A. 1 don't know anything about that.

Q. You waited a while and finally Parkin went out?'

A. Yes.

Q. Did he go into the office where Mr. Biggs and the officials of the De-

partment where?

A. I could not isee^ but apparently he did. There apparently were more

people in the room for after Parkin went in I think I heard him introduce Par-

kin to Mr. Hogarth. I am not positive.

Q. TJp to that time Parkin didn't have any contract. He had just put in a

tender?

A. Yes.

Q. Then he went out and met Mr. Hogarth and somebody else. How long-

did these gentlemen remain in the outside room discussing the matter before Par-

kin got the contract?

A. I would judge about five or ten minutes.

Q. Then Parkin came back and you and he went away ?

KA.

Parkin and Mr. Biggs came 'back.

Q. And then you went out the door into the hall and it was all over?

A. Yes, do you want me to tell you what Mr. Biggs said 'before we left ?

Q. Just a minute. During the whole discussion whatever it was in the out-

de office between Parkin and PTogarth and whoever the other official was, you were

not seen at all ?

A. No.

Q. Did you hear the conversation other than Parkin being introduced to

Hogarth?
A. I heard one say tliey must <be delivered by March 1.

Q. Who said that?

A. I cannot say.

Q. Did you hear anything else. Did you hear Parkin explaining the type of

truck, anything of that kind?

A. No.

Q. If you were interested to the extent of 5 per cent, commission and came
er on account of your superior ability in handling deals of this kind don't you
ink you would have listened intently and closely to the conversation?

A. Xo, I didn't see any occasion for listening.

Q. In other wordfe, Parkin was outside trying to make a deal with the Minis-

and two other gentlemen from the Department and you weren't) sufficiently

terested to listen to what was said ?

A. There was a room betweeen the outside room awli myself. I didn't go and
t my ear to the door and listen.

,'

Q. What I want to get at is this : you apparently did hear some of the con-

versation .

A. I heard Parkin introduced to one of them, I believe it was Hogarth.
Q. And you heard something said about the 1st of March?
A. Yes.

Q. You could have heard the conversation if you had listened. You were

sitting there with 'both dioors open, you could hear the conversation ?

A. 'Sometimes When a man was facing the door I might hear him. T couldn't

hear the conversation distinctly.
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Q. You mean you did not try to ?

A. No, I didn't pay much attention.

Q. You sat there until they had done their .business and came in and then

you went away ?

A. Yes.

Q. You said you sold other trucks before, I don't suppose you ever sold trucks

with this particular dump body ?

A. No, we didn't sell any of them.

Q. Can you toll me whether they were sold at standard prices or were sold

at a cut price?
A. Xo, in fixing the price of these dump bodies when he got the thing made

out I said "Did you make.it good enough?" and he said "Yes, I am chargng the

Government $59. each to drive1 them to Dunnville.

Q. From where ?

A. From Toronto to Dunnville.

Q. That is what Parkin said?

A. Yes.

Q. So he got the price indicated and put on that charge?
A. When I said "Did you make it good enough ?" he said "Yes." We did

not know the price of these dump 'bodies and had' to get that from Toronto.
Q. What did you think about that, did you think it was honest?
A. I can't say that that part of it was honest.

Q. When he told you he was doing this thing you as an hones,! man mixed up
in the transaction immediately protested didn't you?

Q. That being the case, after that was all fixed up you went down to
Milwaukee ?

A. Yes,

Q. And in Milwaukee did yon make any inquiry as to what the price of trucks
was going to be after the first of January?

A. Not that I remember. The sales manager was not there, just the adver-
tising manager.

Q. You said lie entertained you for a day. Did you ee the sales manager at
all before you left did he get back?

A. Xo.

Q. You still stayed on working for Parkin after the 1st of January?
A. Yes, until the 6th of March.

Q. Will you tell me, please, what happened after the 1st of January with re-

garcl to the standard price of these trucks. Did they go up or down or remain sta-

tionery ?

A. I can't say. I didn't hear they went up. My prices didn't change.

Q. You still kept the old price list?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you sell any al'ier the 1st of January?
A. Xot a Sterling 1 may have sold another.

Q. So far as the price \ms concerned you had no actuial experience of what it

was from an actual sale?

A. Xo.

Q e _._I) you know hmv Parkin "ot his commission. Did he get the money and

pay Grace Motor^ or slid Grace Motor.- gel the money and pay him?
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A. 1 cannot say.

(). 1 am told he got it in February?
A. If he did he must have kept it from me. He didn't tell me. He told me

he hadn't got it.

Q. You had nothing to do with the office with keeping the books or handling'
the cheques?

A. No.

Q. lp to the time yon left, on March (>, you were under the impression from
what he had said to yon that he hadn't got anything" out of it? z

A. Ho told me there were two trucks in Toronto and that he expected to make

delivery of the others at any time.

Q. Did you have anything to do with the delivery of the trucks?
A. I left before the trucks were delivered.

Q. They hadn't got actual delivery by the Isit March?
A. No. Parkin told mo there were two in Toronto, that is all I know about

it. They expected the others along any time.

M\i. M< ('KM:: 'When were they in Toronto?
A. That would be March (I. when they got there I couldn't say.

MIJ. BifAi-Kix: You spoke of a conversation on March 6, that would be the
time you left?

A.- Yes.

Q.- You said Parkin asked yon -'What do you figure we have to give Biggs?You know who Bio-.rS \va>?

A.Yes.
Q. The Minister of Public Work--
A. Yes.

Q. The man who was giving the contract?

A. Yes.

Q. Representing the Government, a member of the Government,?

A. Ye-.

Q. "Parkin said "What do you figure we have to give Biggs and I said we

should give him $3,000"?

A. First we spoke of a new car.

Q. I don't think you told us about that before. "We first spoke of a car and I

;:iid 'give him $3,000.'
"

Is that it. ?

A. I said $3,000 would bo about right. I said "You can take my share."

(,). Do you mean that was to pay the Minister of Public Works money for giv-

ing the cantnact to Parkin?

A. That is the way I looked at it. That is what I believed.

Q. Parkin said "What do you figure we have to give Biggs?"
A. What we should give Biggs.

Q- The way I took it is this: "Parkin said what do you figure we have to give

iggs?" F said, "We Should' give him $3,000 and you can take my share up to 5 per
cent.'' What I want to get at is this, that was $3,000 which you understood was
a bribe going to the Minister of Public Works for giving this contract to Parkin.
I s that what you understood ?

A. He had the money.

Q. just ,a moment. Is that what you understood? When you said "I said
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we should give him $3,000. did you mean that you and Parkin between you should

give the Minister of Public Works $3,000 as a bribe for giving this contract to

Parkin?

A. I was not gong to approach Biggs myself.

Q. I am not asking you that.

A. I know what you are trying to do. You are trying to discredit me.

Q. I would not think of discrediting you. Here is your own evidence "Parkin

said "what do you figure we have to give Biggs?' and I said 'we should give him

$3,000, you can take my share at 5 per cent.'
?: What do you -mean that you and

Parkin should give him that money for?

A. For putting the deal through.

Q. Did, you understand it tliait this $3,000. wais a bribe whidh was to go to the

Minister of Public Works for having bought these cars from Parkin?

A. I think we fbotih figured he had something coming to him.

Q. When Parkin siaid "What do you suppose we have to give Biggs'
7

you didn't

say you -should not give him anything, that it wasn't right ?

A. Xo. I said "We should give him $3,000. but you take it up with Frank.

Q. Do I understand you to tell us that while you were not willing to approach
him 3'ounself you intended that Parkin should do that. Were you willing to be a

party, to the extent you have told us, to an attempt to bribe the Minister of Public

Works for $3,000.?

A. Do you mean was I willing to give my share to go to the Minister ?

Q. For the purpose of paying the Minister $3,000. for having given this con-

tract to Parkin wrere you willing to be a pairty to that?

A. Yes, I was willing to give my share.

Q. You were the person who proposed it. You are the person who proposed

tlje anwiint you thought should be given ?

A. We spoke of the car before the $3,000.

Q. Who spoke of the car ?

A. Parkin. I said "If we gave him a new car it would look bad. We have

to be careful of what we do."

Q. You said "If we gave him a new car it would look bad." You mean it

would foe seen every day?
A. I said"$3,000 Would 'be a good share but you take it up with him first."

Q. Why do you say it would look bad if you gave him a car?

A. I thought there would be trouble.

Q. In cither words would this be a fair way of putting it You thought there

would, be trouble becautse it would be crooked? You thought it would be a crooked

thing to do?

A. I thought that if it got down here to these buildings they would make
trouble out of it.

Q. What I want to get at is this: is it fair to say that the reason' you didn't

want to give him a car, the reason you didn't want that known was because that

would be a crooked thing to do? You knew that?

A. I knew the whole thing was crooked.

Q. Then you didn't want him to be given something that could be seen?

A. I was working to protect him.

Q "What about Reynolds. Did you want to protect yourself ?
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A. HOAV do YOU mean, protect myself?

Q. What did you mean "Protect the Minister*'?

A. That if the deal went through and the tin no- was heard of down here, the

party down here would make trouble.

(
L). Did you want to protect yourself?

A. All I wanted was my money.

(,). And you wanted to protect yourself?
A. No, I wanted my money. The three of us worked together on it. When

the deal started we were told to keep our mouths shut, I did and Parkin didn't.

When he got the order, on the way home he stopped at 'Oa-kvillo and showed a man
the order. I said, "Leu, keep that in your pocket.'

5

Still, he swore in court that we

didn't talk a'bout the truck order on the way to Toronto, as if he was putting a thing'

like that through every day.

MIL McCiiAK: Is it a fact that you didn't discuss it?

A.^Oh, w<> talked about it. We couldn't get it out of our heads. We couldn't

sleep.

MH. BRACK IN : Let us go back a little. Parkin first suggested that you should

give him a car and you said, "No, there may be trouble about that." Now you have

iold me you thought the whole thing was crooked

A. I wouldn't exactly say crooked.

THE CHAIILMAN : You did say it.

A. Well, I .stick to it.

MH. BRACKIX: You didn't want what was going to be given to the Minister
to be given in such shape that it could be easily found out. That was your idea?

A. Yes.

Q. You were the one who suggested the cosh ?

A. Yes, I suggested .$3,000. When I made that suggestion I said, "You must
take this up with Frank."

Q. You knew it was crooked. You didn't want to give a car because it could
be easily found out. You 'suggested cash. Now at the time that you made the sug-
gestion that Parkin should see the Minister and see about the $3,000 cash you knew
that was crooked and dishonest?

A. Yes.

Q- You were the fellow who proposed it?

A. I didn't propose it at all. We were talking about it every day We talked
about it all the time.

Q. But you proposed the $3,000. cash ?

A. He asked me. We talked of a car and he said, "What do you figure we
should give Frank. What do you think he wants?"

Q. You suggested the $3,000.?

A. I said that $3,000. would be fair.

Q. What we want to get at is this, to enable us to come to a conclusion about

You say you knew that was crooked, you knew it was dishonest?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And you were the one who proposed the $3,000. cash?

A. Yes, I said $3,000. would be about right.

Q._\Vell, I want to ask you this.: I think you told me that would be crooked

and dishonest and that you were willing to be a party to it?
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A. Yes.

Q. Your willingness to be a party to it arose from the fact that you thought

you were going to get a commission out of that sale?

A. I think I did.

Q. If you had thought at that time that you weren't going to get any money
out of the sale to the Government you would never have suggested giving anything
to Biggs at all ?

A. rThe two of us worked on the whole thing from start to finish. I wanted

what was coming to me.

Q. You, yourself, would never have suggested something which you have

tol'd us you knew was crooked and dishonest if it hadn't 'been for the fact that you
were going to get some money out of the transaction ?

A. If I didn't work on it at all. If Parkin had put the deal through him-

self, if I didn't have anything to do with it I would not have had the right to talk

about it at all.

Q. Now come back and answer the question. -Is it so that the reason why
you were willing to be a party to what you have told us you knew to be a crooked

and dishonest deal was that you expected to get some money out of it yourself.

Is that the reason?

A. I answered that. I see what you want to do. You want

Q. Never mind that. I will repeat the question
A. I can answer the question. You asked me if I expected to get my share

out of it.

Q. I asked you if your reason for suggesting something which you have told

us you knew to be crooked and dishonest, your reason for suggesting that and your

willingness to be a party to it, was because you expected to get some money out of

the transaction for yourself?
A. I talked and worked over every point of it with Parkin. I was not in

doubt- at all about getting my money. I fully understood I was getting my money.
Q- You have told th.

:

s 'Committee you suggested something you knew was
crooked and dishonest and that you were willing to be a party to something
crooked and dishonest. That is what you told us, and we are entitled to know why
you fell from grace. I am asking this, whether your reason for being willing to

enter into a deal you say you knew was crooked and dishonest was that you hoped
or expected to get some money out of that sale to the Government.

A. I was asked for a suggestion and said $3,000. He said, "What do yon
think is fair"? This car cost $2,800. I was asked for a suggestion and I suggested

$3,000. He (suggested a car and I was asked for my suggestion and 1 gave him my
answer $3,000.

THE CHAIRMAN: What Mr. Brackin wants is this: you are asked if your
reason for being willing to do that was because you expected to get some money out

of it. Answer yes or no.

A. Because T expected to? It was understood I was to get some money.
Q. Was that the reason ?

A. No. T was working for Parkin and Parkin understood

Q. Was it one of the reasons?

A. That is a hard thing to say "yes" to. T was working for Parkin, and Parkin

understood T was to get something.
Mrt . McOttAE: At the time this talk took place between yourself and Parkin
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as to what, if anything', should 'be given to the Minister., had the transaction been

consummated as between the Government and Parkin, had the deal been made?
A. Yes.

Q. So that at the time you were talking about a possible something for the

Minister, in your mind was the knowledge that the deal was already closed and it

was a question of whether you should give anything to1 the Minister out of a

transaction that had been completed and out of which you expected to get some

money ? . .

A. I expected to get my share. I thought there was no doubt about it.

Mu. HIJACK i.v: You have told me you were willing, that you proposed a thing

you knew to be crooked and dishonest?

A. I was asked to propose it.

Q. You were not asked to propose anything crooked.

Mr. Price objected to the nature of questions but the Chairman ruled

that the question was being put fairly, that Mr. Bxackin had not had an answer

to his question and was entitled to it.

MK. PJUCK : If Parkin suggested a car, what was the difference between giv-

ing a car and giving $3,000?

Objection by Mr. Brackin, that Mr. Price was putting the answer in the mouth
of the witness. A question being raised by Mr. Drury as to whether the suggestion
of a car came after or before the suggestion of the $3,000, the evidence taken was

referred to and read.

ME. P>RYCKIX: You have told us that you suggested something you knew
to be crooked and dishonest and that you were willing to be a party to it. I sup-

pose it is true that that was the first time you ever expressed a wilingness to go
into anything crooked or dishonest? You never before indicated a willingness to

ffo into anything crooked or dishonest?

A. I would not say that all through my life. T am not an angel.

Q. What you say is that when you said you were willing to go into some-

thing you knew was crooked and dishonest, you are not prepared to say that that

was the first time in your youiiir life that it happened to you?
A. No.

Q. That was the first time you were ever mixed up in a deal of that size, in

which there was so much dishonesty and crookedness. The others were mere piker
deals compared with this?

A. Yes.

Q. When you said that you were willing to do a thing that was crooked and

dishonest do you mean to tell us that the fact that you expected to get some money
out of it yourself had nothing whatever to do with your being willing to do a thing

that was crooked and dishonest?

A. No, it was not because I was going to get money out of it. That was

understood from the start to the finish. I didn't think for a minute that I was

going to be double crossed.

Q. Do you mean to say that when you were expressing a willingness to be

crooked, to do a thing that was crooked and dishonest, you were willing to do that

in the interest of Parkin and not of yourself?

A. In the interest of Parkin and myself and everything else. It was no't just
because I was getting mine out of it.
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MK. DEWAJJT: You thought Biggs was entitled to it?

A. Yes, sure.

Mu. BRACKJX : Be perfectly frank. You don't want us to believe you would

have suggested this crooked and dishonest thing and express a willingness to be

a party to it if there was not a cent coming to you? ,

A. If there was not a cent coming to me I would not be in the case at all.

Q. You wouldn't be suggesting that Biggs should get $3,000?
A. If I hadn't worked on it they wouldn't have been talking about it to me

at all. I must admit I expected my mone}'.

Q. You would not have been making that suggestion of $3,000 to the Minis-

ter if you didn't expect to get yours?
A. I thought I was going to get my share.

Q. "Was it in Dundas, or Hamilton, that you were in Mr. Shaver's office?

A. Dundas.

Q. Was that the day of the trial ?

A. The morning of the trial.

Q. And Mr. Biggs was there?

A. He came in.

Q. Were you and Shaver in Shaver's private office.

A. They were in the private office. I was outside.

Q. Biggs talked to Shaver who spoke first? Biggs was in the office. You
were there and Shaver was there with Biggs in Biggs' private office. Who spoke
first?

A. I don't remember.

Q. Who opened the conversation?

A. Biggs said, "Let's get these fellows together. What will you take to

settle."

Q. You knew Bigg well you called him Frank and had known his family,
and Biggs knew Parkins pretty well?

A, Yes.

Q. You had this trouble, and I suppose one of the biggest items in the trouble

was this purchase from the Government ?

A. I had a private talk with Biggs in his private house. He told me the

Saturday night I would get my money, that he was going to see Parkin and get a

settlement.

Q. He wanted Parkin to make a settlement with you?
A. Yes.

Q. He said to Shaver "Why can't wo get these fellows together." What did

Shaver say?
A. I don't remember: "You should do something, Frank" or something like

that.

Q. He wanted to get you out of the lawyer's hands, he didn't want you to

<pend vour money in l;iw costs? Was anything said about getting -together and

making a deal rather than spending your money in the courts?

A. I don't think he would tell the lawyer that.

Q. Was anything said about that?

A. He lust said. "Can we sret these fellows together? What will Reynolds take

to settle"? I said, "I will take $3,000 to settle."

Q. He was to see Parkin ?
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A. Yes, he said he would see Parkin.

Q. Did lie succeed in getting you two together?
A. No.

Q. Was Parkin home ?

A. 1 do not know.

Q. Do you know whether he did see Parkin?

A. I saw them in the court-house talking together.

Q. You don't know if Parkin's lawyer went to your lawyer and said, "Let's

sit down and fix this thing up" ?

A. No. T went to Parkin and said, "'Let's settle this, let's talk it over and
settle.

Q. You were friends and didn't want to throw your money away in law

costs. Did you succeed ?

A. No. He said that if I wanted a fight we would go ahead and fight it out.

MR. Mod? AT: : The transaction was completed between the Government on

the one hand and Parkin on the other for the purchase of these trucks?

A. Yes.

Q. A month or two after that deal was completed a conversation took place

?tween you and Parkin as to giving something to the Minister?

A. Yes.

Q. Who mentioned giving something to the Minister first and what was said.

LO first mentioned the need for giving a donation to the Minister ?

A. I cannot say the first, Parkin and I worked together day in and day out.

We worked from St. Catharines clean around to Oakville, and we were talking
about it at different times. .

Q. Was the car suggested first or the money suggested first?

A. On that especial day the car was mentioned first. The first occasion was

previous to that. When the Toronto Star reporter came there he asked me about

the deal. That was the time the notoriety started in the papers. I refused to talk

to them, only that the deal was for twelve trucks. He wanted to know where Par-

kin was and I said I didn't know. I didn't get a chance to get Parkin and tell

him to keep quiet before this man got him on the phone. He called Parkin up on

the phone.

Q. You did come down to a day when you had a discussion at which the Minis-

ter was not present?
A. He was not present.

Q. A discussion as to the amount you two fellows thought should be given
the Minister. Which was proposed first on that day, the car or the $3.000?

A. The car.

Q. Parkin proposed a car and then asked you to suggest what you thought
was fair. Your contra advice was that it should not take the form of a car be-

cause it would be liaible to cause talk?

A. Yes, I stated that,

Q. That whatever was done should be in the form of money?
A. Yes, ho said we should have to leave it until some future time.

Q. Was there an agreement at that time .between you and Parkin as to what

your share of the commission should be?

A. No, not signed.

IQ.
Approximately what was the arrangement between you and Parkin ?
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A. He told me that they had trimmed him out of three or four thousand,

jumped the price on him or something. 1 said, I told him to be careful, that that

man Holt was too tricky for him. I told him to he careful of this man Holt, that

he was a cleverer man than he was. I said 1 was sorry I didn't go up with him.

When we went there 1 said,
uDon't tell them you have an order, ask what you can

get them for if you can put a deal through for twelve trucks. You can get a better

price than if you go in and say, here is an order."

Q. What should your share of the commission have been?

A. It would amount to about 5 per cent., about $3,500. It might be a little

Jess on account of not getting. such a commission on these dump foodies.

Q. So the $3,000 amount was discussed and you said you were prepared to-

pay your portion?

A. Yes, my portion out of that.

Q. It was to come out of your share of the commission?

A. Yes.

Q. At that time the whole transaction between Parkin and the Government

had been concluded?

A. Yes, everything settled.

Q. I want to get clear about Mr. Bracking question. Was the original

proposal in which Mr. Brackin suggested you were going to do something dishonest

did that arise prior to the time the negotiations were on for the purchase of these

trucks, or was it only after the transaction was concluded and you expected a cer-

tain commission, approximately $3,500?
A. Yes.

MR. CLARKE : How did you come to think about this $3,000 Did the Minis-

ter ever approach Parkin or you as to getting a commission for himself ?

A. He never approached me.

Q. How did you come to think about it. 1 never gave a man anything unless

he approached me. I've often been approached and didn't do it then. How did

you come to think about giving the Minister $3,000. when he never approached

you and was no party to the contract. Why did you think you should be so benevo-

lent as to give away $3,000?
A. The only answer I can give is that it naturally grew on us, I thought it

no more than fair that we, who were clearing $15,000 or $16,000 should give him

a share.

Q. You don't know whether Biggs ever approached Parkin or yourself?

A. He never approached me.

MR. DRURY : It may be that you knowing nothing of Mr. Biggs approacfi-

ing any one, and with your personal opinion of Parkin would it occur to you that

Parkin was simply putting a game over on you for the sake of getting you to con-

tribute something that would not be handed on?

A. 1 don't quite understand that.

Q. Had you any reason to think that this $3,000 you talked about would

ever get to Mr. Biggs. Did he ever approach you or Parkin?

A. lie never approached me over it.

Q. You regarded your presence here in the department as necessary to close-

the deal, because you had been working on it ?

A. Yes.

Q What was your part in working on it. What did you do?



George V. APPENDIX No. 2. 221

A. I have told all I did on it.

Q. You said you worked continually on the deal?

A. Well, that was just from Saturday until Tuesday.

(,). You thought it was not safe to let Parkin come without your superior

knowledge and so on?

A. I didn't think for a minute that I should stay at home when I was work-

ing on the deal.

Q. You regarded Parkin as being much better acquainted than you with

the mechanical superiority of the trucks r

A. 1 said Parkin was a mechanic.

Q. And a man who could make a much better talk than you could on the

mechanical qualities of the car?

A. I don't think Parkin can out-talk me on cars, no.

Q. But mechanically ?

A. No, I don't think he can. I have had twelve years experience. The
mechanism of the car he does know.

Q. Y^ou said two or three times, if I understood you aright you didn't even

know the price of these cars, the price paid or anything else.

I

A. 1 didn't know the price of the dump bodies. We had to get it and figure
it out, what we would charge.

Q. You told us you couldn't tell the price of the cars ?

A. I couldn't tell the price of these oars completed.

Q. You didn't know the price on which the sale was to 'be based?

A. The tender was not put in as one car so much. It was put in as six cars.

Q. What 1 cannot understand is how you who knew less about the mechanism
of the cars, and apparently did not know anything about the price, should be essen-

tial in putting through that deal?

A. It is a matter of your own opinion, the way you look at it. I have my
own opinion and he has his.

MR. DKWAIIT : You were telling my friend about a conversation in Mr. Shaver's

office on the morning of the trial when Biggs came in andf asked if you
couldn't get together. Tell us the whole of that conversation?

A MEMBER: The conversation in Biggs office, what did Biggs say to you.
You said Biggs made a, statement as you came out of the 'bedroom door?

A. He shook hands and said, "That is a nice order you boys have got in a

long time or many a day."

MK. P,KW.ABT!: But the time in Mr. Shaver's office. Will you give us the

whole of that conversation ?

A. Between Shaver and Biggs?

Q._Yes?
A. I just can't say. I remember him asking what I would take to settle and

I said $3,000.

Q. Who asked that?

A. Mr. Biggs was 'facing Shaver when lie sa.'d it. I told Shaver in case of

a settlement what I wouM settle for. 1 said $3,000 cash.

G, ])id Biggs ask you what you would take to settle?

A. Yes, whether he said it to me or not I can't say.

Q. Did he ask that?
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A. Yes, whether he said it to Mr. 'Shaver or myself.

Q. You knew the question was put hy Mr. Biggs as to what you would take to

settle?

A. Yes.

THE CHAIKMAX : Jle said before, "Let us get these fellows together, what

would you take to settle."

MR. DEWART: Was anything further said after that?

A. He said I will go down and see Parkin.

( L). Did he leave the office to see Parkin?

A. Yes, -he left the office.

Q. Was anything further said as he left?

A. I don't think so.

Q. Did he express an opinion as to whether $3,000 was a fair sum or not?

A. No, he didn't. He said, "I will go down and see Parkin.

MR. TOLMIE: I understood you had sold some of these trucks he fore?

A. Yes.

Q. Was it a custom for you and Parkin to go together to close up a deal ?

A. We worked together on every deal that went through for the nine months

I was there. I have been away when deals have been closed, such as the Rogers
but I couldn't do any good on it as Parkin had to make an arrangement about the

money.

Q. It was the custom for \ou to go together to close a deal?

A. Yes.

Q. 1When this deal was likely to be closed up you two came down as was your
custom ?

A. I think so, yes.

MR. DOH/ERTY : This was the first transaction Parkin or you ever had with the

Government ?

A. The first transaction I ever had.

Q i gather from your evidence that it was your opinion and also the opinion

<>f Parkin that this was the beginning of what you expected to be a considerable

business. You expected further order.*, hoped for further orders?

A. Yes.

Q. The matter of. paying $3,000 or giving a car to the Minister was never

discussed by you and Parkin until after the transaction was closed?

A. We only saw him for a few minutes.

A. It wa.s not until after the transaction was closed ?

Q. The time you had this discussion in which you suggested $3,000 instead

of a car, was how long after the transaction was closed and the order signed?

A. From December 31, to March 6.

Q. As you stated here, as far as you know, nothing was ever said by you to

Biggs or by Biggs to you in reference to anything from Parkin to Mr. "Biggs. Noth-

ing was ever said? Nothing was said to Mr. Biggs about getting some money?
A. I didn't myself.

() m So far as you know, nothing was ever said by Parkin to Mr.

A. I can't say what Parkin said.

Q. As far as you know?

A. I admit 1 don't know if Parkin -poke to him.
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Q. As far as you know you didn't ?

A. As far as I know I didn't.

Q. Had any mention been made of the possibility of getting further orders?

A. Yes.

Q. Had you any idea that the $3,000 or the car mentioned originally was

a matter between Parkin and yourself and as far as you know never reached Mr.

Biggs ? As far as you know ?

A. Yes, as far as I know.

Q. That is the situation ?

A. Yes.

Q. You said something about Biggs going into Shaver's office and you told

us the Saturday night before you went to his house ?

A. I met him on the street and said, "I would like to have a talk with you."

I got in a car and drove to Frank's house. I said, "I suppose you know what I am
here for. I want to tell you my side of the story."

DR. GODFREY: Who is "Frank"?
A. Mr. Biggs. I said, "I will tell you what I'll do. Get Parkin and let him

tell his story and I will tell you my story. You be the judge, and if you find I

haven't got it coming to me I will quit.

MR. BRACKIX : Did you tell him the conversation you had about the car and
the $3,000?

A. No, I didn't say anything about that.

Q._VVhy not?

A. I had no right to talk over Parkin's head.

Q. You told your story and didn't mention this at all?

A. I did say to him "Whatever is coming to you I am willing to give mine/'

Q. You said you never mentioned it?

A. I said that and lie didn't say a word, whether he heard it or listened

to it or not, I don't know.

Q. Yon said you would tell your story and Parkin could tell his. Did you tell

your story?

A. Yes.

Q. I suppose you were trying to convince Frank that Parkin had always

agreed to pay this commission ?

A. Yes.

Q. You told Biggs about the conversation on the 6th of March in Biggs
house that night? You told him that on the 6th of March, you Discussed this

thing with Parkin, the payment of a commission?

A. T told him Parkin offered me this $400.

Q. You were telling Fcank about the conversation on March 6th?

A. I remember saying, "Frank, whatever is coming to you out of this I am
willing to give mine." I went on talking and he didn't say a thing.

Q. You went to Frank and said you wanted, to tell him your story and Par-
kin could tell his. What I want to know is this: as part of the story you told

him that night did you tell him about the conversation about the commission
on the 6th of March ?

I

A. I don't know whether I did or not. I was telling about liow I had worked

for Parkin, the work I did and everything else.
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Q. At the time you were talking to Frank in his house that night did you
tell him that Parkin had talked about giving him a car and that you had talked

about giving him $3,000?
A. I do not know whether I did or not. I was not going to approach him.

Q. You told us you said that whatever was coming to him you would give

yours. Did you say that Parkin had suggested a car and that you had suggested

$3,000?
A. I don't know.

Q. If Mr. Biggs says you did not will you accept what he says about it as true ?

If he says that will you accept that?

A. It is hard for me to believe or deny. I forget. I do not know whether I

did or not.

Q. What was the effect of that conversation you had that night when you
finished up. When you left the house was Frank to do anything further to see

if he could get you and Parkin together?
A. He said, "I will see Parkin Monday morning, I believe your story and you

will get yours."

Q- On Monday morning, was that when he came into Shaver's office?

A. No, that was months after. That was during March or April.
Q. I thought you told me it was a day shortly before he came into Shaver's

office. I thought you toldi me that a few nights 'before you were at his house ?

A. Oh no, I didn't.

Q. How long was it before ?

A. I think it was five or six months. I think that happened in March or

April.

Q. And in those five or six months did you see Mr. Biggs frequently?
A. Yes.

Q. Did you talk to him?
A. Where?

Q. Did you never talk to him about this 'business. You say he said that

night five or six months before the trial, "I will see Parkin and see what we can do/'
Did you see him the next two or three days or the next two or three weeks ?

A. I didn't see him for some time.

Q- The first time you did see him, did you ask him how he made out ?

A. No, he was going by in his car, going home.

Q. Did you call him on the telephone and ask him whether he had done any-
thing with Parkin ?

A. [ don't think I did.

THE CHAIRMAN: You went up and asked Mr; Biggs to act as mediator be-

tween you and Parkin?

A. Yes, I did.

DR. GODFREY : Does this price include any service at all ?

A. Three months service 90 days.

Q. Where did they get the service, Toronto or Dundas?
A. Dundas.

Q. Had you facilities there ?

A. Oh yes. They have a good workshop.
MR. PRICE: About the time you were talking to Parkin, on March 6 that was
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the time you went in and asked for your commission or what he owed you?
A. Yes. I wanted to get straightened up.

Q. He asked you to come into the back of the garage?
A. Yes.

Q. What was the object in going to the end of the garage?
A. I was asked to go there.

Q. What was your object in approaching him ?

A. I was going to Buffalo and there was a fellow wanted to borrow $1,500
from me. I had been working for nine months and hadn't drawn any salary. He
told a hard luck story, that he was up against it, and I took it. I said, "Let us get

straightened away. We are going to far/' He said come out to the garage and
.walked out of the office.

Q. Then what happened?
A. I have told what happened.

Q. Who started the conversation?

A. He asked me what I expected out of this Government order and then we
started to talk about other deals.

Q. Confining it to the Government order, what about that?

A. He asked me what I expected out of the Government order and I told

him $3,000.

MR. MoC'RAE: Was Parkin hard up. Do you think he was stalling you,

telling you a story about a commission he had to pay simply to get some money for

himself?

A. He was always telling a hard luck story, about being up against it.

MR. PRICE : There was a McLaughlin car also in this order. Do jou know

anything about fhat?

A. It was not in the order when I was there.

Q. Did Biggs keep a car in the garage ?

A. He drove up once in an Overland car that I thought belonged to the Gov-

ernment. It was snowing and he didn't want to drive back, and left it in the

garage. It was there a month or two.

Q. You don't know anything about this item of $2,800?
A. No.

Witness excused. The Committee then adjourned.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE.
April 6, 1920.

The Committee met at 10.00 a.m., Mr. Curry in the chair.

Hon. P. C. Biggs called and sworn; examined by Mr. Brackin.

Q. Mr. Biggis, you are Minister of Public Works?
A. Yes.

f

Q. And have been since this Government came into power?
A. Yes.

Q. When did you come into power?
A. November, 1919.

Q. When you go back prior to December, 1919, tell us, so far as purchasing

was concerned in your department what was the organization? Since you came

in is there a purchasing agent?

A. Mr. Hogarth chief engineer of the Department is now and has been and
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was when I took hold of the department, the purchasing agent for the Depart-
ment and everything is purchased under his signature^ and recommendation.

Q. Would that include trucks for the Highways Branch ?

A. Everything.

Q. From what you learned can you tell us whether, 'before the Government
came in, any consideration that had been given to the purchase of trucks?

A. I found in the Department that the purchase of trucks for the develop-
ment of the roads had been considered some time previous, probably a year, or a

year and a half. Mr. Hogarth can clear that question up in his evidence.

Q. I want to see what knowledge you have. As you know is doesn't make

any difference where you got it, it is admissable as evidence. To come back. You

say you learned after you came in that the purchase of trucks had been up for

consideration sometime before you came in. How long prior to December, 1919,
had this purchase of trucks come to your attention. I mean in any concrete torm,

coming from Mr. Hogarth?
A.- The purchase of trucks was brought to my attention in concrete form

by Mr. Hogarth, early dn December, with a view to trying to get their delivery
for Spring work.

Q. Tell me how it came up ?

A. I cannot state verbatim what was said. It was all verbal and not in corres-

pondence. The purchasing agent, and chief engineer Mr. Hogarth, recommended

that the Department put in enough trucks to handle the work of the Department
since he thought it advisable, in his recommendation for the coming season, on

account of embargoes and the difficulty of getting delivery, to consider the matter

early. He brought it to my attention in December, and after bringing it to my
attention he recommended that we should purchase Sterling trucks.

MR. McCRAE: Who recommended that?

A. Mr. Hogarth. After careful consideration of the different manufactures

of trucks both personally and by the chief mechanic, Mr. Johnston, his recom-

mendation to me was that we should purchase Sterling trucks for the Department.
MR. BRACKIX : Let me ask you, just to clear that up : as far as the purchase

of these particular trucks was concerned was there anything on your part verbal

or otherwise in the form of a suggestion to Mr. Hogarth or the Deputy Minister

or the chief mechanic to purchase any particular kind of truck?

A. Absolutely none. It was immaterial to me what kind of trucks were pur-
chased. This was Mr. Hogarth's recommendation after careful consideration.

Q. Do you know what the extent of the investigation was? Something was

said the other day about the Works Department, of Toronto, being consulted. Do

you know anything about that ?

A. I do not know that the Works Department of Toronto was consulted. I

understand they carried on a similar investigation and the report to the Board of

Control in that particular matter advised the purchase of 'Sterling trucks also

which joined with the recommendation of my own department, was strong evidence

for the purchase of Sterling trucks.

Q. You say that the suggestion regarding Sterling trucks came from

Hogarth?
A. Yes.

Q. And that was in December?
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A. Along in December.

Q. When he recommended Sterling trucks, did you yourself make any in-

vestigation of Sterling trucks, as a result of Mr. Hogarth's recommendation, did

you go to see about it ?

A. After Mr. Hogarth recommended Sterling trucks I went down to Grace

Motors and carefully inspected Sterling trucks to the best of my ability. I also

investigated the price and I asked very carefully as to whether they were bought
from Grace Motors the distributors for Ontario if there could be any discount ob-

tained for the Department. I was informed that the price of Sterling trucks was

standard and that it did not matter where they were bought.

Q. Then with that information in your possession, Mr. Hogarth having re-

commended the purchase of Sterling trucks at the time he made the recommenda-

tion was there any decision come to, as to the number to be bought ?

A. Yes.

Q. Who decided that?

A. Mr. Hogarth recommended that twelve trucks be bought.
Q. Then how soon after that did you see Parkin and how did you come to

see him ?

A. I would explain to the Committee: Parkin's garage was what might be

died my home garage, the only McLaughlin garage in my district. I drove a

[cLaughlin car, and that is where I got gas, and oil and minor services.

Q. How far away were you Reynolds said four miles?

A. Between three and four miles.

Q. In coming to Toronto and going back home again did you pass this

irage ?

A. Yes, it is on the main street of the town. Even if only going into Ham-
n we had to pass thisi garage. It has been my custom and is my custom now

when motoring home from Toronto or Hamilton, to go to a phone in Dundas andl

call up Mrs. Biggs to ask if meat or provisions, or anything is needed for the home.

That was my custom followed in December, 1919, and has been since.

Q. Did 3-011 make any more stops at Parkin's garage in December, than in

October or November?

A. Xo, just the regular stops.

Q. Tell me as to your knowledge, if you had any as to Parkin having an

agency for Sterling trucks, how long had he that?

A. I cannot say how long he had the agency. I knew that Parkin had sold

a number of Sterling trucks for early in the season, and during the season of 1919,
that concrete fact was drawn to my attention, because there are three or four Ster-

ling trucks that draw milk from my particular district into Hamilton and they pass
home in that district every morning.
I suppose this is true, that the agency for Sterling trucks was something

that Parkin had had for some time before the Department decided to buy Sterl-

trucks?

A. Absolutely so. I know he sold them and they had been passing my home
r months. I had a chance to watch Sterling trucks at work.

Q. That being the case, Parkin having the agency for the trucks for some

e and Hogarth having recommended the purchase of a number of Sterling

cks after that recommendation came to you you were at Parkin's garage?
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A. Yes.

Q. Was it on one of your trips home ?

A. I suppose that was the 20th of December, one of the witnesses spoke
about. I cannot say the date.

Q. What talk did you have with Parkin regarding the trucks and what was
said?

A. In speaking to Parkin I said the Department was likely to buy trucks

for road work and I asked him if he cared to tender on the trucks. He said he

would like to ten.der and I said he would have that privilege.

Q. Did you indicate to Parkin at all that the Department had decided, that

Hogarth had recommended the purchase of Sterling trucks?

A. No indication whatever as to the kind, the price or the details, whatever.

Q. What did he say albout that about making a tender?

A. He said he would be glad to tender upon them as he was in the business

and would like to get some of the business.

Q. How long after that was it that he had his tender or proposition ready?
A. I think if, was the week after, if I remember properly.

Q. Is that when you called for and got the tender?
A. Yes.

Q. Just explain how that came about?

A. The reason I called for the tender was that in the interim between the

time that Hogarth recommended we should purchase the trucks we were notified

by the company that the price was to advance 10 per cent, on the 1st of January,
and that if we wished to save the Department $10,000 or $12,000 it would be

necessary to have that order 'accepted by the Department and placed with Grace

Motors, the distributors, prior to the 1st of January. It being but two" days from
the end of the month I called for the tender and brought it to Toronto, in order to

save the Department this $10,000 or $12,000.

Q. What did you do with the tender when you got here ?

A. I gave it to Mr. Hogarth.

Q. Was there any indication by you to Mr. Hogarth that you desired that

tender to be accepted, or anything of that kind.

A. I told him to compare the prices very carefully and buy Sterling trucks

where he could buy them cheapest.

Q. How long after Hogarth got that tender did you hear from him. I am
speaking now with regard to the telephone conversation spoken of the other day
in which you called Parkin up and told him to come over?

A. This tender was given to Hogarth in the morning and in the afternoon he

took the matter up with me. He said Parkin's price was the standard price for the

Province, the same as had been offered by Grace Motors, and his recommendation

was placed on that tender. In the morning as was stated here, Parkin came to

Toronto so as to close up the matter and have the order placed with Grace Motors

before the 1st of January.

Q. You spoke of Mr. Hogarth recommending it on the afternoon before Par-

kin came over. What shape was that recommendation in, was it verbal or in

writing ?

A. It is signed on the contract, that is here.

Q. Hogarth having made a recommendation in writing on the afternoon of
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the day before and you having that recommendation in writing, did you call

Parkin ?

A. Yes.

Q. What did you tell him ?

A. To come to Toronto so we could get the deal closed with the Grace Motors

so that we could save the 10 per cent.

Q. Now let us go back a minute. With regard to Parkin and yourself, prior

to this time, how long had you known him ?

A. I cannot say. Possibly five years. It might be six or seven years.

Q. Did you know him exceptionally well ?

A. No, only through doing business with him, the same as any other dealer

or merchant in town.

Q. Did he take a part in the last election, or was he a supporter of yours?
A. I didn't see him mark his ballot. I know he did no work for me. I am

quite aware of that fact.

Q. Then Eeynolds, how long have you known him?
A. By sight six or seven years, Reynolds is a man I never knew personally

it all. I never came in contact with him personally.

Q. Was he a friend of yours at all Reynolds?
A. No.

Q. That being the case you called Parkin and told him to come over, and he

and Reynolds came over the next morning. What time was it that you saw them
here at the Parliament Buildings?

A. It was before office hours, shortly before office hours.

THE CHAIRMAN : Might I suggest, Mr. Brackin, that you get Mr. Biggs to

tell what took place at the first interview he had with these two people
'

MR. BRACKIN: Yes. Let us go back to the 20th of December, when you asked
him if he would like to) put in a tender and he said he would- Was Reynolds there

at that time ?

A. He might have been in the building. I had no conversation with him
on the matter of tenders.

Q. Was there on that occasion, on the 20th of December, the date on which

he asked you if you would like to put in a tender, any conversation about trucks

'tween you and Parkin that took place in the presence of Mr. Reynolds?
A. Not that I remember.

Q. Was that about all that took place. Did they start to figure at all, to

take up figures while you were there ?

A. No, absolutely no figures. We never discussed it at any time.

Q. Did you talk to Reynolds about it?

A. No.

Q. Not about putting in a tender or anything of that kind?

A. I never discussed the tender with Reynolds, at all.

Q. Do you know if Reynolds took part in any conversation between you and

Parkin regarding the matter of these tenders on the 20th?

A. No.

Q. You phoned Parkin, after Hogarth ma/de his recommendation, to come

over, and they were here before office hours and met you in the hall and went with

you to your office



230 APPENDIX No. 2. 1921

THE CHAIRMAN: There was a matter spoken of by Eeynolds. He said there

was a question of commission mentioned and that Parkin said he couldn't meet the

National commission and that you said

MB. BRACKIN: What he said was this: Parkin suggested that he would give

the Government 10 per cent, discount and Eeynolds said in your presence, "Why
should we give the Government a discount of 10 per cent, and charge someone else

100 per cent." that it would be better, more sensible to charge the department 10'5

per cent, or the full 100 per cent., and that you said, "Parkin, listen to Eeynolds,
and he will make you some money." Did anything of that kind take place ?

A. No, absolutely no. The matter of price or commission was never discussed

in any sihape or form with either gentleman and I knew nothing of the price that

Parkin would submit at any time until I had it placed before me by the chief

engineer.

Q. On that occasion or any other occasion did Parkin or any other person
offer to make a discount of 10 per cent, on these trucks?

A. No.

Q- Then let us get back. We are back to the Parliament Buildings
again and you and Parkin and Beynolds come down to your office.

A. I was at breakfast.

Q- You met them when you came up from breakfast ?

A. Yes.

Q. And went down to the office ?

A. Yes.

Q. What was the situation in your office when you went into it?

A. The charwoman was not through with her work in my main office. She
was not in the room but her cleaning things were there. I knew she was not through
with the work and we stepped through into my own private room.

Q. How long were you there before Mr. Hogarth and Mr. McLean came in ?

A. That is a question a matter of a few minutes.

Q. Can you tell me what the conversation was, in the private room, when you
and Eeynolds and Parkin were there about this particular matter?

A. I don't think the matter was in the conversation at all.

Q. Prior to the coming of Mr. Hogarth and Mr. McLean ?

A. No.

Q. Who was making the purchase. Why didn't you, having got them in there

go ahead and make a deal with them ? Why didn't you do that ?

A. Because it is Mr. Hogarth's business. He is the purchasing agent of the

Department. The same manner and routine was followed in the purchase of these

trucks as in the purchase of anything for the Department. It is entirely bought
on his recommendation and the recommendation of the Deputy Minister, and after

these have both been- received and only when they are received is anything signed

by the head of the Department, myself.

Q. Then you say they were in the private room a few minutes before Mr.

Hogarth and Mr. McLean came. When Mr. Hogarth and Mr. McLean came, into

what room did they go?

A. I do not think Mr. McLean came in, Mr. Hogarth came.

Q, Eeynolds said he thought two came in. He did not see them, but thought

he heard two. At any rate Mr. Hogarth came in?
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A. Yes.

Q. What room did he come into ?

A. The main office.

Q. When he came who went out ?

A. Parkin and myself.

Q. Did you go out together? Reynolds said the other day that he and Par-

kin were left sitting in the private room. Then you came back after having gone
to the outside office and -beckoned to Parkin and he came out?

A. 1 went out first. Hogarth had the tenders and gave them to me with his

recommended by these officials then Parkin was asked to come in and the tender was

tures attached. Until this had been done these trucks couldn't have been purchased
from Parkin or any one else. After he had given me this showing that this was
recommended by these officials then Parkin was asked to come in and the tender was

accepted..

Q. i] ()W long did it take to complete the matter after Parkin came out into the

main room

1

A. Only a matter of a few minutes. The recommendations were there, of

the two officials, with their signatures attached.

Q. Then was there any signing done after that. Did Parkin sign something?
A. No.

Q. Did you sign anything?
A. I signed this as the official signature after these recommendations had been

previously attached.

Q. Tlow long did Parkin and Reynolds stay there after the final signing had
been done by you?

A. T cannot answer that, just a few minutes, a short period.

Q. At that time was there any discussion about them going over to Milwaukee?

A. Tt was never mentioned at all other than that I firmly impressed upon Par-

kin what is also written on the tender that this order was being given at present

prices and that delivery must be completed by the 1st of March, because Mr. Hogarth
had recommended that the trucks be purchased for Spring work.

Q. Tell me right there : on what section of the highways were these trucks to

be used first. Where were they to be used?

A. Some of the trucks were used in the Hamilton Niagara district, on the

Western section of the road, some on the Hamilton, London road and some on the

Hamilton, Kitchener road.

Q. Roads, some of which are close to Dundas?

A. Well, one. On these roads we are making mention of, the trucks needed

were used there. A considerable number were used and this territory is in Parkin's

sale district.

Q. T see what you mean. The territory within which some of the trucks, at

all events, were to-be used is in the districts allocated to him by the Grace Motors

within which he has power to sell Sterling trucks?

A. Yes.

Q. You impressed it upon them that these trucks were to be delivered by the

1st of March after they went away what was the next you heard of it?

A. I do not think I heard any more until some matters I read in the news-

paper about it. As far as the Department was concerned I heard nothing more
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about the truck deal until deliveries were being made and when deliveries started

Mr. Hogarth asked me to go and look at some of the trucks.

Q. Can you tell what time the deliveries started, in respect to the 1st of

March ?

A. I think the deliveries started in February. Mr. Hogarth can give you the

exact dates.

Q. At any rate we have this, that Reynolds left Parkin's employ on the 6th

of March. Prior to that time did you know of any trouble between Parkin and

Reynolds ?

A. I never heard of any trouble prior to the 6th of March.

Q. When did you first hear of trouble between Parkin and Reynolds and from

whom did you hear it? The prospect of litigation for a commission and that sort

of thing?
A. I do not think there was any report of trouble and a prospect of litigation

until later in the season.

Q. How did that come to your ears. Did you hear it from Reynolds or

Parkin ?

A. I just heard it on the street. It was common gossip that they were in

trouble.

Q. Let me ask you this: you heard generally that there was trouble. So far

as either Reynolds or Parkin was concerned which talked to you personally about

the trouble first?

A. I cannot say which one of the men. You understand I have to take this

from memory. I have no notes of it, I cannot say.

Q. In any event, Reynolds spoke of a time when he went to your house and

spoke to you about it. Do you remember, in his evidence he said he told you, "I

will tell my story artd Parkin can tell his ." Did he come up to your house ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was that pursuant to a telephone conversation or to a verbal conversation

with Reynolds?
A. Reynolds spoke to me on the street on the afternoon or evening of the day

he came up and asked me, "I want to have a talk to you about the trouble I am
in with Parkin. Have you any objection if I come up to your house this evening."
I said, "No." Then he came up that evening.

Q. Then what took place when he came?
A. He said he would like to get the trouble settled as somebody was sure to

be a loser, and that neither one of them had money to lose. He thought it would

be better to try and get a settlement and asked me, if he would give the details of

what he thought his claim was, if I would try and mediate between them, knowing
both parties as I did. both being parties in my own home town and me knowing

personally a great many of the people Reynolds had sold cars to during the season.

I told him I would speak to Parkin and see if he would consider a settement. Rey-
nolds had said he should have so much commission on one, two, three, four or five

cars, or whatever was the number of cars sold, and he thought he should have a

commision on the sale of the Government trucks. I made no suggestion or intima-

tion of what he should have at any time.

Q. Having given you figures, did he mention a specific sum, he was willing

to take in settlement?
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A. I think, if any memory bears me out, he said he would settle with Parkin

if Parkin would pay him $3,000 for commission for sales he had made for Parkin

up to that time. I think he quit on the 1st of March.

Q. There was a mention of $3,000 that he was willing to take ?

A. Yes, if my memory bears me right.

Q. He told us the other day that in that conversation he told you nothing
about the suggestion of Parkin that you should have a car, or his suggestion that

it would be better to give you $3,000 cash and all that sort of thing, that he never

told you about that, but that he did say to you on that occasion words to this effect

"I am perfectly willing, Frank, that you should get what is coming to you, what

is fair to you." Wais there anything like that. Was that said or anything like

that or anything suggesting anything of that kind by him to you on that occasion ?

A. No, absolutely not. Never at any time or place. It was never mentioned

by Reynolds to me.

Q. Was anything of that kind mentioned to you before or after the contract

was let, was anything of that kind ever suggested directly or indirectly by Parkin

or Reynolds?
A. By neither Parkin nor Reynolds at any time.

Q. That being the situation, he asked you to act as mediator and in effect

beat the lawyers out of their lawful costs. We have come to a point where Mr.

Biggs has said that neither Parkin nor Reynolds, either directly or indirectly ever

suggested anything to him, that Reynolds asked him to act as mediator. Now we
come to the time when he went into Shaver's office, when Reynolds was
there. Do you remember that occasion?

A. Yes.

Q. Up to the time that you went into Shaver's office had you seen Parkin
for the purpose of discussing this question of mediation?

A. No.

Q. You went into Shaver's office. Was Reynolds there?

A. Yes. he came into Shaver's private office shortly after.

Q. Tell us what conversation took place there with regard to this particular
matter ?

MR. McCRAE: Just a moment. Before you went to Shaver's office didn't

you see Parkin to discuss Reynolds proposition for a settlement?

A. No.

MR. BRACKIN : You went in, what took place then, briefly ?

A. I cannot give you the conversation. The matter of a settlement was men-
tioned and I said I was going to speak to Parkin and ask him if 'he cared to try
to meet Reynolds and get a settlement.

Q. You told Shaver and Reynolds that was Reynolds in the room when you
told that to Shaver?

A. No.

Q. Did you see Parkin?

A. Yes.

Q. Where did you see him ? ,

A. I went right on down the street and stopped at the garage and told him

Reynolds would like to settle the case without going to court and I said he was

willing to settle for $3,000. if Parkin would pay him what he considered was his
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commission, $3,000. Parkin said, "He has entered a suit and we will go on with it."

Q. So that your mediation fell down at that?

A. Yes.

Q. Had you anything further to do with it after that time?

A. No.

Q. Let me ask but one question more, Mr. Biggs and I think I am through.

You have told us that no one suggested to you either directly or indirectly coming
to you. Have you received from Parkin or Reynolds, directly or indirectly or from

any person whatever, Parkin or Reynolds or anyone else, any commission or any

money or anything else for yourself in connection with this transaction ?

A. I haven't received anything nor have I received a promise of any-

thing nor has the matter been discussed with me by either party.

MR. WARREN : There is one point I would like to clear up. We were given
to understand that Parkin was going to allow a ten per cent, discount on these

trucks to the Department and Reynolds said, why not charge 105 per cent. What
I want made clear is this : is it true that you were not offered any discount on these

trucks by any person.
A. I was offered no discount by Parkin and he is the only party that had

anything to do with the transaction. I knew nothing of his price until it was sub-

mitted to the Department and Mr. Hogarth had viewed it and recommended the

purchase.

Q. Can you tell me, if the trucks had been bought from the Grace Motors
would the commission have gone to the local agent as is usual?

A. I think that point has been covered before. I say that I went to Grace

Motors and investigated the trucks and the price and that if they had been bought
direct from 'Grace Motors the standard price for this district, Ontario, would have

boen charged.

Q. Was that the same price at which you bought from Parkin?

A. Absolutely, to a cent.

THE CHAIRMAN : Did you talk of a discount with Parkin ?

A. No.

MR. McCRAE: Or with the Grace Motors?

A. I asked 'Grace Motors for the price.

Cross examination by Mr. McCrae :

Q. What constituency do you represent?
A. North Wentworth.

Q. You were elected a member on the 20th of October, 1919, for that district?

A. Yes.

Q. What was your occupation at that time Mr. Biggs?

A. Farmer.

Q. And subsequently you were sworn in as a Minister of the Crown, what

date was that?

A. The 14th of November, I think.

Q. Do you remember when the bye-election returning you, was held ?

A. No, I cannot give the date. It was in December was it not?

Q. Was there any road work going on in the Province of Ontario, at that

time, as far as actual work was concerned?

A. Yes.
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Q. Where ? .

A. On the 422 miles, as designated by the late Government.

Q. What work was being actually performed, at the end of November, when

you became Minister?

A. That is a pretty broad question, the customary road work on these roads.

Q. What work was being done up in North Wentworth?

A. There was no work at that time in North Wentworth, but there was work

being done in Wentworth on two different roads.

Q. What class of work was being done at that time?

A. Surfacing with stone, quarry work and earthwork.

Q. So that surfacing with stone and earthwork was actually in progress
when you became Minister of Public Works ?

A. Yes.

Q. When did it stop, that Fall ?

A. I cannot give the date.

Q. When did you come to the realization that trucks would be required and
hould be purchased before the next Spring's work opened ?

A. When it was brought to my attention by Mr. Hogarth.
Q. On what date would that be ?

A. Early in December.

Q. Was that communication verbal or in writing?
A. Verbal.

Q- What was the communication that Mr. Hogarth made with reference
to Departmental matters at that time ?

A. He thought that to carry on the work efficiently and at the lowest cost
to the Province, it would be advisable to have trucks for the Spring.

Q. How many trucks?

A. He recommended at that time, twelve.

Q. And did he recommend the character of them, the make of them?
A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Hogarth is the chief engineer?
A. And purchasing agent also.

Q, He occupying that position told you that it was necessary to get trucks
that twelve trucks were necessary and that in his opinion Sterling trucks were the
ones that should be acquired ?

A. Yes.

.

Q
\T

And that limPortant communication, you say, was not a matter of record
the Department, that nothing was committed to writing, so far as Mr. Hogarth's

recommendation was concerned?
A. No.

Q. Is that the practice in your Department, that recommendations as im-
portant as that doesn't require to be in writing?

I don't think you are exactly getting the question
[ know exactly the question I am asking you. . Is it the practice in your

department that in a matter as important as the one you have described where

your chief engineer advises you that trucks are necessary, that twelve of them are

necessary and that they should be of a certain make, and as you understood would

run into a lot of money is it the practice that these recommendations are not made
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in writing?
A. Not until it is recommended as a recommendation under his signature.

Q. In other words, not until the transaction is consummated?

A. Not until the transaction is recommended to me.

Q. Until the time they certify to it and recommend it over their signature

as a purchase ?

A. It also has to have the signature of the Deputy Minister. Because the

chief engineer recommends it, that is not to say that all purchases as recommended

are made.

Q. As I understand it Mr. Biggs in this particular case you say the formal

recommendation with reference to these trucks so far as writing is concerned, comes

into existence when there is a certificate or recommendation in writing as to the

purchase and not until it is put in that form, when it has been decided a purchase
is to be consummated?

A. Not necessarily so.

Q. It was in this case?

A. It was in this case, yes.

Q. Do you remember the morning that Eeynolds and Parkin came down?
A. Yes.

Q. It was earlier than the usual hours for business? I think you said they
were at your office before the charwoman had cleaned up the room in the morning ?

A. They were there before 9 o'clock.

Q. Up to that time, as I understand it, you didn't know what the tender of

Tarkin's was?

A. No.

Q. You didn't know from Parkin when you called for his tender at his garage
what the tender was?

A. I did not see the tender.

Q' As I understand it I may have misunderstood you you got some word
that the trucks would be advanced after the 1st of January?

A. Yes.

Q. And having had a previous conversation with Parkin as to the supplying
of trucks of the Sterling make, you called at Parkin's garage and got a tender from
him on these 'Sterling trucks. Did you do that ?

A. Parkin asked me if I would call and bring his tender to Toronto, which
was in a sealed envelope, and I delivered it to Hogarth.

Q. You didn't say anything to Parkin as to the price ?

A. Absolutely not.

Q. So that in this particular case you didn't know what Parkin's tender

was, down to the time that Parkin and Eeynolds were in your room on the morn-

ing they called there?

A. No.

Q. And Parkin and Reynolds came through your main office through some

adjoining room and into another room, your bedroom?

A. My sitting room.

Q. While these men were there did you send for Hogarth?

A. Hogarth was to come to my office that morning on coming to the buildings.

vQ. Then there was an arrangement with Hogarth made by you that on this
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oriiing in question Hogarth was to come to your office at what time?

A. On coming to the buildings.

Q. What time does Mr. Hogarth usually get to the buildings?
A. At 9 o'clock.

Q. Why was this arrangement made with Hogarth to come to your office

is morning?
A. So that this matter might be got into shape that the Department might

reap the benefit of the prices that were to have a ten per cent, increase on January
1st.

Q. So that you were expecting Parkin and Reynolds and you knew from

the night before that they would be there next morning?
A. Yes.

Q. And when you arrived at your room, after you had had breakfast you
weren't surprised to find these two men there because that had been pre-arranged?

A. No. I was not surprised.

Q. In other words that was part of the pre-arrangement, that they were

fbe

there the first thing in the morning?
A. That they were to be there before noon of the next day.

Q. You weren't surprised when you came up and found them there?

A. Xo, not at all surprised.

Q. And because the charwoman was not finished with her work you took

them into your sitting-room, in your private apartment?
A. Yes.

Q. How long was it before Mr. Hogarth arrived?

A. A few minutes.

Q. Did you have any talk with them about the trucks before Mr. Hogarth
came?

A. No.

Q. None whatever?

A. No, the trucks in fact were never mentioned.

Q. Did you tell these men, "I have this all arranged to close the deal with

ou and T expect Mr. Hogarth here in a few minutes.

A. T didn't tell them I had arranged to close the deal with them. I told

em T expected Mr. Hogarth in a few minutes.

Q. About what?

A. Whether we should purchase or not purchase these trucks.

Q. Then there was some mention of these trucks before Hogarth came?

THE CHAIRMAN : That is not what he said.

MR. MCRAE : There was a reference to the fact that they were down there

for the purpose of making some deal about these trucks ?

A. Nothing further than that Mr. Hogarth would be there in a few minutes.

Q. Do you mean to tell this Committee that these men who had come down

all the way from Dundas, were there at that time in the morning when you had

pre-arranged for Mr. Hogarth to be on hand that when Mr. Hogarth did come

according to the pre-arrangement he had these contracts ready do you mean to

tell this Committee that these men in this room who came down for that business,

you knowing they came down for that business and were expecting to close the

contract, do you mean to tell this Committee that you said nothing to them about
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this deal for trucks?

A. There was no discussion of the truck deal in that matter prior to Mr.

Hogarth coming, other than that I said Mr. Hogarth would be along in a cw

minutes.

Q. I can take it then that the trucks were not mentioned that morning
before Mr. Hogarth came ?

A. No.

Q. Did the men know what they were there for?

A. You will have to ask the men. I am not a mind reader.

Q. Nothing was said to indicate why they came ?

A. Nothing.
MR. DRURY : Your attitude was that you couldn't take it up until Mr. Hogarth

came. Therefore you kept away from it.

A. Mr Hogarth recommended jt and also I told Mr. Hogarth that if he
was purchasing Sterling trucks he was to purchase at the list price.

MR. MCRAE: I wall come to that. Come back a little. Here are
these two men all this distance from Dundas, motoring up to be sure to be on time.
The Minister was not surprised

1 to find- them there. He took them into his
room. While they are in there nothing is said by you about the trucks or the deal
or business they came upon ?

A. No.

Q- And then sometime afterwards someone came into your room and that
someone was Mr. Hogarth?

A. He came into my office.

Q. Was the charwoman there yet?
A. She was through her work then and gone.
Q. So that when Mr. Hogarth came into this room, this main office-room

would be quite presentable from a business standpoint as far as Reynolds and
Parkin were concerned. There was no longer any reason for keepin- them in the
private room on account of the charwoman when Mr. Hogarth came in ?

A. No.

Q. When Mr. Hogarth came you went out alone from this private room
to see Hogarth?

A. Yes.

Q.~And some conversation took place between you ?

A. Yes.

Q. And after that conversation you went and called to Parkin to come out
into the business office?

A. Yes.

Q. And when Parkin came in there, there was ready and prepared an ac-

cepted recommendation, a,s far as Mr. Hogarth was concerned, and as far as Mr.
McLean was concerned, to purchase practically $117,000 worth of trucks?

A. Yes.

Q. And then what did you "say to Parkin when he came out and the docu-

ment was all ready. What did you tell him?

A. I told him that the purchasing agent having looked into the price and

found that the price was the set or standard price at that time that the contract

had been recommended by Mr. Hogarth to be awarded to him.
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Q._What did Parkin say ?

A.- I don't remember.

Q. 'Speechless, I suppose?
A. Judge for yourself.

Q. Were any papers with reference to this transaction signed at that time?

A. Not in front of Parkin.

Q. When did you sign?
A. I signed when I was in the room with Hogarth alone.

Q. So that Mr. McLean's name was on the paper prior to coming there?

A.-Yes. !.

'

, , ,|
..

,., :
,

Q. Mr. Hogarth's name was on the paper?
A. Yes.

Q. And your name as Minister is on the paper before Mr. Parkin is called

out from your private room to know what decision had been arrived at?

A. Yes.

Q. Bid you tell Parkin anything the night foefore in the telephone conver-
sation to lead him to believe that the contract was coming to him?

A. No.

Q. You knew at that time that the contract was going to him?
A. I did not know at that time that it was going to him.

Q. Then when did you know this contract was going to him ?

A. After Mr. Hogarth came to my office in the morning.
Q. You did tell Mr. Hogarth before to compare prices very carefully and buy

where you could get the trucks the cheapest ?

A. Where he could get Sterling trucks the cheapest, yes.

Q. It was to be confined to Sterling trucks ?

A. That was his recommendation to me.

Q. You approved of that?

A. I approved of his recommendation.

Q. You were relying upon Mr. Hogarth's recommendation as to the kind of

trucks to be used?

A. I relied upon the recommendations of the purchasing agent and the chief

mechanic, of the Department, Mr. Johnson.

Q. Did Mr. Hogarth make any report to you or did you make any inquiry from

Mr. Hogarth, on this particular morning before you .put your signature to the con-

tract, as to the places where he had made inquiries as to the cheapness of these

trucks, and as to the- best prices?

A. I asked him if this was equal to the best price that he could get on Ster-

ling trucks. He said it was the standard price, that they were all sold at a standard

price, and I had to draw the conclusion that that would be the price that wcmld

be submitted by any Sterling dealer.

Q. You were putting your reliance and judgment in closing it on the recom-

mendation of Mr. Hogarth?
A. Certainly.

Q _prior to the time Hogarth came in, will you tell this Committee you didn't

know this contract was going to Parkin ?

A. No.

Q._Were there any other tenders besides Parkin's made for these trucks ?
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A. Mr. Hogarth will answer that question.

Q. Do you know whether there were any other tenders ?

A. I don't,

he said, "yes/'

Q. Did you ask Mr. Hogarth that morning if any other tenders were made?
A. I asked him if this was the best price he could get for Sterling trucks and

Q. Did you ask Hogarth if an^ other tenders were made except Parkin's ?

A. No.

Q. How did you transmit Parkin's tender to your Department to Mr.

Hogarth? You brought it down, as I understand it, how did you transmit it to

Mr. Hogarth?
A. In a sealed envelope by my messenger.

Q. No letter accompanying it?

A. No letter at all.

Q. You had no conversation with Mr. Hogarth at any time with reference to

the Parkin tender ?

A. No.

Q. Except the morning it was closed ?

A. No.

Q. You understand that question ?

A. Yes.

MR. CLARKE : The tender was sealed ?

A. Yes, sealed in an envelope.

THE CHAIRMAN: Had you any conversation between you, on the Monday
afternoon before you telephoned Parkin?

A. With Hogarth?
Q. Yes?

A. No.

MR. McCRAE : I will quote a comparison of prices and ask you whether you
know anything about it, "A comparison of prices paid last year by the city for

Sterling trucks, and the price paid by the Province for those purchased by Hon.
F. C. Biggs from the Parkin firm at Dundas show that the city made a much
better deal. The city purchased by tender in June and July 1920, one five-ton

gasoline motor truck chassis without body but equipped with dumping service

for $8,250 ; two five-ton gasoline tractor trucks at $8,132 each
; two, two and a half

ton gasoline tractor trucks at $5,000 each. The Province purchased fourteen

trucks at a total cost of $177,899, there being eight five-ton trucks at $9,100

each, and six three and a half ton trucks at $7,516. The prices in both instances

are for Sterling trucks." Do you know anything about the purchase made by

the city ? whether it was a lower price than the Government price ?

A. As I said previously in my evidence I think Mr. Wilson recommended to

the Board of Control that they should purchase Sterling trucks. I can't say as to

the number. If you wished to compare prices it would have to be on the stripped

truck. The total price would be governed entirely by the fixtures attached to that

stripped truck. The only way to make a fair comparison is to take the stripped

truck and find out what the dump or platform or whatever kind of body, and equip-

ment to be attached is. The comparison is absolutely no use under these conditions.
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THE CHAIRMAN : You start with the chassis as a basis ?

A. You may compare the price of chassis, that would be a fair comparison.

As for those figures I do not know what they are. You may put on one thousand,

two, or three or four according to the class of body you want.

MR. BRACKIN: Do you know what truck the city bought. Is it exactly the

same as the Government bought?
A. I cannot say. I haven't the slightest idea. I believe Mr. Hogarth can

enlighten you to some extent on that.

MR. Me CRAP:: You say you inspected the trucks at the Grace Motors?

A. Yes.

Q. Were you relying on your judgment as an inspector of trucks in selecting

the Sterling trucks or relying on the chief mechanic and the chief engineer ?

A. I was relying on the chief engineer and the chief mechanic, but in a pur-
chase so important as this I thought I would like to be more familiar with what

was recommended.

Well now Mr. Biggs, as you know in a case involving as much as this, and the

circumstances in connection with it, there is considerable comment with reference

to your dealings with Parkin and I think it is only fair that I should ask you
some questions that are being asked. You have been doing business for some time
with Parkin at his garage a number of years, I understand?

A. Yes.

Q- And from time to time considerable work is done at the garage for you
personally?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you ever had your car overhauled and had that work done without

charge to you?
A. No. Parkin said in his evidence that I had given him cheques from time

to time.

q. Have you ever received from Parkin, particularly since these trucks were

ordered any work in connection with your own car or any service rendered by him
for which he didn't charge?

A. Not one cent's worth.

Q. It has been said that the only thing you got out of the deal was your own

car, a McLaughlin overhauled and fixed up. You say there is nothing in that?

A. Absolutely not,

Q. Who did you go first to, to see about these Sterling trucks, the Grace

Motors or Parkin ?

A. I went to the Grace Motors to inspect the trucks.

Q. Before you had any conversation with Parkin?

A. Certainly, absolutely so.

Q. Then why didn't you deal there with them did you have to go and deal

with Parkin ?

A. N0> for the simple reason that the price was standard and there was no

advantage in buying from Grace Motors.

Q. I am asking you why you went to Parkin. Why) didn't yon deal with

Grace Motors if that was so, without going to Parkin?

A. Because Parkin is a young man starting in business and the commission,

which is a standard commission, might just as well go to Parkin as to Grace Motors.
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Q g^ that you wanted to see Parkin make something out of the deal, in

that sense.

A. That is the customary thing in these deals.

Q. You wanted that done in this deal you wanted Parkin to get something?

A. I wanted Parkin to receive the standard commission, which we safe-

guarded.

Q. That was the reason you initiated the talk with Mr. Parkin ?

A. I didn't initiate anything. I only intimated to him that the Department

had the intention of buyng some trucks.

Q. Now we know this, that you did intimate to him that the Department had

the intention of buying some trucks and you also wanted to see him get the

commission ?

A. If his price was the standard price and was fair in every respect.

Q. That was your reason for dealing with Parkin ?

A. I have already explained that Parkin was a young man starting in business

and that as long as he got nothing more than the standard price, which anybody else

could get there was no reason in this wide world why Parkin should not have the

business.

Q. You did have a pretty good idea then on the morning that this young
man came down that Mr. Parkin was going to get this contract, because all along

you had that in your mind, that Parkin should! get the contract, isn't that right ?

A. I had in my mind that Parkin should get it only if his prices were standard,

after investigation by Mr. Hogarth and provided that there was absolutely not one

cent more coming to him than would go to any other dealer. On this consideration

I would like to see Parkin get that contract and only on those considerations did he

get the contract.

Q. Then when you took it up with Parkin and Parkin told you he could

give you the same price as 'Grace Motors, the thing was settled in your mind?
A. Mr. Parkin and I never discussed prices.

Q. Just one other question. Are you able to contradict Parkin or Reynold?
who say, as I understand it that they were in the private office possible twenty en-

thirty minutes before Mr. Hogarth came?
A. I said a few minutes.

Q. I think Parkin s'aid about twenty or thirty minutes, didn't he? You are

not able to say how long?
A. I would say they were there for a period of a few minutes. I cannot say

how many minutes.

Q. Would it be more than five would it be twenty minutes?

A. It might be twenty minutes. I cannot say.

ME. HAY : I want to clear up one thing. Mr. McCrae asked you if you know

the price of the tender being sent by Parkin, and you said you hadn't seen the

tender. May I ask you did you know the price of the tender that was being sent

in by Parkin ?

A. No, I never knew it, I never discussed it with Parkin nor did T see the

tender.

ME. HENEY: When did you know the figures?

A. After Mr. Hogarth brought the tender to my office.

Q. You knew from the Grace Motors the standard price?

A. Yes, I had instructed Mr. Hogarth to see that nothing more than the
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standard price was paid, i I gave him instructions to see that the lowest price possi-

ble was paid for the trucks. ,

ME. DRURY: Did you know from Grace Motors that you paid the standard

price for the equipment?
A. Mr. Hogarth safeguarded all those points. That was my instruction to

him.

MR. MCCRAE: Did you tell Hogarth that if the tender was in line with the

Grace Motors' price, he was to get the job?
A. I told Mr. Hogarth that he was to buy the trucks at the lowest price he

could get for Sterling trucks.

Q. Did you tell him that if Parkin's price was the same as the Grace Motors'

price that he was to get the contract ?

A. If his price was the standard price for Sterling trucks, the lowest price

Sterling trucks could be purchased for

Q. He was to get it ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was that on the morning he brought the tender to you?
A. Xo, before that. After I questioned Hogarth as to whether Parkin's price

was the standard price, the best price these trucks could be obtained for, he said it

was and put in a recommendation over his signature.
THE CHAIRMAN : Was it then you told him Parkin was to have the job?
A. Yes.

Q. And not before?

A. Yes.

MR. THOMPSON: Was that before 9 o'clock?

A. That was after 9 o'clock, before Mr. Hogarth came to work.

THE CHAIRMAN : When you went to Grace Motors they made it clear and

. absolute that the standard price was the lowest these trucks could be bought at,

that no agent could sell for less?

A. They said there was a standard price for Sterling trucks and the only
difference in that price is based on the hauling of the truck. As these trucks were

to be delivered in Toronto and not in Dundas the price for the trucks in this

district was the standard price. I believe we have witnesses to prove that the

price was the standard price.

MR. McCRAE : Who fixed the price of $59 each to take these trucks to Dundas?

A. There was no such price. The trucks were to be delivered at 15 Queen's

Park Avenue, to Mr. Johnston, the chief mechanic. The whole thing is poppycock.

Q. Reynolds has stated that these cars were taken by Parkin to the works?

A. These cars were delivered to 15 Queen's Park, received and inspected by
Mr. Johnston, as to them being in proper shape to be accepted by the Department.

Q. And were accepted ?

A. Yes.

Q. Had he a contract to take the cars from there to the work?

A. No.

Q. Who took them up ?

A. The Department's men.

Q. Then this statement made here that $59 was charged for taking the tracks

up there is a pure myth?

HI
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A. Absolutely bunkum, I won't say Parkin didn't drive a truck from Toronto

to Dundas or Hamilton, going to the work there, but Parkin never received any com-

mission or pay for that service.

Q. Did he ever present a bill for it?

A. He never did.

ME. DEWART: Is this the only firm in Dundas with which you have had
business o far as trucks are concerned?

A. No.

Q. Is there a firm called Jerome Bros?
A. Yes.

Q. Did you purchase a number of cars from them without tenders?
A. I did not

Q. Were there any tenders other than those of Jerome Bros, for the cars that
were bought on tenders ?

A. Yes, a series of tenders. I have a statement ready to present to the House
which will clear up that whole question.

Witness excused.

George Hogarth called and sworn.

Examined by Mr. Brackin :

Q. What is your position in the Highways Department ?

A. Chief engineer.

Q. When were you appointed ?

A. February 1', 1916.

Q. Had you been in the employ of the Department prior to that time?
In the employ of the Department of Public Works.

Q. For how long?
A- For a period of seven years.

A'~wT
fil>St entl>y int the Government service was about in what year?A. Well, I was employed in the Government service in 1908, and was put on

the permanent list in May, 1909.

Q. Who was the Minister when you came in ?

A. Dr. Reaume.

Q. Then in 1916, you were appointed to the position you now occupy?
A. Yes.

Q. Your official title?

A. Engineer of Highways.
Q. You still occupy that position?
A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Biggs spoke of you as purchasing agent. Is that something in addi-

tion to being engineer or is that something you do as a result of being engineer?
A. It is part of my duties as engineer.

Q. Then you know of course about this truck purchase ?

A. Yes.

A. I wish you would be good enough to tell the Committee the way this pur-

chase of trucks had been considered by you before Mr. Biggs came in?

A. The purchase of trucks 'by the Department of Public Highways had been

considered. We had been 'buying trucks prior to this Government taking office.

Q. When did the purchase of additional trucks which culminated in the buy-
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ing of these twelve trucks first come up after Mr. Biggs came into office?

A. After Mr. Biggs assumed office he made an inspection of the work we were

dioing on the provincial system, Mr. Biggs, Mr. McLean and myself went over the

system as it then was. In the course of going over thait system I had occasion to

point out to Mr. Biggs that on the Western section, particularly in the vicinity of

London and Brantford, and the vicinity of Hamilton and generally in the vicinity

of the cities within the Provincial Highway system we had great difficulty in getting'

teams, we were held up for all kinds of prices, and that if we were to haul any
materials or do any work, we had to have trucks in order to carry on our work.

Q. How long prior to December, 1919, was that decision arrived at by your

that you pointed out to Mr. Biggs, that trucks should be purchased ?

A. It was particularly brought to Mr. Biggs attention during that trip be-

cause he had only became Minister a short time before that and we hadn't had much;

opportunity of discussing it until we were out on that inspection trip.

Q. When did it cotme to the point where in effect Mr. Biggs said, "All right

Hogarth, you want to buy trucks, we will buy trucks."

A. That was discussed by myself with the Deputy Minister, and if I remem-
ber right, with Mr. Biggs on or about Christmas, 1919. We understood it would'

be advisable for the Department to purchase trucks.

Q- Then prior to that time around Christmas, 1919, did you yourself make any
investigation to satisfy yourself as to what would be the best kind of truck to buy?'

A. I did.

Q. Tell us what steps you took to get that information ?

A. It is a long story. I don't think our Department was buying trucks prior

to the time the Ford company actually made the one ton trucks. We had no trucks

prior to thait time and had been fitting up touring cars to do truck business. 1

said to Johnson, our mechanic, we will have to get something fixed up about this.

We will have to get some light trucks. We discussed what we would do. We
found that the Ford company had changed the design and that in the result it

had one ton trucks. Shortly after that we got several of the Ford one ton trucks.

After that we had occasion to purchase rather heavier trucks and we looked into

the question of a one ton and heavier capacity. We got quotations at that time.

We had several quotations in a;t that time. We purchased a Reo one ton truck

at that time, it was worth $2,200 with the foody on. We had White quotations of

$3,675. This was in 1919. The matter went on and we considered the purchase
of heavier trucks. We were going into the haulage of materials, teams were getting
scarce and oats had gone out of sight. We looked into the 2 Ms, 3%, and 5-ton trucks.

That is all a matter of record on our files. We received from Grace Motors, Ltd.,
a letter addressed to Mr. McLean calling attention to Sterling heavy duty trucks.

The letter is signed "Grace Motors Ltd., F. 0. Madden, retail sales manager."
He called on Mr. McLean a few days after that and Mr. McLean gave me definite

instructions to pay attention to Sterling trucks and see whether they were
suited to our needs. It is a. matter of record that prior to that there

were quotations .
on Whites, Packardis, Studeba.kers, and we had been

looking at R. A. F. trucks and Studebakers. We had seert trucks of the
various makes in operation and knew what they could do. When this came along
Mr. McLean said, you get out and find out about these Sterling trucks. I had'

already considerable knowledge. It was <a matter of common knowledge that a fleet
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of them were operating on the Toronto Hamilton highway, that they did an ex-

tensive truck business between Toronto and Hamilton. I did not need to go to

the head office to find out the operating ability of these trucks. We found out by
our own (information and from our own men, from the garage over here, exactly

what experience these people had had operating Sterling trucks under such condi-

tions as largely applied to our trucks, that they operated on long runs and with

capacity loa-ds, and from actually seeing these trucks on the Toronto Hamilton

highway I knew what they were doing.
MR. BRACKIN : And you had the experience of the City of Toronto with them ?

A. Yes, we had the benefit of their experience. We found what the result

of the city's tests had been and that it was found that the Sterling truck was a

very satisfactory machine for their work and they were prepared to recommend it.

THE CHAIRMAN: And did recommend it ?

A- It was recommended. This letter was from Grace Motors, signed by Mr.

Madden, then retail sales manager. I had known Mr. Madden for some time. On
February 3, 1919, there was a further letter from Mr. Madden and in that letter

he asks that we make a definite investigation in detail as to the merits of Sterling
trucks. In response to that I received definite instructions to carry on. Further
Mr. Madden, in his letter states that he had asked their office to forward to us

certain material and that material is here. It consisted of the ordinary catalogue
and the specifications and list prices of the trucks in the States. In addition to that

there is a letter here from the president of the Sterling Motors, of February 4,

1919, addressed to the Deputy Minister and calling out attention to the fact that the

Sterling truck had been built by one firm for ten years, in other words it was not
a truck about which you would wake up to-morrow and find the company out of

business and you with a heavy investment in an equipment for which you couldn't

get parts. The president in his letter points out these facts. Now in addition to

having the prices of the trucks here there is a publication called the "Motor Age,"
printed in Chicago, which gives monthly the list prices of all trucks made in the
United States. Our Department subscribes to this "Motor Age", and it was on our
files upstairs and used by us whenever we were in the market or making any investiga-
tion. This "Motor Age" list has the specifications of every truck from the one-ton
Ford to the heaviest truck made and in addition gives the U.S. list price. We
went ahead and investigated these trucks on instructions from the Deputy Minister
so that we could definitely advise the Department as to what should be done when
the day came to purchase any particular truck.

Q- Did the day come when you were in a position to make a recommendation
to the Minister as to what trucks should be purchased?

A. Yes.

Q. When did that day come?

A. December, I think the 29th. Do you mean when we were discussing it.

In December earlier, when we were speaking about the trucks it came up and was

mentioned, "Now get the best trucks you think will do for our work." We looked

around, sized everything up, got all the information together, and I personally felt

that the Sterling truck was going to be the most satisfactory because at that time

they were making a 5-ton truck that was really a road-building truck. It was a

heavy general truck.

Q. Did vou communicate that to the Minister?
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A. It may have been discussed. This matter was up between Mr. McLean

and the Minister and myself at different times. On that trip in December, the

different makes were spoken of and I mentioned what facts we had at our disposal.

Q. Was there any conversation particularly regarding the Sterling truck ?

A. Yes, the Sterling was spoken of as being one we were favorable to.

Q. Then Mr. Biggs speaks of a time along in December when they learned

that the price of Sterling trucks was to go up 10 per cent, on the first of January.

Do you know about that?

A. Yes"

Q. When was that?

A. The material market was bad and along in 1919 we had great difficulty in

getting material and there was a jump in the price from day to day.

Q. How did you learn that the price of Sterling trucks was going to go up
10 per cent. how did that come to your attention?

A. It came to our attention through inquiries I made along about that time.

I believe we heard from Grace Motors that the price would go up about 10 per cent.

Q. What did you do as a result of that?

A. We discussed it this way : here, if we are going to buy trucks we had better

not wait or we will have to pay 10 per cent, more after the 1st of the year. It was

brought about in this way. We heard the price was going up. We were in the market
at the same time for steel and the steel men told us that if we were going to wait

nger we would get stung, that the basis metal prices would be up, so that we
ew the information about the trucks was correct.

Q. The tender that we have heard about was .sent by Mr. Biggs to you? By
messenger is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Up to that time had Mr. Biggs either directly or indirectly told you or

ed you that you should buy Sterling trucks ?

A. No.

Q. Xow just to go on. You said you knew the price was going up. Then

hat happened in regard to the purchase of these trucks?

A. We had discussed the number and I recommended six 3%-ton and six 5

n trucks because some of our roads were not strong enough to carry the 5-ton

cks.

Q. You recommended the purchase of a certain number of trucks of a cer-

in type ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you recommend the kind that should be bought?
A. We considered that the Sterling should be bought.

Q. You considered that?

A. Yes. This was a matter of negotiation between the Deputy Minister and

myself.

Q.- Did he agree with you that Sterling trucks should be bought ?

A. On our investigation he agreed with us, yes.

Q. Then what was done in communicating that conclusion of yours and the

eputy Minister's to the Minister as to what trucks should he bought?
A. I think perhaps Mr. Biggs may have been acquainted with it. As I say,

in December, on that inspection trip it was mentioned "What kind of trucks do you
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think would suit", and the Sterling was mentioned.

Q. Well, what was the next you had to do with it. Before the tender came in

from Parkin did you know it was coming in ?

A. Just a minute I did hear about the 20th of December that we were

considering trucks and that in all probability a recommendation would be favor-

ably considered for the purchase of a number of trucks.

Q. What I want to get at is this: there came a time when Mr. Biggs sent

over to you by a messenger this proposition of Parkin's. Prior to that time did you
know that propositions for the sale of Sterling trucks were going to be considered?

A. We knew that in all probability we would buy Sterling trucks.

Q. Did you know, when you were going to buy them, if the regular price was

going to be paid ?

A. We were favorable to buying before the 1st of January, 1920.

Q. And the reason for that was that you thought there was going to be an

increase in these trucks on that date?

A. Yes.

Q. That being the situation Mr. Biggs sent over to you this proposition of

Parkin's?

A. Yes.

Q. What did you do when you got it?

A. I took the tender to the Deputy Minister because no tenders are opened
except by the Deputy Minister and myself.

Q. Then what?
A. It was opened.
Q. Then what did you do?

A. If you will refer to the tender you will see notes in pencil on it. I made
sure of the price's I had previously been quoted, with the fact that the Grace Motors
were not giving any discount. They didn't abide by the National Truck Buyers'
discount scale and were selling at the list price.

Q. How did you satisfy yourself with respect to the prices ?

A. We knew what the prices were, what the Grace Motors prices were.

Q. How did the price at which Parkin tendered compare with the standard

price ?

A. They are noted there in pencil. They are the same. There is a little dif-

ference in their cost. The question of a pentle hook .came up. We said throw in the

pentle hook anyway, in case we might need them.

Q. You satisfied yourself that the prices were standard prices, and then what

did you do ?

A. I certified to the tender and we wanted to be sure we were getting the

order in before the 1st of the year. We took it up wr

ith the Minister and we certi-

fied to the tender as being satisfactory.

Q. Well then, it would be the next morning that you went down to Mr. Biggs'

office.

A. Yes.

Q. Did you know previously, that you were to be there at that time ?

A. That was understood, that we wanted to get this business closed and get

the old list price.

Q. That was how close to the end of the year?
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A. One day.

Q. You went down the next morning, and what happened?

A.-1 went to Mr. Biggs and pointed out to him that the prices as submitted

by Parkin were the same as were to be obtained from Grace Motors, that the trucks

were satisfactory and the prices were right, that we were ready to purchase them,

and Mr. McLean concurred in that recommendation.

Q. Up to that time had you seen Parkin?

A. No, I hadn't seen Parkin at all.

Q._When that was done, when you pointed that out to Mr. Biggs. What did

ho do?

A. He said, that is all right.

Q. Did he sign in your presence?
A. Yes.

Q. Was Parkin there at that time?

A. Parkin came in later.

Q. He was not there when Mr. Biggs signed
1 ?

A. No.

Q. Was there any conversation after Mr. Parkin came in ?

A. Yes, about the delivery and about certain details mentioned in the order,

he painting and the type of truck, and the fact that he was to make very certain

that we would get these trucks by the date stated or pretty close to that because

we wanted to start work sometime in April.

Q. Was that the whole effect of it as to the time of delivery and so forth ?

A. Yes.

Q. And you got them?
A. Yes.

Q. During the whole course of the transaction with regard to the purchase
of Sterling trucks, either before they were purchased or after they were purchased
was there any suggestion made either directly or indirectly by the Minister or any-
one else to influence you in favor of the purchase of Sterling trucks?

A. Not at all, it was our recommendation.

Q. I am speaking of, from the Minister or anyone else ?

A. No, we made our own investigations.

Q. Either before or after the purchase was there any suggestion to you directly
r indirectly from anybody, that there would be anything coming to you out of it?

A. Absolutely nothing. No man ever offered me five cents and I never ac-

pted five cents for anything ever done around these Parliament Buildings.
MR. THOMPSON : You say these tenders were opened by you and Mr. McLean ?

A. Yes.

Q. In your office?

A. In Mr. McLean's office ?

Q. Just he and you?
A. Yes.

Q. Do you think that is a good idea?

A. That is the custom we follow.

Q. You get in maybe 100 tenders or whatever you happen to have and no

one knows anything about it but you and Mr. McLean ?

A. Anyone is welcome.
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Q .Not when youi are opening them. No one knows of it.

A. It is known that the tenders are to be received on a certain day. It is

advertised.

Q. Is it advertised when they are going to be opened ?

A. Usually within a few hours.

Q. But there was no one else there when you opened this particular tender?

A. No.

Q. Have you discussed this matter with Mr. Brackin prior to coming here

this morning?
A. Absolutely not.

Q. You have never seen Mr. Brackin in connection with this thing?
A. I have never seen Mr. Brackin in connection with this thing.
MR. HOMUTH : This is the way you have always considered tenders ?

A. That is the customary way.
MR. BRACKIN : Is the way you dealt with these tenders any different from the

manner in which you dealt with tenders under the former Government?
A. No.

MR. TOLMIE: You spoke about the way of dealing with these tenders how
many were there ?

A. There was one.

Q. Did you call for any others?
A. There is one tender for each class of truck, that would be two tenders.
DR. GODFREY: There was just the one man tendering?
A. Yes.

Q- You didn't ask for any others?
A. No.

MR. McCRAE: When was the decision reached by you and Mr. McLean that
Sterling trucks would be the type to be purchased for the work you had in view?

A. I would say it was sometime early in December, when this matter was
discussed. I cannot pin it down. It was during the trip in which the Minister, Mr.
McLean and myself went over the roads. We discussed it amongst ourselves in a

general way and a decision was reached as to what we would do.

Q. Up to that time you had been giving consideration to various kinds of
trucks ?

A. To different makes.

Q. And you finally came to the decision that it should be Sterling trucks?
A. The evi'dence seemed to point that way to me.

Q- That is the fact, you did come to a decision ?

A. Yes.

Q. When did you come to that decision?

A. I would judge some time between September and December, 191'9.

Q. Was it after this present Government came into power?
A. Not when we started in to find out about these trucks, to make some in-

vestigation of Sterling trucks.

Q. I want to know when the Government came to the conclusion that they
should purchase Sterling trucks, the Government through the Minister. When
was the time when it was agreed that the Sterling truck was the one that should be

acquired ?
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A. It was definitely decided on the morning of the 30th, -when he got our

recommendation.

Q. That was the time the decision was arrived at to purchase 'Sterling trucks ?

A. That is the day he got our recommendation.

Q. Where is that recommendation?

A. It is right there.

Q. This tender of Parkin's filed as exhibits "A" and "B" under date of Decem-
ber 27, and executed the 30th of December, 1919, the recommendation here is the

final decision as to Sterling trucks?

A. Yes, sir, after long investigation extending over a year and a half prior
to that time.

Q. Was there ever any recommendation prepared by you or Mr. McLean,
setting forth the merits or demerits of the trucks and giving the reasons for arriv-

ing at the selection of the Sterling trucks.

A. No, we would not put anything of that nature on the record. It would
be used against other truck makers.

MR. DRURY: Have. you ever done such a thing in the department?
A. No.

Q. In the Department you do discuss some of these things and do things by
word of mouth ?

A. Yes.

QJ You couldn't do it any other way ?

A. No.

Q. What was done in this has always been the practice. It has never been
the practice in your Department to make written recommendations as to what
should be accepted whether it is motor trucks or anything else, no matter what it

is?

A. Oh yes, we do make recommendations.
MR. McCRAE: Then why was not your recommendation made on an

important matter like the selection of trucks?

A. I think I have answered that.

THE CHAIRMAN : You mean in writing ?

MR. McORAE : Yes, I was asking why there was not a recommendation in

favor of the Sterling trucks set forth in writing?
A. The whole matter was discussed between the Minister, the Deputy Minis-

ter and myself, and we were agreed as to what we were going to do.

Q. I see. It was the result of a conversation between the Minister, yourself
and Mir. McLean, that it was determined that Sterling trucks should be purchased ?

A. We recommended to the Minister that they seemed to be the most suitable

kind for our work.

Q. It was as a result of that conversation in which the three of you took part

that the Sterling was selected as the truck to be used ?

MR. HALL: (Interrupting) The Minister took your word for it because he

considered you an authority?

A. We had looked into it pretty thoroughly.

MR. MoCRAE: Was that on the 30th of December, that this decision was

arrived at when you three decided on the Sterling?

A. Prior to that.

Q. How long before.

A. We discussed it on this trip of inspection we made over the highways, all
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makes were under consideration.

Q. Then it was not on the 30th of December, that the Sterling truck was

decided on as the truck to be used ?

A. On the 30th of December, the Sterling truck was bought.

Q. What I want to get is when you knew, when Mr. McLean and the

Minister knew -that Sterling trucks were to be used by the Government OB

Government roads. When was that decision come to ?

A. I would say it was around Christmas time that we thought it advisable

to get Sterling trucks.

Q. December, 1919?

A. Yes.

Q. Would it be before Christmas?

A. No. The matter had been under discussion since the inspection trip. It

would be about Christmas.

Q. It was, at all events, sometime about Christmas, prior to the 30th of De-

cember, that that decision was arrived at. Where was that decision reached?

A. We held a discussion on the trucks, while making the trip of inspection.

Q. When was the trip concluded?

A. We were out for several days. It extended over nearly two weeks. We
went west on one trip.

Q. Would you say it was within ten days prior to the signing of this contract

for Sterling trucks?

A. I would say twenty days prior to that.

Q. That is close enough : so you knew twenty days prior to that that you were

going to purchase Sterling trucks?

A.---We did consider that.

THE CHAIRMAN: His answer to that was that they were recommended.

MR. MCRAE: My question has been directed to this fact. As a result or

practically as a result of this conversation within a period of time, twenty day*

prior to the 30th of December, this contract was signed for Sterling trucks. Is

that a fair statement of the case?

A. I recommended to the Deputy Minister, I said, I thought the Sterling-

was a satisfactory truck to purchase. The Minister was there and it was discussed.

Q. I don't care when it was. I want to know whether it was prior to the

30th of December, that the decision was reached in which the Minister, Mr.

McLean and yourself concurred, that Sterling trucks should be used for this work.

Was it prior to the 30th of December?
A. I would say it was prior to Christmas.

THE CHAIRMAN : Was it determined by the Minister that Sterling trucks and

no other should be purchased. That is the point?
A. I would say yes.

MR. McCRAE: And that was some time prior to Christmas?

A. I would say around the 20th of December. That is my recollection.

Q. Now after that decision was come to, that Sterling trucks were to be

purchased, what was the next thing you heard about the actual purchase of th '.-

trucks from Parkin?

A. T received a tender some time during the day of the 29th of December.

Q. Was that the first thing you heard about the purchasing of Storli

trucks after the decision reached that you were to get Sterling trucks?
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A. Yes.

Q. When you got that tender it was brought to you by a messenger?
A. Yes.

Q. I want you to be particular about this: What did you do when you

opened this tender?

A. I didn't open the tender.

Q. After it was opened, what did you do?

A. I made inquiries as to the prices. I knew pretty well what the prices

were. I made a note of it there.

Q. Where did you make inquiries?
A. I had been making inquiries all along and was closely in touch with it.

Mr. Madden told me.

Q. Did you make any inquiries after receiving the tender on the 29th of

December ?

A. I believe I called up Madden on the telephone, and that these figures
here are his figures.

Q. Do you recall calling Mr. Madden?
A. I am pretty clear on that. I think these figures in pencil were put on

the contract at the time.

Q. What I want to know is, did you make any inquiry about the price of

these Sterling trucks after you received the Parkin tender?
A. Yes.

Q. Where did you make such inquiries?
A. 'From the Grace Motors because they were the only people selling the

Sterling truck.

Q. You saw Grace Motors?
A. I called Mr. Madden.

Q. You had a number of communications prior to that from Madden?
A. Yes. They are on record here.

Q- You asked Mr. Madden for the prices on these classes of machines?
A. I asked what they were marketing those trucks at, on that day.
Q. Did you tell him you had a tender from Parkin?

.
A. He knew that.

Q. How did he know it?

A- Oh/ they know those things. Parkin had been in to see Grace Motors
before that date.

Q. Did Madden tell you he knew what Parkin's price was?
A. I don't remember that, I asked him what the price would be, what the

prices were.

Q. How do you know, he knew what the prices were Parkin had tendered at.

How did you know when Madden and you were talking, that Madden

knew Parkin had made a tender?

THE CHAIRMAN : Do you know or are you guessing it ?

A. I am to some extent guessing. Madden didn't mention Parkin to me.

THE CHAIRMAN : Then don't guesfs
1

.

A. Everybody in Grace Motors as we found out later, knew all about it.

Q. But at the time just prior to the acceptance of the tender had you any

knowledge when you talked to Madden that Madden knew Parkin had a tender in ?

A. No.
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Q. Did you tell Madden that Parkin had tendered ?

A. No, we just wanted prices.

Q. "What other inquiry did you make except from Madden?

A. That was all. He was the man we had been dealing with.

Q. When you got Madden's prices, which are a little higher according to the

figures than Parkin's, did you make any comparison with the prices listed in the

"Motor Age".
A. Yes.

Q. Were the prices in the "Motor Age" which you had on file, the same as

Parkin's or Madden's?

A. No. Those are the United States list prices. They are not the same

But from those you can obtain the Canadian selling price within a few dollars

if you know how to do it, the exchange costs, excise, customs rate and freight.

THE CHAIRMAN: Do you mean excise?

A. Yes, there is an excise tax on them.

MR. McCRAE: It was Mr. Madden who settled the price for you rather than

this 'book?

A. Oh yes, but this gives you a good check. You can tell from this whether

they are boosting the price on you.

Q. Didn't you think it good policy to tell Mr. Madden at that time, that you
had a tender in for a certain price and ask him if he could give you a better price ?

A. No.

Q. You made no attempt to find out whether these prices could be reduced,

except to ask Mr. Madden what their prices were?
A. I got the best price from the Grace Motors.

Q. You were relying on Mr. Madden for that?

A. Yes.

Q. Then after Mr. Madden told you the prices, what did you do? This was

the 29th of December, you got this paper. I want to know what was the next

step you took toward closing this deal. Did you have a consultation with the Minis-

ter about it?

A. No, we did not. I went back to the Deputy with these tenders arul wo
decided what we would do.

Q. The decision was that it should go to Parkin, that it should be recom-

mended. As far as you and Mr. McLean were concerned, Parkin was to get the

contract ?

A. Yes.

Q. Had you ever heard of Parkin before?

A. We had not. We don't hear of a lot of contractors.

Q. You never heard of Parkin before ?

A. No.

Q. Never been in his garage before?

A. No.

Q. Never been out that way ?

A. Well, I have been out that way but I knew nothing about Parkin.

Q. When did you send in your recommendation ?

A. It was on the 29th, when Mr. McLean discussed it and signed together.

Q. Afternoon or evening? *

A. I believe it was the afternoon of the 29th.
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Q. What time did Biggs sign it?

A. Then next morning.

Q. You don't remember the day of the week?

A. I would say it was a Tuesday it was signed.

Q. The practice would be for you to certify as to the price and then for Mr.

McLean to mark his approval?
A. To say whether the purchase should be made.

Q. And then for the Minister to sign?

A. Yes.

Q. When did the Minister sign?
A. The next morning.

Q. I notice you certify "Prices appear satisfactory/' on the 30th of Decem-

ber, not the 29th ?

A. That is in as the 30th, because we expected to close the deal on the 30th.

We were going to take it up with the Minister on the 30th. We had to act quickly
The price was jumping and we had to get our order in. We mailed the letter the

30th, the day that was signed, and the next day the price went up.

Q. You received this tender on the 29th:

A. Yes.

Q. You and McLean did your part on the 29th ?

A. Yes.

Q. You signed on the 29th?

A. Yes.

Q. And Mr. McLean ?

A. Ye?.

Q. Then why didn't you date it with the proper date?

A. We were to close up the business on the 30th.

Q. But you didn't know that?

0- We expected to. We were going to ask the Minister to do that on our

mimendation.

Q. Bo you tell this Committee that that is a rule that governs you, when

mtting a date on a paper, that the date to be put on is the date on which you

q>ect to close a thing?
A. This was a particular thing we had to get through.

Q. But why did you certify that it was on the 30th of December, that the

m'ce was approved, do you tell this Committee that that was a proper thing for
rou to do, to put on a date that was not the date you did that, but a subsequent
ite?

Objection by Chairman to form of question.
MR. McCRAE : Why did you certify to a thing on the 29th, and date it the

th.

A. Because in this case we were going to recommend to the Minister on the

30th, that he close the "business out.

Q. You expected it would be closed the next day?
A. Ye*.

Q. And that was the reason that you put down the 30th?

A. Yes.

Q._tfow you had received the tender that day for the first time m a eeala

envelope, on the afternoon of the 29th?



256 APPENDIX N0.2. 1921

A. Yes.

Q. What reason had you to expect that the Minister would be certain to

close that deal?

A. Because if he didn't we would have to pay the increased price.

Q. Why couldn't you do it on the 31'st?

A. You couldn't get the order in on time.

Q._Why couldn't it be dated the 29th then?

A. We were going to recommend the order on the 30th, the whole business

was to be closed on the 30th.

Q. Your signature was not put on on the 30th ?

A. No, it was put on the day before.

Q. When was Mr. McLean's signature put on?

A. Sometime on the 29th.

Q. Did you have a previous notice to be on hand next day at the Minister's

office?

A. I wanted to take it up the next morning.

Q. Did you have a notice from the Minister to be on hand the next morn-

ing with reference to this contract?

A. I am not clear about that. I got this tender on the afternoon of the

29th, and in making our inquiries we found all about this increased price coming

through, I said. "There is only one thing to do, and that is, close at once." I

took it up the first thing on the morning of the 30th.

Q. Did you have any notice from the Minister that Parkin was to be there

on the 30th?

A.-: No notice whatsoever.

Q. You didn't know when you came to his office what the business was about?

A. I knew, I had these tenders with me.

Q. Why?
A. Because we wanted to close the business out. Mr. McLean recommended

that they get the order.

Q. Mr. McLean, was he with you that time ?

A. He was not.

Q. When you went into Mr. Biggs' room in the morning, you had these

tenders with you ready to be signed ?

A. Yes.

Q. And you didn't know anybody was waiting in the room there?

A. No.

Q. You had no intimation of that?
A._No.

Q. Did you see Parkin?

A. Afterwards.

Q. Where did you see him afterwards?

A. He came out afterwards and we got the business transacted.

Q. After the Minister signed?
A. Yes.

Q. Then he signed it?

A. Yes oh, no.

Q. Did Parkin sign anything that morning?

A. No, that tender was signed by him when I got it.
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Q. Now you say that prior to the receipt of this tender by Parkin, you never

knew Parkin before?

A. No.

Q. This was your first knowledge of Parkin?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you advertise in the papers that you were going to buy trucks?

A. No, no advertisement.

Q. No notice or publication of any sort, that you were going to buy Sterling
trucks or invite prices?

A. No, no advertisement.

Q. Do you know where Parkin got the information as to the equipment

required and the specifications that were on this tender. Do you know that?

A. I don't know.

MR. HALL: Would any specifications be given out to him as to what was

required so he could tender on that?

MR. MC-ORAE: Were there any specifications given out at the Department
as to the requirements for these Sterling trucks?

A. We had discussed the truck we meant to purchase
'

Q. Were any specifications given out?

A. Do you mean written specifications?

Q.Yes?
A. No.

Q. You don't know how Parkin got the information as to the description
in his tender?

A. I do not.

MR. BRACKIN: Did the Minister know what the requirements were? I

A. We had certainly discussed the requirements.
MR. TOKMIE: Had you ever drawn up in writing the requirements you

wanted ?

A- The requirements were short, only three or four things that could easily
be remembered, the body the hoist, that is practically all.

Q. It was never submitted in writing?
A. No.

MR. McCHAE: Then were the details and specifications of Parkin's tender

exactly what you required for the trucks?
A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN: You mean to say that Mr. Biggs would know?
A. Yes, Mr. Biggis would know.

MR. MoCRAE: As I understand it the only tender you saw was the Parkin

tender ?

A. Yes.

MR. HALL: You decided it must be Sterling trucks?

A. We wanted Sterling trucks, yes.

Q. There was no cutting of the price among the people selling Sterling

trucks.

A. There was no cutting. There was no discount. We knew that.

THE CHAIRMAN: Mr. McCrae asked you this: were you notified by the

Minister to be there on Tuesday morning to meet Parkin and you said, "No." Were

you notified to be there? ,
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A. -We wanted to close the business, yes.

Q. Were you notified to be there?

A. I believe I was notified to be there.

Q. But not to meet Parkin?

A. No, I didn't know Parkin was coming.
MR. McCRAE: This purchase involved a sum of $117,000?
A. Yes.

Q. Do you say it is customary in your Department that a transaction in-

volving over $100,000, is it customary that a transaction of that kind be put

through without some memorandum of recommendation, or something on file,

something to be a record in the office as to the reasons why a deal of such magni-
tude should be approved. Is it customary for these deals to go through without

any such recommendation or memorandum in connection with your file?

A. It is certainly discussed thoroughly before anything is done. There is

very often no memorandum on our files, practically never.

Q. Do you know of a case where a matter 'involving as much as $117,000 has

been put through where there is nothing in writing on the file, in the way of a

recommendation to the Minister, the reasons given as to the necessity and re-

quirements, something upon which the Minister acts?

A. I do not know of any deal of that total.

THE CHAIRMAN: Do you know of any deal either large or small where the

recommendation is in writing?

A. It ds very seldom done and I cannot remember one.

Q. Either large or small?

A. No.

MR.MCOBAE: You don't know, in your department, of any recommenda-

tion, large or small, in writing, being first put on the files before the deal was

consummated ?

A. There may be some there. I do not distinctly remember.

Q. I understood you to say it was often done?

A. In what cases?

Q. In cases involving a large sum of money?
A. No.

MR. DRURY : Is this true, thaf matters are referred from time to time .to

the officials of the Department and a memorandum and report is made to the

Minister ?

A. Yes.

Q. A memorandum might be made in some cttoes. It would be taken up

probably with the Minister verbally. It is a departmental matter solely. You

do a good deal of it by conversation?

A. Absolutely, yes.

MR. MoCRAE: Do you know any case of a deal of this magnitude where

tenders have not been invited before the deal is closed ?

A. No, not of that total.

MR. HOMUTH: Has it ever been done before, that you put through any

deal without asking for tenders?

A. We have made purchases on single tenders and have also ma,de purchases

on competitive tenders.
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THE CHAIRMAN : In this case yon determined that there wasn't any possibil-

ity of competitive tenders?

A. Yes.

MR. HOMUTH : This is not the first time since you have been in the employ
of the Government that you have purchased road machinery, or other machinery

on a single tender?

A. No. It was not the first time.

MR. McCRAE: Can you point to any deal of this magnitude where com-

petitive tenders were not invited, except this one?

A. Not of this magnitude.
MR. HOMUTH : Was there ever one of that magnitude before since you

were connected with the Department?
A. Not with our department.
THIE CHAIRMAN: Was there ever a matter of that size in which you deter-

mined that there could not be competitive tenders?

A. No.

Q. This was a case where you determined there was no possibility of com-

petitive tenders. They were Sterling trucks and there was no competition?
A. Yes.

MR. McCRAE : Do you know anything Mr. Hogarth as to the comparative

price of trucks purchased by the City of Toronto, with yours?
A. Yes.

Q. Can you say whether they are higher or lower, or what?
A. I would say this. We know what these prices are. What the trucks

and the equipment of the trucks was, has been mis-stated in the papers. I under-

stand that when the city undertook to purchase these trucks they actually got

prices that had been negotiated for months back, before December, 1919. They
were then getting a lower price. They waited until January, due to the Council

throwing out the recommendation of the Street Commissioner, and they bought
at an increased price.

THE CHAIRMAN: As I understand it these trucks had been recommended,
the purchase of Sterling trucks. They recommended it but it was thrown out

by Council, or the Board of Control, and later on they advertised?

A. Yes.

Q. And didn't succeed in getting any satisfactory tenders, as a result of

that advertisement isn't that right?
A. They only got two or three.

Q. They didn't accept any of them?
A. No/

Q. Then later they bought Sterling trucks?

A. Yes.

Q. Then it was dated back to December?

A. Yes.

Q. Because of the fact they had been in negotiation ?

A. Yes.

Q._So that the city threw out the recommendation, advertised, then came

back and bought Sterling trucks afterwards and because of the fact that they had

been negotiating and the Board of Control, or City Council threw it out, they
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were allowed the previous price. That is what I understood you to say.

A. They had to pajy a higher price. That is what we understood.

MR. PRICE : Was what was quoted in the papers yesterday correct. Are these

trucks of the same equipment?
A. No, sir, not the same equipment. None of the city trucks had bodies on.

MR DRURY : So there was really no comparison ?

A. No.

MR. McCRAE : Was the price of trucks substantially different after the 1st

of January?
A. Yes, and they continued to go up in January.

Q. Have you bought any since?

A. Yes.

Q. At an advanced price?
A. No, at the original quotation.

Q. As far as you are concerned then the advanced price charged- by the

Sterling people didn't affect your price?
A. No, not at all.

Q. The fact is it was rather more of an alarm than an actuality as was

proved afterwards the increased price that caused this rush?
A. We knew the price was going up and if we wanted to enjoy that discount

and get in on the low price we ha$ to act quickly. -

Q. As I understand it the price of trucks, after the 1st of January, was
not increased to you?

A. Because we had our quotation in for a number of them.

Q. Did you buy any trucks other than what went in Parkin's order?
A. We bought two others at that price.

Q. Which were not in the Parkin order ?

A. No, they were not in that order.

Q. You bought them without any advance in prices?
A. Yes, without any advance in prices.
THE CHAIRMAN: You did advertise later and got higher prices?
A. Yes, higher prices.

MR. McCRAE: Did you buy the last two through Parkin?
A. Yes, through Parkin, on that quotation.
MR. HOMTITH: It was a pretty good stroke of business to get that order

through as quickly as possible and save that 10 per cent. That was the only reason
you got these extra trucks at the old price. You really got them at the old price
because of the fact that you had given an order for twelve trucks?

A. Yes.

Q. So it was as I said, a good stroke of business for the Department and
for the Government to have rushed that order through and get the trucks at the

old price?

A. Yes.

MR. MoCRAE: I understood you told us that some truck manufacturers

were giving discounts?

A. No, I didn't say that. I said some were giving the National Truck

Buyers' discount. I said that an Association in which the Sterling did not form

a part, had given discounts on list prices, but the Sterling didn't.



George V. APPENDIX No. 2.

Q. But some of the others did;'

A. Yes.

Q. Who were the other trucks bought from did you buy any trucks other

than Sterling trucks?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. Who were they bought from?

A. From the Beaver Truck Corporation, from the National Motor Car Co.,

the Four Wheel Drive Co., of Kitchener.

Further questions of this nature were ruled out of order by the Chairman..

MR. HENRY: Up to the time of the purchase of these twelve trucks the De-

partment had no heavy trucks or any other trucks, than Ford trucks except oiw

"Reo you mentioned? You had practically been using a lot of Ford trucks, you
mentioned and one Reo. Had you any other trucks you had tried out before this

purchase was put through?
A. Yes, two Fultons.

Q. What weight?
A. 7%-ton capacity steam trucks.

Q. Special trucks?

A. Yes.

Q. You hadn't any others?

A. No we bought these Fultons early in 1919, in April, or May, 1919. We
had them down at Napanee.

Q. Were thev new trucks?

A. No.

Q. Second hand trucks that were practically legislated off the streets ?

A. No, they were down at Napanee.
Q. There was some law passed here in Toronto that they couldn't be used ?

A. We didn't take them inside city limits.

Q. Then you hadn't any others than these two special trucks, any gaso-
line trucks beyond the one-ton capacity until you got these twelve?

A. No.

Q. Then you hadn't been doing any real heavy hauling work up to then ?

A. No, not very much. We had contractors on tftie work and these men had
been* using trucks with us and I 'had been watching their work. We had contractors

who had heavy trucks before we had.

Q. The Department had not any heavy trucks except^the Fultons and they
worked outside city limits?

A, Yes.

MR. HOMUTH : You saw the advantage of these trucks ?

A. Yes.

Q. You had the experience of the contractors with these trucks?

A. Yes.

MR. HILL: These trucks we have been speaking about were 3% and 5-ton

trucks?

A. Yes.

Q._Have you purchased any other 3% or 5-ton trucks other than Sterling

trucks ?

A. Yes, we have.

Q. Who did you purchase these from ?
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Question ruled out.

Q. Were these trucks you purchased subsequently much the same as the

Sterling trucks we have been discussing?

Question ruled out.

Q. Will you tell us again why it wajS the Department used Sterling trucks?

A. We made a complete investigation of the trucks on the market and found

the Sterling truck gave better satisfaction for the work we had to do. In the case

of the 5-ton truck it had chain drive, it was an exceedingly rugged up to date

truck a,nd was doing the work we wanted done in a satisfactory manner at a

satisfactory cost.

Q. Were there no other trucks with chain drive?

A. There may be one or two.

Q. Is it not a fact that there are a. great many trucks marketed with a:

chain drive.

A. There may be two or three others with chain drive, I think.

Q". What was the next feature of Sterling trucks that made you desirous

of having them?
A. The engine is particularly good and powerful.

Q. Now you have had experience with other trucks, is the engine better

than in other trucks?

A. Do you mean the 3% or the 5-ton trucks?

Q. Any make you have had experience with?
A. Yes. .

Q. You have less trouble with it?

A. Yes.

Q. What trucks are those?

Question ruled out.

Q. What features about the engine are superior to other trucks?
A. The engine is a more powerful machine, of low speed, which is very

desirable, with good cooling surface so that it can operate under heavy duty for a

long time. The transmission in the truck is a particularly good one.

Q- Then if this engine is so superior to other engines why have you pur-
chased trucks of .other makes since?

Question ruled out.

Q. Why didn't you purchase Sterlings when you came to get additional

trucks if the Sterling's such a fine truck?

A. We wanted other capacities of trucks.

Q. No, you have the same capacities. You have purchased other 3% and
5-ton trucks. Why did you not purchase Sterlings.

Question ruled out.

DR. GODFREY: Is it so that there is fhe same engine in the National as in

the Sterling?

A. I don't think so.

Q. Do you know for a fact that it is the same?

A. I don't think it is.

Q. Well it is. Do you know for a fact that it is the same engine?

A. The Sterling engine is made by the Sterling people.

Q. Do you know that the engine in the National is the same engine as the

engine in the Sterling?
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A. Do you mean made by the same company, the same size and everything
3? It is possible that as to dimensions and everything else it may be made

by the same people because frequently these people job out their engines.
MR. HILL: Why did you purchase trucks of another make of the same

capacity since the purchase of Sterling trucks from Parkin if the Sterling truck

is the best on the market?

Question ruled out and ruling of chair sustained on appeal.
MR. HILL: Now Mr. Hogarth, you have told us you didn't call for tenders

because after investigation you found the Sterling truck was the best truck on
the market you could buy, and you have explained that one of the reasons was

that it had a chain drive, and you have told us now that there are other makes that

have the chain drive. You have told us it has a 'better engine and you don't know
whether the engine is the same or not as that used in another truck. Now in

what other features was the Sterling superior?
A. The transmission of the Sterling was. superior to others.

Q. What trucks do you refer to by "others?" What makes of trucks. Men-
tion some of them that have not got as good transmission?

I
A. The White, the Packard, the Clydesdale, the Kelly-Springfield.

Objection taken to this line of questioning.
MR. McCRAE : Was any effort made by you to be placed on a special list by

these Sterling Trust people so that the price might be cut down as cheaply as

possible ?

I

A. We knew it was useless.

THE CHAIRMAN: Answer the question.
A. No, sir.

MR. HENRY: You bought twelve trucks on the 30th of December, 1919, with
a hint from the Department or a threat whichever way you like to take it that the

price would be advanced on the first of the year. You bought twelve trucks on
the understanding that the price would go up, if you didn't close the deal before
the begiii'ing of the year?

A. The factory ^ylas going to put the price up.
Q. The facts are that you subsequently bought two other trucks at the same

price ?

A. On the original quotation, yes.
MR. BRACKIN: When you bought these trucks with the knowledge that the

price was going up did you know then that you would subsequently be able to buy
later on at the same quotation?

A. No, we did not.

Q- That was a concession they gave you?
A. Yes.

MR. HOMUTH : Tt was really a concession due to the fact that you had bought
twelve trucks from them?

A. Yes.

Witness excused : The Committee then adjourned.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE.
April 8, 1921.

The Committee met at 10.30 a.m. Mr. Curry in the chair.
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W. A. McLEAN called and sworn: Examined by Mr. Brackin.

Q, Mr. McLean, you are Deputy Minister of Highways?

A. Yes.

Q. How long have you occupied that position?

A. Since 1917.

Q. I want to start at the time the Minister of Public Works and Highways,

you and Mr. Hogarth, according to the evidence of Mr. Hogarth, made a trip of

inspection over the proposed Provincial Highways system, and I want you to

tell me whether before that trip of inspection the matter of the purchase of trucks,

what we might call heavy duty trucks, for the Highways branch had been discussed

by you with anyone in the Department?
A. Yes.

Q. How far back?

A. Some months before I had particularly asked Mr. Hogarth to look into

the question of trucks suitable for our work and be prepared to advise us in the

matter.

Q. Had there been any advice by Mr. Hogarth with regard to the subject

of trucks before Mr. Biggs became Minister?

A. We had talked the matter over to a certain extent from time to time.

Q. Since that decision as between you and Mr. Hogarth, that trucks should

be bought for the Department, after you came to the decision that heavier trucks

should be acquired did that decision take place before Mr. Biggs became

Minister ?

Objection by Mr. MeCrae.

Q. Had there been any decision, any defiinite decision about buying heavy

duty trucks before Mr. Biggs came in ?

A. No.

Q. Had there been any discussion between you and Mr. Hogarth before Mr.

Biggs came in as to what ought to be recommended a,bout the purchase of trucks?

A. We had discussed the merits of different kinds of trucks but there hadn't

been any positive decision at that time.

Q. Not as to the make of trucks, but so far as the making of a recommenda-
tion of the Department is concerned, had you and Mr. Hogarth before Mr. Biggs
came in discussed what ought to be recommended about buying trucks ?

A. Yes. .
.

Q. What conclusion was come to as to what recommendation you ought ta

make, not as to the make of trucks, but the kind of trucks generally ?

A. I had concluded from our discussions that we should have trucks. I do

not think Mr. Hogarth ha,d put before me any special recommendation in the

matter.

Q. That is as to the kind?

A. That is as to the kind or fact. We had .decided, T had decided and

I believe Mr. Hogarth had.

Q. You had decided before Mr. Biggs came in that von onpfht to buy the

heavy type of trucks?

A. Yes.

Q. What took place on that trip of inspection ?

A. From point to point the advantage of having trucks for certain work

was pointed out and we had a discussion on the buying of trucks.
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Q. Oan you tell me about when, so far as you are concerned, after Mr.

Biggs came in, you were prepared as Deputy Minister to make a recommendation

that trucks should be bought?
A. As nearly as I can recall it was in the early part of December.

Q. After you came to that conclusion did you discuss it with Mr. Btggs
in the early part of December?

A. We may have talked it over from time to time. I cannot recall the

occasions.

Q. Was there anything done, definitely, about the purchase of trucks be-

tween the early part of December, and the day when Mr. Hogarth brought in this

proposition that he spoke of the other day, from Parkin ?

A. Mr. Hogarth at some stage did recommend to me finally that we should

purchase Sterling trucks.

Q. That is before this Parkin tender came in?

A. Yes, before the Parkin tender came in.

Q. Before Mr. Hogarth made a recommendation to you for the purchase
of Sterling trucks, had you personally made aity investigation of Sterling trucks ?

Or was the investigation left to Mr. Hogarth?
A. I was relying on the report of Mr. Hogarth and the facts that he had

to bring before me.

Q. Then before the Parkin tender came in Mr. Hogarth had recommended

Sterling trucks?

A. Yes.

Q. Then was the bringing in of Parkin's tender to you the next thing that

happened ?

A. As I recall it, yes.

Q. Now just tell us what happened when Mr. Hogarth brought in the

Parkin tender.

A. Well, now I cannot say from memory the exaqt time, that would be a

matter of routine in the Department.

Q. Not the time what was done when it was brought in?

A. He brought a tender in to me and I opened it and he looked at it. We
discussed the thing that day and as I recall it I think we signed it at that time.

Q. Signed for what purpose?
A. For the purpose of certifying to the price of the trucks as being the lowest

price at which they could be obtained.

Q. Then did you sign anything at that time?

A. I think I did.

Q. After you signed, indicating your approval did you have anything further

to do with it?

A. No, I left it in the ha,nds of Mr. Hogarth

Q As I understand it, it (is a fact that when Hogarth went in to the Minis-

ter with the tender with your signature and his the following morning, you didn't

go? .

A. No, I did not go.

Q. Then here is a question I want to ask : from the time of the conversation

about the purchase of heavy duty trucks, from the trip of inspection down to the

time you signed your name on the Parkin tender for the purpose of indicating your

consent did the Minister, so far as you were concerned, either directly or indirectly
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urge upon you or suggest to you the purchase by the Department otf any particular

kind of truck ?

A. No.

MR. McCnAE: You were appointed as Deputy Minister in 1917, just speak-

ing off-hand?

A. Yes.

Q. You had been with the Government many years before?

A. I had been here since well I have practically finished my 25th year.

Q. Most of that time in the Public Works Department?
A. In the Public Works and the Highways, the greater part of it with the

Highways.
Q. You are the Deputy Minister who subject to the Minister is in control

of Highway development in the Province of Ontario?

A. Yes.

Q. And you really take no responsibility in this truck situation at all so

far as determining the kind of truck nor in determining that it should be Sterling
or any other kind?

A. There is the fact that the information prepared by the officers of the

Department is brought to me. I look it over and gave it a scrutiny before I would

approve and recommend.

Q. Then the time did come when it was brought to your knowledge which

were to -be the trucks to be adopted by the Department for a particular class of

work ?

A. That is, that they were the trucks the engineer would recommend.

Q. That intimation was given to you by whom?
A. -By Mr. Hogarth.

Q. You heard Mr. Hogarth say here at the last meeting of the Public Ac-

counts Committee that the decision to purchase the trucks known as the Sterling
trucks was arrived at at a conversation -between the Minister, yourself as Deputy
Minister and Mr. Hogarth?

TI^E CHAIRMAN: I do not think that is a fair statement of the evidence.

Reference being made to pages 279-280, of the evidence of the last meeting Mr.

McCrae continued.

Q. I will read you the question on page 280. "I want to know whether it

was prior to the 30th of December, that the; d'ecision was reached; in which the

Minister, Mr. McLeajn and yourself concurred, that Sterling trucks should be used

for this work. Was it prior to the 30th of December?" and the answer is, "I

would say prior to Christmas." I want to know from you if you were ever present
at a conversation at which the Minister, Mr. Hogarth and yourself determined

that Sterling trucks should be the type of truck to be purchased for the work on

the roads?

A. I don't recall any conversation which we had, of a formal nature, to

determine the kind of trucks to be used. We had a series of conversations on the

matter.

Q. Then you learned was it from the Minister or Mr. Hogarth that yoa

learned that Sterling trucks were to be purchased?
A. From Mr. Hogarth I learned that that would be has recommendation.

That was the feeling and impression I got from him and which I concurred in

from the facts before me.
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Q. I asked this question of Mr. Hogarth on page 280, of the evidence.

"My question has been directed to this fact. As a result or practically as a result

"of thjis conversation within a period of time, twenty days prior to the 30th of

"December, the contract was signed. Is that a fair satement of the case ?" The
"answer to that was: I recommended to the Minister, I said I thought the Ster-

ling was a satisfactory truck to purchase. The Minister was there and it was

"discussed." Do you recall that?

A. That was a year and four months ago and I cannot recall that incident.

It may have happened.

Q. You can satisfy me on this point you are Deputy Minister?

A. Yes.

Q. Would Hogarth be the one to get a determination from the Minister

as to the class of trucks to be used or would you?
A. I approve before it reaches the -Minister.

Q. Did you approve before it reached the Minister ?

A. Yes.

Q. Of what decision?

A. The decision of the engineer, of his recommendation.

Q.~Of the Parkin tender?

A. No, the decision to purchase Sterling trucks.

Q. Was there a memorandum prepared as to Sterling trucks being the proper
type of truck to be chosen by the Department for that class of work?

A. No, it was not. We haven't anything in the files of that description.
Q- You did tell Mr. Hogarth to make inquiries and to make a report to

you on the question of trucks?

A. Yes.

Q- And no part of his report has been committed to writing?
A. No.

Q. Is it customary in a matter of the importance of the selection of these
trucks not to give a recommendation in writing?

A. Had the matter been of less importance he probably would, but this
was something that we had discussed so fully that there was not anything left
to report.

Q, Is it not the practice in your Department that in a matter as large and

important as this that there should be some memorandum in writing as to the
decision come to and the reasons for it?

A. There is no hard and fast rule that would make that necessary.
Q. At all events the only tiling that is in writing, as far as a recommenda-

tion is concerned is the Parkin tender, when it came in?
A. Yes.

Q. And its approval by yourself and certified to by Mr. Hogarth?
A. Yes.

Q. Now you have a recollection of Mr. Hogarth bringing this tender to

you and of you opening the envelope which was sealed?

A. Yes.

Q. And that was, as Mr. Hogarth says, on the 29th of December, 1919?

A. I would expect so. I cannot contradict that in any way. I recollect

opening it but as to fixing the exact day, I cannot from memory.

Q. The only reason that I pointed that out is that both tenders of Parkin show
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that Mr. Hogarth certified as of the 30th of December, although he says the tender

was actually brought in on the 29th, and certified to on the 29th. 1 ask you as

Deputy Minister why the date should be certified as the 30th if it was actually

done on the 29th? Your signature would appear dated as of the 30th as well. Mr.

Hogarth's evidence was that the tender was received on the 29th?

A. I am unable to explain that.

Q. Well, Mr. McLean up to the time this tender came in there had been

no tender with reference to Sterling trucks so far as your department was

concerned ?

A. No.

Q. Were any instructions given by you as Deputy Minister to procure ten-'

ders for these Sterling trucks?

A. The circumstances of thajt I do not recall. I believe there were some
instructions.

Q. To whom would they be given?
A. To Mr. Hogarth.
Q. How long 'before the date of the tender?

A. I really cannot fix that.

Q. Are you quite clear, as a matter of definite memory, Mr. McLean that

you did tell Mr. Hogarth to call for tenders or prices in connection with Sterling
trucks ?

A. -I do not thing I gave any instructions to call generally for tenders for

these trucks. We ha
t
d list prices and the market was rising for this equipment.

It was extremely hard to get and my feeling was at that time, I am quite sure,

was that any quotation we would receive from any of the agents would be the same.

Q. That was your feeling?
A. That was my belief.

Q. Then when this tender was brought in by Mr. Hogarth to you, were

you, were you expecting tenders in connection with (the trucks upon* that day ?

A. We had discussed the urgency of closing our order before the end.' of

December.

Q. Were you expecting any tenders that day?
A. I cannot say I expected it that day. I cannot recall from memory' that

I was expecting it.

Q. Did you know before you saw Parkin's tender that a tender was coming

in from Parkin. Did you hear Parkin was putting in a tender?

A. I think I expected such a tender.

Q. And when it was received, how long after it was opened by you in the

presence of Mr. Hogarth was it until your signature was put on the tender as

approved ?

A. I believe it was the afternoon when Mr. Hogarth brought it to me.

Q How long was it between the time it came to you until Mr. Hogarth went

out with your signature on the paper as approved?

A. We discussed it for some little time, I cannot say how long.

Q. it was a matter of minutes?

A. Well, it may have been.

Q. isn't that your recollection?

A. I would not say so, no I think he was in there for perhaps an hour.

Q. Discussing this tender?
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A Discussing the whole question of trucks.

Q. I mean how long was the Parkin tender discussed after it was opened
until your signature was on it?

A. Now, I really cannot recall that.

Q. Was your signature on before Mr. Hogarth's?
A. No.

Q. Did Mr. Hogarth sign first?

A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Hogarth signed in your presence?
A. I think so.

Q. And your signature (immediately followed ?

A. Yes.

Q. That was the only tender?
A. That was the only quotation we had, yes other than the price lists.

Q. Do you know anything about Parkin other than was contained on the
tender?

A. I didn't meet him at all.

Q-- You knew he was a garage owner in Dundas?
A. I knew he was an agent for Sterling trucks, in Dundas.
Q. Do you know that, as the Minister has pointed ouit, he was the garage

dealer he dealt with as far as private business was concerned?
A. No, I don't know anything about that.

Q. Was there any discussion with Mr. Hogarth about dividing up these
trucks among the dealers?

A. That phase of it was considered.

Q. When ?

A. Tn the general dnscussion we had concerning trucks.

Q- Was there any discussion about dividing up this number of trucks on
the Parkin tender, between other dealers, with Parkin?

A. Oh, no. We had simply discussed whether we should standardize any
one form of truck or use others.

Q. You told me a few moments ago that before this Parkin tender was

opened you h'ad been sort of expecting that Parkin would make a tender ?

A. Yes.

Q. Where did you get the information that le'd you to believe that Parkin

would make a tender ?

A. As I recall the situation Mr. Biggs had asked if trucks could be pur-
chased as satisfactorily outside the City of Toronto as in the city and I said that

under then existing circumstances I believed they could, that we would receive the

same condition from any dealer outside, as in the Oity of Toronto and something
was said as to a local dealer that I think was probably Mr. Parkin. I cannot recall

the terms of the conversation other than that.

Q. When the tender was opened the impression was in your mind that

Parkin was the local dealer?

A. I knew it was from someone in that vicinity, yes.

Q. The vicinity of Dundas?
A. Yes.

Q. Now did you know on the 29th, or whatever tihe date was that you and
Mr. Hogarth approved of the contract, did you know that the deal was to be closed
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the next day wfith Parkin?

A. No, I had no specific information in that regard.

Q. Mr. Hogarth said.tha,t although it was certified by yourself and himself

on the 29th it was dated the 30th because it was to be closed the next day. Was

anything said to you at the time you signed as to the deal beting closed the next

day ?

A. I do not recall anything of tha,t description. That was a pure detail that

might pass unobserved.

Q. You didn't see Parkin at all in this transaction ?

A. No.

Q. Have you any expert knowledge, as a truck expert?

A. I am not a truck expert.

A. Now is Mr. Hogarth, so far as you knowj he would simply be collecting

data?

A. He was collecting data and
.
I have every confidence in his mechanical

and other ability.

THE CHAIRMAN: Was the Minister in any way responsible for the fact that

there was no written report made in respect to these trucks by Mr. Hogarth or

Mr. Johnston?

A. No, in no way whatever.

Q. Who is Mr. Johnston?

A. He is the head mechanic at the Highways garage

Q. Did you know he had been consulted?

A. Y6a. Hogarth informed me he had been utilizing the services of Mr.

Johnston in the matter.

Q. So that before you put your signature to this document approving of

these respective tenders by Parkin you knew Johnston had been consulted?

A. Yes.

Q. And his view had been communicated to you ?

A. Yes.

Q. And Mr. Hogarth's views had been communicated to you?
A. Yes.

Q. And as a result of the consultation between you you made the recom-
mendation which appears he-re?

A. Yes.

MR. MoC-RAE : Mr. Hogarth stated that a deal of this magnitude 'had never

gone through all these years before without some solicitation for prices or tenders.

Js that your experience ?

A. The Highways Department was comparatively new at that time and we
did not ourselves put through any such deal.

Q, That was the first of its kind?

A. Of that magnitude, in the Highways Department.
Q. Do you say Mr. McLean, as Deputy Minister that that is a proper way

for the conduct of thajt class of business in the public interest?

Objection being taken to the form of the foregoing question the Chairman
ruled that it was not a proper question to put to the witness in that it involved

a statement of opinion in which the Committee was not interested. Mr. McCrae

appealed from the ruling and upon a vote the chair was over-ruled. The Chair-
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man thereupon directed the witness to answer the question.

WITNESS : One has to consider the circumstances under which you are

purchasing. At that time the markets were wholly abnormal. Manufacturers

were months behind in filling their orders. It was a sellers' market not a buyers'

market, and our experience with other equipment was that prices were continu-

ously going up and that we could not get delivery. In the case of the trucks, in

the price lists we had we practically had quotations on every truck obtainable

which we would consider. In order that we might be sure of delivery of these it

was urgent that we get our order in as soon as possible and head off other orders

for the coming seajson. As I said there was the constant threat of advancing

prices in all classes of equipment. Under the circumstances I believed we were

acting in the public interest in purchasing on list prices without calling for

quotations.
MR. McCRAE: Everyone will feel better at your answer to the question Mr.

McLean.

THE CHAIRMAN : That is not an answer to the question. Answer the ques-
tion Mr. McLean.

Question read by reporter as follows :

"Do you say Mr. McLean, as Deputy Minister, that that is a proper way
for the conduct of that class of busines in the public interest?"

MR. MCLEAN: Yes, in the public interest.

MR. McCRAE : What class of trucks has your Department purchased since you
purchased Sterling trucks from Mr. Parkin?

A. We have purchased several classes.

Q. I mean of this 3% and 5-ton trucks the same as the -Sterling.
A. I think we have Clydesdale, and two Packards I will have to look up

the list.

Q. You did purchase a number of others which were not Sterlings?
A. Yes.

Q, Were they purchased in 1920?
A. Yes.

Q. And when they were purchased were the prices paid higher than would
have been paid for the same truck in 1919?

A. My recollection is that they were.

Q. Is that a fact?

A. I beliieve so.

Q. The Sterling trucks,, Mr. Hogarth told us, were no higher in price than

those purchased in 1919?

A. I think they were. I think the price of Sterlings went up.

Q. In his evidence Mr. Hogarth said they didn't pay a higher price on the

additional trucks, than on the others?

A. No, we were purchasing on the original quotation. We received that

protection, for 14 instead of 1'2.

Q._So the fact is that because of the purchase of Sterling trucks on the

Parkin order of December 1919 you were able in 1920 to get Sterling trucks

at the old prices of 1919 because you had placed an order in 1919 for twelve

trucks?

^ Yes.

Q! You purchased in 1920, trucks other than Sterlings and of the same sizes
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as you purchased from Parkin although as a matter of fact their prices were higher

than the prices of 1919 ?

A. Yes.

Q. And you bought several trucks at a higher price in 1920, than these

could have 'been bought for in 1919?

A. Yes.

Q. Why did vou not continue to purchase Sterling trucks iin the 3Vs and

5-ton classes in 1920, when you could have obtained them at the 1919 price

instead of buying other trucks which as a matter of fact were higher in 1920 than

they were in 1919?

A. There were several reasons. One was that we wished in practice to try

out different designs of trucks. It was considered only fair that we should distribute

some of the business.

Q. Was that the reason you chose other trucks in 1920 ?

A. Not wholly so.

Q. Largely so? You felt you should distribute the business?

A. I would not say that was the only reason. It influenced us perhaps to

a slight extent.

Q. At all events the reasons for confining yourself to Sterling trucks, as was

the case in 1919, were not present in 1920, when you chose other makes of trucks?

A. Well that is a side question. In the first thing we believed it was a

good thing to standardize the equipment so tihat the chauffeurs could move from
one truck 'to anoltiher and be able to operate them1

, and we would have spare parts for

repairs, and there would be an understanding among our mechanics of the main

type of truck. However we had no objection to having some of the others in our

fleet.

Q. Now Mr. McLean, have you purchased Sterling trucks since 1919, from

anyone eke except Parkin?

A. No.

MR. BRACKIN: You spoke of buying in 1920 trucks of S
1^ and 5-ton capacity

in addition to the Sterling trucks bought in 1'919 In 1919 when you bought

Sterling trucks did you know at that time in December 1919 that in 1920 you
were going to require further trucks ?

A. No.

Witness excused.

Roy A. Reynolds recalled, examined by Mr. Brackin.

Q. I want to ask you about some evidence you gave in a trial in Hamilton, be-

tween yourself and Parkin. To get your mind right to the point I am going to

direct your attention to the particular circumstances.

At this point objection was taken by Mr. McCrae to the presence of two men
who were to be called as witnesses. He asked that they be excluded and this was

done.

MR. BRACKIN: What we want to draw your attention to Mr. Reynolds is

this : You were speaking the other day of >a certain occasion on the 6th of March

when you and Parkin had a conversation?

A. Yes.

Q. That was the time you left his employ ?

A. Yes.

Q YOU were making a claim for the commissions you thought you ought
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to get?
A. Yes.

Q. You told us this the other day, that in the course of that conversation

between you, Parkin said to^ you, "What do you think Biggs should get" and ac-

cording to your .statement his idea was that Biggs should get a McLaughlin car.

Do you remember that ?

*A._Yes.

Q. You said, "No, don't let's give him a ear. That would cause trouble."

Do you remember that?

A. Yes, I don't know whether I said that right then or not.

Q. Do you rememiber your story the other day?
A. Yes.

Q. He then said, "What do you think we ough'; to give him/' You said. "I

think we should give him money" a.nd he said/*' Bow much," and you said, "$3,OUU
and I am willing that my share of that, my 5 per cent of that, should go for that

purpose." Do you remember saying that?

A. Yes.

Q. We will refer now to the evidence given at the trial. And I will read

from page 42 of the evidence of the trial of Reynolds versus Parkin, before Judge
Gauld, and to the examination of Reynolds, pages 42 to 43, and questions 291 to

296 inclusive, referring to that Saturday when you spoke about your conversation

with Parkin. I will read you question 291. "Did he make any reference to the

Government trucks order ?"

A. Saturday, he did.

Q. What did he say?
A. On Saturday we went out to the office and sat in the back of the garage

alone, and he said, "What do you expect to get out of this Government deal." I

said, "I expect my 5 per cent." He said, "Not surely on Canadian prices, and I

"said no, on American prices. That amounts to about 3% per cent. He thought
"tha't was all right."

Q. Was that true ?

A Vac
i _1_ tjO

Q. Question 293. "How do you know? What diid he say, did he make any

"objection ? A. At first when I mentioned the 5 per cent, he said, I don't think

"you should expect that. You know the Grace Motors trimmed me out of $4,000

"and I think you should allow a little on that, I said, that is all right Len I

"will do anything that is fair. He said to me, what about Biggs. He said, he will

"expect something out of this. I staid, you can take my share out of it. If we are

"going to give Biggs anything I am willing to take at at my rate of 5 per cent., and

"his rate of 20 per cent."

Q. Was that true ?

A. Yes, that is true.

*Q. Question 294.

Q. Question 295, "You mean Parkin does?

A._Yes, he said, "What about Biggs, and I said, I am willing to give my
"share out of my 5 per cent. He said, all right but he won't want it now. It will

"be in some future time. I said, Len, put it aside so when he wants it we will give

"it to him, and he said, what about this Cox deal

Q. Was that true? Was that your answer on that occasion and if it was,

*Thi-3 question is nt>t on the minutes.
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was it true?

A. I believe I did. He mentioned about the papers going after Biggs so

strong.

Q. That is not an answer to the question. Did you make that answer at that

trial ?

A. Yes, I guess I did.

Q. Was it true?

A. Yes, it was true.

Q. Question 296, "Did you leave it at that, or did von and him attempt to

"ascertain what Biggs piece would be ?

A. No, he did not say about how much it would be or anything. He just

said, in some future day we will have to do something for him."

Q. Did you make that answer. The other day you said that when you and

Parkin discussed this thing on the occasion you were speaking of at the trial, he

suggested an auto, and you suggested $3,000, and you have just told me you remem-

ber saying that the other day. I am speaking of exactly the same occasion and the

same discussion. In the light of what you swore, that first the car was mentioned

and then the $3,000 did you make that answer question 296, "Did you leave it

at that or did you attempt to ascertain what Biggs piece would be?

A, No, he did not say how much it would be or anything. He just said, "In

some future day we will have to do something for him."

Q. Did you make that answer at the trial to question 296?

A. I guess I did make that answer.

Q. Was it true ?

A. Yes, it was true.

Q. I suppose you will agree with me in this, that if the answer you made at

the trial was true, the statement you made the other day to the effect that on that

occasion about which you were speakin at the trial, Parkin -suggested a car and

you suggested $3,000 that is the statement you made the other day is not true

if that answer was true?

Objection by Mr. McOrae.
MR. BRACKIN : Do you remember swearing the other day about the time when

you and Parkin had a conversation about what Biggs should get?
A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember you swore the other day that on that occasion which ac-

cording to my recollection was the 6th of March, when you were leaving and
were discussing the question of commission he said Grace Motors had put up the

price on him or soaked him $4,000. On that occasion the 6th of March, he said,

"What do you think that Biggs should get." Do you remember saying that?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember swearing the other day when you were here, when he

asked you on that occasion what you thought Biggs should get, you said he said,

"We should give him a McLaughlin car. Do you remember that?

A. Yes.

Q. You said, "No, that would cause trouble to give him a car?" He said,

"What do you think we should give him." And you said in answer to that, "I

think we should give him $3,000, and I am willing that my 5 per cent, share

should go into that? "

A. Yes.
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Q. Now, I have read you your evidence with regard to that particular oc-

casion which you gave at the trial, and I have read you particularly question 296.

That question was, "Did you leave it at that or did you and him attempt to ascer-

tain what Biggs piece would be." And your answer was you told me you made
that answer and that it was true "No, he did not say about how much it would be

or anything. He just said, "In some future day we will have to do something for

him." Now, I ask you this question will you agree with me that if your answer

to question 296, at the trial was true, that what you said the other day about a

car being mentioned and $3,000 ?
couldn't possibly be true. Do you agree with me

that that is a fair statement?

Objection by Mr. McOrae that the question was not a fair one.

Witness excluded: Mr. McCrae argued that it had not been established that

the evidence referred to the same conversation.

Witness recalled.

MR. BRACKIX : We are trying to fix the time. Do you remember gomg to

Parkin and telling him that you wanted to get straightened out by Saturday,
that you were going to Buffalo and wanted to lend $1.500 to a party and you
wanted to know how you stood with him?

A. Yes.

Q. You did see him on a Saturday?
A. Yes.

Q. This was the time you had the discussion about wha,t you ought to get
and about Biggs?

A. Yes. We had talked of it all during the week.

THE CHAIRMAN : The discussion you had was prior to giving evidence in

Hamilton ?

A. Yes.

MR. BRACKIX: I will go back to question 285, page 41. "When did the

split-up come?"

A. Around in March March 6th, I think.

Question 286. "When did you first take up with Parkin the question of pay

ing you for what you claim was your share?"

"A. During the Fall I said to him two or three times, lets get straightened

"away. This is no way of doing business. I am spending all my money running
"around the country. Let us get squared away. He always had a story he was

"up against it. I knew he was up against it for the banks were after him. He
"said. "If you can carry on help me out in this way. I had lots of cash. He said

"some day luck will turn and we will be all right. So I listened to this alibi and

"this is what I got."

Q. Question 290. "Don't quote what they said about this man. You have

"not any right to do that no matter what it was. In consequence of your wish

"to get your money what did you do?"

A. I said, "Let us get straightened away here, I said I want to get

"straightened away by Saturday, for I am going to Buffalo and I want to loan

,500 to a party. I want to know how I am standing here. He put me off

until Saturday."

Question 291: "Did he make any reference to the Government truck order?"

A. "Saturday he did."

that the Saturday, the 6th of March, the day you left him?
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A._Yes.

Q. It was Saturday, the 6th of March, that you were giving evidence with

regard to here the other day when you said there was a discussion about Biggs

and he said, "Let us give him a car" and you said, "No, give him $3,000?"

A. Yes.

Q. it Was the same day you were discussing in giving evidence in Hamilton ?

A. We talked of it every day. 1 worked nine months for him for practically

nothing.

Q. You went over on Saturday all that you discussed the previous week.

Did you speak about the car and the money?
A. Yes.

Q. On the Saturday?
A. Yes. We did from day to day.

Q. Did you talk about the trucks, the truck order before Saturday?
A. Yes.

Q. We'll go back to your evidence. Question 291, you were referring to

him putting you off, and say, "He put me off until Saturday." Question 291. Did

he make any reference to the truck order ?"

A. "Saturday he did."

A. On Saturday he did and during the week.

Q. I will read it again. "In consequence of your wish to get straightened

"away what did you do?"

A. I said, "Let us get straightened away here. I said, I want to get

"straightened away by Saturday for I am going to Buffalo and 1 want to loan

"$1,500 to a party. I want to know how I am standing here. He put me t>ff

until Saturday."

Q. "Did he make any reference to the Government truck order?"
A. "Saturday he did."

A. Yes he did from day to day, we talked about it a lot.

Q. I asked you a moment ago did a conversation take place about giving-

Biggs an automobile and you said, "No because that would cause trouble, let

us give him $3,000." You said that took place on Saturday, March 6, was that
true?

A. Yes, it took place Saturday and also previous to Saturday. At different

times we spoke about it.

Q- Did you ever before that Saturday tell him what you expected out of this

Government deal.

A. Yes, it was understood I was to get something.

Q. When did you first tell him what you expected? When and where was
it you first told him what you expected but of this Government deal?

A. I think .it would be the first of the week, I think it was Tuesday, Mon-

day or Tuesday.

Q. What did you say to him on Monday or Tuesday?
A. It was either the first of the week or the week before that he handed

me letters from the firm and also in those two letters was a letter from the

Grace Motors that he didn't expect I had seen.

Q. How did you come to see it?

A. He handed me these letters to read. He only knew I had two. In this

letter the Grace Motors wanted the cheque from the Government turned over to>
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Grace Motors instead of to Parkin. Parkin owed them something for some trucks

or something. I said, "Parkin, don't turn it over to Grace Motors. If you do,

my share you won't turn over."

Q. I asked you when was the first time you told Parkin what you expected

to get out of this Government order. You said Monday or Tuesday. Is that right ?

A. I cannot say the day it was understood all along.

Q. It might be understood in your mind and not in his. I am asking about

what you said. Do you swear that at any time during that week before the Satur-

day, the 6th of March, you told him what you expected out of the Government

order ?

A. I cannot swear to that week, no.

Q. Can you swear this whether during the week before the sixth of March

there was a discussion between him and you as to what you expected out of the

Government order?

A. Yes, there certainly was.

Q. When, during that week?

.A. I cannot say, during that week.

Q. You didn't listen to my question. The question I asked was this, whether

you would swear that during that week, at any time during the week before the

Saturday, the 6th of March, there was any discussion between you and him about

what you expected out of this Government order?

A. After I read this letter I told him the cheque would not be turned over

to the Grace Motors. I mentioned it then.

Q. Can you swear that at any time during the wee.k before Saturday, the

6th of March, there was any talk between you and Parkin about what you expected
out of the Government contract that one week, the first week in March?

A. Yes.

Q. When was it?

A. I cannot say when it was. We talked about it all week.

Q. Can you tell me whether during the week before Saturday, the 6th of

March, there was a,ny talk between you and him in which there was any mention

made of anything coming to Biggs?
A. Yes.

Q._What date?

A. I cannot say what day it was.

Q. How long before the 6th ?

A. I do not know. It was talked about from the time the order was got.

Q. Tell me then about when it was, about what day in the week:. The be-

ginning or the end of the week?

A. I cannot tell you the day from the day we left the Parliament Buildings

until I broke with him on the 6th of March.

Q. Can you tell me what was said apart from what was said on the Saturday,

the 6th of March, about Mr. Biggs. Can you tell me if anything was said the week

before about Biggs? You ha,ve been telling us what was said on Saturday.

A. From the time the deal was closed we talked of it at different times.

<0nce I went out on the road to pick up Mr. Biggs who was stalled. When I

came back in Parkin came in and said, "You didn't charge for that trip, you

didn't put in any charge for .it?'' And I said, "No."
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Q. He was complaining about you not charging it?

A. No. He said, "You didn't charge it."

MR. BIGGS: Who said that?

A. Parkin said that.

Q. Didn't I give you $2.00 personally yourself for bringing gas to me at

the Half-Way House, on the Hamilton road. Did I not personally give you

$2.00 for your personal trouble for bringing me gas to the Half-Way House?

A. You did not. You gave me something to pay for gas.

Q. I Want you to say no, or yes. You brought me out a couple of gallons

of gas to the Half-Way House?

ZA. JL CS

Q. And I gave you $2 right then and there after we came back to the

garage ?

A. You gave it to me to pay for the gas and there was about 40 cents change
and you said, "Tha/t is allright -Roy, there is a tip for you ." There was about 40

cents change.

Q. I ask the question plainly. Did I or did I not give you $2 at that time ?

A. For myself?

Q. For service didn't I give you a $2 bill ?

A. You gave it to me to pay for gas.

THE CHAIRMAN : Mr. Biggs is asking whether you got $2.

MR. BIGGS : Wasn't it handed to you ?

A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN: Was it $2?
A. I won't swear to that.

MR. DRURY: What was it?

A. I cannot say.

MR. BIGGS: How much gas did you bring out?
A. I think two or three gallons.

Q. Would two or three gallons be $2? Gas was selling then about 42 cents?

A._Yes.

MR. MoCRAE : There is no doubt about one thing, that is that the gas you

brought out was paid for by Mr. Biggs?
A. It would not go in the books. It was marked as cash. I admit there was

forty or sixty cents change that Mr. Biggs gave me for that trip, but that would

not pay for the trip.

MR. BIGGS : But the point is that the gas was paid for and he got $1.20

change.

A. I would not say it was two gallons.

MR. MoCRAE : Would this be in Parkin's books ?

A. No, just marked to cash.

MR. BHACKIN : During the week before the 6th of March what I am asking

is this: You were asked question 291. "Did 'he make any reference to the Gov-

ernment truck order." And your answer was, "Saturday he did." I want to get

back and &sk you whether prior to Saturday, during that week was there any talk

between you and Parkin about the Government truck order?

A. Yes.

Q._What was it?

A. The only talk of the trucks was after I read this letter, I think that
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the week before.

Q. Tell us what it was ?

A. I don't remember what he said any one day. .

Q. Did I understand you to say that during the week before the 6th of

March, the only talk about the Government truck order was when he handed you
a letter from Grace Motors asking that he have the Government cheque drawn

out to them, and you said, "Don't do that." Is that what the talk was there?

A. We talked about the Government truck order, naturally.

Q. You told me that during that week before the 6th of March, there was a

talk between you and him about the Government truck order. I asked you what

it was. You said he handed you a letter from the Grace Motors asking Parkin

to turn over the Government cheque to them and you said, Don't turn the Govern-

ment cheque over to them or I will never get mine?"
A. I said, "Don't turn my part over to them."

Q. Outside of that which you have just told us was there any other talk,

before Saturday the 6th of March, between you and Parkin about the Government
truck order? During that week?

A. We talked about it practically every day.

Q. Then tell us what was said?

A. Every morning I would say, "Let us get squared away."
Q. And he put you off until Saturday?
A. Yes.

Q. Was there any other talk during that week, before Saturday except what

you have told us? That is, talk about the Government truck order?
A. Yes.

Q. What was it?

A. We talked about the Government truck order. I cannot say what he said.

Q. Do you agree with me in this, that you cannot remember what he said

during the week before Saturday, the 6th of March, when you were trying to get

settled, except that about the letter from the Grace Motors. Do you agree with me
in this that the sole mention of giving a car when you said, "No," give him $3,000,"

was on Saturday, that that came out on Saturday the 6th of March?
A. That was spoken of before.

Q. Tell us when, and where?
A. I can't say when and where. We got two new cars, one for a Mr. Barry

and one in stock.

Q- I want you to tell me whether before the 6th of March, there was any
talk between you in which Parkin mentioned giving a car to Mr. Biggs?

A. Yes.

Q. When was that?

A. I cannot say.

Q. Where was it?

A. I cannot say.

Q. How long before?

A. I could not say that.

Q. You can't remember where it was?

A. No.

Q. Tell me what he said? (no answer.) You cannot remember where it
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was or when it was at all ? Was it before Saturday, the 6th of March ?

A. I cannot get down and say when or where or anything else.

Q. What I want to get at is this. You told me that in the week prior to

the 6th of March, there was some discussion about the Government order and you
told me one thing the discussion consisted of, that it was referring to a letter

from the Grace Motors and what you said about turning over the Government

cheque. I have asked you whether there were any other remarks that week about

the Government order. What do you sa,y ?

A. Yes.

Q. What was it?

A. One day I was in Chatham

Q. I am asking you this. You said you had seen him the week before about

getting straightened away and that he put you off until Saturday. I want to ask

you whether during any one of these discussions when he was putting you oft'

until Saturday, was there any talk about the Government order except the talk

about the letter from the Grace Motors?
A. I cannot say whether there was or not.

Q. I suppose it would come down to this. He kept putting you off. You
said you wanted to go to Buffalo and that you wanted to lend someone $1,500, and
he kept putting you off until Saturday ?

A. Yes, from day to day.

Q. Then Saturday came?
A. Yes.

Q. That was the day you expected to get a settlement with him?
A. I expected to come to some agreement.
Q- You expected on Saturday you would come to some agreement?
A. Yes.

Q. When Saturday came where did you see him, at the garage?
A. Yes, in the office.

Q. Questions 292, 293 and 294, of your examination that I read to you at
the opening dealt with that question?

A. Yes.

Q. Your answer to question 293 was, "At first when I mentioned the 5

"per cent, he said, I don't think you should expect that, you know the Grace
"Motors trimmed me out of $4,000, ajid I think you should allow a little on that.
"I said, all right Len, I will do anything that is fair. He said to me, what about

'"Biggs he will expect something out of this. I said, you can take my share out
"of it. If we are going to give Biggs anything I am willing to give it at my rate

"of 5 per cent, and his rate of 20 per cent. That took place on Saturday?
A. Yes.

Q. Now then, what I want to ask is this: Was that the first time that

Saturday that he said, in effect, Biggs will want something out of this, or any-

thing to that effect. Was that the first time he came out boldly like that, and said

so?

A. I won't say it was the first time.

Q. Would you say it wasn't? Would you swear it wasn't, or would you
swear one way or the other?

A. I do not think I would swear one way or the other on that.
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Q. \yas it tfiat day when he said, "Biggs will want something out of this

and so forth/'' was that the time there was talk about the $3,000, between you and

Parkin?

A. No, we talked about having a, new car at different times.

Q Did you talk about it that Saturday, about the car and the $3,000'?

A. Yes.

Q. Will you tell us what was said about the car on that Saturday?

A. Which car? .

Q. The car you spoke about having in the garage that you were willing to

give Biggs? You told me that on Saturday, the 6th of March, there was mention

made of a car in the garage, that he was willing to give to Biggs?
A. Yes.

Q. Well, what was said that Saturday about that?

A. Only that he mentioned about giving a car to Biggs and asked me, "What

ilo you think is fair, what do you suggest." I said, "That car is selling about

$2,800 or $2,805." He suggested a car, and I said, "That amounted to about

$3,000, and I suggested $3,000, and said that we would have to be careful. I

:said, if we gave him a car people might pick it up and make a lot of talk about,

it." He said that in some future time we would have to look after him.

Q. That was on Saturday, the 6th of March, the day you mentioned the

$3,000.

A. Yes.

Q. I will read you again your answer to question 296, of your examination

in the trial in Hamilton, regarding Saturday the 6th of March. Question 296.

"Did you leave it at that or did you and him attempt to ascertain what Biggs' piece
would be?"

A. No. he did not say about how much it would be or anything. He just

said, "In some future day we will have to do something for him." In the light
of what you have t<5ld me was that statement true that you made at Hamilton?

A. Now you have me tangled up.

Objection by Mr. McCrae that witness was being confused, question shown
to witness and re-read by Mr. Brackin, from evidence taken at examination in

Hamilton.

MR. BEACKIX: Now the question I am asking you is this: In the light

of what you have told us of the conversation on that Saturday, the 6th of March,
when Parkin sugested giving a car which you said was worth $2,8*50 or whatever

it was and you said, "No, tha.t would cause trouble," and he said, "What do you
think we should give him?" and you said, "$3,000." In the light of what you
liav sworn as to that, first the car and then the $3,000, I am asking whether the

answer you made to question 296 at the trial at Hamilton was true, when you
said, "No, he did not say about how much it would be or anything. He just

said, in some future clay we will have to do something for him" Do you still

say it?

A. I can hardly answer that. I do not understand what he said about

leaving it at that.

THE CHkiRMAx: You have told Mr. Brackin on several occasions and par-

ticularly on the 6th of March, a car and $3,000 were mentioned?

A. Yes.

Q. Was that prior to giving evidence in Hamilton?
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A. Yes.

Q. Then when you were asked that question in Hamilton why didn't

you tell about the car and the $3,000 ?

MR. McCfiAE: He was not asked that question.

THE CHAIRMAN: When you were asked the question about what took place
between you and Parkin in regard to what Biggs was going to get, why didn't

you tell about the discussion in respect to the car and the $3,000?
MR. McCRAE : That is not the question you say is here.

THE CHAIRMAN : You have told Mr. Brackin that on several occasions and

particularly on the 6th of March, that Mr. Parkin and you discussed giving Mr.

Biggs a car or $3,000, that is right, isn't it?

A. Yes.

Q. You were asked in Hamilton about what sum Biggs was to get out of

it, were you?
A. I don't think he put it in that way.
Q. How did he put it?

A. I don't remember.

Q. Were you asked anything that would indicate to you that you were to

tell the court whether Biggs was to get anything at all or not?
A. My answers in court referred to my case and not for the political side

of it.

Q. Why did you not in Hamilton tell about the $2,800 car and the $3,000 ?

A. I did not think I was supposed to tell it.

MR. BRACKIN: I will read you question 296 again, "Did you leave it

at that or did you and him attempt to ascertain what Biggs piece would be?"
Answer it now.

A. I do not know. I don't want to be tripped up.

Q. There is no question of being tripped up. Tell the truth.

A. I am telling the truth.

Q. "Did you leave it at that or did you and him attempt to ascertain what

Biggs' piece would be?"

Then in question 295, you say, "He siaid all right, but he wont want it

now. It will be in some future time. I said,
"

Len, put it aside so when he

wants it we will give it to him." And the next question is: "Did you leave

it at that or did you and him attempt to ascertain what Biggs' piece would be"-

Did you leave it at that until some future time, or did you attempt to ascertain

what Biggs' piece would be, answer that question now?
A. We were working on it and Biggs was to be there that Saturday after-

noon. He had been doing all the talking to Bigg), and I didn't speak to him of

anything particularly.

Q. Did you and he attempt to ascertain what Biggs' piece would be?

Q. At that time when he said, "All right, he won't want it now or won't take

it now, it will be in some future time." . At that time was there any interview

or any talk between you a.nd him about a car for Biggs or $3,000 ?

A. Certainly there was talk about it.

Q. What did he say?

A. He mentioned a car and I mentioned $3,000.

Q. You said a little while ago when asked why you didn't tell about the

car and the $3,000 at the trial in Hamilton, you said you were giving evid^nre
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then in your own case, in the case in court, and not for political purposes

you said that a minute ago
A. Mr. Washington didn't ask me about a car or $3,000. That had no

bearing on my part of the case with Parkin. I had kept my frnouth $hut during
this thing and did during my trial.

Q. You were being asked about Biggs' piece at the trial?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you say that when you were giving evidence at the trial you held

back deliberately and didn't tell about the car and about the $3,000?

A. Mr. Washington didn't ask me.

Q. When he asked you this question : "Did you leave it at that or did you
and him attempt to ascertain what Biggs' piece would be." When he asked you
about Biggs' piece, did yooi have in imind then at the time When you were in

the stand what had been said about a car and the $3,000?
A. I would not say it was in my mind then.

Q. Did you know it at that time?

A. Certainly, I knew it.

Q. Knowing it, as you tell us, did you deliberately keep it back and not

tell it?

A. Mr. Washington didn't ask me that question. It was none of his business.

It had no bearing on my private case with Parkin.

Q. He was asking about Biggs' piece and whether any attempt was made

by you or Parkin to ascertain what Biggs' piece would be. According to what you

have told us there had been a discussion between you and Parkin, first about a car

and then about $3,000. When Mr. Wasington asked you if any attempt was made

by you and Parkin to ascertain what Biggs' piece would be, knowing as you did

what had ben said about a car and about the $3,000 did you deliberately keep it

back and not tell them what you knew?
A. I don't think I deliberately kept it back.

<J. Did you keep it back?

A. Apparently I did. He didn't ask me that question.

Q. He didn't ask you about a car or -about the $3,000, he asked you
about Biggs' piece. When he asked you if you had made any attempt to ascer-

tain whait Biggs' piece would be of course you knew whalj "Biggs' piee"
referred to. When he referred to Biggs' piece you knew what he was referring

to. didn't you? Do you say you didn't know what he was referring to?

A. Certainly, I knew what he was referring to.

Q. You knew Biggs' piece when there was this discussion between you
and Parkin on the 6th of March, was first a car and later a suggestion of

$3,000, didn't you. You knew that?

PA.
Yes, I knew that.

Q. Mr. Washington was referring to a talk you were telling about that

took place between you and Parkin?

I

A. I took that to mean he asked me did we approach Biggs and I Isaid

no.

Q His question was, "Did you attempt to ascertain what Biggs piece

would be
" You told us you knew what Biggs' piece was and what he was referrin

You told us that your discussion between you and Parktin with) regard

Biggs' piece was first a car and then $3,000?
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A. You say I was telling you what Biggs' piece would be? I had noth-

ing from Biggs. Probably he would refuse the car and refuse the $3,000. The

way Parkin put it to me he wanted to ask Biggs.

Q. Go back a minute/ please. You were being asked about a conversa-

tion between you and Parkin and about any attempt to ascertain what Biggs
r

piece would be. You told us the discussion between you and Parkin about

what Biggs' piece would be was first a car and later $3,000?
A. I didn't say that Biggs was going to be satisfied with that, I didn't say

that. He was to talk it over with Biggs.

Q. The talk was between you and Parkin. He asked you specifically about

Biggs' piece, when he asked you about any attempt by you and Parkin to ascer-

tain what Biggs' piece would be. Why didn't* you tell about that discussion:

regarding first a car and then $3,000?
A. He didn't ask me that question, that is why I didn"t.

Q. I will ask you this: will you say that the reason you didn't tell about
the car at Hamilton was because you were not asked about the car, is that what

you say?

A. I was being cross-examined by Mr. Washington and was answering his-

questions as he put them t0 me.

Q. Do you say that the reason you didn't tell about the car at Hamilton

was because you were not asked about the car?

A. It probably wasn't then in my mind.

Q. Is that the best answer you can give, that the reason you did not tell

about the talk between you and Parkin about the car and the $3,000, was be-

cause you were not asked about the car and the $3,000?
A. If Mr. Washington had asked me I would have answered it.

Q. Do you say that the reason you did not tell about the $3,000 at Hamil-
ton was because you were not. asked about it?

A. I cannot say the reason, I did not. He did not ask me the question,

Q. There is question 814, on page 77, that I want to ask you about. Yon
appeared at the trial of Parkin against Harwood?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know Percy Woodward and Wallace Matthews?
A. Yes.

Q. That trial of Parkin against Harwood was brought by Parkin against

Harwood for repairs to a truck injured in a collision. A car of Parkin's struck

the truck, ran into it or was run into, Parkin sued Harwood ?

A. Yes.

Q. You were there at the time?
A. Yes.

Q. You were there and Woodward and Matthews were there at the time

of the smash. Then in December, 17, there was a trial, where was it?

A. In Hamilton.

Q. Before a judge?
A. Yes.

Q. Parkin against Harwood?

A. Yes.

Q. You gave evidence?

A. Yes.
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Q On behalf of Harwood?

A. I was called by Harwood.

Q. Percy Woodward and Wallace Matthews say that after you gave evidence

on this question as to whether Harwood had admitted his liability to you and said

to have the truck fixed up and he would pay for it that was the question on which

you gave evidence?

A. Yes.

Objection having been taken by- Mr. McCrae to evidence of matters relating

to another trial being submitted, argument was heard.

The Chairman then ruled as follows : I am going to keep this evidence out

unless the Committee of which the Prime Minister and Mr. Biggs are simply mem-

bers, consents to it. It is up to the Committee. I am going to rule as I see it

but I am quite prepared to have it come in as the Committee choose to direct.

It is a general rule of evidence that a witness cannot be contradicted by a matter

which is purely a collateral matter. This to my mind is not a collateral matter.

This refers entirely to the attitude of the witness in regard to Parkin and his

attitude toward Parkin may reflect nils attitude toward the Minister and this Com-
mittee and the public of the Province of Ontario, must determine as between the
word of the Honorable Minister of Public Works, and the word of this witness
and if it can be shown that this witness has stated at any time that he was pre-
pared to commit perjury to get Parkin, then I rule that that is evidence and the
Committee should have it.

MR. BRACKIX: Having fixed the time of the trial at December, 17, at Hamil-
ton in the action of Parkin against Harwood, Matthews and Woodward will say,
and have sworn that you gave evidence to the effect that Harwood had not said to

you that he would pay for the repairs and that after you came down out of the
box you took a chair near Woddward and Matthews in the Court-room and
Woodward said to you, "Reynolds you are an awful liar. You know darn well
that Harwood said to you that he would pay for the damages." And that you re-

pljed to Woodward in the presence of Matthews and heard by Matthews, "I know
he did but Parkin will swear my life away when his case comes up, why shouldn't

swear his away?
3

If they swear that you said that on this occasion will you
say it was true?

A. I deny it absolutely. I deny it was anything but a frame up to beat
me m my trial.

Q. You deny the whole statement?

A. I certainly do.

Q- Woodward says that on page 156, in reply to question 592 and on page
165, question 685, is Matthews' statement. Is it true? You told me you gave
evidence at that trial ?

A. Yes.

Q. When you came down out of the witness box did you sit down near

Woodward ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did he speak to you about the evidence you had given?

A. He didn't, he said something to me, some casual remark.

Q What did you say?

A. I don't remember.
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Q. Did you say anything about Parkin swearing your life away? Did you

say anything of that kind ?

A. No, I did not.

Q. Nothing of that kind?

A. No.

Q. Did you say nothing about why you should swear Parkin's life away, in

their presence?
A. I did not.

Q. Let me have, if you have it, the letter of March 9, 1920, from Parkin

to you. I think there was a cheque enclosed. Have you that letter?

A. No.

ME. DRURY: Do I understand you to say that when you went and sat down

beside this man in the court, he said, "You are a liar ?"

A. I deny he said I was a liar. He said in court in my case with Parkin,

he swore he called me a liar as I walked out of the stand. If you knew Percy
Woodward you know he couldn't call me a liar.

MR. BRACKIN : Would you please be good enough to produce and lay

on the table now the original letter from Parkin to you dated March 9, 1920?

A. I haven't it.

Q. Then get it for me.

A. I can get it. (Undertaken given by Mr. McCrae to get letters).

MR. McCRAE: The question Mr. Washington asked you at the trial you
answered to the best of your ability?

A. Yes.

Q. Had you been asked as to the giving of a car or $3,000 you would have

told it at the trial?

A. Yes.

(Witness excused).
The Committee then adjourned.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE.
April 13. 1921.

Percy Woodward called and sworn.

Examined by Mr. Brackin.

Q. Where do you live?

A. Dun das.

Q. Do you know Mr. Parkin and Mr. Reynolds?
A. Yes."

Q. Do you remember a suit at Hamilton where Parkin brought a suit against
a man named Harwood?

A. Yes, I remember.

Q. Were you at that trial?

A. Yes.

Q. When was that, a long time ago or a short time ago?
A. I would say maybe around the last of March or April, 1920.

Q. Do you mean when the accident happened, or the trial took place ?

A. I think it was in February the accident happened.

Q. And the trial was how many months after that?
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A. Possibly two or three months.

Q. At the time it took place you were there?

A. Yes.

Q. And Eeynolds was there?

A. Yes.

Q. And Eeynolds gave evidence?

A. Yes.

Q. He has already said he gave evidence on behalf of Harwood he gave
.evidence on what particular point that you were interested in?

A. It was in reference to paying for the truck.

Q. What evidence did he give on that point, so far as Harwood was con-

cerned ?

A. He said he didn't hear Harwood make any statement about paying.

Q. Was that different from your understanding of it?

A. Yes.

Q. Because you thought that was different from what you yourself knew
about that particular phase of the case did you speak to Eeynolds after he came

out of the witness stand? .

A. Yes, I had a few words with him.

Q. Where did he go after he came out of the witness stand?

A. We were sitting in the court room and he came and sat between Matthews
and myself.

Q. He came and sat between you and Matthews? ,

A. Yes.

Q. Who spoke to him?
A. Me. I said, "Eeynolds, you are an awful liar. You know very well

that Harwood told us he would pay for the 'damage." Eeynolds turned around

and said, "Yes, I know but Parkin will swear my life away when hia .case; is up,

why shouldn't T swear his away."

Q. Could Matthews hear that? ?
A. Oh. yes. . ,

MR. McCRAE: Cross-examining.

Q. What is your full name?
A. Henry Percy Woodward.

Q. When was the trial in the Parkin action against Harwood?

A. Around April or May, 1920.

Q. Is your memory clear on that?

A. Yes.

Q. You were a witness in that case?

A. Ye?.

Q. You had given evidence in that case before Mr. Eeynolds was called you

had been in the witness box, had taken the oath and given your evidence ..before

he gave his?

A. I cannot swear whether he or I gave evidence first.

Q. Surely you remember that who were you called as a witness for?..

A. Parkin.

Q.- -Didn't you give evidence before Mr. Reynold?

/Y.I would make no statement on that because I don't remember.
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Q. You did give evidence that day?
A. Yes.

Q. Your evidence was different from what Reynolds gave?
A. Yes. . , ,

Q. You were in Parkin's employ at that time ?

A. Yes.

Q. And you are still?

A. Yes.

Q. And you have been on the job from before Parkin brought his action

down to now?
A. Yes.

Q. You say you called Reynolds, over here, a liar when he came down out

of the box?

A. Yes.

Q. What did he say?
A. "I know I am but Parkin is going to swear my life away when his case

comes up so why shouldn't I swear his away.

Q. You tell this Committee that that is what Reynolds said?

A. Yes, that is what Reynolds said.

Q. And you can't remember whether you had been in the witness box at

that time or not?

A. No.

Q. But you are clear about this other part of it?

A. Yes.

Q. As soon as you heard Reynolds say what you have now told us, what did

you do?

A. After we went out of the court I told Parkin what Reynolds had said.

Q. That was on the very day it happened?
A. Yes.

Q. Was ^foodward, your chum with you when you went to Parkin ?

A. Yes.

Q. Both together?
A. Yes.

Q. And you and Matthews had a talk before you saw Parkin about what

Reynolds said?

A. We did, yes.

Q. And you said, "Matthews, did you hear what Reynolds said when I

told him he was a liar?"

A. Yes.

Q. And what did Matthews say?

A. He said something about him having a hell of a nerve or something.

Q. You talked it over between you and Matthews and then decided you
would go and see Parkin?

A. No, we didn't decide to go and see Parkin.

Q. You did see him?

A. Only because we were going to Dundas, he drove us back.

Q. You decided to tell him that?

A. We didn't decide to tell him, it was me that told him. Matthews jn.=t
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said, "He has one hell of a nerve." And I said, "I will say he has." We started

to talk about other things then.

Q. When was it that you made up your mind that you were going to tell

Parkin what this man said?

A. It was during the conversation I told him. It was when we got in the

car and were driving away. Parkin was asking about the case and I told him
what Reynolds said.

Q. Had the judge given a decision at that time?

A. No.

Q. Judgment was reserved?

A. Yes.

Q. But you were pretty sure you were going to win the case?

A. I didn't know. I wasn't enough interested in the case. I was just

there as a witness.

Q. Was it not your opinion you were going to win?

(Objection taken).

Q. It was on the way home, at all events, that you told Parkin?
A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember what time of the day it was?
A. We had lunch. I would say it was about two o'clock or so.

Q. Was anybody there except Parkin and Matthews and yourself?
A. No.

Q. Do you remember how long Reynolds was sitting beside you after he

came out of the box?

A. I would say about twenty minutes.

Q. Did you have much of a chat?

A. No.
'

Q. Was anything said except what you told us?

A. Not directly on that case, no.

Q. When you told Parkin about this what did Parkin say?
A. He says, "Are you prepared to swear out an affidavit to that effect?" I

said, "Yes, I am."

Q._What happened?
A. We went up an'd swore out an affidavit.

Q. He took you down to whom?
A. To Mr. Lawrason, in Dundas.

Q. At the end of the journey you went right to Lawrason's office?

A. Yes, right to his office.

Q You never got a minute from the time you mentioned it, you were

never a minute away from Parkin until he took you to Lawrason's office. Mr.

Lawrason drew up the affidavits and you signed them there?

A. We stayed at the garage and Parkin went to Lawrason's office and

then called tus up from there.

Q^You went and made an affidaYit and Mathews made an affidavit.?

A. Yes.

Q._What was in those affidavits? (Affidavits presented).

Q. Now Mr. Woodward, was Mr Lawrason tfie lawyer who was acting for

Parkin that day?



290 APPENDIX No. 2. 1921

A. Yes.

Q. In the case of Parkin against Harwood?

A. Yes.

Q. And Mr. L,awrason was Parkin's lawyer in the case of Reynolds' case

against Parkin?

A. Yes.

Q. You have told us you have always been in the employ of Parkin since

this Harwood case and are still working for him?.

A. Yes, except for two months.

Q. You were out West some place?

A. Yes.

Q. I suppose you and Matthews were quite free in your comments about

the trial on the drive home after the trial, with Mr. Parkin. You were talking

all about it?

A. The case was brought up in just the ordinary conversation for a few

minutes and then we would switch to something else.

Q. You were all on the same side and quite enthusiastic about winning.

(Over-ruled by Chairman a|s immaterial).

Q. You were quite positive about winning the case?-

(Over-ruled).

Q. "Were you desirous that Parkin should win this case?

A. It made no difference to me whatever.

Q. Now, Mr. Woodward, how long before this Harwod case had you been

working for Parkin?
A. About six or seven months.

Q. And Parkin knew you well in that time?
A. Yes.

Q. And he knew Matthews well?

A. Yes.

Q- And he knew whether you were a man who was truthful or not?
A I think he should, in that time.

Q. He knew just how reliable you were?
A. He ought to.

Q. And as soon as you told him this story about Reynolds on the way home,
as soon as you told him that you had told Reynolds he was a liar, and that Rey-
nolds had given the answer you have sworn to, he insisted on you going before

a lawyer and taking an affidavit?

A Yes.

Q. The first business Parkin did after you disclosed to him what you tell

us now was to get you before a lawyer and get you signed and sworn as to what

jou had told him, before you got away ?

A. Yes.

Q. He insisted that that be done?

A. He didn't exactly insist. He said, "Will you swear an affidavit to that."

And I said, 'Yes."

Q pid he insist that you do it? Didn't he insist that you go and do that?

^ ^f he didn't insist. He asked me if I would. If that is insisting

then he insisted.
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Q. Do you remember that day, how you took your oath?

A. Standing up.

Q. Do you remember whether a Bible was used?

A. Yes, a Bible was used.

Q. Did he explain the meaning of this affidavit to you that day?

A. No, he didn't. I didn't know an affidavit from a newspaper.

Q. He did tell you you would have to stick to that and be prepared to

swear to it?

(Objection to form of question).

Q. Didn't Mr. Lawrason tell you that you would have to stick to the story

told that day and that you would be expected to swear to it at the Reynolds case?

A. Yes, he did.

Q. And from that time to now you have stuck to that story and you .swore

that at the Reynolds case?

(No answer).
THE CHAIRMAN: That was a double question. Did you mean to say yes, to

both of those questions?
A. No.

Question read by stenographer.
WITNESS: I say, "yes," to the first question, and "No," to the second.

MR. McCRAE : Did Parkin tell you that you would be called as a witness

in the Reynolds case to tell what was in this affidavit?

A. No, or the simple reason that Reynolds had me as his witness.

Q. What did you mean when you said that Lawrason told you you would

have to stick to that story ?

A. That if this case came up again I would have to swear to it again.
THE CHAIRMAN: There might have been a retrial.

MR. MCRAE: At all events, in case this came up again you were to stick

to your story and swear what was in the affidavit?

A. Why, certainly.

Q. Now you are quite sure you took the affidavit standing up?
A. Yes.

'

Q. You are quite sure a Bible was used?

A. Positive.

Q. You kissed the Bible?

A. Yes.

Q- Do you remember whether the book was open or shut when you kissed it?

A. I don't remember because I had to kiss one at the other court.

Q- Mr. Lawrason, the lawyer told you it was an affidavit, you remember that?

A. Yes.

Q. And a Bible was produced and you swore that what you said was true?

A. Yes.

Q- 'Was Matthews sworn in the same way?
A. Yes.

Q. In your presence ?

A. In my presence, yes.

Q. You had went through the same ordeal?

A. Yes.
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Q. Then after you left Lawrason's office you went where?

A. Back to the garage.

Q. And how long after that was it that the case of Reynolds against Parkin

came up?
A. I was away when the first case came up. I was out West.

Q. Not when the Harwood case come up?
A. No.

Q. Did you tell Mr. Parkin before the Harwood case came up what you were

going to swear in the Harwood case ?

A. I didn't tell him I was going to swear anything. I told him when we

returned from seeing Harwood, when we went down after the truck. I remem-

ber telling him what Harwood said.

Q. Parkin knew before the case of Harwood came up what you were going to

swear ?

A. He heard me say that Harwood said he was going to pay for the damage.

Q. In the Harwood case did Parkin take you to Lawrason's office to make

you swear an affidavit as to what your evidence would be in the case?

A. No.

Q. It was only in the Reynolds case ?

A. Yes.

Q. Well then Mr. Woodward when did you have the next talk with Mr. Par-

kin after you left Mr. Lawrason's office as to the Reynolds case?

A. I can't say that.

Q. You had a great many talks or did you have many talks about the Rey-
nolds case ?

A. We would discuss it now and again, yes.

Q. How often?

A.. I would not say how often.

Q. Did you have a talk with Mr. Lawrason after you made your affidavit

before you gave your evidence in the Reynolds case ?

A. No. I am not acquainted with Mr. Lawrason.

Q. Did you ever see him between the time you took the affidavit and the

time you gave evidence in the Reynolds case ?

A. I saw him when he brought his car into the garage. That was the only
time, I spoke to him at all.

Q. You did give evidence in the Reynolds case?

A. Yes.

Q. You were called by whom?
A. I was subpoenaed by Reynolds.

Q. Reynolds gave you a subpoena but Reynolds didn't call you?
A. No, Mr. Washington called me, Crown Attorney Washington of Hamilton.

Q. He was Parkin's lawyer?
A. Yes.

Q. And he called you?
A. Yes.

Q. The trial of this Harwood case was in April or May, as you recall it?

A. Yes.

Q._And the day of the trial of the Harwood action you told this story, after
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the court, to Parkin and Parkin took you to Mr. Lawrason's office to swear an

affidavit ?

A. Yes.

Q. And the affidavit was sworn to on that day?
A. Yes.

Q. There is no doubt in your mind about it?

A. I am positive.

MR. McCRAE: Taking declaration (exhibit "A"). This you say was on the

day the trial took place, and it is dated the 17th day of December, 1920, and not

April, 1920. What explanation have you to make now about the difference be-

tween your story that the trial was in April or May, in the Harwood case and

that on the day of the trial you took this affidavit, and the fact that this affidavit

is dated the 17th of December, before Mr. Lawrason. What is your explanation?
A. I have made a mistake in the months or there is something wrong in

there. I am positive it was the day of the trial.

THE CHAIRMAN: At the bottom of this declaration it clearly shows that

you made a solemn declaration. Ordinarily you would not have to kiss the Bible

to do that. Do you remember now whether in this case when you swore to this

declaration, when you did make an oath, whether you were sworn on the Bible or

not?

A. On the Bible.

Q. A Bible actually wals used?

A. Yes. (witness excused).

WALLACE MATTHEWS : Called and sworn.

Examined by Mr. Brackin.

Q. Where did 'you live?

A. Hamilton.

Q. Where you in court at the time a suit was brought against Harwood by
Parkin for truck damage, and was tried at Hamilton?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you give evidence?

A. Yes.

Q. Did Eeynolds give evidence ?
'

A. Yes.

Q. Did you give evidence before Reynolds gave evidence or after?

A. I don't remember.

Q. Do you remember where Reynolds, after he gave his evidence, went and

sat in the court room, in respect to where you were sitting?

A. He sat next to Mr. Wroodward.

Q. Where were you sitting?

A. On the other side of Woodward.

Q. So that you sat together in the court room?

A. Yes.

Q.Do you remember what evidence Reynolds gave with regard to the ques-

tion of whether or not Harwood had agreed to pay for repairs to the truck?

A. He said Harwood didn't.

Q. Had you been there at the time Harwood said something about that?

A. Yes.
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Q. What I want to get at is this : One of the main points in the Harwood

case was as to whether or not Harwood when you and Matthews and Reynolds
were present had agreed to pay for repairs to the truck that had been injured ?

A. He did agree.

Q. That was one of the questions you were trying out?

A. Yes.

Q. You and Woodward gave evidence as to what you heard Harwood say?

A. Yes.

Q. You say, I think, that Reynolds was there but that Reynolds went into

the box and said Harwood didn't agree to pay?
A. Yes.

Q. You say Reynolds was giving evidence on the same point. He was giv-

ing evidence on behalf of Harwood ?

A. Yes.

Q. You and Woodward gave evidence on behalf of Parkin?

A. Yes.

Q. I think that you have already told me that Reynolds swore he didn't agree

to pay the damage?
"

A. Yes.

Q. You and Woodward swore he had agreed to pay?
A. Yes.

Q. You have already told us that you and Woodward were there for the pur-

pose of giving evidence that Harwood agreed to pay for the damage. Reynolds

who, I think was there at the time, went into the box and swore that Harwood

didn't agree to pay for the damage?
A. That is right.

Q. Having given that evidence you, knowing what you knew about it, when
he came and sat down, did either you or Woodward speak to him about it?

A. Woodward did.

Q. What did he say?
A. He said he was an awful liar, that he knew Harwood said he would

settle.

Q. What did Reynolds say to that?
A. "I know he did but Parkin will swear my life awa}

r when his case comes

up why shouldn't I swear his away now."

Q. After the trial was over with whom did you go back to Dundas, or did

you go back?

A. I went to a restaurant with Parkin and Woodward.

Q. Was anything said then by either of you to Parkin about what Reynolds
stated in the Court room ?

A. Yes, we told Parkin about it.

Q. After you told Parkin, what did .you do subsequently, did you do any-

thing further about it?

A. We went to the law office in Dundas?

Q. Whose law office?

A. Mr. Lawrason's.

Q. You went to his office in Dundas and swore an affidavit about it?

A. Yes.

(Affidavit identified.)
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MR. McCRAE: examining.

Q. At the time you gave your evidence in the Harwood case you were work-

ing for Mr. Parkin?

A. I don't think I was, just at the time.

Q. Will you make sure and ask Mr. Parkin if you were?

A. I am not sure because I was out of work for a few weeks about that time.

Q. You did work for him before that?

A. Yes.

Q. And you have been working for him since?

A. Yes.

Q. And you are now in his -employ in the garage at Dundas?
A. Yes.

Q. You sat in the court room that day and heard Reynolds give evidence

in the Harwood case?

A. Yes.

Q. You don't remember whether you had been in the witness box up to that

time or not?

A. No, I think I was called after Mr. Reynolds.

Q. You are pretty clear about that?

A. I would not swear to it.

Q. If you were called after Reynolds did you tell what Reynolds who had

just come out of the box said?

A. No.

Q. Why didn't you do that?

A. I don't know. We told Parkin shortly after.

Q. You knew it at that time?

A. Yes.

Q. Who spoke first when Reynolds came down and sat between you?
A. He did not sit between the two of uk. He sat on the left of Woodward

and I sat on the right of Woodward.

Q. Then Reynolds was not between the two of you?
A. No, sir.

Q, I understood Woodward said Reynolds sat between you. Your version

of it is that he didn't sit between you but to the left of Woodward and you were

on Woodward's right?
A. Yes.

Q. You were furthest away from Reynolds?
A. Yes, I was leaning over Woodward.

Q- In that case Woodward was the man who sat between you and Reynolds?
A. Yes.

Q. Were you expecting Woodward to say something like this to Reynolds?
A. I don't know about that but I knew Reynolds' story was false to my

knowledge and I expected something would be said. I thought something would

crop up between the Jthree of us.

Q. Reynolds did say what Woodward swears to in the affidavit?

A. Yes.

Q. What were the first words Woodward said to Reynold's when he came

down?

A. He said, "You are an awful liar."
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Q. Pretty loud?

A. Loud enough for me to hear.

Q. Then after the trial was over that day where was the first place you and

Woodward went?

A. With Mr. Parkin to the restaurant.

Q. You left the court house with Parkin?

A. Yes.

Q. Where was Parkin sitting when Reynolds came down from the box

and sat beside Woodward?
A. He was sitting at a desk I believe, in front.

Q. Beside his lawyer?
A. Yes.

Q. And as soon as the court adjourned you and Parkin and Woodward
went to a restaurant?

A. Yes.

Q. Was anything said in the restaurant about what Reynolds had said?

A. Yes, we told Mr. Parkin.

Q. Who told Mr. Parkin?

A. Reynolds told him first.

Q. In the restaurant?

A. Just as we were getting out of the car to go in.

Q. So that Parkin knew about it before you set out for Dundas that

afternoon ?

A. He had an idea of it anyway.

Q. Hadn't he told him?
A. Yes.

Q. He knew before you started for Dundas in the afternoon what Reynolds
was supposed to have said?

A. Yes.

Q. Woodward told him that?

A. Yes.

Q. Now was anything said in the restaurant about going to a lawyer and

having what was said put in an affidavit?

A. Not that I remember. He may have asked us if we would swear to it.

Q. What was the name of the place where the trial took place?
A. Hamilton.

Q. How far is it from Hamilton to Dundas?

A. Four or five miles.

Q. How did Lawrason come home that day he lives in Dundas?

A. I don't know.

Q. Was Lawrason engaged in the case that day in Hamilton?

A. No, I don't think so.

Q. Was he in the 'Court House?

A. Not that I know of.

Q. When did you first hear, Mr. Matthews, that you were going to have an

affidavit about what Reynolds said?

Q. Did you know about it until you were landed in the office of Mr,

Lawrason ?

A. I don't think I did.
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Q. You were taken up by Parkin with Woodward?

A. Yes.

Q. What was said when you first realized they were going to swear you

about what Reynolds said. Who was it mentioned first at Mr. Lawrason's office

that you should take the affidavit?

A. I just forget.

Q. Had you ever taken an affidavit before ?

A. No.

Q. Did you know at that time what an affidavit meant?

A. Yes.

Q. You were sworn on an affidavit and this is your signature here?

A. Yes.

Q. Was it on the Bble?

A. Yes.

Q. Who administered the oath?

A. Mr. Lawrason.

Q. Did Mr. Lawrason say to you that it would be necessary to stick to that

story in case it was necessary to give evidence on the point on a later date?

A. I don't think so.

Q. I would like you to be clear on that, was anything said to you about

that, that you would have to stick to the story?

A. Not that I remember.

Q. Was any reason given by Parkin or by Lawrason why you two boys should

be sworn on an affidavit in reference to this matter?

A. No, not that I know of.

Q- Do you know now why you were asked to take an affidavit?

A. They had another law-suit on.

Q- They wanted to make sure that the story you told then would be told

I

at that law-suit?

A. I don't know that.
,

Q- Mr. Matthews, do you know what a statutory declaration is?

A. No.

Q. You do know what an affidavit is?

A. I have a good idea.

Q. Do you know that the document you signed was not an affidavit but a

statutory declaration only?

No answer.

Q. Do you know the difference between an affdavit and a statutory declara-

tion?

A. No, I do not.

BA.

No.

Q. Do you know what a statutory declaration is?
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Q. What is an affidavit?

A. All I know is that you just swear a thing on oath. That is all I know,

you sign your name to it.

Q. Did you ever see Mr. Lawrason about that little paper you signed, after

that? Did you ever have any talk with him?

A. No.

Q. Were you given a copy that day, of the paper you signed?

A. No.

Q. Who kept the affidavit Parkin or Lawrason?

A. Lawrason, so far as I know.

Q. You don't know whether Parkin got a copy of it?

A. No.

Q. Were you reminded afterward by Parkin that you had signed this and

that you would have to stick to that story?

A. Not that I know of.

Q. Were you reminded by Parkin?

A. I don't think so

Q. Never before the trial?

A. I don't think so.

Q. Do you remember the day you gave evidence at the trial?

A. Yes^.

Q. You were shown this before you went into the box?

A. I don't think I was.

Q. Please think. Didn't you -see that affidavit before you took your oath

at the trial and read it over before you gave evidence in the Reynolds case?

A. No, I did not.

Q. Bid you ever see it from the time you swore to it in Lawrason's office

until to-day.

A. No.

Q. No one ever read it over to you?
A. No.

Q. It never was discussed?

A. No.

Q. You didn't call Reynolds a liar?

A. No, Woodward called him that.

Q. What did Reynolds say then?

A. He said he knew Harwood said he would pay for it, that Parkin would

swear his life away when their case came up, why shouldn't he swear Parkin's

life away then.

Q. That was all that was said?

A. Yes.

Q. And the conversation stopped right there?

A. Yes.

Q. You heard Reynolds say it was false, absolutely false?

A. I didn't hear him say that.
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THE CHAIRMAN: Matthews was out of the room.

MR. McCRAE: Well, he did say it was absolutely untrue. In the face of

that do you still stick to your story ?

A. Why, certainly.

MR. DRURY: What is your occupation?
A. Motor mechanic.

Q. Have you always been that?

A. No.

Q. Did you ever have anything to do with law-suits or courts before?

A. Up in Hamilton, that was all.

MR. BRACKIN: You gave evidence there?

A. Yes.

Q. And you told the same story that you told here in regard to this matter?
A. Yes.

Witness excused.

L. C. PARKIN, recalled. Asked to identify letter from himlself to Parkin with

cheque enclosure.

A. If this was mailed by registered letter, we have the stub from regis-

tration.

THE CHAIRMAN: Can you say whether it was written and mailed the day

ib

was dated?

A. Yes, it was written and mailed on the same day.

Q. This is your signature?
!

A. Yes. r

Q. And this is the original?
A. Yes.

Letter read and put in as exhibit "A," containing cheque and copies of two

original letters.

MR. McCRAE: That letter was sent on or about March 9, to Mr. Reynolds?
A. Yes.

Q. You signed the letter ?

A. That is my signature.

Q. Who wrote the letter?

A. I think Mr. Lawrason wrote the letter and then my girl re-wrote it

on my letter-head.

THE CHAIRMAN: You mean Mr. Lawrason dictated it?

A. Yes, and my girl re-wrote it.

MR. McCRAE : The letter say you are tendering a marked cheque for $459.62.

A. That was commission on cars sold.

Q. How was the $400 arrived at, Mr. Parkin?

A. I went to my lawyer and explained the situation, he pointed out that it

ould cost me probably $400 or $500

Q. It was not figured out on any basis it was just an offer?

A. Yes, just an offer.

Q. What was the total amount of the contract price for these trucks?

A. I cannot give it to the dollar, $99,600 and something, I think.

Q. What ran it up to $117,000?
A. There were two trucks purchased after that. I think in that statement
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there are supplies purchased for the running purposes of the trucks when they

were in West Flamboro.

Q. The total Government purchase from you was in the neighborhood of

$117,000?
A. Yes, trucks and supplies.

Q. How much of it would be supplies?
A. I can't tell, probably a thousand.

Q. The first tender you put in was* for eight trucks?

A. Twelve.

Q. What was the total of that?

A. The two tenders came to $99,600, odd.

Q. W^as that the tender accepted on the 30th of December, 1919?
A. Two tenders were accepted on that day.

Q. Subsequently the Government bought two additional trucks?
A. Yes.

Q. What was the tender on those?

A. $9,100 each, $18,200.

Q- The last two trucks were purchased when?
A. I cannot give you that off-hand. I presume it would be about June.
Q. The balance of the total sum of $117,000 then would be made up of

supplies ?

A. There was one McLaughlin car.

Q. What was it worth? $1,400?
A. No, the list price of the car was $2,925.
Q. What did you sell it for?
A. $3,800.

Q, The contract of the 30th of December, for approximately $99,000, two
extra trucks amounting to $18,200 and a McLaughlin car at $2,800 would be
substantially the total dealings with the Government outside of some repairs?

A. I think that would be about it.

Q. When did you receive the first cheque from the Government on account
of the purchase?

A. March 3, 1920.

Q. How much was that?

A. That cheque was for $15,033.

Q. Is that shown in your bank book?
A. Yes, sir.

Bank book produced.

Q. There is an item here, on the 3rd, $15,033?

A. That is the one.

Q. When was the next item received from the Government?

A. On the 10th.

Q. The sum amounted then to $15,033?

A. Yee.

Q.
_When was the next one received?

A._On March 12, a Government cheque was paid to Grace Motors and they

gave me their cheque for $1,986.

Q. How much was the cheque?
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A. $15,033.

Q. Was that paid to Grace Motors by the Government?

A. Xo, I paid the Grace Motors. The reason I did that was that the

Grace Motors wanted to charge one-tenth of one per cent, on my cheques as

collection charges. Their bankers told them they were going to do that.

Q. 'Now why do you say that was paid to Grace Motors?

A. Because the Bank of Commerce charged them a commission on these

cheques. And an order to do away with that I got the Grace Motors to give me my
profit on their personal cheque and I gave them the Government cheque.

Q. Was this Government cheque payable to your order ?

A. Yes, and I endorsed it to Grace Motors.

Q. How much did you get back from Grace Motors?
A. $1,968, that was on the 12th of March.

Q. What was that paid you back for?

A. That was my commission.

Q. On what amount?
A. On $15,033.

Q. At what rate?

A. There were two rates, 15 per cent, on the chassis and 7% per cent, on

dump equipment.
Q- And you say that amounted to $1,969.
A. Yes.

"

Q. What day did you receive that cheque from them?
A. March 12.

Q. You deposited it, I see on the 13th?
A. Yes.

Q. When was the next cheque received from the Government?

A. March 31.

Q. How much did you receive then?

A. $27,300.

Q. What did you do with that cheque?
A. I brought them a marked cheque from my bank marked at par in To-

ronto, for $23, 486.25.

Q. Was the difference your commission calculated in the same way?
A. Yes.

Q. When was the next cheque received?

A. The same day.

Q._Is that the item of $9,100?

A. Yes.

Q Were the Government cheques in favor of the Grace Motors or in

your favor?

A. They were in my favor.

Q. You turned them over to the Grace Motors?

ANo I think they are deposited in that book there.

Statement prepared from books of Grace Motors, of L. C. Parkin, account

presented by witness. Marked as Exhibit B. Total
$91,949^25.

MB MoOEAE: I see there are two items, of $7,900, on the 28th of May,

and one on the 17tii of May, of $7,972. I Bee there is a credit item in your
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bank book of $9,175, on the 15th of May that would be the cheque from the

Government for one of the trucks on the second order?

A. I would not swear to that.

Q. There is this item on the 15th of May, of $9,175.60, and a further

credit item on the 20th of May, of $9,100. Would these be the two cheques
for the two trucks you thought were purchased about June?

A. I guess likely they will.

Q. I notice that after you received one cheque on the 15th of May, for

$9,175.60, which appears to your credit, you paid out a cheque of $7,962.50
would that be to the Grace Motors?

A. Yes.

Q. And would the difference between $7,962.50 and $9,175.60 be your

commission, approximately ?

A. In that neighborhood. There may be other things put in there at the

same time. I cannot go to work and swear that.

Q. What was your commission on the second two trucks?

A. On the same basis, 15 on the chassis and 7% on the dump equipment.
Q. I notice on this copy of the ledger marked Exhibit "B", and which

you say is a statement from the Grace Motors' ledger that they invoiced you
for 12 trucks at $86,167.50, is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q, The total amount paid by the Government was $99,699?
A. Yes.

Q. And on the two truckjs purchased later for which the Government paid

$18,200, your commission would be computed on the same basis as the first

deal?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember approximately how much those commissions were?

A. I cannot tell you that from memory.

Q. You would know, you would have an idea of what the commissions

amounted to?

A. About $1,100 each.

Q._Now Mr. Parkin, you were agent for the Sterling trucks in that sec-

tion of the Province?

A. Yes, I have the Niagara Peninsular.

Q. Before I leave the Grace Motes did you make any deposit with the

Grace Motors when the deal was closed?

A. You mean when I took the order in?

A. No.

Q. When did you pay the Grace Motors the first money by way of deposit

or anything else?

A. I have a contract deposit with them that has been there since T took

over the agency.

Q. But that had nothing to do with this deal?

A. No.

Q. Did you make any deposit or pay anything before you got the first

cheque from the Government?
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A. I did not.

Q. You were the agent for Sterling trucks in your district?

A. I have the Niagara district.

Q. When did you get that agency?
A. January 27, 1919.

Q. And up to the time you sold the Government order had you disposed
of many Sterling trucks?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. How many?
A. I think I sold nineteen.

Q. Up to December, 1919?
A. Yes.

|

Q. Was there ever a time in the sale of these nineteen trucks before you
dealt with the Government when you gave a discount on the sale of trucks?'

A. No, sir.

Q. Is there any provision in any of the contracts of the Grace Motors for

discounts where a large number of trucks are bought by railways or govern-
ment concerns?

A. Not that I have ever seen.

Q. Did you ever hear of that?

A. No, sir.

Q. Where was the headquarters for Grace Motors?

A. 255 Queen Street, East, Toronto.

Q. Did they advise you from time to time as to changes in the prices

of trucks?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. ln what form would that advice come?

A. It would come from the wholesale department.

Q. In the form of a letter?

A. Yes, also a sheet showing the advance in each individual truck.

Q. There would be a regular formal business communication giving you
the changes in prices from time to time?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you receive a communication in December, 1919? .

A. I did."

Q. Telling you prices would be advanced?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you that here?

A. No, I haven't.

Q. Can you get that for the Committee?

A. Yes, I will.

Q. Do you recall now what was said in that letter?

A. That on and after January 1, there would be an advance.

Q. Did the price advance after January 1st?

A. Yes ,sir.

Q. What percentage?

A. I cannot go to work and give you the exact percentage for 1

reason* that on some models it would not advance as much as on others. It
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would be approximately 10 per cent.

Q. When I spoke a moment ago with reference to an advance in prices

I spoke about trucks?

A. Yes, I am referring to trucks.

Q. Now, were the prices actually advanced on the 3% and 5-ton trucks

after the first of the year?
A. Yes, after the 1st of January.

Q. You say that advance was 10 per cent.?

A. Yes, approximately.

Q. Did you make any sales of Sterling trucks at the advanced prices?
A. Yes, sir. We have been selling them right along.

Q. At the advanced price, 10 per cent, greater that the price at which

they weres sold to the Government?
A. Yes. The Grace Motors supply the prices and you have to sell at

those prices.

Q. Is that the list price?
A. Yes.

Q. Do you understand that there is no discount to anyone off the list

price?

A. No, sir, and I never gave it to anyone.

Q. Do you know whether Grace Motors did make a discount on list prices?
A. I never heard of it.

Q. Do you know whether there were any other commissions allowed in this

Sterling truck deal other than to you?
A. There naturally would be a commision for the reason that Grace Motors

have the selling agency for Canada.

Q. A commission to whom?
A. To Grace Motors.

MR. HOMUTH: That is a commission from the American concern.

THE CHAIRMAN: You mean a oommitesion by the manufacturers to Grace

Motors as having the agency for Canada?

A. Yes, the distributors.

Q. In this case there would be two commissions?

A. There is on any truck.

Q. You get one commission?

A. I get my selling commission.

Q- That was computed at 15 per cent, on the chassis and 7 Ms per cent, on
the dump equipment?

A. Yes.

Q. And in addition to that you say this agency in Toronto as distributors

would also get a commission?

A. Yes.

Q. How much?
A. I cannot tell that.

Q. You don't know anything about that?

A. No.

Q. Have you got the form of contract supplied you by Grace Motors as

distributors? Have you your contract between you and Grace Motors?
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A. Yes.

Q. Where is it.

A. In Dundas.

Q. Will you bring it along?
A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN : Is this the first time you have been asked for that ?

A. Yes.

MR. McCRAE: Where is your bank account prior to February, 1920?

A. It was transferred out of one bank into another. That one had all the

Government cheques and I thought that would suffice for what you wanted. That
is from February, 20. That was previous to any Government cheque. I didn't

see that anything previous to that was required.

Q. Now Mr. Parkin there are one or two questions I want to ask you.
It has been said that prior to your getting this contract you were indebted to

Mr. Biggs?

A. I never owed Frank Biggs ten dollars in my life.

Q. It has also been said Mr. Parkin that on the 31st of December, the day
after this contract was signed you and Mr. Biggs and a third person went over

to Buffalo to celebrate the securing of this contract?

A. I never was in Buffalo with Mr. Biggs in my life.

Q. I want to find out from you where you got the specifications for the Ster-

ling trucks as placed in your tender, where you got the information as to the

specifications as to the Government requirements which you put in your tender

for Sterling trucks?

A. I just got that out of the price list, the catalogue.

Q. You didn't get that from Mr. Biggs?
A. Oh, no.

Q. You are quite clear about that?

A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN: Did you hear that question, where did you get the x speci-

fications of what the Government required?

A. Out of the Sterling Literature.

MR. McCRAE: How did you get this out of the Sterling book if you didn't

know what the Government required?
A. I tendered on dump equipment and dump equipment ite the same

whether the Government buys it or anyone else buys it.

Q. How did you know the Government required a tender on dump equip-
ment. How did you know enough to go to the price list and take out certain

things ?

A. Mr. Biggs mentioned about the dump trucks.

Q. You got the information from Mr. Biggs?

A. Yes, I thought you meant the way it was compiled on' the tender.

Q. i wanted to know where you got your information as to what the Govern-

ment required?

A. From Mr. Biggs.

Q. Did you go any place with Mr. Biggs on the 31st of December?

A. No, sir.

Q.__To go back to the 30th of December, the day you got the tender I wasn t
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here when Mr. Price examined you, who did you see in Mr. Biggs
7 room that

morning ?

A. On that point I would like to make a correction. I stated that Mr.

McLean was in there. I do not think Mr. McLean was there.

Q. You stated in your former evidence that Mr. McLean was there ?

A. Yes, and I would like to correct that now.

Q. You are satisfied he was not there that morning?
A. Yes.

Q. One other point, Mr. Hogarth was there?

A. Yes.

Q. And the Minister was there?

A. Yes.

Q. What is your recollection as to the signing of that contract that morning ?

A. I don't know exactly what was put on it that morning. I was over on

this side of the table and Mr. Biggs and Mr. Hogarth were on the other side of the

table. I would not go to work and swear I could read from the back the (signatures.

It was my opinion and is yet that it was signed that morning.

Q. Signed by whom ?

A. Mr. Biggs and Mr. Hogarth.
Q. Your recollection is that it was signed by both of them that morning?
A. Yes.

MR. BRACKIN: On this question of a discount to the Government. You
have told Mr. McCrae that the (subject of a discount was never mentioned?

A. Not mentioned at all.

Q. I want to bring your mind to one specific instance. Reynolds has said

here that one day when you were discussing the matter, the day Mr. Biggs was there,

which was before you made up your tender, that you spoke to Mr. Biggs in Rey-
nolds' presence indicating a willingness on your part to give the Government a

discount of 10 per cent, and Reynolds (said, "Why do that, why charge someone

else 100 per cent, and let the Government off for less," and Biggs turned and said,

"You listen to him and he will make you some money." Did such a conversa-

tion take place in the presence of Mr. Biggs?
A. Absolutely not.

Q. Did any conversation in which a discount was suggested ever take place

when you and Reynold^ were together?

A. I never suggested a discount.

Q. Was there ever any conversation between you and Reynolds either in

Biggs' presence or not in regard to giving the Government a discount?

A. No, sir.

MR. McCRAE: Who would be the officer in charge of Grace Motors who

signed this letter as to an advance in prices?

A. I think the. signature that was on my letter was Blackmore.

Q. Do you remember at the time if he was manager?

A. No, he wals an assistant down there, in what capacity I could not swear.

Q. You will let us see those letters to that effect and your contract?

A. Yes.

Witness excused.
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J. M. MOWAT, called and sworn.

Examined by Mr. Dew-art:

Q. Mr. Mowat ,you are chief clerk and accountant of what is commonly known
as the License Branch?

A.Yes.
Q. And you deal with accounts that relate to the administration and the

enforcement of the O.T.A. amongst other things?
A.Yes.
Q. Have you anything to do with administration or simply with question^

of accounts?

A. Simply questions of accounts.

Q. In the accounts of last year, I find on page 542, a number of items re-

lating to the travelling expenses of officers, beginning with J. A. Ayearst,
$923. 62?

A.Yes.
Q. Mr. Ayearst occupies what position?
A. Chief Provincial Inspector.

Q. His duties would require him to travel all over the Province ?

A.Yes.

Q. There is no question as to the reasonableness of that account?

A. No, they were all reasonable.

Q. There is an item here W. K. Snider, $979.50. Who is Snider?

A. He is the Provincial Inspector in charge of standard hotels.

Q. Then the account of J. 0. L. Spracklin, $1,674.49. Who is Mr. Spracklin?
A. He was a Provincial officer, a (specially appointed Provincial officer.

Q. Are you aware as to the territorial jurisdiction he has, the territory he

covers ?

A. He was specially assigned to Essex and Windsor.

Q. Will you produce the accounts and see if from them the date of his

appointment and the amounts paid to him for (services or expenses?
A. I think it would be about July.

Accounts produced.

Q. This is the account for his expenses?
A.Yes.
Q. Have you an account for the .payment of his salary?
A. The salary would be charged in that amount to special officers.

Q. You mean the $47,000 item?

A.Yes.

Q. Now take this item for travelling expenses. I see it commence^ on

August 21'. Can you from that ascertain when his 'salary started to run. I am
anxious to know whether his expenses began to run about the same time aJs his

appointment ?

A. Those are all the accounts covered by that item.

Q. Was there a car furnished for Mr. Spracklin?

A. There was a car purchased.

IQ.> For his special njse?

A. For his use and the use of the district.

Q. Perhaps you can turn up that account I see an item in the Public

Accounts, page 542, Automobile and Supply Ltd., automobiles and supplies
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$5,007.60, would that be it?

Account produced.

Q. This is an account of the 6th of October, 1920, "Hon. Provincial Treas-

urer, please pay Automobile and Supply Ltd., 100 University Avenue, one Paige

touring car and insurance, per account attached hereto, $5,007.60, charge to Law
Enforcement Account, Provincial Secretary, misscellaneous, J. D. Flavelle, Chair-

man/' with a rubber stamp, "I hereby certify that the sum of $5,007.60 is required

to be paid as provided in Chapted 50, 6 George 5, sub-section 2, of section 117."

Q. At that time apparently the License Commission was still under the

Provincial Secretary's department?
A. Yes.

Q. Are they still?

A. No, under the Attorney-General.

Q. That applies to all matters of administration and expenses as well as

law enforcement?

A. Yes.

Q. What time did the change come into effect?

A. I am not sure about that. It was in November or December, I think.

Q- The invoice for the car shows that the price was $4,700 and with extra

fittings including one set of Gabriel snubbers, a rear bumper, motor meter, two
spotlights $22, so that the whole thing came to $4,813.15, insurance $201.60,
and the license fee of $17.50 was deducted, as it was a departmental car. Are
you aware that this car was purchased for the express use of Spracklin and
his squad?

A. No, it was purchased in the first place for his use and it was intended
for the use of the whole district.

Q. And particularly for Mr. Spracklin?
A. Yes.

Q- The Paige car, als you know, is a high speed car?

Q. What speed will it make?
A. I don't know anything about that.

Q- Is it not a fact that the car was turned over to Spracklin?
A. Yes.

Q. And, I have been advised, was kept by him during the time he was

in charge of the work there?

A. As far as I know.

Q. Prior to that, apparently, there had been a little different system be-

cause I see in the statement of Spracklin's expenses, charges beginning on August
23, "Own car, 6hours, $1.50 per hour, $9 ; August 24, own car, 4 hours $1.50 per

hour, $$; August 25, own car, 3 hours, $1.50 per hour, $4.50; Augnust 26, own car

4 hours, $1.50 per hour, $6: August 27, own oar ,4 hours, $1.50 per hour, $6. I

find that these items, 23 in all running down to the 5th of August, the date the

Paige car was bought were part of the travelling expenses of Mr. Spracklin, so

that he was charging $1.50 per hour to the Department for the use of his own
car?

A. Yes.

Q. And he was allowed to do that?

&. -Yes
?

it wafc cheap.
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Q. What kind of a car was it, I understand it was a Ford?
A. I don't know.

Q. On some days he charged as high as $2 per hour and received for nine

hours $18, on other days for 8 hours he received $1'6, on another day for 10 hours
he received $20, and this was for the use of his own car ?

A. Certainly.

Q. Did the Department supply him with a boat as well?

A. Yes.

Q. Where is the charge for the boat?
A. In next yearns accounts.

Q. Do you know what the price paid was?
A. $3,500.

Q. A gasoline high speed launch?

A. Yes.

Q. When was it bought?
A. I don't know when that was bought.

Q. The reason I ask is that I find items like these, on Aug. 28, supplies for

boat including meals $9.70; August 31, supplies for boat $9.40, and so on, simi-

lar charges at different points. Those were for the boat which you say was pur-

chased for Spracklin's express use?

A. For use on the river up there.

Q. Then I find items for the days when apparently Spracklin's own car

was out of business, September 15, taxi, 12 hours, $3 per hour, $36; September
16, taxi, 12 hours at $3, $36; a number of days when there was a taxi for twelve

hours at $36.00 a day. Do you know why that taxi wate employed?
A. No, I don't personally, he sometimes required extra cars. Do you notice

that this charge for the outside car was $3, and it was only half that for his

own car.

Q. Will you tell me who checked over these charges for the use of these cars?

A. Spracklin vouched for the use of them.

Q. Was there any voucher for the payment of these items or to show that

the cars were actually used these hours except Mr. Spracklin's own voucher?

A. No. There are some vouchers there where he can get them, but Spracklin
vouched for the accounts.

Q. Then Spracklin wate vouching for his own personal expenses. I see here

that J. F. M. certifies that this account was examined, checked and found correct

"and I hereby recommend the same for his approval" but you say the only

check was the check by Spracklin himself?

A. The bills rendered by Spracklin were checked by us and approved by
the Board and the Minister.

Q. In amongst the items of travelling expenses I find, "Railway fares,

Hallam Brothers, Windsor to Toronto, return for two $37.50, and meals $4.25

totalling $41.75. How does that come to be in Spracklin's expense account?

A. I think he brought them down here for the information of the Board.

The Board wanted some information.

Q. Then I find an item here on the 12th of October, "Railway fares, Strat-

ford-Toronto for two, that with meals came to $12.60. Do you know what that

was for?

A. I don't remember that.
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Q. On the 14th of October, "Kailway ticket, Toronto to Windsor, return

from October 5> not used, sleeper $3.30, meals $4.60, coming to $7.50'. That

evidently is the return trip of the Hallam brothers?

A. I cannot tell that.

Q. Then there are three items he-re on October 15, "Salary, Wm.Hallam,

September 1 to 30, paid cheque $130; salary, S. M. Hallam $125, expense account,

S. M. Hallam $38.90. Can you explain why those items come to be in Spracklin's

account and are not charged as Hallam's expenses?
A. The Hallam's were under Spracklin and he paid their way.

Q. But why did he pay their salaries, salaries were paid by cheque?
A. These men were not Provincial officers, they were county constables.

Q. Were they not recognised by the Department as Departmental employees?
A. They were county constables under Sprancklin.

Q. If they were not in the employ and pay of the Government why did

Spracklin pay them?
A. They were under Spracklinfe direction altogether. He had power to

employ them or dismiss them at a moment's notice.

Q. Who arranged what they should receive?

A. He did, with the consent of the Board.

Q. 'So that the amount of salary was fixed by the Board?
A.-YeS .

Q. Then the Board had knowledge of the fact that these men were acting for

the Government?
A. They were acting for Spracklin.
Q. Did he ever hire any class of men independent of the Board ?

A. He had authority to hire what assistants he required.
Q. As he pleased ?

A. Yes.

Q. Then further down on October 23, there is an item of salary,
"

S. M.

Hallam, three weeks $94.50, aud his expense account is for $57.75. That is in

Sprackin's account?

A. Spracklin paid it.

Q. It seems rather curious to me that these men were employed by Spracklin,
the amount of their remuneration was approved by the License Board and yet you
want them to be treated as not Government employees?

^- I am not wanting one way or the other. They were employed by Sprack-
lin and were chosen by him. He had authority to employ men when he required
them.

Q- Do you in any accounts, at any other point find payments to either of

the Hallam brothers directly by the Department ?

A. No, I don't think so. I don't remember any anywhere.
Q. -The accounts for the $47,000, would they include some payments to the

Hallams ?

A. I am not very sure about that. I don't think so.

Q. How long did the Hallams remain in the employ of whoever they were em-

ployed by?
A. I don't know, I think it was a couple of months.

Q. There is an item of $47,216.69 for special officers, services and expenses.
Who engaged those special officerts?
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A.- As a rule the Provincial Inspectors.

Q. Who are the Provincial Inspectors ?

A. Ayearst, Sarvis, Bromley, Connors, Putman and Spracklin. Those are
in the Public Accounts.

Q- And what 'Service do these special officers perform?
A. Detective service.

Q. Did this include payments for the (service of those employed at Windsor
by Sprackin other than the Hallams?

A. Those would be in Spracklin's account, all those specially employed by
him.

Q. Have you the account of a man named Courrian there?
A. Yes.

Q. How long has Courrian been employed?
A. Seven or eight years I think.

Q- This is simply a statement of his travelling expenses, what about his re-
muneration?

A. His (salary is in that $47,000.

Q. The pay list would show what he received?

A. He was getting $125 a month.

Q. How long has he been receiving that?

A. I cannot tell that without going back to the orders in Council.

Q. It is the highest salary he has received isn't it?

A. No, he gets $150 a month now.

Q- Up to the time of last year's accounts $125 was the highest saalry paid
him?

Q. Up to the time of last year's acounts $125 was the highest salary paid
him?

A. Yes.

Q. And in addition to that he receives his travelling expenses?
A. Yes.

Q. i see amongst the travelling expensed of October, there is, "t\^o bottles

of whiskey $10, on the 21st, one bottle $5 on the 27th, one bottle $5," and then there

is an item at the foot, "I paid $50 deposit on 110 cases of whiskey to Barry Mich-

ankie, which I forgot to put in my last expense." These are certified to by Mr.

Ayearst ?

A. Yes.

Q. Apparently Courrian worked at Windsor?

A. Yes.

Q. I see from these account)? that in June he went to Windsor and he ap-

pears to have been at Windsor, Amherstburg, Tecumseh and other places?

I

A. He was there several weeks.

Q. The entries would show he was in Windsor and Amherstburg in August
and September and during October is there a man named Slavin on the pay-

Iroll

of the Department during the past year?
A. No.

Q. If he were one of the special officers employed by any of the inspectors

you would know that by your records?

A. Yes, I looked carefully in all the accounts.
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Q. You were to show me one of the accounts for the special officers any one,

I take it they are monthly accounts?

A. Those are for the special officers.

(Account produced).

Q. I see that in January, 1920, there were sixteen officers employed and
the pay-roll was $1,277.50. Then why does the payment of $18,071.97 to M. E.
White become necessary when you have these special officers to the number I
have mentioned, to whom did you pay $47,000?

A. We have special work sometimes and we have to get special men.
Q. Who is M. E. White?
A. He has a detective agency.
Q. Is it not the Employers' Detective Agency?
A. Yes.

Q. Then why does the account appear in his name still. The Employers'
Detective Agency, we learned last year, is an incorporated agency?

A. White renders the account in his own name.

Q. We learned that Provincial Inspector Morrilson was a considerable share-
holder in the Employers' Decretive Agency and because of that connection he
had to resign from the service of the Government. His resignation was asked for?

A. I do not know that his resignation was asked or. He resigned before they
asked him.

Q. It was under the former Government?
A. Yes.

Q. Then why is that agency that had that connection with Morrison still

retained ?

A. Because the Board and the Provincial Inspectors say they get better

service from them and at a cheaper rate than from anybody else.

Q. Have you any of the accounts give me one at random You have given
me the account covering September and October, 1920, amounting to $1,397.90.
I see you paid at the rate of $6 a day for the operators?

A- That is in New Ontario, we pay $5.50 in the older districts.

Q. And all expenses?
A. Yes.

Q. In this account it is quite clear that board and tickets and all incidentals

are paid in addition to $6 a day. I find that in the total of $1,397, the incidentals

amount to $333.25. Are vouchers given for these incidentals?

A. No.

Q. No way in which these sums are vouched for?

A. No, we take their word.

Q. There is a quarter of the whole bill for the month, incidentals in obtain-

ing evidence?

A. They cannot very well take receipts for that kind of evidence. You can-

not get receipts when buying drinks or a bottle of whiskey and that sort of thin.

Q. The operators' services are 36 days at $6 a day, which amounts to $432,

and their incidentals in obtaining evidence are $333.25. How many men is that

for?

A. Two men.

Q. What I am pointing out is that in addition to room and board and tickets,

-in addition to all that there is nearly $10 a day for these incidentals.
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A. When you have to pay $5 for a bottle of whiskey and 50 to 76 cents for

drinks it makes a big hole in $10.
MR. HALL: Do they send in an itemized statement?
A. No.

Q. I suppose they give the Agency a statement?
A. I don't know.

Q. Do they send in hotel bills?

A. No.

Q. Absolutely no check upon it at all?

A. No, you cannot ask them for that sort of thing, they would be spotted
in a minute.

MR. DEWART: Your own men do give the Board a (statement of what their

expenses are? That is the difference. You take the Courrian account or the

Spracklin account and you have an itemized statement day by day, railway fares,

board and incidentals. When he buys a bottle of whiskey he puts it in. In these

Detective Agency accounts there is no such check?

A. What would be the good of a check. They would put down anything

they liked. We cannot get a check unless they put in vouchers.

Q. But that is the sVstem and there is no check on the accounts?

A. You cannot check them. The agency is responsible for that.

Q. Your department doesn't investigate anything more than the account

that is brought in. They apparently rubber-stamp it and it is paid?

A. Except for the time they are employed and the railway fares and that

sort of thing. That is checked. Everything that can be checked is checked.

Q. There is an account here of W. J. Ward, $1,000. Have you that account

here. It struck me as odd that the expenses should amount to a flat $1,000?

A. The reason for that is that he got an accountable warrant for $1,000 and

he didn't get the accounts in, in time to straighten it out.

Q._Who is W. J. Ward?

A He is one of the sergeants of detectives for the city.

QHow did he come to be working for the Department?

A'. They loaned him to us for a month and the $1,000 was advanced

Q__Then he hired what men he wanted?

the Department didn't have a check upon his hiring?

A. No, except his own vouchers.
^

Q I mean as to the men he hired?

qd& tXa^enttcide the rate of wag* of the men he employed?

A. I don't know. You would have to ask the Board.

Q._Do you know what the rate of wages was?

A. I think it was $1'00 a month.

Q_T fipd an item such as this in October, "paid $7 for whiskey re

Dyshoily, 3 Morrison Street, fined $1,200 and costs or three months.

item such as this, "A. Richards $5, obtaining information, C. Hemming $5, o

taming information, S. Curtin $4, obtaining information." That was

nanced by the Department, was it?

A. Yes. .

Q._Another fruitful bottle of whiskey, "$2, whiskey, re Tony Jalownski,
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and the fine is $1,500 and cosijs or three months.

Q. Then there is an account, "use of auto, 30 days $300, services of three

officers $100 each $300
THE -CHAIRMAN : Was that Ward's own car ?

A._Yes, they needed a car and he had a car. We told him to use his own car.

MR. DEWART: The account is vouched for and approved by W. E. Eaney,

the Attorney^General ?

A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN: Do you know how much that netted in the way of fines?

A. We had fifteen convictions.

Q. Amounting to Bow much?
A. Thirteen of them went to jail, we only collected $1,100 in cash.

MR. HALL: You say you only collected $1,100. Can you say off-hand ap-

proximately what this flying squad cost?

A. Somewhere about $2,000'. But 'twere were thirteen convictions. If

they had paid their fines it would have -been a good speculation.

Q. That is what you got in cash and thirteen were sent to gaol.

THE CHAIRMAN : How much liquor was recovered ?

A. I don't know.

Q. I understand there were large seizures of liquor?
A. I remember one case of 100 cases of liquor but I haven't the figures in

my head.

MR. DEWART: Are the accounts of the dispensaries kept separately or are

they in your department?
A. It i|s a different institution altogether.

Q. How are those accounts kept?
A. They are kept at the dispensary under the supervision of the manager

I suppose. They are audited by the Clarkson firm. There is another report from
Clarkson, to the auditor.

Q. What I was wondering was this; it seems extraordinary that we haven't

the details of the payments to the different officers of that department?
A. The dispensaries are a separate institution.

Q. Is the dispensary under the control of the Attorney-General's Department?
A. Yes.

DR. GODFREY: Who recommended the bonus to the various officers of the

dispensary?

A. I don't know anything about a bonus. There have not been any bonuses
to anyone in the dispensary.

Q. I happen to know there have been?

A. There are a couple of Provincial officers in connection with the dis-

pensary, those were all the bonuses.

Q. Did they get a bonus?

A. Yes, the civil service bonujs.

MR. HALL: In case these officers of the law get a conviction, do they get

any shares of the fines?

A. Our officers?

Q. Yes?

A. No, none whatever.

Q. Is there a fine paid to any officer who brings in a conviction whether
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municipal officers or county officers?

A. Not that I know of. There were a few municipal councils some two

years ago that passed by-laws under section 120 of the Act, where they appointed
special constables to enforce the law that specified they should get 25 per cent,

.of the fines- Last Session they passed an Act prohibiting that. .

:
.

HON. ME. SMITH: That went to the -municipalities ?

A. Yes.

Q. There has been none since that time?
A. No. They passed by-laws of that kind and we put through an amend-

ment a year or two ago prohibiting that.

Witness excused.

The Committee then adjourned.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE.
April 15, 1920.

The Committee met at 10 a.m. Mr. Curry in the Chair.

Dr. J. W. S. McCullough called and sworn. Examined by Mr. . Sinclair.

Q. What is your office, doctor?

A. Chief Officer of Health.

Q. And as such have charge of any matters relating to health in the Pro-

vince of Ontario and the purchase of articles in that Department?
A.. Yes, sir.

Q. Cheques, vouchers and accounts and that kind of thing go through your
hands ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. As I understand it there are some items here on page 562, of the Pub-

lic Accounts, in connection with M. and H. Jerome of IXindas?

A. Yes, an item of $9,999.58.

Q. Have you the vouchers here in connection with this item of $9,999.58?

A. No, the vouchers go to the Treasury.

Q. WT
hat vouchers did you bring?

A. I brought the correspondence and the tenders.

Q. Are there any advertisements in connection with these items?

A. Yes, I have the advertisements. (Advertisements produced).

Q. This advertisement was published where?

A. In the Toronto Telegram and other city papers.

Q. For how long a time?

A. I cannot say exactly, on several occasions.

Q. Thi(s advertisement was for what articles?

A. For 16 automobiles.

Q. For what purpose?

A For the use of the Board.

Q. It doesn't specify what kind of automobiles?

A. Yes, coupelets or runabouts.

Q. I mean whose manufacture?

A. It doesn't specify.

Q. just what type of automobile, the manufacture, the kind of .automobile

isn't specified. It is open to anyone?
A. Yes.

Q. You have the tenders which were submitted in respond to that advertise-
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A. Yes, I have them here. (Tenders produced).

ment?

Q. And on these tenders the purchase was made ?

A. No.

Q. Then regarding this large item of $9,999.58, does it not arise out ot U*

tenders filed in response to this advertisement?

A. No.

Q. Where does this item come from?

A. I was at the same time negotiating for the purchase of a truck of a par-

ticular variety and at the same time I got tenders for trucks. When I had the

tenders in I took them to the Minister of Labor and submitted them to him,

the prices for both the autos and the trucks. He said he didn't know anything

about trucks. I wanted to get advice from somebody als to the truck I should pur-

chase. He said, "I advise you to ask Mr. Biggs about the trucks". I did. The

variety of truck I was inclined to purchase Mr. Biggs agreed was as good a one

as I could get, and I purchased that. Then about the automobile prices, I thought

they were too high and I asked Mr. Biggfs advice about it and he told me he

thought I could get a better price from the Jeromes. Then I saw the lowest

tenderer with this and ask him if he could do any better and he said he couldn't.

That was the Ford people on Jarvis Street whose tender was the lowest. So I

said, all right, I am through with you. Then I got into communication with the

Jeromes and got a better tender from them and I purchased from them.

Q. Then you have the vouchers there for this item. The vouchers and every-

thing are in the file?

A. I haven't the vouchers at all.

Q. They are in the Treasury Department?
A. Yes.

Q. You have the correspondence?
A. Yes, the tenders and advertisement.

Q. Then the next item is on page 565, $11,430.40?
A. That is a contiuation of the same thing. It was on the same tender.

Q. The same tender but appears in a different department, they both went
to different parts of Health and Labor Department?

A. Yes.

Q. So that what wals the history of one item will be the history of the other?

A.-Yes.

Q. Then there is another item on page 747, $21,412.80?

A. I had nothing to with "fchat. It is not in my Department.
MR. THOMPSON: Did I understand you to say you advertised for tenders?

A. Yes.

Q. Did the Jeromes put in a tender?

A. No, they didn't until I got rid of the original tenders.

Q. After you got all your tenders in you went to Jerome who didn't tender

in the first place?

A. No, he didn't tender in the first place.

Q. You went to him afterward?

A. Yes, I went to him afterward.

Q. What happened then?

A. I got a better pric and purchased.
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Q. And it was Mr. Biggs who sent you to him?

A. No, he didn't jsend me to him. He told me that if I was not satisfied with

the price I was getting to try him. He suggested that. He didn't direct me to do

anything.

Q. How was it that Jerome could give a better price than these other people?
A. I am unable to say how he did.

Q. Did he know the price of the tenders?

A. No, as a matter of fact I didn't see him in the transaction at all.

MR. TOLMIE: Who did you see?

A. I didn't see any of them.

Q. Was it all correspondence?
A. I asked him to give me a price over the telephone. About the time he

gave me his price I was leaving town. I got his price and I accepted it by letter

so that I didn't see Jerome until long after the autos were purchased.

Q. Who closed the purchase?
A. I did, by letter.

Q. Was he the only one you spoke to outside of those who tendered?
A. Yes.

Q. He gave you a lower price?
A. Yes.

Q. When you found that out why didn't you continue. You might have

got someone else to give you a still lower price?

A. I might.

Q. But you closed with this man?
A. Yes.

MR. CLARKE: Was there much difference in the price?
A. It amounted altogether to $276.

MR. SINCLAIR : On how many cars ?

A. Sixteen.

MR. THOMPSON: A $20,000 deal?

A. Yes.

Q. What kind of a Ford was it?

A. A Ford coupelet.

Q. A regular standard car, was it?

A. Yes.

MR. SINCLAIR : This was what you would call bargain day in Fords, about

$16 on each one. Do you know whether anyone else was spoken to about it besides

Jerome after your advertisement had failed. You thought the pries was too high

you started to inquire and found that Jerome would sell cheaper. Did your in-

quiry go still further to see if you could get a further cut in prices?

A._No, because I had had many of the dealers here to see me about it.

knew pretty well the situation regarding the prices.

MR. TOLMIE : Mr. Biggs said to you that if you were not satisfied with t

tenders to try Jerome and Jerome?

A. He suggested that.

Q __How did he come to know you were buying these cars ?

A I have already stated that I went to see him regarding the character

of truck I shluld buy At that time I told him of the difficulty I was having

about the cars, that I was not satisfied with the price.
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Q. Jerome, and Jerome knew nothing about the price of the other tenders?

A. No.

Q. You didnt tell them?
A. No, they knew nothing about it from me.

Q. You spoke to them over the phone?
A. Yes, I asked them to submit pricey on sixteen cars.

MR. THOMPSON: Had you any special knowledge about the price of anto-

mobiles ?

A. I cannot say I had.

Q. You say you were not satisfied with these prices, on a matter of over

$20,000. Was there much difference between the prices tendered and the one you

finally got ? .

A.- Not a great deal.

Q". You must be quite on expert on the price of automobiles when you can
tell within $200 on a $20,000 deal, mustn't you?

A. I don't know. I leave that to you to judge.
Q. You say here you got these prices and weren't satisfied with them. You

got another price just $16 less per car, so that you. must have been a pretty keen

judge of the value of automobiles.

A. I cannot say that.

THE CHAIRMAN: What tenders did you have?
A. They are all here.

Q. Let us know what they were?
A. I had tenders from the Toronto Motor Car Co., Ltd., Jarvis Street, at

$1218,60 each.

Q. The total tender was how much?
A. Sixteen times that. I had the Maxwell $1,595, the Columbia $2,900,

the Chevrolet $1,140, Ford coupelet $1,218.60.

Q. Is that the name of the ppmpany?
A. No, that is the best price I had for the Ford. people.

Q. What do you mean?
A. There were two Ford companies in Toronto that tendered, one on Jarvis

Street, and A. D. Gorrie & Co.

Q. In respect to the Ford car you had tenders from the Jarvis Street people
and from Gorrie and Company. How did each tender compare?

A. The Jarvis Street company's tender was $1,218.60, and Gorrie's $1,225.44.

Q. Now the next tender?

A. I have the Chevrolet $1,140, that is Gooderham and Co., the United Sales

Co., the Maxwell $1,595.

Q. No others regarding the Maxwell car?

A. No, Gray Dort, Motor Sales Co., Ltd., $1,497.50.

Q. Any other tender on the Gray Dort?

A. That is the only one.

Q. In respect to each style of car had you more than one tender on any car

except the Ford ?

A. No, sir. Practically, for Toronto, the agency of those other cars is in the

hands of one company. Then I had the Willys Overland, two tenders for that,

$136.63 and $1,342. I do not seem to have the name of the tenderers here. How-
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ever, that is the correct amount.

Q. Then as a result of receiving these you called on the Minister of Labor
and he asked you to see Mr. Biggs?

A. Yes, that was with respect to the trucks. I had Imd tenders for trucks
at the same time. At that time it was really the truck I was more anxious to get
his advice about.

Q. What were the tenders in respect to the trucks?
A. They were the Pierce Arrow $8,100, the Winton $8,250, the Packard

$7,800.

Did you have more than one tender regarding any one class of truck?A --No, sir. Then I had the Grace Motors $5,400, the White $5,128.85 the
Republic-which is the 01dsmobile-$4,365, and the Eeo $4,250. Of these I
thought the Pierce Arrow, the Packard or the White would suit me better than the
)thers. Some were too light and some too heavy.

You spoke of Grace Motors, what truck was theirs?
A. The Fulton. It wasn't heavy enough. It was a one and a half ton truck
[ wanted a two ton truck. I might say that I didn't advertise for these ten-

ders but I sent one of my men to all the truck dealers?

Q. How did you get the list of truck dealers ?

A. I have a man in my office who knew them.
Q- And you sent him to get the tenders?

A. Yes, and asked them to come and see me. They came in and saw me and
found out about what I wanted.

Q. And as a result of that?

A. They sent in the tenderjs.

Q. And as a result of having those tenders you brought them to your Minis-

ter's attention and he asked you to about the tender and as a result of your con-

versation with him in which, I understand, you said you were not satisfied with the

tenders for the trucks he suggested that you should speak or write or communicate
with Jerome and Jerome?

A. That is not it exactly. I asked him to advise me about the kind of truck.

I told him I thought the Pierce Arrow, or the Packard or the White would suit

me and that the White was the cheapest one of the three and the one I was inclined

to purchase. He said, "I don't think you will make any mistake if you buy the

White." That is all that transpired about that and I went and bought it.

Q. That is all that took place between you and Mr. Biggs in regard to that?

A. Yes. Then I {said to him, oi the tenders I have for cars the Ford coupelets

will suit me best but I think the dealers here in Toronto are charging me to much.

"If," he said, "You are not satisfied with the price why not speak to Jerome." Some-

thing of that kind transpired. I considered the fact that I could not speak to

anyone else until I had finished the business with those who had tendered. I called

in the man who had given me the lowest price ,for tlhe Fords and said to him.

"You will have to give me a better price if you want to get this order." He said,

"Let me have a few hours." When he returned he said, "I cannot do any better."

"All right." I said, "I am through with you." I considered I was done with those

who had tendered, so I telephoned to Jerome and asked them for their price..

Q. Up to this time had you stated to anyone what the figures were in your

tenders?
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A. They were never out of my possession.

Q. Did Mr. Biggs know?

A. I don't suppose he did. I don't remember.

Q._Did you tell him ?

A. I don't remember.

Q. 'Did you have them "with you when you saw Mr. Biggs?
A. I presume I did.

Q. Did you communicate any information in regard to the amount of your
tenders for Ford coupelets to Jerome and Jerome ?

A. No, I didn't.

Q. Then when was it you got their tender?

A. Their tender came to the Minister of Labor on the 14th of June, and I ac-

cepted their tender in this letter.

Q. Was there anything in your communication to them whether by tele-

phone or letter which would indicate where their tender was to go to ?

A. I don't remember but I don't think so.

Q. Was there anything to indicate to them what Department you were con-

nected with?

A. Of course I would tell them I belonged to the Board of Health.

Q. Then the tender came to the Minister of Labor, and when did it reach

you?
A. Apparently on the 14th of June, because I wrote this letter on the 14th

of June, accepting the tender.

Q. How did the tender reach you ?

A.; I presume it was sent to me from the Minister's office.

Q. No covering letter?

A. I don't think so.

Q. Did you get any instructions from anyone in regard to who should have
the tender?

A. No.

Q. Who determined who should have the tender?

A. I did.

Q. Upon what?
A. Upon the fact that I got a price which I thought was satisfactory.

Q. Have you the tender?

A. I haven't. The successful tender would go with the voucher to the

Treasury.

Q. And their tender for each Ford coupelet was what?

A. $1,208.60 per car.

Q. How much less per car than the lowest other tender?

A. $10, and there was $7.30 difference on the tires, on the spare tires.

Q. So there would be $17.30 per car difference?

A. Yes.

MR. TOLMIE : Just one spare tire for each ?

A. A spare tire and tube. The regular price of these tires at the time was

$30.05. They supplied them at $22.75.

THE CHAIRMAN: Was there a rim with that tire?

A. The rim is part of the standard equipment.
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Q. So there would be detachable rims for the cars?

A. Yes.

Q. Detachtble rim with spare tire and tube?

A. Yes.

MR. SINCLAIR : What was your reason for thinking that the price mentioned
in the tenders was not satisfactory?

A. From the attitude of the agents, from the statement of the agents. For

example, the Ford people came around and told me this. "We have one price for

everyone and we can't come down on that price." I fund on looking into my ten-

ders that I had two Ford tenders with different prides, one $1,218 and some cents

and the other $1,22-5 and some cents.

MR. HALL : Did I understand you to say that you didn't advertise for tenders ?

A. Oh, yes, I did for the cars,the advertisement is here. I didn't advertise

for trucks. I considered I got every dealer in trucks to make a tender.

Q. Wouldn't it have served the purpose as well and saved the Department
a great deal of trouble such as this, if you had taken the usual course and asked

for tenders?

A. No, because I was buying a truck and having a special body put on it

for child welfare work and I wanted to see the agents individually and discuss

with them the question of the special body. It had to be made in a special way
and they had to use photos of it in order to understand how to make it. It had

a special body and specially fitted up. The body was worth nearly as much as

the truck, two-thirds as much as the truck.

THE CHAIRMAN: You got every truck dealer?

A. As far as I know.

Q. Every truck dealer who wanted to tender?

A._The Ford people spoke to me about their truck but it wouldn't do at all.

Q.
_it was seeking advice in respect to trucks that got you the information

in regard to Ford cars that caused you to ask Jerome and Jerome to send in a

tender ?

A. I got information in a variety of ways. I thought it was another hold-up,

putting up prices.

MR SINCLAIR: Did you come to this conclusion from past experience in

Imyino- cars. I want to get down to the reason you thought you were being held-

iip by the Ford agents. You didn't get a much better price when you did buy.

What was your reason for thinking you were being held-up?

\ _j told you I had from two Ford dealers two different prices, that, on top

of the' statement that they couldn't give me any Better price, that there was one

price for Fords and they couldn't cut it I was under the impression that they

could, gained in a general way. I hadn't had much experience but I had bought

a few cars. In talking with these various agents I came to the conclusion that

could cut prices. . ,,

Q._Do you know whether they did sell at a less price than the pnc

tendered for? ,

A -I know they offered me two different prices m these tenders.

--
price than what they had tendered?
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A. No.

Q. That tender for the Chevrolet of $1,140, is that a coupelet?

A. Yes, I went to see the car and it didn't suit me.

Q. In what respect? It is $100 less than the Ford, I wonder why that

wasn't considered?

A. If I remember right it was a runabout, one with a removable top.

Q. That is w^hat I was asking, whether it was a closed car or an ordinary

open car?

A. No, it was a Chevrolet runabout.

Q. Does it specify in the letter what kind of a car?

A. Yes, a Chevrolet runabout $1,140. It wasn't the kind of a car I wanted.
The Ford coupe was the kind I wanted.

Q. Had you bought any before, in the previous year?
A. No.

MR. TOLMIE: What was the date of this purchase?
A. June 14th.

Q. You bought them at $1,208.60?
A. Yes.

Q. Did you pay more than that for any cars?
A. Yes, there was one with special equipment, for instance a speedometerand shock absorbers and things like that. In some cases I sent the car to the dis-

trict officer and he purchased the extra equipment. Some needed a speedometerand some wanted the bumper. There were various extras added.
Q. You bought these extra from the same company Jerome and Jerome?
A. Yes.

Q. Were they put on at the time the cars were bought or later on?
'~

Tv T
Dly ne Where they put them on at the time they were

purchased. In some cases the extra equipment was bought elsewhere. For in-

L ^T '* B^e bought extra equipment in Belleville, and the man inion got his extra equipment in London.
Q- These cars were all delivered in June-?
A. No, eight were delivered in July, about the 12th or 15th and the balance
on towards October. They were delivered when I wanted them delivered.

Q. At the one price with the exception of these extras?
A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN: In regard to that: were they all delivered at the one prbe
or was there a luxury tax that had to be paid under the excise law?

A. Yes, there was that.

Q. Did that alter the prices?
A - Yes, that altered them to the extent of $8.66, because it was a tax that

was put on.

Q. That is why there is a difference in the price of some of the cars, because

of that?

A. Yes, that is one reason.

MR. SINCLAIR : I thought it was 15 per cent, of the car the excise tax ?

MR. BIGGS : It is the sales tax. I think the sales tax was increased one per

cent, during this time. I think that is what that refers to. It is not a general

tax. It is a sales tax.
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111;. SINCLAIR: You paid for the cars at the time of delivery?

WITNESS: As soon as they were delivered the bills were put forward and the

Treasury paid them.

Q. Some cars were bought in July and you paid for them at that time?

A. I presume so.

Q. And some in October. Are you sure there was no increase in price be-

tween July and Octbber?

A. Mo. There was an increase effective from the 17th of June. We had to

pay that $8.66.

Q. You had to pay which?

A. One per cent, on the cars delivered after a certain date.

Q. So that the cars you arranged to buy at $1,208 from Jerome and Jerome

really cost more on account of that increase?

A. Yes.

Q. -What was the difference?

A. $8.66.

Q. I notice here in voucher 31283, it says, "Increase in price effective Sep-
tember 22" in this case the Ford coupelet price is increased by the amount of

I

$62.03 and is marked, "Increase in price effective September 22, 1920?"

A. No, we were not charged anything like that, that I know of. Here are

all the increases we had to pay, $8.66. We had no $62 to pay.

MR. TOLMIE: What is this voucher 31283, that is here take voucher 27176,

September 28, "3 cars, Dr. McCullough vouching as above." That is in connec-

tion with Jerome and Jerome? This is for three cars at $1,240.01, "Dr. McCul-
loii

(
u

-

li vouching as above ?"

A. That is right.

Q. $1,240 ?

A. That includes the tires, the $1,240 represents the price of all these cars

except the one on which special equipment was put.

Q. You don't know anything about this one on November 6, voucher 31283?

MR. BIGGS : Would that be the one with the special equipment?
A. I presume it would be, if it refers to my department at all.

I

Tin-: Cn AIRMAN: What was that special equipment?
A. A speedometer and shock absorbers.

Q. Do you know what kind of shock absorbers ?

A. I think it is the Haslor.

Q. What kind of speedometer the Stewart?
A. I think so.

MR. SINCLAIR: How many cars did you have in the Department before you
decided to buy these cars?

A. Just one truck.

Q. No passenger cars ?

A. No.

Q. When you decided to buy passenger cars had you any particular car in

view?

A. Yes, either a run-about of the type of the Willys-Overland or the Ford

Coupe.

Q.-When you advertised for cars you advertised for Ford Coupe or the run-
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about. You told me a little while ago that the Chevrolet people tendered on a run-

about. Why did you advertise for tenders on run-abouts if you didn't intend to

buy?
A. I did intend to buy one or the other when I advertised.

Q. The Chevrolet is $1,140; and the Ford $1,218. There is quite a differ-

ence there if you were looking for a certain class of car. That is a Chevrolet run-

about and you advertised for runabouts. How do you figure it out?

A. Because I thought the coupe suited me best.

THE CHAIRMAN: Was the advertisement for each, one or the other?
A. Yes.

MR. SINCLAIR : "Sixteen automobiles, coupe or runabout type."
THE CHAIRMAN: As a matter of fact, have the Chevrolet a coupe?
A. Yes, but much higher in price.

Q. Did they put in a tender for the coupe ?

A. No, I recollect going to see their coupe. The agent asked me down to see
[ went down and saw it. It is a good type, roomier than the Ford but the

price was to high for our resources.

MR. HALL: From your experience in this matter is it the usual thing to

charge an extra price for the extra tire. When I bought a tire I knew what I was
getting. I got a 5th tire?

A. I got a spare tire with the Jerome tender but there was no separate tire

with the other tenders. The price was $1,218.60, without a spare tire, from the

other Ford people. From Jerome and Jerome, it was $1,208.60 with $22.75
added for the separate tire. That $22.75 represented a saving of $7.30.

MR. SINCLAIR: When you turned down these tenders you didn't know what

you were going to buy the Ford coupe for?

A. No.

Q. Nor how much reduction you could get in that price ?

A. No.

Q. And the only reason that you had for discarding the tenders is that two

Ford dealers in Toronto gave you different prices?

A. That is the chief reason.

Q. Any other reason?

A. No particular reason.

Q. Did you say anything to either one of these dealers when you got dif-

ferent prices asking them how it was there were two prices?

A.-^I think I did. I had a great deal of talk on it. They were in seeing me

constantly. They were keen on selling. There were others who came in but only

two submitted tenders. The Overland people, Gooclerhams and others were in a

great many times to see me.

Q. They didn't show any signs of dropping the price, these Toronto fellows?

A. No, but the young agent dealing with me about the Fords expected to

get me a better price. That was the impression I had until the last moment.

Q. Did you follow it up and see if he could do it.

A. Finally he told me he couldn't do it.

Q._You didn't try anyone else dealing in Ford cars, anywhere else?

A ^"o

Q'_YOU didn't communicate with the head office of the Ford people in Ontario
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and see what they would do for the 'Government?

A. No.

Q. You did't take it up with the office at Ford City and see if you could get
a wholsesale price on these cars?

A. No, I didn't because I understood it would not be of any use to go to them.

Q, Why?
A. They would not interfere with the local dealers. Anyone would know

that.

MR. LARKE : In other words you asked for tenders and you only dealt with

the people who put in tenders?

A. Only until I got through with them.

Q. Did any of the Ford agents give you any assurance as to delivery?
A. I cannot say about that. I don't recollect that.

MR. TOLMIE : The tenders came to you did anyone see them except the

Minister and Mr. Biggs?

A. I don't know whether Mr. Biggs knew. I had them there and he could

have seen them if he had wanted to.

MR. THOMPSON : Did you talk to anyone ?

A. Not about the prices.

Q. No person else knew the prices except yourself?
A. No.

Q. When these tenders come in they go to you directly?
A. Yes.

Q. You are the only man who knows anything about it?

A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN : How long has the present policy in that regard been carried

on?

A. This is my first experience in having tenders for cars.

Q. Then tenders for other things?

A. We don't have tenders for other things. We don't purchase much else.

We do purchase drugs but they are not purchased by tender. We purchase chemi-

cals for the laboratory but I do not purchase those. I have the director or the

laboratory do that because he knows more about it than anyone here.

MR. SINCLAIR : What change in the policy of the Department has come about

requiring you to use 1'6 automobiles?

A. The work of the district officers of health and the nurses.

Q. Are there five district officers?

A. No, eight.

Q. And does the Government provide each with an automobile?

A. Yes.

Q. At the expense of the Government?

A. Yes.

Q. In adition to the salary the Provincial Officer gets?

A. Yes.

Q. Prior to this was there an allowance made to these district officers for

travelling expenses?

A. They always got travelling expenses. This was with the idea of saving

travelling expenses and allowing them to get into the reniote portions of the Prov-
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ince that they couldn't get into by rail,

Q. The other eight were for the travelling nurses?

A. Yes, we had sixteen cars.

Q. Is that new work?
A. Yes, it was just begun last year.

Q. Are these automobiles to be kept in repair and gasoline supplied?
A. Yes.

Q. Who operates them ?

A. The nurses or doctors.

Q- They don't have a driver sent along and someone to wash the car and all

that?

A. No, they get along as best they can.

THE CHAIRMAN: Was that change necessary?
A. It was thought advisable.

Q. Has it turned out to be advisable ?

A. I think it is almost to soon to say. Hitherto they hired motor cars and

regularly a physician would arrive at a station and find he was unable to get back
into the remote portions of the Province. Now starting from home he can go any
place. As far as time is concerned we find our officers are doing twice as much
work. They get into localities they rarely visited before. They have headquarters
in the towns and they can get out easily into the farming communities.

Q. What about economy?
A. It is difficult Jo say. I expect to know at the first of the year. I will

be able to say then whether it has been cheaper or more expensive. Certainly we are
able to do more work.

Q. And that will enable you to get along with less help ?

A. It will enable us to do more work with the help we have.

Q. You will do that work with less help than you would have required if you
did not have these cars?

A. Yes.

MR. SINCLAIR: You will only be able to do that in the summer months?

A. This winter they have been able to work nearly all winter. In some parts

of course they will only be available for summer work.

THE CHAIRMAN: That item was included in the estimates?

A. Yes.

MR. TOLMIE: Where were these cars delivered?

A. Some were delivered here, one to Fort William, one to Sault Ste Marie,

two to Belleville there is a district officer of health at Belleville so we sent two

cars there and the district officer at Ottawa came up to Belleville and got his

car. I distributed them in the most economical way. This price included $20

for freight. That is included in the standard price. The tenders included $20

for freight.

MR. SINCLAIR : Are these district medical health officers working all the time ?

A. Yes.

MR. HALL : About the distribution of these cars. At the Exhibition last year
the Minister of Labor took me to see some cars he had, demonstration cars, how

many of them have you ?

A. I think perhaps you mean our truck with the body on it. We just have
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one of those. That is the White truck.

Q. Where is that being used?

A. It is not being used so far. It was not completed last year in time to put
on the road. I have had it -stored at the exhibition and we are going to start it

as the roads are fit.

Q. What are the special purposes of that car?

A. It will go out with a doctor and nurses, a doctor trained in childrens

affections. Nurses will go with him and they will go into the villages through
the country and hold child and public clinics. We carry these on in the Winter

time but travel by railway and take the equipment with us. In the Summer we

are going to do that work by means of the truck. It will carry a full equipment,
and they 'will give mothers advice regarding their children.

Q. How many trucks will be in operation?

A. We simply have the one truck. It is just an experiment.

ME. TOLMIE. Your equipment is sixteen cars and one truck?

A. Yes. We have another truck, a little one for errands here in the city.

M. JEROME called and sworn. Examined by Mr. Sinclair.

Q. You are in partnership as a dealer in automobiles in Dundas?

A. Yes.

Q, How long have you been in business there?

A. Since 1910.

Q. What line of automobile do you deal in there?

A. Fords.

Q. Ford service people and Ford dealers at Dundas?

A. Yes.

Q Are there any other agents there selling the same cars?

A. No.

Q. Now, you have sold some automobiles to the Government during the

last fiscal year. There is an item here for $9,999.58 for eight Ford coupes at

$1,240.01, which you have sold to the Department of Health. Who made that

purchase ?

A. Dr. McCullough.
Q. How did you come to get in touch with Dr. McCullough?
A. I am not -sure but I think he sent a wire to me to tender.

Q. Had you seen an advertisement in the papers?
A. I believe we did, on roadsters and coupes.

Q. You had seen the advertisement? Where did you see it?

A. I cannot tell you now.

Q. After seeing that advertisement did you put in a tender?

A. I would not be sure whether we did or did not. We put in a tender for

the coupes.

Q. You saw the advertisement in the paper that the Government were buy-

ing a certain amount of roadsters or coupes, the advertisement which we have

been discussing here, "Tenders wanted on sixteen automobiles, coupelet qr run-

about type. Apply Dr. J. W. S. McCullough." Is that the advertisement you
saw ?

A. Yes.
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Q. And after- seeing that advertisement did you put in a tender?

A. I don't believe we put one in until he wired.

Q. You saw the advertisement, you were in the automobile business and

you didn't put in a tender ?

A. We don't put in for every tender.

Q. At any rate you didn't tender on this?

A. Not that I remember.

Q. Then shortly after you got a wire do you mean a telegram or a tele-

phone message?
A. I would not be sure whether it was a telegram or telephone.

Q. Was it to both of you? If it was a telephone it couldn't be to both of

you?
A. The telephone is right in the same office.

Q. If it was a telephone messags only one of you would get it. If it was
a telegram it would be addressed to both of you ?

A. I believe it was a telephone message.

Q. Who got the telephone message ? You or your brother ?

A. I would not say which one it was.

Q. When was this?

A. Some time in June.

Q. You won't say whether it was you or your brother who got the message.
What makes you think you had a telephone message? Why do you say it was a

telephone message?
A. I believe that is what we got.

Q. After you got this message did you have a conversation with your brother

about it?

A. Yes.

Q. Immediately ?

A. Yes.

Q. What decision did you come to?

A. We tendered for them.

Q. What was your tender?

A. I believe our tender was just what they spoke of here.

Q- You say you got a phone message, you believed, from Dr. McCullough
in Toronto?

A. Yes.

Q. What was the message?
A. I have given you what the message was.

Q. Would you have a copy of it if it was a telephone message?
A. No.

Q. Can you say whether it was a telephone mesage or a wire?
A. I believe it was a telephone message.
Q. Then if you received that telephone message let me know what was the

effect of the message? What was the talk about?

A. It was about a tender for the Ford coupes.

Q. About what tender?

A. For the Ford coupes.

Q. You say it was about a tender about Ford coupes, what Ford coupes?
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A. Sixteen.

Q. Did he want to know why you didn't put in a tender? What was the

message for?

A. It was to put in a tender for coupes.

Q. From Dr. McCullough to you people ?

A Tes.

Q. And that is all the message there was?

A. I suppose he asked that is all I remember.

Q. There was a request from Dr. McCullough that Jerome and Jerome

should put in a tender for these 16 automobiles?

A. Yes.

MR. CLARKE. Did he ask for your best price?

A. That is what they always want.

MR. SINCLAIR : Did he say, put in the best price on sixteen coupes ?

A. Yes.

Q. Are you sure that was said?

A. Yes.

Q. To whom was it said?

A. I am not just sure.

Q. You were the one who received the message, what did he ask you to do?
A. To put in a tender for sixteen coupes.

Q. Was anything said about prices?
A. To put prices in on sixteen coupes.

Q. Anything else now?
A. We put a price in for the tender which was asked for. And because we

had a lot of tires on hand

Q. How long had you had them on hand?
A. We just got them in.

Q. So you had more in than you could sell, did you?
A. We had a lot of them.

Q. So you offered to put in a spare tire in addition to. what the tender called

for?

A. Yes.

Q. Because you had a lot on hand?

A.Yes.
Q. Was that the reason you could afford to be so generous over the prices?
A. I have some right there I will sell for the same price.

Q. And probably before Summer you will sell them cheaper than you will

now. You volunteered this separate tire price, it wasn't asked for?

A. No, although we thought it needed to be on.

Q. How long after you got the telephone message was it before you put
the tender in?

A. I beleive it was the next day.

Q. Who did you send the tender to?

A. The Provincial Board of Health.

Q. You mailed it to Toronto?

A.Yes.

Q. How long was it before the tender was accepted?
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A. The next day or two.

Q. Did anybody phone afterwards about your tender, after it was sent in?

Did anyone call up to see if }'ou could cut a little more on your price ?

A. No, we just had the one price.

Q. What is that one price. What do you mean by that one price?
A. It is just the same as their price was here. We didn't put in any tender for

the painting, that makes that $10 difference.

Q. That price you gave the Provincial Board of Health was the stand-

ard price on the Ford car?

A. Yes.

Q. And the price of the Toronto men had put on was the standard price plus
the painting of the Ontario crest on the cars?

A. Yes.

Q. Had you been told about painting the Ontario crest on?
A. What I heard here this morning.
THE CHAIRMAN : There was nothing about that here.

ME. SINCLAIR Before you tendered nothing was said about putting the

crest on the car?

A. They wanted to know if there would be a crest on it.

Q. Who wanted to know?
A. DR. MoCLENAHAN, he is the assistantant I suppose to Dr. McCullough.

Q. Where is he, in Toronto?

A. Yes.
,

Q. When did you see him?
A. After we sent the tender in. We didn'Fhave the painting of the crest

mentioned. I told him it would be on.

Q. Did he call you up about that, where did you see him?

A. I went to his office.

,Q. You came to Toronto after putting a tender in?

A. Yes.

Q. And saw them in the Health offices here?

A. I saw Dr. McClenahan.

Q. Did you make an arrangement then about painting the crest on the cars?

A. I told him it would be on.

Q. Did you put it on?

A. Yes

Q. And made no charge?
A. No, We made no chorge.

Q. Was fchis arranged to be done before your tender was accepted?

A. The tender didn't ask for the crest.

Q. Before the Government accepted your tender did you agree to put this

extra painting on the cars. Was that a part of the consideration in the tender?

A. Yes

Q. That is the difference, as you say, between any other dealer's price and

yours, that you threw in the painting of the crest?

A. Yes

Q. That is the real difference in price?

A. Yes
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Q. How did you come to offer to do this?

A. Because they wanted it on.

Q. Did they want you to do it for nothing?
A. I suppose they did I don't know.

Q. Did they ask you to throw that in?

A. I told him I would put it on, because it was not in our tender.

Q. Who suggested that you should throw this in for nothing?
A. They asked me if there would be a crest and lettering on it.

Q. Who did?

A. Dr. McClenahan.

Q. He asked you if the crest would be on for this price and you told him
what ?

A. That it would be.

Q. Did you originally intend to put that on when you first made the

tender ?

A. No
Q. That was an after consideration?

A. Yes

Q. Now to get back to this one price, each dealer in Fords has a territory

within he sells cars?

A. Yes

Q. The head company contracts with you for a certain territory in which

you deal?

A. Yes I

Q. They gave you a price at which you were to sell cars?

A. Yes!

Q. Then they sold the automobiles to you at a reduced price and the dif-

ference between that reduced price and the selling price is really your

commission ?

A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN : Do you buy outright or work on commission ?

A. We buy outright.

MR. SINCLAIR You buy the cars, you don't take them in and sell them on

commission ?

A. No.

Q. What you say is that there is the same price all over Ontario for

Ford dealers to sell Ford cars at?

A. Yes.

Q Subject to the expense of freight?

A. There is a difference in freight in different places.

Q.The further away from Ford City the higher it 'gets?

A. Yes.

Q._Will there be any difference between the freight to Toronto and Dundas

Dundas ?

A. I gave it the dollar.

qi_You can sell a dollar Cheaper in Dundas than Toronto?

A. I believe it is a dollar less in Toronto.

Q.Where were your cars delivered?
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A. Queens Park, some of them. They went to Woodstock and different places.

Q. Then the Government could have got a price here a dollar cheaper

per car?

A. We put the price in the same as it was here :

Q._Why?
A. Because this was where we had to deliver them.

Q. What right had you to sell cars for delivery in Toronto under the terms

of your contract with the Ford people? How could you come in here and sell

oars.

A. Just like they could go out in our place and sell cars out there.

Q. Didn't you have an agreement?
A. It is open territory at the present time.

MR. LARKE Do the Ford people permit you to cut prices on cars?

A. No.

Q. But you can as an agent give part of your commission in order to make
a sale can't you? Is there a law against that?

A. There is no law against giving a man a car.

Q. Suppose you were making twenty or forty dollars on a car, could you

give half of that? You would not be breaking the law of your contract?

A. That would be against our contract.

MR. SINCLAIR You have to maintain prices?

A. Yes.

Q. The only place where you can make what might be called cut in the

selling price is where you take an old car in trade. There is a chance there?

A. Yes.

Q. But for a cash transaction you have to sell at the standard price of

that car?

A. Yes.

MR. BRACKIN Isn't it -so that you make a cut on accessories or extra

tires etc.?

A. There isn't a man who SK* tires to-diay at the list price.

THE HAIRMAX How did you come to be in Toronto seeing Dr. Mc-

Clenahan ?

A. I was down here after cars at the Ford Motor Co..

Q. That was before your tender had been accepted?

A. After, we were here before but not in here,

i Q. Did you see Dr. McClenahan?

A. Yes.

Q. When did you learn about the lettering and crest?

A. When he told us they wanted the letter and crest on.

Q. What was said to you with reference to your tender?

A. I told him the letter and crest would be on.

Q. Then this tender would include the lettering and crest?

A. Yes.

Q. Up to that time had the tender been accepted?

A. I would not be sure about that. I belfeve it was at that time.

Q._You mean the same day? Did you agree to put the lettering and

crest on before the tender was accepted? Had your tender been accepted before
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you agreed to put the lettering and the crest on?

A. No.

Q. You were asked if it included the lettering and the crest?

A. It was not in writing. They asked if it would be put on and I said it

would be put on.

Q. They asked that it be put on the cars and you put it on?
A. We put it on.

DR. McCuLLOUGii recalled.

MR. SINCLAIR Are these the only Ford tenders received, one from the

Toronto Motor Car Company and the other from A. D. Gorrie and Co.?

A. Yes.

Q. There is a tender here from A. D. Gorrie and Co. for $1210, a Ford

ooupelet complete 'with electric starting and lighting system, demountable rims,

spare rim on rear of car, $1210.44.

A. They asked $15 more for putting the crest on which brought it up to

$1225.

Q. It doesn't say that here?

A. It is written on in pencil.

MR. DEWART When you had this tender from Gorrie and Co. for these

coupelets at $1,210.44, and that was the lowest tender why didn't you accept
that?

A. That wasn't the lowest.

Q. Wasn't it the lowest of the three tenders?

A. It wasn't for what I wanted. When they came to see me there was

a discussion about putting on the crest. He didn't include in his tender the

putting on of the crest.

Q. Your advertisment made no reference to the crest?

A. No but I told this man that we wanted the crest and he said they would

put it on for $15.

Q. With that tender in at $1210.44. were you dissatisied with that price

personally ?

A. Yes, because they wanted $15 for the crest and I thought that was too

much.

Q. Whom did you see before you became dissatisfied with the price?

A. I saw all these dealers.

Q. But who, in the Government?

A. I didn't see any of them previous to my being dissatisfied.

Q. What made you dissatisfied?

A. Because I thought they should give me a lower price than they did.

Q. Isn't it a fact that as far as you are concerned you laid these tenders

before your responsible Minister, Mr. Hollo?

A. I did.

Q. Did he express dissatisfaction?

A. No. he said he didn't know anything about it.

Q._It was not until you reached Mr. Biggs that you found reason for dis-

satisfaction?

A. No.

Q. Then where had you been that made you dissatisfied?

A. I was dissatisfied with the whole attitude of these agents.
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Q. The^ were giving you the flat charge in Toronto, you knew that ?

A. They kept running back between me and their offices and it appeared
to me that they could get me lower prices.

Q. Didn't you know they were giving you what was here in Toronto the

flat rate?

A. They told me so but the two tenders disabused my mind of that. One

tender was $1,2-25 and the other $1,218.

Q. And another is $1,210.44?

A. No, not $1,210.44, the tender is $1,255, as I understand it.

MR. SINCLAIR: The price of the car in both tenders, Gorrie's and the other

is $1,0<50.

A. I am talking about what I was going to get. I knew what I was going

to get.

Q. The price was only different on the accessories, not on the cars themselves ?

A. It was only what I was going to buy. One came to a cost of $1,218.60 and

the other $1,225.44. I was satisfied from the attitude of these gentlemen that

they could have given me a lower price.*

Q. On what ?

A. On the whole thing. ,

Q. Did you think these dealers could cut on that $1,050 ?

A. I am not talking about the $1,050.

Q. But I am ?

A. I don't know.

Q. That is the big item in the price of the automobile?

A. What I was concerned with was what I was going to get the whole thing

for.

Q. Where did you think they could make a cut, in what price ? They could

not cut the war tax, that would be the same for everybody?
A. I was satisfied they could, and the results show I got a cut. I got a cut

when I bought from Jerome.

Q. He says no. He says he couldn't cut ?

A. The figures show it.

Q. Not his figures. He put in some accessories that were not advertised for

in the tenders at all.

A. I got what I wanted. I got a lower price on the whole thing I bought.
MR. DEWART: Who was it suggested to you that you should play with this

question of a crest ?

A. No one suggested any such thing.

Q. When did you first realize that that was the place where you were going
to get a cut?

A. When I went to consult Mr. Biggs I had tenders on trucks as well as auto-

mobiles. When I went to the Minister (Mr. Rollo), and asked him about award-

ing the tender, I asked him his opinion on the trucks. He said he didn't know

anything about it, that I had better see Mr. Biggs. I went to Mr. Biggs and asked

his advice about the trucks and his opinion coincided with mine about the kind of

truck I wanted to purchase. Eventually I purchased the White truck. I asked

Mr. Biggs about the trucks, then I told him I thought the Ford dealers were asking

me too high a price for the cars. He said to me, if you think so, why not get a

price from Jerome. So I finished with those fellows in Toronto whose tenders I
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had. I got rid of them when they couldn't give me a lower price and then I asked

Jerome for a price.

Q. These cars were to be delivered in Toronto according to the advertisement

here?

A. I don't think the advertisement specified were they were to be delivered.

The whole question aboi*& delivery was a matter of agreement.

Q. Were they in fact delivered in Toronto?

A. Some were,, some were delivered in Belleville, in London and so on, var-

ious places, but they had charged $20 for freight in the original tenders.

Q. Did you take into consideration the question of service?

A. I heard a lot of talk about service but it doesn't amount to anything.

Q. I am not asking you what you think it amounts to. Do you realize that

if you have a car delivered by a dealer in Toronto you have three months service-

on that car?

A. I have heard that.

Q. Did you take that into consideration when you were thinking about

buying ?

A. No, I didn't because I don't think it amounted to anything. You get

what service you pay for.

Q. You realize that when a dealer sells a car in Toronto you get three months

Tvice and ordinary repairs for nothing?
A. But my cars were not being used in Toronto, they were to be used in

Fort William, in Sault Ste Marie, Ottawa, Belleville, London, Hamilton and so on*

and North Bay.

Q. What about the eight cars for the nurses ?

A. They were all for outside Toronto. For that reason I say this three

months service charge didn't amount to anything as far as I was concerned.

Q, g that really the only reason why you did not deal with the tenderers

was because of a question as to what you could get the painting done on the side

of the car for?

A. The question was to get the lowest price I could.

Q. The only reason that you did not accept the tenders is that it was a ques-

tion of painting or lettering on the side of the cars ?

A. That didn't enter into it at all particularly, it was a question of price.

Q. That was the one factor of price that induced you not to accept any tender

iut in ?

A. No sir. The question was to get the lowest price I could.

Q. What I cannot understand is this; this Jerome, of Dundas was not one

>f the original tenderers ?

A. No.

Q. Why did you take him into consideration when he didn't tender at all ?

A. I asked these tenderers, the Ford people, they were the ones who spoke

to me, I asked them if they would give me a lower price. The younug man who

was dealing with me said to me finally, "Let me have until 4 o'clock this after-

noon." He came back and said he couldn't give me any lower price and I said

we were through.

Q. Who is the young man ?

A. One of these agents, I don't know which one it was. I considered then

that I was through with these people. I didn't go to Jerome until I was through
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with the original tenderers.

Q. Jerome and Jerome didn't come to you?
A. I telephoned him and asked him for a price and he sent a price to the

Minister of Labor.. He sent a tender to the Minister of Labor and from the Minis-

ter of Labor it reached me.

THE CHAIRMAN: The Toronto Motor Car Company's, price was $1,218.60,

including the coat of arms and lettering which you wanted ?

A. Yes.

Q. And that of A. D. Gorrie & Co., was $1',225.44?

A. Exactly.

Q. They had no extra tire, either one of those ?

A. No.

Q. And for this same service you had another tender, what did you get it

for from Jerome and Jerome?

A. $1,208.60.

MR. DEWART : When you first telephoned Jerome did you discuss the question

<of the painting of the cars ?

A. I don't recall whether I did or not.

Q. Surely you would remember that, for that seemed to be the place were

hey were making the cut?

A. You seem to think that, Mr. Dewart, 1 didn't take that into consideration.

Q. Do you not recollect the fact that when you telephoned to Jerome you
discussed with him over the telephone the question of his painting the side of

the car?

A. I do not know that I did . I may have.

Q. Oh, now come. I really think you might remember that?

A. I really don't. I may have discussed it with him.

Q. Cudgel your memory a little?

A. I should like to oblige you.

Q. Is it not a fact that when you telephoned to Jerome, it was in your mind

that you might get a cut on the painting of the crest ?

A. The thought in my mind was to get a lower price, to get the lowest price

f could.

MR. TOLMIE: In response to your tender they stated they would look into

the matter and send a tender in ?

A. I presume so because a tender came in.

Q. Have you that tender?

A. I explained that the original, the successful tender goes with the vouchers

to the Treasury.

Q. Then that tender was sent to you by mail.

A. It was sent to the Minister of Labor. My reason for saying it was sent

to the Minister of Labor is that I referred to it in a letter accepting the tender.

Q. That tender would .show whether the crest was included ?

A. Evidently it doesn't because I quote in my letter the price of the car and

the price of tihe spare tire. I say in my letter, "I have your tender of -the 14th

inst. addressed to the Minister of Labor, submitting a price for Ford cupelets, with

standard equipment at $1,208.60 with separate tire and tube on rim $22.75

additional."

Q. Would that indicate to your mind that you hadn't mentioned the crest
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in your telephone conversation with him, because it is not in his tender?

A. I cannot say about that. It might have been. I couldn't say one way
or the other. It is likely I may have and just as likely I didn't.

Q. If you had mentioned it, it would have been in the tender?

A. I don't know that I could express an opinion about that.

Q". If you asked for a certain thing with certain equipment when the tender

came in it would include those things would it not?

A. I presume it might, or it might not. I cannot say for certain.

The following were here marked by the 'Chairman as Exhibit "A." Tender

of the Toronto Motor Car Co., Ltd., tender of A. D. Gorrie and Co., letter of A. D.

Gorrie and Co., letter of Toronto Motor 'Car Co., Ltd.

MR. JEROME recalled.

MR. DEWART : Mr. Jerome, I understand that you did not intend to tender

on this matter in the
firsi^

instance, that it was as a result of a telephone message

you tendered?

A. Yes.

Q. That telephone message came from whom?
A. Dr. McCullough.

Q. So that instead of your soliciting the Department for business Dr. McCul-

lough solicited you to put in a tender?

A. I suppose that was so.

Q. Do you recollect what Dr. McCullough said to you when he telephoned?
A. I can't tell you word for word.

Q. I am not asking you that, to the best of your recollection give us your

recollection of what he said?

A. 'He asked us to tender for sixteen coupes.

Q. You were asked by Dr. McCullough to tender for 16 coupes?

A. Yes.

Q. Did he say who it was suggested -you should tender ?

A. No. nothing was said.

Q. Give me all you can remember of what Dr. McCullough said when he

?poke over the phone?
A. He wanted a tender for 16 coupes at the lowest price.

Q, That is all?

A._Yes.

Q, Dki you tell Dr. McCullough there was a uniform price that you couldn't

lower ?

A. No, I didn't.

Q. You knew that to be the fact ?

A. Yes.

Q. Didn't it come to you as something of a surprise that he should ask you. a

dealer in Dundas to tender on Ford cars here ?

A. I don't know why it should.

Q._Did Dr. McCullough say anything to you as to where the cars should be

delivered ?

A. Not at that time.

Q. Now, give me anything you remember about the conversation.
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A. I told you what I remember.

Q. He simply asked you to tender for sixteen Ford coupes?
A. Yes.

Q. Did he tell you he had tenders in?

A. He told me nothing.

Q. Did he suggest that anyone asked him to telephone you?
A. No.

Q. Did you in the meantime hear from Mr. Biggs?
A. No.

Q. Did he telephone to you?
A. No, sir.

Q. Then when Dr. McCullough asked you to tender on these sixteen coupes
what did you say to him?

A. That we would send in one.

Q. In writing?
A. Yes.

Q. Have you got a copy of your tender?

A. Yes.

Memorandum of tender submitted, instead of copy.

MR. SINCLAIR : Did you keep a duplicate copy ?

A. No, this is all I have.

Q. You don't know what became of the tender you sent in?

A. I presume this is taken off it. The original tender was sent to Toronto.

Q. Then in making your tender did you figure anything on the delivery

of the cars, in the price?

A. That is always included.

Q. You said to Mr. Dewart that there was nothing said as to where these

cars were to be delivered. Whn you tendered did you include anything for

delivery ?

A. No.

Q. You didn't charge anything for that?

A. We did if they had to be delivered in London.

Q. Suppose you had to deliver a car in Toronto would there be any charge?
A. No, because we had to come down here for the cars.

Q. You take delivery at Toronto for Dundas, they don't come direct to

Dundas? Suppose you ordered ten cars for delivery around Dundas. Are they

delivered at Dundas?

A. No, we go to Toronto for them.

Q. So there is no charge for delivery to anybody?
A. If it is right here there isn't.

MR. DEWART: Take the City of Toronto. Did you not charge for delivery

ere?

A. No.

Q. There were two lots of cars, eight and eight, one eight for the district

officers of the Board and the others for the nurses. Do you recollect that?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you make no charge at all for delivery?

A. Not in Toronto.
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Q. On either of these lots?

A. No. We charge for delivery at London.

Q. You did deliver one there?

A. Yes.

Q. What charge did you make for delivery?
A. Here? We didn't make any charge.

Q. As far as the other cars are concerned did you charge for delivery?
A. At Belleville we made a charge.

Q. How much?
A. I don't know whether I can find that.

Q. I want to know what your recollection is?

A. I cannot tell you, not now.

Q. As a matter of fact on the eight cars delivered for the district officers

of health you make a charge of $41 on each car for delivery. Do you recollect

that?

A. $41 for each car, there was no such charge for each car.

Q. On page 562, we find, "M. and H. Jerome, 8 Ford coupelets at $1,240.01

each, alowance for delivery of cars $41"?
A. One, I think, went to North Bay and we were paid for that.

Q. That $41, what is that?

A. That $41, I assume, would be on the delivery of the whole 8 cars.

Q. Now, Mr. Jerome, I don't quite understand how it came that you put

in a different price so far as the painting of the cars was concerned. Who sug-

gested to you that that was the item on which you should make your cut?

A. Dr. McClenahan wanted to know if there was to be a crest and I said

that if they wanted it on It would be put on and we put it on.

Q. How long was it after the discussion on the telephone before you got in

touch with Dr. McClenahan?

A. I think about two da)
rs.

Q. Where did you see him?

A. In his office.

Q. Where?

A. Eight here in the Parliament Buildings.

Q. How did you come to see him?

A. I was down here after cars.

Q. Did he telephone you to see him?

A. No.

Q. Had you an 'appointment with him?

A. No.

Q. Was there an understanding with Drv McCullough that you would see

him when you came here?

A. No.

Q. You don't mean to suggest that this conversation was accidental.

A. I came to see whether we were going to get the order for them. I came

["ter

cars at the Ford Motor Co., and then I came up here.

Q. Tell us what happened between him and you?
A. I just asked him if we had the order, if we were going to get the contract.

p spoke about the crest and the lettering. He wanted them put on and I ?nid
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we would put them on.

Q. Did he say whether the contract depended on you putting the crest and

-lettering on?

A. No.

Q. Did he tell you the others would put the crest on?
A. No, we didn't know that they had been even turned down.

Q. The result of your conversation was that you gave him a price on the cars?
A. I told him the crest and the lettering would be on.

Q. And then he told you you would get the order?

A. No, he didn't tell me tliat.

Q._What did he say?
A. That was all there was to it. We got word after that our tender wa.a

accepted.

Q. By letter?

A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN: The item of $9,999.58 is made up of eight times $1,240.01

plus $41, plus $22.50, plus $16, the $41, the $22.50, and the $16 being apparently

delivery, shock absorbers and supplies for one car ?

MR. DEWART: Now, Mr. Jerome, I find you have clone other business with
the Government besides that. You have sold other cars to them, have you not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How did you sell the other cars. Did you tender or were you asked to

submit prices?

A. We tendered for them.

Q. What was the next tender you sent to the Government, had you sent

a tender before these sixteen cars?

A. I guess it was after.

Q. Do you recollect tendering for twelve cars, for others apparently of a

different type, seventeen in' all? On page 747, of the Public Accounts, under

the heading of Public Highways, I see that you supplied For.d touring cars com-

plete, 12 at $927, 3 at $968.58, 2 at $730 ;
Ford one-ton truck with Goodyear cords

etc. $950, Ford runabouts, 3 at $730, roadster 1 at $741.72, tires and tubes

$1,528.48, sundries $3.25, including tax $21,412.80. How did you come to get

that order?

A. We tendered on it.

Q. Is the tender here? (Tender produced.) This tender appears to have

been just for the one car: "We beg to submit herewith tender for Ford touring

car, complete with standard equipment starter and tool box with Dominion non-

>kid tires on rear wheels for any number up to twenty, at the rate of $927, per car,

delivery to be made before July 1; 1920, at Toronto." Would that be in response

to an advertisement?

A. I believe that was sent by letter asking us to tender.

Q. Who sent the letter asking you to tender?

A. I believe it was Mr. Hogarth.

Q, Have you the letter he sent asking you to tender?

(Letter produced.)

Q.--This is dated May 1, 1920, "Dear Sir. Before 12 o'clock noon on Friday,
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May 7, we will be pleased to receive from you at the rate per car for any number

up to twenty, standard Ford touring cars, complete with starter. F.O.B., Toronto

delivery of these cars, to be completed on or before July 1, 1920. Yours truly,

Chief Engineer. N.B. This letter has been forwarded to the following: Ford

Motor Co., 672 Dupont Street, Toronto; M. and H. Jerome, Dundas; Sparling and

Eeeson, Cobourg; A. D. Gorrie and Co., 205 Victoria Street, Toronto; W. C.

Warburton and Co., 670 Bloor Street, West; Toronto Motor Car Co.,

52 Jarvis Street; Eiverdale Garage, 211 Hamilton Street; Universal Car Co.,

621' Yonge Street." Now I see under date of May 14, that George Hogarth, Chief

Engineer, of Highways, and W. A. McLean, Deputy Minister of Highways says:
"Tenders for the supply of one to twenty Ford touring cars prior to July 1st, have

been received and are as follows: M. and H Jerome $927; Sparling and Reeson

$927.80; A. D. Gorrie and Co., $929.30; Toronto Motor Car Co. $929.30; Uni-

versal Car Co. $931.55; W. C. Warburton and Co. $932.54; Bradley and Love

$932.79; Riverdale garage $934.30; 'See and Smith $939.30. 'I would respect-

fully recommend that the lowest tender received, being that of Jerome and Jerome

be accepted for the supply of from one to twenty cars, yours truly, George Hogarth,

approved F.'C.B.'
" Will you tell me, Mr. Jerome, how on Ford cars as to which

you have a specified territory you can tender at $937 at Toronto, when other To-

ronto dealers quote the standard price of $929.30? I am taking these two Toronto

ones. The Toronto Motor Car Company, being a Toronto firm quoted a price of

$929.30. Being the agent in Dundas how can you quote a price that was $2.30

lower, for delivery in Toronto?

A. We put on a non-skid tire. It didn't say as to what kind of a non-skid

tire.

MR. THOMPSON : You put on a cheaper tire ?

A. It cost us less.

MR. DEWART : What tire did you put on ?

A. A Dominion non-skid. It is a standard tire.

Q. The reason you were able to quote a lowe rprice is because of the difference

in the tire you put on ?

A. I suppose that is one reason.

THE CHAIRMAN: Don't suppose. Give a straight answer.

A. We put on a cheaper tire, but a non-skid which was asked for.

MR. SINCLAIR : So that we don't get as good a car from you as to equipment?

A. Just as good.

Q. You say it was a cheaper tire?

A. It cost us less.

THE CHAIRMAN : Do you know what the others put on ?

A. No, I don't know what they put on at all.

Q. Do you know what they quoted on?

A.No.
Q. Then why do you say yours was cheaper ?

A. Because we bought it lower.

Q. Was the tire that was put on the same tire that they put on or different?

A. The same tire, a Dominion tire.

Q. Is it of equal value?

A. No it is to-day.
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Q. Was the tire you were putting on that car of equal value to the tire the

ford Company, of Toronto, was putting on?
A. 1 can't tell you that.

Q. Then why do you say it was a cheaper tire?

A. We took the Dominion "nobby" off and put on another.

Q. How was it you were able to quote $2.30 cheaper than the Jarvis Street,

firm. That is what you were asked. Do you know?
A. No,

Q. You don't know what they were putting on ?

No, I didn't see it.

Q. Do you know what they were tendering, as to tires, on thajb car?

A. No.

Q. Then why do you say the tire you tendered for was cheaper than the tire

they were tendering for ? v

A. As a rule they come equipped with Dominion or Goodyear chain tread.

We put on a Dominion non-skid. That is a Dominion tire. We took the "nobbies"

off and put them on. There is about $4.00 difference in the tires.

Q. Do you know what they were putting on?

A. No.

Q. You don't know whether they were tendering on the same tire as you were

putting on or not?

A. No.

Q. Why was this, why were you able to put a tender in $2.30 lower?

A. We saw four others up there, ones they had delivered with Goodyear tires

on.

Q._Where ?

A. 15 Queen's Park.

Q. And this tire you put on was a tire you could purchase cheaper?
A. Yes.

Q. You don't know what they were tendering on, those tenders that went

in?

A. All I know is that we put on a cheaper tire.

Q. But you don't know what their tenders called for?

A. No.

Q. What does the tender say, what does the advertisement say?
A. Complete with standard equipment.

Q. Was that standard equipment ?

A. Standard equipment, with non-skids on the rear. It didn't specify trac-

tion, or nobby or chain tread. Non^ikids on the rear is standard equipment.

Q. Have you any knowledge whether the tire you put on would give as good
service as the "nobby" or the "cord" tread would?

Q, Did they ask for cord?

A, No, they didn't.

MR. BIGGS : Was there a tool box ? Wasn't a tool box mentioned there ? Was
the tool box standard equipment on Ford cars?

A. No, it wasn't. There may be a difference in our price and theirs on the

tool box.

Q. Where you aware of the price which Warburtpn had tendered shortly
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before ?

A. We didn't know what their tenders were.

. . Q. Shortly before that Warburton had supplied one to the Department. You
don't know what they were supplying for $929.30?

A. We didn't know anything about it. I saw four that had Dominion treads

on.

MR. DEWART: Who showed you those?

A. I saw them.

Q. How did you come to go across to 15 Queen's Park Avenue?

A. Wr
e were delivering cars there. There were other people delivering cars

triere besides ourselves.

Q. There is a letter here in regard to what the Minister of Public Works

has said. This is from the Universal Car Co. On May 7, in sending in a tender,

"We beg to state that the price of the car full equipped will be absolutely the

same from all dealers and the additional cost of the tool box depends largely upon
the style of box which is to be supplied. We have other tool boxes which will run

into a little more money than the one estimated and if the one tendered for is

not satisfactory we would be quite willing to make a change to any you desire.

I might refer you to Mr. Dunlop, Inspector of Prisons, as to the service given

the Government on cars supplied to that department." What tool box did you get?

A. I don't know who made it. It was just a standard tool box, 9 inch*:--

wide and 7 inches high.

Q. You didn't reckon 011 any particular advantage because of the style of

tool box you put on ?

A. Not necessarily.

Q. Did you or did you not. Was it only so far as the tires were concerned

that you were looking to get the advantage?
A. We put the tool box in as cheap as we could put it in.

MR. SINCLAIR : How much cheaper were the tires you put on than the ordin-

ary nobby tread?

A. About $4,50. The Dominion, that we put on was a better tire than

the Goodyear that came on from the other people.

Q. You say the Dominion tire you put on was a better tire than the Good-

rears that were there ?

A. It gave us less trouble.

MR. BIGGS : Isn't it a matter of choice which non-skid you purchase ?

A. Yes, one man would want the nobby and another wants the chain tread.

MR. SINCLAIR : This tire won't give the service that the nobby will ?

A. Sometimes a lot better. It is a matter of opinion.
MR. THOMPSON: In the early part of your evidence you didn't know whether

-on received a wire or a telephone message?
A. I said we received a telephone message.
Q. But you were indefinite for a long time?
A. Yes.

Q. If my memory serves me right you said you didn't know whether this

went to your brother or to yourself. Not sure yet are you ?

A. No.

Q- Then if you are not sure how is it that vou can record a conversation
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that took place between you and Dr. McOullough. You say you are not sure yet,
still you tell Mr. Dewart of a conversation that took place?

A. It was a telephone message.

Q. You say you are not sure whether your brother or yourself got it, that

is peculiar. How do you recollect those statements?

A. Just as I told you before. We discussed it between us. I don't remem-
ber every telephone message.

Q. And you don't know whether you received it or your brother?

A. As far as my recollection goes I received the telephone message.

Q. You said a moment ago you didn't know?
A. I say as far as I recollect.

Q. You don't know whether you did or not ?

A. I would not take my oath.

MB.. DEWART: But you got this business?

A. A lot of cars were bought that we didn't get, at a later dale.

Q. What do you mean by that?

A. We didn't get all the tenders.

MR. THOMPSON: You are not grumbling at the share you got?

A. No. .

MR. SINCLAIR: You sold cars at $730, was this in response to an adver-

A. I believe there is a difference in the sales tax.

Q. Is this all the one bunch together, the seventeen?

A. Yes, I think the difference in the price would be the difference in the

aales tax. I know there were things like that coming along.

Q. How can there be that difference in view of the tender you put in for

$927, for any amount up to twenty, you sold 12 at $927, 3 at $968.58, 2 at $730 ?

A. The difference in the sales tax makes the difference in price.

MR. BIGGS: On the 19th, of May, new regulations came through from

Ottawa affecting the luxury taxes and the sales tax. That is the same change, eff-

ective the latter part of May. As a matter of fact these are all on the same tender

A. Yes.

A. There is one roadster, three Eord Bunbouitis at $730. Is that arising out of

the same tender ?

A. I 'believe that is another tender. The tender on one to twenty is on tour-

ings.

MR. SINCLAIR: Were these tenders asked for ?

I believe some wertei advertised and some they wrote us. I a^ked Mr. Hogarth
that anytime cars or trucks were being bought to ghie us a chance to tender on them.

Q. How can he do that ? e

A. I don't know what he does. I suppose they have >a mailing list or something
Witness excused. The Committee thtetti adjourned.

Public Accounts Committee.

, April 20th, 1921.

The Committee met at 10 a. m. Mr. Curry in the chair.

Otter Elliot called -and 'sworn; examined by Mr. Price.

Q. 'What position do you occupy in the moving picture department ?

A. I am director of moving picture branches for the Province.

Q.I In what department was that ?
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A. The Treasury Department.

Q. How long have you been employed in the Department ?

I have been employed in the Treasury Department since 1911.

Q. How long in the moving picture branch, the motion picture bureau ?

A. Since January 1920.

Q. What were you on immediately before that ?

A. Inspection of Theatres.

Q. How long did you hold /that position ?

A. A little more than two years. ^^
Q. Were you chief inspector all that time ?

A. From 1911 until 1915 I was a member of the Boajrd of Censors. From
1915 until 1917 I was assistant inspector of theatres.

Q, Who was the inspector ?

A. The late Mr. Newman.

Q. On the deaith of Mr. Newman you were made inspector of moving
picture theatres ?

A. Yes.

Q. Who was the director of the bureau ?

A. Mr. Johnston from 1917 until the Fall of 1918. He died and Mr. Daw-
son took his position.

Q. Mr. -S. C. Johnston wasn't it ?

A. Yes. f

Q. He was the first director of the bureau ?

A. Yes.

Q. It was established in 1917 ?

A. Yes.

Q. Now under Mr. Johnston there were how many assistants ?

A. I don't know that.

Q. You would know Mr. Dawson and Mr. Tawse ?

Aj I knew about la year lago that Dawson and Tawse were in the bureau. I

had never met the men.

Q. When did you become head of the bureau in January 1920 ?

A. I would not say that. Tihe various moving picture departments that

ad to do with the movie business1 were put under any charge and the respective

heads remained the same.

Q. You were made director ?

A. No, sir. e

Q. Who was ?

A. Mr. Dawson.

Q. What was your position ?

A. I was simply in chargie of the various branches, the amusement tax

branch the theatre inspection branch.

Q. Who was in charge of that before ?

A^-Mr. J. T. Wlhlite. He resigned.

Q. Theatre inspection branch, that is what you were in charge of before f

A. Yea, .sir.

Q. What others ?

- The motion picture bureau, the board of censors.

Q. Anything elise ?

A. That is all.
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Q. What about the advertising branch,, the censoring of advertising ?

A. Thiat is paut of the board] of censors branch.

A. That wais under your supervision ?

Q. Now, the moving picture bureau, what were your duties in the moving

picture bureau ?

A. My duties were to supervise it along with the other branches.

Q. The amusement tax branch, what were your duties there ?

A. I was simply in charge of it.

THE CHAIRMAN: Tell Mr. Price when you came to work in the morning
what you had to do during the day while engaged in this particular work ?

A. It was really matters of administration.

MR. PRICE : You could <say that about anything. I want to know what your
duties were in tha branch ?

A. 1 answered certain correspondence. I certified to accounts payable and

I authorized the expenditures. I also directed the man in charge as to his duties.

Q. Then the collection of the tax on motion picture theatres in Ontario.

A Yes.

Q. Take the theatre inspection branch, what did you do in that ?

A. I directed inspection and did inspection myself and supervised the

issue of licenses.

Q. Each theatre was licensed ?

A. Yes, andj the operators of the theatres and 'assistant operators were also

licensed. ,

Q. Then -in the motion picture bureau itself, what was the work carried on

there ?

A. They saw to the making of motion pictures having to do with the Prov-

ince and getting circulation for them.

Q. What kind of pictures did you get out there ?

A. Agricultural pictures, scenic, industrial, pictures of the resources of the

Province.

Q. Originally they were mostly agricultural pictures ?

A. Yes, as far as I know.

Q. Wlho was it appointed you in charge of this work ?

.A Hon. Mr. Smith.

Q. You took over the work that Mr. White was doing and you continued to

work in your inspection branch, you supervised Mr. Dawson and you acted on the

Board of Censors ?

A No, sir, I never acted.

Q. You tsaid you were on the Board of Censors ?

A. No, I never said that. I said I was placed in charge of that branch.

Q. What were your duties in .the Board of Censorship ?

A. Just simply to look after the payment of accounts, the collection of

censorship fees. I hatd nothing to do with the decisions of the Board of Censors

on films.

THE CHAIRMAN: He was a member of the board prior to 1915.

MR. PRICE: When a filim was to be censored, when you were first upon the

Board of Censors, what wais the usual practice ? Did the film come into your

department first ?

A. Do you mean at the time T was in the Board of Censors myself ?
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Q. Yes ?

A. The film was brought in, the censor fee paid, the film censored and the

decision was made, and the film was returned to the owners.

Q. You were notified there was a film to be censored, and then you brought
it up to the Board ofi Censors ?

A. The only thing was the film was (brought in. I was only with the Board

of Censors until 1915.

Q. I thought you were there at -a la'ter dtate than that ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Then when you became director or supervisor of the moving picture
bureau and had charge of the censorship branch what were the duties of the

censorship branch.

A. To censor films and to give a decision.

Q. \Vhen a film came in to be censored, what did you do. What action did

you take.

A. Films were coming in there steadily from 9 until o. I never interfered

with them coming in or going out. I had nothing to do with it except to collect

the fee.

Q.-r-When a film came in to your department, did your department refer it

to someone to be censored ?

A. No, it went direct to the Board of Censors.

Q. It went just as it came in ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was there a report from your department to the Board of Censors on

these films ?

A. No, sir.

Q.- When a film comes in it is simply passed through your branch, it is

.-imply passed through to the Board of Censors.

A. Yes.

Q. Without any record in your branch ?

A. No record.

Q. No record at all ?

A. No.

Q. They just walk into the branch and right through into the Board of

Censors, and you have no record ?

A. No, sir

Q. Don't you collect a fee ?

A. Yes we have to collect that.

Q. Wouldn't there be a record in your books if you collected afee ?

Q. The Chairman : There would be a record of the fee ?

A. Oh yes. It would just be a record of a fee having been paid for a

certain number of rolls of film.

Q. Would there then, be a record kept in the Board of Censors ?

A. Oh, yes. And the record of that would have to balance with the record

of fees.

Q So you did keep a record of the fees. The film came in, the fee was paid,

another cam'e in and there was a fee on that, and another and there would be a

fee on tliait. And the names of the film and the particulars would be kept in the

Board of Censors office ?

A. Yes.
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Q. So that between the two places you had a complete record ?

A. Yes.

Mr. Price : You isaid that when the film came in you just put down &o much
fee for the film ?

A. I might put down, 4 rolls, so much money.
Mr. Hay: The fee was according to the reels ?

A. Yes.

Mr. Price: Who was it did the censoring during the time you were head of

the bureau ?

A. There were three members, Mr. Armstrong, Mr. Wilson and Mis*
Gassells.

Q. Was that during the year 1920 ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then there was an appeal from that Board, to whom was that appeal
made ?

A. To the Board of appeal composed of Hon. Mr. Smith, Mr. Matthews, the

assistant treasurer, and myself.

Q. So that practically there were two boards, the board of administration

composed of Armstrong, Wilson and Casisells and the appeal board composed of

Mr. Smith, Mr. Matthews the assistant treasurer, and yourself as head of the

motion picture department ?

A. Yes, sir

Q. Now, Mr. Elliott, when you were appointed assistant inspector of theatres

and inspector of thealtres what qualifications did you have for that appointment ?

A. I had a general knowledge of the theatrical business.

Q. You had <a knowledge gained from inspecting theatres ?

A. No, sir, but prior to working for the Government I had been employed
in various capacities in the theatrical business.

Q. Had you ever hamdiled the manufacture of any films ?

A. No, sir. I had a knowledge of it, but I never worked at it.

Q. Had you any experience in that line ?

A. No, sir.

Q. At the time you were appointed you held this other position. You were

put at the head of the amusement tax branch that took one man before, to look

after it ?

A. Yes. Mr. White was in charge but Mr. McKinley the chief clerk pract-

ically carried on the routine of the work.

e Q. You were given Mr. White's work ?

A. Mr. White carried on his duties as solicitor to the treasury and looked

after tine other branicihes.

Q. You were put over the head of Mr. Dawtson ?

A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Dawtson who had had charge of the letting of contracts for the

manufacture of films the Government wanted ?

A. Yes .

Q. You had that duty after that ? If tihe Government wanted any picture
manufactured you had those contracts to give ? They came to you for deci ion ?

A. There w*ais a call for oontracte because I could find none when I took

charge of tihe bureau there were none in existence.

<}. How dtid you arrange to have different films manufactured when you
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took charge ?

A. From January until July, Mr. Dawson was still in charge of the branch.

Q. He didn't leave the Government employ until July 1920 ?

Q. When you took charge of the branch you had supervision over Mr. Daw-
son's work, you told us. You were the one to whom, eventually, everything came

for decision ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q._You spenit here $80,000 odd with one company and $40,000 to $50,0v<)

with another. That is right ?

A. Yes, sir

Q. $85,461 to the Canadian Aero Co. and about one half that to the

Pathe company ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Tell us when you got the supervision of this motion picture bureau how

you arranged to supply the bureau with films ?

A. Mr. Dawson submitted a report on the number of films that should be

made and suggested that we divide the work between the two companies, which

was done

The Chairman: Was that in writing or verbally ?

A. I aji not sure. I think it was done verbally between Mr. Dawson and I.

MR. PRICE : Then you looked to Mr. Dawson. as the one to go to and consult

about the manufacture of films about the acquiring of films for the bureau?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you did do that ?

A. -Yes sir.

Q. He made certain recommendations and if they didn't suit you you had

authority to over-rule them ?

A. Yes.

Q. And did you over-rule?

A. I don't remember.

Q. You were at the head of this Department. I want to get what policy

you brought in as to acquiring films for the bureau?
A. I asked Mr. Dawson what his policy was. He gave me a policy and I

suggested going on with that policy.

Q. Will you tell us what that policy was?
A. A policy of making; a large number of the pictures having to do with the

scenic beauties and resources of the Province that could be used for propaganda

purposes in Canada, Europe and the United States.

Q. You had been manufacturing a lot . of agricultural films ?

A,, There were a great many others, sceric pictures made as well.

Q. But not nearly so many, the great bulk of your work was agricultural

films to send out to the various clubs and associations throughout the Province?

A. I would say a great many. I would not say the great bulk of them.

Q. I think you will find the great bulk of them, 80 or 90. You know of

course that these films were sent out to the rural districts for the purposes of

[being

shown there ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you tell me how many of these were sent out ? How many mach-
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A. No, sir. I have no real knowledge of that.

Q. You are at tl>e head of this Department Mr. Elliot, don't you know

they sent out machines to these associations?
"

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How much did these machines cost ?

A. I think I have sent out two since I 'have had charge.

Q. There are fifty or sixty out, aren't there ?

A. There is no record of that in the office.

The Chairman : (To Mr. Price) Bring out what you mean by associations

and the various institutes where these rural films were exhibited. What do yon
mean by "institutes ?

MR. PKICE: I think they were for farmers' institutes and farmers' clubs.

MR. BIGGS: There is no such thing as a farmers' institute in the Province

to-day and hasn't been for years.

The Chairman : Ask him to wha-t places they were sent and if there is a

record kept of where they were sent.

Mr. Price: Can you tell me where these fifty or sixty machines are ?

A. I believe they are with the agricultural representatives.

Q. In the various counties ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q And would be shown through the counties by the various associa-

tions and institutes ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where would the agricultural representative in the county show these

films ?

A. I believe at various mieieting's of farmers of the county, horse breeders,
cattle breeders, various affairs of tbat kind.

Q. Were they shown at farmers' clubs in the various counties ?

A. I don't know. The agricultural representative makes an application
for the use of a number of films, which are sent to him amd very rarely does he
state what he is going to use thietm for.

Q. Then, it was the policy of your department to send these out to th*

agricultural representatives ?

A. Yes.

Q. You cannot tell us what ttiese machines cost ?

A. They cost $235 each.

Q. That is the portable projecting machine ?

A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN: How long had that been carried on ?

A. Since 1917.

Q. And was just continued ?

A. Yes, sir.

MR. PRICE : How many more of these machines did you add to that ? I
think you 'Said four ?

A. No, two, that is all I know of.

Q. Making a total of how many machines ?

A. I have no record of how many machines tare out. There i no record
there to my knowledge.

THE CHAIRMAX : There Was no record there when vou took charge ?

A. No.
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MR. PBICE : You have been in charge two years, why can't you get a record

of it ?

A. I have only been in charge since July of last year.

Q. You have no record in your department of these machines ?

A. I don't think so, but I can find out.

Q. When you came into the Department you told us you carried out the

policy as outlined by Mr. Dawson ?

A. Yes.

Q. Just what was that policy as outlined by Mr. Dawson in respect to the

purchase of films ? You purchased $120,000 worth of films, that is what you

charged up to the country. We would lib to know how it was you made those

purchases and on what ibasds.

A. There were con/tracts made with both companies. They were given
orders to make certain films, they were made -and were paid for af the contract

prices.

Q. What were the contract prices ?

A. 75 cents per foot for negatives, 10 cents per foot for positives and I

think I would not be sure, 2 cenits per foot for toning and \Vi cents per foot

for tinting. With the negative I was to get what is known as test print.

That was included in the 75 cents per foot.

Q. So you really got the positive, the first copy of that ?

A. Yes but it couldn't ibe used, for circulation.

Q. 'So you really got a negative -and the first copy, whatever it was worth

for 75 cents per foot ?

A. Yes.

Q. Then you got another copy for 10 cents, a positive ?

A. Yes.

Q. Then the two cents, what was that charged for ?

A. For toning to give it color, to take out the black and white.

Q. What other charge ?

A. 1 !
/2 cents for tinting.

Q. What else ?

A. There was title cards at 75 cents each and art title cards from
I think they ran from $1.50 up.

Q. How many title cards would there be to a film, I suppose you could

hardly tell that ?

A. -No, they would vary.

Q. How many title cards would there 'be in 100 feet of film ?

A. There might not be any.

Q. /Does this refer to exterior work as well as interior ?

A. That is our exterior price I gave you . That is 75 icents per foot. The

charges for positives don't dhange. On interior work it was $1.00 per foot and
then there was phdtography from the air, that is, from an aeroplane, that was

$1.50.

Q. You had some of that work ?

A. Yes.

Q. Now are there any other charges that were made. We have exterior

work, interior work and aero film work ?

A. I think that is aill.

Q. Were there any charges a;s high as $% per foot ?
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A. Yes, there was on special work.

Q. What do you mean by special work ?

A. .For instance ithere was ia picture made from Toronto .to Hudson's Bay.

That was air photography and was made at the price of $2. per foot.

Q. To whom was that contract let?

A. To the Aero Film Company.

Q. Itow, Mr. Elliot, do you say that these were the prices charged by all

these companies that you do business with ?

A. There were only two companies.

Q. Who were they ?

A. The Canadian Aero Film Company and the Pathescope of Canada.

Q. And you claim there was the same charge by each company ?

A. Yes.

Q. -When you bought a film and commenced to inspect it to see if it was

one you would take or how much you should pay for it, what did you do ?

A. I had nothing to do with that until July.

Q. And after July ?

A. I found the Government had no measuring machine, no means of

measuring film and I had no record as to whether the films purchased had

been measured or not. I immediately ordered a measuring machine. I under-

stood that there were a great many films taken on the statement that there was

a certain amount of footage to it. I changed that.

Q. You ordered a measuring machine so you could measure these films ?

A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN : You got the machine ?

A. Yes.

Q. When ?

A. The latter part of September or October.

Q. How long after you ordered it ?

A. Six weeks or two months. It had to come from the United States.

MR. PRICE: Then, in measuring a film, tell us how you do that ?

A. It is put on what we call a re-winding apparatus. The film is on a reel

similar to a spool of tape. It is then rolled on to another wheel by a crank which

runs through a sprocket on the measuring machine and the revolutions of that

practically determine the footage.

Q. Then do you look at the film to see whether there is anything in it that

should be rejected. What are you entitled to reject or do you reject anything ?

A. I am entitled to reject ten per cent. After that I dan reject as much as

I please by paying at the raite of fifteen cents per foot.

Q. If you reject anything you have to pay 15 cents per foot for it ?

A. That is over ten per cent.

Q. iSo that when you first go over a film you reject ten per cent right

away ?

A. Yes.

Q. The next tiling, you would be entitled to reject ten per cent mo/re ?

That is right, isn't it ?

A. No, sir.

Q. How much would you be entitled to reject ?

A. For instance, a film 1,000 feet in length is submitted. We are entitled

to reject 100 feet of that without -ooat. That would bring iJhe film to 900 feet,
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fchen after that anything rejected we must pay at the rate of 15 cents per foot in-

stead of 75 cents per foot for the accepted film.

Q. Why $hould you pay fifteen cents a foot for rejected film ?

A.--B-. cause it is made under the direction, of one of the motion picture

bureau officials. That is photographed and perhaps afterward for some reason,

poor photography, or it doesn't fit into the story, it isi not taken.

Q. Film thalt isn't worth whalfc accepting ?

A. Yes.

Q. A man might shoot a hundred feet thia/t it was not worth while buying ?

A. Yes.

Q. You might reject a lot of film that was bad in itself, that didn't show

anything ?

A. Yes.

Q. It would be a Wank ?

A. We wouldn't consider that ask all. There would have to be a photograph
on it.

Q. You tell mte! that in rejecting those films that was the policy you carried

on with the Palthescope Company and the Canadian Aero Film Co. ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You carried out the same policy with the Pathiescope as with #K

Canadian Aero Film Co. ?

A. Yes.

Q. And you rejected, as you told us, ten per cent and probably ten per
cent more, and -a great deal more dior which you pay at 15 cents per foot ?

A. I don't think so.

Q. What would be the average rejection in a film of 1,000 feet ?

A. Sometimes there would not be anything because both of the film com-

panies trim the film before submitting it to us. They don't submit poor stuff

if they can help it. They usually trim it out.

Q. WHien those films came in who was it looked them over ? ^
A. Some official of the bureau, I didn't person-ally.

Q. Now, who would look them over ?

A. At the end of April last year a man was employed a& film editor.

I

THE CHAIRMAN : What was his name ?

A. H. M. Blake.

Q. As film editor, in the spring of 1920 ?

A. Yes.

Q. Then it would be either Mr. Dawson or Mr. Blake would look at the

films and pass upon tihem ?

J-\..""
" JL dS

MR. PRICE: And they would report to you the lamount of footage ?

A. No, ttoey would accept the film, the account would go through and would
be backed up by the voucher and sent on to me for payment.

Q. When you got that account after it had been checked up by the officer

in your department, you automtaticall'ly 0. K'd the amount ?

A. Yes, eir.

Q. Now, did both of these companies charge for tinting ?

A. Yes, sir. '

Q. Both charged \Vi cents for tinting ?
n

/'

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Who 'are assisting in your department at tihe present time, for the la*t

year ?

A. Mr Hurst, he started in August of last year, Mr. Blake, Mr. Severn,

Mr. Bull, he started in October of last year.

Q. Are these all new appointees ?

A. Yes, they are new positions.

THE CHAIRMAN: When was Mr. Bull appointed ?

A. September or October last.

MR. PRICE: When was Mr. Hurst appointed ?

A. August, last year.

Q. Mr. Blake ?

A. April, last year.

Q. Mr. S<evern ?

A. He was with the department before I was associated with it. There is

another, Mr. Norris, he started in two months ago.

Q. What were Hursts duties ?

A. Assistant to myself. He assisted ma in my work.

Q. He really took Dawson's place ?

A. No, eir.

Q, And Blake ?

A. He is film editor.

Q. Severn ?

A. He is a field man.

Q.Bull ?

A. He is a shipper.

Q. Norris ?

A. A moving picture operator.

Q. With that itaff of five you are able to carry on the department ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Commencing at the time you became head of the department the Path-

escope had been doing moslt of the business hadn't they ?

A. Until about February of last year they had done all the business.

Q. Was the Canadian Aero Films incorporated then ?

A. As far as I know.

Q. It was in existence ?

A. Yes.

Q. Were they doing business with the bureau when you became director

of it ?

A. I understand they had made some pictures under Mr. Dawson'fc in-

structionis.

Q. Can you tell me when they commenced to make pictures for the

bureau ?

A. Some time in the summer or fall of 1919.

Q. And when did the Patihe Company discontinue making pictures for the

bureau ?

A. They haven't.

Q. Are they still making some ? .

A. Yes.

Q. I see here their account is. something over $40,000 in the Public

Accounts and that of the Canadian Aero Film Company is for over $80,000
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$85,000. Isn't it the fact that the Canadian A.ero Films Company commenced

actively to do work 'for your department some time in April or May 1920 ?

A! Yes.

Q., (They may have done a little work before but they commenced to do

quite a lot of work about that time ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. They got the bulk of the work ?

A. I would not say that.

Q. From April or May 1920 until the end of the fiscal year in October

they got .bu/siness to the extent of $85,461, that is for six months work ?
"

A. Yes.

Q. And the Pathe work for $40,000 was for the whole year ?

A. Yes.

Q. -And moist of it before April or May ?

A. -No, sir.

Q. What proportion was before April or May ?

A. A very small proportion indeed.

Q. You claim that the Pathescope Company supplied their $40,000 after

April or May ?

A. Not all of it.

Q. How mu/dh of it ?

A. I would say $30,000 to $35,000.

Q. -Roughly they got $30,000 to $35,000 when the other company got

$85,000 ?

A. The other company had made two or three pictures prior to that time.

Q. I am godng on what you s<aid that the bulk of it wias in six months.

THE CHAIRMAN : That amount was for the last fiscal year, from the 1st of

Xovem'ber, 1919, to the 31s!t of Octolber, 1920 ?

A. Yes.

Mr. Price : That is not what he says.

THE CHAIRMAN: When did that extend over ?

A. The $85,000 extended from some time in January or February through
to 3 let October,

Q. -So that it wais for the fiscal year ?

MR. PRICE : Xot for* the fiscal year, for the fiscal year starts from the end of

>ctoiber.

THE CHAIRMAN : In November and December was there any work done ?

A. I do not know, I was not connected with the branch then.

Q. Does the account show for the fiscal year ?

A. They only did business from January or February.

Q. Their photography is it mostly aerial work ?

A. No, they db both.

Q. Is the bulk of it ?

A. Afltmost one haM off it is aerial photography .

Q. That is done when ?

A. It has to be done during the summer months.

MB. HOMUTH : Does the Patheiscope do aerial photography ?

A. No, they told me they were not equipped to do it.

Q. Aerial -photography is more expensive than the other ?

A. Yrs. I
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Q Thtit would account to a large extent for the extra charge for the

aerial films ?

A. Yes

MR. PRICE : Can you get for me how much have been spent in aerial

photography ?

A.- -I can give it from memory. It is $41,000 I think, but 1 will bring a

statement for you.

Q. -About the time you became head of this moving picture bureau, Mr.

Daw-son reported to you ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Wfliat did he say to you ? He had been the head and you were put

over him. What arrangement did you make with him ?

A. I told him to go ahiead and carry on as if there had been no change.

Q. Did he carry on ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then there .came a time when Mr. Dawson left the employ of the de-

partment ?

A. Yes.

Q. What time wias thait ?

A. That wais in July.

Q. Did he ask you anytthing aJbout it ?

A. Yes, sir. He took the matter up with me arid asked me my advice. I told

him at the time that I would not -care to advise him one way or the other. He

finally decided to accept it. I told him then that it was a much better propo-
sition than he ever would have with the Government.

Q. As a matter of fact he had been made an offer by one of the film com-

panies ?

A. Yes. ' -

Q. And he ai>sked you for advice on it ?

A. He asked me what I thought about it.

Q. Did you take it up with the Minister ?

A. CSTo, >sdr. I took it up with the Minister though, when he had definitely

decided to leave.

Q. You 'told the Minister that Mr. Dawson was going ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What ddd the Minister say to that ?

A. He askted me where he was going and I told him. He asked me what

hie proposition was and I told him. He said he thought it was better than he

could do with the Government, and to let him go as soon as he wanted to.

Q. Had Mr. Dawson had any difficulties with any of the companies ?

A. There had been misunderstandings by Dawson with both companies.

Q. Did he refer them to you for consideration ?

A. No, that was/ prior to my taking charge o*f the bureau when the real mis-

understanding occurred. He told me about that.

Q. He told you there had been misundierstandings ? During your time

had there been misunderstandings ?

A. I don't really think so.

Q. Then yon commenced giving business to the Canadian Aero Film

Company and Mr. Dawson went to work for the Canadian Aero Film Company ?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know Mr. Proctor, president of the Canadian Aero Film Co., ?

A. Yes'

Q. How long luave you known Mr. Proctor ?

A. It was some time in the spring of last year that I met him.

Q. You don't object to Mr. Proctor you have gone on a lot of trips with

him ?

A. I have gone away two or three times with him.

Q. You know Mr. Proctor very well ?

A. I have only known him since sometime last Spring.

Q. You have known him about six months but have got very, friendly ?

A. ^Yes. f

Q. He is one of your pals isn't he ?

A. No, sir. I would not clasis him as a pal.

Q. You did go on various trips with him throughout the country ?

A. I have only been out of the city with him twice, to my knowledge.

Q. You 'have been to New York with him ?

A. Once.

Q. You have been to the races with him ?

A. That wasn't out of the city.

Q. You -have been to a football match in Kingston with him ?

A. Yds, sir, that was coming back from New York.

Q. 'Thalt was on the New York trip ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You have been to the races at Windsor with him ?

A. He went up there one time when I went up, but I went up on business.

Q. You were both there together ?

A. Yes.

Q. You were on a hunting
1

trip up North with him ?

A. I wtetnt away on my vacation.

Q. He was one of your party ?

A. That was my v&ioation. Are you going to inquire into my vacation ?

Q. You did a lot of business with him, and then you toek your vacation

with him ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q.- You also know Mr. Elaine Irish, the secretary and manager of the com-

pany ?

Aj Yes, sir.

Q. Have you done business with him ?

A^YeB, sir.

Q. The motion picture bureau has its offices at 46 Richmond street west ?

Aj Yes, sir.

Q. And the CamaJdfraii Aero Film Co., are just to the rear of it ?

A. Yes.

Q. They are at 32 Qineen West ?

A. Yes.^

Q. And their premises back up to the Government premises ?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you get across from one to the other by fire escape ?
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A. Yes.

Q. So that you have a very close connection with this Canadian Aero Film

Company ?

Aj Yes, sir.

Q. You oan go back and forth ?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. They oan come into the Government offices that way ?

A. Yes.

Q.--There is not a lane there, is there. The fire escape is close enough so

that you can walk out on the fire escape and step in ?

A. We put a plank across from the window to the fire escape. It saves us

running around tthe block.

Q. 'So that when they needed a film censored or any business done they

jusft walk across the fire escape into your place very handy isn't it ?

A.r-Yes.

Q. During the time you were head of this moving picture bureau, what

was the first film there was any dispute about ?

A. I think it was entitled, "Toronto the Gateway of Ontario."

Q. When did you have that dispute ?

A. I had no dispute, it was Mr. Dawson.

Q. You had no disputes with these people at all ? e

A. Oh we had differences of opinion from time to time.

Q. You didn't get into the dispute class ?

A. We fougM sometimes.

Q. You 'bought a film from the Canadian Aero Film Co. about Niagara ?

A.- Yeis, sir.

Q. What was the name of the first film you bought about Niagara ?

A. I don't know which was the first. I bought
"

Niagara in Winter" and

"Niagara in Summer".

Q. You bought "Niagara Falls in Summer" and "Niagara Falls in Win-

ter." Then you bought another, a combination film ?

A. I bought a print made from these two.

Q. "Niagara Falls in Summer" and "Niagara Falls in Winter" and

"Niagara Falls, Winter and Summer". I see that "Niagara Falls in Summer"
cost $1,679.54, "Niagara Falls in Winter" $1,160.30, and then "Niagara Falls,

WHniter and Summer" $1,6,50 ?

A. I might exp'Dain to you thai all these accounts have been checked orer

since the end of the fiscal year and we found an error in the charge made for the

negative on that subject.

Q.I It Tiooks like moee than an error to me "Niagara, Nature's Master-

piece, $3,053.84."
A. Thai is where the mistake was made on "Niagara, Nature's Master-

piece".

Q. There was first a negative taken of Niagara Falls in Winter ?

A. Yes.

Q^ Have you goit thiait negative ?

\ Vs* i .
' A t/&

Q. You can produce that negative ?

A. Yes.
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Q- Then there was a negative "Niagara Falls in Slimmer" ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Oan you .produce that negative ?

A.- Yes, sir.

Q. Then there was a combination negative "Niagara Falls, Winter and
Summer." Have you that negative ?

AJ >No, sir, that was made from the first two you have mentioned.
Q- There was no new negative at all. It was simply a print, a combination

of what had already been taken ?

- A. Yes, that was for the Agent General's office in England.
Q. It was charged up here at 75 cents a foot the game as if you had taken

a negtatiye ?
"

Q. How did you pass that?

A. It woii'd come to me, as I have already stated and the voucher would
come ready for my signature from the motion bureau office. There wa-^ practb
ally no system when I took charge. That was sent in in the ordinary courses

The account has since been checked and I find the account is not in order and
I am getting a credit at tihe present time from the Canadian Aero Film Co.

Q. It took you ia long time to get this credit. It seems to me a peculiar

thing that you get a negative in the first two instances and no negative in the

third instance and yet you permitted a charge of $1,650. That is poor business

isn't it to allow that sort of thing ?

A. It was a mistake, sir.

Q. That is a mistake of $1,650 there. Then you have a diarge here of

$3,053 on "Niagara, Nature's Masterpiece." That is an overcharge ?

A. One of those is prints.

Q. Twenty prints $148.63 and illustrated titles 34 at $1.50. Twenty
prints to send to the Agent General's office ?

A. The Agent General's office ordered them from me.

Q. Twenty prints ?

A. Yes. They have made up twenty more.

Q. They surely never use twenty prints at one time ?

A. I have the Itettter from Dr. Creelman. I will show it to you.

Q. This is the letter from Dr. Creeknan written on the 27th of January

1921, "You will be interested too know, -worth regard to the films already sent,

that they are being well circulated. With regard to five of these films there are

over 40 copies of each now being shown throughout the coumitry in connection

with the Pathe pictorial. Each of these five isulbjects will go to over 1,000

theatre's in all, anfl it is safe to say that each of these five subjects will be seen

by four millions of people. In other ways we are also getting these films well

circulated but I think with the exception of the two copies we are ordering in this

letter, we have enough to be going on with for some time
' J The account here

is October 19th, did you have thalt letter of Dr. Creel'mian before you ordered

them ?

A. No, sir. Mr. Percivel from the Agent General's office was instructed

to come in and see me before he left for" England and (select the films he wanted.
He 'selected them and told me he would want twenty copies of eaich one he

sele-cted.
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Q. Was it a written order ?

A. iNo, sir. It all happened verbally.

Q. Now when you get films here for your own circulation how manj

copies do you find it necessary to get ?

A. Five.

Q._In y0ur experience here, five copies would circulate pretty well ?

A. Yes.

Q. They circulate to different theatres on different nights ?

A. Yes.

Q. How did you get the information that there was an overcharge on this

film ?

A. In making up the entries in the new card system. I am putting in a

new system. With tihat system there cannot be any overcharge at all.

Q. That wias in this year. This is the 16th of February 1921, six, seven or

eight months after they were paid $1,600, you discovered this discrepancy

who drew it to your attention ?

A. Mr. Hurst.

Q. He is your assistant ?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you a credit from the Canadian Aero Film Co.,?

A. No, sir. I notified them that they owed me a credit for that -and the

value of a machine, a motion picture machine I discarded here and sold to them.

I asked them to let me have a cheque.

Q. Have there been any more credits you are going to get from this firm ?

A. Not that I know of. ,

Q. That is the only one you discovered ?

A. I discovered another picture charged for but not completed.

Q. What picture was that ?

A. It was entitled "Shadowland." I advised them that I had no know-

ledge of the order of the film. I told them it was an uncompleted subject. That

bill was for a negative as we were not ready to go on with the picture.

Q. Is it not a fact that a great deal of the work clone by the Canadian

Aero Film Co. was paid for 'before you got the film ?

A. The negative was always finished.

Q. But before you goit the film and were able to show it they were paid for

it?

A. That practice had been general with both companies.
THE CHAIRMAN : For how long ?

A. As far hack as I can say.

MR. PRICE : You claim that the same thing applied to the Pathe, that you

paid for the film before you got it ?

A. I mighft siay there is $12,000 on hand now in the Pathe offices for work

that had not been completed, that has been paid for.

THE CHAIRMAN: I understand that was the policy of the old Government
as well as this ?

A. Yes, sir.

MR. PRICE : You mean $12,000 of film that had never been shown ?

A. Ye.s, the final scencis have never "been finished, and the films never

completed.
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Q. You are aware that a. picture ''Northward Ho " was shown here a short

time ago ?

A. Yes.

Q. That was paid for away back in October ?

A. The negative charge was paid.

Q. The company was paid for the whole thing in October and you didn't

get dt until the last month ?

A. No. I had some of it before that.

THE CHAIRMAN: Is the negative charge all the charge ?

A. That was all the charge made in October.

Q. Is that the whole charge ?

A. No, sir.

Q. You answered the question of Mr. Price, that the whole thing was paid
for in October. The whole thing hadn't been paid for ?

A. Just the negative charge was paid for.

MR. PRICE : You are quite clear that the whole charge was not paid for ?

A.Yes.
Q. The negative charge is the biggest charge ?

A.Yes.
Q. And the other charges are comparatively small, two cents, one and a

half cents and ten cents. The main charge of producing the film, the getting of

the negative, wais paid for months before you received it ?

A. Yes, sir.

THE CHAIRMAX : Was it done before the negative was completed ?

A. No, sir.

MR. PRICE : It was done before the negative was delivered to you ?

A.Yes.
THE CHAIKMAX : Are the negatives ever delivered ?

A. From the Aero Film Co, yes, from the Pathe, no. They claim we don't

own them.

Q. Neither you do as a matter of fact, the company claims that all they

owe you is a positive.

A. I have legal advice of the Department that we own the negative.

Q. The policy in your department both under the old and under the new

Government, as you say, was to pay for negatives before you received them ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long would that payment be made ahead of time ?

A. I have no knowledge, sir, any more than the fact that films commenced

in 1918 have been paid for and never completed.

MR. HOMUTH : With which company ?

A. The Pathescjpe.

Q. Paid for by whom ?

A. The Ontario Government.

Q. In 1918 ?

A.Yes.
Q. They were paid for away back in 1918 and havn't yet been delivered ?

A. No, sir.

THE CHAIRMAN : What were the subjects ?

A. Here is a list of them.
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last put in as Exhibit marked "A"
MR. PRICE : Mr. Elliott, this film "Northward Ho" I speak of is that

the correct name ?

A. There was a film "
Eyes North " made up from some of the negative

in order that we might use it at various Fall fairs. There is only a print charge
on that. There is no negative charge on "Eyes North."

Q. Has that all been paid ?

A. Yes.

Q. There is one here "Eyes North."?
A. You will notice, as I said, that there is only a print charge of ten

cents a foot.

Q. Where is "Northward Ho" ? Is that among the vouchers here ?

A. That should be there. It is under the name of "Hudson's Bay."
Q. In finding out this discrepancy when did you put in your card system ?

system ?

A. Commencing the first of November. .^

Q. -Your card sysitem was put right there at that time ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then when did you make this discovery, this $1,600 overcharge ?

A. I judge it would be about six weeks ago, the cards were only entered

up in the last six weeks.

Q. That is what I thought, since we put our motion in m the Public

Accounts here. In finding this discrepancy or overcharge of $1,600 isn't it a re-

markable thing Mr. Elliott that a charge of this kind would go through your de-

partment ?

Objection from the chair to form of question asked.

Mr. Price: How can you explain that double charge there ?

A. The lack of system.

Q. This is not a question of system. You had "
Niagara in Winter " and

i

Niagara in Summer ". You knew that, you knew you had those films isn't

that right ?

A.i Yes sir.

Q. And then you knew you were getting another one "
Niagara Falls Winter

and Summer "?

A. I might haw seen fifty accounts that day.

Q. You might have done a lot of things. I am not going into the things

you have done. Let us get down to this. You knew you had these films
" Nia-

gara Falls in Summer " and "
Niagara Falls in Winter " That is correct isn't it ?

A. Yes sir.

Q. And then* you were prepared to buy a combination film
"

Niagara Falls

Winter and Summer "
Why didn't you immediately check that up yourself when

it came to your attention ?

Aw That wasn't the only film I had on order, sir.

Q. It was a combination of the two you had. You knew you were not get-

ting a negative ?

A. I explained to you that these accounts

Q. I am asking the question. You knew you weren't getting a negative for
"
Niagara Falls Winter and Summer "?

A. I never looked at the account when I signed it.
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Q. You signed these accounts without looking at them ?

AJ No, not all of them.

Q. Do you mean to say that when this came up for your signature that you
didn't know you were passing an account for

"
Niagara Falls, Winter and Sum-

mer "
? Do you mean to say you didn't know that ?

A. I don't remember having seen it or I wouldn't havie signed it.

Q.- You say now that if you had seen it you wouldn't have signed it ?

A. Yes sir.

QJ -You had seen the film, exhibited the film,
"
Niagara in Summer "

was

exhibited ?

A. Yes sir.

Q. And you had seen that other one "Niagara Falls in Winter" run off ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you see the combination run off ? e

A. No sir. It was packed and shipped to the Agent General's office.

Q. Didn't you see it in the Department ?

A. No sir.

Q^ The Department didn't look over it ?

A. I didn't.
,

'

Q. Who did ?

A. Mr. Blake.

Q. You said it was the fault of the system. How was is the fault of the

system ?

A. The accounts would be received and sent down to the motion picture
bureau office. If everything was in order that would be put with the voucher
and sent down to me for signature. I accepted that as a proper system.

Q. You accepted that as a check?

A. I accepted the system I found when I came in.

Q. You found that system there. Under that system when an invoice came

up with a picture for your signature you signed it?

A. Yes.

Q. Relying on it having been checked up down there?

A. Yes.

Q. Then when you found a'mistake had been made you put in a new system?
A. I found the system was not right before I discovered there was a mistake.

Q. You found the system was not sufficient of a check and then you put in

new system?
A. Yes.

Q. And in putting in a new system you discovered this mistake?

A. Yes.

MR. HOMUTH : The men in the Motion Picture Bureau, would they have

known anything about these two films, "Niagara Falls in Winter" and
'

'Niagara

Falls in Summer"?
A. Yes. The film editor would know.

Q._Would he know that this other picture you sent to the Agent-General's

office had simply been a print from these?

A. Yes, because he edited the picture for the Agent-GeneralV, office.

THE CHAIRMAN : He would know there was no negative ?

A. Yes, sir. I
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MR. PRICE: You are making excuses for your department. !s there any
excuse for the Canadian Aero Film Company?

A. I don't know sir.

Q. They put this over on you, this $1,600 charge, was there an/ excuse for

that?

A. I cannot answer for the Canadian Aero Film Company.
Q. Is there any excuse for the man who signed the voucher and sent it to

you, the man whose duty it was to check this film?

A. The whole voucher was signed by me.

Q. Then who was it signed it first?* This is July 17th, 1920. I thought

you told me it was checked over by Mr. Blake and sort up to you?
A. If that is July 17th, it must have been checked by Mr. Dawson.

Q. It is signed by Mr. Elliott?

A. It must have been checked by Mr. Damson.

Q. Here is an initial here.

A. That is the audit office initial.

Q. Is there any excuse for the man, whether Mr. Dawson or anyone f*lse

who checked over this and allowed this $1,600 item to go through?
A; No, not if he checked it.

Q. Then someone should check it. I want to know whose duty it should

be to check it. You say you worked like a machine when it got to you. I want

to get to a man who doesn't work like a machine ? _
A. It would be Mr. Dawson or Mr. Blake.

Q. When you put in a card system, how would that card system affect the

accumulation of papers and accounts up to that time?

A. Everything was obtained from the files.

Q. I know. You are putting in a card system. Do you tell me you
went back and put in a system for six or eight months?

A. We put in a card system right back to 1917.

Q. You are taking it the whole way back?

. Yes, and I feel we will get a lot of money back.

Q. When you discovered this overcharge, this item of $1,600, what did you
do?

A. I phoned the Canadian Aero Film Company right away.

Q. You phoned you didn't write a letter ?

A. I don't remember. I don't think so.

Q. When did you phone them?
A. Right in my office.

Q. Mr. Hurst brought the three cards, into my office as I nave shown them

to you. He told me there were not three negatives and I said no. But the three

negatives were charged. I said I will phone him and tell him they owe us a

credit for that,

Q. What month and what date was it?

A. I don't know. I cannot give you the date.

Q. What month was it?

A. Last month.

THE CHAIRMAN: Did you get a credit?

A. Not yet, sir.

MR. PRICE: Wouldn't it 'be a good idea to put yourself on record with regard

to that? You discovered this $1,600 over-charge in one film with this company.
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Wouldn't it have been a better idea to put yourself on record demanding it?

A. Yes.

Q. Who did you get on the telephone?
A. Mr. Irish.

Q. What is his position ?

A. Manager.
Q. What did Mr. Irish say?
A. He said he would look it up and certainly if a negative was charged

for we would get the money back if it was coming to us.

Q. But you haven't got the money back?

A. No, sir.

Q. You haven't got a credit yet?
A. No, sir.

Q. '-That is a matter to be readjusted?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. In what other case do you know there has been an overchareg, when they

billed you for money they hadn't any right to?

A. No other case that I can think of.

Q. Outside of this one item you think the accounts of the Canadian Aero

Film Company are all right?

A. Yes, sir. Of course they were paid for film not completed, as has already
been brought out.

Q. How much would that aggregate?
A. I don't know. It would likely be around $25,000 or $30,000.

Q. That is, this company was paid $25,000 or $30,000 for negatives they
hadn't yet delivered?

, ,

A. Yes, sir. As .it is being delivered it is being measured and compared
with the amount charged. If the account is not in order we will insist on a

credit, but everything has been in order so far.

THE CHAIRMAN": The negatives had been completed and they had been paid
for the negatives?

A. Yes.

Q. And now they are delivering the film?

A. The film has to be edited and as the editor goes through that and puts

the titles in it that explain the story, he passes the film and it is then measured.

That is compared with he account paid and if we find any discrepancy we will take

the matter up with the company. , , ,

Q. What have you paid in respect to these things now coming through,

have you paid for the film?

A. Just the negative.

Q. And when the film comes through you get a bill for the film ?

A. Yes.

Q. And then there is to be a further payment? ,

A. Yes.

Q. And your payment on the negative depends upon the number of feet of

film used?

A. Yes.

Q. The negative may have been charged at so many hundred . feet, and if the

used film was only so much you deduct that from the negative?

A. Yes.
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MR. HOMUTH: At the present time with the Pathescope Company you have

paid them $12,000 for undelivered films?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that they have already received $12,000 for work for which you have

not as yet received flip;:

A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN: That is a 1918 matter?

A. It carries from 1918.

MR. PRICE : You have told us the charge for outside work was 75 cents a foot

with extras?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And interior footage is $1.00?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And aerial film work $1.50?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You &ay that in some cases where there is special work like the Hudson's

Bay work it is $2.00 ?
"

A. Yes.

Q. Well, now, why is it in the invoice for the Hudson's Bay film that you are

charged with 4,225 feet of aerial footage at $2.50?

A. Then the contract is $2.50 I won't be sure of the price.

Q. 4,225 feet at $2.50, $10,652; then 5,029 feet of ground film. What
does that mean?

A. That was taken from the ground.

Q. $2.00?

A. That was the arrangement. The ground photography on that trip was

$2.00 where ordinarily we pay 75 cents, and we were paying $2.50 for aerial

photography.

Q. When was the Hudson's Bay film delivered? Is that "Northward Ho?"
A. The complete story isn't delivered yet.

Q. Here is an invoice of delivery on September 24th, 1920, and paid for?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is one in the list. There is an advance on that of $21,000?
A. Yes, sir.

MR. CURRY: Was the negative complete?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. How much did the negative amount to?

A. That is for the negative.

Q. And that was complete?
A. Yes.

Q. So you paid for work actually done?
A. Yes, sir.

MR. PRICE: It was not accepted at that time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. The negative hadn't been delivered?

A. "No, sir.

Q. You paid this amount on that before delivery of the negative?
A. They weren't supposed to deliver the negative until the prints were made.

Q. It was before you checked up the amount ?

A. Yes.
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Q. The amount was not checked up and the negative was not delivered but

you paid $21,120.50. That is correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You may be able to get back a rebate on that?

A. I think we will have to pay them some more money.
Q. Don't you think there has been an 'Overcharge on all the accounts by both

of these companies, both the Pathescope and the Canadian Aero Film Company?
A. I think there has been in the past.

Q. Don't you think there has been an overcharge by both of these companies?
A. Not at present. .

Q. Has there been during the last fiscal year?
THE CHAIRMAN: During the time covered by these accounts?

A. I think so.

Q. Wouldn't it be a good idea if some one, independent, should check over

these films and find out?

A. I would be glad to have it.

THE CHAIRMAN : When you are making out this new system, is it checked

then ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is all checked?

A. Absolutely checked.

Q. As soon as you get the cards completed they will be an absolute check?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How far have you gone over the accounts for the last fiscal year? Is

that complete?
A. I do not know. We have started from this time backward, rather than

from 1917 forward. We are^going back.

Q. How far are you back?

A. I don't know, sir.

Q. But it will be a complete check when you go back, and this has been

done ?

A. Yes, sir, and every foot of film is measured before there is any entry

in the cards.

Q. As soon as the card system is complete you will have a correct count of

the number of feet of film in each negative?
A. Yes, sir. And I will know if the film companies owe us any money.

Q. You will have a check on the Canadian Aero Film Company negatives?

A. Yes.

Q. But the Pathescope negatives are not given in?

A. No.

MR. PRICE: The only way to check up and find out whether you have been

overcharged is to check up the negative with the invoice ?

A. Yes.

Q. That is the only way?
A. Yes, sir.

Q t That work would have to be completed carefully before one would be able

to ascertain whether there had been tremendous over-charge or not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Someone would have to go through it and measure it carefully?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. And in addition to that check out what should be paid for and what

should not be paid for?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. To see whether ten per cent, of the film was taken off and whether other

poor film was cut out?

A. Oh no, they are accepted stories.

Q. In checking those up you need three things, the invoice, the negative and

the positive, those three things?
A. Yes.

Q. You would have to find out what should have been deducted when the

film was passed by your department in the first instance. You may not have

deducted anything?
A. We can't deduct it now, we have accepted the picture.

Q. But you may have accepted a picture that you should not have accepted
in that shape?

A. No, we accepted it and said it was a good story.

THE CHAIRMAN: Are there any pictures you should not have accepted that

you know of?

A. None that I know of.

Q. You are checking up these films?

A. Yes.

Q. You check up the negative and you check up the film you have got there

and you see whether you have the proper footage do you?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that is checked up with the account?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then you know at once whether you tave been overcharged or not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were asked by Mr. Price whether you could tell whether there were

any tremendous overcharges before you checked up?
A. Not before, after.

Q. What do you mean by tremendous?

A. That was just merely Mr. Price's suggestion that I could find out

whether they were small or tremendous.

Q. What has been the result of the checking up so far?

A. I have found this one item.

Q. This one $1,600?
A. Yes.

Q. Have you found any others?

A. That $12,000 that was referred to.

Q. Those you know as outstanding since 1918? When, you get through
down to 1917 then you will have the details of every over-charge if there is any?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You will have the picture there, the accepted picture with the footage
and the footage of the negative?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that you will know accurately what you got, what they are

entitled to be paid for that and what you .did pay them?
A. Yes.
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MR. PRICE: Suppose you take one film, any film you like, and you have a

positive haven't you?
A. Yes.

Q. And that film when it comes into the department should be inspected

by your officers shouldn't it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you ever do that personally?
A. No, sir.

Q. Do you inspect any of them personally?
A. I have looked over an occasional film but I leave it to the film editor

to pass final judgment upon it.

Q. Who did it before the film editor got there?

A. Mr. Dawson or some member of the staff.

Q. When was the film editor appointed ?

A. He was not appointed until some time after Mr. Dawson left. He was

appointed in April last and Mr. Dawison left in July.

Q. I thought you said he was appointed in April of this year?
A. No sir. last year.

Q. In going over a film it would not be a common thing to reject 25 or 30

per cent, if the film was a poor one?

A. I have no knowledge of that.

Q. You cannot say whether that is correct or not?

A. No.

Q. You cannot say whether the rejections should be 20 or 25 per cent.?

A. No, sir.

Q. Then I cannot get evidence from you as to whether the proper reductions

were made or not?

A. The only evidence I dan give you is that the man who finally accepted

the film said it wtas o\ good story and passed upon it.

Q. If it was not properly checked it would amount to a big over-charge?
A. It would not amount to a great overcharge.

Q. Would it amount to ten per cent, or twenty per cent.? You take off

ten per cent, first and then ten per cent, again?
A. No. sir, I corrected you before on that. We -are allowed to' reject ten

per oenst. If there is a thousand feet in a film we -are entitled to take off 100 feet

without any charge, then after that we pay fifteen cents per foot for any we take

off.

Q. Then supposing you bought the rest after the ten per cent, was taken off,

at 75 cents or $2.50 a foot, instead of paying for a lot of it at 15 cents a foot on

the poor stuff which should 'be rejected then there would be a big overcharge?
A. Are you talking about film we have ailready paid for and for which the

negative has been delivered?

Q. I am talking 'about the film that goes in the department. If it is not

properly checked, if the offitcer doesn't cut out the ten per cent, or doesn't cut out

what he should have at fifteen cents a foot then there would be a big over-cbar^o

against the department?
A. I am afraid either one of us doesn't understand it. My point is this : The

film company gives us a negative to look at. We cut it to suit ourselves and wo

flay, tihis is aMi night. We say this is whiat iwe -are paying for. If, after measuring
it afterwards, we find the company charged too much we are not going to start and
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cut the film.

Q. You inspect the negative first do you inspect the negative or the positive

copy?
A. The negative and the positive.

A. You run the positive through ?

A. Yes, we run the positive on the curtain.

Q. Then what the Province pays depends upon what you reject, the amount

of footage you reject?

A. Yes.

Q. Then if you don't reject any, or very little the Province would be paying
too much?

A. Some times it is not necessary to make any rejections at all.

Q. When a film comes up for examination in your department, supposing
there is 1.000 feet in the film. If the department allowed the 1,000 feet in the

charge fto the Government that would amount to quite an overcharge ?

A. No, sir.

Q. When they allow a thousand feet you claim that is not correct, whether

they have cut off nothing or not?

Q. If we are going 'to discard something, all well and good ,but if we accept a

thousand feet we have to pay for it.

THE CHAIRMMAN : If that whole film is kept and you accept it you pay for

1,000 feet. If the film is bad and you cut it out what do you pay then?

A. On all over ten per cent, at the rate of 15 cents per foot.

Q. When you measure up now are you able to determine as to whether you
have paid for more than you should?

A. Yes sir.

Q. That is capable of determination now?
A. Yes sir.

MR. PRICE: Aren't there many places where you haven't cut out Anything at

all and have simply taken the negative as produced?
A. Assuredly.

Q. Cases where you haven't cut out anything at all?

A. Certainly.

Q. You don't take advantage of the ten per cent. ?

A. If the story was good we might not cut at all.

THE CHAIRMAN: If you took advantage of the ten per cent you would cut

out something you want?
A. Yes sir.

MR. PRICE: There are many films where you haven't rejected anything?
A. Yes.

Q. You claim the Province should pay for the whole film as you ta.ke it?

A. Yes sir.

Q. Bo you think that is protecting the Province, to go over a film and reject

nothing ?

A. Yes sir.

Q. What proportion of the purchases from these film companies would
there had been no rejection, how many films?

A. I don't know. I have no Idea.

Q. What proportion ?

A. I have no idea.
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Q. Fifty per cent., seventy-five per cent.?

A. I don't know, Mr. Dawson or Mr. Blake might be able to tell you that,

MR. PRICE: Take some particular film.' Take the film passed recently, "Damaged
Goods." Do you remember when it came into the moving picture bureau?

A. It was never in the bureau.

Q. Are you sure about that?

A. Positive.

Q. Are you sure it didn't come into your bureau in the first instance?

A. Positive.

Q. I am told that it came into your bureau addressed to you from Chicago?
A. It came into my office. It was addressed to me. A number of the film

companies do that. They send films in that they don't know will pass the censors

and the customs officials allow them to send them to the Ontario Government

office in bond for censorship purposes. If they don't pass they are returned.

Q. So the film "Damaged Goods" came addressed to you?
A. Yes sir.

Q. To the director of the motion picture bureau for Ontario?

A. I don't know how it was addressed.

Q. It came addressed to your department?
A. Yes.

Q, When it came to you did you open it?

A. No. as a matter of fact it didn't come into my office. I got the notice

from the customs officials.

Q. How did you know what to do with it? This film was not shown in

Canada before?

A. Yes it was.

Q. Where was it shown it was just shown for censorship purposes. It

hadn't been shown to the public?
A. It had) been in Oaniadla, not in Ontario. In practically every other

Province.

Q. This department here had acted on it?

A. Yes.

Q. When did it come into your bureau? The bureau got the pciture, it was

addressed to them and they got it?

A. No sir.

Q. Do you mean to tell me that picture didn't come into your bureau?

A. I am swearing it.

Q. You or someone in your employ down at the bureau?

A. I will swe&r they didn't.

Q. You swear you don't know anything about it?

A. I won't swear that.

Q. Will you swear you don't know anything about it coming into your

bureau ?

A. I will swear I didn't see it in a Government office until it was submitted

for censorship.

Q. Who submitted it for censorship?

A. The Canadian Aero Film Co.

Q. When wag that submitted?

A. I don't know, it would be in winter, January or February.

Q When was it announced it was going to be shown ? When was it shown ?
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A. I don't know.

Q. You are a;t the head of this picture bureau in the Province, you should

know when it was shown. You are keeping track of these things.

A. No sir, it doesn't belong to the Government.

Q. Did it come up before yon for inspection?
A. The only time it came before me was when I was a member of the Board

of Appeal.

Q. There was an appeal, did it go to the Board of Appeal?
A. There was an appeal on it about the 8th of November, 1919.

Q. Was the film here in November, 1919?
A. Yes.

Q. It had been up before the Board of Appeal and the censors and rejected?
A. Yes sir.

Q,.' It came up before the Board of Appeal composed of Mr. Smith, Mr.

Matthews and yourself?

A. Yes.

Q. What did you do?

A. We rejected it.

Q. -When did it come up again?
A. Just this time here in the winter.

Q. Just the two occasions you had it before the censor board?

A. No, it was up before the censor board back in the late Government's

time when Mr. McGarry was chairman of the Appeal Board.

Q. And it was rejected then ?

A. Yes.

Q. When it came before the Board of Censors in January or February was

it passed then?

A. Yes.

Q, It didn't get before the Board of Appeal the second time ?

A. There is "no appeal board now.

Q. That hag been wiped out?

A. Yes.

Q. Did H come before the new Board of Censors?

A. Yes.

Q. And passed by the new Board of Censors?

A. Yes.

MR. SMITH : Is there not a board of appeal?
A. There is a board of appeal the full Board of Censors.

Q. What does the Censor Board do when they pass a film like that?

A. They issue a certificate.

Q. A certificate that it may be shown?

A._Yes.
Do you know who owned this film, "Damaged Goods" before it was purchased

by the Canadian Aero Films Co.?

A. I just know the company that made the picture.

Q. You don't know who was the owner of it?

A. The company that owned it attempted to sell it two or three times in

Ontario for use, a company in Chicago.

Q.' In your relatdonsihdpis, or your work with the Canadian, Aero Film

Company you were in touch with the president of the company, Mr. Proctor?
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A. Yes sir.

Q. And they were pressing from time to time to have certain contracts

made this Hudson's Bay contract?

A. No, they never pressed.

Q. "The Silver Trail" contract?

A. There was no contract in connection with that in my time.

Q. When you wanted to -buy a film you did business either with Proctor or

Irish for the Canadian Aero Film Co.? You were directly in touch with them?
A. Yes sir.

Q. Where is the head office of the Canadian Aero Film Co. ?

A. 39 Queen Street West.

Q. That is in Toronto, is that the head office of the company, do you know?
A. The onOy office I know of.

Q. Don't they have meetings in Hamilton?
A. I don't know anything about that.

Q. Have you attended meetings of the board of this company in Hamilton?
A. No sir.

Q. You are not on the board for this company?
A. No sir.

Q. I am told you have attended these meetings in Hamilton with Mr.

Proctor ?

A. No sir, I never attended, a meeting of any kind with Mr. Proctor, in

Hamilton or elsewhere.

Q. You never attended a meeting of the board of the Canadian Aero Film

Co.?

A. No sir.

Q. Do you remember an occasion when last October you went to Hamilton
with Mr. Elaine Irish?

A. Yes sir.

Q. To a meeting of the company there?

A. Mr. Irish went to a meeting of the company. I was not at the meeting.

Mr. Irish was going to Hamilton and I motored him up.

Q. You have been at shareholders meetings of this company?
A. No sir.

Q. Now Mr. Elliott, aren't you a phareholrler in this company?
A. No.

Q. Don't you hold stock in the company?
A. I don't hold stock in any theatrical venture of any kind.

Q. I am not asking broadly. Don't you hold stock in this company?
A. No sir.

Q. Is it held in the name of a trustee?

A. No sir.

THE CHAIRMAN: Have you any interest, directly or indirectly in any way,

lape or form in the stock of this company?
A. No sir.

MR. PRICE: Isn't this stock held) for you in the name of a trustee?

A. If it is I have no knowledge of it, sir.

Q. Isn't it a fact that Mr. Irish offered you stock in the company?
A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Elaine Irish offered you stock in the Canadian Aero Film Co. when?
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A. In the summer of 1919.

Q. How much stock did he offer you ?

A. He didn't offer me any amount. I told him I wasn't interested.

Q. What were you doing then?

A. I was inspector of theatres.

THE CHAIRMAN: What time in 1919?

A.. I judge it would be in the summer.

Q. What was the offer:

Objection by MR. PRICE to interruption in his examination.

MR. PRICE: At the time this offer was made, you were inspector of moving

picture theatres?

A. Yes.

Q. In what month in 1919 was that offer made?
A. I don't know, it was prior to the election.

Q. Now give us what he said to you. Where did it occur?

A. In my office.

Q. What was he doing in your office?

A. I met him in the corridor. I was personally acquainted with him. I

asked him to come into my office and sit down. He came in. It was just a little

friendly talk, I wasn't busy just then. While we were talking he said "Say, I want
to know how you would like to take some stock in my company." I said I couldn't

afford it.

Q. You knew his company?
A. It had onily been started as far as I know. I said I couldn't afford it.

He said "Well, I don't mean that. I wanted to give a lot of my personal friend?

some stock." I said that as* far a.s I was concerned I wouldn't hold stock in any-

thing that had to do with the theatrical business. I had been offered it repeatedly
and have refused it.

Q. Did he mention the amount of stock?

A. No sir. The amount was never reached.

Q. Did he at any other date subsequently make you an offer of stock in the

company ?

A. No sir.

Q. Do you konw of your own knowledge whether he made offers to othrr

people ?

A. Yes, he made an offer, at least Mr. Dawson told me he made an ofTp-

to him a'bout the same time.

Q. You weren't present when that offer was made?
A. Oh, no.

Q. Just to follow that up, did, Mr Proctor make you an offer?

A. No sir.

Q. Did Mr. Proctor make you a loan?

A. Ye?, sir.

Q. For how much?
A. $1,700.

Q. What was the date of that, about what time w:\.s it?

A. In Ma rob, a year ago, March, 1920.

Q. Where did that occur, in your office?

A. No, sir.

Q. At 39 Queen, West?



George V. APPENDIX No. 2. 375

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Tell us how that occurred, tell us the circumstances of it?

A. Do I have to go into my personal business?

THE CHAIRMAN : I think you should.

MB, PRICE: Tell us about it?

A. He told me he would loan it to me on a note if I could get a satisfactory
backer. He would not accept my own note.

Q. How was it you needed the money?
A. I was buying another motor car. He said if I could get a backer he

would loan it to me. He wou^d not loan it on my note. I got him a backer

satisfactory to him and a note was drawn.

Q. Why did; you go to Proctor?

A. I knew Proctor had lots of money
Q. Proctor was president of the Canadian Aero Film Company that you were

giving contracts to at the time?

A. They had one contract.

Q. You were giving them subjects to work on at the time?

A. Dawson and I divided them up.

Q. You were at the head of this department giving them work at the time?

A. Dawson was really giving them more work than I was.

Q. The moving picture bureau you were head of was giving the Canadian

Aero Film Company work to do?

A. Yes.

Q. And it depended on your say so, isn't that right?
A. Yes.

Q. You went to Proctor to get a loan ?

A. Yes,

Q. For $1,700?
A. Yes.

Q. You went into his office?

A. Yes.

Q. You wanted to buy a car?

A. Yes,

Q. And Proctor said to you that you would have to get security?
A. Yes.

Q. Did you give him a note?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long was that note for?

A. It was on demand.

Q. Has it been paid?
A. Not fully.

Q. What has been paid on it?

A.- I think, there is a balance of either $80 or $180 owing. I am not sure

Q. You have been paying it off?

A._Yes.

Q. Isn't it the fact that the intention was to give you a car ?

A. No.

Q. Isn't that right, that the Canadian Aero Film Company intended to

ive you a car?

A. Not to my knowledge.
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Q. This money was given to you for that purpose?
A. No sir, this money was loaned to me. Mr. Proctor knew what I waa

going to do with it.

Q. He knew you were putting it in a car?

A. Yes.

Q. -What car did you buy?
A. A Dodge.

Q. When was it bought?
A. Some time in March, 1920.

Q. You have paid this baick all but $100 or so, how was it paid back?
A. I don't remember. There was no set amount. I paid it back from

time to time.

Q. What arrangement did you make with Proctor to pay it back?

A. Merely that it would be paid on demand. As a matter of fact I don't

want to go into my personal affairs until I have a ruling from the chair.

Chairman ruled that questions should be answerer!.

WITNESS: Proctor has a note and the amounts paid aro endorsed on the back

of the note.

Q. At the time you paid it?

A. Yes.

MR. PRICE: How did you pay it? Did you pay it by cash or cheque or how?
A. I paid it practically in cash.

Q. All the payments that went to Proctor wi>r in cash?

A. Yes.

Q. No cheques at all?

A. N"o sir.

Q. What times did you pay it? When did you start to pay it?

A. I don't remember.

Q- Did you start to pay it in April or May of 1920?
A. I think it would be April.

Q. How much did you pay in April?
A. I don't remmember, that would show on the note.

Q. Did you get an endorser for the note?

A. Yes.'

Q. Who was the endorser?

A. I don't care to sav unless T am forced to it.

Q. Who was the endorser?

A. Mr. Matthews, the Assistant Treasurer.

Q. Then we have this situation Mr. Elliott, thait you as head of the moving
picture bureau get a loan of $1,700 on your own note endorsed by the Assistant

Treasurer. of the Province?

A. He was secretary to the Minister a.t that time.

Q. -And both of you were on the board of appeals at that time? Isn't that

right?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. What do you say was the amount of the note?

A. $1,700.

Q. This very overcharge happened to he $1,800. T don't know whether there

is any connection there or not is there any connection there?

A. Absolutely none.
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Q. To get away from that; you had a trip on your vacation, to the North

country, didn't you?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Mr. Proctor was along on that trip ?

A. Yes.

Q. And Mr. Matthews was along?
A. Yes.

.Q. Who else?

A. Mr. Long.
Q. What was this, a moose hunt?
A. Yes, but we didn't get any moose.

Q. You went along, and Mr. Proctor and Mr. Irish?

A. Yes.

Q. You didn't seem to be offended at Mr. Irish because he male you that

offer or stock, you still kept friendly with him?
A. No, I never took it to heart at nil.

Q. Mr. Irish was along on the trip thnt wa in October, 1920?

A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Proctor, Mr. Mattthews ami yourself who else?

A. Mr. Long, Mr. Smith, Mr. Nixon, Mr. Pepall.

Q. Anyone else?

A. That is all I think.

Q. You were very friendly with this Canadian Aero Film Company?
A. Oh, yes.

Q._Which Mr. Pepall was that ?

A. Mr. A. H. Pepall.

Q. Is he in the Jarvis firm, or was he the gentleman who went oversea??

A. He is the gentleman who went overseas, I think.

Q. The one who was here as1 a witness?

A. Yes.

Q. When you went on this trip how long were you away?
A. Only eight days.

Q. You had a private car?

A. Yes.

Q. Who pupplied the private car?

A. I don't know.

Q. You didn't help to pay for it?

A. $90 was what I was charged.

Q. Do you know who supplied the private car?

A. No sir.

Q. Was it the Canadian Aero Film Company that paid, for it?

A. I think it was Mr. Pepalil but I am not sure.

THE CHAIKMAX : What do you mean by thatv rtihat Pepall made the arrange-

ment and wa,< paid by the others. >

A. That is what I understood.

MR. PRICE: You said Pepall paid for the car?

A. I will put it this way he arranged for the car.

Q. You didn't say that. You said Pepall paid. T said "did the Canadian

Aero Film Company pay" and you said Pepall paid.

A. I saad I thought so.
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Q. You meant that he paid for this private car?

A. Not with his own money, I don't think so.

Q. Was the $90 charge for food and refreshments?

A. I understod that was for everything.
THE CHAIRMAN: Just explain the whole thing in regard to the private car

and your paying, just as you understand it.

A. I went on the trip and I understood the expenses would be divided up.

I was told on the way home on .the last afternoon on the train that my share of

the expenses would be $90.

Q. And you paid $90?
A. Yes.

Q. Whom did you pay it to?

A. To Mr. Proctor.

Q. How many were on the trip?
A. Nine, I think.

Q. And your share amounted to $90 ?

A. Yes, sir.

MR. LENNOX: Who invited you to go on that trip?
A. Mr. Proctor, I think.

Q. Was it a Government car?

A. No, an ordinary pullman coach.

Q. When you said, before the chairman suggested that Pepall had made
the arrangements, that you thought Pepall had paid for the car, what did you
mean by that?

A. That I thought Pepall paid for the car until such time a? we paid up our

shares and he got his money back.

Q. Do you think now he paid for the car?

A. I always thought we all paid our share of it.

Q. Were you shown any statement as to how the amount of expenses was

made up?
A. No sir.

Q. Was the car kept there^all the time you were on the trip? >

A. Yes.

Q. Bid you live in it?

A. No, sir, we went down the river.

Q. It was kept there during the whole time?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Why did you pay it in to Mr. Proctor ?

A. I was having a game in the car and he came along and said "your share

Ks $90" and I said all right.

Q. Why did you pay it to Proctor if Pepall was paying for the car?
A. Proctor came along and said "Your share is $90" and I paid it.

Q. Then it looks as if Proctor paid for the car ?

A. I said I didn't know, that I thought it was Pepall. There was some
discussion about the car, at the siding. Pepall said something about the car and
I just gained the idea from that that Pepall arranged for the car.

MR. HOMUTH : That is si>miply a conclusion you came to from a conversation

you overheard?

A. Yes.

MR. PRICE: Where was it you went on this trip?
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A We went to a place called Fauquier. It is above Cochrane. We
went down what is known as the Ground Hog River.

Q. Did you have any tickets?

A. I didn't.

Q. Did anyone have any tickets?

A. I don't know.

Q. Was it C.P.R. or G.T.E.?

A. G.T.R.

Q. Do you know the name of the car?

A. No, sir,, I don't.

Q. How many miles would it be up there?

A. Fifty miles past Coohrane.

Q. rYou were away how many days?
A. Eight day?.

Q. Did the party stay together, or separate?

A. We separated for hunting purposes.

Q. You had a film man along with you?
A. Yes.

Q. What is his name?
A. Roy O'Connor, he was not on the car going up.

Q. Where did he join you?
A. He joined us at Fauquier.

Q. O'Connor went up with one party what party were you in?

A. I was with the party O'Connor was with.

Q. What film was the Canadian Aero Film Company producing?
A. There was no film produced for the Government at all on that trip, just

photographs of the party.

Q. Were the films produced for anyone?-
A. No sir.

Q. What was O'Conner along for?

A. I don't know unless Mr. Proctor had him come along to make private

photographs of the party.

Q._You had some private photographs made?

A. Y"-, nicvjng pictures.

Q. Dicl you make any film of the party?

A. Yes, 'sir.

Q, Have you *hown that film?

A. Yes, just amongst ourselves.

Q. What is the name of that film?

A. There is no name on it.

Q. Is that the film that was shown in Hamilton the other night?

A. I don't know.

Q._Did you know that film was shown in Hamilton?

A. I don't know that any special film was shown there.

Q._When films like this are gotten together, are they censored by you?

A. A film like that for private parties would not be. It was not intended i

he shown at all Sir John Eaton and others make pictures of their children we

don't censor those.
. .

Q. If anyone wanted to get in any particular film and use it privately i

could be done without being censored ?
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A._Yes.
MR. HALL: I suppose you had guides?
A. Yes.

Q. Their expenses would be included in the $90 ?

A. Yes, that is all I paid.

Q. You don't know whether that included] the cost of the car?

A. No.

Witness excused.

The Committee then adjourned.

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE, APRIL 22ND, 1921.

The Committee met at 10 a, m., Mr. Curry in the chair.

Mr. William Dawson called and sworn, examined by Mr. Price;

Q. Mr. Dawson, you were at one time in the employ of the Provincial

Treasurer's Department ?

A. Yes.

Q. What position did you hold there ?

A. The last position I held was director of the motion picture bureau.

Q. Before that time what position did you hold?

A. Assistant director.

Q. How long had you been in the employ of the Government?

A. From September 1917 until July 1920.

Q. Your first position was assistant director of the motion picture bureau

and you held that until you became director of the motion picture bureau?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What time were you made director of the bureau?

A. March 1919.

Q. Who did you succeed'

A. Mr. Johnston.

Q. Did you hear Mr. Elliott give his evidence here yesterday, were you

here then?

A. Yes.

Q. At that time, when you succeeded Mr. Johnston, who were the others

employed in that branch?

A. Mr. W. J. Hawse and Mr. Beatty.

Q. What position did they occupy?
A. Mr Johnston was motion picture director and Mr. Beatty was a field

man.

Q. What work did you carry on in that department, explain what you con-

sidered your duties tihen?

A. The duties of the bureau are to see to the production and circulation of

educational motion picture films chiefly in the rural districts.

Q. You say educational motion picture films agricultural films?

A. Yes.

Q. Are you a graduate of the agricultural college?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you done any farming?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you carried on that work in not only educational films but agri-



George V. APPENDIX No. 2. 381

cultural films?

A. Agricultural films chiefly.

Q. Just tell the Committee how you carried out those duties. I don't
think they have a good idea oi the duties of that office.

A. In the early stages of the motion picture bureau, films were produced
for such departments as required them.

THE CHAIRMAN: What date?

A. The bureau was started in 1917. In the spring of 1917 I wa? ap-
pointed assistant director of the bureau. At that time the chief aim and object
was to produce a series of films chiefly for the Department of Agriculture. The
duties of the officers of the bureau was to be responsible for the subject matter
as contained in the film, to arrange for their completion and later for their dis-

tribution.

Q And that was carried on until you left the motion picure bureau ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. At the time you left the motion picture bureau how miany were there in

the Department? How many employees in the various branches of the Depart-
ment?

A. Mr. Blake as film editor, Mr. Severn as field man, that is the staff.

Q. Who took your place in the Department?
A. Mr. Elliottt was given complete charge of the bureau. No one was

appointed] in my place until Mr. Hurst was appointed asi assistant.

Q. During the time you were there did you personally direct the making of

agricultural filmfe ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And other films as wel?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. These agricultural! films and others were made for the Government?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many were made?
A. Approximately over 100 I would say.

Q. Then until the early part of 1920 yon had been giving considerable work-

to the Pathe Company?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many companies were there that you could give work to?

A. Two The Canadian Aero Film Co. and the Pathe.

Q. Had the Canadian Aero Film Co. been in existence any length of time?

A.- Not very long, SIT.

Q, When dtid the bureau begin to give them a considerable part of the work?

A. After February or March, 1920, dlating from the date of t!lie contract.

Q. There was a contact witfh tihem?

A. Yes.

Q. In masking contracts with any of these motion picture companies what

was the basis on which contracts were made?

tTHE

CHAIRMAN: The contracts will show that.

MR. PRICE: What were the rates charged?
A. 75 cents per foot for the negative and the teist print, that is for ex-

or negative.

THE CHAIRMAN: That is what is spoken of as the positive?
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A. Yes.

MR. PRICE: The contracts for both of these companies were on the same

basis, is that right?

A. Yes sir, as far as I know.

Contract produced
MR. PRICE; The negative and first print were 75 cents according to the con-

tract here dated February 24, 1920. The suggestion was 80 cents, that was cut

down to 75 cents?

A. I did not have the drawing up of those contracts. Those were' in Mr.

Elliott's hands entirely. I cannot give any very definite answer in regard to

the contracts.

Q. You had nothing to do with drawing up these contracts?

A. No, sir.

Q. Then I see by the letter of the Canadian Aero Film Co., dated February
4, 1920, "for negative and first print for aero work for a territorial limit not

exceeding two hours' flying distance from Burlington, $1.50." Do you know

anything a'hout tihis ?

A.- Ye, tfLr.

Q. That is correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Negatives on interior work $1.15 per foot, cut down I believe to $1.00

per foot. Then what was the charge for prints ?

A. Ten cents per foot.

Q. What for toning?
A. W/* cents I think, I would not be sure of that.

Q. Tinting was there tinting additional what was that?

A. One cent or YA cents.

Q. What was the charge for copies?

A. Ten cents per foot.

Q, Now just tell the committee; when a film was ordered and the negative

and test print brought into you, how did you check it up and ascertain if it

should be passed?

A. I didn't carry out the contract with the Canadian Aero Film Co., to

any extent, practically what experience I had was with the Pathe. The policy

followed then was this ; one of the men accompanied the photographer, he being

responsible for the subject matter. The film was brought in and fully developed

and we required the Pathe company to cut out from the negative all camera

stops and all waste negative.

Q. When you first went to inspect a negative to find out whether the bureau

would accept it for the Province, you first cut out all camera stops?

A. Yes, the company were required to do that before we saw the negative.

Q. Were the company required to do that?

A. Yes.

Q. When they brougfht you the negative the camera stops were cut out?

A. Yes.

Q. What else was cut out?

A. The waste negative.

Q. Explain what you mean.

A. Very often when the camera is started two or three feet of negative is
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wasted. And we find pieces of negative either from conditions of weather or
some other cause that are practically of no use to the picture. That was alwavs
cut out. J

Q. Who was it cut thajt out?
A. It was cut out by the Pathe Co.

Q. It would be cut out by any company doing business ?

A. Yes.

Q. Why are you speaking particularly of the Pathe Co. ?

A. Because my experience was with that company, as director of the bureau.
Q- Then we have the camera stops? and the waste negative cut out, any-

thing else?

A. Practically nothing else.

Q. On what basis then do you cut out things from the film?

After that had been dione the company made 'a test print of the neg-
ative 'brougfht in by the photographer. Then we saw that test print screened

and we had a right to exercise a ten per cent, reduction from that.

Q. 'Was that a ten per cent, reduction after the camera* stops and the waste

negative had been cut out?

A. Yets, sir.

THE CHAIRMAN :Would you call it a negative if it hadn't anything printed on
it?

A. Yes, you would call it negative, it is negative film.

MR. PRICE: Go on and tell me how you protected the Province in your in-

spection aind rejection of film?

A. As I was saying we had that test print screened and if necessary we

exercised a right to cut out up to ten per cent. That might include poor

photography or anything not of material benefit to the picture. If the test

print as screened was accepted then the test print wasi measured and the invoice

based on the measurement.

THE CHAIRMAN: If nothing had to be cut out then you didn't take advan-

tage of the tetn per cent.?

A. No, stir. The ten per cent, allowed us to take out poor photography or

anything not( of material advantage to the picture.

MR. PRICE : Who was it measured up the film. ?

A. It was measured by officials of the company and, witnessed by myself or

memfber of the staff and signed for by a representative from the bureau.

Q. Mr. ElMott said here yesterday that there was no measuring machine

owned by the Government?

A. No, we had no measuring machine of our own because we had no place

to keep film in, and all negatives and film were kept in the Pathe Building and

everything wlag measured1 there, but always in the presence of a representative of

the motion picture bureau and signed by that witness.

Q. Either by yourself or some other representative?
A. Yes.

Q. There is a standard measuring machine, I presume?
A. Yes.

Q. Which records automatically?
A. Yes.

Q. Can you give us an estimate of what the average reduction would be on
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a film?

A. It is difficult to strike an average because at times we find it necessary
to reject almost fifty per cent, and sometimes we reject nothing. Always, of

course, there is the first rejection for camera stops.

Q. Which would be made by the company as something they could not put
in as a business1

proposition.

A. Yes.

Q. If you felt there were1 sections that wouldn't show up and draw a crowd

you would, cut it out?

A. Exactly.

Q. You cut down that film to what was commercially useful?

A. Yes ibut we always accepted responsibility for the subject matter, if

the photography was good, we accepted it.

Q. Now can you tell me the first time the Canadian Aero Film Co. got in

touch with you to do business?

A. The first time I discussed business with the Canadian Aero Film Co.,

was when they were at their King Street place, King and Spadina. I saw a film

screened there called "The Silver Trail" the Toronto-Hamilton Highway, which

I liked very much. I discussed that film with them at the time, and my im-

pression is clear that at that time I understood the film was being made for the

Canada Cement Company.
Q. You happened to be in this company's premises and the question of this

film came up?
A. I siaw that film screened there.

Q. Who was the inspector of motion picture theatres at that time?

A. Mr. Elliott.

Q .You were tJhen head of tihei bureau?

A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell me what date or month thait would be?

4- No, I would slay early in 1919 otr the early part of the summer, that is

approximate

Q. Then just tell us about "The Silver Trail." What happened about

"The Silver Trail."

I Liked the film, veiry much. At that time I was endeavoring to arrange for

tihe distribution of films throughout the theatres of Canada. I felt that it

would be possible that we could make good ulse of that film in that distribution,

and I suggested to the Canadian Aero Film Co., that if an arrangement could

be made with the Canada Cement Co. I would be glad to purchase the necessary

number otf copies to take bare of my dilstribuitiori ,

Q. You understood it had been ordered and manufactured for the Canada
Cement Company, how dlid you understand that?

A. Well I cannot say definitely how I got to understand that.

Q. It wasn't ordered by the Government?
A. No, certainly not.

Q. But you thought it was a good enough film that you could order some

copies of it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did you d)o?

A I asked Mr. Irish to take it up with the Canada Cement Company.
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The thing hung fire for some time, I cannot say definitely what happened. But
the crux of the whole thing, asi I remember it, is that an invoice came from the
Canadian Aero IMm Company for the negative and print.

Q. Give me that date, the month?
A. I would say January 1920 or thereabouts.

Q. The in/voice came from the Canadian Aero Film Co., for how many
printsi ?

A. Four, I think, and not having ordered the negative or the prints 1 re-

fused to pass their account. The thing hung fire and we had a lot of discussion

over it and it was still in that state when, the dhange was miade and Mr. Elliott

was made director of the Motion Picture Bureau.

Q. You had quite a lot of discussion about this, was your discussion with

Mr. Irish?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who is Mr. Iristh?

A. He was the general manager of the Canadian Aero Film Company.

Q. And you were refusing the invoice?

A. Yes.

Q. Then what did Mr. Irislh do when you refused the invoice?

A. We had quite a lot of discussion in the office about it.

Q. In your office?

A. Yes.
,

;

.
I

'

Q. In the Buildings here?

A. No, at 46 Richmond- Street.

Q. How lonig have theisfe offices been at 46 Richmond Street?

A. I would say two years.

Q. Then at 46 Richmond Street you had considerable discussion about it,

Mr. Irish came in there and you refused the invoice. Tell me what occurred at

tihat interview?

A. I told him my reasons for not passing the account, that my clear under-

standing was that the film was produced for the Canada Cement Company, was

not ordered by the Government and that we were not entitled to pay for the

negative. He asked me if I thought he was trying to put something over.

I said, no, I was not taking that istand but I wanted to know what I was doing

before I sdgned an account. He gave me a lot of abuse, swore at me pretty

strong, and I invited him to leave the office.

MR. PRICE: Go ahead.

A. I invited him! to leave the office anid in plain language he told me then

that be would get me.

Q. What did he mean?

A I don't know what he meant.

Q. Then, Mr. Dawson, what was the other thing he said?

A. He said lie would get me, and after that there was nothing more at

that meeting. I toldl him to sit down until he cooled off, that the whole thing

was- evidently a misunderstanding and that if they could make it clear to me
that the film wasi not madie for the Canada Cement Company I might see the thing

in a different light. I still held the account. That was about the time that

Mr. Elliott was made director of the bureau. I diont know whether Mr. Irish
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went to 'him, or lie went to Mr. Irish, but the conclusion of the whole thing was
that Mr.i Eliottt recommended that the account be passed. He said that he had
been given an opportunity to go through the correspondence files relating to this

picture and he was1 satisfied that everything was O.K. I signed the account
then on Mr. Elliott's recommendation.

Q. Then while these talks were going on about this film, you had these

talks with Mr. Irish, what else occurred with Mr. Irish?

A. Nothing in particular except that some time previous to that he made
me an, offer of stock in the company.

Q. What time would thiaifc be?

A. Early in the winter of 1920.

Q. Was this offer of stock in the company prior to, or 'after the time he

said he would get you?
A. Prior I would Bay.

Q. Where was tflie offer made?
A. In my office.

Q. At 46 Richmond Street?

A. Yes. 5

Q. What was it led up to that offer? What was the discussion?

A. Nothing at all. He came in for a friendly visit, I supposed, and that

was the outcome of tihe visit.

Q. How did he putt the tihing, how did he broach it to you?
A. I cannot reciaiU tihe exact words except that he offered me a block of stock,

that if I would nlame a trustee to hold the sitock the thing would be put through.

Q. How much stock?

A. As near as I can, recollect it was somewhere around. $2,000.

Q. He ssaid that if you would name a trustee to hold the stock the thing

would be put through; what did you tell him?
A. In plain language I told! him, nothing doing.

Q. What reiaison did he give for offering you this?

A. None at all, sir.

Q. Now following these two interviews had the invoice of "The Silver

Trail" been before the Bureau all that time?

A. Yes.

Q. Had you the negative at all?

A. No sir, the negative was not delivered.

Q. Were tihe prints delivered?

A. No, sir.

Q. Nothing hiaid been delivered, t(he<re had been a bill sent in for four

prints and nothing had been delivered ?

MR BRACKIN : When was the bill sent in ?

A. I cannot recall the exact time, I held it a month or six weeks in my
office.

MR PRICE: When was it Mr. Elliott was appointed as head of the Bureau?
A. In Mairdi 1920.

Q. Wlas that before or after this interview with Mr. Irish

A. After.

Q. Mr. Elliottt said here, you told him you had been made this offer?

A. Yes, I dud tell him.
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Q. Did you tell him at the time ?

I don't remember when I told him but I remember telling him about it.

Q. How dad it come that you were replaced as head of the Bureau?
A. I cannot answer that.

Q. -How did you. get the information about it?

A. I got a letter from the Hon. Peter Smith advising me to that effect,
that Mr. Elliott was given complete charge and that I was to take charge of the

agricultural! work of the Bureau. ?

Q. Do you remember the diate of that letter?

A. I would say about the 15th of Miarch, 1920. (Copy of letter sent for).

Q. The purpose of the letter was that Mr. Elliott was put at the head of

the Bureau and you were to carry on with the agricultural business?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did you do when that happened?
A. I discussed! the work with Mr. Elliott and he told me to carry on, that

he didn't want to interfere with me. I was to carry on. We discussed the
work iibiat was to be djcxne and the understanding . was that the work was to be

divided between the two companies, the Piatheseope and the Canadian Aero Film

Company, and my recollection is, that we had a list of subjects received from each

of these connpanieis in addition to some subjects fchiat we recommended. A defi-

nite programme was decidted upon.

Q. What was your programme?
A. When I say that, I mean that the work was to be definitely divided be-

tween tihe two companies.

Q. What do you mean by that definitely divided?

A. Thlat as nearly as possible the work was to be divided evenly between

the two companies, provided conditions were right.

Q. How did you proceed then in letting this work?

A. Well, I started to take care of the agricultural work in particular and

made provision for getting that programme undier way. z

Q. How miany agricultural film did you then hiave under way?
A. We had not so many on general subjects. We had a series of live stock

films under way which later developed infto ten or twelve different subjects. I

was devoting my attention to tihat series.

Q. Can you recollect the names of those subjects?

A. That particular series dealt with the various breeds in the Province and

would be practically subdivided according to the number or breeds Hoi-steins,

Ayrshire and BO on. .

Q. What company got those?

A. The Pathe.

Q. What did the Canadian Aero Film Company get?

A. I can't recollect. I had very little to do with the work done with

that company from that time until I left in July.

Q. Did you have anything to d!o with a picture called, "Nature's Classics?"

A. That "Nature Clashes" was a tnade name or slogan or whatever you
call it of thie Canadian Aercil Film Company. All the pictures produced by
them were called under that name.

Q. Were there any of these delivered during the time you were at the Motion
Picture Bureau?
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A. I cannot recall any.

Q. That was after you left?

A. Yes.

Q. Can you recall from memory any films that were delivered during the

time you were there?

A. No sir, I cannot.

Q. Then, Mr. Dawson, tJhere came a time when you left the Bureau, how

did that occur?

A. Mr. Elaine Irish, manager of the Canadian Aero Film Company at that

time, made an offer which was in excess of the salary I was drawing. I simply

accepted because I thought I was bettering my position.

Q. What date was that that was in 1920 some time?

A. Yes.

Q. What date?

A. I would say in June, tihe latter part of June.

Q. Just tell us how that occurred, this was the third time Mr. Irish had

come to you with different offers?

A. As a matter of fact,, in discussion with him I referred to the fact that

if I could get a good opening in commercial life, I would prefer it to Government
work because I thought there were greater possibilities for advancement. When
he came to me he recalled that and said tihey had a place for me in their company
and made a definite offer of so much per year and asked me to consider it.

Q. How much was that in advance of what you were getting?

A. $1,000.

Q. When you got this offer what did you do?

A. I consad'erred it carefully for some time and discussed it with Mr.

Elliott.

Q. Did he want to keep you in the Bureau?

.A. Well, he didn't advise me one way or the other. He practically came
out and said he would rather the choice would be mine.

Q. Did you write to the Department about it?

A. No sir. I discussed it with Mr. Elliott.

Q. Did you take rtf up yoursielf with the Minister?

A .No sir, I didn't.

D. Did you ask to have it taken up with him?
A.- I spoke to Mr. Elliott and I expected he would take it up with the

Minister.

Q. Can you reoaM wbait Mr. Elliott said to you?
A. He told me he had discussed it with the Minister, that the Minister

said I was a nice little fellow, that he was sorry to see me go but that he couldn't

compete with these commercial salaries.

Q. Sb then you did go to the Canadian Aero Film Company and left the

employ of the Government?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Getting back to the letter of March 13th, 1920, Mr. Dawson, you received

a letter from the Provincial Treasurer. This is the letter: "After consulta-

tion with the Civil Service Commissioner I have decided to have you devote yonr
efforts to the production of agricultural films, in view of the special qualifications
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you possess along agricultural lines. The general direction of the work of the

Bureau is henceforth, in charge of Mr. 0. Elliott from this date. For your in-

formation I may sajy that tlhe Government has decided upon an extensive pro-

gramme in connection with agricultural films which will require your very best

efforts, to promote the interests of the Province. I should be much obliged if

you will give this programme your earnest attention, Yours very truly," signed
I presume by the Provincial Treasurer, to "W. Dawson, Motion Picture Bureau."

THE CHAIRMAN: Have you the original?

A. The original was left in the files,

Mr.. PRICE: Xow you told us you had produced up to that time upwards of

one hundred agricultural films?

A. That is the approximate number.

Q. And in March Mr. Johnston had been head of the Bureau and he also

had been a graduate of the Agricultural College?

A. Yes.

Q. And Mr. Tawse also?

x\."" JL CS

Q._How many agricultural films did you produce before you left the

Department.
A. During the Spring of 1920'?

Q. Yes?

A As I said, we were working on that live stock series. We produced a

film, co-operative egg marketing. These were the two different subjects I i

working on.

Q._How many would that be, up to the time you left

A._Twelve, or thirteen or fourteen. They were under way They were

Q._Then you went to the Canadian Aero Mm Company, what potion d

not completed at that time.

you
t .he one I was holding in

n^ ^pe to .he one

the Depatment. I was to arrange for the production of motion picture !

line up the subjects and afftign the photographers to it,

Q._Who was president of the Canadian Aero Film Company?

A. Mr. Proctor.

Q. Can you give me the other officers of the company."

A.Mr. Irish Was the general manager.

Q._Is that Alexander Irwin Proctor?

A. Yes.

Q. Who was the vice president?

A. Mr. Thompson, I think.

Q__Where does he live?

A. In Hamilton.

Q. Can you give me the names of the Board?

A As I remember, Mr. W. B. CMand, he was on the license board, or had

something to do with the dispensaries.

Q. That its Mr. Proctor, Mr. Thompson, Mr. Cleland, what others?

A. Mr. McQill.

Q. Where does he live ?
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A. In Hamilton I understand.

Q- Thm Mr. Irish was general manager, was he on the Board?
A. I understood he was.

Q. Who was the secretary-treasurer of the company?
A. I really don't know, sir.

Q. Then when you got to the Canadian, Aero Film Company you were

carrying on much the same work for them as you were carrying on for the Govern-

ment here?

A. Yes, ear.

Q. The filtms were made up on the orders of the Department and supplied
to> the Department?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you tell me the names of some films made up for the Government
when you were there?

A. There were quite a number of films the company was working on when
I went over there and quite a number started after I went there "The Hydro-
Electric System in Ontario." There was a farm picture made at St. Cath-

arines and, a great many more but I can't recall the subject.

Q. Do you remember this picture "Niagara in Summer?"
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember that being made up?
A. That was made up before I went over there. The company was work-

ing on it.

Q. What time did you leave the Department?
A. On the 10th of July.

Q. You heard Mr. Elliott give his evidence about that picture, tell us svhat

you know about it. "Niagara in Suimmer," "Niagara in Winter" and "Niagara,

Winter and Summer" aoid there was an overcharge for an extra negative of

$1,600,

A. 'As I understand it there were two pictures produced, "Niagara in

Summer" and "Niagara in Winter," and "Niagara,, Nature's Masterpiece" was'

a composite film from those two subjects.

Q. It was not a negative?

A. No, sir.

Q. Just a film made from those two subjects ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did any invoice come in while you were there, before you left the

Bureau, for that film?

A. No, sir. The work was done on. that "Niagara, Nature's Masterpiece"
after I joined the Canadian Aero Film 'Company.

Q. You had nothing to do with the passing of that film?

A. No, sir.

Q. Now supposing you had to pass that film, that it had come before you
when you were in; the Bureau, what would you have done, what was the practice
there in dealing with ai film of that kind ?

A. Naturally I twoufld have checked it up and if I had found any over-

charge I woulld have returned it to the company for correction.

Q. What would be the proper charge in a case of this kind?
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A. The proper charge would be ten cents per foot for film with an extra

charge for new titles.

Q. Now there is another film "The Shores of Lake Ontario" and "A Day's
Pleasure." Do you know anything about that?

A. Yes, that film was produced while I was with the Canadian Aero Film

Company.
Q. Is that the same film?

A. Yes, air. v

Q. Why should there be two names?
A. The first name "By the Shores of Lake Ontario" was the title under

which the film was produced, as a working title. We often have a working title

and when the film is finally edited that may be changed. The film as it went
out was called "A Day's Pleasure." It was commenced and the scenes made
under the title of "By .the Shores of Lake Ontario."

Q. I would like to 'have produced the invoices for "By the Shores of Lake

Ontario" and "A Day's Pleasure". Do you know what charge was made for

that film?

A. I was not responsible for the charge at that time.

Q. I am not asking you whether you were responsible. I am asking you
Whether you know ^anything about it. You were in the company and were

making a charge for certain work?

A. I recall that the negative as finished was charged under the title "By
the Shores of Lake Ontario." When the film was finished under the title of

"A Day's Pleasure" it was charged under that title.- There may have been an

adjustment there necessary.

Q. There was only the one negative?
A. Yes, only one negative.

Q. And there 'should only be one charge?
A. As I say "By the Shores of Lake Ontario" was the working title.

After a certain portion of the work was icompleted, the invoice respecting it would

read probably under that title. When the film was completed the invoice would

read "A Day's Pleasure."

Q. So there might he a charge under one nainie and a charge under

anotiher name?
MR. BRACKIN : Here are the two invoices, one is entitled "A Day's Pleasure"

and then below, the other one "Beauty Spots on Ontario's Shores." What
commenced as "Beauty Spots on Ontario's Shores" is part of the picture "A

Day's Pleasure" and Mr. Hurst tells me the two were invoiced together, the

"Beauty Spots" being part of the other picture and making up the total footage

of this particular film. So that the Committee may understand it i one film

although there were two invoices, and the total of the two amounts represents

the price of the picture. There was no payment twice for the same picture.

MR. PRICE: The first invoice here what would this one be "Beauty Spots

on Ontario's Shores" is that the same one?

A. Yes.

Q. What was the other name for that?

A. "A Day's Pfleasure."

Q.On August 4, 1920, 200 feet of air stuff at $1.50 a foot and 500 feet of
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ground exterior at 75 cents $375. Was that the total charge for that film?

A. No, when it was finished it was a full reel as I remember it.

Q. Then there is another film, September 24, "A Day's Pleasure." How
much would be a full film?

A. Approximately 1000 feet.

Q. Then we have under "A Day's Pleasure" 997 feet of negative ground
and test print, 75 cents. Do you. mean to say that 997 feet would be a full

reel?

A. It will make approximately a full reel.

Q. Can you recollect whether there was a full reel in this film?

A Yes, I think there was.

Q. Was there more than a full reel?

A. There was more negative taken than was used in the final picture.

Q. They took more and cut it down to a thousand feet, this being too long
to use?

A. Yes.

Q. So then we have the two charges here, we have the charge for 997 feet

at 75 cents under the title of "A Day's Pleasure" and we have a charge in a

separate invoice on August 4, 200 feet of air stuff at $1.50 per foot and 500

feet of ground exterior at 75 cents, making a total of $675. That is, on that

film there is at totfcal charge for footage of 1,700 feet. Now was there 1,700

feet of negative?

Objection by Mr. Brackin that witness could not speak as to measurement.

MR. PRICE: Tihere is a -charge here for altogether, one reel of 997 feet and

then 700' feet in addition. Can you tell me if there was that in the negative?
A I cannot swear to the footage in the negative. I would not like to

put myself on record as stating the amount of the negative in that picture.

The only way to gelt at that is to* check up the negative with the invoice.

Q. Were you there when this negative was made up ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now just tell us how it was made up. Tell ua about it.

A. It wa just made up in the usual way. The photographer was sent

out to work on that subject on definite locations and it was brought in and devel-

oped as usual and made up in the usual way.

Q. Whose duty wais it to send it to the Government?

A. I would take it, it was the manager of the company would make the

final charges.

Q. That would be Mr. Elaine Irish who would finally check it up, and

send it out?

A. Yes.

Q. Here is an invoice for August 4th, 1920. There was a bill sent in for

700 feet. Was the negative delivered at that time?

A. No, sir, the negative would be kept there until the prints were made
from it.

Q. Was it the practice to bill as soon as the negative was made?
A. I would say it was.

Q. How long after that would the Government receive the film, the

positive ?
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A. That would depend on the work of the film editor who was responsible
for editing the titles and making up the picture.

Q. Who wtas the editor in the Canadian Aero Film Company?
A. Mr. Riches ait that time, I understood was working on that picture.

Q. Then we have on September 24th, six weeks after, a bill for 997 feet under
the title of "A Day's Pleasure." You have told us this was the same negative
and that the title was changed. Are you sure of that?

A. Yes.

Q. It is the one negative?
A. That is my recollection.

Q. Do you- know anything about tihe change of name ?

A. The name was changed when the film was finally edited and completed.
It was changed to "A Day's Pleasure." It went out to the public in that form.

Q. Then what is your explanation of these two invoices? "We have two

invoices here and we want some! light on that.

A. The only explanation I can give is that part of the picture was produced
under tihe title "By the Shores1 of Lake Ontario" amd wa& invoiced under that

title and when the film was completed under the title "A Day's Pleasure" the

invoices sent to the Government were sent under that title.

THE CHAIRMAN: Amd a double charge made?

A. I would not say a double charge. It was invoiced under two names.

The first part wais produced under that title, "By the Shores of Lake Ontario/'

MR. PRICE: What was the length of the positive delivered to the Govern-

ment?

A. As near as I can recall! that picture, it went out as one reel which would
be approximately 1,000 feet.

Q. If it went out asi one reel of approximately 1000 feet, then the Govern-

ment has been overcharged 700 feet?

Question ruled out by the Chairman;
MR. PRICE: You have told us this positive went to the Government as one

reel of approximately 1,000 feet?

A. That is my recollection of that picture, that is, that positive.

Q. And the billing here of it is 1,700 feet? (Question over-ruled)

Q. There was 1,000 feet in this reel?

A. Ye, that film was released under the title of "A Day's Pleasure." I

am not going to swear whether it was 1,000 or 997 feet.

Q. We are not asking you to swear that. All we want is a frank state-

ment of what you can give us. Do you know anything about the billing of

these Bepa-rate invoices?

A. Well, they were billed under two separate invoices.

Q. Do you know anything about that?

A. I know they were billed on those two.

Q. How would it occur that there are these two invoices", one for 997 feet

and one for 700 feet?

A. As I said before, when the work was being dione under the first title

the work done under that title must have been, invoiced under that title.

Q. If the work was invoiced under that title in the first instance and ten

invoiced under another title, the first for 700 feet and then for 997 feet, and you

tell us, from your recollection that there wa onily 1,000 feet in the positive do
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you think there has been an overcharge to the Department?
A. It is either a case of an over-charge or a big rejection. There is 1,700

feet of negative invoiced and the completed film as I remember it was 1,000
feet so there is a difference of 700 feet. It is either an overcharge or a big
rejection.

Q. What do you mean by a big rejection?
A. In the footage used in the positive. There was evidently 1,700 feet

of negative produced, according to the invoices.

THE CHAIRMAN: This 997 feet was charged in the final bill under a new
titles. Do you wear that there was a charge for 1700 feet, or that the amount

charged for was the final billing under the new title? The invoices show two

titles. Do you know whether what was charged for under the previous title was

charged for under the final title at 997 feet?

. A. No.

Q. Then if they only charged for the 997 feet there would be uo overcharge?
MR. PRICE: But they were paid for under both titles. Here are the invoices

that show payment was made in both cases.

Q. Now, Mr. Dawson, how would you check up and find if there has been an

overcharge to tihe Government?

A. There is only one way to check up and that is to have the negative

checked up and measured and the positive measured as well.

Q. And checked with the invoices?

A. Yes.

Q. That would sihow whether there has been an overcharge or not? That
is correct, istn*t it?

A. I thiink sio.

Q. Now we have just touched one account and I propose to go into some

others, but before we go into that what did the Canadian Aero Film Company
do when they were invoicing films to the Government? What was their policy
or practice?

A. As I saw it there, the negative as it came from the laboratory was meas-

ured, and the measurement of that negative was sent into the office.

Q. Do you mean that the whole negative as taken was measured and the

Government billed for it?

A. The whole negative as taken was certainly measured.

Q. There was no ten per cent reduction, as you spoke of, in the first meas-
urement ?

A. Not in the first measurement.

Q. What happened then? The Canadian Aero Film Company were going
to pass thait negative over to the Government. How would you proceed with
that work when with that Canadian Aero Film Company?

A. As I understand it the negative was measured, all waste negative taken
from it, and a print made. The editor of the Motion Picture Bureau would
ee that print.

Q. That would be the first print of the negative for the purpose of checking
up by the head of the Bureau.

A. Yes.

Q.- Go ahead.

A. That is practically all there was to it. He would see the first print
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as made and would pass it or reject it as lie saw fit. I understand he had the

option of refusing or rejecting a picture on account of photography or any other
reason he might see fit.

Q. That was not the practice, then, that you followed while you were in

the Department?
A. No, not exactly.

Q. What wais the practice when you were in the Department? You told

us the practice in billing the total amount of the negative by the company.
A. I said the total negative was measured. The total negative as it came

from thie laboratory wais measured.

Q. Was there any rejection after it came from the laboratory?
A. On whose part?

Q. On <tihe part of the Canadlian Aero Film Company?
A. It was fully measured. I will stick to that.

Q. Was there any rejection?

A. I cannot say so when the negative was all measured.

THE CHAIRMAN: You were asked was there any rejection by the Canadian

Aero Film Company?
A. Not before thie measurement, sir.

Q. Was there not after?

A. Oh yes, surely there was.

MR. PRICE: When was the rejection made?

A. It was made right there with us. There is always a piece of black

negative which hiappens in any film, that is not worth printing and that was

taken out before printing.

Q. Anything blank that would not create a positive was taken out?

THE CHAIRMAN: And camera stops?

A. Ye.
Q. That left everything that had been shot by the photographer except

stops and what you have explained?
A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell us whether that was what was billed to the Government?

A. It is pretty difficult for me to say because I did not have charge of the

billing. I know that the measurement of the negative as it came from the

laboratory was turned in to the office.

Q. 'Whom did you eay had charge of tlhiat billing?

A. Mr. Irisih had charge of the billing and there was a book-keeper working
with him, of course.

Q. Wha+ was her name?
A. She is now Mrs. Stencil. She was the book-keeper then.

Q. What is her address?

A. I don't know.

Q. She is not with the company now?

A. No, Bir.

Q. Are you with the company?
A. No, sir.

Q. Where are you know?
A. With the Imperial Life Assurance Company.

Q. When the bill was sent to the Motion Picture Bureau to be checked over,
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based on the measurement that you made in the Canadian Aero Film Company,
will you tell the Committee what occurred in the inspection of that film by the

Department ?

A. The film editor was made responsible for the final acceptance of the

picture. I will say this. There were pictures billed before prints were made.
I know that.

Q. Before the first print was made and sent to the Department in some

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long would they be billed before that time ?

A. It would vary because the laboratory was pretty busy.

Q. How would the Department be able to check up?
A. There was only one way to check up and that was by witnessing the

measurement of the picture as finished.

Q. iCould they check that up on the positive?

A. They could check the positive against the negative.

Q. Could they dhetek up with simply the information sent to the Depart-

ment in tihe invoice.

A. The negative should check up with the invoice, absolutely.

Q. Then when it got to the Department I am speaking now of the time

wnem you were with the Canadian Aero Film Company and were sending these

invoices up here when the invoices got to the Department what procedure did

they take?

A. Up to October 31st, T don't know whether there was any regular system
followed except that Mr. Blake as editor wouHd! see the positive as soon as it

was ready. I do not think the negatives were checked.

MR. BRACKIN: Why do you say that? How do you know the checking

was done in that way?
A. Because that was the arrangement that was definitely made, that Mr.

Blake was responsible for the final acceptance of the picture. He couldn't refuse

or accept until he saw it in the positive.

MR. PRICE: Now, Mr. Daw-son, was there any diffrence between the check-

ing up of these invoices for the various negatives and films after you left the

Department. You were on the one end with the department and the other end

with the company. Was there any change made in checking up?
A. Not that I know of.

Q. The department checked them up the same as you checked them when

you where there?

A . Approximately.

Q. Were the same rejections made that were made while you were there?

A. I would not say they were made on the negative, because all the nega-
tive wasn't measured. The film editor refused or accepted from the positive.

That is my understanding ?

Q. What difference would that make? If there was any waste negative it

would be taken out before the print was made and the footage of the negative and

the footage of the positive might differ to that amount?

(No answer).

THE CHAIRMAN : If the negative was paid for on the footage of the positive,
the negative wouild be paiid for on the right footage?
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A. The first measurement m I understand it

Q. If the negative was paid for on the footage of the positive, would the
negative not be paid for on the proper footage?

A. I do not quite understand that question.
Q. The positive is taken from the negative?
A. Yes.

Q- The negative which produced that positive would have the same footage
as the positive, and if the negative footage was paid for on the same footage as
the positive it would be paid for right?

A. It might, under those conditions.

Q. Would there be any other conditions that <*>uld possibly happen?
A. Not that I know of, unless there was waste negative.

Q. Ajiy waste in the negative would have to be out before the positive
was taken?

A. Yes.

Q. So that if the Government paid for the footage of the negative on the

footage of the positive it would be paying for the proper footage.

MR. PRICE: You saiild you measured the negative on the basis of the whole

I

amount sihot?

A. Yes.

Q. And that was sent in to the office?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, if the Department were billed with that wlhole amount before any

rejections were made, then there would be an overcharge to the Government.

Question ruled out by the Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: Do you know how the negative was billed?

A. I do.

Q. How was it billed to the Government?

A. It was billed, I understand sir, and I think I am right in saying it was

billed from the measurement of the negative.

Q. And did that negative contain footage that should not have been billed?

A. In a great many ca'ses3 yes.

Q. Then you say the company billed the Government for footage that they

were not entitled to bill them for, is- that what you say?

A. Yes, sir.

MR. PRICE: How many of these negatives did you bill to the Government

during the time you were there?

A. I cannot recall the number.

Q. Approximately what number?

A. I would say there musit (have 'been twenty or thirty. I do not know

whether that is correct or not, that is approximate.

Q. And these negatives being billed, as you told the chairman, on the nega-
tive copy as it came in, what should be the deduction from the negative copy?
"What is the average deduction from the negative copy as it corner in?

A. That varies very largely depending on the amount of wastage, camera

stops and so on.

Q. What was your average reduction on negatives when you were with the

Department ?

A. I would say tlbey would vary from five to ten per cent.
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Q. What else would there be the stops would be out, the waste negative
tfould be out?

A. Yes.

Q. How much would the whole thing be, what proportion of the negative?
A. I iadd five to ten per cent would cover it.

Q. We got the impression from Mr. Elliott, that there was an even larger
reduction. He said they made a ten per cent, reduction right away, that they
had a right to d)o -tflrnt?

A. My experience is that the negative was measured as soon as it came

from the laboratory.

Q. I know that, but to get back to what Mr. Elliott said yesterday. He
said there was a reduction of ten per cent..

The CHAIRMAN : He said they had a right to reject ten per cent, without

paying.
MR. PRICE : I got it into my head, Mr. Dawson, that that was a reduction that

was made right away anyway. Wais I right or wrong in that? What was the

practice when you were with the Department in regard to rejecting films?

A. I held the company responsible for removing camera stops and waste

negatives, then the test print was made from the balance.

Q. What is this ten per cent, reduction we have heard of?

A. It means wasite negative.

Q. Does it mean negative rejected,, or that you can reject?

A. That 'can be rejected.

Q. But it is not necessary to reject it?

A. No, not if the negative is good.

Q. Supposing a lot was cut out by the company before it was brought to

the Department, then the rejection would be much less by the Department?
A. Oh yes.

Q. If the whole negative was measured as it came from the laboratory then

the rejection would be a great deal more?

A. It should be. But the ten per cent, we were entitled to, took care of

the waste negative.

Q. Then with the measurement of this negative and the billing of it, is

there any other way that the interest of the Department should be looked after?

A. I believe ioi having the negative checked.

Q. What do you mean? Would the negative be brought into the Govern-

ment offices and checked over?

A. That would depend on whatever arrangement could be made, either in

the offices of the company producing it or in tfhe Government.

MR HOMUTH: What do you mean by checking?
A. Measuring.
THE CHAIRMAN : You would not call it a negative for measurement purposes,

with blanks?

A. The negative as it is exposed is known as negative.

Q. For measurment purposes that would come out immediately after it was

developed before there wouM be any print from it at all?

A. Yes.

Q. The stops would be taken out before there was any print from it?

A. Yes.
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Q. Anything that was hazy, that would not make a proper print was taken
out?

A. Yes,

Q. So then it might be measured before or immediately after the first posi-

tive, which? Would it be measured after the first positive or before, after these

were taken out?

A. The negiative should be measured after the stops are taken out.

MR. PRICE : I got it in my head Mr. Dawson that that was a reduction that

without anything being taken out?

A. Yes.

The CHAIRMAN : For the purpose of billing, how was it measured ?

A. That is the only measurment I know anything of.

Q. The only measurement you know of is the amount of the film that came

from the labratory as the developed film?

A. Yes.

Q. Then what was cut out afterward and what was billed, you don't know

anything about?

A. As I said, that measurement was sent into the office.

Q. You told me that. I am asking another question. After that was

cut out dto you know what was billed as the negative?

A._Well, I took it the first measurement wais the footage used.

Q. As a matter of business you have so much film and so much film is

given to the operator?
A. Yes.

Q. When it comes from the laboratory there had been so much film de-

veloped ?

A._Yes.

Q. And the laboratory is entitled to be credited for the amount of film

developed, I suppose?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. In the laboratory costs?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then after it is cut out and gone over you print your first positive ?

A. Yes, sir. .

Q. What did they bill? Not what the laboratory sent out as the amount
of the film developed, because that measurement would be necessary for cost pur-

poses, and would have nothing to do with the rendering of the bill?

A. I siaid that in a great many oases the negative was measured and I am
satisfied was billed before the first print was made.

Q. Do you know it was?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You do?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. As a matter of absolute positive knowledge you swear it was billed that

way?
A. Yes, sir.

MR. PRICE: I see a bill here, an invoice for "Tihe Gateway of Ontario"

dated December 9th, 1919.^
The bill was put in at 65 cents a foot?

A. That was before the contract was made, sir.
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'Q. Were the old contracts at 65 cents?

A. There were no contracts, we started with the Pathe at 50 cents and the

price was raised two or three different times to 75 cents. At the time that was

produced it was 65 cents.

Q. The Pathe agreement was first at 50 cents?

A. Yes.

Q. How long ago was that?

A. That Was in 1917.

Q. When did they get 60 and 65 cents?

A. I would say a year later or so.

Q. In December, 1919, it was at 65 cents per foot?

A. I think that would be correct.

Q. This is a bill of the Canadian Aero Film Co. "The Gateway of Ontario"

at 65 centts a foot. The Canadian Aero Film Company were supplying at 65

cents a foot?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then their new contract was at 75 cents a foot?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And was the new contract of the Pathe at 75 cents per foot too?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. The contracts were both the same?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were there any other contracts you had?

A. No, dr.

Q1

. There were no other companies you contracted with?

A. No, sir.

Q. Then what about the air work. We have had some talk about that.

The air work was dhiarged here at $1.00 a foot?

A. Yes.

Q. That is on the 9th of December, 1919, they put in a bill for the "Gate-

way of Ontario" iand the (bill for iair work was $1.00 a foot. Then on a lot we
had yesterday from [Mr. Elliott, we have air work at $1.50 a foot, $2.00 a foot

and $2.50 a foott. That was on the Hudison Bay picture. How do you explain

that tremendous raise from $1.00 in December, 1919, to $.150, $2.00 and $2.50?

A. The only explanation that can be given is added costs. Increased costs

of production from the companies' standpoint. These were the prices submit-

ted in their tenders1 for the business and they were accepted.

Q. What companies! were doing aero work?

A. The Canadian Aero Film Comptany was the only one I know of.

Q. There was no competition there?

A. No, sir.

THE CHAIRMAN : That $2.50 was just on the Hudson's Bay film. When

they took some on the ground for tbat film they charged $2.00.

MR. PRICE: In comma T-insr this work we have this bill of December 9th, 1919,

"The Gateway of Ontario" 550 feet at 65 cents- per foot, then 337 feet or aero

work at $1.00 per foot. And on August 4th, 1920, eight months after that we

have1

it aii $1.50. Do you mean to siay that thlat fifty cent increase in eight months,

in fact in two months, for tihe contract was signed Febraiary 24th, 1920, was

due to increased costs? That contract says, "For negative and first print for
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aero work, for a territorial limit not exceeding two hours flying distance from

Burlington, $1.50 per foot." In December they were supplying at $1.00 for aero

work, while in February, they wanted $1.50. Isn't that a tremendous increase?
A. That is fifty per cent, increase. I would not like to discuss the rea-

sons for it. I am not familiar enongth with aero work to give an opinion on that.

Q- But from these invoices there was that increase in that period?
A. Evidently so.

Q. And the negative and first print on ground work is put in at .80 cents,
that was formerly .65 cents, and the prints remain the same at ten cents per foot?

A. The prints remain the same.

Q. Now tihe great increased charge appears to be for the production of

negatives. The prints remained the, same. What increased charge would there

be for the production of negative?
A. I do not think I would venture an opinion on tihiat.

Q. On another of the bills of the same picture, "The Gateway of Ontario"

the toning was two cents, fchatt was increased to three cents. Cam you give us

an idea of that?

A. I cannot explain that at all.

Q. Tinting and toning two and a half cents. Under the new contract the

toning was three cents ancl the tinting one and a half cents. That would mean

together four and a half cent where two and a half cents was charged before

A. Yes.

Q. That is nearly an 85 per cent, increase, what do you say to that?

A. I would not offer an explanation of that. I do not know the details.

MR. HOMUTH : As far as you know it was necessary to make these extra

charges because of the extra cost of production?
A. And special conditions. There was an increase in the cost of material

used.

HON. MR. HEXRY: Would that account for this increase in price between

December and February? That was before this new contnactt?

A. Previous to that we did not have a contract,

Q. The Canadian Aero Film Company was incorporated in July 1919. Its

contract then could only have been running for four or five months?

A. We did not have a contract previous to this.

MR. PRICE: How did you base the charges?
A. We accepted their price. They tendered and we accepted that, the same

charges as the Patihe were making.

Q. This looks like an increase of from fifty up to nearly one hundred per

cent, in two or three months. You cannot explain that?

A. -I would' not attempt to explain that.

Q. Do you remember "The Gateway of Ontario ?"

A. It was a picture made in ijhe City of Toronto.

Q. That was made before you readied the <Qaniadian Aero Kirn Company ?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. I see the bill for "The Silver Trail" *hat was the Toronto-Hamilton

Highway ran to $1,081.57 "The Silver Trail" 921 feet. We had some talk

about tJhe prints that were sent to the Old Counltry. How many prints do you

generally get when you buy ia film?

A. Tiha depends entirely on the distribution you are arranging for it. I
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have always found that from four to five took care of my requirements here in

Ontario.

Q. Four or five. Do you think that is a sufficient number?
A. I thank so.

Q. What scheme is there for the distribution of those?

A. They are definitely routed from theatre to theatre. In one they would

play a week, one three daysi, another two days and so on.

Q. Do you get any reduction on a number of these prints ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Supposing you take twenty prints would you get any reduction ?

A. Not that I know -of.

Q. In this "Silver Trail" we have twenty prints sent to England. You

heard it discussed here yesterday. What do you think about twenty prints being

sent to England? Did you send any to England at any other time?

A. No, sir, the only films we steat to England were to the khaki University

Q. How many did you send there?

A. I cannot recall tihe number.

Q. How many prints would you send?

A. Four, I think, or five. They were for use in the University.

Q. They sent twenty prints. From your experience in the Department

what do you think of the sending of twenty prints of "The Silver Trail" to

England ?

THE CHAIRMAN: Kindly ask him if he knows whether it was necessary to

genet twenty prints or not. If he does know then his opinion would be of value,

if he doesn't, it wouldn't.

MR. PRICE: What do you know about that?

A. I don't know anything about it.

Q. You can't give us an idea of whether that would be too many to send

or too few ?

A. Of course twenty prints would take care of a big distribution.

Q. The Committee are trying to get at whether sending twenty prints was

too many.
A. I say it is a good many prints. If they are all working it would cover

an enormous country in a short time.

Q. How many prints would be in use in a night? If you had twenty

prints how many places would you show in, in a night?
A. Twenty places.

Q. You might show more than that if it didn't take the whole time to

run off?

A. Twenty places I think would be right.

MR. HOMUTH : If you found it necessary to have four or five in Ontario, isn't

it quite plain that in sending a picture to England which is so thickly populated
with so many more towns than Ontario that it would be almost necessary to have

twenty prints sent to England to cover all the towns?

A. My own experience in that regard is this. Before I left the Bureau I

was taking up with the Agent-General's there the distribution in the Old Country.
THE CHAIRMAN: Have you ever been in England?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And do you know the conditions there?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q- Are you acquainted with tliem better than the A^ent-General ?

A. No.

Q. So that you would not undertake to say that his request was unreason-
able?

A. Not with his knowledge, no.

MR. BRACKIN: Do know that after the twenty prints got over there they
made twenty more, and that as a matter of fact they are using forty instead of

twenty ?

A. No.

Q. Would you be surprised to know that is the case?

A. No.

Q. You would not be astonished?

A. No.

MR. HOMUTH: You say they sent five over to the University?

A. My recollection is that we sent three or four to be used by the officials

of the khaki University.

MR. PRICE: Take the one of the City of Hamilton, I see here on September

7th, 1920, twenty prints of the City of Hamilton, $3,101.60. Twenty prints at

$155.08 for each print, 1,022 feet of positive print 10 cents a foot, 1022 feet of

positive print at one and a half cents, that is rejection $17.63 poor stuff I

suppose ?

A. No, that is tinting I think.

Q. 1022 feet at ten cents altogether $155.08 per print. Do you remem-

ber that being manufactured by the Canadian Aero Film Company?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did that film show, what was in that film?

A. Just a travelogue of the City of Hamilton.

Q. Was that the film that had in it Mr. Proctor's house and Mr. Proctor?

A. I don't know.

MR. BUCKLAND: Was it just the City of Hamilton?

A. Yes.

MR. PRICE: Where were these twenty prints to be used?

A. They were sent to the Agent-General's office

Q. So that we have twenty prints of the City of Hamilton sent to the Agent-
General ?

A. Yes.

Q. And twenty of "The Silver Trail"?

A. Yes.

Q. In what number of cases were there twenty prints?
A. The City of Hamilton, The City of Toronto, "The Silver Trail" and

"Niagara, Nature's Masterpiece."

Q. That would be four of which twenty prints were sent?

A. Yes.

Q. 'So that in one night they would be able to show Ontario films in eighty

places ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was there any necessity for showing them all at one time? Why
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would there be twenty prints manufactured by your company to be sent over there.

Was there any time limit for showing them?
A. No, sir, I don't think so.

Q. They could be used for months or years?
A. Yets, sir.

Q. I see we have "Technical Education in Ontario" at the Hamilton Tech-

nical School, "Niagara Falls, Winter and Summer." Twenty prints of "Niagara

Falls, Winter and Summer/' were sent over ?

A. Yes.

Q. it wa& a combination print that was sent? You didn't send twenty

prints of "Niagara Falls: Winter," and of "Niagara Falls: Summer"?
A. Oh no,

Q. NOW? was "Beauty Spots on Ontario's Shores" one of these sent to

England?
A. No.

Q. The McSloy farm, was that an agricultural film made at St. Catharines?

A. Yes.

Q._That was August 4th, 1920, at 75 cents a foot?

A. Yes.

Q. "Egg packing" August 4th, 19-20, 500 feet of interior at $1.00 and 200

feet of exterior at 75 cents no extra prints on that. Was the Hydro picture

sent along?
A. No, sir.

Q. Are there any pictures, Mr. Dawson, any subjects sold to the Govern-

ment, in addition to what you have told us, where you know there was an over-

charge ?

MR. BRACKED: He is speaking of pictures while he was in charge.

MR. PRICE : While you were in charge for the Government ?

THE CHAIRMAN: You can speak generally in regard to any pictures which

you know were overcharged. Tell us what they were, if any.

MR. PRICE : We expect you to say as definitely as you know it. Do you
know any cases where there was an overcharge?

A. I can't recall any special cases.

Q. Can you give us any specific cases, in addition to what you have already

told us. any specific cases?

A. Pm afraid I cant.

Q. Didn't this question of an overcharge come up in the Canadian Aero
Film Company?

A. It did after the first of November.

Q. Of last year?
A. Yes.

Q. 1920?

A. Yes.
;

Q. Tell us how it came up.
A. After tflie firsft of November when Mr. Sampson was put in there, in the

Canadian Aero Film Company he was made general manager.
Q. Mr. Blaine Irish was no longer general manager?
A. Not at that time. He was sales director. Now in the first instance

at Mr. Sampson's instructions I was placed on the order desk and he asked me
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to go over the work very carefully.
Q. Jusit explain what that was, the order desk?

.T,

A
r"I

t W
lf
^^ rderS Came in to the ofike fw'work to be done. I went

through the files very carefully and that "Niagara: Summer and Winter" was
one of the things I brought to his attention I thought there was a mistake
or overcharge or something. If it was an overcharge I thought it should be
fixed right. That was one that made a clear impression on my mind because I
remember giving it to him.

Q. Which one was that?

A. "Niagara: Summer and. Winter." I also drew his attention to this
film "Shores of Lake Ontario" and "A Day's Pleasure." I told him it was
billed under two heads and they ought to be careful that the thing was correct
as it stood. Then there was "Northward Ho" I remember drawing his atten-

tion to that it was all billed through, as I understand, before the print was
made.

Q. Billed througth to the Department?
A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN: That is. as he understood it.

MR. PRICE: Major Sampson in taking over the management of the company
asked you whether there was any overcharge?

A. He asked me to go through the work. It was not in apple-pie order,

Q. Was it Mr. Sampson who placed you on the order desk?

A. The work was not in the finest order. The company was considerably

behind with the work and he was anxious to get the work straightened out so

we could go ahead. He asked me to go over the orders and check them up and

make sure the work was got out as soon as possible. In so doing I sorted out

ihese few orders and gave them to Mm.
Q. You drew his attention to those?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did you tell him about each one ? f

A. I told him that in the one case, "Niagara: Winter and Summer" I

thought the negative was charged a second time, and he was to draw the attention

of the directors to it. The other case was one of a picture being billed in two

subjects and there might possibly be a misunderstanding there, 'and "Northward

Ho" was billed, through without prints.

JQ.

That "Northward Ho" is the Hudson's Bay picture?

A. Yes.

Q. When was the Hudson's Bay picture taken ?

A. August, I think, I cannot recall the exact time. I think the trip \va*

made in August. They left here in August on that trip.

Q. Who were on that trip?

A. Oapt, Maxwell, he was the pilot, Mr. Proctor also made the trip, ami

and Tas'h, the photographer.

Q. Was he in the employ of the Department?
A. No, sir, he was the photographer for the Canadian Aero Film Company.

Q. Mr. Proctor and Oapt. Maxwell is he on the Board?

A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Proctor, the president of the company, Capt. Maxwell, a director.
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and Tash, the photographer. They made the trip to Hudson's Bay to take this

picture ?

. A. Yes, sir.

Q. I see on October 20th, there is a bill here, "negative and test print OIL

1,980 feet additional, $1,200. ?" There is a Hudson's Bay bill that I haven't got

produced here, of two $10,000 items. The total billing was somejiwere about

$20,000?
A. Yes.

Q. About $23.000?

A. Yes.

Q. Tell us what your objection to that was, what you drew to Mr. Sampson's
attention ?

A. The only objection I had to the thing was that it called for a negative and

test print. The test print hadn't been finished.

Q. Gk> ahead, that was about the first of November you were talking to him ?

A. Yes.

Q. On October 20th, I see, this bill had been sent in. What did you

suggest should be done?

A. I told him I thought the test print in all cases should be finished as soon

as possible and delivered to the Department. That is the stand I took. I thought

the test print should be delivered, as the invoice called for.

Q. go that .the Department could check it up ?

A. Yes.

Q. Having gone before Major Sampson with this information about these

four or five films, "Northward Ho," which is the Hudson's Bay film, the Niagara

film and "A Day's Pleasure" you pointed out to him that you thought there had

been an overcharge or that it should be taken up with the Department?

A. Yes.

Q. Was this reported to the board ? Did you report it to the board ?

A. No sir. I gave that to Mr. Sampson and he said he would take the mat-

ter up with the Board.

Q. What wtes done after that information got in ?

A. I cannot recall anything being done. I know that the test print of

"Northward Ho" was completed.

Q. When was it completed, what date?

A. I cannot recall the date.

Q. I don't mean the exact date. Was it completed in December of last year

or January or February of this year?
A. They were working on it for a long time. I don't know just when it was

completed

Q. When did) you leave the employ of the company ?

A. On the 12th of February.

Q. Prior to thalt time had it been completed?
A. The first test print was completed, to my knowledge.

Q. We have here the payment of these items by the invioce of October 20th,

of this year. These were paid for in the last fiscal year. Had they been paid

for at the time you drew it to Mr. Sampson's attention ?

A. The invoice had gone forward.

Q. Oam you tell us when payment was made by the Government ?



A. No, I cannot.

i

Q
;r
Y r* kamr *"* * test Priat W been completed by the time

you left on February 13th, and had been received by the Government'A. It was completed.
Q. And had been sent on to the Government?
A. Yes.

Q.--Up to the time you left the company on February IStih, had you received
an
l?, !/

n 6 oomPaiiy that flw Company ,had been taking up this overchargewith the Government or these adjustments?
A. There was a definite working system being placed in the office of the

Canadian Aero Film Company .and in the office of the Department, a definite work-
ing system which would take care of that right along.

THE CHAIRMAN: Take care of what?
A. Of the work, everything would be carefully recorded and checked.

Q. 'So that there couldn't be an overcharge?
A. Yes.

Q. That is being put in, when?
A. Since Major Sampson came in. He arranged witih Mr. Hurst a definite

working system.
ME. PRICE :That doesn't apply to last year's account?

A. No, sir. That system was being put in.

Q. Were there any other things taken up with Mr. Sampson, any other

things you spoke to Mr. Sampson about?

A. Not that I can recall.

Q. Why was it that you left the employ of the company ?

A. I only left because of ill-health.

Q. Was that your only reason?

A. I wasn't particularly enamoured with the place at all.
'

I wasn't anxious

to stay.

Q. Did you leave the employ of the company because of any improper trans-

act :ou between tho company and the Government?

A. From liie t me I started to work for the Canadian Aero Film Company
I heard a great many rumors that I didn't understand and didn't appreciate.

MR. HOMUTH : Was that after you left the employ of the Government ?

A. Yes.

MR. PRICE: I am going to ask you this; you say one reason was on account

of ill-health and another Was that you were'nt particularly enamoured with the

company now why weren't you particularly enamonre.l with the company?
Objection by the Chairman, who pointed that Mr. Price might ask witne>>

"if he left the employ of the company because of any improper relations between

the Government and the company which were known to 'him," that if witness said

"yes," then he might ask any further questions. ,

MR. PRICE: I am going to ask Mr. Dawson why he left tihe employ of the

Canadian Aero Film Company. Why, Mr. Dawson, did you leave the employ of

the Canadian Aero Film Company?
Question over-ruled, and a discussion having ensued the Chairman then put

to the witness the following question.

Q. Did you leave the employ of the Canadian Aero Film Company becau>o

of any irregularity or any improper relations in the way of accounts or the pay-
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ment of accounts or the rendering of accounts by the Canadian Aero Film Company
to the Government?

A. My only answer to that is that I 'heard very many things that I was told
and which I was led to believe would be the cause of investigation and that could
be proved.

Q. Did. that 'have any effect in causing you to leave ?

A. That influenced my mimd as to my connexion there.

Q. Did that have any effect on your leaving?
A. It hastened my decision when my health was going down.

MR. PRICE: It hastened your decision?

A. Yes.

THE 'CHAIRMAN: Then it did have an effect?

A. Yes.

MR. PRICE: What were these things, these irregularities?

Objection by Mr. Brackin to the recital of rumors of irregularities.

MR. PRICE: Were these irregularities you knew yourself, Mr Dawsoii?

A. I would not say I knew definitely of any except those things I have

pointed out to you this morning. I 'knew these things existed and the many
rumors I heard.

Q. Can you give us any other irregularities that caused you to hasten your
decision ?

A. No, sir, if you won't let me tell what I heard.

Q. We want your own knowledge about it. Were you there when "Damaged
"Goods" came imto the company?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you tell us how lit came into the company?
A. That film came in, as I understand it, addressed to Mr. Elliott as director

of the Motion Picture Bureau. It oame in over the fire escape, to my knowledge.
THE CHAIRMAN: You know it came in over the fire escape?
A. Yes.

MR. PRICE : It came in over the fire escape into the Canadian Aero Film Com-

pany plant?
A. Yes.

Q. From where?

A. From the Government building.

Q. Were any other films sent that way?
A. Not to my knowledge.

Q. What happened to the "Damaged Goods" film when it came in ?

A. I was taken directly into the office of Mr. Proctor who was to take care

of having it censored.

Q. Mr. Proctor had it censored?

A. I think he took dharge of the film when it came in.

Q._ What did he do?

A. He made arrangements to have it censored.

Q. What date was it that film came in?

A. I cannot recall the date.

Q. Was it a date in 1919 or 1920?

A. It was lasit January I think it oame in.

THE CHAIRMAN: This fire escape was in general daily use?
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A. Oh, yes, we were using it all the time, going- back and forth.
MR. HOMUTH: You yourself had used that way?
A. Many tiing?.

MR. PRICE : When was this film censored ?

A. Shortly after it came in. I don't know just when.

Q. When was it first produced?
A. I don't know anything about that.

Q. Did the Canadian Aero Film Company buy "Damaged Goods"?
A. I cannot give you a definite answer on that question. My understanding

was that it was the property of the company.
Q. You don't know who owns the film?

A. I have no way of knowing except that the film came in to the company
and I understood that it was* the property of the company.

Q. You weren't there when the film was put on?

A. I have never seen it.

Q. Have you provision for a. private view of films at the Canadian Aero Film

Company ?

A. Oh yes, we have a projecting room.

IQ.

Where you can throw it on the screen and see what it is?

A. Yes.

Q. Have they the same thing in the Motion Picture Bureau?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Mr. Elliott stated yesterday that there was a card system, being put in

the department for checking up. What system did you have in the department
for checking up?

A. We had a card system for the positives, all positives.

Q. What other system?
A. When we measured a negative there was a book kept in the office of the

Pathe Company and the measurements were signed in duplicate and we secured

one copy of that. When we measured a negative at the Pathe offices the meas-

urement was placed in the 'book in duplicate and isiigned in duplicate, and we

retained one copy and that was placed on file in the office.

Q. Mr. Elliott rather left the impression that there was no system there.

that the system was at fault?

A. I am willing to admit that the system was not as complete as it should

have been but I feel that there was a working system there.

MR. BRACKIN: If Mr. Dawson was cognizant of these irregukrities did he

make a complaint to the Minister or the inspector and if not why not?

THE CHAIRMAN: Did you notify the Government?

A. I did not, I told Mr. Sampson.

The witness was then excused and after passing a certain motion which appears

elsewhere in the minutes, the Committee adjourned.

The Committee met at 9 A .M. Mr. Curry in >the Chair; E. J. Oallaihan

called and sworn; examined by Mr. Dewart.

Q. What is your name ?

A. Edward J. Callahan.

Q. Do you live in Fort Frances ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you carry on a business there a a, wholesale grocer in the name of
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E. J. CalMian and Co, and you having the controlling interest in the business :

A. Yes sir.

Q. And you ddd receive a wire from the secretary of this Committee ad-

vising you that the Public Accounts Committee had summoned you to appear

before the Committee on Wednesday March 16th ?

A. Yes sir.

Q.- And I believe you adivsted the secretary of the Committee that 'his wire

of the 9th of March had been received and that you were confined to the hospital

with a slight operation and that the doctor would not allow you to leave ?

Q. And you subsequently found that you had to remain longer than you

expected ?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you come at the first available time since receiving that telegram ?

A. Yes.

Q. The telegram not having been countermanded ?

A. Yes.

In speaking in the House on the 15th of Miarch a question arose as to certain

circumstances in connection with what is known as the tim'beT probe. .1 then made
a statement that I referred to as your "plain (Statement of the facts". I want to

read that statement to you and then ask you a question with reference to it.

" At my request and upon.' advice Mr. Callaihan made a plain statement of the

facts to the Commissioners and subsequently to the Pnemier and to the Attorney
General. Mr. Callahan had been the Liberal Candidate in the Rainy Kiver District

at the last general Provincial election and attended a meeting of elected membeirs

and Liberal candidates in Toronto, called after the election. At that time he had
a long conference with me personally when he explained his views with reference to

the way in which the Shevlin-Clarke Company Ltd., .had defrauded the Province.

Hie knew that I had taken up the exploitation of our timber resources during tthe

campaign. As Mr. Mathieu, the Managing Director of the Sihevlin-Clarke Com-

pany, had been his opponent in the campaign Mr. Callahan felt that the methods

by which Mr. Mathieu had succeeded should be madtel the subject of investigation.
" He promised to give the fullest estimates that he could make 'and did so by

letter on tine 5itjh of January 1920. Upon discussion I iaissured him thiat I could

not as a solicitor take up this matter, and that it would require the time and

thought of a solicitor who must be paid for Ms (services to put the case in shape

agiainst the Shevlin-Clarke Company. "Upon my advice and with a view to secur-

ing the evidence that might be used in the House, he went with me to the office of

Mr. R. T. Harding, my former partner, Whom he retained, and Mr. Harding under-

took the matter of the investigation. It was1

expected then and intended that the

evidence he obtained should be available for the use of the Leader of the Opposit-

ion, in view of the attitude that I had taken with reference to timber and mineral

matters and the Department of Crown Land generally.

Mr. Callahan's statement to thle Commissioners was;
" My agreement with

Mir. Harding was that I should pay him the sum of $4,000 to put the evidence in

shape against the Shevlin-Clarke Company. Accordingly I paid him by cheque

dated February 23rd, 1920, the sum of $1,000 .and have since paid him by two che-

ques dated April 23rd. for $1,000 and June 16th, $1,000 the added sum of $2,00

I am still under obligation to pay him a further sum of $1,00-0 in accordance with



T
7

. APPENDIX No. 2. 411

the written agreement between us."

"It is Mr to Mr. Dewart to say that apart from the introduction to Mr. Hard-

ing as a competent counsel, Mr. Dewart had no knowledge of the details of the

arrangement ttiat I had wtiitih Mr. Harding.
"I am well aware that Mr. Dewart has been very much annoyed at the attitude

Mr. Harding took in unexpectedly turning over to the Government the informa-

tion which he had got and which I had expected would have been used by him as

Mr. Dewart's Liberal supporter in the interest of the LibeTiajl party. I was not

aware of the faict that Mr. Dewart did not know that upon the opening day of tihe

Session, the 9th March, the 'Commission of Judges hlad been appointed which

apparently he only diiscovered by inquiry in tihe House on the &5!h of March. I

understand that since Mr. Dewart ascertained the fact that the Commission of

Judges had1 been appointed (and I have Mr. Dewart's word for it) that he hias

turned over to Mr. Harding ever (bit of informiaition thait he had obtained so that

the course of the Government in making tihlis inquiry might not in any way be in-

terfered with.
"
My object in taking this matter up now, is to see that the Shevlin-Clarke

Company and every other Lumber compiany or operator in the Province of Ontario

pay their just dues to the Province, and I strongly object to tlie recommendation

made by Mr. Harding for the settlement of the Farlinger eaise as it create a dan-

gerous precedent for others to try nnd gelt the siame settlement.

He also added;
"I have only recently laid these facts before Mr. Dewairt and 'have been sur-

prised to find that when he was supporting the Government in this action with

reference to the timber probe, eo fully he had not the slightest knowledge of what
had transpired between Mr. Harding and myself nor as to the sums that I had

paid him."
"
My objections to the settlement recommended by Mr. Haxding of the

George F. Farlinger case is not to single out Mr. Farlinger in particular, but I am
objecting on the ground thait it creates a precedent for other lumbermen or operat-
ors to claim a settlement on the same basis on which Mr. Fairlinger settled. They
have just aks good grounds to plead ignorance a,s Mr. Fairlinger had. I feel positive
that tihe only proper method on which to settle with, any of these lumbetrmen is to

put competent men to stump antd top their limits-- then you get an accurate meas-

urement of the 'amount of stuff thtey took- of the timber they have cut and the

amount they destroyed and left to waste in the bush and to .get the amount of

timber they might have left standing, and then agree on the price for1 the amount
of stuff they did not pay for, or what they are intended to be penalized for, for

attempting to defraud the Government. To that amount add the expenses of

stumping and topping the limits then you can get an accurate basiis of settle-

ment for them and each and every one of them should settle on the same basis.

There should be no favor shown."

Then I added myself so that you may have the whole facts,
"

It is unnec-

essary and perhaps unfair, when this matter is still under investigation to go
further into Mr. Callahan's views upon the question of over-run, scaling and mat-

ters of evidence."

Q. You have had an opportunity of reading that statement since you came

down here, and have had it in your possession ? i

A. Yes.
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Q. Then may I ask you whether so far as that sets out the statement you
made to me, is it a correct statement ?

A. Yes.

Q. And so far as it was a statement of the facts, then to your knowledge
are the f!aets correctly stated ?

A. Yes.

Q. And the views that you expressed to me ?

A. Yes.

Q. At the time of the sitting of this Committee 001 the 2nd. of March Mr. E.

T. Harding was examined by the Hon. Mr Ferguson and I find on page 50 of the

evidence this question, put to Mr. Harding,
" You know who Callahan is. that he

is an employee of E. W. Backus, do you know that ?" What do you say as to that

question, Mr. Caillahaii ? Are you employed by or have you been employed by E.

\V. Backus ?

A. I am not and never have Ibeen in the employ of E. W. Backus.

Q. Or in the employ of any of these companies ?

A. None whatever.

Q- Havia you any business relationship between you and any of his com-

panies ?

A. I have a contract for handling pulpwood this year for the Fort Frances

Pulp and Paper Company- my company holds a contract.

Q. To sell pulpwood to the Fort Frances Pulp and Paper Company ?

A. Yes.

Q. And making a profit ?

A. Yes.

Q. Is that a customary arrangement ?

A.- Yes, sir, other men have had it for yeians.

Q.' In the course of the debate I have referred to, in the House on the 15iii

of March it was stated by Mr. McCrae that you, were a former employee of the

Shevlin-Clarke Co. Is that correct ? .

A. I was never employed by the Shevlin-Clarke Company.
Q. Was there any relationship between Mr. Mathieu and yourself ?

A. We were associated in the wholesale grocery business for about four

years, as stockholders in a limited corporation.

Q. What was the company ?

A. The Northern Groeerie Company Ltd., of Fort Frances.

Q. There is no business relationship between you now ?

A. None whatever.

Q, i believe you are thie President and general manager and the controlling

stockholder of E. J. CalMmn IM. ?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. Ferguson: Just two or three questions The Fort Frances Pulp and

Paper Company is a Backus Company ?

A. I understand it is.

Q. You say in your statement that you had an agreement with Mr. Harding.

Was that just an ordinary retainer as counsel ?

A. Yes, sir. I agreed to pay him $4,000.

Q. Was it more than a retainer ?

A. No, sir.

Q. As Mr. Dewarfc read it it occurred to me that thene was an agreement
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witih Harding. You say that was just an ordinary retainer as counsel ?

A. Yes, I agreed to pay him $4,000.

Q. It is not specially set out in an agreement as to what he was to d!o ?

A. No, not in that agreement, no, sir.

Q. Was tihere in any other agreement ?

A. No, sir.

Q. May 1 ask you this; you made a full and complete statement from which
Mr. Dewart has quoted portions, extracts. There was a full statement of gome
kind ?

A. That is substantially the statement I made to Mr. Dewart.

Q. There was more of it some place. Apparently he had only quoted por-
tions of it. What I want to know is this, did you leave a copy of that statement

with the judges ?

A. I can't remember. Did we Mr Dewart ?

Mr. Dewart: I think not. I may say that my honorable friend is quite right in

saying that that is not exactly all the sitatement Mr. Callahan gave me. It was
thrown into the third peron as I made it to the House. The original statement
was in Mr. Callahan's

"
I so and so.

"
If there is anything in the original state-

ment that hasn't been included there, I will see that you get it.

Mr. Ferguson ; My honorable friend will undertake to give me a copy of that

statement ?

Mr. Dewart: Yes.

Q. You wrote, apparently, to Mr. Dewart, on the 5th of January giving es-

timateis. In the statement he says "He promised, to give the fullest estimates he

could make and did so by letter on the 5th of January." I suppose that is avail-

able ?

Mr. Dewart: Well, I don't know. That assumes a different position because

after all it was turned over to Mr. Harding as part of the material on which he

undertook Callahan's work. Apart from that I have no objection to you seeing it.

Mr. Ferguson: I see, Mr. Harding has that. Now just one other question

Mr. Oallahan. Have you ever been engaged in the lumbering business ?

A. Some.

Q. When was that-- buying pulpwood and selling it to Backus ?

A. I worked in the lumbering business some.

Q. Are you a practical operator ?

A. No sir.

Witness excused.

The Committee, after assenting to a report being made to the House of the

work done by the Committee during the Session then adjourned.
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EXHIBITS.

DUNDAS, ONTV MARCH 9TH, 1920.

HOY A. REYNOLDS ESQ.,

DUXDAS, Without Prejudice.

DEAR SIR:

I have been considering your demand for commission on the truck sale

to the Provincial Government, and I wish to state frankly and unconditionally

that you are not entitled to any commission whatsoever on this sale. I personally

originated the negotiations and carried them through to a finish, and you had

no part whatever in making the sale. It is true that you went to Toronto

with me but you took no part in the negotiations, and I did not take you with

me even for the purpose of assisting me in the sale. I also took you to

Milwaukee and paid all your expenses, because I wanted some one with me
for company and who was accustomed to travelling, and you wanted to go for

your own benefit from an educational point of view, so that you could see the

plant and the way the trucks were made, etc.

I have supplied you with a demonstrator and have not charged you any-

thing for the use of it, although other salesmen are required to provide their

own demonstrator and pay the upkeep of same and1 all their own running expenses.
You have used the demonstrator not only for business but for your own private
use and benefit and pleasure, and I have made no objection to your doing so.

However as I have my hands full with my own business I have no desire

for litigation, but I wish you to distinctly understand that I will not stand for

any unjust claim being made upon me but in order to avoid the unpleasantness
of litigation I have decided without prejudice to offer you the sum of $400
in full settlement of the claim you have made to commission on the Government

deal, and in full settlement of other claims which you may think you are

entitled to on all other cars sold through my agency with which you have been
conected as a commission salesman.

I wish it distinctly understood that this offer is made strictly without

prejudice and without any admission on my part that I owe you anything

except the commission which I am tendering you to-day a marked check for

$459.65, and commission on the sale to George when it can be ascertained.

Yours truly,

(Sgd.) L. C. PARKIN.

DUNDAS, ONT., MARCH 9TH, 1920.

ROY A. REYNOLDS ESQ.,

DUNDAS.
DEAR SIR:

I tender you herewith a marked check for $459.62 made up as follows:

1. Commission on sole of Chevrolet car to Mr. Bhscher $44.75
2. of Chevrolet car to Binkley 44.75

3. of McLaug-hlin car to Miss Grafton 142.37

4. of McLaughilin car to Patterson 104.50

5.
" "

of McLaugMin car to Grafton & Co 123.25

$459.62

In addition to the above you will be entitled to commission on sale to

Herbert George five per cent, of the Factory price depending upon whether he
decides to take a K 63 McLaughlin or a K 45 McLaugMin.



416 APPENDIX No. 2. 1021

Yours truly,

(Syd.) L. C. PARKIN,

DUNDAS, ONT., MARCH 9m 1920.

L. C. PARKIN ESQ.,

DUNDAS, ONT.

DEAR SIR:

Mr. Eoy ^Reynolds has handed your two communications to me, each of

which is dated to-day.

The one letter contains a statement showing a credit due to Mr. Reynolds
of $459.62, which is accompanied by an accepted cheque. This appears to be

correct in so far as it goes. However, I am advised, that there are other items

which should have been included in your statement. This is only a partial

settlement. The balance must be straightened up at once.

With regard to the other letter, which you have written, I am instructed

to state, that unless a strict accounting is made by you at once to Mr. .Reynolds,

showing the amount of sales which have been! closed through your office since

the commencement of your contract with my client, and an accepted cheque
with same for the commission due, a writ will be issued asking for the appoint-
ment of a receiver, for an accounting, for payment of the amount found to be

owing, and for such other relief ias I am advised, including an attachment of

monies owing to you by the Ontario Government part of which belongs to my
client.

This matter is extremely urgent. Unless I hear from you by Thursday of

this week, proceedings will be instituted.

A. L. SHAVER.

"A"
. SALES PROPOSAL
DUNDAS, CANADA, DATED DECEMBER 27TH, 1919.

To THE HON. F. C... BIGGS,
DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS,

PARLIAMENT BLDGS., TORONTO, ONT.
The- undersigned hereby

1

proposes to furnish you 6 Sterling Dump. Trucks
of Sy2 Ton capacity, the price for which f.o.b. Dundas with catalogued equip-
ment is, Each $7,516.50

The following extra equipment will be furnished as described, at the

following prices :

These Trucks to be Standard Worm Drive, with all Steel Body, and Wood's

Hydraulic Hoist, Cab and Storm Curtains, and Electric Light Equipment, also

Draw-Bar for Trailer.

6. Trucks @ $7,516.50 $5,099.00
Total Proposal Price $45,099.00

Terms; 10% on execution of contract, balance settlement on delivery as

follows :

Balance on Delivery at Destination at your Points.

Delivery; It is our purpose to deliver these Trucks by March 1, 1920.

Acceptance: This proposal becomes void if not accepted within ten days

from date. Your signature at the) foot of this proposal will constitute an order.

Eespectfully submitted,
BY L. C. PARKIN.
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ACCEPTED THIS 30-TH DAY OF DEC., 1919.

ONTARIO PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT,
BY F. C. BIGGS,

MINISTER OF PUBLIC WORKS.

ORDEiR FORM
TORONTO, DECEMBER 30TH, 1919.

L. C. PARKIN, ESQ.,

DUNDAS, ONT.

DEAR SIR:

We are receipt of your quotation of the 27th instant, giving us a price

of $7,516.50 each, f.o.b. Dundas> Ontario, for six (6) Sterling Dump Trucks

of 3% ton capacity, the trucks to have standard worm drive, all steel body,

Wood's hydraulic hoist, cab and storm curtains, electric light equipment and

draw bar for trailer.

The painting of each entire truck will be battleship grey, and on each side

of the steel body they will be lettered in white paint letters 1 inch high

"Department of Public Highways Ontario Truck No. 8." These 3% ton trucks

will be numbered consecutively from 8 to 13.

All standard equipment with the trucks will be furnished, and we would

request you to notify the manufacturers that these trucks are for road construc-

tion purposes and will be used for hauling road-building mlateriaLs, so that

we will obtain all standard and proper equipment furnished by the truck

builders ipr this special purpose.
Your quotation on the above six trucks is accepted, and we would request

you to place the order immediately with the manufacturers.

Shipping instructions and destinations for the trucks will be forwarded
to you in the course of a few days.

Yours truly,

Chief Engineer.

"B"
SALES PROPOSAL

t

DUNDAS, CANADA, DECEMBER, 27TH, 1919.

THE HON. F. C. BIGGS,

DEPT. or PUBLIC WORKS, i

PARLIAMENT BLDGS., TORONTO, ONT.
The undersigned hereby proposes to furnish you 6 Sterling Dump Trucks

5 Ton capacity, the price for which f
ro.b. Dundas with catalogued equipment

Each $9,100.00
The following extra equipment will be furnished as described at the

lowing prices :

These Trucks to be 'Chain Driven with six speeds forward and two reverse, with
Steel Body, and Wood's Vertical Hydraulic Hoist, 'Cab and Storm Curtains,

and Electric Light Equipment, also Trailer Draw-Bar.
6 Trucks @ $9,100:00 $54,600.00

Total Proposal Price $5 1,600.00

Terms; 10% on execution of contract, balance settlement on delivery as

follows :

Balance on delivery at destination at your points.
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Deliver}
7

;
It is our purpose to deliver these Trucks by March 1, 1920.

Acceptance : This proposal becomes void if not accepted within ten days

from date. Your signature at the foot of this proposal will constitute an order.

Respectfully submitted,

BY L. C. PARKIN.

ACCEPTED THIS 30iH DAY OF DEC., 1919.

ONTARIO PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT.

^
BY F. C. BIGGS,

MINISTER OF PUBLIC WORKS.
f r-

ORDER FORM
TORONTO, DECEMBER SOrrn, 1919.

L. C. PARKIN, ESQ.,

DUXDAS,
ONTARIO.

DEAR SIR: i i

We are in receipt of your quotation of 27th instant, giving us a price of

$9,100.00 each, f.oJb. Dundas, Ontario, for six (6) Sterling 5 ton capacity

Dump Trucks. These trucks will be chain driven, with six speeds forward and

two reverse, all steel body, Wood's vertical hydraulic hoist, cab and storm

curtains, electric light equipment and draw bar for trailer.

The entire painting of each of the trucks will be battleship grey, and each

truck will be lettered on each side in white letters one inch high "Department
of Public- Highways Ontario Trucjk No. 14." The numbering of these trucks

will be consecutive from 14 to 19.

Your quotation on the above six trucks is accepted, and we would request

you to advise the manufacturers immediately and request the earliest possible

attention to this order, so that prompt shipment can be obtained. Please advise

the manufacturers that these trucks are for hauling road-building material.

Destinations and points at which we will accept these trucks will be for-

warded to you in the course of a few days.

Yours truly,

Chief Engineer.

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO
COUNTY OF WENTWORTH, TO WIT.

IN THE MATTER OF the Action instituted by L. C. Parkin against George Ilarwood

and Leo Harwood trading under the firm name of George Harwood

& Son, and

I\ THE MATTER OF evidence given at the trial of the said Action by one, Roy

Reynolds of Dundas, Ontario.

I, PERCY WOODWARD, of the Town of Dundas, in the County of Wentwortli,

Mechanic, Do SOLEMNLY DECLARE:

1. THAT on Friday December 17th, 1920, after Roy Reynolds gave evidence

on behalf of the Defendant in the above mentioned action and denied that

the Defendant George Harwood had agreed to pay for the repairs to the truck in

question in the above-mentioned action, the said Reynolds after he came out of

the box immediately took a chair beside or near me in the Oourt House, Hamilton.

I said to Reynolds, "Reynolds, you are an awful liar, you know darned well

that Harwood said he would pay the damages." Reynolds replied to me, "I
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know he did but Parkin will swear my life away when his case comes up, why
shouldn't I swear his away."

The said conversation took place in the presence and hearing of Wallace

Matthews.

AND I MAKE THIS SOLEMN DECLARATION conscientiously believing

it to be true and knowing that it is of the same force and effect as if made under

Oath and by virtue of The Canada Evidence Act.

H. P. WOODWARD.
DECLARED before me at the Town

of Dundas, in the Couniy of Went-

worth, this 17th day of December, A.D.

1920.

A. L. SAMSON.

A Commissioner etc.

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO
COUNTY OF WENTWORTH, TO WIT.

Ix THE MATTER OF the Action instituted by L. C. Parkin against George Harwood
and Leo Harwood trading under the firm name of George Harwood
& Son, and

IN THE MATTER OF evidence given at the trial of the said Action by one, Roy
Reynolds of Dundas, Ontario.

I, WALLACE MATTHEWS, of the 'City of Hamilton, in the County of Wentworth,

Mechanic, Do SOLEMNLY DECLARE:
1. THAT I was in the Court Room when Roy Reynolds of Dundas gave
evidence in the above-mentioned action and heard him deny that George
Harwood one of the Defendants in the above-mentioned action had agreed to

pay for the repairs to the damages to the truck in question in the above-mentioned

action.

'2. As soon as the said Roy Reynolds left the witness box, he took a seat beside

or near me and Percy Woodward in the Court House, at Hamilton, and thereupon
the said Percy Woodward said to Roy Reynolds, "You are an awful liar." "You
know darned well that Harwood said he would pay the damages." Whereupon
the said Reynolds replied to W^oodward, "I know he did but Parkin will swear

my life away when his case comes up, why shouldn't I swear his away."
AND I MAKE THIS SOLEMN DECLARATION conscientiously believing

to be true and knowing that it is of the same force and effect as if made under
ith and by virtue of The Canada Evidence Act.

WALLACE MATTHEWS.
DECLARED before me at the Town

of Dundas, in the County of Wentworth,
this 17th day of December, A.D. 1920.

A. L. SAMSON,
A Commissioner etc.

TORONTO, MAY 31sT, 1920.

'ROVINCIAL BOARD OF HEALTH,
PARLIAMENT BLDGS.,

TORONTO.
lENTLEMEN I
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AYe are pleased to quote you on Ford Coupelets complete with Coat of

Arms on each door, delivered to the following cities:

Toronto Hamilton London Cornwall Soo N. Bay Ft. William

Coupe $1050' 00 $1060.00 $1050.00 $10*50.00 $1050.00 $1050.00 $1050.00

Freight 20.00 20.00 20.00 26.00' 30.00 25.00 40.00

Excise Tax 129.94 129.94 129.94 129.94 129.94 129.94 129.94

Sales Tax 8.66 8.66 8.66 8.66 8.66 8.66 8.66

Coat of Arms
on doors 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00

$1218.60 $1218.60 $1218.60 $1224.60 $1228.60 $1223.60 $1238.60

Trusting to be favored with your valued order, we are

Yours very truly,

TORONTO MOTOR CAR COMPANY, LIMITED.

T. A. RANKIN,
Sales Manager.

TORONTO, MAY 26TH, 1920.

DR. J. W. S. MOCULLOUGH,
PROVINCIAL BOARD or HEALTH,

PARLIAMENT BUILDINGS, CITY.

DEAR SIR:

We beg to submit the following prices on sixteen automobiles of the Coupelet
or Runabout type, for which you are calling tenders.

Ford Runabout, Each :

List Price $710.00

Government Tax 1% 7.10

Government Tax 15% 87.86

Freight 20< 00

$824.96

I

Lomplete with Demountable equipment, Spar rim and Carrier, and Non-
Skid tires on the Rear.

Ford Ooupelet. Each:

List Price $1,050.00
Government Tax 1% 10i.50

Government Tax 15% 129.94

Freight 20.00

$1,210,.44

Complete with Electric starting and

Lighting system, Demountable rims,

Spare rim and rim Carrier, and non

skid tires on the rear.

Trusting the above quotation meets with your approval and that we may
have the pleasure of receiving your order, which will have our most careful

attention, we are,

Yours very truly,

A. D. GORRIE & CO., LTD.,
J. ARTHUR GRIFFITH,
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Secretary-Treasurer.

This exhibit marked "A" referred to in the evidence of William Dawson

taken on oath before the Committee of Public Accounts this 22nd dtay of

April, 1921.

JAMES W. CURRY,
Chairman.

Toronto, March 13th, 1920.

DEAR SIR:

After consultation with the Civil Service 'Commissioner, I have

decided to have you devote your efforts to the production of agricultural films, in

view of the special qualifications you posses along agricultural lines. The general

direction of the work of the Bureau is henceforth in charge of Mr. 0. Elliot

from this date.

For your information I may say, that the Government has decided on

arx extensive programme in connection with agricultural films, which will

require your very best efforts to promote the interests of the Province. I shall

be very much dbliged if you will give this programme your earnest attention.

Yours very truly,

Provincial Treasurer.

W. DAWSON, ESQ.,

PROVINCIAL MOTION PICTURE BUREAU,
46 EICHMOND ST. W.,

TORONTO.

Date No.

June 28/18

Apr. 30/18 124

Oct. 6/17 126

Aug. 5 / 20

Aug. 7/17 137

July 31/18 137

June 10/19 141

Aug. 28/19 141

Oct. 31/19 141

1918 142

May 9/18 143

May 9/18 143

1918 149

1918 149

1917 150

151

163

1918-1919 167

1919 170

1918 171

Title

Travelogue thru Northern Ont. 2128

Forcing Ehuharb 381

The Parts of a Plant 631

The Parts of a Plant 320

Horse Parade, Confederation Day 83

Horse Parade, Confederation Day 83

Orchard Methods that Pay 33

Orchard Methods that Pay 148

Orchard Methods that Pay 78 <

The Sediment Test of Milk ... Ill ,

The Acidity Test of Milk 262

The Acidity Test of Milk 2O5 i

Agricultural Eepresentatives . . 457 <

Agricultural Eepresentatives . . 40-6 (

Ontario Agricultural College . . 723

McDonald Institute 222
Unsoundness in Horses 2<62 (

Potato Diseases 664 @
Homes for the farmer

and his help 18 (5

The Use and Care
of Farm Machinery 65

@

Footage
2) $0.50

g .50

.50

| .75

z> .50

.50

.65

.65

.65

1.00

1.00

.50

.50

.50

? .65

.50 and

i) .65

Amount

$1,119.50
190.50

315.00

244.80

20.75

20.75

21.45

96.20

50.70

111.00

262.00

102.50

228.50

203.00

532.40

55.50

1 70.30

65 3'5i9.75

11.70

34.30
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1919 174

1918-1919 176

1918 179

1919 186

194

1918 195

1917-1918 200

1918 207

1919 218

1918 230

1918 233

1918 239

1918 241

1918 242

1918 248

1918 249

1919 252

1919 256

1919 .257

1919 259

1918 261

(Parts

The Farm Water Supply
and Sewage Disposal 74 @ .65

The Milking Machine

as a labor saver 744

The Premium Horse 971 @ .50

Mining in Northern Ontario . . 1,784 @ .50

Mineral Wealth of Ontario 25 @ .50

Monteith Farm 656

Women's Institute 86 @ .50

Barn Building and Ventilation 29 @ .50

Barrel Packing of Apples 189 @ .65

How to iSpray 226 @ .50

A Trip through the Niagara
Peninsula

Fats

The Pulp Industry

Resources of Northern Ontario

Timagami
Neg. Titles

(approx. 380 ft. of this neg. used)
T. &. N. 0. Railway 152 @ .50

Clearing land 25 @ .50

Pioneer Life, The Social Side 78 @ .50

Pioneer Life, The Women's Side 103 @ .50

Pioneer Life, The Women's
Institute 123 @ .50

Lake of Bays 1758

of this picture may have been used in No. 301.)

1918 263 Beauty Spots of Ontario 390 @ .50

1919 314 Niagara Glen 164 @ .65

1919 325 Rideau Lakes ( 933 @ - .65

(Mr. Dawson, claims that this picture is no good.)

402

48.10

614.40

485.50

892.00

12.50

373.45

43.00

14.50

92.30

113.00

227
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No. 163. Unsoundness in Horses Note Since been taken by Aero Film.

No. 179. The Premium Horse Mr. Dawson says this picture is no good.
No. 218. Barrel Packing of Apples. . . Mr. Dawson says this picture is no good.

Finishing scenes for this picture should
No. 248 Timagami have been made in season.

380 ft. Negative and 394 ft. Neg. Titles.

2729 ft. original neg.
394 ft. neg. titles.

3123 ft.

774 ft. neg. used

2349 ft. not used.

No. 314. Niagara Glen 164 ft. taken in 1919.

Photography no good. Blurred, due to

very bright sunlight, showing through

heavy foliage.

No. 325. Rideau Lakes 933 ft. taken in 1919.

Mr. Dawson says this picture is no good.

"A"
This is Exhibit marked "A" referred to in the Evidence of J. W. Flavelle

given before the Public Accounts Committee this llth day of March, A.D. 1921.

JAMES W. CURRY,
Chairman.

ONTARIO TEMPERANCE ACT.

APPLICATIONS FOR CLEMEXCY REFUSED.

From 1st Nov., 1919 to 1st March, 1921.

Name.

Arnold, M. A.

Avon, A.

Alexander, G. A.

Adair, T.

Alesio, P.

Aziz, W.

Applebaum, A.

Beck, G.

Bull, G.

Bureka, H.

Blore, W.

Brusseau, J.

Bryen, E

Bapschuk, W.

Besserer, W.

Besserer, Jno.

District File

Niagara Falls. 20

Ottawa. 54

Sault Ste. Marie. 10

Lincoln. 6

Sault Ste. Marie. 25

Lennox and Addington. 8

Windsor. 39

Niagara Falls. 13

Northumberland & Durham 13

Sudbury. 34

Hamilton. 38

Ottawa. 35, 30

Sault Ste. Marie. 21

Ottawa. 38

Ottawa. 46

Ottawa. 47

No. Date.

Mar. 4/20.

Apr. 6/20.

June 5/20.

July 19/20.

Sept. 23/20.

Sept. 16.

Nov. 24.

Nov. 12/19.

Nov. 20/19.

Dec. 6/19.

Dec. 9/19.

Jan. 6/20.

Jan 12/20.

Jan. 27.

Mar. 4.

Mar. 4
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Badder, M.
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Denison, C.
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Griffiths, F.
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Jifkins, F.
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Lachoski, W.



George T
7

. ... APPENDIX No. 2. 429

McDonald, J.
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Soule, Lena.



George V. APPENDIX No. 2. 431

Teepell, E.
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RETURN OF CONVICTIONS MADE TO THE CLERK OF THE PEACE
AUGUST 1906

Name of the
Prosecutor
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FOR THE PROVISIONAL JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND
OCTOBER 1920
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RETURN OF CONVICTIONS MADE TO THE CLERK OF THE PEACE
AUGUST 1905

Name of the
Prosecutor
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FOR THE PROVISIONAL JUDICAL DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND
OCTOBER 1920 (Continued)

Amount of

Penalty,
Fine or

Damages
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RETURN OF CONVICTIONS MADE TO THE CLERK OF THE PEACE
AUGUST 1906

Name of the
Prosecutor
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FOR THE PROVISIONAL JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND
OCTOBER 1920 (Continued)

Amount of

Penalty,
Fine or

Damages
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RETURN OF CONVICTIONS MADE TO THE CLERK OF THE PEACE
AUGUST 1906

Name of the
Prosecutor
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FOR THE PROVISIONAL JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND
OCTOBER 2920 (Concluded)

Amount ol

Penalty,
Fine or

Damages
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BRUCE MINES, OXT., MARCH 4TH, 1920.

To K. S. STOVER, ESQ., M. P. P.

MEMBER FOR ALGOMA.

Whereas the high cost of living has so advanced in these days, and travelling

expenses have so increased, that it is advisable not to incjiir any more of these

expenses than is absolutely necessary,

And where owing to theise increased exper&es, it is now difficult to get Bailiffs

and Division Court Clerks to act under the present Tariffs of fees under the

Division Court Act,

And whereas it will be better for all parties concerned to have the juris-

diction of the Division Courts in this Province doubled to its present jurisdiction,

Therefore Be It Eesolved on* motion of Councillor Jeffery seconded by

Councillor Clark that the Council of the Township of Plumoner Additional approve

of having the Division 'Courts Act so amended, that said Divisional Courts will

have jurisdiction to try actions in double1 or treble the amounts at which said Courts,

now have jurisdiction to try actions.

Passed by Said Council this 10th day of April A.D. 1920.

J. P. MCREA,
Eeeve.

THOS. HUMPHRIES,
Clerk.

Exhibit "A"
Re Fisheries.

CONFIDENTIAL
MEMORANDUM FOR HON. MR. RANEY.

Towards the close of the 1919 Session of the House Mr. Dewart received

confidential letters from Port Arthur relating to certain Fishing Privileges

at Nipigon upon which to obtain information in the Legislature. These he

used in the Campaign and held for the recent Session. These letters were

handed to Lieut. K. ;S. Stover, Memiber for Algoma, this year, on which to

base questions before the Public Accounts Committee.

The purport of the letters was not mentioned by Mr. Stover at the Public

Accounts 'Committee on the adjournment of one 'Session; but the letters were

locked in Mr. Stover's desk in the House and the key left inserted in the desk.

At the next ensuing meetirg of the committee Deputy Minister H. McDonald
made a statement touching the subject of the letters, which Mr. Stover had in

the meantime found were stolen from his desk. (The* ikey had 'been taken

away and has not been recovered.

The writer of the letters soon after learned that his letters were seen in

the hands of a friend of 'Col. Little, of Port Arthur, one of the parties mentioned

in the letters.

He was threatened with legal proceedings for what he had written. Mr.

Dewart requests that the Attorney-General conduct such investigation into the

matter and prosecution of all parties as the circumstances call for. The letters

can be and should be recovered.

P. F. CRONIN,

July 6th, 1920. Secretary.
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MEMO FOR THE HON. THE ATTORNEY-GENERAL.
E. A. Hewett of 1041 College St., City of Toronto, made the following state-

ment to me this 12th day of July, 1920, at my office: 1 was present at different

meetings of the Fish and Game Committee, and on the last day they met I

was sitting between Mr. Stover, M.P.P. and Mr. Taylor, M.P.P., I was talking
to them, and after they both left the room I saw a bunch of papers which I

picked up from the table where I was sitting, I intended to give them to Stover

or Taylor but did not see them. I kept the papers and looked at them to see

who owned them, and on reading one of the letters I saw it referred to Mr.

McDonald, Deputy Minister of Fish and Game, and one Rattray of bis Depart-

ment, from the letter I ooneluded a dirty job was being put up on them, and
the next day I brought the letters to Mr. McDonald, and left them on his desk,

and told him he could do what he liked with them. The letters were left on

the table by Mr. Stover or Mr. Taylor.
Jos. E. ROGERS,

Toronto, July 12th, 1920. Superintendent.

1041 COLLEGE ST. TORONTO, CANADA.
JULY 12, 1920.

JOSEPH ROGERS, ESQ.,

PARLIAMENT BUILDINGS, CITY.

DEAR SIR:

At the last meeting of Fish and Game Committee, I was sitting at end of

table, between Mr. Taylor and Mr. Stover.

At the close of the meeting I noticed a packet of papers in front of me
lying on the table.

I picked them up intending to give them to either Mr. Stover or Mr. Taylor.
I did not see either of them that day. At the office here I opened them to

see who they (belonged to. It appeared to me somebody was going to knife

the Deputy Minister of Fish and Game.
It looked to me like dirty business, and I told Mr. McDonald about it

and gave him the papers.

Yours truly,

ALFRED HEWETT.

DEPARTMENT OF GAME AND FISHERIES
MEMORANDUM FOR J. E. ROGERS, ESQ.,

SUPERINTENDENT OF ONTARIO PROVINCIAL POLICE,
PARLIAMENT BUILDINGS.

Tn reply to your verbal request of Saturday last, in regard to certain letters

that were in my possession, which contained very serious statements as to my
action and interests in 'Government operations carried on by one, J. A. Little,
I have to state that these letters were placed on my desk on May 3rd, 192'0,

by one Alfred Hewett of 1041 College Street, Toronto, and with the statement,
"Do what you please with them." Having read them on the morning of

May 4th, and being surprised at the seriousness of 'the contents, I at once

attempted to get an appointment with Mr. H. II. Dewart by calling his secretary
on the phone at the Parliament Buildings, and failing to secure this appoint-

ment, I tried the second time some two or three days later through the same
source but this also failed. I was then requested to appear before the Public
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Accounts Committee shortly after these papers came in my possession, and

having knowledge of the malicious statements being circulated in these letters

of January 12th, 1918, January 29th, 1919 and March, 1919, I made certain

voluntary statements while under oath by denying having any interest, either

directly or indirectly, with Mr. J. A. Little in connection with the Lake Nipigon
fisheries. I explained my reason for making my voluntary statements to the

Acting 'Chairman of the Public Accounts Committee on the following day.

Shortly after this time Mr. Little appeared at my office and made a request
to have the papers turned over to him, and I refused to do so. WiUhin a day
or two, Mr. Little again appeared and as he was an interested party, I read to

him certain portions of the letters bearing on the Lake Nipigon fisheries, and
he greatly resented the statements therein. During the course of our conversa-

tion, Mr. Little took the letters from my desk, to which I made protest and where-

upon he promised to return them.

Aside from the documents specifically mentioned herein, I had in my
possession from the same source the following letters: January 8th, 1919,
F. A. Clements to H. H. Dewart, K.C., document from Reeve and Clerk of

Bruce Mines to K. S. Stover, M.P.P., also circular and letter from the Canadian

Fishermen's Association addressed to K. S. Stover, M.P.P., which I had under

lock and kiery until this date, when I turnted over same for your disposition. No.

one has seen or read these papers while in my possession, nor has any action been

taken in regard thereto and were entirely forgotten as tney contained no charges

against my integrity.

I deem it to be my right at all times to defend any accusation against my
reputation and would consider it only fair to have a full enquiry made in the

interests of all concerned, including the Department.
D. McDoxALD,

Deputy Minister of Game and Fisheries.

Toronto, July 12th, 1920.

"B"
This is Exhibit marked " B "

referred to in the evidence of Joseph E. Rogers

taken on oath before the Public Accounts 'Committee this llth day of March,

A.D., 1921.

JAMES W. CURRY,

Chairman.

Private.

PORT ARTHUR, JANUARY 12TH, 1918

MR. H. H. DEWART, M. P. P.

Toronto, Ont.

DEAR MR. DEWART:
With reference to the reported policy of the Ontario Government on the

Fishing industry in the Province, and the statement that the Fish Department
will, in future, reserve twenty per cent of the catch for consumers in this Province,

and fixing the prices to be paid to the Fishermen, there is room for serious

criticism, so far as it effects the industry in this part of the Province.

In the first place, the policy is wrong in its inception, as the men who catch



George V. APPENDIX No. 2. 443

the fish are not marketers of the product to the public. Only in rare cases are

they in a position to box and ice and ship their catch to the dealers at outside

points, and therefore depend upon selling their catch to local dealers and shippers.

As a matter of fact, The A. Booth Fish Co., an American concern primarily,

handle ninety per cent of the catch made in the waters of Lake Superior, both at

Port Arthur and S. S. Marie, and even if twenty per cent of the catch is to be

reserved for the Government, what facilities are to be provided for the handling
and marketing to the public?

The course they intend to follow only accentuates the weak and incompetent

policy" followed by the Food Controller, who, instead of regulating the prices and

distribution, has allowed the Booth Co., and other concerns to charge and distri-

bute as they pleased, with the result that Trout & White-fish cost consumers

here 15 to 16 cents per lb., which is 3 to 4 cents per lib. in excess of what they
should be, and what applies locally affects the rest of the province in even greater

ratio.

The great bulk of the catch, as you are aware, is marketed in the United

States, at high prices, and the Canadian consumers are paying 20 to 25% more
than they should have to pay for this necessary food product.

The Ontario Govt. granted rights to a local company, headed by ol. J. A.

Little, a Tory stalwart, to fish Lake Nepigon, which had hitherto been a

closed lake.

The granting of an exclusive concession was not fair to the Fishermen of

the District, as the lake should have been thrown open to all genuine fishermen.

Since granting the concession to fish Lake Xepigon, the Department has

entered into an arrangement with this local Company by which the latter carries

on the fishing, and the Government does the handling, boxing, icing and marketing.
The Company have 'been paying the Fishermen engaged in the work four

and three quarter (4-3/4) cents per lb. at their nets and carry them to the

Government's docks and ice-houses on Lake Ncpigon, where the Government
Officials handle, box, ice and ship them to Port Arthur, Toronto and elsewhere

in the Province. T understand that the prices in Toronto are fixed at 15 to 16

cts., per lb. retail for trout and whitefish.

This means that somebody is making a fine profit out of the business, and
it appears to me that the profiteers are the local Company. It is stated that one
of the Department's own Officials is interested in the Company, and such assertions

do not surprise me. The official is Mr. Donald McDonald, Deputy Fish & Game
Warden for Ontario.

The personnel of the local company are, Col. J. A. Little, Geo. H. Eapsey
and Donald McDonald. Eapsey is also a Government Official, being Manager
for the Government at Lake Nepigori. All of these officials are ardent Tories,
and were probably necessary for Little to carry out his undertaking.

The concession granted to this Company ought to be looked into, and the

subsequent action of the Department ought to be the subject of inquiry, in order
to establish the relationship of one to the other. There is no doubt of such

relations and the Department can be placed in a bad light, if this is followed up.
I presume that the only way that such can be established is by taking the matter

up in committee, or when the Estimates for the Department are brought down.

However, I have given you enough information to enable you to investigate

further, with a view to getting at the crux of the matter.

T hope to bo able, later on, to give YOU some valuable information re the
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manipulation of timber concessions and timber berths in this district, and in

which several Government Officials are deeply involved.

~1 will expect you" to treat the information given as of a confidential nature,

in the meantime.
Yours faithfully,

GEO. F. HORRIGA:NT .

PORT ARTHUR, JANY. 29TH, 191 9-*

Personal.

MR. H. H. DEWART, M. P. P.

Toronto, Ont.

DEAR MR. DEWART:
I am in receipt of yours of 25th inst. with reference to Nepigon Fish Co.

You need not hesitate about the safety of the ground in making an investigation

into the personnel and operations of this company.
The Deputy Minister, D. McDonald, was a member of the company at its

formation, as was G. H. Rapsey, Inspector for the Department. It was part of

Col.J. A. Little's plan to have McDonald and Eapsey transferred to the service

of the Department, so that matters might be manipulated the better for the

companyi McDonald and Rapsey may not appear on the Board of Directors

now, nor on the annual statement submitted, to the Government, but they are

nevertheless part and parcel of the company. The Department covered up to

the extent of allowing one, Thos. Craigie, a load Fisherman to operate on a limited

extent, and also to allow a few Indians to fish on Lake Nepigon, but the Nepigon
Co. handle the catch and receive financial returns from the Department through
their Manager, E. H. McLeod, at Orient Bay, Lake Nepigon, on the C. N. Ry.
East of Port Arthur. Craigie made a strong protest some months ago against
the monopoly given to the Nepigon Fish Co., as he was promised a license to

fish the lake before Little formed his Company. These facts are pretty well

known here, and there is demand that a probe be made-

We can-net expect our Tory friends to take action, although some of them
are anxious to see a clean up.

Hogarth is still over in London drawing down military pay, and is also

associated with Little in the company, and in many other land and timber

transactions by which the public domain is exploited. Therefore, no voice of

protest is raised, and we must rely on you and your colleagues to take action

towards exposing these deals.

Little is a political pirate, who is practically local Member, during Hogarth's
absence, and is making hay while the sun is shining, and makes no bones about
it.

I will keep you advised re this matter, and trust that you will press for

information without stint at the forthcoming session.

Yours faithfully,

GEO. F. HORRIGAN-.

P. S. I have advised W. H. Adams, Secy. 0. R. Assocn. and Mr. Prondfoot
as to certain timber transactions which involve Little and others here.

G. F. II.
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PORT ARTHUR, MARCH / 19,

H. DEWART, ESQ., M. P. P.

Toronto, Out.

DEAR SIR:

As our Member, D. Hogarth, is overseas and our adjoining Member, Jarvis,

is a strong supporter of the Govnt. (as I am my self if you will leave out the

word Strong;) I take the liberty of writing you on a matter which if true, is in

my mind; one of the most flagrant rascality we have run up against for some

time.

And as you are in a position to ask for all papers and documents in connec-

tion therewith ; it is easy for you to find out if the report is based on facts.

It is well known that some time since the Dept. gave to J. A. Little and

vGeo. Rapsey both of Port Arthur the right to fish Nipigon Lake. Some time

after the Dept. decided to go into the fishing business for themselves, to assist

in the distribution of fish to the consumers of 'Canada, and thereby took over

and operated the industry on Lake Nipigon thereby stepping into the shoes of

Little and Rapisey:

Rapsey is given a position in the Dept. and thereby made a Gov'mt official.

That part is all right he is a capable and honest man and will make good; Little

had to be settled with likewise and what looks Fishy; even if.it is a fish business

is the fact that he (Little,) reported last summer, that he received from the

Department a commission of 3 cts. per Ib. for all fish taken; and la.te in the

season the Dept. issued a statement saying that there had been 3,000,000' (three

million) Ibs. of fish taken from Nipigon; therefore if the two statements are

correct the amount paid to Little 'by my figuring is about $90,000.00. When
the Ont. Govt. went into the fish business it was understood it was with the idea

of giving the people more and cheaper fish food and the first thing done was to

clap on a handicap to a friend of 3 cts. per Ib.

T may say, that I am fisherman and have no Interest in the matter, pro.

or con. other than a feeling that it is one of the worst frauds ever perpetrated
on a community.

It is well known that Little and Rapsey spent only a small amount in plant,
which would be taken over toy the Dept.

I am, yours truly,

RICH. VIGARS
34 College St.,

Port Arthur.

I do not wish to have my name used without first asking me.

G. V.

"C"

This is exhibit marked " C "
referred to in the evidence of Joseph E. Rogers

given on oath before the Public Accounts Committee this llth clay of March,
A. D., 1921.

JAMES W. CURRY,

Chairman.

MONTREAL, APRIL 12Tir, 193-0..

KENNETH S. STOVER, ESQ., M. P. P. FOR ALGOMA,
Parliament Buildings., Toronto, Ont.
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SIR :

We respectfully beg to call your attention to the enclosed copy of a petition

which was recently presented by the Ontario fishermen to the Minister in charge of

the Department of Game & Fisheries, Hon. E, C. Biggs.

This petition along with several other representations made by our fishermen

members appear to have been ignored by the Government, as we understand they
intend continuing the Fish Sales Branch.

As a considerable number of the fishermen who signed the petition are

located in your constituency, we are placing this matter before you for you to

take whatever action you may see fit on behalf of these Ontario fishermen who
are being, we consider, unjustly discriminated against.

Trusting to enlist your sympathy on their behalf, we remain,

Yours very truly,

CANADIAN FISHERIES ASSOCIATION.
F. W. WALLACE,

Secretary.
FWW/ADL

" ONTARIO GOVERNMENT FDSHERIES SHOULD BE DISCONTINUED."

COPY OF AX EDITORIAL IN
" THE CANADIAN FISHERMAN "

FOR JANUARY.

See the March issue for further action on behalf of Ontario Fishermen.

The action of the late Ontario Government in engaging itself in the catching
and selling of the fish of Ontario waters in competition with the regularly esta-

blished fishermen and dealers may be characterized as an unwarranted interference

with the rights of numerous citizens whidh has neither parallel or precedent to

justify it. As a war-time measure, the fishermen and others whom it mitigated

against, accepted the Government's fishery activities just as the citizens as a whole

have borne other war-time measures, 'but not without indignant protest at the

manifest injustice of the scheme, and the fishermen and those engaged in the fish

trade feel that the time has now come fourteen months after the conclusion of

hostilities for the Government's exploitation of the commercial fisheries to be

abandoned.

The Ontario lake fishermen of all the Canadian fishermen are bound down

with numerous severe restrictions. In the first place they are licensed by the

Provincial Government: in the prosecution of the fisheries they have to emiploy

expensive gear in the way of gill-nets OT pound-nets, fishing tugs and boats, and

their fishing seasons are limited. The work is skilled labor and since the war,

cost of such labor has risen as well as prices for gear and equipment, but it will

be found that the price of the fish sold nowadays by the fisherman has not advanced

to the percentage of advance in gear and labor. Yet with these facts against
them the Ontario fishermen at this date have to market their fish in competition
with their o-wn Provincial Government who have the advantage of being able

to command twenty per cent, of the Ontario fishermen's batch at any time to

augment supplies : th advantage of setting a purchase price for such

commandeered fi.^li: the advantage of fishing in virgin waters such as Lake

Nipigon where the Government maintains a fishery, and all the advantage which

a Government has in comlpeting with private individuals.
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suffi*

Even during the dark days of the war 110 other Province in Canada

attempted such an exploitation of the fisheries nor was it tried in Great Britain.

The principle of all enlightened nations has ever been to encourage the fisher-

men not to handicap them by entering into competition against them. Just

why the late 'Government should select the fisheries, of all other food commodities

the least important and least utilized by the people, is difficult to comprehend

especially when Canada produces ten times miore fish than the country can

consume and when excellent fish, cheap in price, cannot be sold in home markets

rough lack of demand.

The whole affair started on a piece of mistaken philanthropy, when in 191.7,

the necessity of the day was to save meats for export to the Allies. It was at

that time stated by a few irresponsible and uninformed persons that the fish of

Ontario waters were unprocurable as they were all being exported to the United

States by the Ontario fishermen. It is admitted that the best market for

Canadian freshwater fish is in the United States just as it offers the best market for

our lobsters, halibut, smelts, and other ,sea fish and the United States markets

for such fish has encouraged what little development there is in our fisheries

as a whole, but to state that Ontario fish were unprocurable in the Ontario

market had 'absolutely no foundation in fact and such a statement was not

cient justification for the late Government's action.

It is not the high price (?) of fish which should demand the attention of

the Provincial Government, but the high price of more indispensible commodities

such as meats, eggs, flour, vegetables, etc. The late Governmjent evidently felt

that food problems in those particular lines were too difficult to tackle and turned

to the fisheries as being an easier industry to exploit by reason of the fact that

it is prosecuted by a few inoffensive individuals with no political organizations
of any great power behind them, and the said individuals being under the heel

of the Government by reason of the fishery license which is granted yearly.

Withdrawal or cancellation of said license means the ruin, of the fisherman

holding same, and this places them in a position of apprehensive tenure and

inability to strenuously oppose or criticise the actions of the Government from
whom they revive the right to fish. In a country boasting the free institutions

such ;is ours, the position of the Ontario fishermen to-day is at once degrading

Cd

entirely out of keeping with the freedom and nobi'lity of profession which

s ever been the characteristics of fishermen the world, over.

Since 1017, the fishermen of Ontario have been laboring under the handicap
Government competition while other basic industries developing natural

resources have been free to prosper unhampered and to take advantage of

enhanced prices a state of affairs which all fair-minded persons unhesitatingly
condemn. And yet the need of the present is to encourage the development of

natural resources; to speed up exports of Canadian products that we may adjust
adverse trade balances and pay our debts. The Ontario 'Government's fish

policy is an excellent damper upon sucili efforts as far as the Provincial fisheries

are concerned.

Of what benefit has the Government fish policy beeruto the people of Ontario?

We would state emphatically that it has been productive of absolutely no real

benefit whatever. Ontario citizens may received whitefish, trout, herring and

other species a cent or two cheaper at times than if they had purchased the

privately produced fish, but just what would this saving amount to in the aggregate ?

ft is claimed by the late Government that the citizens of Ontario were saved
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the sum of $160,000 during 1919 by its 'Fish Sales Branch. On the basis of

three million population this represents the insignificant sum of five cents per

capita per annum a truly ridiculous economic parable with which to justify

a Government commercial operation. And still more ridiculous aspects are con-

tained in the facts that privately produced fish could have been sold at certain

seasons at lower prices tihan that set by the Government; and also, with the

prosperity of the average individual during the past three j^ears, what economic

advantage has it been to the people of Ontario in saving them a few cents a

year upon a commodity which is by no means popular or indispensible, at the

expense of its fishermen citizens?

It is sincerely to be hoped that with the advent of a new Provincial Govern-

ment composed largely of mien who are producers and harvesters of the soil that

the petition of a sister industry harvesters of the lakes will be considered with

that sympathetic appreciation which should exist among men who gain a

livelihood through skilled muscular effort and who are at the mercy of wind
and weather, and the policy of exploiting the fisheries established by the late

Government be discontinued and the industry allowed to pursue its own normal

development in the hands of the men to whom it is a livelihood' and who have-

ever been the backbone of the Empire's Maritime Supremacy.

COPY OF PETITION PRESENTED TO THE ONTARIO GOVERNMENT
BY THE CANADIAN FISHERIES ASSOCIATION
ON BEHALF OF THE FISHERMEN OF ONTARIO

THE UNDERSIGNED FISHERMEN or THE PROVINCE or ONTARIO

Respectfully petition the present Government to cease commercial

fishing and dealing in fish, for the following reasons:

(1) No justifiable 'economic or publicly beneficial reason now exists for

continued Government operation of a Fish Sales Branch . As a War Measure,
such Branch may have justified its existence, but with the conclusion of hostili-

ties, Government operation of a Fish (Sales Branch constitutes unfair 'competition
with private fishermen and dealers

(2) The Government operation
1

of a fishery in the virgin waters of Lake

Nepigon, where fish cost very little to produce, and the marketing of such low
cost fish in competition with fish produced at much higher cost by independent
fishermen in the Great Lakes said fishermen paying tolls and licenses to the

Government for the privilege of fishing creates a situation which is manifestly
unfair.

(3) The consuming public of Ontario have really received no benefit from
the Government Fish Sales policy. The alleged saving in the price of fish to

the consumer, it will be found upon analysis, has amounted to nothing which

justifies a continuation of the policy. Those who have benefited are the few

persons privileged to fish Lake Nepigon; the middle-man, who distributes the

fish, and the retailer, who, with few exceptions, charges several cents per pound
more than the supposed Government fixed price to .the consumer, or, who sells

a few pounds to the Ontario consumer and ships large quantities to the United

States market for higher prices.

(4) At the present time it has been found that the public are not taking

advantage of low priced fish to reduce living costs the demand is for the high

priced and expensive varieties. The Fish Trade of Canada are in a position
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to fill the market with excellent low priced fish but there is no demand for

such. In view of this fact,, which can be substantiated upon investigation, there

can be no justification for the continuation of a Government Fish Sales Branch.

We, therefore, respectfully ask the present Government to discontinue their

present Fish Sales Policy, and we feel confident that we will receive sympathetic
consideration of our petition.

G. W. Peterson, Sooith Bay
Frank Lambert, Northport
D. H. Eraser, Northpcrt
William Robbins* Picton
Frank Hupp, Picton
Fred Frost, Milford

James Frost, Milford
R C. Richardson, Picton

Philip Hudgin, South Bay
Fred Bangard, South Bay
L. R. Garrison, Cherry Valley
J. J. Monck, Picton
J. W. Tuttle, Cherry Valley
W. C. 'Utters, Cherry Valley
Walter Tuttle, West Lake
Hanson Baverstock; Cherry
Valley

S. A. Dulmage, Cherry Val-

ley
Frank Guess, South Bay
F. B. Howell, Demorestville

Wiliam James Watson, Cherry
VWley

G. D. Miller, Picton
Wm. G. Head, Picton

Percy Thurston, Cressy
Frank Bygott, Adolphustown
Geo. Hyderman, Picton

Joseph Gemer, Picton
'Reuben Henderson, Picton

Arthur Bangard, South B,ay

Chas. H. Herdgin, South Bay
Douglas Hart, Pictcoi

Sidney C. Carson, Cressy

Philip -
, Picton

Robt. Cory, Cressy
John St. Pierre, Waupoos
Clayton Stiffik, Point Pi

John Mitchell, Waupoos
Wilson Minak, Waupoos
Berard Burns, Waupoos
Wm. A. Airhart, Adolphus-
town

Fred Gallagher, Adolphus-
town

Philip Mack, SouthBay
Burgess S- Jenkins, South
Bay

Charles Sawyer, Maiden
Township

Raymond Moore, Maiden
Township

Fred Guarolin, Amherstburg
William Wilcox, Amherstburg
W. E. Dewey, North Maiden
Francis Dewcy, North Maiden
O C. Dewey, North Maiden
eorge Herman, Anderdon

Frank Herman, Anderdon
Mack Roson, Windsor
William G. Goodchilds, Am-

hersburg.
Erwin Joyce, Deseronto
Blake Sharp, Hay Bay
H. E. Putmian, North Port
J. Kennedy, Northport
Frank Cousins, jBelleviM'e
Joe Waimark, Belleville
Frank Cronk, Northport
F. W. Spencer, Hay Bay
Blake iSells, Hay Bay
John Anderson, Hay Bay
Frank McDonald, Point Anne
Manson McDonald. Point
Anne

B McHenry, Deserovi r o

F. McHendry, Deseronto
Henry Julien, Wheatley
J. Moody, Wheatley
E. Thompson, Wheatley
H. Bailey, Wheatley
H. Cotting-ham, Wheatley
Jas. Lamarshe, Wheatley
Will Chute, Wheatley
A. E. Crewe, Merlin, Kent

Co.
W. Philcox, Merlin, Kent Co.
J. St. John, Merlin, Kent Co.
J. Adams, Merlin, Kent Co.
J. E. Wilson, Merlin, Kent Co.
J. H. Wilson, Merlin, Kent

Co.

D. L. Crewe, Merlin, Kent Co.
F. C. Crewe, Merlin, Kent Co.
J. A. Bunning, Cedar Springs
D. L. Goodison, Cedar Springs
A. Boyd, Cedar Springs
S. E. Burk, Cedar Springs
Xorman Lamarsh, Cedar

Springs
Wm. Dawson, Blenheim
Gebina Ramsden, Cedar

Springs
Andrew Pardo, Cedar Springs
Roy Bowden, Cedar Springs
Clinton Bowden, Ce-dar
Springs

Geo. Bowden, Cedar Springs
H. J. Birkford, Cedar Springs
E.

jFagan, Cedar Springs
M.*Shaw, Cedar Springs
John Curtis, Cedar Springs
Reginald R. Keiver, Cedar

Springs
Willie Keiver, Cedar Springs
Robert Goodison, Cedar

Springs
Aaron Main, Cedar Springs
S. Vansickle, Wheatley
D. Smith, Wheatley
Milton Crewe, Wheatley
Floyd Hopper, Wheatly
Harry Cobby, Wheatley
John Cobby, Wheatley
M. Baldwin, Merlin
F. P. Baldwin, 'Merlin
A. N. Baldwin, -Merlin
Nicholas Baldwin, Merlin
L. H. Kennedy, Blenheim
Ernest Hardy, Blenheim
C. B. Toll, Blenheim
George Allan, Blind River
A. M. Spears, Blind River
Robert Gray, Blind River
A. M. Rogue, Blind River
R. P. Scott, Blind River
Geo. H. Christilaw, Blind
River

R. J. ilnkster, Blind River
Fred Thurmpson, Blind River
W. H. McGauley, Blind River
James Baxter, Blind River
S. G. F. Bundict, Blind River
Dan Campbell, Blind River
D. McDonald, ,Blind River
J. B. Ohernier, Blind River
J. Binett, Blind River
Thorn J Blind River
W. Brathwaite, Blind River
W. J. Keen, Jr., Blind River
J. Lajoe, Blind River
W. White, Blind River
F. Sullivan, BiMnd River
P. Lessee, Blind River
D. Sheehan, Blind River
Edward Monk, Meldrum Bay
Clifford Langman, Meldrum
Bay

G. W. Bromley, [Meldrum
Bar

D. Murray, .Meldrum Bay
James Pelton, Meldrum Bay
J- W.- Granville, Meldrum
Bay

Bd. Morrison, Meldrum Bay
Charlie McDonald, Meldrum
Bay

Josephy iMillman, Meldrum
Bay

Frank Cockw/ill, Meldrum
Bay

Chas. Joyce, Meldrum Bay
Dan Sullivan, Meldrum Bay
John Murray, Meldrum Bay
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W. C. Steele, Meldrum Bay Donald MacKenzie, Little Marchal Louis, Beseronto
P. Sullivan, Meldram Bay Current Frank Lambert, North Port
S. P. Woods, iMeldrum Bay William Vanzant, Little Cur- Robert Cousins, Borland
Fred S. James, Meldrum Bay rent Russell Cousins, Borland
A. M. Gareau, Meldrum Bay John Hasiie, Sheguindah Fred Gallagher, Borland
W. J. Kurr, Blind River John Mark Turner, Sheguin- Wm. Gallagher, Borland
J. Lajoie, Blind River dah Leonard Bufor, Borland
Archie Baxter, Blind River Argill Hastie, Sheguindah Stephen Hart, Borland
E. Lnouette, Blind River Wm. Love, Killarney Adam Parks, Borland
Bavid Rainville, Blind River Louis Rogue, Killarney Wilford) LaRue, Belleville

Jno. A. Hawkins, Blind River Cttiarles Low1

, iKIHHarney Samuel LaRue, Belleville

Wm. B. F. King, (Blind River Cecil Low, Killarney Wilford LaRue, Belleville

J. B Faulkner, Blind River Wm. Low, J'r., Killarney William LaRue, Belleville

J. A. Menard, Blind River Thomas Bateman, Killarney Carl B. Kisir, Belleville

P. C. McCalie, Blind River Alf. Rogue, Killarney Bavid Peaples, Belleville

J. E. Trahan, Blind River John iSolomon, Killarney Ghis. Hall, Belleville

J. C. iMcArthur, Blind River Patrick Egan, Killarney Jack Kizer, Belleville

A. C. Lewis, Blind River Geo. Beauvais, Killarney Wm. Connor, Belleville

J. A. Pyson, Blind River George J. Pitneid, Killarney B. Kiser, Belleville

Lome Burke, 'Blind River Wm. Solomon, Killarney w. Weymiark, Belleville

Geo. Boville, Blind River Joseph W. Solomon, Killarney Geio. Weymark, Belleville

Fred Lip-lady, Blind River Thomas Tyson, Killarney Wesley Fox, Belleville

Eli Taylor, Blind River William Beaucage, Killarney Edward Little, Belleville

R. J. Timmermans, Blind Charles Lo>w|, Killarney Frank iMacBonald, Point Anne
River Alex. Rogue, Killarney Geo. C. MacBonald, Point

A. G. Lizoth, Blind River Chas. Rogue, Killarney Anne
Keetch Bros., Blind River Frank Rogue, Killarney J. MacBonald, Point Anne
F. B. Pepin, Blind River Louie Lamorandiere, Kl'l- James Kelly, Point Anne
Mr. Pepin, Blind River larney Manson fMateBonafrd, Point

O. H Hewitt, Blind River Banijal Rogue, flCill'arney Anne
Will Hutt, Picton E'ddie Rogue, Killarney Robert ;MkcBonakl, Plo.itnt

C. Furby, Cherry Valley Joe G. Solomon, Killarney Anne
B. E. Bunham,, Cherry Valley A. Purvis, Buck Island Clarance 'MacBonald, Point

E. B. Scott, Woodrous Ken McBonald, Buck Island Anne
Geo. W. Bangard, South Bay Angus McLeod, Buck Island Norman MaciBonaildl, Point
Edward Stark, South Bay Oscar Young, Gore Bay Anne
Allan Jarviss, Milford, R.R. 2 H. E. Purvis, Cockburn Island A. C. Alyea, Rossmore
Robt. Cousins, Borland James Young, Gore Bay Raymond Belwak, Rossmiore
V. Young, Picton W. A.Young, Gore Bay s. Alyea, Rossmore
Leonard McGibbon Cherry J. Gareau, Buck Island Charles Thompson, Rossmore

Valley A. Ourrie, Gore Bay Claude Thompson, Rossmore
Hugh McWilliam, Picton George A. Thlorbnrn, Gore Bavid Betoaip, Rossmore
E. Cooper, Picton Bay W. R. Belnap, Rossmore
H. B. Huff, Picton R. R. Merrylus, Gore Bay C. Losee, Rossmore
Wilfred Lowe, Killarney John II. iMerrylus, Gore Bay C. Reddick, Rossmore
A. J. Lowe, Killarney Gtts Nelson, Gore Bay John R Scott, Rossmore
John Lowe, Killarney Frank McCracken,

'

Buck iM. Belnap, Rossmore
Reginald Lowe, Killarney Island Ray Belnap, Rossmore
Stanley Pitfield, Killarney Peter Laurance, Cockburn Frank Belnap, Rossmore
Vincent Rogue, Killarney Island Baniel Belnap, Rossmore
C. Savard, Killarney Hajnry Ridigen, Buck Island Edward Belnap, Rossmore
Capt. Joe Rogue, Killarney Thos. G. Mewain, Beseronto T. W. Belnap, Rossimore
Michell Bernerd, Killarney M. Bowen, Beseronto L. MaeBonald, Point Anne
Joseph Lamorandiere, Killar- Sam. Putman, Beserontlo Arohie Goyer, Belleville

ney Harold Sherman, Shermans Nap. Goyer, Belleville

N. Trotter, Little Current Point Wesley Kizer, Belleville
H. Roszel, Little Currant 'Isaiah hermiain, f5hermiais Frank Cousins, Belleville
Wm. Wardrop, Little Cur- Point Marohol Genow, Belleville

rent Geo. Bavey, Napanee Harry Gerow Belleville
Louis Lapointe, Little Current F. J. Cummings, Beseronto Wesley Gerow, Belleville

Tom Boytor, Little Current M. Keetch, Beseronto John Peoples, Belleville
James J Noble, Little Current W. A. Johns, Beseronto E. N. Bartlett, Low Bush
Thos. J. Noble, Little Cur- M. H. Martin, North Fedburg Earl E. Bartlett, Low Bush

rent H. W. GaJlagiher, Borland Ray. A. Bartlett, Low Bush
Robert Boyter, Little Current W. Cousins, Borland Norman E, B'artlett, Low
Emerson Boyter, Little Cur- R H. Keetch, Napanee No. 3 Bush

rent M. Kimmetrlyv Beseronto Corey Bros., Port Credit
Thos. Smith, Little Current Norman Louis, Beseronto P. G. J. Corey, Port Credit
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Henry R. Fowler, Port Credit J. A. Vail, Balaclava J. Mossifp, Port Maitland
Louis Joyce, Port Credit D. Vail, Balaclava Roy Moss, Port Maitland
W. H. Johnston, Port Credit W. F. Edmontistone, Bala- Geo. Jones, Port Maitland
John King, Sr., Thessalon ciliava Geo. Grant, Port .Maitland

John Treadeau, Thessalon John Lourie, Balaclava John Siddall, Port Maitland
A. Treadeau, Thessalon W. M. L. Moutton, Balaclava D. Jones, Port Maitland
Lawrence Lesage, Thessalon John Moutton, Balaclava Wm. Ardtney, Port Maitland
Paul Lesa'ge, Thessalon James B. Moutton, Balaclava Frank King, Thessalon
B. Buck, Thessalon J. R, McReynolds, Owen Alfred P. Leclair, Thessalon
George King, Thessalon Sound Win. Buroh, Jr., Thessalon
H. Bellerose, Thessalon Joe Beltlerose, Thessalon Edward King, Thessalon
James Basch, Tftiessalon David King, Thessalon Harry B'urdh, Thessalon
Dan McKay, Thessailon Thos. Bellerose, Thessalon Wm. Libo, Thessalon
Geo. Fleron, Thessalon Chas. King, Tfhessallon Frank" Libo, Thessalon
Thomas LeClair, Thessalon Stephen King, Thessialon L. Provencher, Thessialon
J. T. Yo,ung, Manitowaning Frank Lesage, Thessalon EL D. Beneteou, Thessalon
Wm. Chapman, Manitowaning Henny Ttreadieau, Thessalon Joe Libo, Thessalon
Seth Chapmjan, Manitowaning R. H. Thibault, Thessalon David Belilerose, Thessaloo
H. Ohapptnan, Manitowaning Wallace King, Thessalon Richard Beillerose, Thessalon
Donald Wttiite, Lake Ontario Fred Perkins, Burlington Ross Dorland, Bironte

Robert Parks, Lake Ontario F. Dorland, Bronte Clhas. Osborae, Bironte
Fred E. Thorigal, Lake On- W. E. Gillian, Bronte R. V. Joyce, Bronte

tario John Hinton, Jr., Bironte Robt. Joyce, Bronte
Robert Colver, Lake Ontario A. E. Pickard, Bronte H. A. Joyce, Bronte
Wm. J. Thorigal, Lake On- E. Hinton, Bronte Sam Perkin, Burlington

tario John Beflyea, Bronte E. Belyea, Burlington
Hugh Begg, Lake Ontario E. Belyea, Bronte Sam Joyce, Bronte
Thomas D. Smith, Lake On- Leslie Pickard, Bronte B. Belyea, Bironte

tario E. Pickard, Bronte Fred Belyea, Bronte
Murray Wililard, Lake Ontario Biro^c jMciAu^ay, .Southamjl- Clifford Carpenter, Bronte
S. R. Lewis, Lake Ontario ton, Ont. Wm. Joyce, Bronte
R. Milligan, Lake Ontario Angus MicLeod, Southampton E. Joyce, Bronte
Bert Smiith, Lake Ontario Donald iMoLeod, ,Sioutha|mp- J. Dorland, Bronte
Thomas Smith, Lake Ontario ton Edward Martin, Port Mait-
R. Smith, Lan:e Ontario M. McAulay, Southampton land
V. Howard, Lake Ontario M. Mclver, Southampton E. W. Martin, Port Maitlani
Nelson Instant, Lake On- B. Webster, Southampton Henry Crosby, Port Maitland

tario A. F. Bowman, Southampton Colon King, 'Port Maitland
Joihn Brown, Lake Ontario Harry Longe, Southampton Fred Britzler, Port Maitland
S. J. W. Brown, Lake Ontario Matheson, Southampton Ed. Harris, Port Maitland
W. Geo. Brown, Lake On- W. B. McLean, Southampton Art Dougher, Port Maitland

tario A. Granvililie, Southampton Chias. Crosby, Port Maitland
F. G. Colver, Bath, Ont. Peter Longe, Southampton J. Aiken, Port Maitland
W. J. White, Blind River W. Jackson, Southampton M. Jenkinson, PorT Maitlland
F. Sullivan, Blind River Duncan McLeod, Southampton E. Moyer, Port Maitland
George Longe, Southampton John McLeod, Southampton J. H. Jones, Port Maitland

Macaulay, Southampton George CVfcLeod, So-U'thanrpton Walter Ray, Port Maitland
Tm. Baker, Southampton M. Matheson, Southampton Oampbell Long, Wheatley
Jfred Diamand, GofrdenviWe Malin Matheson, Southiamp- Geo. D. Smith, Wheatley

E. R. Chase, Gordenville ton W. R. Orewe, Whelatley
A. J. Chase, Gordenville F. McLennan, Southampton White and Dobbyn, Wheatley
Henry Nelson, Gordenville John Maeaulav, Southampton L. Dawson, Wheatley
A. Young. Gordenville Geo. S. Macaulay, Southamp- E. Omistead, Wheatley
George Shewman, Brighton ton Omstead and Getty, Wheatley
M. Young. Gordenville J-amies Henrv, Southampton John J. Vizzard, Wheatley
Jaa. Quackenbusih, Carrying WiWiaim LOgie, Southampton J. W. Liddle, Wheatley

Plaice Edward Longe, Southampton J. Fitznatrick, Wheatley
B. E. Shewman. Carrying John Do'bslon, 'Stoutlhampton F. B. Hodson, Wheatley
Place Joseph Granville, Southamp- Elarl Metcalfe, Wheatley

L. J. Younff, Carrying Place ton D. Derbyshire, Wheatley
Ben Conner, Gordenville Wm. Longe, Southampton S. Derbvsliire, Wheatlev
W. MicPevnoT^s. Balaclava Wm. Dous:las. Port Maitland D. Campbell and Sons, Wheat-
H. M. Vail, Silcote Mait McKeown, ^ort 'Mkit- ley
T,. G. McRevnolds. Balaclava land M. Campbell, Wheatley
T. F. McRevnoldp, Balaclava A. J. Moss, Port Maitland H. Derbyshire and Son.
R. Edmonstone. Balaclava Geo. MOF-. Port Maitland Wheatlev

T. F^monstone. "RalaclavR G^oree Dorrell, Port Mait- J. W. Bailey, Whpatlev
W. Edmonstone, Balaclava land E. N, McLean, Wheatley
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.E. (McLean, Wheatley
Hugh C. CampbeH Wheatley
Ohas. Hyatt, Wheatley
E. Pinch, Wheatley
G. Ferman, Wheatley
W. B. Clarke, Gordenville
H. Young, Gordenville
D. Jones, Gordenville
Thos. Joyce, Bronte
Watson Bray, Bronte
John Joyce/ Bronte
John Pollock, Bronte
J. P. Joyce, Bronte
Freeman Bray, Bronte
Warren Joyce, Bronte
R. A. Joyce, Bronte
J.S. McDonald, Oakville
L. .Sargiant, Bronte
J. H. Glllem, Oakvi'lle
O. A. Joyce, Bronte
A. N. McDonald, Bronte
W. B. Thomas, Bronte
J. Hinton, Bronte
A. G. McDonald, Bronte
W. L. MacDonald, Bronte
H. Carpenter, Bronte

Percy Carpenter, Bronte
Wm, Carpenter, Bronte
J. Bray, Bronte
M. Dorland, Bronte
M. R. Joyce, Bront
Ernest Thomas, Bronte
John McKee, Port Maitland
Wm. Thompson, Port Mlait-
land

John Percy Siddall, Port
Maitland

E. G. Moyer, Port Maitland
C. Ross, Port Maitland
George Little, Port Maitland
Chas. Cruimfb, Port Maitland
Frank Ross, Port Maitliand
Ben Crumb, Port Maitland
James Hall, Port Maitland
H. A. Thomas, Port Maitland
J. H. Shlibley, Bath, Ont.
G. N. Willard, SteMa, Ont.
H. Willard, Stella
John Morrow, Stella
O. Lacril, Bath
N. Instant. "Emerald
Alfred Wildard, (Stella

J. Smith, Stella

Thomas Smitih, Stella
Bert O. Simith, SteUla
William Raker, Stella
Wild Bdaubien, Stella
J. M. Bcaubien, Stella
Caleb Tnsrwelll, Stella

Arthur Tugwell, Stella

Robert Rliokey, MiMhaven
Amos Bamrage, Bath
Thomas Denee. Emerald
John Denne. Emerald
A. Lumilv, Brighton
Alfred FWmn>le, Brighton
George Cowoll. Brighton
Ross Cowell, Brighton

Arthur Cooper, Gordenville

Wim. .Slimiple, Brighton
Sherman Cooper, Gordenville

Harry Quick, Brighton
W. A. Quick, Brighton
Joiin Simple, Brighton
H. L. (Davern, Brighton
W. Palmer, Brighton
E. A. lOowell, Brighten
A. E. M. Lovett, Willes Bay
Ernest Bionter, Gordenville
Fred Cooper, Gordenville
J. Rupert Bonter, Gordenville
W. T. 'Clark, GoTdenvile
G. N. Clark, Gordenvile
W. C. Macdonald, Point Anne
M. Macdonald, Point Anne
Geo. Julien, Port Dalhousiie

Murphy and Sons, Port Dal-
housde

William Howe, Port Dalhousie
Stephen Ahetrn, Port Dal-

ihoutsie

F. Scott, Port Dalhousie
Jon Burnet, Port Dalihousie
Wni. Hand, Port Dalhousie
G. Hand,, Port Dalhousie
Joseph Hodgins, Port Dal-
housie

Geo. EUliott, Jr., Port Dal-
housie

Ray Hand, Pott Dalhousie
W. Hand, Port Dalhousie
James iSeburn, Port Dalhousie
Ohas. iSeburn, Port Dalhousie
James Dolg, Port Dalhousie
Alfred Wisaner, Port Dal-
housie

Thos. E. Lewtfs, Port Dal-
housie

C. B. Thomas, Port Dalhousie
John Bowater, St. Catherines
H. H. Misner, Port Dover
W. F. Kolbe and Co., Port
Dover

A. Hoover and Son, Nanti-

coke, Ont.
John A. MacAulay, Port Dover
Wm. Kolbe, Port Dover
M. Thompson, Port Dover
Alfred Schubert, Port Dover
Roy J. Grabell, Port Dover
J. O. Robinson, Port Dover
R. Davison, Port Dover
D. MacDonald, Port Dover
Thos. H. Low, Port Dover
Port Doveir Fish Co., Port
Dover

P. C. Robinson, Port Dover
C. W. Barwell, Port Dover
J. J. Thompson, Port Dover
Wm. H. Tuckett, Bath, Ont.
John MdGinnis, CoHingwood
Isaac Vankoughnet, ColMng-
wood

Frederic Clark. CoHingwood
J. Harrison, CoHingwood
Robert Bishop, Collingwiood

Herbert Burnside, Colling-
twood

Os.car B'Uirnside, CoHingwood
Ernie Bdsihpp, Collingwiood
Ralph Clark, CoHingwood
Thos. Nicoll, CoHingwood
Hugh Stalker, CoHingwood
W. Chambers, Collingwood
T. iMcFarlian, Collingwood
Geo. Simmons, New Liskeard

Josieph Green, New Liskeard
Pete Simmons, New Liskeard
Ohas. B. Prue, Haileybury
W. Levi, Haileybury
J. P. Morgan, Haileybury
W. J. McLean, Haileybury
Thomas Montgomery, Hailey-
bury

R. P. Green, South Bay
Mouth

Robert Sisson, South Bay
Mouth

Wm. Gelston, South Bay
Mouth

A. M. Chisluolm, South Bay
MOuth

E. W. Chisiholm, South Bay
Mouth

Henry Burnett, South Bay
Mouth

V. C. Wllman, South Bay
Mouth

Robert Morrison, iSouth Bay
Mouth

Robert Saunders, South Bay
Mouth

Isaac Hopkins, South Bay
Mouth

J. Ritohie, South Bay Mouth
Wim. Ritdhie, South Bay
Mouth

Fred Harding, South Bay
Mouth

Bverrett Sanders, South Bay
/Mouth

J'aimes Macdonald, Point Anne
R. Howard, Point Anne
W. J. Howard, Point Anne
E. R. Batman, Kincardine
John McGaw, ST., Kincardine
Arthur Hlall, Kincardine
Thomas McGaw, Kincardine
Whn. Hall, Kincardine
O. Westel, Kincardine
Thomas MoGaw, Jr., Kincar-

dine
Dan Martyn, Kincardine
John Smith, Kincardine
Hugh Canupbell, Port Whitby
John Campbell, Part Whitby
Edmund Golding, Port Whitby
F, Golding, Port Wtoitbv
W. J. Stevens, Port Whitby
J. P. Stephens, Port Whitby
H. E. Ross, Bnuce Mines
John Grisewood, Bruce Mines
Albert Thibault, Bruce Mines
Wm. Pelmberton, Bruce Mines
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Angus iMcNeish, Bruce Mines
John D. King, Bruce Mines
John J. King, Bruce Mines
Alex. King, Bruoe Mines
Ralph Clark, Jr., Collingwood
JVf. L. Jackman, Ooillingwiood
C. IS. "Wright, Collingwaod
Thomas Drefw, /Gdllingwdod
.Steve Burnside, Collingwood
Dave 'Malcolm, Collingwoc}d
R. G. Niooll, Collingwood
S. Y. Chapman, Collingwood
Ail ex. Clark, Collingwood
Win. Taggitt, CoUlingwood
E. Vankonglmet, Collingwood
Li. iMcArthur, Oollingwood
J. A. Thompson, Collingwood
R. H. Clark, Collingwood
Percy Lavers, Collingwood
L/ouis Miohano, Heron Bay
Henry Eohern, Dongulac
Robert iMichano, Heron Bay
Peter Moses, Heron Bay
Frank Bananash, Heron Bay
Joseph Bananash, Heron Bay
Joe Ernest Bananash, Heron
Bay

Louis Moses, Heron Bay
Antoine Moses, Heron Bay
Philip Bananash, Heron Bay
Donald S. iMdnnes, Meaford
M. Pillgrem, Meaford
Alex. Kennedy, Meaford
Harry Kennedy, Meaford
Edgar Kennedy, Meaford
Wm. Pillgrem, Meaford
E. Perks, Meaford
Jack Perks, iMeaford
W. H. Brown, Meaford
Wm. Hose, iMeaford
F. Noon, iMeaford
D. Mclnnes, Meaford
Jack Kennedy, Meaford
Arch Kennedy, Meaford
Edward Hand, Grimisby
James Hand, G-riimsby
Philip Hand, Grimsiby
Frank Hand, Grimsby
Joseph HandT Grimsby
John Hand, Grimsby
C. W. Stephenson, Pickering
Harbour

Thos. G. Mansfield, Pickering

Harbour
Wm. O'Brien, Pickering
Harbour

John O'Brien, Pickering
Harbour

Riobert iSaunlders, Kincardine
Colin Graham, Kincardine
John iMoGaw, Jr., Kincardine
G. A. McGaw, Kincardine
Wjm. D. Bates, Rlidigetown,

Out.
W. P. Conway, iScudder, Ont.
Albert Downing, Morpeth,

Ont.
W. Campbell, Ridgetown,

Ont.

Angus Mtunn, Morpeth, Ont.
331

Wm. Watson, Morpeth, Ont.
R.R. No. 4

John DeClute, Morpeth Ont.

R, R. No.
Jlam.es iMdMlister, Morpeth,
R.R. No. 1

Percy Basrow, iMorpeth, Ont.

Daniel Bakey, Morpeth, Ont.
Frank Rose, Morpeth, Ont.

Arthur Turnbull, Morpeth,
Ont.

C. .Shiffey, MOrpoth, Ont.

T. Hall, 'Morpeth, Ont.
Geo. Smitih, Morpeth, Ont.

Thomas M<core, Maiden Town-
ship

Attex. (Moore, Maiden Town-
ship

James Moore, Sr., Maiden
Township

F. Dewey, Maiden Township
H. Gignac, Anderdon
E. Rene, Parwidh, West
J. iRene, Sand'wicili West
A. Dufour, Sandwich West
Riobert Dufofcir, Sandwich
West

Albert Meloche, Fighting
Isiland

Alex. (Meloohe, Sandwich
West

Thomas Dufour, Sandwich
West

Jos. Me'loohe, Sandwich West
Francois Rocheletaii, S'and-

wicdi West
Thos. A. S'kinner, .Sandwich
West

A. Robert, Maiden Rd.
A. Brunet, Sandwich West
Ed. Manard, Sandiwich West
C. (MJeloclhe, Andexdon
R. Melodhe, Anderdon
Andrew Sutheoiand, Ross
Port

Steve Paulmart, Ross Port
J. J. iSutherland, Ross Port
J. Paulni'ert, Ross Port
Fred Gerow, Ros Port
George Genow, Ross Port
Jim Gerow, Rloos Port
A. Bruley, Ross Port
Mrs. E. Bruley, Ross Port
Albert Bruley, Ross Port
Chas. Gerow, Ross Port
F. F. Dampier, Ross Port
Cihlarles Dampier, Ross Port
Oscar Anderson, Ross Port
E. Anderson, Ross Port
John Bain, Rosis Port
S. Thrower, Ross Port
A. B. Sutherland, Ross Port
I. LeSarge, Ross Port
F. Solomon, Ross Port
W. Legault, Ross Port
A. McLeod, Ross Port
P. Perron, Ross Port
Joe King, Ross Port
Harry Bain, Rosis Port
>M. M. Sutherland, Ross Port
Wm. Megg, Ross Port
Nipegon Bay Fish Co., Ross
Port

Frank NicoHl, Port Caldwell
Fred NicoM, Port Caldwell
J. F. Blondin, Port Caldwell
E. A. Otis, Port Oaldwell
Michel Goodichild, Heron Bay
Bert Jolinson, Port Caldwell
John Nicofll, Port Caldwell
Thomas T-wance, Heron Bay
M. Waboosian, Heron Bay
Louison Desononlin, Heron
Bay

A. Desmionlin, Heron Bay
Peter Desmonlin, Heron Bay
Alion Desmsonlin, Heron Bay
Geo. Michano, Heron Bay
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EXHIBITS "
A,

"
to

" D *

DEPARTMENT OF TFEE TREASURER OF OXTAIMO

OFFICE OF THE MINISTER

TORONTO, MAY ITH, 1920.

DEAR SIRS: re Timber Investigation.

The Government will include in the Further Supplementary Estimate- vote

of $10,OOOi, to pay the Expenses of the Com/mission, I will send you a cheque
for $10,000 immediately after the 'Supply Bill has received the consent of the

Lieutenant-Governor, which will possibly be in two or three weeks. I is the

meantime you can use this letter for the purpose of procuring an advance t<>

enable ^011 to pay the expenses.

Yours truly,

(Sgd ) P. SMITH,
Provincial Treasurer.

MESSRS. HARDING & HANLEY,
ROYAL BANK BUILDING,

TORONTO, OXT.,

TIMBER INVESTIGATION
J. M. McEvoY.

Services (26 days @ $70 per day) $1,820.00

(43 days @ $40 per day) 1,720.00

$3,540.00

Disbursements 700.00 $4,2iO.OO
T. E. LAWLESS.

Services (May 31st) $1,400.00

(June 28th) 575.00

$1,975.00

Disbursements (May 31st) 107.60

(June 28th) 22.05

2,104.65

FREDERICK MowAT.

Services (Sept. 3rd) 3.00

ELLIOTT, IVEY & IVEY.

Fees (Sept. 2nd) 1.25

Disbursements (Sept. 2nd) 11.20

JOHN SALE

Fees (Oct. 4th) 2.00

Disbursements (Sept. 30th) 20.20



GeoGeorge V. APPENDIX No. 2. 455

22.20

THEODORE ELLIS

Witness, conduct money (Sept. 23rd) 110.16

L. E. BLISS

Witness, conduct money (Sept. 23rd) 27.45

FRANK R. WESTON

Witness, conduct money (iSept. 16th) 60.00

MR. JUSTICE RIDDELL
On account of Fees (July 2nd) $2,000.00
Disbursements (June 25) 7.00

(Sept. 15th) 129.77

(Oct. 23rd 36.40

$173.17

2,173.17

Mu. JUSTICE LATCHFORD
On account of Fees (July 2nd) 2,000.00

Disbursements (July 25th) 45.30

(Sept. 15th) 37.85

$83.15

$2,0<83.15

A.. E. NASH
Services (Sept. llth) 192.00

FXITED TYPEWRITER Co., LTD.

Rental (Sept. 2 ; Nov. 7 & 15) 31.00

Services (May 28th) 20.95

Eepair (June 28th) 45

52.40

MIGHT DIRECTORIES -LTD.

Services (Mar. 30; May 28; Aug. 28;

Nov. 11) 23.90

STANLEY MEEKING
Services ('Sept. 20th) 125.00

MURPHY, FISHER & SHERWOOD
Fees (Aug. 12th) 5.00

Witness, Conduct money 20.00

Disbursements .95

25.95

D. O. BOYD
Services (May 20th) 66.25

SAM DEVLIN

Witness, conduct money (June 10th) 26.70

EMPLOYERS DETECTIVE AGENCY, LTD.

Services (May 25th) 103.95

F. J. NlVEN
Services (July 12th. Oct. 29th) 300.00

XEWSOME & GILBERT, LTD.

Supplies (Oct. llth) (May 7 & 25) 28.25
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D. TlERNEY

Witness, conduct money (July 3rd) 72.10

ALBERT TOWXSEND AUTO LIVERY & GARAGE
Taxi service (June 1st) 6.50

ALEX. THOMPSON, SHERRIFE;

Services (June 7-22; Oct. 9th) 45.00

Disbursements (June 9-12) 4.00 49.0O

ARTHUR OLAVET, CONSTABLE
Services (June 7-22) 20.00

W. B. STRETTOX, CONSTABLE
Services (Oct. 9th) 2.50

PRINCE ARTHUR HOTEL, PORT ARTHUR
Disbursements (Bill of June 12th) 608.05

Disbursements (Bill of Oct. 9th) 68.65 6T6.70

Miss E. M. HALTER
Services (May 27th) 32.25

R. FRIAR

Witness disbursements (May 15th) 47.10

Conduct money (4 days) 00.00

107.10
NICKEL RANGE HOTEL, SUDBURY.

Disbursements (Bill of May 14th) 512.65
GRAND & TOY

Supplies (Apr. 7th) 1.10
\V. J. LETHBRIDGE

Services (May 28th) 840.00
'Services (Aug. 21st) 60.00

900.00

Disbursements (May 28; Aug. 21) 244.65 1,144.65

D. SMITH
'Services (July 17; Aug. 28; Oct. 5) 570.00

Disbursements (July 17; Aug. 8) 121.39

691.3f>

FRANK TUCKER

Witness, conduct money (July 16th) 9.00

Disbursements (July 10 & 13) 92.95

101.95

GEORGE FISHER

Disguraemente (May 15; Sept. 19; Oct. 9 376.85

D. J. GILLON
Services (Oct. 14th) 5.00

PETER WHITE, K. C.

On account of Fees (Nov. 4th) 2,500.00

F. E. TITUS

Fees (Nov. 5th) 200.00

MCLAUGHLIN, FULTON, STINSON & ANDERSON

Fees (Oct. 29th) 6.00
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Disbursements (Sept. 13th) 6.15

12.16

E. H. TELFER
Disbursements (Oct. 7-15) 65.82

FRED SOHROEDER
Service (a / c May 28th, 3 days) 18.00

Disbursements (a / c May 28th) 44.10

62.10

A. D. MEEKING
Services (Oct. 14th) 15.00

H. D. GILLARD

Services (Oct. 14th) 10.50
C. H. S. COOKE

Semces (Oct. 29th) 285.00

Disbursements (Sept, 29 to Oct. 15) 84.70

369.70

V. D. HARBINSOX
Services (June 28; Sept. 11; Oct. 23) 4,560-.00

Services, L. G. Price, Aisst.

(June 28; Sept. 11) 1,395.0O
Disbursements (June 27; Sept. 11; Oct. 20) 1,297.50

W. A. BAKER, Sheriff

Service (June 13th; Oct. 13th) 25.00
HOME BANK OF CANADA

Interest (June 23) f 59.44

(Aug. 31)

'

211.73

271.17
J. D. KINGSTON

Services (3 days, Sept. 20 a/ c) 15.00

Disbursements (a / c Sept. 20th) 59.06

74.%
QUEEN'S HOTEL, Toronto.

Disbursements (Bill of Oct. 2nd) 46.20
H. H. FLESHER

Services (Nov. 6th) 10.00
Disbursements (Nov. 6th) 46.10

56.10

JAMES FLESHER
Services (Nov. 6th) 10.00

Disbursements (Nov. 6th) 46.10

56.10

R. J. BYRES

Services (Nov. 6th) 10.00

Disbursements (Nov. 6th) 46.10

56.10

C. T. ROTHERA
Services (Nov. 6th) 10.00

Disbursements (Nov. 6th) 52.10
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'

'

62.10

J. O'DRISCOLL

Services (Nov. 6th) 10.00

Disbursements (Nov. 6th) 55.10

65.10

W. F. TRIVETT et al

Services (May 20th) 13.00

Disbursements (May 20th) 1.05

14.05

JNO. B. COOK et al

Services (May 20th) 39.00

Disbursements (May 20th) 2.50

. 41.50

A. H. O'NEIL

Disbursements (May 19th) . ; 6.05

Miss I. M. GEROW
Services (March 9th to Nov. 6th) on a/c. .. 845.00

JOHN BRADY
Witness. conduct money (Sept. 1) 5.00

disbursements (Sept. 1) return fare

Maynooth to Toronto 12.30

17.30

NORMAN MCRIMMONS
Witness. 'conduct money (Sept. 2) lO.O'O

disbursements (Sept. 2) 22.50

38.0-5

JOHN MclNTOsH
Witness. conductmoney (Sept. 2) 10.0*0

disbursements (Sept. 2) 13.20

23.20

HOME BANK OF CANADA

Stationery. cheque book (Mar. 17) 4.25

R. T. HARDING
On account of Fees as counsel (Aug. 7) 2,000.00

DR. JOHN CARRUTHERS
Disbursements (May 4th a/c) 175.30

TRANSPORTATION R. T Harding & Party
Disbursements (May 4th to October 18th) . . 1,957.50

R. T. HARDING
Disbursements (March 2nd to Nov. 7th) per

voucher 1,005.88
W. J. HANLEY (Harding & Hanley)

Disbursements (Aug. 20th to Sept. 7th) 292.80

REMINGTON TYPEWRITER Co.

Services (May 27th) 12.00

THE AVENUE HOTEL, Fort William

Disbursements (Bill of June 2nd, 1920) 46.65

LAUNDRY
Disbursements (June 6; Jnue 8; June 16;

June 21) 4.00

33,265.05
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PORT ARTHUR DAILY NEWS, LTD.

Supplies (June 7th) 2.76

THE BEX HOTEL, International Falls, Minn.

Disbursements (Bill of June 18 . . .$383.17)

(BiM of Oct. 13 ... 198.95)

582.12

S. BKOWN
Disbursements (June 22nd) 2..00

CANADIAN EXPRESS Co.

Disbursements July 19th $.90)

(Sept. 13th 50)

1.40

CANADIAN NORTHERN EXPRESS Co.

Disbursements (Aug. 10th) 1.71

DOMINION EXPRESS Co.

Disbursements June 23rd $15.45

July 19th 60

Aug. 18th 60

16.65

PRINCE ARTHUR HOTEL, PORT ARTHUR
Disbursements Bill of June 23rd 298.20

RICE LEWIS & SON

Supplies (July 18th) 1.57

BELL TELEPHONE Co.

Disbursements Bill of Sept. 7th .60

Bill of Oct. 1st 4.35 4.95

THE QUEEN'S HOTEL, TORONTO.
Disbursements .Bill of Sept. 13th 14.35

S. S. DAINARD

Witness, conduct money (June 17th). 30.00

CANADIAN PACIFIC RAILWAY Go's TELEGRAPH
Services Sept 14th 1.96

TOTAL
Forward $34,223.61

TELEGRAPH ACCOUNT
Disbursements (Mar. 11 to Nov. 12) 116.2(fc

UNDRIES (PETTY CASH)
Disbursements (Mar. 11 to Nov. 15) 611.66

$34,951.4?

EXHIBIT 3"C"
TIMBER INVESTIGATION

SECOND RETURNS
(a) D. B. ROCHESTER

Disbursements (Miscellaneous 6,654.33
Disbursements (Wages of Men & Expenses 19,611.05

$26,265.38
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(b) S. A. MARKS
Services (76 days @ $15 per day) 1,140.00

Disbursements (Miscellaneous 925.15

(Wages of men & expenses . . 1,945.45

2,870.60 4,010.60

(c) H. A. 0. MACHIN
Oct. 9 Disbursements, return fare Kenora

Port Arthur and expenses as witness, 1 day . . 35.0-0

(d) GEORGE FISHER

Wages 48 days @ $8 per day 334.00

(e) ALEX McCALLUM

Wages 48 days @ $8 per day 384.00

(f )
BYRNES & BYRNES
Fees May 26th, to Dec. 6th, incl., 1,124.99

Disbursements 217.46
, 1,342.4*5

(g) K. D. CAMPBELL
Disbursements Mar. 12th, to 19th 94.15

(h) PROVINCIAL MOTORS LIVERY

Service Nov. 1st 2.00

(i) CANADIAN PACIFIC RAILWAY Go's TELEGRAPH
Service A/c Dec. 7/20 3.41

(j) B. M. WYLIE

Salary Feb. 13th to Sept. 10th,

176 days @ $5.50 per day 968.00

Disbursements \. . . . . .
,

'. 608.41 1,576.41

$34,097.40

THESSALON, ONT., 28xn JAN.,1919.

H. H. DEWART, ESQ., K. C.,

Toronto.

DEAR SIR:

I have your letter of the 25th inst., and I think your suggestion
a good one. I submitted the material to you because besides being a Liberal

Member of the Legislature, you are a reliable lawyer and could be depended on

putting the case across, if you feel justified in taking it up. Before sending it

to Mr. Bowman use your judgment as to whether you think it of sufficient impor-
tance. What may appear locally as being a scandal may not appear so serious

at a distance. I myself have taken part in celebrations and didn't ifeel that I

owed any apology to any one, but this making fish of one and flesh of another,

by heavily fining one set of individuals for doing what another set can do without

apparently any fear, seem to me worth investigating.
If Mr. Bowman cares to take the matter up Judge Hewson of Gore Bay knows

me personally.

There is also the question of opening up timber limits. The Mississaga
Timber Reserve is back north from here a few townships along the southern

l)oundary are being lumbered but they are about as far away as lumbermen can

profitably take in their supplies.
The question of building a railroad has been taken up with the Government
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who have promised to give it their serious consideration. Without a railroad it is

very questionable whether any lumber concern could profitably operate any further

back in this reserve. It is said that a great deal of the timber is deteriorating and

should be taken out. It is said that the increase in price the Government would

receive from the timber would soon pay for the railroad. This is something the

Opposition should also know something about.

There are also the questions of reforestration and regulation of lumbering

operations so that our timber resources may not become extinct.

There are thousands of acres of cut over limits fit for nothing but growing
another set of timber and it is said that if there were proper regulations restraining
lumbermen from taking the smaller trees a timber limit might be a permanent
institution. Of course I am not presuming that you already are not acquainted
with this, but am just suggesting something Which is of vital importance to this

part of the country.

Yours truly,

F. A. CLEMENT.

COPY
Mr. Harding, Exhibit <D"

HARDING & HANLEY,
Barristers, etc.,

601-602 Royal Bank Building.

TORONTO, MAJJCH 7TH, 1921.

A. E. GRIGG, ESQ.,

Deputy Minister of Lands & Forests,

Parliament Buildings,

Toronto, Ont.

re Timber Investigation Account.
DEAR SIR :

Your letter of the 4th March, enclosing a copy of a letter of the

3rd March from Mr. Brown, Provincial Auditor, and a copy of the list of particu-
lars in reference to the accounts filed. You will understand that the details, that
will be necessary for me to cover all these items, will cover considerable time.
Miss Gerow, who has had charge of the account, will immediately endeavour to

get all the particulars that will be necessary to satisfy the enquiry for each item.

Yours very truly,

(iSgd.) R.'T. HARDING.

COPY
Witness. Conduct money (Sept. 2) 10.00

TORONTO, MARCH 4TH, 1921.

Re Accounts.
DEAR SIR:

As you are aware, there has been received from you at the Depart-
ment to date, accounts amounting to $69,044.82 in connection with the Timber

Investigation.

These accounts have all been submitted to the Auditor for his consideration.

Apparently there are a large number of items about which the Auditor would

require further information, and vouchers, &c., before he will be in a position to

accept them.
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For your information I am enclosing herewith copy of a letter which I have

received from the Auditor in this connection, together with his comments on the

various items, which do not appear to meet the requirements of the Audit Office.

Yours truly,

Deputy Minister.

T. K. HARDING, ESQ.,

MESSES. HARDING & HANLEY,

Eoyal Bank Bldg.,

City.

COPY
TORONTO, .MARCH 3RD, 1921

DEAR SIR,

I am returning to your Department for further information, accounts

in connection with the returns made by Mr. R. T. Harding against his advance

of $50,000.00 re Crown Timber Investigation.

The details of the information required are set out in the attached memoranda.
I might draw your attention to have all accounts for legal services taxed

by the Attorney General's Department, and also where any services, no matter of

what nature, the covering dates, the rate of pay and the nature of service should

be definitely shown.

Payments made to members of your staff for extra services should have been

by direction of the Minister of Lands and Forests or by Order-in^Couneil.

Yours very truly,

G. M. BROWN,
Provi ncial And i tor.

ALBERT GRIGG, ESQ.,

Deputy Minister of Lands & Forests.

COPY
NO. 1.

1. J. M. McEvoY,
Disbsts. $700.00. No vouchers.

2. T. E. LAWLESS,
Disbsts. 129.65. No vouchers or covering dates of services.

6. T. ELLIS,
Disbsts. 110.16. No vouchers.

7. L. E. BLISS,

Disbsts. 27.45. No vouchers.

8. R. F. WESTON,
Disbsts. 60.00. No details or vouchers.

9. HON. JUSTICE RIDDELL,
173.17. No details or vouchers.

$2,000.00. advanced.

10. HON. JUSTICE LATCHFORD,
83.15. No details or vouchers.

2,000.00. advanced.
11. A. E. NASH,

192.00. Covering dates and rate and approval.
14. S. D. MEEKING.

125.00. No covering dates. Extra services.
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16. D. G. BOYD.

66.25. Extra services.

19. F. J. NIVEN.

300.00. No particulars. Extra services.

26. PT. ARTHUR HOTEL.
676.70. Why the charge for laundry, tailor and tobacco? Also

details of bill for Miss Gerow

42.90.

29. NICKLE RANGE HOTEL.

512.65. Why the charge for extra meals, drugs, &c., and payment
to Mr. Hurdman, $20.00.

31. W. J. LETHBRIDGE.

1,144.65. No vouchers for hotel sundries, berths, etc., and covering-
elates for services.

32. D. SMITH.
691.39. No vouchers for expenses.

33. F. TUCKER.
101.95. No vouchers for hotel berths, etc., and conduct money.

36. PETER WHITE.

2,500.00. No voucher, advance only. No measure of service given
under direction of Deputy Attorney General.

37. F. E. TITUS.

200.00. No measure of service given. Extra services.

40'. F. SCHROEDER.

6240. No vouchers or details.

11. S. MEEKING & H. GILLARD.

25.50. 'Covering dates not shown. Extra services.

42. C. H. S COOKE.

369.70. No vouchers for hotel or pullman or details for meals,

tips, etc.

42 %. HARBINSON & ALLAN.
7.252.50. No covering dates or rate shown. Why the charge for

section to Kenora, and no voucher for pullman returning also

covering dates for hotel at Fort Frances.

44. HOME BANK.
271.17. Please explain this charge of interest.

45. J. D. KINGSTON.
74.06. Vouchers for pullman and -covering dates and nature

of services.

16. QUEENS HOTEL.
46.20. Why hotel expenses in Toronto?

47. H. FLESHER.

56.10. No vouchers for pullmans, covering dates and nature
of services.

J. FLESHER.f
56.10. No vouchers for pullmans, covering dates and nature

of services.

R. J. BYERS.

56.10. No vouchers for pullmans, covering dates and nature
of services.
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C. T. ROTHERA
62.10. No vouchers for pullmaiis, covering dates and nature

of services.

J. 0. DRISCOLL.

65.10. No vouchers for pullmans, covering dates and nature

of services.

18. W. F. TRIVETT.

14.05. Covering dates and rate. No vouchers. Extra service.

J. B. COOK.

41.5*0. Covering dates and rate. No vouchers. Extra service.

A. H. O'NEILL.

6.05. Covering dates and rate. No vouchers. Extra service.

49. I. M. GEROW.
845.00. Covering dates and rate and nature of services.

30. J. BRADY.

17.30. No particulars.

51. N. McCRIMMON.
32.50. No particulars.

52. J. M3/NTOSH.
23.20. No particulars.

54. R. T. HARDING.

2,000.00. No particulars.

T>5. DR. J. CROTHERS.

175.30. No returns for advances, made for conduct money.
56. R. T. HARDING AND PARTY.

1957.50. Vouchers missing for pullmans and boat fares and taxis.

57. R. T. HARDING.

1,005.88. Vouchers for hotels and pullmans and other particulars.
58. W. J. HANLEY.

272.80'. No vouchers and no details of conduct money advanced.

61. LAUNDRY.
4.00. Appears to be personal.

63. REX HOTEL.
583.02. Itemized bill required.

68. PRINCE ARTHUR HOTEL.
298.20. Re Messrs. HardingX Smith's, Neild's and Harbinson's

account why the charges for laundry, tailoring, etc., and dates for

Mr. Hording appear to be duplicated.

71. QUEEN'S HOTEL, TORONTO.

14.35. Why this charge for Mr. Harding.
72. S. S. DAINARD.

30.00. No particulars.

M. TELEGRAPH ACCOUNT.

116.29. No copies of telegrams attached.

75. PETTY CASH ACCOUNT.

611.66. No means of checking.

Miscellaneous Expenses of D. B. ROCHESTER.

.May 6th, 8th, Ibth, 16th. . No vouchers for -berths.

May 15th No details of $6.00 for expenses in Toronto.
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21st .............. No details for the charge of eight tickets Ottawa to

Fort Frances.

Mjp,y 8th ............... No details for expenses of $9.10 in Sudbury.

May %2 & 23rd ......... How is the amount of $47.00 for meals arrived at ?

May 27th .............. Meals $29.90. How many and for whom?

May 27th .............. P. Stinson $60'.00. No details.

Aug. 30th .............. J. L. Stinson $710>.00. No details.

Sept. 21st .............. Mahon & Co. $10.75. No voucher.

Sept. 29th .............. Laundry 95 cents. Personal.

Oct. 14th .............. H. . McMahon & Co. $54.75. Why the payment of

$5.00 and $10.00 to Larose and Bryson?
Oct. 15th .............. Berths $5.95. No vouchers.

Oct. 21st ............... Berths $13.40. No vouchers.

Toucher No.

1. 2, 4, 5 ............... On returns., covering dates should be shown for all

services, and in J. 0. Driscoll disbursements, there is

no voucher for the charge for log rule $3.65. C. F.

Rothera's account, no voucher for berth. <S. A. Marks

account, how is the amount of $4,010.6-0 arrived at?

$ ................ ; ..... : BYRNES & BYRNES. Usual vouchers not attached,
date of commencement of services not shown and
account not taxed.

10 .................... B. M. WYLIE. In his disbursements there are n

vouchers, for the hotel charge of $4.00, for conduct

money paid or for stenographer; and why the charge
. for laundry and sundries in the hotel account and how
is the amount $60-8.41 arrived at? WUiy was he

paid from Feb. 13th, to Mar. 9th, the date the com-
mission was appointed.

1 ..................... J. McGuRiN. $446.94.

No voucher for berth and how is the amount for

meals arrived at and covering dates for has services

should be shown.

3 ..................., :̂
L. J. MULLIN. $1,362.60.

Covering dates and nature of services also vouchers

for berths, hotel bills, etc., and particulars of advances
of $30.00 and $518.16 and disbursements of $32.00.

3 to 43, inclusive ....... . Proper pay lists with covering dates and detailed

expense accounts with vouchers.
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REPORT
of the Standing Committee on Privileges

and Elections, 1921, including Minutes,

Evidences and Exhibits.

To Ike Honourable the Legislative Assembly of the Province of Ontario :

The Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections beg leave to report

that pursuant to the Order of this House dated 8th day of March, 1921, they
have investigated certain charges made by H. P. Ashplant, Andrew Hicks, David

James Taylor and R. \V. E. Burnaby and their report in reference to the said

c-harges as follows:

Mr. J. M. Ferguson, K.C., of Toronto was appointed Counsel for the Com-

mittee.

1 . As to what are known as the Ashplant Charges :

The Committee finds the statement attributed to Mr. Ashplant in the votes

and proceedings of the 'House, dated 8th of March, 1921, were made by him as

therein set out. The Committee bases its finding on the evidence of Mayor
Little of London and on the evidence of the following Alderm-eni of the City of

London, namely, Alderman Harley, Alderman Drake, Alderman W. A. Wilson,
Alderman Brighton, A. C. Carty, London Correspondent of The Toronto Globe,

H. H. Penny, Keporter for the London Advertiser.

Mr. Ashplant denied that he intended to convey the impression that any
Member of the Legislature could or might ibe bribed and stated to the Committee

that if his language was capable of that interpretation he desired to withdraw the

.same and to apologize and express sorrow for having made the statement.

Your Committee accepted the withdrawal and the statement of regret and

sorrow from Mr. Ashplant and recommends that no further proceeding be taken with

respect to that matter.

2. As to what are known as the Hicks charges:
Andrew A. Hicks, Momlber of the Legislature, admitted on oath to the

Committee that he had made the statement attributed to him set out in the votes

and proceedings of the House dated 8th of March, 1921. He stated that his

statement was based on a conversation which he had had with Mr. M. C. Fox,
Member of the Legislature for the Riding of South Essex, in which, according
to the recollection of Mr. Hicks, Mr. Fox had stated to him that he could have
had $20,000 if he, Mr. Fox, had switched his attitude upon a certain Measure
known as the Beaches Protection Amendment Act, which came before the Legis-
lature in the Session of 1920.

Mr. Fox gave evidence before the Committee. His position was that he had

not been offered any bribe in connection with the Act in question and that Mr.

Hicks must have misunderstood him,. He testified that he had told Mr. Hicks

that in connection with litigation between the Township of Peflee and certain

individuals who were engaged in the sand sucking business off Pelee Island,

the Township had been offered $50i,000 to drop the action which the Township
had taken to restrain the taking of sandi and gravel from the (bed of Lake Erie

469
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in the vicinity of the Island and that it was this $50,000 offer to the Township
to which he had made reference in his conversation with Mr. Hicks. Mr. Hicks

stated to the Committee that it was quite possible that he had misunderstood

what Mr. Fox had said to him, or that he did not get Mr. Fox's real meaning.
Mr. Hicks stated that he 'knew of no other facts upon which he based his remarks

made in the s/peech at the Picnic at London, June 9th, 1920, and referred to in

the Votes and Proceedings of this House under date of 8th of March, 1921. The

Committee is satisfied after hearing" all the evidence, that the whole incident was

the result of an, honest misunderstanding on the part of Mr. Hicks of words

used by Mr. Fox in the course of a casual conversation.

3 As to what are known as the Taylor Charges:
The particulars of these charges are set out in the Votes and Proceedings of

the House of March 8th, 1920. Mr. D. J. Taylor, a Member of this House for

the Biding of North Grey gave evidence before this Committee that shortly after

he was elected Member of the Legislature, a man whom he did not know, but

who, he said, came from Owen Sound approached him at his home in Wiarton and

told him in effect that if he, Taylor, would use his influence with the Government

to procure a position on The Workmen's Compensation Board for one George
Menzies of Owen Sound, he, Taylor, would be paid $1,000.00. It was upon the

strength of this occurrence that Mr. Taylor made the statements set out in the

Votes and Proceedings of the House above referred to, at a public meeting on

the llth of June, 1920. Mr. Taylor produced and filed as an Exhibit before the

Committee, a letter signed by one William Willcocks, dated at Detroit, Michigan,
March 22nd, 1921, in which the writer of the letter admitted that he was the man
who had approached him at his home in Wiarton and made to him the offer of

$1,000.00. The envelope containing the letter in question bore the Detroit post

mark and if the statement in the letter is true, Willcocks had removed from

Owen Sound and was then residing in Detroit outside the jurisdiction of

Ontario Courts.

Mr. Taylor did not make any effort to have the man Menzies appointed, nor

has he been appointed to any office in the 'gift of the Government.

Your Committee finds, as a fact, upon the evidence submitted to it that the

offer referred to by Mr. Taylor was actually made to him and that it was upOD
the strength of this offer that he made the speech referred to in the Press of

the llth of June, 1920.

4. As to what are known as the Burnaby charges:

This is the matter relating to the statement by Mr. Burnaby at Kettlefoy

reported in the Press under date of June 23rd, 1920. Mr. Burnaby stated to

the Committee that a man, whose name he refused to give, called on him and
offered to give him $1,000.00 a year, as set out in the statement attributed to

Mr. Burnaby in the votes and proceedings of the House dated the 8th of March,
19-21. Mr. Burnaby stated that he refused to give the name of the man who had
made this proposition to him, 'because he feared that he might be subjected to

an action for slander and that as he and the man who made the statement were

the only ones present at the time it was made, he might not be able to successfully
defend himself in any action that might be brought against him. It was pointed
out by the 'Chairman to Mr. Burnaby that any evidence he might give before the

Committee was privileged and that no action could be brought against him by
reason of any statement made by him in connection with the giving of any such
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evidence. Notwithstanding this Mr. Burnaby still refused to give the name
of the individual. The Chairman ruled that he must give it, but upon a vote

of the Committee the ruling of the Chair was not sustained. Mr. Burnaby
also took the position that this Committee had no jurisdiction to investigate the

matters set out in he statement referred to this Committee, contending that it

did not in any way reflect} upon any member of the Legislature. The Committee,

upon advice of its Counsel, ruled that it had no jurisdiction to deal with the

matter. Mr. Burnaby, thereupon, in the public interest, stated that he would

waive the objection wlfich he had taken and would give evidence. Mr. Burnaby
stated that the part of his statement reading as follows :

" But I want to tell

you, Ladies and Gentlemen, that this thing has been going on for years.

Thank God I am not in the Government," was intended to mean that accusa-

tions of bribery had been going on for years, and not that bribery had been

going on for years. He stated that he knew of no instance where a Member
of the Legislature had ever been 'bribed or offered a bribe. Mr. Burnaby
stated that the day before he made his speech in which the statement was made',

he had mentioned to the Attorney General that he might refer to his own bribery

case the following day. Following the appearance of the report of Mr. Burnaby's

sjjeech in the Press, the Premier wrote to Mr. Burnaby asking for an explana-

tion of the charge made. Mr. Burnaby then endeavoured to get in touch with

the Premier by telephone, but did not succeed. He did speak to the Attorney-

General by telephone and then gave the Attorney-General the initials and the

first and last letters of the surname of the man who had offered him the bribe,

in order that if he were an applicant for the position the Government would

know that he was the man who had attempted to give the bribe. The initials

iriven (

by Mr. Burnaby are J. S. F y. It appeared from the statement

made by the Premier that this man was not among the list of applicants. Mr.

Burnaby said that he had known the man for several years, and that he resides

in Toronto, but be refused to tell his occupation.

The Committee was unable to follow the matter up, however, because of

the fact that the name was not given, but, upon the evidence which was avail-

able to the Committee, we find as a fact that the offer of the bribe was made to Mr.

Burnaiby substantially as Mr. Burnafey relates it.

The Attorney General stated that Mr. Burnaby had given him the informa-

tion in the course of a private conversation and that he did not feel it his

duty to follow the matter up and demand that the man be prosecuted, more

particularly when Mr. Burnaby declined to give the name of the man who had

offered him the 'bribe. Mr. Burnaby has persistently refused to give the name

of the person who offered the bribe to the Attorney General or to any other

person and still refuses to give it for the reasons hereinbefore set out.

The Committee finds that the statement made by Mr. Burnaby, that he

had been approached, is true, but the Committee is, upon the evidence, unable

to make any recommendation in the matter.

5. The next matter referred to this Committee is what is known as the Swayze-

MacBride matter.

The Committee was of opinion that inasmuch as this charge was to the

effect that Mr. MacBride was insincere as a Member of the Special 'Committee

which investigated the strike of the Hydro Employees at Chippawa, this Com-

mittee was unable to enter into the question as no definite charge had boon

made against Mr. MaeBride, and no action was taken by the Committee.
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6. The next matter referred to the 'Committee was a complaint made by

Mr. E. E. Hall, M.P.P. in regard to an article appearing in The Toronto

Telegram, dated March 31st, 1921. The Committee was advised by its Counsel

that inasmuch as the charge contained in the Telegram was made not against

Mr. Hall in his capacity as Member of the Legislature, that this Committee had

no jurisdiction to entertain the charge.

The Committee therefore took no action in this matter.

Dated at Toronto this 29th April, 1921.

E. L. BRACKIN,

Chairman, Privileges and Elections Committee.
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MINUTES AND PROCEEDINGS
The Committee met at 11.30 a.m. on Tuesday April 19th, in the Private

Bills 'Committee Room, the following members being present:

Messrs. Hon. E. C. Drury; R. L. Brackin; J. B. Cunningham; J. W. Curry;
H. H. Dewart; J. W. Freeborn; F. H. Greenlaw; Hon. Mr. Henry; J Joynt;
J. GL Lethbridge; A. C. Lewis; Hon. Mr. Raney; C. F. 'Swayze; J. O. Tolmie;
T. Tooms; J. M. Webster.

Moved by Mr. Webster, seconded by Mr. Lethbridge that Mr. Brackin of

West Kent, be Chairman. Carried.

Moved by Mr. Dewart, seconded by Mr. Lewis, that this Committee authorize

the Chairman, to engage the service of a 'stenographer, to take the proceedings in

shorthand and transcribe the same. Carried.

The 'Chairman read to the Committee the resolutions of the House contained

in the Votes and Proceedings of March the 8th, March the 30th, and April the

1st, 1921, with roiran'l to the matters which have been referred to the Committee
for investigation. It was decided on motion of Mr. Curry, seconded by Hon. 'Mr.

Raney, that Mr. J. M. Ferguson, K.C., Barrister, of Toronto, be retained by the

Committee to act as Counsel in the matters which had been referred to the Com-

mittee ; Mr. Ferguson to report to the Committee at the next meeting with a report

as to the nature of the charges referred to the Committee and as to the witnesses

who should be summoned to attend before he Committee.

Moved by Mr. Curry, seconded by Mr. Lewis, that when the Committee

adjourns, it adjourn until Wednesday, April 20th at 2.30 p.m. Carried.

Moved by Mr. 'Curry that the Committee do now adjourn. Carried.

The committee held its second meeting at 2 p.m. on Wednesday, April 20th

the following members being present :

Messrs. Brackin, (Vidland, Cunningham, Ourry, Dewart, Freeborn, Greenlaw,

Hay, Heenan, Henry, Hicks, Joynt, Lennox, Lethbridge, MacBride, Mathieu,

Racine, SewelL Tolmie, Tooms/Webster, Widdifield.

Mr. Brackin took the chair and introduced Mr. J. M. Fergusson, K.C., who had

been appointed Counsel for investigation to the 'Committee.

Mr. Ferguson then dealt with the charges which had1 been referred to the

Committee for investigation.

(1) Ashplant Charges.

Mr. Ferguson recommended that that the following witnesses be subpoenaed :

A. C. Carty, Globe correspondent, London; H. B. Ashplant, London, Mayor
S. Little, London; Alderman John Bridge, London; Mr. Marshall Grayclon.

(2) Hicks Charges.

Mr. Ferguson recommended that Mr. Hicks be requested to appear before

the Committee to give his explanation of this charge before any other witnesses

were called.

(3) Taylor Charges.

Mr. Ferguson suggested that Mr. Taylor be requested also to appear before

the Committee and give his explanation.

(4) Burnaby Charges.
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(5) Swayze-MacBride Charges.

(6) Charge against Mr. Hall.

. Mr. Ferguson recommended that /these last three charges be held over pending

further information and the disposal of the first three charges.

Mr. Widdifield moved, seconded by Mr. Cridland, that the Swayze charge

be not further considered.

Mr. Dewart moved, seconded by Mr. -Curry, an amendment to the effect that

the Burna'by, Swayze and Hall charges be held over.

The amendment was carried and the motion was lost.

Moved by Mr. Gurry, seconded by Mr. Hay, that the Clerk should

telegraph. Mr. A. C. Carty, Globe correspondent, London, to appear before the

Committee at its next meeting (1.30'- P.M., Thursday, 21st April) with reference

to the Ashplant and Hicks charges and that Mr. Hicks and Mr. Taylor should

also be requested to appear before the Committee. Carried.

Moved by Mr. Dewart, seconded by Mr. Curry, that when it adjourns it

adjourns until Thursday, April '21st, at 1.30' P.M. Carried.

Moved by Mr. Curry that the Committee do now adjourn. Carried.

The third meeting of this Committee was held at 1.30 P.M. on Thursday.

April 21, 1921, in the Private Bills Committee Room. The following members

were present:

Messrs, Brackin, Ctidiand, Cunningham, Curry, Freeborn, Hay, Hicks,

Lennox, MacBride, Racine, Raney, Ross (Kingston), Sewell Sinclair, Swayze,

Tohnie, Towns, Webster, Widdifield.

Hicks Charges.

Mr. J. M. Ferguson, counsel for the Committee suggested that the charge
of Mr. Andrew Hicks referred to the Committee by a motion in the Assembly
on the 8th of March, be first considered.

Mr. Hicks was called as witness by the chairman and duly sworn.

Mr. Ferguson asked Mr. Hicks to tell the circumstances under which he made
the charge in question and the foundation upon which he based his charge.
Mr. Hicks told his story and submitted a copy of a written statement with which
he had furnished the Attorney-General shortly after making the said charge.

This statement was submlitted as Exhibit 1.

Mr. Hicks also offered to read a statement written by Mr. Fox to the Attorney-
General and after some discussion it was decided to admit this statement subject
to verification and Mr. Hicks having read the statement, the same was admitted
as Exhibit 2.

Mr. Lennox and Mr. Ferguson examined the witness who then left the stand.

It was moved by Mr. Lennox and seconded by Mr. W. E. Sinclair
"
That* the

reporter who interviewed Mr. Hicks., M.P.P. at his farm subsequent to the picnic
and the maker of the statement in question be summoned TO appear before this

Committee and give evidence at th next sitting." Carried.

Moved by Mr. Tolmie, seconded by Mr. Galder "That Mr. Fox be summoned
to appear before the next meeting of Privileges and Elections Committee and

give evidence regarding Mr. Hick's statement." Carried.

Ashplant Charges.

The chairman then called Mr. A. C. Carty, Globe correspondent at London,
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as witness to give evidence with regard to the charges of Mr. H. B. Ashplant
referred to the Committee for investigation by the Assembly on 8th March.

Mr. Carty being called was duly sworn.

Mr. Ferguson read the resolution of the House with regard to the Ashplant

charge to the witness.

Mr. Carty then told his story of the meeting of the City Council at which

the charge was made and submitted copies of the two reports with which he

furnished the Globe.

The first report appeared in the Globe on March 8th, (admitted as Exhibit 3)

and the second report on March 9th, (admitted as 'Exhibit 4).

Moved by Mr. Curry, seconded by Hon. (Mr. Eoss
" That Herbert H. Penny,

reporter London Advertiser, be called as a witness before the 'Committee on Privi-

leges and Elections in the Ashplant charge." Carried.

Mr. Penny, being called, was duly sworn.

The chairman then read to the Committee the report of the City Council

meeting on March 7th, furnished by the witness to the London Advertiser and the

same was admitted as Exhibit 5.

Mr. Penny submitted his report and answered the question of Mr. Ferguson
in regard thereto.

Moved by Mr. McCren, seconded by Mr. Calder that the following witnesses

be subpoenaed to attend before the Privileges and Elections Committee at its

next meeting to give evidence on certain reported charge of Mr. Ashplant affecting
members of the Legislature:

Messrs. H. B. Ashplant, Mayor Little, Frank E. Harley, John Bridge, J. C.

Wilson, G. B. Drake, W. H. Wilson, Wm. Boss, B. F. Brighton, A. H. W. Graydon.
Carried.

Moved by Mr. Hay, seconded by Mr. Lennox "That when the Committee

adjourns it adjourns until Tuesday, April 26, at 1.3-0 P.M." Carried.

The fourth meeting of this Committee was held at 1.30 p.m. on Tuesday,

April 26th in the Public Accounts Committee Room.
The following members were present:
Messrs. Bra-ckin, Calder, Cridland, Cunningham, Freeborn, Greenlaw, Hay.
Hick<s, Johnston (Lanark South), Lethbrklge, Mathieu, .Racine, Sewe-ll,

Sinclair, Swayxc. Tolmie. Toom*?, Widdifield.

Ashplant Charges
When the meeting opened it was announced that the following witnesses

had presented themselves for examination, in what is known as the Ashplant

Charges. H. B. Ashplant, Mayor S. Little, Aid. F. E. Harley, Aid. G. B. Drake,

Aid. W. A. Wilson, Aid. B. F. Brighton, all of the city of London.
Mr. Ashplant was called as a witness and duly sworn. He was examined

by the counsel to the Committee, Mr. Ferguson, and Mr. Ashplant denied that

he intended to convey an impression that any member of the legislature could

or might be bribed, and stated to the Committee that if his language was capable
of that impression, he wished to withdraw the same, and to apologize and express
sorrow for having made the statement. Following the examination of Mr.

Ashplant, Mayor Little and Aids. Harley, Brighton, Drake and Wilson were

severally called as witnesses, duly sworn and affirmied the reported statements of

Mr. Ashplant in the Toronto
"
Globe." and the London "Advertiser" as being-
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substantially the statements which Mr. Ashplant had made in London at the

Council meeting on the 7th of March. The Committee accepted the withdrawal

and the statement of regret and sorrow offered by Mr. Ashplant, and recommended
that no further proceedings be taken with respect to the matter.

Taylor Charges
The Committee then considered what is known as the Taylor Charges referred

to it for investigation upon motion in the Assembly on the 8th of March, 1921.

Mr. Daniel James Taylor, member of the Assembly for North Grey, was
called as a witness and duly sworn.

Mr. Taylor told the Committee that shortly after he was elected a member
of the legislature a man whom he did not know, but who, he said, came from Owen

Sound, approached him at his home in Wiarton and told him that if he, Taylor,
would use his influence with the Government to procure a position on the "Work-

men's Compensation Board for one, George Menzies of Owen Sound, he, Taylor,
would be paid one thousand dollars. It was on the strength of this occurrence

that Mr. Taylor made the statements set out in the votes and proceedings of the

House above, referred to on the llth day of June, 1920. Mr. Taylor produced
a letter, signed by one William Willcocks, dated at Detroit, Michigan, March 22nd,

1921, in which the writer of the letter admitted that he was the man who had

approached him at his home in AViarton and made to him the offer of one thousand
dollars. The letter was admitted as Exhibit 6.

Mr. Taylor did not make any offer to have the man Menzies appointed, nor
has he been appointed to any office in the gift of Government.

Charge against Mr. Hall.

The Committee then dealt with the complaint made by Mr. E. R. Hall, M.P.F
in the Assembly in regard to an article appearing in the Toronto

"
Telegram,"

dated March ;H, 11)21, which complaint was referred to the Committee for

investigation upon a motion of the Assembly on the 1st of April, 1921.
On the motion of Mr. Webster, seconded by Mr. Cridland, it was resolved

that in as much as the oharare contained in the
"
Telegram

"
was made not

against Mr. Hall in his capacity as member of the Legislature, this Committee
has no jurisdiction to entertain the charge and, therefore, that the matter be
not further proceeded with.

Swayze Charges.
Mr. Ferguson then brought up what is known as, the Swayze Charges. On the

motion of Mr. Tolmie, seconded by Mr. Hicks, it was resolved that in as much
as this charge was to the effect that Mr. McBride was insincere as a member of
the special committee which investigated the strike of the Hydro employees, at

Chippawa, this Committee was unable to enter into the question, as no definite

charge had been made against Mr. McBride, and that no further action be taken.

by. the Committee.

The Committee instructed the clerk to subpoena Mr. ft. W. E. Burnaby to

appear before the Committee at its next meeting.
Moved by Mr. Hay, seconded by Mr. Curry that when the committee adjourn,

it adjourn until Friday April 29th at 1.30 p.m. 'Carried.

The fifth meeting of this Committee was held in the Private Bills Committee
Boom on Friday April 29th, at 1.30 p.m.

The following members were present :
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Messrs. Brackin, alder Cridland, Cunningham, Curry,, Drury, Doherty, Fox,

Freeborn, Hay, Lennox, Hogarth, Eacine, Tolmie.

The Chairman announcing that all matters referred to the Committee for

investigation had been disposed of, and with the exception of what is known
as the Burnaby charge and that Mr. R. W. E. Burnaby was present to-day.

Burnaby Charges.
Mr. W. E. Burnaby being called, was duly sworn. At the outset Mr.

Burnaby raised the question of want of jurisdiction of the Committee to call him

for examination in as much as he did not make liis statement as a member of the

Legislature and in as much as his statement in no way reflected /upon the conduct

of any member of the Legislature. M'r. Ferguson., as counsel to the Committee,
stated that, in his opinion, the 'Committee had jurisdiction. However, Mr. Burn-

aby agreed to waive any want of jurisdiction of the Committee and to proceed

with the examination. The statement made by Mr. Burnaby and referred to

the Committee for investigation in the votes and proceedings in the House on

the '8th of March was made by him at Kettleby and reported in the press on the

23rd day of June, 1920'. Mr. Burnaby stated to the Committee that a man, whose

name he refused to give, called on him and offered to give him $1,000' a year if

he would use his influence to secure for him the appointment as purchasing agent
to the Government on being asked to give to the Committee the name of the man
who had attempted to bribe him Mr. Burnaby refused. He stated that he feared

he might be subjected to an action for slander and that as he and the man who
made the statement were the only ones present at the time it was made he might
be unable to successfully defend himself in any action that might be brought

against him. Although the chairman pointed out that any evidence Mr. Burnaby
might give to the Committee, was privileged, Mr. Burnaby still refused to give
the name of the individual. The chairman ruled that he must give the name
but upon a vote of the Committee the ruling of the chair was not sustained by a

vote of 9 to 12. The following members voted in favor of sustaining the ruling
of the chair: Messrs. Drury, Brackin, Calder, Dewart, Hay, Lennox, Eacine,

Tolmie, Webster. The following members voted against the ruling of the chair :

Cridland, Cunningham, Curry, Doherty, Fox, Freeborn, Lethbridge, Oke, Sewell,

Taylor, Tooms, Widdifield.

File of correspondence admitted as Exhibit 7.

Following the examination of Mr. Burnaby it was moved by Mr. Lennox
and seconded by Mr. Racine that the Attorney-General be called to give evidence
with respect to this matter. The motion carried by a vote of 15 to 7 the yeas and

nays being as follows: yeas, Messrs. Brackin, Calder, Cunningham, Curry, Hay,
Joynt, Lennox, Eacine, Eaney, Sewell, Sinclair, Tolmie, Tooms, Webster,
Widdifleld. Xays, Messrs. Cridland, Fox, Freeborn, Hicks, Lethbridge, Oke,

Taylor; nays, Cridland, Fox, Freeborn, Hicks, Lethbridge, Oke, Taylor.

Upon the conclusion of the examination of the Attorney-General the chairman
named the following subcommittee to consider the evidence which had been

produced before the Committee and to report the findings of the Committee to

the House:

Messrs. Brackin, Lennox, Tolmie, Webster, Freeborn.

On motion of Mr. Oalder, seconded by Mr. Lennox, the meeting then

adjourned. Carried.
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EVIDENCE.

APRIL 19TH, 1921.

The Committee was called to meet at 11.30 a.m., April 19, 1921, in the

Private Bills Committee Koom, the following members being present, Messrs.

Brackin, Cunningham, Curry, Dewart, Freeborn, Greenlaw, Henry, Joynte,

Lennox, Lethbridge, Lewis, Kaney, Swayze, Tolmie, Tooins, Webster, Drury.

Moved by Mr. Webster, seconded by Mr. Lethbridge that Mr. R. L. Brackm,

of West Kent, be Chairman. Carried.

Mr. Brackirj having taken the chair: The first business, gentlemen,

before the Committee, 1 am told, is to bring a motion before the Committee u>

deal with the question of engaging a stenographer for the Committee. Will

someone make a motion with respect to that? I see, according to the last meet-

ing of the Committee, which was in 1913, that the first business was a motion

by Mr. McGarry, seconded by Mr. .Mills, that the Committee authorize the

Chairman to engage the services of a stenographer to take the proceedings in

shorthand and transcribe the same.

Mpt. DEWART: -I' move that, Mr. Chairman.

MR. LEWIS: I second it.

The motion, being put, was carried.

MR. BRACKIN: Where is the resolution of the House -with regard to this

matter? There are several resolutions here. I see that the matter referred to

the .Committee at that time was a statemnt made by Mr. William Proudfoot

that had been referred to the Committee to enguire into and report, and the

Chairman read the statement of Mr. Proudfoot containing the charges that had

been made. Is it the desire of the Committee that I shall read the proceedings
in the House on the matters referred to the Committee? They are rather long.

Some members. Take them as read.

MfR. BRACKIN : I will give you the substance of them. The first was ;

"Resolved, That whereas it has been made to appear to the House that at

a public meeting of the Council of the 'City of London, held on the 7th March,
one H. B. Ashplant publicly asserted that the City Gas Company of London,

Ontario, could and might bribe Members of this House to induce such Members
to vote 'in favor of a certain Private Bill presented to this -House on behalf of

the said City Gas Company. Be it therefore resolved that the said H. B. Ash-

plant be ordered to appear before the Committee of this House on Privile^s
and Elections at such time as the Chairman thereof may direct, to be examined

for such further action as the House may direct upon report of the 'Committee."

The next was that in regard to a statement made by one Andrew H i<>ks

as reported in the press. "That whereas one Andrew Hicks, of Centralia,

Ontario, and a member of the Legislative Assembly, representing the riding of

South Huron, did make a statement on or about the 9th day of June, 19?0,
as reported m the press as 'follows:

London, Ont., June Oth. 'The offerings of money to representatives of the

people to pass certain pieces of legislation during the last Session of the Legis-

lature were appalling/ Such was the startling statement made by Andrew Hicks,

U. F. 0. Whip, in an address to the East Middlesex IT. F. 0. picnic here this

afternoon. 'But thank God,' be added, 'not one of the TJ. F. 0. members
succumbed to the effort of briberyV

And the next was in respect to certain statements made by David James

Taylor, Wiarton. "And wherens one David James Taylor, of Wiarton, and a
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memiber of the Legislative Assembly for the riding of North Grey, did make a

statement on or about the lithe day of June, as reported in the press, as

follows :

"The principle of the $2,500 indemnity for the Members is all wrong, but

I did favour a bonus for the present Session. The hotel bill alone was about

$4: a day, and in the 'Session each Member would spend about $700. 'And if

you don't believe me, just try it/ said Mr. Taylor. 'If the Member was a

farmer he had to hire someone to run his farm, while if he was a labourer he

lost his job. If the public want honest service they should pay their representa-

tives a fair amount. Every dollar I get the public will know about it/ said

Mr. Taylor, telling of an offer of $1,000 he had received! and refused for his

influence in a certain measure, and three weeks after his election. 'And if the

past Government had not 'been in the habit of taking money on the side, how

was it that the man should come to me?' queried Mr. Taylor."

And the next was in regard to a statement credited to Mr. J. W. E. Burnaby,
of North York. "And whereas one J. W. E. Burnaby, of North York, President

of the U. "P. 0. Co-operative Association, did make a statement on or about the

33rd day of June, 1920, as reported in the press, as follows:

Kettleby, June 23. Mr. Burnaby declared that a direct attempt had been

made to bribe him
;
cited the offer made, and said he was ready at any time to

back up his statement:

'I know nothing about the famous bribery charge that has been delighting
the press lately/ the U. F. 0. President said, 'but I want to tell you, ladies

and gentlemen, that this thing has been going on for years. Thank God, I

am not in the Government, but I have been offered a bribe and I can back up
my statement. When the 'Government advertised for a purchasing agent at a

salary of $6,000 a year, I was offered $1,000' a year if I would use my influence

to have a certain man appointed, the $1,000' to continue as long as he held the

job. I told him I would use my influence, but see that he did not get the job'."

And whereas all these statements are serious reflections on the independence
and honour of the Legislature ;

and whereas the dignity and honour of the House
and the safety of the public interests demand that these allegations be fully

and thoroughly investigated and proper punishment be meted out to anyone
who may be found guilty of any of the acts alleged); be it therefore resolved that

in the opinion of this House it is the duty of the Government to refer the

allegations and charges to the Standing Comttnittee on Privileges and Elections.

MR. DEWART: Who moved the first motion? Are they all contained in one

motion ?

MR. BRACKIX : It is just simply a motion, Resolved, that whereas, and
so on.

MR. DEWART: Was not there a motion moved by somebody and seconded

by somebody.
MR, BRACKIN: The motion with regard to these particular matters was

moved by Hon. Mr. Ferguson, if you will remember, with regard to the Hicks
and Taylor matters, and the other stuff was added on another motion and I think

Mr. Homuth ibrought up the first matter. That matter was the Ashplant matter,
which Mr. Homuth had referred to in the House, and was moved by myself
and seconded by Mr. Dewart. But Mr. Ferguson moved the amendment, seconded

by Mr. Henry, to add these other things. He moved that it be amended, then

the motion as amended was submitted to the House and was carried unanimously.
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MB. CURRY: The amendment was carried?

MR. BRACKIN: The motion before the House was with regard to one matter,

the Ash-plant matter. Mr. Ferguson moved an amendment; 'seconded by Mr.

Henry, and the motion as amended was carried.

Then another motion is that there be referred to the Committee a statement

in the press which was read to the House by Mr. Hall:

On the motion of Mr. Hall seconded by Mr. Dewart:

"Resolved" That whereas it has been made to appear to the House by
the statement made; this day to this Hbuse, by Richard Reece Hall, and by an

article appearing on page 27 of the Toronto Telegram newspaper of date of

Marsh 31st, referring to the Parry Sound Development Plant, that the said

statement and the matters therein contained be referred to the Standing Com-
mittee on Privileges and Elections ,and that the said Committee be instructed

to inquire into and report thereon, with power to send for and examine all

necessary persons and papers in or concerning the premises. And that the said

Committee be empowered to sit for such purpose/'
And then the other is the statement of Mr. Swayze:
"Mr. Swayze, the Member for Niagara Falls, having stated while addressing

the House, that a member of the Chippawa Commission of 19'20, was insincere

as a member thereof, Mr. MacBride, rising in his place, demanded that Mr.

Swayze should state specifically the name of such Member, and thereupon
Mr. Swayze stated that Mr. MacBride was the member of the said Committee
he referred to.

"Mr MacBride then moved,
"That the matter be referred to the Committee on Privileges and Elections

for investigation and report.

"And the question being submitted to the House was carried, and it was,

"Ordered, That the matter in question do stand referred to the Standing
Committee on Privileges and Elections for enquiry and report/'

MR. DEWART: That was at the instance of the member for South Brant.

What is Mr. Hall complaining albout?

MR. HOMUTH: Certain statements set forth dn a newspaper.
MR. BRACKIN: As I recollect the statement in the Telegram was statement

ment of fact. It was about him having 'sold gravel from his gravel pit to the

town when he was Mayor.
PREMIER DRTJRY: I think there were several statements.

MR. BRACKING I see at the last meeting of the Committee that dealt with

certain charges made by Mr. Proudfoot it was decided to allow Mr. Proudfoot

to be represented by counsel and that his counsel be allowed to examine all

papers. Does the Committee desire to do anything with regard to that feature

of the matter with regard to anyone being represented by counsel.

Honourable Member: I think the committe ought to have counsel to

prepare the case, to have the documents submitted. But these are not cases like

where a man puts his political life in the balance.

PREMIER DRURY: I myself think they have to do with the idignity and

integrity of the House. I think it is quite proper that there should be counsel

in that case.

MR. DEWART: Why not have counsel appointed by the committee to

represent the House?

MR. CURRY: The position of course in connection with a matter of this
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kind, you take for instance the first charge we have, that of Ashplant, we are

not interested at all in appointing counsel as no member of the House is inter-

ested in appointing counsel in regard to that charge.

HON. MR. RANEY: What charge is that?

MR. CURHY: The Ashplant charge.

MR. BRACKIN: He said that the Gas. Co., could and might bribe members

of the Legislature to put the bill through.
MR. CURRY: I feel quite satisfied that there are sufficient counsel among

the members of the House without appointing a counsel. With regard to the

other matter there are certain of the members of the House who are charged,
now if the House desires to appoint counsel for their assistance it might very
well be that that would be so, I can quite understand.

HON. MR. RANEY : Take the matter of Mr. Hicks, Mr. Taylor and Mr. Hall.

They might require to have counsel to bring out matters fairly before this

Committee as to what actuality did take place, and so far as I am concerned

I would be prepared to move that counsel be appointed to represent these

members in the charges that have been brought before us.

MR (DEWART: One of the difficulties of course in these cases is that there

is nobody to formulate the charges and lay the evidence before the Committee.

MR. BRACKIN : And decide what is going to be called.

MR. DEWART: Unless you appoint somebody to -do so it is going to be

difficult. In the other case the last sitting of the Comjmittee was in 1913 on
the Proudfoot charges, this involved a uiimber of documents that 'had appeared
before the Public Accounts and also a number of other papers. And when Mr..

Proudfoot undertook the responsibility of laying the charges it was at first

contended that Mir. F. B. Johnston be engaged as counsel. When he could

.not act I took the matter up with W. J. Elliot and we appointed counsel on the

other side, so both sides were represented. But there was a distinct issue between,

certain persons. These seem to be entirely different.

MR. -CURRY : This seems to he a case where it might very well be necessary
to have counsel to see if there is anything to bring before us.

HON. MEMBER: That counsel should represent the Committee.
MR. CURRY: And I would move that Mr. J. M. Ferguson be appointed

as counsel to represent the Committee.
MR. BRACKIN: Mr. John M. Ferguson.
MR. 'CuRRY : He is a young counsel and I think an excellent counsel, one

who would not spare any labour.

HON. MR. RANEY: I second Mr. Curry's motion.
MR. CURRY: To enquire into
HON. MR. HENRY: I move, Mr. Chairman, the Committee do the investi-

gating.

MR. CURRY: To enquire into and prepare the evidence.

MR. BRACKIN: To prepare the evidence and decide what witnesses can

^ive the Committee the most information, and all that sort of thing. That is

Mr. Henry's idea.

MR. CURRY: To represent this Committee and enquire into the charges as to

the necessary evidence to be produced and to prepare the case.

HON. MR. RANEY : If you just name him as counsel for the Committee.

MR. BRACKIN (Oh&irnDan) put the motion . "That Mr. Ferguson sh&ll act

as counsel to the Committee in connection with these matters which have been
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referred to the 'Committee." 'Carried.

MR. DEWART: He will have the assistance, I take it, of somebody in the

Attorney-General's Department.
ME. BRACKIN: I see, gentlemen, a motion at the last meeting of the

Committee with regard to enquiring into and the production of certain docu-

ments and papers. I suppose we could hardly deal with that until the case

is prepared and we know what is going to be needed.

HON. MR. HENRY: The counsel will know what to ask for.

MR. BRACKIN : We need a motion with regard to that.

MR. DEWART: You would force production after the Committee orders it?

MR. LEWIS: How soon will we know whether Mr. Ferguson can act?

MR. BRACKIN: . We will communicate with him at once. Will you deal

with the matter I referred to, the production of documents, or will you leave

that to a later Session, until Mr. Ferguson indicates what he wants produced?
MR. DEWART: It has been suggested that every one of these charges is

based upon a statement in the public press. If this is so, why should not the

editors of these papers in which these articles apppeared be summoned now so

that you can get that far anyway?
HON. MR. EANEY: (Suppose the Committee instruct the Chairman to

issue processes by way of subpoena to any witnesses whom counsel you have

selected thinks desirable should be brought before the Committee.

PREMIER DRURY : It is desirable to facilitate the matter as much as possible.

MR. DEWART: The House is always in Sesfeion and the House can order

the attendance of witnesses .as much as the Committee can.

MR. CURRY: Suppose this Committee- adjourn until 2.30 Thursday. That
is the day after to-morrow.

MR. BRACKIN: That gas comlmittee will be going on Thursday.
MR. CURRY: Say 2.30 to-morrow.

MR. BRACKIN: Would you expect me to have witnesses here then?

HON. MEMBER: No. We would expect you to tell us what he desires to

be ordered and produced.
PREMIER DRURY: Probably as to the witnesses to be summoned.
MR. BRACKIN: Certainly I will report on that.

MR. BRACKIN: Somebody will move adjournment until to-morrow at 2.30?

Moved by Mr. Curry, seconded by Mr. Raney, that this Committee adjourns
to stand adjourned until tomorrow (Wednesday, April 20th, 1921) at 2.30.

Carried.
'

! MM

April 20th, 1921.

The Committee met at 2.30 p.m., Wednesday, April 20, 1921, with Mr.
Brackin in the chair.

MR. BRACKIN: Gentlemen, at the last meeting the matters that were

referred to the Committee were read, and it was decided on motion of Mr. Curry
that Mr. J. M. Ferguson of Toronto be retained by the Committee to act as

counsel, Mr. Ferguson to report on the nature of the charges and the names of

witnesses to be summoned to the Committee. I took the matter up with Mr.

Ferguson, put him in possession of copies of the records of the House, showing
the matters that had been referred to the 'Committee, and Mr. Ferguson is here.

Now it was the thought, I suppose, to-day, that we could not have any time to
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take evidence, and it was the thought that counsel should look into these matters,
make such enquiries as he might see fit, so that he could come before the

Committee and tell us lay sufficient of a /programme before us so that we could

determine to-day what we would take up at our next meeting, and, having
decided what we would take up, then we would have some idea as to the

witnesses who should 'be called in connection with that particular matter, in

order that the Committee might pass the necessary resolutions with regard to

the summoning of witnesses. Mr. Ferguson is here. I suggest we now have
him make his report to the Committee on these matters that were referred to.

Is that agreeable?

HON. MEMBERS: Carried.

ME. FERGUSON : Mr. 'Chairman and gentlemen, as you know there are

several matters that were referred to this Committee to investigate, and I have,

with the limited time at my disposal, looked into them to the extent I was aWe.

And I intend to refer to them in the order in which they appeared in the copies

that were handed to me. Now the only thing, I think, that can be done, as the

Chairman said, is to determine, if possible, what witnesses will be necessary or

it would be necessary to call for the purpose of commencing the investigation.

It may be that other witnesses will be needed at a later period, but at all events

certain ones now ought to be called.

I deal first with the Ashplant charges, and just so that you will know
what they are about I will tate the liberty of reading a line or two to point
them out. This is an extract from the minutes and proceedings of the House
of the 8th of March last.

(Mr. Ferguson reads extract already set out on pages 2 and 3 of the

verbatim report.)

MR. DEWART: Is the paper named in which the paragraph appeared?
MR. FERGUSON : No. It is not. But I find it is in The Globe, and I

have seen the Editor of The Globe and I have got the name of the correspondent

who sent down the report, so that he will 'be one of the witnesses. His name

is Mr. E. W.Carty, of London. And, of course, Mr. H. B. Ashplant will have

to be subpoenaed. One of the Aldermen also, Mr. John Bridge, I understand,

is familiar with the matter, and willbe able to give information with regard
to it. I thought, too, the solicitor for the Gas Company, ought to be subpoenaed.

Mr. Marshall Graydon, he was at the meeting. As far as I know at present
that ought to be sufficient in connection with this charge. If it turns out that

there is serious conflict as to whether these charges were made, or as to the

nature of the charo-e% then we will have to call probably other members of

the City Council of London. But I think to commence with that that would

quite sufficient. And, therefore, so far as that charge is concerned, I have

nothing further to recommend with regard to that.

MR. DEWART: Did this appear in the London papers?
MR. FERGUSON: I do not know. I have not been able to find that out.

The way it happened, as I understand it, is this; the local correspondent of

The Globe in London was at this meeting and it was he who took down this

account and forwarded it to The Globe for publication. It was a special

dispatch to The Globe. I do not know anything about the London papers

having it.

MR. DEWART: Probably the 'Chairman will know with reference to that?

MR. BRACKIN: It was a Globe article. Mr. Homuth read it, and I am
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not sure. I do not know. It was incorporated in the resolution, but I know

it was from The Globe.

MR. FERGUSON: I have not been able to get a copy of The Globe, but I

am getting one. I will have it, I hope, when the matter comes up.

Now that is the only really definite charge that we have and where it is

possible to form some idea of the witneses that may Ibe required. The other

charges are more or less indefinite and the information will have to come from

the men who made the charges. For instance, the next charge is, "That whereas

one Andrew Hicks, etd." (Mr. Ferguson reads in full the House resolution

already incorporated in verbatim report.)

Now, so far as that charge is concerned, the only suggestion that I have

to make is that Mr. Hicks >can tell his own story and can tell the foundation upon
which these charges were made, if they were made. Amd, I think we should

first hear from Mr. Hicks before subprenaing any witnesses with regard to

that case. There is no information that will enable us to say who ought to be

subpoenaed.
MR. DEWART: Did that appear in a newspaper too?

MR. FERGUSOX: It appeared in The Globe, too.

MR. DEWART : Can we ascertain who" the correspondent was ?

MR FERGUSON : Yes. I do not know his name yet, but I am getting it.

MIR. DEWART: Probably he should1 be here too.

MR. FERGUSON : I thank it is the same man.
MR. HAY : We might be in a condition in which it would not be necessary

to summon witnesses. That is exactly the condition in so far as this charge
is concerned. If we have admissions in regard to it, it won't be necessary to

call anybody else. But the Ashplant matter is on a different plane.
MR. FERGUSON: Now with regard to the Taylor charge:

(Mr. Ferguson reads extract already set out on pages 2 and 3 of verbatim

report.)

That is the charge in so far as Mr. Taylor is concerned. Now that appeared,
that is from The Mail and Empire, I think.

MR. DEWART: Where is it published?
MR. FERGUSON: Well, perhaps the evidence will disclose that.

MR. BRACKIN: We may have to get that evidence.

MR. FERGUSON: Then the next one is Mr. Burnaby's charge.
MR. DEWART: Is there any particulars as to how that appeared, or as to

the reporter?
MR FERGUSON: No. I have no record of that. I have not been able to

find out about that.

MR. DEWART: Do you suggest, Mr. Ferguson, that somebody should be

summoned from the Mail amd Empire staff who would tell us who the reporter
was?

MR. FERGUSON: Yes, unless the Mail and Empire will give us the name
of the correspondent as The Globe did. I saw the Editor of The Globe and he

gave me the name. Perhaps the Mail will do the same. But this matter came to me
so late that I was not able to find that out, but I thought, Mr. Dewart, in

proceeding with these matters it would be well perhaps first to find out whether

they are disputed or not.

MR. BRACKIN: Yes, if the Member, of course, says, 'Yes, I said that/

MR. FERGUSON: If he says that there is no need of calling the reporter.



Qeorge V. AITENDIX No. 3.

MR. URRY: He has stated in the House he did not say it.

MR, IFERGUSON: Of course I do not know as to that.

Min. CURRY r That is my recollection of it.

MR. FERGUSON: I am not familiar with that. I do not know.

Now the next matter relates to the charge made by Mr. Burnaby, and this

is the report in connection with that; "And whereas Mr. R. W. E. Burnaby,

etc." (Mr. Ferguson reads extract already set forth pages 2 and 3 of the verbatim

report.)

HONOURABLE MEMBER: What paper does that appear in.

MR. FERGUSON: I can tell you in a minute.

MR. CURRY: I think it appeared in The Globe.

MR. FERGUSON: Yes. I think that is the one that appeared in The Globe.

I have the dates on which these articles appeared in The Globe, but I have not

the exact references. I think The Globe had that.

MR. LENNOX: Have we any evidence on that?

MR. FERGUSON: None whatever. My suggestion is the same as with the

others Mr. Burnaby should 'be called to say whether he admits the statement

or if he says it is untrue, and if he says it is untrue it will 'be time enough to

bring the newspapers. I do not know what his attitude would be with regard to

that.

Now these are the statements more or less of a specific character. And

there are a couple of others here, one made by Mr. Swayze referred at the request

of Mr. MacBride. This is the record taken from the Proceedings of the House

on the 30th of March last: "Mr. Swayze having stated," etc. (Mr. Ferguson
reads extract already set out in verbatim report.)

Now I do not know what evidence, if any, there is with regard to this. I

spoke to one of the parties interested and he said he will let me know whether

he wants any witnesses subpoenaed or not. I was not able to see the other

gentleman who is interested yesterday, because I was not able to get him when
T came up to the Buildings in the afternoon. However, I suggest that that can

stand, if you so agree, until the next meeting of this Committee, when perhaps
T will have some more definite report in regard to it, if this is satisfactory.

MR MACBRIDE : I would like to have the information upon which Mr.

Swayze made the statement, specifically, on his responsibility as a. member of

the House, and the 'Speaker so ruled. Now I presume I am the gentleman he
was unable to see yesterday because T was not in the House. I can be seen at

any time, and I think that when a member makes a statement of that kind,
fiirst at the convention in Welland, and then brought out by me on the floor of

the House, and the Speaker rules he makes it on his responsibility as a member
of the House, and should bring his witnesses before this ConVmattee at once in

order that I may know and be in a position to defend myself on what basis he
makes these assertions. I am prepared to bring witnesses and I think the person
making the accusation should bring witnesses.

MR. HAY: Would I be in order in asking, assuming we finally will be able

to prove t/he accusations that have been published, are we following the right
lines, and are we going to accomplish anything by proving this. They are not
so tremendously serious.

MR. BRACKIN: So far as this is concerned isn't this the situation? Isn't

it after all, even so far as witnesses are concerned, a matter of opinion. Suppose

you called several witnesses who said, we were of the opinion and are of the
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opinion that a certain honourable member of the Committee or Commission was

insincere, I think that was the word used if lam not mistaken. Suppose you

asked them and they jS)aM<, "Well, that is our opinion."

MR. DEWART: There is very little time to-day and I understand the object

of Mr. Ferguson's report is to see what we can get ahead with. If this stands

other things dan be proceeded with.

MR. WIDDIFIELD : This matter has been referred to this committee by the

House and I am trying to move that this case be not considered by this committee.

I cannot see that there is anything to warrant the consideration of this committee,

or taking up the time of this committee. That is my motion that it be

not considered.

MR. MACBRIDE: Which case?

MR. WIDDIFIELD: The last one mentioned.

MR. BRACKIN: The matter referring to the statement made by Mr. Swayze
in regard to the member for Brantford.

MR. HAY : My query had to do with all the cases. I want to know whether

Mr. Ferguson as solicitor 'advises we go on and follow it to a conclusion, and

if we are getting any place even if we do prove that.

MR. FERGUSON : Some of these charges are quite serious, and I should think

that it is up to the honourable members of the House to show to the public that

there is nothing in these charges. I understand that is the object of it. And
if they are investigated and then shown that there is

1

nothing behind them,

or if the charges are withdrawn, then the end ha<s been accomplished.

MR. BRACKIN: But with regard to the Swayze matter, Mr. Ferguson,

assuming for the sake of argument that you are going to call witnesses, is it

possible to get any evidence except that of people who say, "Well, that is our

opinion. We think he was insincere/' Does that get us anything?
MR. DEWART : Surely, Mr. Ferguson has said he has not so far been able to

report on that case. Therefore -I think he should have time to report. And I

would move an amendment to the motion of Mr. Widdifield. That at such

time as this committee meets to take under consideration the Ashplant matter,

the Hicks, Taylor mJatters d think this will be enough for one sitting, because

these are the ones with regard to which certain witnesses have been suggested,

and I therefore move an amendment that at such time as this 'committee pleases

to meet sudh witnesses as Mr. Ferguson suggested on the Ashplant, Hicks and

Taylor cases be summoned to appear.
MR. MACBRIDE : I asked, of course, Mr. Ferguson to amend his information.

I am quite willing he be given time. But to me it is a very iserious matter.

Mr. Swayze made charges on his responsibility as a member of the House, from

his seat in the House. Xow this is a serious matter from my view point. I am
a public man in the Province of Ontario and I want to be able to defend myself.

Now so far as getting evidence is concerned I can bring you most authentic

evidence to prove my efforts were sincere. And I want an opportunity of doing

that. And I first want my accuser to bring evidence if he has any. If he lias

not I have plenty.

MR. FERGUSON: Of course so far as I am concerned I am bound by the

instructions I get. I take it so far as this committee is concerned, it is bound

by instructions from the House. Therefore, this committee in my judgment,

would have no power whatever to amend or interfere in any way with the matter

that is referred to it. That would ibe my idea of it at all events. The committee
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may be of a different view, but so far as I am concerned I cannot make the change.

MR. LENNOX: In view of what Mr. Ferguson says, is Mr. Widdifield's

motion in order?

MR. BRACKIN: Well, MT. Widdifield's motion never was seconded.

MR. CRIDLAND : I take pleasure in seconding his motion.

MR. MACBRIDE : It is out of order.

MR. TOLMIE: It ^eerns to me that the only fair thing we can do to the

committee and to everybody concerned is that the Swayze part should stand

over until our counsel has time to consider the thing and bring in his suggestions.

MR. BRACKIN : That is Mr. Dewart's amendment. There is a motion and

an amendment. The motion is, That this committee dp not take any action in

(he way of investigating what are known ajs the Swayze charges. The amendment

by Mr. Dewart is that the 'Committee proceed to call witnesses in the Ashplant,
Hicks and Taylor matters, and that we do not take up the Swayze matter until

a later meeting, when Mr. Ferguson will have time to make a report to the com-

mittee on the same. I will put the amendment.

MR. LENNOX: I am not interested in Mr. Swayze or Mr. iMacBride or any-

body else, but it seems to me that the motion is entirely out of order. Certain

charges have been made in the House and then sent her for the purpose of being

investigated. Now every investigation would be closed off if this is not stopped.

Let us take the case of Mr. Hicks, and I have nothing against Mr. Hicks. I do

not know whether he said it or whether he did riot. But all Mr. Hicks will have

to do if he does not want to be met by this committee is to bring his friends here

and move the committee does not deal with it.

Now as I understand it, the charges were sent here for a specific purpose

and that specific purpose will not be carried out unless the witnesses, the evidence,

is exhausted, unless witnesses are 'produced before this committee. And it seems

to me that it is out of order for any member of the committee to get up and say,

notwithstanding the direction made by the House we are not going to deal with

it because we think there is nothing in it, although we do not know anything

about the evidence, we do not know what is going to be produced, and we do not

care how it affects Mr. MaeBride. We have come to the conclusion without

knowing what evidence counsel will be able to obtain, and knowing only what

we have seen in the press, that it should not go on further. I am merely pointing

this out, and not taking sides with Mr. MacBride or Mr. Swayze or anybody
else. 'But I have never seen this done before in any committee, especially in

this Committee where direction was given that certain things should be done.

MR. MACBRIDE: As one of the interested parties- I want to ask your pardon
for speaking again. Accusations were first made against me at the Welland

convention. Again I made it mly business they were made on the floor of

the House.

MR. DEWART: This committee has no power to sit during a session of the

House without leave of the House, and therefore I ask that the previous resolutions

be dealt with by the committee. It is a question of whether we get some business

ready for the next meeting or not. Unless we get leave from the House we have

no right to sit now.

MR. MACBRIDE : I am quite willing to defer the matter, but I want to insist

as a public man, demanding an opportunity to vindicate myself, that this com-

mittee deal with the mlatter the 'House has referred to them.

MR. HAY: I cannot see that this committee has any choice in the matter
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the House has referred' to it.

MR. WIDDIFIELD: As I understand it, it was just simply referred to this

committee, and nothing was said about investigation. If we assume that it is our

privilege we can do it today as well as any other time.

MR. BRACKIN: I am putting the amendment by Mr. Dewart; That con-

sideration of the Burnaby and Swayze matters be laid over until a subsequent

meeting, when Mr. Ferguson will have an opportunity to make a report to the

committee thereon.

MR. MACBRIDE : I move an amendment to the amendment ;
That we proceed

with the various investigations ordered, in the order in which Mr. Ferguson

recommends to this Committee.

MR. BRACKIN: Well, as I understand it, he has recommended the Ashplant
matter.

MR. DEWART: That is what I suggested the order in which Mr. Ferguson
recommends.

MR, LENNOX: If you rule, that is all there is to do.

MR. BRACKIN : Those in favor of the amendment by Mr. Dewart ?

MR. MACBRIDE: Will you put the amendment to the amendment that we

proceed with the various cases referred to this committee in the order Mr.

Ferguson recommends.

MR. JOYNT : It seems to me we are all out of order. The House is in

session and I think we should adjourn and meet again at the call of the Chairman.

MR. 'BRACKIN : Let me put the amendment. Mr. Ferguson has recommended
the order in which they should be dealt with, Ashplant, Hicks and Taylor matters.

Now Mr. Dewart's motion is that the Burnaby and Swayze matter be left to a

subsequent meeting.
MR. LENNOX: Mr. Dewart did not refer to the Burnaby matter at all.

MR. DEWART : My suggestion was that we proceed with the first three matters

Mr. Ferguson has suggested at. the meeting.
Mr. Dewart's amendment being put, the Chairman declared it carried.

MR. BRACKIN : I have got the list of those witnesses. Will somebody please
move as to the witnesses to be summoned.

MR. FERGUSON: There is one other charge here. Pardon me if I did not
deal with it yet the Hall matter.

MR. BRACKIN : We will leave it over.

MR. DEWART : I move that the witnesses named by Mr. Ferguson be

summoned here.

MR. BRACKIN: When?
HON. MEMBER: Friday?
MR. CURRY : No, Friday we have the Public Accounts.

HON. MEMBER : No, . Thursday is Public Accounts.

MR. CURRY: Friday. Wednesday and Friday. Then I understand tomor-

row is Private Bills.

MR. DEWART: Well, Private Bills will not interfere. I move they be sum-

moned to appear here tomorrow at 10.30-.

MR. WEBSTER: I second it.

MR. BRACKIN: You could not get them here tomorrow.

MR. FERGUSON: I do not see how you can proceed satisfactorily tomorrow

morning at 10.30. Tomorrow afternoon?

Mft DEWART: Say 1.30 tomorrow.
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HON. MEMBER : Can we get the witnesses here ?

MR. DEWART: Well, we will have somebody here, surely.

On instructions being given for the snmanoning of the following witnesses

the committee adjourned^ E. W. McCarty, H. B. Ashplant, Mayor E. S. Little,

Aid. John Bridge, Marshall Graydon, all of London; and Andrew Hicks, M. P. P.,

David Taylor, M. P. P., and an unnamed Mail and Empire correspondent.

APRIL 21ST, 1921.

The standing committee on Privileges and Elections met in the Private

Bills Committee room on Thursday April 21, the chairman, Mr. E. L. Brackin

presiding.
The Committee being called to order the chairman said: Now gentlemen

there are three matters proposed to be taken up. We have the Ashplant charge,

the statement by Mr. Hicks and the statement by Mr. Taylor. Mr. McCrae is

not here and Mr. McCrae is interested to some extent in the Ashplant charge
because there was a statement made with regard to him 'being ready to take stock to

divide up among the members of the Committee to promote the bill. I suggest that

we go on with the others first. There is only one witness on the London matter.

After we met yesterday I saw Mr. Lennox and Mr. Dewart and others who agreed
that if we 'brought down four or five of these gentlemen from London we couldn't

hope to dispose of them between 1.30 and 3 o'clock when the House would meet,
and so it was decided that we would call the man who wrote the report in the

Globe of Ashplant's remarks, get him here and get them verified, first as to

whether or not the report is correct, and then we can call other witnesses at a

subsequent sitting. I suggest that we take up first the statement said to have

been made by Mr. Hicks. Is that agreeable to the members of the 'Committee?

Carried.

Mr. Ferguson, counsel for the Committee thereupon read the following:
" That whereas one Andrew Hicks of Centralia, Ontario, and a member

"
of the Legislative Assembly, representing the riding of South Huron did

"make a statement on or about the 9th day of June 1920 as reported in
"
the Press as follows :

London, -Ont., June 9th "The offerings of money to representatives
"of the people to pass certain pieces of legislation during the last Session

"of the Legislature were appalling," was the startling statement made by
"Andrew Hicks, U.F.O. whip, in an address to the East Middlesex U.F.O.
"
picnic here this afternoon.

"
But, thank God," he added,

" Not one of the
" U.F.O. members succumbed to the effort of bribery."

MR. FERGUSOX: That is the charge as far as Mr. Hicks is concerned. I would
ask that Mr. Hicks be called.

Andrew Hicks called and sworn
;

Q. Mir. Hicks, you have 'heard the charge that has been read here of the
statement credited to you?

A. Yes.

Q. Would you mind telling the Committee what you said on that occasion?

A. Gentlemen, regarding the statement it <can be made contradictory, but
to facilitate matters and to save unnecessary delay on the part of the committee
I will say here and now that the statement as read by Mr. Ferguson is correct.

I will say I made the statement in order to facilitate matters and to avoid the
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necessity for calling witnesses of any kind. I will say the statement as read is

correct. The situation, and the reason for my making
1 the statement is this,

very briefly; When the matter of the Beach Protection Act was up in the House

last Session strong representations were made by American interests against the

passing of the Beach Protection Act. The member who was directly concerned

in the matter was Mr. Fox. He asked me if I would lend my assistance in the

passing of the bill and I said I would. No doubt many of the members recall the

strenuous opposition put up by these American interests to the passing of the

Beach Protection Act. Up to that point that is all I have to say, that I did lend

my influence and helped toward the passing of the bill on the special request of

Mr. Fox. Immediately after the committee had passed the bill, as we were filing

out of the Private Bills Committee room, I by chance met Mr. Fox right outside

the door. He was pleased to have the bill passed and said it meant a great deal

to him and to his constituents to have the bill passed. Now the whole thing

hinges just here and I will produce statements to this effect. The statement I

understood from Mr. Fox was this, that
"

if I switched enough to defeat this

bill I could have had $'20,000, had I changed and caused the defeat of this bill,

the Beach Protection Act. That is the ground for the making of my statement,

and when that statement appeared in the press and caused so much concern ......

MR. HAY : Let us get clear here
;
do you mean if you had switched or if Mr.

Fox had switched ?

MR. HICKS : All I wanted was to pass the bill, Mr. Fox was for the bill.

MR. LEXXOX : If who had switched ?

A. It was the member for Essex who wanted the bill passed because it

affected the pe'ople in his constituency. The statement I say is this; Mr. Fox
was pleased the bill was passed and he said had I switched ......

Q. Who, you or Mr. Fox ?

A. Had Mr. Fox went and gone against the bill, he could have had that.

That is how I got Mr. Fox's statement, comiing out of the Committee room.

After it appeared in the paper I had a communication by long distance telephone
with the Attorney General and he suggested that I come down and meet him in

Toronto and have a discussion in regard to the matter. I came down as per

appointment. I cannot give you the date but it was a few days afterward. There
was a controversy in the papers and the Attorney General thought it would be

better for me to say what the history of it was. That was in the course of a

week or ten days afterwiard ... it is not material. On that visit I did not see

Mr. Fox and Mr. Fox didn't see me. I did not see in that time any Government
member outside of possibly Mr. Freeborn who was at the picnic. There was no

controversy in the matter, no arrangement or anything of the kind. When I got

up to the Parliament Buildings here it was I believe in the afternoon and Mr. Fox
had already been up seeing the Attorney General and had stated his case and placed
his case in writing, in a statement. Now with the permission of the chair I will

read Mr. Fox's statement. I read it when I arrived in Toronto.

MR. BTUOKIN: I don't, think, as far as Mr. Fox is concerned it would be

proper to put in this unless it is the original statement.

WITNESS : It is a copy of the original statement.

MR. BRACKIN: I don't think we should let that go in at this juncture,
since the original is available.

MR. SINCLAIR : And Mr. Fox is available.

MR. BRACKIN : If Mr. Fox were here to say this is a copy it would be all right.
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I think we ought to defer that until we can get Mr. Fox here.

MR. HICKS : Well, Mr. Chairman, if I am not allowed to read this I cannot

see that I can go any further to clear up this misunderstanding.

MR. BRACKIN; You will get it out all right.

MR. FERGUSON: Strictly speaking it is not admissable as evidence. There

is no doubt about that .... Then Mr. Hicks, that completes your statement, that

you want to make?
A. That completes my statement to this point. After reading Mr. Fox's

letter I made a statement to the Attorney General -and I have a copy of that in

my hand.

MR. BRACKIN : You desire to put in the statement you made then ?

MR. LENNOX : I think we should have it.

MR. BRACKIN : Go ahead then.

MR. HICKS: (reads)
JUNE 23, 1920.

HON. W. E. RANEY, ATTORNEY GENERAL,
PARLIAMENT BUILDINGS, TORONTO.

DEAR SIR:

I have read the letter written to you by Mr. M. C. Fox M.P.P.

dated the 22nd lust, which you showed me today. The statement that I made at

London with reference to moneys being available to members of the Legislature
to corruptly influence their votes on matters bef-ere the House at the last Session

was based entirely upon a remark made to me by Mr. Fox. Apart from that

statement I have no information whatever as to any approaches having been made
to any member of the Legislature to corruptly influence his action in respect
to any legislature before the House. No money was ever offered to me, and as

far as I know, no money was offered to> any other member of the House, and no

improper proposal ever made in that connection either directly or indirectly.

I, of course, accept Mr. Fox's statement without reservation. Apparently
the whole matter was based on a misunderstanding on my part of his remark."

MR. FERGUSON : Is that the only thing upon which your statement was
based?

A. The only thing.

Q. That is the only piece of legislation affected by it?

A. Yes, my understanding was that the people making the approaches
were American interests. What their names were I never learned.

Q. You never learned the names of these American interests?

A. No.

MR. HAY : How did you arrive at that understanding by the one state-

ment from Mr. Fox?
A. Yes, by the one statement by Mr. Fox.

MR. FERGUSON : To make the matter perfectly clear, your statement reported
here is based on that one statement. You believed that and made the statement

accordingly ?

A.Yes.

Q. You know nothing about the facts except what was related by Mr, Fox ?

A. No.

Q. You have no other reason for basing such a statement upon?
A. No sir.

MR. BRACKIN: Would any member of the Committee like to ask any
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question ?

MR. SINCLAIR : Did you ask Mr. Fox anything further about it at that

time ?

A. There was no conversation between Mr. Pox and I regarding the

matter at all. I based my statement upon the remark I mentioned here and

I didn't meet Mr. Fox until the day he made the statement. He left before

I arrived.

Q. At the time Mr. Fox made the statement was the House in Session?

A. Yes.

Q. Then during the remainder of the Session was there any further

discussion ?

A. No.

MR. LENNOX: When you say that the statement made by you was based

on a misunderstanding what do you mean by that ?

A. Mr. Fox's statement would clear that up, it gives what he says he

mentioned when he mentioned it to me.

Q. He did say to you what you have told us?

A. That is what I say.

Q. Bid you make the statement which appeared in the papers and which

you to-day admit you said based entirely on what you have just told us?
A. Oh yes.

Q. Xow let me read it to you and see what justification you had for

making that statement.

MR. HAY: (interrupting) T was wondering if in view of ^thie written

statement by Mr. Hicks it would not be better, the two being collateral, if we
were to have the statement in writing by Mr. Fox.

MR. LENNOX: I think that is a good suggestion.
MR. BRACKING What is the date of the copy you (have, someone could go

to the Attorney-General's office and ask them for the original, I think?
A. June 22.

MR. FERGUSON: I would suggest that it go in subject to verification.

MR. CURRY: If this is a matter only affecting Mr. Hicks and if he is

satisfied to let that go in as a copy he has a right to have it go in. It cannot go
as evidence against anyone else except him, <and I do not see any reason why it

should not go in.

MR. B^RACKIN: Except that it is produced as a copy of the original when
the original is available.

MR. CURRY : But he is the one interested and he says it is a copy.
MR. BRACKING But Mr. Fox is another honourable member who is also

interested, if something is put in as a copy of what he said, that he has nev^r
seen.

MR. CURRY: It cannot in as against Mr. Fox.

MR. FERGUSON": I would suggest that you do it subject to verification.

WITNESS: (Beads) "Kinjrsville, June 22nd, 1920'." This is addressed

to Mr. Baney and is signed by Mr. Fox.

"Dear Sir:

"In answer to your inquiry with reference to statements that have appeared

in the press connecting my name with the alleged offers of money in the matter of

the 'amendment of the Beach Protection Act of last Session, I desire to say

that no one ever approached me either directly or indirectly with any offer of
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money or other corrupt proposal in connection with this legislation. Not only

so but no one has ever approached me since I have been a member of the

Legislature with any offer of money or corrupt proposal in connection with any
matter whatsoever.

"I think I can understand how Mr. Hicks received the impression which he

appears to have. There was, 'before the last Session of the Legislure litigation

pending 'between the township of Pelee Island and the ,S'andusky 'Comipany which

has been engaged in removing sand under the waters adjoining Pelee Island,

the township claiming that the operations of the sand company were causing
the erosion of the shores of the island. The company offered to pay the township

$50,000 in settlement of that action and this offer was refused by the Township
Council. I recall mentioning to Mr. Hicks the fact that the company had

offered $50,'000 to settle the matter. I had no thought that he would understand

that I meant 'by that statement that any money had been offered to members
of the Legislature, or that there had been anything improper in the proposal."

MIR. FERGUSON: Was it $50,000 you read?

A. Yes.

Q. And $20jOOO was the amount you mentioned?

A. Yes.

Q. 'And that is all you know about it?

A. Yes.

MR. LENNOX : You say that it was $20,000 that Mr. Fox mentioned to you ?

A. Yee.

Q. And that was mentioned immediately after the Bill had been diposed
of?

A. It was passed in Committee.

Q. And you took it for granted from what he said that if he had opposed
the Bill it would have been worth $20,000 to him?

A. 'Certainly I did.

Q. That you say is the only occasion on which you had any reason to

believe a member of the Legislature had been approached?
A. Yes sir.

Q. That being the case how do you explain this statement you to-day
admit you made. "The offerings of money to representatives of the people to

pass certain pieces of legislation during the last Session of the Legislature were

appalling?" Upon what do you base that statement?
A. >0n the statement I have just made. The wording of that should have

been "a piece of legislation," instead of "pieces."

Q. Do you think, as Whip of the Government that you were justified in

making swh a public statement on the statement that Mr. Fox. made to you?
A. I certainly did.

Q- That "the offerings of money to the representatives of the people to

pass certain pieces of legislation during the last Session of the Legislature were

appalling?"

A. Yes sir.

Q. That being the case can you suggest, or have you any reason to believe

that there were representatives of the people that were offered money?
A. Only on this occasion.

Q. That was one representative. Are you correct in saying that offerings

of money to representatives of the people were appalling?
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A. Yes sir.

Q. What other representatives was money offered to?

A. Well, if you want it in the plural, I possibly overheard the statement

of Mr. Taylor.

Q. You overheard the statement of Mr. Taylor at that time?

A. I cannot give you anything as to that.

Q. You cannot say as to that?

A. No.

MR. BRACKIN : See if he understands that. Mr. Lennox means,
'

at the

time you made the speech at the time this statement was made, had you then

heard of what Mr. Taylor had 'claimed?

A. I would not 'he definite on that. Mr. Taylor's statement I think

followed the statement that appeared credited to me, a few days after.

MR. LENNOX : Then whether rightly or wrongly the conclusion you arrived

at from what Mr. Fox told you was that he had been offered the sum of $20,000
to switch?

A. Yes sir.

Q. Now, having been told that and believing it to be true what action did

you take or did you do anything as far as the Government was concerned?

A. No sir.

Q. Did you make any report to any member of the Government after you
were told this?

A. No sir.

Q. Did you report what you had been told and what "your belief was to

any member of the Legislature?
A. No sir. I don't think I did. I don't think so.

Q. Then will you kindly explain, and as a member of the Legislature and
as Whip of the Government, 'believing that a member of the party to which you

belong had been offered $20.0)00 as a bribe, why did you not report it and take

some steps to ascertain whether it was true or not ?

A. Well sir, I never concluded it never occurred to me, as it does now,
what a serious thing it might mean. I did not think then there was any serious

consequences connected unless there was an acceptance.
Q. Now when you made your speech at London on the 9th of June you

were aware then that it had not been accepted?
A. Certainly.

Q- You knew then that it was not a serious matter because it hadn't been

accepted ?

A. Yes.

Q. Then in view of that why did you use the words "The offerings of

money to representatives of the people . . . were appalling," if you didn't

consider it serious?

A. I meant the size of the amounts.

Q. The amount offered?

A. Yes.

Q. And when you made that statement to the public you believed it to

be true?

A. I certainly did.

Q. Now subsequent to that there appeared in the press a correction made

by you. Did you give any statement to the press subsequent to the date of
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making that statement at the picnic?
A. 'Not that I have any recollection of.

Q. DO you recall a statement appearing in the press by way of an explana-

tion 'by you that the reporters must have misunderstood you, that it was a windy

day and that your voice must not have been carried with accuracy?

A. You are referring to the London picnic in June?

Q. Yes.

A. I was interviewed over the long distance phone several times by reporters

from the city, in fact one reporter came out to the farm.

Q. Did you as a matter of fact when you were interviewed over the phone
or in person deny that the report that had appeared in the papers was not what

was said at the picnic?
A. I would say I never enlarged upon it until I got my ground, lyitil I

got my bearings.

Q. What do you mean by that?

A. That I did not entertain any reporters as to giving them any further

matter.

Q. Did you deny having made the statement to any reporters?
A. I would not say definitely, on that. It was a matter of controversy

with men at the picnic whether I did or did not make it.

Q. I don't want to be unfair, I want to get all the truth. Subsequently there

appeared an explanation by you in the press in which you deny having made the

statement. Did you say that?

A. I don't recall it.

Q. Do you reoa.ll having seen or was it ever brought to your attention, a

report that you denied having made the statement and that the reporters on

account of the wind must have misunderstood you?
A. I might have made that statement.

Q. And if you did make that statement, it of course, would be incorrect

in view of what you have said to-day?
A. If I could see the statement I would have a better idea.

MR. BRACKIN: Any statement of that kind was not before the House.

MR. FERGUSON: It was not brought to my attention.

MR. LENNOX: Then of course you made no public statement such as you
have made here to-day, that it was a misunderstanding between you and Mr. Fox.

You have made no previous public statement?

A. Regarding the misunderstanding?
Q._-Yes?
A. Not that I recollect.

Q. And as I understand it, although you and Mr. Fox sat in the House
here for some 1

weeks after the report of the 'Committee you never even discussed

the matter with him?
A. I don't think so.

Q. Though you thought he had been approached with an offer of $20,000,

you as Whip of the party didn't think it your duty to investigate and ascertain

whether that was true or untrue. Is that right?
A. I say, no.

MR. FERGUSON : Just one question. Apparently there is a misunderstanding
between you and Mr. Fox as to what was said on that occasion. Was there
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anybody else present when Mr. Fox made this statement to you?
A. As I recollect it was a matter of walking along the corridor beside

one another. We weren't in a group or standing and discussing the matter at

all. It was just casually referred to when we were walking along.

Q. You don't remember the name of any person who might have over-

heard what Mr. Fox said to you?
A. I cannot say who was there, several people were walking along.
ME MACBRIDE: After this statement appeared in the press you paid a

visit to the office of the Attorney
JGeneral ?

A. Yes.

Q. What occurred, what was the object of your visit to the Attorney-General
and what occurred?

MR. BRAOKIX : That was brought out 'before the Committee. If the

Member had been here he would have heard that question answered. He
explained how he happened to come down to Toronto.

MR. MACBRIDE: All I am trying to show is this, Mr. Hicks made a state-

ment that he did not realize the seriousness of the statement. What I want to

find out is, was he then advised- as to the seriousness of the statement?

ME. HICKS: I don't think I was advised of it. After talking the matter

over, after seeing what Mr. Fox's statement was I accepted his statement with-

out reservation, knowing him as I know him. I ldit\e lie- \vas sincere. I

believed that statement was sincere when I read it, I have every confidence in

Mr. Fox.

ME. SINCLAIR: You didn't see Mr. Fox at that time?

A. No, I didn't see him in the city at that time.

MR. BRACKIX: There is one thing I would like to ask you. You have
told us what -Mr. Fox said to you, or what you understood him to say, that he
could have had $20,000 to switch his vote on that particular Bill. Has Mr.
Fox at any time since that ever said to you he didn't say that.

A. No, we have never conversed on that matter.

MR. BRACKIN: Of course the copy of the letter of his doesn't deal specifi-

cally with that. He doesn't say "I never said it."

A. We never had any conversation on that.

MR. FERGUSON: Mr. Fox will be called to explain in his evidence.
MR. BRACKIN: I do not see anything in Mr. Fox's statement that he

denied he told Mr. Hicks such a thing.
MR. FERGUSON: No.
MR. FERGUSON : That is all the evidence we have on the Hicks case to-day.

I would suggest that the only other witness we could call on thait point is Mr. Fox,
and that he be called at the next sitting.

MR. LENNOX: I would suggest that the reporter who interviewed Mr. Hicks
be called.

MR. FERGUSON: He is here to-day. What ever the Committee thinks, only
the reason I did not intend to call the reporter is that Mr. Hicks comes and says,
"This is perfectly true. I made that statement."

MR. LENNOX: Yes, but that may be for a purpose of making it not

necessary to call the reporter.

MR. FERGUSON: Well, it is for the Committee to say.

MR. BRACKIN: Will some Member make a motion with regard to the

summoning of whatever witnesses you want. You say, Mr. Lennox, that you
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want the reporter who interviewed Mr. Hicks.

MR. FERGUSON. There was a reporter at the picnic who sent the dispatch.

That reporter is here.

HON. MEMBER : We do not need him because Mr. Hicks admits it.

MR. CURRY : Well, is that material, as to what he said afterwards.

MR. LEXXOX: W^e do not know until we hear his evidence. We do not

know fcrhat took place subsequent.
THE CHAIRMAN: There is no dispute about the statement. Mr. Hicks

says,
U
I made that statement."

MR. LEXXOX : I suppose the public would like to know when Mr. Hicks

was interviewed whether he told the reporter he made -the statement. I think

it is a matter of very great importance.
Hox MEMBER: Well, in the light of what it is that is referred to this

Committee suppose that two months afterwards he denied he made that state-

ment. Is that material,, except the thing we have to particularly inquire into is

this particular statement that was (made,, and whether it was made, and whether

there was any justification for it.

MR. LEXXOX: I do not want to get into a controversy on the subject, but

what I think my right is and what I shall insist upon, subject to the Committee,

is that the witness be called, amd as the question is put to him you may rule as

to whether he may answer, as to whether it is relative. I think surely we have

Hie right to have him here to be examined.

MR. FERGUSON: What paper did he represent?
MR. CURRY: I have not any doubt about it, if a member of the Committee

asks to have a witness called, and makes a statement that that witness can give

evidence that is material, why he should have him called. But this Committee

ought not to be asked to summon witnesses here to give evidence that is not

material, if there is any doubt about that.

Mi?. SINCLAIR: What we want is the fullest of information.

MR. LEXXOX: We must take it for granted you know what the witness

is going to say.

MR. CURRY: No, I do not.

MR. LENNOX: Well, you must take it for granted I know.

MR. McBRiDE: I do not suppose any of us know very much about this

affair, and until such time as the1 witness is called how are we going to know
whether he has material evidence to give or not. We are all groping for facts.

MR. FERGUSON: If controversy should arise between Mr. Hicks and Mr. Fox.
then it would be important what Mr. Hicks said to the reporter.

MR. LENNOX: I think everything is important, everything ought to be

disclosed that took place arising out of the statements made by Mr. Hicks at

that picnic.

HON. MEMBER: Hear, hear.

THE CHAIRMAN : Well you move a motion, or maybe you will be in a

position to move before the Committee rises. I understand you gentlemen
know the name.

MR. LENNOX : Xo. I only saw the paper. T do not want to be misunder-
stood. I am not taking an interest in Mr. Hicks. Only I think this matter

should be gone into.

THE CHAIRMAN: If you can get his name, or get the paper?
MR. FERGUSON: I miav be alble to find that out,
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THE CHAIRMAN : Well, as I understand it, 'Mr. Lennox moves that the

reporter for the newspaper that interviewed Mr. Hicks ought to be summoned,
when his name can be ascertained. That is agreeable, gentlemen?

The motion being put, the Chairman declared it carried.

THE CHAIRMAN : Now then with regard to the other witnesses.

HON. MEMBER: It seems to me the fact that Mr. Hicks admitted that

possibly he misunderstood Mr. Fox. If Mr. Fox comes before this Committee

and tells us his story, and it is proved to be a misunderstanding, what more neec1

to go any further. That is all there is to it.

MR. LENNOX: A very simple way of getting away from it.

MR. 'CuRRY: Just in answer to Mr. Lennox and Mr. MacBride. I have

in my mind what is 'brought to my attention regularly at Public Accounts,
in which we use a form: "1 hereby certify the evidence to be obtained by blank

by the Public Accounts is in my opinion material and important."
MR. LENNOX: Well, I have not the slightest hesitation in signing that.

MR. CURRY: Exactly. You do not need to sign that.

THE CHAIRMAN: That is that out of the way.
MR. CURRY : Now then there* has to be a motion made by a member of

the Committee and the Comfmittee must order.

THE HAIRMAN: Now then, with regard is it the desire that Mr. Fox
shall be here at the next meeting? If both Mr. Hicks and Mr. Fox appear
before this Committee and say there Was nothing in the story, that they did not

understand the seriousness of it, I am quite satisfied. I have 110 desire to prolong

things, but I think the slate should be wiped clean, and any man whose honour
is in question should be exonerated. If he makes the same statement, I fancy
the only honourable course to my mind is to have him state so here.

MR. TOOMS: I think the Member has done that in his evidence.

THE CHAIRMAN: Major Tolmie moves, seconded by Mr. Calder, that Mr.
Fox be requested to appear at the next meeting of the Committee. You will have
to put that in writing.

The motion being put, the Chairman declared it carried.

MR. HAY: Is Mr. Hicks here? I think it might clear up the minds of

the Committee by asking one question.

(Mr. Hicks, recalled.)

MR. HAY: Did you gather that with the defeat or the carrying of this

Bill to which he referred, and in connection with which you had in mind the

$20,000, that it would be offered to him personally or would it be offered for

distribution ?

A. I thought personally.
THE CHAIRMAN: Why, if he thought it was going to be distributed lie

would take more interest.

MR. CURRY: He didn't think you were going to get any of it.

MR. LENNOX: There was a little Scotch in him.
MR. HAY: The only thing in mind is whether the money was for distribu-

tion to those who assisted in carrying the Bill or whether Mr. Fox dominated
the Committee.

MR. JOYNT: I am satisfied in my own mind that the whole matter
was one of misunderstanding. Mr. Hicks certainly understood Mr. Fox to say
this, and it was some months afterwards, perhaps a -couple of months afterwards
I can easily understand this thing grew in his own mind and was simply a
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misunderstanding .

MR. FERGUSON: That is all of that case. I have a reporter here from

London, and I want him to get through to-day .

THE CHAIRMAN: That is in the Ashplant matter.

Arthur C. Carty was called, sworn and examined as follows:

MR. FERGUSON: Mr. Carty, I understand that you are the local representa-
tive of The Toronto Globe, at London?

A. I am.

Q. And in that capacity you sent a dispatch, I believe to The Toronto

Globe, relating to something that transpired at a meeting of the City Council
at London on the 7th of March last?

A. Yes.

Q. 'I will read you the charge that was made here so as .to bring to your
attention what the matter in dispute is;

(Mr. Ferguson reads the charge embodied in the House Proceedings already
incorborated in verbatim report, pages 2 and 3.)

Q. Now were you' the reporter who sent the account of that meeting to

The Toronto Globe?

A. I was, yes.

Q. A,nd I believe the report sent in by you appears in a copy of The Globe,
dated March 8, 1921 ?

A. I believe so.

Q. You might just see if that is the report you refer too ?

A. Yes, that is my story of the meeting.
THE CHAIRMAN : Read the thing over to the Committee, Mr. Carty, because

we have not it all in our minds.

A. The matter under discussion was the question of raising the City Gas

Company rates by authority of the Legislature from 90 cents to $1.25 per
thousand feet. The basis of the agreement as suggested!, or as put before the

Council by Alderman Cameron Wilson had just been set forth in all the details

and Mr. Ashplant asked permission to address the Council as one of the deputa-
tion who appeared in protest. I said : (reads, from Globe, March 8.)

"Mr Ashplant raised objection to this agreement, and declared that the

Company would find it possible to set aside sums of money to influence the vote

of members of the Legislature against the interests of the citizens.

"Suppose McCrea should be given $15,000 to get this through; suppose
the Company should take a block of this stock and distribute it among the

members of the Legislature to get this through," he commenced when Mayor
Little interjected a protest,, declaring that he would not sit to hear the honour

of the Provincial Legislators impugned. 'Mr. Ashplant rejoined that he had 'not

sa.id that this would be done, but only that it could be done, and, he added,
"it is the most natural thing in the world if the Company should do it."

Now that is the only part of the article that is relevant.

Q. Is that a correct account of what took place at the meeting?
A. That is a correct account.

Q. Now I think the Committee would like just to hear tlie circumstances

a little more elaborately than you have given them;.

A. Well, this agreement provided among other things that the capital stock

of the Company should be limited to $400,000 and the dividend of ten per cent,

should be allowed on that . That is, that rates should be fixed that would provide



500 APPENDIX No. 3.

for a return of ten per cent, on $400,000.

THE CHAIRMAN: Well, let us start in the other way. There was a Bill

before the Legislature on behalf of the City Gas Company of London.

A. Yes.

Q. It was in reference to the passing of this Bill in the Legislature that

this meeting was held?

A. Yes, I understand the Private Bills Committee had sent it to the

Council for them to give 'an opinion as to the action that should be taken. Mr.

Ashplant argued that if the city approved a rate devised to pay a 10 per cent.

return, capitalized say at 6 per cent., would actually mean a much higher

capitalization for the 'Company than $400,000. He gave various other illustra

tions. Then he developed the point further contending that the Company had

less than $400,000 actually invested in the property. He said, I think, that the

Company had only .an investment of about $260,000 in the plant, and that the

remainder represented earnings of the Company of past years, that were put
in as reinvestment of the earnings of the Company. He objected that these

earnings that were so reinvested really belonged to the people, that it had come

from the people and had been charged to the people in excess of the service in the

payment of service of previous years. And he said that if the Gas Company was

permitted to charge the rate that this larger amount of $400,000 necessitated, that

they were actually being given, I think he said, $140,000 or $144,000, of a bonus

stock. That was the phrase, "bonus stock." That is, he said that stock would be

issued against these excess earnings so reinvested. Then he went on to argue this

would give the Company a fund.

He went on to make the point that this $140,000', that would be given by

the people to the Company, they would simiply issue stock against it and would

have a fund available that cost them nothing, which they might use to further

the interests of the Bill. He dealt with that point a moment and then he came

to this point. I quote. (Reads from The Globe of March 8, 1921.)

"Suppose McCrea should be given $15,OW to get this through; suppose the

Company should take a block of this stock and distribute it among the members

of the Legislature to get this through," he commenced, when Mayor Little

interjected a protest, declaring that he would not sit to hear the honour of the

Provincial Legislators impugned. Mr. Ashplant rejoined that he had not said

that this would be done, 'but only that it could be done, and, he added, "it is

the most natural thing in the world if the Company should do it."

I am not just certain on that point. I think instead of member* of tho

Legislature, I think he confined hijmselif to members of the Private Bills

Committee.

MR. BRACKIN: I hope so.

WITNESS: At that rmoment Mayor Little, who had been in the chair-

Council was in the Committee of the Whole and Mayor Little was sitting in

the seat of the Chairman he dretw his chair back quickly and said he would not

hear such stuff as that, and honourable members of the Legislature's honour

impugned. And he abruptly left the meeting and went to the ante-room.

Several of the Aldermen shouted, "No-, no," and there were several interruptions.

At that point 'Mr. Ashplant went on ,and his rejoinder was that he had not said this

would be done, but 'could be done, and he had said it might be done. I am not

quoting directly, but that phrase, "The most natural thing in the world," was

from his speech. So what he said was, that he had not said this would be done,
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but that Companies seeking? public privileges of one sort or another very frequently
resort to that sort of thing, and then he said. "It would be the most natural

thing in the world." I think that covers the whole thing.

Q. The Mayor, you say, left in protest?
A. Yes, and subsequently in an interview

Q. (Interrupting Witness) Was there any pretest from the other members?
A. Yes, Alderman Wilson, who had (brought forward the agreement.

Q. Who was the 'Chairman?

A. Mr. Ashton. Mr. Little is the Mayor. (Reads from The Globe, Marsh 8,

1921.) "Alderman J. C. Wilson, Chairman of the Committee which negotiated
the agreement, hotly condemned Mr. Ash-plant's address as the worst

distortion of facts he had ever heard. "Ponzi had nothing on you, Mr. Ashplant,"
he declared. "Your whole address has been purely and simply destructive with-

out one suggestion of a possibly better arrangement/'
MB. CURRY: The MeredJith you sipeak of, is he the City Solicitor?

A. I made no reference to Meredith.

HON. MEMBER: Mayor Little got up he said.

Q. Would you mind telling us who were present in case we want to know
the names?

A. There was Alderman Harley, John Bridge, Aid. Brighton, Aid. Boss
I believe that practically all the Aldermen were there with the exception of

Alderman Waters, who was ill. On the following day and I propose using
this paper for reference I interviewed

Q. (Interrupting) I want you to tell about the subsequent interview with
Mr. Ashplant?

A. At the time I wrote this thing, this article was written within thirty
minutes after the incident occurred, I went to the telegraph office with the

story.

Q. Bo you take shorthand?

A. No. I do not use shorthand. It was a brief incident, only three or

four sentences.

Q. Did you make notes?

A. Oh yes, I make notes, absolutely.

MR. FERGUSON : M.T. Carty has not his notes. They were destroyed.

MR. CARTY: Immediately after having written this thing, within thirty

minutes after the incident, I threw my notes aside at the telegraph office. Of

course I did not anticipate tihere wias going to be any denial. The following day
I found that the office had 'been cleaned up and the notes had gone. And then

when it was dienied, I called up each member of the City Council. I got Mayor
Little, Alderman Harley, Alderman J. C. Wilson, 'Chairman of the Committee.

Alderman John Bridge, Alderman Drake, Alderman W. A. Wilson, Alderman
W. Boss, Alderman Brighton, and Alderman Ashton.

I interviewed each of them. What I said was this. I read the item in

The Globe to which denial had been given. I said, "This is my story of what

occurred at the ounoil." I asked him to listen very carefully, and then tell

me what he thought -about it. Each man gave me his statement of whether in

his judgment I had made a correct report of the meeting. Then, with this state-

ment I got from each of the Aldermen, before sending them to Toronto, I read

them back and had each man approve, each of the persons interviewed, before

it was sent out. So these are all verified interviews before publication. They
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are all, with the exception of Mr. Ashton, all confirmed.

(Witness reads interviews 'appearing in The Globe of March 9, 1921.)

"Mayor Little said to-night: 'I most certainly think that the statements

made by Mir.. Ashplant warrant a rebuke from the Legislature. Because I felt

his statements should not go unchallenged I protested and left the meeting. The

same sort of loose talk has 'been allowed recently at several meetings conducted by

these people, notably at the meeting concerning unemployment a week ago, when

E. A. Pocock alleged that we had closed our industries and that I had taken up
a collection to defray my election expenses. When Ashplant started the same

tiling before the -City Council last night, I protested, and if I had been in the

( hair I would not have allowed him to speak another minute.

"He said that the agreement proposed with the 'Gas Company would give the

Company $144,000 of bonus stock which had come from the consumers. He
said there was nothing to prevent the Company using it to secure this Legislation.

Wihen he said that the Company might well give $15,000 to Mr. MoCrea, I at

once left the meeting and did not hear the finish of his statement."

ME. MoC'REA: Please state the amount I was supposed to have received?

A. $15,000,

. Q. Was it in stock ?

A. He did not say Mr. Mcrea was to receive it. Suppose that he should.

(Reads from The Globe of March 9,1921.)

"Alderman J. C. Wilson dOhairman of the Special Committee which

negotiated the agreement with the Gas Company) said: 'Absolutely the state-

ment made by Mr. Ashplant in his remarks, that the Gas Company might use

stock to influence the members of the Private Bills Committee, was unwarranted

and insulting, and the action of the Mayor in protesting and leaving the Council

Chamber was justified. M !

r. Ashplant's remarks were insulting, not only to the

memjbers of the Private Bills Committee, but to the members of the Council,

and that is what I replied in condemnation. I believe the Legislature should

take what action is in their power to make Mr. Ashplant apologize and withdraw'."

ME. FEKGTJSON: Mr. Carty, T do not think you need read any more. Did

you have an interview with Mr. Ashplant?
A. Well, these interviews are all to the same purpose with the other

Aldermen. They were published in The Globe of March 9, 1921.

THE CHAIRMAN: I have not got that Globe.

WITNESS: The report was in on the 8th, and the 9th was the follow up.
Tn addition to interviewing the members of the -City Council, I called up Mr.

Ashplant and I told him just as I did the others. I went to read the story. He
said he had not seen The Globe report of this meeting. I read it to him as I

did the others. Now here is the interview that Mr. Ashplant gave to me:
(Witness reads from The Globe of March 9, 1921.)
"I said that the Bill proposed involved giving the City Gas Company

$144,000 of bonus stock, free, and that any Company having such facilities would
find it possible, if they chose to look upon it as a matter of investment, to pay
out commissions or fees to insure getting the measure through. I was arguing
that if the Company felt like doing it, it could give its solicitor a good commis-
sion or fee, in a perfectly honest, legitimate and straightforward way, to see that

the Bill would go through. I meant that dt could give such money to Mr.

Graydon
"

WITNESS: "Mr. Graydon" That is the Company Solicitor in London.
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(Reads)
"

or any other solicitor, and then it occurred to me that Mr. Graydon
did not speak for his client in the Legislature, and that Mr. McCrea had spoken
for the Company, and I brought in the name of Mr. McCrea in a purely incidental

way to show that he was not intended
"

WITNESS : Now at this point in the interview I asked him repeatedly to tell

me the exact sentence in which Mr. McCrea's name was used. But I could not

get it. I asked him this absolutely dispassionately, for his version of the story,

and told him I was using exactly his story.

( Reads)
-

"
I meant that such companies could give sums of money to three or four solicitors

as is generally done for propaganda purposes. Such companies, when they do that

sort of thing, don't know and don't care very often, just -how the money is spent,

providing they get what they want." Mr. Ashplant was asked how such propa-

ganda usually works out in practice. "Those agents," he explained, "mingle
with the memlbers of the Legislature and in private conversation they put forward
their arguments and data, and influence the members without the members being
aware of it

"

WITNESS : And then I raised another point. I said
;
What did Mayor Little

take offence at when he protested and left the Council Chamber.

(Reads)
" The Mayor gets mad at me on general principles/' he answered. "

I

suppose that he took offense at my statement that the company could influence

the members of the Legislature on its behalf by such legitimate propaganda/'

WITNESS: Now I believe iMr. Ashplant also denied this last interview. I

believe he has since. He did not deny it, but said he would not be responsible
for anything not over his own signature.

Q. Ashplant is not a member of the Council, is he?
A. No. He is an ex-alderman.

Q. He was merely one of a deputation.
A. Yes.

Q. What business is he in?

A. An accountant, I believe.

Q. Now are you an experienced reporter?
A. Yes. I have been a reporter continuously since 1907.

MR. FERGUSON : That is all I have to ask.

MEMBER: Who did you say was with Mr. Ashplant at the meeting?
A. Mr. Thompson was with Mr. Ashplant. He asked permission to speak,

but the council refused permission to hear him speak by some division.

Q. Is Mr. Ashplant a member of any political organization up there ?

A. <! am not just certain, although he ran against Mayor Little in the last

two campaigns as a Labor representative.

Q- He is an outstanding Labor representative, is lie?

A. Yes, he is.

Q. Who was he representing when he went to the City Council ?

A. There are several Labor organizations there, with the Independent
Labor Party. Then, for political purposes, they merged the activities of the

general Labor organization in what is known as the Labor Representation
Committee.

Q. Did he appear in a representative capacity?
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A._Yes. The Labor representation has what they call the High Cost of

Living Committee, and I believe he and Mr. Thompson are members of that

committee and they appeared under that committee.

MR. MtoCREA: 'Has he such a reputation in the community that when he

makes statements such as you have said he did make people are likely to believe

him?
A. Well, Mr. Ashplant would; probably be 'believed by his own friends.

Q. Well what is his general reputation when he makes a statement of that

kind?

A. I do not think that is a fair question.

Q. Is he in the habit of making irresponsible statements?

A. He is in the habit of making statements.

THE CHAIRMAN : Responsible or otherwise. Now I do not think that is fair

to Mr. Carty. He lives in London. He is a newspaper correspondent. I do not

think he should be asked to pass an opinion.
WITNESS : il am absolutely dispassionate in this thing and I was when I

reported this thing. I did not care what he said. I was simply there to record it.

MR. CURRY: Do you know hois reputation for veracity in the district where

he resides?

A. No. I do not know.

MR. OURRY : Well, then, of course you cannot say what his reputation is.

You cannot say anything.
WITNESS : It would only be my judgement of what the community thought.
MR. CURRY : You do not know what his reputation is.

A. He would have various reputations.

Q. But you do not know what his reputation for veracity is in London?
A. No. I do not know what his reputation for veracity is.

MR. McCnEA: M'ay I ask this further question. If this man is given to

making irresponsible statements, making statements on different occasions as

you suggested, why is it the newspapers who are supposed to present reliable

news to the community are so keen on reporting them ?

A. That would infer first that I know Mr. Ashplant is in the habit of

making irresponsible statements, and also that I know the newspapers are in the

habit of reporting them. I do not know that Mr. Ashplant is always reported
when he makes speeches. But when he makes speeches that create public interest

of course he gets them published.

Q. Newspaper notoriety?
A. Just newspaper interest.

MR. TOLMIE : Isn't it a fact that he is an outstanding man in London ?

A. Oh, yes, his name is known to everybody.
Q. Well known?
A. Oh, yes, he ran for mayor twice.

Q. 'One of the leaders of his party?
A. Yes, he stands very high with his party..
MR. FERGUSON: There is one question I want to ask. Is there a split in

the Labor Party in London, two divisions, and he is connected with one of these

divisions ?

A. Well, I have heard that but I did- not know it is a fact.

Q. Do you know just which one he is reputed to be the leader of?

A. Well, I don't know. I do not know just what that would be. But 1
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know this, that in the last campaign some rather harsh things were said about

him by the present political faction, he was called Eed and Bolshevist and so on.

Q. Well, he is prominent in one wing of the Laibor Party.
A. Oh yes, he is prominent in all the wings to the 'extent that he had the

nomination for two years.

MR. FERGUSON: There is another witness here I propose to call. He is a

reporter of the London Advertiser, who happens to be in Toronto to report this

meeting. He was present when Mr. Ashplant made these statements, and I would

like his evidence to be taken.

THE CHAIRMAN : Go ahead. Call him.

Herbert H. Penny, on being sworn, was examined as follows:

MR. FERGUSON: You are a reporter for the London Advertiser?

A. I am.

Q. And were you at the council meeting at London when the charges were

made by Mr. Ashplant?
A. Yes, on the 7th of March last.

Q. And did you hear the evidence given by Mr. Carty?
A. Yes.

MR. CURRY : I will move that this man be called as a witness in this case.

\Vill you second it, General Ross?

GENERAL Ross: Sure.

MR. CURRY : In order to have it go through with the auditor.

The motion being put, the Chairman declared it carried.

Q. Now you heard the evidence given by Mr. Carty as to what took place
at the meeting, as to what Mr. Ashplant said, do you agree or disagree with Mr.

Carty's account of what he said?

A. I think it was fair, yes.

Q. You think Mr. -Carty's account was a fair account ?

A.Yes.
Q. You did write a report of the same meeting for your own paper, did

you not?

A.Yes.
Q. And is this a report that appeared in the London Advertiser of that

same meeting?
A. Yes, that was the report in the morning paper.
THE CHAIRMAN : Perhaps members of the Committee might want to hear

it. MT. Penny's report in The Advertiser, which is here, with regard to the state-

ment, the speech of Mr. Ashplant, is as follows:

(Reads)
" H. B. Ashplant opposed the basis of settlement. The intention of the

Legislature was that the consumers and not the city council should be consulted,
and this had not been done, he contended. The 10 per cent return on $400,000
was equal to 6 per cent, on half a million. He gently inquired what was to prevent
Charles 'Merea, the sponsor of the gas bill, and other members of the private
bills committee of the Legislature being given shares in the company to insure
the possibility."

WITNESS: There is a mistake there
"
passing of the bill."

Q. You remember, Mr. Penny, there, the reference to
"
possibility." Is there

anything wrong with the report there as to the printing of it?

A - Yes. It should be
"
to insure the possibility of the passing of the bill."
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The sense is not quite clear.

Q. 'And what you intended it to read?

A.
" To insure the possibility of the 'bill going through the Legislature.'*

Q. Were you present all the time during this council meeting,
A. Yes.

'

/

Q. And you heard all that was said ?

A. Yes.

Q. The reporters have & seat close to the members .of the council?

A. Yes. We have a seat practically adjoining the council.

Q. How far away would you and Mr. Carty be sitting from Mr. Ash plant
when he was making the speech?

A. About 20 or 25 feet.

Q. And you heard distinctly?
A. Yes.

Q. No danger of your misunderstanding what he said?

A. Not as far as hearing goes.

Q. And you have said before that Mr. Cavty's report of the meeting sub-

stantially -agrees with your own ?

A. His report as given here today, yes.

MR. FERGUSON: That is all.

THE CHAIRMAN: Any questions gentlemen.
MR. HEENAN: I would, like to ask if he and the other reporter compared

notes before submitting it to the paper.
THE (CHAIRMAN: The member would like to know whether you and the

other reporter compared your notes before you wrote your respective articles for

your papers.
A. No, we did not. I think Mr. Carty left some time before I did.

THE CHAIRMAN: He has to get his stuff on the wire, and you simply go to

the office and write yours
A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN : It appears according to the evidence given here that Mayor

Little, and Ald-erman Harley, Alderman J. C. Wilson, Chairman of the Committee,

Alderman John Bridge, Alderman Drake, Alderman W. A. Wilson, Alderman W.

Boss, Alderman Brighton and Ashton were present at the time the statement in

question was made. Is it the desire of the Committee that any of these other

witnesses shall be brought here along, of course, with Mr. Ashplant?
MR. HAY: Has Mr. Ashplant anybody -here representing him?
THE CHAIRMAN: I think it should be intimated to Mr. Ashplant that he

will be entitled to be represented by counsel before the committee. Mr. Foster

will advise him when he notifies him.

MR. McCREA : I would like to move that these men and Mr. Ashplant be

brought here.

THE CHAIRMAN: Will you put it in writing?
MR. McCREA : What was the date of that meeting ?

THE CHAIRMAN: March 7th, 1921.

THE CHAIRMAN: Is it the desire of the Committee that we shall proceed

any further today with the taking of evidence in any of these matters.

HON. MEMBER: I do not think we can, Mr. 'Chairman.

THE CHAIRMAN: Well, the suggestion was that Mr. Hicks and Mt. Taylor

would be here, and so far as the London matter was concerned it was not intended
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we should attempt to hear all the evidence. The first thing was to ascertain

whether or not the report of what Mr. (Ashplant was supposed to have said was

correct. Should the newspapermen have come forward and said that report is

not correct there would be nothing to investigate. Having got that out of the

way, if they said it is correct, that is what he said, then, of course, we have got
to give Mr. Ashplant and any witnesses he may want to call, or any other person,

opportunity to come before the Committee. But manifestly that cannot he done

until the next Session. Mr. Taylor was als|o requested to come to-day to give

evidence in connection with the statement of- his which was referred to this com-

mittee. Now does the committee desire to go on and hear Mr. Taylor now, or

do you think we will have time.

MR. CURRY: We will not have time. We have only got five minutes. We
could hear him Saturday all right.

THE CHAIRMAN : I find it is eight minutes to three. It will probably not

take Mr. Taylor very long.

MR. CURRY: Oh, it will take him some time.

THE CHAIRMAN : Well, all right, I ami perfectly agreeable.

MR. SINCLAIR: Could not you get a forenoon some day next week?
MR. CURRY: On Tuesday there is a Municipal 'Committee, and there are

important bills. How about Monday? Monday, nobody is here. Then on Wed-

nesday there is Public Accounts. Thursday, Private Bills, and I think they are

cleaning up Private Bills and that there are a number of important bills.

THE HAIRMAN: What is your pleasure, gentlemen of the Committee; until

when is it this committee shall adjourn?
HON. MEMBER : 1.30' Tuesday.
THE CHAIRMAN : Is that agreeable ? And then if there is nothing important

on in the 'House we can get leave of the House to sit here until 4.30. When the

Committee adjourn today it will stand adjourned until 1.30 on Tuesday afternoon.

HON. MEMBER: What about bringing Mr. Burnaby on that day?
MR. FERGUSON : Oh, there will be enough on this next day. And the neces-

sary resolutions have been put through as to the witnesses to be here.

HON. M(EMBER : Clean Mr. Taylor up.
THE CHAIRMAN : We will have him first on Tuesday.
The Committee then adjourned until 1.30 o'clock on the afternoon of Tuesday,

April 26, 1921.

APRIL 26TH, 1.921.

.The Committee met at 1.30 p.m. on Tuesdiay April 26th and was called to

order by Chairman R. L. Brackin.

M. C. Fox, M.P.P., being called and sworn, gave evidence as follows :

MR. FERGUSON : Mr. Fox, we have been investigating the charge made by
Mr. Andrew Hicks which appeared in the press and which reads as follows: Mr.

Hicks is said to have made these statements at a picnic;

(Reads)

"The offerings of money to representatives of the people to pass certain

"
pieces of legislation during the last Session of the Legislature were appalling,"

was the startling statement made by Andrew Hicks, TJ.F.O. Whip, in an address

to the East Middlesex U.F.O. picnic here this afternoon. "But, thank God," he

added,
" not one of the U.F.O. members succumbed to the effort of bribery/'
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Now Mr. Hicks says that that correctly reports what he stated on that occasion,

and he stated that this statement was made by him by reason of a conversation he

had with you. Now was there any conversation between you and him upon which

this statement might be based ?

MR. Fox : Yes. I think there was.

Q. You might relate to the Committee what it was.

A. Well, it was in connection with a bill I was getting through the House

here, and in explaining to Mr. Hicks and several other members whom I do not

just remember at the present time the objects of this bill, I said these people,

the sand sucker people, had offered the Township of Pelee Island $50,000 to settle

the case out of court.

Q. Well, there was some litigation between the Township and this company?
A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN: Strictly speaking, I suppose, between some ratepayers and

and the company.
A. No, as a township.
MB. FERGUSON : The Township was suing for damage done ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was anything else said by Mr. Hicks to you on this matter?

A. I don't remember anything else.

Q. Mr. Hicks refers to $0,000 in his evidence as being the sum that might
have been obtained. Was that amount mentioned by you?

A. No. It was not.

Q. Was anything more mentioned about that $50,000 that is referred to?

A. No.

Q. So, I take it, this $50,000 that was offered to the Township to settle was

a perfectly legitimate offer, was it?

A. Yes.

Q. The same as anyone engaged in litigation might offer to another party
for the purpose of settling a law suit?

A. Yes.

Q. And so far as your understanding was concerned, there was no suggestion
of any improper methods?

A. None whatever.

Q. There was no suggestion of bribery of any of the members of the

Legislature?
A.: Not that I know of.

Q. Nor any member of committee?

A. No.

Q. So that if Mr. Hicks understood you to say such a thing you at all events

did not intend to convey that impression?
A. No, I did not intend to convey that impression at all.

MR. FERGUSON : I would think that is all I have to ask.

TH/E CHAIRMAN : Does any member of the Committee desire to ask a question

of -Mr. Fox?

MR. FERGUSON: There was no other conversation at any time between you
and Mr. Hicks, nothing relating to bribery or improper giving of money to members
of the House?

A. Nothing that I am aware of.

THE CHAIRMAN: Are there any more witnesses in the Hicks matter?
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MR. FERGUSON: The only other witness that might possibly be called is the

reporter Mr. Lennox desired to call. I got in touch with The Toronto Daily Star

and I find that Mr. Hicks was interviewed at his farm by a reporter of that paper,

and his name is A. P. Gow. Personally I do not see the need of calling this

witness 'because of the fact that Mr. Hicks says he was correctly reported, that is

the charge that is before the committee as was made by Mr. Hicks, or said to have

been made. It is for the committee to say whether this reporter who subsequently

interviewed Mr. Hicks is a material witness or not.

THE CHAIRMAN : Does the committee desire to hear any further evidence

at this point?
HON. MEMBER: If Mr. Lennox asked for this witness he may want to know

something at the other sittings of the committee and there will be no harm in

leaving it. There may be nothing to it.

THE CHAIRMAN : Is it the desire that the matter be left open to see whether

Mr. Lennox desires to have this witness called in another sitting?

Carried.

MR. FERGUSON : I think that the next matter we have to take up is the

Ashplant matter.

THE CHAIRMAN : Mr. Ashplant is here and some
.
Aldermen of the City

of London. I think Mr. Ashplant ought to be called.

Ex-Aid. H. B. Ashplant called and sworn.

Examined by 'Mr. Ferguson.
MR. ASHPLANT: Before you proceed I would like to say that I an here

in response to a summons and I would like to ask what status I have in this

Committee. Is this a trial court or an investigation?
MR. BRACKIN: Merely an investigation of a matter referred to the Com-

mittee by the House. You are entitled to be represented by counsel if you desire.

Do you desire to have counsel? It is simply an investigation and the Committee
has a right to put you on oath and have you examined by counsel for the

Committee.

MR. ASHPLANT : I would like first, to register a protest -against the summons
I have received. Then as I understand from your definition of my position I

am not here as a defendant at this stage of the Committee, then. My reasons

for making that reference is that I have received a summons in these terms,
1 am asked to apipear here in the matter of certain charges made by H. P.

Ashplant of the City of London, and if I have already been tried and it is

assumed and admitted by this Committee that these are charges that I have

made
THE CHAIRMAN: The Committee is simply here for the purpose of investi-

gating certain statements which you are alleged to have made in public at a

meeting of the London City Council to the effect that the -City Gas Company
could and might bribe members of the Private Bills Committee or of the

Legislature to put through a certain Bill in which the Company was interested.

The duty of the Committee is to investigate first, whether or not that statement

or a statement similar to that w*as made by you and then, secondly, if it was

made, the Committee will investigate as to whether or not there were any
grounds for the making of such a statement. I think that is as far as the

duty of the Committee goes. It is not to try anyone, simply to investigate and

put in a report to the House of the evidence taken.
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MR. ASHPLANT : Then that is quite satisfactory to me. The next point
I would like 'defined is this; do I correctly interpret your statement that inquiry

is to he made as to whether or not I made the statement that certain members

of the Legislature could and might be bribed that that is the charge?
MR. BRACKIN: Wliere is the reference to the Committee, the record from

the House .... This is an extract from the proceedings in the House:

"Resolved, That whereas it has been made to appear to the House that

.at a public meeting of the Counci of the City of London, Ontario, held on the

7th of March, one H. B. Ash-plant publicly asserts that the City Gas Company
of London, Ontario, could and might bribe members of this House to induce

such members to vote in , favor of a certain Private Bill presented to this House
on behalf of the said City Gas 'Company. Be it therefore resolved that the

said H. B. Ashplant be ordered to appear before the Committee of this House
on Privileges and Elections at sudh a time as the Chairman thereof may direct,

to be examined for such further action as the House may direct upon the report
of the Committee/' That, is the reference in the notes of the House to your
case.

MR. ASHPLANT : Then I . am perfectly satisfied if that is the understand-

ing because now I have a fairly clear idea of what the position is as the Com-
mittee views it, and I now understand that the Committee has been led to believe

that I publicly stated in these terms as specified that the members of the

Private Bills Committee and of the House could and might be bribed.

MR. BRACKIN: The statement as. reported in The Globe and as sworn to

by the Globe reporter the other day was that you stated that the City Gas

Company of London could and might bribe members of the Legislature to act

favorably upon the Gas Company's Bill. That in brief is the substance of the

statement. There is considerable more in it but that is the substance of it.

MR. ASHPLANT: That is the essense of it?

MR. BRAOKIN: Yes.

Mr. Ashplant here took the stand and was examined by Mr. Ferguson.
Q. You live in London?
A. Yes.

Q. Have you lived there some time?
A. Thirty years.

Q. You were at the meeting of the City Council in London on March 7th

last?

A. Yes.

Q. What was the occasion for your being there?

A. I was delegated to attend that meeting in the same way in which T

had previously attended the Private Bills Committee, to follow up the whole

matter of the City Gas Company's action for higher rates.

Q. May I ask by whom you were delegated?
A. By the High Cost of Living Committee.

Q. That is a Committee in London?
A. Yes.

Q. And as a delegate from that Committee you attended this meeting?

J\* ' "
JL OS*

Q. And do you remember who were present at that meeting?

A. Ten members of the 'Council and his Worship the Mayor.

Q. And were there some reporters present?
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A. Three, to my knowledge.

Q. iMr. Carty was there?

A. I did not see Mr. Carty.

Q. You know Hr. Carty?
A. I know Mr. Carty and I know a gentleman who passes by the name

of Mr. 'Carty.

Q. The same man?
A. No sir, two dinerent men.

Q. Do you know Mr. Penny?
A. Yes.

Q. Who was the other reporter?
A. Mr. Brigg.

Q. And you asked for permission to address the Council?

A. There was Committee of the Whole in session prepared to listen to

either side that desired to present the position.

Q. Just to clear the matter up the 'G-as Company were trying to get

through the House a Private Bill, I understand?

A. That had been settled. At this meeting of Council this was not the

issue.

Q. Then What were you talking aJbout?

A. The feature of the discussion in Committee of the Whole was the

possible Bill not yet decided on.

Q. There was a Bill that was contemplated ?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. It was in regard to the contemplated Bill that you addressed the

Council ?

A. Yes.

Q. That contemplated Bill had what dbject in view?

A. To increase the capitalized value without any investment on the part

of the shareholders.

Q. The idea was to increase the capitalization to $400,000?

A. Without any investment on the part of the shareholders. The pro-

position was to raise the dividend rate from six to ten per cent, and following
that it would be necessary to provide more revenue.

Q. And you opposed that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And because you were opposed to that you attended this meeting to

express your view?

A. On behalf of those I represented.

Q. Now Mr. Carty who gave evidence here and sent the dispatch to the

Globe swore that he was at that meeting. I am going to read you what he

stated concerning your speech and ask you if it is the fact: "Mr. Ashplant
raised objection to this agreement and declared that the Company would find

it possible to set aside sums of money to influence the vote of members of the

Legislature against the interests of the citizens." Is that true so far?

A. That is not what I said. That is a summarization by the reporter.

That may be a correct summary on the part of the reporter.

Q. We are not suggesting that this is a verbatim report. It that a correct

summary of that part of the speech?
A. Will you read that again?
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Q. This is from the Globe of March 8, I will go back to the beginning
of the item. "Ex-Aid. H. B. Ashplant appearing as a representative of the

Labour Committee opposing relief for the City Gas Company created a stormy
time in the 'City Council to-night by asserting that the Company could and might
bribe members of the Legislature to get its Private Bill enactted."

A. There was no stormy time created. That is an indication of certain

features of this report.

Q. There was no stormy time?

A. No.

Q. I understand that the Mayor left his seat in the Council as a protest

against your remarks?

A. I am not sure, but if he left his seat it was not a stormy departure.

Q. But at all events the Mayor did leave his seat? If the Mayor says

that he left his seat out of protest you would not 'be prepared to contradict

that?

A. Oh, I would examine him on that.

Q. If he says that would you be prepared to contradict that?

A. I would say I would be doubtful about that.

Q. Up to that point, have you made the only objection you want to make

regarding the statement in the Globe? I will read it again. "Ex-Aid. Ashplant

appearing as a representative of the Labour Committee opposing relief for the

City Gas 'Company created a stormy time in the City Council to-night by assert-

ing that the Company could and might bribe members of the Provincial Legis-
lature to get its Private Bill enacted."

A. I would say that it is entirely incorrect in three ways that one

paragraph.
Q. You might give the three points in which it is incorrect.

A. It is incorrect in the description of the character of the scene. It was
not a stormy scene. The next objection, a serious objection, is regarding my
asserting anything. I asserted nothing.

Q. Did you state nothing?
A. I made no statement that I am aware of. I made an indirect remark,

or as Mr. Penny puts it a "gentle inquiry/'

Q. There is another objection what is it?

A. The third is that I made no such statement in any terms at all as is

there contained, that the Company could and might bri'be members of the

Provincial Legislature to get this Private Bill enacted. I absolutely deny the
use of such a sentiment at all.

Q. You deny that you asserted that a bribe could or might be paid?
A. Certainly.

Q. Now have we got all the points in which that is incorrect?
A. At that stage, yes.

Q. Let intei proceed with this article. "The Council by a vote of 9 to 3

decided to report to the Private .Bills 'Committee that the Council would deem
as fair a service at cost agreement such as is in operation at Toronto with the

special provisions that capital stock should be limited to $400,000 and dividends

to ten per cent, witih the stipulation that earnings in excess of that amount
should Ibe utilized from time to time to reduce charges to consumers and that

the rate at the oultset should be advanced from 90 cents to $1.25." I read that

to give you the sense of what follows.
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A. You have now concluded the second paragraph. I see that that starts

tiith an inaccuracy which is attributable to the reporter. It may be another

indication of carelessness in his report.

Q. In what way?
A. It was incorrect because there was no vote of 9 to 3. I note these,

inaccuracies rather as pointing to the general inaccuracy of his interpretation

of the facts.

Q. And was there no vote taken ?

A. Yes,

Q. What was the result of that vote?

A. 'Seven to three.

Q. It should have been seven to three?

A. Yes.

Q. You were there when the vote was taken?

A. Yes.

We will proceed with the rest of the article. "Mr. Ashplant raised objection

to this agreement and declared that the Company would find it possible to set

aside sums of money to influence the vote of the members of the Legislature

against the interest of the citizens." Is that correct?

A. It is not correct but it is a pretty fair report of the ordinary reporter's

interpretation. I would say that there was no particular inaccuracy other than

this: the question of influence or bringing pressure to bear on meimbers of the

Legislature is rather different from bringing pressure to bear personally and

immediately upon the members of the Legislature themselves.

Q. I think the best thing to clear it up is to tell the Committee what you
did say.

A. I would say, Mr. Chairman and gentlemen of the Committee that it is

not an easy thing to give in short sentences an idea of what was said on that

particular point because it is so interwoven with the context and also with what
followed that it is necessary for me to refer to just exactly what led up to that.

Q. If you are going to put it that way I prefer to go through the rest of

the article and you can point to the rest of the inaccuracies and then you can

make your full statement if you want to. I will read you paragraph four.

''Suppose Mr. McCrae should be given $15,000 to get this through; suppose
the Company should take a blook of this stock and distribute it among

1

thf-

members of the Legislature to get this through/' he commenced when Mayor
Little interjected a protest declaring that he would not sit to hear the honour
of the Provincial Legislators so impugned. Mr. Ashplant's rejoinder was that he

had not said that this would be done but only that it could be done, and, he added,
"it is the most natural thing in the world if the Company should do it." Is that

correct ?

A. No.

Q. In what respect is that paragraph which we will call paragraph four

incorrect ?

A. It is incorrect in the sense that the name of Mr. McCrae as introduced

there is not introduced as I introduced it and the reporter in short circuiting
what I was saying simply summarized and brought together things that would
not otherwise have been brought together into direct contact. That is on point
Jn regard to Mr. McCrae's name.

Q. You think Mr. McCrae's name is not introduced in the way in which
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it came into the discussion ?

A. No.

Q. As far as the sum of $15yOOO is concerned, was that mentioned?

A. Yes, I mentioned the sum of $10,000 or $15,000 to the best of my
recollection. Not so much $10,000 or $15,000 in money as in stock.

Q. Anything else that is incorrect that you want to draw attention to ?

A. Yes, quite a little. There is more than the first one. Mr. McCrae's name

was brought in, in a somewhat different way. Then there was the reference to his

Worship Mayor Little. Mr. Ashplant rejoined nothing to his Worship at all.

His Worship got up and made some remark and retired to the Board of Control

room and I made no rejoinder to his Worship at all. I did make a reference

in following up the points I was continuing. I desire it to be definitely understood

that I did not say that this sort of thing would be done. What I was suggesting
was the possibility of the com/pany having at its disposal funds for the achieving

of its objective and that it would be a perfectly natural thing for them to do that.

Q. Perhaps the next paragraph may have something to do with what you
were saying about the vote : "John F. Thompson of the same deputation attempted

to reinforce Mr. Ashplant's arguments but the Council refused, by a vote of 7 to

4 to hear him."

Q. Do you remember that?

A. It is a fairly good synopsis in a certain way of what a reporter would

send, but it is totally incorrect.

Q. Did the reporter not report what you said, did he not get your meaning?
A. No, evidently he didn't. It doesn't co-incide with other reports.

Q. Then I don't understand what you mean when you say it is a fairly

good report.

A. I mean that in some respects it is a fairly good report and in so many it

is entirely incorrect that in view of what has resulted from it I would say it is

an entirely undesirable report.

Q. Did you not in any way suggest that members of the House or members

of the Private Bills Committee could or might be induced to take money to influence

them?
A. No.

Q. Then why did you mention that $10,000' or $15,000?
A. That is as I have stated. I mentioned $10,000 or $15,000 as a sum that

might be set aside, if they were provided with $50,000 of bonus stock, by which

the company might achieve its objective.

Q. How were they expected to achieve their objective?
A. By the way in which it is found it can best be done, by using funds for

the press, for the engagement of solicitors for the development of public opinion
in the regular way that they desire to have pressure brought to bear on the members.

Q. Did you suggest or state that Mr. MoCrae might be induced to accept
$10,000 or $15,000?

A. I certainly did not say he might be induced to accept anything.
Q. Then how did Mr. McCrae's name come into the matter ?

A. Mr. McCrae's name came up in my reference to his name in reply to an

inquiry that came to me from a member of the Council. I was asked by one of

the members of 'Council "Who would handle this money or stock?" I said the

solicitor. Now in this particular case Mr. McCrae was sponsor for the bill in

the Private Bills Committee but as I understood it he was not acting as solicitor
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for the company. Mr. Graydon is solicitor for the company.
Q. Was it suggested that this could be given to Mr. McCrae ?.

A. Xot that I am aware of. Here is the point. It largely turns on what

might be regarded as a suggestion. You cannot get this sort of thing clear with-

out being conversant with the character of the context and the whole informaiton

on the reference to Mr. McCrae, of what was the intention and what was legiti-

mately the construction placed on it.

Q. Don't give us inferences. We are asking 3-011 to state to the Committee

what you stated to the Council on the occasion of March 7. Will you state in

your own words what you did state to the Council ?

A. In that respect I would say that I spoke about fifteen or twenty minutes.

I have no intention of going from start to ending on that here. There was no set

speech prepared or anything in the way of preparatory notes, and no intention of

any kind to refer to Mr. McCrae. At the start of the discussion it came in in this

way. A^ you know in general terms the 'Committee of the Whole was sitting in

order to discuss a proposition which was introduced by Alderman J.

Cameron Wilson, chairman of the special gas committee, a new pro-

position which had to go back to the Private Bills Committee to

replace that which had been rejected as not an acceptable proposition.

That was the origin of the matter and it came back to the City

Council for adjustment. Aid. Wilson brings in this! further proposition

for submission to the Legislature and after he got through the Committee of tho

Whole discussed this plan, this proposition in detail and the chairman, Aid. John

Ashton asked if there were any deputations desiring to be heard either for the

Gas Company or in opposition. Mr. Graydon the solicitor of the company asked

the advantage of speaking on behalf of the company. The chairman asked if

there was anyone for the opposition and I said,
"
Yes, I wished to speak on behalf

of these people in the High Cost of Living Committee," and this is the line I took.

I called the attention of the 'Committee then sitting to the fact that there were in

my judgment, many points in this proposition that were not understood by the

majority of the Council. I was perfectly satisfied in my mind that one or two

of the members of the Council did understand them and I said I would take the

liberty of running over the points that, a^ I said in the Chamber, I heard discussed

in the Committee.

Q. Please try to make it short and pertain to this as much as possible.

A. I took the opportunity of pointing out that 10i per cent, on $400,000' was

practically equivalent to a stock bonus of $500,000 at 6 per cent. That, I pointed

out, made it a dangerous proposition from many viewpoints. I objected to the

bonus stock proposition. I then pointed out to the members of Council and

bear in mind that in this reference to Mr. McCrae I was addressing a Legislative

body which was as susceptible to any charge I was supposed to have made as

Mr. McCrae was or any member of the Legislature that this body could have been

bribed as much as the Legislature or any member of it, if that was the intention

or the suggestion.
THE CHAIRMAN: You might think about the Council but you would be

less inclined to say that to the face of Council than you would be to say it about

another body not there at all?

A. ISTo. In the meantime we had got to that point; I was saying that this

proposition if it was carried through simply would be giving the City Gas Company
the equivalent of $500,000 of bonus stock as value that would accrue to the share-
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holders. Such legislation as that was very undesirable and dangerous legislation
in many ways, and provided an opportunity for private corporations to use a per-

centage of such sitock as that for the purpose of achieving their objective and

making sure it* went through. I said
"
suppose/

7

There was no assertion, no

charge. There was only, as Mr. Penny pointed out, a gentle inquiry
"
sup-

posing tihat the Gas Company should set aside $10,000 or $15,000 of 'this stock

for the purpose of seeing it get its measure through." Then one of the mem'bers

of Council said, "Who would handle this stock?" I replied, "The solicitor."

At that point is where Mr. MeCrae'9 name was mentioned. I pointed out that Mr.

McCrae was sponsor for the bill in the Private Bills Committee but that, as I

understood it, he was not acting as solicitor for the company.

Q -Did you intend to leave the impression that if $10,(XK) or $15,QO was

to be handled, Mr. MicCrae was the man to handle it?

A. I should say not.

Q. What did you intend to convey if you mentioned his name in that

connection ?

A. That MT. McCrae was not the solicitor for the company.
Q. When one of the members of Council said

" Who should handle this

money/' you said, "Mr. McCrae is the sponsor for the bill in the Legislature?"
A. No, not at all.

Q. That is what I understood you to say.

A. No, no. "Who will handle this stock?" "the solicitor" comes in

between that and Mr. McCrae.

Q. Is this what you said or what you thought you said?

k. I will take an oath that that is what I said. I have no knowledge of

Mr. McCrae's propensities in sudi a direction as that. 1 repudiate the suggestion
that he would be liable to take a bribe.

Q. Are you satisfied with the London Advertiser report?
A. In much the same way ........

Q. Are you or are you not?

A. I am satisfied with none of the reports, if you want to put the word
satisraction to mean that it gives a correct interpretation of my intention or my
words. It is neither the intention or my words.

Q. We are not worrying about your intentions. Does the London Advertiser

give a fair summary of what you said when you used Mr. McCrae's name?
A.. 1 said it was just that same gentle inquiry, but it is put in the form of

the reporter's summarization.

Q. Let me read you just a word or so of the London Advertiser report.
" He

gently inquired what was to prevent Charles McCrae the sponsor of the Gas Bill,

and other members of the Private Bills Committee of the Legislature beins; given
shares in the company to ensure the passing of the bill." Did you say that?

A. Not to my recollection.

Q. The reporter has sworn you did.

A. Then I will swear I did not in just those terms, only 1 would sav this

bear in mind that I am on oath 'I have no recollection of that and no intention,
and I cannot see how anyone could carry away the intention fiom me that Mr.
McCrae could be bribed. That certainly was never in my mind. The susrcrestion

that the company could use a certain proportion of its bonus stock to influence

the attaining of its objective, why, that is another matter.

THE CHAIEMAN : The London reporter has sworn that that is a correct report



George V. APPENDIX No. 3. 517

of what you said, that you spoke of giving the shares to Mr. McCrae and the

members of the Legislature.

A. Oh, no, not in that sense at all.

Q. It is not a question of in that sense did you say that or anything like

that, or anything from which that newspaper reporter or the Globe reporter who

says he heard you, could get the impression, that members of the Legislature

might get something by way of stocks or otherwise. x Did you say anything from

which they could get that impression?
A. No, they did not correctly interpret what I was saying or what I meant.

Q. MT. 'Carty and Mr. Penny of the London Advertiser were both present

and both wrote their reports without having reference one to the other and both

apparently got the idea that you had made that statement. How do you explain

that?

A. I would explain it in much the same way as I explain this; I have here

a Mail and Empire report bV Mr. Carty, as I understand it.

Q. There is no Mail and Empire report here by Mr. 'Carty. You have been

asked a simple question of whether you can explain the fact that these two reporters

without reference one to another put in their reports a statement from you that

Mv. McCrae could or might be given money to influence him or other members.

A. I would give no explanation to that at all. I do not think they were

justified in making any such interpretation of what I said at all.

Q. I suppose that if the members of the Council and the Mayor came here

and said that the report of Mr. Carty is correct and that the report of Mr. Penny
is correct you would still have great difficulty in explaining how they came to that

conclusion ?

A. I suppose I would have the privilege of examining them on that. I

would say they were in much the same position as I endeavored to point out, just
a wrong summarization, a sort of projecting into my speech and intent something
that was not in there.

Q. How did you expect the company was going to expend $15,000 legiti-

mately in getting its bill through the House?
A. -I don't pretend to say. But I believe there are companies take the

Canadian Manufacturer's Association which is said to have subscribed something
like a million or two millions to influence the matter of the tariff I would say

they would do it in much the same way. That was my intent and purpose. That
would be that way.

Q. An advertising campaign ? Or how was it to be used ?

A. It was not for me to interpret. I do not intend to interpret.

Q. Could you suggest any possible legitimate way the company could expend
-$15,000 in getting a bill through the Legislature.

A. You must bear in mind that this was not a particular reference other

than a referenice in general terms to ifhialfc, to the possibility of that sort of thing.
THE CHAIRMAN: But this was a particular bill you were discussing.
MR. FERGUSON : We have a particular bill going through the Legislature.

You suggest the taking of $15,000 to ensure the passing of that particular bill.

Now can you suggest any legitimate way in which that money could be spent for the

purpose of furthering that legislation ?

A. I .don't know if I ever bothered my head to think about it. Possibly
"if I was to go into that matter I would find ways of spending it if they commis-
sioned me to do it.
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THE CHAIRMAN: You mean legitimate ways.
A. Ways regarded as legitimate, perfectly businesslike ways in my under-

standing of things, that are followed in practice now.

Q. Do you mean practice in getting a bill through the Legislature?
A. Well, that is the ultimate object, certainly.

Q. How would you suggest that that could be spent at that juncture with

the bill already before the Committee, knowing that it had gone back to council

to see if they could dome to some agreement or arrangement, and that it was going
to be before the Committee again. In what way, do you suggest, could the compaany
spend $15,000 legitimately in the passage of that particular bill?

A. I did not have anything to say about what way they might spend that

if it had been spent.

Q. What had you in your mind ?

A. I had no thought in m|y mind other than the general question of the

dangerous character of legislation of this kind.

Q. You are getting away from the $15,000. You had in mind and you
did say something to them about the company spending $15,000* to get the bill

through the Legislature. There LSI no doubt about that. That was the only thing
there was up at that time, the getting of this bill through the Committee of the

House. 'Can you suggest to this Committee, or did you suggest at the time you
made that statement, that you had in mind and intended to convey~the impression
that the company could spend that amount of money in a perfectly legitimate way
to get that bill through ?

A. It was in pointing out that the stock

Q. You are not answering the question. Did you intend to convey the-

impression that the expenditure of $15,000 to get the bill through would be an

expenditure made in a perfectly legitimate way, or that there would be something

improper about the use of that money? Which was it? Which impression did

you intend to give?
A. My reported statement would show that I

THE CHAIRMAN: I don't like to suggest that you are dodging the question.
The question is a simple one. You did1

say that YOU mentioned that the company
might take $15,000 and use it to achieve its object which was the passage of

the bill.

A. I didn't say they might. I didn't think for a moment they would.

Q. What did you say in connection with the use of the $1 5,000?
A. Just as I have already said on record, that I had led up in a general

way to this point, and I had said,
"
Supposing the comlpany should set aside $10,000

or $15,000 of this bonus stock to achieve its objective.'*

Q. Now, did you mean, when you said that did you intend to convey the

impression that that amount of money or stock would be used legitimately or

did you intend to give the impression that it would be used illegitimately or

improperly ?

A. Legitimately if it should be used at all.

Q. All right, if that is the case; you had in mind the intention to give the-

impression that the amount would be used legitimately to get this bill through.
Can you suggest to this Committee in what way the Company could use that amount
of money legitimately to get a private bill through the Legislature? That is what

we want to get at.

A. I do not know any other way than using methods to influence public-
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opinion in the locality, to bring public opinion to bear on this, to use such measures

as corporations ordinarily use in legitimate propaganda. That is why I referred

to the necessity for having not merely the statement but the context of what I

said. I pointed out that this was a perfectly legitimate proceedure, that I under-

stood was the practice of large corporations, not this company alone. My reference

was to general propaganda. I did not intend to state and did not intend to imply
that anything improper would be 'done.

Q. At one portion in the report it said that Mr. Ashplant asked "what is

there to prevent Charles MdCrae the sponsor of the gas bill and other members of

the private bills committee of the Legislature being given shares of the company
to ensure the passing of the bill/'

A. What is there to prevent ? Is there any crime in suggesting ?

Q. You are not answering the question.
A. I would say this in reply. I would like to repudiate what seems to me to

be an error in the interpretation of my remarks. All I had to say was regarding
what any company or corporation would do. In my judgment the only protection
the citizens have got in cases of this kind is the integrity of the legislature, such

members as yourselves and the members of the House.

Q. That is the reason you made that statement?

A. I say that is the attitude I took on that, my statement was dealing with

what the corporations would do.

Q. This report said
"
Suppose McCrae should be given $15,000 to get this

through; suppose the company should take a block of this stock and distribute it

-among the members of the Legislature to get this through." Did you say that ?

A. Not to my knowledge, no.

Q. You] don't remem/ber whether you said it or not?

A. I don't believe I said it, I will swear I didn't say it.

Q. First it was not to your knowledge, next you don't believe you said it

and next you will swear to it I think that is what I wanted to get out. 1

suppose your position before this Committee is that during the whole course of

the meeting there was nothing said by you which could give anyone the impression
that you were suggesting that any members of the Private Bills Committee or

the Legislature could be improperly influenced to pass this legislation?

A. There was nothing said by me that, rightly interpreted, would suggest
that I thought any member would accept a bribe or be in any way improperly
influenced. I would say there was a possibility of interpreting what I said in the

way that efforts might be made by corporations or by their agents. If you had
the whole trend of my remarks it would be seen that the attitude I took before

the City Council was that the protection of the citizens lay in the integrity of the

Legislature. They were open to temptation, and that was the reason I made
those remarks.

Q. You go this far and say that during the whole course of your remarks

there was nothing said by you which was intended to reflect or could in any way
reflect on the members of the Legislature?

A. Absolutely, as far as my intention went.

MR. FERGUSON: Then the reporter who reported you must have deliberately

mis-stated what you you said?

A. I fear that unfortunately there is too much reason for some conclusion

of that kind, particularly in regard to Mr. Carty.

Q. You are driven to that position, almost, aren't you ?
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A. Although that is the position I do not think I am driven to it.

Q. Mr. Carty is an intelligent man isn't he ?

A. I believe so.

Q. And if he was an intelligent man he sni/uld be able to understand wnai.

you said?

A. Yes.

Q. Then if this report is wrong and incorrect then Mr. Carty must have

deliberately mis-stated the fact;, and Mr. Penny must have deliberately mis-stato'l

the facts?

A. I don't quite think that needs to be so put.

Q.t Then might Mr. Carty draw from what you stated the conclusions which;

he has drawn.

A. I think not, no.

Q. Then if he could not draw those conclusions from what you said then

he must have deliberately stated what was untrue? Which is right?
A. I believe I have made fairly clear my view of the reporters and their

efforts to serve their particular papers' interests aand unfortunately I am obliged
to make this statement that it is my conviction that reporters get many public
men into a great deal of trouble by coloring for their particular paper what a man
may say.

Q. You don't suggest that Mr. Carty had a reason for coloring what you said ':

A. I have reason for thinking that.

Q ^Do you think that 'Mr. Penny had a reason for coloring his report?
A. I have evidence here that might imply that either of these papers would

not be indisposed to do that. They have advertised me as I have evidence here to

show

Q, Has the Globe advertised you before ?

A. The Globe, correspondent in this case was the publicity agent of my oppo-
nent in London.

Q. Has your name ever appeared in the Globe before, to your knowledge?
A. Many times.

Q. You were interviewed again by Mr. 'Carty?
A. I never saw Mr. Carty, he spoke to me over the telephone.
Q. In the Globe of 'March 9th, appears an interview with you, and with

members of the Council. I draw your attention to it.

"
Aid. John Ashton (Labor member) elected by the group represented by

Mr. Ashplant's deputation." I didn't take much notice of what he was saying.
He is so confusing. If the others say he said it I wouldn't contradict them. He
(certainly must have siaid it. But Mr. Ashplant stated that he had been mis-

understood. He was asked by the Globe to tell what he believes he did say and

gave the following as his account "
I am dealing with your statement

A. I am not responsible for any statement Mr. Carty makes.

THE CHAIRMAN : "Mr. Ashplant stated that he had been misunderstood. He .

was asked by the Globe to tell what he believes he did say and gave tihe -following
as his account :

"
I said that the bill proposed involved giving the City Gas Company

$144,000 of bonus stock free and that any company having such facilities would
find it possible, if they chose to look upon it as a matter of investment, to pay
out commissions or fees to ensure getting the measure through. I was arguing that
if the company felt like doing it, it could give its solicitor a good commission or

fee in a perfectly honest and legitimate and straightforward way> to see that the
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bill would go through. I meant that it could give such money to Mr. Graydon
or any solicitor, and then it occurred to me that Mr. Graydon did not speak for

his cHenit in the Legislature and that Mr. McCrae had spoken for the company,

and I brought in the name of Mr. McCrae in a purely incidental way to show that

he was not intended. I meant that such companies could give sums of money
to three or four solicitors as is generally done for propaganda purposes. Such

companies when they do that sort of thing don't know and don't care, very often,

just how the money is spent providing they get what they want." Mr. Ashplant

was asked how such propaganda usually works out in practice.
' "These agents/*'

he explained, "mingle with the members of the Legislature and in private

'conversation they put forward tfheir arguments and dlata and influence the

Members without the Members being aware of it." Is that right ?

A. That I would say is probably the summary Mr. Carty took over the

telephone, when I told him I would not be responsible for it.

Q, But is it correct?

A. I told Mr. Carty I would not be responsible

Q. Wait a moment. Is it a true account of what you said?

A. It isn't a correct word for word interpretation.

Q. Is it a correct summary?
A. He may have assumed that that was a correct summary.

Q. I am asking you if it was a correct summary?
A. I desire to say to you that I told iMr. Carty on that occasion that I

would not be responsible for anything he published. That is my position on

it. I said I will not be responsible for anything of that sort.

Q. Listen to the question and answer it if you can, and if you can't, say

you can't. I have read a dispatch that appeared in the Toronto Globe purporting

to be an interview Mr. Carty had with you after a statement had appeared in

the Globe of the previous day about what you had said in London. I am asking ,

you if this is a fair summary of the statement you made to 'Carty over the-

telephone ?

A. I will say yes, for the purpose of answering the question.

Q. Do you mean that you will say yes, if you don't mean it?

A. It ha? to be qualified by the statement that I would not be responsible
for any interpretation he put. I merely answer, yes, it is a fair summary.

Q. That paragraph where it states they may give sums of money to three

or four solicitors and that often the company didn't know and did't care how
the money was used, did you say that? Did you tell him that?

A. That would be a fair summary for him to make. I think it is quite
true too.

Q. When you said the company didn't know and didn't care how the

money was used, what did you mean to imply regarding the methods that would
be used?

A. Just as I understand any corporation would probably use it, in

propoganda.
Q. You had nothing in mind about any improper use of it?

A. No, nothing. I would not imply that a solicitor of a corporation
who happened to be a member of the Legislature would thereby be restricted
from any corporation practice.

Q. You mean before the Legislature?
A. Certainly, of course, before the Legislature but not in private practice.
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Q.: You don't think the money would be used improperly by these three

or four solicitors?

A. I would repudiate any suggestion that I intended to imply that

Mr. McCrae would ever accept it if he was offered it. I would not say that

the Gas Company would make an offer because I don't know whether they would

or not. I would say, in nty position, that I don't believe Mr. McCrae would

accept it.

Q. There is a small part of this interview I haven't read you. Mr. Carty
asked you how such propaganda would work out in practice. You said, "These

agents mingle with the members of the Legislature and in private conversation

they put forward their arguments and data and influence the members without

the members being aware of it." Is that right?
A. I would say that was a fair interpretation of the whole conversation,

yes. I was referring to what I understood to be the usual practice and what

is considered to be a perfectly legitimate proposition.

Q. At what did the Mayor take offence when he protested and left the

Council 'Chamber?

A. I don't know unless it was the suggestion that it might be used in

this legitimate propaganda.

Q. The Mayor must be very touchy, Mr. Ashplant, to get angry about that?

A. He is touchy when I am around, always has been.

Q. You thought the 'Mayor got angry because you suggested a legitimate

practice with Mr. McCrae and the other members of the Committee?
A. He may have got 'angry at the suggestion that perhaps he was implied

as a member of 'Council. He was at liberty to take that reference to himself

as much as to Mr. McCrae. I don't think he got mad at that?

Q. If you didn't suggest anything improper to 'Council whv did the

Mayor get angry at all? He would not get angry at your suggesting a legitimate

practice ?

A. He may have got angry if he thought I was making a successsful case

against an object he was anxious to achieve.

Q. Your idea is that the impression you were making was greater than he

wanted ?

A. I think that would be quite possible. He is not too well pleased when
I am addressing the Council. I do not think the Mayor is very patient when
I am speaking perhaps a longer time than he thinks I ought to speak. Some-
times I do speak rather long and I did that time.

Q. You told us there were ten or eleven of the Council there at the time?
A. Ten, and the Mayor was in the chair.

Q. Did he give the chair to the labour member, Mr. Ashton?
A. Yes he gave him the chair, he took Mr. Ashton off the floor.

Q. Would you be kind enough to tell us your occupation?
A. (An accountant.

Q. You have lived in London for thirty years?
A. Yes.

Q. To sum up your evidence: You say you never intended to suggent
that anything improper could be committed by any member of the Legislature?

A. Absolutely I had no intention of doing that.

Q. (Nto such thought was in your mind?

A. Absolutely no such idea that they would ever accept a bribe.
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Q. And any such conclusion drawn from your statement is absolutely

improper?
A. I would say so, yes.

THE CHAIRMAN: One question. Had you, at the time you were at this

meeting any reason to believe that there was anything that had occurred to

your knowledge prior to that time, any reason to believe that the members of

the Legislature could be improperly approached?
A. Nothing at all, just this same sort of loose journalistic stuff. I believe

this : I am strongly 'convinced in my own mind that corporations with large
bonus stock possibilities in sight in possible legislation do set aside for purposes
that they regard as pure business purposes to achieve their objective. And it

was what I considered a dangerous proposition, to give corporations of that

kind $500,000 of bonus stock. That is what I was saying was a dangerous

possibility. I believe that the members of the Legislature are tempted many
times and resist and that the protection of the public lies in the men in the

city councils and in the Legislature. I just want to say this: Mr. MoCrae
I had never to my knowledge given any justification for the way in which I

was interpreted as far as you were concerned personally. I think it was a long-
stretched summarization on the part of the reporter who hitched you and me

together in the way in which we seem to have collided. I am very sorry this

has occurred, and I have nothing to say regarding the evidence of Mr. Carty.
I think he thought he had a good thing on Mr. Ashplant and used it. He
submitted this report to the Mayor

MR. BRACKIN: Pardon me, Mr. Carty denied that.

A. He told me so himself.

Mn. MoCRAE : You have no reason for intimating that any member of

the Legislature bas been affected, directly or indirectly, by any influence or

bonus or suggested bribe or anything of that sort?

A. Absolutely none.

The witness was then excused.

Alderman Harley called and sworn
; examined by M'r. Ferguson.

Q. You are an Alderman of the City of London?
A. Yes.

Q. How long have you beeji an Alderman?
A. This is my fifth year.

Q. Your fifth consecutive year.

A. Yes.

Q. How long have you lived in London?
A. About thirty years.

Q. -What is your occupation?
A. Lumberman .

Q. Do you remember being at a meeting of the -City Council of London
on the 7th of March last?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Do you remember Mr. Ashplant being present on that occasion ?

A. Yes.

Q. I understand a Bill was going through the Legislature relating to

ihe City Gas Company of London?
A. Yes.

Q. M'r. Ashplant canue to talk about that Bill?
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A. Yes.

Q. Have you seen the article in the Globe of the following morning,
March 8th, giving a report of what Mr. Ashplant is said to have' stated at that

meeting?
A. Yes.

.Q. I will show you this statement marked Exhibit 3, and ask you if that

is the statement you refer to?

A. Yes.

Q. Does that report give a correct summary of the speech made by Mr.

Ashplant to the 'Council meeting at London on that occasion?

A. With the exception of the actual wording which is not quite as I under-

stand it.

Q. "Suppose Mr. McCrae should be given $15,000 to get this through
and should take a block of stock and distribute it among the members of the

Legislature to get this through."
A. That was not my exact knowledge of the wording.
Q. Suppose you give me your recollection of it?

A. I took the trouble to jot down what I understood, after I got home.

My note is: "There is nothing to prevent the Gas Company giving Mr. McCrae

$15,000 which would be perfectly legitimate and they might or could divide a

block of stock among the members of the Private Bills Committee in order to

.get the Bill through/' That is my recollection of the wording.

Q. The rest of the article apart from what you have specified, is it correct?

A. Yes, I think it is.

Q. Do you remember the Mayor leaving the meeting?
A. I do.

Q. He left while Mr. Ashplant was speaking?
A. Yes.

Q. Do you know why?
A. I can't say why he left but I can remember his remarks, "I for one

will not remain here and hear the members of the Legislature I forget

the word he used, but spoken of in that manner.

Q. Do you remember the following day when Mr. Carty got in touch witK

you on the telephone ?

A. Ye*.

Q. And drew your attention to the article I have shown you, and asked

you if that was a correct report of the statement made?

A. Yes.

Q. You were stated to have given Mr. Carty this, which I will read.

"Alderman Harley. I followed very closely the astounding statements made by
Mr. Ashplant. I read the Globe report and those are his exact words, stated

absolutely correctly." Is that correctly set out?

A. That is substantially what I told him over the phone.

Q. After he had spoken to you over the telephone I understand he wrotb

this and had you verify it subsequently over the phone?
A. Yes.

Q. The sum and substance of your evidence is that you understood Mr.

Aehplant was making a suggestion that money could be used improperly with

.members of the Legislature?
A. My supposition was, as 1 have said there, that there was nothing to
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prevent them giving Mr. McCrae a fee of $15,000.

Q. And divide stock among the members of the Legislature?
A. And also that they might or could divide a block of stock in order to

attain their objective.

MR. ASHPLANT : Alderman Harley has stated an objection to the correct-

ness of Mr. Carty's summarization as reported in the Globe. That summariza-
tion stated that Cart} had "absolutely correctly" stated what I had said.

A. With the exception of these words I put in.

THE CHAIRMAN: I understand Mr. Carty says "suppose" Mr. Harley says

you did say, "Is there anything to (prevent."

MR. ASHPLANT: You then would state that your notes made at the time

are a correct literal interpretation of what I actually said?

A. That is, as far as my memory served me after I got home.

Q. Your interpretation from your notes is that I said there was nothing
to prevent?

A. That is my understanding of your words.

Q. That I did not charge that Mr. McCrae would, if he had been offered

it, have accepted a bribe. That I was referring to the fact that there was nothing
to prevent the corporation from offering a bribe? Was I reflecting upon Mr.

McCrae, or only speaking about the company being able to offer.

MR. BRAcKIN: You can ask him what you said or what he understood

from what he heard you say.

ME. ASHPLANT : I understand your position to be, and you are going on
record that your interpretation as made by the actual notes

A. Made after I got home.

Q. Your interpretation was that I literally used the words that there was

nothing to prevent?
A. Those are the notes I made.
MR. FERGUSON: Why did you make notes when you got home?
A. Because I anticipated questions being asked.

Q. It was a little out of the ordinary?
A. No, I have made notes often.

Q. I mean the charge was a little out of the ordinary?
A. Yes.

MR. OKE: Did you take these notes at this council meeting?

^. Aftej; I got home from the meeting I made that note.

J.Jam WKH ?TEP- : That was before the newspaper could get an account of it

in the

A. Yes. **
Witness excused.

Mayor Little, of London, Out., on being called and sworn testified, as follows: -

MR. ASHPLANT: May I have the opportunity of cross-examining any witness?

THE CHAIRMAN: Oh, yes. When we get through you can follow.

MR. FERGUSON : You are Mayor of London, Mr. Little ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long have you been mayor?
A. This is my second year.

Q. And do you remember being at a meeting of the Council in London
on March 7th, last?
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A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember who were present,referring to the members of Council ?

A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell us who were there?

A. There were just two of the members of Council absent.

Q. How many members are there?

A. Twelve.

Q. So there were ten present?
A. Ten present, yes.

Q. Including yourself ?

A.^-No, besides myself.

Q. Was Alderman Harley there?

A. Yes.

Q. Alderman J. C. Wilson?

A. Yes.

Q. And Aldejman Bridgj&?
A. Yes.

Q. And' Drake?

A. Yes.

Q. W. C. Wilson?

A. Yes.

Q. Aldtermlan Boss ?

A. Yes.

Q. Alderman Brighton ?

A. Yes.

Q. And Mr. Alderman Asihton?

A. Yes. Alderman Watkins was there but he was not interviewed subsequent
Q--Now jou have heard the evidence here to-dav?

A. Not all of it.

Q. Have you not heard all of it? We will have to draw your attention

then to the charge that is being investigated here. I am reading now from the

proceedings of the House of the 8th of March lasts; (Reads)

"Resolved; That whereas it has been made to appear to the House that at a

public meeting of the Council of the City of London, Ontario, held on the 7th of

March, one H. B. Ashplant, publicly asserted that the City Gas "Company of

London, Ontario, could and might bribe Members of this Howse to ind^e such

Members to vote in favour of a certain Private Bill presenter! to tir ''-use on

behalf of the said City Gas Company; Be it therefore resolved that, the said

H. B. Ashplant be ordered to appear before the Committee" of this House on

Privilages and Elections, at such time as the Chairman may direct, to be examined
and for such further action as the House may direct upon report of the Com-
mittee."

Q. Now, will you relate to this Committee your recollection of what was stated

at tihe meeting by Mr .Ashplant?
A. Well, Council went into Committee of the Whole, with Mr. Ashton in

the chair, and I took a seat in the council.

MR. ASHPLANT: I am not just clear on the procedure that might be followed,

but as I understand there are several witnesses that are going to be called and I

hiave the privilege of cross-examining because of my connection with the case,
am I not entitled to have all the witnesses retire and not be called until their
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examination ?

THE CHAIRMAN: Surely.

MB. ASHPLANT: Well, I would ask all the witnesses to retire now until they
are examined.

MR. FERGUSON: That should have been done in the beginning.
THE CHAIRMAN: What is the desire, that the witnesses to be called after

Mayor Little be excluded?

Carried.

MAJOR TOLMIE: Is Mr. Ashplant going to call any witnesses?

MR. ASHPLANT : No, I have no witnesses here. But if I find the case reaches

a point where witnesses will be required, I will have six or seven.

MAJOR TOLMTE: Because it would not be fair for Mr. Ashplant to have to

make his statements with witnesses here and then object to the others.

THE CHAIRMAN: Well, I suppose Mr. Ashplant's witnesses will have the

benefit of seeing in the newspapers what he said. But there are certain Aldermen
from London here who might perhaps be excluded. (Witness excluded).

MR. FERGUSON : We had just come to the point wfhere I asked you, Mr. Little,

for your recollection of the speech made by Mr. Ashplant in so far as these charges
are concerned ?

A. Well, as I said, Con-mail went into Committee of the Whole with Alder-

man Asihton in the chair. I took a seat in the council. Alderman J. C. Wilson

brought in a report of the Special Gas Committee into council, which council

proceeded to driscuss. Mr. Ashplant asked to be allowed to speak. He was

allowed to speak on a two-thirds vote of the Council, if I rememiber correctly r

and he began to discuss this proposed agreement. He brought up the question
of the bonus stock and attempted to show that the amount of $144,000 of bonus

stock was equivalent to a 'bonus of about $500,000 at six per cent. The first

thing I heard to which I paid <a great deal of attention was to the effect, "Suppose
the Company I won't 'be absolutely sure of this "Suppose the Company, through
their solicitor, gives $15,000 of this bonus stock for the purpose of influencing

members of the Legislature? Suppose $15,000 of it.be given to Mr. McCrea?"

And at that moment I interrupted and suggested to the dhair that Mr. Ashplant

would be allowed to make no sucih insinuations on the floor of the Council Cham-

ber, and! I did not propose to stay any longer. I left the room and knew nothing

further about it until the following evening. I did not see the report in the

Globe. The Globe correspondent, Mr. Carty, telephoned me and said lie had a

telegram from Toronto asking that this statement be substantiated. He asked

me if I had seen it. I said no. He then read the report which he had sent

down the night before.

MR. FERGUSON : May I read this and see if this is the report he read to you ;

(Reads).
"Ex-Aid. H. B. Ashplant, appearing as a representative of the Labor Com-

mittee opposing relief for the City Gas Company, created a stormy time in the

City Council to-night by asserting that the company could and might bribe mem-

bers of the Provincial Legislature to get its private bill enacted."

Q. NOW then is that the statement that was read to you by Carty?
A. Mr. Oarty did not read the complete statement, but he did read that

part that referred to Mr. Ashplant's statement and I told him I thought it was

correct a correct report of the meeting except that he had the vote wrong.

Q. He had the vote wrong. That was the only point you took as being
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incorrect in Carty's report of the meeting.
A. And I called his attention to the iact that I did not hear any rejoinder

at all.

Q. Perhaps wha,t you said is 'summarized in The Globe of the next day.

1 will read to you what you are said to have stated to Mr. party and see if it

is correct. I am. reading now from The Globe despatch of March 8th :

THE CHAIRMAN: The despatch of the 8th, printed on the 9th.

Mr. Ferguson reads:

"Mayor Little said to-night; 'I most certainly think that the statements made

by Mr. Ashplant warrant a rebuke from the Legislature. Because I felt his state-

ments should not go unchallenged I protested and left the meeting. The same

sort of loose talk has been allowed recently at several meetings conducted by these

people, notably at the meeting concerning unemployment a week ago, when E. A.

Pocock alleged that we had closed our industries and that I had taken up a col-

lection to defray my election expenses. When Afihpfant started the same thing
before the City Council last night I protested and if I had been in the chair

I would not have allowed him to sipeak another minute."
" 'He said that the agreement proposed with the Gras Company would give the

company $144,000 of bonus stock which had come from the consumers. He said

there was nothing to prevent the company using it to -secure this legislation.

When he said that the company might well give $15,000 to Mr. McCrae, I at once

left the meeting and did not hear the finish of his speech/
K

Q. Is that a correct report of what you stated to Mr. Carty the following day ?

A. Yes, as far as I remember.

Q. And in that report you gave to Mr. Carty what you considered to be a

correct report of what ha,d taken place at the meeting?
A. Yes.

Mr. Ferguson: I think that is all Mr. Little.

THE CHAIRMAN: Any more questions, gentlemen?
ME. ASHPLANT: Yes. His Worship has just admitted the interview of the

9th in which he had reference to the very undesirable character of Mr. Aehplant.

Might I ask the privilege of seeing the reference where Mr. Pocock is mentioned

with undesirable utterances?

MR. FERGUSON: Surely.
MR. ASHPLANT : Your Worship, I notice that reference is made here in regard

to myself that is rather rough unless it is justified, it seems to me. You say
that Mr. Carty here correctly interpreted your views of Ashplant and his general
utterances ?

A. I should say so.

Q. And what was the reason that you made the reference to Mr. Pocock as

THE CHAIRMAN: Now justt a moment. As I understand it the Mayor has

given evidence as to whether you did or did not say a certain thing at a certain

meeting, and that is, as I understand it, the question before the committee. Now
do not let us travel outside of that and get into a discussion about Pocock and

some other people. The Mayor's opinion of Pocock, or Pocock's opinion of you is

not material. We are not interested in it. But just confine yourself if you can in

your questions and cross-examination, to the Mayor's statement, the evidence

that he has gven that you did say a certain thing at that meeting.
MR. ASHPLANT: You think it would not be of any interest to the committee

and would not in any sense affect the interests of Ashplant to enter into any
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personal attitude the Mayor might have to influence his attitude in giving

evidence of what Ashplant would or might say that would react and be detrimental

to Ashplant, if so reported?
THE CHAIRMAN: If you want to go into the question on this ground, that

he says that, although it is not true, because he has antipathy towards you, 1

think you may go into it.

MR. ASHPLANT : The point I would like to submit is 'as to whether you will

permit cross-examination on the point of the attitude his Worship the Mayor
is likely to have toward Ashplant, and leave the City Council Chamber when

Ashplant was present.
THE CHAIRMAN: Well go on then, but make it brief, because I do not think

it has any bearing, but I do not want to limit you.

MR. ASHPLANT: I think it is rather important. I just asked his Worship
if he had 'any personal antipathy towards Ashplant, and whether he would be

influenced in the declaration of public policy by his presence.

MAYOR LITTLE: None whatever, personally.

MR. ASHPLANT: And you would not be irritated then by Ashplant being

permitted to speak rather extensively?
MAYOR LITTLE : I think I treated you with every courtesy when I have been

in the chair and you addressed the Council.

MR. ASHPLANT: I admit on occasions you did. But have you ever changed

your opinion sinice you advertised me in this advertisement in connection with

Leiiine and Trotsky, because it seems to me the possibilities of these things are

rather far-reaching an undesirable citizen addressing Council who is mentioned

rith Lenine would be a citizen who would irritate any man.
THE CHAIRMAN: He has answered the question. He says he has no personal

antipathy.
MR. ASHPLANT: I would like to know if he has changed his opinion of me

ince he advertised?

MAYOR LITTLE: I said I had nothing against you personally.

MR. ASHPLANT: I merely desire to say there is

THE CHAIRMAN: Just a moment, please. You may ask questions bearing

on this case. You can ask questions but you cannot make any declarations of

your own opinion to the committee. Jusit ask questions and he will answer.

MR. ASHPLANT: Have you had any personal relationships with Mr. Oarty,

who reported this, previous to this City Council meeting?

MAYOR LITTLE: Not for some time.

MR. ASHPLANT : He was your publicity agent in the campaign against myself
a year ago when this advertisement appeared?

MAYOR LITTLE: I do not know about the advertisement.

MR. ASHPLANT: At any rate you admit Oarty was your publicity agent?

MAYOR LITTLE: In 1919.

MR. ASHPLANT : And you so regarded Mr. Ashplant. Re was your campaign

nanager ?

A. This last year? No. At the same time that Clarty was connected with

it so was John Bridge and other witnesses.

Q, What I desire to know is ii yotL still feel towards Ashplant in connection

with any possibility of addressing his views to the public ir the same way you
did in that campaign when Oarty reported this Globe statement.

y011 are a danger to the community if you have any authority in
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the community;
MR. ASHPLANT: Now that is a very definite statement. I would like to

have it recorded.

MAYOR LITTLE: That I still hold, although I have nothing against you.

personally.
MR. .ASHPLANT: I desire now to have it recorded. You consider Mr.

Ashplant a danger to the community?
A. In any official capacity. If you stay where you are now you are all

right.

Q. For what reason?

A. Because of your views.

Q. On wihat subject?

A. Socialism.

Q. What are they?
THE CHAIRMAN: Oh! now, please, are we going
MR. ASHPLANT: This is rather important. Have you any knowledge that

Ashplant is a member or has been -a member of any Socialist organization for

the last fifteen years! or more?
A. I cannot answer that question at the moment.

Q. But you surely had such knowledge in order to make such a statement?

A. I dk) not know what that has got to do with it.

Q. But it has to do with the statement that Ashplant is a dangerous man,
and I would ask what those views are that would justify that declaration, which*

prejudices the whole .

THE CHAIRMAN: I was going to say that we are travelling pretty far afield.

The witness is asked land quite properly as to whether he has any personal

animosity towards Ashplant which might induce him to color his evidence. He
has denied he has anything personal agaimst him, but he says he considers him

a danger to the community in any official capacity. I do not think we ought
to travel so far afield as to get into a, discussion of Ashplant's views on Socialism.

The sole question before this committee, and I tried to indicate to Mr. Ashplant
when he started his cross-examination, that he should confine it to the question

of Mayor Little's evidence, that on the occasion in question he did hear Ashplant

gay the thing which The Globe reporter reported him as having said, and which

Mr Ashplant has denied he said. Now stick to the text, please.

MR. ASHPLANT: You adimit that you do not remember that Aehplant, in

'these (specific terms! as referred to) in The Globe, staid that nuembers of the-

Legislaturei could, and might be bribed ? You admit that ?

A. No. I do not admit anything of the kind. I said I could not remember

the exact words but Mr Carty had telephoned and read his statement the

following day when it was fresh in my mind and I corroberated it.

Q. But Mr. Carty^isi statement does not e/m(body those word's. Did you
corroberate the words that Mr. Ashplant might, and could bribe members of the

Legislature ?

MAYOR LITTLE: Yes3 as I remember.

MR. ASHPLANT: I do not find them. I do not find myself that Oarty ever

made that statement . Did you understand Carty to say for your corrofoeration

that Mr. Ashplant had said that members could, and might be bribed?

A. He read the statement to me. The statement he read over the telephone

I substantiated. I am not prepared to 'swear that is the statement.
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ME. FERGUSON: Here is the statement.

MAYOR LITTLE: The statement says "Suppose McCrea should be given

$15,000 to get this through; suppose the company should take a block of this

stock and distribute it among the members of the Legislature to get this through/'
I said, as I remember, that you had stated that.

MAJOR TOLMIE : It seems to me we ought to go on <with this a little while

longer and I think we ought to ask the permission of the House.

THE CHAIRMAN: We have done that. We attended to that before the House

opened.

MR, ASHPLANT: Do you understand the distinction between an assertion

and a charge?
A. Yes, I distinctly understood you to insinuate that the Gas Company

might offer $15,000 of bonus stock to Mr. McCrea to use to get the bill through.

Q. You distinctly understood that?

A. Yes.

Q. And I understand you to say you retired from the City Oounicil Cham-
ber?

A. Yes.

MR. FERGUSON: In protest?
A. Yes.

MR. FERGUSON: Just one thing. Mr. Ashplant has asked you if 'Mr. Carty
had been your publicity agent in an election and you stated he had been in the

election of 1919?

A. Yes.

Q. And did he remain your publicity agent in the later election?

A. No.

Q. What was the difficulty?
A. He did not remain my publicity agent throughout the entire election

in the campaign of 1919.

Q. What caused the change? Was there a resignation on his part?
A. Yes, the work was turned over to somebody else.

Q. He quit?
A. -Yes.

Q. Before the election in 1919?
A. Ye*.

Q. Since that time have you had any connection with Mr. Carty?
A. No, none whatever, excepting he comes in to g-et news..

Q. Did M>r. Carty* submitl that isifcaitement to y(ou before pending it to

Toronto?

A. The first I knew anything about it was about four o'clock in the after-

noon of Tuesday. He telephoned and said he lhad a wire from Ttoronto and he
asked me to listen to the statement of the thing he had sent down. And I told

him I thought it was correct.

MR. FERGUSON: Just one more question. You are referring now to the state-

ment, the report, that Carty sent down of the meeting?
A. I did not konw anything about it.

Q. Then he telephoned you and got a statement from you again?
A. Yes.

Q. Did he read to you the second statement before it appeared in The Glob*
of the 9th?
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A. He says he did. I think he did, but I am not prepared to say,
.ME. ASHPLANT: Mr. Carty gave me personally to understand that he did

submit it to you and also his summary of my remarks that are recorded in

The Globe.

MR. FERGUSON : Carty says he did not.

Aid. Drake, on being called and sworn, testified:

MR. FERGUSON: You are an alderman in London?

A. Yes.

Q. How long have you been alderman?

A. Six years.

Q. During the past six years?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what is your occupation in London?
A. Grocer.

Q. And do you remember being at a meeting of the City Council in London

on the 7th of Miarch?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember Mr. Ashplant being present?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And there were some discussions in regard to a private bill that the

City Gas1 Co. wanted to go through the Legislature?
A. Yes. sir.

Q. Now did you see a report of that meeting as it appeared in the Toronto

Globe on the following day, March 8th?

A. No, sir.

Q. You have not seen it since?

A. No, sir.

Q, Will you read that report there, and tell the committee whether that

is a correct report of what Mr. Ashplant stated to the Council.

A. (After reading). Yes, sir. As far as I recollect that is correct.

Q. That is a correct report?
A. Yes.

Q. So we have it in the statement in The Globe, of March 8th, excepting

paragrapn tnree, is a correct account of the statements made by Mr. Ashplant
to the Council?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. In your opinion?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember being interviewed or spoken to on the telephone by
Mr. Caity?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Mr. Carty is the London reporter of The Globe?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you have interviewed Mr. Garty?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And I read this andi you see if this is a correct report of what you said

at the time
; (Reads) . "Unqualifiedly what Mr. Ashplant said before the Council

was exactly as reported, namely, that the member of the Legislature could be
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bribed by the Gas Company. The whole Council should have walked out with

the Mayor. The Council was in Committee of the whole, with Aid. Ashton in

the chair. If the Mayor had been in the chair Mr. As'hplant would have been

put out of the Chamber. Such conduct is a .disgrace to the City of London.

Ashplant should make an apology, to remove the stigma he cast on the honor of

the memJbers of the Private Bills Committee and the House."

Q. Is that the interview you gave?
A. Yes. sir.

Q. And that correctly sets out your views, after having heard Mr. Ashplant?
A. Yes, sir.

MR. ASHPLANT: When you say that the presentation of The Globe, as Carty
has reported it, is correct, I understand you to say you had not seen The Globe

Did you get that by telephone or personal contact, which?
A. What I told. Carty over the telephone.
MR. ASHPLANT: And you did not yourself see The Globe or speak personally

to Carty?
A. It was entirely a telephone matter

Q. Then you speak of that just in general terms?
A Jmst exactly what I told Mr. Carty over the telephone.
Q. And you accept in genera

1! terms just what Mr. Carty has in The Globe

that I said?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And when you do that I believe you understand that Mr. Carty does

not charge me with having used those exact words, that members of the Legislature
coiiM. and might be bribed?

A. I understand exactly what you said, that the City Gas Company could

spend $15.000 to pass this bill through the House.

Q. In general terms, without any too particular language?
A. That is just the same as bribes.

Q. But as far as the bribe part of it is concerned that would be your con-

struction and not that you heard me use those words?
A. Oh, no.

THE CHAIRMAN: The reporter in reporting the thing says Mr. Ashplant
used the expression, suppose McCrae should be given $15,000 to get this through;

suppose the Company should take a block of this stock and distribute it among
members of the Legislature to get it through, wa that said as it is there ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. By whom?
A. By Mr. Ashplant,.
MR. ASHPLANT: Supposing a memiaer of Council should say that he made

notes of what Ashplant literally said, and that his notes as mad* at that same

night meeting, at the same sitting at which you heard this, are to the effect that

Ashplant said that there was nothing to prevent the City Gas Company doing
this, would you say that that was possibly a correct interpretation?

A'. No. I do not say that at all. I say just exactly what is said there.

THE CHAIRMAN: He said his recollection was that you said there was

nothing to prevent them doing it. Alderman Drake said suppose they do do it.

There is no use splitting hairs.

MAJOR TOLMIE: Your understanding of the language that was used was that

this money) might be used to unduly influence the Legislature?



531 APPENDIX No. 3.

A. Yes,, sir.

MR. TOLMIE: That is what you understood?

A. Yes, sir.

MR. TOLMIE : That is all I want.

Aid. W. A. Wilson, on being called and sworn, testified:-

MR. FERGUSON: Alderman Wilson, you are an alderman in the City of

London ?

A. I am.

Q. How long have you been an alderman?

A. Nine years this year.

Q. And what is your occupation there?

A. Well, I am a carpenter by trade, but I am travelling the last 20 years.

Q. How long have you lived in London?
A. Twenty-five or twenty-six years.

Q. You know London pretty well?

A. Pretty well. I ought to.

Q. Do you remember a meeting of the Council in London on the 7th of

March at which Mr. Ashplant was present?
A. I do.

Q. >Some discussion took place in reference to the private bill which the

City Gas Company wanted to get through the House?
A. Yes.

Q. And did you see the report of that meeting in The Globe the following

day?
A. I do not believe I did.

Q. I draw your attention to it now and I want to see whether this is a

correct report of what was stated by Mr. Ashplant before the Council on that

occasion. I do not think I need read it all.

THE CHAIRMAN: There is just one paragraph.
MR. FERGUSON: (Reads) "Suppose McCrea should be given $15,000 to get

this through ; suppose the Company should take a block of this stock and distribute

it among the members of the Legislature to get this through, he commenced,
when Mayor Little interjected a protest, declaring that he would not sit to hear
the honor of the Provincial Legislators so impugned. Mr. Ashplant's rejoinder
was that he had not said that this would be done, but only that it could be done,

and, he added, it is the most natural thing in the world if the Company should
do it."

Q. Is that a correct report of that part of M. Ashplant' speech ?

A. 'I am prepared to say that Mr. Ashplant, <so far as I know, did not use

"could," but I think he used the word "
might.

"

Q. With the substitution of the word "might" for "could" is the statement

correct ? For instance let me put in the word that you say is correct. "Mr. Ash-

plant rejoined that 'he had not said that this would be done but only that it cotdd."

You say "only that it might be done" With that change would that give , correct

account of the ispeech, or that part of it, as made by Mr. Ashplant ?

A. I cannot say very much now about Mr. Ashrplant's speech.. I wa not

listening to but very little of it. But when he came to that point about the Legis-

lature I looked up and I remember him saying "might," and I do not think he
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ever said "could." I was called up that night by Mr. Carty otfj
The Globe to know

wlhat he had said. I told Carty that night that I would not say that he said "could"

but I was satisfied that he said "might."
THE CHAIRMAN : Might what ?

A. Oh I suppose might be bribed.

MR. FERGUSJN : I was going to say you were called up by Mr. Oarty and1 your
attention drawn to the repot of Mr. Ashplanfs speech by Carty, and you gave an

interview to Carty which appears in The Globe of the following day, reading as

follows ; "Ashplant said that the members of the Legislatuure could or might be

bribed, and he was making some pretty broad statements. He should apologize
because he threw the reflection that the members of the Legislature could be bri-

bed." You say "could be bribed." so that was your understanding of Mr. Ash-

plant's speech ?

A. Yes.

Q. That corectly summarizes your understanding of Mr. Ashplant's speech ?

A. It was over the phone the night of the council that Carty called up to

know what he said.

Q. He called you up to get your idea of what he had said and then did he

call you up again ?

A. I don't recall.

Q. You do not remember his calling you ?

A. No. I had no more conversation with him.

Q. At all events that is a correct report of what you said to Mr. Carty ?

A. Yes.

Q. And you are oxpressmg your awn opinion of What had taken place ftt

that time ?

A. Yes.

MB. FERGUSON : I think that is all.

THE CHAIRMAN : Any questions you want to ask gentlemen ?

MR. ASHPLAXT : You remember well the meeting at which this matter occur-

red ?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you recollect any stormy scene that was created by the remarks of

myself ? Was it stormy ?

A. No. I did not see any stormy scene. All I know is that Mayor Tittle

got up and would not listen to you. He went out.

Q.- In any case, as far as your memory serves, there wais nothing exciting
at that time, that this aose out of The Globe summary afterwards. Had' you

simpy had the Mail and Empire report or the Free Press, or the London Advertiser

you would never have thought any more about it ?

A. No, I would not.

Q. As a matter of fact you saw the report of the meeting in the Free Press

of London and the Advertiser and you thought there was nothing to excite the

idea that Mr. Ashplant thought tthe members of the Legislatures could be bribed

A. No, nothing that I could take from them.

Q. Had you not been called up on the telephone by The Globe reporter it

would neve have occured to you in that form ?

A. I would never have thought anything of it if I had not been called up
that night o
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Q. The reporter of The Globe brought the matter to you in that forceful

way ?

A. Well, I have listened to you very often talking in council and I do not

take very much stock in what you say.

The Chairman: There are a lot of frank people in London.

Q. Do you think Ashplant is less reliable than the reporter for The Globe

for instance ?

MR. FERGUSON : Oh no.

THE CHAIRMAN: Well now if the alderman doesn't want to answer he should

not he obliged to pass his opinion as to which is the more reliable, Ashplant or

The Globe reporter.

Q. Do you think from your knowledge of Ashplant that his words would be

sincere, or do you think he would manipulate just to save his skin?

THE CHAIRMAN : You need not answer that question, as to what you think

about Ashplant.
MR. WILSOX: Well, I have had quarrels with you, and you and I have got

on very well. I liked you in the Council fine. I sat alongside you a good many

years and I think you are a pretty good alderman.

MR. ASHPLANT: Well, that hardly saves a man. Do you think Ashplant
intended to convey the idea that Mr. McCrae would accept a bribe 'that the

utmost limits of the expression would be in regard to What the Gas Company
would do?

A. Yes. I do not remember you speaking of Mr. McCrea at all. I have

lost track of it if you did.

Q. From what you remember of the meeting, is what you gather in your

memory relative to what the Gas Company might be disposed to do, or to what

McCrae would do?

A. To what the Gas Company would do.

Q. And there was nothing to prevent the Gas Company from doing any-

thing?
A. Nothing to prevent the Gas Company.
Q. Did Ashplant give any idea that Mr. McCrae woulld accept bribes?

A. No, I do not think you did. I do not remember Mr. McCrae's name

ait all.

Q. Well, Mr. McCrae's name was mentioned, but it was very vital as to

whether you took the impression of one of those two points, as to whether the

trend was to point to what the Gas Company would do, or whether it led to the

other side and whether the inference led to what the Legislature would do or

Mr. McCrae.

.A Well, I cannot answer that question. I do not know. I was not very much

interested in your speech, and I have heard you so often when you were talking

I let you go on and never said a word.

Q. It would be fair to say that aside from being called up by Carty, you
would not have thought Mr. McCrae was mentioned at all?

A. I would not.

THE CHAIRMAN : You said a little while ago that you were not paying much

attention, but when he mentioned members of the Legislature, then you began

io pay attention

A. That was the only thing

Q. What was the mention he made of the members of the Legislature?
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A. I understood he said "might be bribed."

Q. Members of the Legislature?
A. But I am not prepared to say he siaid "could."

Q. But what made you pay attention was the statement "members of the

Legislature might be bribed?"

A. Yes, because I would not want anybody to say members of the Council

might be bribed.

THE CHAIRMAN: You said Mr Ashplant said, "There is nothing to prevent
the &as Company?"

A. Yes, that is it.

Q. Nothing to prevent them doing what? What was it he said?

A. I do not know. I suppose something about dividing up some money.
I cannot tell you what he said. I do not know that I can answer that question

intelligently.

Q. But when he mentioned Legislature and might be bribed that is the

time you woke up?
A. That is the time.

MR. WEBSTER: Often things go on when you do not pay much attention?

A. Often. There was a resolution went through Council a month ago that

I knew nothing about, because I am Chairman of the Board1 of Works and I was

figuring on my report. I was so occupied that I did not see it and it went

through without my knowing anything about it.

MR. WILSON: Who is going to pay our expenses down here?

THE CHAIRMAN: I think, perhaps our Provincial Treasurer will pay them
if he doesn't unduly overload the estimates.

MR. WILSON: The Deputy Sheriff said we had better come or we would b

made to pay a fine of $100. He said you will get paid.

Alderman Brighton, on being called and sworn, testified;

MR. FERGUSON: You are an alderman in London?
A. Yes.

Q. How long have you been an alderman?

A. This is the second year.

Q. How long have you lived in London?
A. Thirty-seven years.

Q. What is your occupation?
A. Baker.

Q. Were yon present at a meeting of the City Council on March 7th, when

discussion took place in- reference to a private bill the Gas Company wanted to

get through the Legislature?
A.- I was.

Q. And did you hear Mr. Ashplant speak on that occasion?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And do you remember what he said? Perhaps I can shorten it. Did

frou see a report in The Globe of the next day?
A. No, I didn't see it.

Q. You didn't see it?

A. No.

Q. Well, I will read you one paragraph here. This is the important one :
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"Suppose MoCrea should be given $15,000 to get this through; suppose the com-

pany should take a block of this stock and distribute it among the members of

the Legislature to get this through/' he commenced, when Mayor Little inter-

jected a protest, (declaring that he would not sit to hear the honor of the Provin-

cial Legislators so impugned. Mr. Ashplant's rejoinder was that he had not said

that this would be done, but only that it could be done, and, he added, it is the

most natural thing in the world if the company should do it." Do you say that

that is or is not a correct summary of what Mr. Ashplant said?

A. Well, I wou'ld say that I did not take much notice of what he did say.

Q. Well, see if we can refresh your memory. Do you remember The Globe

correspondent in London communicating with you on the following day?
A. He did not communicate with me.

Q. There is an interview which Carty has sworn he had with you by tele-

phone. Here is what The Globe reported on the following day. Carty says
he communicated with you by telephone, drew your attention to the report as it

appeared in The Globe that morning, and then he got from you this statement;

"Ashplant made the statement that the Gas Company might use the money for

bribery to get its higher rates agreement through. No other meaning could be

taken from his words. I took it as a serious reflection on the City Council. He
has no right to cast unfair reflections on men in public office, and should apologize/*
Did you make that statement?

A. That is the only view I could take from the statement he made.

Q. Then although you do not remember giving this interview to Mr. Carty,
that correctly sets out vour view of Mr. Ashplant's speech ?

A. Yes.

Q. And you say that is the only view you could take ?

A. The only view, yes. That is the way I would figure from a man making
a statement in the way of talking about distributing stock. I took no other

view from it.

THE CHAIRMAN: Whom did he say could be bribed?

A. He didn't say anybody.

Q. Did he mention what individuals?

A. Not by name.
'

. Q. But where was it to go to, or where might it go?
A. Well, I do not know. I have entirely forgotten about the incident. The

thing slipped my mind. I dismissed it from my mind. I have plenty of other

business to look after.

THE CHAIRMAN: Does anybody want to ask the witness any questions?
MR. ASHPLANT : Do you read the reports of the Council meetings in the local

papers of London?
A. I certainly do.

Q. And did you notice anything strange in the absence of any reference to

a stormy time, or the bribing of the Legislature in the local press?
A. Well, I don't know that there was any stormy time at the Council that

I know of that night.

Q. Your memory does not recall any stormy scene?

A. No, there was no stormy scene there. The only instance was in regard
to the Mayor getting up and leaving the chair.

Q. That was in a perfectly normal way. nothing stormy about it?
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A. No.

Q. Well then, The Globe would be apparently the only source of recalling to

your memory the idea of bribing the Legislature? If it had not been that The

Globe made this particular form of presentation of Ashplant's remarks, would it

rest upon your mind very much?
A. WeM, remarks similar were being made that left that impression.

Q. But it left a lasting impression on you that the City Gas Company might
use funds- that way if it felt so disposed, or did it leave the impression that

members of the Legislature were of that character that they could be bribed?

You see there are the two distinct attitudes, whether Ashplant in his remarks

indicated what the >City Gas Company would do in attempting certain thinge or

whether Ashplant's remarks were intended to point out that the Legislators would

accept anything of the Gas Company, if it felt so disposed to give.

A. I do not think it would possibly refer to the members taking bribes.

Q. Then you will admit that so far as what is left on your mind of Ash-

plant's remarks is concerned, it is in reference to hat might be the policy of the

Gas Company if they chose to put out $15,000?
A. I took that impression from your speech.

Q. But that was another question entirely about the Legislature or Mr.

McCrea accepting it? Mr. Ashplant did not intimate that the Legislature would

accept ?

A. I certainly did not think you referred to "could". That might have

been before, but I fancy the impression you left on the public in London is right

along those lines of your statement the impression you left.

MR. FERGUSON : The impression left on your mind was that this money was to

be used for bribery purposes?
A. Along those lines .

Q. Improperly used, at all events ?

A. I would judge so.

THE CHAIRMAN : What did the Mayor say when he got up to leave ? Did he

give no reason for leaving?
A. No, he didn't. Not that I am aware.

Q. Are storms frequent in Council there?

A. Well, I didn't see any storm that night. It was reported so but I didn't

see it.

MR. FERGUSON : I have no other witnesses to-day.

THE CHAIRMAN: Well, Mr. Graydon was summoned; Mr. Graydon is the

Magistrate of London, and he had a couple of preliminary hearings in a murder
case this morning and several other things, and he telephone;'! me yesterday and

said he had not been subpoenaed until yesterday and it was entirely impossible for

him to put over his whole court on account of these important cases coming up,
and he wanted to know if he could be excused to-day, and under the circumstances

I said I did not think the Committee would insist on his being hero, if he would

come any other time. Now is there any other witness that it is desired should

be summoned ? Do you want to bring witnesses, Mr Ashplant, or are you content

to rest your case as it is ? It is this way ; Mr. Ashplant said to the Committee,
"I did not say that; I did not intend to say it. I did not intend to cast any
reflections on Members of the Legislature or intimate that they could be bribed."

And he denied any such intention. He said he had no reason to believe that and
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did not desire to convey that impression. And he goes the length of saying thait

nothing he did say is open to ttat conistniction. Now, in tihe light of that, does

the Committee desire to hear any further witnesses, that is witnesses who will come
and say he did say it or he did not say it? Personally, I think that if Mr Ash-

plant desires to call witnesses he should be given the opportunity to do so. On
the other hand he nuay not desire to do so after hearing the evidence here to-dfty.

MR. CURRIE : Did Mr. Ashplant go this far, as to say that if anything that he

did say was capable of that interpretation that he desires to withdraw it and is

sorry for having so expressed himself?

THE CHAIRMAN: No, he did not go that far. He has denied that he used

the language which is attributed to him. There have been four or five or six

witnesses who have sworn he did use that language.
MR. CURRY: Perhaps he would now, and say he did not intend to have the

words interpreted in the manner in which they have been interpreted, and if they
are capable of that interpretation then he is sorry.

MR. ASHPLANT: Well, that is actually the position. I am just precisely in

the position that I started out, that I distinctly deny that I used the words that

have been attributed to me in The Globe, the first paragraph, which Feems to

have been the basis of the charges, that I made use of that phraseology. But
there is this position. It does not appear to be the slightest use to get awav from
the fact that certain members of the Council took certain ideas from that, that

I did say, whatever I said. Well, now then, I have just this position on that

that I am sincerely sorry that any such interpretation of what I said should ever

have been published as appeared in The Globe.

MR. CURRY: No, no. You are sorry for having made use of the words in

respect to which any such interpretation could be made.

MR. ASHPLANT: Certainly.

MR. CURRY: And if any such interpretation could be placed upon any words
of yours that you desire to withdraw and express your regret for having used them.

MR. ASHPLANT: Certainly.

MR. CURRY: You say certainly but you do not do it.

THE CHAIRMAN: Supposing we do this. Supposing Mr. Curry puts down
in writing what will be satisfactory to the Committee and you sign it, and we will

put it in the records, and everybody will go away happy and be satisfied.

MR. ASHPLANT : In the terms of the words just said I will si<rn. Just this

reservation, that it will not embody any admission on my part that I do myself
admit 1 did make this statement, because I did not. I do admit that there was
that interpretation, that it was possible of me having made this statement without

my memory serving me to that extent, and I am quite willing to say what yon
have said.

THE CHAIRMAN : In other words, that these perfectly respectable aldermen
and Mayor, who pledge their oath that you did say it they have sworn to that,

that you did use this expression that you would not be prepared, having heard
their evidence, to deny that you did?

MR. ASHPLANT: Well, I might produce half-a-dozen men to say I did not.

I admit the other fefllows have got it on me in that sense. I can see it is. no use

for me to bring witnesses here.

THE HAIRMAN : Are you willing, for Mr. Curry, to write out that if you did

say anything from which that inference could be taken that you desire to withdraw
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it and express regret?

ME. ASHPLANT: Yes.

MEMBER : And won't say it again ?

MR. ASHPLANT : I will have my notes with me when I say anything like that.

THE CHAIRMAN: That is alright then, Mr. Ashplant. Every blot on the

escutcheon of the Legislature has been removed as far as I can make out.

David James Taylor, of Wiarton, Member of the Legislative Assembly for

the riding of North Grey, on being called and sworn, testified :

MR. FERGUSON: Mr. Taylor, I read to you. the extract from the notes and

proceedings of the House here in reference to a statement attributed to you, said

to have been made on the llth day of June last. This is the report as appearing

in the Press:

"The principle of the $2,500 indemnity for the Members is wrong, but I

did favour a bonus for the present Session. The hotel bill alone was about $4
a day, and in the Session each member would spend about $700. And if you
don't believe me just try it," said Mr. Tayior. "If the Member was a farmer he

had to hire someone to run his ffl^m, white if he was a labourer, he lost his job.

If the public want honest service the\ should pay their representatives a fair

amount. Every dollar I get, the piuolic will know about it," said Mr. Taylor,

telling of an ofter of $1,000 he had received and refused for his influence in a

certain measure, and three weeks after his election. "And if the past Govern-

ments had not been in the habit of taking money on the side, how was it that the

man should come to me?" queried "Mr. Taylor." Did you make that statement,

Mr. Taylor?

A. I made the statement up to about the last paragraph. I made no reflec-

tion on past members. It was personal with myself. I made the statement

regarding the thousand dollars being offered to me.

Q. You did make a statement regarding a thousand dollars offered to you?
And was a thousand dollars offered to you?

A. Yes.

Q. You were offered a thousand dollars, you say? Was that in the nature

of an inducement to pass legislation, in regard to a certain measure?

A. If you will allow me to relate the incident I think it will save time. I

think the day was Saturday, if I recollect, November 1, 1919. In the morning
there is an early train gets into my town about 6.31. There was a party came in

and walked out to my home about a mile out and in a conversation with me in

my home he was supposed to represent one George Menzie, of Owen Sound, who

was desirous of the vice-chairmanship of the Workman's Compensation Board this

gentleman was supposed to represent this Menzies and he started in saying he

thought Mr. Menzies should get this job, and the statement that Mr. Menzie

was willing to pay me $1,000 for my influence in endeavoring to obtain him this

position. That was in November, 1919, and I rather think it was the "1st of

November.

Q. Do you know the name of the man who came to you?
A. At that time I did not ask his name, and I did not give it any consid-
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eration, only the few minutes in my home, and I did not give it much thought un-

til I made the assertion on the platform as stated there. It came to me later, when

the press gave it such notoriety, I noticed more the extent of my assertion and

endeavored then, through descriptions to parties in Owen Sound, to find the man
who had approached me, but was unable to, and on the Monday after this was

brought up in the House, I think it was Monday, the 14th of March, or on the

Monday nearest to that date, I went to Mr Menzie's home and asked him if he

had sent or caused to be sent in any way anyone to me making this offer. He

absolutely denied it and said he had not. Then on the following, or not the

following but I think Thursday the 24th of March I received a letter at my
home address which, if the Chairman will read, will, I think, explain why I made
the statement. It is post-marked Detroit, March 22nd.

MR. FERGUSON: We have the letter here. The letter is being produced.
MR. TAYLOR: It will explain my authority on making the remarks I did.

THE CHAIRMAN: (reads) It is dated, "Detroit, Michigan, U.S.A." There is

a postmark, March 22nd, 1921."
,

Mr. J. D. Taylor, M.P.P.,

Wiarton, Ontario.

Dear Sir,

I was handed some days ago a copy of the Toronto Star, in which I

saw something has been said in the Government about a remark that yoir made
about being offered a sum of money to use your influence for the appointment
of a certain man to a Government position. Now I have thought that you might
be placed in a somewhat awkward position over the matter, as I do not suppose

you know my name, but I am the man that called on you at your home near

Wiarton and amongst other things I did suggest that you might very easily make
$1,000 in this way, put I am pleased to be able to say that you absolutely refused

to accept any money consideration for your influence in any way.
I may say further that I had never met you until the day of our con-

versation and I knew nothing! (whatever about you, but during the election I

heard conflicting stories about you and so I took the trouble to call on you for

the sole purpose of testing you out as to your honesty in political matters.

I was not asked by any person to see you or to make any offer to you,
but did BO entirely off my own bat.

I thought it only fair that I should write you on this matter, but hope
my action will not get you into any trouble.

I am now living in Detroit, having left Owen Sound last fall.

(signed) W. WILCOX.

Q. Do you know any person of that name?
A. No.

Q. Never remember having met him?
A. No, I don't remember meeting him, but I have called up people in Owen

Sound and endeavored to find out if there was such a man in Owen Sound as that
and I have found out that such a man did live in Owen Sound.

Q. You live on a farm, do you?
A. Yes.

Q. Did he drive out?

A .No, he came out on the early train.

Q. Are you near the station?
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A. About a mile.

Q. He walked over from the station.

A. Yes.

Q. This statement you made at the picnic, this part of it, "Every dollar I get
the public will know about it," said Mr Taylor, telling of an offer of $1,000 he

had received and refused for his. influence in a certain measure, and three

weeks after the election."

A. I said on a certain matter. I did not say measure. That was corrected

by The Star.

Q. That is what .you based it on?

A. Yes.

Q. The rest of the statement you say is not right?
A. "If past governments have not been in the habit of taking money'* I

did not refer to that at all.

Q. Do you know the reporter on The Star who reported this?

A. Well, J knew the boy who was there. I do not know where he is at

the present time.

Q. Do you remember his name?
A. Yes, his name is Scott.

Q. And he is the one who reported your speech at the picnic?
A. Yes sir.

MR. FERGUSON: I do not think there is anything else, Mr. Chairman.

THE CHAIRMAN: I should have called the Committee's attention to the fact

that the cancellation stamp is on the stamp on this letter.

MR. FERGUSON : I tore that off before noticing.

THE CHAIRMAN : It is an American stamp. What I wanted to ask Mr.

Ferguson to go into, it was on behalf of Mr. Menzie, has anything been produced
to show whether Mr. Menzie was or was not an applicant for the position?

MR. TAYLOR: Yes r I can prove he was an applicant.

Q. How do you know?
A.- Well I have letters on me now that he has been since applying, and I think

it oan be shown from the old files th'ait he was an applicant previous, shortly after

this position was made vacant. ,

Q. Where does he live ?
,

A He lives in Owen Sound.

Q. And you say from investigations you made in the Department.
A. Well, I have been investigating in the department since he has been

writing here, and in fact 1 was asked to meett ham .before the election and was

told at the time that he was an aspirant for this position. I did meet him but he

did not broach the question to me. This was 'before the election.

MR, FERGUSON : Has he ever succeeded in getting this position ?

A. No.

THE CHAIRMAN : Still without one is die ?

A. Yes.

THE CHAIRMAN: It looks as if he might likely remain without this one. Any
other members of the committee would like to ask 'any questions ? You have

nothing further, Mr. Ferguson ?

,MR. FERGUSON: Nothing.
THE CHAIRMAN: That is all then. Are there any more witnesses on this
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matter ?

MR. FERGUSON : The only thing that is left open in this is the last part of

the charge that is referred here. Mr. Taylor is 'alleged to 'have said that "if past

governments have not been in the habit of taking money on the side, how was it

that the mian should come to me ?"

THE CHAIRMAN : Well is not that only an inference for him draw ; suppose

he did say it ? Is there anything else on this matter. That is all tihen Mr Tay-
lor. Are there any more matters ?

MR. FERGUSON; The only either matter is the Burnaby matter, and then

there are two other matters thait we are not prepared to proceed with at the

present time.

THE CHAIRMAN : What about the Burnaby matter ? That is a very serious

matter ?

MEMBER: What about the Swayze matter ?

THE CHAIRMAN: That is not so serious.

MR. FERGUSON: As far as the Swayze miatter is concerned I do not know
what is to be done about that. I have no instruction to call iany witnesses so far

as Swayze is concerned. If the cotmrndttee wants to go irtto it, into Mr.Swayze's

statement, thiaft will have to be done.

THE CHAIRMAN : Let us fir sit determine when we will -sit again. We ought
to get through this week. We must get through this week because we might not

be sitting next week. What day will we take the Burnaby matter up ? How can

he be got at ?

MEMBER: He is only out about 18 miles. You can get him by telephone.

THE CHAIRMAN : Well' what have we got this week ? That won't take very

long, and tihen we will be practically through. I would say have Mr. Burnaby
here on Thursdiay if that is agreeable to the committee and Mr. Ferguson.

Mr. Ferguson That is agreeaible.

MR. WEBSTER: Make it 130 p.m. Thursday.
THE CHAIRMAN: That is all right. With regard to these other things, take

the Swayze - MacBride controversy, 'and tihe statements concerning the member
for Parry Sound made by the Telegram. Whait are we going to do about that ?

Take the Hall matter ? Have you looked into that Mr. Ferguson, to ascertain

whether or not so far as the charges are concerned, if charges they be, that they

reflect on the honorable member, wh either at the time referred to in the charge
he was a member of tihe House. Beauise if they were norfc how does it affect the

matter
,

MR. FERGUSON : I do not think it makes any difference. I do nolt think

this committee has any right to investigate this charge if it is not a matter

appertaining to the House. I took the trouble to look into it and I am convinced

that it is not a subject of investigation before a committee of till is kind.

The Chairman: Very good. Does the committee desire in the light of Mr.

Ferguson's opinion- decide now -whether we will go any further with that matter,

or whether we will not.

MR. WEBSTER: What is the use of going any further ?

MR. .CRIDLAND: I move tftat the committee discharge the case.

MR. TOOMS: I second that.

MR. FERGUSONS : Members of the committee had better report that they feel

that it is not a matter that comes within their jurisdiction.



George V. APPENDIX No. 3. 545

THE CHAIRMAN: If someone will make a motion now upor* record, that in

view of Mr. Ferguson's opinion tihat the statements made about Mr. Hall are

not statements made of and "Concerning a member in his capacity as a member of

the House, and therefore this committee cannot take cognizance of them - will

somebody make a motion as to what we shall do with, this ?

MR. WEBSTER: I will make that motion, Mr. Chairman.

MR. CRIDLAND : I will econd it.

THE CHAIRMAN : It has ibeen moved and (seconded, \that in view of Mr. Ferg-
uson's opinion that the charges known as the Hall ciharges wihich were referred

to this committee for investigation are not charges relating to Mr. Hall in his

capacity as member of the House, .and are therefore not properly the subject of

investigation by this committee, it is moved that this committee take no further

action with regard to this matter known as the Hall -charges.

On the motion being puft to a vote the Chairman declared it carried.

THE CHAIRMAN: Now wlhat 'a'bout the Swayze-MacBride matters ?

MR. FERGUSON: I do not know what evidence can be given with regard to

that, Mr. Chairman.

THE CHAIRMAN : The difficulty about this - it was a staitetment made in the

house - it is simply a statement tihiat a certain honorable member in connection

with his conduct ais a member of a commission appointed by the government, to

the effect, as I recollect it, Itihat (he played both ends against the middle. It was
a statement of an honorable members opinion. How are we going o investigate
that ? How are we going to investigate the mental attitude of a member of this

House, as to his sincerity or insincerity, his mental <s6a)te.

HONORABLE MEMBER: A man can think what he likes so long as he doesn't

say it.

THE CHAIRMAN : That is what I say. You may call in twenty-five witnesses

who may all sa.y that we are of ithe 'Opinion that a certain member of the coon-

mission, thiat from what we siaw of him and1 the way we heard him talk we iare of

the opinion that he was insincere. And you might bring forty or fifty others

here who are of the opinion that the honorable member was perfectly sincere

throughout. Where have we got ?

HONORABLE MEMBER: Nowhere.

MR. FERGUSON : I doubt very much if you can investigate the condition of

a man's mind very well.

MR. TOOMRS: Seeing that we can arrive at nothing definite I would move

that tibe ease drop.

THE CHAIRMAN: Is there any seconder ? Moved by Mr. Tooms seconded

by Mr. Hicks that in view of the fact that the statement or charges relating to

the honorable member for South Brant in connection with his conduct as a mem-

ber of the hydro investigating oonumittee at Chippawa Falls last year, that such

an investigation would simply be an investigation of the honorable member's

mental attitude, with nothing tangible as to acts done or anything of that kind

by him, that thds committee does not feel that any good purpose would be -served

by X>in2; on with 'an investigation of what is known as the Swayze - MacBride

matter and therefore no further proceedings be taken by the committee in con-

nection with that matter. That is the underspending -of the matter.

iUpon

the motion being put to a vote the chairman declared it carried.

THE CHAIRMAN: That leaves only Mr. Bumaby. Will somebody make a
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motion to have -him here. Moved by Mr. Webster that E. W. E. Burnaby be
summoned to appear ThuiBday April 28 at 1.30 with the usual documents

..Carried.

APRIL 29TH, 19-21.

The Committee met on Friday, April 29th, 1921, at 1.30 with E. L. Brackin
in the chair.

Mr. li. W. E. Burnaby, on being called and sworn, testified :

THE CHAIRMAN: What is your full name?
A. Ralph W. E. Burnaby.
MR. FERGUSON : Mr. Burnaby, you live in North York ?

A. Yes.

Q. And you are President of the United Farmers Co-operative Association ?

A. Xo, the United Farmers of Ontario.

Q. And you made a speech at Kettleby, last June?
A. Yes.

Q. I will read to you the matter that has been referred to this Committee
to draw your attention to it. This is under date of June 23rd, and appeared in the

Globe and in the Aurora Banner: "Mr. Burnaby declared that a direct attempt
had been made to bribe him, cited the offer made, and said he was ready at any
time to back up his statement : 'I know nothing albout the famous bribery charge
that has been delighting the Press lately/ the U.F.O. President said, 'But

*

I

want to tell you. ladies and gentlemen, that this thing has been going on for years.
Thank God, laan not in the Government, but I have been offered a bribe and I can

back up any statement. When the 'Government >advertisled for a purchasing agent
at a salary of $6,000 a year, I was offered $1,000 a year if I would use my influence

to have a certain man appointed, the $1,000 to continue as long as he held the

job. I told him that I would use my influence, but see that he did not get the

job.'
"

Q. Are you correctly reported ?

A. Oh, practically.

Q. Now, would you mind telling the Committee on what you based that

statement ?

A. Well, Mr. Chairman, if I am in order, I would like a ruling from you
as to what right this 'Committee has to ask me here to-day. I have said and done

nothing affecting any member of Parliament whatever. I would like to have your

ruling.

THE CHAIRMAN: Would you read, please, Mr. Ferguson, the reference on this

matter from the House ?

MR. FERGUSON: The reference is as follows: "And whereas one. "R. W. F.

Burnaby, of North York, President of the U.F.O. Co-operative Association did

make a statement on or about the 23rd day of June, 1'920, as reported in the Press,

as follows:" And then follows what T have just read to you. It continues:

"And whereas all these statements are serious reflections on the independence

and honour of the Legislature; and whereas the dignity and honour of the House

and the safety of the public interests demand that these allegations be fully and

thoroughly investigated and proper punishment be meted out to anyone who may

be found guilty of any of the acts alleged; be it therefore resolved that in the

opinion of this House it is the duty of the Government to refer the allegations
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and charges to the Standing Committee on Privileges and Elections/'

MR. CURRIE: Just exactly what was the charge?
THE CHAIRMAN: The charge was that he made this statement: "1 know

nothing about the famous bribery charge that has been delighting the Press lately/'

the U.F.O. President said, "but 1 want to tell you, ladies and gentlemen!, that this

thing has been going on for years. Thank God, 1 am not in the Government,
but I have been offered a bribe and I can back up my statement. When the Gov-

ernment advertised for a purchasing agent at a salary of $6,000 a year, I was

offered $1,000 a year if I would use my influence to have a certain man appointed,
the $1,000 to continue as long as he held the job. I told him that 1 would use niy

influence, but see that he did not get the job/
5

MR. CURRY : What is Mr. Burnaby'e contention ?

A. That there is nothing in there that reflects on any member of the House.

THE ITAIRMAN : ]f you want a ruling on that I will take first Mr. Ferguson's

opinion, as counsel to the 'Committee. I think it is proper and right that we
should have that. Js it the desire of the Committee that we should have the

opinion of counsel on the point raised by Mr. Burnaby. First, let me understand

this, as I understand your position it is this, you do now object to being examined

with respect to this matter?

A. Oh, no, 1 am not taking that stand, but 1 want to know the right of this

Committee to call me here. 1 have said or done nothing to reflect on any member
of the House.

THE CIIAIHMAN: If you make no objection to being examined then there is

nothing for the Committee to rule on."

MR. CURRY : He makes the objection to being called hem
THE CHAIRMAN : The point is this. Do you now say that you object to being

examined with regard to this matter upon the ground that this Committee has no

jurisdiction to make the enquiry?
A. Yes.

Q. And you do object to being examined on that ground, that this Committee
has no jurisdiction ?

A. Yes.

Q. And you are. not willing to waive that objection in the public interest?

A. Oh, I am quite willing to waive the objection..
THE CHAIRMAN: All right, we will go ahead.

A. But I think it is only fair that I have a ruling on this quite important
point.

THE CHAIRMAN : If Mr. Burnaby says he is willing to waive his objection

there is no use ruling on an academic question. If he -comes here and says, I do

not desire to be examined and do not wish to .give evidence on the ground that the

Committee has no jurisdiction and I am not willing to waive that- objection, then

I will rule. But if he says he is willing in the public interest to waive that objec-

tion in order that the matter may be inquired into, I do not think' there is any-

thing to rulle upon. That is the position exactly. Mr. Ferguson can ask you any

question he likes, and if you object to answering questions T will rule on them as

they come up.
MR. CURRY: Now that the question has been raised, it should be settled.

What is the opinion^on that?

THE CHAIRMAN: Mr. Burnaby says, himself, he has no objection.
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MR. BURNABY: I will waive it. If there is any public interest to be served

I have no objection.

MR. FERGUSON : If the Committee wants my opinion I will give it ?

THE CHAIRMAN: Does the Committee desire Mr. Ferguson's opinion.

Carried.

MR. FERGUSON : I think that this commiittieie has jurisdiction to investigate

this charge for ths reason. It does relate n my opinion to the members of the

House and is or may be a reflection upon them for this reason. In the first p'lace

the bribe that Mr. Burnaby was offered has, in my opinion, nothing to do with this

House or the members of it, but the first part of his address, or the part that we

are dealing with, is this: "I know nothing about the famous bribery charge that

ha& been delighting the Prates lately/' the U. F. O. President said, But I want to

tell you, ladies and gentlemen, that this thing has 'been going on for years.
MR. BURNABY : Well, I don't think that is correctly reported.
MR. FERGUSON: We'll, I am basing my opinion entirely on this report being

correct, and if it is correct I think this Committee has jurisdiction.
MR. BURNABY : Well, we had better go on.

MR. FERGUSON: Well, you said Mr. Burnaby, I think, that this report is

substantially correct. Would you mind just relating in your own words to this

Committee the basis you had for your statement.

A. Why just shortly after or about the time that the Cfovermnent was adver-

tising for a Purchasing Agent a mian came, inito my office, and' made me a direct

proposition )tihat I would! use my influence to get him this job and he got it at

$6,000 a year, there would be a thousand in it for me as long as held the job.

Now I was in the office alone when this man came in and I told him I would use,

my influence to see that he did not get the job. And as he was going down the

steps he was pretty miad and somewhat flushed. Mr. Morrison said, "Well, what is

the matter with that fellow," And I said, "Take a look at him." All he could

see was his back as he was going down the steps. And then I told Mr. Morrison

just what happened.

MR. FERGUSON: Well, now, dealing first, perhaps,with the prior part of this

statement, where you said, "I know nothing about the famous bribery charge that

has been delighting the Press lately/' the U.F.O. President said, "but I want to

tell you, ladies and gentlemen, that this thing has been going on for years." That,

I think, is the important part.

A. Well, I think I have more sense than to make a statement just like that.

Q. Then is that not a true statement ?

A. No, I don't think it is exactly true.

Q. Would you mind telling the 'Committee what you did say, that .uave the

reporter the idea that you did say it or caused him to write it.

A. Of course I cannot begin to remember the exact words, but it would be

probably more like this, "This is no new thing," or, "We have heard of such things

before." I certainly would guard my words in that way.

Q. Well, on what would you base that statement, that this is no new thing?

A. Well, I have heard about them. I guess everyone of us have.

Q ir_H\V^ll ?
do you know of any instance where a 'bribe has been offered, or

offered and accepted by any member of the Legislature ?

A. No, isdr.

Q._Y<m don't ? And you have no evidence at all that such a thing ever
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happened ?

Q. Then if you did say, "This is no new thing," you were scarcely fair?

A. Well, perhaps, 1 did not make myself clear. 1 was making no charge

against any particular bribe. The accusation is no new thing. There is not a man
in this room that has not heard it. That is the stand 1 took. That is what I

intended to convey.

Q. You said that charges of this kind were nothing new?
A. Yes.

Q. But, I take it now, to clear the matter up, you personally Know of nothing
whatever upon which a charge of that kind might be based?

A. No. Only hearsay, the same as the rest of them.

Q. So far as that point is concerned then, we can take it that there is no

reflection on honorable members of the Legislature?
A. Certainly not.

Q. Now in regard to the other part of tihe statement, do you know who the

man was ?

A.Yes.

Q. Would you mind giving us his name ?

A. No. I could not give you his name. The reason why I cannot give his

name is this, that only the two of us were in the office, and I cannot prove because

there was no one else there, that the man made this proposition.
THE CHAIRMAN : Do you know his name ?

A. Yes.

Q. I think you ought to give it to the Committee ?

A. No, I will not give his name.

MR. LENNOX : Now I think witness ought to give the name. It doesn't matter

whether he can prove anything or not. That question doesn't arise. The question
is did this conversation take place. And he may not be able to prove it, but we have

a right, surely, to sift this thing to the very bottom and find out the man who
made it. The man who made it may be liable for criminal action. I do not know
whether he is or not, but the public ought to know who the man is so other people

may be protected against him. And I feel pretty strongly on it. Mr. Burnaby
has made the assertion, at the beginning he boasted that he can "back up his

statements." He ought to back them up now by giving the name of the man.

Either Mr. Burnaby, when he made the statement, could not back it up or ho

could. If he could back it up that only means that he could prove it. If he could

not then he should not have made the statement. I think the Chairman's ruling
is perfectly correct and that we ought to have the name of the man who made the

statement.

MR. BURNABY: The reason why I object to giving the man's name is this,

that if I give the man's name probably before night he would issue a writ for libel

against me and I could not protect myself at all.

MR. LENNOX : He has got to prove

MR. BURNABY : Well, I object to giving the man's name. I gave the Premier

sufficient information FO he would know the man was not an applicant for the job.

MR. LENNOX : Does the Premier know the name ?

PREMIER DRURY : No, I do not know.

MR. CURRY : I think the honorable member for North York is enlarging on the

lead of the man's liability to criminal prosecution for an offence of that kind. Mr.



550 APPENDIX No. 3. 1921

Burnaby may have had a duty to perform I think possibly he did of giving the

Crown Attorney the facts. Whether he performed that duty is another matter.

MR. BURNABY : I did.

Q. With the Crown Attorney?
A. No, the Attorney General.

MR. CURRY: That is just as good.
MR. LENNOX : Better. But did he give the name ?

PREMIER DRURY : No. He did not give the name to anybody.
MR. URRY: Then I think there is no question about it, he has done his

whole duty, and in regard to that matter I do not think this Committee are inter-

ested at all whether a man came and offered him a bribe. When I am not a member
of the House and I am offered a bribe to use my influence to get a man a position.
and I a-ccept that 'bribe, I would be liable to criminal prosecution, 'but if 1 resisted

it surely doesn't mean, because I choose to say that 1 was offered a large bribe.

that it is any reflection on any member of this Legislature.
MR. BURNABY : The man asked me to do something which was wrong and he

was wiling to pay me for it and 1 refused to, do it. *What has that got to do with

this Committee?

THJE CHAIRMAN: We will clear it up this way. Have you given his name to

the Attorney General or any other authority ?

A. No. I gave the Attorney-General sufficient information so he would know
that he was not one of the applicants.

THE CHAIRMAN : Yes, that is true, but not sufficient information to enable
him to base a prosecution on?

A. No.

Q. You say you object to giving his name ?

A. Yes.

MR. LENNOX: Now you have ruled that he should?

THE CHAIRMAN : Yes, I will rule that, and if ttfoei ruling is objected to it is

.up to the Committee.

MR. LENNOX: What my honorable friend Mr. Curry says is not to the point
at all. Now the gravamen of this statement of Mr. Burnaby's is just exactly as

my learned friend Mr. Ferguson, put it; that was contained in the words: "This

kind of thing has been going on for years. Thank God I am not in the Govern-

ment/3 Now that is a reflection, as you have ruled, and in the opium of Un-

learned counsel, upon the integrity and honesty of the members who were here

prior to the time the statement was made. Surely we have a right to know the

name of the man that made the statement to you in view of the serious reflection
that was cast throughout the whole of this Province. If the statement was made.
we ought to know two things. We ought to know the name of the man for the

purpose of knowing whether any reliance can be placed on what he says. Further-

more we ought to know the name of the man to be able to ascertain whether when
the applications come up for this position, the Government, when they deal with

it, will be able to put their finger upon this man. Up to the present time, ac-

cording to Mr. Burnaby's evidence, this man may still be selected as Purchasing
Agent.

PREMIER DRURY : No.

MR. LENNOX: Well, you say no. I say yes. If his statement is correct, if

they do not know the name of the man, then they do not know who the man is that
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made this bribe or made this offer to Mr. Bunuiby. You cannot get away from it.

THE CHAIRMAN: Of course I suppose this is it. The Government knows

who the applicants are. Mr. Burnaby says he gave sufficient information to elim-

inate this man from being selected for the position.

MR. BURXABY: 1 just gave the Attorney-General the man's three initial

and the last letter in his name.

PREMIER DRURY : I had some correspondence with Mr. Burnaby which I

think should be submitted to show the position the Government took, and that

will clear this whole business up. ,

MR. LEXXOX : I think the public would like to have the name. I move that

we do here have the name.

THE CHAIRMAX : The ruling of the chair is that Mr. Burnaby must give

the name of the person who offered this bribe. Mr. Burnaby, 1 understand, is not

satisfied and desires an appeal from the ruling. I am going to leave it to the Com-
mittee to say whether that ruling shall be upheld.

MR. BURXABY : I objected and asked you for your ruling on that matter.

Your counsel has already said that you have no jurisdiction in that matter.

MR. LEXXOX : I am asking if the correspondence that was submitted to the

Government has been available to Mr. Ferguson?
THE CHAIRMAX : It has never been asked for.

PREMIER DRURY : The only correspondence that ever took place is in my
pocket. I want it before the Committee.

THE CHAIRMAX : That correspondence does not contain the name of the

individual in question.

MR. LEXXOX : Before the vote is taken I want Mr. Burnaby on record as to

his objection to giving the name. Is there any other reason than what you have

given for your objection to disclosing the name of the party whom you allege

made the offer to you ?

MR. BURXABY: Xo, there is no other objection just for my own protection,

that is all.

MR. FERGUSON : Would it be better to 'have the correspondence produced before

the vote, so that members can vote more intelligently.

THE CHAIRMAX: Subject to the approval from the ruling of the chair, the

ruling is that Mr. Burnaby must answer the question.

MR. CURRY: Is not a witness who is called before this Committee to answer

questions, to be protected ?

MR. FERGUSOX : I think he is protected.

MR. CURRY: Then let the witness understand that he is protected from action

for damages.

MR. FERGUSOX : No doubt about it. He is protected from action for libel.

THE CHAIRMAX: This Committee has all the powers of a court in evidence.

You would be protected from libel. Do you still- refuse to give the name of the

man, who offered you the bribe ?

MR. BURXABY: Yes, I object.

MR. LENNOX: You understand perfectly, you are free from any danger of

any action, civil or otherwise.

MR. CURRY: The only action you would be liable for is one for perjury for

telling an untruth.

THE CHAIRMAN : That is all.
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MR. CUIUIY : In a civil action or in a prosecution any man who tells an untruth

in either would be liable to prosecution for perjury.
THE CHAIRMAN: Under these circumstances do you still refuse to answer?

ME. BURNABY : I refuse to give the man's name.
THE CHAIRMAN: Before you gentlemen vote on that question of the appeal

which Mr. Burnaby desires I am going to read this correspondence.
MR. LENNOX : I do not know what is in tihe correspondence but is that hardly

fair? Mr. Burnaby says he will not answer that question. He gave his reason for

it. His reason has no reference whatever to any correspondence between him and

the Premier. Surely the correspondence that passed between the two of them has

nothing to do as to whether he shall answer or not.

MR. BURNABY : One of my reasons is that this Committee has no jurisdiction
in this matter there is nothing that affects any member of the House or any
member of the Government.

MR. LENNOX: You have been over-ruled in that.

THE CHAIRMAN : I ruled on it and he says go on and ask questions, and he

has answered.

MR. LENNOX: I think you ought to put that vote again to the Committee

on that question.

MR. CURRY: But should the Committee not be in a position to know the good
faith that Mr. Burnaby showed at the time when that offer was made to him. If

this was written at the time immediately, when the matter was fresh, ought not

that to 'be in the minds of the Committee. I think they elhould have that

information.

MR. TOOMS: I would much rather see the correspondence which took place

between Mr. Burnaby and the Government before voting on this matter. It would

help me to decide. My mind is not surely made up on this matter.

THE CHAIRMAN : Mr. Burnaby is not represented by counsel and I am going*

to do everything I can to indicate a spirit of fairness. Personally I do not think

the correspondence has anything to do with the question as to whether he shall

or shall not answer the question, but I am going to read it. From the Premier to

Mr. Burnaby, dated June 28, 1920. (reads) :

Toronto, June 28, 1920.

Dear Mr. Burnaby :

My attention has been drawn to the press accounts of your statement made at,

Kettleby, on June 23rd, in which you asserted that you had been offered a bribe

of $1,000 a year to use your influence in favour of the appointment of some un-

named person as Purchasing Agent by the Government. You will, of course, under-

stand the seriousness of your statement. This position has not yet been filled and

it may be that among the applicants is the very man who offered you this bribe.

It therefore becomes necessary that you should give whatever information you have

in this maititer to the Government, in order that wie may be on our guard. You will

be doing less than your duty if you endeavor to shield the one who has been guilty of

such an offence. I would thank you for your prompt attention to this matiter.

Yours very sincerely.

R. W. E. Burnaby, Esq.,

Jefferson, Ontario.

THE CHAIRMAN: Then another letter from the Premier to Mr. Burnaby

of the 15th of July, 1920. He says:
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Toronto, 5th July, 1920.

Dear Mr. Burnaby:
A few days ago 1 sent you a letter with reference to a statement made by you

at Kettleby on the 23rd of June, 'but up to the present time I have not had the

pleasure of hearing from you.
In case my communication has been mislaid or gone astray I am forwarding

you another copy and will be glad to hear from you at your earliest convenience.

Yours very truly.

E. W. E. Burnaby, Esq.,

TJ.F.'O. Headquarters,

Toronto, Ont.

THE CHAIRMAN: Then, third, there is a letter from Mr. Burnaby to the

Premier, of the 10th of July, 1920 :

July 10th, 1920.

The Hon. E. C. Drury,

Parliament Buildings,

Toronto, Ont.

Dear Mr. Drury :

In reply to yours of June 28th and July 5th, would say that immediately

upon receiving yours of June 28th I telephoned your office but found you were

away. I gave the information you desire to Mr. Raney. and he promised to convey
it to you.

Yours faithfully,

(Signed) R. W. E. Burnaby..

THE CHAIRMAN : Then there is simply a memorandum for Mr. Grant en-

closing copy of memo, sent Mr. McCutcheon, and his reply. Who is M.C., the

initials ?

THE PREMIER : I cannot say.

THE CHAIRMAN : Then there is a communication from Mr. Raney to Mr.

McCutcheon, June 29th, this was the day following the letter of the Premier to

Mr. Burnaby:
Toronto, June 29, 1920.

Dear Mr. McCutcheon:

You no doubt saw Mr. Burnaby's reference to somebody who had offered him
a bribe of $1,000 for his influence in securing the position of Purchasing Agent.

Mr. Drury wrote Mr. Burnaby asking him for the name of the party, and he

now advises me over the phone that the initials and the last letter of the surname

are "J.S.F y." This will sufficiently identify the party to enable you to ascertain

whether he is on the list of applicants for the position.

You may if you please let me hear from you after you have made a search.

Yours sincerely,

(Sgd.) W. E. Raney.
J. M. McCutcheon, Esq.,

Civil Service Commissioner.
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THE CHAIRMAN : And then Mr. McCutcheon writes back on July 2nd, 1920,

and says:

July 2nd, 1920.

Hon. W. E. Kaiiey,

Attorney-General,
Parliament Buildings.

Dear Sir:

I have your letter of June 29, and wish to advise tljiat there is no name on the

list of applicants for the position of General Purchasing Agent with the initials

and the last letter of the surname "J.S.F y."

Yours truly,

(Sgd.) J. M.'McCutcheou.

MR. DEVVART : Well, of course, he might have thought, he might have applied
to the Government.

PREMIER DRURY: Well, he did not apply to the Government at ali.

THE CHAIRMAN: This file of correspondence will go in as one exhibit and

will go in as Exhibit 1, the understanding being that it can be copied and returned

to the Premier's office. That being the situation I am going to ask for a vote now
on the question as to whether or not the ruling of the chair, that Mr. Burnaby
must give the name of this gentleman, "J.S.F y," shall be sustained. Now, then,

the motion is sha'll the ruling of the chair be sustained ?

MR. LENNOX : Honorable members will know that if the name is given we

will have the opportunity of calling this man to give evidence here. He might
come forward and admit it.

HON. MEMBER : Mr. Burnaby says he won't give the name.

THE CHAIRMAN : Well, of course, if he goes down and occupies a lonely cell

011 bread and water for several days he will probably change his mind. All those

who are in favour?

On the vote being put the Chairman declared the motion to sustain the ruling

of the chair to have been lost.

MR. DEWART : I ask for the ayes and nays.

THE CHAIRMAN : The ruling of the chair has been reversed and Mr. Burnaby
will not be required to give the name. Certain honorable members asked for the

ayes and nays. The Clerk will take the ayes and nays.

The ayes and nays were then recorded by the Clerk.

THE -CHAIRMAN: Now, then, are there any further questions?

MR. FERGUSON : In view of the ruling, no.

THE 'CHAIRMAN: Has any othe*r honorable member any questions to ask?

MR. LENNOX : Do you know Mr. Farquharson, reporter for The Globe ?

A. Yes.

Q. Is he the reporter who was present at the picnic ?

A. I am not sure. Yes, I think he was.

Q, And did the reporter for The Globe after the meeting get into communi-

cation with you, and read you the report that he was going to have .published the

next day?
A. No. Not that I recall.

Q. Did he call you up by telephone? Did you call him up?
A. No.
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Q. Did you see the report of your speech with respect to this prior to its

appearance in the Press?

A. No.

Q. Was it read to you prior to its publication ?

A. No.

Q. Then was there any arrangement with any member of the Government or

any suggestion on the part of any member of the Government that this statement

should be made at that picnic.

A. Yes, I mentioned it to a member of the Government, that I was going to

make a statement.

Q. What member of the Government did you mention it to?

A. Mr. Raney.

Q. What did you say to Mr. Raney ?

A. I just said I was going to make a statement.

Q. Just give me the words you used to -him?

A. As far as I can recall, "I am going to tell the picnic at Kettleby, to-morrow,
about my bribery charge."

Q.-^Anything else said ?

A. That is all that I recall.

Q. Did Mr. Raney ask you what it was? Did lie show any interest in it by

making any enquiries?
A. I think I probably told him about it.

Q. Did you tell him probably what appears in the report?
A. Oh, no.

Q. Well, now, you say you probably told him. Let us understand what your
recollection is of what you really did tell him ?

A.- -Well, I object to these questions, Mr. Chairman. I did everything that

mortal man could do to protect the Province against this man, and this looks more
like a political game than anything else to me.

MR. L I:\NOX; Don't you be too uneasy about the political aspect. I suppose
your statement was not political?

THE CHAIRMAN: What did you do towards punishing the briber?

A. There was no bribery. I refused to do what is wrong and we have all

had such experience.
THE CHAIRMAN : He was committing a criminal offence. What did you do

towards securing his punishment? Nothing at all? If you don't want to answer
that question say you don't want to.

A. AH right.

MR. LEX NO v: What drid you tell Mr. Raney before you made that speech at

Kettleby?

A. I have answered that question, Mr. Chairman.

PREMIER DRURY: Was that before you made the statement?

MR. TOLMIE That question is quite legitimate? Did he deliberately, after

talking the matter over with the Attorney General, make the statement? Now we

want to know what was said.

MR. CALDER : If he went out deliberately an-d made this speech then we should

have all information.

MR. LENNOX : What did you say to Mr. Raney prior to making this speecn ?

THE CHAIRMAN: What clo you say as to this?
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A. I think I have answered the question.

THE CHAIRMAN: Just answer again and tell him briefly what you told him,

just in effect.

A. 1 told him, "I am going to tell the picnic at Kettleby, to-morrow, about my
bribery charge/'

THE CHAIRMAN : And was that as far as you went ?

A. I told him what it was.

Q. Did you tell him the name?
A. No, I told him a man. had offered me this thousand dollars bribe if I could

get the job as Purchasing Agent for him.

PREMIER DRURY : Where did you tell him that ?

A. In his own office.

THE CHAIRMAN : Did you go to him because he was Attorney General ?

A. I just happened to be there on other business.

THE CHAIRMAN : Did Mr. Raney ask for the name of the individual that had

done this?

A. I think he did.

Q. And what did you tell him?
A. I did not give it to him.

MR. LENNOX : How long was that before you made the speech ?

A. I cannot tell you.
MR FERGUSON : He said "to-morrow."

A. Well, I did not mean to say to-morrow. It doesn't matter. I don't know

just exactly when it was.

MR. LENNOX : Tell us what Mr. Raney told you. Tell us what Mr. Raney said.

You had told him about a criminal offence that occurred. Now what position did

he take

A. I don't just recall. Why not bring Mr. Raney and ask him?
THE CHAIRMAN: We are not trying Mr. Raney. If it should be necessary

we will cafll him.

THE PREMIER: I have sent for Mr. Raney. I think he should hear this.

THE CHAIRMAN: Would you rather we would wait until he comes?

PREMIER DRURY : I think so.

MR. CUBBY : The other point of this charge that this committee has something
to do with, that is as to the portion of the charge in which he said, "This thing

has been going on for years".

MR. LENNOX: Well, you go on with that and we wall wait. Have you any

objection to this going on?

MR. CURRY : No objection. But we have no jurisdiction.

MR. LENNOX : Well, you say we have not although we have and the Chairman

says we have.

(to Mr. Raney)
THE CHAIRMAN: In order that you may understand, the situation is that

Mr. Burnaby says not. This offer was made to him, and before lie made this

speech at Kettleby in which he made the statement which we read in the house, he

was in your office on some other matter and he mentioned it to you casually that

he at -tine picnic was going -to tell the public a'bouit the attempt that had been made

to bribe him. He says that according to his recollection he told you the circum-

stances and you asked him for the name of the individual.
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MR. LENNOX : He said he did not tell Mr. Eaney.
THE CHAIRMAN : And that Mr. Eaney asked Mr. Burnaby for the name of

the man who had attempted to bribe him and M.T. Burnaby refused to give it, or

said he did not desire to give it. That is as far as we have got.

MR. LENNOX : Then, do you recall what Mr. Eaney said to you when you dis-

closed this information about the bribe ?

A. No, I do not recall.

Q. You have no recollection?

A. No.

Q. Well, did die suggest that you should explode it at the picnic, or not?

A. Certainly, not.

Q. After you had told him ?

A. No.

Q. Did he ask you to refrain from making the reference to it ?

A. No, I do not think so.

Q. Now, are you sure that it was not the understanding between you and the

Attorney-General that this statement was to be made the next day at tne picnic?
A. It certainly was not the understanding because I did not take it up that

way. I said I might say it. It certainly was not the understanding.
PREMIER DRUR/Y : You were making up your mind entirely independently ?

A. Certainly.

Q. You did not ask Mr. Eaney whether you should or should not.

A. No. And he did not express an opinion..

MR. LENNOX : Then what was your object, in view of the Premier's question,

in going to Mr. Eaney or telling him anything about it?

A. I just happened to be there and I mentioned it at the time.

Q. On, other business?

A. Yes, on other business.

Q. We won't bother you about. the other business, but then was the subject

discussed between you and Mr. Eaney?
A. It was just mentioned.

Q. Had you any object in view when you mentioned it to Mr. Eaney?
A. No. It was just at the time of the Hick's charges. Mr. Hicks and I were

going to this picnic together. It was just mentioned in conversation.

MR. LENNOX: I might just mention for the benefit of the Attorney General

that Mr. Burnaby objects to telling the name of the man amongst other reasons on

account of criminal action that may be brought against him. It has been explained

to him that anything he says here he need have no fear of.

THE CHAIRMAN: That is, Mr. Eaney, he has refused to give the name of

the man who made the offer on the ground that if he gives the name he will be in

this position, that this man can bring an action against him for slander, and that

there was no one there except himself and the man, no other witnesses, and he

.fears he would not be able to prove his charges, that is he would not be able to

successfully defend an action for libel.

MR. BURNABY: And, besides, I still maintain that this committee has no

jurisdiction,.

MR. BANEY : Well, that is what I was wondering about and I was going to ask.

MR. CURRY: Mr. Burnaby waived jurisdiction.

MR. FERGUSON : This is what Mr. Burnabv is said to have stated : "I know
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nothing about the famous bribery charge that has been delighting the press lately,'"

the U.F.O. President said, "but I want to tell you ladies and gentlemen, that

this thing has been going on for years. Thank God, I am not in- the Government,
but 1 have been oilVred a bribe and 1 can back up my statement. When the Gov-

ernment advertised for a purchasing agent at a salary of $6,000 a year, I was offered

$1,OOO a year if I would use my influence to have a certain man appointed, the

$1,000 to continue as long as he held the job. 1 tokl him that 1 would use my
influence, but see that he did not get the job/

7

MR. BURNABY : Well, it should be "to see."

MR. CURRY : And counsel has informed us that in regard to the last charge
this committee has no jurisdiction.

MR. FERGUSON : 1 did not put it that way. I said I did not think this com-

mittee would have jurisdiction at all except if it were not for this part of the

statement, "But I want to tell you ladies and gentlemen, this thing has been going
on for years." that is, referring to the bribery charges. My information was that

reference gave this committee jurisdiction because it was something that reflected

on the honors of the members of the Legislature.
MR. 'CuRRY : Accusations have beei\ going on

MR. LENNOX: You s'aid accusations. He adapted what you so kindly said.

The word was never referred to by him until you put it in his mouth.

MR. CURRY: Quite so.

THE CHAIRMAN : Mr. Burnaby took objection at the outset that -the com-

mittee had not any jurisdiction. I put it to him and asked whether he objected to

giving evidence 'before the committee on that ground, was he willing in the public

interest to waive any objection of that kind he might have. He said he was willing

to waive it and we went ahead on that understanding.
HON. MR. RANEY : Does that leave still the question that was raised by Mr.

Ferguson-. You have a certain portion of this statement which is said to be within

the jurisdiction of this committee. Now the fact that the witness waives juris-

diction is neither here nor there. If there is no jurisdiction, there is no jurisdiction.

MR. FERGUSON : The only point is these statements are linked together.

HON. MR. RANEY: Well, you come back to somebody made a statement to Mr.

Burnaby Avhich does not affect the honor of members of this house.

HON. MEMBER: I don't think so.

MR. BURNABY: Docs it concern, even the Government? Does it concern the

Government to know who this man was?

THE CHAIRMAN : T think it does. I should think lie might be liable to

prosecution.

MR. BURNABY: Well, that is a different aspect. Thiis Committee is not laying

the foundation of criminal charges.

THE CHAIRMAN: This committee has already ruled upon appeal that Mr.

Burnaby should not be required to give the name. That has been dispensed with.

Xow what is the point?
MR. FERGUSON: The only point, as I understand it, is Mr. Lennox's inter-

rogation as to the conversation that took place between the witness and the Attorney

General prior to the statement he made at the picnic. Mr. Lennox wanted to know

the purport of what you said. He has told what he said but not what yon said.

He said the Attorney General asked him for the name of the individual and

that he refused to give it.

MT?. "\YTDDIFTELD: Tin's committee has ruled that it is not necessary. Wliy
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go on investigating?
MR. FERGUSON : 1 suppose Mr. Lennox wants to ask something further.

MR. LENNOX: 1 want the conversation, that took place between the Attorney
General and the witness.

MR. BURNABY: There was certainly very little and I do not recall it at all.

1 just mentioned it. As far as I recall -it, it was a casual remark.

Mi;. LKXXOX: Did Mr. Kaney insist, as Attorney General of this Province,

upon fin-ding out the man who had committed a criminal offence?

A. He asked me for the name and I refused to give it.

Q. More than once?

A. I do not know.

MR. LKNNOX: Tell me what you mean by this, 'I can back my statement up/
What does that mean:'

A. 1 do not know that 1 made that statement.

Q. Well, you swore that it was substantially correct. Did you make that

statement ?

A. I do not think so.

Q. Nothing that would give that impression?
A. I do not think so.

Q. I have a report here from the Aurora Banner which contains the same

statement, almost identical with The Globe's.

A. 1 think probably it was copied from The Globe.

Q. Am I to understand that you did not say that you could back up your
statements?

A. I don't think I said it no.

Q. Well, if you did say it, wtmld it be true?

A. Well, T have already pointed out how impossible it would be to prove it.

It would he one man's word against another's.

Q. But if you made that statement would it be true? You could back

up the statement?

A. That is the reason I object to giving the man's name.

Q. Then what did you say when you said, "Thank God, I am not in the

Government?

A. I don't think I said that?

Q. Will you swear you did not say that?

A. No. It doesn't make any difference. I will make the statement now if

you wrant me to.

Q, Thank God, you are not in the Government?

A. Yes.

Q. Well, I agree with you. Now I want you to tell me do you know whether

the Attorney General conveyed the information you gave him to the Prime

Minister?

A. Well, he said he would. The evidence here shows that he did.

Q. Then did you have any conversation with the Attorney General other than

the occasion- he refers to in his letter subsequent to the date of the picnic?

A. I have no letter from the Attorney-General.

Q. Did you see any ?

A. No.

Q. Did you speak to the Prime Minister about it afterwards?
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THE -CHAIRMAN : On the 28th, or on the 29th you telephoned the Prime Min-
ister. He was away and then you got in touch with Mr. Raney.

A. We had no conversation regarding the matter. I just gave him the

information.

Q. Did you again, after that again, have any conversation with Mr. Raney
with respect to this matter ?

A. Oh, not for a long time afterwards.

Q. Weil, when?
A. I cannot tell you just exactly when/but it would be two or three months

ago.

Q. What occurred then ?

A. I think I spoke to Mr. Raney over the telephone and asked him if he
could recall the matter, and he said, "Well I have a very faint recollection of it."

He could not recall the details of it.

Q. What was your object in getting in touch with Mr. Raney two or three

months ago?
A. The question was raised in our conversation. I just mentioned it.

Q. Well, there must have been some reason for it

A. I don't recall just exactly the reason.

Q. Do you recollect what Mr. Raney said to you, over the telephone ?

A. He just told me he had a very faint recollection of it.

Q. He would not stop at that, surely. Did he say anything else?

A. I don't recollect.

Q. I think you did say, if the impression got abroad from your statement

that members of the Legislature had1 been bribed, that there is no foundation for it,

so far as you know.

THE CHAIRMAN : He said he knew of nothing.
ME. BURNABY: You remember the word Mr. Curry gave us?

MR. LENNOX: Mr. Curry isn't giving evidence. Have you any reason from

anything you know to even, suspect any member present, sitting in the Legislature
or any member who ever has sat in the Legislature ?

A. Certainly not. I have already answered that question.

THE CHAIRMAN: One thing I don't get. You remember saying that Morri-

son, when the man was going away all that Mr. Morrison, could see was his back?

Did Mr. Morrison know the man?
A. No, he doesn't know him.

MR. LENNOX: You say that Mr. Morrison was present but not in the same

room?
A. No, I did not say that.

Q. Is that correct?'

A. What do you mean by that ?

Q. You say he saw him going down the stairs ?

A. You are not familiar with the TJ.E.O. offices, or you would understand

how it happened.

Q. I am trying to get familiar. Where was Mr. Morrison at the time this

offer was made to you ?

A. I do not know.

Q. Was he in the building?
A. He must have been.

Q. Where was he when he saw this man, the back of this man going out?
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A. He was behind him. The man was going down the stairs and Mr. Morrison

saw the fellow was in a fluster and he said, "What is the matter with that fellow?"

And I told him what happened.
THE CHAIRMAN : But you did not tell Mr. Morrison his name, and never

have ?

A. No.

THE CHAIRMAN: Are there any other members would like to ask questions?
ME. BURNABY : I have never given, anybody his name.

MR. TOLMIE: Just one question, I would like to ask if in the conversation

you had with the Attorney-General,, when I understand that you casually told "him

you might tell the people, do you recall the Attorney-General having asked who
it was?

A. No, I do not recall.

Q. He didn't make any comment?
A. I didn't say he didn't. I say I don't recall.

Q. To the best of your recollection he didn't advise you one way or the other ?

A. I don't recall it.

MR. WEBSTER : When you made this statement that this matter had been

going on for year% did you mean that the bribery had been going on for years or

that the talk about bribery had been circulating around for years?
A. That is what I said, exactly.

MR. OKE : I would like to know whether Mr. Morrison knew this gentleman
or whether he had reason to believe Mr. Morrison knew him ?

A. I know Mr. Morrison didn't know him. The Chairman asked me the

same question.

MR. LENNOX: Do you know where the man lives?

A. No, I don't. He lives in Toronto.

Q. /As soon as we find his name it would be no trouble to ascertain his

whereabouts.

A. I haven't seen him since.

Q. Can you tell us his occupation ?
,

A. No, I cannot.

Q. Had you been acquainted with him prior to the time he approached you
with this offer?

A. Yes.

Q. How long had you known him ?

A. I had known him a great many years.

Q. ^What was his position during the time you knew him?

A. That is going over the same ground again, and we have had a ruling on

that. There is no public object to be gained and I object.

MR. LENNOX: I ask that the question be answered.

THE CHAIRMAN: The Committee has ruled that he is not bound to give the

man's name. Mr. Burnaby has said he is a man he knew at that time and that

he has known him many years, and that he lives in Toronto. I will interpret the

ruling of the Committee as meaning that he is not obliged to give information by

which the man could be identified, and I will have to rule that he is not bound to

answer a question as to what the man's occupation is. I think that interprets the

desire of the Committee.

MR. LENNOX : That ruling is based upon the fact that he refuses to give the



562 APPENDIX No. -3.

answer to the question because it may identify the person v\ho offered him a im
THE CHAIRMAN : Yes.

M\. LENNOX: "Well, you are backing up the statement pretty well.

THE CHAIRMAN : Is there anyone else the Committee desires to examine on

this matter?

MR. LENNOX: I believe the Attorney-General might offer some information.

I suggest that the Attorney-General tell us what he knows about it.

It was thereupon moved that the Attorney-General be called and the motion*

being put to a vote was carried by 15 to 7.

'Hon. W. E. Raney called and sworn ; examined by 'Mr. Ferguson.
MR. FERGUSON : You heard the charges referred to this Committee for investi-

gation, and some evidence has been given by Mr. Burniaby with reference to a con-

versation between you and him, before he made his speech at the picnic at Kettleby.
Will you tell the Committee your recollection of the conversation you had with

Mr. Burnaby?
MR. RANEY : My recollection is not distinct, but 1 recall him speaking to me

in my office I think it was one evening about the time of the Hicks incident

and saying that some bribe had been offered him. I have no recollection of him

stating anything about his understanding regarding the matter or mentioning any-

thing about the picnic, or saying anything about it elsewhere, but if he recollects

saying that I would not contradict him. My entire recollection of it is as I have

given it to you.

Q. You cannot recollect anything further regarding this statement?

A. No, I recall something was said here to-day. I think the Premier

wrote'a letter to me asking for some information and Mr. Burnaby. I think, called

me on the phone and gave me some information.

Letter produced and identified by Mr. Raney.
MR. RANEY: Yes, apparently Mr. Drury wrote to Mr. Burnaby and Mr.

Burnaby perhaps wasn't able to communicate with Mr. Drury, or Mr. Drury was

out of town.

Q. Yes, he said he didn't get Mr. Drury, he said he got you?
A. I then wrote to Mr. McCutcheon giving him the information given me

by Mr. Burnaby.

Q. That was a telephone conversation ?

A. I think so.

Q. There is nothing else you know about the matter?

A. No.

MR. LENNOX: Did you take any steps as Attorney-General to find. out the

party who offered this bribe?

'A. NO.

Q. Did you realize at the time that it was a criminal offence?

A. I suppose so, yes. But the thing came to me in. that way. You could

come to me and tell me something of the sort but I would not feel free to act the

part of a spy or informer.

Q. I quite agree with you there.

MK. OKE: In view of the fact that Mr. Burnaby was not a member of this

House, and being asked that question, would you say then it was a criminal offence?

A. I would not like to enter upon a discussion of that. It might or it

might not, be. Perhaps Mr. Curry is better able to answer that, I think it would
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verge pretty closely to a criminal offence.

MR. CURRY : I think it is an offence to offer a man money to use his influence

improperly, and that would be improperly. I do not think there is any doubt

about it.

MR. LENNOX : You no doubt saw the report in the Press of the statement

made by Mr. Burnaby at the Kettleby Picnic?

A. I don't recall it.

Q'. At all events it was brought to your attention, that a bribe had been offered

because you got into communication with Mr. McCutcheon the letter shows that?

MR. ORE : I would like to clear that question up ; if that is a criminal offence

then it looks to me as if it would be an- offence for a member of this Government

to use his influence to get a man a job in. connection with this Government?
MR. 'OuRRY : For a consideration, yes.

MR. LENNOX: After it became public property by the appearance of the

statement in the press did you take any action ?

A. No.

Q. You took no action ?

A. No.

Q. Did you at any time as Attorney-General, discuss that aspect of the case

with Mr. Burnaby or with an}' member of the Goveroment?
A. I don't think I did with Mr. Burnaby, any conversation I had in the

matter was, I should think, with the Premier.

THE CHAIRMAN : I don't think you should give that.

MR. LENNOX : I am not going to ask what took place. I suppose that is a

matter we are not entitled to know. Now coming down to the second conversation.

Did you get in touch with Mr. Burnaby or did he see you for the second conversa-

tion ?

A. Before I wrote the letter to Mr. McCutcheon ?

Q. Mr. Burnaby told us that two or three months ago he again got in touch

wih you?
A. My ivcolhvtioii of that is that it was subsequent to this matter being

mentioned in the House.

Q. He .-ays it was long before that ?

A. My recollection differs from that. It was shortly after a day or so

the time it came up in the House. My recollection is that it was in connection

with what he had seen in the paper, that he was likely to be summoned.

Q. Did you send for him or did he come to see you?
A. I don't think he came to see me. He telephoned me.

Q. What is your recollection of what he said and of what you said ?

MR. BUUNAF.Y: May I just say this? That was on the 19th or 20th of Janu-

ary, that that conversation took place.

MR. RANEY: Then it must have been before the House met. I do not re-

member what took place, but I remember him calling me on the telephone.

Q. You don't remember what he said?

A. No.

Q. And you don't remember what he said?

A. No.

Q. Have you seen him sin-ce ?

A. Not unless my impression about his having spoken to me since the matter

was raised in the House is 'correct. I only recall him speaking to me once after
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giving me this information. iMy impression was that it was after the matter was
raised in the House. I apparently was wrong if there was only the one occasion.

Q. You haven't been in communication with him within the last few weeks ?

A. No.

MR. BURNABY: There was a second conversation with Mr. R'aney, the one

he referred to, a few weeks ago. I called him when this thing came up in, the

paper. I asked him if I had to appear 'before the Committee, and he said, "if

they summon you, you will have to."

MR. RANEY : That is the one I referred to.

MR. HAY: I would like to ask the Attorney-General if, since he has been in

his present position these cases of bribery* have been so numerous that he recalls

any others reported to him in which n-o action has been taken?

A. I don't think I have heard of any the public hasn't heard of. Those I

have heard of are those, the subject of inquiry before this Committee. Frankly
I have not been much impressed by them.

MR TOLMIE: Do you remember Mr. Raney when the matter was casually
mentioned to you in the first place whether you asked for the name of the man.?

A. I don't recall that.

MR. HAY: 'You would not be interested in prosecuting anyone for bribery
for a thousand or so?

MR, LENNOX : This was $1,'(XX) a year.

MR. HAY : As Attorney-General I think you might have been interested ?

MR. RANEY: If you came to me and said someone had offered you a bribe

I would not feel free unless you told me who it was, to take action. I am not

seeking to exonerate myself. If anyone wants to blame me they are free to do so.

MR. LENNOX : That might be an excuse that might be proffered if that state-

ment hadn't been made at the picnic and become public property.

MR. RANEY: I don't say it was an excuse, Mr. Lennox. I am not making
excuses. I am telling the facts. If I am to be excused it will not be by myself. I

am not asking to be excused.

Q. You didn't make any efforts to ascertain who it was ?

THE CHAIRMAN : He said that.

The witness was then excused.

MR. HALL : Before this Committee dissolves I want to have a wort! to say. I

had a matter that was to be put before this 'Committee. I un-dersand it was put
before the Committee in my absence. The solicitor told me that when the time-

came I would be notified I was not notified and the case was dealt with without

my having the courtesy shown nite of having an opportunity to listen to the de-

liberations on it. Now I have some inquiries in. regard to the matter and I under-

stand that the Committee were quite satisfied that inasmuch as this matter was

a transaction of the Telegram that it was of such small moment that we need not

go into it. If that was the ruling of the Committee that the Telegram's state-

ment was so unreliable and not worth bringing before this Committee then I am

satisfied.

THE CHAIRMAN: The ruling of the 'Committee was based upon opinion of

much as the statements of the Telegram which Mr. Hall complained of in, the

House were not statements having reference to Mr. Hall in his capacity as a inem&er

of the Legislature or reflected upon him in his capacity as a member of the Legis-
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lature therefore the matter was not properly before the Committee, that the Com-
mittee had no jurisdiction in the matter. The Committee decided not to take up
the time of the Committee or of the House in investigating something this Com-
mittee had no jurisdiction over, not that it was too small a matter.

MR. HALL: I hold that this Committee didn't understand the case, or else

the solicitor didn't understand the case.

ME. CURRY: The solicitor had the charge before him.

MR. HALL : I don't care what he had. I know this case better than he does.

I was not mayor of the town. I was referred to as R. R. Hall, M.P.P., in, black-

face type.

MR. FERGUSON: .That doesn't make any difference. The charge has to be

made in relation to your position as a member of the House. If you want redress,

you will have to go to the Courts.

MR. HALL: Wasn't I a member of the House? I wasn't mayor, I was a

member.

MR. FERGUSON: I want to make myself clear. I was not aware that the

Hall matter was going to be dealt with on the day it came up. I was asked and

gave my opinion that the charge in the Telegram had nothing to do with Mr. Hall

as a member of the Legislature. The charge was a personal one and if he happened
to be a member of the Legislature at the time that was merely an incident. If Mr.

Hall desires a remedy he will have to go to the Courts'.

MR. HALL: I was only a member at the time. I wasn't mayor.
THE CHAIRMAN : Does the Committee desire to take any action on the state-

ment in the Telegram?
HONORABLE MEMBERS: No.

MR. HALL: I said I was satisfied if that was the Committee's view, as re-

ported to me, that the charge? in the Telegram were of such small moment that

it was not worth while investigating them.

MR. WEBSTER : I would like to say, as the member who moved Hie motion

that +hp Committee take no notion thnt apart from the ndvire sjivon *w Mr. F<T-

guson T thono-ht no one should take the Telegram v^rv seriouslv anvwav.

The Conmittee then adjourned after appointing a sub-Committee to draft

a report for submission to the House.
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EXHIBITS

Exhibit No.

Toronto, March 10th, 1921.

Dear Mr. Hicks:

I enclose copy of your letter of the 23rd June lasit.

I have the original on file if you should desire it.

Yours sincerely,

W. E. BANEY
Andrew Hicks, Esq., M. P. P.

Encl.

June. 23rd 1920.

Hon. W. E. Baney,

Attorney General,

Parliament Buildings,,

Toronto.

Bear Sir,

I have read the letter written 'to you by Mr M. C. Fox, M. P. P. dated the

"22nd. inst. which you showed me to-day.

The statement that I made at London with reference to moneys being avail-

able to members of the Legislature to corruptly influence their votes on matters

"before the House at the late 'Sessiort, was based entirely upon a remark made to me

by Mr. Fox. Apart from that statement I have no information whatever as to

any approaches having been made to any of the Legislature to corruptly influence

his action in respect to any legislation before the House. Xo money was ever offerecl

to me, and so far as I know,, no money was offered to any other member of

the House, and no improper proposal ever made in that connection either directly

or indirectly.

I, of course, accept Mr. Fox's statement with out reservation. Apparently the

whole matter was based on a misunderstanding on my part of his remark.

Yours very truly,

(sd) ANDREW HICKS.

This i$ exhibit 1 referred to in the evidence of J. D. Taylor given before the

committee on Privileges and Elections this 26tk day of April, 1921. E. L.

P>r<i ck in, ch airm cm .

Kingsville, June 22nd, 1920.

Bear Sir:

In anfcwer to your inquiry witih reference to statements that have appeared in

the press connecting my name with alleged offers of (money in the miatter of Amend-
ment of the Beach Protection Act of last session I desire to say that no one ever

approached me either directly or indirectly with any offer of montey or other corrupt

proposal in connection with this Legislation. "Nat only so but no one has ever

approached me since I have 'been a member or fthe Legislature with any offer of

money or cornipt proposal in connection with any matter whatsoever.
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I think I can understand how Mr. Hicks received the impression which he

appears to have. There; was before the session of the Legislature litigation

periling between the Township of Pelee Island and the Sandusky Company which

has been engaged in removing sand under the waters adjoining Pelee Island, the

Township authorities claiming that the operatoions of the Sand Company were caus-

ing the erosion of the shores of the Island. The company offered to pay to the Town-

ship the sum of $50,0-00.00 in settlement of that action and the offer was refused

by the Township Council. I recall mei&ioning to Mr. Hicks the fact that the com-

pany had offered $50,000.00 to settle the matter. I had no thought that he would

understand that I meant by that statement that any money had been offered to the

niemberrs of the Legislature or that there had been anything improper ^in the pro-

posal.

Yours sincerely!,

(sgd.) M.C. Fox

Hox. W. E. 1UNEY,

Attorney General,

Toronto.

Exhibit No. 3

London, Out,, March 7. Ex-Aid. H. B. Ashplant, appearing as a represent-

ative of the Labor Committee opposing relief for the City Gas Company, created a

stormy time in the City Council to-night by asserting that the company could and

might bribe members of the Provincial Legislature to get its private bill enacted.

The Council by a vote of 9 to 3 decided to report to the Private Bills Com-
mittee that the city would deem as- faiir a service at cost agreement such as is in-

operation in Toronto, with the special provisions that capital stock should be lim-

ited to $400,000 and dividends to ten per cent., witih the stipulation that earnings
in excess of that amount should be utilized from timief to time to reduce charges to

consumer.?, and that the rate at the outset should be advanced from 90 cents to

$1.25.

Mr. Ashplant raised objection to this agreement, and declared that the com-

pany would find it possible to set aside sums of money to influence the vote of

members of the Legislature agair&t the interest of the citizens.

Mayor Protests.

"Suppose McCrea should be given $15,000 to get this through; suppose the

company should take a block of this stock and distribute it among the members of

the Legislature to get this through," he commenced, when Mayor Little interjected
a protest, declaring that he would not sit to hear the honour djf the Provincial Leg-
islators so impugned. Mr. Ashplant's rejoinder was that he had not said that this

would be donep but only that it could be donte, and, he added, it is the most natural

thing in the world if the company should do it.

John P. Thompson of the same deputation attempted to reinforce Mr. Ash-

plant's arguments, but the Council refused by a vote of 7 to 4 to hear him.

Aid. Wilson attacks Aid. Ashplant.'
Aid. J. C. Wilson, Chairman of <tJhe committee which negotiated the agree-

ment, hotly condemned Mr. Ashplant's address as the worst distortion of facts and

figures he had ever heard. Ponzi had nothing on you Mr. Aishplant,," he declared.
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"Your whole address has been purely and simply destructive, without one sugges-
tion otf a possibly better arrangement.

Votes 8 to 3.

The Mayor and the following Aldermer* voted in favor of the- agreement : Aid.

J. C. Wilson, Aid. John Bridge, Aid. Harley, Aid. Brighton, Aid. Boss, Aid. Drake

and Aid. A. Wilson. Three nays were recorded: Aid. Ashton, Aid. Wenige and

Aid. Watkinson. Toronto Globe, March 8, 12-1.

Exhibit No. 4

London, Ont., March 8. London wants an investigation of the statements of

ex-Alderman Ashrplant that members of the Legislature "could be bribed" regarding
the London Gas Company Bill.

Mayor Little said to-night : "I most certainly think that the statements made

by Mr. Asihplant warrant a rebuke from the Legislature. Because I felt his state-

ments should not go unchallenged I protested and left the meeting. The same

sort of loose talk has been allowed recently at several meetings conducted by these

people, notably at the meeting concerning unemployment a week ago, when E. A.

Pocock alleged that we had closed our industries and that I had taken up a collec-

tion to defray my election expenses. When Ashplant started the same thing before

the City Council last night I protested and if I had been in the chair I would not

have allowed him to speak another minfute.

"He said that the agreement proposed with the Gas Company would give the

company $144,000 of bonus stock which had come from the consumers. He said

there was nothing to prevent the company using it to secure this Legislation. When
he said tihat the company might well gtive $15,000 to Mr. McCrtea, I ati once left the

meeting an<d did not hear the finish of his speech.

Deems Either Allegation Insulting.

Aid. Frank E. Harley said: "I followed vtefry closely the astounding state-

ments made by Mr. Ashplant. I read The Globe report^ and those are his exact

words, stated absolutely correctly. In fact it is time that Mr. Ashplant's wild

statement reflecting alike on members of the Council and of the Legislature

should be curbed. I considered it a serious insult to members of the Private Bills

Committee, either the statement that the members might be bribed or the explan-

ation that they are open to be bribed. In either case the allegation is insulting

and demands an apology. Someone should stop his habitual insulting reference to

people in public office.

Council Aggrieved as Well.

Aid. J. C. Wilson* (Chairman of the special committee which negotiated the

agreement with the Gas Comrpany) said: "Absolutely the statement made by Mr.

Ashplant in his remarks, that the Gas Company might use stock to influence the

members of the Private Bills Committee, was unwarranted and insulting, and the

action of the Mayor in protesting anfd leaving the Council chamber was justified.

Mr. Ashplant's remarks were insulting not only to the members of the Private

Bills Committee, but to the members; of the Council, and that is> what I replied in

condemnation. I believe the Legislature should take what action is in their

power to make Mr. Ashplant apologize ar&l withdraw."

Time to Call a Halt.

Aid. JjoJhai Bridge stated: "The statement as given in The Globe is correct.
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If the Legislature has not arrived at a time to call a ihalt to loose talking sue!

as the statements made by Mr. Ashplant before the City Council last night, then

the Legislature deserves what it gfets."

Declares Apology Due.

Aid. G. B. Drake stated: "Unqualifiedly what Mr Ashplant said before the

Council was exactly as reported, namely, that the members of the Legislature

could be bribed by the Gas Company. The whole Council should have walked out

with the Mayor. The council was in committee of the whole,, Wiith Aid. Ashton

in the chair. If the Mayor had -been in the chair,, Mr. Ashplant would have been

put out of the chamlber. tSuch conduct is a disgrace to the City of London. Ash-

plant should make an apology to remove the stigma he has cast on the honour of

the members of the Private Bills Committee and the House."

Pretty Broad Statements.

Aid. W. A. Wilson said: "Ashplant said that the members of the Legis-
lature could or migM be bribed, and he was making some pretty broad statements.

He should apologize because he threw the reflection that the members of the

Legislature could be bribed.

No Doubt of What he Said.

Aid. William Boss stated: "Mr. Ashplanfb said that the Legislature could be

bribed by the Gas Company. There is no doubt of that. I was at the meeting and

heard exactly what he said/'

Took it as Reflection on Council.

Aid. B. F. Brighton said. "Ashplant made the statement that the Gas Company
might use the Money for bribery to get its higher rates agreement through. No
other meaning could be taken from his words. I took it as a seriou3 reflection on

the City Council. He has no right to cast unfair reflections on men in* public

office, and should apologize."

Wouldn't Contradict.

Aid. John Ashton (Laibor member elected by the group represented by Mr.

Ashplant's deputation) said: "I 'didn't take much notice of what he was saying; he
is so confusing. If the others say he said it I wouldn't contradict them. Hq
certainly must have said it.

Mr. Asliplant's Statement.

But Mr. Ashplant Stated that he had been "misunderstood." He was asked by
The Globe to tell what 'lie 'believes he did say, and1

gave the following as his account

"I said that the 'bill proposed involved giving the City Gas Company $144,,000
of bonus stock free, and that any company having such facilities would find it pas-

sible, if they chose to look upon it as a matter of investment, to pay out commisionfe

or fees to insure getting the measure through, I was arguing that if the company
felt like doing it, it could give its solicitor a good commission or fee, in a perfectly
honest, legitimate and straightforward way, to see that the bill would go through
I meant that it could give such mortey to Mr. Graydon^ or any solicitor, and then
it occurred to me that Mr. Graydon did not speak for his client in the Legislature
and that Mr. McCrea had spoken for the company, and I 'brought in the name of
Mr. McCrea in a purely incidental way to show that he was not intended. I meant
that such companies could give sums of money to three or four solicitors as is gen-
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erally done for propaganda purposes. Such, companies, when they do that sort of

thing, don't know and doi/t care, very often, just how the money is spent, provid-

ing they get what they want."

How it Works Out.

Mr. Asiiplant was asked how such propaganda usually works out in practise.

"These agents/' he -explained, "mingle with the memibers of the Legislature and in

private conversation they put forward their arguments and data and influence the

members without the members being aware of it."

"At what did the Mayor take offence when he protested and left the Council

Chamber?" Mr. As'hplant was asked.

"The Mayor gets mad at me on general principles/' he answered. "I suppose
that he took offence at my statement that the company could influence- the members
of the Legislature iif its behalf by such legitimate propaganda.*'

Exhibit No. 5

A maximum rate of $1.2'5 per 1,000 cubic feet for gas under a "service-at-coet"

plan similar to that on which the Consumers' Gas Company of Toronto operates

was agreed upon by tlhe City Council and representatives of the Company last night.

The proposal will be submitted Hx> the Legislature for ratification within a few days.

The plan was recommended by the special committee on gas after a two-hour

conference with the company in the afternoon. There was another lengthy and

warm di/scussion at the council meeting, in which H. B. Ashplant joined, as repre-

sentative of the Citizen's Committee.

Will Examine Boolcs.

Under the proposed settlement thio city will accept the company's capitaliz-

tion at $400,000. Of this $25.6,000 is paid-nip and $1-14,000 is to be transferred

from profits and loss account. The council is to have the right to examine the

company's books through its own auditors or other expert? it may choose. No
further stock is to be issued except for plant and main extensions, and any stock

issued is to be sold publicly. A reserve fund representing five per cent of the

company's assets is to be created to which all repairs and renewals will be charged.

Arty premium from the sale of bonds is to accrue to this account as well as any

operating surplus. Whenever the surplus in this fund is equal to a gas rate of five

cents the rate ite to be reduced by that amount. The company is to be allowed a

ten per cent, interest on the capitalization and $2,500 for (the [payment of a board of

directors of which the Mayor is one member. Any deficit in operation is to be

met from the reserve fund and may be paid hack out of earnings. The city is to be

permitted to purchase immediately at par $5,000 worth of stock.

"Pretty Steep/' says Wcniyr.

The council went into committee of the whole to consider the proposition
which was outlined by Aid. Cameron Wilson, chairman of the special committee

on gas. He pointed out that the three 'basic clauses of the agreement were the

amount if capitalization' to be allowed, the return on it, and the rate. Aid. Wenige

pointed out that the increase was 40 per cent. He thought it "pretty steep." Aid.

W. A. Wilson said that Toronto was already paying that rate. Aid. John Bridge
said other cities were paying more. Aid. Watkinson suggested sending the proposal
to the people for indorsation. Aid. Bridge and other memboiv said there wa* no
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time, as it had to come before the Legislature in two weeks.

Opposed ly Deputation.

H.B.Ashplant opposed the ibaisis of settlement. The 'intention of the Legisla-

ture! was that the consumer* and not the City Council (should be consulted, and this

had not been done, he contended. The ten per cent retum on $400,000 was equal
to six per cent on half a million. He gently inquired what was to prevent Charles

McCrea, the sponsor of the Gas Bill, and other members of the private bills eo>m-

mittee of the Legislature being given shares in the company to insure the passing
of the bill.

Mayor Withdraws.

Several Aldermen voiced their objection to this, and Mayor Little said he

would not sit and listen to isudi (statements. He withdrew from tine Council cham-
ber until Mr. Ashplant finished his address.. Mr. Ashplant argued that there would
be nothing wrong in the possibility he had suggested, 'but firmly held that it was
a "possibility." There was no reason! to change froni the 90 cent rate, he said.

Aid. Cameron Wilson replyng to the address, characterized it as the great-
est distortion of facts and figures and figures it had ever been his pleasure to bear.

Equal to Ponzi.

Ponzi had nothing on Ashplant, the Alderman said. Mr. Ashplant's whole

address had 'been nothing but destructive criticism. He characterized his handling
of figures ajs childish, and placed in the isame class his sniggiesltiioins that the matter be

submitted to a popular vote or a mass meeting. K the council was not capable of

representing the people it should resign. He believed that the seat of Government

was still at the City Hall.

"No
;

it's the next door." said Aid. Bridge, referring to the Labor Temple.
"It's at the Chamber of Commerce/' suggested Mr. Ashplant.
At this juncture J. F. Thompson, secretary of the Citizer/s Committee, rose

to join in the debate. Mr. Thompson's oratical efforts on previous occasions were

evidently recalled by the city fathers, as they watched the hands of the clock creep-

ing slowly toward the hour for adjournment.

Refused him an Audience.

"All right; we'll give you five minutes," said Aid. Ashton who was presiding.

"No, put it to a vote," demanded others.

Four Aldermen* favored giving him an audience ; six indicated that they could

struggle along without Ms help.

"They're afraid of him," was Mr. Thompson's caustic comment. "I'm not,

retorted Aid. Cameron Wilson who was one of the quartet which offered to hear

him. "Well, well we caji appeal unto Caesar/' wals Mr. Thompson's closing shot.

A vote on the proposal showed seven aldermen and the Mayor in favor of it.

and three aldidrmen opposed to it. The latter were Aldermen Watkinson, Wenige
and Ashton. Those in favor of it were : Aldermen Cameron Wilson, Wilson

Harley, Bridge, W. A. Wilson, Drake, Boss and Brighton.

Exhibit 5 referred to in the evidence of Herbert H. Perry. R. L. Brack in,

chairman. London Advertiser, March S, 1921.
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Exhibit No. 6

Detroit, Michigan,
U. S. A.

Mr. J. D. Taylor, M. P. P.

Wiarton, Ontario.

Dear Sir:

1 was handed some days ago a copy of the Toronto Star, in which I saw some-

tiling has been said in the Government about a remark that you made about being-

offered a sum of money to use your influence for the appointment of a certain man
to a Government position. Now I have thought that you might be placed in a some-

what awkward position over the matter, as I do not suppose you know my name, but

I am the man that called on you at your home near W&arton and amongst other

things I did suggest that you might very easily make $1,000' in this way, but I am

pleased to say that you absolutely refused to accept any money consideration for

your influences in any way.
I may say further that I had never met you until the day of our conversation

and I knew nothing whatever about you, but during the election I heard conflict-

ing stories about you arAl so I took the trouble to call on you for the sole purposte
of testing you out as to your honesty in Political matters.

I was not asked by any person to see you or to make any offer to you, bujt did

so -entirely of my own bet.

I thought it on'ly fair that I should write you on this matter, but hope my
action will get you into an}^ trouble.

I am now living in Detroit having left Owen Sound last fall.

W. Wilcox

Exhibit No. 7

Toronto, June 28th, 1920.

Dear Mr .Burnaby;

My attention hais been drawn to the press accounts of your statement made at

Rettleby on June 23rd., in which you asserted that you had been offered a bribe of

of $1,000. a year to use your influence in* favour of the appointment of some un-
named person as Purchasing Agent by the Government. You will, of course, under-
stand the seriousness of your statement. This poisiftion has not yet been filled and
it may be that among the applicants is the ve-ry man who offered you this bribe. If.

theerfore becomes nedefesary 'that you should give whatever information you have in

this matter to the Government, 'in order that we may be on our guard. You will
be doing less than your duty if you endeavor to shield the -one who has been -guilty
of such an offence. I would thank you for your (prompt attention to this matter.

Yours very sincerely.
E.W.E. Burnaby Esq..

Jefferson, Ontario.

Toronto, June 29th, 1920.
Dear Mr. McCutcheon;

You no doubt saw Mr. Burnaby's reference to somebody who had offered him
a bribe of $1,000 for his influence in securing the position of Purchasing Agent.

Mr. Drury wrote Mr. Burnaby asking him for the name of the party, and he
now advises me over the phone that the initials and the last letter of the surname
are "J. S'. F y This will sufficiently identify the party to enable you to ascer-
tain whether he is or* the list of applicants for the position.

You may if you please let me hear from you after you have made a search.
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Yours sincerely,

(sgd.) W. E. Raney.

J.M. McCuteheon, Esq.,

Civil 'Service Commissioner.

Toronto, July 2nd. 1920.

Hon. W. E. Raney
Attorney General,

Parliament Buildings.

Dear Sir;

I have your letter of June 29 till, and wish to advise that there is no name on the

list of applicants for the position of General,Enchasing Agent with the initials and

last letter of the surname "J.S. F y."

Yours truly,

(sgd.) J.M. McOutcheon.

Toronto 5th. July, 1920

Dear Mr. Burnaby,
A few dayis ago I sent you a letter with reference to a statement made by you

at Kettleby on the 23rd. of June, but up to the present time I have not had the

pleasure of hearing from you.
In casie my communication has been mislaid or gone astray I am forwarding

you another copy and will 'be glad to h^ar from you at your earliest convenience.

Yours very truly,
R.W.E. Burnaby Esq.,

U.F.O. Headquarters,

Toronto, Ontario.

THE
UNITED FARMERS OF ONTARIO.
Head Office

;
130 Kin'g Street, East.

Toronto, Ont.

July 10th. 1920.

The Hon. E .C. Drury,
Parliament Buildings,

Toronto, Ont.

Dear Mr. Drury,
In reply to yours of June 28th. and July 5th,, would say that immediately

upon receiving yourts of June 28th I telephoned your office but found you were

away. I gave the information which you desire to Mr. Raney and he promised to

convey it to you.

Yours faithfully,

(sgd.) R.W.E. Burnaby
B-M.
Not part of Exhibit 1.

ONTARIO.
DEPARTMENT OF ATTORNEY GENERAL

Toronto, July 13th, 1920.
Memo, for Mr. Grant ;

T onrlo^e for your file a copy of the memo, sent Mr. McCntcheon and a copy
of bis reply.

End.

April 29-21. This file of correspondence is fyled as Exhibit 1. on the ex-
amination of R. W. E. Burnafoy. E. L. Br&ckin, chairman.
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